
Ancestors of Lucy Crocker (731)TC "Ancestors of Lucy Crocker (731)"
Generation OneTC "Generation One" \l 2
 
1.  Lucy1 Crocker (731)XE "Crocker:Lucy  (731) (1 Jan 1888-15 Jun 1973)" (Ernest, #2) was born on 1 Jan 1888 at Lavalleja 58, Montevideo, Uruguay (a las doce horas).  She married Robert Richard Gieschen (4)XE "Gieschen:Robert Richard  (4) (25 Feb 1884-25 Jun 1927)" on 2 Oct 1911 at Montevideo, Uruguay.  She died on 15 Jun 1973 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, at age 85.

Generation TwoTC "Generation Two" \l 2
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2.  Ernest Osborne2 Crocker (732)XE "Crocker:Ernest Osborne  (732) (23 Nov 1858-1918)" (Frederick, #4) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy (1968?), Page 158.) was born on 23 Nov 1858 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Information collected by Alma Elena Gieschen, British Episcopal Church.).  He married Lucy Ellen Allen (733)XE "Allen:Lucy Ellen  (733) (22 Jul 1863-1929)" on 24 Aug 1885 (Information collected by Alma Elena Gieschen.).  He died in 1918 at During trip in the USA, United States of N. America (Heart attack).

     (an unknown value) (Das Familienvermögen machte Euer Ur-apapa, Ernesto Osborne Crocker, der ein guter Geschäftsmann war und in einer Zeit lebte wo in Uruguay der Import begann, sodass was er auch ins Land brachte ihm reissend von der Hand ging. Aber er kümmerte sich selber um alles, reiste ins Innere des Landes um seine Landwirtschaftlichen Maschinen zu verkaufen, der este Gross-Importeur dieser Branche und wurde von der uruguayischen Regierung sehr geehrt wegen seiner Hilfe zur Entwickelung der Landwirtschaft. Im Familien archiv, was hoffentlich mal in Eure Hände kommt, haben mein Bruder Roberto Ernesto Gieschen, meine Schwester Alma und ich Ausschnitte von Zeitungen, Nachrufe und Briefe gesammelt, die vieles sagen. Eine kleine Anekdote die meine Mutter, Lucía Crocker (geb. am 1.1.1888) oft erzählte: Sie hätte ihren Vater mal gefragt wieso es käme, dass er immer so tätig war und sich immer einsetzte für andere? Antwort: Er wäre von Natur träge und weil er das wüsste suchte er sich immer neue Aufgaben. Leider starb er schon mit 58 Jahren auf Reisen an einem Herz-schlag in den Vereinigten Staaten. Seine Frau Lucía Elena Allen de Crocker holte den Sarg ab und reiste alleine mit dem Schiff nach Montevideo. Die Mitreisenden wunderten sich sehr über die so ernste, zurückhaltende Frau, immer freundlich, die ihr Leid mit grosser Würde trug

).

     Children of Ernest Osborne2 Crocker (732)XE "Crocker:Ernest Osborne  (732) (23 Nov 1858-1918)" and Lucy Ellen Allen (733)XE "Allen:Lucy Ellen  (733) (22 Jul 1863-1929)" (see #3) were as follows:


 
i.
Allen Osborne1 (1600)XE "Crocker:Allen Osborne  (1600) (8 Jun 1886-1963)" (Ernest Osborne Crocker to Ricardo Ernesto Rain. 16-06-95 RT. 1, Box 50 - Kinard - Florida 32449 - USA. (1995).) was born on 8 Jun 1886 at Montevideo, Uruguay (Allen Osborne Crocker, Baptismal Register, 17 July 1887, "Allen O. Crocker, Baptismal Record," Page 34, N§ 269, British Episcopal Church.).  He married Edith Frances Carson (1829)XE "Carson:Edith Frances  (1829) (5 Oct 1886-1979)" on 11 Nov 1907 (Information collected by Alma Elena Gieschen.).  He died in 1963 at Montevideo, Uruguay.

     He was baptized on 17 Jul 1887 at British Episcopal Church, Montevideo, Uruguay (Anglican) (Allen Osborne Crocker, Baptismal Register.).


 1.
ii.
Lucy (731).XE "Crocker:Lucy  (731) (1 Jan 1888-15 Jun 1973)"

 
iii.
Frederico Clement (1612)XE "Crocker:Frederico Clement  (1612) (1890-1965?)" was born in 1890 at Montevideo, Uruguay.  He married Helen Fay Carson (1839)XE "Carson:Helen Fay  (1839) (1894-        )" on 2 Jun 1913 at Holy Trinity Church, Montevideo, Uruguay.  He died in 1965?


 
iv.
Osborne (1613)XE "Crocker:Osborne  (1613) (31 May 1891-22 Feb 1913)" was born on 31 May 1891 at Montevideo, Uruguay.  He died on 22 Feb 1913 at Montevideo, Uruguay, at age 21. Gravestone inscription, British Cementery in Montevideo:

IN LOVING MEMORY  OF

ERNEST OSBORNE CROCKER, JR

BORN AT MONTEVIDEO,

MAY 31, 1891.

DIED AT MONTEVIDEO,

FEBRUARY 22, 1913.

-----------

THY WILL BE DONE

----------.
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3.  Lucy Ellen2 Allen (733)XE "Allen:Lucy Ellen  (733) (22 Jul 1863-1929)" (William, #6) (Information collected by Alma Elena Gieschen.) was born on 22 Jul 1863 at Montevideo, Uruguay.  She married Ernest Osborne Crocker (732)XE "Crocker:Ernest Osborne  (732) (23 Nov 1858-1918)" on 24 Aug 1885 (Information collected by Alma Elena Gieschen.).  She died in 1929.

Generation ThreeTC "Generation Three" \l 2
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4.  Frederick3 Crocker (734)XE "Crocker:Frederick  (734) (7 Apr 1821-3 Feb 1911)" (Perez, #8) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Pages 119, 157 & 158.) was born on 7 Apr 1821 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, (The Eddy Town-Record Fund, Boston, Mass., 1911), Page 36.).  He married Frances B. Hawes (887)XE "Hawes:Frances B.  (887) (28 Nov 1832-29 Jun 1853)" on 1 Jan 1852 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 119.).  He married Joanna P. Morse (735)XE "Morse:Joanna P.  (735) (8 Oct 1835-1915)" on 6 Aug 1855 at Liverpool, England (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 158.).  He died on 3 Feb 1911 at Montevideo, Uruguay, at age 89.

     (an unknown value) ((Following obituary was published in "The Montevideo Times", Montevideo, Tuesday, February 7, 1911)

Frederick Crocker in his early youth took to the sea and made several voyages in whaling wessels, becoming master of a ship before reaching the age of twenty-one. From this school of hardship, with its training in endurance, courage and skill, he passed into the merchant service and commanded ships of the famous clipper type in voyages to the far East and to the Pacific coast of America. In 1855 he was united in marriage with the companion of his heart and life, Miss Joanna Morse. This union was one of ideal happiness for the long period of fifty six years, the golden wedding being celebrated in 1905 in the family circle composed of children and grandchildren, with invited firends, composing an assembly of which none of the participants will ever forget the charm. Of the children given to crown this union, two survive, Mr. Ernest C. Crocker and Mrs. Caroline Crocker Van Domselaar, who, with their children and one representative of the fourth generation, the little son of Mr. and Mrs. Allen Crocker, will cherish the memory of their revered father and grandfather. The companion of his vigorous manhood, sharer of the toils and triumphs, the joys and sorrows of the years, has been spared to comfort his declining years and witness the serene close of a life well spent. The year 1861 found Captain Crocker part owner, and at the same time commander, of a steamer in the coastwise service of trade and travel between New York City and Savannah, Georgia. His ship having been offered to the Federal Government to become one of the adapted units of the improvised navy of the Union, her captain at the same time entered the volunter service as a subordinate officer in th ship he had so recently commanded. Strength of character, proved seamanship and readily acquired knowledge of the demands of the service, together with power of initiative and unflinching courage, soon attracted the attention of his superiors in rank, if not in age, and he was, upon the recommendation of the famous Admiral Farragut rapidly promoted Lieutenant Commander in the Volunteer Navy and placed in command for independent naval operations on the Gulf Coast of a squadron of four vessels. The account of his discharge of this delicate and important duty, with incidents of the most romantic and adventurous nature, would, if published, make one of th most interesting chapters in the naval history of the Civil War. Made prisoner of war in the disastrous end of his last expedition, which failed of its object in consequence of lack of cooperation on the part of land forces, he spent many months in a prison camp in Texas, practically held, on account of his rank and reputation, as a hostage in connection with specially important negotiations between the military authorities of the two parties in the struggle. Upon the return of peace, honorable promotion in the regular navy invited the volunteer officer, but he preferred the arts of peace and the ways of commerce and entered upon a business career which before many years brought him to South America and led to the establishement of his permanent residence in this country and in this city (Montevideo, Uruguay), whose climate he found attractive and whose fields of enterprise stimulated his activity. He became the pioneer in the establishment of the ice trade, bringing the welcome commodity from the far north in sailing vessels before the days of ice machines. Other lines of enterprise and service engaged him and he became identified closely with the developement of the land of his new home, whose every advance in material prosperity and in the unfolding of political, social and moral life he followed with unfailing interest and sympathy. Captain Crocker was appointed United States Consul in President Grant's administration and in this position, as in all others, sought to promote reciprocal relations of the most cordial and helpful character between his native country and that of his adopted home. He became surveyor for Lloyd's, and occupied this post for twenty years, retiring from active life in 1905 at the age of eighty four. His declining years were spent in the midst of the charmed and charming circle of his home, the object of every care, yet always solicitous of the comfort of others, venerated and loved by a wide circle of family and friends, and ever returning affection and regard with the outpoured wealth of his own heart.

Where the heart speaks, the tongue falters in the utterance, and the pen in setting down words of praise. Let ours be, then, the simplest statement of an appreciation, far from complete, which will be interpreted far more truly to the fact by the testimony of all who knew Captain Crocker. In him any lack in the wider opportunities for scholastic training in his early years was more than compensated for by native power of intellect, keenness of observation, incessant reading and the study through years of exceptional experience of both men and affairs. His mental alertnes and penetration, his retentive power of memory, his wide information, his discriminating judgments as to men and events the world over, have been the admiration of his friends to the very days of his prolonged life. This persistence of mental power in what is usually regarded as extreme old age, and in spite of physical decay, will constitute for many of us one of those observed facts that confirm the conviction of the independent existence of the spiritual part of man's nature and of the anticipated power of spirit, under the laws given by the Creator, to take to itself instruments for its use when flesh shall fall away from it. What most impressed his friends in Captain Crocker was his hopeful, tolerant spirit, revealed in an unconquerable optimism, in unfailing hope for men and for humanity. He felt sure the world is growing better and anticipated the certain triumph of the cause of righteousness, purity and truth. His religious views were those of the New Church, called Swedenborgian; they were held with fulness of conviction, but their expression, when given, was mingled with such unfailing courtesy and such generous appreciation of those holding different convictions, that his attitude was essentially that of the peacemaker whose blessing seemed to abide with him. He gave liberal cooperation to the churches and all public charitable institutions in our midst and was in sympathy with every good cause. The secret of his character was his firm belief in Divine Providence and in the infinite love that broods over the history and destinies of men. Captain Crocker has passed from our sight, but his memory will be an abiding influence in many lives <till the day dawn and the shadows flee away.>

The funeral of the late Capt. Crocker took place in the British Cementery on Saturady afternoon. The Rev. Dr. Drees, of the Methodist Episcopal Church, officiated and delivered a very impressive and touching oration over the grave. Despite the brief and imperfect notice given, there was a large and most sympathetic gathering, the attendance including, in addition to the relatives of the deceased gentleman, the United States and British Ministers and Vice-Consuls and a very representative gathering of the English-speaking community, besides not a few friends of Uruguayan and other nationalities.

(Sketch of the Commander of the Clifton)

Acting Volunteer lieutenant Frederick Crocker, United States Navy, of the Clifton, is a volunteer officer, formerly in command of the R. R. Cuyler. He entered the service as acting master in May 1861, and in February 1862 was appointed to the command of the United States Steamer Kensington. In September 1862 he obtained the command of a small force, with which he captured Sabine Pass, routing the Rebels in several engagements there. On the 1st of October last he went with a launch and twelve men eighty miles up the Calcasieu river, in Louisiana. The last ten miles he went alone, in a skiff rowed by two rebel prisoners, and alone captured a steamer, with ten men on board, compelled them to get up steam, and was several miles on his return before he met his boat's crew. For his success he was promoted to Acting Volunteer Lieutenant, and after the Galveston affair appointed to the command of the Clifton. The Clifton accompanied General Grover's expedition and covered his landing. Immediately after he started to operate on the Teche, with General Banks's Army, and arrived while the battle of Beasland was raging, but owing to the numerous obstructions

could participate only at long range. The Clifton had many great difficulties to overcome to get up to the Teche. She took up four torpedoes, removed heavy splinting (spiling) and passed through and over two sunken vessels. She at last reached the advance, and contributed materially toward preventing the enemy from making any further stand, and compelling them to destroy their gunboats. Lieut. Crocker is a man of untiring energy and of unquestioned bravery. His thoughtfulness and promptitude in destroying his vessel when he found her in a tight place is worthy of all commendation.

Following are copies of some interesting letters written in the years 1885 and 1886.

                                   Montevideo, August 18th, 1885

James Parker, Esq.,

New York

My dear Friend

On the 5th of May I wrote you, then again on the 30th and lastly on the 2nd of June. The day after I telegrammed you of the death of the Consul here-"Consul dead. Work." To none of these have I received reply. 

If all those letter reached you, and the telegram, there is not much more that can be said at this time, but if you received the telegram at all (by way of Galveston) you received it before the 2nd of June and we have dates here to the 27th of June but nothing from you. This causes the fear that the telegram failed.

Meantime I see by the papers that the President proposed to "reorganize" the Consular Corps at the meeting of next Congress and that no Consul had been appointed up to that time (26th June). This gives the impression that there is something in the notice about reorganization and causes me to note that my chances are not yet lost. Therefore I would very much like to know more about it.  Hence my troubling you with this.

To reorganize means, I suppose, the establishment of the Corps requires a more permanent basis then heretofore, composed with a higher standard of competency. All this would be very pleasing to me, as greatly increasing my chances if I could know in time what the demanded changes and qualifications will be but I cannot. Therefore in the absence of that knowledge, the only thing for me to do it seems to me is to blow my own horn a little more, a thing peculiarly distasteful to me as you can easily understand.

In view then of the probable demands for higher qualification, I will try to strengthen your hand, all I can.

Certainly one of the most necessary and desirable qualifications for a Consul is to know well the language of the country to which he is sent, and this qualification I certainly have. I can read, write, speak and translate Spanish as well as anyone. The proofs of this are available in Washington for nearly all the translations sent on by our last Minister, Mr. Williams, were made by me. You have only to call for those made during the first two years of his residence here and they are all mine. Afterwards, he was so intensely partisan in his politics that our intimacy cooled and at last I withdrew from aiding him at all.

An intimate knowledge of the history and present condition of the country, and of the character and government of the people is severely less important, and if a continuous study of all this for more than 17 years will warrant the assertion, then I have that qualification also.

Another less thought of, but here almost equally important point, is a personal acquaintance with most of the principal officers of the government and the principal inhabitants here, and this I have also. This is valuable because personal influence in the successful transaction of any business here is much more necessary here then in other more advanced countries.

My ability to make valuable official reports is not so easily seen in Washington for I was limited by the minister who assured me that the fewer of them I made the better the department would like me, so long as I did my duty satisfactorily, and I did not, for that reason, follow the instructions so fully as I should have done. But I can truly say that my successor made no reports the principal parts of which were not furnished by me, and my correspondence in the papers has been copied extensively by the principal English journals. You may assert my ability as strongly as you please to do these things, and I shall not put you to shame.

A more important part of the Consul's duty is to settle swiftly the difficulties that do often arise between shipmasters and their crews, and this cannot be done intelligently by any except one experienced in all maritime matters. The many years and the varied experience that I have had in these things ought to have qualified me very satisfactorily to perform those duties, and as I have also been a merchant and an underwriter's agent. The same thing may be said as regards the differences between merchants and shipmasters. The last incumbent never took action in any of these matters without taking council previously with me.

That I am able to keep accounts accurately, the experience of more then 2 years as Consul without making a single mistake, sufficiently proves, I should think.

So far as I know, my honesty and good character never was impugned, nor have I ever forfeited my claims to be a gentleman, as all should be who hold or have ever held a commission in the US Navy.

That I did my duty while I held that commission, and not entirely without credit, is a matter of history. I do not know that this will help me now, although you might make a little capital out of the fact that very few, if any of the volunteer naval officers have ever been considered in the distribution of public patronage, and a consulate would seem specially suited to them.

As to my present standing here and now, you can refer with confidence to Rear Admiral E.T.Nichols who I believe now lives in Washington. At any rate he is well known there, and knew me well when he was in this station.

Lastly, if I understand aright the issues of the last election, I am in full sympathy with the party now in power, although I am not, from my long absences in any sense a politician.

You will understand that I have not written all these things to convince you , for I think you don't need it but as a kind of brief for you to work from. There is no kind of competitive examination that I should fear, but you know how these things are. Many a glib Midshipman might beat you in details of examination, who could not be trusted to lead a column against Fort Fisher and so some young man just from a Crane might out answer me, who could not in practice begin to run a consulate as I can. All these things you will know how to make the most of.

I like the idea of the reorganization, because I think it means more permanence and that means a permanent income for you and for me and because all that I have said upon that point I mean. If I obtain the appointment, it will be due wholly to great exertions on your part and for those you are honestly entitled to pay. At the same time it is a transaction to be entered into only between men of honor and friends and, we are all that, I know.

If what I have seen about the reorganization is true and my presence is needed there for examination I am ready to go to Washington for that. But I should desire to know that behind the examination there was influence and also to know what effect, if any, my antecedents would have for those ought to weigh somewhat. I would not like to go and fail.

You see, that not having heard anything from you I am writing largely at random and repeating from things before said. You may not have received my telegram. My case may have been hopeless from the first. An important letter from you may have miscarried. There may be trouble that I know nothing of or there may be an indispensable examination too early for me to reach, etc., etc. but what I have written can do no harm and I will make one more suggestion and close. Should a personal examination be required for which there is short time, perhaps you could get it postponed until I did arrive and for that purpose you can declare positively that the service does not suffer here. The present Vice Consul has before had the charge of the Consulate many months giving satisfaction.

Hoping to hear from you soon.

                    Montevideo, April 20th, 1886

Mr. Editor

It would be admirable if it were not ridiculous: the positive way in which you speak of the condition of affairs in this Republic.

Because a few hotheads led by disappointed politicians and superannuated generals made a most foolish and wicked attempt to carry anarchy and civil war into all the countries of the River Plate. And because they were put down with a suddenness and completeness that left their sympathizers on both sides of the river rather stunned and dizzy and must have brought 

the block of shame to Roca and Ortiz and all of the Argentine government who so tenderly nursed it. You, with the same ignorance and presumption which characterizes the whole press of Buenos Aires in matters oriental coolly speak of " riveting the fetters of the Oriental Republic" of the Military despotism installed in Montevideo, with which you expect them to be enchained "for years".

Do you know what is a Military despotism? A Military despotism is a government under which there is no law but the will of the commander, a government under which when the people attempt to exercise their rights they are shot down and murdered as were the people of xxx, A government under which the Supreme Courts are overridden and their elders discharged as they have been in the City of B. Aires, A government where the will of the commander "rivet the fetters" upon the people and perpetuates his own despotic power in his own family as General Roca has done in the Argentine Republic, where the fundamental law of the land is made of none effect, and the people are robbed of their property by the unlawful issue of  irredeemable paper money, where they fail to perform the plainest international obligations towards their friendly neighbors until threatened with a power they could not withstand as Brazil has threatened your government. That, Mr. Editor, is a despotic government!

But those who know must fail to see any such thing on this side of the river in this Republic. Here the ballot is free-no one is shot down here unless he has arms in hand and is in open revolution. Even then the moment they cease to fight they are pardoned with not so much punishment as a mere street rioter would deserve. They have even been pardoned completely and their wounded cared for exactly the same as those who were wounded in defense of law and order. If these misguided people possess any nobleness, any heart at all, such treatment, so different from anything before known in such cases, will surely "rivet" upon them a feeling of gratitude and "fetters" of admiration and regard that will never be broken. 

Will you, Mr. Editor, who write so glibly of "Military despotism" point to one example of it exercised in this country for the last four years? Will you show one case where the Constitution has been overridden by the Military or the laws disobeyed by the government? Until you can, I think that "fair play", that most of our countrymen would induce you to withhold such offenses and irritating remarks. You, Mr. Editor, who are an Englishman, should not allow yourself to be carried away with the current of ignorance and prejudice that hurries on your colleagues of the native press to commit such stupid mistakes.

You say well and truly that the Argentines "were deceived as to the strength of the movement". Not only were they deceived in that they were and still are deceived in all that relates to this country and government. Those who made themselves so ridiculous in this abortion of a revolution are the very men who have formed your opinion and that of the press and people of B. Aires in regard to everything pertaining to the situation here, and they have proved themselves totally unworthy of belief. Now therefore is the time for those of elevated mind to shake off the false impression they have received, and open their minds to reason and truth: they should cease to believe that here we have a reign of terror, that here there is no law, no liberty, no justice, because there is no evidence of such a state and because the opposite has been proven true.

We have here just what we need, just what is needed at present in every South American Republic. It is a firm, strong, just and progressive government, under which the people and the country are thriving as never thriven before and which is being more and better appreciated every day.

                         Montevideo, April 29th, 1886.

Your kindness is quite phenomenal (struck out in the original).  The way you encourage modest merit is creditable alike to your head and your heart. By doing so you not only enjoy the pure pleasure that springs from doing a good action, you also encourage timid fledglings to plume their wings for another flight and so perhaps keep up a good supply of "copy".

That you have not "overlooked" my poor effusions causes a warm fluttering under my ribs, a pleasant glow to steal over me, that could be produced only in that way. To receive the public assurance that you are aware of my existence is almost more than I can bear. When that paragraph was read aloud in the presence of my family there was an immediate straitening of backs all around, and since then I have noticed several scornful looks directed to our less fortunate neighbor, who should know by intuition of the honor I have received.

You add, "so long as "Nix"(?) views matters in this light" "discussion is useless for if he is not wide of the mark, we are" "A Daniel has come to judgment". I defy the most ingenious hair splitter that ever wrote to deny that assertion, and if he had added that white is not black, that North is not South, that up is not down, that you are not "Nix"(?), you would have made other assertions equally irrefutable and equally without point.

Why, Mr. Editor, my letter was written exactly because you were "wide of the mark" in all matters Oriental. It was written in the hope to set you right, for after all, resolved in your person, I know that you will say the truth and follow it when you are satisfied what the truth is. I know that the bitter things you have said about this country were said because you thought them true, nor are you to blame for thinking them true, because all that you read-or near all-and that the most that you hear is in the same key. You have been surrounded by this country's most venomous enemies, who were determined to "rule or ruin" and, in pursuance of an old, old policy-as vile and unwise as it is old-your government have played into their hands. I do not blame you nor do I blame the generality of the Argentine people for the opinions they hold regarding this Republic. But if they and you have common sense-and I believe you to be well endowed with it when you receive overwhelming evidence that the premises are false from whence you have derived your conclusions-then surely you will begin to modify your views. You cannot help doing so, for that same common sense will compel you.

Now, we have been passing through what was expected to be a grand crisis: the leaders, of the abortive revolution just suppressed, publicly declared-in a thousand different ways-that this country was no longer inhabitable by any but slaves. They declared that the people were groaning and writhing under a despotism more dreadful than had been seen in modern times and that this groaning people only awaited their signal to rise as one man, shake it off and crush it out of existence in a moment and this story they continued to get believed, really believed by the greatest portion of the Argentine press and people.

Then these leaders called upon this people to rise and follow them. They had money in plenty, they had arms of the best in abundance, and they had no end of fiery eloquence to stimulate them. Indeed, had word been shot, this government would have been annihilated. Under the circumstances, had all they alleged been the truth, what would have been the result? Just as soon as that, men are influenced by hysteria. The result would have been exactly what the revolutionists expected. Their logic was right but their premises were wrong. The people would have risen as one man and the government would have gone out with a whiff like a candle. Their logic was right but their premises were wrong, terribly wrong, and so the revolution crumbled into dust the moment a test was applied. They had made a terrible mistake, and that should overwhelm them in shame and remorse, for they have much innocent blood on their hands. Their victims are crying out from the grave against them. Henceforth those men should take back seats and all that they say should be distrusted: but that does not appear to be the case at all. Although the "logic of events" has proven to demonstrate that all they said was untrue, that the country was not in the state they described, that the people did not feel themselves to be ground down by tyranny and did not rise as one man to overturn the government, still these people continued to sing the same songs, and many people, especially the Argentine people, continue to listen to them. This is paradoxical. But I expect you, Mr. Editor, to see it. Surely if all had been as they alleged, the result would have been as they alleged also. But the result was even ludicrously different. How then believe now their allegations?

For six years I have been telling you and the Argentine people that the condition of affairs is not as they supposed it to be, and every time there has been a question of veracity I have been right. "How long" O "Lord how long"! How long must I continue to make assertions that are always true, how long continue to refute by overwhelming evidence, the false assertions made by our enemies, before you and the Argentine people will open your eyes?

I will not attempt to defend every word and every expression that I have made. In the heat of argument, many things are said that in cooler moments would be modified. But when two men are at either end of a rope, if one would fall, he must incline his body from the other, and if the other would resist, he must incline his body also. Thus it is in discussions, the sophistries and the untruths on one side will produce heat and extravagant language on the other. The further one deviates from truth and calmness, the stronger will be the language of the reply. Therefore, so long as you speak of "riveting fetters" on us, of the people here "groaning under Military despotism" you must pardon some warmth of language on my part.

But seriously, I expect from you fairness and common sense, a modification of your views on this country now that you have seen to be false all the assertions made by its enemies. 

                              Montevideo, June 23rd., 1886

L.H. Bennet Esq.

          New York

My Dear Friend,

On this shortest day of the year for us here-and longest day for you where you are-I feel specially moved to write to you and shall yield to the impulse although I have nothing to say that it would not suit as well to say on any other day. Because on any day and every day I wish you well and useful, and so happy. And there is no special news of overpowering interest.

All my family are now at home and well and lose no interest in your welfare. They desire, all of them, to be kindly remembered. There has been no change with us except with Ernest-his wife presented him with a fine Boy on the 8th of this month and both Mother and child are doing well. 

The revolutionary attempt on this side was snuffed out in one day as I felt sure it would be and the government party were wise enough to treat them all with most unheard of generosity. They pardoned them all and they are now all home again peaceably at work. When it seemed most likely that the revolutionists would win, the Bonds went down to 38% and now that Santos is firmly established in power again they went up to 47 and business has been more lively than before for many months. It is now understood that there will be peace and security for the next four years and capital is beginning to have confidence. I expect to see in the next few years an extraordinary prosperity. 

On the Argentine side the elections have passed with no disturbance of the peace beyond some rioting and G. Roca's candidate (Colman?) will be peacefully inaugurated when the time comes. A great rise in the price of wool is helping the financial situation there and gold has come down a little but I doubt if it will be permanent.  

The season has been increasingly wet. The lands are very much flooded and the losses in stock have been very considerable. B. Aires papers seem to think that the renting price for camp has reached its maximum and must decrease somewhat.

Mr. Gilchrist has sent me the periodicals that you so kindly left to me and it is needless to say that I have read them with great interest. I have not heard especially how he is getting along but have no doubt that all is right. Ernest has received from him a sample of the fire extinguisher, and will try to sell some of them here amongst the carpenters. 

Mr. Lowe came out of his troubles with flying colors-he was replaced in the possession of all his property the same as before-and the Herald again is going in full blast. In that affair Mr. Hanssen (?) (the Rev-Dr.) showed himself more of a man than I thought possible. He stood by Lowe through the whole of the trouble-and was about the only man that visited him.

Upon the whole, my own affairs improve. My business with ships steadily increases and now I have an application from the "South American Journal" to become their paid correspondent, which I can easily do for I do not propose to write much more in favor of this government unless they pay me.

There is one bit of news that I hope will interest you about which you and I once had some conversation. The news is that our new Consul will give up and go home next April. He is the son of a rich man in Wilmington, N. Carolina, and has himself a good business there which he left partly on account of his health and partly to seek some good opportunity to do a large business out here for he can command about $ 100,000 in capital. The fact that he will leave has not been publicly announced but he talks of it freely to me and says that this consulate should be held by a resident here who can speak Spanish. 

He has talked so much to me in that strain that it has set me thinking again of another try for the post for myself.

Mr. Bridges assures me that there were more than two hundred applicants for this special consulate and that he was selected without any effort on his part. (Struck out in the original.)

I write you all this because of what you said to me, about your regret that you had not known in time that I was an applicant for you were a personal acquaintance of Mr. Cleveland and might have had an influence and there is no doubt but that you could now have an influence even greater than you suppose, for two reasons: First, because you would have no personal interest to serve and he would know it, and Second, because you represent the American doing business out here and so can well describe the inconvenience of having Consuls who know nothing of the people, language or business of the country and could speak with authority of me personally and of my qualifications and show that I would be very acceptable here.

At present, I shall only add that I was superseded for two causes: one, I would not contribute to the election fund for Blane and the other that a place was wanted for a cousin of Jim Blane. My letter of removal (renewal?) spoke of the more than usually satisfactory way in which I had performed my duties.

Of course I do not know how you are situated but I believe in your friendship, your desire to do good-and your ability to achieve whatever you undertake.

If after what I have said, you should think it possible that you could do something when the time came, I can send you such accounts of my past history and qualifications as would I am sure strengthen your hand with the President.

My idea is that if with your previous acquaintance with the President-and   your evident freedom from personal interest in the matter having no axe of your own to grind-you should go to him as a free American merchant well posted having interests there which generally represent all the interests of all American merchants, there you would be considered an authority and would be listened to with especial attention because of the present desire to draw closer the consular ties (?) between the two countries. The fact that you do business in B. Aires and here, both, would help also.

                         Montevideo, June 24th, 1886

Mrs. H. Mary Prichard

                Rosario

Dear Mary,

Your very pleasant and very accepting (?) letter came to us in due season with the enclosure for Ernest, which was duly delivered.

Yes, we have a real live baby in the family, of course, the "most wonderful" creature that ever existed and so pretty! It is the "very image" of Ernest and "exactly" like the Mother. It is "all Crocker" and the "Allen" shows in every feature. It has arms and legs all it's own and-wonder of wonders, knows how to use them. It has a little mouth, and knows how to use that too! To say nothing of other appurtenances all of which it knows how to use "just as cunning" as can be. By all of which you can see that the "old, old story" is told by all families where babies come-and with about the same amount of reason.

Of your acquaintances here, Mrs. Wm. Morton and Mrs. Tr. Bruce have "followed suit" and have presented their husbands with similar wonders, while Mrs. Oxley was pronounced by a council of doctors to have been mistaken.

Matters, both domestic and public, move on very quietly. Business rather improves, and good hopes for the future are entertained. Oh: George Chandler having been some time insane in the Manicomio was sent home by XXX a few days ago.

We all send best regards to the Prichards and affection to you and hope that it will not require another xxx xxx to xxx from you another letter-we are like the little boy asking for sweets, we "want some more of dat".

                              Montevideo, Uruguay

                              July 1886

To the Editor of

The "London Daily Times"

Sir,

Will you permit a countryman at the Antipodes, one of your constant readers, to suggest through the column of the "Times" a solution of the "Irish Home rule" question.

When one of the territories of the United States desires to be admitted into the Union as a state, it is required to formulate and adopt a State Constitution and with this it presents itself to the Congress of the United States and asks for admission. The adopted Constitution is the indispensable preliminary. This Constitution, and the other conditions necessary, are then examined by the Congress, and if found to be in conformity with and subordinate to, the Constitution of the United States, the Territory is admitted as a State.

My suggestion is that the Imperial Parliament shall authorize an election of Delegates by the Irish people, to represent them in something like a Convention to be assembled for the purpose of formulating a Code Fundamental, or Constitution, under which they will be content to govern themselves, this Constitution before being adopted to be submitted for the authorization or rejection of the Imperial Parliament.

Parliament, which is the only interpreter of the British Constitution, would then have before it the formulated and officially expressed desire of the majority of the Irish People, which code could not be altered without its consent, and to this perhaps with modifications it could give an intelligent "yes" or "no", that would be a finality.

By this method, the "Irish question" would have to be licked into shape by the Irish themselves. Parliament would be saved an immense amount of disagreeable labor and the country a great deal of unhealthy excitement. Before the Irish could so agree, it is probable that there would be ample time to educate public opinion throughout the Empire.

                              Very obediently yours,

                              Frederick Crocker

                         Montevideo, August 30th, 1886

John Samson Esq.

          Editor "The South American Journal"

               No. 37 Walbrook, London E.C.

Dear Sir

Your favor dated the 4th inst. came to hand a few days ago, when I was ill. I note the contents, and am satisfied with your offer to begin with. I will do all I can to forward your attempt at forming the agency mentioned and to give you the items of greatest interest.

Before I write for publication, I will in this give you a few "points" that may be useful. Of course you know that over the signature "Nix (?)" in the Buenos Aires Herald, I defended the government of Santos always, and perhaps you have noticed that no more of those letters now appear. The reason is-because of the new developments, for one thing-that tremendous "deficit" for which the Congress have created the new "Consolidated" debt and then, on top of that, another of two million of Treasury Notes of small denomination, which are in reality an issue of paper currency, valid upon the mere credit of the government with no real guarantee that the two millions will not grow to be many millions and go mostly into private pockets.

These two acts have created a deep and most unpleasant sensation here. Then came the flight of the "Minority" of the deputies, who really contained the most of the talent and virtues there was in the Chambers and the fact that they were of the same party as the government increased the depression immensely. Lastly, we have had the attempt at assassination, which every thoughtful man with open eyes could see was surely coming, and which will not be the last if Santos does not alter his mind about the next Presidency. One of Santos' most confidential friends told me that had he been killed instead of wounded (1) that the soldiers would have broken down in complete anarchy  (2) there would have been a quite general massacre of the opposition party.

All these things have produced great uncertainty here, and there is no doubt but that many of the opposite party and many young men of no party, who fear forcible enlistment, have gone over to the other side of the river.

I believe however that the pistol shot opened Santos' eyes, that he now sees there is a more general discontent than he knew of, and that he is looking for some other to make President, who will be his tool. But apparently the only possible candidate is Gen. Tajes and if he is chosen there is a great probability that he will by and by ally himself to the banished Minority, throw overboard the Santos side and so conciliate the opposition. There is no doubt but it would be a most popular move, and that he would be supported.

All these things are on the cards.

As to investments, there is one here, the very best one in the market today, viz. the building of the Port of Montevideo. Those who think they have it will find themselves mistaken, should Tajes become President, for outside those interested it is the unanimous opinion here that the port so built will ruin the harbor and there is more strong and deeper opposition to that project than to anything Santos' government have proposed.

If your Co. could get hold of that, you need look no further for profitable and safe investments for the payment of that is ensured upon the commerce of the Port which today will pay a large interest upon the actual cost, and in a very short time a large interest upon the nominal capital invested. The source of the revenue for that is separate and apart from any other and while it is guaranteed by government, cannot be affected by any other loans they may contract or by the value of these bond debts. Because it is a special tax levied upon the commerce of the Port for that purpose and no other, so long therefore as there is commerce in the port so long will the interest be safe and sure. 

As I have had considerable to do with that, I am able to state with considerable accuracy, what the actual cost would be and I can assure you that a capital of GBP 1,000,000.- would be entirely sufficient to do all that is demanded-while $ 14,000,000.- have been voted for it.

In my letters for publication I shall paint as good a picture as possible because you desire it, but I desire you to know the bottom facts.

You will of course send me a copy of your paper regularly that I may become more completely acquainted with the general plan and tone of it, to which I shall hope to adapt myself to your satisfaction.

An application has reached me to correspond for the "New York World" but nothing has been decided.

If at any time you desire any private information that I can give, I shall (Struck out in the original).

                              Montevideo, September 1886

To the Editor

Sir,

As I am one of the very few Englishman here so unfortunate as to have seen but little until very recently of the widely circulated "South American Journal", I am unaware how much knowledge your readers have of this country.

I do not know whether it is to them a mere geographical expression or whether they have already heard all about its tragic history, it's delicious climate, it's abundant resources and it's marvelous richness. I do not know whether it would be like carrying "coal to Newcastle" to describe these things or whether I shall appear to be writing from a "terra incognita" unless I do.

But judging from the immense commerce there is with England and from the enormous amount of English capital invested here as well as from the thoroughness of the information given by the journal of all other South American countries, I should say that I can tell them but very little of the past. I shall therefore confine myself to passing events, "catch the manners living as they fly" and only make note of such matters of interest as occur day by day so that your readers may become "al corriente" with everything new that will interest them.

The all-absorbing topic at present is the unsuccessful attempt to assassinate President Santos. The discussion is especially hot as to whether or not the attempt was instigated by his political opponents.

That it had a political character was at once assumed by the government party and many arrests were made, some of them most absurd, such as those of several families of females whose tea table tattle was magnified into high treason. But the moment that Santos himself was able to think a little coolly, he saw the absurdity of the measures being taken and put a stop at once to the whole of it, leaving "a flea in the ear" of his super serviceable officers and the criminal judge. There is no doubt at all but that it was the sole idea of a crazy crank who had brooded over some fancied injury and finally resolved thus to avenge it. Santos' letter to the criminal judge has gained him more popularity than any other of his acts excepting the pardon and release of the captured revolutionists at "Quebracho".

Another branch of the discussion is as to his present condition. The opposition papers declare that he is very bad indeed, and that his life is in great danger while the government organs assert as roundly that the wound is comparatively slight and that he is steadily recovering. The public are in doubt and darkness.

One fact I have almost at first hand viz. that when the diplomats called on him, his wife only received them and in answer to their enquiries burst into tears and said she was afraid he would never recover.

His death at the present time would be a great misfortune to the country, because holding the executive power as President of the Senate there is no provision in the Constitution for a successor "ad interim" until another could be elected.

The subject is rapidly coming to the front and the newspapers are already describing it. Some of them are even now calling upon the diplomatic corps to interfere and the Bonds are falling, a sign more serious than anything perhaps. 

If to this we add the fact that we are in the midst of a severe "seca", from the effect of which cattle and sheep are beginning to die rapidly and cause great loss, it will be seen that these are times of considerable anxiety. And to those who know nothing of this country it would seem as if utter ruin materially and complete anarchy politically were impending and that the future is utterly desperate. But this is not the feeling here at all. We know the invincible elasticity of this country. We have seen it arise and progress astoundingly from infinitely greater pressure, and we feel perfect confidence that all the present troubles are very temporary. As to the loss of sheep and cattle, those are always a temporary evil. They almost provide their own cure for the pasture relieved of its crowded condition gives an increase of fodder, which so fattens the remaining stock that the increase becomes extraordinary. As for the outlook politically, a people who have continued to flourish so wonderfully in the midst of the revolutions and the anarchy of the past, can contemplate very philosophically the possible perspectives of the present. Many are able to measure them very accurately and know that they will be surmounted easily, in due season.

The great "seca" ended on the 8th. The President's health. The Presidential prospects and succession. The death of the Port scheme and its cause. The port a necessity. A good investment. The lighthouse. The English Bank and wrecks. The lighthouse system. Growth, here and at B. Aires. Facts concerning cattle in Colonies. 

                              Montevideo, September 17th 1886

To the Editor

Sir,

You will have heard by telegraph that the great "seca" which has done so much damage ended last week when we had copious rains all over this Republic, and the Argentine likewise. A very few days more and the damage would have been well nigh irreparable. As it is, the country will soon recover and go on as before.

It is a curious fact that an outlay not greater than the damage done by this one "seca" would ensure the Estancieros against them forever. 

Artesian wells can now be dug at a very small cost and these, together with alfalfa, which every Estanciero has plenty of time to sow and gather, would carry the stock over all such times and keep them in perfect order until the grass came. But the Estancieros are the class that moves slowest here. The ways of their fathers are good enough for them.

The telegraph will also have told you that the President is recovering from his wound. He is even now riding out every day and attending to the duties of his office. But the telegraph cannot tell you the moral effect that attempt will have upon him. There is but little doubt that it will change the whole course of his life and so affect immensely the history of this Republic. That shot will give us another President next March, and Santos will probably make a voyage to Europe. It will destroy the last fear that that abominable port will be built which would have insured the destruction of Uruguayan commerce. It will bring into existence a government pledged to put an end to the horrible "deficits" which have sapped well nigh the last drop of life blood of the Nation-and soon the Uruguayan Bonds will rise to near par. It will cause the return of about twenty thousand of the most intelligent of the Oriental Citizens now in the Argentine Republic and a call for capital that will attract the attention of the European market. All this that one shot will do.

But nevertheless Santos has been simply indispensable to us. He has done for this people what no other man could possibly do. Santos has brought us forward out of that state of chronic anarchy and revolution in which we so long struggled and has landed us on the firm foundation of law and order.

In doing this he has committed many abuses and made many mistakes, but he will leave the country where it will be able to rectify the mistakes, repair the wrongs and march forward in the paths of progress. History will not wholly condemn Santos.

 At present, probably no one knows who will be his successor, although the telegraph may inform you before this reaches London. Just now the chances of our Gen. Tajes are not so good as they were and that it will be a civilian appears most likely.

Probably no project proposed by any government here was met with such universal opposition as that port scheme, now buried, not only because of the oppressive privileges conceded and the outrageous price to be paid for it. There could have been worse, for to those things we are well accustomed, but because any practical man of any sense could see that it would ensure the total destruction of the port itself, in the not too distant future, and that means the ruin of Uruguay and its reduction to the condition of a mere province of Brazil or the Argentine.

The most of people here believe there was a kind of conspiracy between the Co. who offered the contract, and the tools of Santos who accepted it, to sacrifice the port for the proceeds. For no one believes that men of such acknowledged reputation as the contractors do not know that a port built here-where there is absolutely no rise and fall of tide-upon the principles of the one built at Cardiff to which they referred-where the rise and fall is from 20 to 60 feet-would surely be a failure. The rejoicing is therefore universal that that change is fact.

At the same time the belief is universal that we must have a protected port and whoever should present a plan acceptable to the people would obtain almost any terms.

At last we are to have a fixed lighthouse upon that greatest of dangers in entering this river, the "English Bank". It is to be of the first magnitude, and built upon the principles of one on the Florida reefs in the U.S. which has "stood the storms" in a place even more exposed than this. This will complete the system of lights for our coast which will be then very perfect.

                                   September 30th-October 1st, 1886

South American Journal

When gossip will serve as a political Barometer and show the state of civilization where it is written, then it is not wholly out of place even in a paper so serious and formal as the South American Journal.

The opposition news papers here, improving the time when the President was sick of his wound, have been throwing mud at him, his cabinet and his supporters, in a way that must have exhausted their vocabulary of dirt: vile epithets, dirty allusions and inconceivable assertions have fairly tired out their readers, friends and foes. And now comes on the stage the other side, and while equaling the first in dirt and vulgarity, have gone "one better" and over their own signatures have threatened sure assassination (!) by hanging to the lamp posts.

This document was signed by three officers in the army. One Lieutenant Colonel and two Majors, and one of the three belongs to the Military family of the President!! Your readers will not be surprised when I add that the opposition editors are making their way to Buenos Aires.

This incident, and some other signs visible only to those "on the mountain top" seems to indicate that Gen. Santos does not intend to retire in March and if that is true the whole political landscape will have to be recast.

The telegraph will have informed you that the chambers have sanctioned the issue of $ 4,700,000.- more of the "Consolidados" Bonds, and that even in the face of that the "Unificados" continue slowly to rise. The fact is, these countries of the Rio de la Plata are irrepressible. No amount of misgovernment, no number of mistakes can crush them. They are advancing with amazing rapidity in spite of all. In the Argentine Confederation the advances are simply fabulous. I know a property in B.A. bought about four years ago for four thousand dollars and today the owner would refuse thirty nine thousand. That is not an unfair example of how everything is moving there, and the same impulse is felt distinctly here also. And why should it not be so?

I know of two Estancias in the Department of Rosario Oriental which are now the site of a flourishing agricultural colony. Those Estancias were occupied by the owners and the puesteros with their families, perhaps 50 persons in all, and they were supposed to be fully stocked with capital and sheep.

Today there are, on that land, from fifteen hundred to two thousand well-to-do farmers with their families and, in addition to the immense crops of wheat and other products raised, there are as many cattle and sheep there as before the settlement!!

With this picture, your readers will not require to be told what has been the increase in the product of that tract of land, in its value, in the amount of commerce created, in the increased revenue to the government and in all the many advantages produced to the country influenced by the change. But when I add that similar changes are taking place all the time, with great rapidity in the Argentine Confederation, more slowly here, but really taking place, they will understand how it is that our governments do not ruin the country.

Those that contend that there is no improvement here are greatly mistaken. It is not possible that the influence of the Argentine prosperity should not be felt here. The signs of it are plainly to be seen on all sides. Only a few days ago we received news that our irrepressible manager of the Gas Co. Mr. L. Jeffries had launched a Co. for the building of a Road to Minas and on to the Brazilian frontier. It should have been built long ago-there is pressing need for it-and it will be assured success from the moment of its conclusion. There is sufficient traffic, enough over that route today to pay all the expense of the line, and how much that will increase with a good road your readers have no need to be told. I may add, however, that there are only two good entrances for R. Roads into Montevideo. One of these is now in the possession of the Central Uruguay R.R. and the other-a still better entrance, for it penetrates to the center of the city-will belong to Mr. Jeffries' Road.

The prospects for the coming wheat crop are excellent and the health of the city is excellent

).  His common name was Papa Fred (734).XE "Crocker:Papa Fred  (734) (7 Apr 1821-3 Feb 1911)"  They became Allen Osborne Crocker (1600)XE "Crocker:Allen Osborne  (1600) (8 Jun 1886-1963)"'s godparent at his baptism on 17 Jul 1887 at British Episcopal Church, Montevideo, Uruguay (Anglican) (Allen Osborne Crocker, Baptismal Register.).

     Children of Frederick3 Crocker (734)XE "Crocker:Frederick  (734) (7 Apr 1821-3 Feb 1911)" and Joanna P. Morse (735)XE "Morse:Joanna P.  (735) (8 Oct 1835-1915)" (see #5) were as follows:


 
i.
Edward Leslie2 (1617)XE "Crocker:Edward Leslie  (1617) (1856-1885)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 158.) was born in 1856.  He died in 1885.


 2.
ii.
Ernest Osborne (732).XE "Crocker:Ernest Osborne  (732) (23 Nov 1858-1918)"

 
iii.
Caroline Blackmer (1618)XE "Crocker:Caroline Blackmer  (1618) (1 Jan 1861-after 1945)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 158.) was born on 1 Jan 1861.  She married Cornelio van Domselaar (1823).XE "van Domselaar:Cornelio  (1823) (19 Sep 1861-        )"  She died after 1945.

     She was also known as Auntie Carrie (1618).XE "Crocker:Auntie Carrie  (1618) (1 Jan 1861-after 1945)"
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5.  Joanna P.3 Morse (735)XE "Morse:Joanna P.  (735) (8 Oct 1835-1915)" (John, #10) was born on 8 Oct 1835 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850 Census 1850, Population Schedule, Edgartown, Dukes County, Mass., Entry ID: Dwelling 43, Family 57, Microfilm Roll # 309.).  She married Frederick Crocker (734)XE "Crocker:Frederick  (734) (7 Apr 1821-3 Feb 1911)" on 6 Aug 1855 at Liverpool, England (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 158.).  She died in 1915.

     She was also known as Mamma Home (735).XE "Morse:Mamma Home  (735) (8 Oct 1835-1915)"  They was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).
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6.  William Frances George3 Allen (827)XE "Allen:William Frances George  (827) (24 Jun 1838-circa 1925)" (Thomas, #12) was born on 24 Jun 1838 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was baptized on 24 Nov 1839 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He married Elisa Manzano (4852).XE "Manzano:Elisa  (4852)"  He married Sarah Alice Wilson (828)XE "Wilson:Sarah Alice  (828) (22 Feb 1835-19 Feb 1885)" on 14 Jan 1861 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He died circa 1925.

     His common name was Papa Daddy (827).XE "Allen:Papa Daddy  (827) (24 Jun 1838-circa 1925)"  They became Allen Osborne Crocker (1600)XE "Crocker:Allen Osborne  (1600) (8 Jun 1886-1963)"'s godparent at his baptism on 17 Jul 1887 at British Episcopal Church, Montevideo, Uruguay (Anglican) (Allen Osborne Crocker, Baptismal Register.).

     Children of William Frances George3 Allen (827)XE "Allen:William Frances George  (827) (24 Jun 1838-circa 1925)" and Sarah Alice Wilson (828)XE "Wilson:Sarah Alice  (828) (22 Feb 1835-19 Feb 1885)" (see #7) were as follows:


 3.
i.
Lucy Ellen2 (733).XE "Allen:Lucy Ellen  (733) (22 Jul 1863-1929)"

 
ii.
Kate (884)XE "Allen:Kate  (884) (1866-29 Feb 1884)" was born in 1866.  She died on 29 Feb 1884 at Estancia San Carlos (Typhus Fever) (Rosemary Leitao to Ricardo Ernesto Rain. 30-03-1995 Rua do Monte Oliveira 37

1200 Lisbon

Portugal. (1995).).


 
iii.
Francis Thomas (885)XE "Allen:Francis Thomas  (885) (1868-)" was born in 1868.  He married Gemma (--?--) (4847).XE "(--?--):Gemma  (4847)"  He died.

     His common name was Uncle Frank (885).XE "Allen:Uncle Frank  (885) (1868-)"

 
iv.
Luisa (886)XE "Allen:Luisa  (886) (25 Jan 1869-Apr 1965)" was born on 25 Jan 1869.  She married Theodore Rendtorff (2185).XE "Rendtorff:Theodore  (2185)"  She died in Apr 1965 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, at age 96.

7.  Sarah Alice3 Wilson (828)XE "Wilson:Sarah Alice  (828) (22 Feb 1835-19 Feb 1885)" (William, #14) (Ernest Osborne Crocker & Lucy Ellen Allen, Marriage Return, Agosto 25 de 1885, Juzgado de Paz de la primera Seccion Colonia.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.)XE "Allen:Sarah Alice  (828) (22 Feb 1835-19 Feb 1885)" was born on 22 Feb 1835 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Ernest Osborne Crocker, Lucy Ellen Allen.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was baptized on 26 May 1835 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She married William Frances George Allen (827)XE "Allen:William Frances George  (827) (24 Jun 1838-circa 1925)" on 14 Jan 1861 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She died on 19 Feb 1885 at Montevideo, Uruguay, at age 49.

Generation FourTC "Generation Four" \l 2
8.  Perez4 Crocker (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)" (Heman, #16) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.) was born on 1 Dec 1779 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, (At the charge of the Eddy Town-Record Fund), Births, page 28.).  Perez (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)" had marriage banns to Freelove Thomson (737)XE "Thomson:Freelove  (737) (8 Oct 1780-27 Nov 1860)" published on 4 May 1800 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Barbara Lambert Merrick & Alicia Crane Williams, Middleborough, Massachusetts - Vital Records, (The Massachusetts Society of Mayflower Descendants - Crolyn B. Wade Memorial Publication Fund), Page 165, Vol. 2.).  He married Freelove Thomson (737)XE "Thomson:Freelove  (737) (8 Oct 1780-27 Nov 1860)" on 12 Oct 1800 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Barbara Lambert Merrick & Alicia Crane Williams, Middleborough, Massachusetts - Vital Records, Page 172, Vol. 2.).  He died on 13 Jun 1854 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 74 (Erysipelas) (Perez Crocker, Death Certificate Page 212, Nr. 30, for the year 1854.).  His body was interred after 13 Jun 1854 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.).

     In the Census of 1850, Perez (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)" was listed as a head of household at North Bridgewater, Mass., USA (Perez Crocker, 1850 North Bridgewater, Mass., USA, Annotation: Fotocopy of respective page

Entry ID: Dwelling 982, families 1230 and 1231, page 309, (Juzgado de Paz de la primera Seccion Colonia.).

     Children of Perez4 Crocker (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)" and Freelove Thomson (737)XE "Thomson:Freelove  (737) (8 Oct 1780-27 Nov 1860)" (see #9) were as follows:


 
i.
Daniel3 (803)XE "Crocker:Daniel  (803) (5 Jun 1804-7 Mar 1871)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Pages 119 & 157.) was born on 5 Jun 1804 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.).  He married Susanna Cole (811)XE "Cole:Susanna  (811)" on 5 Aug 1827 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 187.).  He died on 7 Mar 1871 at North Bridgewater, Mass., USA, at age 66 (Suicide, insanity) (Daniel Crocker, Death Certificate Page 350, for the year 1871, 7 March 1871, Evangelisch-lutherischen Kirche St. Jakobi.).


 
ii.
Louisa (804)XE "Crocker:Louisa  (804) (1 Jan 1807-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 119.) was born on 1 Jan 1807.  She married Charles Gurney Capt. (1811)XE "Gurney:Charles Capt. (1811)"

XE "Gurney:Charles Capt.  (1811)" on 1 Jan 1823 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 187.).  She died.


 
iii.
William Henry (805)XE "Crocker:William Henry  (805) (2 Jan 1807-27 Jul 1844)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Pages 119 & 157.) was born on 2 Jan 1807 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, page 36.).  He married Lucy H. Allen (812)XE "Allen:Lucy H.  (812)" on 16 Aug 1829 at Halifore, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).  He died on 27 Jul 1844 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 37 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 157.).

     William (805)XE "Crocker:William Henry  (805) (2 Jan 1807-27 Jul 1844)" signed a marriage contract with Lucy H. Allen (812)XE "Allen:Lucy H.  (812)" on 26 Jul 1829 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 187.).


 
iv.
Biancy Jane (806)XE "Crocker:Biancy Jane  (806) (22 Feb 1810-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 119.) was born on 22 Feb 1810 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.).  She married Cyrus Hooper (809)XE "Hooper:Cyrus  (809)" on 24 Oct 1831 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 187.).  She died.

     Biancy (806)XE "Crocker:Biancy Jane  (806) (22 Feb 1810-)" signed a marriage contract with Cyrus Hooper (809)XE "Hooper:Cyrus  (809)" on 1 Oct 1831 at New Bedford, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of New Bedford, Massachusetts, to the Year 1850, Volume II - Marriages, (The Eddy Town-Record Fund, Boston, Mass., 1932), Page 145.).


 
v.
Edward (807)XE "Crocker:Edward  (807) (16 Mar 1814-circa 1880)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 119.) was born on 16 Mar 1814 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.).  He married Caroline H. Blackmer (1810)XE "Blackmer:Caroline H.  (1810)" on 3 Feb 1840 at New Bedford, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of New Bedford, Massachusetts, to the Year 1850, Volume II - Marriages, Page 145.).  He died circa 1880.


 
vi.
Charles Byron (808)XE "Crocker:Charles Byron  (808) (29 Apr 1818-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 119 & 157.) was born on 29 Apr 1818 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.).  He married Maria Warty Cowell (810)XE "Cowell:Maria Warty  (810) (1820-)" after 7 Apr 1838.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Farmer, shoemaker. Married to one we knew as "Aunt Maria" (Cowell). Had 8 children lived for years on the old Ashdale farm, then bought land in North Bridgewater and built a nice House. Charles was Fredericks chum brother).  Charles (808)XE "Crocker:Charles Byron  (808) (29 Apr 1818-)" signed a marriage contract with Maria Warty Cowell (810)XE "Cowell:Maria Warty  (810) (1820-)" on 7 Apr 1838 at Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 187.).  They was listed as a household member of Perez Crocker (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at North Bridgewater, Mass., USA (Perez Crocker, 1850.).


 4.
vii.
Frederick (734).XE "Crocker:Frederick  (734) (7 Apr 1821-3 Feb 1911)"
9.  Freelove4 Thomson (737)XE "Thomson:Freelove  (737) (8 Oct 1780-27 Nov 1860)" (Jacob, #18) (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, (Darius D. Thorp, Printer and Binder, 1890), Page 43.) was born on 8 Oct 1780 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, (Genealogical Publishing Company for Clearfield Company Baltimore, Maryland, 1993), Page 162.).  Freelove (737)XE "Thomson:Freelove  (737) (8 Oct 1780-27 Nov 1860)" had marriage banns to Perez Crocker (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)" published on 4 May 1800 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Barbara Lambert Merrick & Alicia Crane Williams, Middleborough, Massachusetts - Vital Records, Page 165, Vol. 2.).  She married Perez Crocker (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)" on 12 Oct 1800 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Barbara Lambert Merrick & Alicia Crane Williams, Middleborough, Massachusetts - Vital Records, Page 172, Vol. 2.).  She died on 27 Nov 1860 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 80 (old age) (Freelove Crocker, Death Certificate 557, for the year 1860, Nov. 27, 1860, Evangelisch-lutherischen Kirche St. Jakobi.).  Her body was interred after 27 Nov 1860 at Union Cemetery, Centre Street, Brockton, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.).

     They was listed as a household member of Perez Crocker (736)XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at North Bridgewater, Mass., USA (Perez Crocker, 1850.).
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10.  John Osborne4 Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)" (Uriah, #20) (M.D. (Assistant Surgeon General U.S.P.H.S.) Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, in three volumes. (Published by the Dukes County Historical Society, 1925), Vol. III, page 336.) (Arthur R. Railton, Edgartown: A Town for Walking, (Copyright 1988 Dukes County Historical Society Third Printing), Page 27.) was born on 22 Jun 1802 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).  He married Joann Pease (1385)XE "Pease:Joann  (1385) (circa 1803-30 Sep 1833)" on 7 Dec 1823 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, (New England Historic Genealogical Society, at the charge of the Eddy Town-Record Fund, Boston, Mass., 1906), Page 150.).  John (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)" signed a marriage contract with Mary Smith (1275)XE "Smith:Mary  (1275) (1 Jan 1812-24 Apr 1892)" on 3 Oct 1834 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  He married Mary Smith (1275)XE "Smith:Mary  (1275) (1 Jan 1812-24 Apr 1892)" on 4 Nov 1834 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, ((1850, c.1849)), Page 174.).  He died on 27 May 1851 at age 48 (The date registered on his memorial stone in the Memorial Grounds Cemetery of Edgartown, is 27 Feb. 1851.

Captain Henry Pease reports he was taken sick off the Sarah and left to recover in Paiti, Peru, where he died there of dropsy on May 27, 1851) (The Morse Society Issue # 124 - Summer 2006.).

     (an unknown value) (Capt. John O. Morse House, on 80 North Water Str., the large home on the corner, was built about 1840 by Uriah's eldest son, John, who became a successful whaling master, although his career was brief. From 1829 to 1834, he twice skippered the ship Hector, returning with a record 2500 barrels of sperm oil on the second voyage. Starbuck's History of the American Whale Fishery gives an account of Capt. Morse's battle with a sperm whale that took "the Captain's boat in his mouth, held it on end and shook it in pieces in a moment." Fortunately, the captain survived and, from another boat, buried "his lance in the whale's vitals, killing him almost instantly." In 1849 Vineyarders were eager to join the Gold Rush, he and a few others bought the old bark Sarah and, with John as master, hauled a load of Islanders to California. Unsuccessful at gold mining, Capt. Morse shipped a crew in California and went whaling in the Pacific. It was on this cruise that he died at the age of 48. The record shows that his death occurred on February 27, 1851 at Paita, Peru. However, the Society has the log of the last voyage and here are the last two entries:

"Sunday, February 23, Later part [of the day] the island of Gorgona bearing S by W, six miles distant. Sent in the Starboard boat to see about an anchorage and probability of obtaining wood, water and recruits.

"Monday, February 24. Commences with fine weather, wind SW, steering by to the SSE, the boat having returning with a favorable report."
Thus ends the journal, which appears to have been kept by Capt. Morse. Gorgona, an island of Colombia, is 500 miles north of Paita. Because there are no more entries in the journal it would seem that he may have died on Gorgona, if the February 27 date of death si correct.

After he built his house about 1840, he spent several years ashore buying and selling real estate, at which he was also very successful, as the scale of his house indicates. Originally, there was a porch only on the first floor, with a hadnsome balustrade atop the porch roof. The second porch was added early in the 1900s.

Following is a transcription of the last pages of the log book

Journal Kept on board Bark Sarah          Capt. Morse on a whaling cruise

                    Sunday Feb. 9th 1851

Commences with strong breeze and fine weather.  Middle part calm.  Latter part light wind from the N steering S by W.

                    Monday Feb. 10th 1851

Commences with fine weather wind light from the N steering S by W. Middle part calm. Latter part light air from the SE steering by to the S. raised a shoal of sperm whales but did not get any

                    Tuesday Feb. 11th 1851

Commences with fine weather the whales still in sight lowered our boats and succeeded in getting one to the waist boat 

Middle part laying by the whale under short sail heading to the eastward Latter part cut in the whale and commenced boiling rain squalls

                    Wednesday Feb. 12th 1851

Commences with fine weather wind from the NE steering by to the NW  

Middle part wind freshened double reefed the top sails. Latter part still boiling - wind much the same

Thursday Feb. 13th 1851

Commences with fine weather and strong breeze from NE finished boiling and turning up the oil 25 bblls. Middle part more moderate  Latter part made sail and kept the ship S. by W.

Friday Feb. 14th 1851

Commences with fine weather wind E.S.E. brought the ship to the wind heading NE  Middle part the same  Latter part wore ship to the S. wind E.  

Saturday Feb. 15th 1851 

Commences with fine weather wind S.S.E. wore ship steering by to the E. Middle part the same Latter part no alteration.

                                   Lat. 4" 57" N. Long 81" 10

Sunday Feb. 16th 1851 

Commences with fine weather wind S.S.E. steering by to the E.  Middle part wind S heading E.S.E.  Latter part rainy wind to the N. steering S.S.E.

Monday Feb. 17th 1851 

Commences with fine weather wind to the North steering S.E.  Middle part the same  Latter part wind the same steering S.E. by E.

                                   Lat. 2" 58

Tuesday Feb. 18th 1851 

Commences with fine weather raised up the island of Gorgona and soon after saw a shoal of whales but did not lower it being after sunset  Middle part tacked ship to the westward  Latter part raised a shoal of whales and got one to the starboard boat and cut him in. Lat. 2" 50"

Wednesday Feb. 19th 1851 

Commences with fine weather wind N.N.E. steering by to the E commenced boiling our whale Middle part much the same Latter part the island of Gorgona in sight also a Bark

Thursday Feb. 20th 1851 

Commences with fine weather wind N.W. steering by to the N.N.E. Middle part tacked to the W.S.W. Latter part tacked to the N.E. some rainy

Friday Feb. 21st  1851 

Commences with squally and rainy weather wind W. steering S. by W.  Middle part quite pleasant wind S.S.W. steering by to the S.E. Latter wind hauled to the S.S.E. steering by to the S.W. the island of Gorgona in sight bearing S. by W. 20 miles distant

Saturday Feb. 22nd  1851 

Commences with quite pleasant weather steering by to the S.E. Middle part tacked to the S.W. Latter part the same fine weather Gorgona in sight

Sunday Feb. 23rd  1851 

Commences with fair weather wind S.W. steering by to the S.S.E. Middle part wind moved to the S.S.E. tacked to the S.W. Latter part the island of Gorgona bearing S. by W. 6 miles distant sent in the starboard boat to see about an anchorage and probability of obtaining wood water and recruits

Monday Feb. 24th 1851 

Commences with fine weather wind S.W. steering by to the S.S.E. the boat having returned with a favourable report 

).  In the Census of 1850, John (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)" was listed as a head of household at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).

     Children of John Osborne4 Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)" and Mary Smith (1275)XE "Smith:Mary  (1275) (1 Jan 1812-24 Apr 1892)" (see #11) all born at Edgartown, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 5.
i.
Joanna P.3 (735).XE "Morse:Joanna P.  (735) (8 Oct 1835-1915)"

 
ii.
Daughter (1389)XE "Morse:daughter  (1389) (3 Apr 1839-11 Apr 1839)" (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.) was born on 3 Apr 1839 (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).  She died on 11 Apr 1839.


 
iii.
John Osborne (1798)XE "Morse:John Osborne  (1798) (26 Feb 1840-)" was born on 26 Feb 1840 (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).  He married Anna Luise Maxfield (1888).XE "Maxfield:Anna Luise  (1888)"  He died.

     (an unknown value) ((De un recorte del diario "La Prensa"  de la Argentina, publicado en Diciembre de 1981, sobre el naufragio del "America", escrito por Maria Cristina Correa Viale, en el Museo Historico de Lujan se pueden ver los restos de algunos barcos salvavidas, asi como las medallas que recibio John Osborne Morse, por su participacion en el rescate de las victimas.) Manana, 24 de diciembre, se cumpliran 110 anos del naufragio del vapor "America", que, al mando del capitan Bossi, habia partido del puerto de Buenos Aires rumbo a Montevideo llevando a bordo numerosos pasajeros portenos. Finalizaba el ano 1871 y la capital portena se estremecia aun bajo las consecuencias de aquella nefasta epidemia de fiebre amarilla. Para celebrar la Navidad y la entrada de un nuevo ano en horizontes menos sombrios, familias y ciudadanos argentinos se trasladaban a la vecina orilla. Entre ellos se contaban el joven matrimonio formado por Augusto Marco del Pont y su esposa Carmen Pinedo (en vias de ser madre); don Lisardo Billinghurst, don Dario Beccar, don Augusto Rohl y familia y, entre otros, don Luis Viale, que habia trabajado durante la epidemia en la Comision Popular, al lado de Roque Perez, Guido Spano, Bernardo de Irigoyen, Mitre y Quintana. Mientras los pasajeros disfrutaban a bordo de la musica y la danza, el capitan Bossi entablaba una silenciosa competencia con otro barco de la carrera: el "Villa del Salto", capitaneado por John O. Morse. Las calderas del "America" se esfuerzan por demas, llevadas al maximo por el amor propio del capitan Bossi. Por fin, estallan. El fuego se expande rapidamente por todo el barco. Cunde el espanto, interrumpiendo la alegria anterior. Sobreviene el panico. Trata de salvarse el que puede. Los marineros se han apoderado de los pocos botes y solo piensan en salvarse ellos. Escasean los salvavidas. Sobre las aguas del Plata, el vapor "America" es ya una inmensa tea incandescente. Augusto Marco del Pont y Carmen Pinedo, corridos por las llamas, se lanzan al agua. Acaban de ver sucumbir en la hoguera a dona Josefa Villar de Larrazabal, a su marido y su suegro. El joven Marco del Pont hace denodados esfuerzos por mantener a flote a su mujer, pero las fuerzas se agotan. Luis Viales, que ha conseguido un salvavidas, se les aproxima y se lo ofrece con estas palabras: "Tome senora, usted es joven y tiene que salvar otra vida. Yo, ya he vivido bastante" y se aleja braceando sobre las obscuras aguas, que poco mas tarde lo sepultan. Lo mismo ocurrio con Augusto Marco del Pont. Pero su mujer, Carmen quedo flotando gracias al salvavidas de Viale siendo recogida por botes del "Villa del Salto". Pocos meses mas tarde, daba a luz una nina, que luego seria Carmen Marco del Pont de Rodriguez Larreta. Esa fue la "otra vida" que deseaba salvar Viale

).  They was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).


 
iv.
James L. (1799)XE "Morse:James L.  (1799) (1 Apr 1841-)" was born on 1 Apr 1841 (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).  He died.

     He was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).


 
v.
Ellen Jones (1386)XE "Morse:Ellen Jones  (1386) (13 Aug 1843-)" was born on 13 Aug 1843. (Jane Ann, written in pencil) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 50.) (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).  She died.

     They was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).


 
vi.
Josiah Gorham (1387)XE "Morse:Josiah Gorham  (1387) (18 Jul 1845-)" was born on 18 Jul 1845 (John O. Morse and family, 1850.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 50.).  He died.

     They was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).


 
vii.
Mary H. (1388)XE "Morse:Mary H.  (1388) (6 Nov 1849-)" was born on 6 Nov 1849 (John O. Morse and family, 1850.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 50.).  She died.

     They was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).
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Photograph taken by Ricardo Ernesto Rain in the Memorial Grounds in Edgartown, on the 14 May 1995.

11.  Mary4 Smith (1275)XE "Smith:Mary  (1275) (1 Jan 1812-24 Apr 1892)" (Ebenezer, #22) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 455.) was born on 1 Jan 1812 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 73.).  Mary (1275)XE "Smith:Mary  (1275) (1 Jan 1812-24 Apr 1892)" signed a marriage contract with John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)" on 3 Oct 1834 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  She married John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)" on 4 Nov 1834 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, Page 174.).  She died on 24 Apr 1892 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 80. Tombstone at Edgartown says:

Mary Smith Wife of John Osborne Morse 1812 - 1892. 
It looks like 1882.

In Edgartown records: She died 24 April 1892 at Chicago ae 80 yrs 3 mos 27 dys.

     They was listed as a household member of John Osborne Morse Capt. (1274)XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"'s house in the Census of 1850 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (John O. Morse and family, 1850.).

Original with Ricardo Ernesto Rain 2005

12.  Thomas Jefferson4 Allen (829)XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (829) (13 Oct 1801-15 Mar 1842)" (John, #24) (Pilot) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, (The Tuttle Company, Printers, Rutland, VT. 1899), Page 67.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born on 13 Oct 1801 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He married Catherine Elizabeth Daws (830)XE "Daws:Catherine Elizabeth  (830) (17 Jul 1815-20 Apr 1871)" on 11 May 1829 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He died on 15 Mar 1842 at on board S. Falco at age 40.

     (an unknown value) ((From papers found probably by Catherine Elizabeth Dawes)

I believe my father was never baptized, as he felt ashamed or frightened, as he was a big boy and all the children were baptized together, except Thomas, who hid himself. Later he ran away from home, when he was ten years old and went to sea, served before the mast and worked his way up to be Captain and part owner of a ship. Allen later was one of the first twelve Branch Pilots for the outer roads in Buenos Aires, with a charter from the Argentine Government. They formed a society with Don Pancho Casares as managing socio.

(Following a narrative of Lucy Ellen Allen de Grant)

Though my father was born in Saco, the family must have removed to Boston, as used to tell my mother, he was known as the handsome boy of Boston. My father had run the French blocade up the river, the water was said to be very impure and the Dr. blamed the impurity for causing my fathers early death, as he was only 41 years of age when he died. He was advised to go home for a change when he was ill. He sailed with a friend on board a vessel belonging to a Mr. Enoch Train. My father had taken his turn at watch with the others and had navigated the vessel home. Feeling tired he went to lie down, asked to be called before they anchored. When they went to awake him, they found him dead in his bed. I think he was buried in Mount Auburn Cementery in a vault belonging to Mr. Enoch Train.

(Continua la historia "Origenes de la Familia Allen")

El rechazo de las Invasiones Inglesas de Buenos Aires previa derrota de los Generales Popham, Berresford y Whitelock, y el aniquilamiento del inclito y 2 de montaneses, trajeron sobre nuestro pais las miradas, la admiracion y las simpatias del mundo entero, a punto que atraidos por esa aureola de valor indomable vinieron al pais una falange de marineros extranjeros, que com Brown, Thorne, Buchardo, Campbell y Brill, Daws y otros muchos a la par que servian al comercio, munidos tambien de patente de corso, coadyudaron a mantener por agua el prestigio del pabellon nacional y a raya a la marina brasilena y francesa.

Entre los primeros que llegaron encontrabase el joven armador Don Tomas Jefferson Allen, nacido en Saco, Estado de Maine, Mass., Estados Unidos de Norte America, el 13 de Octubre de 1801, fundador de la familia argentina de este apellido, quien, a la par de los demas tomo parte en numerosos encuentros con la marina brasilena que bloqueaba a Buenos Aires en tiempo de Rivadavia y Rosas, mereciendo del primero, carta de ciudadania argentina, por los importantes servicios prestados a la patria. Su hijo menor, aun supersistente, conserva el sable de abordaje y el uniforme de su padre y obran en poder de sus descendientes numerosos trofeos de aquellas gloriosas jornadas

).  Thomas (829)XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (829) (13 Oct 1801-15 Mar 1842)" was listed on the Thornton Academy roll as a student at Saco, Maine, USA, on 10 Oct 1814. Introduced by John Allen (Edward P. Burnham and George A. Emery, List of Students, 1813-1848, Thornton Academy, Saco, Maine (York Institute, Saco, Maine, 1918), Page 1.).

     Children of Thomas Jefferson4 Allen (829)XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (829) (13 Oct 1801-15 Mar 1842)" and Catherine Elizabeth Daws (830)XE "Daws:Catherine Elizabeth  (830) (17 Jul 1815-20 Apr 1871)" (see #13) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas Jefferson3 (881)XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (881) (23 Oct 1830-)" was born on 23 Oct 1830 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was baptized on 1 May 1831 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He married Helena Wilson (2718)XE "Wilson:Helena  (2718) (12 Mar 1833-        )" on 7 Dec 1853 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He died.


 
ii.
Catherine Elizabeth (882)XE "Allen:Catherine Elizabeth  (882) (14 Dec 1832-)"

XE "McKern:Catherine Elizabeth  (882) (14 Dec 1832-)" was born on 14 Dec 1832 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was baptized on 10 Mar 1833 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She married George McKern (2717)XE "McKern:George  (2717) (circa 1815-        )" on 19 Oct 1852 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She died.


 
iii.
Lucy Ellen (883)XE "Allen:Lucy Ellen  (883) (4 Apr 1835-)"

XE "Grant:Lucy Ellen  (883) (4 Apr 1835-)" was born on 4 Apr 1835 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was baptized on 27 Jul 1835 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She married John Grant (2716)XE "Grant:John  (2716)" on 11 Jan 1859 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She died.


 6.
iv.
William Frances George (827).XE "Allen:William Frances George  (827) (24 Jun 1838-circa 1925)"
13.  Catherine Elizabeth4 Daws (830)XE "Daws:Catherine Elizabeth  (830) (17 Jul 1815-20 Apr 1871)" (Charles, #26) (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn family group sheet, Annotation: This sheet with the title "My Mothers Ancestors" was probably written by one of the children of Thomas Jefferson Allen and Catherine Elizabeth Dawes, and probably about 1880.

Entry ID: Undocumented, but seems to be good information

Condition: very good.)XE "Allen:Catherine Elizabeth  (830) (17 Jul 1815-20 Apr 1871)" was born on 17 Jul 1815 at London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Catherine Elizabeth Daws, Baptismal entry, 7th August 1815, "Baptisms solemnized in the Parish of St. George the Martyr," (Page 202, No. 1611 of the year 1815), Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  She was baptized on 7 Aug 1815 at St. George the Martyr, London, England. a daughter of Charles and Ann Daws, of Walker Street, Kent Street, Southwark, a carpenter (Catherine Elizabeth Daws, Baptismal entry.).  She married Thomas Jefferson Allen (829)XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (829) (13 Oct 1801-15 Mar 1842)" on 11 May 1829 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She married Peter Mansell Schmidt (1611)XE "Schmidt:Peter Mansell  (1611)" after 15 Mar 1842.  She died on 20 Apr 1871 at Uruguay at age 55 (Yellow Fever).

     (an unknown value) ((Narratives of Margaret Augusta Grant de Colqhoun)

During my grandmother's widowhood she was matron of the British Hospital in what year or where the hospital was situated I do not know. She was very benevolent to all who were in necessity, went about amongst the poor and sick. During the yellow fever plague, she saved many lives, and unfortunately caught the contagion and died within a few days, owing to overdoses of seidlitz powders. She was just over 13 years of age when she married Thomas Jefferson Allen. She ran away to her father's home after a short time, as she did not wish to bother with a man and as he had called her a little devil she made up a bundle of some of her clothes and went home to her father. They had hard work to make her realize that she had to go back to her husband. Having very little to do she used to cut out pieces of the tail of her husband's shirts just to put in a neat patch. She and Aunt Mary Brill, (her sister) used to sit at some card-tables and amuse themselves pretending to play the piano. But once she knew she was to be a mother (at 15 years) she settled down to be a good little housekeeper and took great pleasure in making preparations for her

expected baby

).

14.  William4 Wilson (2062)XE "Wilson:William  (2062) (-before 5 Dec 1856)" (Carpenter) (Ernest Osborne Crocker, Lucy Ellen Allen.) (Carlos J. Joos to Ricardo Ernesto Rain. Febrero 28 de 1995 Casilla de Correo N.o 1394

11000 Montevideo-Uruguay

Tel. 598-42-22119

Fax. 598-42-32178.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born at Armagh, Irland.  He married Alice Bailey (2063)XE "Bailey:Alice  (2063) (circa 1798-before 5 Dec 1856)" (Ernest Osborne Crocker, Lucy Ellen Allen.).  He died before 5 Dec 1856 (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).

     Children of William4 Wilson (2062)XE "Wilson:William  (2062) (-before 5 Dec 1856)" and Alice Bailey (2063)XE "Bailey:Alice  (2063) (circa 1798-before 5 Dec 1856)" (see #15) were as follows:


 
i.
John3 (5274)XE "Wilson:John  (5274) (1 Sep 1825-        )" (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born on 1 Sep 1825 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was baptized on 25 Sep 1825 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).


 
ii.
Mary (2184)XE "Wilson:Mary  (2184) (1 Nov 1828-17 Jan 1875)" (Carlos J. Joos, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born on 1 Nov 1828 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was baptized on 10 Nov 1828 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She died on 17 Jan 1875 at Montevideo, Uruguay, at age 46. Tombstone in the British Cementery in Montevideo with following inscription:

Sacred To the Memory of Mary Wilson, daughter of the late William Wilson of Armagh [Irland] and Alice Bailey Athy Irland Born at Buenos Ayres Novbr 1st 1828 Died at Montevideo Janry 17th 1875 'whom the Lord Loveth He Chasteneth' (Carlos J. Joos, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).


 
iii.
Richard Thomas (2183)XE "Wilson:Richard Thomas  (2183) (1 Nov 1828-10 Jun 1878)" (Carlos J. Joos, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born on 1 Nov 1828 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was baptized on 10 Nov 1828 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He died on 10 Jun 1878 at Montevideo, Uruguay, at age 49 (Gravestone Inscription of Richard Thomas Wilson, in the British Cementery in Montevideo Uruguay.).


 
iv.
Helena (2718)XE "Wilson:Helena  (2718) (12 Mar 1833-        )"

XE "Allen:Helena  (2718) (12 Mar 1833-        )" was born on 12 Mar 1833 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was baptized on 6 May 1833 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She married Thomas Jefferson Allen (881)XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (881) (23 Oct 1830-)" on 7 Dec 1853 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).


 7.
v.
Sarah Alice (828).XE "Wilson:Sarah Alice  (828) (22 Feb 1835-19 Feb 1885)"

 
vi.
Margaret Eliza (5275)XE "Allen:Margaret Eliza  (5275) (10 Aug 1836-        )" (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born on 10 Aug 1836 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was baptized on 14 Sep 1836 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).


 
vii.
William James (5276)XE "Wilson:William James  (5276) (19 Dec 1837-        )" (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born on 19 Dec 1837 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was baptized on 7 Mar 1838 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, St. John's Church (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).

15.  Alice4 Bailey (2063)XE "Bailey:Alice  (2063) (circa 1798-before 5 Dec 1856)" (Ernest Osborne Crocker, Lucy Ellen Allen.) (Carlos J. Joos, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born circa 1798 at Queen's County, Irland (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She married William Wilson (2062)XE "Wilson:William  (2062) (-before 5 Dec 1856)" (Ernest Osborne Crocker, Lucy Ellen Allen.).  She died before 5 Dec 1856 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Apoplexy, she was already a widow) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She was buried on 5 Dec 1856 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (Victoria Cementery) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).

Generation FiveTC "Generation Five" \l 2
16.  Heman5 Crocker (738)XE "Crocker:Heman  (738) (circa 1750-5 Sep 1801)" (Daniel, #32) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.) was born circa 1750 at Carver, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).  He was baptized on 15 Feb 1770 at Church of Jebogue, Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, Canada (Benjamin Crocker Ricardo Ernesto Rain. February 08, 1998 bcrocker@massmed.org. (1998).).  He married Lydia Churchill (739)XE "Churchill:Lydia  (739) (20 Jan 1756-22 Oct 1843)" on 13 Oct 1774 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).  He died on 5 Sep 1801 at a. 51, at sea (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Deaths, page 152.).  He died on 5 Sep 1801 at sea. According to Vital Records of Carver (Benjamin Crocker, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).

     Children of Heman5 Crocker (738)XE "Crocker:Heman  (738) (circa 1750-5 Sep 1801)" and Lydia Churchill (739)XE "Churchill:Lydia  (739) (20 Jan 1756-22 Oct 1843)" (see #17) were as follows:


 
i.
Daniel4 (794)XE "Crocker:Daniel  (794) (15 Jun 1775-9 Dec 1801)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 118.) was born on 15 Jun 1775 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 27.).  He married Marcy Pratt (2769)XE "Pratt:Marcy  (2769) (15 May 1774-)" on 6 Mar 1796 at Carver, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 118.).  He died on 9 Dec 1801 at Carver, Mass., USA, at age 26 (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 152.).


 
ii.
Perez (795)XE "Crocker:Perez  (795) (after 1776-25 Oct 1778)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 75.) was born after 1776.  He died on 25 Oct 1778 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Deaths, page 152.).


 8.
iii.
Perez (736).XE "Crocker:Perez  (736) (1 Dec 1779-13 Jun 1854)"

 
iv.
Elizabeth (796)XE "Crocker:Elizabeth  (796) (26 Apr 1783-)" was born on 26 Apr 1783 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 27.).  She died.


 
v.
Deborah (797)XE "Crocker:Deborah  (797) (7 Oct 1785-)" was born on 7 Oct 1785 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 27.).  She died.


 
vi.
Eleazer (798)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (798) (7 Jul 1788-)" was born on 7 Jul 1788 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 27.).  He died.


 
vii.
Heman (799)XE "Crocker:Heman  (799) (3 Oct 1790-)" was born on 3 Oct 1790 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 27.).  He died.


 
viii.
Lemuel (800)XE "Crocker:Lemuel  (800) (15 Mar 1793-16 Dec 1802)" was born on 15 Mar 1793 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 28.).  He died on 16 Dec 1802 at Carver, Mass., USA, at age 9 (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Deaths, page 152.).


 
ix.
Ebenezer (801)XE "Crocker:Ebenezer  (801) (2 Aug 1795-)" was born on 2 Aug 1795 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 27.).  He died.


 
x.
Lydia (802)XE "Crocker:Lydia  (802) (4 Aug 1798-)" was born on 4 Aug 1798 at Carver, Mass., USA (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Births, page 28.).  She died.

17.  Lydia5 Churchill (739)XE "Churchill:Lydia  (739) (20 Jan 1756-22 Oct 1843)" (Perez, #34) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Rev. George M. Bodge. (The Family of Gardner A. Churchill), Page 33.) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 75.) was born on 20 Jan 1756 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).  She married Heman Crocker (738)XE "Crocker:Heman  (738) (circa 1750-5 Sep 1801)" on 13 Oct 1774 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).  She died on 22 Oct 1843 at a. 91, Carver, Mass., USA, at age 87 (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Carver, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Deaths, page 152.).

18.  Jacob5 Thomson (1081)XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1081) (28 Mar 1738-30 Nov 1805)" (Jacob, #36) (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 42.) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, (1911), Page 123.) was born on 28 Mar 1738 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 34.).  Jacob (1081)XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1081) (28 Mar 1738-30 Nov 1805)" had marriage banns to Freelove Phinney (1082)XE "Phinney:Freelove  (1082) (27 Jan 1740-7 Nov 1826)" published on 25 May 1761 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Barbara Lambert Merrick & Alicia Crane Williams, Middleborough, Massachusetts - Vital Records, Page 53, Vol. 2.).  He married Freelove Phinney (1082)XE "Phinney:Freelove  (1082) (27 Jan 1740-7 Nov 1826)" on 27 Oct 1761.  He died on 30 Nov 1805 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 67. Burried at the Old Cemetery at "the Green" in Middleborough, Mass., USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, 34 Volumes from 1899 to 1937. (Massachusetts Society of Mayflower Descendants), Vol. 14 October 1922 No. 4, Page 219.).

     (an unknown value) (He was chosen captain of a military company, and was distinguished from others of the same name by the title of his comission

).

     Children of Jacob5 Thomson (1081)XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1081) (28 Mar 1738-30 Nov 1805)" and Freelove Phinney (1082)XE "Phinney:Freelove  (1082) (27 Jan 1740-7 Nov 1826)" (see #19) all born at Middleborough, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Solomon4 (1268)XE "Thomson:Solomon  (1268) (7 Jun 1762-4 Jan 1844)" was born on 7 Jun 1762 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 115.).  He died on 4 Jan 1844 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 81. Burried at the Old Cemetery at "the Green", Middleborough, Mass., USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14 October 1922, No. 4, page 220.).


 
ii.
Benjamin (1269)XE "Thomson:Benjamin  (1269) (30 Mar 1764-)" was born on 30 Mar 1764 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 118.).  He died.


 
iii.
Mercy (1270)XE "Thomson:Mercy  (1270) (17 Jun 1766-)" was born on 17 Jun 1766 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 130.).  She died.


 
iv.
Elizabeth (1271)XE "Thomson:Elizabeth  (1271) (17 Jun 1766-)" was born on 17 Jun 1766 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 130.).  She died.


 
v.
Ruth (1272)XE "Thomson:Ruth  (1272) (7 Jul 1768-)" was born on 7 Jul 1768 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 144.).  She died.


 
vi.
Jacob (1273)XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1273) (4 Nov 1771-23 Dec 1848)" was born on 4 Nov 1771 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 145.).  He died on 23 Dec 1848 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 77. Buried at the Old Cemetery at "the Green" in Middleborough, Mass., USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14 October 1922, No. 4, Page 219.).


 9.
vii.
Freelove (737).XE "Thomson:Freelove  (737) (8 Oct 1780-27 Nov 1860)"
19.  Freelove5 Phinney (1082)XE "Phinney:Freelove  (1082) (27 Jan 1740-7 Nov 1826)" (Pelatiah, #38) (Sr. Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, (1957), Page 12.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, 2 vols.. (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc., Baltimore, 1992), Vol. 2, page 233.) was born on 27 Jan 1740 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.  Freelove (1082)XE "Phinney:Freelove  (1082) (27 Jan 1740-7 Nov 1826)" had marriage banns to Jacob Thomson (1081)XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1081) (28 Mar 1738-30 Nov 1805)" published on 25 May 1761 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Barbara Lambert Merrick & Alicia Crane Williams, Middleborough, Massachusetts - Vital Records, Page 53, Vol. 2.).  She married Jacob Thomson (1081)XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1081) (28 Mar 1738-30 Nov 1805)" on 27 Oct 1761.  She died on 7 Nov 1826 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 86. Inscription on her gravestone in the Old Cemetery at "the Green" in Middleborough, Mass., USA.

Freelove, widow of Capt. Jacob, died 7 November, 1826, in her 87th year. "Erected as a feeble testimony of the affection of her grandaughter. L"

 (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14 October 1922, No. 4, Page 218.).
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Photograph taken by Ricardo Ernesto Rain in the Memorial Grounds in Edgartown on the 14 May 1995

20.  Uriah5 Morse (1276)XE "Morse:Uriah  (1276) (1 Jan 1773-28 Jan 1835)" (Theodore, #40) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, (The Morse Society, 1903, New York), Page 87.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) was born on 1 Jan 1773.  He married Prudence Fish (1278)XE "Fish:Prudence  (1278) (15 May 1772-3 Jun 1851)" on 18 Feb 1796 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  He died on 28 Jan 1835 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 62 (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 241.).  His body was interred after 28 Jan 1835 at Old Cementery at Edgartown, Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     Children of Uriah5 Morse (1276)XE "Morse:Uriah  (1276) (1 Jan 1773-28 Jan 1835)" and Prudence Fish (1278)XE "Fish:Prudence  (1278) (15 May 1772-3 Jun 1851)" (see #21) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary4 (1378)XE "Morse:Mary  (1378) (23 May 1800-11 Dec 1859)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, Page 174.) was born on 23 May 1800 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.  She married Stephen Raymond (1801)XE "Raymond:Stephen  (1801) (1795-before 22 Sep 1874)" on 25 Dec 1817 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  She died on 11 Dec 1859 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 59 (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, Page 174.).
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ii.
John Osborne (1274).XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt. (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

XE "Morse:John Osborne Capt.  (1274) (22 Jun 1802-27 May 1851)"

 
iii.
Stephen (1379)XE "Morse:Stephen  (1379) (28 Oct 1804-1 Oct 1866)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) was born on 28 Oct 1804 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses.).  He married Sarah P. Butler (1800)XE "Butler:Sarah P.  (1800)" on 9 Sep 1827 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  He died on 1 Oct 1866 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 61. 

     (an unknown value) (Ferryman, cooper).


 
iv.
James (1380)XE "Morse:James  (1380) (Jan 1807-18 Jul 1808)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) was born in Jan 1807.  He died on 18 Jul 1808 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 1 (fits) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 241.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, (New England Historic Genealogical Society), Vol. 59, page 301.).


 
v.
Charles (1381)XE "Morse:Charles  (1381) (Jan 1807-24 Jul 1808)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.) was born in Jan 1807.  He died on 24 Jul 1808 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 1 (worms) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 241.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 301.).


 
vi.
Albert C. (1382)XE "Morse:Albert C.  (1382) (22 Aug 1808-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) was born on 22 Aug 1808 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, Page 174.).  He married Eveline Luce (1802)XE "Luce:Eveline  (1802)" on 15 Sep 1833 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Master mariner).


 
vii.
William H. (1383)XE "Morse:William H.  (1383) (1809-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) was born in 1809.  He died.


 
viii.
Uriah (1384)XE "Morse:Uriah  (1384) (19 Feb 1814-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 336.) was born on 19 Feb 1814.  He married Celia H. Fisher (1803)XE "Fisher:Celia H.  (1803)" on 10 Oct 1835 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  He died.
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Fotograph taken by Ricardo E. Rain at the Memorial Ground in Edgartown on the 14 May 1995

21.  Prudence5 Fish (1278)XE "Fish:Prudence  (1278) (15 May 1772-3 Jun 1851)" (James, #42) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 336 & 173.) was born on 15 May 1772.  She married Uriah Morse (1276)XE "Morse:Uriah  (1276) (1 Jan 1773-28 Jan 1835)" on 18 Feb 1796 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 150.).  She died on 3 Jun 1851 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 79 
 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.).

22.  Ebenezer5 Smith (1627)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1627) (24 Oct 1778-5 Aug 1840)" (Ebenezer, #44) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 455.) was born on 24 Oct 1778 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 71.).  He married Mary Hulsart (1628)XE "Hulsart:Mary  (1628) (21 Mar 1780-)" on 27 Feb 1800 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 455.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  He died on 5 Aug 1840 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W, at age 61 ([a. 62, G.R.7]) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown, farmer).

     Children of Ebenezer5 Smith (1627)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1627) (24 Oct 1778-5 Aug 1840)" and Mary Hulsart (1628)XE "Hulsart:Mary  (1628) (21 Mar 1780-)" (see #23) were as follows:


 
i.
Jane Ann4 (1786)XE "Smith:Jane Ann  (1786) (6 Jan 1801-)"

XE "Clarke:Jane Ann  (1786) (6 Jan 1801-)" was born on 6 Jan 1801 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  She married Benjamin Clarke (4916)XE "Clarke:Benjamin  (4916)" on 21 Sep 1820 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  She died.


 
ii.
Charles Grandison (1787)XE "Smith:Charles Grandison  (1787) (17 Feb 1802-)" was born on 17 Feb 1802 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  He married Drusilla H West (4917)XE "West:Drusilla H  (4917)" on 20 Dec 1828 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  He died.


 
iii.
Nancy (1788)XE "Smith:Nancy  (1788) (10 Aug 1803-19 Apr 1805)" was born on 10 Aug 1803 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  She died on 19 Apr 1805 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W, at age 1 ([a. I y. 8 m. 9 d., G.R.7]) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).


 
iv.
Nancy (1789)XE "Smith:Nancy  (1789) (11 Aug 1805-)"

XE "Hawes:Nancy  (1789) (11 Aug 1805-)" was born on 11 Aug 1805 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  She married Captain Shubael Hawes (4918)XE "Hawes:Shubael (Captain)  (4918)"

XE "Hawes:Shubael Captain (4918)" on 25 Jul 1824 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  She died.


 
v.
Sally Hulsart (1790)XE "Smith:Sally Hulsart  (1790) (3 Oct 1806-)"

XE "Norton:Sally Hulsart  (1790) (3 Oct 1806-)" was born on 3 Oct 1806 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  She married Supply B Norton (4919)XE "Norton:Supply B  (4919)" on 15 Jan 1824 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  She died.


 
vi.
Ebenezer (1791)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1791) (11 Feb 1808-)" was born on 11 Feb 1808 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  He married Sarah Ann Fowler (4921)XE "Fowler:Sarah Ann  (4921)" on 28 Apr 1835 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  He died.


 
vii.
Henry Hulsart (1792)XE "Smith:Henry Hulsart  (1792) (16 Oct 1809-)" was born on 16 Oct 1809 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  He married Mary F Blackmer (4920)XE "Blackmer:Mary F  (4920)" on 9 Nov 1839 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  He died.


 
viii.
Rodolphus (1793)XE "Smith:Rodolphus  (1793) (22 Nov 1810-)" was born on 22 Nov 1810 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 74.).  He died.


 11.
ix.
Mary (1275).XE "Smith:Mary  (1275) (1 Jan 1812-24 Apr 1892)"

 
x.
Jared (1794)XE "Smith:Jared  (1794) (25 Nov 1814-)" was born on 25 Nov 1814 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 72.).  He died.


 
xi.
Lydia Davis (1795)XE "Smith:Lydia Davis  (1795) (16 Dec 1815-)" was born on 16 Dec 1815 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 73.).  She died.


 
xii.
Ann Fowler (1796)XE "Smith:Ann Fowler  (1796) (12 Oct 1817-)"

XE "Fisher:Ann Fowler  (1796) (12 Oct 1817-)" was born on 12 Oct 1817 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 70.).  She married George F Fisher (4922)XE "Fisher:George F  (4922)" on 24 Oct 1842 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  She died.

23.  Mary5 Hulsart (1628)XE "Hulsart:Mary  (1628) (21 Mar 1780-)" (Cornelius Holsaert, #46) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 455.)XE "Smith:Mary  (1628) (21 Mar 1780-)" was born on 21 Mar 1780 at Hunterdon, New Jersey, USA.  She married Ebenezer Smith (1627)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1627) (24 Oct 1778-5 Aug 1840)" on 27 Feb 1800 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 455.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (In the History of Martha's Vineyard, of Charles Banks, Vol. III, page 455, Mary Hulsart appears as daughter of Henry Hulsart, when he was her eldest brother, and as their father died when she was 17, probably Henry took care of her, and they probably both settled in Marthas Vineyard).

24.  John5 Allen Doctor (831)XE "Allen:John Doctor (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)"

XE "Allen:John Doctor  (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.) was born circa 1753 at England.  He married Eleanor Lowell (832)XE "Lowell:Eleanor  (832) (13 Mar 1776-11 Jul 1813)" on 27 Jun 1801 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He married Abigail Merrill (871)XE "Merrill:Abigail  (871)" on 16 Aug 1814 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He died on 18 Nov 1825 at Saco, Maine, USA.

     (an unknown value) ((Copies from papers found probably by Catherine Elizabeth Dawes) Dr. John Allen, formerly of Salem, State of Maine, who also practised round Massachusetss Bay as M.D. and Missionary, formerly of the British Army, never would say where he was born. He married an American, by whom he had five children, the wife died in childbed of Samuel. Later the Dr. married his housekeeper, by whom he had no issue.

(Following a narrative of Lucy Ellen Allen de Grant) Somewhere about the year 1779 or 1790, one John Allen died in Wales G.B., leaving a legacy of 60.000 pounds to his cousin John Allen and his heirs for ever, in recognition of a gift of 500 pounds from the last mentioned John Allen to the testator, by which the testator had made his fortune in foreign parts. Dr. John Allen, my grandfather, came over from England with the English Army at the time of the Independence war. After peace was made, he settled in Massachusetts and established a practise as Missionary Doctor. Married and raised a family of five children. When my father (Thomas Jefferson Allen) heard about the legacy, he sent his brother John to try and prove it, but on one of his many trips over the then known Cordevroy roads he was pitched out of his gig and killed. My father seems to have been so schocked he never made another move in the matter, although the Lawyers said they had no doubt they were the right heirs. We never have heard our Grandmothers name, as my father said he only knew her as Mother. She was an American and had dark eyes. The attempt to prove the will must have been made between 1830 - 36, Elinor's or Lucy's descendants ought to be able to throw some light on this.

("What follows on the next page we cannot say if it is really a fact or mostly romancing. As we do not know what became of any documents that Uncle Thomas Allen may have had, we cannot vouch for any of the written statements, which Jeff Allen (Uncle Thomas' eldest son) said he had collected from letters and documents he found. As they have been such a dis-united family, no one knows anything about the truth", this was written by Margaret Augusta Grant de Colghoun - Aunt Madge)

.u

Origenes de la Familia de Allen

.r

Las carreras consideradas decorosas por la nobleza britanica, amen de la politica son: el ejercito, la armada y el clero. Fue esta la causa porque en el ultimo tercio del siglo XVII, un joven noble irlandes, heredero a la vez del titulo, de una parcela en la agreste comarca de Allendale, en Irlanda, se encontraba de guarnicion en Dublin al frente de un destacamento de horseguards con el grado de Mayor, cuando un buen dia, por cuestiones del eterno femenino, tuvo una diferencia con su superior inmediato, el coronel del regimiento que se dirimio sobre el terreno del honor con resultado fatal para este. Si bien en este lance la suerte habia favorecido al Mayor, sabido es que las ordenanzas militares son terminantes al respecto y, de acuerdo con ellas, correspondiale un pasaje directo al otro mundo por cuenta del estado; pero no siendo de su agrado esta solucion, prefirio extranarse voluntariamente al nuevo mundo, dirigiendose a Nueva Inglaterra, alla por el ano 1770, pero como esta era aun dominio de la Gran Bretana, tuvo que ocultar su verdadero nombre y rango, internandose en el pais, donde fue el pionero de la actual industria pildorera de los Estados Unidos.

Sus pildoras, que fueron muy renombradas en su tiempo, las preparaba con mayor esmero y cuidado, empleando en ellas solamente la mejor miga de pan mas fresco que podia conseguir, ingrediente que por cierto no abundaba entonces como ahora en el interior de aquel gran pais, y a esa miga le daba sabor con diversas yerbas y forma de manera primitiva, sui generis. Para demostrar la gran fama que habian alcanzado y el efecto maravilloso de sus pildoras, basta decir que en cierta ocasion, habiendo recurrido a el un poblador fronterizo (squatter) a quien se le habian desaparecido varias vacas, en demanda de un especifico que le ayudara a recuperarlas, le administro una dosis razonable de sus pildoras, que fueron tan eficaces que habiendolo obligado a internarse en una espesura, al terminar el efecto de las pildoras, fue gratamente sorprendido por el valido de sus vacas prodigas que pastabana tranquilamente tras de unas malezas. Este y otros exitos le dieron gran renombre en toda la comarca, no solo entre los europeos, sino tambien entre los indigenas, que se disputaba sus pildoras maravillosas, y fue con este motivo que conocio a la hija del cacique piel roja, joven de extraordinaria belleza, que mas tarde fue su consorte. Recien al estallar la guerra de los Estados Unidos en 1773, y ofrecer su espada a los insurrectos, pudo revelar Samuel (?) Allen su verdadero nombre - rango y jerarquia militar. Su actuacion en las filas independizadoras fue tan brillante, que a poco fue ascendido a general y en tal caracter mando la famosa batalla de ------- empenada el dia -- de --- de 178- donde lucharon un insurrecto contra diez britanicos. De la union con la hija del cacique nacieron dos varones y dos mujeres, el mayor de ellos bautizo Thomas Jefferson en homenaje al eminente estadista de ese nombre, primer presidente democrata de los Estados Unidos. Nacio en Saco, Estado de Maine el dia 13 de Octubre de 1801, dedicandose desde su infancia a la marina. El rechazo de las Invasiones Inglesas de Buenos Aires previa derrota de los Generales Popham, Berresford y Whitelock, y el aniquilamiento del inclito y 2 de montaneses, trajeron sobre nuestro pais las miradas, la admiracion y las simpatias del mundo entero, a punto que atraidos por esa aureola de valor indomable vinieron al pais una falange de marineros extranjeros, que como Brown, Thorne, Buchardo, Campbell y Brill, Daws y otros muchos a la par que servian al comercio, munidos tambien de patente de corso, coadyudaron a mantener por agua el prestigio del pabellon nacional y a raya a la marina brasilena y francesa.

(La continuacion de estas historias veremos junto con la bigrafia de Thomas Jefferson Allen)

).  John (831)XE "Allen:John Doctor (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)"

XE "Allen:John Doctor  (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)" was employed at as a Physician at Saco, Maine, USA, in 1796 (Everts & Peck, History of York County, Maine, With Illustrations and Biographical Sketches of its Prominent Men and Pioneers (J.B. Lippincott & Co., Philadelphia, 1880), Page 158.).  John (831)XE "Allen:John Doctor (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)"

XE "Allen:John Doctor  (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)" had marriage banns to Eleanor Lowell (832)XE "Lowell:Eleanor  (832) (13 Mar 1776-11 Jul 1813)" published on 24 May 1801 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).

     Children of John5 Allen Doctor (831)XE "Allen:John Doctor (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)"

XE "Allen:John Doctor  (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)" and Eleanor Lowell (832)XE "Lowell:Eleanor  (832) (13 Mar 1776-11 Jul 1813)" (see #25) all born at Saco, Maine, USA, were as follows:
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i.
Thomas Jefferson4 (829).XE "Allen:Thomas Jefferson  (829) (13 Oct 1801-15 Mar 1842)"

 
ii.
Mary Louisa (872)XE "Allen:Mary Louisa  (872) (21 Aug 1803-4 Sep 1803)" was born on 21 Aug 1803 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  She died on 4 Sep 1803.


 
iii.
Mary Louisa (873)XE "Allen:Mary Louisa  (873) (29 Aug 1804-7 Oct 1805)" was born on 29 Aug 1804 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  She died on 7 Oct 1805 at age 1.


 
iv.
Lucy M. (874)XE "Allen:Lucy M.  (874) (13 Jun 1806-)" was born on 13 Jun 1806 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  She died.


 
v.
John Berry (875)XE "Allen:John Berry  (875) (8 Jun 1807-2 Jul 1807)" was born on 8 Jun 1807 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He died on 2 Jul 1807.


 
vi.
John Berry (876)XE "Allen:John Berry  (876) (20 Jan 1808-)" was born on 20 Jan 1808 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He died.


 
vii.
Eleanor Allen (877)XE "Allen:Eleanor Allen  (877) (2 Oct 1810-)" was born on 2 Oct 1810 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  She died.


 
viii.
Samuel (878)XE "Allen:Samuel  (878) (20 Aug 1812-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.) was born on 20 Aug 1812 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He died.

     Samuel (878)XE "Allen:Samuel  (878) (20 Aug 1812-)" was listed on the Thornton Academy roll as a student at Saco, Maine, USA, on 11 Mar 1833 (Edward P. Burnham and George A. Emery, List of Students, 1813-1848, Thornton Academy, Saco, Maine, Page 1.).

25.  Eleanor5 Lowell (832)XE "Lowell:Eleanor  (832) (13 Mar 1776-11 Jul 1813)" (Samuel, #50) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.) was born on 13 Mar 1776 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada.  Eleanor (832)XE "Lowell:Eleanor  (832) (13 Mar 1776-11 Jul 1813)" had marriage banns to John Allen Doctor (831)XE "Allen:John Doctor (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)"

XE "Allen:John Doctor  (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)" published on 24 May 1801 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  She married John Allen Doctor (831)XE "Allen:John Doctor (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)"

XE "Allen:John Doctor  (831) (circa 1753-18 Nov 1825)" on 27 Jun 1801 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  She died on 11 Jul 1813 at age 37.

26.  Charles5 Daws (1602)XE "Daws:Charles  (1602) (10 Jul 1782-11 Mar 1856)" (William Daw, #52) (Carpenter) (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born on 10 Jul 1782 at England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.).  He was baptized on 25 Aug 1782 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey to Ricardo Ernesto Rain. 6 October 1997 14 River Reach Teddington, Middlesex, TW11 9Ql, UK.. (1997). Transcription of Baptism register.).  He married Anne Dunn (1603)XE "Dunn:Anne  (1603) (26 Feb 1788-        )" on 10 Dec 1809 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. Charles Daws and Ann Dunn of this parish, spinster (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Ann Dunn to Charles Daws, Marriage entry, 10 December 1809, "Record of marriages of the church of St. Botolph Aldgate," Nr. 75, Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  He died on 11 Mar 1856 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, at age 73 (Inflammation of lungs) (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was buried on 13 Mar 1856 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, Victoria Cementery (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).

     Children of Charles5 Daws (1602)XE "Daws:Charles  (1602) (10 Jul 1782-11 Mar 1856)" and Anne Dunn (1603)XE "Dunn:Anne  (1603) (26 Feb 1788-        )" (see #27) were as follows:


 
i.
Charles4 (1606)XE "Daws:Charles  (1606) (5 Oct 1810-before 21 Jul 1867)" (Carpenter) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.) was born on 5 Oct 1810 at London, England. Charles Daws son of Charles & Ann, Cartwright St. Born 5th Oct. 1810 (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Charles Daws, Baptismal entry, 28 of October 1810, "Baptism records of the church of St. Botolph Aldgate," Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  He was baptized on 28 Oct 1810 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Charles Daws, Baptismal entry.).  He died before 21 Jul 1867 at Buenos Aires, Argentina (decay) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was buried on 21 Jul 1867 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, Victoria Cementery (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).


 
ii.
Mary Anne (1607)XE "Daws:Mary Anne  (1607) (6 Nov 1812-)" (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.)XE "Brill:Mary Anne  (1607) (6 Nov 1812-)" was born on 6 Nov 1812 at London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Mary Anne Daws, Baptismal entry, 6th of December 1812, "Baptisms at St. George the Martyr, Borough (ie Southwark)," Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  She was baptized on 6 Dec 1812 at St. George the Martyr, Borough, London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Mary Anne Daws, Baptismal entry.).  She married Christopher Brill (5277)XE "Brill:Christopher  (5277)" on 21 Aug 1827 (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  She died.
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iii.
Catherine Elizabeth (830).XE "Daws:Catherine Elizabeth  (830) (17 Jul 1815-20 Apr 1871)"

 
iv.
William (1608)XE "Daws:William  (1608) (10 Sep 1817-before 24 Apr 1871)" (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) was born on 10 Sep 1817 at Walker Street Nº 16 St. Georges, London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (William Daws, Baptismal entry, 5th October 1817, "Baptisms solemnized in the Parish of St. George the Martyr," (Page 85, No. 676 of the year 1817), Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  He was baptized on 5 Oct 1817 at St. George the Martyr, Borough, London, England. a son of Charles and Ann Daws, of Walker Street, Kent Street, Southwark, a carpinter (William Daws, Baptismal entry.).  He died before 24 Apr 1871 at Flores, Buenos Aires, Argentina (Pneumonia) (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).  He was buried on 24 Apr 1871 at Buenos Aires, Argentina, Victoria Cementery (Vital Records at St. John's Church, Buenos Aires.).


 
v.
Richard (1609)XE "Daws:Richard  (1609) (16 Dec 1819-)" (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) was born on 16 Dec 1819 at Walker Street Nº 16 St. Georges, London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Richard Daws, Baptismal entry, 2nd January 1820, "Baptisms solemnized in the Parish of St. George the Martyr," (Page 268, No. 2144 of the year 1819), Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  He was baptized on 2 Jan 1820 at St. George the Martyr, Borough, London, England. a son of Charles and Ann Daws, of Walker Street, Kent Street, Southwark, a carpenter (Richard Daws, Baptismal entry.).  He died.


 
vi.
Anne (1610)XE "Daws:Anne  (1610) (29 Mar 1822-)" (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) was born on 29 Mar 1822 at Waltzer Street Nº 16 St. Georges, London, England (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Ann Daws, Baptismal entry, 21st April 1822, "Baptisms solemnized in the Parish of St. George the Martyr," (Page 154, No. 1229 of the year 1822), Church of St. Botolph Aldgate.).  She was baptized on 21 Apr 1822 at St. George's, London, England. a daughter of Charles & Ann Daws, of Walker Street, Kent Street, Southwark, a carpenter (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Ann Daws, Baptismal entry.).  She died.

27.  Anne5 Dunn (1603)XE "Dunn:Anne  (1603) (26 Feb 1788-        )" (Richard, #54) was born on 26 Feb 1788 (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.).  She was baptized on 16 Mar 1788 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. of Butlers Buildings, East Smithfield, London (BA (Hons), DipGen Peter Towey Ricardo Ernesto Rain. 22 Feb. and 21 Nov. 2000 14 River Reach Teddington, Middlesex, TW119QL, UK.).  She married Charles Daws (1602)XE "Daws:Charles  (1602) (10 Jul 1782-11 Mar 1856)" on 10 Dec 1809 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. Charles Daws and Ann Dunn of this parish, spinster (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Ann Dunn to Charles Daws, Marriage entry.).

     (an unknown value) (The ancestors of Anne Dunn are being investigated by Peter Towey, and the information given, is not totally secure, and is still to be proven. Nov. 2000).

Generation SixTC "Generation Six" \l 2
32.  Daniel6 Crocker (740)XE "Crocker:Daniel  (740) (28 Aug 1722-24 Mar 1787)" (Abel, #64) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 44):IT].) was born on 28 Aug 1722 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 18):IT].).  He married Susanna Dunham (741)XE "Dunham:Susanna  (741) (16 Jul 1721-Oct 1763)" on 31 Dec 1741 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 44.).  He married Abigail Roberts (778)XE "Roberts:Abigail  (778) (1741-17 Jul 1826)" on 30 Mar 1762 at Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, Canada (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 44):IT].).  He died on 24 Mar 1787 at Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, Canada, at age 64 (Benjamin Crocker, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).

     Children of Daniel6 Crocker (740)XE "Crocker:Daniel  (740) (28 Aug 1722-24 Mar 1787)" and Susanna Dunham (741)XE "Dunham:Susanna  (741) (16 Jul 1721-Oct 1763)" (see #33) were as follows:


 
i.
Elijah5 (779)XE "Crocker:Elijah  (779) (say 1742-        )" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 45):IT].) was born say 1742 at Carver, Mass., USA.


 
ii.
Hezediah (780)XE "Crocker:Hezediah  (780) (say 1743-8 Aug 1788)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 45):IT].) was born say 1743 at Carver, Mass., USA.  She married Micah Foster (2759)XE "Foster:Micah  (2759) (27 Sep 1742-22 Jun 1827)" on 7 Mar 1765 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 45.).  She died on 8 Aug 1788 at Pembroke, Mass., USA.


 
iii.
Phebe (782)XE "Crocker:Phebe  (782) (1747-5 Mar 1807)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 45.) was born in 1747 at Plympton, Mass., USA.  She married Isaiah Tillson (2760)XE "Tillson:Isaiah  (2760) (5 Oct 1744-30 May 1822)" on 6 Feb 1766 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 45.).  She died on 5 Mar 1807 at Carver, Mass., USA.


 
iv.
Rebekah (783)XE "Crocker:Rebekah  (783) (circa 1748-8 Apr 1787)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 45.) was born circa 1748.  She married Joseph Cobb (2761)XE "Cobb:Joseph  (2761) (1748-2 Jul 1804)" on 28 Apr 1774 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 45.).  She died on 8 Apr 1787.
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v.
Heman (738).XE "Crocker:Heman  (738) (circa 1750-5 Sep 1801)"

 
vi.
Rowland (781)XE "Crocker:Rowland  (781) (8 Apr 1757-8 Feb 1839)" was born on 8 Apr 1757 at Carver, Mass., USA (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, 2 vols. (Heritage Books, Inc.), Vol. 2, page 23.).  He married Mehitable Merrill (4433)XE "Merrill:Mehitable  (4433)" on 16 Jan 1781 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page 23.).  He died on 8 Feb 1839 at age 81 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page 23.).


 
vii.
Rhonda (784)XE "Crocker:Rhonda  (784) (circa 1760-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 46.) was born circa 1760.  She married Daniel Perry (2763)XE "Perry:Daniel  (2763) (16 May 1752-)" on 20 Nov 1777 at Plympton, Mass., USA.  She died.


 
viii.
Susanna (785)XE "Crocker:Susanna  (785) (13 Feb 1762-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 46.) was born on 13 Feb 1762.  She married Lemuel Cole Lt. (2764)XE "Cole:Lemuel Lt. (2764)"

XE "Cole:Lemuel Lt.  (2764)" on 20 Nov 1783 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 46.).  She died.


 
ix.
Child (786)XE "Crocker:Child  (786) (circa 1762-)" was born circa 1762.  He/she died.


 
x.
Elijah (787)XE "Crocker:Elijah  (787) (circa 1762-)" was born circa 1762.  He died.

33.  Susanna6 Dunham (741)XE "Dunham:Susanna  (741) (16 Jul 1721-Oct 1763)" (Israel, #66) (Ph. D. Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, (Toledo, Ohio, 1956), Page 25.) (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 22.) was born on 16 Jul 1721 at Plympton, Mass., USA.  She married Daniel Crocker (740)XE "Crocker:Daniel  (740) (28 Aug 1722-24 Mar 1787)" on 31 Dec 1741 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 44.).  She died in Oct 1763 at Carver, Mass., USA, at age 42 (Benjamin Crocker, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).

     (an unknown value) (a descendant of immigrant American ancestor of the Nova Scotia CAN Churchills).

34.  Perez6 Churchill Captain (1032)XE "Churchill:Perez Captain (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)"

XE "Churchill:Perez Captain  (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)" (Benjamin, #68) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) was born on 15 Oct 1722 at Middleborough, Mass., USA.  He married Deborah Thayer (1033)XE "Thayer:Deborah  (1033) (9 Mar 1723-27 Apr 1788)" on 21 Dec 1741 at Middleborough, Mass., USA. Her name is written Dabrah Theare (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) (Entry ID: 231. 01. Marriage Index: Massachusetts 1633-1850. 1997. Broderbund Software, Inc.).  He married Persis Harlow (1074)XE "Harlow:Persis  (1074) (8 Feb 1729-28 Aug 1802)" on 6 Feb 1786 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 22 Oct 1797 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 75 (Benjamin Shurtleff, John Shaw of Plymouth, Massachusetts Page 20.).

     (an unknown value) (He lived at Pope's Point Furnace, in Middleboro. He served in the war of the Revolution, first as corporal in Capt. James Keith's Company, Col. Paul Dudley Sargent's Regiment. Enlisted July 12, 1775. Service, twenty days. Commissioned captain of 9th Company of Fourth Plymouth County Regiment, May 9, 1776. Also captain in Col. Ebenezer Sprout's Regiment. Served three days, May 6 to May 9, 1778, on an alarm at Dartmouth. Also in Colonel Daggett's Regiment, Aug. 25 to Sept. 2, 1778, at Rhode Island. Again in Col. Ebenezer White's Regiment, marched to Rhode Island on the alarm of Aug. 1, 1780, and served nine days. He is buried in the Lakenham burial-ground, with his two wives. His gravestone was standing in 1857

).

     Children of Perez6 Churchill Captain (1032)XE "Churchill:Perez Captain (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)"

XE "Churchill:Perez Captain  (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)" and Deborah Thayer (1033)XE "Thayer:Deborah  (1033) (9 Mar 1723-27 Apr 1788)" (see #35) all born at Middleborough, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Deliverance5 (1077)XE "Churchill:Deliverance  (1077) (29 Dec 1742-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) was born on 29 Dec 1742 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).  She married Ebenezer Wright (4557)XE "Wright:Ebenezer  (4557)" on 7 Feb 1776 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
ii.
Zebedee (1078)XE "Churchill:Zebedee  (1078) (19 Aug 1745-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) was born on 19 Aug 1745 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).  He married Sarah Cushman (4556)XE "Cushman:Sarah  (4556)" on 17 Mar 1764 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died.


 
iii.
Deborah (1079)XE "Churchill:Deborah  (1079) (29 Dec 1747-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) was born on 29 Dec 1747 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).  She married Timothy Cobb (4558)XE "Cobb:Timothy  (4558)" on 29 1764 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
iv.
Perez (1080)XE "Churchill:Perez  (1080) (26 Apr 1753-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) was born on 26 Apr 1753 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).  He married Priscilla Wood (4559)XE "Wood:Priscilla  (4559)" on 1 1778 at Plympton (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died.
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v.
Lydia (739).XE "Churchill:Lydia  (739) (20 Jan 1756-22 Oct 1843)"

 
vi.
Isaac (4420)XE "Churchill:Isaac  (4420) (23 Nov 1758-        )" was born on 23 Nov 1758 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).


 
vii.
Joseph (4421)XE "Churchill:Joseph  (4421) (23 Apr 1761-        )" was born on 23 Apr 1761 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 148.).

35.  Deborah6 Thayer (1033)XE "Thayer:Deborah  (1033) (9 Mar 1723-27 Apr 1788)" (Isaac, #70) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) (Boston Evening Transcript (Monday, Nov. 24, 1924).) was born on 9 Mar 1723 at Plympton, Mass., USA (.).  She married Perez Churchill Captain (1032)XE "Churchill:Perez Captain (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)"

XE "Churchill:Perez Captain  (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)" on 21 Dec 1741 at Middleborough, Mass., USA. Her name is written Dabrah Theare (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 33.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died on 27 Apr 1788 at age 65.

36.  Jacob6 Thomson Lieut. (1083)XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut. (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut.  (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)" (Jacob, #72) (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 33.) was born on 17 Apr 1695 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 17.).  He married Elizabeth Tilson (1084)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1084) (6 May 1700-8 Aug 1773)" on 7 Jan 1731 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (FASG Ralph Van Wood, Jr. Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, (General Society of Mayflower Descendants 1994, Third Edition), Page 102.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 52.).  He died on 10 Mar 1789 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 93. Inscription in the Old Cemetery at "the Green", Middleborough, Mass., USA: Jacob, Lieut., died 10 March, 1789, aged 93 years, 10 months (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14 October 1922, No. 14, page 219.).

     (an unknown value) (He was a surveyor and scrivener, and was generally known as Clerk Jacob.

On 2 March 1784 Jacob Tomson deeded 30 acres to son Jacob Tomson Jr.

On 4 May 1789 Jacob Tomson was appointed administrator of the estate of Jacob Tomson of Middleboro

).

     Children of Jacob6 Thomson Lieut. (1083)XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut. (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut.  (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)" and Elizabeth Tilson (1084)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1084) (6 May 1700-8 Aug 1773)" (see #37) all born at Middleborough, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Abigail5 (1129)XE "Thomson:Abigail  (1129) (26 Nov 1735-)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 123.) was born on 26 Nov 1735 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 59.).  She married Seth Miller (1954).XE "Miller:Seth  (1954)"  She died.
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ii.
Jacob (1081).XE "Thomson:Jacob  (1081) (28 Mar 1738-30 Nov 1805)"

 
iii.
Elizabeth (1130)XE "Thomson:Elizabeth  (1130) (29 Jun 1741-4 Dec 1747)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 124.) was born on 29 Jun 1741 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 69.).  She died on 4 Dec 1747 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 6 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 73.).

37.  Elizabeth6 Tilson (1084)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1084) (6 May 1700-8 Aug 1773)" (Edmund, #74) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 38.) was born on 6 May 1700 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, (Picton Press, Camden, ME, 1993), Page 15.).  She married John Holmes (1169)XE "Holmes:John  (1169) (circa 1694-14 Feb 1730)" on 6 Jan 1718.  She married Jacob Thomson Lieut. (1083)XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut. (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut.  (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)" on 7 Jan 1731 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 102.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 52.).  She died on 8 Aug 1773 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 73. Inscription in the Old Cemetery,  at "the Green", Middleborough, Mass., USA: Elizabeth, wife of Lieut. Jacob, died 8 August, 1773, in her 74th year (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 160.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14 October 1922, No. 4, page 219.).

38.  Pelatiah6 Phinney (1201)XE "Phinney:Pelatiah  (1201) (21 Mar 1711-after 1760)" (Joseph, #76) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, 6 vols. (General Society of Mayflower Descendants, 1975 - 1992), Vol 2, page 238.) (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 21 Mar 1711 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 5 July 1903, No. 3, page 184.).  He married Mercy Washburn (1202)XE "Washburn:Mercy  (1202) (29 May 1718-after 5 Oct 1760)" on 28 Dec 1738 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 238.).  He died after 1760 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 238.).

     (an unknown value) (No probate record found in Bristol or Plymouth).

     Children of Pelatiah6 Phinney (1201)XE "Phinney:Pelatiah  (1201) (21 Mar 1711-after 1760)" and Mercy Washburn (1202)XE "Washburn:Mercy  (1202) (29 May 1718-after 5 Oct 1760)" (see #39) all born at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:
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i.
Freelove5 (1082).XE "Phinney:Freelove  (1082) (27 Jan 1740-7 Nov 1826)"

 
ii.
Lurania (1257)XE "Phinney:Lurania  (1257) (4 Mar 1741-15 Sep 1829)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 4 Mar 1741 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  She married Benjamin Packard (1914)XE "Packard:Benjamin  (1914)" on 22 Aug 1775 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.).  She died on 15 Sep 1829 at Brockton, Mass., USA, at age 88 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.).


 
iii.
Zeruah (1258)XE "Phinney:Zeruah  (1258) (17 Sep 1742-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 17 Sep 1742 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  He/she died.

     (an unknown value) ((died young)).


 
iv.
Onesiphorus (1259)XE "Phinney:Onesiphorus  (1259) (16 Apr 1744-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 16 Apr 1744 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  He died.


 
v.
Mary (1260)XE "Phinney:Mary  (1260) (18 Oct 1745-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 18 Oct 1745 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  She died.


 
vi.
Zeruah (1261)XE "Phinney:Zeruah  (1261) (27 Jan 1748-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 27 Jan 1748 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  He/she died.


 
vii.
Pelatiah (1915)XE "Phinney:Pelatiah Jr. (1915) (circa 1750-)"

XE "Phinney:Pelatiah Jr.  (1915) (circa 1750-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) was born circa 1750.  He died.


 
viii.
Esther (1262)XE "Phinney:Esther  (1262) (23 May 1751-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 23 May 1751 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  She married Barnabas Curtis (1916)XE "Curtis:Barnabas  (1916) (circa 1751-28 Sep 1821)" on 6 Jun 1774 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.).  She died.


 
ix.
Kezia (1263)XE "Phinney:Kezia  (1263) (Feb 1753-6 Jan 1839)" was born in Feb 1753 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  She married Adin Packard (1917)XE "Packard:Adin  (1917)" on 16 Nov 1780 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.).  She died on 6 Jan 1839 at Brockton, Mass., USA, at age 85.


 
x.
Bliss (1264)XE "Phinney:Bliss  (1264) (30 Nov 1754-8 Mar 1808)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 30 Nov 1754 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  She married Jesse Perkins Capt. (1918)XE "Perkins:Jesse Capt. (1918)"

XE "Perkins:Jesse Capt.  (1918)" on 12 Nov 1789.  She died on 8 Mar 1808 at age 53.


 
xi.
Hannah (1265)XE "Phinney:Hannah  (1265) (10 Oct 1758-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) was born on 10 Oct 1758 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  She married Christopher Monk (1919)XE "Monk:Christopher  (1919)" on 6 Mar 1783 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.).  She died.


 
xii.
John (1266)XE "Phinney:John  (1266) (5 Oct 1760-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America.) was born on 5 Oct 1760 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  He died.

39.  Mercy6 Washburn (1202)XE "Washburn:Mercy  (1202) (29 May 1718-after 5 Oct 1760)" (Josiah, #78) was born on 29 May 1718 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14. July, 1912 No. 3 p.24.).  She married Pelatiah Phinney (1201)XE "Phinney:Pelatiah  (1201) (21 Mar 1711-after 1760)" on 28 Dec 1738 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 238.).  She died after 5 Oct 1760 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 238.).

40.  Theodore6 Morse (1279)XE "Morse:Theodore  (1279) (circa 1754-Jan 1821)" (Joseph, #80) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 87.) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.) was born circa 1754 at Beaufort, Carteret, NC, USA, 344300N0804000W (The Morse Society.).  He married Mary Unknown (1277)XE "Unknown:Mary  (1277) (circa 1754-        )" on 9 Oct 1809 (Hon. Asa Porter Morse., Memorial of the Family Morse 1635 - 1896 Page 96.).  He died in Jan 1821 at Beaufort, Carteret, NC, USA, 344300N0804000W (The Morse Society.).

     (an unknown value) (Removed to Beauforth, North Carolina).  He lived in 1790 at Carteret, NC, USA (The Morse Society.).  He lived in 1820 at Carteret, NC, USA (The Morse Society.).

     Children of Theodore6 Morse (1279)XE "Morse:Theodore  (1279) (circa 1754-Jan 1821)" and Mary Unknown (1277)XE "Unknown:Mary  (1277) (circa 1754-        )" (see #41) were as follows:


 
i.
Nancy5 (1376).XE "Morse:Nancy  (1376)"

 
ii.
Stephen (1374).XE "Morse:Stephen  (1374)"

 
iii.
William (1375).XE "Morse:William  (1375)"

 
iv.
John (1377).XE "Morse:John  (1377)"
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v.
Uriah (1276).XE "Morse:Uriah  (1276) (1 Jan 1773-28 Jan 1835)"
41.  Mary6 Unknown (1277)XE "Unknown:Mary  (1277) (circa 1754-        )" (Hon. Asa Porter Morse, Memorial of the Family Morse 1635 - 1896, Page 96.)XE "Morse:Mary  (1277) (circa 1754-        )" was born circa 1754 (The Morse Society.).  She married Theodore Morse (1279)XE "Morse:Theodore  (1279) (circa 1754-Jan 1821)" on 9 Oct 1809 (Hon. Asa Porter Morse, Memorial of the Family Morse 1635 - 1896, Page 96.).

42.  James6 Fish (1390)XE "Fish:James  (1390) (circa 1740-26 May 1816)" (Thomas, #84) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.) was born circa 1740.  He married Abigail Osborn (1391)XE "Osborn:Abigail  (1391) (before 1 May 1747-1 Jan 1820)" on 12 Dec 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 122.).  He died on 26 May 1816 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. He had lain in a helpless Condition a long Time & died suddenly. He had lived with his Wife 51 Years & not a Death in his Family. He left 13 Children 51 Grand Children 6 GG Children (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 305.).

     Children of James6 Fish (1390)XE "Fish:James  (1390) (circa 1740-26 May 1816)" and Abigail Osborn (1391)XE "Osborn:Abigail  (1391) (before 1 May 1747-1 Jan 1820)" (see #43) were as follows:


 
i.
Richard5 (1472)XE "Fish:Richard  (1472) (circa 1766-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.) was born circa 1766.  He married Lucy Norton (3942)XE "Norton:Lucy  (3942)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.).  He married Lydia West (3941)XE "West:Lydia  (3941) (circa 1778-)" on 9 Nov 1799 at Chilmark, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died.


 
ii.
Mary (1473)XE "Fish:Mary  (1473) (1768-2 Aug 1844)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 173 & 209.) was born in 1768.  She married Samuel Wheaton (3943)XE "Wheaton:Samuel  (3943)" on 8 Apr 1784 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She married Joseph Holley (3944)XE "Holley:Joseph  (3944) (3 Sep 1760-)" on 3 Oct 1790 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.).  She died on 2 Aug 1844.


 
iii.
Kesiah (1474)XE "Fish:Kesiah  (1474) (circa 1770-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1770.  She married James Case (3945)XE "Case:James  (3945) (14 Feb 1751-after 1816)" on 2 Apr 1793. Banks gives the date as 24 Mch. 1793 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.
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iv.
Prudence (1278).XE "Fish:Prudence  (1278) (15 May 1772-3 Jun 1851)"

 
v.
Phebe (1475)XE "Fish:Phebe  (1475) (circa 1775-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1775.  She married Nathaniel Earl (3946)XE "Earl:Nathaniel  (3946)" on 10 Feb 1797 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
vi.
Love (1476)XE "Fish:Love  (1476) (20 Apr 1777-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born on 20 Apr 1777.  She married Edmund Lewis (3947)XE "Lewis:Edmund  (3947) (11 Aug 1782-)" on 24 Feb 1803 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.).  She died.


 
vii.
Abigail (1477)XE "Fish:Abigail  (1477) (circa 1779-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1779.  She married Thomas Wilson (3948)XE "Wilson:Thomas  (3948)" on 28 Apr 1811 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
viii.
Jane (1478)XE "Fish:Jane  (1478) (circa 1781-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1781.  She married (--?--) Stocking (3949)XE "Stocking:(--?--)  (3949)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.).  She died.


 
ix.
Anna (1479)XE "Fish:Anna  (1479) (circa 1783-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1783.  She married Francis Smith (3950)XE "Smith:Francis  (3950)" on 11 Jan 1807 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
x.
Rebecca (1480)XE "Fish:Rebecca  (1480) (circa 1785-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1785.  She married Burnham Parrish (3951)XE "Parrish:Burnham  (3951)" on 13 Nov 1806 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
xi.
Sophronia (1481)XE "Fish:Sophronia  (1481) (circa 1787-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1787.  She married James Weeks (3952)XE "Weeks:James  (3952) (circa 1790-)" on 25 Feb 1810 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
xii.
Betsey (3940)XE "Fish:Betsey  (3940) (circa 1789-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born circa 1789.  She died.


 
xiii.
S. Osborn (1482)XE "Fish:S. Osborn  (1482) (1791-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born in 1791.  He married Deborah Butler (3953)XE "Butler:Deborah  (3953) (6 Aug 1786-        )" on 30 Oct 1813 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.).  He died.

43.  Abigail6 Osborn (1391)XE "Osborn:Abigail  (1391) (before 1 May 1747-1 Jan 1820)" (Samuel, #86) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born before 1 May 1747 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.  She was baptized on 1 May 1748 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).  She was baptized on 1 May 1748.  She married James Fish (1390)XE "Fish:James  (1390) (circa 1740-26 May 1816)" on 12 Dec 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 122.).  She died on 1 Jan 1820 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. She had been helpless by a shock of the Palsy, a Town Pauper, age 73 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 108.).

44.  Ebenezer6 Smith (1629)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1629) (10 Nov 1734-26 May 1794)" (Ebenezer, #88) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 453.) was born on 10 Nov 1734 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 71.).  He married Jane Marchant (1782)XE "Marchant:Jane  (1782) (15 Aug 1738-31 May 1777)" on 21 Dec 1758 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 453.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He married Jane Claghorn (1630)XE "Claghorn:Jane  (1630) (10 Mar 1740-21 Mar 1809)" on 9 Oct 1777 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew Pedigree Chart, 19 Oct. 1994 NEGHS, 101 Newbury Street - Boston, MA 02116-3087 - USA. Entry ID: Good.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 26 May 1794 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 59 (Mortif[ication] Bow[els], a. 60) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 203.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 262.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown, (Oak Bluggs), farmer).

     Children of Ebenezer6 Smith (1629)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1629) (10 Nov 1734-26 May 1794)" and Jane Claghorn (1630)XE "Claghorn:Jane  (1630) (10 Mar 1740-21 Mar 1809)" (see #45) both born at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W, were as follows:
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i.
Ebenezer5 (1627).XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1627) (24 Oct 1778-5 Aug 1840)"

 
ii.
Nancy (1785)XE "Smith:Nancy  (1785) (2 Dec 1780-)"

XE "Blackmore:Nancy  (1785) (2 Dec 1780-)" was born on 2 Dec 1780 (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 74.).  She married William Blackmore (4927)XE "Blackmore:William  (4927)" on 22 Aug 1802 (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 178.).  She died.

45.  Jane6 Claghorn (1630)XE "Claghorn:Jane  (1630) (10 Mar 1740-21 Mar 1809)" (Thomas, #90) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.)XE "Smith:Jane  (1630) (10 Mar 1740-21 Mar 1809)" was born on 10 Mar 1740 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.  She married Garrison Mears (2289)XE "Mears:Garrison  (2289)" on 21 Aug 1760 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She married Ebenezer Smith (1629)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1629) (10 Nov 1734-26 May 1794)" on 9 Oct 1777 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died on 21 Mar 1809 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 69 (appoplexy, a. 70) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 453.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 302.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 263.).

46.  Cornelius6 Holsaert Jr (3832)XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)"

XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr  (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)" (Cornelius, #92) (Proof is needed that this is the same Cornelius that did indeed marry Sarah Mash) (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH family group sheet, supplied April 16, 1996 Central Recorder, Granvyl G. Hulse, Jr. The Hulse Family Network, 30 Pleasant St., Colebrook, NH 03576, USA, (603) 237-4039. Entry ID: Seems good information.) was born on 8 Oct 1740 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  He married Sarah Mash (3833)XE "Mash:Sarah  (3833) (1740-1815)" on 12 Jan 1764 (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died on 17 Oct 1797 at age 57.

     Children of Cornelius6 Holsaert Jr (3832)XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)"

XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr  (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)" and Sarah Mash (3833)XE "Mash:Sarah  (3833) (1740-1815)" (see #47) were as follows:


 
i.
Henry5 (1797)XE "Hulsart:Henry  (1797) (13 Oct 1764-        )" was born on 13 Oct 1764.


 
ii.
Sarah (3836)XE "Hulsart:Sarah  (3836) (12 Jan 1766-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 12 Jan 1766.  She died.


 
iii.
Cornelius (3837)XE "Hulsart:Cornelius  (3837) (13 Dec 1767-9 Oct 1808)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 13 Dec 1767.  He died on 9 Oct 1808 at age 40.


 
iv.
Samuel (3838)XE "Hulsart:Samuel  (3838) (17 Dec 1767-11 Aug 1804)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 17 Dec 1767.  He died on 11 Aug 1804 at age 36.


 
v.
John (3839)XE "Hulsart:John  (3839) (27 Dec 1772-5 Dec 1794)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 27 Dec 1772.  He died on 5 Dec 1794 at age 21.


 
vi.
William (3840)XE "Hulsart:William  (3840) (12 May 1774-)" was born on 12 May 1774.  He married Mary Harned (3841).XE "Harned:Mary  (3841)"  He died.


 
vii.
Elsy M. (3842)XE "Hulsart:Elsy M.  (3842) (9 Jul 1778-12 Jan 1805)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 9 Jul 1778.  She died on 12 Jan 1805 at age 26.
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viii.
Mary (1628).XE "Hulsart:Mary  (1628) (21 Mar 1780-)"

 
ix.
Lydia (3843)XE "Hulsart:Lydia  (3843) (26 Apr 1781-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 26 Apr 1781.  She died.


 
x.
Rhoda (3844)XE "Hulsart:Rhoda  (3844) (2 Sep 1783-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born on 2 Sep 1783.  She died.

47.  Sarah6 Mash (3833)XE "Mash:Sarah  (3833) (1740-1815)" was born in 1740.  She married Cornelius Holsaert Jr (3832)XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)"

XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr  (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)" on 12 Jan 1764 (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died in 1815.

50.  Samuel6 Lowell (833)XE "Lowell:Samuel  (833) (17 Feb 1738-)" (George, #100) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 42.) was born on 17 Feb 1738 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, 2 Vol. (I. Births, II. Marriages & Deaths). (The Essex Institute, Salem, Mass. 1911), Vol. I, page 291.).  He married Susan E. Philbrook (834)XE "Philbrook:Susan E.  (834) (-1769)" circa 1763 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 42.).  Samuel (833)XE "Lowell:Samuel  (833) (17 Feb 1738-)" signed a marriage contract with Charity Berry (2040)XE "Berry:Charity  (2040) (9 Jun 1745-14 Mar 1828)" on 13 Apr 1771 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 50, page 14, 1896.).  He married Charity Berry (2040)XE "Berry:Charity  (2040) (9 Jun 1745-14 Mar 1828)" on 16 May 1771 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 42.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (He was a "buckle-maker" in Newbury, Mass., 1763.

He left Newbury, Mass., about 1763, and settled probably in Greenland, N. H., and soon after in Pepperellborough, N. H., now Saco.

His estate was appraised Feb. 23, 1784 at £92-10.

He was in the Revolutionary War, in a company in Col. Lemuel Roginson's Reg't of militia. He helped in fortifying Dorchester Heights the night of March 4, 1776. (His grandson Moses in His. of York Co., Me).

In the Mass. Rolls he appears on a receipt dated Pepperellborough, June 6, 1776, for money due for service in the war, given by himself, received of Captain John Elden.

Also April 17, 1776. (Mass. Rolls).

Also in a return dated Roxbury, Feb. 26, 1776.

He went to the defense at Bunker Hill in the Co. raised for this purpose at Pepperellborough.

He was administrator of his father's estate, which inventoried at £36-4-3. (Essex Co. Mass. Prob. Rec., 40:144,149)).

     Children of Samuel6 Lowell (833)XE "Lowell:Samuel  (833) (17 Feb 1738-)" and Charity Berry (2040)XE "Berry:Charity  (2040) (9 Jun 1745-14 Mar 1828)" (see #51) were as follows:


 
i.
Moses5 (880)XE "Lowell:Moses  (880) (5 Nov 1773-11 Jan 1818)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.) was born on 5 Nov 1773 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada.  He married Mary Rhodes (2042)XE "Rhodes:Mary  (2042) (15 Oct 1778-2 Mar 1840)" after 1 Jul 1798 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 67.).  He died on 11 Jan 1818 at Saco, Maine, USA, at age 44.
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ii.
Eleanor (832).XE "Lowell:Eleanor  (832) (13 Mar 1776-11 Jul 1813)"

 
iii.
Samuel (1999)XE "Lowell:Samuel  (1999) (25 Dec 1780-30 Sep 1854)" was born on 25 Dec 1780 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada.  He married Sarah Ayer Lord (2043)XE "Lord:Sarah Ayer  (2043) (23 Oct 1786-2 May 1859)" on 25 Apr 1804 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 68.).  He died on 30 Sep 1854 at Saco, Maine, USA, at age 73.

     (an unknown value) (He was a farmer and resided at North Saco, Maine).


 
iv.
Richard (2000)XE "Lowell:Richard  (2000) (17 Aug 1784-)" was born on 17 Aug 1784 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada.  He married Elizabeth Willson (2044)XE "Willson:Elizabeth  (2044) (23 Sep 1787-)" on 26 Jul 1807 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 68.).  He died.


 
v.
Abigail (2001)XE "Lowell:Abigail  (2001) (circa 1785-)" was born circa 1785 at Saco, Maine, USA.  She married John Ayer (2045)XE "Ayer:John  (2045) (27 Sep 1783-)" on 17 May 1805 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 68.).  She married Augustus Davidson (2046)XE "Davidson:Augustus  (2046)" on 25 Dec 1807 at Saco, Maine, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 68.).  She died.

51.  Charity6 Berry (2040)XE "Berry:Charity  (2040) (9 Jun 1745-14 Mar 1828)" (Richard, #102) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 42.) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell to Ricardo Ernesto Rain. letter dated 14 Aug. 1995 51 No. Main St. Newmarket NH 03857 / USA. (1995).) was born on 9 Jun 1745.  Charity (2040)XE "Berry:Charity  (2040) (9 Jun 1745-14 Mar 1828)" signed a marriage contract with Samuel Lowell (833)XE "Lowell:Samuel  (833) (17 Feb 1738-)" on 13 Apr 1771 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 50, page 14, 1896.).  She married Samuel Lowell (833)XE "Lowell:Samuel  (833) (17 Feb 1738-)" on 16 May 1771 at Guysborough, Nova Scotia, Canada (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 42.).  She died on 14 Mar 1828 at Saco, Maine, USA, at age 82.

52.  William6 Daw (1604)XE "Daw:William  (1604) (circa 1750-)" (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) was born circa 1750 at Biddenden, Kent, England.  He married Sarah Potter (1605)XE "Potter:Sarah  (1605)" on 6 Nov 1768 at Biddenden, Kent, England. 6th November 1768: Marriage of William DAW, of this parish, single man, and Sarah POTTER, of this parish, single woman, by banns. He signs his name but Sarah just made her mark. The witnesses were: someone who just signs as "Coward" [an English surname]; & Benjamin Buckhurst.

The banns were read on 16th, 23rd and 30th October 1768 but the record gives no further information (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain, Transcript and phtocopy of marriage register inclosed in research report.).  He died.

     Children of William6 Daw (1604)XE "Daw:William  (1604) (circa 1750-)" and Sarah Potter (1605)XE "Potter:Sarah  (1605)" (see #53) were as follows:


 
i.
Sarah5 (4397)XE "Daw:Sarah  (4397) (before 1 Oct 1769-        )" was born before 1 Oct 1769 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  She was baptized on 1 Oct 1769 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).


 
ii.
William (4398)XE "Daw:William  (4398) (before 28 Oct 1770-        )" (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 28 Oct 1770 at Biddenden, Kent, England.  He was baptized on 28 Oct 1770 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).


 
iii.
Charles (4399)XE "Daw:Charles  (4399) (before 10 Nov 1771-before 1782)" was born before 10 Nov 1771 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  He was baptized on 10 Nov 1771 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  He died before 1782 (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).


 
iv.
Mary (4400)XE "Daw:Mary  (4400) (before 25 Apr 1773-        )" was born before 25 Apr 1773 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  She was baptized on 25 Apr 1773 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).


 
v.
Martha (4401)XE "Daw:Martha  (4401) (before 18 Dec 1774-        )" was born before 18 Dec 1774 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  She was baptized on 18 Dec 1774 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).


 
vi.
James (4402)XE "Daw:James  (4402) (before 9 Aug 1778-        )" was born before 9 Aug 1778 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  He was baptized on 9 Aug 1778 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain, Copies of transcription of Parish Record in posession of recipient.).


 
vii.
Mercy (4403)XE "Daw:Mercy  (4403) (before 30 Jun 1780-        )" was born before 30 Jun 1780 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  She was baptized on 30 Jun 1780 at Biddenden, Kent, England (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain, Copies of Parish Register in posession of recipient.).
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viii.
Charles (1602).XE "Daws:Charles  (1602) (10 Jul 1782-11 Mar 1856)"
53.  Sarah6 Potter (1605)XE "Potter:Sarah  (1605)" (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) married William Daw (1604)XE "Daw:William  (1604) (circa 1750-)" on 6 Nov 1768 at Biddenden, Kent, England. 6th November 1768: Marriage of William DAW, of this parish, single man, and Sarah POTTER, of this parish, single woman, by banns. He signs his name but Sarah just made her mark. The witnesses were: someone who just signs as "Coward" [an English surname]; & Benjamin Buckhurst.

The banns were read on 16th, 23rd and 30th October 1768 but the record gives no further information (Peter Towey, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain, Transcript and phtocopy of marriage register inclosed in research report.).  She died.

54.  Richard6 Dunn (4639)XE "Dunn:Richard  (4639) (before 15 Jan 1755-        )" (Edward, #108) (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 15 Jan 1755 at Greenwich, Kent, England.  He was baptized on 15 Jan 1755 at St. Alphege, Greenwich, Greenwich, Kent, England.  He married Catharine Sibery (4640)XE "Sibery:Catharine  (4640) (-before 16 Jan 1816)" on 17 Nov 1777 at St. Leonards, Shoreditch, London, England (banns).

     They was a witness at Charles Daws (1602)XE "Daws:Charles  (1602) (10 Jul 1782-11 Mar 1856)" and Anne Dunn (1603)XE "Dunn:Anne  (1603) (26 Feb 1788-        )"'s wedding on 10 Dec 1809 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. Charles Daws and Ann Dunn of this parish, spinster (Charles Dawes - Anne Dunn, family group sheet.) (Ann Dunn to Charles Daws, Marriage entry.).

     Children of Richard6 Dunn (4639)XE "Dunn:Richard  (4639) (before 15 Jan 1755-        )" and Catharine Sibery (4640)XE "Sibery:Catharine  (4640) (-before 16 Jan 1816)" (see #55) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary Isabella5 (4646)XE "Dunn:Mary Isabella  (4646) (11 Jan 1780-        )" was born on 11 Jan 1780 at London, England.  She was baptized on 23 Jan 1780 at Christchurch, Spitalfields, London, England. daughter of Richard Dunn, a lighterman, & Catharine his wife of Bell Lane, baptised aged 12 days.


 
ii.
William (4641)XE "Dunn:William  (4641) (before 29 Feb 1784-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 29 Feb 1784 at London, England.  He was baptized on 29 Feb 1784 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. of Dean Street.


 
iii.
Mary Elizabeth (4642)XE "Dunn:Mary Elizabeth  (4642) (19 Jan 1786-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born on 19 Jan 1786 at London, England.  She was baptized on 5 Feb 1876 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. of Dean Street, East Smithfield.


 
iv.
Richard (4647)XE "Dunn:Richard  (4647) (before 7 May 1786-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 7 May 1786 at London, England.  He was baptized on 7 May 1786 at St. Mary, St. Marylebone Road, London, England.
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v.
Anne (1603).XE "Dunn:Anne  (1603) (26 Feb 1788-        )"

 
vi.
Richard (4644)XE "Dunn:Richard  (4644) (before 26 Dec 1792-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 26 Dec 1792 at London, England.  He was baptized on 26 Dec 1792 at St. Mary Whitechapel, London, England. of Osborn Street.


 
vii.
Elizabeth Mary (4645)XE "Dunn:Elizabeth Mary  (4645) (15 Mar 1795-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born on 15 Mar 1795 at London, England.  She was baptized on 8 Apr 1795 at St. Matthew, Bethnal Green, London, England.


 
viii.
Sarah (4648)XE "Dunn:Sarah  (4648) (before 27 Aug 1797-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 27 Aug 1797 at London, England.  He was baptized on 27 Aug 1797 at St. Matthew, Bethnal Green, London, England.


 
ix.
Winifred (4643)XE "Dunn:Winifred  (4643) (6 Feb 1802-        )" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born on 6 Feb 1802 at London, England.  She was baptized on 24 Mar 1802 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England. of Nightingale Lane.

55.  Catharine6 Sibery (4640)XE "Sibery:Catharine  (4640) (-before 16 Jan 1816)" (Peter Towey, Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) married Richard Dunn (4639)XE "Dunn:Richard  (4639) (before 15 Jan 1755-        )" on 17 Nov 1777 at St. Leonards, Shoreditch, London, England (banns).  She died before 16 Jan 1816 at London, England. aged 67.  Her body was interred on 16 Jan 1816 at St. Botolph Aldgate, London, England.

Generation SevenTC "Generation Seven" \l 2
64.  Abel7 Crocker Deacon (742)XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)"

XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon  (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)" (Eleazer, #128) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 17):IT].) was born on 15 Jun 1695 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 17):IT].) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, (Clearfield Company, Inc. by Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. Baltimore, Maryland 1992, 1994), Page 19.).  He married Mary Issum (743)XE "Issum:Mary  (743) (Jun 1697-5 Nov 1782)" on 16 Apr 1718 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 17):IT].) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 50.).  He died on 17 Jul 1781 at Carver, Mass., USA, at age 86 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 17):IT].).

     (an unknown value) (The names of his children do not appear on the town records. His wife joined the chruch Dec. 1723 when her son Daniel and daughter Rebecca were baptized, and Aug 1725, her son Eleazer. Soon after the latter date the family removed to Plympton, and returned 1757).

     Children of Abel7 Crocker Deacon (742)XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)"

XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon  (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)" and Mary Issum (743)XE "Issum:Mary  (743) (Jun 1697-5 Nov 1782)" (see #65) all born at Plympton, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Rebecca6 (772)XE "Crocker:Rebecca  (772) (15 Jul 1719-1798)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 17):IT].) was born on 15 Jul 1719.  She married Sylvanus Dunham Deacon (1026)XE "Dunham:Sylvanus Deacon (1026) (26 May 1714-1796)"

XE "Dunham:Sylvanus Deacon  (1026) (26 May 1714-1796)" on 22 Feb 1738 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 17.) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  She died in 1798.
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ii.
Daniel (740).XE "Crocker:Daniel  (740) (28 Aug 1722-24 Mar 1787)"

 
iii.
Eleazer (773)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (773) (15 Jul 1725-2 Mar 1784)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 22.) was born on 15 Jul 1725.  He married Hannah (--?--) (4428)XE "(--?--):Hannah  (4428) (6 Sep 1728-        )" on 10 May 1748 at Plympton, Mass., USA.  He married Mary Goodspeed (4429)XE "Goodspeed:Mary  (4429) (29 May 1759-1822)" on 22 Jan 1779 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 22.).  He died on 2 Mar 1784 at age 58.


 
iv.
Mary (774)XE "Crocker:Mary  (774) (25 Jul 1727-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 18):IT].) was born on 25 Jul 1727.  She married Thomas Savery (2762)XE "Savery:Thomas  (2762) (1736-)" on 30 May 1771 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).  She died.


 
v.
Elijah (775)XE "Crocker:Elijah  (775) (8 May 1729-before 1784)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 18):IT].) was born on 8 May 1729.  He died before 1784.

     (an unknown value) (unm).


 
vi.
Sarah (776)XE "Crocker:Sarah  (776) (12 Jun 1733-25 Jul 1813)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 18):IT].) was born on 12 Jun 1733.  She married Elijah Perry (2581)XE "Perry:Elijah  (2581)" on 1 Aug 1751 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).  She died on 25 Jul 1813 at age 80 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page 11.).


 
vii.
Joseph (777)XE "Crocker:Joseph  (777) (25 Sep 1737-        )" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 18):IT].) was born on 25 Sep 1737.  He married Relief Lovell (4430)XE "Lovell:Relief  (4430)" on 3 Jan 1760 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 11.).  He married Margaret Jackson (4431)XE "Jackson:Margaret  (4431)" on 4 Jun 1767 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page 11.).  He married Deborah Ransom (4432)XE "Ransom:Deborah  (4432)" on 31 Mar 1774 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page 11.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).

65.  Mary7 Issum (743)XE "Issum:Mary  (743) (Jun 1697-5 Nov 1782)" (John, #130) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 17.) was born in Jun 1697 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 149 & 184.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  She married Abel Crocker Deacon (742)XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)"

XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon  (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)" on 16 Apr 1718 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 17):IT].) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 50.).  She died on 5 Nov 1782 at Carver, Mass., USA, at age 85. ae. 85 yrs. (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 17.).

66.  Israel7 Dunham (967)XE "Dunham:Israel  (967) (Oct 1689-18 Aug 1726)" (Eleazar, #132) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in Oct 1689 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  He married Joanna Rickard (968)XE "Rickard:Joanna  (968) (1682-17 Jan 1767)" on 18 Jun 1713 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died on 18 Aug 1726 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 36. Mr Israel Dunham, the Father, died August 18, 1726 in the 36th year of his age, and is buried in the Burying place in Plympton, 45 feet east and southeasterly from the west gate thereof.  Mrs. Joanna, his wife, was the daughter of Dea. John Rickard of Plympton. She married Mr. Elisha Whiting for her second husband.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 1, July 1899, No. 3, page 177.).

     Children of Israel7 Dunham (967)XE "Dunham:Israel  (967) (Oct 1689-18 Aug 1726)" and Joanna Rickard (968)XE "Rickard:Joanna  (968) (1682-17 Jan 1767)" (see #67) all born at Plympton, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Sylvanus6 (1026)XE "Dunham:Sylvanus Deacon (1026) (26 May 1714-1796)"

XE "Dunham:Sylvanus Deacon  (1026) (26 May 1714-1796)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 17.) was born on 26 May 1714.  He married Rebecca Crocker (772)XE "Crocker:Rebecca  (772) (15 Jul 1719-1798)" on 22 Feb 1738 at Plympton, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 17.) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died in 1796.


 
ii.
Cornelius (1027)XE "Dunham:Cornelius  (1027) (12 Aug 1716-1766)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 12 Aug 1716.  He married Patience Barrows (2756)XE "Barrows:Patience  (2756)" on 21 May 1741 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died in 1766.


 
iii.
Ebenezer (1028)XE "Dunham:Ebenezer  (1028) (5 Feb 1719-circa 4 Aug 1766)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 5 Feb 1719.  He married Lydia Perry Fuller (2757)XE "Fuller:Lydia Perry  (2757)" on 12 May 1748 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died circa 4 Aug 1766.
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iv.
Susanna (741).XE "Dunham:Susanna  (741) (16 Jul 1721-Oct 1763)"

 
v.
James (1029)XE "Dunham:James  (1029) (9 Dec 1723-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 9 Dec 1723.  He married Rebecca Holmes (2758)XE "Holmes:Rebecca  (2758)" on 2 May 1751 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died.

67.  Joanna7 Rickard (968)XE "Rickard:Joanna  (968) (1682-17 Jan 1767)" (John, #134) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in 1682 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Israel Dunham (967)XE "Dunham:Israel  (967) (Oct 1689-18 Aug 1726)" on 18 Jun 1713 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  She married Elisha Whiton (1031)XE "Whiton:Elisha  (1031)" on 10 Oct 1728 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 1, October 1899, No. 4, page 247.).  She died on 17 Jan 1767.

68.  Benjamin7 Churchill (1034)XE "Churchill:Benjamin  (1034) (1695-6 Dec 1771)" (William, #136) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 16.) was born in 1695 at Plympton, Mass., USA.  He married Mary Shaw (1035)XE "Shaw:Mary  (1035) (16 Jan 1700-19 Apr 1777)" on 15 Dec 1717 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 6 Dec 1771 at Carver, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (According to the gravestone in the burying-ground at Carver, died Dec. 6, 1771, in the 67th year of his age. While residing in Plympton, Benjamin and wife Mary occupied the house in which John Bonney lived in 1849, in the north part of the town. It is said that Benjamin removed from Plympton into the border of Middleboro, near to "Pope's Point Furnace", in Carver. A letter from Mr. Bradford, town clerk of Plympton, says that the family lived much nearer to the meeting-house in Carver than to that in Plympton, and attended church in the former place

).

     Children of Benjamin7 Churchill (1034)XE "Churchill:Benjamin  (1034) (1695-6 Dec 1771)" and Mary Shaw (1035)XE "Shaw:Mary  (1035) (16 Jan 1700-19 Apr 1777)" (see #69) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary6 (1069)XE "Churchill:Mary  (1069) (17 Apr 1720-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 17.) was born on 17 Apr 1720.  She married James Drew (4553)XE "Drew:James  (4553)" on 2 Mar 1751 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. This marriage is registered also with date 4 Apr. 1750/1 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 145, [p. 221] and page 148, [224].).  She died.
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ii.
Perez (1032).XE "Churchill:Perez Captain (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)"

XE "Churchill:Perez Captain  (1032) (15 Oct 1722-22 Oct 1797)"

 
iii.
Elizabeth (1070)XE "Churchill:Elizabeth  (1070) (15 Apr 1725-26 Dec 1804)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 17.) was born on 15 Apr 1725.  She married Benjamin Thomas (4554)XE "Thomas:Benjamin  (4554)" on 9 Sep 1742 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died on 26 Dec 1804 at age 79.


 
iv.
James (1071)XE "Churchill:James  (1071) (30 Dec 1726-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 17.) was born on 30 Dec 1726.  He died.


 
v.
Benjamin (1072)XE "Churchill:Benjamin  (1072) (31 Jan 1728-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 17.) was born on 31 Jan 1728.  He married Thankfull Wood (4555)XE "Wood:Thankfull  (4555)" on 13 Mar 1752 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died.


 
vi.
Susannah (1073)XE "Churchill:Susannah  (1073) (2 Apr 1733-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 17.) was born on 2 Apr 1733.  She died.

69.  Mary7 Shaw (1035)XE "Shaw:Mary  (1035) (16 Jan 1700-19 Apr 1777)" (Benoni, #138) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 17.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born on 16 Jan 1700 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, 4 vols.. (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. Baltimore, USA, 1990), Vol. IV, page 63.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 30.).  She married Benjamin Churchill (1034)XE "Churchill:Benjamin  (1034) (1695-6 Dec 1771)" on 15 Dec 1717 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died on 19 Apr 1777 at Carver, Mass., USA, at age 77 (Internet Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet File SMIN7DA.).

70.  Isaac7 Thayer (1075)XE "Thayer:Isaac  (1075)" (.) married Deliverance Parlour (1076)XE "Parlour:Deliverance  (1076) (-24 Jun 1734)" on 27 Mar 1718 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough.).  He died.

     Children of Isaac7 Thayer (1075)XE "Thayer:Isaac  (1075)" and Deliverance Parlour (1076)XE "Parlour:Deliverance  (1076) (-24 Jun 1734)" (see #71) were as follows:


 
i.
Abigail6 (4422)XE "Thayer:Abigail  (4422) (2 Oct 1718-        )" was born on 2 Oct 1718 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 29.).


 
ii.
Hannah (4423)XE "Thayer:Hannah  (4423) (23 May 1720-        )" was born on 23 May 1720 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 30.).
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iii.
Deborah (1033).XE "Thayer:Deborah  (1033) (9 Mar 1723-27 Apr 1788)"
71.  Deliverance7 Parlour (1076)XE "Parlour:Deliverance  (1076) (-24 Jun 1734)" (.) married Isaac Thayer (1075)XE "Thayer:Isaac  (1075)" on 27 Mar 1718 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough.).  She died on 24 Jun 1734 at Plympton, Mass., USA (.).

72.  Jacob7 Thomson Esquire (1085)XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire  (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)" (John, #144) (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 30.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.) was born on 24 Apr 1662 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 47.).  He married Abigail Wadsworth (1086)XE "Wadsworth:Abigail  (1086) (25 Oct 1670-15 Jan 1744)" on 28 Dec 1693 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. Baltimore, 1992), Page 736.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 18.).  He died on 1 Sep 1726 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 64 (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 30.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 37.).

     (an unknown value) (He held a comission as justice of the peace a number of years. On 22 Sept. 1726 Mr. Jacob Tomson of Middleboro was appointed adm. of the estate of his father Jacob Tomson, Esq. late of Middleboro. His inventory shows he owned large amounts of real estate. Receipts were signed by Jonathan Packard and Abigail Packard 11 May 1727; John Packard and Lydia Packard 11 May 1727; Nehemiah Bennett and Mercy Bennett 11 May 1727; Thomas Tomson guardian of Esther Tomson, Hannah Tomson and Mary Tomson 26 May 1727. A settlement of the estate of Jacob Tomson Esq. late of Middleboro dated 1 July 1728 names widow; sons Jacob, John, Barnabas & Caleb Tomos; daus. Abigail Packard, Mercy Bennett, Ledia Packard, Esther, Hannah & Mary Tomson

).

     Children of Jacob7 Thomson Esquire (1085)XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire  (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)" and Abigail Wadsworth (1086)XE "Wadsworth:Abigail  (1086) (25 Oct 1670-15 Jan 1744)" (see #73) all born at Middleborough, Mass., USA, were as follows:
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i.
Jacob6 (1083).XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut. (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Lieut.  (1083) (17 Apr 1695-10 Mar 1789)"

 
ii.
Abigail (1120)XE "Thomson:Abigail  (1120) (14 Feb 1697-after 20 Feb 1776)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 102.) was born on 14 Feb 1697 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 102.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 17.).  She married Jonathan Packard (2569)XE "Packard:Jonathan  (2569) (7 Dec 1684-7 Jun 1746)" on 27 Nov 1723 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 102.).  She died after 20 Feb 1776 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.


 
iii.
Mercy (1121)XE "Thomson:Mercy  (1121) (13 Oct 1699-4 Sep 1799)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 103.) was born on 13 Oct 1699 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 17.).  She married Nehemiah Bennett (2570)XE "Bennett:Nehemiah  (2570) (10 Nov 1696-15 Aug 1769)" on 4 May 1721 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 103.).  She died on 4 Sep 1799 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 99.


 
iv.
John (1122)XE "Thomson:John  (1122) (19 Mar 1701-6 Dec 1790)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 104.) was born on 19 Mar 1701 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 104.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 17.).  He married Joanna Adams (2571)XE "Adams:Joanna  (2571) (6 Jan 1705-10 Jan 1779)" circa 1735 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 104.).  He died on 6 Dec 1790 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 89.


 
v.
Lydia (1123)XE "Thomson:Lydia  (1123) (22 Apr 1703-after 20 May 1760)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 104.) was born on 22 Apr 1703 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 18.).  She married John Packard (2572)XE "Packard:John  (2572) (8 Oct 1695-3 Jun 1738)" on 2 Feb 1726 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 104.).  She died after 20 May 1760.


 
vi.
Barnabas (1124)XE "Thomson:Barnabas  (1124) (28 Jan 1705-20 Dec 1798)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 105.) was born on 28 Jan 1705 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 105.).  He married Hannah Porter (2573)XE "Porter:Hannah  (2573) (16 Dec 1712-2 May 1787)" on 13 Mar 1740 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 105.).  He died on 20 Dec 1798 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 93.


 
vii.
Esther (1125)XE "Thomson:Esther  (1125) (18 Feb 1707-5 Jul 1776)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 106.) was born on 18 Feb 1707 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 106.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 20.).  She married Ebenezer Bennett (2574)XE "Bennett:Ebenezer  (2574) (20 Feb 1701-26 Aug 1751)" on 25 Oct 1737 at Halifax, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 106.).  She died on 5 Jul 1776 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 69.


 
viii.
Hannah (1126)XE "Thomson:Hannah  (1126) (10 Mar 1709-27 Nov 1787)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 106.) was born on 10 Mar 1709 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 106.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 201.).  She married Ebenezer Reed (2575)XE "Reed:Ebenezer  (2575) (13 Jul 1709-16 Apr 1790)" on 21 Feb 1733 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 106.).  She died on 27 Nov 1787 at age 78.


 
ix.
Mary (1127)XE "Thomson:Mary  (1127) (19 May 1711-19 Jul 1769)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 107.) was born on 19 May 1711 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 24.).  She married Reuben Tomson (2576)XE "Tomson:Reuben  (2576) (11 Oct 1716-28 Sep 1793)" on 8 Nov 1739 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 107.).  She died on 19 Jul 1769 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 58.


 
x.
Caleb (1128)XE "Thomson:Caleb  (1128) (4 Nov 1712-19 Jan 1787)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 107.) was born on 4 Nov 1712 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 27.).  He married Abigail Crossman (2577)XE "Crossman:Abigail  (2577) (circa 1715-23 Nov 1791)" on 20 May 1736 at Taunton, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 107.).  He died on 19 Jan 1787 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 74 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 165.).

73.  Abigail7 Wadsworth (1086)XE "Wadsworth:Abigail  (1086) (25 Oct 1670-15 Jan 1744)" (John, #146) (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 30.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.) was born on 25 Oct 1670 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.).  She married Jacob Thomson Esquire (1085)XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire  (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)" on 28 Dec 1693 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 736.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 18.).  She died on 15 Jan 1744 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 73 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.).

     (an unknown value) (The will of Abigail Tomson, widdow of Hallifax dated 16 April 1739, proved 4 Feb. 1744, names daus. Abigail Packard, Mercy Bennet, Lydia Packard, Hannah Reed, Ester Bennet and Mary Tomson; grandson Moses, the son of her dau. Abigail; sons Jacob Tomson, John Tomson, Barnabas Tomson and Caleb Tomson).

74.  Edmund7 Tilson (1131)XE "Tilson:Edmund  (1131) (circa 1667-before 1762)" (Ephraim, #148) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 37.) was born circa 1667.  He married Elizabeth Waterman (1132)XE "Waterman:Elizabeth  (1132) (15 Jan 1669-circa 1705)" on 28 Jan 1691 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.).  He married Hannah Orcutt (1155)XE "Orcutt:Hannah  (1155)" on 25 Dec 1706 (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 38.).  He married Hannah Dunbar (1156)XE "Dunbar:Hannah  (1156) (31 May 1677-22 Sep 1715)" on 5 Nov 1709 (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 38.).  He married Deborah Caswell (1157)XE "Caswell:Deborah  (1157) (circa 1675-)" on 14 Nov 1716 (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 38, [IT:the year is probably wrong, it could not be 1736 as indicated:IT].) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 38.).  He died before 1762.

     (an unknown value) (South meadows, Carver, Mass., were purchased of the Indians in 1664; lands were sold to settlers at    shillings an acre. Plymouth and Plympton Proprietors of Land 1701/2 Thirty acres were granted to Edmund Tilson.

In 1705 the proprietors granted to each of their number a twenty-acre lot, and shortly after a sixty acre lot; and in the same year all the Cedar swamps were divided into thirty-nine lots and distributed by lot among the individual proprietors. The records contain a description of the lots and assignments. Copies of the lands are in the office Register of Deeds at Plymouth. Edmund Tilson was pronounced a qualified voter of Plympton in 1708/9. At the aforesaid meeting held 21st. of March, 1708/9, Edmund Tilson and Samuel Bryant were chosen constables for ye town of Plympton for ye folowing year, and William Churchill was chosen highway-man. Dr. John Carver and James Bryant were chosen survairs. 

Page 43, Plympton Records.- Division of lands between Edmund Tilson and John Tilson lying near Lakenham in town of Plympton, County of Plymouth, in New England, on highway to Middleborough. Signed 14 October, 1712

).

     Children of Edmund7 Tilson (1131)XE "Tilson:Edmund  (1131) (circa 1667-before 1762)" and Elizabeth Waterman (1132)XE "Waterman:Elizabeth  (1132) (15 Jan 1669-circa 1705)" (see #75) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:


 
i.
John6 (1158)XE "Tilson:John  (1158) (19 Nov 1692-)" was born on 19 Nov 1692 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  He died.


 
ii.
Edmund (1159)XE "Tilson:Edmund  (1159) (2 Mar 1694-)" was born on 2 Mar 1694 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  He died.


 
iii.
Joanna (1160)XE "Tilson:Joanna  (1160) (9 Oct 1696-)" was born on 9 Oct 1696 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  She died.


 
iv.
Mary (1161)XE "Tilson:Mary  (1161) (14 Apr 1698-)" was born on 14 Apr 1698 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  She died.
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v.
Elizabeth (1084).XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1084) (6 May 1700-8 Aug 1773)"

 
vi.
Child (1162)XE "Tilson:child  (1162) (10 Feb 1702-21 Feb 1702)" was born on 10 Feb 1702 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  He/she died on 21 Feb 1702 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
vii.
Ann (1163)XE "Tilson:Ann  (1163) (12 Jun 1703-)" was born on 12 Jun 1703 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  She died.


 
viii.
Ruth (1164)XE "Tilson:Ruth  (1164) (5 Feb 1705-)" was born on 5 Feb 1705 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 15.).  She died.

75.  Elizabeth7 Waterman (1132)XE "Waterman:Elizabeth  (1132) (15 Jan 1669-circa 1705)" (John, #150) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 432.) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 37.) was born on 15 Jan 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666.).  She married Edmund Tilson (1131)XE "Tilson:Edmund  (1131) (circa 1667-before 1762)" on 28 Jan 1691 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.).  She died circa 1705.

76.  Joseph7 Phinney (1203)XE "Phinney:Joseph  (1203) (28 Jan 1668-29 Jun 1726)" (John, #152) (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 4 & 5.) was born on 28 Jan 1668 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.).  He married Mercy Bryant (1246)XE "Bryant:Mercy  (1246)" on 15 Jun 1693 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 86.).  He married Esther West (1204)XE "West:Esther  (1204) (30 Sep 1680-after 27 Jul 1726)" on 19 Sep 1706 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850.).  He died on 29 Jun 1726 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 58. The will of Joseph Phinney of Plympton, made 27 June 1726 and presented 15 July 1726, names wife Esther; sons John, Joseph and Pelatiah; daughters Alice Hamblin, Mary Hamblin, Mercy Phinney and Patience Phinney; son John executor (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.).

     Children of Joseph7 Phinney (1203)XE "Phinney:Joseph  (1203) (28 Jan 1668-29 Jun 1726)" and Esther West (1204)XE "West:Esther  (1204) (30 Sep 1680-after 27 Jul 1726)" (see #77) all born at Plympton, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Mercy6 (1247)XE "Phinney:Mercy  (1247) (19 Sep 1707-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) was born on 19 Sep 1707 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 5 July 1903, No. 3, page 184.).  She died.


 
ii.
Joseph (1248)XE "Phinney:Joseph  (1248) (10 Apr 1709-21 Dec 1795)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.) was born on 10 Apr 1709 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 5 July 1903, No. 3, page 184.).  He married Mary Rickard (1929)XE "Rickard:Mary  (1929) (-11 Sep 1760)" on 9 Jan 1735 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.).  He married an unknown person on 14 Jan 1762 at Taunton, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 237.).  He died on 21 Dec 1795 at age 86 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 237.).
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iii.
Pelatiah (1201).XE "Phinney:Pelatiah  (1201) (21 Mar 1711-after 1760)"

 
iv.
Patience (1249)XE "Phinney:Patience  (1249) (19 Aug 1713-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) was born on 19 Aug 1713 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 5 July 1903, No. 3, page 184.).  She married Robert Cooke (4412)XE "Cooke:Robert  (4412)" in 1735 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 179.).  She died.


 
v.
Experience (1250)XE "Phinney:Experience  (1250) (8 Apr 1716-22 Sep 1724)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) was born on 8 Apr 1716 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 5 July 1903, No. 3, page 184.).  She died on 22 Sep 1724 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 8.


 
vi.
Hannah (1251)XE "Phinney:Hannah  (1251) (8 Apr 1720-5 Sep 1724)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) was born on 8 Apr 1720 (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 5 July 1903, No. 3, page 184.).  She died on 5 Sep 1724 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 4.

77.  Esther7 West (1204)XE "West:Esther  (1204) (30 Sep 1680-after 27 Jul 1726)" (Peter, #154) was born on 30 Sep 1680 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 179.) (F. Apthorp Foster., Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850 (New England Genealogical Societe at the charge of the Eddy Town-Record Fund Boston, Mass. 1911), Page 186.).  She married Joseph Phinney (1203)XE "Phinney:Joseph  (1203) (28 Jan 1668-29 Jun 1726)" on 19 Sep 1706 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850.).  She died after 27 Jul 1726. poss. the Mrs. Phinney who d. Bridgewater in 1778 ae 98; dau. of Peter and Patience  (------) West. The will of Peter West of Plympton, made 25 July 1717, names dau. Esther (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 179.).

78.  Josiah7 Washburn (1267)XE "Washburn:Josiah  (1267) (11 Feb 1680-11 Feb 1734)" (John, #156) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 238.) (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 12.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) was born on 11 Feb 1680 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).  He married Mercy Tilson (1144)XE "Tilson:Mercy  (1144) (circa 1677-)" on 11 1702 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA. Family History Library Salt Lake City, UT, Film # 0164691 (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 11 Feb 1734 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA, at age 54.

     Children of Josiah7 Washburn (1267)XE "Washburn:Josiah  (1267) (11 Feb 1680-11 Feb 1734)" and Mercy Tilson (1144)XE "Tilson:Mercy  (1144) (circa 1677-)" (see #79) were as follows:


 
i.
Joane6 (5350).XE "unknown:Joane  (5350)"

 
ii.
Joane (5351).XE "unknown:Joane  (5351)"

 
iii.
Joanna (4774)XE "Washburn:Joanna  (4774) (14 Nov 1703-        )" was born on 14 Nov 1703 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14 July, 1912 No. 3 page 24.).


 
iv.
Joseph (4775)XE "Washburn:Joseph  (4775) (22 Jul 1705-        )" was born on 22 Jul 1705 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14. July, 1912 No. 3, page 24.).


 
v.
Lydia (4776)XE "Washburn:Lydia  (4776) (16 Aug 1707-        )" was born on 16 Aug 1707 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14. July, 1912 No.3, page 24.).


 
vi.
Jemima (4777)XE "Washburn:Jemima  (4777) (27 Jun 1710-        )" was born on 27 Jun 1710 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14, July, 1912 No. 3 page 24.).


 
vii.
Rebekah (4778)XE "Washburn:Rebekah  (4778) (15 Feb 1712-        )" was born on 15 Feb 1712 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14. July, 1912 No. 3, page 24.).


 
viii.
Josiah (4779)XE "Washburn:Josiah  (4779) (3 Jun 1716-        )" was born on 3 Jun 1716 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 14. July, 1912 No. 3 page 24.).
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ix.
Mercy (1202).XE "Washburn:Mercy  (1202) (29 May 1718-after 5 Oct 1760)"
79.  Mercy7 Tilson (1144)XE "Tilson:Mercy  (1144) (circa 1677-)" (Ephraim, #148) was born circa 1677 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Josiah Washburn (1267)XE "Washburn:Josiah  (1267) (11 Feb 1680-11 Feb 1734)" on 11 1702 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA. Family History Library Salt Lake City, UT, Film # 0164691 (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.

80.  Joseph7 Morse (1318)XE "Morse:Joseph  (1318) (29 Dec 1706-)" (Joshua, #160) was born on 29 Dec 1706 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  He married Sarah Schackelford (5325)XE "Schackelford:Sarah  (5325) (circa 1714-)" (see #81), daughter of John Schackelford (5326)XE "Schackelford:John  (5326) (circa 1670-29 Mar 1734)" and Ann Livingston (5327),XE "Livingston:Ann  (5327) (circa 1679-        )" circa 1734.  He died.

     Children of Joseph7 Morse (1318)XE "Morse:Joseph  (1318) (29 Dec 1706-)" and Sarah Schackelford (5325)XE "Schackelford:Sarah  (5325) (circa 1714-)" (see #81) were:
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i.
Theodore6 (1279).XE "Morse:Theodore  (1279) (circa 1754-Jan 1821)"
81.  Sarah7 Schackelford (5325)XE "Schackelford:Sarah  (5325) (circa 1714-)" (John, #162) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.)XE "Morse:Sarah  (5325) (circa 1714-)" was born circa 1714 (The Morse Society.).  She married Joseph Morse (1318)XE "Morse:Joseph  (1318) (29 Dec 1706-)" (see #80), son of Joshua Morse (1283)XE "Morse:Joshua  (1283) (1675-1754)" and Elizabeth Doten (1281),XE "Doten:Elizabeth  (1281) (10 Feb 1675/76-1772)" circa 1734.  She died at Beaufort, Carteret Cty, North Carolina (The Morse Society.).

84.  Thomas7 Fish (1392)XE "Fish:Thomas  (1392) (22 May 1700-circa 1758)" (Thomas, #168) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 170 & 171.) was born on 22 May 1700.  He married Ruth Butler (1393)XE "Butler:Ruth  (1393) (1701-23 Oct 1785)" circa 1725.  He died circa 1758 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. The adm. of his est. was granted to his wid. June 1758. Inv. Pounds 144. 15. 6.

     (an unknown value) (The family now bearing the name of Fisher on the Vineyard bore the name of Fish when it first was represented on the island by Thomas Fish, a mariner, who settled in Edgartown abt. 1740. The name Fish was retained until abt. 1800 when, for some reason unknown to the author, and as recorded in Parson Thaxter's record of 1804 "The family of Fish have changed their Name to Fisher". The origin of Thomas is at present not known, but from all circumstances he is believed to belong to the Fish family of Cape Cod. who originally settled in Lynn, Mass. 1635 and later rem. to Sandwich. This Fish-Fisher family is not to be confounded with the Fisher family who are represented by the late Dr. Daniel Fisher whose descent is from the Fishers of Dedham, Mass.

After his death his estate was granted to his widow June 1758. Inv. Pounds 144. 15. 6

).

     Children of Thomas7 Fish (1392)XE "Fish:Thomas  (1392) (22 May 1700-circa 1758)" and Ruth Butler (1393)XE "Butler:Ruth  (1393) (1701-23 Oct 1785)" (see #85) were as follows:


 
i.
John6 (1394)XE "Fisher:John  (1394) (1726-25 Dec 1811)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 171.) was born in 1726.  He died on 25 Dec 1811 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. He went to bed well as usual and was dead by the side of his wife in the morning (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 302.).


 
ii.
Thomas (1395)XE "Fisher:Thomas  (1395) (18 May 1728-5 May 1804)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 171.) was born on 18 May 1728.  He died on 5 May 1804 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 75. 80 years old (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 298.).


 
iii.
Anna (1396)XE "Fisher:Anna  (1396) (13 Nov 1729-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 171.) was born on 13 Nov 1729.  She died.


 
iv.
Sarah (1397)XE "Fisher:Sarah  (1397) (4 Aug 1732-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 171.) was born on 4 Aug 1732.  She married John Fish (4445).XE "Fish:John  (4445)"  She died.


 
v.
Henry (1398)XE "Fisher:Henry  (1398) (13 Aug 1734-7 Apr 1800)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 172.) was born on 13 Aug 1734.  He married Susanna Vincent (4444).XE "Vincent:Susanna  (4444) (1733-27 Dec 1825)"  He died on 7 Apr 1800 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 65 (Hect: Decay fortasse) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 205.).


 
vi.
Jonathan (1399)XE "Fisher:Jonathan  (1399) (18 Jul 1736-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 171.) was born on 18 Jul 1736.  He died.


 
vii.
Elizabeth (4446)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (4446) (1738-        )" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 171.) was born in 1738.
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viii.
James (1390).XE "Fish:James  (1390) (circa 1740-26 May 1816)"

 
ix.
Samuel (1400)XE "Fisher:Samuel  (1400) (1742-14 Jan 1782)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born in 1742.  He married Dinah Vincent (4447)XE "Vincent:Dinah  (4447) (1741-5 Apr 1782)" on 3 Jan 1771.  He died on 14 Jan 1782 at Gay Head, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Matthew Butler, Sam. Wiswall, Baze Norton, Sam. Fish, Jethro Norton and Isaac Bunker, they all perished the 14th. in a ship cast away at Gay Head. Baze Norton & Isaac Bunker were not found . The Rest were brought to the Meeting House & buried in the New Burying Place which were the first laid there. They left Four Widdows & Twenty Four Fatherless children & Mrs. Butler near her Time of lying in -9 of our People were saved & Three that belonged to the Ship. the Rest 8 perished- Baze Norton & Isaac Bunker were found afterwards & buried at Chilmark.

Joseph Vincent was admn. of his est., which was inventoried at Pounds 159-7-10 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 102.).


 
x.
Nathaniel (1401)XE "Fisher:Nathaniel  (1401) (before 16 Jun 1745-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 173.) was born before 16 Jun 1745.  He was baptized on 16 Jun 1745.  He married Naomi Dunham (4448)XE "Dunham:Naomi  (4448) (26 Aug 1743-10 Nov 1815)" on 18 Oct 1764.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Resided in Edgartown and removed to Nantucket).

85.  Ruth7 Butler (1393)XE "Butler:Ruth  (1393) (1701-23 Oct 1785)" (Henry, #170) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49 & 171.) was born in 1701.  She married Thomas Fish (1392)XE "Fish:Thomas  (1392) (22 May 1700-circa 1758)" circa 1725.  She died on 23 Oct 1785 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (old age) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, pages 104 & 108.).

86.  Samuel7 Osborn (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)" (Samuel, #172) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born in 1711.  He married Keziah Butler (1484)XE "Butler:Keziah  (1484) (1710-Oct 1768)" on 9 Sep 1731 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of New Bedford, Massachusetts, to the Year 1850, Volume II - Marriages, Page 145.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  He died after 8 Oct 1753.

     (an unknown value) (He was probably son of Rev. Samuel Osborn and Mercy Morton. Resided in Edgartown, occupation carpenter).  As Jane Osborn (1491)XE "Osborn:Jane  (1491) (1739-Mar 1803)"'s father, Samuel (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)", presented her at her baptism on 29 Aug 1742 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 57.).  As Mary Osborn (1488)XE "Osborn:Mary  (1488) (1733-2 Feb 1794)"'s father, Samuel (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)", presented her at her baptism on 29 Aug 1742 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 57.).  As Elizabeth Osborn (1490)XE "Osborn:Elizabeth  (1490) (1737-9 Jul 1772)"'s father, Samuel (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)", presented her at her baptism on 29 Aug 1742 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 57.).  As Mercy Osborn (1492)XE "Osborn:Mercy  (1492) (1741-2 Nov 1790)"'s father, Samuel (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)", presented her at her baptism on 29 Aug 1742 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).  As John Osborn (1493)XE "Osborn:John  (1493) (circa 1744-        )"'s father, Samuel (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)", presented him at his baptism on 3 Nov 1745 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).  As Abigail Osborn (1391)XE "Osborn:Abigail  (1391) (before 1 May 1747-1 Jan 1820)"'s father, Samuel (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)", presented her at her baptism on 1 May 1748 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).

     Children of Samuel7 Osborn (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)" and Keziah Butler (1484)XE "Butler:Keziah  (1484) (1710-Oct 1768)" (see #87) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel6 (1487)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1487) (circa 1732-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born circa 1732.  He married Sarah Wass (3960)XE "Wass:Sarah  (3960) (4 Jan 1738-)" before 28 Apr 1755 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.).  He died.


 
ii.
Mary (1488)XE "Osborn:Mary  (1488) (1733-2 Feb 1794)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born in 1733.  She was baptized on 29 Aug 1742 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 57.).  She married William Jernegan (3958)XE "Jernegan:William  (3958) (1 Aug 1728-26 Jul 1817)" on 8 Feb 1750 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 221.).  She died on 2 Feb 1794 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 221.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 203.).


 
iii.
Keziah (1489)XE "Osborn:Keziah  (1489) (circa 1735-)" was born circa 1735 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.).  She died.


 
iv.
Elizabeth (1490)XE "Osborn:Elizabeth  (1490) (1737-9 Jul 1772)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born in 1737.  She was baptized on 29 Aug 1742 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 57.).  She married Matthew Butler (3955)XE "Butler:Matthew  (3955) (1 Mar 1736-17 Jan 1782)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 53.).  She died on 9 Jul 1772 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 53.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 232 & 233.).


 
v.
Jane (1491)XE "Osborn:Jane  (1491) (1739-Mar 1803)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born in 1739.  She was baptized on 29 Aug 1742 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 57.).  She married (--?--) Weeks (3956)XE "Weeks:(--?--)  (3956) (1734-Oct 1769)" circa 1762 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 499.).  She married Abishai Marchant (3957)XE "Marchant:Abishai  (3957) (1738-9 Sep 1807)" on 4 Apr 1790 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 293.).  She died in Mar 1803 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 293.).


 
vi.
Mercy (1492)XE "Osborn:Mercy  (1492) (1741-2 Nov 1790)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born in 1741.  She was baptized on 29 Aug 1742 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).  She married William Norton (3959)XE "Norton:William  (3959) (circa 1738-Jul 1807)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 377.).  She died on 2 Nov 1790 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (a Schirrous Tumor in her Breast) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 377.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 106.).


 
vii.
John (1493)XE "Osborn:John  (1493) (circa 1744-        )" was born circa 1744 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.  He was baptized on 3 Nov 1745 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).


 43.
viii.
Abigail (1391).XE "Osborn:Abigail  (1391) (before 1 May 1747-1 Jan 1820)"

 
ix.
Anna (1494)XE "Osborn:Anna  (1494) (1750-21 Oct 1826)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) was born in 1750.  She married Benjamin Fitch (3961)XE "Fitch:Benjamin  (3961)" on 9 Mar 1769 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died on 21 Oct 1826 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. Pauper,  76 years (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 59, page 407.).

87.  Keziah7 Butler (1484)XE "Butler:Keziah  (1484) (1710-Oct 1768)" (John, #174) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born in 1710 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.  She was baptized on 8 Jul 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Keziah, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).  She married Samuel Osborn (1483)XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)" on 9 Sep 1731 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of New Bedford, Massachusetts, to the Year 1850, Volume II - Marriages, Page 145.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  She married Matthew Pease (1599)XE "Pease:Matthew  (1599)" in 1753 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.).  She died in Oct 1768 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     Keziah (1484)XE "Butler:Keziah  (1484) (1710-Oct 1768)", as Abigail Osborn (1391)XE "Osborn:Abigail  (1391) (before 1 May 1747-1 Jan 1820)"'s mother, presented her at her baptism on 1 May 1748 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 58.).

88.  Ebenezer7 Smith (1631)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1631) (1700-Oct 1771)" (Benjamin, #176) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.) was born in 1700 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82 & 451.).  He married Thankful Claghorn (1632)XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (1632) (1703-8 May 1787)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.).  He died in Oct 1771.

     (an unknown value) (Resided in Edgartown, yeoman).  His Ancestral File Number is QT1W-R8.

     Children of Ebenezer7 Smith (1631)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1631) (1700-Oct 1771)" and Thankful Claghorn (1632)XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (1632) (1703-8 May 1787)" (see #89) were as follows:


 
i.
Abiah6 (1689)XE "Smith:Abiah  (1689) (1732-Mar 1787)"

XE "Shaw:Abiah  (1689) (1732-Mar 1787)"

XE "Pease:Abiah  (1689) (1732-Mar 1787)" was born in 1732.  She married Jonathan Shaw (4928)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (4928) (        -before 24 Oct 1763)" in Mar 1754 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 175.).  She married Thomas Pease (4929)XE "Pease:Thomas  (4929) (circa 1729-Jan 1794)" on 24 Oct 1763 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 395 & 451.).  She died in Mar 1787 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 395.).
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ii.
Ebenezer (1629).XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1629) (10 Nov 1734-26 May 1794)"

 
iii.
Joseph (1690)XE "Smith:Joseph  (1690) (1736-3 Jul 1796)" was born in 1736 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.).  He married Abigail Butler (4930)XE "Butler:Abigail  (4930) (1740-3 Jan 1815)" on 18 Apr 1764 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 177.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 55 & 453.).  He died on 3 Jul 1796 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 453.).


 
iv.
Jedidah (1691)XE "Smith:Jedidah  (1691) (circa 1738-30 Sep 1804)" was born circa 1738 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.).  She married Harlock Smith (4372)XE "Smith:Harlock  (4372) (circa 1742-        )" on 8 Nov 1764 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 445 & 451.).  She died on 30 Sep 1804 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Robert B. Foster, database: FOSO6NA.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 445.).


 
v.
Benjamin (1692)XE "Smith:Benjamin  (1692) (23 Feb 1740-4 May 1821)" was born on 23 Feb 1740 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.).  He married Love Coffin (4931)XE "Coffin:Love  (4931) (27 Jul 1742-16 Nov 1823)" on 19 Apr 1764 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 453.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 175.).  He died on 4 May 1821 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W, at age 81 (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 261.).


 
vi.
Jane (1693)XE "Smith:Jane  (1693) (16 Feb 1742-)"

XE "Norton:Jane  (1693) (16 Feb 1742-)" was born on 16 Feb 1742 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 362 & 451.).  She married John Norton (4932)XE "Norton:John  (4932) (18 Mar 1740-6 Mar 1825)" on 25 Mar 1761 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 362 & 451.).  She died.


 
vii.
Mary (1694)XE "Smith:Mary  (1694) (circa 1744-)" was born circa 1744.  She died.

89.  Thankful7 Claghorn (1632)XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (1632) (1703-8 May 1787)" (Shubael, #178) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.)XE "Smith:Thankful  (1632) (1703-8 May 1787)" was born in 1703.  She married Ebenezer Smith (1631)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1631) (1700-Oct 1771)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 451.).  She died on 8 May 1787 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Robert B. Foster, Database: FOSO6NA.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is QT1W-SF.
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90.  Thomas7 Claghorn (1769)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1769) (20 Mar 1693-10 Feb 1784)" (Shubael, #178) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, ((1912)), Page 23.) was born on 20 Mar 1693 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Abiah Smith (1676)XE "Smith:Abiah  (1676) (Aug 1698-10 Feb 1730)" circa 1720 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He married Susannah Gibbs (2288)XE "Gibbs:Susannah  (2288) (28 Sep 1712-27 Nov 1786)" on 2 Nov 1732 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.).  He died on 10 Feb 1784 at Homes Hole, Eastville, Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 90. age 93 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 23.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown (Eastville), innholder. He came from Barnstable and bought a lot on the "Line" in 1721, his first recorded appearance. He had been an innholder for fity-three years in the old Linton House at Eastville.

Most of his life was spent on Martha's Vineyard. He and his oldest son, Benjamin, at one time owning 66 acres on which Cottage City or Oak Bluffs now stand. In the later years of his life he kept a tavern at Eastville, between Cottage City and Vineyard Haven, which at that time was known as Holmes Hole. This house is still standing and in 1910 belonged to one of the Lintons.

In Banks' History of Martha's Vineyard, we find his claim for damages among many others against the English who had confiscated some of his property during their occupation of the Island.

While we have very few records in regard to Thomas Claghorn himself, we have a full, and we think, complete list of his descendants, among whom were many honorable men and women) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Pages 23 - 25.).  His Ancestral File Number is FZ1P-1L.

     Children of Thomas7 Claghorn (1769)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1769) (20 Mar 1693-10 Feb 1784)" and Susannah Gibbs (2288)XE "Gibbs:Susannah  (2288) (28 Sep 1712-27 Nov 1786)" (see #91) were as follows:


 
i.
William6 (2298)XE "Claghorn:William  (2298) (1733-24 Feb 1793)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 84 & 85.) was born in 1733.  He married Thankful Dexter (2299)XE "Dexter:Thankful  (2299) (1738-19 Aug 1795)" on 11 Nov 1756 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 24 Feb 1793 at Boston, Mass., USA. He died suddenly in Boston and is buried in the Granary Cemetery (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 85.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown, merchant and master mariner. He was of the Militia Co. in E. 1757 and rem. to New Bedford 1767 where he spent the remainder of his active life as an enterprising owner and master of merchant vessels which sailed all waters of the globe).


 
ii.
Matthew (2300)XE "Claghorn:Matthew  (2300) (1735-before 1774)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 85.) was born in 1735.  He married Jane Bartlett (2301)XE "Bartlett:Jane  (2301) (1741-Apr 1806)" on 4 Oct 1759 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. One finds 3 marriage records, 2 in Plymouth in different dates, and one in Chilmark (Entry ID: 231, 01.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 350.).  He died before 1774.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Homes Hole, mariner).


 
iii.
Susanna (2302)XE "Claghorn:Susanna  (2302) (circa 1737-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) was born circa 1737.  She married William Wailey (2304)XE "Wailey:William  (2304)" on 1 Jan 1776 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She married Jeremiah Prior (2305)XE "Prior:Jeremiah  (2305)" on 14 Oct 1788 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.
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iv.
Jane (1630).XE "Claghorn:Jane  (1630) (10 Mar 1740-21 Mar 1809)"

 
v.
Abiah (2303)XE "Claghorn:Abiah  (2303) (circa 1742-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) was born circa 1742.  She married John Gerrish (2306)XE "Gerrish:John  (2306)" on 4 Sep 1767 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
vi.
Lydia (2307)XE "Claghorn:Lydia  (2307) (circa 1744-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) was born circa 1744.  She married Cornelius Norton (2308)XE "Norton:Cornelius  (2308)" on 12 Dec 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.


 
vii.
John (2309)XE "Claghorn:John  (2309) (circa 1746-before 10 Jan 1771)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 85.) was born circa 1746.  He married Lydia West (2310)XE "West:Lydia  (2310) (29 Aug 1747-31 Dec 1770)" on 7 Feb 1770 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 85.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died before 10 Jan 1771.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown, mariner. Adm. of his estate was granted to Isaac Daggett and Cornelius Norton on that date. "A whale killed him" as stated on his gravestone. Adm. of his wife's estate was granted to her father, Dr. Elisha West 4 Feb. 1771 and he was made guardina of her infant daughter).


 
viii.
Barnabas (2311)XE "Claghorn:Barnabas  (2311) (circa 1748-9 Jun 1759)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) was born circa 1748.  He died on 9 Jun 1759.


 
ix.
Robert (2312)XE "Claghorn:Robert  (2312) (circa 1750-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.) was born circa 1750.  He died.

91.  Susannah7 Gibbs (2288)XE "Gibbs:Susannah  (2288) (28 Sep 1712-27 Nov 1786)" (Barnabas, #182) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, p. 129.) was born on 28 Sep 1712 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).  She was baptized on 8 Apr 1716 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.).  She married Thomas Claghorn (1769)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1769) (20 Mar 1693-10 Feb 1784)" on 2 Nov 1732 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 83.).  She died on 27 Nov 1786 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 74 (pul:fever) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 104.).

92.  Cornelius7 Holsaert (3834)XE "Holsaert:Cornelius  (3834) (circa 1712-circa 1788)" (Benjamin, #184) (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born circa 1712 at New York, New York, USA.  He married Sarah Selovers (3835)XE "Selovers:Sarah  (3835)" before 1734 (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died circa 1788.

     (an unknown value) (Also listed as Holzaert. Appeared in the Janeway Account Book with brother John in Somerset, New Jersey on Nicho Montanies place. With Gibbens Jan 1735. Debt Jonis Gibbens Dec 1935 to April 1738. Lived at Bound Brook, Somerset, NJ on Nicholas Montanies place Dec 1735 - Apr 1738. Possibly the Cornelius who witnessed will in Middlesex Co., NJ 1761. Was listed as a cordwainer (showmaker) on tax lists (Kim)).

     Children of Cornelius7 Holsaert (3834)XE "Holsaert:Cornelius  (3834) (circa 1712-circa 1788)" and Sarah Selovers (3835)XE "Selovers:Sarah  (3835)" (see #93) were as follows:


 
i.
Maria (Marija)6 (3845)XE "Holsaert:Maria (Marija)  (3845) (before 5 Oct 1734-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born before 5 Oct 1734 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  She was christened on 5 Oct 1734 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died.


 
ii.
Johana (Johannes ?) (3846)XE "Holsaert:Johana (Johannes ?)  (3846) (before 9 Sep 1737-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born before 9 Sep 1737.  She was christened on 9 Sep 1737 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA. Johannes Holsaert and wife Aaltje witnessed this baptism (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died.
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iii.
Cornelius (3832).XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)"

XE "Holsaert:Cornelius Jr  (3832) (8 Oct 1740-17 Oct 1797)"
93.  Sarah7 Selovers (3835)XE "Selovers:Sarah  (3835)" married Cornelius Holsaert (3834)XE "Holsaert:Cornelius  (3834) (circa 1712-circa 1788)" before 1734 (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).

100.  George7 Lowell (835)XE "Lowell:George  (835) (28 Mar 1712-before 26 Apr 1763)" (Joseph, #200) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.) was born on 28 Mar 1712 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  He married Elizabeth Morse (2002)XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (2002) (2 Apr 1714-)" on 28 Jun 1732 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.).  He died before 26 Apr 1763.

     (an unknown value) (1747 he was "inn-holder" in Newbury, Mass., also Nov. 26, 1756.

March 25, 1732, his parents Joseph and Mary, convey to him by will, 5 acres of land in Newbury, Mass.

May 28, 1749 he, "inn-holder" of Newbury, deeded land in Newbury to father, Joseph, "Joyner," land next that of Mary Lowell. His wife, Elizabeth, signed with him).

     Children of George7 Lowell (835)XE "Lowell:George  (835) (28 Mar 1712-before 26 Apr 1763)" and Elizabeth Morse (2002)XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (2002) (2 Apr 1714-)" (see #101) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
George6 (2033)XE "Lowell:George  (2033) (12 Jun 1734-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 42.) was born on 12 Jun 1734 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  He died.


 
ii.
Daughter (2034)XE "Lowell:daughter  (2034) (Jan 1736-)" was born in Jan 1736 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.

).  She died.
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iii.
Samuel (833).XE "Lowell:Samuel  (833) (17 Feb 1738-)"

 
iv.
Elizabeth (2035)XE "Lowell:Elizabeth  (2035) (21 Jun 1741-19 Sep 1772)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 43.) was born on 21 Jun 1741 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  She married Thomas Johnson Colonel (2036)XE "Johnson:Thomas Colonel (2036) (22 Mar 1742-)"

XE "Johnson:Thomas Colonel  (2036) (22 Mar 1742-)" on 12 Feb 1765 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 43.).  She died on 19 Sep 1772 at Newbury, Vermont, USA, at age 31. On the tombstone of Elzabeth is the following inscription:

"In memory of Elizabeth, ye wife of Captain Thomas Johnson, who died Sept. 22, 1772, the 31 year of her age.

Ye finest flesh it is but dust

Prepare for death, for follow us ye must."

     (an unknown value) (Captain Thomas Johnson said about his wife Elizabeth: "My wife was a most virtuous and religious woman. I believe she meant to live (as far as in her lay), as near to the rules our Savior set as any person ever did").


 
v.
Sarah (2037)XE "Lowell:Sarah  (2037) (4 Apr 1744-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 45.) was born on 4 Apr 1744 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  She died.


 
vi.
Ruth (2038)XE "Lowell:Ruth  (2038) (7 Oct 1750-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 45.) was born on 7 Oct 1750 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  She married Pelatial Bliss (2039)XE "Bliss:Pelatial  (2039) (3 Apr 1749-)" on 12 Aug 1772 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 45.).  She died.

101.  Elizabeth7 Morse (2002)XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (2002) (2 Apr 1714-)" (Samuel, #202) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.)XE "Parker:Elizabeth  (2002) (2 Apr 1714-)" was born on 2 Apr 1714 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 338.).  She married Joseph Parker (2096)XE "Parker:Joseph  (2096)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.).  She married George Lowell (835)XE "Lowell:George  (835) (28 Mar 1712-before 26 Apr 1763)" on 28 Jun 1732 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.).  She died.

102.  Richard7 Berry (2726)XE "Berry:Richard  (2726) (before 6 Apr 1707-30 Jun 1765)" (James, #204) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born before 6 Apr 1707.  He was baptized on 6 Apr 1707 at Greenland, New Hampshire, USA (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).  Richard (2726)XE "Berry:Richard  (2726) (before 6 Apr 1707-30 Jun 1765)" had marriage banns to Abigail Smith (2727)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2727)" published on 8 May 1736 (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 71, page 130.).  He died on 30 Jun 1765.

     Children of Richard7 Berry (2726)XE "Berry:Richard  (2726) (before 6 Apr 1707-30 Jun 1765)" and Abigail Smith (2727)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2727)" (see #103) were:
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i.
Charity6 (2040).XE "Berry:Charity  (2040) (9 Jun 1745-14 Mar 1828)"
103.  Abigail7 Smith (2727)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2727)" (Nicholas, #206) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.).XE "Berry:Abigail  (2727)"  Abigail (2727)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2727)" had marriage banns to Richard Berry (2726)XE "Berry:Richard  (2726) (before 6 Apr 1707-30 Jun 1765)" published on 8 May 1736 (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 71, page 130.).  She died.

108.  Edward7 Dunn (4649)XE "Dunn:Edward  (4649)" married Ann (--?--) (4650).XE "(--?--):Ann  (4650)"
     Children of Edward7 Dunn (4649)XE "Dunn:Edward  (4649)" and Ann (--?--) (4650)XE "(--?--):Ann  (4650)" (see #109) are:
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i.
Richard6 (4639).XE "Dunn:Richard  (4639) (before 15 Jan 1755-        )"
109.  Ann7 (--?--) (4650)XE "(--?--):Ann  (4650)" married Edward Dunn (4649).XE "Dunn:Edward  (4649)"
Generation EightTC "Generation Eight" \l 2
128.  Eleazer8 Crocker (744)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (744) (before 21 Jul 1650-before 17 Sep 1723)" (William, #256) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. Baltimore 1991), Page 217.) was born before 21 Jul 1650 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He was baptized on 21 Jul 1650 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 284.).  He married Ruth Chipman (745)XE "Chipman:Ruth  (745) (31 Dec 1663-8 Apr 1698)" on 7 Apr 1682 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 5.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He married Mercy Phinney (758)XE "Phinney:Mercy  (758) (10 Jul 1679-)" on 26 Jan 1715 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich.).  He died before 17 Sep 1723 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).

     (an unknown value) (Admitted a townsman in 1681. In 1692 he was one of the committee appointed to draw up a list of the proprietors of the common lands, and determine what was each man's just right therein. After the death of Nathaniel Bacon in 1693, he was "chosen and empowered by the town to be a land measurer to lay out land").

     Children of Eleazer8 Crocker (744)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (744) (before 21 Jul 1650-before 17 Sep 1723)" and Ruth Chipman (745)XE "Chipman:Ruth  (745) (31 Dec 1663-8 Apr 1698)" (see #129) all born at Barnstable, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Benoni7 (762)XE "Crocker:Benoni  (762) (13 May 1682-3 Feb 1701)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 13 May 1682 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He/she died on 3 Feb 1701 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 18 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).


 
ii.
Bethia (763)XE "Crocker:Bethia  (763) (23 Sep 1683-)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 23 Sep 1683 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married John Whiton (2579)XE "Whiton:John  (2579)" on 13 Mar 1710 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 48.).  She died.


 
iii.
Nathan (764)XE "Crocker:Nathan  (764) (27 Apr 1685-        )" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 27 Apr 1685 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He married Joanna Bursley (2582)XE "Bursley:Joanna  (2582) (29 Nov 1684-        )" on 10 Mar 1709 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 50.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 150.).


 
iv.
Daniel (765)XE "Crocker:Daniel  (765) (23 Mar 1687-1723)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 23 Mar 1687 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He died in 1723 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 7.).


 
v.
Sarah (766)XE "Crocker:Sarah  (766) (23 Mar 1689-3 Oct 1743)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 23 Mar 1689 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Joseph Bursley (2681)XE "Bursley:Joseph  (2681) (29 Jan 1686-)" on 7 Nov 1712 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Massachusetts Society of Mayflower Descendants. (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc.), Page 222.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 97.).  She died on 3 Oct 1743 at age 54 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 7.).


 
vi.
Theophilus (767)XE "Crocker:Theophilus  (767) (11 Mar 1691-circa 1737)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 11 Mar 1691 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He married Lydia Eddy (2583)XE "Eddy:Lydia  (2583)" on 19 Nov 1730 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 222.).  He died circa 1737 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 7.).


 
vii.
Ruth (769)XE "Crocker:Ruth  (769) (3 Aug 1693-after 19 Nov 1724)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 3 Aug 1693 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Samuel Fuller (2683)XE "Fuller:Samuel  (2683) (Nov 1681-May 1758)" in 1718 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 5.).  She died after 19 Nov 1724.


 
viii.
Eleazer (768)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (768) (3 Aug 1693-after 1739)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 3 Aug 1693 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He married Judith Sanders (2682)XE "Sanders:Judith  (2682) (17 Jun 1696-26 Aug 1776)" on 7 Apr 1720 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 17.).  He died after 1739.
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ix.
Abel (742).XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)"

XE "Crocker:Abel Deacon  (742) (15 Jun 1695-17 Jul 1781)"

 
x.
Rebecca (770)XE "Crocker:Rebecca  (770) (10 Dec 1697-1740)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 6):IT].) was born on 10 Dec 1697 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Jeduthan Robins (2584)XE "Robins:Jeduthan  (2584)" on 22 Oct 1718 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 222.) (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.).  She died in 1740 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).

129.  Ruth8 Chipman (745)XE "Chipman:Ruth  (745) (31 Dec 1663-8 Apr 1698)" (John, #258) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, (Chipman historics, Norwell, Massachusetts, 1970), Page 8.) was born on 31 Dec 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Eleazer Crocker (744)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (744) (before 21 Jul 1650-before 17 Sep 1723)" on 7 Apr 1682 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 5.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She died on 8 Apr 1698 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 34 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).

130.  John8 Issum (952)XE "Issum:John  (952) (1654-3 Sep 1713)" (Gregory Isham, #260) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 525.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 73 (II).) was born in 1654 (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.).  He married Jane Parker (953)XE "Parker:Jane  (953) (31 Mar 1664-circa 1720)" on 16 Dec 1687 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. John Issum & Jane Parker were Joyned In Marriage In Decem 1677
The late Mr. George Ernest Bowman (the authoritative genealogist of the Mayflower Society; see The Mayflower Descendant, vol. 6, p. 140) noted that in the margin of the entry which records the marriage, "in December 1677" of "John Issum and Jane Parker", and the births of their children, beginning in 1679, someone has written "ten years too ould".  Bowman comments that the Barnstable town records to be seen at the Town House, Hyannis, are copies, made about 1736, of the original entries, ant that these "originals" at Hyannis contain other errors. In this case it has been assumed that the correct dates should read 1687 &c. The distribution of the estate of Robert Parker furnishes confirmation of the correctness of this marginal note, since on 2 March 1684/5  "Jane, ye 2nd daughter of said Robert" Parker was clearly not yet married 

 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 411.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 195.).  He died on 3 Sep 1713 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. His will is dated June 1, 1713, and was proved on the 10th of Oct. following. He names his three sons and six daughters, showing that they were all living in 1713. He appoints his wife Jane and his son John executors (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).

     (an unknown value) (This name is uniformly pronounced I-sum, and in a receipt signed by him on the town records it is so written. The following anecdote is related of him. On a list of witnesses his name was written Isham. The judge noticed the odd name, and supposing it to belong to an Indian, said to the sheriff in a gruff tone, "bring that old Indian I-sham into court." Isum stepped upon the witness stand, and the judge to his surprise saw a well dressed, genteel man appear instead of the old dirty and ragged Indian that he expected. So great was the contrast that he apologized to Isum for his rudeness. The earliest notice of him that I find is in 1677, but he had been of Barnstable for some years previous. Dea. William Crocker gave him one right in the meadows, which indicates that Isum had lived with him when a boy, or perhaps it was in consequence of his marrying a daughter of his second wife.

John Isum was admitted a townsman March 4, 1692. Ye was entitled to a share in all the divisions of the common lands, and in the last he had 20 3-4 rights. He resided at Osterville).

     Children of John8 Issum (952)XE "Issum:John  (952) (1654-3 Sep 1713)" and Jane Parker (953)XE "Parker:Jane  (953) (31 Mar 1664-circa 1720)" (see #131) all born at Barnstable, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Hannah7 (958)XE "Issum:Hannah  (958) (after 1688-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).) was born after 1688 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  She married Peter Blossom (2688)XE "Blossom:Peter  (2688)" on 9 Jun 1720 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).).  She died.


 
ii.
Patience (959)XE "Issum:Patience  (959) (after 1688-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).) was born after 1688 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  She died.


 
iii.
Joseph (960)XE "Issum:Joseph  (960) (after 1688-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).) was born after 1688 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  He died.


 
iv.
Jane (954)XE "Issum:Jane  (954) (7 Oct 1689-)" was born on 7 Oct 1689 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  She married Michael Wilson (2685)XE "Wilson:Michael  (2685)" on 3 Apr 1719 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 50.).  She died.


 
v.
John (955)XE "Issum:John  (955) (25 Aug 1691-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 73 (II).) was born on 25 Aug 1691 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  He died.


 
vi.
Isaac (956)XE "Issum:Isaac  (956) (Feb 1693-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 73 (II).) was born in Feb 1693 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  He married Thankful Lumbert (2686)XE "Lumbert:Thankful  (2686)" on 3 May 1716 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).).  He died.


 
vii.
Sarah (957)XE "Issum:Sarah  (957) (Dec 1694-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).) was born in Dec 1694 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  She married Joshua Lovell (2687)XE "Lovell:Joshua  (2687)" on 9 May 1717 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).).  She died.
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viii.
Mary (743).XE "Issum:Mary  (743) (Jun 1697-5 Nov 1782)"

 
ix.
Thankful (961)XE "Issum:Thankful  (961) (circa 1705-)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 74 (II).) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 52.) was born circa 1705 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.).  She married Joseph Butler (2689)XE "Butler:Joseph  (2689) (circa 1703-circa 1752)" circa 1725 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 52.).  She died.

131.  Jane8 Parker (953)XE "Parker:Jane  (953) (31 Mar 1664-circa 1720)" (Robert, #262) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 525 & Vol. III, page 356.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 195 & 196.) was born on 31 Mar 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 411.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 356.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 40.).  She married John Issum (952)XE "Issum:John  (952) (1654-3 Sep 1713)" on 16 Dec 1687 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. John Issum & Jane Parker were Joyned In Marriage In Decem 1677
The late Mr. George Ernest Bowman (the authoritative genealogist of the Mayflower Society; see The Mayflower Descendant, vol. 6, p. 140) noted that in the margin of the entry which records the marriage, "in December 1677" of "John Issum and Jane Parker", and the births of their children, beginning in 1679, someone has written "ten years too ould".  Bowman comments that the Barnstable town records to be seen at the Town House, Hyannis, are copies, made about 1736, of the original entries, ant that these "originals" at Hyannis contain other errors. In this case it has been assumed that the correct dates should read 1687 &c. The distribution of the estate of Robert Parker furnishes confirmation of the correctness of this marginal note, since on 2 March 1684/5  "Jane, ye 2nd daughter of said Robert" Parker was clearly not yet married 

 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 411.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 33.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 195.).  She died circa 1720. Her will is dated April 13, 1715, proved 24th February, 1919-20 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 411.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 73 (II).).

132.  Eleazar8 Dunham (969)XE "Dunham:Eleazar  (969) (1659-circa 1731)" (Joseph, #264) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in 1659 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Bathsheba Whistone (970)XE "Whistone:Bathsheba  (970) (1 Jul 1660-        )" circa 1681 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died circa 1731.

     Children of Eleazar8 Dunham (969)XE "Dunham:Eleazar  (969) (1659-circa 1731)" and Bathsheba Whistone (970)XE "Whistone:Bathsheba  (970) (1 Jul 1660-        )" (see #133) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:


 
i.
Eleazar7 (1018)XE "Dunham:Eleazar  (1018) (15 Jan 1682-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 15 Jan 1682 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  He married Miriam Phillips (2138)XE "Phillips:Miriam  (2138)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).  He died.


 
ii.
Nathaniel (1019)XE "Dunham:Nathaniel  (1019) (20 May 1685-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 20 May 1685 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  He died.


 
iii.
Mercy (1020)XE "Dunham:Mercy  (1020) (10 Dec 1686-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 10 Dec 1686 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  She died.
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iv.
Israel (967).XE "Dunham:Israel  (967) (Oct 1689-18 Aug 1726)"

 
v.
Elisha (1021)XE "Dunham:Elisha  (1021) (Aug 1692-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in Aug 1692 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  He died.


 
vi.
Josiah (1022)XE "Dunham:Josiah  (1022) (Jun 1694-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in Jun 1694 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  He married Ruth Kempton (2146)XE "Kempton:Ruth  (2146)" on 2 Feb 1716 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 91, [p. 138].).  He died.


 
vii.
Bathsheba (1023)XE "Dunham:Bathsheba  (1023) (26 Apr 1696-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born on 26 Apr 1696 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  She died.


 
viii.
Susanna (1024)XE "Dunham:Susanna  (1024) (Jun 1698-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in Jun 1698 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  She died.


 
ix.
Joshua (1025)XE "Dunham:Joshua  (1025) (1701-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in 1701 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 2.).  He died.

133.  Bathsheba8 Whistone (970)XE "Whistone:Bathsheba  (970) (1 Jul 1660-        )" (John, #266) was born on 1 Jul 1660.  She married Eleazar Dunham (969)XE "Dunham:Eleazar  (969) (1659-circa 1731)" circa 1681 (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.).

134.  John8 Rickard Deacon (1030)XE "Rickard:John Deacon (1030) (1652-)"

XE "Rickard:John Deacon  (1030) (1652-)" (Giles, #268) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 25.) was born in 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660, [p. 14].).  He died.

     Children of John8 Rickard Deacon (1030)XE "Rickard:John Deacon (1030) (1652-)"

XE "Rickard:John Deacon  (1030) (1652-)" all born Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W include:


 
i.
Mary7 (2159)XE "Rickard:Mary  (2159) (27 Oct 1677-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 540.) was born on 27 Oct 1677 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 669, [p. 40] & 670, [p. 80].).  She died.


 
ii.
Lydia (2160)XE "Rickard:Lydia  (2160) (12 Dec 1679-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 540.) was born on 12 Dec 1679 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 669, [p. 72] & 671, [p. 80].).  She died.


 
iii.
John (2161)XE "Rickard:John  (2161) (29 Dec 1681-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 540.) was born on 29 Dec 1681 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 671, [p. 80].).  He died.


 67.
iv.
Joanna (968).XE "Rickard:Joanna  (968) (1682-17 Jan 1767)"
136.  William8 Churchill (1036)XE "Churchill:William  (1036) (1656-5 Oct 1722)" (John, #272) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 8.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 387.) was born in 1656 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Lydia Bryant (1037)XE "Bryant:Lydia  (1037) (23 Oct 1662-6 Feb 1736)" on 17 Jan 1684 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He died on 5 Oct 1722 at Plympton, Mass., USA. Deceased octor ye 5th 1722 (aged 66 years.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 3.).

     (an unknown value) (He inherited lands in Punkatussett, now Plympton, and was among the first settlers in that part of Plymouth, and was the progenitor of the Plympton branch of the family. Mr. Churchill and his wife were members of the church in Plymouth. From manuscript notes of Mr. Lewis Bradford, town clerk of Plympton for many years, we have following extract:

I made Mr. Isaac Churchill, Senior, a visit, who is grandson of the first William, of Plympton, and, in 1826, is 85 years of age, to obtain information of him about the first generation in Plympton, but did not obtain so much as I had hoped, although his memory appears to be good for a person of his age. He said that the father of the first William Churchill lived at Hobb's Hole, in Plymouth, but did not recollect his given name. William lived in a house which stood where the house of Mr. Isaac Churchill, Senior, now (1826) stands, as the said Isaac says, and which appears very highly probable from an agreement recorded in Book I., p. 40, Town Records

).

     Children of William8 Churchill (1036)XE "Churchill:William  (1036) (1656-5 Oct 1722)" and Lydia Bryant (1037)XE "Bryant:Lydia  (1037) (23 Oct 1662-6 Feb 1736)" (see #137) all born at Plympton, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
William7 (1049)XE "Churchill:William  (1049) (2 Aug 1685-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 8.) was born on 2 Aug 1685 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 7, [p. 12].).  He married Ruth Bryant (4548)XE "Bryant:Ruth  (4548)" on 11 Jan 1704 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 88, [p. 135].).  He died.


 
ii.
Samuel (1050)XE "Churchill:Samuel  (1050) (15 Apr 1688-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 8.) was born on 15 Apr 1688 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 7, [p. 12].).  He married Joanna Bryant (4549)XE "Bryant:Joanna  (4549)" on 6 Sep 1711 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 4.).  He died.


 
iii.
James (1051)XE "Churchill:James  (1051) (21 Sep 1690-25 Dec 1754)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 9.) was born on 21 Sep 1690 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 7, [p. 12].).  He married Mary McFarlin (4550)XE "McFarlin:Mary  (4550)" on 27 Dec 1716 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 4.).  He died on 25 Dec 1754 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 64.


 
iv.
Isaac (1052)XE "Churchill:Isaac  (1052) (16 Sep 1693-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 9.) was born on 16 Sep 1693.  He married Susannah Leach (4552)XE "Leach:Susannah  (4552)" on 29 1720 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 3, No. 2.).  He died.


 68.
v.
Benjamin (1034).XE "Churchill:Benjamin  (1034) (1695-6 Dec 1771)"

 
vi.
Lydia (1053)XE "Churchill:Lydia  (1053) (16 Apr 1699-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 9.) was born on 16 Apr 1699 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 7, [p. 12].).  She married John Lovewell (4551)XE "Lovewell:John  (4551)" on 8 Nov 1727 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. I, No. 4.).  She died.


 
vii.
Josiah (1054)XE "Churchill:Josiah  (1054) (21 Aug 1702-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 9.) was born on 21 Aug 1702.  He married an unknown person on 16 May 1723 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died.


 
viii.
Mehitable (1055)XE "Churchill:Mehitable  (1055) (after 1702-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 9.) was born after 1702.  She married Elkanah Shaw (4478)XE "Shaw:Elkanah  (4478) (2 Nov 1703-        )" on 11 Jan 1726 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.

137.  Lydia8 Bryant (1037)XE "Bryant:Lydia  (1037) (23 Oct 1662-6 Feb 1736)" (Stephen, #274) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 283.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born on 23 Oct 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married William Churchill (1036)XE "Churchill:William  (1036) (1656-5 Oct 1722)" on 17 Jan 1684 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She died on 6 Feb 1736 at age 73.

138.  Benoni8 Shaw (4472)XE "Shaw:Benoni  (4472) (1672-5 Mar 1751)" (Jonathan, #276) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 65.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 433.) was born in 1672.  He married Lydia Waterman (1188)XE "Waterman:Lydia  (1188) (9 May 1678-25 Jul 1757)" before 1697 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 664.).  He died on 5 Mar 1751 at Lakenham. His gravestone, located on the highest point of the Lakenham Cemetery, cited as the source of his death date in the Carver vital records and legible in 1995, reads:

IN MEMORY OF MR/BENONI SHAW/ WHO DIED MARCH/ YE 5TH 1751 IN/ye 79TH YEAR OF/HIS AGE.

     (an unknown value) (On 27 February 1693/94 Benoni Shaw and George Shaw, described as yeomen of Lakenham, Township of Plymouth, Province of Massachusetts, sold for £36 'one Quarter of a whole Share of Upland & Meadow . . . formerly the lands and Meadows of our Grandfather John Shaw' in Dartmouth to Captain Seth Pope, merchant of the town of Dartmouth. The following month on 16 March 1693/4 'Jonathan Shaw Sen" freely and absolutely gave to his 'Son Benoni the [ileble] end of the fifty acres that I now Dwell upon,' describing it as adjacent to 'my Son George's Land. Both George and Benoni were given land by Jonathan Shaw, Sr., on the same day. Some time between 16 March 1693/4, the date of the above deed, and 30 July 1701, when the inventory of Jonathan Shaw's estate was taken, Benoni received additional land, for on 20 june 1705 his brothers and sisters quitclaimed to him the property - four acres of meadow and ten acres of upland - that their father Jonathan Shaw, deceased, had given him but had never legally conveyed. On 20 September 1704 a committee of six men, three each from the towns of Plymouth and Middleboro, determined the ownership of the South Purchase, resolving a long-standing dispute between the towns. The Plymouth-Middleboro town line, they stated, went to the northwest corner of 'benoney Shaws forty acree lott' and then the Plymouth-Middleboro dividing line for the South Purchase followed this lot to Beaver Dam Brook. The committee further stated that the dividing line for the South Purchase, an area of land purchased by Plymouth Colony from the Indians, abutted another Shaw property in the vicinity - 'Shaw's Purchase' - which was described as 'unto Mahucket Brook at the old Indian Path. ' Between 1704 and 1707 the South Purchase remained in the towns of Plymouth and Middleboro, but as Plympton was incorporated and town boundaries shifted, it came to lie in Plympton and Middleboro. 

Benoni Shaw bought and sold numerous parcels of land in the vicinity of Lakenham and the South Purchase, engaging in at least fifteen to twenty transactions between 1712 and 1747. He consistently acquired more land than he sold, and because his homestead was in Lakenham on the Plympton side of the Plympton-Middleboro line it was also convenient for him to acquire land in Middleboro. On 21 February 1725/6 John Morton's five daughters sold for £10 to 'Benoni Shaw of ye Town of Plimton ... [a] certain Lot of Land containing fourty five acres ... in the fifth division of ye Purchase called the South Purchase in the Township of Middleborough." John Morton had married, as his first wife, Benon's oldest sister, Phebe, whose two daughters, Joanna and Phebe, were thereby Benoni's nieces. Benoni Shaw, James Shaw, Samuel Shaw, and Nathaniel Shaw divided Shaw's Purchase on 17 june 1745, each receiving three lots - one each in Cedar and Log Swamps and one of upland. This suggests that it may have totaled as much as 200 acres and was almost certainly the land granted to John Shaw, Purchaser and Canal Builder. 

Benoni Shaw served in a number of minor public offices and was active in Lakenham beginning in 1703, when it was still a part of the town of Plymouth. At a meeting of the town of Plymouth on 1 March 1702/3 he was chosen surveyor of highways and on 1 March 1705/6 a tithingman (responsable to enforce the sabbath). Benoni was one of 65 men - nine of whom were descendants of Deacon Jonathan Shaw bearing the surname Shaw - who subscribed in October 1731 to an agreement to build a meeting house at Lakenham (now North Carver)- 

Whereas we ye Subscribers Being by ye Providence of God Settled where we Live Very Remote from ye Publict Worship & being Desirous to accomodate our Selves & Familys with ye more convenient attending upon the Same Which Can Not be Done without Building a Meting House Which we promas to Do at a Place called Laginham near to ye Buring Hill in ye Southerly Part of Plympton viz. on that Side of the Buring Hill next to Laginham brook ....  

In 1736/7 Benoni Shaw and Jonathan Shaw (probably Lieutenant Jonathan Shaw) deeded a parcel of land to be used as a common. This became the military training green, called Lakenham Green, and then, after the Civil War, Carver Green. lt is still in the center of North Carver and part of the Lakenham Historic District. 

Beginning in the 1730s Benoni Shaw, described in the records as a Plympton yeoman, began to make deeds of gift to his sons and, toward the end of his life, sales of land to them. On 10 February 1731[2] he gave to his son Elkanah for 'Love and good affection' a parcel of land in the 158th lot in the South Purchase in Middleborough, together with two acres of meadow.  On 2 February 1735/6 he gave to his 'loving Son Benjamin Shaw' for 'parental Love good Will and natural Affection ... all that my Farm or Tenement whereon I now dwell lying in Plimpton aforesd in a Purchase called Middleboro South Purchase sd Farm Containing ninety acres ... and my Dwelling House and Barn standing on the aforesd ninety acres of Land ... reserving the sole improvment ... unto myself and my wife during our natural Lives ......  On 27 March 1746 he sold to his 'Son John Shaw' of Plimpton, for £50, his forty-acre lot, which included the dwelling house where his son John Shaw was then living and also four acres of meadow 'which did formerly belong unto My Hon Father Jonathan Shaw deceased.      On 1 October 1747 he sold "Jonathan Shaw jun' of ye Town of Middleborough,' who was probably his son of that name, for £50, two parcels of 45 acres each, both in the South Purchase. 

Benoni Shaw died on 5 March 1750/1 in his 79th year. The following month, on 3 April 1751, the 'Heirs to the Estate of Benoni Shaw late of the Town of Plimton in New England deceased' signed four or more separate deeds acknowledging and certifying that he had given property to his daughters or sons or to their heirs. The signers, inclusively, were: Benjamin Churchell (by mark: B); Mary, his wife (by mark: M); Isaac Lobdell; Sara 

Loring; Thomas Loring; Thomas Loring guardian for Lydia Lobdell; Elisha 

Lucas; Margaret Lucas, his wife (by mark: M); Benjamin Shaw; Elkanah Shaw (by mark E); John Shaw; Jonathan Shaw, Jr.; Moses Shaw; Jabez Thomas; Phebe Thomas, his wife; Ebenezer Tinkham; Hannah Tinkham, his wife (by mark: h); Nathaniel Wood; Abigail Atwood/Wood, his wife (by mark: X). Elkanah and Jonathan received two fifth part, and Benjamin one fifth part, of their father's wearing apparel. No Plymouth County probate has been found for Benoni or Lydia Shaw 

).

     Children of Benoni8 Shaw (4472)XE "Shaw:Benoni  (4472) (1672-5 Mar 1751)" and Lydia Waterman (1188)XE "Waterman:Lydia  (1188) (9 May 1678-25 Jul 1757)" (see #139) were as follows:


 
i.
Lidiah7 (4474)XE "Shaw:Lidiah  (4474) (2 Nov 1697-        )" (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 30 [49].) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born on 2 Nov 1697 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 30 [49].).  She married Ebenezer Lobdell (4504)XE "Lobdell:Ebenezer  (4504)" on 12 Jul 1716 at Plympton, Mass., USA.


 
ii.
John (4476)XE "Shaw:John  (4476) (3 May 1699-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born on 3 May 1699 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.  He married Abigail Perry (4505)XE "Perry:Abigail  (4505)" on 26 Apr 1722 at Scituate, Mass., USA.


 69.
iii.
Mary (1035).XE "Shaw:Mary  (1035) (16 Jan 1700-19 Apr 1777)"

 
iv.
Margaret (4477)XE "Shaw:Margaret  (4477) (28 Jun 1701-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born on 28 Jun 1701 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 30 [49].).  She married Elisha Lucas (4506)XE "Lucas:Elisha  (4506)" on 10 Jan 1723 at Plympton, Mass., USA.


 
v.
Elkanah (4478)XE "Shaw:Elkanah  (4478) (2 Nov 1703-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born on 2 Nov 1703 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 30 [49].).  He married Hannah Cushman (4507)XE "Cushman:Hannah  (4507)" on 28 Aug 1725 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Mehitable Churchill (1055)XE "Churchill:Mehitable  (1055) (after 1702-)" on 11 Jan 1726 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).


 
vi.
Moses (4480)XE "Shaw:Moses  (4480) (28 Jun 1704-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born on 28 Jun 1704 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 30 [49].).  He married Mary Darling (4509)XE "Darling:Mary  (4509)" on 4 Nov 1725 at Plympton, Mass., USA.


 
vii.
Jonathan (4479)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (4479) (1706-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born in 1706.  He married Mary Thomas (4510).XE "Thomas:Mary  (4510)"

 
viii.
[Daughter] (4481)XE "Shaw:[Daughter]  (4481) (1708-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) was born in 1708 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.


 
ix.
Rebecca (4484)XE "Shaw:Rebecca  (4484) (1710-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 436.) was born in 1710 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.

     (an unknown value) (twin with Abigail).


 
x.
Abigail (4513)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (4513) (1712-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 437.) was born in 1712 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.  She married Samuel Lucas (4514)XE "Lucas:Samuel  (4514)" on 29 Feb 1732 at Plympton, Mass., USA.


 
xi.
Phebe (4485)XE "Shaw:Phebe  (4485) (1713-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 437.) was born in 1713 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.  She married Jabez Thomas (4503)XE "Thomas:Jabez  (4503)" on 3 Feb 1736 at Plympton, Mass., USA.


 
xii.
Benjamin (4482)XE "Shaw:Benjamin  (4482) (1715-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 437.) was born in 1715 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.  He married Mary Atwood (4511)XE "Atwood:Mary  (4511)" on 1 Nov 1742 at Plympton, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (twin with Hannah).


 
xiii.
Hannah (4483)XE "Shaw:Hannah  (4483) (1715-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 437.) was born in 1715 at North Carver, Plymouth, MA.  She married Ebenezer Tinkham (4512)XE "Tinkham:Ebenezer  (4512)" on 22 Feb 1739 at Plympton, Mass., USA.

139.  Lydia8 Waterman (1188)XE "Waterman:Lydia  (1188) (9 May 1678-25 Jul 1757)" (John, #150) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 63.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 433.) was born on 9 May 1678 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 4, page 250.).  She married Benoni Shaw (4472)XE "Shaw:Benoni  (4472) (1672-5 Mar 1751)" before 1697 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 664.).  She died on 25 Jul 1757 at Lakenham, Mass., USA, at age 79. Her gravestone, beside that of her husband, and legible in 1995, reads:

 IN MEMORY OF Mrs LYDIA WIDOW OF Mr/ BENONE SHAW SHE DIED/JULY Ye 23 1757/ IN Ye 81th YEAR OF/ HER AGE 

 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 433.).

144.  John8 Thomson (1087)XE "Thomson:John  (1087) (1616-16 Jun 1696)" (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 21.) was born in 1616 at Wales, England.  He married Mary Cooke (1088)XE "Cooke:Mary  (1088) (1624-21 Mar 1714)" on 26 Dec 1645 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, (Originally published: Boston, Massachusetts, 1900. Reprinted: Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. Baltimore, 1991), Page 451.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 737.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:125].).  He died on 16 Jun 1696 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Charles Hutchinson Thompson, A Genealogy of Descendants of John Thomson of Plymouth, Mass., also sketches of Families of Allen, Cooke and Hutchinson, Page 28.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 18.).

     (an unknown value) (John Thomson was born in the northern part of Wales, in the year 1616. It is said his father died soon after his birth, and his mother married again. "The name of the step-father is concealed behind that impenetrable veil of oblivion which time is spreading over the generations of man". The child lived with and received his scanty education from his legal parents. He came to this country in the third embarkation from England. The second embarkation, which arrived at Plymouth, November 11, 1621, was in the ship "Fortune", Captain Robert Cushman, bringing thirty-five families -the remainder of Robinson's society. The third arrival was two vessels under the patronage of Thomas Weston, a merchant of distinction in London, containing sixty or seventy men; some of them had families, and among the number was John Thomson, then in the sixth year of his age; they landed at Plymouth early in May, 1622.

The above is taken from Ignatius Thomson's Genealogy of John Thomson. We do not see how this statement can be wholly correct.

The first embarkation, the "Mayflower", arrived in November, and the pilgrims landed on Plymouth Rock December 11, 1620, (I get the most of these items and dates from Life of Miles Standish by John C. Abbott, published 1875), O.S. there were 102 passengers; second embarkation, the "Fortune" arrived at Plymouth November 23, 1621, with thirty-five passengers; the third embarkation, the "Little James and Anne", arrived August, 1623, with sixty passengers; the foregoing were termed "First comers".

Another arrival was the "Sparrow", in May, 1622, with seven passengers, sent out by Thomas Weston. Still another arrival was the "Charity and Swan", in July, 1622, sent out by Thomas Weston, with sixty colonists for Wessagusset or Weymouth, which visited Plymouth, bringing letters from Mr. Weston to the effect that he had quit the "Adventurers".

We understand that John Thomson came in some one of the above embarkations or arrivals, and landed at Plymouth, but which one is uncertain.

Tradition is silent respecting any incident in his life till he arrived at manhood; then it presents him to us in many events interesting and entertaining.

From his will it appears he was a carpenter; besides building houses for others, he built one for himself in each of the places he selected as a settlement, and one for each of his sons, John and Jacob.

Also, with his friend Richard Church, he built the first framed meeting house in Plymouth, in 1637, and sued Thomas Willett, the town's agent, for not complying with the contract. As compensation for his labor the town gave him a deed of a piece of land from the market-house extending back to the herring brook, now called Spring-hill. He was on terms of great intimacy with Richard Church and after his death with his brother Captain Benjamin Church, the Indian fighter.

March 3, 1645, John Thomson purchased of Samuel Eddy a house and garden in Plymouth, near Spring-hill. He married December 26, 1645, Mary Cooke, b. 1626, daughter of Francis Cooke, one of the Pilgrim Fathers who came over in the "Mayflower" in 1620.

His chief business was that of a farmer, and his first appearance in that capacity was at Sandwich.  Carpenter work was probably taken up from necessity and not as a trade; being a man fruitful of expedients and of uncommon ingennuity.

He made a purchase in that part of the town called Nobscusset, where he lived a few years, but came to the conclusion that he could better his fortune for himself and children by moving further into the interior. He accordingly selected a place thirteen miles west of th village of Plymouth, on the confines of Bridgewater, Middleborough, and what was then called Plymouth (now Halifax), and purchased land of William Wetis-pa-quin, sachem of the Neponsets, the purchase having been approved by the Court. The deed may be found recorded in Book 4, page 41, in the Registry of Deeds for Plymouth county. The homestead included other purchases than the above deed, in all by estimate more than six thousand acres of land; at the present time it is divided into more than one hundred farms with dwelling houses thereon, commencing at the herring-brook, in the northern part of Halifax, and extending south into Middleborough, the whole distance being nearly five miles. He built a log house in Middleborough, about twenty rods west of the Plymouth line, where he lived until it was burned by the Indians.

It has been handed down by tradition that he first commenced clearing land with reference to locating his house near where the saw mill of Ephraim B. Thompson now stands. After working awhile he became thirsty and went into a valley near by in quest of water, and finding a lively brook of pure water, camte to the conclusion that the spring could not be far away. He accordingly followed the brook up about one hundred rods and came to the fountain-head of pure, gushing water. A clearing was here made and a log house built. The importance of locating near a spring of never failing water, instead of attempting to dig wells, at that time, is apparent when we consider that shovels and spades in those times were made of wood instead of iron; wooden shovels were used by the third and fourth generations from John Thomson. When Ebenezer, a grandson of his, had a wooden shovel pointed or shod with iron, it was considered a very great improvement and was borrowed by the neighbors far and near. The ancient practice of building dwelling houses near springs and running water accounts for the very crooked roads in many localities of the old colony.

His settlement amidst a surrounding savage enemy must have been attended with many troubles and fearful apprehensions. He must have felt the need of all the confidence in God that the religion which brought our fathers into this country could afford. He felt the necessity of using every precaution which his ingenuity could suggest or his wisdom dictate. Tradition has given us a few incidents illustrating these characteristics.

An anecdote is related indicating a plan which he adopted for his preservation from Indian surprise. He agreed with a man by the name of Jabez Soule, who had settled in the north-western part of what is now called Plympton, to entice a young Indian named Pringle Peter to come and live with them and learn to work and live like the English. They succeeded in their overtures -the Indian came and lived with each of them alternately two weeks. They studied to please him by flattery, and in every little competition of strength or agility, by giving him the advantage or yielding to his superiority. When the Indians agreed to make war on their white neighbors this young Indian would secretly steal away and join them; his absence thus became a warning to immediately repair to the garrison. When they had made peace with the English, this young Indian would return and live with them; by this arrangement he ignorantly became their protector. One day, while this young Indian was at work with him, our ancestor observed to the Indian, "I wonder they never attempted to kill me". "Master," said the Indian, "I have cocked my gun many a time to shoot you, but I loved you so well I could not".

As the time drew near when open hostilities were about to commence in the terrible war of King Philip, there was a marked change in the demeanor of the Indians; they were generally morose and sullen; at times, however, the opposite; so uncommonly friendly and helpful as to excite serious apprehensions. At one time three came when Mrs. John Thomson was alone and began to behave rudely, kicking over the chairs. One pulled a fish, which was boiling, out of the pot, for which she reprimanded him, at which he drew a knife and abrandished it in a threatening manner. She seized a splint broom and drove them out of the house.

At another time, on a sabbath morning, after his wife and children had gone to meeting, several Indians came into his house in a turbulent manner. He was apprehensive that his life was in danger, and seated himself in the corner of the room with the long gun in his lap, having his brass pistol in his hand. They appeared very friendly at times, patting him on the shoulder, and at the same time making efforts to get possession of the gun, at which he would look sternly at them, holding up the pistol; they would then look at each other and step back. After loitering about the house awhile they returned to the forest. A few days later he was absent from home; when he returned at night he inquired of his wife if she had seen any indians. She replied that there had been a number there, and that they were uncommonly friendly and very helpful, following her to the garden and assisting in picking beans. He replied, "There is trouble ahead; we must pack up immediately and go to the garrison".

The teams were put in readiness and a portion of their furniture and goods were loaded, while a part, together with his money, were secreted in a swamp near the dwelling house, and he and his familiy started before it was dark. They had not gone more than two miles before the light of the devouring flames made sure to them the fate of their dwelling. On the way to the garrison they passed the house of William Danson, in Middleborough, and urged him to go, but he concluded not to start until early in the morning. Danson had ridden but a short distance in the morning, when, stopping to water his horse, he was shot down by the Indians. The little rill where he was killed is at the present time called Danson's Brook. The next day John Thomson sent one of his sons with two others from the garrison to the deserted farm. On the way they discovered in the horse path a pair of leather shoes and a beaver hat which belonged to Danson; these they considered to be decoys, and put their horses at full speed. When they returned neither of the articles were there.

At the garrison, those capable of bearing arms, sixteen in number, met and chose John Thomson their commander. He applied to the Governor and council for a comission, but considering the small number of men, they gave him a general commission as Lieutenant Commandant, not only of the garrison, but in the field and at all posts of danger.

"He and his men were very active in forcibly contending with the Indians in 1675, and in Philip's war of 1676, braving every danger and meeting the enemy at every point where he could be found. Having associated much with the Indians in early life, he made himself acquainted partially with their language, their habits and customs, and from their manners could discern the motives of their conduct. Often did they attempt to waylay and ambush him, but his vigilance never slept, and his prudence and matured judgment effectually guarded his safety. His stern and positive manner awed them into fear, and his inflexible courage subdued them to cowardice. Whenever he came in contact with them he triumphed and they were defeated, until they believed the Great Spirit protected him and that he could not be killed. Tradition gives him credit for having repeatedly saved the settlements at Halifax and Middleborough by his superior skill and well-timed precaution".

He was equipped with a gun, brass pistol, sword and halberd. The whole length of the gun, including stock and barrel, is seven feet four and one-half inches; length of barrel, six feet one and one-half inches; caliber, twelve balls to the pound; weight, twenty pounds twelve ounces. It si considered to be quite a muscular feat to hold this gun at arms' length and sight an object. The whole length of the sword is three feet five and one-half inches; length of the blade from the guard, two feet eleven and three-eighths inches. Hudibras has described this sword:

        "For want of use it has grown rusty,

         And ate into the blade for lack

         Of something for to hew and hack".

This gun and sword are now in Pilgrim Hall at Plymouth, where are collected many other pilgrim relics.

At the commencement of King Philip's war in 1675, the Indians became so morose that in the month of June the people from the region around, in all thirty-five families, fled for safety to the fort, which was built near what is called the Four Corners in Middleborough. The Indians would daily appear on the south side of the Nemasket river, opposite the fort, and perch themselves on and about what is called "Handrock", and taunt those in the garrison with insulting gestures.

Lieut. Thomas ordered Isaac Howland (a distinguished marksman) to take the long gun and shoot one of the Indians. This he did while the savage was on the rock in the attitude of insulting them. The distance from the garrison to the rock was one hundred and fifty-five rods, nearly a half mile. The Indian fell, mortally wounded. Enraged at the fate of their comrade, the others rushed down the hill toward the grist mill (where the Star mills were located)> The miller, who was grinding, being signaled from the garrison, placed his coat and hat on a post, which was partially concealed by bushes, as a ruse, and took a circuitous route through the thicket to the garrison. The Indians riddled the coat and hat with bullets and set the grist mill on fire. They carried their wounded companion some two miles to a deserted house on the farm, afterwards owned by Major Thos. Bennet. The Indian died that night and was buried with the usual Indian ceremonies and the house burned. In 1821, one hundred and fifty years after, Major Bennet plowed up some of his bones, a pipe, stone jug, and a knife.

The same year John Thomson, with the other house-holders, was driven back to Plymouth by the Indians, and at the close of the war in 1677, in June, the same families returned and took possession of their estate, accompanied by other families.

In 1677 John Thomson built a frame house near where the former house was burned. It was 38 feet front and 30 feet deep. It had loop holes, and was lined with brick so as to be proof against musket balls. The west front room was 18 feet square, the east room 18 by 12 feet. Each had a fireplace large enough to burn four-foot wood. There was a small window to each room on each side of the house, being seven in front and three en each end. The front part was two stories, the lower story seven feet high; the back part was one story. The floor was laid under the sills. It was heavily timbered, of white oak; the sills, posts and beams were twelve inches square, and other parts in the same proportion. The boards and joists were sawed by hand in a pit forty rods west from the house; the bricks were made southerly from the house. The outboarding was oak; there was no plastering; the inside finish was largely of cedar; the walls of one chamber were ceiled with cedar seven feet long, curiously wrough and fluted by hand. Here he lived for the remainder of his life. The house was repaired at different times, and was the residence of the fifth generation from John Thomson. It was taken down in 1838, having been inhabited  one hundred and sixty years. Norhing remains except a corner stone, a part of the foundation, which has never been disturbed, and is just as it was placed by the workmen over two hundred years ago. The land where the house stood has ever been owned by the Thomson family. On this ancient homestead are standing many of the "high tap" or "summer sweeting" apple trees, which yield now their prolific crop of golden fruit as they did in the earliest days of the colony. Two trees of this variety, set out by a grandson of John Thomson, standing in view from the site of the old dwelling house, produced, by actual measurement, thirty-five bushels of apples in 1876, at which time the trees must have been at least one hundred and forty years old.

So far, we have only viewed the incidents in the life of John Thomson as related to his worldly concerns. We ought not pass by in silence the great object which led him to come to this country. His moral and religious character contains useful instruction to his descendants, and in many respects reproves them for their degeneracy. His customary hour of rising in the morning was at 4 o'clock, especially on Sunday morning. The breakfast must be closed, even in summer, on or before the rising of the sun. He was a regular attendant on the sanctuary, and by his example showed that he felt the sacredness of liberty of conscience, and was determined to improve it as a precious gift of God. After he had made his clearing and moved into his log house, either he or his wife would go every sabbath to the village of Plymouth, the only place where they had an elder to speak to them, a distance of more than thirteen miles, and the members of the family, male and female, frequently walked that distance to attend meeting at Plymouth, returning home the same day. His wife, one year, on two of the Sundays in June, after breakfast, took a child (Elizabeth) six months old, in her arms, walked to Plymouth, attended meeting and returned home the same day. Nor were his children, to the third generation, less zealous of enjoying the happiness of sanctuary privileges. It was a common practice among them to make a cheese on Sunday morning, in summer, provided they could get it under the press before sunrise, and then they would prepare to go to meeting. His grandchildren were regularly found among the worshiping assembly on the sabbath. It is stated the children of his son Jacob started one sabbath morning for Plymouth; they had to cross a dismal swamp which lay between where Amasa Sturtevant now lives and where Caleb Loring formerly kept a tavern. They arrived near the swamp before daylight, and were greatly frightened by the howling of wolves; they climbed a large rock which was near Amasa Sturtevant's and tarried there in fearful suspense till the sun arose. 

"Compare their zealous attachment to religious worship with those of the present day, and we should little suspect we were the children of such an ancestor. We certainly do not honor his character or feel zealous to assimilate his piety. We feel it a burden to walk two miles to meeting instead of thirteen".

"This father of warriors and statesmen had but few opportunities for education, and of course his literary acquirements were very limited. Nature, however, had endowed him with a strong, active and vigorous intellect, which he greatly improved by experience and observation. Of many things connected with the times in which he lived, and the well being of society, he seemed to have an intuitive knowledge, but what chiefly supported him in all his trials and privations, and ever sustained him when surrounded by perils, was his firm conviction of the great truths of the Christian revelation, the duties it imposed, the promises it offered and the hopes it inspired. He was pious from a deep sense of his religious obligation. Chastened in his feelings in obedience to the dictates of conscience, he practiced the virtues of humility, meekness and charity from an abiding confidence in the wisdom, jusjtice, and mercy of God. Honesty, integrety and fidelity with him were common and ordinary duties, while those to his Heavenly Father were never avoided or delayed, but with becoming reverence promptly performed. We cannot reflect upon the life of such a man without esteem for his virtues and respect for his character. Greatness was incident to his goodness, and his courage the result of moral rectitude. His example contains the text -it belongs to his posterity to furnish the commentary".

He closed his industrious and useful life June 16, 1696, nearly 80 years old. He was buried in the first burying ground in Middleborough. His grave is marked by a small stone, which is said to be the second one erected. The inscription is as follows:

                    MEMORANDUM

                    In memory of

    Lieut. John Thomson, who died June 16th, ye 1696, in

            Ye 80 year of his age.

          This is a debt to nature due;

          Which I have paid and so must you.

Mary, his wife, died March 21, 1714, in the 88th year of her age; buried same place with her husband

).

     Children of John8 Thomson (1087)XE "Thomson:John  (1087) (1616-16 Jun 1696)" and Mary Cooke (1088)XE "Cooke:Mary  (1088) (1624-21 Mar 1714)" (see #145) were as follows:


 
i.
Peter7 (1111)XE "Thomson:Peter  (1111) (-before 29 Apr 1731)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.) was born at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He married Sarah unknown (2568)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2568) (circa 1670-24 Oct 1742)" circa 1699 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.).  He died before 29 Apr 1731 at Halifax, Mass., USA.


 
ii.
Adam (1102)XE "Thomson:Adam  (1102) (before 26 Sep 1646-circa 1648)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born before 26 Sep 1646.  He died circa 1648.


 
iii.
John (1103)XE "Thomson:John  (1103) (before 11 Feb 1648-11 Feb 1649)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born before 11 Feb 1648.  He died on 11 Feb 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 5].).


 
iv.
John (1104)XE "Thomson:John  (1104) (24 Nov 1649-25 Nov 1725)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 23.) was born on 24 Nov 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850.).  He married Mary Tinkham (2555)XE "Tinkham:Mary  (2555) (5 Aug 1661-1731)" circa 1680 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 737.).  He died on 25 Nov 1725 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 76.


 
v.
Mary (1105)XE "Thomson:Mary  (1105) (circa 1651-3 May 1734)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 24.) was born circa 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Thomas Taber (2556)XE "Taber:Thomas  (2556) (Feb 1646-11 Nov 1730)" in Jun 1672 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 725.).  She died on 3 May 1734.


 
vi.
Esther (1106)XE "Thomson:Esther  (1106) (28 Jul 1652-26 Oct 1705)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 25.) was born on 28 Jul 1652 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 47.).  She married William Reed (2557)XE "Reed:William  (2557) (15 Dec 1639-1706)" in 1675 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 616.).  She died on 26 Oct 1705 at Weymouth, Mass., USA, at age 53 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 25.).


 
vii.
Elizabeth (1107)XE "Thomson:Elizabeth  (1107) (28 Jan 1654-14 Jan 1717)" (Institut für Historische Familienforschung, Forschung Rain 1994.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 25 & 26.) was born on 28 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 47.).  She married Thomas Swift (2558)XE "Swift:Thomas  (2558) (30 Jul 1659-before 23 Apr 1696)" on 22 Sep 1687 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 724.).  She died on 14 Jan 1717 at age 62 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations.).


 
viii.
Sarah (1108)XE "Thomson:Sarah  (1108) (4 Apr 1657-2 Dec 1730)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born on 4 Apr 1657 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 47.).  She died on 2 Dec 1730 at Weymouth, Mass., USA, at age 73 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 384.).

     (an unknown value) (unmarried).


 
ix.
Lydia (1109)XE "Thomson:Lydia  (1109) (5 Oct 1659-14 Mar 1742)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 29.) was born on 5 Oct 1659 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 47.).  She married James Soule (2559)XE "Soule:James  (2559) (circa 1659-27 Aug 1744)" on 14 Dec 1693 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 26.).  She died on 14 Mar 1742 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 82 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 26.).
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x.
Jacob (1085).XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)"

XE "Thomson:Jacob Esquire  (1085) (24 Apr 1662-1 Sep 1726)"

 
xi.
Thomas (1110)XE "Thomson:Thomas  (1110) (19 Oct 1664-26 Oct 1742)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.) was born on 19 Oct 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 47.).  He married Mary Morton (2567)XE "Morton:Mary  (2567) (15 Dec 1689-20 Mar 1781)" on 13 Dec 1715 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.) (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 23.).  He died on 26 Oct 1742 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 78.


 
xii.
Mercy (1112)XE "Thomson:Mercy  (1112) (1671-19 Apr 1756)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born in 1671 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  She died on 19 Apr 1756 at Halifax, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (unmarried).

145.  Mary8 Cooke (1088)XE "Cooke:Mary  (1088) (1624-21 Mar 1714)" (Francis, #290) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 316 & 384.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 7.) was born in 1624 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 316.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.).  She married John Thomson (1087)XE "Thomson:John  (1087) (1616-16 Jun 1696)" on 26 Dec 1645 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 451.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 737.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:125].).  She died on 21 Mar 1714 at Halifax, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 316.).

146.  John8 Wadsworth Dea. (2560)XE "Wadsworth:John Dea. (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)"

XE "Wadsworth:John Dea.  (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)" (Christopher, #292) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, 3 vols. (New England Historic Genealogical Society), Vol. III, page1891.) was born in 1638.  He married Abigail Andrews (2561)XE "Andrews:Abigail  (2561) (circa 1647-25 Nov 1723)" on 25 Jul 1667 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 769.) (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 325.).  He died on 15 May 1700 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 432.).

     Children of John8 Wadsworth Dea. (2560)XE "Wadsworth:John Dea. (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)"

XE "Wadsworth:John Dea.  (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)" and Abigail Andrews (2561)XE "Andrews:Abigail  (2561) (circa 1647-25 Nov 1723)" (see #147) all born at Duxbury, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Mary7 (4370)XE "Wadsworth:Mary  (4370) (18 Dec 1668-        )" was born on 18 Dec 1668 (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 182.).
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ii.
Abigail (1086).XE "Wadsworth:Abigail  (1086) (25 Oct 1670-15 Jan 1744)"

 
iii.
John (4369)XE "Wadsworth:John Dea. (4369) (12 Mar 1672-3 May 1750)"

XE "Wadsworth:John Dea.  (4369) (12 Mar 1672-3 May 1750)" was born on 12 Mar 1672 (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 182.).  He died on 3 May 1750 at Duxbury, Mass., USA, at age 78. a. 78 y. 1 m. 21 d (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 432.).

147.  Abigail8 Andrews (2561)XE "Andrews:Abigail  (2561) (circa 1647-25 Nov 1723)" (Henry, #294) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 17.) was born circa 1647.  She married John Wadsworth Dea. (2560)XE "Wadsworth:John Dea. (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)"

XE "Wadsworth:John Dea.  (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)" on 25 Jul 1667 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 769.) (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 325.).  She died on 25 Nov 1723 at Duxbury, Mass., USA. Abigail, wid. John Esq., "betwixt ye 24th and 25th days of November," 1723, a. 76 (F. Apthorp Foster, Vital Records of Duxbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 430.).

148.  Ephraim8 Tilson (1133)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)" (Edmond, #296) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 32.) was born in 1635 at England.  He married Elizabeth Hoskins (1134)XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)" on 7 Jul 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  He died in Oct 1716.

     (an unknown value) (From Plymouth records we read: May, 1665. Ephraim Tilson, for breaking the King's peace in striking Robert Ransom, is fined 00, 03, 04. 1670 Ephraim Tilson made freeman. 1674/76/80 Ephraim Tilson, surveyor of highways of Plymouth. To all people to whome these presents shall come, etc.: Ephraim Tilson of Plimouth, within the County of Plimouth, within the Province of the Massachusetts Bay, in New England, sendeth greeting. Know yee that I, the said Ephraim Tilson, for & in consideration fo that natural affection & good will that I doo beare unto my loving son Edmond Tilson of the town and county of afors'd within the province afors'd & for divers good & weighty causes, me at this time especially moveing thereunto, do by these presents give grant, make over, enfeefe & confirm from me & my heirs unto him my son Edmond Tilson, and unto his heirs & assigns for ever, all that upland & meadow lands that was sometimes the land & meadows of my loving brother, John Tilson, late of Plimouth, deceased, which sd lands lyeth within the Township of Plimouth, afors'd part of which his housing now standeth on & all my whole right title property claim or demand whatsoever of in or unto the lands belonging unto my above s'd brother, John Tilson, with all and singular the rights, privileges & appurtanances to the same belonging or in any wise appertaining. To have and to hold all that part & those parcels of land of my s'd brother above mentioned, with the rights, privileges & benefits to the same belong, to appertain and belont unto the above, proper use, benefit & behoofe of him my s'd son Edmond Tilson, to him and his heirs and assigns for ever, and I the s'd Ephraim Tilson, for me & my heirs, executors & administrators doo covenant, promise and grant by these presents in manor following, that is to say that at & until the ensealing of these presents I, the s'd Tilson, am the true & proper owner of the above granted premises k& have in myself full power good, right and lawfull authority to give, grant, make over & confirm the same unto him my s'd son Edmond Tilson and unto his heirs and assigns as above s'd, hereby warranting to maintain the gift above s'd against me my heirs or assigns & every person or persons whatsoever any wise lawfully claiming any right or title unto ye premises above mentioned forever to defend s'd Edmond, his heirs and assigns, in his and their peaceable enjoyment of the premises for eber by their presents. In witness whereof I, the above Ephraim Tilson, hath hereu;nto sett my hand and affixed my seale on the sicteenth day fo March, anne domine one thousand and seven hundred & one, 1701/2.

The mark of Ephraim Tilson.

Signed, sealed and delivered in presence of Nathaniel Denham, Jonathan Shaw. Plimouth,ss., That on the day and above written the above named Ephraim Tjilson personally appeared and acknowledged the above written enstrument to be his act and deed before me.

James Warren, Justice of Peace.

Entered April 24, 1714, and recorded in the Tenth book of Records of Deeds for Plymouth County, fol. 333,334.

By William Little, Reg

).

     Children of Ephraim8 Tilson (1133)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)" and Elizabeth Hoskins (1134)XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)" (see #149) were as follows:
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i.
Edmund7 (1131).XE "Tilson:Edmund  (1131) (circa 1667-before 1762)"

 
ii.
Ephraim (1141)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1141) (circa 1670-)" was born circa 1670 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died.


 
iii.
John (1142)XE "Tilson:John  (1142) (circa 1672-)" was born circa 1672 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died.


 
iv.
Lydia (1143)XE "Tilson:Lydia  (1143) (circa 1675-)" was born circa 1675 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.
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v.
Mercy (1144).XE "Tilson:Mercy  (1144) (circa 1677-)"

 
vi.
Anne (1145)XE "Tilson:Anne  (1145) (circa 1680-)" was born circa 1680 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.

149.  Elizabeth8 Hoskins (1134)XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)" (William, #298) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 33.) was born circa 1646.  She married Ephraim Tilson (1133)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)" on 7 Jul 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  She died.

150.  John8 Waterman Deacon (1170)XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)" (Robert, #300) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 431.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 481.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 94, page 281.) was born on 19 Apr 1642 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.  He married Ann Sturtevant (1171)XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)" on 7 Dec 1665 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665 [p. 35].).  He died on 14 Sep 1718 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 76. Deceast Sept 14th 1718 on Sabth at 12 a Clock at night: (in the 77th year of his age. Buried near Northwest corner of the Burying place in Plympton.)

 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database SMIN7DA.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 3, page 130.).

     (an unknown value) (Ship carpenter

JOHN WATERMAN TO JOHN CARVER]

[p. 65] On 19 December, 1687, "John Waterman of Marshfeld", for £30, sold to "John Carver of Marshfeild .... all that my Dwelling house barn upland & Marsh or meadow which I now have within the Township of Marshfeild .... more perticulerly My house barn & feild .... bounded as followeth. viz Northward with the land of John Sawyer Eastward by a brook of Water Southward with a marked birch tree standing by said brooke thence Runing Eastward on a Straight line to a great oake Stump with a head of Stones about it being the Southermost Corner of said feild near the Town Road or high way & bounded eastward by the said High Way & also that my two acres of marsh or salt meadow .... in Said township & bounded Southward by a ditch that adjoynes to the marsh of John Barker & westward by the upland of Said barker & extends northward about twelve Rods or Perches according as the same is taked forth & bounded & to extend eastward to a ditch there Cast up or made.  And also that my Small percell of Marsh which I had of Thomas Tilden lying neare to a Certaine Island formerly Called Hatches Island & is bounded easterly by the NOrth River & northerly by the Middle of a ditch & thence on [p. 66] On a straight line to a stake that is a Corner bounds standing near the upland & westerly as it is staked forth being nine Rods in width & Southerly by Certain stakes till it Come to said River & is about twenty Rods in length"

The deed was signed by John Waterman, and witnessed by Thomas Delano and Samuel Sprague.

On 10 February, 1688, John Waterman acknowledged the deed, "And Ann his Wife Acknoleged her Consent to the sale", before Nathaniel Thomas, Justice of the Peace, and Nathaniel Thomas, Clerk of the Peace.  It was recorded 14 February, 1688

).

     Children of John8 Waterman Deacon (1170)XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)" and Ann Sturtevant (1171)XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)" (see #151) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel7 (1186)XE "Waterman:Samuel  (1186) (16 Oct 1666-)" was born on 16 Oct 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  He died.
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ii.
Elizabeth (1132).XE "Waterman:Elizabeth  (1132) (15 Jan 1669-circa 1705)"

 
iii.
Ann (1187)XE "Waterman:Ann  (1187) (18 Oct 1671-)" was born on 18 Oct 1671 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 4, page 250.).  She died.


 139.
iv.
Lydia (1188).XE "Waterman:Lydia  (1188) (9 May 1678-25 Jul 1757)"

 
v.
Robert (1189)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1189) (9 Feb 1681-)" was born on 9 Feb 1681 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 110, page 147.).  He married Mary Cushman (4524)XE "Cushman:Mary  (4524)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 110, page 147.).  He died.


 
vi.
John (1190)XE "Waterman:John  (1190) (23 Sep 1685-)" was born on 23 Sep 1685 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 3, No. 3, page 13.).  He died.

151.  Ann8 Sturtevant (1171)XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)" (Samuel, #302) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 229.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 440.) was born on 4 Jun 1648 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656 [p. 2].).  She married John Waterman Deacon (1170)XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)" on 7 Dec 1665 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665 [p. 35].).  She died on 9 Feb 1720 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 71. Deceast febr ye 9th 1719 : 20 (in the 71st year of her age.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 3, page 130.).

152.  John8 Phinney Jr. (1205)XE "Phinney:John Jr. (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)"

XE "Phinney:John Jr.  (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)" (John Finney, #304) (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.) was born on 24 Dec 1638 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He was baptized on 31 Jul 1653 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 325.).  He married Mary Rogers (1206)XE "Rogers:Mary  (1206) (22 Sep 1644-after 19 Apr 1718)" on 10 Aug 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.).  He died on 19 Apr 1718 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 79. [3:595] "John Phiney of Barnstable .... weaver" made his will on 19 April, 1718. Bequests were as follows:

"after The Decease of my Wife I Give to my Daughter Mary Eastland my best fether Bed and Coverlid & bolster and one pillow."

"all The Rest of my movable Estate I Give Equally to my Three Daughters vis: To Mary Eastland mercy Crocker and Reliance Morton."

"The Remain of of the money Due To me from my son Ebenezer Phiney after my Wives Decease I Give Equally To my Seven sons vs: John Phiney . Joseph, Thomas, Ebenezer, Samuel, Benjamin, & Jonathan Phiney."

"I Do Constitute ... son John Phiney my onely & sole Exec

The signature was recorded as "John Phinney".

The witnesses were: Moodey Russel, Martha Russel and James Paine. They were all sworn, and the will was probated, at Barnstable, on 18 June, 1719.

[3:597] "Barnstable March the 9th 1718/9. This Is The Invantory of ye Estate of John Phiney Senr Late of Barnstable Deceased." No real estate was mentioned. The total amount was £116, 14s. The appraisers were Benjamin Lumbert and Ebenezer Hinckley.

"John Phinney Executor to the Last Will .... of his Father John Phiney Deceasd" made oath to the inventory, at Barnstable, on 17 June, 1719

 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 162.).

     (an unknown value) (John is the founder of the Barnstable branch of the family. His descendants generally used the spelling "Phinney").

     Children of John8 Phinney Jr. (1205)XE "Phinney:John Jr. (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)"

XE "Phinney:John Jr.  (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)" and Mary Rogers (1206)XE "Rogers:Mary  (1206) (22 Sep 1644-after 19 Apr 1718)" (see #153) all born at Barnstable, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
John7 (1222)XE "Phinney:John Deacon (1222) (5 May 1665-27 Nov 1746)"

XE "Phinney:John Deacon  (1222) (5 May 1665-27 Nov 1746)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 228.) was born on 5 May 1665 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.).  He married Sarah Lumbert (1922)XE "Lumbert:Sarah  (1922) (circa Dec 1666-5 May 1753)" on 30 May 1689 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.).  He died on 27 Nov 1746 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 81 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.).


 
ii.
Malatiah (1223)XE "Phinney:Malatiah  (1223) (Oct 1666-Nov 1667)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.) was born in Oct 1666 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.).  He died in Nov 1667 at age 1.
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iii.
Joseph (1203).XE "Phinney:Joseph  (1203) (28 Jan 1668-29 Jun 1726)"

 
iv.
Thomas (1224)XE "Phinney:Thomas  (1224) (Jan 1671-30 Nov 1755)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 234.) was born in Jan 1671 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).  He married Sarah Lockwood (1921)XE "Lockwood:Sarah  (1921) (1678-Dec 1748)" on 25 Aug 1698 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 580.).  He died on 30 Nov 1755 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 84 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).


 
v.
Ebenezer (1225)XE "Phinney:Ebenezer  (1225) (18 Feb 1673-10 Apr 1754)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 226.) was born on 18 Feb 1673 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).  He married Susannah Linnell (1923)XE "Linnell:Susannah  (1923) (1673-28 Nov 1754)" on 14 Nov 1695 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.).  He died on 10 Apr 1754 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 81 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).


 
vi.
Samuel (1226)XE "Phinney:Samuel  (1226) (4 Nov 1676-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 234.) was born on 4 Nov 1676.  He married Bethya Smith (1924)XE "Smith:Bethya  (1924)" on 3 Apr 1713 at Eastham, Mass., USA (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).  He died.


 
vii.
Mary (1227)XE "Phinney:Mary  (1227) (3 Sep 1678-1733)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 233.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 22 & 23.) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 181.) was born on 3 Sep 1678 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.).  She married John Eastland (1925)XE "Eastland:John  (1925)" on 29 Oct 1702 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 88.).  She died in 1733.


 
viii.
Mercy (758)XE "Phinney:Mercy  (758) (10 Jul 1679-)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.) was born on 10 Jul 1679.  She married Eleazer Crocker (744)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (744) (before 21 Jul 1650-before 17 Sep 1723)" on 26 Jan 1715 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich.).  She died.


 
ix.
Reliance (1228)XE "Phinney:Reliance  (1228) (27 Aug 1681-4 Dec 1735)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.) was born on 27 Aug 1681.  She married John Morton (1937)XE "Morton:John  (1937) (20 Jul 1680-4 Feb 1739)" on 27 Dec 1705 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 182.).  She died on 4 Dec 1735 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 54.


 
x.
Benjamin (1229)XE "Phinney:Benjamin  (1229) (18 Jun 1682-after 24 Mar 1758)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 5.) was born on 18 Jun 1682 (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).  He married Martha Crocker (919)XE "Crocker:Martha  (919) (22 Feb 1690-)" on 30 Jun 1709 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).  He married Elizabeth Young (1926)XE "Young:Elizabeth  (1926)" on 5 Nov 1747 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 5.).  He died after 24 Mar 1758 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.).


 
xi.
Jonathan (1230)XE "Phinney:Jonathan  (1230) (30 Jul 1684-after 9 Sep 1738)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.) was born on 30 Jul 1684.  He married Elizabeth (--?--) (1927)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (1927)" circa 1712 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 232.).  He married Deborah Wade (4414)XE "Wade:Deborah  (4414)" on 16 Oct 1735 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 184.).  He died after 9 Sep 1738 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 225.) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 184.).


 
xii.
Hannah (1231)XE "Phinney:Hannah  (1231) (28 Mar 1687-10 Feb 1689)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 2.) was born on 28 Mar 1687.  She died on 10 Feb 1689 at age 1.

153.  Mary8 Rogers (1206)XE "Rogers:Mary  (1206) (22 Sep 1644-after 19 Apr 1718)" (Joseph, #306) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 162.) was born on 22 Sep 1644 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  She married John Phinney Jr. (1205)XE "Phinney:John Jr. (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)"

XE "Phinney:John Jr.  (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)" on 10 Aug 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.).  She died after 19 Apr 1718 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. (hus. will) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 162.).

154.  Peter8 West (1255)XE "West:Peter  (1255) (-1721)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 179.) married Patience unknown (1256)XE "unknown:Patience  (1256) (-1725)" before 1675 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 796.).  He died in 1721 at Plympton, Mass., USA.

     Children of Peter8 West (1255)XE "West:Peter  (1255) (-1721)" and Patience unknown (1256)XE "unknown:Patience  (1256) (-1725)" (see #155) were:
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i.
Esther7 (1204).XE "West:Esther  (1204) (30 Sep 1680-after 27 Jul 1726)"
155.  Patience8 unknown (1256)XE "unknown:Patience  (1256) (-1725)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 179.) married Peter West (1255)XE "West:Peter  (1255) (-1721)" before 1675 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 796.).  She died in 1725.

156.  John8 Washburn (2770)XE "Washburn:John  (2770) (circa 1646-1717)" (John, #312) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 429.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) was born circa 1646 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Rebecca Lapham (2771)XE "Lapham:Rebecca  (2771) (15 Mar 1645-1734)" on 16 Apr 1679 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.).  He died in 1717 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).

     (an unknown value) (On 11 April 1724 Josiah Washburn, William Washburn and Abigail Leonard all of Bridgewater quitclaimed their rights to 22 acres of land in Bridgewater which was formerly John Washburn Srs. Ack. by all on 4 June 1731. No Plymouth Co. PR for John Washburn).

     Children of John8 Washburn (2770)XE "Washburn:John  (2770) (circa 1646-1717)" and Rebecca Lapham (2771)XE "Lapham:Rebecca  (2771) (15 Mar 1645-1734)" (see #157) all born at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:
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i.
Josiah7 (1267).XE "Washburn:Josiah  (1267) (11 Feb 1680-11 Feb 1734)"

 
ii.
John (2772)XE "Washburn:John  (2772) (5 Apr 1682-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 430.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) was born on 5 Apr 1682 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).  He died.


 
iii.
Joseph (2773)XE "Washburn:Joseph  (2773) (7 Jul 1683-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 430.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) was born on 7 Jul 1683 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).  He died.


 
iv.
William (2774)XE "Washburn:William  (2774) (16 Feb 1686-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 430.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) was born on 16 Feb 1686 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).  He died.


 
v.
Abigail (2775)XE "Washburn:Abigail  (2775) (2 Jun 1688-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 430.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) was born on 2 Jun 1688 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).  She died.


 
vi.
Rebecca (2776)XE "Washburn:Rebecca  (2776)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 430.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.) died.

157.  Rebecca8 Lapham (2771)XE "Lapham:Rebecca  (2771) (15 Mar 1645-1734)" (Thomas, #314) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 429.) was born on 15 Mar 1645 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 57, page 82.).  She married John Washburn (2770)XE "Washburn:John  (2770) (circa 1646-1717)" on 16 Apr 1679 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.).  She died in 1734.

158.  Ephraim8 Tilson (1133)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)" (Edmond, #296) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 32.) was born in 1635 at England.  He married Elizabeth Hoskins (1134)XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)" on 7 Jul 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  He died in Oct 1716.

     (an unknown value) (From Plymouth records we read: May, 1665. Ephraim Tilson, for breaking the King's peace in striking Robert Ransom, is fined 00, 03, 04. 1670 Ephraim Tilson made freeman. 1674/76/80 Ephraim Tilson, surveyor of highways of Plymouth. To all people to whome these presents shall come, etc.: Ephraim Tilson of Plimouth, within the County of Plimouth, within the Province of the Massachusetts Bay, in New England, sendeth greeting. Know yee that I, the said Ephraim Tilson, for & in consideration fo that natural affection & good will that I doo beare unto my loving son Edmond Tilson of the town and county of afors'd within the province afors'd & for divers good & weighty causes, me at this time especially moveing thereunto, do by these presents give grant, make over, enfeefe & confirm from me & my heirs unto him my son Edmond Tilson, and unto his heirs & assigns for ever, all that upland & meadow lands that was sometimes the land & meadows of my loving brother, John Tilson, late of Plimouth, deceased, which sd lands lyeth within the Township of Plimouth, afors'd part of which his housing now standeth on & all my whole right title property claim or demand whatsoever of in or unto the lands belonging unto my above s'd brother, John Tilson, with all and singular the rights, privileges & appurtanances to the same belonging or in any wise appertaining. To have and to hold all that part & those parcels of land of my s'd brother above mentioned, with the rights, privileges & benefits to the same belong, to appertain and belont unto the above, proper use, benefit & behoofe of him my s'd son Edmond Tilson, to him and his heirs and assigns for ever, and I the s'd Ephraim Tilson, for me & my heirs, executors & administrators doo covenant, promise and grant by these presents in manor following, that is to say that at & until the ensealing of these presents I, the s'd Tilson, am the true & proper owner of the above granted premises k& have in myself full power good, right and lawfull authority to give, grant, make over & confirm the same unto him my s'd son Edmond Tilson and unto his heirs and assigns as above s'd, hereby warranting to maintain the gift above s'd against me my heirs or assigns & every person or persons whatsoever any wise lawfully claiming any right or title unto ye premises above mentioned forever to defend s'd Edmond, his heirs and assigns, in his and their peaceable enjoyment of the premises for eber by their presents. In witness whereof I, the above Ephraim Tilson, hath hereu;nto sett my hand and affixed my seale on the sicteenth day fo March, anne domine one thousand and seven hundred & one, 1701/2.

The mark of Ephraim Tilson.

Signed, sealed and delivered in presence of Nathaniel Denham, Jonathan Shaw. Plimouth,ss., That on the day and above written the above named Ephraim Tjilson personally appeared and acknowledged the above written enstrument to be his act and deed before me.

James Warren, Justice of Peace.

Entered April 24, 1714, and recorded in the Tenth book of Records of Deeds for Plymouth County, fol. 333,334.

By William Little, Reg

).

     Children of Ephraim8 Tilson (1133)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)" and Elizabeth Hoskins (1134)XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)" (see #149) were as follows:
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i.
Edmund7 (1131).XE "Tilson:Edmund  (1131) (circa 1667-before 1762)"

 
ii.
Ephraim (1141)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1141) (circa 1670-)" was born circa 1670 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died.


 
iii.
John (1142)XE "Tilson:John  (1142) (circa 1672-)" was born circa 1672 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died.


 
iv.
Lydia (1143)XE "Tilson:Lydia  (1143) (circa 1675-)" was born circa 1675 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.
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v.
Mercy (1144).XE "Tilson:Mercy  (1144) (circa 1677-)"

 
vi.
Anne (1145)XE "Tilson:Anne  (1145) (circa 1680-)" was born circa 1680 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.

159.  Elizabeth8 Hoskins (1134)XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)" (William, #298) (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 33.) was born circa 1646.  She married Ephraim Tilson (1133)XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)" on 7 Jul 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  She died.

160.  Joshua8 Morse (1283)XE "Morse:Joshua  (1283) (1675-1754)" (Jonathan, #320) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 24 & 25.) (Richard Fetzer, Peter B. Hill and Robert S. Wakefield Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations (General Society of Mayflower Descendants - 1993), Page 27.) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.) was born in 1675 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  He married Elizabeth Doten (1281)XE "Doten:Elizabeth  (1281) (10 Feb 1675/76-1772)" on 12 Dec 1698 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 521.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 87.).  He died in 1754 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. (Third Printing, 1994)), Page 54.).

     (an unknown value) (He was a saddler and removed to Plymouth, Mass., where, in July 20, 1706, he sold a tract of land to Hezekiah Bosworth, then signing as a saddler; May 18, 1712, he sold one whole right in the township that he had received from Joseph Doty, which was in the present town of Rochester, Mass.; July 3, 1717, he, still signing as a saddler, sold "the house in Middleboro where I now live." In 1719, still as a saddler and inn keeper, he sold land in Rochester; July, 1725, with his wife, Elizabeth, he sold land in Plymouth "laid out by our father, John Doten, deceased," in 1701, and Joshua Morse, junior, and Elizabeth Morse, junior, were witnesses.

On 18 Dec. 1728 Joshua Morse and wife of Middleboro sold one acre and his dwelling house in Middleboro to Samuel Warren.

In Jan. 1737/8 Joshua Morse and wife sold 3 acres in Rochester to David Nye

) (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.).

     Children of Joshua8 Morse (1283)XE "Morse:Joshua  (1283) (1675-1754)" and Elizabeth Doten (1281)XE "Doten:Elizabeth  (1281) (10 Feb 1675/76-1772)" (see #161) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:


 
i.
Joshua7 (1282)XE "Morse:Joshua  (1282) (12 Sep 1699-1741)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 94.) was born on 12 Sep 1699 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  He married Elizabeth unknown (2851)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2851)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 94.).  He died in 1741 at North Kingstown, RI, USA (Joan S. Keough, "Queries," NEHGS Nexus Vol. XV, No. 2 (March-April 1998): 78.).


 
ii.
Elizabeth (1316)XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (1316) (9 Oct 1701-)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 94.) was born on 9 Oct 1701 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  She married Japheth Turner (2750)XE "Turner:Japheth  (2750) (circa 1704-)" on 17 Jan 1725 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 73.).  She died.


 
iii.
Edward (1317)XE "Morse:Edward  (1317) (25 Jul 1704-17 Jun 1783)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 95.) was born on 25 Jul 1704 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  He married Margaret White (2751)XE "White:Margaret  (2751) (13 Mar 1704-before 17 Jun 1783)" on 19 Sep 1727 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 28.).  He died on 17 Jun 1783 at age 78.
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iv.
Joseph (1318).XE "Morse:Joseph  (1318) (29 Dec 1706-)"

 
v.
Newbury (1319)XE "Morse:Newbury  (1319) (28 Jul 1709-)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 96.) was born on 28 Jul 1709 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  He married Lydia Briggs (2752)XE "Briggs:Lydia  (2752) (9 Dec 1719-)" on 3 Jan 1741 (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 96.).  He died.


 
vi.
Abigail (1320)XE "Morse:Abigail  (1320) (22 Sep 1711-10 Dec 1795)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 96.) was born on 22 Sep 1711 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  She married Simeon Leonard (2753)XE "Leonard:Simeon  (2753) (9 Jun 1709-30 Jan 1754)" on 6 Nov 1735 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 251.).  She died on 10 Dec 1795 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 84.


 
vii.
Theodorus (1321)XE "Morse:Theodorus  (1321) (20 Aug 1714-19 Dec 1794)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 97.) was born on 20 Aug 1714 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 20.).  He married Thankful Crocker (2754)XE "Crocker:Thankful  (2754) (circa 1718-1 Jul 1762)" on 26 Apr 1739 at Falmouth, Mass., USA (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 97.).  He died on 19 Dec 1794 at Falmouth, Mass., USA, at age 80.


 
viii.
Gershom (1322)XE "Morse:Gershom  (1322) (1716-1800)" (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 98.) was born in 1716 (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 98.).  He married Elizabeth Swift (2755)XE "Swift:Elizabeth  (2755)" on 6 Sep 1742 at Wareham, Massachusetts, USA (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 98.).  He died in 1800 at Norwich, Vermont.

161.  Elizabeth8 Doten (1281)XE "Doten:Elizabeth  (1281) (10 Feb 1675/76-1772)" (John, #322) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 25.) was born on 10 Feb 1675/76 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.) (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 27.).  She married Joshua Morse (1283)XE "Morse:Joshua  (1283) (1675-1754)" on 12 Dec 1698 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 521.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 87.).  She died in 1772.

162.  John8 Schackelford (5326)XE "Schackelford:John  (5326) (circa 1670-29 Mar 1734)" (The Morse Society.) was born circa 1670 at Gloucester Cty, Virginia (The Morse Society.).  He married Ann Livingston (5327)XE "Livingston:Ann  (5327) (circa 1679-        )" (see #163) (The Morse Society.).  He died on 29 Mar 1734 at Craven Cty, North Carolina (The Morse Society.).

     Children of John8 Schackelford (5326)XE "Schackelford:John  (5326) (circa 1670-29 Mar 1734)" and Ann Livingston (5327)XE "Livingston:Ann  (5327) (circa 1679-        )" (see #163) were:
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i.
Sarah7 (5325).XE "Schackelford:Sarah  (5325) (circa 1714-)"
163.  Ann8 Livingston (5327)XE "Livingston:Ann  (5327) (circa 1679-        )" (The Morse Society.)XE "Schackelford:Ann  (5327) (circa 1679-        )" was born circa 1679 (The Morse Society.).  She married John Schackelford (5326)XE "Schackelford:John  (5326) (circa 1670-29 Mar 1734)" (see #162) (The Morse Society.).

168.  Thomas8 Fish (4784)XE "Fish:Thomas  (4784) (1665-        )" (Nathaniel, #336) (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America page 351.) was born in 1665 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 351.).  He married Margaret Woodworth (4785)XE "Woodworth:Margaret  (4785)" on 10 Jan 1697 at Marshfiel, Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 267.).

     Children of Thomas8 Fish (4784)XE "Fish:Thomas  (4784) (1665-        )" and Margaret Woodworth (4785)XE "Woodworth:Margaret  (4785)" (see #169) were as follows:
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i.
Thomas7 (1392).XE "Fish:Thomas  (1392) (22 May 1700-circa 1758)"

 
ii.
Ebenezer (4786)XE "Fish:Ebenezer  (4786) (13 Dec 1703-3 Feb 1793)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 351.) was born on 13 Dec 1703.  He married Deborah Church (4787)XE "Church:Deborah  (4787)" at Scituate, Mass., USA.  He died on 3 Feb 1793 at age 89.


 
iii.
Joseph (4788)XE "Fish:Joseph  (4788) (28 Jan 1706-26 May 1781)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 351.) was born on 28 Jan 1706.  He married Rebecca Pabodie (4789).XE "Pabodie:Rebecca  (4789)"  He died on 26 May 1781 at age 75.


 
iv.
Lydia (4790)XE "Fish:Lydia  (4790) (24 Mar 1708-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 351.) was born on 24 Mar 1708.  She married Eliakim Willis (4791).XE "Willis:Eliakim  (4791)"

 
v.
Samuel (4792)XE "Fish:Samuel  (4792) (18 Oct 1710-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 351.) was born on 18 Oct 1710.  He married Elizabeth Randall (4793)XE "Randall:Elizabeth  (4793)" on 1 Mar 1732 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.


 
vi.
Nathaniel (4794)XE "Fish:Nathaniel  (4794) (11 Apr 1713-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 351.) was born on 11 Apr 1713.  He married Mary Pabodie (4795).XE "Pabodie:Mary  (4795)"
169.  Margaret8 Woodworth (4785)XE "Woodworth:Margaret  (4785)" married Thomas Fish (4784)XE "Fish:Thomas  (4784) (1665-        )" on 10 Jan 1697 at Marshfiel, Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 267.).

170.  Henry8 Butler (1402)XE "Butler:Henry  (1402) (circa 1672-1759)" (John, #340) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1672.  He married Sarah unknown (1403)XE "unknown:Sarah  (1403)" circa 1700 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 126.).  He married Priscilla Norton (1469)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1469) (Jan 1691-5 Oct 1771)" on 30 Dec 1747 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 334 & 49.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 100.).  He died in 1759 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown, yeoman; perhaps rem. to R.I., but if so, returned and d. here 1759).

     Children of Henry8 Butler (1402)XE "Butler:Henry  (1402) (circa 1672-1759)" and Sarah unknown (1403)XE "unknown:Sarah  (1403)" (see #171) were as follows:


 85.
i.
Ruth7 (1393).XE "Butler:Ruth  (1393) (1701-23 Oct 1785)"

 
ii.
Henry (1470)XE "Butler:Henry  (1470) (1710-17 Dec 1737)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born in 1710.  He died on 17 Dec 1737.


 
iii.
Sarah (1471)XE "Butler:Sarah  (1471) (circa 1715-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1715.  She married Huxford Marchant (2264)XE "Marchant:Huxford  (2264)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.).  She died.

171.  Sarah8 unknown (1403)XE "unknown:Sarah  (1403)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) married Henry Butler (1402)XE "Butler:Henry  (1402) (circa 1672-1759)" circa 1700 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 126.).  She died.

172.  Samuel8 Osborn Rev. (1485)XE "Osborn:Samuel Rev. (1485)"

XE "Osborn:Samuel Rev.  (1485)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) married Mercy Norton (1486)XE "Norton:Mercy  (1486)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.).  He died.

     Children of Samuel8 Osborn Rev. (1485)XE "Osborn:Samuel Rev. (1485)"

XE "Osborn:Samuel Rev.  (1485)" and Mercy Norton (1486)XE "Norton:Mercy  (1486)" (see #173) were:
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i.
Samuel7 (1483).XE "Osborn:Samuel  (1483) (1711-after 8 Oct 1753)"
173.  Mercy8 Norton (1486)XE "Norton:Mercy  (1486)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.) married Samuel Osborn Rev. (1485)XE "Osborn:Samuel Rev. (1485)"

XE "Osborn:Samuel Rev.  (1485)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 383.).  She died.

174.  John8 Butler (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)" (John, #340) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1674.  He married Elizabeth Daggett (1495)XE "Daggett:Elizabeth  (1495) (1690-after 1753)" on 16 Dec 1708 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.) (Doggett-Daggett Family Page 87.).  He died after 6 Feb 1754.

     (an unknown value) (Resided Edgartown, farmer; rem. to Tisbury (Watcha Neck) 1738).  As Paul Butler (1497)XE "Butler:Paul  (1497) (circa 1716-after 1747)"'s father, John (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)", presented him at his baptism on 8 Jul 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Paul, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  As Keziah Butler (1484)XE "Butler:Keziah  (1484) (1710-Oct 1768)"'s father, John (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)", presented her at her baptism on 8 Jul 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Keziah, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).  As Jane Butler (1498)XE "Butler:Jane  (1498) (1718-1763)"'s father, John (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)", presented her at her baptism on 8 Jul 1722 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. Jane, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).  As Phebe Butler (1496)XE "Butler:Phebe  (1496) (circa 1713-)"'s father, John (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)", presented her at her baptism on 8 Jul 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Phebe, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 16.).  As John Butler (1500)XE "Butler:John  (1500) (before 9 Apr 1727-10 Jun 1764)"'s father, John (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)", presented him at his baptism on 9 Apr 1727 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).

     Children of John8 Butler (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)" and Elizabeth Daggett (1495)XE "Daggett:Elizabeth  (1495) (1690-after 1753)" (see #175) all born at Edgartown, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 87.
i.
Keziah7 (1484).XE "Butler:Keziah  (1484) (1710-Oct 1768)"

 
ii.
Phebe (1496)XE "Butler:Phebe  (1496) (circa 1713-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1713.  She was baptized on 8 Jul 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Phebe, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 16.).  She married Abner Coffin (2274)XE "Coffin:Abner  (2274)" on 9 Sep 1731 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  She died.


 
iii.
Paul (1497)XE "Butler:Paul  (1497) (circa 1716-after 1747)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1716.  He was baptized on 8 Jul 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA. Paul, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850.).  He died after 1747.


 
iv.
Jane (1498)XE "Butler:Jane  (1498) (1718-1763)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born in 1718.  She was baptized on 8 Jul 1722 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. Jane, ch. "Joho," (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).  She died in 1763 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. Jane, Mrs. [d. John Butler and Elizabeth (Daggett), sister of John], [buried],----, 1763, a. 40 , Private record (New England Historic Genealogical Society, Vital Records of Brockton, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 36.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 206.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 230.).

     (an unknown value) (Unmarried).


 
v.
Abigail (1499)XE "Butler:Abigail  (1499) (1722-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born in 1722.  She was baptized on 9 Dec 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 13.).  She died.


 
vi.
John (1500)XE "Butler:John  (1500) (before 9 Apr 1727-10 Jun 1764)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 52.) was born before 9 Apr 1727 (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).  He was baptized on 9 Apr 1727 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 15.).  He married Jedidah Beetle (2275)XE "Beetle:Jedidah  (2275) (Jun 1732-)" on 5 Dec 1749 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 52.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  He died on 10 Jun 1764.

175.  Elizabeth8 Daggett (1495)XE "Daggett:Elizabeth  (1495) (1690-after 1753)" (Thomas, #350) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.)XE "Butler:Elizabeth  (1495) (1690-after 1753)" was born in 1690 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, 3 vols. (Picton Press, Camden, Maine 1990), Vol. 1, page 36.).  She married John Butler (1437)XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)" on 16 Dec 1708 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 87.).  She died after 1753 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 160.).

     (an unknown value) (Elizabeth was mentioned by her parents in their wills dated 8 July 1726 and 25 December 1735. On 24 May 1736, John Butler Jr., yeoman, and his wife, Elizabeth, of Edgartown, sold land in Edgartown to Thomas Snow, mariner. John Butler moved from Edgartown to Watch's Neck, Tisbury, Mass., before 1748. In 1753, John and his wife, Elizabeth, deeded land to their son, John Butler, Jr. of Tisbury, yeoman, the deed not to take effect until after the death of John and Elizabeth. The following year, John Butler deeded land on the same basis to his daughter, Phebe, wife of Abner Coffin; to his daughter, Keziah, wife of Samuel Osborn, and to his daughter, Abigail Butler. These deeds apparently took the place of probating John Butler's estate

).

176.  Benjamin8 Smith (1633)XE "Smith:Benjamin  (1633) (7 Jan 1658-4 Jul 1720)" (John, #352) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born on 7 Jan 1658 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  He married Jedidah Mayhew (1634)XE "Mayhew:Jedidah  (1634) (1656-6 Jan 1736)" after 16 Jun 1684 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).  He died on 4 Jul 1720 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 62. Rev. William Homes of Chilmark wrote in his diary: July 10.1720 * * * Mr. Benjamin Smith of Edgartown died last week. He died suddenly July 4. 1720, being a Monday. (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 50, page 157.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Edgartown, carpenter, magistrate).

     Children of Benjamin8 Smith (1633)XE "Smith:Benjamin  (1633) (7 Jan 1658-4 Jul 1720)" and Jedidah Mayhew (1634)XE "Mayhew:Jedidah  (1634) (1656-6 Jan 1736)" (see #177) were as follows:


 
i.
Jane7 (1670)XE "Smith:Jane  (1670) (circa 1685-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 72 & 449.) was born circa 1685.  She married Thomas Chase (3024)XE "Chase:Thomas  (3024) (9 Nov 1677-22 Dec 1721)" on 21 Feb 1704 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 72.).  She married Thomas Cathcart (3025)XE "Cathcart:Thomas  (3025) (circa 1692-19 Nov 1730)" on 15 May 1724 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 72.).  She died.


 
ii.
Dorcas (1671)XE "Smith:Dorcas  (1671) (circa 1687-4 Aug 1730)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 193, 194 & 449.) was born circa 1687.  She married Benjamin Hawes (1583)XE "Hawes:Benjamin  (1583) (20 Mar 1683-Oct 1722)" on 24 Jul 1705 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 193.).  She married John Worth (3026)XE "Worth:John  (3026) (16 May 1666-1 Feb 1732)" on 22 Dec 1724 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 515.).  She died on 4 Aug 1730.


 
iii.
Jedidah (1672)XE "Smith:Jedidah  (1672) (circa 1689-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born circa 1689.  She married Samuel Osborne Rev. (3027)XE "Osborne:Samuel Rev. (3027)"

XE "Osborne:Samuel Rev.  (3027)" on 1 Jan 1710 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).  She died.


 
iv.
Benjamin (1673)XE "Smith:Benjamin  (1673) (29 Dec 1691-18 Dec 1737)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born on 29 Dec 1691.  He married Mary Bassett (4389)XE "Bassett:Mary  (4389) (10 May 1697-8 Mar 1785)" on 29 Nov 1716 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 450.).  He died on 18 Dec 1737 at age 45.

     (an unknown value) (res. E., "Esquire").


 
v.
Mary (1674)XE "Smith:Mary  (1674) (1693-2 Oct 1781)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 128 & 449.) was born in 1693.  She married Timothy Daggett (1567)XE "Daggett:Timothy  (1567) (1692-17 Sep 1775)" on 6 May 1717 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  Mary (1674)XE "Smith:Mary  (1674) (1693-2 Oct 1781)" was separated from her husband, Timothy Daggett (1567)XE "Daggett:Timothy  (1567) (1692-17 Sep 1775)" in 1750 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.).  She died on 2 Oct 1781 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.).


 
vi.
Thomas (1675)XE "Smith:Thomas  (1675) (May 1697-13 Apr 1765)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born in May 1697.  He married Elizabeth Bassett (3028)XE "Bassett:Elizabeth  (3028) (12 Sep 1699-Oct 1781)" on 9 Nov 1721 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 450.).  He died on 13 Apr 1765 at age 67.


 
vii.
Abiah (1676)XE "Smith:Abiah  (1676) (Aug 1698-10 Feb 1730)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 83 & 449.) was born in Aug 1698.  She married Thomas Claghorn (1769)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1769) (20 Mar 1693-10 Feb 1784)" circa 1720 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died on 10 Feb 1730 at Edgartown, Dukes, Massachusetts, USA, 412300N0703000W, at age 31 (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 208.).
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viii.
Ebenezer (1631).XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1631) (1700-Oct 1771)"
177.  Jedidah8 Mayhew (1634)XE "Mayhew:Jedidah  (1634) (1656-6 Jan 1736)" (Thomas, #354) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born in 1656 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.  She married Benjamin Smith (1633)XE "Smith:Benjamin  (1633) (7 Jan 1658-4 Jul 1720)" after 16 Jun 1684 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).  She died on 6 Jan 1736 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

178.  Shubael8 Claghorn (1695)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)" (James, #356) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 388.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He married Jane Lovell (1696)XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)" circa 1688 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He died before 1729.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Barnstable, yeoman. His will 5 Sept. 1725 is the proximate time of his death. The inventory of his est. amounted to £877-8-7. His descendants are the only ones of the family to take up permanent residence on the Vineyard.

He was at an early age of aggressive temperament, as we find that even before his admisson to citizenship, he felt aggrieved at the distribuiton of the public lands, and filed his protest on February 14th 1693-94. He was admitted to citizenship on July 31st, 1695. We find him at various times appointed as Executor and Trustee of several small estates. Also appointed fence-viewer on March 14th, 1722.

In his will we find distribution of "one set of Jacket plate buttons, guns, caine, bottles, wine glasses," etc., to his "eight sons." His estate amounted to £1577, which was considered large for those days. Barnstable Probate IV, 298, III, 66, etc).  His Ancestral File Number is FZ1P-3X.

     Children of Shubael8 Claghorn (1695)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)" and Jane Lovell (1696)XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)" (see #179) were as follows:


 
i.
James7 (1768)XE "Claghorn:James  (1768) (Aug 1689-18 Jan 1750)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 82 & 83.) was born in Aug 1689 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Mercy Norton (2277)XE "Norton:Mercy  (2277) (circa 1687-1762)" on 30 Dec 1715 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 18 Jan 1750 at age 60.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Barnstable, innkeeper; rem. to Edgartown abt 1715. He was the first of the name to settle permanently on the island. He made his first purchase of land 26 July 1717 and res. on this property on North Water St. Here he kept a public house 1740-48. He suffered from mental disorder from 1745 until his death).


 
ii.
Thankful (2278)XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (2278) (30 Jan 1690-Jan 1696)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 30 Jan 1690 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  She died in Jan 1696 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).
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iii.
Thomas (1769).XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1769) (20 Mar 1693-10 Feb 1784)"

 
iv.
Shubael (1770)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1770) (20 Sep 1696-14 Jan 1754)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 20 Sep 1696 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Experience Hawes (2280)XE "Hawes:Experience  (2280) (14 Nov 1706-19 Sep 1778)" before Mar 1725 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  He died on 14 Jan 1754 at age 57 (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Barnstable, mariner. He rem. to Edgartown 1726 and to C. 1732-3. He saw service as Private in the Expedition to Louisburg, 1745, in the Co. of Capt. Lambert, Col. Gorham's Regt).


 
v.
Robert (1771)XE "Claghorn:Robert  (1771) (18 Jul 1699-11 Jul 1750)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 18 Jul 1699 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Thankful Coleman (2279)XE "Coleman:Thankful  (2279)" on 16 Jan 1723 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page  I/181.).  He died on 11 Jul 1750 at age 50 (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).


 
vi.
Benjamin (1772)XE "Claghorn:Benjamin  (1772) (14 Jun 1701-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 14 Jun 1701 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He died.
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vii.
Thankful (1632).XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (1632) (1703-8 May 1787)"

 
viii.
Reuben (2281)XE "Claghorn:Reuben  (2281) (before 28 Apr 1706-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I/181.) was born before 28 Apr 1706 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He married Eleanor Lovell (2282)XE "Lovell:Eleanor  (2282)" in 1733 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  He died.


 
ix.
Mary (1773)XE "Claghorn:Mary  (1773) (3 Aug 1707-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 3 Aug 1707 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).  She married Ebenezer Clarke (2283)XE "Clarke:Ebenezer  (2283)" after 6 Mar 1730 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  She died.


 
x.
Jane (1774)XE "Claghorn:Jane  (1774) (31 Jul 1709-        )" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I/182.) was born on 31 Jul 1709 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).  She married Joshua Lambert (2284)XE "Lambert:Joshua  (2284)" in 1755 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).


 
xi.
Ebenezer (1775)XE "Claghorn:Ebenezer  (1775) (30 Jul 1712-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 30 Jul 1712 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Sarah Lambert (2285)XE "Lambert:Sarah  (2285)" on 30 Oct 1735 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  He married Elizabeth Hamblin (2286)XE "Hamblin:Elizabeth  (2286)" on 8 Sep 1763 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  He died.


 
xii.
Jabez (2287)XE "Claghorn:Jabez  (2287) (circa 1715-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born circa 1715.  He died.

179.  Jane8 Lovell (1696)XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)" (John, #358) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 123.) was born on 28 Jul 1670.  She married Shubael Claghorn (1695)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)" circa 1688 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She married John Bumpas (1715)XE "Bumpas:John  (1715)" in 1729 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is FZ1P-44.

180.  Shubael8 Claghorn (1695)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)" (James, #356) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 388.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He married Jane Lovell (1696)XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)" circa 1688 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He died before 1729.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Barnstable, yeoman. His will 5 Sept. 1725 is the proximate time of his death. The inventory of his est. amounted to £877-8-7. His descendants are the only ones of the family to take up permanent residence on the Vineyard.

He was at an early age of aggressive temperament, as we find that even before his admisson to citizenship, he felt aggrieved at the distribuiton of the public lands, and filed his protest on February 14th 1693-94. He was admitted to citizenship on July 31st, 1695. We find him at various times appointed as Executor and Trustee of several small estates. Also appointed fence-viewer on March 14th, 1722.

In his will we find distribution of "one set of Jacket plate buttons, guns, caine, bottles, wine glasses," etc., to his "eight sons." His estate amounted to £1577, which was considered large for those days. Barnstable Probate IV, 298, III, 66, etc).  His Ancestral File Number is FZ1P-3X.

     Children of Shubael8 Claghorn (1695)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)" and Jane Lovell (1696)XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)" (see #179) were as follows:


 
i.
James7 (1768)XE "Claghorn:James  (1768) (Aug 1689-18 Jan 1750)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 82 & 83.) was born in Aug 1689 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Mercy Norton (2277)XE "Norton:Mercy  (2277) (circa 1687-1762)" on 30 Dec 1715 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 18 Jan 1750 at age 60.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Barnstable, innkeeper; rem. to Edgartown abt 1715. He was the first of the name to settle permanently on the island. He made his first purchase of land 26 July 1717 and res. on this property on North Water St. Here he kept a public house 1740-48. He suffered from mental disorder from 1745 until his death).


 
ii.
Thankful (2278)XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (2278) (30 Jan 1690-Jan 1696)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 30 Jan 1690 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  She died in Jan 1696 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).
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iii.
Thomas (1769).XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1769) (20 Mar 1693-10 Feb 1784)"

 
iv.
Shubael (1770)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1770) (20 Sep 1696-14 Jan 1754)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 20 Sep 1696 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Experience Hawes (2280)XE "Hawes:Experience  (2280) (14 Nov 1706-19 Sep 1778)" before Mar 1725 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts.).  He died on 14 Jan 1754 at age 57 (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Barnstable, mariner. He rem. to Edgartown 1726 and to C. 1732-3. He saw service as Private in the Expedition to Louisburg, 1745, in the Co. of Capt. Lambert, Col. Gorham's Regt).


 
v.
Robert (1771)XE "Claghorn:Robert  (1771) (18 Jul 1699-11 Jul 1750)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 18 Jul 1699 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Thankful Coleman (2279)XE "Coleman:Thankful  (2279)" on 16 Jan 1723 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page  I/181.).  He died on 11 Jul 1750 at age 50 (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).


 
vi.
Benjamin (1772)XE "Claghorn:Benjamin  (1772) (14 Jun 1701-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 14 Jun 1701 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He died.
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vii.
Thankful (1632).XE "Claghorn:Thankful  (1632) (1703-8 May 1787)"

 
viii.
Reuben (2281)XE "Claghorn:Reuben  (2281) (before 28 Apr 1706-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I/181.) was born before 28 Apr 1706 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He married Eleanor Lovell (2282)XE "Lovell:Eleanor  (2282)" in 1733 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  He died.


 
ix.
Mary (1773)XE "Claghorn:Mary  (1773) (3 Aug 1707-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 3 Aug 1707 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).  She married Ebenezer Clarke (2283)XE "Clarke:Ebenezer  (2283)" after 6 Mar 1730 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  She died.


 
x.
Jane (1774)XE "Claghorn:Jane  (1774) (31 Jul 1709-        )" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I/182.) was born on 31 Jul 1709 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 21.).  She married Joshua Lambert (2284)XE "Lambert:Joshua  (2284)" in 1755 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).


 
xi.
Ebenezer (1775)XE "Claghorn:Ebenezer  (1775) (30 Jul 1712-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 30 Jul 1712 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 20.).  He married Sarah Lambert (2285)XE "Lambert:Sarah  (2285)" on 30 Oct 1735 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  He married Elizabeth Hamblin (2286)XE "Hamblin:Elizabeth  (2286)" on 8 Sep 1763 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.).  He died.


 
xii.
Jabez (2287)XE "Claghorn:Jabez  (2287) (circa 1715-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born circa 1715.  He died.

181.  Jane8 Lovell (1696)XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)" (John, #358) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 123.) was born on 28 Jul 1670.  She married Shubael Claghorn (1695)XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)" circa 1688 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She married John Bumpas (1715)XE "Bumpas:John  (1715)" in 1729 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is FZ1P-44.

182.  Barnabas8 Gibbs (2313)XE "Gibbs:Barnabas  (2313) (24 Jun 1684-5 May 1724)" (John, #364) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.) was born on 24 Jun 1684 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 128.).  He married Abigail Smith (2314)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2314) (5 May 1691-after 10 Feb 1733)" on 25 Oct 1709 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, p. 129.).  He died on 5 May 1724 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 39.

     (an unknown value) (Barnabas was a child of about twelve when his father moved to Plymouth. It seems likely that he grew up there and in Middleborough but returned with his family to Sandwich about 1702. He died intestate.  The inventory of the "Estate of Barnabas Gibs of Sandwich, deceased", dated 5 May 1724, shows a total of £47.6s.6d. in personal estate; there is no record of any real property).

     Children of Barnabas8 Gibbs (2313)XE "Gibbs:Barnabas  (2313) (24 Jun 1684-5 May 1724)" and Abigail Smith (2314)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2314) (5 May 1691-after 10 Feb 1733)" (see #183) all born at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, were as follows:


 
i.
Caleb7 (2374)XE "Gibbs:Caleb  (2374) (13 Sep 1710-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.) was born on 13 Sep 1710 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).  He was baptized on 8 Apr 1716 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.).  He died.
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ii.
Susannah (2288).XE "Gibbs:Susannah  (2288) (28 Sep 1712-27 Nov 1786)"

 
iii.
Remember (2375)XE "Gibbs:Remember  (2375) (20 Aug 1714-21 May 1815)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.) was born on 20 Aug 1714 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, Page 129.).  She was baptized on 8 Apr 1716 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, Page 129.).  She married Joseph Skiffe (2376)XE "Skiffe:Joseph  (2376) (31 Aug 1714-7 Nov 1778)" on 7 Jul 1740 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. III, page 129.).  She died on 21 May 1815 at Chilmark, Mass., USA, at age 100.


 
iv.
Abigail (2377)XE "Gibbs:Abigail  (2377) (4 Apr 1717-before 1779)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.) was born on 4 Apr 1717 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.).  She was baptized on 19 May 1717 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.).  She married Elisha West (2378)XE "West:Elisha  (2378) (31 May 1714-8 Jun 1790)" on 23 Jun 1736 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.).  She died before 1779.


 
v.
Deborah (2379)XE "Gibbs:Deborah  (2379) (12 Dec 1718-before Mar 1725)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.) was born on 12 Dec 1718 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.).  She was baptized on 1 Mar 1719 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129 & 130.).  She died before Mar 1725.


 
vi.
Jane (2380)XE "Gibbs:Jane  (2380) (24 Oct 1720-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.) was born on 24 Oct 1720.  She was baptized on 1 Jan 1720/21 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.).  She married Stephen Swain (2381)XE "Swain:Stephen  (2381)" on 14 Aug 1745 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.).  She died.


 
vii.
Barnabas (2382)XE "Gibbs:Barnabas  (2382) (21 Oct 1722-after 4 Mar 1767)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.) was born on 21 Oct 1722 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 205.).  He was baptized on 2 Feb 1722/23 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 205.).  He married Sarah Blackford (4933)XE "Blackford:Sarah  (4933) (circa 1725-15 Nov 1802)" on 20 Jan 1746 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 205.).  He died after 4 Mar 1767 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 205.).


 
viii.
Deborah (2383)XE "Gibbs:Deborah  (2383) (4 Dec 1724-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.) was born on 4 Dec 1724 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.).  She was baptized on 14 Mar 1724/25 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, pages 129 & 130.).  She married Eleazer Ellis (2384)XE "Ellis:Eleazer  (2384)" on 9 Jan 1746 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 130.).  She died.

183.  Abigail8 Smith (2314)XE "Smith:Abigail  (2314) (5 May 1691-after 10 Feb 1733)" (Shobal, #366) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 129.) was born on 5 May 1691 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Janice A. Beebe and others Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations (General Society of Mayflower Descendants - 1991), Page 108.).  She married Barnabas Gibbs (2313)XE "Gibbs:Barnabas  (2313) (24 Jun 1684-5 May 1724)" on 25 Oct 1709 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, p. 129.).  She died after 10 Feb 1733.

184.  Benjamin8 Holsaert (3847)XE "Holsaert:Benjamin  (3847) (circa 1682-1733)" (Johannes, #368) (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born circa 1682 at Sluys, Holland (Granvyl  G. Hulse, Johannes Holsaert "Our Immigrant Ancestor" (On the WWW).).  He married Johanna (Hanneke) Luyster (3848)XE "Luyster:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3848) (-18 Oct 1732)" before 1711 at New Utrecht, Kings Co., NY, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died in 1733 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA. Benj. will names his wife Hanneke, his oldest son Johannes, and divides his estate between his 'other children' (not given by name). Wife, son John and friend Garret Scanck (Schenck) executors. Witnesses Johannes Heyer, John Johnson, Wal. Wally. (Liber B, 457) Left son John his loom and utinsels. Will dated 18 Oct 1732 at Trenton (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).

     (an unknown value) (Most children baptized in the Freehold and Middletown Dutch Reformed Church of the Navesink (The Brick Church), Freehold, Monmouth Co. New Jersey.

Benjamin and brother Anthony were both members of Company III of Kings Co. Militia in 1715.

In 1717 Benjamin and his wife both joined the Freehold and Middletown Dutch Reformed Church of the Navesink, of Freehold, NJ. Received by certificate. Listed as communicants as late as 1731.

Benjamin came to Monmouth Co., NJ in 1717. He bought land of Thomas Hankinson. In deeds he is described as a cordwainer (shoemaker) by trade and as coming from New Utrecht (New York), Kings Co., LI, NY. See Gen and Memorial Hist of NJ, 1910, Vol. 3, pp 1211. The Huguenot Soc. of NJ, Registry of Ancestors, 1956, pp 20 & 42.

Book E of the deeds, pp 340, Monmouth Co. Clerk office, Cornelius Salem by deed dated 5 June 1718 conveyed his undivided half of a tract of land to Benj.

Translated from Dutch from Flatlands church records a letter to his "Honored Mother" dated 15 Mar 1719, announcing the birth of his son Antoni to his wife Annatji.

Freehold Dutch Ref. church records, babt. a son there in 1719 (Anthony).

NOTE: Only three children have been positively identified so far of the ten given. 

1698

1. 20 September 1698 mentioned in the Anthony Wanshaer deed along with his other brothers and sister.

1715

1. With brother Anthony members of Company III of Kings Co., Militia in 1715.

1717

1. Both Benjamin and his wife Hanneke joined the Reformed Dutch Church of Freehold, New Jersey, by certificate in 1717.

2. In 1717 on his arrival in Monmouth Co., New Jersey he bought land of Thomas Hankinson.  In deeds he is described as a cordwainer by trade and as coming from New Utrecht, Kings Co., Long Island, New York.  (See Gen. and Memorial History of New Jersey, 1910, Vol. 3, page 1211. The Huguenot Society of New Jersey, Registry of Ancestors, 1956, pages 20 and 42.

1718

1. Book E of the Deeds, page 340-342, Monmouth Co. Clerk's Office.  A rather complex deed in which Marte Salem and Cornelius Salem bought land of Thomas Hankeson, each owning an undivided half.  Benjamin Holsaert bought the undivided half owned by Cornelius Salem, and then by agreement, he and Marte Salem, each made a division of the tract of 230 acres, Benjamin receiving the South half, with half the orchards, the old house, half the stables, etc. (From research by Stanley Ross.) Benjamin listed as cordwainer. Deed dated June 1718.

1719

1. Translated from Dutch from Flatlands church records a letter to his "Honored Mother" dated 15 March 1719 announcing the birth of his son Antoni to his wife Annatji. Son baptized in Freehold Dutch Reformed Church same year

1720

1. IGI records. Aelke Holsaert daughter of Benjamin Holsaert christened 1720 Freehold and Middletown Dutch Reformed Church. Witnesses Hendricus Kip and his wife.

1724

1. IGI records indicate a child (name not given) baptized by father Benjamin Holsart 2 August 1724 in Freehold Church.

1731

1. Listed with wife as communicants in Reformed Church of the Navesink (Brick Church) at Marlborough, Monmouth Co., New Jersey 23 August 1731. Annatie Luyster wife of Benjamin Holsaert

2. IGI Records. Gerrit Holzaert with parents Benjamin Holzaert and Johanna Luyster chirstened 8 August 1731. Freehold and Middletown Dutch Reformed Church. Baptized by Domine Du Bois

1732

1. His will names his wife Hanneke, his oldest son Johannes, and divides his estate between his "other children" (not given by name.)  Wife, son John and friend Garret Schanck executors.  Witnesses Johannes Heyer, John Johnson, Wal. Wally. (Liber B, 457) Left son John his loom and utensils.   Will dated 18 October 1732 at Trenton, New Jersey.

1733

1. From Deeds, Book H. pp 175, Monmouth Co., New Jersey (per Stanely Ross): Hannah Holsarte, John Holsart to Thomas Warne, entered ye 26th March 1737.  This indenture made this tenth day of July in the Seventh Year of Ye Reigh of our Sovereign Lord George the Second, etc., A.D. 1733 Between Hannah Holsart and John Holsart, Executors of the Last Will and Testament of Benjamin Holsart, Deceased, of the one Part and Thomas Warne of Amboy in the County of Middlesex and Province of East Jersey, Yeoman, of the other Part....for L275 (conveys a tract in Freehold containing 100 acres.) Signed Hannah Hulsart and John Holsart. Witnesses Benjamin Emans and Daniel Emans

).

     Children of Benjamin8 Holsaert (3847)XE "Holsaert:Benjamin  (3847) (circa 1682-1733)" and Johanna (Hanneke) Luyster (3848)XE "Luyster:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3848) (-18 Oct 1732)" (see #185) were as follows:


 
i.
Aelke (Altie)7 (3853)XE "Holsaert:Aelke (Altie)  (3853)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) married Daniel Emmons (3854)XE "Emmons:Daniel  (3854) (before 15 Jan 1721-after 1813)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died.


 
ii.
Cornelia (3855)XE "Holsaert:Cornelia  (3855)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) married Cornelius Emmons (3856)XE "Emmons:Cornelius  (3856) (before 2 Aug 1724-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died.


 
iii.
Johannes (John) G.? (3859)XE "Holsaert:Johannes (John) G.?  (3859) (circa 1711-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born circa 1711 at New Utrecht, Kings Co., NY, USA (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America Page 136.) (Granvyl  G. Hulse, Johannes Holsaert "Our Immigrant Ancestor".).  He married Altji Covenhaven (3860)XE "Covenhaven:Altji  (3860) (circa 1711-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.
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iv.
Cornelius (3834).XE "Holsaert:Cornelius  (3834) (circa 1712-circa 1788)"

 
v.
Phebe (3861)XE "Holsaert:Phebe  (3861) (circa 1715-)" was born circa 1715 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  She married William Van nest (3862)XE "Van nest:William  (3862)" on 22 Sep 1740 at Montgomery Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died.


 
vi.
Matthias (3863)XE "Holsaert:Matthias  (3863) (circa 1717-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born circa 1717 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  He married Anne (Antje) Matthews Martae (3864)XE "Matthews Martae:Anne (Antje)  (3864)" on 7 Mar 1740 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.


 
vii.
Anthony (3851)XE "Holsaert:Anthony  (3851) (before 15 Mar 1719-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born before 15 Mar 1719 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  He was christened on 15 Mar 1719 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He married Maria Van barkelo (3852)XE "Van barkelo:Maria  (3852)" before 1743 (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.


 
viii.
Thomas (3849)XE "Huls:Thomas  (3849) (before 21 Aug 1727-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born before 21 Aug 1727 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  He was christened on 21 Aug 1727 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He married Deborah Johnston (3850)XE "Johnston:Deborah  (3850)" on 31 Dec 1750 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.


 
ix.
Richard (3865)XE "Holsaert:Richard  (3865) (before 1730-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born before 1730 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  He married Mary Williams (3866)XE "Williams:Mary  (3866) (-1770)" on 27 May 1751 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.


 
x.
Gerrit (Garret) (3857)XE "Holsaert:Gerrit (Garret)  (3857) (before 8 Aug 1731-)" was born before 8 Aug 1731 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA.  He was christened on 8 Aug 1731 at Freehold, Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He married Hannah Clayton (3858)XE "Clayton:Hannah  (3858) (-before 1775)" on 18 Sep 1752 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.

185.  Johanna (Hanneke)8 Luyster (3848)XE "Luyster:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3848) (-18 Oct 1732)" (Matthias, #370) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors (the author, 1715 Northwest Drive - Des Moines, Iowa 50310), Part 1, page 85.) married Benjamin Holsaert (3847)XE "Holsaert:Benjamin  (3847) (circa 1682-1733)" before 1711 at New Utrecht, Kings Co., NY, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died on 18 Oct 1732 at Monmouth Co., New Jersey, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).

200.  Joseph8 Lowell (836)XE "Lowell:Joseph  (836) (12 Sep 1680-before 8 Apr 1753)" (Benjamin, #400) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.) was born on 12 Sep 1680 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  He was baptized on 19 Sep 1680 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.).  He married Mary Hardy (2003)XE "Hardy:Mary  (2003) (2 Feb 1693-1753)" after 6 Dec 1707 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.).  He died before 8 Apr 1753.

     (an unknown value) (1708 and 10, Joseph is called a "blacksmith." 

He owned and sold considerable real estate in Newbury, Mass., where he resided).

     Children of Joseph8 Lowell (836)XE "Lowell:Joseph  (836) (12 Sep 1680-before 8 Apr 1753)" and Mary Hardy (2003)XE "Hardy:Mary  (2003) (2 Feb 1693-1753)" (see #201) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Mary7 (2004)XE "Lowell:Mary  (2004) (2 Dec 1709-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.) was born on 2 Dec 1709 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  She married Nathaniel Davis (2028)XE "Davis:Nathaniel  (2028)" in 1732 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.).  She died.
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ii.
George (835).XE "Lowell:George  (835) (28 Mar 1712-before 26 Apr 1763)"

 
iii.
Abigail (2005)XE "Lowell:Abigail  (2005) (2 Jan 1715-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.) was born on 2 Jan 1715 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  She married Jeremiah Goodridge (2029)XE "Goodridge:Jeremiah  (2029) (26 Dec 1708-)" on 18 Jan 1739 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.).  She died.


 
iv.
Mercy (2006)XE "Lowell:Mercy  (2006) (20 Dec 1718-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.) was born on 20 Dec 1718 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  She married Francis Brown (2030)XE "Brown:Francis  (2030) (14 Nov 1716-)" on 5 May 1741 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 26.).  She died.


 
v.
Joseph (2007)XE "Lowell:Joseph  (2007) (20 Feb 1721-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 27.) was born on 20 Feb 1721 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  He married Mary Jones (2031)XE "Jones:Mary  (2031) (26 Feb 1726-)" on 11 Feb 1745 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 27.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (March 31, 1755, he deeded land in Newbury, Mass., to Jacob and David Bartlett of Newbury, Mass.

He was "joyner" 1755 in Newbury, went to Hampstead, N.H. 1757, and about 1762 removed to Castine, Maine.

1755, Oct. 10, he deeded land in Newbury, Mass., which fell to him from his brother Benjamin to Nathaniel Davis, his brother-in-law, Samuel Lowell, witness. This deed was signed by himself and wife Mary, she making her mark.

April 9, 1757 he was "joyner" of Hampstead, N.H).


 
vi.
Priscilla (2008)XE "Lowell:Priscilla  (2008) (10 Aug 1729-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 27.) was born on 10 Aug 1729 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.).  She married Henry Merrill (2032)XE "Merrill:Henry  (2032)" on 5 May 1748 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 27.).  She died.


 
vii.
Benjamin (2009)XE "Lowell:Benjamin  (2009) (24 Feb 1732-before 11 Nov 1754)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 27.) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 290.) was born on 24 Feb 1732.  He died before 11 Nov 1754.

     (an unknown value) (He d. intestate and Nov. 11, 1754, his brother George was appointed administrator of his estate. He owned some real estate which was divided among his heirs, George, Mercy, wife of Francis Brown, Priscilla, wife of Henry Merrill, Joseph, Mary, wife of Nathaniel Davis, Abigail, wife of Jeremiah Goodridge, and Stephen Lowell).


 
viii.
Stephen (2010)XE "Lowell:Stephen  (2010) (1 Jun 1735-before 1756)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 28.) was born on 1 Jun 1735 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  He died before 1756.

     (an unknown value) (He, after the d. of his father, Joseph, chose his brother Joseph to be his guardian during his minority, May 22, 1753.

Nov. 26, 1756, his estate was divided among his heirs. (Prob. Rec. at Salem, Mass., 119:48)).

201.  Mary8 Hardy (2003)XE "Hardy:Mary  (2003) (2 Feb 1693-1753)" (George, #402) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 355.) was born on 2 Feb 1693 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  She married Joseph Lowell (836)XE "Lowell:Joseph  (836) (12 Sep 1680-before 8 Apr 1753)" after 6 Dec 1707 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.).  She died in 1753. She made her will April 8, 1753, which was porved May 14, 1753, which is recorded in Essex Co., Mass. Prob. Rec. Vol. 31: p. 158. Her son Joseph was sole executor.

202.  Samuel8 Morse (2437)XE "Morse:Samuel  (2437) (7 Dec 1688-before 11 Jun 1753)" (Benjamin, #404) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 14 & 36.) was born on 7 Dec 1688 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 345.).  He married Elizabeth March (2438)XE "March:Elizabeth  (2438) (27 Oct 1691-20 Apr 1723)" on 23 Feb 1713 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, 341.).  He married Hannay Ordway (2494)XE "Ordway:Hannay  (2494)" in 1724 (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.).  He married Bethiah Dalton (2493)XE "Dalton:Bethiah  (2493) (-23 Jun 1726)" on 24 Sep 1725 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 346.).  He married Abigail Perley (2495)XE "Perley:Abigail  (2495)" in 1728 (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.).  He died before 11 Jun 1753.

     (an unknown value) (He was one of the later generations who followed the original trade of weaving, but when he signed his will he styled himself a husbandman).

     Children of Samuel8 Morse (2437)XE "Morse:Samuel  (2437) (7 Dec 1688-before 11 Jun 1753)" and Elizabeth March (2438)XE "March:Elizabeth  (2438) (27 Oct 1691-20 Apr 1723)" (see #203) were as follows:
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i.
Elizabeth7 (2002).XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (2002) (2 Apr 1714-)"

 
ii.
Child (2496)XE "Morse:Child  (2496) (1715-1715)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.) was born in 1715.  He/she died in 1715.


 
iii.
Samuel (2497)XE "Morse:Samuel Doctor (2497) (5 Nov 1717-)"

XE "Morse:Samuel Doctor  (2497) (5 Nov 1717-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.) was born on 5 Nov 1717 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 338.).  He died.


 
iv.
John (2498)XE "Morse:John  (2498) (14 Dec 1719-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.) was born on 14 Dec 1719 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 338.).  He married Mary Woodbury (2499)XE "Woodbury:Mary  (2499)" on 12 Sep 1749 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 342.).  He died.


 
v.
Mercy (2500)XE "Morse:Mercy  (2500) (9 Mar 1721-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.) was born on 9 Mar 1721 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 338.).  She married John Dustin (2501)XE "Dustin:John  (2501)" circa 1738 (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.).  She died.


 
vi.
Sarah (2502)XE "Morse:Sarah  (2502) (23 Jan 1723-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 36.) was born on 23 Jan 1723 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 339.).  She married Joseph Munson (2503)XE "Munson:Joseph  (2503)" on 27 Jun 1749 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 344.).  She died.

203.  Elizabeth8 March (2438)XE "March:Elizabeth  (2438) (27 Oct 1691-20 Apr 1723)" (Hugh, #406) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 14.) was born on 27 Oct 1691 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  She married Samuel Morse (2437)XE "Morse:Samuel  (2437) (7 Dec 1688-before 11 Jun 1753)" on 23 Feb 1713 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, 341.).  She died on 20 Apr 1723 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 31. in her 32d y. Gravestone record, Sawyer's Hill Cemetery, Newburyport (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 666.).

204.  James8 Berry (2728)XE "Berry:James  (2728) (1676-after 1762)" (James, #408) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach (Newmarket Press, Newmarket, NH, USA, 1980), Page 25.) was born in 1676 at Greenland, New Hampshire, USA.  He married Eleanor Jenness (2729)XE "Jenness:Eleanor  (2729) (30 Jun 1681-after 1762)" on 4 Jul 1700 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 65.).  He died after 1762.

     Children of James8 Berry (2728)XE "Berry:James  (2728) (1676-after 1762)" and Eleanor Jenness (2729)XE "Jenness:Eleanor  (2729) (30 Jun 1681-after 1762)" (see #205) were:
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i.
Richard7 (2726).XE "Berry:Richard  (2726) (before 6 Apr 1707-30 Jun 1765)"
205.  Eleanor8 Jenness (2729)XE "Jenness:Eleanor  (2729) (30 Jun 1681-after 1762)" (Francis, #410) (Nothing found in NEGHS databases (12.09.04)) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) was born on 30 Jun 1681 (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.).  She married James Berry (2728)XE "Berry:James  (2728) (1676-after 1762)" on 4 Jul 1700 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 65.).  She died after 1762.

206.  Nicholas8 Smith (2747)XE "Smith:Nicholas  (2747) (1661-)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) was born in 1661 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 687.).  He married Mary Gordon (2748)XE "Gordon:Mary  (2748) (1668-)" (see #207) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 687.).  He died.

     Children of Nicholas8 Smith (2747)XE "Smith:Nicholas  (2747) (1661-)" and Mary Gordon (2748)XE "Gordon:Mary  (2748) (1668-)" (see #207) were:
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i.
Abigail7 (2727).XE "Smith:Abigail  (2727)"
207.  Mary8 Gordon (2748)XE "Gordon:Mary  (2748) (1668-)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.)XE "Smith:Mary  (2748) (1668-)" was born in 1668 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 687.).  She married Nicholas Smith (2747)XE "Smith:Nicholas  (2747) (1661-)" (see #206) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 687.).  She died.

Generation NineTC "Generation Nine" \l 2
256.  William9 Crocker Deacon (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)" (Hugh, #512) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Beginning at page 200.) (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page A-3.) was born circa 1612 at England (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].).  He was baptized on 11 Feb 1615 at Modbury, Devon, England (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page A-3.).  He married Alice unknown (747)XE "unknown:Alice  (747) (-before 4 May 1684)" in 1636 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].).  He married Patience Cobb (748)XE "Cobb:Patience  (748) (before 13 Mar 1641-23 Oct 1727)" in 1684 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].) (Institut für Historische Familienforschung, Forschung Rain 1995.).  He died before 19 Oct 1692 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. The last will and testament of Deacon William Crocker of Barnstable, in New England.

The 6th day of September Anno Dom. 1692 I, William Crocker of Barnstable, being sick and weak in body but throu ye mercy of God of disposing mind and memory, and knowing ye uncertainty of this life on earth, and being desirous to settle things in order, do make this my last will and testament in manner and forme following, viz: first and principally, I give and committ my soul to God in Jesus Christ my Saviour and Redeemer throw whose pretious death and merrits I hope to find ye free pardon and remition of all my sinnes, and everlasting salvation, and my body to ye earth from whence it was taken, to be buried in such decent manner as to my Executor hereafter named, shall seem meet and convenient, and as touching my wordly estate which God hath in mercy lent unto me, my will is to bestow ye same as hereafter is expressed, and I do hereby revoke and make void all wills by me formerly made and declared and appoint this to be my last will and testament.

Imprimus my will is that all those debts and duties which I owe in right or conscience to any person or persons whatsoever, shall be well and truly contented and paid when convenient by my Executor.

Itt. I give and bequeath unto Patience my loving wife, besides ye liberty to dispose of all ye estate which she brought with her or had at ye time of our intermarriage, and besides ye forty pounds I then promised to give her, in case she should survive me, I give unto her my best bedd and bedstead with all ye ffurniture thereto belonging.

Itt. I give and bequeath to my eldest son John Crocker my now dwelling house and lands both upland and ffresh meadows adjoyning and belonging thereunto now and of late under my occupation and improvement to have and to hold to him his heirs and assignes forever he or they paying to ye s'd Patience my wife twenty pounds of ye fores'd forty pounds she is to receive, and I do also hereby confirm to him my son John his heirs and assignes forever all those parcels of land I heretofore gave unto him and are well known to have been in his quiet possession for sundry years; I further also give and bequeath to him my son John my two oxen which he hath had in his posession some years.

Itt. I give and bequeath unto my son Job Crocker besides ye land I heretofore gave him and known to be in his possession, twenty acres of that fifty acres at ye ponds which I purchased of John Coggin to have and to hold to him my son Job his heirs and assignes forever and that he chuse it on which side of s'd land he please.

Itt. I will and bequeath to my sons Josiah and Eliazer Crocker besides those lands I heretofore gave to each of them and are in their particular knowne possession, all my upland at the marsh together with all ye marsh adjoining thereunot, (except such particular parcel or parcels thereof as I have heretofore given and is possest of late by any other or is in these presents hereafter mentioned,) to be equally divided between them ye s'd Josiah and Eliazer to have and to hold to them their heirs and assignes forever: Each of them ye s'd Josiah and Eliazer paying seven pounds and ten shillings apiece to ye s'd Patience in paying of ye forty poundas above mentioned. And I further will and bequeath to my sons Josiah and Eliazer to each of them one cow.

Itt. I will and bequeath unto my son Joseph Crocker (besides ye two parcels of upland and one parcel of marsh which I heretofore gave him and is known to be in his possession ye house and land which he hired of me and now lives on) that is to say much of my s'd land as he hath now fenced in; together with that parcel of marsh which he hath from year to year of late hired of me; to have and to hold to him ye s'd Joseph his heirs and assignes forever: he or they paying five pounds to ye s'd Patience to make up ye full of s'd forty pounds I promised to her as above s'd.

Itt. I give and bequeath all ye rest of my lands att ye ponds to my grandson, viz: to Nathaniel, ye son of John Crocker, Samuel, ye son of Job Crocker, and Thomas, ye son of Josiah Crocker to be equally divided between them and to their and each of thier heirs and assignes forever.

Itt. my will is and I do hereby constitute and appoint my trusty and well veloved son Job Crocker to be my sole executor to see this my last will and testament to be performed, with whom I leave all ye residue of my estate in whatsoever it be, to be equally distributed amongst all my children unless I shall signifie my minde to have such part or parts thereof to be disposed to any in particular.

In witness whereof I have hereunto sett my hand and seal.

On my further consideration I signifie my mind before ye ensealing hereof and it is my will that Mr. Russell shall have my two steers which are att Isacc Howlands and that Mr. Thomas Hickly shall have my nagro boy if he please he paying fourteen pounds to my Executor for him

        WILLIAM CROCER         [Seal.]

Signed Sealed and declared

In presence of 

SAMUEL CHIPMAN,

MERCY CHIPMAN

Samuel Chipman and Mercy Chipman whose hands are sett as winesses to this will made oath in Court October ye 19:1692, that they did see the above said William Crocker now deceased sign seal and declare this above written to be his last will and testament.

              JOSEPH LOTHROP: c l.

Examinde and duly compared with ye original will and entered October ye 22, 1692.

Attest:      JOSEPH LOTHROP, Recorder 
The division which Deacon Crocker made of his estate in the foregoing will, may perhaps, be better understood by the following description of the shares of each of his five sons. Job had the estate which was his uncle John's homestead, and his father therefore gives him a larger proportion o his estate, not immediately connected with the West Barnstable farm.

John had the great lof of his uncle John, on which he had a house, and therefore, there was no immediate need that he should be provided for. For his other four sons he had provided houses, ar they had built on his land.

The present road running north from the West Barnstable Meeting House, to the Cape Cod Rail Road Depot, divides Dea. Crocker's farm into two nearly equal parts. On the east of the road, Josiah had the south part, excepting the portion given to John, and Joseph the north. On the west side, John had the south part, including a strip running north to the meadows, and a strip on the east, adjoining Josiah's land, where Nathaniel Crocker afterwards lived, and Eleazer the north-westerly part. A question arises which will be hereafter considered, and that is, whether or not John's portion extended far enough west to include the old stone fort (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 205.).

     (an unknown value) (William, planter, Sciutate, member of church, Dec. 25, 1636. Took oath of

allegiance Feb. 1, 1638. Removed to Barnstable, proprietor, town officer;

deacon. He deposed to the will of Dolor Davis in 1672, aged about 65 years. Will

dated 6 Sept. prob. 19 Oct. 1692, bequeathed to wife Patience, children John, Josian, Eliazer, Joseph, and certain of their children. Lived in Barnstable. Brother of John, and tradition makes their arrival 1634, was first at Sciutate. Twelve of this name had, in 1834, been graduated at Harvard College and five at Yale. Was representative 1670, 1, and 4.

Following appears in Amos Otis papers:

It is said, on how good authority I have not ascertained, that John and William Crocker came over in 1634, either in the same ship with Rev. Mr. Lothrop, or in another that sailed about the same time, and that they stopped in Roxbury before they settled in Sciutate. They did not remain long in Roxbury, for their names do not appear on the Massachusetts Colony Records.
William Crocker, joined Mr. Lothrop's church in Sciutate Dec. 25, 1636. He came to Barnstable Oct. 21, 1639, and his daughter Elizabeth, baptized Dec. 22, 1639, es the fourth on the list, showing that he was among the first who came. He built a frame house in Scituate in 1636 -the forty-fourth built in that town. June 5, 1644, he was propounded a freeman, but does not appear to have been admitted till after 1652. He was constable of Barnstable in 1644; on the grand jury in 1654, '55, '57, '61, '67 and '75; selectman in 1668; deputy to the Colony Court in 1670, 71 and 74; and surveyor of highways 1673. In the year 1675 he was on the jury which condemned the murderers of John Sassamon, secretary of King Phillip. He was one of the leading men in early times and was often employed in the business of the town and in settling the estates of deceased persons.

He probably settled first in the easterly part of the town, and removed to West Barnstable about the year 1643. The loss of the early records makes it difficult to decide, but it is probable that his first house in Barnstable was on the lot next west of Henry Bourne's. He had a large landed estate, and for many years was perhaps the richest man in town. His sons were all men of wealth. In 1703 his son Joseph was the owner of the largest estate in Barnstable.

In 1655, Dea. William Crocker owned one hundred and twenty-six acres of upland, and twenty-two acres of meadow at West Barnstable, and forty acres of upland at the Indian ponds. The West Barnstable farm was bounded easterly by the farm of John Smith, now known as the Otis farm, and by the farm of Samuel Hinckley, now owned by Levi L. Goodspeed, southerly it extended into the woods. The southerly part of the farm, in 1654, was bounded on the west by the commons, and the northerly part by lands then owned by Governor Bodfish, and afterwards by Lieut. John Howland. He afterwards added largely to his West Barnstable farm, and to the farm at the Indian Pond, the latter containing one hundred acres at his death. The West Barnstable farm was two miles in length from north to south, extending from the salt meadows on the waters at Barnstable harbor to the neighborhood of the West Barnstable metting-house. The lands he first occupied were the south-easterly part of the farm, the old stone house which, according to tradition, was his first residence, was about a fourth of a mile easterly from the West Barnstable church. This stone or fortification house was taken down many years ago. A few aged persons remember to have seen it in a ruinous state. This part of the farm his son Josiah afterwards owned. There was another stone house on the south-westerly part of the farm owned by the descendants of Eleazer. This was taken down about 1815. It was called the old Stone Fort, and stood where Capt. Josiah Fish's house now stands. It was about 25 feet in front and 20 feet on the rear. The walls of the lower story were built of rough stones laind in clay mortar, and nearly three feet in thickness. The upper story was of wood and projected over the lower on the front, about three feet. In this projection were a number of loop holes about six inches square, closed by small trap doors. The windows in the lower story were high and narrow. These and the loop holes in the projection, were intended to be used as portholes, should the building be assaulted by hostile Indians. The earliest known occupant, to any now living, mas Mr. Benoni Crocker, a great-grand-son of Dea. William. He made a two story addition on the south-side, which was occupied by his son Barnabas.
Dea. Crocker died in good old age. For many years he was deacon of the Barnstable Church, and living an exemplary and pious life. He has a clean record. Nothing dishonest or dishonorable was ever laid to his charge. Men who acquire great wealth, often make enemies of the envious; but Dea. Crocker appears to have been beloved and respected by all. When he removed to West Barnstable, the lands there had only a nominal value. He was industrious, economical, and a good manager. His boys were as industrious and as prudent as the father, and that was the whole secret of their becoming wealthy. In early colonial times a large family was considered a great blessing in a pecuniary point of view. The boys assisted the father on the farm, and at seventeen were able to do the work of a man. The girls were also brought up to more than earn their own living. They assisted the mother, spun and wove the flax and the wool, and made their own and their brother's garments, and in hay time and at harvest assisted their brothers. A man with a large family of healthy children was then the most independent of men. From his farm and his household he obtained an abundance of the prime necessaries of life. The surplus which he sold was more than sufficient to pay the bills of the mechanic, and to buy the few articles of foreign growth and manufacture then required. There was very little money in circulation, and very little was needed. Taxes were payable in agriculltural products, at a rate fixed by law, and if lands or property were sold, without it was expressly stipulated in the contract, that payment should be made in silver money, it was a barter trade, payable in produce at the "prices current with the merchants."

Aged people often remark that their ancestors estimated that every son born to them added to their wealth a £100, and of every daughter £50. However heterodox this theory may now appear to parents, or to political economists, it was undoubtedly true in early times. The Crocker's, with few exceptions, all married in early life, had large families, and excepting the few who tried to live by trade or speculation, acquired good estates, lived comfortably, and were respectable and honoralbe members of society
).  He emigrated from England ? in 1634 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 475.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 13, page 273 & 274.).  As John Crocker (752)XE "Crocker:John  (752) (1 May 1637-May 1711)"'s father, William (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)", presented him at his baptism on 11 Jun 1637 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 281.).  He attested to the validity of Daniel Standlake (3934)XE "Standlake:Daniel  (3934) (-May 1638)"'s will before May 1638 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 4, page 36.).  He attested to the validity of Thomas Pryor (3933)XE "Pryor:Thomas  (3933)"'s will in Jun 1639 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 4, page 36.).  As Elizabeth Crocker (753)XE "Crocker:Elizabeth  (753) (22 Sep 1639-16 May 1658)"'s father, William (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)", presented her at her baptism on 22 Dec 1639 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, vol. 1, page 475.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 282.).  As Samuel Crocker (754)XE "Crocker:Samuel  (754) (3 Jul 1642-21 Nov 1681)"'s father, William (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)", presented him at his baptism on 3 Jul 1642 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, page 1.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 282.).  As Job Crocker Deacon (755)XE "Crocker:Job Deacon (755) (before 9 Mar 1644-Mar 1719)"

XE "Crocker:Job Deacon  (755) (before 9 Mar 1644-Mar 1719)"'s father, William (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)", presented him at his baptism on 9 Mar 1644 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 283.).  As Josiah Crocker (756)XE "Crocker:Josiah  (756) (before 19 Sep 1647-2 Feb 1699)"'s father, William (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)", presented him at his baptism on 19 Sep 1647 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 283.).  As Eleazer Crocker (744)XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (744) (before 21 Jul 1650-before 17 Sep 1723)"'s father, William (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)", presented him at his baptism on 21 Jul 1650 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 284.).

     Children of William9 Crocker Deacon (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)" and Alice unknown (747)XE "unknown:Alice  (747) (-before 4 May 1684)" (see #257) were as follows:


 
i.
John8 (752)XE "Crocker:John  (752) (1 May 1637-May 1711)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 474 & 475.) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209 & 211.) was born on 1 May 1637 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209 & 211.).  He was baptized on 11 Jun 1637 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 281.).  He married Mary Bodfish (889)XE "Bodfish:Mary  (889) (1639-Dec 1662)" in Nov 1659 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He married Mary Bursley (892)XE "Bursley:Mary  (892)" on 25 Apr 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He died in May 1711 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).


 
ii.
Elizabeth (753)XE "Crocker:Elizabeth  (753) (22 Sep 1639-16 May 1658)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 475.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.) was born on 22 Sep 1639 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.).  She was baptized on 22 Dec 1639 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, vol. 1, page 475.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 282.).  She died on 16 May 1658 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 18 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, page 1.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).


 
iii.
Samuel (754)XE "Crocker:Samuel  (754) (3 Jul 1642-21 Nov 1681)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 475.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.) was born on 3 Jul 1642 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He was baptized on 3 Jul 1642 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, page 1.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 282.).  He died on 21 Nov 1681 at age 39 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy.).


 
iv.
Job (755)XE "Crocker:Job Deacon (755) (before 9 Mar 1644-Mar 1719)"

XE "Crocker:Job Deacon  (755) (before 9 Mar 1644-Mar 1719)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 474 & 475.) was born before 9 Mar 1644 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He was baptized on 9 Mar 1644 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 283.).  He married Mary Walley (814)XE "Walley:Mary  (814)" in Nov 1668 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, vol. 1, page 474.).  He married Hannah Taylor (818)XE "Taylor:Hannah  (818) (say 1658-14 May 1743)" on 19 Jul 1680 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, vol. 1, page 474.).  He died in Mar 1719 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, vol. 1, page 474.).


 
v.
Josiah (756)XE "Crocker:Josiah  (756) (before 19 Sep 1647-2 Feb 1699)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209 & 216.) was born before 19 Sep 1647 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He was baptized on 19 Sep 1647 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 9, page 283.).  He married Meletiah Hinckley (903)XE "Hinckley:Meletiah  (903) (-2 Feb 1715)" on 23 Oct 1668 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He died on 2 Feb 1699 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 18.).


 128.
vi.
Eleazer (744).XE "Crocker:Eleazer  (744) (before 21 Jul 1650-before 17 Sep 1723)"

 
vii.
Joseph (757)XE "Crocker:Joseph  (757) (1654-20 Feb 1720)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) was born in 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 17.).  He married Temperance Bursley (914)XE "Bursley:Temperance  (914)" in Dec 1677 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 475.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 18.).  He died on 20 Feb 1720 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 75.).

257.  Alice9 unknown (747)XE "unknown:Alice  (747) (-before 4 May 1684)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 209.) married William Crocker Deacon (746)XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)" in 1636 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].).  She died before 4 May 1684.  Her body was interred on 4 May 1684.  Her body was interred on 4 May 1684 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page 1.).

     Her long name was Alice (Hoyt?, Foster?) (747).XE "unknown:Alice (Hoyt?, Foster?)  (747) (-before 4 May 1684)"
258.  John9 Chipman Elder (759)XE "Chipman:John Elder (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)"

XE "Chipman:John Elder  (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)" (Thomas, #516) was born circa 1620 at England.  He married Hope Howland (760)XE "Howland:Hope  (760) (30 Aug 1629-8 Jan 1684)" circa 1646 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 86.).  He married Ruth Sargeant (950)XE "Sargeant:Ruth  (950) (25 Oct 1642-1713)" in 1684 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 151.).  He died on 7 Apr 1708 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. ae 88
His will is dated at Sandwich, Nov. 12, 1702, and was proved May 17, 1708. In it he says:

I will and bequeath to Ruth, my dear and loving wife, al whatsoever is left of her estate, which I had with her when I married her. I also give her one half part of my whole personal estate which shall be found in Sandwich at my decease. Besides and moreover, all the carts plows and husbandry implements, as also all the corn meat, flax wool, yarn and cloth that is in the house at my decease, and I do give her twenty pounds in money which is due to her by ye compact made between us at our inter-marriage; she according to sd compact, upon payment of this twenty pounds to quitt claim to all right and title and interest in my housing and lands att Barnstable, and this twenty pounds shall be paid her out of that money of mine in ye hand of my friend Mr. Jonathan Russell of Banrstable.

He bequeathes to his sons Samuel and John his whole real estate in Barnstable, Samuel two parts and John one part, unless my son Samuel pay his brother John £70 in lieu of his third part. He gives his son Samuel his carpenters tools, then in his possession. To his two grand children Mary Gale and Jabez Dimmock £5 apiece. He names his daughters, Elizabeth, Hope, Lydia, Hannah, Ruth, Bethia, Mercy and Desire. He appoints his sons Samuel and John executors, and Mr. Jonathan Russell and Mr. Rowland Cotton overseers. Witnesses, Rowland Cotton, Samuel Prince and Nathan Bassett. In the inventory of his estate, taken by Wm. Bassett and Shubaels Smith, it stated that he died 7 April, 1708. His real estate is not apprised. -Among the articles apprised is plate at 8 sh per ounce, £8.2.; Cash, at 8 sh per ounce, £51.5.3.;Bills of Credit, £6.6.; Cash in Mr. Jonathan Russell's hands £20. 18 books, small and great, £1.

To his daughters, he gave half his moveable estate in Sandwich and Barnstable, excepting the articles given to Samuel, and he adds the following proviso: "And in case any of my said daughters be dead before their receiving this my bequest, my will is that their part be given and distributed equally to their surviving children." Two of the daughters, Hannah and Ruth, were then dead, and it is probable that Bethia had also deceased (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.).

     (an unknown value) (Had been at Plymouth or Yarmouth a few years before 1650, and may have resided at other towns, since he said, 8 Feb. 1652, it was 21 years ago that he came from England and was now aged 37 years old. So that it seems probable he came with Allerton in the White Angel, or in the Friendship, that had sailed at the same time, from Barnstaple, in Devon, but had put back, and so reached here a few days later. He was long rul. Elder, and representative every year from 1663 to 1669 except 1667.

A declaration by John Chipman to the Plymouth Court dated 8 February 1657/58 giving substantial background about himself is transcribed in NEHGR 35:127-28. In 1657 he had been out o England for twenty-one years and he supposed that he was thirty-seven years old. Thus, he was born ca. 1620, and probably arrived in New England between 12 July 1637 and 31 August 1638. He was the son of Thomas Chipman of Brinspittle (also called Bryant's Puddle), Dorset, and he alleged that his father had been cheated out of some property in England by a kinsman, Christopher Derby, as was acknowledged by Christopher's son, John Derby, who came to Plymouth Colony, resided at Yarmouth, and was lately deceased. Chipman desired the court to make an inquiry in England about this matter and also to see if his sister, Hanner and Tamson (Hannah and Thomasine), could be located.

On 2 March 1641/42 Ann Hinde, wife of William Hoskins, age about twenty-five years, made a deposition to Edward Winslow in a case between John Derby and John Chipmand. Ann was living in the house of Mr. Derby's father with John Chipman at the time Chipman left for New England to serve Mr. Richard Derby, brother of John Derby. Ann left later also to serve Richard Derby, and old Mr. Derby requested her to commend him to his cousin Chipman and tell him "if hee were a good boy hee would send him ouer the money that was due him when hee saw good." Ann also deposed that John Derby affirmed that this money had already been paid to Chipman's mother, but Ann knew that the mother had been dead a quarter of a year before the time that old Mr. Derby sent his message to Chipman. It is not known if anything further became of this matter.

Chipman was strangely not on the 1643 ATBA. He was proposed as a freeman in 1649, and, though there is no record of when he became a freeman, he appears on a 1658 freeman list and is recorded under Banrstable. He served as a grandjuryman; in 1663 he became a deputy; and in 1665 he became a selectman for Barnstale. He was one of two men chose as ruling elders of the Barnstable Church on 14 April 1670.

Elder John Chipman is probably the ancestor of all of the name of Chipman in the United States and British Provinces. The following statement, drawn up by himself, is printed from an ancient copy of the original in the possession of the family of the late Mr. Samuel Chipman of Sandwich. An incorrect copy was published in the Genealogical Register of 1850. The following has been carefully collated with te manuscript, and is a true transcript thereof, excepting four words, which are repetitons and erased in the manuscript. Interlineations are printed in bold.

A Brief Declaration in Behalf of Jno. Chipman of Barnstable
A Brief Declaration with humble Request (to whom these Presents shall come) for furhter Inquiry & Advice in ye behalf of John Chipman, now of Barnstable in the Government of New Plimouth in New England in America, being ye only Son & Heir of Mr. Thomas Chipman Late Deceased at Brinspittell  l about five miles from Dorchester in Dorsetshire in England concerning some certain Tenement or Tenements with a Mill & other Edifice therunto belonging Lying & being in Whitchurch of Marhwood vale near Burfort alias Breadpor, in Dorsetshire aforsd hertofore worth 40 or 50 Pounds pr Annum which were ye Lands of ye sd Thomas Chipman being entailed to him & his Heirs for Ever but hath for Sundry years Detained from ye sd John Chipman the right & only Proper Heir thereunto, By reason of Some kinde of Sale made of Inconsiderable value by the sd Thomas (In the time of his Single Estate not then minding marriage) unto his kinsman Mr. Christopher Derbe Living Sometime in Sturtle near Burfort aforsd being as the Said John hath been Informed, but for 40 lb And to be maintained Like a man with Diet Apparel &c by the sd Christopher as Long as the sd Thomas Should Live whereat ye Lawyer wc made the Evidences being troubled at his Weakness in taking Such an Inconsiderable Price tendered him to Lend him money or to give to him ye sd Thomas Seven Hundred Pounds for ye sd Lands. But yet the matter Issuing as Aforsd The Vote of the Country who had knowledge of it was that the sd Thomas had much wrong in it Especially After it pleased God to change his condition, and to give him Children, being turned off by the sd Christopher only with a poor Cottage and Garden Spott instead of his forsd Maintainance to the great wrong of his Children Especially of his Son John Aforsd to whom ye Sd Lands by right of Entailment did belong Insomuch that mr William Derbe who had the sd Lands in his Possession then from his father Christopher Derbe told the sd John Chipman (being then a youth) that his father Christopher had done him wrong, but if ye sd Lands prospered with him that he would then consider the sd John todo for him in way of recompence for the Same when he should be of capacity in years to make use thereof. The sd John further declareth that one mr Derbe A Lawyer of Dorchester (he supposes ye father of that mr Derbe now Living in Dorchester) being a friend to the mother of the sd John told her being Acquanted with ye Business and sorry for the Injury to her Heir, that if it pleased God he Liv'd to be of Age ye would himself upon his own charge make a tryal for the recovery of it, and in case he recovere it Shee Should give him 10 lb Else ye would have nothing for his trouble and charge. Furthermore John Derbe late deceased of Yarmouth in New Plimouth Government Aforsd hath acknowledged here to the sd John Chipman that his father Christopher had done him much wrong in the forsd Lands but ye sd John Chipman being but in a poor and mean outward condition, hath hitherto been Afraid to stir in it as thinking he should never get it from ye rich and mighty, but being now Stireed up by some frineds as Judging it his Duty to make more Effectual Inquiry after it for his own comfort his wife and childrens which God hath been pleased to bestow on him if any thing may be done therein, & in what way it may be attained, whether without his coming over which is mostly Desired it it may bee. Because of exposing his wife & children to Some Straits in his Absence from them, he hath therefore, Desired these as aforsd Desiring also Some Search may be made for farther Light in ye case into the Records the conveyance of the Said Lands being made as he Judgeth about threescore years Since as Also that Enquiry be made of his Sisters which he supposeth lived about those parts & of whom else it may be thought meet, and Advice sent over as Aforsd, not Else at present But hoping that there be Some Left yet in England alike Spirited with him in 29 Job whom the Ear that heareth of may bless God for Deliverling ye poor that crieth and him that hath no helper Bein Eyes to the blind feet to the Lame A father to the Poor Searching out ye cause which he knoweth not, &c. Barnstable as Aforsd this 8th of Feb. (57.) John Chipman Desires his Love be presented to his Sisters Hannor and Tamson and to hear particularly from the if Living and doth further request that Enquiry be made of mr Oliver Lawrence of Arpittle who was an intimate friend of his fathers. He desires also Enquiry be made of his Sisters what those parchment writeings concerned in the custody of his mother when he was there.

The sd. John Chipman Supposeth his age to be About thirty seven years; it being next may Twenty & one year Since he come out of England.
John Chipman, only son of Mr. Thomas Chipman, was born in or near Dorchester in Dorcetshire, England, about the year 1621. He had two sisters Hannah and Tamson, who married and remained in England. His father died early, and he resided with his uncle, Mr. Christopher Derbey. In May, 1637, Mr. Richard Derbey, a son of Christopher, came to New England, bringing with him his cousin John, then sixteen years of age, and others, in the capacity of servants. It was then customary to send over orphan youths of good habits, to be bound for a term of years, to the planters and other early settlers. Mr. Richard Derbey settled at Plymouth, where he remained several years; but no mention is made of his cousin John till the spring of 1642, when he had arrived at legal age, and when he brought an action against his cousin, Mr. John Derbey, for a sum of money sent to him by his uncle Christopher, and not paid over by said John Derbey. It is probable that during the four years that had intervened, he had served an apprenticeship with a carpenter. This is not certain; but it appears by his will that ye was a carpenter, though in deeds he is styled a yeoman.

In Aug. 1643, he was absent from the colony, or was sick and unable to bear arms; but it appears that he was afterwards a resident of Plymouth. In 1646 he married Hope, second daughter of Mr. John Howland. In 1649, he was of Barnstable, and that year bought the homestead of Edward Fitzrandolphe, the original deed whereof is in my possession  (Amos Otis).  The land has since been sub-divided many times, and is now (1888) owned by several individuals. It was bounded on the north by the County road, east by the Hyannis road, extending across the present line of the railroad, and was bounded south by the commons, and on the west by the homestead of George Lewis, Senr., and contained eight acres. The deed also conveyed a garden spot and orchard on the north side of the County road, now owned by Capt. Heman Foster. The ancient house on this estate stood between the present dwellings of the heirs of Anna Childs, deceased, and the house formerly owned by Isaiah L. Greene, Esq. How long he resided on this estate is not known. In 1659, it was owned and occupied by John Davis, Senr. Probably about this time he removed to Great Marshes. No lands are recorded as belonging to him in 1654, when all were required to have their possessions entered and described on the town books. He may have resided about that time in another town, though he was of Barnstable in 1659. He bought of his brother-in-law, Lieut. John Howland, one half of his farm which is now owned by his descendants. The deed is dated Dec. 10, 1672, and for the consideration of £16 Mr. Howland conveys to him one-half of his lands in Barnstable, containing forty-five acres of upland. The deed is in the hand writing of Gov. Thomas Hinckley, is on parchment, and is now in the possession of the family of Mr. Samuel Chipman of Sandwich. The lands sold were bounded, easterly, partly by the land of John Otis and partly by the land of William Crocker, northerly by the marsh, westerly by the other half of the lands not sold. The boundaries are particularly described, and the range between Howland and Chipman ran over a well or spring, giving each a privilege thereto. Mr. Howland names his northern orchard, showing that at that early date he had set out two. Elder Chipman owned lands at West Barnstable before 1672, for in the same deed he makes an exchange of meadow with his brother-in-law. After his second marriage in 1684 he removed to Sandwich. He was admitted an inhabitant of that town in 1679, but appears to have been in Barnstable in 1682. His removal was deeply regretted by the people, and many efforts were unsuccessfully made to induce him to return to Barnstable. The church, though dissatisfied at his removal without their consent, agreed to pay him five or six pounds annually, if he would resume his office of Elder, and the town voted to make him a liberal grant of meadow lands if he would return. These votes show that his services were appreciated by the members of the church, with which he had held communion nearly forty years, and that he was highly esteemed as a man and a christian by his fellow townsmen and neighbors.

His connection with the Barnstable church was most happy. His wife Hope joined the church Aug. 7, 1650, and he joined Jan'y 30, 1652-3. "Henry Cobb and John Chipman were chosen and ordained to be ruling Elders of this same church, and they were solemnly invested with office upon ye 14th day of April Anno Dom: 1670." [Church Records].

It is probable that he was deacon of the church before he was elected Elder. He survived Mr. Cobb many years, and was the last Ruling Elder of the church. Subsequently, attempts were made to revive the office. The questin was frequently discussed at church meetings; but a majority opposed another election.

His talents and services in civil life were duly appreciated. In June, 1659, he and Isaac Robinson and John Smith of Barnstable, and John Cook of Plymouth, were appointed by the Plymouth Colony Court to attend the meetings of the Quakers "to endeavour to reduce them from the errors of their wayes." -The result was that Robinson, whose name appears most prominent in these proceedings, recommended the repeal of the severe laws that had been enacted against that sect. Smith and Chipman did not incur the censure of the Court, though there is no reason to doubt that they sympathized with Robinson in his views respecting the impolicy of those laws.

In 1649 he was a freeman, and in 1652 he was a grand juror, and appointed by the Treasurer of the Colony, a committee for the Town of Barnstable to receive the proportion of oil taken which belonged to the Colony; in 1663, '4, '5, '8 and '9 he was representative from Barnstable to the Colony Court; in 1665, '6, '7, and '8 he was one of the selectmen of Barnstable, who at that time exercised, in addition to other duties, the functions since pertaining to justices of the peace; and in 1667 he was one of the council of war. For his public services the court in 1669 granted him one hundred acres of land, between Taunton and Titcut, which was afterwards confirmed to him

).

     Children of John9 Chipman Elder (759)XE "Chipman:John Elder (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)"

XE "Chipman:John Elder  (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)" and Hope Howland (760)XE "Howland:Hope  (760) (30 Aug 1629-8 Jan 1684)" (see #259) were as follows:


 
i.
Elizabeth8 (939)XE "Chipman:Elizabeth  (939) (24 Jun 1648-after 1712)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page 7.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 159.) was born on 24 Jun 1648 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656.).  She was baptized on 18 Aug 1650 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 159.).  She married Hosea Joyce (2642)XE "Joyce:Hosea  (2642) (-1712)" circa 1675 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 219.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 429.).  She died after 1712.


 
ii.
Daughter (940)XE "Chipman:Daughter  (940) (19 Sep 1650-)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 19 Sep 1650 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 159.).  She died.


 
iii.
Hope (941)XE "Chipman:Hope  (941) (31 Aug 1652-26 Jul 1728)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page 7.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 160.) was born on 31 Aug 1652 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She was baptized on 5 Sep 1652 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. She was baptized according to Puritan usage, on the Sabbath next succeeding her birth, namely on the 5th of Sept. 1652 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 159.).  She married John Huckens (2643)XE "Huckens:John  (2643) (1649-1678)" on 10 Aug 1670 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 32.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 398.).  She married Jonathan Cobb (2644)XE "Cobb:Jonathan  (2644) (10 Apr 1660-1728)" on 1 Mar 1683 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 16.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 164.).  She died on 26 Jul 1728 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 75 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 38.).


 
iv.
Lydia (942)XE "Chipman:Lydia  (942) (25 Dec 1654-2 Mar 1730)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page 7.) was born on 25 Dec 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married John Sargent (2645)XE "Sargent:John  (2645) (1639-1716)" circa 1675 at Malden, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 651.).  She died on 2 Mar 1730 at Malden, Mass., USA, at age 75 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.).


 
v.
John (943)XE "Chipman:John  (943) (2 Mar 1657-29 May 1657)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 2 Mar 1657 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He died on 29 May 1657 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).


 
vi.
Hannah (944)XE "Chipman:Hannah  (944) (14 Jan 1658-4 Nov 1696)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page 8.) was born on 14 Jan 1658 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Thomas Huckens (2646)XE "Huckens:Thomas  (2646) (1651-1714)" on 1 May 1680 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 32.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 398.).  She died on 4 Nov 1696 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 38 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 32.).


 
vii.
Samuel (945)XE "Chipman:Samuel Deacon (945) (15 Apr 1661-31 Aug 1722)"

XE "Chipman:Samuel Deacon  (945) (15 Apr 1661-31 Aug 1722)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 15 Apr 1661 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He married Sarah Cobb (2647)XE "Cobb:Sarah  (2647) (1663-1743)" on 27 Dec 1686 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 151.).  He died on 31 Aug 1722 at age 61.

     (an unknown value) (Inherited the homestead of his father. He was a carpenter; but farming was his principal business. He kept a public house, and was a retailer of spirituous liquors, a business not then held to be incompatible with the office of Deacon of the church. He was a man of good business habits, often employed as a town officer, and there were few in town who stood higher than he in public estimation. He was ordained a deacon of the church in Barnstable, Sept. 1, 1706).
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viii.
Ruth (745).XE "Chipman:Ruth  (745) (31 Dec 1663-8 Apr 1698)"

 
ix.
Bethia (946)XE "Chipman:Bethia  (946) (1 Jul 1666-12 Nov 1702)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 1 Jul 1666 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married unknown Gale (2648)XE "Gale:unknown  (2648)" circa 1682 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 291.).  She married Timothy Dimock (2649)XE "Dimock:Timothy  (2649) (1668-1718)" circa 1690 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 221.).  She died on 12 Nov 1702 at age 36.


 
x.
Mercy (947)XE "Chipman:Mercy  (947) (6 Feb 1668-12 Jun 1724)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 6 Feb 1668 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Nathan Skiffe (2331)XE "Skiffe:Nathan  (2331) (16 May 1658-19 Feb 1726)" on 13 Dec 1699 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. The maryage between Nathan Skeffe of Chilmark and Mercy Chipman of Barnstable was solemnized before Stephen Skeffe Esqr Justice of Peace In Sandwich the 13th day of December 1699 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 677.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 140.).  She died on 12 Jun 1724 at Chilmark, Mass., USA, at age 56 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.).


 
xi.
John (948)XE "Chipman:John  (948) (3 Mar 1670-4 Jan 1756)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 3 Mar 1670 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He married Mary (Mercy) Skiffe (2362)XE "Skiffe:Mary (Mercy)  (2362) (13 Nov 1671-)" circa 1690 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 151.).  He married Elizabeth Russell (2650)XE "Russell:Elizabeth  (2650)" circa 1716 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.).  He married Hannah Case (2651)XE "Case:Hannah  (2651)" circa 1725 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.

).  He died on 4 Jan 1756 at Newport, RI., USA, at age 85 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.).


 
xii.
Desire (949)XE "Chipman:Desire  (949) (26 Feb 1673-28 Mar 1705)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 137.) was born on 26 Feb 1673 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Melatiah Bourne (2652)XE "Bourne:Melatiah  (2652) (12 Jan 1673-24 Nov 1742)" on 23 Feb 1693 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. Melatiah Bourne and Desier Chipman both of Sandwich wer maryed by Stephen Skeffe Esqr Just peace the 23d day of February Anno 1692/3 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 143.).  She died on 28 Mar 1705 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 32 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.).

259.  Hope9 Howland (760)XE "Howland:Hope  (760) (30 Aug 1629-8 Jan 1684)" (John, #518) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born on 30 Aug 1629 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 244.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 86.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  She married John Chipman Elder (759)XE "Chipman:John Elder (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)"

XE "Chipman:John Elder  (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)" circa 1646 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 86.).  She died on 8 Jan 1684 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 54. She was buried in the ancient burying ground on Lothrop's Hill. Her monument is in good preservation, and the following is a copy of the inscription:

HERE LYETH

INTERRED YE BODY OF

MRS. HOPE CHIPMAN

WIFE OF ELDER JOHN CHIPMAN

AGED 54 YEARS

WHO CHANGED THIS LIFE

FOR A BETTER

YE 8TH OF JANUARY

1683. (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).

     (an unknown value) (She was admitted to the church on the 7th of Aug. 1650, and Elder John Chipman Jan'y 30, 1652-3).

260.  Gregory de9 Isham Sir (4424)XE "Isham:Gregory de Sir (4424)"

XE "Isham:Gregory de Sir  (4424)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.) married Elizabeth Catherine (--?--) (4425)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth Catherine  (4425)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.).

     Children of Gregory de9 Isham Sir (4424)XE "Isham:Gregory de Sir (4424)"

XE "Isham:Gregory de Sir  (4424)" and Elizabeth Catherine (--?--) (4425)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth Catherine  (4425)" (see #261) were as follows:


 
i.
Henry8 (4426)XE "Isham:Henry  (4426)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.).


 
ii.
William (4427)XE "Isham:William  (4427)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.).  (an unknown value) (died unmarried).
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iii.
John (952).XE "Issum:John  (952) (1654-3 Sep 1713)"
261.  Elizabeth Catherine9 (--?--) (4425)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth Catherine  (4425)" married Gregory de Isham Sir (4424)XE "Isham:Gregory de Sir (4424)"

XE "Isham:Gregory de Sir  (4424)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 1, page 8.).

262.  Robert9 Parker (751)XE "Parker:Robert  (751) (-13 Apr 1684)" (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 190-195.) married Sarah James (963)XE "James:Sarah  (963) (-30 Jun 1664)" on 28 Jan 1656 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. The marriage to his first wife, Sarah James, appears upon the Barnstable Town Records (also Mf., 11, p. 99, 18, p. 202), along with that of his second marriage in August 1667, and the births of his children by both wives (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 559.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 40.).  He married Patience Cobb (748)XE "Cobb:Patience  (748) (before 13 Mar 1641-23 Oct 1727)" on 1 Aug 1667 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 1):IT].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 559.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 191.).  He died on 13 Apr 1684 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. The date given on the Barnstable recrods (1680) for Robert Parker's death is clearly seen to have been in error.  

It was "ordered by the Court that Barnabas Lothrop grant administration on the Estate of Robert Parker of Barnstable, deceased", and that "the Estate be sett out to the widoww of the deceased" ... (Plym. Col. Crt. Recs., vol. VI, 153).

An Inventory of the Estate left by Robert Parker of Barnstable, Deceased:

Two Farmes att                                         220   0   0

Lands att Sepican                                       25   0   0

18 cowes att 46 s. per cowe                        41   8   0

3 pair working oxen                                    18   0   0

In young neat cattle                                    26   1   0

In sheep and lambs                                      8   0   0

In swine                                                      3   0   0

In Horse kind                                             11 10   0

In beds and bedding                                   19   6   0

In household linning and books                      9   6   0

In corn and provisions                                   7   8   0

In Armes and amunition, sythes, sythe gears    5   7   0

Plow & Gears, with plows & other things          9   6   0

Chests, boxes, trunks & sum other things         7 12   0

Purse & clothing                                          13   9   6

Debts & Silver                                             38   1   0

                                                        Pounds 462 14s  6d

         In silver                                                   1  10

This inventory taken and valued this 28th, 3 mo., 1685 by us,

William Crocker

Job Crocker

Samuel Allyn

Patience Parker appeared and took her oath that this was a true Inventory of the Estate of her late husband, Robert Parker, deceased, so far as she knowes this 1 day of June 1685, before Barnabas Lothrop, Assistant" (Plym. Col. Crt Recs., vol. V, p. 390).

"In reference to the Settlement of the Estate of Robert Parker, late of Barnstable, deceased, Patience the relict of the said Robert and the children, wherein respect is had partly to the Will of the said Robert, though said Will was not perfected by him while he was in a capacity to make it, and partly to an agreement made between the said relict and the children which were of age.

Imprimis: It is ordered that Patience, the said Relict (after all just debts are payed out of ye Estate) shall have one-third part of all thepersonall Estate att her own free dispose forever, and the use of the house and lands which the said Robert lived on at his decease, together with the use of about two acres of salt marsh att ye Island, which is part of said Island and is bounded att ye South East Corner by a redd oake marked and thence ranged northerly by another redd oake marked, to a stake which stands by a little creeke, and bounded by said creeke down to the great creeke, and bounded westly by a dithch and thence to a stake, ranging Eastly by a white oake tree marked, to the said oake corner tree, during her naturall life, together with such other part of the personall Estate as the Court shall see cause to order towards bringing up the small children.

2ndly: It is agreed and ordered that Samuell Parker, oldest son of said Robert shall have the house and belonging to the farme he liveth upon, to him his heirs and assigns forever, excepting the two acres of Salt Marsh att the Island aorementioned, which is to be for the other children after their mother, the said Patience, is deceased, and excepting the use only of three or four acres of Marsh at Scorton, during the terme of seven yeares next after the date hereof, to bee improved by the said relict towards the bringing up of the small children, and then to revert to the said Samuell his heirs and assigns forever, and the said Samuell Parker si also to pay sixteen pounds in currant pay towards the support of his sisters, Mary Jenkins and Jane Parker.   

3ly: It is agreed and ordered that John Jenkins, in right of said Mary, his wife, shall have twelve pounds in currant pay, or ten pounds in money, out of said sixteen pounds to be paid by said Samuell to make up what said Jenkins had already received, the sum of Pounds 20 which is in full for his said wife's part of said Estate.

4ly: It is also ordered & agreed that Jane, ye 2nd daughter of said Robert, shall have Pounds 20 in currant pay, in full of her part of said Estate Pounds 16 thereof to be payed out of ye said Estate by ye said Patience and Pounds 4, the residew of said Pounds to be payed (by) her brother, the said Samuell being the remainder of the Pounds 16 mentioned which he was to pay out of ye said Estate.

5ly:  It is ordered and agree that the remainder of the said Estate both Real and Personall shall be divided as the Court shall order, between the eight children which the said Robert Parker had by said Patience; viz. the five sons, Thomas, Daniell, Joseph, Benjamin and Elisha, and the three daughters, Hannah, Sarah and Alice. Att a Court of Assistance held the 2nd March 1684/5, the Court confirmed the aforesaid agreement of the properties adjust. concerned therein & ... the order of the Governour and Mr. Lothropp impowered by the Court thereunto,  and the Court doth now further order that the five sons the said Robert Parker had by the said Patience shall have each of them Pounds 30 apiece in the lands (and other Estate wherein the lands come short), and the daughters Pounds 20 apieceout of ye moveables and the residue to the widdow for bringing u the same small children. (Plymouth Col. Crt. Orders, vol. VI, p. 183)

 (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, Page 1.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 193.).

     (an unknown value) (Robert Parker of the town and county of Barnstable has escaped to a surprising extent the attention of the many persons who have interested themselves in the genealogy of early Cape Cod families. Since he had twelve children and at least 78 grandchildren the absence of published data on this family has created a gap which it is hoped this following article may help to fill. Doubtless because early authorities must have found the numerous 17th Century New England Parker families confusing, no one of them seems to have done serious research on this Robert Parker family of Barnstable. Frederick Freeman in his "Historz of Cape Cod", vol. II, p. 244, identifies subject Robert Parker as a son of William Parker of Scituate. It is true that a William Parker was for a time in Barnstable in 1639. But this William Parker died in Scituate in 1684 and his will mentions no son Robert (see Plymouth VRs; Mf., 17; Pope's "Pioneers"; Scott Gen. by Winifred Lovering Holman). This present compiler has not yet found evidence of a relationship, and they evidently were not father and son.

The first reference to Robert Parker appears in 1655 in the Barnstable Town Records, vol. I, page 21 (typed copy at Town House, Hyannis). It is shown that he then held two parcels of land there; the first of nine acres, adjoin West Barnstable. A controversy over Scorton's Neck boundaries adjudication in October 1656, at which time litigants, included "Thomas Dexter, Senr. of the one part"... vs ..."William Crocker, Samuell Fuller, Peter Blossom, Thomas Hincklez, Robert Parker, John Chipman & Robert Linnet" (ibid, p.28; Amos Otis' "Barnstable Families"; p. 318). In the following year a survey of town holdings includes a careful description of "The Lands of Robert Parker". He then held (in 1657) six parcels, totalling some 60 acres. His lands adjoined the following persons: Peter Blossom, Mrs. Lothrop, Goodman Bourn, Thomas Shave, Goodman Foxwell, John Casely, John Howland, Moses Rowley, Samuell Fuller Senr., William Troop & William Crocker.

Robert Parker was among those propounded to take up their freedom, 7 June 1659 (Plym. Col. Crt Recs., vol. 3, p.163).

The wording of the following conveyance, dated 28 Oct. 1662, is of interest: ..."I, Thomas Bouerman of Banrstable in the County of Barnstable in New England in America have for the sum of seventy eight pounds"... paid "to me by Robert Parker of Barnstable afore said,"...conveyed..."a parcell of Upland"...amounting to 25 acres in extent,..."partly bounded by John Jenkins, ... with a dwelling house, outhouses, gardens, fences and all other appurtenances ... held not by copyhold, nor yet by Knight's Service but in free Soceage and after ye manner of East Greenwich in ye County of Kent in England  ... to him the said Robert ... his ... heirs, ...forever"... Witnesses: Thomas Shave, William Casely, John Casely. "Hannah, ye wife of ye said Thomas Bouerman" resigned title and interest, in deposition same date. This deed was entered 26 Dec. 1664 (Be.Tn. Recs., vol. I, page 62).

Thomas Hinckley acted as agent for Robert Parker and Abraham Blush, in a controversy which they had with Richard Collicut of Boston, 7 Nov. 1666 (Plymouth Deeds, vol. 3, p. 75).

He served on a Coroner's Jury called 22 Oct. 1668 to investigate the death of Isaac Robinson, Jr. (Plym. Col. Crt. Recs., vol. 5, p. 7), and 1 June 1669, "whereas Robert Parker was orderly chosen by the town of Barnstable to serve in the office of constable, and did not appear to take the oath, the Court have ordered that he shall appear before Mr. Hinckley or Mr. Bacon to take the oath, whichif he refuse or neglect to doe, that the town choose in his roome and return his name to the Treasurer that soe his fine may be required" (ibid., p. 20).

At this point in the chronology there appears a promising clue for further research. The Will of Thomas Shave, of Barnstable, dated 25 June 1672 (Plymouth Probates, vol. 2, p. 171), reads in part as follows: ... "Item: I give and bequeath unto my well-beloved kinsman Robert Parker forty shillings in money that will be due to me next Micaelmas after the date hereof, and seaven pounds in money next Micaelmas-come-three years, which will be due from him at the time as appeers by bill"..."And by these  presents I make my well-beloved friend John Chipman my whole and sole Executor ... that after my debts and charges be payed to dispose of the remainder to my kinsman Robert Parker and Elisha's children as hee sees cause whereunto" ... (An abstract of this Will appears also in Mf., 19, p. 162). It raises two points for further research: a) It suggests that Robert Parker and Elisha Parker may have been brothers. This Elisha Parker was also early in Barnstable, where he married Elizabeth Hinckley 15 July 1657, a sister of Gov. Thomas Hinckley, by whom he had in Barnstable three children: Thomas, born in 1658, Elisha, born in 1660 and Sarah, born in 1662. This family disappears early from the town, and it is believed that they removed first to Martha's Vineyard and later to New Jersey. The other point b) is that although the testator's name appears to have been spelled Shave as given above in reference to Barnstable town records, it has been indexed as Shawe, which may or may not have been a variation of spelling. Furthermore, Barnstable records indicate a connection between that town and the Parker and Shove families of Taunton, Mass. For example, Hannah, the second wife of the Rev. George Shove of Taunton, is listed in the West Parish Church Records of Barnstable as among those members of the church then (1670) dwelling "at remote places". It seems to this compiler that there are probable connections between the Parker families of Barnstable and of Taunton, the Lumbert family and the Shawe-Shave-Shove families of these places. Research in England may some day determine. The fact that Robert Parker and Elisha Parker of Barnstable both named sons Thomas, also suggest a relationship somewhere between the celebrated Rev. Robert Parker of England, his son, Rev. Thomas Parker of New England, and the Barnstable settlers.

The Will of "Rev. Thomas Walley, pastour of the Church of Barnstable", dated 1678, mentions "four acres of marsh att Sandy Necke, which I bought of Robert Parker"...

In 1679 Robert Parker bought a tract of land at Sepican (Rochester) from Samuel Allyn of Barnstable, and from the same man in 1681 be pught land at Mattapoisett (Plym. Co. Deeds, vol. 5, p. 85, vol. 12, p. 207). At a court held at Plymouth 7 June 1681 ... "an Indian named Joseph Peter, having been some time in durance, was presented before the Court for stealing thirteen of fourteen pounds in money and a pte of a rundlett of liquor from Robert Parker of Barnstable, on the Lord's day, being also convicted of like acts, rendering him a common thiefe and incorrigible, is sentenced by the Court to be sold out of the country and, the charges of his imprisonment defrayed, the residew of prise to be delivered to the said Robert Parker" (Plym. Crt. Recs., vol. VI, p. 108).

A dozen years after his wife had been admitted to the Church, it is recorded 20 Jan. 1683/4 that, lll "Robert Parker [was] ... admitted", and that 13 April 1684 ... "Elisha and Alice" ... the two youngest ... "of Robert and Patience Parker's" children were baptised (West Parish, Barnstable, Church Records)

).

     Children of Robert9 Parker (751)XE "Parker:Robert  (751) (-13 Apr 1684)" and Sarah James (963)XE "James:Sarah  (963) (-30 Jun 1664)" (see #263) all born at Barnstable, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Mary8 (964)XE "Parker:Mary  (964) (1 Apr 1658-circa 1704)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 195.) was born on 1 Apr 1658 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 40.).  She married John Jenkins (4455)XE "Jenkins:John  (4455)" before 2 Mar 1686 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  She died circa 1704 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.


 
ii.
Samuel (965)XE "Parker:Samuel  (965) (30 Jun 1660-1717)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 195.) was born on 30 Jun 1660 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 40.).  He married Hannah Bumpas (4459)XE "Bumpas:Hannah  (4459)" on 12 Dec 1695 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He died in 1717 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 197.).


 
iii.
Alice (966)XE "Parker:Alice  (966) (20 Jan 1662-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 195.) was born on 20 Jan 1662 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 40.).  She died. d. in infancy (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 105.).
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iv.
Jane (953).XE "Parker:Jane  (953) (31 Mar 1664-circa 1720)"
263.  Sarah9 James (963)XE "James:Sarah  (963) (-30 Jun 1664)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 190-195.) married Robert Parker (751)XE "Parker:Robert  (751) (-13 Apr 1684)" on 28 Jan 1656 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. The marriage to his first wife, Sarah James, appears upon the Barnstable Town Records (also Mf., 11, p. 99, 18, p. 202), along with that of his second marriage in August 1667, and the births of his children by both wives (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 559.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 40.).  She died on 30 Jun 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 112, page 191.).

264.  Joseph9 Dunham (971)XE "Dunham:Joseph  (971) (18 Nov 1637-1703)" (John, #528) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 81.) was born on 18 Nov 1637 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24 (says born about 1636).) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 87.).  He married Mercy Morton (972)XE "Morton:Mercy  (972) (-19 Feb 1667)" on 18 Nov 1657 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).  He married Hester Wormell (989)XE "Wormell:Hester  (989)" on 20 Aug 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 36].).  He died in 1703 at Plympton, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (Joseph Dunham, the son of Deacon John Dunham of Scrooby, England, Leyden, Holland, and Plymouth, Mass., was born in Plymouth 1635-36 and died in Plympton, Mass., in 1703. On November 18, 1657, he married Mercy Morton, the daughter of the Secretary of Plymouth Colony, Nathaniel Morton and Lydia Cooper; and the granddaughter of George Morton and Julia Carpenter, the wife of Governor Bradford of Plymouth Colony. Mercy Morton Dunham left this world February 19, 1667. The Plymouth Colony Records of 1657 list him as having taken the Oath of Fidelity to the Crown, as being admitted a freeman June 1, 1658, being on a number of lists of freemen, serving on a number of regular and coroner juries; the bond of Richard Thayer and Increase Robinson, signed, sealed, and delivered in the presence of Joseph Dunham; and sharing his ability in the Inventory of the Estate of Benajah Pratt. A Town Meeting in October 1668 ordered the true appraisal of all property, land,stock, tools, and professional ability:

      Joseph Bartlett, for his faculty, being a Cooper, L30

      Joseph Dunham, for his faculty, being a Carpenter, L30

      Edward Gray     boat  L25

Joseph Dunham was one of the original proprietors of Rochester, Mass. He was one of the charter members of the Plympton, Mass., Church, a suburb of Plymouth; the latter part of October 1698. He is listed at Town Meetings: 1662, 1668, 1672, 1676, 1684, 1692 and 1702

).

     Children of Joseph9 Dunham (971)XE "Dunham:Joseph  (971) (18 Nov 1637-1703)" and Mercy Morton (972)XE "Morton:Mercy  (972) (-19 Feb 1667)" (see #265) both born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:
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i.
Eleazar8 (969).XE "Dunham:Eleazar  (969) (1659-circa 1731)"

 
ii.
Nathaniel (990)XE "Dunham:Nathaniel  (990) (circa 1662-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born circa 1662.  He married Mary Tilson (2130)XE "Tilson:Mary  (2130) (-1714)" on 21 Jan 1691 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 86, [p. 130].).  He died.

265.  Mercy9 Morton (972)XE "Morton:Mercy  (972) (-19 Feb 1667)" (Nathaniel, #530) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, (Ancestry Publishing - Salt Lake City - 1986), Page 331.) married Joseph Dunham (971)XE "Dunham:Joseph  (971) (18 Nov 1637-1703)" on 18 Nov 1657 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).  She died on 19 Feb 1667 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).

266.  John9 Whistone (1014)XE "Whistone:John  (1014) (circa 1610-1664)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 491.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 507.) was born circa 1610.  He married Susanna Hanford (1015)XE "Hanford:Susanna  (1015)" circa 1640 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 803.).  He died in 1664.

     (an unknown value) (Planter, embarked March 6, 1631; settled at Scituate. Before the Court with others 7 Dec. 1641, concerning goods found after a shipwreck. He died intestate; his heir apparent, Joseph, yielded up a considerable portion of the estate to his mother Susanna and his small brothers and sisters, 4 October 1664. Joseph was assisted by his father-in-law William Brookes and his uncle Edward Jenkins in settling some of the lands in 1666. He died in Boston in 1666; and his brother John, at the age of 18, had his uncle Jenkins appointed guardian 31 October 1666

).  John (1014)XE "Whistone:John  (1014) (circa 1610-1664)" immigrated to New England in 1632 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 507.).

     Children of John9 Whistone (1014)XE "Whistone:John  (1014) (circa 1610-1664)" and Susanna Hanford (1015)XE "Hanford:Susanna  (1015)" (see #267) were as follows:


 
i.
Increase8 (1017)XE "Whistone:Increase  (1017) (before 10 Aug 1656-)" was born before 10 Aug 1656.  She died.
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ii.
Bathsheba (970).XE "Whistone:Bathsheba  (970) (1 Jul 1660-        )"
267.  Susanna9 Hanford (1015)XE "Hanford:Susanna  (1015)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 491.) married John Whistone (1014)XE "Whistone:John  (1014) (circa 1610-1664)" circa 1640 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 803.).  She married William Brooks (1016)XE "Brooks:William  (1016) (1615-)" circa 1664 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 103.).

268.  Giles9 Rickard (2124)XE "Rickard:Giles  (2124) (1623-1710)" (Giles, #536) was born in 1623.  He married Hannah Dunham (983)XE "Dunham:Hannah  (983) (1634-1709)" on 31 Oct 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659, [p. 14].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.).  He died in 1710.

     Children of Giles9 Rickard (2124)XE "Rickard:Giles  (2124) (1623-1710)" and Hannah Dunham (983)XE "Dunham:Hannah  (983) (1634-1709)" (see #269) were as follows:
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i.
John8 (1030).XE "Rickard:John Deacon (1030) (1652-)"

XE "Rickard:John Deacon  (1030) (1652-)"

 
ii.
Samuell (2163)XE "Rickard:Samuell  (2163) (14 Jan 1663-7 Sep 1727)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 540.) was born on 14 Jan 1663 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 28].).  He married Rebekah Snow (2173)XE "Snow:Rebekah  (2173) (circa 1671-4 Apr 1740)" on 31 Dec 1689 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 86, [p. 130].).  He died on 7 Sep 1727 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 64 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 283.).


 
iii.
Josiah (2165)XE "Rickard:Josiah  (2165) (circa 1672-22 Jan 1765)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 1, page 13.) was born circa 1672.  He married Rebecca Eaton (2166)XE "Eaton:Rebecca  (2166) (circa 1675-13 Nov 1770)" on 21 Nov 1699 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 87, [p. 132].).  He died on 22 Jan 1765 at Plympton, Mass., USA.

269.  Hannah9 Dunham (983)XE "Dunham:Hannah  (983) (1634-1709)" (John, #528) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born in 1634 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  She married Giles Rickard (2124)XE "Rickard:Giles  (2124) (1623-1710)" on 31 Oct 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659, [p. 14].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.).  She died in 1709.

272.  John9 Churchill (1038)XE "Churchill:John  (1038) (-1 Jan 1662)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Pages 1 to 5.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 99.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 386.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 264.) married Hannah Pontus (1039)XE "Pontus:Hannah  (1039) (1624-22 Dec 1690)" on 18 Dec 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He died on 1 Jan 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663.).

     (an unknown value) (John Churchill, the emigrant ancestor of the Plymouth branch of the family in America, was born in England and first appeared at Plymouth in Massachusetts, in 1643, and died there Jan. 1, 1662/3. It is a matter of regret that up to the completion of this volume nothing has been found to give even a clue to the birthplace, parentage, previous residence, or occupation of this emigrant ancestor of such a large posterity. He was not in the tax-lists of Plymouth in 1632, but appears in 1643 in the list of the male inhabitants between sixteen and sixty years old, who are "able to bear arms". Diligent research through many ways and for many years has failed to add any authentic information to the bare fact that he was at Plymouth in 1643. In addition we have the following items: He married Hannah Pontus, Dec. 18, 1644; bought a farm of Richard Higgins, Aug. 18, 1645; was propounded freeman, June 4, 1650, and admitted June 5, 1651. He bought, Oct. 20, 1652, of Nathaniel Masterson, then of Manchester, in Massachusetts, ten acres of upland lying at Wellingsley, in the township of Plymouth. In this deed Mr. Churchill is called "Planter". 

BRADFORD GOVNR

Memorandum the 20th of october 1652

That Nathaniell Masterson of manchester in the Jurisdiction of the massachusets in new England in america planter doth acknowlidge that for an in consideracon of two young steers to him already delivered by John Churchill of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plym: in new England Planter; hee hath barganed allianated and sold unto the said John Churchill a pcell of upland ground lying at Wellingsley in the Townshipp of Plymouth aforsaid being ten acres or therabouts bee it more or lesse which hee bought of John Dunham Junier together with all the houses out houses in and upon the said Land with all the ffences and ffencing upon the said Land with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging unto the said Land or any pte or pcell therof onely all the apple trees excepted which the said Nathaniel Masterson hath sold unto Nathaniell Morton and the said John Churchill doth heerby give libertie unto the said Nathaniell Morton either by himselfe or any for him to take up and Remove the said apple trees at any time betwixt the day of the date heerof and the ordinary time of the taking up and Removeing of trees in the spring of the yeare; the said ten acres of Land bee it more or lesse with all the said houses ffences and all other emunities privilidges and

     Plymouth Colony Deeds.     

appurtenances with all the said Nathaniell Masterson his Right title and enterest of and into the said prmises and every pte and pcell therof the apple trees above mencioned excepted, to belonge unto the said John Churchill his heires and assignes for ever unto the onely pper use and behoofe of him the said John Churchill his heires and assignes for ever, provided that the said John Churchill is to winter the said steers the following winter into the bargan and incase that one of them die before they are housed then the said John Churchill is to pay unto Nathaniell Masterson ten shillings if both die then twenty and according to the same Rate if either or both of them die before the first of May next ensuing the date heerof onely Nathaniell Masterson is to run the venter of the said steers; and the said steers are to Run with the cattle of the said John Churchill the next summer and hee is to look unto them as his owne; and incase any controversy shall fall out about the said land or appurtenances; that the the said John Churchill is to cleare the said Nathaniell Masterson of whatsoever trouble shall or may fall in that behalfe; onely whatsoever power the said Nathaniell hath to defend the Right and title that hee hath unto the said Land, hee doth by these prsents convey over unto the said John Churchill; in as full mannor as hee the said Nathaniell held it

Mr. William T. Davis, in "Ancient Landmarks of Plymouth", page 331, has the following pertinent reference, which we quote verbatim:

John Churchill, the progenitor of the Churchill family, who appeared in Plymouth in 1643, settled at Hobshole. His land was on the easterly side of the street, and extended from the southerly line of the field opposite to "Jabez Corner" to a point thirty feet distant from the southerly line of the estate of Branch Blackmer. Here he lived and died, but no tradition exists concerning the precise spot on which his house was situated. There are some indications, however, in the records, that the old house owned by Thomas B. Sears and Amos Leshure, which was built by Elkanah Churchill, the grandson of John, occupies the site of the ancient dwelling. After death of Mr. Churchill, the estate fell into the hands of his son Eleazer.

     In Mr. Churchill's will, given below, we note that he had acquired, by grant or purchase, quite a large land property. At his death, his eldest son, Joseph, was about sixteen years old. The widow, with her six children, lived, evidently, in the "new house", which he mentions as designed for Joseph, after the mother's death, while if Joseph marries before that event he is to have "the old dwelling-house". The widow was left the use of his whole property during her life.

The Original Churchill Homestead.
From "Old Colony Memorial Deed", Vol. VIII., p. 111.
Memorandum the 18th of August 1645. That Richard Higgins doth acknowledge, that for and in consideration of the sum of twelve pounds, so be payd in manner and forme following by John Churchwell, That is to say, five pounds the first of March next, fourty shillings that tyme twelve months, and fourty shillings the first of March 1647, and the remaynin three pounds the first of March in the year of our Lord, 1648, all which payments are to be made in corne or cattell or other current payment of the country as they will then passe from man ;to man at the said time of payment, - Hath freely and absolutely bargained and sold unto the said John Churchwell, all that his dwelling-house, out houses and buildings, with the garden and orchard situate neere Browne's Rock, together with the uplands thereunto adjoining, and all his lands at Woeberry together with his meddow at South Ponds and at Colebrook meddowes towards Agawam, and all the fencing in and about any part of the premises, and all his Right title and Interest of and into the said premises with their appurtenances and every part and parcell thereof, - To have and to hold, etc., etc...

Provided that it shall be lawful for the said Richard Higgins to take away the bords that lyne the inward roome, and the bedstead and boards overhead, and some fruit trees in the said orchard, so that he leave the said John thirty good fruit trees in the said orchard, and the forsaid payments to be made at Plymouth.

October 29, 1649.

Received by me, Richard Higgins full satisfaction from John Churchwell upon all accounts from the beginning to the present.

                        Richard Higgins.
The will of John Churchill.
The Will nuncupative of John Churchill Sen., late deceased, exhibited before the Court held at Plymouth the 3d. of March 1662 attested upon oath as followeth.

Abigail Clarke, aged twenty three years, or thereabouts, being deposed saith that on Tuesday 24th of December last past before the date hereof, her kinsman, viz. John Churchill Sen, being ill at ....... but of perfect memory, did express himself in manner as followeth, that his mind and will was that his son Joseph Churchill and his son Eliezer Churchill shall have end enjoy all his lands both uplands and meadows within the township of Plymouth excepting only fifty acres of land granted to him by the Towne, lying at Mannonnett ponds, which he gave them unto John Churchill his son, moreover that his will was that his son William shall have his purchase land at Punckatusett, viz. his share towne's land there further that he did express himself that his son Joseph shall have his new house at his wife's death and for the use of all the lands aforesaid that they shall bee for the use and improvement of his wife as long as she lives and that he also said that in case Joseph should marry or bee for himself, that then he should have the use of the old dwelling house and some land to make use of. And as for his estate remaining he said that he knew not whether there would be anything left when his children were brought up or not, but if his wife could spare it, then that Joseph should have a yoake of oxen, and Eliezer a yoake of oxen, and Hannah a cow if not two; and in case anything should be left at his wife's decease, that then such of his children as have nothing in particular as above given them should have what is left, in equable proportion, to equallize what is given them forenamed as far as it will goe. The oath of Abigail Clarke taken in the Court held at Plymouth the third day of March 1662.

                                Attested pr me Nathaniel Morton

Att the Court of his Maj., held at Plymouth in New England on the 2nd day of March anno Domini 1668, Joseph Churchill came before the said Court and allowed approved Rattifyed & confirmed the Will of his father John Churchill deceased, above expressed in all and every the particulars; the said Will and Testament to stand and remain and continue unalerable and inviolable forever.

Plymouth Ss., Oct. 20. 1652, a true copy from the Plymouth Colony Record Book of Wills, Vol. 2d Part second Page 82

                        Attest Wm. S. Russell, Keeper of Said Records.
).

     Children of John9 Churchill (1038)XE "Churchill:John  (1038) (-1 Jan 1662)" and Hannah Pontus (1039)XE "Pontus:Hannah  (1039) (1624-22 Dec 1690)" (see #273) were as follows:


 
i.
Joseph8 (1040)XE "Churchill:Joseph  (1040) (1647-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 387.) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.) was born in 1647.  He married Sarah Hickes (1884)XE "Hickes:Sarah  (1884)" on 3 Jun 1672 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 667.).  He died.


 
ii.
Hannah (1041)XE "Churchill:Hannah  (1041) (12 Nov 1649-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 387.) was born on 12 Nov 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657.).  She married John Drew (1885)XE "Drew:John  (1885) (1642-1721)" in 1672 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 231.).  She died.


 
iii.
Eliezer (1042)XE "Churchill:Eliezer  (1042) (20 Apr 1652-)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 387.) was born on 20 Apr 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660.).  He married Mary Bryant (1065)XE "Bryant:Mary  (1065) (29 May 1654-)" before 1676 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He married Mary Doten (1886)XE "Doten:Mary  (1886)" on 8 Feb 1685 (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.).  He died.


 
iv.
Mary (1043)XE "Churchill:Mary  (1043) (1 Aug 1654-1676)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.) was born on 1 Aug 1654 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661.).  She married Thomas Doten (1333)XE "Doten:Thomas  (1333) (circa 1640-4 Dec 1678)" circa 1673 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.).  She died in 1676 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).
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v.
William (1036).XE "Churchill:William  (1036) (1656-5 Oct 1722)"

 
vi.
John (1044)XE "Churchill:John  (1044) (1657-13 Jun 1723)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 387.) was born in 1657 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Rebekah Delano (1887)XE "Delano:Rebekah  (1887)" on 28 Dec 1686 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died on 13 Jun 1723.

273.  Hannah9 Pontus (1039)XE "Pontus:Hannah  (1039) (1624-22 Dec 1690)" (William, #546) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 2.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 454.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 366.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1492.) was born in 1624. Born in Holland or England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1492.).  She married John Churchill (1038)XE "Churchill:John  (1038) (-1 Jan 1662)" on 18 Dec 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She married Giles Rickard (1048)XE "Rickard:Giles  (1048) (1597-1684)" on 25 Jun 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 27].).  She died on 22 Dec 1690 at Hobb's Hole, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. in her sixty-seventh year. (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 135, [p. 201].).

274.  Stephen9 Bryant (1056)XE "Bryant:Stephen  (1056)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 76.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 283.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) married Abigail Shaw (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)" circa 1646 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 112.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Stephen Bryant was in Plymouth colony, according to Kingman, as early as 1632 (History of North Bridgewater, p. 448). He was certainly there in the year 1643; for in the list of males, in that colony, between the ages of 16 and  60, able to bear arms, August, 1643, his name is entered under the town of Plymouth, but it was afterwards, for some cause, stricken from the list. He was probably there the preceding spring, as land was purchased in his name on the 5th of May, 1643. The births of children of his are recorded at Plymouth, from 1650 to 1665. He was propounded as a freeman of Plymouth colony in 1653, and was admitted as such June 6, 1654, and surveyor of highways at Plymouth June 1, 1658. He was a juryman March 5, 1660-1, and was chosen constable at Plymouth June 1, 1663.

[INDENTURE OF BENJAMIN SAVORY]

[p. 207] 1658     Prence Govr:

An agreement made this 2cond Day of march in the yeare of the 1657 betwixt Thomas Savory Inhabitant of the towne of Plymouth on the one pte and Stephen Bryant senir Inhabitant of the same place on the other pte as followeth;

Wheras the aforsaid Thomas Savory upon Consideration Doth by these prsents agree to put over and freely to Deliver unto the said Stephen Bryant his son Benjamine Savory to live with him and to serve him as a true and faithfull servant in all thinges lawfull to bee Done untill hee bee of the age of one and twenty years hee being thirteen yeares old this prsent month; and in consideration of this service the said Stephen is to alow him sufficient meat Drinke apparrell and to provide for him as his servant and to teach him in learning that is to say to read and write and to Instruct him in husbandry what hee himselfe Can Doe; and if incase god soe Despose that the said Stephen Dye before his time bee expired then the said Benjamine is to bee free alsoe the said Stephen Bryant is to give unto his servant Benjamine att the end of this tearme five pound sterling in Marchantable pay and two suites of apparrell; but if incase they live together six yeares the said Stephen is to give him forty shillings of this five pound to bee put into some stocke for the use of his servant; and as is expressed before hee is att the end of this tearme to have the other three pounds unto all which the said pties Doe agree heerunto; and have Inter Changable sett to theire hands the Day and yeare abovewritten

Signed in the prsence     The marke of Stephen Bryant

of us Willam Hoskins

The marke of John Shaw senir

The marke of Benjamin Eaton

[JONATHAN SHAW TO STEPHEN BRYANT]

[p. 13] 1658     Prence Govr:

A Deed appointed to bee Recorded

These are to Witnesse that I Jonathan Shaw now Inhabitant of the towne of Duxburrow Doe sell and make over from my selfe my heires and assignes unto Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes; That house and land meddowes with all the appurtenances therunto belonging Lying att a place Comonly Called plaine Dealing; ffor and upon the Consideration of twenty pounds; and In Consideration of this I Jonathan Shaw Doe yeild up all the right and Interest unto the said Stephen and Doe give him full posession of all housing lands meddowes belonging to this house lying within the township of New Plymouth; And what soever Deeds or writings formerly made to bee null and void and this Deed to stand in force bearing Date this first of November one Thousand six hundred fifty and eight unto which Deed I Jonathan Shaw with the Consent of my wife Phebee Shaw Doe sett unto my hand and Seale the Day and yeare abovewritten;

In the prsence of us     Jonathan Shaw

Willam hoskins     and A (seal)

John Rogers

Gorge Partrich his marke
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[BENJAMIN EATON TO STEPHEN BRYANT]

The 2cond of November 1658

Memorand: That Benjamine Eaton of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth planter Doth acknowlidge that ffor and in Consideration of a Considerable valluation to him already paied by Stephen Bryant of the towne aforsaid in the Jurisdiction aforsaid planter; hee hath freely and absolutely bargained allianated and sould enfeofed and Confeirmed; and by these prsents Doth bargaine sell enfeofe and Confeirme all that his house and land lying between the land of Edward Doty on the south side and Samuell Cutbert on the North Side It being the same land which Edward Gray bought of Samuell Cutbert and by Edward Gray sould to the said Benjamine Eaton and by him now sould unto Stephen Bryant; To have and to hold the said house and Land with all and singulare the ffences and all other appurtenances belonging therunto unto the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; The said prmises viz: all the said house and land Lying neare the high cliff in the Township of Plymouth aforsaid bounded as aforsaid Containing twenty acres bee it more or lesse with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto with all the said Benjamin Eaton his right title and enterest Into the same to belong to the onely proper use and behoof of him the said Stephen Bryant hee his heires and assignes for ever;

Acknowlidged before Willam Bradford Asistant the Day and yeare above written;

[STEPHEN BRYANT TO JACOB COOKE]

[p. 25] 1659     Prence Govr:

The 10th Day of Aprill 1659

Memorandum that Stephen Bryant Doth acknowlidge that in Consideration of a valluable sume to him alreddy payed by Jacob Cooke of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth planter; hee hath freely and absolutly barganed allianated and sould unto the said Jacob Cooke a smale pcell of mersh meadow Conteining three acres bee it more or lesse lying in greenharbour Mersh att a place Called the pyny point
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over against Wood Iland lying next unto a pcell of mersh belonging somtimes * to the heires of mis Jeney To have and to hould the said pcell of meadow being thre acres bee it more or lesse with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto with Warrantice of the sale therof against all psons whatsoever unto the said Jacob Cooke his heires and assignes for ever the said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto to appertaine unto the onely proper use and behoof of him the said Jacob Cooke his heires and Assignes for ever; And Abigaill the wife of the said Stephen Bryant hath given her free Consent unto the abovesaid sale; of the meddow and all the Appurtenances

Acknowlidged before Willam Bradford the Day and yeare above written;

[STEPHEN BRYANT TO EDWARD GRAY]

[p. 30c] 1659     Prence Govr:

The 28th of January 1659

Memorand: That Stephen Bryant of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of Plymouth in New England in America Planter; Doth acknowlidg that for and in Consideration of a valluable sume to him alreddy payed by Edward Gray of the Towne aforsaid in the Jurisdiction aforsaid planter; hee hath freely and absolutely (with the Consent of Abigaill his wife) bargained allianated and sold enfeofed and Confeirmed and by these prsents Doth bargaine sell enfeofe and Confeirm unto the said Edward Gray a Certaine pcell of land att a place Comonly Caled and knowne by the Name of Plaindealing in the township of Plymouth aforsaid; being bounded as followeth viz: all that land lying and being betwixt the land of the said Edward Gray and a brooke Called blacke brooke which runeth Downe to a place Called hopkinses stand; the said land runing in length from the Countrey highway betwixt the said brooke on the south side therof; and the land of the said Edward Gray to the waterside; with all and singulare the appurtenances beloging therunto; To have and to hould the said land and all of it soe bounded as beforesaid with all and singulare the appurtenances and privilidges belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof unto the said Edward Gray hee his heires and assignes for ever; the said premises with all and singulare the privilidges and appurtenances belonging therunto with all the said Stephen Bryant his right title and Interest of and into the same or any pte or pcell therof to belong unto the onely proper use and behoofe of him the said Edward Gray hee his heires and assignes for ever;

Acknowlidged before Willam Bradford Assistant the Day and yeare first above written;

[STEPHEN BRYANT TO JOHN BARNES]

[p. 32] 1660     Prence Govr:

The 27th of March 1660:

Memorandum That Stephen Bryant of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth in New England planter Doth acknowlidge; that for and in Consideration of a valluable sume to him already satisfyed and payed by Mr John Barnes of the Towne aforsaid in the Jurisdiction aforsaid yeoman; hee hath freely and absolutely bargained allianated and sold enfoofed and Confeirmed; and by these prsents Doth bargaine sell enfeofe and Confeirme unto the said John Barnes all that his quarter pte or quarter of a share of the purchase land
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(soe Called) lying and being in the place or places Comonly Called and knowne by the Indian Names of Acushenah or Coaksett and places adjacent; viz; all that his quarter pte or share of land in the place or places aforsaid which was given unto him the said Stephen Bryant by his father in law John Shaw senir: of the towne of Plymouth: To have and to hold the said quarter of a share or one pte of foure of a share of the purchase land (soe Called) lying in and att Coaksett or Acushenah aforsaid and places adjacent belonging to the said Stephen Bryant with all and singulare the meadow ground woods waters and all other appurtenances privilidges and emunities belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof; unto the said John Barnes his heires and assignes for ever; The said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto with all the said Stephen Bryant his Right title and enterest of and into the same or any pte or pcell therof to appertaine to the onely proper use and behoofe of him the said John Barnes hee his heires and Assignes for ever

The abovesaid sale of land as it is Recorded was acknowlidged by the said Stephen Bryant; and Consented unto by Abigaill his wife Before Willam Bradford Assistant;

[STEPHEN BRYANT TO JOHN BARNES]

[p. 33]1660:      Prence Govr:

The 27th of March 1660:

Memorandum That Stephen Bryant of the towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth planter; Doth acknowlidg that for and in Consideration of a valluable sume to him already satisfyed and payed by mr John Barnes of the towne aforsaid in the Jurisdiction aforsaid yeoman; hee hath freely and absolutely bargained allianated and sold enfeofed and Confeirmed and by these prsents Doth bargaine sell enfeofe and Confeirm; unto the said John Barnes all that his pte or share of land which as a Townsman of the towne of Plymouth aforsaid appertaineth unto him att the place Called and knowne by the Indian Name of Punckatesett in the Jurisdiction of Plymouth aforsaid lying over against Road Iland; To have and to hold all that the said Steven Bryant his pte and share of Plymouths land lying att Punckatesett aforsaid with all and singulare

the meadows woods waters and all other privilidges and appurtenances belonging thereunto; or to any pte or pcell therof; unto the said John Barnes his heires and assignes forever; The said prmises with all the said Stephen Bryant his Right title
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and enterest of and into the same; or any pte or pcell therof; To belonge To the onely proper use and behoofe of the said John Barnes; hee his heires and assignes forever The abovesaid sale of land as it is Recorded was acknowlidged by the said Stephen Bryant and Consented unto by Abigaill his wife according to order; before Willam Bradford

Assistant).

     Children of Stephen9 Bryant (1056)XE "Bryant:Stephen  (1056)" and Abigail Shaw (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)" (see #275) were as follows:


 
i.
Abigail8 (1063)XE "Bryant:Abigail  (1063) (before 1649-1715)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born before 1649.  She married John Bryant (4449)XE "Bryant:John  (4449)" on 23 Nov 1665 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.).  She died in 1715.


 
ii.
John (1064)XE "Bryant:John  (1064) (7 Apr 1650-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 283.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born on 7 Apr 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658.).  He married Sarah Bonham (2108)XE "Bonham:Sarah  (2108) (1653-1742)" before 1678 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 111.).  He died.


 
iii.
Mary (1065)XE "Bryant:Mary  (1065) (29 May 1654-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born on 29 May 1654 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).  She married Eliezer Churchill (1042)XE "Churchill:Eliezer  (1042) (20 Apr 1652-)" before 1676 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She died.


 
iv.
Stephen (1066)XE "Bryant:Stephen  (1066) (2 Feb 1658-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born on 2 Feb 1658 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Mehitabel (--?--) (4450)XE "(--?--):Mehitabel  (4450)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.).  He died.


 
v.
Sarah (1067)XE "Bryant:Sarah  (1067) (28 Nov 1659-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born on 28 Nov 1659 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.


 137.
vi.
Lydia (1037).XE "Bryant:Lydia  (1037) (23 Oct 1662-6 Feb 1736)"

 
vii.
Elizabeth (1068)XE "Bryant:Elizabeth  (1068) (17 Oct 1665-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 24, page 315.) was born on 17 Oct 1665 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665.).  She died.

275.  Abigail9 Shaw (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)" (John, #550) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 64.) was born in 1626 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 273.).  She married Stephen Bryant (1056)XE "Bryant:Stephen  (1056)" circa 1646 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 112.).  She died on 24 Oct 1694 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 273.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 16, No. 1.).

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.

276.  Jonathan9 Shaw (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" (John, #550) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 65.) was born in 1629 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.).  He married Phebe Watson (4418)XE "Watson:Phebe  (4418) (1638-        )" on 22 Jan 1656 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).  He married Persis Dunham (981)XE "Dunham:Persis  (981) (1629-)" in Aug 1683 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.).  He died in Jul 1701 at district of Lakenham, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.).

     (an unknown value) (Jonathan Shaw married, second, at Plymouth, in August 1683, PERSIS (DUNHAM) PRATT, widow of Benajah Pratt. 

In their prenuptial agreement, witnessed by Joseph Dunham and Eleazer Dunham, Jonathan agreed to bring up 'her two youngest children namely Joseph and Daniel Pratt and do for them in all respects 'as if they were his owne Naturall Children.' Jonathan Shaw Senr' signed and 'Percis Prat' made her 'P.' mark. Jonathan further agreed that if he were to die first Persis would have the right to occupy his house and its twenty-acre lot until her death. Persis died, probably in Plymouth County, after 1 October 1702, when she and her stepson, Jonathan Shaw, Jr. were to render an account of their administration of Jonathan Shaws estate. 

Jonathan Shaw first appears in the Plymouth Colony records on 29 November 1652, when he witnessed the deed between Mr. William Bradford and others on behalf of the 'Purchasers or ouldcomers' and the Indian Wosamequen and his son Wamsutta for tracts of land lying three miles eastward from the Cushenugg River to Acoaksett Harbor (now Westport, Massachusetts, and near Little Compton, Rhode Island). For this land Wosamequen and his son received 30 yards of cloth, eight moose skins, fifteen axes, fifteen hoes, fifteen pairs of breeches, eight blankets, two kettles, one cloak, £2 in wampum, eight pairs of stockings, eight pairs of shoes, and one iron pot. On 3 November 1653 Jonathan Shaw co-signed with his father John Shaw, Sr., and his father's wife, Alice, the indenture of Benjamin Savory, agreeing that if they were to die that he would take over the indenture and teach Benjamin 'his learning reading and writing. . . and whatsoever trad[e] the said Jonathan Shaw can Doe'; he was excused from this indenture by order of the magistrates 4 March 1657[/8]. 

On 3 june 1657 Jonathan Shaw, almost four years after his brother James, was admitted as a freeman of the Colony. The previous year, on 31 December 1656, he had received from his father by deed of gift all of the latter's property at Plain Dealing, and in turn had agreed to provide for his father the liberty to plant a small plot of upland for 'Tobacco or the like' and 'a Comfortable habitation' with him during his life. On 1 November 1658 Jonathan Shaw, 'now Inhabitant of the towne of Duxburrow,' sold this property to Stephen Bryant, whom other records describe as his brother-in-law; Jonathan Shaw´s wife Phebe consented to the sale. lt is likely that Jonathan Shaw had moved to Duxbury some time during 1658, for that year he was recorded as a freeman in both Plymouth and Duxbury. 

Jonathan Shaw may also have lived in Eastham or owned property there since three of his children, Hannah, George, and Lydia, married residents of that town. His name does not appear on 29 May 1670 in the 'exact list' of freemen of Plymouth Colony and his whereabouts at that time are unknown. 

Since he was a literate freeman, Jonathan Shaw appears frequently as a witness on various legal documents: on 18 December 1655 he witnessed a deed of sale of land from Edward Gray to Benjamin Eaton; on 4 July 1674 he and William Hoskins, Sr. took the inventory of the estate of Joseph Ramsden of Lakenham; on 31 October 1665 he and James Cole, Jr. took the inventory

of the estate of Nicholas Miller; on 'the last of October 1673' he and William Hoskins took the inventory of the estate of "John Tilson lately Deceased'; on 26 june 1674 he was a witness to the conveyance of land from John Cooke to his daughter Sarah and her husband Arthur Hathaway; on 17 January 1683[4] he and William Hoskins witnessed the will of Ephraim Tinkham of Plymouth, and on 5 june 1685, when the will was proved, Jonathan Shaw and William Hoskins made oath that Sergeant Ephrairn Tinkham was of disposing mind and memory. On 28 February 1689/90 Jonathan Shaw, with Ephrairn Morton, Thomas Leonard, and Thomas Faunce, took the inventory of Elkanah Watson of Plymouth. On 1 April 1691 Jonathan Shaw signed and witnessed, together with his wife Persis, a codicil to the will of Ruling Elder Thomas Cushinan; and on 23 April 1696 he witnessed the will of Lieutenant John Tomson, Sr. of Middleborough. 

Jonathan Shaw is said to have been the first permanent resident of Carver, with a house in Lakenham as early as 1660. Certainly he was in Lakenham by 1661, for 'Att a Towne meeting held att the meeting house att Plymouth the 24th day of May 1662' it was recorded that "Jonathan Shaw desires some Comon land about his house at Lakenham." Lakenham was at that time an outlying part of Plymouth; later it became a part of Plympton when that town was set off in March 1706/7, and on 19 February 1790, with the incorporation of Carver, a part of that town known as North Carver, a name that it has retained to this day. By 2 April 1638 the area was already called Lakenham, and land grants were conveyed as early as 1641. Jonathan Shaw's house has been described as just south and adjacent to Lakenham Green and, according to Griffith, was on the site of the still surviving (1996) eighteenth-century Sturtevant House, the third said to occupy the site overlooking the Green. On 27 October 1662 Jonathan Shaw was listed among those desiring 'meddow land' in the lower South Meadow, and on the same date a 'small p[ar]cell of land is graunted to Jonathan Shaw neare his house att Lakenham to bee layed out to him soe as to bee not prejudiciall to the Naighborhood there' - evidently, by the fall of 1662 there were several families living at Lakenham. 

Jonathan Shaw undoubtedly chose the location at Lakenham because it was near a spring, with upland and rich meadows for pasture. lt was on the Nemasket Indian trail that led directly to Patuxet (the Native American name for Plymouth). By 30 December 1663 Shaw was requesting a grant of additional land, twenty acres of upland between property he had 'bought of Robert Ransom and the pond' (now on the Wenham Road in Carver). In February 1663[/4] forty more acres were granted to him 'att Lakenham next adjoyning unto that land hee hath there alreddy.' On 8 January 1665[6] forty acres were laid out to Jonathan Shaw at Lakenham as well as 'two acres on the brooke where his father [-in-law George] Watson hath meddow att the south meddow.' Two years later on 31 January 1667[8] Jonathan Shaw was granted ten additional acres at Lakenham 'next unto his land.' In later years, as Middleboro became inhabited by settlers, Lakenham occupied a position nearly equidistant from Middleboro and Plymouth. A granite marker on North Carver Green (Lakenham Green), visible in 1996, records the distances: Middleboro 7 miles; Plymouth 8 miles. During the first months of King Philip's War, Middleboro was destroyed, and the spring at Lakenham came to be known as King Philip's Spring, from the Indians who stopped to wash their hands there on returning from Plymouth and their bloody attack on the village of Chiltonville. All that is known about Jonathan Shaw at this time is that on 4 May 1676 he was among the seventy men in Plymouth taxed 'to pay the souldiers' in King Philip's War. Over the years Jonathan Shaw served in a number of minor public offices. He was surveyor of highways in Duxbury in 1659; on 16 May 1673 he was chosen surveyor of highways for Plymouth and again on 17 May 1686. He served on juries on 2 March 1674[5], 7 March 1675[6], 7 july 1682, 6 March 1682[3], 17 june 1683, 28 May 1689, 25 May 1691, 1 March 1696[7], and 4 March 1698[/9]. On 27 July 1685 he was chosen at a town meeting to be one of three raters (tax assessors) for Plymouth. On 22 june 1689 Jonathan Shaw was one of a committee of five chosen as agent for the town 'to make saile of Clarks Island Saquosh and the Gurnet' in order to defray the charges for defending the town's right to keep Clarks Island from seizure by the King's appointee, Governor Andros. On 8 January 1689/90 Jonathan Shaw and three other men, acting on behalf of the town of Plymouth, sold Clarks Island in Plymouth Bay to Samuel Lucas, George Morton, and Elkanah Watson. On 4 March 1698[/9] 'Jonathan Shaw Sen.' at a town meeting was chosen fence viewer. 

Jonathan Shaw was an active member of the Plymouth Church, though probably not in his early years. When a controversy arose in August 1687 regarding the minister's annual salary, six men were chosen by the town of Plymouth to seek the 'free subscription of Every one'; to carry this out for the districts of 'Lakenham Wentuxet and munponset' the town selected Jonathan Shaw and Robert Ransom, Sr. The following year Jonathan Shaw was again asked to perform the same duty. At some time before 11 September 1692 he was admitted as a member of the [First] Church of Plymouth, for on that date he was listed first among ten 'Brethren' who were 'nominated as su[i]table to read the Psalmes. ' Earlier in the same year, on 19 june 1692, Susanna Ransom, 'a sister' (i.e., a female member of the church), 'having falling [sic] into scandall by excessive drinking, & not appearing this day before the church to answer for it, that therefore the church would by Bro:Shaw in their name require her to attend the next Sabbath.' 

Because of their isolation in the western part of the town of Plymouth, the church members at Lakenham and Plympton sought to establish a church of their own. On 27 October 1698 Jonathan and Persis Shaw and Stephen and Abigail Bryant were among those dismissed by the [First] Church of Plymouth to begin a new society at Plympton. Isaac Cushman was ordained as the first teacher. On 27 November [Sunday] 1698 Jonathan Shaw and John Waterman were ordained deacons of the Plympton Church. 

Deacon Jonathan Shaw died shortly before 30 July 1701, when the inventory of his estate was taken. He almost certainly died at his Lakenham home but was probably not buried in the Old Cemetery beside the Plympton Church where he had served as deacon, as that meeting did not set aside land for a burial ground until 16 March 1701/2, almost a year after his death.

Deacon Jonathan Shaw, like his father, died intestate. On 30 july 1701 the inventory of the estate of "Jonathan Shaw Esqr" was taken by Isaac Cushman, John Waterman, and Samuel Sttutevant. lt totaled a modest £37 4s 2d, with much of the value of the estate in linen, clothing, and bedding, suggesting that Persis and Jonathan, in addition to faming, may have undertaken weaving, a not unlikely occupation since Persis' father had been a weaver. According to Jonathan Shaws prenuptial agreement, the house and 20-acre house lot were left to Persis for her lifetime. Following the example of his father John Shaw, Jonathan had disposed of his land to his children prior to his death. On 25 September 1701 administration of the estate was granted jointly to the widow Persis Shaw and Jonathan Shaw, Jr. and attested by Samuel Sprague, Registrar for the Court. On 4 March 1701/2 Joseph Dunham and Eleazer Dunham appeared before William Bradford, Judge, and made oath that the prenuptial agreeinent had been signed and declared in their presence. 

On 20 june 1705 the 'Sons and Daughters of [Deacon] Jonathan Shaw of Plym[ou]th ... and Joanna & Phebe Morton Grand Daughters of the sd Jonathan Shaw Deceased . . .'; George Shaw, Hannah Paine, Lydia Snow, of Eastham in the County of Barnstable, and Benoni Shaw; Mary Ring, and "Joanna & Phebe Morton the Daughters of Phebe Morton Deceased, " of the Town of Plymouth, sold for £18 to 'our Brother, Jonathan Shaw of Lakenham,' their rights to the movable estate and land owned by their father: 'all that the houses and Land & meadow in Lakenham abovesd w[hi]ch was our father['s] Jonathan Shaw deceased, Sd land is bounded att ye foott with the meadoe our father bought of James Cole, bounded att the head with the Land our father gave to Benony Shaw abovesd: and Lying between a pond on ye South East side and ye South meadow path on ye north west side and also half the meadoe, between Jno Watsons Meadow & Springy brook, and a pine tree marked on ye North west End.' The deed was acknowledged in Plymouth County on 20 june 1705 by Benoni Shaw, Eleazer Ring and Mary his wife, and Joanna and Phoebe Morton; and in Barnstable County on 30 june 1705 by George Shaw, Capt. Thomas Paine and Hannah his wife, and Nicholas Snow and Lydia his wife. 

On the same date, 20 June 1705, Deacon Jonathan Shaw's children granted a quitclaim deed to their brother Benoni for four acres of meadow and ten acres of upland that their father Jonathan Shaw had given to Benoni but never legally conveyed. The quitclaim was signed by Jonathan Shaw, Eleazer Ring, Mary Ring, Joanna Morton (by mark), Phebe Morton (by mark), Nicholas Snow, George Shaw, Constant Shaw (by mark), and Lydia Snow (by mark). On 20 june 1705 the deed was acknowledged in Plymouth County by Jonathan Shaw, Eleazer Ring and Mary his wife, Joanna Morton, and Phebe Morton; on 8 Decernber 1714 'George Shaw & Constant his wife & Lydia Snow Wife of Nicholas Snow all of Eastham' acknowledged the deed in Barnstable County 

).  Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.

     Children of Jonathan9 Shaw (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" and Phebe Watson (4418)XE "Watson:Phebe  (4418) (1638-        )" (see #277) were as follows:


 
i.
Phebe8 (4488)XE "Shaw:Phebe  (4488) (Feb 1658-11 Jun 1686)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 282.) was born in Feb 1658 at perhaps Duxbury, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married John Morton (4489)XE "Morton:John  (4489) (21 Dec 1650-        )" in 1682 at village of Lakenham, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died on 11 Jun 1686 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 28. being 28 years of age & four moneth[s].


 
ii.
Hannah (4490)XE "Shaw:Hannah  (4490) (circa 1661-24 Jul 1713)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 417.) was born circa 1661 at probably village of Lakenham, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Thomas Paine (4491)XE "Paine:Thomas  (4491) (circa 1656-        )" on 5 Aug 1678 at Eastham, Mass., USA.  She died on 24 Jul 1713 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. in her 52nd year.


 
iii.
Jonathan (4492)XE "Shaw:Jonathan Lieutenant (4492) (circa 1663-18 Jan 1730)"

XE "Shaw:Jonathan Lieutenant  (4492) (circa 1663-18 Jan 1730)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, pate 419.) was born circa 1663 at probably in the village of Laken, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Mehitabel Pratt (4493)XE "Pratt:Mehitabel  (4493) (circa 1667-19 Oct 1712)" on 29 Dec 1687 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Mary Richards (4496)XE "Richards:Mary  (4496)" on 16 Nov 1715 at Plympton, Mass., USA.  He died on 18 Jan 1730 at Plympton, Mass., USA. in his 67th year.


 
iv.
Mary (4497)XE "Shaw:Mary  (4497) (circa 1665-28 Nov 1730)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 424.) was born circa 1665 at probably at Lakenham, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Eleazar Ring (4498)XE "Ring:Eleazar  (4498)" on 11 Jan 1687 at probably in Lakenham.  She died on 28 Nov 1730. in her 65th year.


 
v.
George (4500)XE "Shaw:George  (4500) (1667-2 May 1720)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 427.) was born in 1667 at probably at Lakenham.  He married Constant Doane (4501)XE "Doane:Constant  (4501)" on 8 Jan 1690 at Eastham, Mass., USA.  He died on 2 May 1720 at Cape Cod, Eastham, Mass., USA.


 
vi.
Lydia (4499)XE "Shaw:Lydia  (4499) (1670-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 430.) was born in 1670 at probably at Lakeham.  She married Nicholas Snow Lieutenant (4502)XE "Snow:Nicholas Lieutenant (4502)"

XE "Snow:Nicholas Lieutenant  (4502)" on 4 Apr 1689.


 138.
vii.
Benoni (4472).XE "Shaw:Benoni  (4472) (1672-5 Mar 1751)"

 
viii.
Benjamin (4563)XE "Shaw:Benjamin  (4563) (1672-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 282.) was born in 1672 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     (an unknown value) (d. probably young).

277.  Phebe9 Watson (4418)XE "Watson:Phebe  (4418) (1638-        )" (George, #554) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born in 1638 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Jonathan Shaw (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" on 22 Jan 1656 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).

278.  John9 Waterman Deacon (1170)XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)" (Robert, #300) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 431.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 481.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 94, page 281.) was born on 19 Apr 1642 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.  He married Ann Sturtevant (1171)XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)" on 7 Dec 1665 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665 [p. 35].).  He died on 14 Sep 1718 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 76. Deceast Sept 14th 1718 on Sabth at 12 a Clock at night: (in the 77th year of his age. Buried near Northwest corner of the Burying place in Plympton.)

 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database SMIN7DA.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 3, page 130.).

     (an unknown value) (Ship carpenter

JOHN WATERMAN TO JOHN CARVER]

[p. 65] On 19 December, 1687, "John Waterman of Marshfeld", for £30, sold to "John Carver of Marshfeild .... all that my Dwelling house barn upland & Marsh or meadow which I now have within the Township of Marshfeild .... more perticulerly My house barn & feild .... bounded as followeth. viz Northward with the land of John Sawyer Eastward by a brook of Water Southward with a marked birch tree standing by said brooke thence Runing Eastward on a Straight line to a great oake Stump with a head of Stones about it being the Southermost Corner of said feild near the Town Road or high way & bounded eastward by the said High Way & also that my two acres of marsh or salt meadow .... in Said township & bounded Southward by a ditch that adjoynes to the marsh of John Barker & westward by the upland of Said barker & extends northward about twelve Rods or Perches according as the same is taked forth & bounded & to extend eastward to a ditch there Cast up or made.  And also that my Small percell of Marsh which I had of Thomas Tilden lying neare to a Certaine Island formerly Called Hatches Island & is bounded easterly by the NOrth River & northerly by the Middle of a ditch & thence on [p. 66] On a straight line to a stake that is a Corner bounds standing near the upland & westerly as it is staked forth being nine Rods in width & Southerly by Certain stakes till it Come to said River & is about twenty Rods in length"

The deed was signed by John Waterman, and witnessed by Thomas Delano and Samuel Sprague.

On 10 February, 1688, John Waterman acknowledged the deed, "And Ann his Wife Acknoleged her Consent to the sale", before Nathaniel Thomas, Justice of the Peace, and Nathaniel Thomas, Clerk of the Peace.  It was recorded 14 February, 1688

).

     Children of John9 Waterman Deacon (1170)XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)" and Ann Sturtevant (1171)XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)" (see #151) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel8 (1186)XE "Waterman:Samuel  (1186) (16 Oct 1666-)" was born on 16 Oct 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  He died.


 75.
ii.
Elizabeth (1132).XE "Waterman:Elizabeth  (1132) (15 Jan 1669-circa 1705)"

 
iii.
Ann (1187)XE "Waterman:Ann  (1187) (18 Oct 1671-)" was born on 18 Oct 1671 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 4, page 250.).  She died.


 139.
iv.
Lydia (1188).XE "Waterman:Lydia  (1188) (9 May 1678-25 Jul 1757)"

 
v.
Robert (1189)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1189) (9 Feb 1681-)" was born on 9 Feb 1681 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 110, page 147.).  He married Mary Cushman (4524)XE "Cushman:Mary  (4524)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 110, page 147.).  He died.


 
vi.
John (1190)XE "Waterman:John  (1190) (23 Sep 1685-)" was born on 23 Sep 1685 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 3, No. 3, page 13.).  He died.

279.  Ann9 Sturtevant (1171)XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)" (Samuel, #302) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 229.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 440.) was born on 4 Jun 1648 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656 [p. 2].).  She married John Waterman Deacon (1170)XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)" on 7 Dec 1665 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665 [p. 35].).  She died on 9 Feb 1720 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 71. Deceast febr ye 9th 1719 : 20 (in the 71st year of her age.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 2, No. 3, page 130.).

290.  Francis9 Cooke (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)" (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, (The Grafton Press, New York, 1929), Page 47.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 114.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 446.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 2.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 270.) was born after Aug 1583 at England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol I, pages 316 & 404.).  He married Hester Mahieu (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)" on 30 Jun 1603 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 177.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 143, page 195.).  He died on 7 Apr 1663 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. above 80 years (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 316.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 27].).

     (an unknown value) (Francis, came in the Mayflower; signed the Compact. He brought with him his son John. His wife Hester, a Walloon, a member of the church came in the Anne in 1623 with other of his children. Settled at Plymouth. Freeman (citizen) 1633. He was called by Bradford, "a very old man" in 1650, who saw his "children's children have children" and had married in Holland a native of the Netherlands, of the Wallon church, was one of the first purchasers of Dartmouth 1652, and of Middleborough 1662. Possible clues to the identity of Francis Cooke may exist in the following: a Francis, son of Thomas Cooke, was baptized 6 April, 1572, at Biddenden, Kent. Another Francis Cooke in a chancery suit recites his misfortunes in business through dishonest servants and losses in trade (Court of Requests, James I, Bdl. vi, Pt. 3). The Leyden records give his betrothal 9 June, 1603, and this presumes his birth 1582 or before. After reading the entry in the Betrothal Book where he is recorded as "Franchois Couck" and his bride Hester Mahieu, and noting that the witnesses to his marriage were two Walloons and his wife probably of that race, it is fair to express a doubt as to his own nationality. He may have been born in England of alien parents and returned to Holland six years before the arrival of the Robinson Pilgrims. There was a considerable alien French and Walloon colony in Canterbury which occupied the crypt of the Cathedral for church services. As he was living in Leyden seven or eight years before the arrival of Robinson and his followers it is clear he had no prior association with the Pilgrims.

On 8 Aug. 106 Francis Cooke and Hester left Leyden, Holland for Norwich, England. On 1 Jan. 1608 they were admitted to communion to the Walloon Church in Leyden by letter of transfer from the Wallon Church in Norwich. [The move to Norwich must have been short as son John was bp. early in 1607 in Leyden].

The 1627 Division of Cattle lists Francis Cooke, wife Hester, sons John and Jacob, and daughters Jane, Hester and Mary.

Bradford's 1651 account says: "Francis Cooke is still living, a very olde man, and hath seene his children's children have children: after his wife came over (with other of his children) he hath 3 still living by her, all maried and have 5 children so their increase is 8. And his sone John which came over with him, is maried and hath 4 children living."

Francis Cooke is listed in the 1633 list of Freeman. [The first list of Freeman in Plymouth Colony.] He is listed in the Aug. 1643 list of men 16 to 60 able to bear arms. [This would seem to imply his age at death is overstated.]

On 10 June 1646 Francis Cooke deeded land to son Jacob after Jacob married Damaris Hopkins. Francis signed the deed and Hester Cooke signed with a mark.

The will of Francis Cooke of Plymouth dated 7 10th mo. 1659, exhibited 5 June 1663, names wife Hester and son John. His inventory is dated 1 May 1663.

An agreement made 8 June 1666 between John Cooke, Jacob Cooke, Hester Wright the wife of Richard Wright, and Mary Tomson, the wife of John Tompson disposed of the land of Francis Cooke. The agreement mentions Hester Cooke is still living. On the same date John Cooke confirmed to Richard Wright and Thomas Mitchell, in equal shares, sixty acres of upland, near Jones River Meadow formerly given them by Francis Cooke.

On 5 July 1670 a court record mentions that land called "old Cookes Holes," lying at Jones River was given by Francis Cooke to Richard Wright and Thomas Mitchell and since his (Francis Cooke) decease confirmed unto Richard Wright and Thomas Mitchell by John Cooke.

On 1 Aug. 1672 Thomas Mitchell of Duxbury sold to Richard Wright of Plymouth his share in the above grant and states it was given to him by his grandfather Francis Cooke of Plymouth

).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of Francis9 Cooke (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)" and Hester Mahieu (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)" (see #291) were as follows:


 
i.
John8 (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)" was born at Holland.  He was baptized on 1 Jan 1607 at Leyden, Holland (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.).  He married Sarah Warren (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" on 28 Mar 1634 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 178.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 136.).  He died on 23 Nov 1695 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.).

     (an unknown value) (John Cooke represented the town of Plymouth at court for many years and held other offices. 

On 17 Feb. 1637 Mrs. Elizabeth Warren granted 18 acres to John Cooke the younger who had married Sarah her daughter).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).


 
ii.
Child (2551)XE "Cooke:Child  (2551) (circa 1607-before 20 May 1608)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 143, page 197.) was born circa 1607 at Holland.  He/she died before 20 May 1608 at Holland.


 
iii.
Elizabeth (2552)XE "Cooke:Elizabeth  (2552) (before 26 Dec 1611-)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 143, page 197.) was born before 26 Dec 1611 at Holland.  She was baptized on 26 Dec 1611 at Holland (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (n. f. r).


 627.
iv.
Jane (1116).XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)"

 646.
v.
Jacob (1117).XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)"

 
vi.
Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 6.) was born circa 1620 at Holland (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 446.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 3.).  She married Richard Wright (2554)XE "Wright:Richard  (2554) (circa 1608-9 Jun 1691)" on 21 Nov 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:107].) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 45.).  She died before 7 Dec 1675.

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 145.
vii.
Mary (1088).XE "Cooke:Mary  (1088) (1624-21 Mar 1714)"
291.  Hester9 Mahieu (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)" (Jennie, #583) married Francis Cooke (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)" on 30 Jun 1603 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 177.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 143, page 195.).  She died on 8 Jun 1666.

     (an unknown value) (Was a Wallon, of Gaulish origin and speaking a French dialect, of SE Belgium. Came probably with the Anne, William Pierce, Master. She arrived at Plymouth about July 10, and 'brought 60 persons for the Generall.' The entire company settled at Plymouth. She does not appear in the passenger lists publiched by Banks (Planters of the Commonwealth)

).  Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

292.  Christopher9 Wadsworth (2563)XE "Wadsworth:Christopher  (2563) (circa 1 Dec 1609-after 31 Jul 1677)" (Thomas, #584) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 379.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 472.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1888 to 91.) was born circa 1 Dec 1609 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Scotty Rawson, Database: RAWA6GA.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Scotty Rawson; Database: RAWA6GA.).  He married Grace Cole (2564)XE "Cole:Grace  (2564) (-1688)" before 1636 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 769.).  He died after 31 Jul 1677 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1890.).

     (an unknown value) (Resided in Duxbury, taxed in 1632; frm. 1633. Constable for the section between Jones' river and Green's Harbour Jan. 1, 1633-4 and in 1638, rep. 1666 and 7. His widow Grace made will, dated Jan. 1687-8, in old age and infirmities, prob. June 13, 1688.

Estate Assessed 12s. in Plymouth tax list of 25 March 1633.

He led a long, blameless and uneventful life. He held a number of offices, but was never before the court asa defendant in either a civil or criminal case. He carefully amassed land for his sons, never sold any, and apparently was never in debt.

Apparently ancestor of Henry Wadsworth Longfellow.

ORIGIN: Unknown 

MIGRATION: 1632 

FIRST RESIDENCE: Plymouth 

REMOVES: Duxbury 

RETURN TRIPS: Possibly returned to Fngland in 1636 "to fetch Mr. [Ralph] Partridge," who would become minister at Duxbury [Sewall 432] 

FREEMAN: In '1633' Plymouth list of freemen prior to those admitted 1 January 1632/3 [PCR 1:4]. In list of 7 March 1636/7 [PCR 1:52]. In Duxbury section of lists of 1639, 1658 and 29 May 1670 [PCR 5:274, 8:174,198]. 

EDUCATION: Signed his will. His inventory included 'books' valued at £3. 

OFFICES: Constable for the ward between Jones River and Green's Harbor [Duxbury], 1 January 1633/4 [PCR 1:21]; constable for Duxbury, 6 March 1637/8, 5 June 1638 [PCR 1:80, 86]. Plymouth petit jury, 4 October 1636, 2 March 1640/1, 7 December 1641, 7 November 1643, 5 No- vember 1644, 2 October 1650, 4 March 1650/1, 7 June 1651, 4 October 1653, 7 March 1653/4, 3 October 1654, 5 June 1656, 6 October 1657, 3 May 1659, 3 October 1659, 2 October 1662, 7 June 1648, 6 March 1665/6 [PCR 1:44, 2:126, 4:115, 7:19, 25, 28, 36, 38, 52, 53, 54, 67, 70, 72, 79, 85, 93, 94, 105]. Duxbury delegate to committee to revise laws, 4 October 1636 [PCR 1:44]. Duxbury deputy to Plymouth General Court, 2 June 1640, 27 September 1642, 5 June 1666 [PCR 1:154, 2:46, 4:122, 148]. Grand jury, 7 March 1636/7, 4 June 1639, 7 June 1642, 7 June 1652, 3 June 1656, 6 June 1660 [PCR 1:54, 126, 2:41, 3:9, 100, 188]. Deputy to meeting about confederation of United Colonies, 1 August 1654 [PCR 3:63]. Surveyor of lands, 3 June 1656 [PCR 3:102]. Coroner's jury on the body of Thurston Clarke Sr. of Duxbury, 7 May 1662 [PCR 4:12]. Surveyor of highways, Duxbury, 3 June 1662 [PCR 4:15]. 

Selectman, 5 June 1666, 2 June 1667, 3 June 1668, 1 June 1669, 7 June 1670, 6 June 1671 [PCR 4:124, 149, 182, 5:19, 35, 56]. 

In Duxbury section of 1643 Plymouth Colony list of men able to bear arms [PCR 8:190]. 

ESTATE: Assessed 12s. in Plymouth tax list of 25 March 1633 [PCR 1:1O]; omitted from list of 27 March 1634. 

On 1 july 1633 granted mowing land where he "mowed last year" [PCR 1:15]; granted mowing land at Morton's Hole, 14 March 1635/6 [PCR 1:39]; granted mowing land he had the year before, 20 March 1636/7 [PCR 1:55]. 

On 2 October 1637 the 'two lots of land on Ducksborrow side, formerly granted to Christopher Wadsworth, containing forty acres and upwards," were reconfirmed to Wadsworth, with some minor adjustments in the boundaries [PCR 1:66]. 

On 2 july 1638 "requested a parcel of land in the woods at the head of the Great Marsh, near Mr. Collyer's wolf trap" [PCR 1:90]. 

On 4 February 1638/9 granted fifty acres of upland about the head of South River [PCR 1:112-13]. On 20 September 1643 Christopher Wadsworth sold to 'Mr. Raph Partrich' his uplands and meadow in Duxbury [PCR 12:96]. On 23 january 1648[/9] he was a renter of lands of Robert Hicks [PCR 12:155]. On 13 August 1651 Job Cole of Eastham sold Christopher Wadsworth of Duxbury a house and land lying against a place called Morton's Hole [PCR 12:216]. 

On 20 October 1655 John Starr of Duxbury sold to Christopher Wadsworth of Duxbury 'all that my mansion and dwelling house" in Scituate, with eighty acres of upland, along with some marsh or meadow; also another parcel of upland [PCLR 4:253-55]. On 10 May 1664 John Bradford of Marshfield sold to Christopher Wadsworff of Duxbury 'all my houses, orchards, uplands and meadows" in Duxbury [PCLR 3:1:66-67]. 

In his will, dated 31 July 1677 and proved 27 October 1680, Christopher Wadsworff bequeathed to 'my eldest son Joseph' 'one-half of those lands which I bought of Mr. John Bradford,' upland and meadow, in Duxbury, he paying to 'my daughter Mary Andrews two cows with calf not exceeding the age of five years old each of them' (and also confirmed to son John two shares of land in Bridgewater previonsly given to him); to 'Grace my wife the one-half of my dwelling house during her natural life and half the lands thereunto belonging'; to "my son John' all remaining lands; to "Grace my wife' all household goods and some cattle [PCPR 4:1:68-70]. 

The inventory of the estate of Christopher Wadsworth, exhibited 7 June 1681, was untotalled and included no real estate [PCPR 4:1:71]. 

In her will, dated 13 January 1687/8 and proved 13 June 1688, Grace Wadsworth, widow, "by reason of old age and the many infirmities usually attending the same,' bequeathed to 'my son Joseph Wadsworth, a Dutch kettle, and to his wife my red petticoat, beside the pewter dishes & Bible which they have heretofore received'; to 'the children of my son Samuel Wadsworth, deceased, the sum of £5 to be equally divided among them'; to 'my daughter Mary Andrews, widow, a brass kettle'; to "my grandson John Wadsworth' 5s.; to 'my granddaughters Mary and Abigaile Wadsworth to each of them a pair of my finest sheets, moreover to Abigaile I bequeath my bed bolster, red rug and blankets"; 'to my son John Wadsworth' residue after the payment of legacies and debts; 'my son John Wadsworth' executor [PPR 1:17-19; Gen Adv 1:20]. 

BIRTH: About 1609 based on estimated date of marriage. 

DEATH: After 31 july 1677 (date of will) and before 27 October 1680 (date of probate). (Pope and some other sources assign to the immigrant the death date of 18 April 1676, but this was the death of his son Samuel [Sewall 15; NEHGR 7-221-24].) 

MARRIAGE: By about 1634 Grace ___________  she died between 13 January 1687/8 (date of will) and 13 June 1688 (date of probate). (Many sources state that she was Grace Cole, but there is no evidence for this identity.) 

ASSOCIATIONS: Some secondary sources claim that Christopher Wadsworff came to New England in 1632 on the Lyon. This is based on a supposed relationship with WILLLAM WADSWORTH, who did come on that ship in 1632. Christopher Wadsworth is not on the passenger list for the Lyon in 1632, and there is no evidence that he was brother or any other relation of William, and, although he must have been in New England by 1632, he could have come earlier, so there is no basis for this claim. 

COMMENTS: Christopher Wadsworth led a long, blameless and uneventful life. He held a number of offices, but was never before the court as a defendant in either a civil or criminal case. He carefully amassed land for his sons, never sold any, and apparently was never in debt. 

The family of his son Joseph Wadsworth needs careful examination. All secondary sources state that he had first wife Abigail Waite, whom he married about 1655. No contemporary record of a wife named Abigail has been found, and there was no Waite family in Duxbury or vicinity from which Abigail could have come. According to his will Joseph had six children, three sons (Elisha, Joseph and Samuel) and three daughters (unnamed). Elisha married in 1694 and Samuel about 1700, indicating births in the early 1670s, and so no need for a marriage as early as 1655. Since Elisha named a son Wait, and this name was carried down in the family, some later historian of the family may have thought this indicated the surname of Elisha's mother, rather than a popular Puritan virture 

).

     Children of Christopher9 Wadsworth (2563)XE "Wadsworth:Christopher  (2563) (circa 1 Dec 1609-after 31 Jul 1677)" and Grace Cole (2564)XE "Cole:Grace  (2564) (-1688)" (see #293) were as follows:


 
i.
Joseph8 (2565)XE "Wadsworth:Joseph  (2565) (1636-1689)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 472.) was born in 1636 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Abigail Waite (2566)XE "Waite:Abigail  (2566)" circa 1656 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 770.).  He died in 1689.
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ii.
John (2560).XE "Wadsworth:John Dea. (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)"

XE "Wadsworth:John Dea.  (2560) (1638-15 May 1700)"

 
iii.
Samuel (4366)XE "Wadsworth:Samuel  (4366) (1638-18 Apr 1676)" was born in 1638 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1891.).  He married Abigail Lindall (4367)XE "Lindall:Abigail  (4367)" circa 1660 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1891.).  He died on 18 Apr 1676 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1890.).


 
iv.
Mary (4368)XE "Wadsworth:Mary  (4368) (1640-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1891.) was born in 1640 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1891.).  She married an unknown person in 1659 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1891.).  She married Henry Andrews (4565)XE "Andrews:Henry  (4565) (circa 1629-Apr 1676)" circa 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 17.).

293.  Grace9 Cole (2564)XE "Cole:Grace  (2564) (-1688)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 472.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1890.) married Christopher Wadsworth (2563)XE "Wadsworth:Christopher  (2563) (circa 1 Dec 1609-after 31 Jul 1677)" before 1636 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 769.).  She died in 1688.

294.  Henry9 Andrews (2562)XE "Andrews:Henry  (2562) (-1653)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 769.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 16.) was born at England.  He married Mary ?Williams (4564)XE "?Williams:Mary  (4564) (1610-1655)" before 1629 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 17.).  He died in 1653 at Taunton, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (Henry Andrews built the first meeting house in Taunton, receiving from the town in payement a parcel of land, conveyed by deed, dated 11 day 2 mo. 1647, recorded in Plymouth Colony Deeds, ii:1:57, in the Registry of Deedas at Plymouth, and thus described:

A certaine pcell or necke of Land apptaining unto the Inhabitants of Taunton aforsaid called by the said Inhabitants theire calves pasture ... lying and being bounded by the great River from the land of Richard Williams Inhabitant of Taunton heading It the said necke at the upper corner therof; and the land of Gorge hall. Inhabitant of Taunton heading It at the lower corner therof or neare unto It ... is graunted and sold by the Inhabitants of Taunton aforsaid unto him the aforsaid Henery Andrewes ... in Leiu of a meeting house build by him.... It is further promised by the Inhabitants aforsaid ... that this said pcell or necke of land shall not be Rated by the towne aforsaid...*This parcel of land is thus described, ina Record of the Lands of Henery Andrews of Taunton, in Plymouth Colony Deeds, ii:1:59:-

A farme of meddow and upland graunted by the towne att a place called by the Indians Squabbonansett (later Squawbetty or East Taunton) about the space of five miles up the great River (Taunton River) on the east side of the towne lying on the Square which said Square is to begin att a certaine little brooke on the East side of the said ffarme; unto which said ffarme doth appertaine all the meddow lying on the said brooke; the length of the said Square to bee from the great River att the aforesaid brooke up to the antient Iland path and soe the line from thence Downe to the next little brooke which boundeth it on the west side of the said ffarme. It containes by estimation Two hundred acres bee it more or lesse.
In the will of Henry Andrews (Plym. Col. Wills, i:1:116) and in his inventory (id. i:1:117) there is only one lot of land mentioned which could have been the Calves Pasture or Neck of Land. This (described in the inventory as a certaine quantity of land called Squobinansett containing 200 acres, and in the will as a certaine peece of land called the necke of land)  was bequeathed equally unto my daughter Sarah and to my daughter Abigaill.
What Abigail Andrews did with all of her share of the Calves Pasture has not been fully ascertained. But John Wadsworth of Duxbury and Abigail his wife, on July 21, 1684, soled Jared Talbut of Taunton all right, title and interest in a "Neck of land" in Taunton, bounded South and South East by Taunton Great River.  West by John Hall, North and East by Walter Dean and Richard Williams; "said halfe Neek of land containing by estimation twenty acres". (Bristol C. Mass. Deeds, iv:52.]*).

     Children of Henry9 Andrews (2562)XE "Andrews:Henry  (2562) (-1653)" and Mary ?Williams (4564)XE "?Williams:Mary  (4564) (1610-1655)" (see #295) were as follows:


 
i.
Henry8 (4565)XE "Andrews:Henry  (4565) (circa 1629-Apr 1676)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 16.) was born circa 1629.  He married Hannah Street (4571)XE "Street:Hannah  (4571)" circa 1652 at Taunton, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 17.).  He married Mary Wadsworth (4368)XE "Wadsworth:Mary  (4368) (1640-        )" circa 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 17.).  He died in Apr 1676 at Taunton, Mass., USA (killed by Indians).


 
ii.
Mary (4566)XE "Andrews:Mary  (4566) (circa 1631-after 1700)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 16.) was born circa 1631 at Taunton, Mass., USA.  She married William Hodges (4567)XE "Hodges:William  (4567)" circa 1648 at Taunton, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 378.).  She married Peter Pitts (4568)XE "Pitts:Peter  (4568)" in 1654 at Taunton, Mass., USA.  She died after 1700.


 
iii.
Sarah (4569)XE "Andrews:Sarah  (4569) (1643-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 16.) was born in 1643 at Taunton, Mass., USA.  She married Jared Talbutt (4570)XE "Talbutt:Jared  (4570)" on 1 Apr 1664 at Taunton, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 726.).
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iv.
Abigail (2561).XE "Andrews:Abigail  (2561) (circa 1647-25 Nov 1723)"
295.  Mary9 ?Williams (4564)XE "?Williams:Mary  (4564) (1610-1655)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 16.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 17.) was born in 1610 at England.  She married Henry Andrews (2562)XE "Andrews:Henry  (2562) (-1653)" before 1629 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 17.).  She died in 1655 at Taunton, Mass., USA.

296.  Edmond9 Tilson (1135)XE "Tilson:Edmond  (1135) (-25 Oct 1660)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 31.) married Joane unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.).  He died on 25 Oct 1660 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 31.).

     (an unknown value) (In the absence of any record as to when Edmond Tilson and wife Joane left England, or arrived in New England, we can only form conclusions from the first records at Plymouth, Mass., when he applied to the court, Sept. 3, 1638, for land at Woeberry Plaine, and same year on Oct. 1, the court granted him five acres. (The new county buildings are on Woeberry Plaine.) He was many times on the Jury, evidently a capable person and interested in the affairs of the Colony. He owned land at North River on the northerly bound of "the two mile", which was a part of Scituate, and at Lakenham, (now a part of Carver). His residence was at Plymouth, where he died Oct. 25, 1660. His widow, Mrs. Joane Tilson, married Giles Rickard, Sr., May 20, 1662. She died before 1669, from the fact that Giles Rickard, Sr., married 3d, Hannah, widow of John Churchill, in 1669. There is nothing to establish the birth of any of the following children. By comparing various records, I have been able to give some approximate dates, which may aid some. Without doubt three of the children were born in England

).

     Children of Edmond9 Tilson (1135)XE "Tilson:Edmond  (1135) (-25 Oct 1660)" and Joane unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" (see #297) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary8 (1137)XE "Tilson:Mary  (1137) (circa 1627-1660)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 31.) was born circa 1627 at England.  She married James Cole (2047)XE "Cole:James  (2047) (1625-1709)" on 23 Dec 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 169.).  She died in 1660 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 169.).


 
ii.
Elizabeth (1138)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1138) (1630-)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 32.) was born in 1630 at England.  She married Benajah Dunham (984)XE "Dunham:Benajah  (984) (1640-24 Dec 1680)" on 25 Oct 1660 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 233.

) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 26].).  She died.
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iii.
Ephraim (1133).XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)"

 
iv.
Joan (1139)XE "Tilson:Joan  (1139) (1638-)" was born in 1638.  She died.


 
v.
John (1140)XE "Tilson:John  (1140) (1640-before 29 Oct 1673)" was born in 1640.  He died before 29 Oct 1673.

297.  Joane9 unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" married Edmond Tilson (1135)XE "Tilson:Edmond  (1135) (-25 Oct 1660)" at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.).  She married Giles Rickard (1048)XE "Rickard:Giles  (1048) (1597-1684)" on 20 May 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 36].).

298.  William9 Hoskins (1146)XE "Hoskins:William  (1146) (-7 Sep 1695)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 33.) married Sarah Cushman (1148)XE "Cushman:Sarah  (1148)" on 2 Nov 1636 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 390.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:95].).  He married Ann Hinde (1147)XE "Hinde:Ann  (1147) (circa 1616-)" on 21 Dec 1638 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died on 7 Sep 1695 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 390.).

     (an unknown value) (In Plymouth Colonial Records we read: March 2, 1679-80. Court orders four pounds to be paid to William Hoskins by the treasurer, being poor, loosing all he had in the late war and being grown old an unable to labor

).

     Children of William9 Hoskins (1146)XE "Hoskins:William  (1146) (-7 Sep 1695)" and Ann Hinde (1147)XE "Hinde:Ann  (1147) (circa 1616-)" (see #299) were as follows:


 
i.
Sarah8 (1151)XE "Hoskins:Sarah  (1151) (16 Sep 1636-)" was born on 16 Sep 1636.  She died.


 
ii.
Mary (1152)XE "Hoskins:Mary  (1152) (circa 1640-)" was born circa 1640 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.


 
iii.
Rebecca (1153)XE "Hoskins:Rebecca  (1153) (circa 1643-)" was born circa 1643 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.
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iv.
Elizabeth (1134).XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)"

 
v.
Son (1149)XE "Hoskins:son  (1149) (30 Nov 1647-)" was born on 30 Nov 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died.


 
vi.
William (1154)XE "Hoskins:William  (1154) (30 Nov 1649-)" was born on 30 Nov 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656.).  He died.


 
vii.
Samuel (1150)XE "Hoskins:Samuel  (1150) (8 Aug 1654-)" was born on 8 Aug 1654 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661.).  He died.

299.  Ann9 Hinde (1147)XE "Hinde:Ann  (1147) (circa 1616-)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 33.) was born circa 1616.  She married William Hoskins (1146)XE "Hoskins:William  (1146) (-7 Sep 1695)" on 21 Dec 1638 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.

300.  Robert9 Waterman (1172)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1172) (-before 10 Sep 1652)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 481.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 433.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 94, page 281.) was born at England.  He married Elizabeth Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" on 11 Dec 1638 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:181].).  He died before 10 Sep 1652 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W. ROBERT WATERMAN died at Marshfield, 10 December, 1652; his inventory was taken 13 January, 1652; his widow Elizabeth was appointed administratrix 1 March, 1652.* The records here presented, relating to the settlement of his estate, were transcribed from the original Plymouth Colony records, the proper reference being given in each case.

[Court Orders, III :19, under date of 1 March, 1652.]

Lres of adminnestracon are graunted unto Elizabeth wife of the late Deceased Robert Waterman to adminester upon his estate and to pay the Debts soe fare and by equall proportions as the estate will amount unto

[Plymouth Colony Wills, etc.]

[Vol. 1, fol. 118] A true and Just Inventary of the goods chattle and lands of Robert Waterman Deceased Taken and apprised by Mr Anthony Eames Mr hinksman Marke Eames and Anthony Snow the 13th Day of January 1652, exhibited att the court

* These dates, in new style, would be 20 December, 1652, 23 January, 1653, and 11 March, 1653, respectively.

     Settlement of Robert1 Waterman's Estate     101

holden at Plymouth the sixt of June 1653 on the oath of Elizabeth Waterman

     £   s   d

Imprimis his house and all his Lands that hee bought     30 00 00

It his wearing apparrell     00 10 00

It one black Cow and calfe     05 00 00

It one Rid Cow     05 00 00

It one blacke steere     03 10 00

It one heifer of a yeare old and vantage one calfe     02 00 00

It 12 bookes and som smale pamplits     01 04 00

It 3 brase kettles and a little one     00 08 00

It 3 skellets and 2 brase ladles 2 skimmers 2 brase Candelsticks a brase morter and one Iron pestell      18 00

It 3 plate panns and a cullender and a pott     00 05 00

It 10 pewter Dishes and 3 pewter basons     02 11 06

It one chamberpott 2 Candelstickes 3 cupps 2 pint potts a Sucking bottle 3 porrengers a salt a quart pott 3 sawsers and two little plates     01 04 00

It 2 Iron potts one Iron kettle onn posnett and a frying pan     00 18 00

It 2 pothanggers 2 paire of pothookes and one gridiron     00 08 00

It one fowling peece     01 00 00

It one Codline and 5 ledds and a spliting knife and 6 Codhookes     00 05 00

It a warming pan a smothing Iron and and a paire of tonges     00 06 00

It 3 hammers and 4 waightes     00 03 00

It an old case and 6 bottles and an old compase     00 03 00

It one sword and bandalleers     00 08 00

It 6 napkins 2 tableclothes 4 pillowbeers and 4 old napkins and 3 sheets     01 08 00

It 2 flockbeds 3 boulsters and 3 coverleds     01 05 00

It 4 kemnells 2 payles one churne 2 bowles and 3 piggens     00 12 00

It one beer barrell one Rundlett 3 Cheesfatts and an old tubb     00 05 00

It 3 wooden platters 3 Dishes 2 measures 6 trencher 7 spoones     00 04 00

It a buckingtubb one tray one kneading trough & a butterpott     00 05 00

It 4 hogsheads with covers and 2 seives     00 12 12

It 3 cheaires and 2 Cushens     00 0 00

It one cradle and 2 old pillowes     00 02 00

It one Table 2 Chists 2 boxes and a trundle bedd     00 15 00

It 18 bushels of wheat and 4 bushels and an halfe of Indian corn and one bushell and an halfe of barley     05 02 02
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It one Sack and 2 baggs     00 02 00

It the halfe of the Shallope and half of the Rigging that was found     00 14 00

It 2 fliches of bacon     01 00 00

It a pcell of Coopers beading stuffe     00 0 00

It 5 henns     00 02 00

It 3 smale swine     00 09 00

It one exe 3 wedges a pichforke 2 hoes 2 old hand sawes and other housholdment or lumber     00 05 00

It one looking glasse and other things found afterwards     00 05 00

It Debts Due to Robert Waterman     05 03 06

The summe of all     78 00 00

Anthony Eames    Edmond hincksman    Marke Eames    Anthony Snow

[Court Orders, III: 173, under date of 3 October, 1659.]

Att this Court open proclamation was made that if any shall come in betwixt this Date and the Generall Court to bee holden att Plymouth the first Tusday in March next and Can Claime any Just Debt from the estate of Robert Waterman Satisfaction shalbee made proportionable to the said estate or otherwise a Quietus est will then bee graunted to Elizabeth somtimes the wife of the said Robert Waterman; and since that time untill the seaveth of June 1660: none Came in and then a quietus est was graunted unto Elizabeth somtimes the wife of the abovesaid Robert Waterman ; this was aded June 7th 1660: by order of the Court*

[Court Orders, IV: 115, under date of 6 February, 1665.]

Mr Josias Winslow and Anthony Snow are approved t by the Court to bee gaurdians to two of the sonnes of Robert Waterman Deceased; (viz) Josepth Waterman and Robert Waterman; and supposing that Robert Waterman is under age the Court appoints the said mr Winslow and Anthony Snow to bee gaurdian to him; as abovesaid;

[Plymouth Colony Deeds, III: 169.]

Marshfeild the 4th of July 1670 .... wheras the Court of Plymouth was pleased formerly to graunt a Certaine prsell of land and meadow unto Mr Jonathan Brewster late of Duxburrow, neare adjacent to the late fferrey of and between Marsh feild and Scittuate which said land was allianated .... by the

* The words in italics are in different ink.

"appointed" was crossed out and "approved" written after it.
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said Jonathan to old howell late of Marshfeild aforsaid, and three other prsons; and after the Death of the said howell; the Court thought meet to appoint Edmond Weston of Duxburrow to make sale of the said howells prte whoe sold the same to Robert Waterman of Marshfeild aforsaid Deceased, which said lands; I whose name is underwritten Can Testify That Elizabeth the late wife of Robert Waterman; and exequitrix of the said Robert, did make sale of the said prsell of Land to Thomas Tilden of the Towne aforsaid for thirty pounds for the better Inabling her to; satisfy the Creditors, her husband Waterman was Indebted unto; which said lands was put into the Inventory; and that I Did Receive; all or the Most prte of the prise of the said land, and payed Debts therwith for and in her behalfe; as will or may appeer by severall acquittances from the Creditors and this sale was made by her to the said Tilden, before her Marriage with him; which said Land the said Tilden sold afterwards to Willam Shurtley

þ me Josias Winslow;

As to the truth of what is heer written I Doe further Testify to the account as Knowne by mee John Bourne

The abovewritten was ordered by the Court to bee Recorded July 7th 1670

Wheras Robert Waterman of the Towne of Marshfeild Died without Will and Greatly Indebted the Court graunting Lres: of Adminnestration unto Elizabeth the wife of the said Robert Waterman to adminnester on the said Estate, soe farr as it amounted unto To whom the said Elizabeth Mr Thomas Bourne and John Bourne of the aforsaid Towne, were bound to the Court for Cecuritie The said Elizabeth exhibited to the Court an Inventory, of the Estate of the aforsaid Robert Waterman which amounted to seaventy eight pounds which was short of the Debts owing by the Deceased, which Doe appeer to be the sume of one hundred & 14 pounds by account given to the Court alsoe that about eighty seaven pounds of the aforsaid Debts was payed and satislyed; and that the said house and land which the said Robert Waterman Bought and Parchased of Edmond Weston Adminnestrator to the estate of Thomas howell whoe Purchased the said house and land of Mr Jonathan Brewster the said house and land being Purchased by the said Robert Waterman and by the Law of this Collonie is accoumpted or made Responsible to pay Debts, was therfore Inventoried, and given into the Court, and was made sale of by the said Elizabeth exequitrix unto the estate of the said Robert; by and with the Consent of the aforsaid Mr: Thomas

Bourne and John Bourne; unto Thomas Tilden of the aforsaid Towne of Marshfeild for the sume of thirty pounds, which by evidence Doth appeer to the Court, payed a prte of the aforsaid Debts, all which being Considered of by the Court; they Doe approve and alow of the aforsaid sale of the aforsaid house and Land, made by the said Elizabeth Exequitrix unto the Estate, of the said Robert Waterman, unto the said Thomas Tilden and soe the Court Doth Graunt, and alow the said Thomas Tilden to be the sole and whole proprietor, of the said house and land as Legally Purchased;

This writing was ordered by the Court to be Recorded July the seaventh 1670

 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 191.).  His body was interred on 10 Sep 1652 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 191.).

     (an unknown value) (Robert, yeoman, Plymouth, bought land 7 May, 1639. Removed to Marshfield, freeman (citizen) 7 March, 1642; proprietor 1643; deputy 1646; town officer.

Memorand; the eleventh of January 1652 this sale was made to Robert Waterman anno 1649 but acknowledged the Day and Yeare above mentioned

That Edmond Weston of the towne of Duxburrow in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth in new England in america planter doth knowlidg that for and in consideracon of the full summe of fourteen pounds and ten shillings to him already paied and three pounds and fiveteen shillings to bee paied unto him hee hath freely and absolutly barganed allianated and sold (as adminestrator of the estate of Thomas howell Deceased) a certaine pcell of upland and meddow which was somtimes the Lands of the said howell unto Robert Waterman of Marshfeild the said Lands lying and being att the North River in the Township of Marshfeild aforsaid videlecet all the one part of foure of the lot of Land there; which was somtimes the Land of Mr Jonathan Brewster being bounded on the one side with the land of Jeremiah Borrowes and on the other side with the Lands of John Barker; To have and to hold the said pcell of Upland and meddow belonging therunto soe bounded as abovesaid with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto or unto any pte or pcell therof unto the onely prper use and behoofe of him the said Robert Waterman his heires and assignes for ever the said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances privilidges and emunities appertaining therunto to belong unto the onely prper use and behoof of him the said Robert Waterman his heires and assignes for ever;

Before such time as the abovesaid Edmond Weston; Did acknowlidge and avouch the sale of the abovesaid Lands Mr Thomas Bourne of Marshfeild did engage before Mr Willam Bradford Governor to pay unto the said Edmond Weston the abovesaid summe of three pounds and fiveteen shillin(worn) Remayning due to him from Robert Waterman for the said Lands

A Receipt and aquittance appointed to bee Recorded

Received the 3d of ffebruary 1652 of Thomas Bourne of Marshfeild the full summe of three pounds and fifteen shillings in full paiment of that house and Land and meadow that Robert Waterman Did buy of mee Edmond Weston being adminnestrator unto Thomas howell Deceased; and furthermore where the abovenamed Thomas Bourne hath engaged himselfe upon Record in New Plymouth booke for the above named summe of three pound and fifteene shillings to mee Edmond Weston I doe heerby before these Witnesses Discharge and acquitte the said Thomas Bourne of all such engagements and promises which hee hath made unto mee for the paiment heerof In Witnesse wherof I have sett to my hand

Wittnesse     Edmond Weston;

John Bradford

the marke of

Willam ford

).

     Children of Robert9 Waterman (1172)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1172) (-before 10 Sep 1652)" and Elizabeth Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" (see #301) were as follows:


 
i.
Joseph8 (1174)XE "Waterman:Joseph  (1174) (1639-3 Jan 1711)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 204.) was born in 1639 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 204.).  He married Sarah Snow (2354)XE "Snow:Sarah  (2354) (Jun 1651-11 Sep 1741)" circa 1673 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 283.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 432.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  He died on 3 Jan 1711 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).
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ii.
John (1170).XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

 
iii.
Thomas (1175)XE "Waterman:Thomas  (1175) (1644-1708)" was born in 1644.  He married Miriam Tracy (4525)XE "Tracy:Miriam  (4525) (1648-        )" in Nov 1668 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.).  He died in 1708.


 
iv.
Robert (1176)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1176) (1652-18 May 1741)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 204.) was born in 1652.  He married Susanna Lincoln (4526)XE "Lincoln:Susanna  (4526)" on 30 Sep 1675 at Hingham, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 2, page 254.).  He married Sarah Lincoln (4527)XE "Lincoln:Sarah  (4527)" on 20 Feb 1699 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.).  He died on 18 May 1741.


 
v.
Joseph (1177)XE "Waterman:Joseph  (1177) (1652-)" was born in 1652.  He died.

301.  Elizabeth9 Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" (Thomas, #602) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) married Robert Waterman (1172)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1172) (-before 10 Sep 1652)" on 11 Dec 1638 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:181].).  She married Thomas Tilden (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" in 1671 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  She died.

302.  Samuel9 Sturtevant (1191)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1191) (circa 1625-Oct 1669)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 229.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 440.) was born circa 1625.  He married Anne unknown (1192)XE "unknown:Anne  (1192)" before 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He died in Oct 1669. [SAMUEL STURTIVANT'S WILL]

[p. 10] Samuel Sturtivant of Plymouth made his will 1 August, 1669, and it was probated at Plymouth, 29 October, 1669, on the oaths of the two witnesses. Bequests were as follows:

To "my soninlaw John Waterman the one halfe of that my share of Land that I bought of Edward Gray which lyeth neare Namassakeesett ponds Called the Majors purchase"

To "my sonnes Namly Samuell James John and Joseph and to the Child my wife now goeth with (if a boy) after my wifes Decease; all my house and Land that I now Dwell upon: and all other Lands and meddowes; with all Rightes belonging therunto; That I have in any place whatsoever; To be equally Devided to all or soe many of my aforsaid sonnes as shalbe alive att my wifes Decease; and incase my wife thinketh it meet; to settle and give my son Samuell a Doubble share of the said housing and lands; then it is my will that hee shall have it; that is two shares and the Rest Liveing one share apeece; and incase any of my sonnes are minded to sell their prtes after theire Devison; my will is that hee sell it to one of his brothers incase any of them will give as may bee thought meet by two Indifferent men"

To "my .... wife all my Cattle goods and estate whatsoever" and she is "to be the sole exequitrix"

The witnesses were William Crow and John Smith, the latter signing by a mark.

The inventory was taken 22 October, 1669, by "serjeant Ephraim Tinkham Joseph Howland and Willam Crow; and exhibited to the Court held att Plymouth" 29 October, 1669. The only mention . of real estate is: "As for his housing and lands wee leave the valluation therof ;"

The estate was indebted to "John Rogers of Duxburrow"; John Dunham; Jabez Howland; John Moses; James Cole, Sr.; James Barnabey; Edward Gray; William Nelson; "the widdow Dunham"; "John Shaw of Boston"; "Elizabeth Combes of Boston"; "mistris Sarah Paine"; "mr Thomas Clarke of Boston"; John Wood; "serjeant Willam Harlow"; Andrew Ring; "John Hubbard"; Thomas Lucas; John Smith.

     (an unknown value) (Samuel, Plymouth, planted land on shares in 1641; able to bear arms 1643; bought land 1647; town officer

).

     Children of Samuel9 Sturtevant (1191)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1191) (circa 1625-Oct 1669)" and Anne unknown (1192)XE "unknown:Anne  (1192)" (see #303) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:
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i.
Ann8 (1171).XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)"

 
ii.
John (1193)XE "Sturtevant:John  (1193) (17 Oct 1650-30 Oct 1650)" was born on 17 Oct 1650 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658, [p. 10].).  He died on 30 Oct 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658, [p. 11].).


 
iii.
Mary (1199)XE "Sturtevant:Mary  (1199) (7 Dec 1651-)" was born on 7 Dec 1651 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659 [p. 13].).  She died.


 
iv.
Samuel (1194)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1194) (19 Apr 1654-21 Apr 1736)" was born on 19 Apr 1654 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661, [p. 17].).  He married Mercy Bennett (4529)XE "Bennett:Mercy  (4529) (circa 1655-1714)" before 1676 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He married Elizabeth Horril (4530)XE "Horril:Elizabeth  (4530)" on 12 Aug 1715 at Beverly, Essex Co, MA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 21 Apr 1736 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 82. in his 83rd year (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 111, page 240.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 3, No. 1, page 15.).


 
v.
Hannah (1195)XE "Sturtevant:Hannah  (1195) (4 Sep 1656-)" was born on 4 Sep 1656 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661, [p. 19].).  She died.


 
vi.
John (1196)XE "Sturtevant:John  (1196) (6 Sep 1658-4 Feb 1752)" was born on 6 Sep 1658 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 25].).  He married Hannah Winslow (4531)XE "Winslow:Hannah  (4531) (-1 Mar 1709)" before 1687 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He died on 4 Feb 1752 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 93. aged 93 years 5 months (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 115, page 241.).  His body was interred after 4 Feb 1752 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. was buried beside Hannah on the hill top immediately east of where the watch house once stood. Presumably John outlived his second wife, by whom he had no children (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 115, page 241.).


 
vii.
Lydia (1200)XE "Sturtevant:Lydia  (1200) (13 Dec 1660-)" was born on 13 Dec 1660 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 26].).  She died.


 
viii.
James (1197)XE "Sturtevant:James  (1197) (11 Feb 1663-)" was born on 11 Feb 1663 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 29].).  He died.


 
ix.
Joseph (1198)XE "Sturtevant:Joseph  (1198) (16 Jul 1666-)" was born on 16 Jul 1666 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 35].).  He married Anna Jones (4532)XE "Jones:Anna  (4532)" on 5 Dec 1693 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He died.

303.  Anne9 unknown (1192)XE "unknown:Anne  (1192)" married Samuel Sturtevant (1191)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1191) (circa 1625-Oct 1669)" before 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  She married John Bass (4528)XE "Bass:John  (4528) (before 18 Sep 1630-12 Sep 1716)" on 21 Sep 1675 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 107, page 219.).  She died.

304.  John9 Finney (1207)XE "Finney:John  (1207) (before 15 Mar 1604-after 7 Feb 1683)" (Robert, #608) (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 1.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 165.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 416 & Vol. II, page 160.

) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 322 & 323.) was born before 15 Mar 1604 at England.  He was baptized on 15 Mar 1604 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 322.).  He married Christian Patten (1208)XE "Patten:Christian  (1208) (before 23 Nov 1608-9 Sep 1649)" on 22 Nov 1636 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 323.).  He married Abigail Bishop (1212)XE "Bishop:Abigail  (1212) (-6 May 1653)" on 10 Jun 1650 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.).  He married Eizabeth Bayley (1213)XE "Bayley:Eizabeth  (1213) (-9 Feb 1684)" on 26 Jun 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.).  He died after 7 Feb 1683 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.).

     (an unknown value) (According to Plymouth, Mass., records, John Finney was in that town as early as 1630 with his mother, his brother Robert, and his sister Catherine. Tradition has it that the father died while crossing the sea. No definite information has been found as to the boat upon which they arrived or their place of birth in England. Some investigators claim that the family came from Wales and others that they were from Pontypool in Monmouthshire, a county which once belonged to Wales but was taken over by Henry VIII to become a part of England early in the 16th century. John Finney's mother, who is referred to only as "Mother Finney", died in Plymouth, April 22, 1650, "age upwards of 80 years". His brother Robert was born about 1608 and died Jan. 7, 1687; he married Phebe Ripley, who was born about 1619 and died Oct. 9, 1710, in her 92nd year. They had no children. John's sister Catherine married Gabriel Fallowell. John Finney probably lived in Plymouth for several years; his two sons by his first wife were born there. He next moved to Barnstable, Mass., where seven of his children were born, and eventually to Bristol, R.I. He had seven sons. The eldest, John, Jr., settled in Barnstable and founded what is known as the Barnstable branch of the family; his descendants have usually spelled their surname "Phinney". Josiah made his home in Plymouth and thus established the Plymouth line. Jonathan, Jeremiah, and Joshua all went to Rhode Island with their father, and their descendants form the so-called Bristol branch. The Phinney spelling is sometimes found in the Plymouth and Bristol lines also, especially in the later generations.

John Finney emigrated to New England between July 1637 and December 1638. He was assigned land at Webb's Field in Plymouth on 2 December 1639; the grant was confirmed on 6 July 1640. On 16 September 1641 John and his brother Robert were each granted six acres of upland abutting the brook that comes from Fresh Lake, and John received another grant of fifty acres at "Pausatuke" Neck on 5 June 1666. The court confirmed the grant at "Passuntaguanumcke Neck on South Sea," 7 July 1668.

John was admitted a freeman of the colony on 20 August 1644. He held many positions of trust, beginning with his appointment as constable at Plymouth on 7 March 1642. The following year he was included on a list of those able to bear arms from the town of Plymouth. He wascollector of the excise at Plymouth, 1646-48, and was three times appointed surveyor of highways, in 1646, 1654, and 1668. On 24 February 1652 he was chosen to lay out the highway from Plymouth to Sandwich with twelve other men.

John Finney removed to Barnstable before 29 August 1652, when he was admitted to Rev. John Lathrop's church. In Barnstable he was appointed exciseman in 1661, inspector of the ordinaries in 1671, and constable in 1675. John was frequently a juryman in Plymouth and Barnstable.

On 1 March 1658/9 Isaac Robinson and Gyles Rickard, Sr. complained to the court in behalf of two children of Henry Coggin, deceased, who were living in the home ov John Finney at Barnstable, being the children fo his second wife Abigail. The complaint was recorded three days after the death of Thomas Coggin, one of Henry Coggin's sons. The exact nature of the offence is not stated, but it was claimed that the Coggin children had "suffered wrong in sundry respects." The case was referred to the May session of the court. In the meantime, John was ordered to keep his stepson, apparently John Coggin, in school "all the time excepting six days," and to prepare an account of the children's estate. John Coggin was eventually placed under the guardianship of Capt. James Cudworth and Isacc Robinson, and on 7 June 1659 John Finney surrendered all of Henry Coggin's lands at Barnstable to the guardians.

Late in his life, John Finney became interested in the Mount Hope lands, now Bristol in present-day Rhode Island. John and his sons Jonathan and Jeremiah were original grantees of Bristol on 1 September 1681. The last mention of him is in a deed dated 7 February 1682[3?] in which he disposed of his house and thirty acres of land in Bristol on the Swansea Rijver to his son Jonathan. No record of the death or probate of John Finney has been found  

).

     Children of John9 Finney (1207)XE "Finney:John  (1207) (before 15 Mar 1604-after 7 Feb 1683)" and Christian Patten (1208)XE "Patten:Christian  (1208) (before 23 Nov 1608-9 Sep 1649)" (see #305) were as follows:


 
i.
Margaret8 (4415)XE "Finney:Margaret  (4415) (before 20 Jul 1637-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 325.) was born before 20 Jul 1637.  She was baptized on 20 Jul 1637.

     (an unknown value) (No further record).
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ii.
John (1205).XE "Phinney:John Jr. (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)"

XE "Phinney:John Jr.  (1205) (24 Dec 1638-19 Apr 1718)"

 
iii.
Thomas (1214)XE "Finney:Thomas  (1214) (1648-1653)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 1.) was born in 1648 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died in 1653.

305.  Christian9 Patten (1208)XE "Patten:Christian  (1208) (before 23 Nov 1608-9 Sep 1649)" (Edward, #610) (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 1.) was born before 23 Nov 1608 at England.  She was baptized on 23 Nov 1608 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.).  She married John Finney (1207)XE "Finney:John  (1207) (before 15 Mar 1604-after 7 Feb 1683)" on 22 Nov 1636 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 323.).  She died on 9 Sep 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 8].).

306.  Joseph9 Rogers (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)" (Thomas, #612) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 214.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 563.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 390.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) was born before 23 Jan 1603 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Copied from unidentified book, 1995 by Ricardo Ernesto Rain, at NEGHS.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  He was baptized on 23 Jan 1603 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  He married Hannah unknown (1233)XE "unknown:Hannah  (1233)" before 1633 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 634.).  He died on 15 Aug 1677 at Eastham, Mass., USA. The original will of Joseph Rogers is no longer in existence. A copy of his will, written in the Plymouth Colony Record Book at the time of his death, does not mention his daughter Mary, but reads as follows:

I Joseph Rogers senior of Eastham of Good understanding and perfect memory being weake in body; and not knowing the day of my departure out of this life, doe thinke meet to Leave this as my Last will and Testament

        Impr: I Comend my soule to God that Gave it; whoe is my God, and father in Jesus Christ, and my body to the earth by decent buriall;

        firstly And Concerning my temporall estate that God hath posessed me off; I doe make my son Thomas Rogers whole and sole executor which I will should be disposed of as followeth:

        Impr I doe Give unto my Loveing son James Rogers and his heires Lawfully begotten of his body: or the next of kinn; my house and housing and Land with ffences or the like appurtenances, that I now dwell in and Improve adjoyning to my house be it more or lesse; as it is Recorded & bounded on the Towne book, I say I doe Give it to him and to his heires Lawfully begotten of his body forever or the Next kindred; 

        Item I doe give To my sonnes John and James Rogers all my meddow Ground that I bought of the Indians ffrancis and Josiah, Lying att Pottammacutt and thereabouts; I say I doe give and will it to them and theire heiress forever equally to be devided 

        Item I doe Give to my sonnes Thomas and John Rogers and theire heires all my meddow and sedge lying on the otherside of the Cove, on keeskagansett syde; I say I doe Give it to them and theire heires Lawfully begotten of theire bodys forever;

        I doe Give to my Daughter Elizabeth higgens the wife of Jonathan higgens six acrees of Land lying Neare the Barly neck, by a swamp Called Ceader swamp; as it is Recorded and bounded in the Towne book, I say I Give this six acrees To her and her heres of her body for ever; shee nor they shall not sell hier farm it out, directly nor Indirectly to any prson whatsoever, except in Case of Removall it shalbe lawfull for my sonnes or theire heires to buy or purchase it; Item I Give to Benjah higgens my Grandchild on Condition hee live with mee untill I die; I say I Give to him and his heires, one third prte of all my upland and meddow att Paomett, purchased and unpurchased. Item It is my will That the Remainder of my lands or marshes, both att the barly necke, Pochett Iland Paomett Billingsgate or elswher purchased or unpurchased not disposed of prticularly in my will; I say it is my will that all thoes lands be equally devided betwixt my three sonnes Thomas, John and James Rogers; and the heires lawfully of theire bodyes for ever; Noteing that my son Thomas his twenty acrees of upland that alreddy hee hath in the barly necke be prte of his devision of my land in the barly Necke; Item I doe Give unto my daughter hanna Rogers, if shee be not disposed of in Marriage before my decease, and my wife decease, then I say I doe Give to her my bed and beding with all the furniture therto belonging or that shall belonge therto att our decease; Alsoe it is my will that shee shall have her Choise of one Cow before my Cattle be distributed, and the use of three acrees of Tillage Ground; ffenced in, with the arable Ground of her bretheren in the barly necke if shee desirs, it soe longe as shee lives unmarryed; Item it is my will that Benjah higgens shall have one of my Cowes after mine and my wifes decease Item it is my will Concerning my Loveing wife hannah Rogers that shee live in My house as longe as shee lives, and shalbe Comfortably maintained by my stocke and to have the use of all my houshold stuffe, That shee Needs as longe as shee lives for her Comfort and that none of my household furniture or stocke be disposed of, as longe as shee lives, save onely hannahs Cowe Item I will that ten shillings of my estate be disposed off for the use of the Church of Christ in Eastham as shalbe Judged most Nessesarie Item I will that the Remainder of my Stocke estate houshold furniture that my wife shall Leave att her decease Not disposed of in my will before written; be equally devided between all my Children; and Benjah higgens to have an equall share with each of them; This is my Last will and Testament as witnes my hand and seale this 2cond of January 1677,

                                        Joseph Rogers and A seale

Joseph's inventory was taken 15 Jan. 1677/8 and the will was probated 5 March 1677/8. Depositions of Jonathan Sparrow and Samuel Berry show that the grandson called "Benjah Higgens" in the will was also known as Beriah Higgens. Son Thomas Rogers died before completing the settlement of the estate and so Capt. Sparrow and remaining son John Rogers were impowered to handle the settlement.

He was burried in Eastham in Old Cove Burial Ground (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 206.).

     (an unknown value) (Joseph, came in the Mayflower to Plymouth; had lands assigned in 1623; freeman (citizen) 1633. Removed to Duxbury. Allowed to keep a ferry over Jones' river, near his house, 2 March, 1635-6. He and his brother John R. had grant of land 6 April, 1640. Removed to Eastham; appointed lieut. of the company at Nawsett in 1647. His will dated 2 Jan., prob. 5 March, 1677-8, bequeathed to sons Thomas, John and James, daughters Elizabeth Higgins and Hannah R.; to wife Beriah Higgens to have a share with the children because he had lived with him a great while, etc. Joseph Rogers, born in England or Holland 1610 or earlier, he married Hannah ----- , who may not have been his only wife, and may not have been the mother of his children.

Joseph came to Plymouth with his father in 1620 abord the Mayflower. In the 1623 land division, he received two acres, one for himself and one on behalf of his father. Joseph may have been living in the household of Governor Bradford with whom he received his share of cattle in 1627. Joseph was made a freeman in 1633 and was taxed 25 March 1633, just before the birth of his first child. On 2 March 1635/6 he was granted permission to operate a ferry over the Jones River near his house, and on 7 June 1636  he was first recorded as serving on a jury.

He was granted 30 acres of land on 5 Nov. 1638, and was made constable of Duxbury 3 March 1639/40. On this latter date, Joseph was one of the purchasers or "old comers" to whom land was granted, and on 6 Apr. 1640 he and his brother John were each granted 50 acres of upland. Joseph was one of a group of Duxbury inhabitants who were to lay out land 20 Oct. 1645.

Joseph apparently moved to Eastham, then called Nauset, about 1647 for on 1 June of that year he was appointed lieutenant to exercise the men in arms there. He apparently spent a brief time at Sandwich in the early 1650's. He served on the council of war in June and Oct. 1658. Lt. Rogers was freed from his lieutenancy 1 Oct. 1661, but reestablished 8 June 1664. He was a selectman  at Eastham 1670.

On 31 Jan. 1672 Lt. Joseph Rogers of Eastham sold a piece of land. No wife was mentioned in any of his deeds.

His wife Hannah was named in his will 2 Jan. 1677/8. She may not have been his only wife, and may not have been the mother of his children

).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of Joseph9 Rogers (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)" and Hannah unknown (1233)XE "unknown:Hannah  (1233)" (see #307) were as follows:


 
i.
Sarah8 (1239)XE "Rogers:Sarah  (1239) (6 Aug 1633-15 Aug 1633)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.) was born on 6 Aug 1633 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.).  She died on 15 Aug 1633 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.).


 
ii.
Joseph (1240)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1240) (19 Jul 1635-27 Dec 1660)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 157.) was born on 19 Jul 1635 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Susannah Deane (2676)XE "Deane:Susannah  (2676) (1634-before Apr 1701)" on 4 Apr 1660 at Eastham, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 105.).  He died on 27 Dec 1660 at Eastham, Mass., USA, at age 25. At the 5 March 1660/1 court held at Plymouth John Hawes of Yarmouth was found not guilty of "takeing away the life of Josephth Robers of Eastham by giveing him a mos deadly fall, on the 25 of Dec. 1660 in the towne of Eastham, whereof he...about 48 hours after died." Also on 5 March 1660/1 the Governor was authorized to give oath to Susanna the wife of late deceased Joseph Rogers for the inventory of his estate, and on 1 March 1663/4 Thomas Rogers of Eastham was appointed to administer the estate of Joseph Robers Jr., as his heir. On the 8th of the third month [May] 1674 Thomas Rogers husbandman, heir of his brother Joseph Robers of Eastham, deeded to his loving sister [in-law] Susanna Snow, late wife of Joseph Robers, and to her husband Steven Snow his rights to the estate of Joseph, except lands and housing given him by his father Rogers or the town.

Apparently Joseph and Susanna had no children (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.).


 
iii.
Thomas (1241)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1241) (29 Mar 1638-5 Mar 1678)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 160.) was born on 29 Mar 1638 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Elizabeth Snow (2677)XE "Snow:Elizabeth  (2677) (circa 1640-16 Jun 1678)" on 13 Dec 1665 at Eastham, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations).).  He died on 5 Mar 1678 at Eastham, Mass., USA, at age 39 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.).


 
iv.
Elizabeth (1242)XE "Rogers:Elizabeth  (1242) (29 Sep 1639-2 Jan 1678)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 161.) was born on 29 Sep 1639 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  She married Jonathan Higgins (2678)XE "Higgins:Jonathan  (2678) (Jul 1637-after 21 May 1711)" on 9 Jan 1660 at Eastham, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 161.).  She died on 2 Jan 1678 at Eastham, Mass., USA, at age 38 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 161.).


 
v.
John (1243)XE "Rogers:John  (1243) (3 Apr 1642-27 Apr 1713)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 161.

) was born on 3 Apr 1642 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Elizabeth Twining (2679)XE "Twining:Elizabeth  (2679) (-10 Mar 1725)" on 19 Aug 1669 at Eastham, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 161.).  He died on 27 Apr 1713 at Eastham, Mass., USA, at age 71 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 161.).


 153.
vi.
Mary (1206).XE "Rogers:Mary  (1206) (22 Sep 1644-after 19 Apr 1718)"

 
vii.
James (1244)XE "Rogers:James  (1244) (18 Oct 1648-13 Apr 1678)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 163.) was born on 18 Oct 1648 at Eastham, Mass., USA.  He married Mary Paine (2680)XE "Paine:Mary  (2680) (before 1655-after 1705)" on 11 Jan 1670 at Eastham, Mass., USA (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 163.).  He died on 13 Apr 1678 at Eastham, Mass., USA, at age 29.


 
viii.
Hannah (1245)XE "Rogers:Hannah  (1245) (8 Aug 1652-after 17 Oct 1690)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 163.) was born on 8 Aug 1652.  She married Jonathan Higgins (2678)XE "Higgins:Jonathan  (2678) (Jul 1637-after 21 May 1711)" after 16 Jul 1679 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 163.).  She died after 17 Oct 1690.

307.  Hannah9 unknown (1233)XE "unknown:Hannah  (1233)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 155.) married Joseph Rogers (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)" before 1633 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 634.).

312.  John9 Washburn (2777)XE "Washburn:John  (2777) (before 26 Nov 1620-12 Nov 1686)" (John, #624) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 429.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 13.) was born before 26 Nov 1620 at Evesham, Worcester, England.  He was baptized on 26 Nov 1620 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 13.).  He married Elizabeth Mitchell (2778)XE "Mitchell:Elizabeth  (2778) (1629-)" on 6 Dec 1645 at East Bridgewater, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA 
 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He married Elizabeth Packard (4780)XE "Packard:Elizabeth  (4780)" in 1684 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 15. October, 1913 No. 4 Washburn Notes, page 248.).  He died on 12 Nov 1686 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA. [JOHN WASHBURN'S WILL—1686]

[Plym. Co. Prob. Rcds., I: 84] "John Washbourne senr of Bridgwater" made his will 30 October, 1686, and signed it by a mark. Bequests were as follows:

"to my Wife Elizabeth Washbourne one Bed one Boulster one Pillow two pair of sheets one Blanket one Coverlet two chests Six bushels of Indian Corne one bushell of Barley. ffarther with Respect to money which was my wives part whereof I have already laid out for her we are agreed that I should Returne to her two pounds and ten shillings which I have already done."

"to my Son John fourscore acres of upland in the place where he hath already Built and what shall be found wanting of the fourscore acres in the said place shall be made up to him on the Easterly side of my Land next the South Brooke more I Give to him a lot of meadow in Cousters Kitchen lying betwene the lots of Samuel and james: more two Lots of meadow Lying in the Great Meadow above the Great Island more I Give to him a whole purchase Right in the undivided lands  ffurther my will is that my Son John take Care of my Brother Phillip to provide for him and on that Consideration I farther Give to my Son John half a purchase Right in my undivided lands and half a fifty acre lot not Yet laid out ffurther I Give to him the Improvement of a Lot of meadow in the Great meadow Lying next to John Ames during my Brothers Life and after my Brothers Decease the one half of the lot Shall be to my son James . and my Son John shall Enjoy the other half

"To my son Thomas I have already Given twenty acres of upland which he hath Exchanged for land where he hath built more I have Given him a Lot of meadow in Cousters Kitchen lying on the outside Northerly. I have also Given him half a purchase Right in the undivided lands of all which Lands I have formerly Given him Deed:

"To my Son Joseph I have Given twenty acres of Land lying at Satucket pond and a lot of meadow lying at Black Brooke I
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have otherwise Done for him according to my abillity And my will is that he therewth Rest Contented.

"To my Son Samuel I Give thirty five acres of land in the place where he hath already Built and a Lot at Quatitequat joyning to his Great lot there . more I Give half a purchase Right in the Undivided Lands. Also a lot of meadow Lying up poore meadow River And joyning to his own lot there more a lot of meadow in Cousters Kitchen lying on the outside Southerly. ffarther I Give to him thirty acres of Land joyning to his Land where he hath built And also a Steere Calf.

"To my son Jonathan I Give fifty acres of Land Lying on the outside of my land next the South Brooke and if he Should Come to Settle upon it within the Space of two years after the date of this my Will he Shall Enjoy it as his own otherwise my sons John Samuel Benjamin and James Shall Enjoy the Land being Equally Divided betweene them Each of them paying to my son Jonathan fifty Shillings in Comon pay more I Give to my son Jonathan a lot of meadow lying in the Great meadow joyning to a lot of Goodman Turners. Also half a purchase Right in the undivided lands.

"To my Son Benjamin I Give fifty acres of Land which formerly was my fathers lot Also a lot of meadow lying up Satucket River and joyning to a lot of Samuel Wadsworths and half a purchase Right in the undivided lands . also two young Steeres a yong horse a Cow a Bed an an iron pot.

"To my Younger Son James when he Shall Come to age I Give the land which lyeth between my Son John and my Son Benjamin butting on the River and Runing in length till it meet with the Butt of my son Samuels Land with my dwelling house and all out housing thereunto belonging also a lot of meadow in Cousters Kitchen joyning to a lot of Benjamin Willis and half a purchase Right in the undivided lands.

"a fifty acre lot lying near Bear Swamp I Give to my two Sons John and Samuel to be Equally divided between them

"A lot of meadow lying in the mouth of Black Brooke I Give to my three sons Samuel Jonathan and Benjamin to be Equally divided between them:

"to my Daughter Mary I Give ten acres of Land to be laid out: and one Cow.

"To my daughter Elizabeth I Give ye mare which they have in keeping and ten acres of Land already layd out to my Son in Law her husband

"To my two daughters Mary and Elizabeth I Give twenty acres of land Lying Down the Town River on the northerly side and joyning to the lands of William Brett to be Equally Divide
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"To my daughter Jane I Give twenty acres of land lying down Satucket River on the Easterly Side and joyning to the lands of Samuel Allen: further I give to her one Cow one heiffer a bed and an iron pot:

"To my daughter Sarah I Give twenty acres of land joyning to my Son Samuels land near his house

"ffurther all my Right and Interest in the lands Called the Majors purchase or in any other Lands without the four mile my Will is that it shall be Equally Divided between my sons John Thomas Samuel Jonathan Benjamin and james.

"My two old oxen I leave in the hands of my two sons John and Samuel to be sold when fit for sale and four pounds of the money to be Disposed of for my Son Benjamin toward his building.

"I leave on the Land which I Intend to my son James: one horse two oxen one bull two Cows with all the ffurniture for husbandry to be Improved for the benifit of my two yonger Children James and Sarah and my will is that when these Children Come to age the principle be Dinded betweene them. By principle I Intend the horse oxen and other Cattell with the tooles and ffurniture afore mentioned.

"ffor my Trustees and overseers I Do nominate my kind ffriend mr John Thomson of Middleborough and my Brother Edward Mitchel I do nominate and ordaine my two sons John and Samuel Executors"

The witnesses were Thomas Hayward and Joseph Alden.

"This Instrument being Exhibited unto the Inferior Court of Common Pleas held at Plimouth" on 8 June, 1687, "By John Washbourne there in named Executor. Thomas Hayward and Joseph Alden the witnesses above named Personally appearing made oath before the Said Court that the Testator John Washbourne Deceased in their presence Did signe seal and declare this Instrument to be his last Will and Testament and that he then was of a Disposing mind and understanding to the best of their judgments.

Attests Nathaniel Thomas Clerk"

"Memorandum.

That John Ames Senr of Bridgwater appeared before the Inferior Court of Comon pleas held at Plimouth Sept 14th 1687 and made oath that he was Present with the other witnesses within named heard the within named John Washbourne Deceased Declare this Instrument to which his hand and Seal is put to be his last Will & Testament and that he then was of a disposing mind and understanding to the best of his judgment

Nathaniel Thomas Cler"
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[1: 86] "An inventory of the Goods and Chattels of John Washburne of the Town of Bridgwater deceased ye 12th day of November 1686 .... Taken by us ye 19th day of november 1686 .... John ffield John Leonard "The total value was £142, 8s. No real estate is mentioned

 (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 15. October, 1913 No. 4 Washburn Notes page 248.).

     (an unknown value) (John Washburn aged 14 came to NE in 1635 with his mother Marjorie and brother Philip. On 7 June 1659 John Washburn Jr. was elected Constable for Duxbury. On the 6th of the 9th (Nov.) 1664 John Wahsbourne Junr acknowledged sale of land given him by his father Experience Mitchell. On 1 Nov. 1681 John Washbourne senr of Bridgewater sold land at Saconit to Will Wilbore senr of Portsmouth; wife Elizabeth acknowledge same date. The will of John Washbourne senr of Bridgewater dated 30 Oct. 1686, exhibited 8 June 1687, names wife Elizabeth Washbourne; brother Philip Washbourne; sons John, Thomas, Joseph, Samuel, Jonathan, Benjamin; jounger son James; daus. Mary, Elizabeth, Jane and Sarah. It calls James and Sarah "my two yonger (sic) children." His inventory says he died 12 Nov. 1686. On 10 Sept. 1694 John Washburne, Thomas Washburne, Joseph Washburne, Jonathan Washburne, James Washburne, Edward Seely, Samuel Kingsley, William Orcutt, Sarah Washburne all of Bridgewater sold to Samuel Washburne of Bridgewater land left unwilled "by our Father & ffather in law John Washburne Deceased."

ORIGIN: Bengeworth, Worcestershire 

MIGRATION: 1632 

FIRST RESIDENCE: Plymouth 

REMOVES: Duxbury 

RETURN TRIPS: Possibly to England and back in 1634 

OCCUPATION: Tailor [ PCR 1:85]. 

FREEMAN: "John Washburne, Senior," was in the 1639 list of those who had taken the oath of fidelity at Duxbury [ PCR 8:182]. Admitted to freemanship on 2 June 1646 [ PCR 2:101] (and as a result added to the Duxbury section of the 1639 list of freemen [ PCR 8:175]). In the Duxbury sections of the 1658 and 29 May 1670 (as "John Washburne, Seni[o]r") lists of freemen [ PCR 5:275, 8:198]. 

EDUCATION: He signed his name to a coroner's inquest. 

OFFICES: Grand jury, 4 June 1645 [ PCR 2:84]. Jury, 7 September 1642, 5 November 1644, 7 June 1648, 5 June 1666, 25 October 1668 [ PCR 2:126, 4:125, 7:32, 38, 150]. Appointed to view bounds, 1 June 1647, 10 June 1650 [ PCR 2:117, 122, 160]. Coroner's jury on the body of John Paybody [ PCR 5:29]. 

Duxbury surveyor of highways, 5 March 1638/9, 6 June 1649 [ PCR 1:117, 2:139]. Fined 4 March 1650/1 for failing to mend the highways [ PCR 2:165]. 

In the Duxbury section of the 1643 Plymouth Colony list of men able to bear arms [ PCR 8:190]. (The son of the immigrant was probably the John Washburn who was one of six men from Duxbury sent forth as soldiers in the "late expedition against the Narrohiggansets and their confederates," 28 October 1645 [ PCR 2:90].) 

ESTATE: Assessed 9s. in Plymouth tax list of 25 March 1633 [ PCR 1:10]. 

On 5 January 1635/6 John Washborne purchased from Edward Bompass a house and palisado, and the court confirmed the purchase [ PCR 1:33]. 

On 14 March 1635/6 John Washburne had rights for one cow on Mr. Capt. Standish's hay ground [ PCR 1:40]. Standish and Washburne had the same arrangement on 20 March 1636/7 [ PCR 1:56]. 

On 6 April 1640 William Sherman and "John Washborne" were "to have such accommodations of land as may be spared in the place where they desire" [ PCR 1:145]. On 5 April 1641 it was ordered that John Washbourne might have forty acres in Duxborrow "if it be there to be had" [ PCR 2:12]. 

On 4 March 1647[/8] Morris Truant of Duxbury and his wife Jane sold to "John Washburne" of Duxbury twenty acres of planting land, eight acres of planting land and two parcels of meadow [ PCR 12:153-54]. 

On 3 June 1662 "John W[ashburn] Senior as an ancient freeman and as a servant" was granted land [ PCR 4:18]. 

On 26 May 1666 "John Washburne Senior of Duxburrow," planter, deeded to "Phillip Washborne his true and natural son all that his dwelling house, outhouses and buildings situate in Duxburrow aforesaid, and all and singular the upland and meadow now thereunto belonging" [ MD 16:249-50, citing PCLR 3:61]. 

BIRTH: Baptized at Bengeworth, Worcestershire, 2 July 1597, son of John and Martha (Timbrell) (Stephens) Washburn [Washbourne Gen 47]. 

DEATH: Early in 1671 (apparently living on 17 March 1670/1 and 22 May 1671 when his son was called Jr., but died soon after, as the document was altered to call the son Sr. [ MD 16:248, 250, citing PCLR 3:209]. 

MARRIAGE: Bengeworth, Worcestershire, [23 November?] 1618 Margery Moore [Washbourne Gen 48]; sailed for New England in 1635 with her two sons [ Hotten 57]; no further record

COMMENTS: "Margerie Washborn," aged 49, and her two sons, "Jo[hn] Washborne," aged 14, and "Phillipp Washborne," aged 11, were passengers on the Elizabeth & Ann to New England in 1635 [ Hotten 57]. 

Washburn was taxed in 1633 but not in 1634, and then in March of 1635 he purchased some land, and soon after his wife and children arrived in New England. This sequence of events suggests that John Washburn returned to England late in 1633 to arrange for the passage of his family, and that he returned late in 1634, some months before the rest of his family sailed in the spring of 1635. 

On 2 January 1632/3 John Washburne failed to win his suit against Edward Dowty over a stolen pig [ PCR 1:6]. On 4 June 1638 John Washburne acknowledged that he owed the King £40 [ PCR 1:85]. On 3 May 1642 three indifferent men were selected to set the ancient bounds right between Mr. Thomas Beesbeach and John Washbourne [ PCR 2:39, 52]. 

BIBLIOGRAPHIC NOTE: In 1907 James Davenport published a study of a Washbourne family in England, and included a section on the immigrant to New England [The Washbourne Family of Little Washbourne and Wichenford in the County of Worcester (London 1907), cited above as Washbourne Gen, pp. 35-58]. In 1913 and 1914 George E. Bowman published a series of "Washburn Notes," the third installment having direct relevance to the immigrant [ MD 15:247-53, 16:47-53, 248-53]. Stratton's treatment of John Washburn and his two sons is especially useful [ Stratton 368-70] 

).

     Children of John9 Washburn (2777)XE "Washburn:John  (2777) (before 26 Nov 1620-12 Nov 1686)" and Elizabeth Mitchell (2778)XE "Mitchell:Elizabeth  (2778) (1629-)" (see #313) were as follows:
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i.
John8 (2770).XE "Washburn:John  (2770) (circa 1646-1717)"

 
ii.
Thomas (2787)XE "Washburn:Thomas  (2787) (-Mar 1730)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 14 & 50.) was born at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Deliverance Packard (2790)XE "Packard:Deliverance  (2790) (before 11 Jul 1652-before 24 Jul 1711)" before 29 Oct 1684 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 50.).  He married Sarah unknown (2793)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2793)" on 28 Jul 1708 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 51.).  He married Abigail Atkins (2794)XE "Atkins:Abigail  (2794) (circa 1655-after 13 Dec 1732)" on 24 Jul 1711 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 51.).  He died in Mar 1730.


 
iii.
Samuel (2788)XE "Washburn:Samuel  (2788) (circa 1652-24 Mar 1720)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 14 & 51.) was born circa 1652 at Duxbury, Mass., USA.  He married Deborah Packard (2789)XE "Packard:Deborah  (2789) (-after 1 Jul 1725)" circa 1677 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 51.).  He died on 24 Mar 1720 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.


 
iv.
Joseph (2791)XE "Washburn:Joseph  (2791) (circa 1653-20 Apr 1733)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 52.) was born circa 1653 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.  He married Hannah Latham (2792)XE "Latham:Hannah  (2792) (-after 1 Jul 1725)" circa 1677 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.  He died on 20 Apr 1733 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.


 
v.
Jonathan (2795)XE "Washburn:Jonathan  (2795) (-before 10 Jan 1726)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 53.) married Mary Vaughan (2796)XE "Vaughan:Mary  (2796) (before 1 Jul 1660-after 20 Jun 1727)" circa 1683 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 53.).  He died before 10 Jan 1726.


 
vi.
Benjamin (2797)XE "Washburn:Benjamin  (2797) (-1690)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 14.) died in 1690.

     (an unknown value) (unmarried).


 
vii.
Mary (2798)XE "Washburn:Mary  (2798) (circa 1661-28 Feb 1740)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 54.) was born circa 1661.  She married Samuel Kingsley (2799)XE "Kingsley:Samuel  (2799) (6 Jun 1662-17 Dec 1713)" on 30 Oct 1686 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 54.).  She died on 28 Feb 1740 at Easton, Massachusets, USA.


 
viii.
Elizabeth (2800)XE "Washburn:Elizabeth  (2800) (-27 Feb 1742)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 55.) married James Howard (2801)XE "Howard:James  (2801) (-1690)" circa 1685 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 55.).  She married Edward Sealy (2802)XE "Sealy:Edward  (2802) (-circa 1699)" circa 1692 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 55.).  She died on 27 Feb 1742 at Norton, Massachusetts, USA.


 
ix.
Jane (2803)XE "Washburn:Jane  (2803) (before 1672-before 21 Sep 1698)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 55.) was born before 1672 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.  She married William Orcutt (2804)XE "Orcutt:William  (2804) (circa 1665-10 Apr 1739)" before 28 Jul 1690 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 55.).  She died before 21 Sep 1698 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.


 
x.
James (2805)XE "Washburn:James  (2805) (15 May 1672-11 Jun 1749)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 56.) was born on 15 May 1672 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.  He married Mary Bowden (2806)XE "Bowden:Mary  (2806) (circa 1670-18 Dec 1747)" on 20 Dec 1693 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 56.).  He died on 11 Jun 1749 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA, at age 77.


 
xi.
Sarah (2807)XE "Washburn:Sarah  (2807) (circa 1675-1746)" was born circa 1675.  She married John Ames (2808)XE "Ames:John  (2808) (14 Apr 1672-1 Jan 1756)" on 12 Jan 1697 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 56.).  She died in 1746 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.

313.  Elizabeth9 Mitchell (2778)XE "Mitchell:Elizabeth  (2778) (1629-)" (Experience, #626) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 219 & 220 & Vol. IV, page 429.) was born in 1629 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.  She married John Washburn (2777)XE "Washburn:John  (2777) (before 26 Nov 1620-12 Nov 1686)" on 6 Dec 1645 at East Bridgewater, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA 
 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  She died.

314.  Thomas9 Lapham (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.) married Mary Tilden (3889)XE "Tilden:Mary  (3889) (before 20 May 1610-)" on 13 Mar 1637 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 451.).  He died in 1648 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 451.).

     (an unknown value) (Came on the Hercules, as servant to Nathaniel Tilden).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of Thomas9 Lapham (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" and Mary Tilden (3889)XE "Tilden:Mary  (3889) (before 20 May 1610-)" (see #315) were as follows:


 
i.
Elizabeth8 (3891)XE "Lapham:Elizabeth  (3891) (before 6 May 1638-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.) was born before 6 May 1638.  She was baptized on 6 May 1638 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.).  She died.


 
ii.
Mary (3892)XE "Lapham:Mary  (3892) (circa 1640-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.) was born circa 1640.  She died.


 
iii.
Thomas (3893)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3893) (1643-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.) was born in 1643.  He died.


 
iv.
Lydia (3894)XE "Lapham:Lydia  (3894) (circa 1644-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.) was born circa 1644.  She married Samuel Bates (3895)XE "Bates:Samuel  (3895)" on 20 Feb 1667 at Hingham, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 52.).  She died.
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v.
Rebecca (2771).XE "Lapham:Rebecca  (2771) (15 Mar 1645-1734)"

 
vi.
Joseph (3896)XE "Lapham:Joseph  (3896) (24 Sep 1648-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56.) was born on 24 Sep 1648 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 57, page 83.).  He died.

315.  Mary9 Tilden (3889)XE "Tilden:Mary  (3889) (before 20 May 1610-)" (Nathaniel, #630) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 56 and Vol. IV, page 301.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 20 May 1610.  She was baptized on 20 May 1610 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She married Thomas Lapham (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" on 13 Mar 1637 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 451.).  She married William Bassett (3890)XE "Bassett:William  (3890)" in 1651 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 451.).  She died.

316.  Edmond9 Tilson (1135)XE "Tilson:Edmond  (1135) (-25 Oct 1660)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 31.) married Joane unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.).  He died on 25 Oct 1660 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 31.).

     (an unknown value) (In the absence of any record as to when Edmond Tilson and wife Joane left England, or arrived in New England, we can only form conclusions from the first records at Plymouth, Mass., when he applied to the court, Sept. 3, 1638, for land at Woeberry Plaine, and same year on Oct. 1, the court granted him five acres. (The new county buildings are on Woeberry Plaine.) He was many times on the Jury, evidently a capable person and interested in the affairs of the Colony. He owned land at North River on the northerly bound of "the two mile", which was a part of Scituate, and at Lakenham, (now a part of Carver). His residence was at Plymouth, where he died Oct. 25, 1660. His widow, Mrs. Joane Tilson, married Giles Rickard, Sr., May 20, 1662. She died before 1669, from the fact that Giles Rickard, Sr., married 3d, Hannah, widow of John Churchill, in 1669. There is nothing to establish the birth of any of the following children. By comparing various records, I have been able to give some approximate dates, which may aid some. Without doubt three of the children were born in England

).

     Children of Edmond9 Tilson (1135)XE "Tilson:Edmond  (1135) (-25 Oct 1660)" and Joane unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" (see #297) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary8 (1137)XE "Tilson:Mary  (1137) (circa 1627-1660)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 31.) was born circa 1627 at England.  She married James Cole (2047)XE "Cole:James  (2047) (1625-1709)" on 23 Dec 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 169.).  She died in 1660 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 169.).


 
ii.
Elizabeth (1138)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1138) (1630-)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 32.) was born in 1630 at England.  She married Benajah Dunham (984)XE "Dunham:Benajah  (984) (1640-24 Dec 1680)" on 25 Oct 1660 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 233.

) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 26].).  She died.
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iii.
Ephraim (1133).XE "Tilson:Ephraim  (1133) (1635-Oct 1716)"

 
iv.
Joan (1139)XE "Tilson:Joan  (1139) (1638-)" was born in 1638.  She died.


 
v.
John (1140)XE "Tilson:John  (1140) (1640-before 29 Oct 1673)" was born in 1640.  He died before 29 Oct 1673.

317.  Joane9 unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" married Edmond Tilson (1135)XE "Tilson:Edmond  (1135) (-25 Oct 1660)" at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.).  She married Giles Rickard (1048)XE "Rickard:Giles  (1048) (1597-1684)" on 20 May 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 36].).

318.  William9 Hoskins (1146)XE "Hoskins:William  (1146) (-7 Sep 1695)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 33.) married Sarah Cushman (1148)XE "Cushman:Sarah  (1148)" on 2 Nov 1636 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 390.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:95].).  He married Ann Hinde (1147)XE "Hinde:Ann  (1147) (circa 1616-)" on 21 Dec 1638 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died on 7 Sep 1695 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 390.).

     (an unknown value) (In Plymouth Colonial Records we read: March 2, 1679-80. Court orders four pounds to be paid to William Hoskins by the treasurer, being poor, loosing all he had in the late war and being grown old an unable to labor

).

     Children of William9 Hoskins (1146)XE "Hoskins:William  (1146) (-7 Sep 1695)" and Ann Hinde (1147)XE "Hinde:Ann  (1147) (circa 1616-)" (see #299) were as follows:


 
i.
Sarah8 (1151)XE "Hoskins:Sarah  (1151) (16 Sep 1636-)" was born on 16 Sep 1636.  She died.


 
ii.
Mary (1152)XE "Hoskins:Mary  (1152) (circa 1640-)" was born circa 1640 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.


 
iii.
Rebecca (1153)XE "Hoskins:Rebecca  (1153) (circa 1643-)" was born circa 1643 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.
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iv.
Elizabeth (1134).XE "Hoskins:Elizabeth  (1134) (circa 1646-)"

 
v.
Son (1149)XE "Hoskins:son  (1149) (30 Nov 1647-)" was born on 30 Nov 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died.


 
vi.
William (1154)XE "Hoskins:William  (1154) (30 Nov 1649-)" was born on 30 Nov 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656.).  He died.


 
vii.
Samuel (1150)XE "Hoskins:Samuel  (1150) (8 Aug 1654-)" was born on 8 Aug 1654 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661.).  He died.

319.  Ann9 Hinde (1147)XE "Hinde:Ann  (1147) (circa 1616-)" (Mercer V. Tilson, The Tilson Genealogy from Edmond Tilson at Plymouth, N. E. 1638 to 1911 With brief sketches of the family in England back to 1066, Page 33.) was born circa 1616.  She married William Hoskins (1146)XE "Hoskins:William  (1146) (-7 Sep 1695)" on 21 Dec 1638 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died.

320.  Jonathan9 Morse (5333)XE "Morse:Jonathan  (5333) (1640-9 Jul 1709)" (William, #640) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.) was born in 1640 at Newbury, Massachusetts (The Morse Society.).  He married Mary Clark (5334)XE "Clark:Mary  (5334) (1643-before 1720)" (see #321), daughter of James Clark (5335)XE "Clark:James  (5335) (circa 1615-19 Dec 1674)" and Elinor Wright (5336),XE "Wright:Elinor  (5336) (circa 1621-)" on 3 May 1671 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Jean-Charles Volkmann., The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France (Editions Jena-Paul Gisserot).) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 521.).  He died on 9 Jul 1709 at Middleborough, Plymouth, Massachusetts (The Morse Society.).

     Children of Jonathan9 Morse (5333)XE "Morse:Jonathan  (5333) (1640-9 Jul 1709)" and Mary Clark (5334)XE "Clark:Mary  (5334) (1643-before 1720)" (see #321) were:
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i.
Joshua8 (1283).XE "Morse:Joshua  (1283) (1675-1754)"
321.  Mary9 Clark (5334)XE "Clark:Mary  (5334) (1643-before 1720)" (James, #642) (Also called Elisabeth) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (The Morse Society.) (The Morse Society.)XE "Morse:Mary  (5334) (1643-before 1720)" was born in 1643 at Rowly, Massachusetts (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France.).  She was christened on 24 May 1646 (The Morse Society.).  She married Jonathan Morse (5333)XE "Morse:Jonathan  (5333) (1640-9 Jul 1709)" (see #320), son of William Morse (5329)XE "Morse:William  (5329) (1614-29 Nov 1683)" and Elizabeth (--?--) (5330),XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5330) (circa 1614-circa 1690)" on 3 May 1671 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 521.).  She died before 1720 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France.).

322.  John9 Doten (1323)XE "Doten:John  (1323) (circa 1640-8 May 1701)" (Edward, #644) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 142.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 62.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413 & 423.) (Marion B. Cushman, Edward Doty of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 7.) was born circa 1640 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).  He married Elizabeth Cooke (1324)XE "Cooke:Elizabeth  (1324) (18 Jan 1649-21 Nov 1692)" circa 1667 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.).  He married Sarah Jones (1340)XE "Jones:Sarah  (1340) (12 Sep 1671-after 10 Jul 1752)" on 22 Nov 1694 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.).  He died on 8 May 1701 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. The will of John Dotey, Senr. of Plymouth, signed 15 Apr. 1701, proved 3 June 1701, names eldest son John Dotey; wife Sarah; four youngest sons Isaac Dotey, Samuel Dotey, Elisha Dotey and Josiah Dotey; dau. Elizabeth Moss: four youngest daus. Martha, Sarah, Patience, and Desire; wife Sarah to be sole executrix, with brother [in law] John Rickard to asist her. His inventory was taken 17 May 1701 and presented 3 June 1701 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 413.).

     (an unknown value) (In April 1661 he received a musket in a distribution of guns and swords belonging to the town of Plymouth.

On 2 July 1667, liberty was granted to Edward Dotey and his brother John Dotey to look out for some supplies of land. On 17 Jan. 1667/8 John Dotey and Thomas Dotey sold to John Smith their seventh parts of a share of Dartmouth land from the estate of their father.

On 9 May 1671, Faith Phillips sold the house and lands left to her by her husband Edward Doty to her son John Dotey of Plymouth.

On 7 July 1676, in a dispute between John Doten and the executors and overseers of the will of Jacob Cooke, the Court ordered that John Doten receive two acres of marsh or a sum of money to be paid out of the estate.

In 1686, John, Edward, Jacob, Elizabeth, Isaac, Samuel and Elisha, the children of Elizabeth Dotey, were baptized in the Plymouth Church.

On 1 Apr. 1690, the Court gave John Dotey of Plymouth, the nephew of Thurston and Henry Clark, control of their estate, to dispose of it as needed to defray the expenses of their care.

On 9 July 1695 John Dotey and Thomas Faunce were appointed the guardians of the orphan children of Edward Dotey, namely Samuel, Mercy and Benjamin).

     Children of John9 Doten (1323)XE "Doten:John  (1323) (circa 1640-8 May 1701)" and Elizabeth Cooke (1324)XE "Cooke:Elizabeth  (1324) (18 Jan 1649-21 Nov 1692)" (see #323) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:


 
i.
John8 (1341)XE "Doten:John  (1341) (24 Aug 1668-29 Apr 1746)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.) was born on 24 Aug 1668 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He married Mehitable Nelson (2618)XE "Nelson:Mehitable  (2618) (5 Apr 1670-        )" on 2 Feb 1693 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).  He married Hannah Sherman (2619)XE "Sherman:Hannah  (2619) (20 Feb 1688-15 Apr 1754)" on 25 Apr 1745 at Plympton, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).  He died on 29 Apr 1746 at Plympton, Mass., USA, at age 77 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).


 
ii.
Edward (1342)XE "Doten:Edward  (1342) (28 Jun 1671-before 15 Apr 1701)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.

) was born on 28 Jun 1671 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He died before 15 Apr 1701.


 
iii.
Jacob (1343)XE "Doten:Jacob  (1343) (27 May 1673-before 15 Apr 1701)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.) was born on 27 May 1673 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He died before 15 Apr 1701.


 161.
iv.
Elizabeth (1281).XE "Doten:Elizabeth  (1281) (10 Feb 1675/76-1772)"

 
v.
Isaac (1344)XE "Doten:Isaac  (1344) (25 Oct 1678-15 Apr 1725)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.) was born on 25 Oct 1678 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He married Martha Faunce (2620)XE "Faunce:Martha  (2620) (16 Dec 1680-9 Sep 1745)" on 17 Mar 1703 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough, Page 54.).  He died on 15 Apr 1725 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 46.


 
vi.
Samuel (1345)XE "Doten:Samuel  (1345) (31 Jan 1683-before 20 May 1740)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.) was born on 31 Jan 1683 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He married Mercy Cobb (2621)XE "Cobb:Mercy  (2621) (1 Jan 1705-        )" on 10 Apr 1727 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).  He died before 20 May 1740 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
vii.
Elisha (1346)XE "Doten:Elisha  (1346) (13 Jul 1686-circa 1754)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.) was born on 13 Jul 1686 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He married Hannah Horton (2622)XE "Horton:Hannah  (2622) (-after 24 Dec 1753)" on 1 Feb 1709 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).  He died circa 1754 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
viii.
Josiah (1347)XE "Doten:Josiah  (1347) (Oct 1689-15 Jan 1767)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.) was born in Oct 1689 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  He died on 15 Jan 1767 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 77 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).


 
ix.
Martha (1348)XE "Doten:Martha  (1348) (Oct 1692-3 May 1775)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.) was born in Oct 1692 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 5.).  She married Ebenezer Curtis (2623)XE "Curtis:Ebenezer  (2623)" on 7 Oct 1718 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).  She died on 3 May 1775 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 82.

323.  Elizabeth9 Cooke (1324)XE "Cooke:Elizabeth  (1324) (18 Jan 1649-21 Nov 1692)" (Jacob, #646) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 423.) was born on 18 Jan 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 322.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656, [p. 5].).  She married John Doten (1323)XE "Doten:John  (1323) (circa 1640-8 May 1701)" circa 1667 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.).  She died on 21 Nov 1692 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 43 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 322.).

336.  Nathaniel9 Fish (4796)XE "Fish:Nathaniel  (4796) (circa 1618-1693)" (Thomas Fysh, #672) (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 11.) was born circa 1618 at East Farndon, Northamptonshire, England.  He was baptized on 20 Jun 1619 at East Farndon, Northamptonshire, England.  He married Lydia Miller (4797)XE "Miller:Lydia  (4797) (1640-        )" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 267.).  He died in 1693 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W.

     (an unknown value) (With his two older brothers, Jonathan and John, he landed at Lynn, in the Massachusetts Bay Colony, in 1635, age about 17, and in 1637 the three brothers helped form a new colony on Cape Cod, which was named Sandwich. Land was granted to them there, and John and Nathaniel remained upon their farms until their death.

It would appear that Nathaniel married more than once, as the inventory of his estate, taken Mar. 14, 1693/94 and entered at Plymouth Probate Court, Oct. 4, 1694, mentions his last wife, Lydia Fish, as sister of John Miller of Yarmouth, Mass. Another record states that Nathaniel Fish m. Lydia Miller, sister of John Miller, in 1643.

Nathaniel Fish owned one-half of a church pew at Sandwich, in 1658. There is record of the birth of seven sons, but by which wife is not known. It is quite certain that but two, if any, of them were born to Lydia, as she was but fifteen when Jonathan was born).

     Children of Nathaniel9 Fish (4796)XE "Fish:Nathaniel  (4796) (circa 1618-1693)" and Lydia Miller (4797)XE "Miller:Lydia  (4797) (1640-        )" (see #337) were as follows:


 168.
i.
Thomas8 (4784).XE "Fish:Thomas  (4784) (1665-        )"

 
ii.
Samuel (4798)XE "Fish:Samuel  (4798) (10 Aug 1668-1692)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 348.) was born on 10 Aug 1668.  He died in 1692. Unm. His will, dated Feb. 2, 1691/92, proved Mar. 22, 1691/92 bequeathed his aged father eight pounds, and also mentioned his brother Jonathan.

337.  Lydia9 Miller (4797)XE "Miller:Lydia  (4797) (1640-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 348.

) was born in 1640 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 267.).  She married Nathaniel Fish (4796)XE "Fish:Nathaniel  (4796) (circa 1618-1693)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 267.).

340.  John9 Butler (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)" (John, #680) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48 & vol. I, page 207.) was born in 1650.  He was baptized on 6 Jul 1651 at Dorchester, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  He was baptized on 6 Jul 1651 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  He married Priscilla Norton (1405)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)" circa 1671 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died before 3 Oct 1738.

     (an unknown value) (He was called gentleman and captain in the records. He was a leading citizen in the town and served as coroner for the county. In 1691 he was sergeant of the Militia Company. He lived on Great Neck. The distinction of being the first whaler on the Vineyard cannot be awarded with certainty, before 1700, but there is on record, immediately thereafter, an account which gives us the first name of a whale fisherman among our inhabitants. The entry is as follows: Martha's Vineyard 1702-3. The marks of the whales killed by John Butler and Thomas Lothrop - one whale lanced near or over the shoulder blade, near the left shoulder blade only; - Another killed woth an iron for ward in the left side marks SS; and upon the right side marked with a pocket knife T. L.; - And the other an iron hole over the right shoulder blade, with two lance holes in the same side, one in the belly. These whales wer all killed about the middle of February last past, all great whales between six and seven and eight foot bone, which are all gone from us. A true account given by John Butler from us and recorded. This places John Butler, as our first known native whaler on record, with Thomas Lothrop, husband of Richard Sarson's daughter, as his mate, and doubtless the "tryhouse" above referred to was once his property. That Butler had been engaged in this occupation for some time, and was an expert is amply evidenced by the number of his catches enumerated in one month, and we may conclude that it had been his business for a considerable time before 1700 even

).  As Abigail Butler (1499)XE "Butler:Abigail  (1499) (1722-)"'s father, John (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)", presented her at her baptism on 9 Dec 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 13.).

     Children of John9 Butler (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)" and Priscilla Norton (1405)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)" (see #341) were as follows:


 170.
i.
Henry8 (1402).XE "Butler:Henry  (1402) (circa 1672-1759)"

 174.
ii.
John (1437).XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)"

 
iii.
Thomas (1438)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1438) (circa 1676-Oct 1721)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1676.  He married Ann Torrey (2265)XE "Torrey:Ann  (2265) (3 Mar 1682-1 Oct 1733)" on 18 Sep 1702 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 102.).  He died in Oct 1721.

     (an unknown value) (Resided Edgartown, (Farm Neck), farmer).


 
iv.
Nicholas (1439)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1439) (1678-28 Jan 1772)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) was born in 1678.  He married Sarah Ripley (2266)XE "Ripley:Sarah  (2266) (circa 1702-Oct 1727)" on 6 Sep 1726 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  He married Thankful Marchant (2267)XE "Marchant:Thankful  (2267) (1717-1762)" on 1 Jan 1730 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50 & 202.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  He died on 28 Jan 1772 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 232.).


 
v.
Joyce (1440)XE "Butler:Joyce  (1440) (circa 1680-after 1733)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49 & 339.) was born circa 1680.  She married Joseph Newcomb (2268)XE "Newcomb:Joseph  (2268) (1683-after 1732)" on 20 Nov 1705 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49 & 339.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  She died after 1733.


 
vi.
Samuel (1441)XE "Butler:Samuel  (1441) (1682-24 Feb 1765)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) was born in 1682.  He married Elizabeth Clay (2269)XE "Clay:Elizabeth  (2269)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.).  He died on 24 Feb 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 231.).


 
vii.
Onesimus (1442)XE "Butler:Onesimus  (1442) (circa 1684-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1684.  He died.


 
viii.
Simeon (1443)XE "Butler:Simeon  (1443) (circa 1685-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) was born circa 1685.  He married Hannah Cheney (2270)XE "Cheney:Hannah  (2270) (14 Mar 1689-Feb 1769)" on 11 Sep 1712 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.).  He died.


 
ix.
Zephaniah (1444)XE "Butler:Zephaniah  (1444) (circa 1687-15 Sep 1721)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) was born circa 1687.  He married Thankful Daggett (1569)XE "Daggett:Thankful  (1569) (6 Apr 1696-2 Jul 1766)" circa 1715 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.).  He died on 15 Sep 1721.


 
x.
Malachi (1445)XE "Butler:Malachi  (1445) (circa 1689-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) was born circa 1689.  He married Jemima Daggett (1568)XE "Daggett:Jemima  (1568) (1694-)" circa 1718 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 160.).  He died.


 
xi.
Priscilla (1446)XE "Butler:Priscilla  (1446) (1691-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born in 1691.  She married Thomas Snow (2271)XE "Snow:Thomas  (2271)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.).  She died.


 
xii.
Gamaliel (1447)XE "Butler:Gamaliel  (1447) (1692-24 Feb 1765)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) was born in 1692.  He married Anna Vincent (2272)XE "Vincent:Anna  (2272) (1713-)" on 11 Apr 1732 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.).  He married Mercy Dunham (2273)XE "Dunham:Mercy  (2273) (1716-Feb 1801)" on 5 Dec 1748 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51 & 165.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 100.).  He died on 24 Feb 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 231.).

341.  Priscilla9 Norton (1405)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)" (Nicholas, #682) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1655.  She married John Butler (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)" circa 1671 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She died.

348.  John9 Butler (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)" (John, #680) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48 & vol. I, page 207.) was born in 1650.  He was baptized on 6 Jul 1651 at Dorchester, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  He was baptized on 6 Jul 1651 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  He married Priscilla Norton (1405)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)" circa 1671 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died before 3 Oct 1738.

     (an unknown value) (He was called gentleman and captain in the records. He was a leading citizen in the town and served as coroner for the county. In 1691 he was sergeant of the Militia Company. He lived on Great Neck. The distinction of being the first whaler on the Vineyard cannot be awarded with certainty, before 1700, but there is on record, immediately thereafter, an account which gives us the first name of a whale fisherman among our inhabitants. The entry is as follows: Martha's Vineyard 1702-3. The marks of the whales killed by John Butler and Thomas Lothrop - one whale lanced near or over the shoulder blade, near the left shoulder blade only; - Another killed woth an iron for ward in the left side marks SS; and upon the right side marked with a pocket knife T. L.; - And the other an iron hole over the right shoulder blade, with two lance holes in the same side, one in the belly. These whales wer all killed about the middle of February last past, all great whales between six and seven and eight foot bone, which are all gone from us. A true account given by John Butler from us and recorded. This places John Butler, as our first known native whaler on record, with Thomas Lothrop, husband of Richard Sarson's daughter, as his mate, and doubtless the "tryhouse" above referred to was once his property. That Butler had been engaged in this occupation for some time, and was an expert is amply evidenced by the number of his catches enumerated in one month, and we may conclude that it had been his business for a considerable time before 1700 even

).  As Abigail Butler (1499)XE "Butler:Abigail  (1499) (1722-)"'s father, John (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)", presented her at her baptism on 9 Dec 1722 at Church of Christ, Congregational, Edgartown, Mass., USA (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 13.).

     Children of John9 Butler (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)" and Priscilla Norton (1405)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)" (see #341) were as follows:


 170.
i.
Henry8 (1402).XE "Butler:Henry  (1402) (circa 1672-1759)"

 174.
ii.
John (1437).XE "Butler:John  (1437) (circa 1674-after 6 Feb 1754)"

 
iii.
Thomas (1438)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1438) (circa 1676-Oct 1721)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1676.  He married Ann Torrey (2265)XE "Torrey:Ann  (2265) (3 Mar 1682-1 Oct 1733)" on 18 Sep 1702 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 102.).  He died in Oct 1721.

     (an unknown value) (Resided Edgartown, (Farm Neck), farmer).


 
iv.
Nicholas (1439)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1439) (1678-28 Jan 1772)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) was born in 1678.  He married Sarah Ripley (2266)XE "Ripley:Sarah  (2266) (circa 1702-Oct 1727)" on 6 Sep 1726 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  He married Thankful Marchant (2267)XE "Marchant:Thankful  (2267) (1717-1762)" on 1 Jan 1730 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50 & 202.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  He died on 28 Jan 1772 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 232.).


 
v.
Joyce (1440)XE "Butler:Joyce  (1440) (circa 1680-after 1733)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49 & 339.) was born circa 1680.  She married Joseph Newcomb (2268)XE "Newcomb:Joseph  (2268) (1683-after 1732)" on 20 Nov 1705 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49 & 339.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 101.).  She died after 1733.


 
vi.
Samuel (1441)XE "Butler:Samuel  (1441) (1682-24 Feb 1765)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) was born in 1682.  He married Elizabeth Clay (2269)XE "Clay:Elizabeth  (2269)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.).  He died on 24 Feb 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 231.).


 
vii.
Onesimus (1442)XE "Butler:Onesimus  (1442) (circa 1684-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born circa 1684.  He died.


 
viii.
Simeon (1443)XE "Butler:Simeon  (1443) (circa 1685-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.) was born circa 1685.  He married Hannah Cheney (2270)XE "Cheney:Hannah  (2270) (14 Mar 1689-Feb 1769)" on 11 Sep 1712 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 50.).  He died.


 
ix.
Zephaniah (1444)XE "Butler:Zephaniah  (1444) (circa 1687-15 Sep 1721)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) was born circa 1687.  He married Thankful Daggett (1569)XE "Daggett:Thankful  (1569) (6 Apr 1696-2 Jul 1766)" circa 1715 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.).  He died on 15 Sep 1721.


 
x.
Malachi (1445)XE "Butler:Malachi  (1445) (circa 1689-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) was born circa 1689.  He married Jemima Daggett (1568)XE "Daggett:Jemima  (1568) (1694-)" circa 1718 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 160.).  He died.


 
xi.
Priscilla (1446)XE "Butler:Priscilla  (1446) (1691-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.) was born in 1691.  She married Thomas Snow (2271)XE "Snow:Thomas  (2271)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 49.).  She died.


 
xii.
Gamaliel (1447)XE "Butler:Gamaliel  (1447) (1692-24 Feb 1765)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) was born in 1692.  He married Anna Vincent (2272)XE "Vincent:Anna  (2272) (1713-)" on 11 Apr 1732 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.).  He married Mercy Dunham (2273)XE "Dunham:Mercy  (2273) (1716-Feb 1801)" on 5 Dec 1748 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51 & 165.) (Vital Records of Edgartown, Massachusetts, to the year 1850, Page 100.).  He died on 24 Feb 1765 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 231.).

349.  Priscilla9 Norton (1405)XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)" (Nicholas, #682) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1655.  She married John Butler (1404)XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)" circa 1671 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She died.

350.  Thomas9 Daggett (1501)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1501) (circa 1658-28 Aug 1726)" (Thomas, #700) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127 & 128.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 87.) was born circa 1658 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 35.).  He married Elizabeth Hawes (1564)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (1564) (5 Oct 1662-25 Dec 1732)" on 22 Jan 1683 at Bristol, R.I., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 225.).  He died on 28 Aug 1726 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 35.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 87.).

     (an unknown value) (Carpenter. Resided in Edgartown. Held rank of Lieutenant and later Captain (1691) in town militia. He rem. to Bristol, R. I., about 1685 but returned to the Vineyard 1689-91 where he d. 25 Aug. 1726.

He may possible have been a constable in Rehoboth 3 June 1684. He was called "Lieutenant" in land transfers until 1697. In 1705, he was called "Captain."

 "He was a peaceable man and well inclined and of good understanding," wrote Parson Homes

).

     Children of Thomas9 Daggett (1501)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1501) (circa 1658-28 Aug 1726)" and Elizabeth Hawes (1564)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (1564) (5 Oct 1662-25 Dec 1732)" (see #351) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel8 (1565)XE "Daggett:Samuel  (1565) (10 Jun 1685-before 1726)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 159.) was born on 10 Jun 1685 at Bristol, R.I., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 107.).  He was baptized on 22 Jul 1688 at Bristol, R.I., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 159.).  He married Mary Pease (2226)XE "Pease:Mary  (2226) (17 Feb 1685-Apr 1767)" on 11 Jul 1705 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 159.).  He died before 1726 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 159.).


 
ii.
Hannah (1566)XE "Daggett:Hannah  (1566) (27 May 1687-after 25 Dec 1732)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) was born on 27 May 1687 at Bristol, R.I., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 107.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  She married Benjamin Norton (2227)XE "Norton:Benjamin  (2227) (circa 1685-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 374.).  She died after 25 Dec 1732 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).


 175.
iii.
Elizabeth (1495).XE "Daggett:Elizabeth  (1495) (1690-after 1753)"

 
iv.
Timothy (1567)XE "Daggett:Timothy  (1567) (1692-17 Sep 1775)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) was born in 1692 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 107.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  He married Mary Smith (1674)XE "Smith:Mary  (1674) (1693-2 Oct 1781)" on 6 May 1717 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  Timothy (1567)XE "Daggett:Timothy  (1567) (1692-17 Sep 1775)" was separated from his wife, Mary Smith (1674)XE "Smith:Mary  (1674) (1693-2 Oct 1781)" in 1750 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.).  He died on 17 Sep 1775 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).


 
v.
Jemima (1568)XE "Daggett:Jemima  (1568) (1694-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) was born in 1694 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  She married Malachi Butler (1445)XE "Butler:Malachi  (1445) (circa 1689-)" circa 1718 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 51.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 160.).  She died.


 
vi.
Thankful (1569)XE "Daggett:Thankful  (1569) (6 Apr 1696-2 Jul 1766)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.) was born on 6 Apr 1696 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  She married Zephaniah Butler (1444)XE "Butler:Zephaniah  (1444) (circa 1687-15 Sep 1721)" circa 1715 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.).  She married Brotherton Daggett (2228)XE "Daggett:Brotherton  (2228) (circa 1686-5 Mar 1740)" circa 1723 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 130.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.).  She married Jabez Athearn (2229)XE "Athearn:Jabez  (2229) (10 Oct 1678-29 Nov 1761)" after 1752 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 21.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.).  She died on 2 Jul 1766 at either in Edgartown or Tisbury, Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA, at age 70 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 21.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 162.).


 
vii.
Mary (1570)XE "Daggett:Mary  (1570) (8 Aug 1698-13 Dec 1779)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) was born on 8 Aug 1698 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  She married Matthew Norton (2230)XE "Norton:Matthew  (2230) (22 Apr 1696-5 Dec 1779)" in 1722 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 375.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 163.).  She died on 13 Dec 1779 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 81 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 163.).


 
viii.
Thomas (1571)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1571) (1700-7 May 1783)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.

) was born in 1700 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  He married Love Coffin (2231)XE "Coffin:Love  (2231) (1702-Oct 1789)" in 1723 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.).  He died on 7 May 1783 at Edgartown, Mass., USA. He left a widdow Aet 81, they had lived together 60 years (Thaxter) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).


 
ix.
Benjamin (1572)XE "Daggett:Benjamin  (1572) (23 Jan 1701-Dec 1791)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) was born on 23 Jan 1701 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  He married Margery Homes (2232)XE "Homes:Margery  (2232) (23 Jan 1711-May 1783)" on 11 Jun 1734 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 164.).  He died in Dec 1791 at son Benjamin's home, Fox Island, at age 90. a Deacon of th Chh in this Place a man of eminent Piety & Virtue removed from this Place to Fox Island where he died of a Cancer, ae 90 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 164.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 106.).

     (an unknown value) ("A man of eminent piety and virtue" wrote Parson Thaxter. He had been deacon of the church in Edgartown for over forty years. He rem. in his old age to Fox Island, Me

).


 
x.
Desire (1573)XE "Daggett:Desire  (1573) (1702-1726)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) was born in 1702 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 36.).  She died in 1726.

351.  Elizabeth9 Hawes (1564)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (1564) (5 Oct 1662-25 Dec 1732)" (John, #702) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 5 Oct 1662 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA. born 5 October 1661 (sic); probably ought to be 1662; she certainly was not born two days before her parents' marriage (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 14.).  She married Thomas Daggett (1501)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1501) (circa 1658-28 Aug 1726)" on 22 Jan 1683 at Bristol, R.I., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 225.).  She died on 25 Dec 1732 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 70 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 35.).

352.  John9 Smith Rev. (1635)XE "Smith:John Rev. (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)"

XE "Smith:John Rev.  (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)" (Thomas, #704) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Vol. II, page 236.) was born on 11 Mar 1614 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 100, page 56.).  He married Susanna Hinckley (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)" on 13 Jun 1643 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 683.).  He died on 22 Oct at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 136.).

     (an unknown value) (Although this name is somewhat numerous, there is no occasion for making it, in consequence, the subject of levity. The first of the name in New England, has, most certainly, stamped his individuality upon the topography and history of the country. He added to the fame of an  adventurer, that of a scholar and an observer of current events. And he also seems to have been a gentleman and a man of affairs. It is easy enough to see that the name was derived from the occupation. A smith was a valiant worker on metals, and was thus in the social scale, superior to the villeins, or other adherents of the lords of the soil. In time the number increased and became influential. The ancestor of the second Smith line on the Vineyard was a resident of Barnstable before 1643; adm. chh. 6 Oct. 1644; freeman 5 June 1651; served as Deputy to the General Court; app. to attend meetings of the Quakers and hear their defence and reported in their favor. Withdrew from the communion of the church for conscientious reasons; was "declared noe member for that reason only" but restored later; preached occasionally at Barnstable. In Sept. 1661, he led in organizing a church which a council refused to approve. Accepted call to be pastor at Sandwich and served there 1673-89. He m. 13 June 1643 Susanna Hinckley, dau. of Samuel and sister of Gov. Thomas Hinckley of Plymouth Colony).

     Children of John9 Smith Rev. (1635)XE "Smith:John Rev. (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)"

XE "Smith:John Rev.  (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)" and Susanna Hinckley (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)" (see #353) all born at Barnstable, Mass., USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel8 (1677)XE "Smith:Samuel  (1677) (Apr 1644-1717)" was born in Apr 1644 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  He died in 1717 at Woodbridge, NJ (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 100, page 56.).


 
ii.
Sarah (1678)XE "Smith:Sarah  (1678) (May 1645-)" was born in May 1645 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  She died.


 
iii.
Ebenezer (1679)XE "Smith:Ebenezer  (1679) (22 Nov 1646-Dec 1646)" was born on 22 Nov 1646 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Vol. II, page 236.).  He died in Dec 1646 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Vol. II, page 236.).


 
iv.
Mary (1680)XE "Smith:Mary  (1680) (21 Nov 1647-)" was born on 21 Nov 1647 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  She died.


 
v.
Dorcas (1681)XE "Smith:Dorcas  (1681) (18 Aug 1650-)" was born on 18 Aug 1650 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  She married Ephraim Andross (4387)XE "Andross:Ephraim  (4387)" at Woodbridge, NJ (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.).  She died.


 
vi.
John (1682)XE "Smith:John  (1682) (22 Feb 1652-24 Feb 1652)" was born on 22 Feb 1652 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Vol. II, page 236.).  He died on 24 Feb 1652 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Vol. II, page 236.).


 366.
vii.
Shobal (1683).XE "Smith:Shobal  (1683) (Mar 1654-5 Apr 1734)"

 
viii.
John (1684)XE "Smith:John  (1684) (Sep 1656-)" was born in Sep 1656 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  He died.
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ix.
Benjamin (1633).XE "Smith:Benjamin  (1633) (7 Jan 1658-4 Jul 1720)"

 
x.
Ichabod (1685)XE "Smith:Ichabod  (1685) (7 Jan 1661-1722)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born on 7 Jan 1661 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 300.).  He died in 1722 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).


 
xi.
Elizabeth (1686)XE "Smith:Elizabeth  (1686) (Feb 1663-)" was born in Feb 1663 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  She died.


 
xii.
Thomas (1687)XE "Smith:Thomas  (1687) (Feb 1665-9 Dec 1700)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born in Feb 1665 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  He married Abigail Skiffe (4388)XE "Skiffe:Abigail  (4388) (-20 Apr 1715)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).  He died on 9 Dec 1700 at age 35 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).


 
xiii.
Joseph (1688)XE "Smith:Joseph  (1688) (6 Dec 1667-)" was born on 6 Dec 1667 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  He married Ann Fuller (4177)XE "Fuller:Ann  (4177)" on 29 Apr 1689 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.).  He died.

353.  Susanna9 Hinckley (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)" (Samuel, #706) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, (HC 31 Box 5116, Wasilla, Alaska 99687, Privately Printed, March 1990).) was born before 6 Nov 1625 at England.  She was baptized on 6 Nov 1625 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.).  She married John Smith Rev. (1635)XE "Smith:John Rev. (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)"

XE "Smith:John Rev.  (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)" on 13 Jun 1643 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 683.).  She died.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

354.  Thomas9 Mayhew (1559)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1559) (1620-1657)" (Thomas, #708) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 301.) was born in 1620 at Southampton, England.  He married Jane Paine (1661)XE "Paine:Jane  (1661) (1625-)" in 1647 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA.  He died in 1657 at sea.

     (an unknown value) (Came to N.E. in 1631 and res. at Medford and Watertown until his removal to the Vineyard in 1642. All the known details of his life have been related in previous volumes (I, pp, 127-30 et. seq) and nothing further has since been discovered. He was on board of that ship of which Garrett was master, from Boston to London in Nov. 1657, with Davis, Ince, and Pelham, young scholars, the hope of the country, fellow-passeng. never heard of, so proper. lament. by Gookin, as in his Hist. Coll. may be read. He sail. from B. the same day in another ship for London).  His Ancestral File Number is 8P7F-Z7.

     Children of Thomas9 Mayhew (1559)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1559) (1620-1657)" and Jane Paine (1661)XE "Paine:Jane  (1661) (1625-)" (see #355) were as follows:


 
i.
Matthew8 (1662)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1662) (1648-19 May 1710)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 302.) was born in 1648.  He married Mary Skiffe (2209)XE "Skiffe:Mary  (2209) (24 Mar 1650-1 May 1690)" on 1 Mar 1674 at Chilmark, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  He died on 19 May 1710.


 
ii.
Thomas (1663)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1663) (1650-21 Jul 1715)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 302.) was born in 1650.  He married Sarah Skiffe (2210)XE "Skiffe:Sarah  (2210) (12 Oct 1646-30 Dec 1740)" circa 1673 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.

).  He died on 21 Jul 1715.


 
iii.
John (1664)XE "Mayhew:John  (1664) (1652-2 Feb 1689)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 302.) was born in 1652.  He married Elizabeth Hilliard (2211)XE "Hilliard:Elizabeth  (2211) (22 Jan 1655-1746)" before 1674 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  He died on 2 Feb 1689.


 
iv.
Jerusha (1665)XE "Mayhew:Jerusha  (1665) (circa 1654-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 301.) was born circa 1654.  She married Joseph Wing (2212)XE "Wing:Joseph  (2212) (-1679)" circa 1676 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 828.).  She married Thomas Eaton (2213)XE "Eaton:Thomas  (2213) (-1688)" on 12 Dec 1684 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 241.).  She died.
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v.
Jedidah (1634).XE "Mayhew:Jedidah  (1634) (1656-6 Jan 1736)"
355.  Jane9 Paine (1661)XE "Paine:Jane  (1661) (1625-)" (Thomas, #710) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 185.) was born in 1625 at London, Middlesex, England.  She married Thomas Mayhew (1559)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1559) (1620-1657)" in 1647 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA.  She married Richard Sarson (1666)XE "Sarson:Richard  (1666)" circa 1666 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 651.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8P7G-OC.

356.  James9 Claghorn (1697)XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)" (Henry, #712) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 180.) was born in 1630.  He married Abigail Lombard (1698)XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)" on 6 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He died on 11 Oct 1683 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.).

     (an unknown value) (Like all the Scotch prisoners sent to New England, was farmed out and undoubtedly, his time was sold to Bernard Lombart (Lumbert) of Barnstable sometime bef. 1654. He retaliated on his master by taking his dau. Abiah Lombard to wife 6 Jan. 1654-4. He removed into Yarmouth 1662 and there lived during the remainder of his life. He was rated at Yarmouth in 1675 for the expenses of King Philip's War. His wife committed suicide by hanging in Oct. 1677, having been for sometime mentally afflicted. His will 11 Oct. 1683 was pro. 25 Oct. following and he d. bet. those dates.

The first records we have are rather scant, as James Claghorn lived in Yarmouth, near Barnstable, Mass., after his marriage in January, 1653-54, and the town records were burned in the fire which occurred there in 1674.

But we find he was admitted to citizenship in 1657. In April, 1664, "It was ordered that when ye Great Lotts are laid out that Bernard Lumbart and James Claghor shall look out a parcel of land for said James Claghorn at twenty acres which ye said Bernard Lumbart demands is due  *  *  *  is granted to James Claghorn and in addition of five acres more." Confirmed May 13th, 1680.

In Suffolk Deeds, Book VI, 253, May, 1671, we find the following:

"Thomas Walley, of Barnstable, made over to Capt. John Brookhauen, gentleman and Citizen of London, dwelling house and land, uplands and meadow lieing and being in Yarmouth in the government aforesaid and now occupied by Ja. Claghorne for ten pounds per annum  *  *  *  also with 20 acres of land."

In the Barnstable Town Records, Vol. I, page 32, we find, "Twenty acres of Upland West by land of Casly and Easterly by the Commons occupied by James Claghorn in February 11th, 1674."

James Claghorn was appointed Hayward on March 21st, 1663-1664. In the Barnstable Records, Vol. II, Part II, page 27, we find Jas. Claghorn appraising for Bernard Lumbert.

About this time the trouble with the Indians which had been brewing for some time came to a head, and an active revolt began under the guidance of King Phillip.

The people of Barnstable were probably further removed than any of the other smaller towns from the seat of the trouble and at first did no wish to take an active part in the war.

However, they were enventually compelled to and in Freeman's "Cape Cod" we find that James Claghorn was impressed for service. Later he served two more enlistments, and contributed to the war fund.

There is some doubt in our minds whether this was James the father or James the oldest son, but in the Will of the father, made in June, 1683, we find a bequest of his "gun and sword" to his son, Shubael. The Will spells the name Cleagehorne).

     Children of James9 Claghorn (1697)XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)" and Abigail Lombard (1698)XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)" (see #357) were as follows:


 
i.
James8 (1701)XE "Claghorn:James  (1701) (29 Jan 1654-27 Mar 1723)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 29 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He died on 27 Mar 1723 at age 69.

     (an unknown value) (Served in King Philip's War 1676 and Expedition to Quebec 1690).


 
ii.
Mary (1702)XE "Claghorn:Mary  (1702) (26 Oct 1655-1706)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 26 Oct 1655 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Joseph Davis (2276)XE "Davis:Joseph  (2276) (-1690)" on 28 Mar 1682 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 207.).  She died in 1706.


 
iii.
Elizabeth (1703)XE "Claghorn:Elizabeth  (1703) (Apr 1658-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born in Apr 1658 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She died.


 
iv.
Sarah (1704)XE "Claghorn:Sarah  (1704) (3 Jan 1659-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 3 Jan 1659 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She died.


 
v.
Robert (1705)XE "Claghorn:Robert  (1705) (27 Oct 1661-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 27 Oct 1661 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He died.
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vi.
Shubael (1695).XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)"

 
vii.
Thomas (1947)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1947) (circa 1665-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born circa 1665.  He died.


 
viii.
Experience (1948)XE "Claghorn:Experience  (1948) (circa 1667-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born circa 1667.  She died.

357.  Abigail9 Lombard (1698)XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)" (Bernard Lumbard, #714) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 388.) was born in 1634 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA.  She married James Claghorn (1697)XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)" on 6 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She died on 21 Aug 1677 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8NSC-V4.

358.  John9 Lovell (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)" (Robert, #716) was born in 1627 at England.  He married Jane Hatch (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)" circa 1648 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 475.).  He died in 1709 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 475.).

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

     Children of John9 Lovell (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)" and Jane Hatch (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)" (see #359) were as follows:


 
i.
John8 (1718)XE "Lovell:John  (1718) (before 5 Nov 1651-)" was born before 5 Nov 1651.  He died.


 
ii.
Elizabeth (1719)XE "Lovell:Elizabeth  (1719) (before 19 May 1656-21 Jan 1657)" was born before 19 May 1656.  She died on 21 Jan 1657.


 
iii.
Phebe (1720)XE "Lovell:Phebe  (1720) (19 May 1656-)" was born on 19 May 1656.  She died.


 
iv.
John (1721)XE "Lovell:John  (1721) (8 May 1658-)" was born on 8 May 1658.  He died.


 
v.
Elizabeth (1722)XE "Lovell:Elizabeth  (1722) (28 Oct 1660-)" was born on 28 Oct 1660.  She died.


 
vi.
James (1723)XE "Lovell:James  (1723) (23 Oct 1662-)" was born on 23 Oct 1662.  He died.


 
vii.
William (1724)XE "Lovell:William  (1724) (24 Feb 1665-)" was born on 24 Feb 1665.  He died.


 
viii.
Andrew (1725)XE "Lovell:Andrew  (1725) (28 Jun 1668-)" was born on 28 Jun 1668.  He died.
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ix.
Jane (1696).XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)"
359.  Jane9 Hatch (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)" (William Hatche, #718) (Hatch Family 1952 (NEGHS G-HAT 145).) was born before 19 Jun 1631.  She was baptized on 19 Jun 1631 at Wye, Kent, England.  She married John Lovell (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)" circa 1648 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 475.).  She died in 1709 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 475.).

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

360.  James9 Claghorn (1697)XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)" (Henry, #712) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page 180.) was born in 1630.  He married Abigail Lombard (1698)XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)" on 6 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  He died on 11 Oct 1683 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.).

     (an unknown value) (Like all the Scotch prisoners sent to New England, was farmed out and undoubtedly, his time was sold to Bernard Lombart (Lumbert) of Barnstable sometime bef. 1654. He retaliated on his master by taking his dau. Abiah Lombard to wife 6 Jan. 1654-4. He removed into Yarmouth 1662 and there lived during the remainder of his life. He was rated at Yarmouth in 1675 for the expenses of King Philip's War. His wife committed suicide by hanging in Oct. 1677, having been for sometime mentally afflicted. His will 11 Oct. 1683 was pro. 25 Oct. following and he d. bet. those dates.

The first records we have are rather scant, as James Claghorn lived in Yarmouth, near Barnstable, Mass., after his marriage in January, 1653-54, and the town records were burned in the fire which occurred there in 1674.

But we find he was admitted to citizenship in 1657. In April, 1664, "It was ordered that when ye Great Lotts are laid out that Bernard Lumbart and James Claghor shall look out a parcel of land for said James Claghorn at twenty acres which ye said Bernard Lumbart demands is due  *  *  *  is granted to James Claghorn and in addition of five acres more." Confirmed May 13th, 1680.

In Suffolk Deeds, Book VI, 253, May, 1671, we find the following:

"Thomas Walley, of Barnstable, made over to Capt. John Brookhauen, gentleman and Citizen of London, dwelling house and land, uplands and meadow lieing and being in Yarmouth in the government aforesaid and now occupied by Ja. Claghorne for ten pounds per annum  *  *  *  also with 20 acres of land."

In the Barnstable Town Records, Vol. I, page 32, we find, "Twenty acres of Upland West by land of Casly and Easterly by the Commons occupied by James Claghorn in February 11th, 1674."

James Claghorn was appointed Hayward on March 21st, 1663-1664. In the Barnstable Records, Vol. II, Part II, page 27, we find Jas. Claghorn appraising for Bernard Lumbert.

About this time the trouble with the Indians which had been brewing for some time came to a head, and an active revolt began under the guidance of King Phillip.

The people of Barnstable were probably further removed than any of the other smaller towns from the seat of the trouble and at first did no wish to take an active part in the war.

However, they were enventually compelled to and in Freeman's "Cape Cod" we find that James Claghorn was impressed for service. Later he served two more enlistments, and contributed to the war fund.

There is some doubt in our minds whether this was James the father or James the oldest son, but in the Will of the father, made in June, 1683, we find a bequest of his "gun and sword" to his son, Shubael. The Will spells the name Cleagehorne).

     Children of James9 Claghorn (1697)XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)" and Abigail Lombard (1698)XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)" (see #357) were as follows:


 
i.
James8 (1701)XE "Claghorn:James  (1701) (29 Jan 1654-27 Mar 1723)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 29 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He died on 27 Mar 1723 at age 69.

     (an unknown value) (Served in King Philip's War 1676 and Expedition to Quebec 1690).


 
ii.
Mary (1702)XE "Claghorn:Mary  (1702) (26 Oct 1655-1706)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 26 Oct 1655 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She married Joseph Davis (2276)XE "Davis:Joseph  (2276) (-1690)" on 28 Mar 1682 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 207.).  She died in 1706.


 
iii.
Elizabeth (1703)XE "Claghorn:Elizabeth  (1703) (Apr 1658-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born in Apr 1658 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She died.


 
iv.
Sarah (1704)XE "Claghorn:Sarah  (1704) (3 Jan 1659-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 3 Jan 1659 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  She died.


 
v.
Robert (1705)XE "Claghorn:Robert  (1705) (27 Oct 1661-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born on 27 Oct 1661 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 19.).  He died.
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vi.
Shubael (1695).XE "Claghorn:Shubael  (1695) (1663-before 1729)"

 
vii.
Thomas (1947)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1947) (circa 1665-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born circa 1665.  He died.


 
viii.
Experience (1948)XE "Claghorn:Experience  (1948) (circa 1667-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 82.) was born circa 1667.  She died.

361.  Abigail9 Lombard (1698)XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)" (Bernard Lumbard, #714) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 388.) was born in 1634 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA.  She married James Claghorn (1697)XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)" on 6 Jan 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 153.).  She died on 21 Aug 1677 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8NSC-V4.

362.  John9 Lovell (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)" (Robert, #716) was born in 1627 at England.  He married Jane Hatch (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)" circa 1648 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 475.).  He died in 1709 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 475.).

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

     Children of John9 Lovell (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)" and Jane Hatch (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)" (see #359) were as follows:


 
i.
John8 (1718)XE "Lovell:John  (1718) (before 5 Nov 1651-)" was born before 5 Nov 1651.  He died.


 
ii.
Elizabeth (1719)XE "Lovell:Elizabeth  (1719) (before 19 May 1656-21 Jan 1657)" was born before 19 May 1656.  She died on 21 Jan 1657.


 
iii.
Phebe (1720)XE "Lovell:Phebe  (1720) (19 May 1656-)" was born on 19 May 1656.  She died.


 
iv.
John (1721)XE "Lovell:John  (1721) (8 May 1658-)" was born on 8 May 1658.  He died.


 
v.
Elizabeth (1722)XE "Lovell:Elizabeth  (1722) (28 Oct 1660-)" was born on 28 Oct 1660.  She died.


 
vi.
James (1723)XE "Lovell:James  (1723) (23 Oct 1662-)" was born on 23 Oct 1662.  He died.


 
vii.
William (1724)XE "Lovell:William  (1724) (24 Feb 1665-)" was born on 24 Feb 1665.  He died.


 
viii.
Andrew (1725)XE "Lovell:Andrew  (1725) (28 Jun 1668-)" was born on 28 Jun 1668.  He died.
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ix.
Jane (1696).XE "Lovell:Jane  (1696) (28 Jul 1670-)"
363.  Jane9 Hatch (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)" (William Hatche, #718) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 19 Jun 1631.  She was baptized on 19 Jun 1631 at Wye, Kent, England.  She married John Lovell (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)" circa 1648 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 475.).  She died in 1709 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 475.).

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

364.  John9 Gibbs (2385)XE "Gibbs:John  (2385) (12 Sep 1644-30 Apr 1725)" (Thomas, #728) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, pages 56 to 58.) was born on 12 Sep 1644 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. the sonn of Thomas Gibbs was borne the 12th of September 1634 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 130.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 55 & 56.).  He married Jane Blackwell (2386)XE "Blackwell:Jane  (2386) (circa 1650-after 2 Apr 1711)" circa 1669 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 300.).  He married Elizabeth Swift (2399)XE "Swift:Elizabeth  (2399)" on 9 Nov 1716 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.).  He died on 30 Apr 1725 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 80 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 136.).

     (an unknown value) (One John Gibbs served on a coroner's jury in the case of Thomas Fish of Sandwich, 25 June 1664. If this was the man he was quite young, assuming his birth in 1644, as we believe it was. It would seem certainly he who served on the grand jury 1 June 1669. He and his father are listed 15 July 1678 among Sandwich men who had taken the Oath of Fidelity. "Att this Court," 27 Oct. 1680, "Thomas Tupper...appointed to be lieuftenant of the Military Company of Sandwich and John Gibbs to be Ensign bearer thereof". In 1686 he served on both the grand and petit juries) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.).

     Children of John9 Gibbs (2385)XE "Gibbs:John  (2385) (12 Sep 1644-30 Apr 1725)" and Jane Blackwell (2386)XE "Blackwell:Jane  (2386) (circa 1650-after 2 Apr 1711)" (see #365) all born at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, were as follows:


 
i.
John8 (2387)XE "Gibbs:John  (2387) (28 Jul 1670-before 16 Jun 1734)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 61 & 62.) was born on 28 Jul 1670 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 134.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.).  He married Hesther Swift (2388)XE "Swift:Hesther  (2388) (circa 1668-Oct 1736)" at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 300.).  He died before 16 Jun 1734.


 
ii.
Benjamin (2389)XE "Gibbs:Benjamin  (2389) (Dec 1673-1757)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, 63.) was born in Dec 1673 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 134.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.).  He married Anne Tupper (2390)XE "Tupper:Anne  (2390) (14 Dec 1679-)" on 4 Jan 1699 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 63.).  He died in 1757 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W.


 
iii.
Job (2391)XE "Gibbs:Job  (2391) (27 Apr 1676-before 22 Aug 1716)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 66.) was born on 27 Apr 1676 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 134.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.).  He married Judith Bates (2392)XE "Bates:Judith  (2392) (17 Apr 1678-before 1745)" on 28 Apr 1697 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 66.).  He died before 22 Aug 1716.


 
iv.
Joshua (2393)XE "Gibbs:Joshua  (2393) (Apr 1679-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.) was born in Apr 1679 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 134.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.).  He died.


 
v.
Caleb (2394)XE "Gibbs:Caleb  (2394) (Aug 1681-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.) was born in Aug 1681 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 134.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.).  He died.
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vi.
Barnabas (2313).XE "Gibbs:Barnabas  (2313) (24 Jun 1684-5 May 1724)"
365.  Jane9 Blackwell (2386)XE "Blackwell:Jane  (2386) (circa 1650-after 2 Apr 1711)" (Michael, #730) was born circa 1650.  She married John Gibbs (2385)XE "Gibbs:John  (2385) (12 Sep 1644-30 Apr 1725)" circa 1669 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 300.).  She died after 2 Apr 1711 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 183.).

366.  Shobal9 Smith (1683)XE "Smith:Shobal  (1683) (Mar 1654-5 Apr 1734)" (John, #352) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.) was born in Mar 1654 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 45.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Vol II, page 236.).  He married Mary Swift (2315)XE "Swift:Mary  (2315) (7 Apr 1659-5 Mar 1682)" on 6 Feb 1678 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  He married Abigail Skiff (2316)XE "Skiff:Abigail  (2316) (2 May 1666-7 Jun 1718)" on 3 Dec 1684 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  He married Anne Samsonn (2317)XE "Samsonn:Anne  (2317)" on 12 Oct 1725 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  He died on 5 Apr 1734 at Chilmark, Mass., USA, at age 80 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 48, page 451.).

     Children of Shobal9 Smith (1683)XE "Smith:Shobal  (1683) (Mar 1654-5 Apr 1734)" and Abigail Skiff (2316)XE "Skiff:Abigail  (2316) (2 May 1666-7 Jun 1718)" (see #367) were as follows:


 
i.
Lydia8 (2318)XE "Smith:Lydia  (2318) (4 Oct 1685-8 Nov 1745)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 435 & 449.)XE "Skiffe:Lydia  (2318) (4 Oct 1685-8 Nov 1745)" was born on 4 Oct 1685 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  She married James Skiffe (2370)XE "Skiffe:James  (2370) (10 Mar 1689-6 Jan 1724)" circa 1717 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 435.).  She died on 8 Nov 1745 at age 60.


 
ii.
Dorcas (2319)XE "Smith:Dorcas  (2319) (7 Jan 1687-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born on 7 Jan 1687 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  She married Benjamin Burgess (2371)XE "Burgess:Benjamin  (2371)" on 15 May 1712 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).  She died.


 
iii.
Remember (2320)XE "Smith:Remember  (2320) (9 Feb 1689-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.) was born on 9 Feb 1689 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  She married Samuel Jennings (2372)XE "Jennings:Samuel  (2372)" on 20 Jan 1713 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 449.).  She died.
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iv.
Abigail (2314).XE "Smith:Abigail  (2314) (5 May 1691-after 10 Feb 1733)"

 
v.
Shubael (2321)XE "Smith:Shubael  (2321) (19 Feb 1703-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, pages 449 & 450.) was born on 19 Feb 1703 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  He married Martha Mayhew (2373)XE "Mayhew:Martha  (2373) (20 Feb 1706-)" in Jan 1724 at Chilmark, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 450.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 48, page 449.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Res. Chilmark, perhaps moved to New Jersey).

367.  Abigail9 Skiff (2316)XE "Skiff:Abigail  (2316) (2 May 1666-7 Jun 1718)" (Stephen Skiffe, #734) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 433.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 155.) was born on 2 May 1666 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 107.).  She married Shobal Smith (1683)XE "Smith:Shobal  (1683) (Mar 1654-5 Apr 1734)" on 3 Dec 1684 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 448.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 108.).  She died on 7 Jun 1718 at Chilmark, Mass., USA, at age 52. Rev. William Homes of Chilmark wrote in his diary: June 8, 1718 * * * Mrs. Abigail Smith departed this life last night about 9 of the clock. She was a peaceable, prudent, pious woman. On Tuesday last in the afternoon she had a fever with a pain in her head, Shortness of breath, with a great defluction yet though she had a small cough she raised nothing. I visited her Friday and Saturday. She seemed to have a good hope and well grounded of her future well being.

June 9, 1718. Thid day being Monday I attended the funeral fo Mrs.Abigail Smith, wife of Mr. Shubael Smith of Chilmark (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 48, page 451.).

368.  Johannes9 Holsaert (3872)XE "Holsaert:Johannes  (3872) (circa 1640-10 Aug 1687)" (Tomes, #736) was born circa 1640 at Flanders, Holland.  He married Suzanna Unknown (3874)XE "Unknown:Suzanna  (3874)" in 1658 at Holland (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He married Johanna (Hanneke) Havens (3873)XE "Havens:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3873) (circa 1640-1732)" on 7 Jan 1672 at Sluys, Holland (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died on 10 Aug 1687 at Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).

     (an unknown value) (Emigrated from Sluys, Holland probably during the summer of 1685 with his second wife, Johanna Havens, as their "pass ports" are dated 1684 and 1685. It is possible that at least two of his children may have preceded him.

15 May 1687, the were witness to the baptism, at Flatlands, of Christian child of Christian Jost De Bane and Elisabeth Drabbe. Flatbush church records.

A letter to Johanna dated 15 Mar 1719, from her son Benjamin Holsaert, who wrote from Freehold, Monmouth Co., NJ announcing the birth of his son Anthony. Original letter is between pages 39 & 41 of the Deacons Accounts, Flatlands Reformed Church.

Account of her personal estate by her daughter Margarita (Holsaert) van Westervelt, dated Jan 1732.

Reasoning for dates of Johannes death: in the Documentary History of NY Vol 1, pages 659-661, is a list of all the Dutch of Kings Co. NY who had to take the "Oath of Allegiance" in the year 1687. The list is by towns and is dated 26-30 Sept 1687. The name of Johannes does not appear. Flatlands church recrods show he gave 10 guilden in alms 10 Aug 1687 so he must have died in the time frame 10 Aug - 26 Sep 1687.

1666

1. 4 April 1666 admitted to the Dutch Reformed Church of Sluys by certificate. Listed as Johannes Holtsaert. From Mormon microfilm #1,517,360. According to Peter Kranveld, a native of Holland, the particular ending of his last name is indicative of Flemish origin. No record of Johannes' place of birth.

1672

1.  7 January 1672 (bans having been first published in December 1671) Jan Hollsaert, widower of Suzanna So--- married Annaken ------- a young woman from Prussegen. Origin of information from same source as 1 above. This would be his wife Johanna Havens. The location of Prussegen has not yet been determined. Nor do we know the last name of his first wife Suzanna. Earlier, when we did not know of a second marriage, we had presumed Johanna to be about the same age as Johannes (b ca 1640.) This was because we had assumed that their child Johannes was born about 1658. It had always bothered me because it would have ment that she had died in her 80's and it would have made her about 49 at the time of her second marriage to Dirck Stoffels. Eldon Olson pointed out that her pre-nuptal agreement with Dirck Stoffels seemed to indicate that she might have more children, which would clearly be impossible at the age of 49. It now seems quite possible that she could have been as much as ten years younger than Johannes which would have made her 39 at her marriage and in her 70's at her death. It would also imply that Johannes already had children at the time of her marriage.

1680

1.  (HP-1) A letter in Dutch dated 22 February 1680 "To Johanna Havens, Greystreet, from Johannes Holsaart living in "denmendt" at Sluys. This letter has been but imperfectly translated and a second attempt is being made to have a better job done. It has been presumed that the Grey street might be in London as one document refers to her as his "English wife."  

Commentary: The letters referred to in this work are (from notes by Stanley Ross): "The earliest records which tell us of the origin of this family in American are from family papers of the Westervelt and Holsaert families which are preserved in Dutch and English in the records of the Reformed Dutch Church, Flatlands, Kings County, New York. These came to be part of the church records in the following way, to quote a note from Microfilm #888, 716 obtained from Salt Lake City. 'DEACONS PAPERS' (Of Reformed Dutch Ch., Flatlands), 'Abraham and Margarita Westervelt papers, 1680-1732. In return for assurances of lifetime support, Abraham Willemse (Van Westervelt) and wife Margarita Holsaert in January 1729/30 conveyed their real and personal property to the deacons.  The deacons then or subsequently came into possession of the following papers of these families. (1) 1696-1729/30 of the Westervelts, viz, Willem Lubbertse and wife Dirckje Roelofse, and their son Abraham Willemse and wife Margarita Holsaert (2) 1680-1732, of Margarita's parents, Johannes Holsaert and wife Johanna Havens, the latter married 2nd to Dirck Stoffels Langestraat.  Another item belonging to the second lot has been pasted into the volume of early deacons' accounts, a letter of March 15, 1719 to Johanna Langestraat from her son Benjamin Holsaert.  Removed from scrapbook." Stanley Ross then went on to itemize each paper. They will be discussed individually in following paragraphs and will be identified as WP-1, etc. for the Westervelt papers and HP-1, etc. for the Holsaert papers.

1685

1. (HP-5) This is a letter of transferal from Johannes' church in Sluys, and reads as follows: "This is to testify that Johannes Holsaert and his wife Johanna Havens are members of the Christian (faith ?) were sent to this congregation (in order to teach ?).

He was (so well versed that ?) he Joh. Holsaert was (able ?) to work (for the church ?), read to the congregation and lead the singing in surrounding churches and congregations and especially our church with sufficient ableness. That he was also (accepted/chosen) to have the confidence in these places.  Also, that he was a school master of which (he has shown written

proof/his writing can be shown as proof) and he can show this to anyone.  His wife has also taught small children the first principles and basics of reading in the catechism (and women/old women) have praised her since a long time.  Therefore I request brothers and leaders of the congregation of Jesus Christ in Nieuw Nederland or Nieuw Engeland and all others whether they have

religious or temporal or political (official?) functions and whoever is shown this document to (receive?) the aforementioned persons as such and in particular in their Christian tutelage and society (congregation?) also to accept ?? Done in Sluys in Flanders in our church meeting on 25th April 1685.

in the name of us all

H. Birkins, preacher

here in Sluys"

Commentary: The translator Peter Kranveld made several observations:

"Two things in this document are striking to me: though the handwriting is regular and that of a experienced writer, the spelling leaves to be desired and some phrases could have been better put.  I would not be surprised if the signers' name turned out to be Birkens or Berkens.  My guess is that this kind of document was a bit unusual.  Probably the good preacher would write mostly for his own purposes: notes on sermons or entries in registers, not testimonials. 

The other thing I noted are the texts "in the name of us all" and "Done...in our church meeting."  Unless Mr. Birkins had little authority this also points to him being not sure of himself and wanting the involvement of others.

You have another fascinating document here.  The documents I have translated lead me to believe that your ancestors came to America not to "start a new life" as the cliche goes but to continue their old life in other (hopefully better) circumstances."

2. (HP-5)   This document is Johannes' "passport" and reads: "The noble mayors and aldermen of the city of Sluis are making known, certify and declare with the present document that Johannes Holsaert is a native and inhabitant of our city who has always behaved with .... and with honesty just as his housewife and as these same people and their family have the intention to .... to Nieuw Nederland which we have permitted to these same people as we permit it with this document request thus the following from each and everyone to whom this document shall be shown to believe this document completely and to give the same Johannes Holsaert and his housewife all aid and assistance to which our truth to happen.  This document is confirmed in the knowledge of the truth with the counterseal of the city and the signature of the city Registrar the 10th April 1685."

3. (HP-6) Not yet translated but dated 14 April 1685 regarding a loan of money (300 guilden) and signed by Cornelys van Hovgen, and the second signed by J. Holsaart. It is presumed that this loan was obtained to purchase passage to America.

4. Both parents baptized a son Gerardus Holsaert on 5 September 1685 in the Dutch Reformed Church, Flatlands.

Commentary: This would make the passage of at least a portion of the family during the period 14 April through 5 September 1685.

1686

1.  (HP-7) Three receipts regarding the above loan, the first dated 14 July 1686; the second dated 11 July 1687; and the third dated 26 December 1688, all signed by Cornelys van Hovgen

1687

Commentary: Second payment of the travel loan. See 1685 para 3 above.

1. 15 May 1687 witness to baptism at Flatlands of Christian, child of Christian Jost De Bane and Elizabeth Drabbe.  Flatbush church records.

2.  10 August 1687. Flatlands church records show that Johanna haeffns gave 20 gulder 3 struver and Johannes gave 10 gulden in alms. Film #888,716 Reformed Dutch Church, Flatlands.

3.  In the Documentary History of New York, Vol. 1, pages 659-661, there is a list of all the Dutch of Kings Co., New York who had to take the Oath of Allegiance in the year 1687. The list is by towns and is dated 26-30 September 1687. Johannes was not found on the list.

Commentary: Taking the above two paragraphs at face value it would assume that Johannes died between 10 August and 26/30 September 1687.

1688

Commentary: Third and final payment of the travel loan. See 1685 para 3 above

).  Johannes (3872)XE "Holsaert:Johannes  (3872) (circa 1640-10 Aug 1687)" was present at Gerardus Holsaert (3876)XE "Holsaert:Gerardus  (3876) (before 5 Sep 1685-before 1698)"'S christening on 5 Sep 1685 at Dutch Reformed Church, Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA. This baptism was shortly after the arrival of the parents from Holland (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).

     Children of Johannes9 Holsaert (3872)XE "Holsaert:Johannes  (3872) (circa 1640-10 Aug 1687)" and Johanna (Hanneke) Havens (3873)XE "Havens:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3873) (circa 1640-1732)" (see #369) were as follows:


 
i.
Margarita (Cretie)8 (3877)XE "Holsaert:Margarita (Cretie)  (3877) (circa 1674-after 1738)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born circa 1674 at Sluys, Holland (Granvyl  G. Hulse, Johannes Holsaert "Our Immigrant Ancestor".).  She married Abraham Williamse Van westervelt (3878)XE "Van westervelt:Abraham Williamse  (3878) (-after 1738)" on 31 Mar 1694 at Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died after 1738 at Flatlands, New York City, New York (Granvyl  G. Hulse, Johannes Holsaert "Our Immigrant Ancestor".).

     (an unknown value) (1687

1. Oath of Allegiance 26-30 September 1687 Flatlands, Abraham Willemsen, 25 years in America.

1694

1. Married 31 March 1694 to Abraham Williamse van Westervelt.

1697

1. 22 April 1697. To wife Margarita Williamse all estate for life. In case my wife shall have issue, then all estate to such child or children.  Mother Dericke Williamse to be maintained out of income of estate during her life.  Witnesses: Henry ffilken, Agyas Vandycke & and Katherine ffilkin. (Recorded 23 April 1697, Liber 2 of Conveyances, page 297)

2.  Will of Dericke Williamse Van Westravelt of Town of New Utrecht, Kings Co., widow of William Van Westravelt, late of Kings Co., deceased.  Dated 1 September 1697. Gives to son Abram Williamse Van Westravelt all lands &c., either within or without the province of New York.  Executor; son Abraham Williamse Van Westravelt.  Witnesses: Henry ffilkin, justice; Cornelius Van Houwegen, Johannes Schenck, Catharine ffilkin. (Recorded 22 August 1704, in Liber 3 of Conveyances, page 10.

1698

1. In the Anthony Wanshaer deed of 20 September 1698, listing Johannes' children, she is called by her husband's patronymic "Cretie Williamse."

2.  Abraham Westervelt in the 1698 census of New Utrecht.

1705

1. On 12 November 1705 Abraham van Westerveldt sold a farm in New Utrecht to Anthony Holsaert (D02/002/001) of Flatlands. Probably the same one Abraham inherited from his mother's will (Westerveldt Papers.)

1711

1. Abraham van Westervelt granted a tavern license in 1711.

1730

1. On 17 January 1729/30 he and his wife deeded all property to the Deacons of Flatlands Church in return for support by the Deacons for the rest of their lives.

1732

1. Margarita van Westervelt gave an account of the personal estate of her late mother Johanna (Havens) Langstraat in 1732. (Westervelt papers.)

1738

1. Both living on 1738 census of Flatlands. Three in household

).


 
ii.
Anthony (3879)XE "Holsaert:Anthony  (3879) (1678-1724)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born in 1678 at Sluys, Holland (Granvyl  G. Hulse, Johannes Holsaert "Our Immigrant Ancestor".).  He died in 1724 at Kings Co., New York, USA.

     (an unknown value) (Comentary:  One child  presumed, John, born about 1705.

1698

1. Mentioned in the 20 September 1698 deed of Anthony Wanshaer as a son of Johannes Holsaert. Not of age.

1704

1. Lived at Flatlands until 1704 when on 12 November he bought from Abraham van Westervelt (his brother in law) a farm in New Utrecht.

1705

1. Purchased a house and village plot in New Utrecht 10 March 1705/6 from Cornelis Janse Van Cleef.

1710

1. On 27 August 1710 he was paid by the Dutch Church of New Utrecht 108 gulder for his services.

1715

1. With brother Benjamin was a member of Company 111 of Kings County Militia in 1715. (Documentary History of New York)

2. Took the Oath of Allegience in 1715.

1720

1. Presumed to be the one who in 1720 speculated in land, buying 400 acres at Readington, New Jersey (Trenton Deeds). Next to him William Barcalow bought 300 acres. (Book 2, pp 306.)

1723

1. Listed as shoemaker of New Utrecht. Copy of letter dated 11 July 1723 from John Griggs to him living at Goowanus, Kings Co., requesting six pairs of shoes.

2. Wife Rachel granted administration of his estate at Brooklyn on 9 January 1723/4.  Wills, NYC, Liber 9, pp428

).
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iii.
Benjamin (3847).XE "Holsaert:Benjamin  (3847) (circa 1682-1733)"

 
iv.
Gerardus (3876)XE "Holsaert:Gerardus  (3876) (before 5 Sep 1685-before 1698)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born before 5 Sep 1685 at Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA.  He was christened on 5 Sep 1685 at Dutch Reformed Church, Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA. This baptism was shortly after the arrival of the parents from Holland (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died before 1698.

369.  Johanna (Hanneke)9 Havens (3873)XE "Havens:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3873) (circa 1640-1732)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) was born circa 1640 at Holland.  She married Johannes Holsaert (3872)XE "Holsaert:Johannes  (3872) (circa 1640-10 Aug 1687)" on 7 Jan 1672 at Sluys, Holland (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  Johanna (3873)XE "Havens:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3873) (circa 1640-1732)" had marriage banns to Dirck Stoffels Langstraat (3880)XE "Stoffels Langstraat:Dirck  (3880)" published on 18 Feb 1691 (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died in 1732 at Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA.

     (an unknown value) (1684

1. (HP-2) Johanna Havens was a far sighted person and made some very serious plans prior to her departure to the New World. She took midwife training. The first document (HP-3) is in effect her training certificate and the second is her license:

(Comment by the translator, Peter Kranveld: The handwriting for the following document is unclear and contains spelling errors. The signature seems childish. The document seems to have been written by someone who apparently was not used to writing alot.)

"On the 25th of June 1684: Having been requested by Johanna Havens, housewife of Johannes Holsaert to have her taught by Johanna Bovy, sworn city midwife within Sluis in Flanders, the occupation of a midwife, which occupation she would like to (exercise?) and which she would not want to start without having her knowledge and ability of the aforesaid occupation measured. So is it that I, city midwife have instructed her ?? orally about everything and she has also in my presence exercised the aforesaid occupation with her own hands.  So is it that I have judged her able with God's blessing to exercise the aforesaid occupation and I have found it necessary to give her a decent attest.

Johanna Bovy"

2. (HP-3) (Comment by the translator: The handwriting for the following document is very clear and contains no spelling errors.  The signature is professional.  The decoration is apparently to prevent additions.  The document seems to have been written by someone who was used to writing documents like these. It must have been a more valuable document than the one above.)

"I, the undersigned declare and attest with this (document) that Anna Havens, housewife of Johannes Holsaert has appeared before me and she has requested me to be questioned and examined by me on the subject of the occupation of midwife.  Which I could in no case refuse to her. But I have questioned the same Anna Havens and searched her (knowledge) on everything relevant to that matter and (I have) judged her able after examination.  So

that thus (I neither) decently could nor wanted to refuse her this attest.  So that she can with the aforesaid (attest) exercise this (occupation) without hinder in the country and in the cities wherever it may be for all (witnesses?) and magistrates.  Done at Sluis this 11th September 1684.

Vredenbach

Doctor of Medicine"

3.  (HP-4) "Mayors and Aldermen of the city of Sluys are making known, certify and declare that Johanna Havens, housewife of Johannes Holsaert who has married with her husband in this city many years ago (has also been translated as "who has been married with her husband and lived in this city for many years") has behaved herself exemplary and honestly without giving rise to remarks on her acts or behavior as a married woman. Address all

those that this document is shown to believe this document completely and to acknowledge the same Johanna Havens for this (i.e. to acknowledge what is said in this document about Johanna Havens.) This document is confirmed in the knowledge of the truth with the counterseal of the city and the signature of the city Registrar the -th November 1684."

Commentary: As this "passport" was issued in November 1684 and her husband's in April of 1685. We have speculated that Johanna may have gone back to England to spend the winter with her parents prior to leaving for the New World with her husband during the summer of 1685.

1691

1.  Marriage agreement dated 18 February 1690/1. 

To all Christian people to whome this present writting shall come: Know yee that i Dirck Stoffelson living att Ammesfortt in kings County upon Long Island in ye province of New York weduwaer of Catharina van Lewen deceased, being now remaried with Johanna Havens, widdow of Johannis Holsard deceased my present wyf;  Therefore know yee thatt i dirck stoffelsen above sd being in perfect memorie make hereby my present loving wyf Johanna haavens in my last will and testament my sole joynty heir and Executrix of all my whole Estate both moeveable and unmoeveable onely Excepted my Eldest son stoffell

direcksen shall enjoye a Lumm for weavings so as ye Lummm comes from ye workman; in the time of a yeare from ye date hereof above his tother brother and sister butt all my whole Estate as above sd is Left unto my Loving wfy Johanna haavens; she to bee my ioynty heir & Executrix duering her Lifetime; without any molestation or disturbance by my Children, or by theire procurement, att any time or times whatsoever hereafter; remarrien or nott remarrien, my loving wife above sd shall remaine my ioynty heire & Executrix.

And Therefore I johanna havens widdow of Johannes holsard deceased, Living in ye same Towne Countie & province above specefied, being now remarried with dirk stoffelsen my present husband I johanna above sd being in perfect memorie, doe hereby as my last will and Testament, make my present Loving husband my sole & ioynty heir & Executour of all my whole Estate moveable and unmoveable none Excepted and if God should be pleased to give us Children together in our mariage, them children then with the rest of our fore children; are to have Equall portion together after our decease, butt ye surviving of us Either male or female is to possess both whole Estates of both sides without molestation or disturbance of both parties their children or any Else of theire procurement att any Time or Times whattsoever hereafter; this is our will so to doe being in perfect memorie, And in Confirmation both parties have hereunto sett our hands this 18 of februa; 1690/1. Dirck Stoffels Johanna havens. supsribed & Acknowleged in the presence of us: Carsten Jansen Barent ijuriansen John Emans Clerk.

1696

1. Old First Dutch Reformed Church of Brookly, New York First Book of Records 1660-1752. April 1696 Johanna and Dirk witnesses to baptism

of Dirk, son of Stoffel Langestraat and Maijke Laanen. The Dirk Langestraat and Claasje Langestraat witnessed the baptism of Dirk, son of Stoffel Langestraat and Maijke Laanen.

1698

1.  In a deed dated 20 September 1698 Anthony Wanshaer of Flatlands mentions the following "surviving children" of Johannes Holsaert. Johannes (apparently of age); Anthony (not of age); Margarita (called by her husband's patronymic "cretie Williamse");and Benjamin. It is presumed that Gerrit, the child baptized in 1685 had died young as he was not mentioned. Possibly died before 1690 as his mother in her will with Derik Stoffel Langestraat mentions only four "fore" children.

1704

1.  (HP-9) Two receipts (?). The first dated New York, May 11, 1704 for 33 gulden (loaned ?) to Johanna "Avens"; the second dated 2 January 1709/10.  Neither have yet been translated.

1710

Commentary: see paragraph 1704 para 1 above relating to a "loan?"                         

1719

1. (See comments in the last half of 1672 para 1). A letter to     Johanna

dated 15 March 1719 from her son Benjamin Holsaert, who wrote from Freehold, Monmouth Co., N.J. announcing the birth of his son Anthony.  Original letter is between pages 39 and 41 of the Deacon's Accounts, Flatlands Reformed Church. It commences "Honored Mother."

1732

1.  (HP-10) In English dated "the first day of (July ?) 1732, and signed by Margarita Westervelt's mark in which she gives an inventory of her mother's personal goods, stating, "The above said goods is all my mother Johanna Langestraat left at her decease so far as I know" 

).

370.  Matthias (Tys) Pietersen9 Luyster (3867)XE "Luyster:Matthias (Tys) Pietersen  (3867) (before 1656-)" (Pieter, #740) (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 85.) was born before 1656 (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 85.).  He married Cornelia Kip (3868)XE "Kip:Cornelia  (3868) (before 12 Jun 1661-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Tys Pietersen Luyster, eldest son of Pieter Cornelisz, came while an infant to America with his parents in 1656 as determined by the statement hat he had been in this country 31 yrs when he took the Oath of Allegiance in 1687. He married Cornelia Kip, babt. 12 Jun 1661, dau of Hendrickus and Anna de Sille Kip.

They owned a farm in Flatbush, where he remained. Riker list only one child, a son Peter, but others indicate there also was a daughter, Johanna).

     Children of Matthias (Tys) Pietersen9 Luyster (3867)XE "Luyster:Matthias (Tys) Pietersen  (3867) (before 1656-)" and Cornelia Kip (3868)XE "Kip:Cornelia  (3868) (before 12 Jun 1661-)" (see #371) were as follows:
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i.
Johanna (Hanneke)8 (3848).XE "Luyster:Johanna (Hanneke)  (3848) (-18 Oct 1732)"

 
ii.
Peter (3885)XE "Luyster:Peter  (3885)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 85.) married Anna Barkelo (3886)XE "Barkelo:Anna  (3886)" in 1719 (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 85.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (He died during the Revolution. They had three sons and five daughters. One, Matthias, married Barbara Hulst of Brooklyn 21 December 1754. Another, Cornelia, baptized 11 February 1722, married ---- Holst).

371.  Cornelia9 Kip (3868)XE "Kip:Cornelia  (3868) (before 12 Jun 1661-)" (Hendrick, #742) (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 93.) was born before 12 Jun 1661.  She was christened on 12 Jun 1661 at Dutch Church, New York, New York, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She married Matthias (Tys) Pietersen Luyster (3867)XE "Luyster:Matthias (Tys) Pietersen  (3867) (before 1656-)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (She was received in the Dutch Church of Flatbush, Long Island, on confession of faith, 28 June, 1685, by certificate from Middleborg. Probably died in the farm in Flatbush).

400.  Benjamin9 Lowell (837)XE "Lowell:Benjamin  (837) (12 Sep 1642-22 Oct 1714)" (John, #800) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 293.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 14.) was born on 12 Sep 1642 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol 3, page 126.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 293.) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  He married Ruth Woodman (853)XE "Woodman:Ruth  (853) (28 Mar 1646-)" on 17 Oct 1666 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.).  He died on 22 Oct 1714 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 72 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.).

     (an unknown value) (On the "Town Rate of Newbury, Mass. 1668," Benj. Lowle was set for: "1 Head, 1 horse, 2 cows, 8 sheep, 1 hogg."

May 19, 1669, Benjamin Lowle was made freeman. 1695 he was called "Sergt," and in a deed at Newbury, Mass. 1697, he was called "blacksmith."

He, with others, had a long law suit over his parent's estate, which is on the records of th clerk's court, Mass. Rec., 3:125, Salem, Mass., also in Boston Court House, Case No. 1791, estate Vol. 1).

     Children of Benjamin9 Lowell (837)XE "Lowell:Benjamin  (837) (12 Sep 1642-22 Oct 1714)" and Ruth Woodman (853)XE "Woodman:Ruth  (853) (28 Mar 1646-)" (see #401) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Ruth8 (854)XE "Lowell:Ruth  (854) (4 Sep 1667-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.) was born on 4 Sep 1667 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  She died.


 
ii.
Elizabeth (855)XE "Lowell:Elizabeth  (855) (16 Oct 1669-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) was born on 16 Oct 1669 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  She married Francis M. Willet (2019)XE "Willet:Francis M.  (2019)" on 29 Jan 1696 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.).  She died.


 
iii.
Mary (2020)XE "Lowell:Mary  (2020) (18 Nov 1671-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.) was born on 18 Nov 1671.  She died.

     (an unknown value) (died young).


 
iv.
Benjamin (856)XE "Lowell:Benjamin  (856) (5 Feb 1674-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, 20.) was born on 5 Feb 1674 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  He died.


 
v.
Sarah (2021)XE "Lowell:Sarah  (2021) (15 Mar 1675-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.) was born on 15 Mar 1675 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (died soon).


 
vi.
Sarah (857)XE "Lowell:Sarah  (857) (6 May 1678-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.) was born on 6 May 1678 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  She married Ebenezer Knowlton (2022)XE "Knowlton:Ebenezer  (2022) (1674-)" on 14 Feb 1699 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.).  She died.


 
vii.
Mary (858)XE "Lowell:Mary  (858) (6 Nov 1679-31 Dec 1711)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol 3, page 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.) was born on 6 Nov 1679.  She married Thomas Williams (2023)XE "Williams:Thomas  (2023)" on 15 Jan 1696 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 20.).  She died on 31 Dec 1711 at age 32.
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viii.
Joseph (836).XE "Lowell:Joseph  (836) (12 Sep 1680-before 8 Apr 1753)"

 
ix.
John (859)XE "Lowell:John  (859) (22 Feb 1683-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol 3, page 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 21.) was born on 22 Feb 1683 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  He married Sarah L. Bailey (2027)XE "Bailey:Sarah L.  (2027)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, page 21.).  He married Mary Davis (2026)XE "Davis:Mary  (2026) (23 Mar 1683-)" circa 1707 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 21.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (In 1754 he is called in a deed a "blacksmith."

In 1728, by vote of the selectmen of Haverhill, he, with nine others, was permitted to transfer his membership from Haverhill to the Amesbury church (West Parish), which now is the first church of Merrimac, Mass.

Either by removal or change of state boundaries, he was soon after in what is now Salem. N.H., where some of his descendants have contantly lived.

1747, he and son Samuel, signed a petition in Plaistow.

Both the church and town records of Haverhill, Mass., show that he had a dau. Sarah b. and bapt. there in 1722.

He, with his sons David, Moses, Samuel and John, were in the Louisburg campaign in 1746. John, the father, was of Methuen, John and Samuel were of Plaistow or Haverhill, David was in Major Hale's Co. Moses was of Nottingham.

In the Salem Church Records I found the mark of the family as follows:

Mark for John Lowell's "Cattel and other Creatuers" - "A Cropt of ye near ear and a slit in ye top of ye Same & a Slit in ye uper side of ye Same ear").

401.  Ruth9 Woodman (853)XE "Woodman:Ruth  (853) (28 Mar 1646-)" (Edward, #802) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.) was born on 28 Mar 1646 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  She married Benjamin Lowell (837)XE "Lowell:Benjamin  (837) (12 Sep 1642-22 Oct 1714)" on 17 Oct 1666 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.).  She died.

402.  George9 Hardy (2024)XE "Hardy:George  (2024) (-6 Dec 1694)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 355.

) married Mary Fogg (2025)XE "Fogg:Mary  (2025) (1662-)" on 24 Nov 1686 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, page 20.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 343.).  He died on 6 Dec 1694.

     Children of George9 Hardy (2024)XE "Hardy:George  (2024) (-6 Dec 1694)" and Mary Fogg (2025)XE "Fogg:Mary  (2025) (1662-)" (see #403) were:
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i.
Mary8 (2003).XE "Hardy:Mary  (2003) (2 Feb 1693-1753)"
403.  Mary9 Fogg (2025)XE "Fogg:Mary  (2025) (1662-)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 343.) was born in 1662.  She married George Hardy (2024)XE "Hardy:George  (2024) (-6 Dec 1694)" on 24 Nov 1686 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, page 20.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 343.).  She married Benjamin Poor (2725)XE "Poor:Benjamin  (2725)" on 13 Apr 1696 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 593.).  She died.

404.  Benjamin9 Morse Deacon (1292)XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)"

XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon  (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)" (Anthony, #808) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 12.) was born on 28 Mar 1640.  He married Ruth Sawyer (2417)XE "Sawyer:Ruth  (2417) (16 Sep 1648-)" on 27 Aug 1667 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 341.).  He died after 22 Nov 1707.

     (an unknown value) (He was deacon of the First Church in Newbury; instead of making a will he made a deed of gift to his son Philip, with the stipulation that his son should pay out certain sums to his sisters after their parents' decease, thus securing the estate to his son; this deed of gift was drawn November 22, 1707).

     Children of Benjamin9 Morse Deacon (1292)XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)"

XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon  (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)" and Ruth Sawyer (2417)XE "Sawyer:Ruth  (2417) (16 Sep 1648-)" (see #405) were as follows:


 
i.
Esther8 (2439)XE "Morse:Esther  (2439)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 14.) married Jonathan Kelly (2440)XE "Kelly:Jonathan  (2440) (20 Mar 1681-        )" on 6 Jul 1702 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 14.) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 344.).  She died.


 
ii.
Benjamin (2418)XE "Morse:Benjamin  (2418) (24 Aug 1668-22 Jul 1743)" was born on 24 Aug 1668 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 339.).  He married Susanna Merrill (2419)XE "Merrill:Susanna  (2419) (circa 1673-23 Oct 1733)" on 28 Jan 1692 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 344.).  He died on 22 Jul 1743 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 74 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 668.).


 
iii.
Ruth (2420)XE "Morse:Ruth  (2420) (8 Dec 1669-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 8 Dec 1669 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 341.).  She married Caleb Moody (2421)XE "Moody:Caleb  (2421) (6 Sep 1666-1741)" on 9 Dec 1690 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 343.).  She died.


 
iv.
Joseph (2422)XE "Morse:Joseph  (2422) (10 Feb 1671-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 10 Feb 1671 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 343.).  He married Sarah Merrill (2423)XE "Merrill:Sarah  (2423)" on 7 Oct 1696 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 345.).  He died.


 
v.
William (2424)XE "Morse:William  (2424) (23 Jan 1674-10 May 1749)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 23 Jan 1674 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 346.).  He married Sarah Merrill (2425)XE "Merrill:Sarah  (2425)" on 12 May 1696 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 346.).  He died on 10 May 1749 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 75 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 669.).


 
vi.
Sarah (2426)XE "Morse:Sarah  (2426) (13 Jan 1676-Jan 1679)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 13 Jan 1676 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 341.).  She died in Jan 1679 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 667.).


 
vii.
Philip (2427)XE "Morse:Philip  (2427) (19 Oct 1677-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 19 Oct 1677 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 341.).  He married Mary Brown (2428)XE "Brown:Mary  (2428)" on 11 Dec 1707 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 343.).  He married Sarah Pillsbury (2429)XE "Pillsbury:Sarah  (2429)" on 28 Sep 1749 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 343.).  He died.


 
viii.
Sarah (2430)XE "Morse:Sarah  (2430) (19 Jan 1680-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 19 Jan 1680 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 13.).  She married Caleb Pillsbury (2431)XE "Pillsbury:Caleb  (2431) (27 Jul 1681-1751)" on 11 Feb 1703 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 341.).  She died.


 
ix.
Anne (2432)XE "Morse:Anne  (2432) (27 Mar 1681-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 27 Mar 1681 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 338.).  She died.


 
x.
Hannah (2433)XE "Morse:Hannah  (2433) (19 Feb 1682-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 13.) was born on 19 Feb 1682.  She married Samuel Poer (2434)XE "Poer:Samuel  (2434) (23 Jun 1682-)" in Sep 1705 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (int) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 13.).  She died.


 
xi.
Mary (2435)XE "Morse:Mary  (2435) (15 May 1686-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 14.) was born on 15 May 1686 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 338.).  She married David Merrill (2436)XE "Merrill:David  (2436) (20 Feb 1678-)" on 18 Dec 1706 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 343.).  She died.
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xii.
Samuel (2437).XE "Morse:Samuel  (2437) (7 Dec 1688-before 11 Jun 1753)"
405.  Ruth9 Sawyer (2417)XE "Sawyer:Ruth  (2417) (16 Sep 1648-)" (William, #810) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 31.) was born on 16 Sep 1648 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  She married Benjamin Morse Deacon (1292)XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)"

XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon  (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)" on 27 Aug 1667 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 341.).  She died.

406.  Hugh9 March Capt. (2441)XE "March:Hugh Capt. (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)"

XE "March:Hugh Capt.  (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)" (Hugh, #812) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) (Genealogy of March Family, Page 37.) was born on 3 Nov 1656 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  He married Sarah Moody (2457)XE "Moody:Sarah  (2457) (23 Jul 1664-10 Sep 1741)" on 29 Mar 1683 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  He died on 27 Feb 1726 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 69. 1727, in his 71st y. G. R. , Bridge Street Cemetery, West Newbury (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 655.).

     (an unknown value) (He was a captain).

     Children of Hugh9 March Capt. (2441)XE "March:Hugh Capt. (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)"

XE "March:Hugh Capt.  (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)" and Sarah Moody (2457)XE "Moody:Sarah  (2457) (23 Jul 1664-10 Sep 1741)" (see #407) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Sarah8 (2486)XE "March:Sarah  (2486) (27 Apr 1684-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) was born on 27 Apr 1684 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 307.).  She died.


 
ii.
Henry (2487)XE "March:Henry  (2487) (22 Sep 1686-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) was born on 22 Sep 1686 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  He died.


 
iii.
Samuel (2488)XE "March:Samuel Capt. (2488) (2 Mar 1689-3 Jun 1753)"

XE "March:Samuel Capt.  (2488) (2 Mar 1689-3 Jun 1753)" was born on 2 Mar 1689 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 307.).  He married Anne Rolfe (4396)XE "Rolfe:Anne  (4396)" on 29 Apr 1713 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 316.).  He married an unknown person on 14 Apr 1726 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 316.).  He died on 3 Jun 1753 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 64. a. 64 y. 3 m. 1 d (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 655.).
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iv.
Elizabeth (2438).XE "March:Elizabeth  (2438) (27 Oct 1691-20 Apr 1723)"

 
v.
Joseph (4393)XE "March:Joseph  (4393) (24 Jun 1694-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 122.) was born on 24 Jun 1694 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. 1, page 306.).


 
vi.
Hannah (2489)XE "March:Hannah  (2489) (4 Sep 1694-6 Oct 1694)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) was born on 4 Sep 1694 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  She died on 6 Oct 1694 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 655.).


 
vii.
Daniel (2490)XE "March:Daniel  (2490) (30 Oct 1695-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) was born on 30 Oct 1695 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  He died.


 
viii.
Joshua (4394)XE "March:Joshua  (4394) (5 Sep 1700-27 Apr 1768)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 122.) was born on 5 Sep 1700 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. 1, page 306.).  He married Marth Merrill (4395)XE "Merrill:Marth  (4395)" on 18 Aug 1720 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  He died on 27 Apr 1768 at age 67 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 123.).


 
ix.
Mehitable (2491)XE "March:Mehitable  (2491) (3 Jan 1703-)" was born on 3 Jan 1703 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 307.).  She died.


 
x.
Trueman (2492)XE "March:Trueman  (2492) (14 Nov 1705-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) was born on 14 Nov 1705 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 308.).  He died.

407.  Sarah9 Moody (2457)XE "Moody:Sarah  (2457) (23 Jul 1664-10 Sep 1741)" (Caleb, #814) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 225.) was born on 23 Jul 1664 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  She married Hugh March Capt. (2441)XE "March:Hugh Capt. (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)"

XE "March:Hugh Capt.  (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)" on 29 Mar 1683 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  She died on 10 Sep 1741 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 77. in her 78th y. (gravestone record) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 656.).  Her body was interred after 10 Sep 1741 at Bridge Street Cementery, West NB, Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 656.).

408.  James9 Berry (2730)XE "Berry:James  (2730)" (William, #816) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) married Eleanor Wallis (2731)XE "Wallis:Eleanor  (2731)" before 1674 at New Castle, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 65.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (James Berry was of New Castle in 1718 when he sold 10A east of Breakfast Hill to his son James Berry of Greenland).

     Children of James9 Berry (2730)XE "Berry:James  (2730)" and Eleanor Wallis (2731)XE "Wallis:Eleanor  (2731)" (see #409) were as follows:


 
i.
Ebenezer8 (4282)XE "Berry:Ebenezer  (4282)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) married Keziah Knowles (4285)XE "Knowles:Keziah  (4285)" on 17 Sep 1714 at Greenland, New Hampshire, USA (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.).  He married Mary Kingman (4286)XE "Kingman:Mary  (4286)" on 14 Nov 1727 (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Farmer in Rye, had at least 6 children with his first wife, and 5 with his second).


 
ii.
Rachel (4283)XE "Berry:Rachel  (4283)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) married Samuel Dowst (4287)XE "Dowst:Samuel  (4287) (4 Oct 1690-)" on 14 Dec 1714 (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.).  She died.


 
iii.
Samuel (4281)XE "Berry:Samuel  (4281)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) married Abigail Webster (4284)XE "Webster:Abigail  (4284)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.).  He died.


 
iv.
George (2849)XE "Berry:George  (2849) (1674-)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) was born in 1674.  He married Deliverance Haley (2850)XE "Haley:Deliverance  (2850)" on 1 Jan 1702 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.).  He died.
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v.
James (2728).XE "Berry:James  (2728) (1676-after 1762)"
409.  Eleanor9 Wallis (2731)XE "Wallis:Eleanor  (2731)" (George, #818) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) married James Berry (2730)XE "Berry:James  (2730)" before 1674 at New Castle, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 65.).  She died.

410.  Francis9 Jenness (2737)XE "Jenness:Francis  (2737) (-1716)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 544.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93, vol. 6, page 204, vol. 144, page 34.) married Hannah Swain (2738)XE "Swain:Hannah  (2738) (-1700)" on 15 Feb 1670 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 418.).  He married Salome Jackson (4295)XE "Jackson:Salome  (4295) (circa 1645-2 Aug 1730)" on 4 Feb 1701 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 144, page 34.).  He died in 1716.

     (an unknown value) (seaman and baker, refused to take oath of Alliegence before Sam Dalton, Comissr) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 6 page 204 & Vol. 114 page 34.).

     Children of Francis9 Jenness (2737)XE "Jenness:Francis  (2737) (-1716)" and Hannah Swain (2738)XE "Swain:Hannah  (2738) (-1700)" (see #411) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas8 (2739)XE "Jenness:Thomas  (2739) (23 Feb 1671-1696)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 418.) was born on 23 Feb 1671.  He died in 1696.


 
ii.
Hannah (2740)XE "Jenness:Hannah  (2740) (26 Mar 1673-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 544.) was born on 26 Mar 1673.  She married Edward Locke (2746)XE "Locke:Edward  (2746)" before 1694 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 469.).  She died.


 
iii.
Hezekiah (2741)XE "Jenness:Hezekiah  (2741) (30 Mar 1675-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 544.) was born on 30 Mar 1675.  He married Ann Folsom (2745)XE "Folsom:Ann  (2745)" on 13 May 1697 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 418.).  He died.


 
iv.
John (2742)XE "Jenness:John  (2742) (14 Jun 1678-)" was born on 14 Jun 1678.  He died.
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v.
Eleanor (2729).XE "Jenness:Eleanor  (2729) (30 Jun 1681-after 1762)"

 
vi.
Mehitable (2743)XE "Jenness:Mehitable  (2743) (circa 1684-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 544.) was born circa 1684.  She married Matthias Haines (4296)XE "Haines:Matthias  (4296) (7 Mar 1677-9 Apr 1745)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 148.).  She died.


 
vii.
Richard (2744)XE "Jenness:Richard  (2744) (8 Jun 1686-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 544.) was born on 8 Jun 1686.  He died.

411.  Hannah9 Swain (2738)XE "Swain:Hannah  (2738) (-1700)" (William, #822) (NEHGS revised on 12.09.2004) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.) married Francis Jenness (2737)XE "Jenness:Francis  (2737) (-1716)" on 15 Feb 1670 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 418.).  She died in 1700.

Generation TenTC "Generation Ten" \l 2
512.  Hugh10 Crocker (4441)XE "Crocker:Hugh  (4441)" (Hugh, #1024) (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page A-3.) married Thomasine Michell (4442)XE "Michell:Thomasine  (4442)" on 14 Jan 1610.

     Children of Hugh10 Crocker (4441)XE "Crocker:Hugh  (4441)" and Thomasine Michell (4442)XE "Michell:Thomasine  (4442)" (see #513) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (4443)XE "Crocker:John  (4443)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page A-3.) was baptized on 21 Jul 1612.
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ii.
William (746).XE "Crocker:William Deacon (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"

XE "Crocker:William Deacon  (746) (circa 1612-before 19 Oct 1692)"
513.  Thomasine10 Michell (4442)XE "Michell:Thomasine  (4442)" married Hugh Crocker (4441)XE "Crocker:Hugh  (4441)" on 14 Jan 1610.

516.  Thomas10 Chipman (951)XE "Chipman:Thomas  (951) (circa 1583-circa 1623)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 1, page 380.) (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page XXV.) was born circa 1583 at Whitchurch Canonicorum, Dorset, England (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page XXV.).  He died circa 1623 at Briantspuddle, Dorset, England (John Hale Chipman, A Chipman Genealogy, Page XXV.).

     (an unknown value) (Had good estate near Dorchester in Co. Dorset. 

He inherited from his father (name unknown) farm lands, a mill and buildings including tenements beside his dwelling. At tha time, about 1600 AD, the annual income amounted to £50 per annum, considered then a good yield from substantial property. When about 15 years old, he apparently turned this property over to his "cousin" Christopher Derby.

Thomas and his wife lived in  humble cottage in Bryant's Puddle in Dorset after he was "cut off" by Christopher).

     Children of Thomas10 Chipman (951)XE "Chipman:Thomas  (951) (circa 1583-circa 1623)" include:


 
i.
Hannah9 (2640)XE "Chipman:Hannah  (2640)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 262.) died.


 
ii.
Thomasine (2641)XE "Chipman:Thomasine  (2641)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 262.) died.
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iii.
John (759).XE "Chipman:John Elder (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)"

XE "Chipman:John Elder  (759) (circa 1620-7 Apr 1708)"
518.  John10 Howland (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)" (Henry, #1036) (James R. Crocker, Crocker Genealogy, [IT:(pag. 5):IT].) was born circa 1593 at England.  He was baptized on 16 Jan 1603 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).  He married Elizabeth Tilley (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)" circa 14 Aug 1623 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 394.).  He died on 23 Feb 1673 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. The 23rd of Feb. 1672 Mr. JOHN HOWLAND Sr. of the Town of Plymouth deceased; he was a godly man and an ancient professor in the ways of Christ. He lived until he attained above eighty years in the world; he was one of the first comers into this land and proved a useful instrument of good in his place & was the las man that was left of those that came over in the ship called May Flower, that lived in Plymouth he was with honor intered at the Towne of Plymouth on the 25th of Feb. 1672 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, MD 18:69.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 668, [p. 39].).  His body was interred on 25 Feb 1673 at Old Burial Hill, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 668, [p. 39].).

     (an unknown value) (John, came in the Mayflower, as servant (or steward) of Mr. John Carver. Signed the Compact; took an active part in the early explorations. Settled at Plymouth. Town officer; a partner in the Trading Company of the Colony; Asst. or deputy almost continually. Prominent in the church, so that he "assisted in the imposition of hands" upon Rev. John Cotton, Jr. when he was ordained pastor 30 (6) 1669. He m. Elizabeth, dau. of John Tillie. He d. Feb. 23, 1672-3; "a profitable instrument of good; the last man that was left of those that came over in the ship called the May Flower that arrived at Plymouth." [Plym. Col. Rec. VII, 34.] He made will 29 May, prob. 6 March, 1672. Grown aged; beq. to wife Elizabeth his house in Rockey Nook in the town of Plymouth. The ever honored passenger who came in the Mayflower 1620 the latest surviver excepting John Alden, among the adult males; thow a minor daughter of Isacc Allerton, Mary, who married Elder Thomas Cushman, lived more than 78 years after the landing. He was a servant or attendant of Governor Carver, yet he is in rank the thirteehth signer of th Covenant, 11 Nov. and was reckon. as part of the fam. of Gov. Carver, who gave ocassion, no doubt, to the vain tradition prevailing for the last century and a half that his wife Elizabeth was daughter of the Governor who, perhaps, never had a ch. certain. brot. none. Both the Governor and his wife died in the first season, and Howland, at the time of their arrival 28 years old, married Elizabeth, daughter of John Tilley (who with his wife died soon after landing, leaving only this child), we are hardly permitted to doubt, early en 1621, as his ch. John and Desire are nam. at the div. of cattle 1627,  and he seems to have counted as many heads at the partition of lands 1623-24. For correction of the long prevalent error, that he married a daughter of Gov. Carver, we are indebted to Bradford's Hist. formerly part of the N. E. Library of Prince, in the tower of O. S. ch. at Boston, discovered 1855, in the Library of the Bp. of London at Fulham. He was an Asist. 3 years so early as 1633-5, and often representative. His will, names ten children we may hope in the order of birth of each sex, but we are ignorant of the exact dates or sequence of any, exc. that John is called eldest, and Isaac, youngest. John Howland, who was born about 1594, came as a servant of John Carver, but as there is no record of his residence in Leyden he is credited to London for the reason that Carver was in England for some considerable time before the sailing of the Mayflower and undoubtedly obtained the serives of Howland in that city prior to the departure from England. The Howland ancestry is probably of Essex origin. The will of Humphry Howland, citizen and draper of St. Swithin's, London, in 1646, mentions his brothers, John and Arthur, which are known Christian names of this family in New England, at the date of the will. There was a John Howland taxed at Canfield Parva, Essex, 1623, and the name also occurs earlier at Newport Pagnall in the same county. In London a John Howland was living in the parish of St. Mary, Whitechapel, in 1596, and in 1600 another John belonged to the parish of St. Botolph, Billingsgate. Jeffrey Howland was taxed in 1625 in the parish of St. Botolph, Aldgate. These parishes are all close to or part of the Pilgrim quarter of London 

).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of John10 Howland (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)" and Elizabeth Tilley (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)" (see #519) were as follows:
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i.
Desire9 (928).XE "Howland:Desire  (928) (circa 1625-13 Oct 1683)"

 
ii.
John (929)XE "Howland:John  (929) (24 Apr 1627-after 1699)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103 & 159.) was born on 24 Apr 1627 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.).  He married Mary Lee (2585)XE "Lee:Mary  (2585) (circa 1632-after 6 May 1693)" on 26 Oct 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659, [p. 14].).  He died after 1699 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.).
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iii.
Hope (760).XE "Howland:Hope  (760) (30 Aug 1629-8 Jan 1684)"

 
iv.
Elizabeth (933)XE "Howland:Elizabeth  (933) (circa 1631-1691)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) was born circa 1631 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  She married Ephraim Hicks (2589)XE "Hicks:Ephraim  (2589) (circa 1625-12 Dec 1649)" on 13 Sep 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 8].).  She married John Dickinson (2590)XE "Dickinson:John  (2590) (-Oct 1682)" on 10 Jul 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659, [p. 14].).  She died in 1691 at Oyster Bay, NY., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.).


 
v.
Lydia (934)XE "Howland:Lydia  (934) (circa 1633-after 11 Jan 1711)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) was born circa 1633 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  She married James Brown (2591)XE "Brown:James  (2591) (-29 Oct 1710)" circa 1654 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 232.).  She died after 11 Jan 1711.


 
vi.
Hannah (935)XE "Howland:Hannah  (935) (circa 1637-)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) was born circa 1637 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  She married Jonathan Bosworth (2592)XE "Bosworth:Jonathan  (2592)" circa 6 Jul 1661 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 214.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 88.).  She died.


 
vii.
Joseph (931)XE "Howland:Joseph  (931) (circa 1640-8 Sep 1689)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) was born circa 1640 at Rocky Nook (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 89.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  He married Elizabeth Southworth (2587)XE "Southworth:Elizabeth  (2587) (1645-Mar 1717)" on 7 Dec 1664 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 30].).  He died on 8 Sep 1689 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 134, [p. 201].).


 
viii.
Jabez (930)XE "Howland:Jabez  (930) (circa 1644-circa 1712)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 90.) was born circa 1644 at Rocky Nook (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  He married Bethiah Thacher (2586)XE "Thacher:Bethiah  (2586) (-19 Dec 1725)" circa 1668 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 225.).  He died circa 1712 at Bristol, R.I., USA.


 
ix.
Ruth (936)XE "Howland:Ruth  (936) (circa 1646-say 1676)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) was born circa 1646 at Rocky Nook (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  She married Thomas Cushman (2593)XE "Cushman:Thomas  (2593) (Sep 1637-23 Aug 1726)" on 17 Nov 1664 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 29].).  She died say 1676. Died between. 1672 (father's will) - 16 Oct. 1679 (hus. 2nd marr.).


 
x.
Isaac (932)XE "Howland:Isaac  (932) (15 Nov 1649-9 Mar 1724)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 90.) was born on 15 Nov 1649 at Rocky Nook (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 6.).  He married Elizabeth Vaughan (2588)XE "Vaughan:Elizabeth  (2588) (8 Apr 1653-29 Oct 1727)" circa 1676 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 223.).  He died on 9 Mar 1724 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 74 (Col. Leonard H. Smith Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Town of Middleborough.).

519.  Elizabeth10 Tilley (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)" (John, #1038) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol 2, page 103.) was born in 1607 at England (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 87.).  She was baptized on 30 Aug 1607 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).  She married John Howland (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)" circa 14 Aug 1623 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 394.).  She died on 21 Dec 1687 at Swansea, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.).

     John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

528.  John10 Dunham (973)XE "Dunham:John  (973) (1589-2 Mar 1669)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 146.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 80.) was born in 1589 at Scrooby, Nottinghamshire, England (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  He married Susan Kenney (975)XE "Kenney:Susan  (975)" circa 1615 at Eng. or Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He married Abigail Barlow (974)XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)" on 22 Oct 1622 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He died on 2 Mar 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. Aged about fourscore [80] years died the 2nd of March 1668 he was an approved servant of God; and a useful man in his place being a Deacon of th Church of Christ at Plymouth.  (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850.).

     (an unknown value) (John, weaver, Plymouth, freeman (citizen) 1633, deacon, deputy, town officer. Beq. to sons John, Benajah and Daniel; son-in-low Stephen Wood; to the rest of my children that are not designated in this will twelve pence apiece if they demand it; to wife Abigail. [Reg. VII, 178.] Deacon John Dunham of Scrooby, England, Leyden, Holland and Plymouth

).

     Children of John10 Dunham (973)XE "Dunham:John  (973) (1589-2 Mar 1669)" and Abigail Barlow (974)XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)" (see #529) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel9 (979)XE "Dunham:Samuel  (979) (circa 1624-20 Jan 1712)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 81.) was born circa 1624 at Leyden, Holland (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  He married Martha Beal (2114)XE "Beal:Martha  (2114) (-1690)" on 29 Jun 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.

) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 8].).  He married Mary Watson (2115)XE "Watson:Mary  (2115)" on 19 May 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He died on 20 Jan 1712 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. in his 89 year (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 136, [p. 204].).


 
ii.
Abigail (980)XE "Dunham:Abigail  (980) (circa 1626-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born circa 1626 at Leyden, Holland (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.).  She married Stephen Wood (2119)XE "Wood:Stephen  (2119)" on 6 Nov 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:107].).  She died.


 
iii.
Persis (981)XE "Dunham:Persis  (981) (1629-)" was born in 1629.  She married Benajah Prat (2121)XE "Prat:Benajah  (2121) (-1682)" on 29 Nov 1655 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 598.).  She married Jonathan Shaw (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" in Aug 1683 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.).  She died.


 
iv.
Jonathan (982)XE "Dunham:Jonathan  (982) (1631-1717)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born in 1631.  He married Mary Delano (2122)XE "Delano:Mary  (2122)" on 29 Nov 1655 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He married Mary Cobb (2123)XE "Cobb:Mary  (2123) (1637-)" on 15 Oct 1657 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].).  He died in 1717.

     (an unknown value) (Barnstable, was rep. 1689, for Middleborough; and serv. among the islands as min. to the Ind. but was in 1694 ord. at Edgartown).
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v.
Hannah (983).XE "Dunham:Hannah  (983) (1634-1709)"
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vi.
Joseph (971).XE "Dunham:Joseph  (971) (18 Nov 1637-1703)"

 
vii.
Benajah (984)XE "Dunham:Benajah  (984) (1640-24 Dec 1680)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 76.) was born in 1640.  He married Elizabeth Tilson (1138)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1138) (1630-)" on 25 Oct 1660 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 233.

) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 26].).  He died on 24 Dec 1680. From will of Benejah Dunham, dated 1679-1680:"...I, Benajah Dunham, of Piscattaway, in East Jarsy, linin weaver...to my son Edmond [Rev. Edmond] the 70 acres of land belonging to me which lyeth by Raraton River and I give to him my; musquet and my razier.

     (an unknown value) (Benajah Dunham came to Piscataway, N.J., from some other place, probably Plymouth, Mass., where his parents lived. Source for marriage and other information is from the O. B. Leonard Collection, LDS Tape 0945949. Benejah was commissioned captain, 14 September 1673. Letter from D.C. Denham, 1895: "1656. At court, complaint was made against Benajah for drawing his knife upon sundry persons at Taunton, which might have proved of ill consequence. Benajah denied the story, and the case was rested for proof...He was called 'Benajah of Eastham' and was appointed a constable at Eastham").


 
viii.
Daniel (985)XE "Dunham:Daniel  (985) (circa 1642-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born circa 1642 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  He died.

529.  Abigail10 Barlow (974)XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)" (Thomas, #1058) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) married John Dunham (973)XE "Dunham:John  (973) (1589-2 Mar 1669)" on 22 Oct 1622 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (She attended the marriage of her sister, Ann Barlow to Nathaniel Walker, (say-weaver) widower, in 1624, in Holland

).

530.  Nathaniel10 Morton (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)" (George, #1060) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 321.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 330.

) was born circa 1613 at Leyden, Holland (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 330.).  He married Lydia Cooper (997)XE "Cooper:Lydia  (997) (-23 Sep 1673)" on 25 Dec 1635 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 652, 1:81.).  He married Anne Pritchard (1006)XE "Pritchard:Anne  (1006) (circa 1624-1690)" on 29 Apr 1674 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 669, [p. 40].).  He died on 29 Jun 1685 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. Mr. Nathaniel Morton, Secretary of Plymouth Colony and a pillar in the Church here decd. June 28 ["29" is interlined apparently in the same hand] 1685 being entered into the seventy third year of his age. (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 134, [p. 200].).

     (an unknown value) (Freem. 1635. Was secr. of the Col. from 1645 till he d. 29 June 1685. He had the benefit of all MSS. of his uncle, Gov. Bradford, and compiled the well kn. Memorial, of wh. the fifth Ed. was illustrat. by Judge Davis. The valuable history was called New England's Memorial, or Moort's Relation.

Arrived with his parents at Plymouth in 1623. Following his father's death in 1624 he was taken into the home of his uncle, William Bradford. He became a freeman on 3 January 1636/7.  He was a grandjuryman in 1639 and 1646. In 1647 he becam Secretary (title later changed to Clerk) of the Plymouth General Court, a position he kept until his death. Since he was custodian of records, and also probably had acces to the papers of his uncle, William Bradford, he was able to write some of the history of Plymouth Colony, especially in his 1669 New Englands Memoriall and his A Breife Eclesiasticall History of the Church of Christ Att Plymouth Anno Domi 1680. In his writings he showed himself to be a very orthodox member of his community, and he was most intolerant of anyone holding views different from his own.

He dated his will 22 April 1685, inventory 1685, and specified that he wanted to be buried near his first wife, Lydia Morton. He named his second wife Ann Morton; his daughters Remember Jackson, Lydia Elliston, Hannah Bosworth, and Joanna Prince; his sisters Patience and Sarah; his grandson Nathaniel Bosworth, son of Nathaniel Bosworth; his grandsons Eleazer Dunham and Nathaniel Dunham; his kinsman Nathaniel Harlow; his brother Lt. Ephraim Morton; and his kinsman Sgt. William Harlow. Children who had predeceased him were Mercy, who had married Joseph Dunham; Eleazer; a stillborn daughter; Nathaniel; and Elizabeth, who had married Nathaniel Bosworth).  Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

     Children of Nathaniel10 Morton (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)" and Lydia Cooper (997)XE "Cooper:Lydia  (997) (-23 Sep 1673)" (see #531) were as follows:
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i.
Mercy9 (972).XE "Morton:Mercy  (972) (-19 Feb 1667)"

 
ii.
Eliezer (1012)XE "Morton:Eliezer  (1012) (-16 Jan 1650)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 331.) died on 16 Jan 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 8].).


 
iii.
Lydia (1008)XE "Morton:Lydia  (1008)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 330.) married George Elliston (2637)XE "Elliston:George  (2637)" circa 1670 at Boston, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 249.).  She died.


 
iv.
Nathaniel (1013)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (1013) (-17 Feb 1666)" died on 17 Feb 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).


 
v.
Hannah (1011)XE "Morton:Hannah  (1011)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 330.) married Benjamin Bosworth (2638)XE "Bosworth:Benjamin  (2638) (1647-1682)" on 27 Nov 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 35].).  She died.


 
vi.
Remember (1007)XE "Morton:Remember  (1007) (1637-24 Jul 1707)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 330.

) was born in 1637.  She married Abraham Jackson (2636)XE "Jackson:Abraham  (2636)" on 18 Nov 1657 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].).  She died on 24 Jul 1707 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 136, [p. 204].).


 
vii.
Daughter (2109)XE "Morton:daughter  (2109) (23 Nov 1650-23 Nov 1650)" (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658, [p. 11].) was born on 23 Nov 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658, [p. 11].

).  She died on 23 Nov 1650.


 
viii.
Elizabeth (1009)XE "Morton:Elizabeth  (1009) (3 May 1652-6 Apr 1673)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 331.) was born on 3 May 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660, [p. 14].).  She married Nathaniel Bosworth (2635)XE "Bosworth:Nathaniel  (2635) (1649-1693)" on 7 Dec 1670 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 667, [p. 37].).  She died on 6 Apr 1673 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 20 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 668, [p. 39].).


 
ix.
Joanna (1010)XE "Morton:Joanna  (1010) (9 Nov 1654-)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 330.) was born on 9 Nov 1654 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661, [p. 18].).  She married Joseph Prince (2639)XE "Prince:Joseph  (2639) (-1695)" on 7 Dec 1670 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 667, [p. 37].).  She died.

531.  Lydia10 Cooper (997)XE "Cooper:Lydia  (997) (-23 Sep 1673)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.) married Nathaniel Morton (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)" on 25 Dec 1635 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 652, 1:81.).  She died on 23 Sep 1673 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. Mistress Lydia Morton the wife of Nathaniel Morton Sr. deceased on the 23rd of Sept. 1673 after she had lived with her said husband near the space of 38 years. After much dolorous pain and sickness she ended her life with much peace and comfort. She was a good woman and lived much desired and died much lamented especially by her poor sorrowful husband; she was honorably buried on the 25th of the said month at Plymouth. (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 668, [p. 39].).

536.  Giles10 Rickard (1048)XE "Rickard:Giles  (1048) (1597-1684)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 539.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 385.) was born in 1597.  He married Judith Cogan (2154)XE "Cogan:Judith  (2154) (-6 Feb 1662)" circa 1621 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.).  He married Joane unknown (1136)XE "unknown:Joane  (1136)" on 20 May 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 36].).  He married Hannah Pontus (1039)XE "Pontus:Hannah  (1039) (1624-22 Dec 1690)" on 25 Jun 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 27].).  He died in 1684.

     (an unknown value) (Freem 1637, weaver, propr., frm. 7 sept. 1641; juror, town officer. Brought suit at Salem 23 (4) 1645, concerning his apprentice boy, Henry Glass. Recd. letter of attorney for collection of a debt 13 (4) 1646. Samuel King was his son in law).

     Children of Giles10 Rickard (1048)XE "Rickard:Giles  (1048) (1597-1684)" and Judith Cogan (2154)XE "Cogan:Judith  (2154) (-6 Feb 1662)" (see #537) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (2155)XE "Rickard:John  (2155)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 540.) married Esther Barnes (2156)XE "Barnes:Esther  (2156)" on 31 Oct 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659, [p. 14].).  He died.


 
ii.
Sarah (2157)XE "Rickard:Sarah  (2157)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 540.) married Georg Pidcock (2164)XE "Pidcock:Georg  (2164)" on 16 May 1640 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 654, [p. 1:235].).  She died.
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iii.
Giles (2124).XE "Rickard:Giles  (2124) (1623-1710)"
537.  Judith10 Cogan (2154)XE "Cogan:Judith  (2154) (-6 Feb 1662)" married Giles Rickard (1048)XE "Rickard:Giles  (1048) (1597-1684)" circa 1621 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 624.).  She died on 6 Feb 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 27].).

538.  John10 Dunham (973)XE "Dunham:John  (973) (1589-2 Mar 1669)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 146.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 80.) was born in 1589 at Scrooby, Nottinghamshire, England (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  He married Susan Kenney (975)XE "Kenney:Susan  (975)" circa 1615 at Eng. or Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He married Abigail Barlow (974)XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)" on 22 Oct 1622 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He died on 2 Mar 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. Aged about fourscore [80] years died the 2nd of March 1668 he was an approved servant of God; and a useful man in his place being a Deacon of th Church of Christ at Plymouth.  (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850.).

     (an unknown value) (John, weaver, Plymouth, freeman (citizen) 1633, deacon, deputy, town officer. Beq. to sons John, Benajah and Daniel; son-in-low Stephen Wood; to the rest of my children that are not designated in this will twelve pence apiece if they demand it; to wife Abigail. [Reg. VII, 178.] Deacon John Dunham of Scrooby, England, Leyden, Holland and Plymouth

).

     Children of John10 Dunham (973)XE "Dunham:John  (973) (1589-2 Mar 1669)" and Abigail Barlow (974)XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)" (see #529) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel9 (979)XE "Dunham:Samuel  (979) (circa 1624-20 Jan 1712)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 81.) was born circa 1624 at Leyden, Holland (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  He married Martha Beal (2114)XE "Beal:Martha  (2114) (-1690)" on 29 Jun 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.

) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 8].).  He married Mary Watson (2115)XE "Watson:Mary  (2115)" on 19 May 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He died on 20 Jan 1712 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. in his 89 year (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 136, [p. 204].).


 
ii.
Abigail (980)XE "Dunham:Abigail  (980) (circa 1626-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born circa 1626 at Leyden, Holland (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.).  She married Stephen Wood (2119)XE "Wood:Stephen  (2119)" on 6 Nov 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:107].).  She died.


 
iii.
Persis (981)XE "Dunham:Persis  (981) (1629-)" was born in 1629.  She married Benajah Prat (2121)XE "Prat:Benajah  (2121) (-1682)" on 29 Nov 1655 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 598.).  She married Jonathan Shaw (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" in Aug 1683 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 276.).  She died.


 
iv.
Jonathan (982)XE "Dunham:Jonathan  (982) (1631-1717)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born in 1631.  He married Mary Delano (2122)XE "Delano:Mary  (2122)" on 29 Nov 1655 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  He married Mary Cobb (2123)XE "Cobb:Mary  (2123) (1637-)" on 15 Oct 1657 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 19].).  He died in 1717.

     (an unknown value) (Barnstable, was rep. 1689, for Middleborough; and serv. among the islands as min. to the Ind. but was in 1694 ord. at Edgartown).
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v.
Hannah (983).XE "Dunham:Hannah  (983) (1634-1709)"

 264.
vi.
Joseph (971).XE "Dunham:Joseph  (971) (18 Nov 1637-1703)"

 
vii.
Benajah (984)XE "Dunham:Benajah  (984) (1640-24 Dec 1680)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 76.) was born in 1640.  He married Elizabeth Tilson (1138)XE "Tilson:Elizabeth  (1138) (1630-)" on 25 Oct 1660 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 233.

) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 26].).  He died on 24 Dec 1680. From will of Benejah Dunham, dated 1679-1680:"...I, Benajah Dunham, of Piscattaway, in East Jarsy, linin weaver...to my son Edmond [Rev. Edmond] the 70 acres of land belonging to me which lyeth by Raraton River and I give to him my; musquet and my razier.

     (an unknown value) (Benajah Dunham came to Piscataway, N.J., from some other place, probably Plymouth, Mass., where his parents lived. Source for marriage and other information is from the O. B. Leonard Collection, LDS Tape 0945949. Benejah was commissioned captain, 14 September 1673. Letter from D.C. Denham, 1895: "1656. At court, complaint was made against Benajah for drawing his knife upon sundry persons at Taunton, which might have proved of ill consequence. Benajah denied the story, and the case was rested for proof...He was called 'Benajah of Eastham' and was appointed a constable at Eastham").


 
viii.
Daniel (985)XE "Dunham:Daniel  (985) (circa 1642-)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) was born circa 1642 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  He died.

539.  Abigail10 Barlow (974)XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)" (Thomas, #1058) (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) married John Dunham (973)XE "Dunham:John  (973) (1589-2 Mar 1669)" on 22 Oct 1622 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (She attended the marriage of her sister, Ann Barlow to Nathaniel Walker, (say-weaver) widower, in 1624, in Holland

).

546.  William10 Pontus (1045)XE "Pontus:William  (1045) (circa 1585-9 Feb 1653)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 366.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 454.) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 2.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, pages 1491 to 93.) was born circa 1585 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1492.).  He married Wybra Hanson (1046)XE "Hanson:Wybra  (1046) (-after 1633)" on 4 Dec 1610 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 592.).  He died on 9 Feb 1653 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660 [p. 14].).

     (an unknown value) (Very little appears in the records of Plymouth concerning William Pontus, although he was a landowner and a citizen of some prominence and influence in the colony, and a member of the Court 1636-1638 inclusive. It is therefore gratifying to the editor of this volume to be able to add something to the sum of our knowledge of the parents of Hannah Pontus, the ancestree of the numerous lines of this Plymouth branch of the Churchills. In the notes of Mr. Charles B. Richardson, gathered in his researches, in the Records at Leyden, and published in the "Historical Magazine", London and New York, December, 1859, Vol. III., page 358 - lists of the names and occupations of some of the company of the Pilgrims who did not embark in the "Mayflower" are found. Among these are John Robinson, minister, from England; William Pautes (Pontus), fustian-worker, from Dover. On page 263 of same volume William Brewster is mentioned a witness on behalf of "William Pautes, fustian-worker, form near Dover on his marriage with Wybra Hanson, maid, on the 4 December, 1610". Now Mary Pontus, the sister of Hannah, married, Oct. 31, 1645, James Glass, and in th Plymouth Colony Records, Vol. VIII., page 7, is found the birth of Wybra Glass, daughter of James and Mary, born Aug. 9, 1649. This name Wybra, so uncommon, would seem to indicate a close relation between Wybra (Hanson) Pautes (Pontes), of Leyden , and this granddaughter of William Pontus. The wife of Mr. Pontus was living in 1633, but she is mentioned as "Good wife Pontus". See "Mayflower Descendants," Vol. I., page 160. They lived, probably, near the southwestern limits of the "Mile and a half tract", as by maps of 1701. He died Feb. 9, 1653, leaving his small estate by will of 1650 to his two daughters.

William, probably the William Pantes (as copied), fustian maker, from near Dover, England, who married at Leyden, Holland. Came to Plymouth early. Had lands at Thorp, near Windberry Hill, referred to in a Court order as granted to him "long since". Proprietor; freeman (citizen) 1633. Juryman, 1636.

Estate: On 5 February 1637/8 William Pontus requested "6 acres of lands to be laid to his house as near as conveniently may be" [PCR 1:76]. 5 March 1637/8: "Whereas, by a General Court long since" William Pontus was granted two lots totalling forty acres upon which he built a house, and has since, "for the more commodious receipt of people into the town of New Plymouth," relinquished all but five acres of the forty, these five acres are confirmed to William Pontus, and he is granted six more acres "towards the New Field" [PCR 1:78-79].

On 31 December 1641 "Will[ia]m Pontus is grandted two acres of upland to his half acre of meadow in the woods beyond his house about Agawam Path" [PCR 2:29 (a Plymouth town meeting, recorded in the colony records)].

On 19 January 1647[/8?] Samuel Dunham of Plymouth sold to James Glass of Plymouth six acres of upland which had been given to Samuel by his father John Dunham, who had reserved timber rights on the land; to complete the transaction John Dunham released to James Glass the timber rights in return for "a small moiety of land belonging unto William Pontus aforesaid being estimated at about half an acre" [OCR 12:150].

In his will, dated 9 September 1650 and proved 4 March 1652/3, William Pontus bequeathed to "my eldest daughter Mary ... my dwelling house with all my lands, goods and all things else whatsoever," except "unto my other daughter Hannah twenty shillings sterling as an addition to her portion which ... I haave already given her," and names "my son-in-law James Glasse" executor. On 4 March 1652/3 John Dunham testified that he heard Pontus say "that he had given unto his son-in-law, John Churchill, and Hannah, his wife, one third part of his meadow at the watering place near Plymouth," and that the other daughter, the widow Mary Glass, consented [MD 11:92, citing PCPR 1:1:114].

The inventory of the estate of William Pontus was taken 20 February 1652/3 and totalled £12 17s., of which £8 was real estate: "his house and land," £8 [MD 11:92-94]. (See PTR 1:3 for a description of the location of the house of William Pontus using reference points of 1889.)

).

     Children of William10 Pontus (1045)XE "Pontus:William  (1045) (circa 1585-9 Feb 1653)" and Wybra Hanson (1046)XE "Hanson:Wybra  (1046) (-after 1633)" (see #547) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary9 (1047)XE "Pontus:Mary  (1047) (15 Oct 1622-)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1492.) was born on 15 Oct 1622 at Leiden, Holland (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1492.).  She married James Glass (4373)XE "Glass:James  (4373)" on 31 Oct 1645 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655 [2:120].).  She married Philip Delano (4374)XE "Delano:Philip  (4374)" on 17 Jan 1653.  She died.


 273.
ii.
Hannah (1039).XE "Pontus:Hannah  (1039) (1624-22 Dec 1690)"
547.  Wybra10 Hanson (1046)XE "Hanson:Wybra  (1046) (-after 1633)" (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 2.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 366.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1492.) married William Pontus (1045)XE "Pontus:William  (1045) (circa 1585-9 Feb 1653)" on 4 Dec 1610 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 592.).  She died after 1633.

550.  John10 Shaw (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 410.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 64.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 9.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.) was born in 1596 at England. He was born probably in southern England. No records are known to exist, such as a deposition or an inscription on a gravestone, to suggest his date of birth. Since John Shaw's name appears in the list of August 1643 of those between 16 and 60 able to bear arms, he was born after August 1583. Almost surely, based on his arrival in Plymouth before 1626 and the existence of at least two of his children at that time, he was born a few years before1600, say 1596. Although it has been written in several secondary sources that he came from County Essex, England or was born there, the basis for this undocumented statement is probably Register, 22[1868]:30, which notes merely that Shaw is a familiar name in Essex (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  He married Hanna (Abigail?) unknown (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)" circa 1621 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  He married Alice Phillips (4416)XE "Phillips:Alice  (4416) (circa 1600-6 Mar 1654)" before 3 Nov 1653 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  He died in 1666 at Plain Dealing, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).

     (an unknown value) (Duxbury Barrier Beach lies along Cape Cod Bay, a sandy crooked finger of land ten miles long, dividing Green Harbor in Marshfield from Duxbury on Duxbury Bay and ensuring that sea travel between Green Harbor and Duxbury is long and hazardous. At some time before 1 July 1633, twelve or thirteen years after the landing of the Mayflower at Plymouth, 'Mr. [William] Gilson, John Shaw, & the rest,' as part of a covenant with the General Court of the Colony, agreed to undertake 'the cutting' of a boat passage between 'Green's Harbour and the bay.' This is the earliest canal still in existence in America. lt connects Green Harbor and Duxbury Bay to create an inland water route from Plymouth via the Duxbury creeks and Green Harbor River, through a narrow creek to the South River estuary and up the North River to the present town of Hanover. The Cutt, as it was soon called, may have been difficult to complete, and for whatever reason Gilson and Shaw were delayed in the construction. As a consequence the General Court threatened them with £10 in fines if they did not fulfill their agreement and finish the work by October 1. Four years later, on 4 January 1636[7], the Cutt, which had no doubt proved its worth as a safe route for the passage of people and goods between Marshfield, Duxbury, and Plymouth, was ordered to be enlarged to 'eighteene foote wide and sixe foote deep.' Colonial ships and barges in the middle of the seventeenth century were small, and the widened and deepened canal was designed to permit the passage of medium-tonnage vessels, saving many miles of dangerous travel in the open sea. 

As the General Court formulated its plans on 4 January 1636[7], it made no mention of John Shaw or his partners, but the difficulties that occurred in 1633 may have been reflected in the fact that the 'ordering' of the project was to be directly under the control of Governor and his Assistants so that 'tenn men may worke together there at once,' and was requested that the participants 'apportion everyman equally to the charge.' 

Once constructed, the canal was used by lighters (shallow-draft barges) for the Transport of salt hay that was 'mowed, made, stacked and loaded' at Green Harbor. Early in the nineteenth century a new canal was constructed, joining the old one at the Duxbury line. The seventeenth- century canal can still be seen where a small bridge crosses it at the corner of Canal and Bay Streets in Marshfield, a winding watercourse approximately 1000 feet long, much narrowed over the years. A granite stone, placed by the Marshfield Historical Commission, marks the site. 

John Shaw is an obscure figure in the history of Plymouth Colony. Although his name appears in the Plymouth records over fifty times from 1626 to 1664, we do not know where and when he was born, exactly when he arrived in Plymouth Colony, where he married, and whether he had more than one wife. We do not even know the birth dates and birth places of his children: John, James, Abigail, and Jonathan. 

Most of what has been written about John Shaw is unsupported by references to primary records. Benjamin Shurtleff's John Shaw of Plymouth, Massachusetts. . ., although a pioneering and valuable work particularly for the later generations, has basic errors in the account of the immigrant and his wife. Other authors have confused him with his son John, Jr. The most accurate account of John Shaw's life is a brief sketch in Eugene Stratton's Plymouth Colony: Its History & People, 1620-1691. 

The following account of John Shaw, his children, and his grandchildren, is based on primary records and only rarely on secondary sources. When speculation is introduced, it is qualified by such words as 'probably,' .say,' or, if reasonably sure, 'no doubt.' Estimated dates are designated by the word 'say,' and dates that are accurate within a year (such as those derived from gravestone inscriptions) are preceded by the word  'circa.' 

First marriages in the fourth Generation are included to aid further research and for confirmation. An early, prepublication version of this account was provided to Robert Charles Anderson for his entry on John Shaw in The Great Migration Begins: Immigrants to New England 1620-1633. 

JOHN SHAW was born probably in southern England, say 1596. He died, probably at Plain Dealing in the town of Plymouth, say 1666, and certainly between 22 March 1663[4] when (as discussed more fully below) he was recorded as sharing a lot at 'Puncateesett Necke,' and 15 February 1668[/9] when he was not recorded in an 'exact view of the list of the names' of those living who in 1640 had been 'inhabitants and freeholders' of the town of Plymouth. He married, before 3 November 1653, Alice, who died 6 March 1654[5]. lt is likely that she was not the mother of his children and that he had one or more earlier wives and that he married, first, in England, say 1621. The prevalence of the given names Hannah/Anne - and perhaps Abigail as well - in the descendants of John Shaw suggests that his unknown wife or wives may have been named Hannah/Anne or Abigail. 

John Shaw arrived in Plymouth Colony between the time of the 1623 land division, in which he is not listed, and 1626, when his name was the eighth recorded in the list of Purchasers that Governor William Bradford incorporated into his letter book. Although Shaw was not one of the first settlers of Plymouth Colony, he and only one other man, Phineas Pratt, were given the privileges belonging to 'old-corners,' those arriving on the first four Pilgrim ships, Mayflower, Fortune, Ann, and Little James. As a Purchaser, one of 58 freemen, he agreed to pay three bushels of corn or six pounds of tobacco yearly, to enjoy as a consequence of his purchase the Colony's anticipated prosperity, and to receive future land grants. 

By 1627 John Shaw had established himself in the Colony. He was chosen leader of one of the thirteen companies to receive the division of the Colony's livestock. On 22 May 1627 lots were drawn and The sixt lott fell to John Shaw & his companie Joyned/ 1 to him 2 John Adams 3 Elinor Adams 4 James Adams 5 John Winslow 6 Mary Winslow 7 Willm Basset 8 Eilzabeth Basset 9 Willyam Basset Junor 10 Elyzabeth Basset Junor 11 Francis Sprage 12 Anna Sprage 13 Mercy Sprage To this lot feil the lesser of the black Cowes Came at first in the Ann wth which they must keepe the bigest of the 2 steers. Also to this lott was two shee goats. 

The seventh lot fell to Stephen Hopkins, and he and his cornpany were to receive in addition to other livestock 'the Calfe of this yeare to come of the black Cow, which fell to John Shaw & his Companie.' All of the members of John Shaw's company, aside from Shaw himself, had come over either in the Fortune, which arived at Cape Cod 9 November 1621, or in the Ann, which arrived at Plymouth about 10 July 1623. Since every resident of Plymouth, including infants, was recorded in the livestock division of 1627, John Shaw must have been alone at the time.

How John Shaw arrived in Plymouth Colony is unknown. lt has been suggested that he came over in 1622 with Phineas Pratt in the ship Sparrow, Swan, or Charity to plant Thomas Weston's new colony at Wessagusset (now Weymouth). lf Shaw arrived with Pratt, it would have been at least three years before he himself appeared on the Plymouth record as a Purchaser, and over four years before he was selected as one of the leaders in the May 1627 livestock division. Shaw had two sons, John and James, born before August 1627, and it seems unlikely that he was separated for four years from a wife and two young children. lt is much rnore probable that he came over in 1625 or 1626 as a seaman in a fishing ship or in one of the cargo ships, such as the Jacob in 1625, which brought cattle to the Colony, and even this hypothesis does not preclude the speculation that he first came over with Pratt and then returned to England before emigrating. 

Although records of the land division of 1627, which occurred six months after the livestock division, have not been preserved, it is known from Bradford's journal that the head of each farnily received twenty acres for himself and a multiple thereof for each member of his family, and it is highly probable that the families of each company that received livestock also received land in proximity to one another. According to Governor Bradford, these plots of land were laid out along the shore of Plymouth Bay, extending north and south from the original settlement. They were apportioned by a committee appointed on 3 January 1627[/8], composed of William Bradford, Edmund Winslow, John Howland, Francis Cook, Edward Bangs, and Joshua Pratt. The plots, according to Bradford, were mostly five acres wide along the water and four acres deep, which meant that each adult male had at least 1000 feet of seashore and that each lot extended 800 feet inland. Thus the communal character of the Pilgrims' first seven years was replaced by individual ownership of the two principal sources of wealth in Plymouth Colony, livestock and land. 

John Shaw's twenty acres, as we know from later records, was at Plain Dealing on Plymouth Bay, a tract of land two miles to the north of the seventeenth-century village of Plymouth and slightly to the north of the section of Plymouth known then and today as High Cliff. Plain Dealing, a name that at that time meant a plain lying on the edge of the sea, still lies in the town of Plymouth on the border with Kingston. 

On 8 July 1630 John Shaw added to his holdings by purchasing from his neighbor, John Winslow, a tract of arable land near High Cliff at 'Knaves Acre otherwise known as Woodbee.' For this particular piece of land he made an initial payment of £3 and exchanged some meadow land with Winslow, with the final payment, also £3, to be in 'lawfull money,' 'good commodities,' or 'merchantable corn.' On this deed, witnessed by Jonathan Brewster, John Shaw's mark -an indication that he could not read or write - appears for the first time, 

With a canal in operation and the demand for cattle and corn quickening in the Massachusetts Bay Colony to the north, the pace of Plymouth's trade increased. On 14 january 1636[/7] John Shaw requested that the end of his Black Brook lot be enlarged,and on 2 October 1637 John Shaw, Mr. John Atwood, and Thomas Armitage requested and were granted by the General Court 'enlargernent of lands next unto the lands abutting aboue their lotts at Playne Dealeing, to the northward, wch lands are to be first viewed, and afterwards to be deuided to them.' There seems to have been a dispute about this expansion of John Shaw's property, for on 2 April 1638 the Court agreed that "The lands that were proportioned to Mr. Atwood and John Shaw are to stand as they are layd forth to them, prouided they do not prejudice the graunt formerly made to Mr. Prince [Thomas Prence, a resident of Plain Dealing and later governor of the Colony] and Mris Fuller [widow of Dr. Samuel Fuller. On 2 April 1640 John Shaw of Plymouth, planter, sold to William Kemp of Duxbury, for £5, two and one half acres of meadow land at the easterly end of Kemp's Duxbury property. 

John Shaw's cattle-raising efforts were moderately successful. On 26 july 1638 the Colonys stock of cattle from Mr. Jaines Shirleys 1624 donation of a heifer for the poor was distributed, and the 'pyde cow that was Goodman Shawes went to John Shawe - four shares; Francis Billington - sixe shares; Mrs Hodgkinson - two shares,' and there remained 'One red steere in goodman Shawes hands. On 7 July 1642 at a town meeting the cattle were again distributed, and by that date the pied cow was dead: "Her encrease was only a yeareling heiffer Valued at £4 - John Shaw had the heiffer and is to pay the stock [20d] and to bring in her hide to Goodrnan Hurste to be tanned.      (It is not clear from the record if Goodinan Shaw and John Shaw are identical, but it is likely that the John Shaw who received four shares refers to John Shaw, jr. and that the title of Goodman refers to his father John Shaw.) For John Shaw and his neighbors at Plain Dealing and throughout the Colony, there were constant threats to livestock, and at a town meeting on 10 February 1642[/3] wolf traps were ordered by the General Court to be made at five locations in Plymouth, one of these to be constructed 'at Playne Dealing by Mr. Combe, Mr. Lee, Francis Billington, Georg Clark, John Shawe, and Edward Dotey.

Among residents of the Colony in the 1630s John Shaw was neither prosperous nor poor. On 25 March 1633 John Shaw and ninety others in the Colony were rated (taxed). John Shaw paid 18 shillings, with some of the colonists paying as little as 9 shillings - William,Gilson, for example, paid 12 shillings - and a few of the Colony leaders, such as Governor Bradford, several pounds. The following year on 27 March 1634 John Shaw was again rated and paid 9 shillings, with most of those rated paying the same amount. 

Among Goodman John Shaw's obligations as a freeman of Plymouth was jury duty. The Plymouth colonists were litigious, and property lines illmarked; in order to settle their disputes the residents of Plymouth were frequently in court. John Shaw, as a freeman of the Colony, began his jury service in the late 1630s, serving first on 4 September 1638 in two cases involving slander; he served again, twice in 1641, in May 1642,1644,1648, and 1649. The most tragic case on which he served as juror was the murder by Alice Bishop, wife of Richard Bishop, of her four-year-old child, Martha Clarke. On 22 July 1648 John Shaw and eleven other men served on the inquest, and Shaw was on the jury that on 4 October 1648 pronounced Alice guilty. 

Other court cases directly involved John Shaw. On 3 March 1639/40 Shaw complained against Edward Doty in an action of trespass and won a verdict of £3 15s. On 1 September 1640 Shaw successfully complained against Mr. Richard Derby in an action of trespass, recovering 50s. On 7 December 1641 Kenelm Winslow complained against John Shaw in an action of trespass and won a verdict of 6s. On 7 September 1642 Mr. William Hanbury complained against John Shaw in an action of trespass; the jury found for the plaintiff £4 and damages. On 3 January 1642[/3] John Shaw had a successful suit 'agst John Barnes, for Richard Derby, etc.' On 3 March 1644[/5] John and his sons, John, Jr. and James, and his son-in-law, Stephen Bryant, and eleven other men were ordered to pay bonds and to appear at the next General Court; the case was settled on 6 june 1645 when John Shaw and others paid fines of £3. 

On 7 March 1642[/3] and again on 5 june 1644 John Shaw was appointed highway surveyor for the town of Plymouth for the Jones River (now Kingston). The duties of surveyor were to ensure that the roads were wellmaintained and open. John Shaw was surely familiar with the problems, for two years earlier on 1 February 1640[/1] a jury had been appointed to lay out certain highways that were in dispute and to fix the bounds between John Shaw, Kenelin Winslow, and John Atwood.      

The Colony's 'purchasers' or 'old-comers' were entitled to receive grants of land from the General Court. Reserved tracts of land for this purpose were set aside on 1 December 1640 in three locations, selected jointly by the Purchasers 'for themselves and their heires.'  John Shaw was granted or owned land in two of the three locations and probably in the third. 

Tract A (comprising the present towns of Dartmouth, Fairhaven, New Bedford in Massachusetts, and Little Compton, now in Rhode Island): 

In March 1651 (probably 1651/2) John Shaw was recorded as having lot 22 at Punckateesett 'over against Road Iland.' On 7 March 1652[/3] at a General meeting of the Purchasers at Plymouth the tract of land at Dartmouth was established. There were 36 Purchasers at the meeting and John Shaw received one share - one thirty-fourth part, or approximately 200 acres of the land divided. On 22 March 1663[/4] John Shaw and George Watson were recorded as sharing 'lott 22' at 'Puncateesett Necke,' extending from the water to the highway in the middle of the neck - the same lot 22 described in March 1651 as belonging exclusively to John Shaw at Punckateesett Neck. During the interval, George Watsods daughter Phebe had married Jonathan Shaw, John Shaws son, on 22 January 1656/7 at Plymouth. 

Tract B (comprising the towns of Swansea, Rehoboth, Seekonk, and Attleboro in Massachusetts, and Fast Providence, Cumberland, and part of Pawtucket, now in Rhode Island) 

At an unknown date before 4 February 1638[/9] Goodman John Shaw was granted land at Reheboth on the south side of the Smelt River. He later gave this land to his son-in-law Stephen Bryant, who returned it to the Colony on 24 May 1660 in exchange for a grant of 80 acres on the south branch of the Jones River.

Tract C (Cape Cod, extending from Bound Brook or Quivet Creek - the present Dennis-Brewster boundary - on the west to a point just east of Allen's Harbor or Harwichport, the northern bound being near the southern part of Eastham; and the tract embracing South Orleans and the greater part of Harwich and Brewster):

There are very few existing early deeds for lands on Cape Cod since these records were destroyed in the Barnstable County Courthouse fire of 22 October 1827 and the court requested that only those deeds conveying property after 1787 be rerecorded. No deeds or records exist to confirm John Shaws ownership of land in Eastham; however, three of Jonathan's children, Hannah, George, and Lydia, married in Eastham and lived there. 

John Shaw was granted other lands in the Colony. He participated in the Twenty-Six Men's Purchase in Middleboro in 1662 from the Indian Josiah Wampatuck for £70. The bounds of this purchase were 'from William hopkins [William Hoskins] his house at Lakenham alonge the old Indian path; to the wading place at Namassakeet River . . . .' John Shaw's property in the Twenty-Six Men's Purchase, granted to him in 1664, was lot no. 12 'bounded with a White oak and red oak rnarked' and located near the Nemasket River in Middleboro. This property may possibly be the same that became known as 'Shaw's Purchase,' which was held for many years by his descendants through his son Jonathan, and was not finally divided until 1745. 

lt is known from a series of deeds of gift that John Shaw made between 31 Decernber 1656 and 30 January 1663[/4] that he had four children: John, James, Abigail, and Jonathan. lt is also known that on 3 November 1653 the name of John Shaw's wife was Alice, who, together with her husband John Shaw, signed by a mark the indenture of Benjamin Savory. These are key documents since they are witnessed and as official Colony records bear the transcribed mark of John Shaw. Not only do they record his property and the names of his children but also provide some insight into his character. On 3 November 1653 an agreement was made between John Shaw, Sr. of New Plymouth and Alice Shaw his wife and Thomas Savory and Annis Savory his wife, to deliver their son Benjamin to live with the Shaws until he was 21 years old, he being 9 years old in March next. John Shaw was to pay 30s to Thomas and Annis Savory, and, when Benjamin reached 21, to give him £5 or a cow worth that amount. However, if John or Alice Shaw should die, Benjamin was to serve out his time with Jonathan Shaw, 'sonne of the aforsaid John Shaw,' and Jonathan was to 'teach him his learning, reading, and writing' and 'whatsoever trad[e] the said Jonathan Shaw can Doe.' When Benjamin's time expired, Jonathan Shaw was to give him two suits of apparel. Witnesses were Robert Lee, Robert Barker, and William Spooner. The agreement was signed by Jonathan Shaw and Thomas Savory; John Shaw, Alice Shaw, and Annis Savory made their marks. On 2 March 1657[8] the indenture of Benjamin Savory, who within the month would reach age 13, was transferred to Stephen Bryant, as agreed to by all parties then living. John Shaw, Sr. signed with his mark, as did Stephen Bryant. Two days later on 4 March 1657[/8] Jonathan Shaw by order of the magistrates was cleared of any engagement to Benjamin Savory. 

On 31 December 1656 John Shaw of the town of Plymouth made a deed of gift of all his property that he was living upon, house and land, about 25 acres in the township of Plymouth, to his son Jonathan Shaw. This property probably included the original twenty acres and the enlargement granted on 2 October 1637. The property is described as including fences, woods, timber, houses, and orchards. John Shaw reserved a two-thirds interest in the fruit of his orchard during his life, and he also reserved 'unto my selfe libertie to Imploy or Improve som smale spott of upland for the planting of Tobacco or the like as 1 shall see Reason During my life.' John also gave to Jonathan all his meadow land fresh or salt in any place belonging to him, in particular three acres at Piney Point in the Great Marsh (Marshfield) bought from John Winslow, and six acres of fresh meadow on the south arm of the Jones River (Kingston). Also included was a quarter part of his Purchase Land with all appurtenances. In return, Jonathan was to provide his father 'a Comfortable habitation' during his life. The deed was acknowledged before William Bradford, Governor. Two years later on 1 November 1658, Jonathan Shaw sold property at Plain Dealing to his brother-in-law Stephen Bryant for £20. That this land was the property at Plain Dealing, originally John Shaw's, is supported by the fact that on 10 October 1657 John Winslow sold land there to Edward Gray described as bounded on one side by the lands of John Shaw, Sr., whose name was first written by the recording officer but immediately crossed out and the record continued with the name Jonathan Shaw. 

On 26 March 1658 John Shaw, Senior, Planter of the Town of Plymouth in the jurisdiction of New Plymouth, gave over to his son Sergeant James Shaw one half of his land at Coaksett or Cushena (Dartmouth) commonly called the Purchase land, but if John Shaw, son of said John Shaw, Sr., should come within the term of four years (beginning from the first of March 1657[/8]) then John Shaw, Jr., should have half of that half. During the interim James Shaw might use but not sell the land. The deed was acknowledged before Lieutenant Southworth, Assistant. 

On 30 January 1663[/4] John Shaw composed the last document on which his mark appears. This was a deed that was appointed to be recorded as follows: 

Know all men by These pr[e]sents That I John Shaw of Plymouth in New England senir: have and Doe by These pr[e]sents give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant of Plymouth aforsaid all that my whole share of land aloted unto mee neare unto Namassekett [Middleboro] both uplands and meddows with all and singulare the appurtances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; Alsoe I Doe give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant another portion of land Called by the name of Rehoboth which land was formerly graunted unto mee; lying upon the south side of the smelt River; according as it is bounded and sett out; bee it forty acrees more or lesse with all the appurtances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; And I Doe further Declare by These pr[e]sents that I have and Doe give unto my son James Shaw the one halfe of my Purchase land att Cushena [Dartmouth]; and the one fourth p[a]rte of my said lott att Cushena I give unto my son Jonathan Shaw; and the other fourth p[a]rte of my said Purchase lands to my son in law Stephen Bryant To them and theire his [sic] and theire heires and assignes for ever; alsoe my purpose and will is that my Daughter Abigaill Bryant After my Decease shall have my bed and all the bed furniture [bedding] therunto belonging; as alsoe my Chist with whatsoever else Doth any wayes appertaine to mee and in witnes of the truth and Reallity of all the abovesaid Premises I have heerunto sett my hand and seale January this 30 1663. 

The deed was signed with a mark by John Shaw, witnessed by Thomas Prence and Samuell Dunham. 

Alice, John Shaw's wife, had died on 6 March 1654[5]. Her surname is unknown, and she appears on the Plymouth record only once before, about a year earlier when she signed the indenture of Benjamin Savory on 3 November 1653. The given name Alice does not appear among the children or grandchildren of John Shaw, nor does it appear among any of his Shaw descendants as recorded in Benjamin Shurtleff's undocumented genealogy of the family. It is likely therefore that John had one or more ear- lier unknown wives, and that Alice was not the mother of his children. As noted above, John Shaw died between 22 March 1663[/4], when he owned part of lot 22 with George Watson at Puncateesett Neck, and 15 February 1668[/9]. The following year on 29 May 1670 his name was missing from 'An exact list of the Names of the Freemen of the jurisdiction of [the Colony of] New Plymouth.' No will or inventory has been found for John Shaw. However, his deed of gift of 30 january 1663[/4] to his children, providing for the disposal of all his property, 'including his furniture and chest, was clearly intended to be in lieu of a will. It is probable that he died within a year or two of this deed, say in 1666. The place of his death is unknown, but he almost certainly died in Plymouth Colony and probably at Plain Dealing, where his daughter Abigail and her husband, Stephen Bryant, were living - perhaps in the same house there that he gave on 31 December 1656 to his son Jonathan and that Jonathan sold to his brother-in-law Stephen Bryant on 1 November 1658. lt was perhaps the same house at Plain Dealing beside the King's Highway - 'the house of Goodman Bryants' - where Bryant was living in 1684 and which he sold in 1694.    Governor Thomas Prence was a resident of Plain Dealing in the 1660s and one of John Shaw's nearest neighbors, and it is likely that John Shaw was at Plain Dealing or in the village of Plymouth when Governor Prence witnessed the mid-winter signing on 30 January 1663[4] of the deed that was John Shaw's de facto will. 

JOHN SHAW'S DEEDS TO HIS SONS AND TO HIS SON-IN-LAW STEPHEN BRYANT

Transcribed from the Original Records,

BY GEORGE ERNEST BOWMAN.

[Plymouth Colony Deeds, II: I: 186 & 206, and III: 57]

[JOHN SHAW, SR., TO SON JONATHAN]

[II: I: 186] 1656     Bradford Govr:

KNOW all men by these prsents that I John Shaw senir of the towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth in New England Doe heerby give bequeath Allianate and make over unto my son Jonathan Shaw all that my house and land I ame now posessed of and live upon in the township of Plymouth aforsaid Containing twenty and five acres of upland or therabouts bee it more or lesse with all and singulare the ffences woods Timbers houses and orchyards in upon or any way belonging to the said land or any pte or pcell therof To have and to hold the said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances and privilidges belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof unto the said Jonathan Shaw hee his heires and assignes forever provided that notwithstanding these prsents I Reserve an Interest in my Orchyard During my life and att my Decease to bee my said sonne Jonathans to belong to him and his heires for ever; allowing unto him or his heires (in the mean time) one third pte of the fruit ariseing of the said orchyard; and I alsoe notwithstanding these prsents Reserve unto my selfe libertie to Imploy or Improve som smale spott of upland for the planting of Tobacco or the like as I shall see Reason During my life Morover I the said John Shaw Doe by these prsents give and bequeath unto my said sonne Jonathan all my meadow land fresh or salt in any place belonging to mee; in pticular three acres of marsh meddow bought of Mr John Winslow lying att pyny point in the great marsh; bee it more or lesse; And six acres more or lesse of fresh meadow lying on the south arme of Joanes River; And I the said John Shaw Doe by these prsents give and bequeath unto my said sonne Jonathan one quarter pte of my Purchase land with all and singular the appurtenances belonging therunto unto him and his heires and assignes for ever; the said prmises with all and
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singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof To have and to hold unto the said Jonathan Shaw hee his heires and assignes for ever The said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances privilidges and emunities belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof to appertaine unto the onely proper use and behoof of him my said sonne Jonathan Shaw hee his heires and assignes for ever; provided alsoe that Notwithstanding the prmises I ame to have a Comfortable habitation with him During my life

This abovesaid Deed of gift was acknowlidged in the pticulares by the abovesaid John Shaw before Willam Bradford Govr: the 31 of December 1656; and by him ordered to be Recorded as above expressed;

[JOHN SHAW, SR., TO SONS JAMES AND JOHN]

[II : I : 206] 1658     Prence Govr:

The 26th of March 1658

Memorand: That John Shaw senir: of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth planter Doth acknowlidge that hee Doth heerby give and make over unto his son Sarjeant James Shaw of Plymouth aforsaid all the one halfe of his land att Coaksett or Cushena or in any place or places adjacent Comonly Called the Purchase land viz: the one halfe of the said John Shaw his said land both upland and meddow in the place or places above expressed or any of them with all and singulare the appurtenances therunto belonging; To have and to hold the said one halfe of all the said John Shaw his propriatie of land att Coaksett acushena or places adjacent with all and singulare the appurtenances privilidges and emunities therunto belonging unto the said James Shaw hee & his heires for ever; provided That incase John Shaw the son of the said John Shaw senir: shall come within the tearme of foure yeares; begineing from the first of march 1657 and from that time fully to bee expired; that then the said John Shaw Juir: shall have the one halfe of that halfe of the land given unto James Shaw aforsaid viz; one quarter pte of all his lands att Coaksett acushena or places adjacent both upland & meddow To have and to hold with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto unto the said John Shaw Junir: to him and his heires for ever provided hee will live theron and make use therof but hee may not sell the same; but incase the said John Shaw Junir: Come not within the tearme of foure yeares above prefixed that then the said one halfe of the said John Shaw senir; his propriatie of land both upland and meddow is to belong and
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appertaine unto the said James Shaw hee and his heires for ever; and in the Intrime the said James Shaw hath libertie to Improve and Imploy the whole or any pte of the said John Shaw senir: his land either upland or meadow or any pte or pcell of either att the places above expressed as hee shall see cause; alwaies provided that hee shall not sell nor allianate the said lands or any pte or pcell therof from his heires but the said prmises to belong unto the onely proper use and behoof of him the said James Shaw and his heires for ever 

Acknowlidged before Leiftenant Southworth Asistant;

[JOHN SHAW, SR., TO HIS SONS AND SON-IN-LAW]

[III: 57] A Deed appointed 20 bee Recorded as followeth

Know all men by these prsents That I John Shaw of Plymouth in New England senir: have and Doe by these prsents give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant of Plymouth aforsaid all that my whole share of land aloted unto mee neare unto Namassakett both uplands and meadows with all and singulare the appurtenances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; Alsoe I Doe give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant another portion of land Called by the name of Rehoboth which land was formerly graunted unto mee; lying upon the south side of the smelt River; according as it is bounded and sett out; bee it forty acrees more or lesse with all the appurtenances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; And I Doe further Declare by these prsents that I have and Doe give unto my son James Shaw the one halfe of my Purchase land att Cushena; and the one fourth prte of my said lott att Cushena I give unto my son Jonathan Shaw; and the other fourth prte of my said Purchase lands to my son in law Stephen Bryant To them and theire his and theire heires and assignes for ever; alsoe my purpose and will is that my Daughter Abigaill Bryant After my Decease shall have my bed and all the furniture therunto belonging; as alsoe my Chist with whatsoever else Doth any wayes appertaine to mee and in witnes of the truth and Reallity of all the abovesaid Premises I have heerunto sett my hand and seale January this 30 1663

Signed and sealed the     The marke of John Shaw

Day and yeare above     And a seale

written in the prsence of us

Thomas Prence

Samuell Dunham

).  Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.

     Children of John10 Shaw (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)" and Hanna (Abigail?) unknown (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)" (see #551) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, pages 259 to 270.) was born in 1622 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 270.).  He died after 9 Jun 1651 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 270.).

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.


 
ii.
James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 273.) was born in 1624 at England.  He married Mary Mitchell (4417)XE "Mitchell:Mary  (4417)" on 24 Dec 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660.).  He died on 1 Jun 1675 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 273.).

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.


 275.
iii.
Abigail (1057).XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)"

 276.
iv.
Jonathan (1062).XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)"
551.  Hanna (Abigail?)10 unknown (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 64.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.) was born at England.  She married John Shaw (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)" circa 1621 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  She died.

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.

552.  John10 Shaw (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 410.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 64.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 9.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.) was born in 1596 at England. He was born probably in southern England. No records are known to exist, such as a deposition or an inscription on a gravestone, to suggest his date of birth. Since John Shaw's name appears in the list of August 1643 of those between 16 and 60 able to bear arms, he was born after August 1583. Almost surely, based on his arrival in Plymouth before 1626 and the existence of at least two of his children at that time, he was born a few years before1600, say 1596. Although it has been written in several secondary sources that he came from County Essex, England or was born there, the basis for this undocumented statement is probably Register, 22[1868]:30, which notes merely that Shaw is a familiar name in Essex (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  He married Hanna (Abigail?) unknown (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)" circa 1621 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  He married Alice Phillips (4416)XE "Phillips:Alice  (4416) (circa 1600-6 Mar 1654)" before 3 Nov 1653 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  He died in 1666 at Plain Dealing, Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).

     (an unknown value) (Duxbury Barrier Beach lies along Cape Cod Bay, a sandy crooked finger of land ten miles long, dividing Green Harbor in Marshfield from Duxbury on Duxbury Bay and ensuring that sea travel between Green Harbor and Duxbury is long and hazardous. At some time before 1 July 1633, twelve or thirteen years after the landing of the Mayflower at Plymouth, 'Mr. [William] Gilson, John Shaw, & the rest,' as part of a covenant with the General Court of the Colony, agreed to undertake 'the cutting' of a boat passage between 'Green's Harbour and the bay.' This is the earliest canal still in existence in America. lt connects Green Harbor and Duxbury Bay to create an inland water route from Plymouth via the Duxbury creeks and Green Harbor River, through a narrow creek to the South River estuary and up the North River to the present town of Hanover. The Cutt, as it was soon called, may have been difficult to complete, and for whatever reason Gilson and Shaw were delayed in the construction. As a consequence the General Court threatened them with £10 in fines if they did not fulfill their agreement and finish the work by October 1. Four years later, on 4 January 1636[7], the Cutt, which had no doubt proved its worth as a safe route for the passage of people and goods between Marshfield, Duxbury, and Plymouth, was ordered to be enlarged to 'eighteene foote wide and sixe foote deep.' Colonial ships and barges in the middle of the seventeenth century were small, and the widened and deepened canal was designed to permit the passage of medium-tonnage vessels, saving many miles of dangerous travel in the open sea. 

As the General Court formulated its plans on 4 January 1636[7], it made no mention of John Shaw or his partners, but the difficulties that occurred in 1633 may have been reflected in the fact that the 'ordering' of the project was to be directly under the control of Governor and his Assistants so that 'tenn men may worke together there at once,' and was requested that the participants 'apportion everyman equally to the charge.' 

Once constructed, the canal was used by lighters (shallow-draft barges) for the Transport of salt hay that was 'mowed, made, stacked and loaded' at Green Harbor. Early in the nineteenth century a new canal was constructed, joining the old one at the Duxbury line. The seventeenth- century canal can still be seen where a small bridge crosses it at the corner of Canal and Bay Streets in Marshfield, a winding watercourse approximately 1000 feet long, much narrowed over the years. A granite stone, placed by the Marshfield Historical Commission, marks the site. 

John Shaw is an obscure figure in the history of Plymouth Colony. Although his name appears in the Plymouth records over fifty times from 1626 to 1664, we do not know where and when he was born, exactly when he arrived in Plymouth Colony, where he married, and whether he had more than one wife. We do not even know the birth dates and birth places of his children: John, James, Abigail, and Jonathan. 

Most of what has been written about John Shaw is unsupported by references to primary records. Benjamin Shurtleff's John Shaw of Plymouth, Massachusetts. . ., although a pioneering and valuable work particularly for the later generations, has basic errors in the account of the immigrant and his wife. Other authors have confused him with his son John, Jr. The most accurate account of John Shaw's life is a brief sketch in Eugene Stratton's Plymouth Colony: Its History & People, 1620-1691. 

The following account of John Shaw, his children, and his grandchildren, is based on primary records and only rarely on secondary sources. When speculation is introduced, it is qualified by such words as 'probably,' .say,' or, if reasonably sure, 'no doubt.' Estimated dates are designated by the word 'say,' and dates that are accurate within a year (such as those derived from gravestone inscriptions) are preceded by the word  'circa.' 

First marriages in the fourth Generation are included to aid further research and for confirmation. An early, prepublication version of this account was provided to Robert Charles Anderson for his entry on John Shaw in The Great Migration Begins: Immigrants to New England 1620-1633. 

JOHN SHAW was born probably in southern England, say 1596. He died, probably at Plain Dealing in the town of Plymouth, say 1666, and certainly between 22 March 1663[4] when (as discussed more fully below) he was recorded as sharing a lot at 'Puncateesett Necke,' and 15 February 1668[/9] when he was not recorded in an 'exact view of the list of the names' of those living who in 1640 had been 'inhabitants and freeholders' of the town of Plymouth. He married, before 3 November 1653, Alice, who died 6 March 1654[5]. lt is likely that she was not the mother of his children and that he had one or more earlier wives and that he married, first, in England, say 1621. The prevalence of the given names Hannah/Anne - and perhaps Abigail as well - in the descendants of John Shaw suggests that his unknown wife or wives may have been named Hannah/Anne or Abigail. 

John Shaw arrived in Plymouth Colony between the time of the 1623 land division, in which he is not listed, and 1626, when his name was the eighth recorded in the list of Purchasers that Governor William Bradford incorporated into his letter book. Although Shaw was not one of the first settlers of Plymouth Colony, he and only one other man, Phineas Pratt, were given the privileges belonging to 'old-corners,' those arriving on the first four Pilgrim ships, Mayflower, Fortune, Ann, and Little James. As a Purchaser, one of 58 freemen, he agreed to pay three bushels of corn or six pounds of tobacco yearly, to enjoy as a consequence of his purchase the Colony's anticipated prosperity, and to receive future land grants. 

By 1627 John Shaw had established himself in the Colony. He was chosen leader of one of the thirteen companies to receive the division of the Colony's livestock. On 22 May 1627 lots were drawn and The sixt lott fell to John Shaw & his companie Joyned/ 1 to him 2 John Adams 3 Elinor Adams 4 James Adams 5 John Winslow 6 Mary Winslow 7 Willm Basset 8 Eilzabeth Basset 9 Willyam Basset Junor 10 Elyzabeth Basset Junor 11 Francis Sprage 12 Anna Sprage 13 Mercy Sprage To this lot feil the lesser of the black Cowes Came at first in the Ann wth which they must keepe the bigest of the 2 steers. Also to this lott was two shee goats. 

The seventh lot fell to Stephen Hopkins, and he and his cornpany were to receive in addition to other livestock 'the Calfe of this yeare to come of the black Cow, which fell to John Shaw & his Companie.' All of the members of John Shaw's company, aside from Shaw himself, had come over either in the Fortune, which arived at Cape Cod 9 November 1621, or in the Ann, which arrived at Plymouth about 10 July 1623. Since every resident of Plymouth, including infants, was recorded in the livestock division of 1627, John Shaw must have been alone at the time.

How John Shaw arrived in Plymouth Colony is unknown. lt has been suggested that he came over in 1622 with Phineas Pratt in the ship Sparrow, Swan, or Charity to plant Thomas Weston's new colony at Wessagusset (now Weymouth). lf Shaw arrived with Pratt, it would have been at least three years before he himself appeared on the Plymouth record as a Purchaser, and over four years before he was selected as one of the leaders in the May 1627 livestock division. Shaw had two sons, John and James, born before August 1627, and it seems unlikely that he was separated for four years from a wife and two young children. lt is much rnore probable that he came over in 1625 or 1626 as a seaman in a fishing ship or in one of the cargo ships, such as the Jacob in 1625, which brought cattle to the Colony, and even this hypothesis does not preclude the speculation that he first came over with Pratt and then returned to England before emigrating. 

Although records of the land division of 1627, which occurred six months after the livestock division, have not been preserved, it is known from Bradford's journal that the head of each farnily received twenty acres for himself and a multiple thereof for each member of his family, and it is highly probable that the families of each company that received livestock also received land in proximity to one another. According to Governor Bradford, these plots of land were laid out along the shore of Plymouth Bay, extending north and south from the original settlement. They were apportioned by a committee appointed on 3 January 1627[/8], composed of William Bradford, Edmund Winslow, John Howland, Francis Cook, Edward Bangs, and Joshua Pratt. The plots, according to Bradford, were mostly five acres wide along the water and four acres deep, which meant that each adult male had at least 1000 feet of seashore and that each lot extended 800 feet inland. Thus the communal character of the Pilgrims' first seven years was replaced by individual ownership of the two principal sources of wealth in Plymouth Colony, livestock and land. 

John Shaw's twenty acres, as we know from later records, was at Plain Dealing on Plymouth Bay, a tract of land two miles to the north of the seventeenth-century village of Plymouth and slightly to the north of the section of Plymouth known then and today as High Cliff. Plain Dealing, a name that at that time meant a plain lying on the edge of the sea, still lies in the town of Plymouth on the border with Kingston. 

On 8 July 1630 John Shaw added to his holdings by purchasing from his neighbor, John Winslow, a tract of arable land near High Cliff at 'Knaves Acre otherwise known as Woodbee.' For this particular piece of land he made an initial payment of £3 and exchanged some meadow land with Winslow, with the final payment, also £3, to be in 'lawfull money,' 'good commodities,' or 'merchantable corn.' On this deed, witnessed by Jonathan Brewster, John Shaw's mark -an indication that he could not read or write - appears for the first time, 

With a canal in operation and the demand for cattle and corn quickening in the Massachusetts Bay Colony to the north, the pace of Plymouth's trade increased. On 14 january 1636[/7] John Shaw requested that the end of his Black Brook lot be enlarged,and on 2 October 1637 John Shaw, Mr. John Atwood, and Thomas Armitage requested and were granted by the General Court 'enlargernent of lands next unto the lands abutting aboue their lotts at Playne Dealeing, to the northward, wch lands are to be first viewed, and afterwards to be deuided to them.' There seems to have been a dispute about this expansion of John Shaw's property, for on 2 April 1638 the Court agreed that "The lands that were proportioned to Mr. Atwood and John Shaw are to stand as they are layd forth to them, prouided they do not prejudice the graunt formerly made to Mr. Prince [Thomas Prence, a resident of Plain Dealing and later governor of the Colony] and Mris Fuller [widow of Dr. Samuel Fuller. On 2 April 1640 John Shaw of Plymouth, planter, sold to William Kemp of Duxbury, for £5, two and one half acres of meadow land at the easterly end of Kemp's Duxbury property. 

John Shaw's cattle-raising efforts were moderately successful. On 26 july 1638 the Colonys stock of cattle from Mr. Jaines Shirleys 1624 donation of a heifer for the poor was distributed, and the 'pyde cow that was Goodman Shawes went to John Shawe - four shares; Francis Billington - sixe shares; Mrs Hodgkinson - two shares,' and there remained 'One red steere in goodman Shawes hands. On 7 July 1642 at a town meeting the cattle were again distributed, and by that date the pied cow was dead: "Her encrease was only a yeareling heiffer Valued at £4 - John Shaw had the heiffer and is to pay the stock [20d] and to bring in her hide to Goodrnan Hurste to be tanned.      (It is not clear from the record if Goodinan Shaw and John Shaw are identical, but it is likely that the John Shaw who received four shares refers to John Shaw, jr. and that the title of Goodman refers to his father John Shaw.) For John Shaw and his neighbors at Plain Dealing and throughout the Colony, there were constant threats to livestock, and at a town meeting on 10 February 1642[/3] wolf traps were ordered by the General Court to be made at five locations in Plymouth, one of these to be constructed 'at Playne Dealing by Mr. Combe, Mr. Lee, Francis Billington, Georg Clark, John Shawe, and Edward Dotey.

Among residents of the Colony in the 1630s John Shaw was neither prosperous nor poor. On 25 March 1633 John Shaw and ninety others in the Colony were rated (taxed). John Shaw paid 18 shillings, with some of the colonists paying as little as 9 shillings - William,Gilson, for example, paid 12 shillings - and a few of the Colony leaders, such as Governor Bradford, several pounds. The following year on 27 March 1634 John Shaw was again rated and paid 9 shillings, with most of those rated paying the same amount. 

Among Goodman John Shaw's obligations as a freeman of Plymouth was jury duty. The Plymouth colonists were litigious, and property lines illmarked; in order to settle their disputes the residents of Plymouth were frequently in court. John Shaw, as a freeman of the Colony, began his jury service in the late 1630s, serving first on 4 September 1638 in two cases involving slander; he served again, twice in 1641, in May 1642,1644,1648, and 1649. The most tragic case on which he served as juror was the murder by Alice Bishop, wife of Richard Bishop, of her four-year-old child, Martha Clarke. On 22 July 1648 John Shaw and eleven other men served on the inquest, and Shaw was on the jury that on 4 October 1648 pronounced Alice guilty. 

Other court cases directly involved John Shaw. On 3 March 1639/40 Shaw complained against Edward Doty in an action of trespass and won a verdict of £3 15s. On 1 September 1640 Shaw successfully complained against Mr. Richard Derby in an action of trespass, recovering 50s. On 7 December 1641 Kenelm Winslow complained against John Shaw in an action of trespass and won a verdict of 6s. On 7 September 1642 Mr. William Hanbury complained against John Shaw in an action of trespass; the jury found for the plaintiff £4 and damages. On 3 January 1642[/3] John Shaw had a successful suit 'agst John Barnes, for Richard Derby, etc.' On 3 March 1644[/5] John and his sons, John, Jr. and James, and his son-in-law, Stephen Bryant, and eleven other men were ordered to pay bonds and to appear at the next General Court; the case was settled on 6 june 1645 when John Shaw and others paid fines of £3. 

On 7 March 1642[/3] and again on 5 june 1644 John Shaw was appointed highway surveyor for the town of Plymouth for the Jones River (now Kingston). The duties of surveyor were to ensure that the roads were wellmaintained and open. John Shaw was surely familiar with the problems, for two years earlier on 1 February 1640[/1] a jury had been appointed to lay out certain highways that were in dispute and to fix the bounds between John Shaw, Kenelin Winslow, and John Atwood.      

The Colony's 'purchasers' or 'old-comers' were entitled to receive grants of land from the General Court. Reserved tracts of land for this purpose were set aside on 1 December 1640 in three locations, selected jointly by the Purchasers 'for themselves and their heires.'  John Shaw was granted or owned land in two of the three locations and probably in the third. 

Tract A (comprising the present towns of Dartmouth, Fairhaven, New Bedford in Massachusetts, and Little Compton, now in Rhode Island): 

In March 1651 (probably 1651/2) John Shaw was recorded as having lot 22 at Punckateesett 'over against Road Iland.' On 7 March 1652[/3] at a General meeting of the Purchasers at Plymouth the tract of land at Dartmouth was established. There were 36 Purchasers at the meeting and John Shaw received one share - one thirty-fourth part, or approximately 200 acres of the land divided. On 22 March 1663[/4] John Shaw and George Watson were recorded as sharing 'lott 22' at 'Puncateesett Necke,' extending from the water to the highway in the middle of the neck - the same lot 22 described in March 1651 as belonging exclusively to John Shaw at Punckateesett Neck. During the interval, George Watsods daughter Phebe had married Jonathan Shaw, John Shaws son, on 22 January 1656/7 at Plymouth. 

Tract B (comprising the towns of Swansea, Rehoboth, Seekonk, and Attleboro in Massachusetts, and Fast Providence, Cumberland, and part of Pawtucket, now in Rhode Island) 

At an unknown date before 4 February 1638[/9] Goodman John Shaw was granted land at Reheboth on the south side of the Smelt River. He later gave this land to his son-in-law Stephen Bryant, who returned it to the Colony on 24 May 1660 in exchange for a grant of 80 acres on the south branch of the Jones River.

Tract C (Cape Cod, extending from Bound Brook or Quivet Creek - the present Dennis-Brewster boundary - on the west to a point just east of Allen's Harbor or Harwichport, the northern bound being near the southern part of Eastham; and the tract embracing South Orleans and the greater part of Harwich and Brewster):

There are very few existing early deeds for lands on Cape Cod since these records were destroyed in the Barnstable County Courthouse fire of 22 October 1827 and the court requested that only those deeds conveying property after 1787 be rerecorded. No deeds or records exist to confirm John Shaws ownership of land in Eastham; however, three of Jonathan's children, Hannah, George, and Lydia, married in Eastham and lived there. 

John Shaw was granted other lands in the Colony. He participated in the Twenty-Six Men's Purchase in Middleboro in 1662 from the Indian Josiah Wampatuck for £70. The bounds of this purchase were 'from William hopkins [William Hoskins] his house at Lakenham alonge the old Indian path; to the wading place at Namassakeet River . . . .' John Shaw's property in the Twenty-Six Men's Purchase, granted to him in 1664, was lot no. 12 'bounded with a White oak and red oak rnarked' and located near the Nemasket River in Middleboro. This property may possibly be the same that became known as 'Shaw's Purchase,' which was held for many years by his descendants through his son Jonathan, and was not finally divided until 1745. 

lt is known from a series of deeds of gift that John Shaw made between 31 Decernber 1656 and 30 January 1663[/4] that he had four children: John, James, Abigail, and Jonathan. lt is also known that on 3 November 1653 the name of John Shaw's wife was Alice, who, together with her husband John Shaw, signed by a mark the indenture of Benjamin Savory. These are key documents since they are witnessed and as official Colony records bear the transcribed mark of John Shaw. Not only do they record his property and the names of his children but also provide some insight into his character. On 3 November 1653 an agreement was made between John Shaw, Sr. of New Plymouth and Alice Shaw his wife and Thomas Savory and Annis Savory his wife, to deliver their son Benjamin to live with the Shaws until he was 21 years old, he being 9 years old in March next. John Shaw was to pay 30s to Thomas and Annis Savory, and, when Benjamin reached 21, to give him £5 or a cow worth that amount. However, if John or Alice Shaw should die, Benjamin was to serve out his time with Jonathan Shaw, 'sonne of the aforsaid John Shaw,' and Jonathan was to 'teach him his learning, reading, and writing' and 'whatsoever trad[e] the said Jonathan Shaw can Doe.' When Benjamin's time expired, Jonathan Shaw was to give him two suits of apparel. Witnesses were Robert Lee, Robert Barker, and William Spooner. The agreement was signed by Jonathan Shaw and Thomas Savory; John Shaw, Alice Shaw, and Annis Savory made their marks. On 2 March 1657[8] the indenture of Benjamin Savory, who within the month would reach age 13, was transferred to Stephen Bryant, as agreed to by all parties then living. John Shaw, Sr. signed with his mark, as did Stephen Bryant. Two days later on 4 March 1657[/8] Jonathan Shaw by order of the magistrates was cleared of any engagement to Benjamin Savory. 

On 31 December 1656 John Shaw of the town of Plymouth made a deed of gift of all his property that he was living upon, house and land, about 25 acres in the township of Plymouth, to his son Jonathan Shaw. This property probably included the original twenty acres and the enlargement granted on 2 October 1637. The property is described as including fences, woods, timber, houses, and orchards. John Shaw reserved a two-thirds interest in the fruit of his orchard during his life, and he also reserved 'unto my selfe libertie to Imploy or Improve som smale spott of upland for the planting of Tobacco or the like as 1 shall see Reason During my life.' John also gave to Jonathan all his meadow land fresh or salt in any place belonging to him, in particular three acres at Piney Point in the Great Marsh (Marshfield) bought from John Winslow, and six acres of fresh meadow on the south arm of the Jones River (Kingston). Also included was a quarter part of his Purchase Land with all appurtenances. In return, Jonathan was to provide his father 'a Comfortable habitation' during his life. The deed was acknowledged before William Bradford, Governor. Two years later on 1 November 1658, Jonathan Shaw sold property at Plain Dealing to his brother-in-law Stephen Bryant for £20. That this land was the property at Plain Dealing, originally John Shaw's, is supported by the fact that on 10 October 1657 John Winslow sold land there to Edward Gray described as bounded on one side by the lands of John Shaw, Sr., whose name was first written by the recording officer but immediately crossed out and the record continued with the name Jonathan Shaw. 

On 26 March 1658 John Shaw, Senior, Planter of the Town of Plymouth in the jurisdiction of New Plymouth, gave over to his son Sergeant James Shaw one half of his land at Coaksett or Cushena (Dartmouth) commonly called the Purchase land, but if John Shaw, son of said John Shaw, Sr., should come within the term of four years (beginning from the first of March 1657[/8]) then John Shaw, Jr., should have half of that half. During the interim James Shaw might use but not sell the land. The deed was acknowledged before Lieutenant Southworth, Assistant. 

On 30 January 1663[/4] John Shaw composed the last document on which his mark appears. This was a deed that was appointed to be recorded as follows: 

Know all men by These pr[e]sents That I John Shaw of Plymouth in New England senir: have and Doe by These pr[e]sents give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant of Plymouth aforsaid all that my whole share of land aloted unto mee neare unto Namassekett [Middleboro] both uplands and meddows with all and singulare the appurtances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; Alsoe I Doe give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant another portion of land Called by the name of Rehoboth which land was formerly graunted unto mee; lying upon the south side of the smelt River; according as it is bounded and sett out; bee it forty acrees more or lesse with all the appurtances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; And I Doe further Declare by These pr[e]sents that I have and Doe give unto my son James Shaw the one halfe of my Purchase land att Cushena [Dartmouth]; and the one fourth p[a]rte of my said lott att Cushena I give unto my son Jonathan Shaw; and the other fourth p[a]rte of my said Purchase lands to my son in law Stephen Bryant To them and theire his [sic] and theire heires and assignes for ever; alsoe my purpose and will is that my Daughter Abigaill Bryant After my Decease shall have my bed and all the bed furniture [bedding] therunto belonging; as alsoe my Chist with whatsoever else Doth any wayes appertaine to mee and in witnes of the truth and Reallity of all the abovesaid Premises I have heerunto sett my hand and seale January this 30 1663. 

The deed was signed with a mark by John Shaw, witnessed by Thomas Prence and Samuell Dunham. 

Alice, John Shaw's wife, had died on 6 March 1654[5]. Her surname is unknown, and she appears on the Plymouth record only once before, about a year earlier when she signed the indenture of Benjamin Savory on 3 November 1653. The given name Alice does not appear among the children or grandchildren of John Shaw, nor does it appear among any of his Shaw descendants as recorded in Benjamin Shurtleff's undocumented genealogy of the family. It is likely therefore that John had one or more ear- lier unknown wives, and that Alice was not the mother of his children. As noted above, John Shaw died between 22 March 1663[/4], when he owned part of lot 22 with George Watson at Puncateesett Neck, and 15 February 1668[/9]. The following year on 29 May 1670 his name was missing from 'An exact list of the Names of the Freemen of the jurisdiction of [the Colony of] New Plymouth.' No will or inventory has been found for John Shaw. However, his deed of gift of 30 january 1663[/4] to his children, providing for the disposal of all his property, 'including his furniture and chest, was clearly intended to be in lieu of a will. It is probable that he died within a year or two of this deed, say in 1666. The place of his death is unknown, but he almost certainly died in Plymouth Colony and probably at Plain Dealing, where his daughter Abigail and her husband, Stephen Bryant, were living - perhaps in the same house there that he gave on 31 December 1656 to his son Jonathan and that Jonathan sold to his brother-in-law Stephen Bryant on 1 November 1658. lt was perhaps the same house at Plain Dealing beside the King's Highway - 'the house of Goodman Bryants' - where Bryant was living in 1684 and which he sold in 1694.    Governor Thomas Prence was a resident of Plain Dealing in the 1660s and one of John Shaw's nearest neighbors, and it is likely that John Shaw was at Plain Dealing or in the village of Plymouth when Governor Prence witnessed the mid-winter signing on 30 January 1663[4] of the deed that was John Shaw's de facto will. 

JOHN SHAW'S DEEDS TO HIS SONS AND TO HIS SON-IN-LAW STEPHEN BRYANT

Transcribed from the Original Records,

BY GEORGE ERNEST BOWMAN.

[Plymouth Colony Deeds, II: I: 186 & 206, and III: 57]

[JOHN SHAW, SR., TO SON JONATHAN]

[II: I: 186] 1656     Bradford Govr:

KNOW all men by these prsents that I John Shaw senir of the towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth in New England Doe heerby give bequeath Allianate and make over unto my son Jonathan Shaw all that my house and land I ame now posessed of and live upon in the township of Plymouth aforsaid Containing twenty and five acres of upland or therabouts bee it more or lesse with all and singulare the ffences woods Timbers houses and orchyards in upon or any way belonging to the said land or any pte or pcell therof To have and to hold the said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances and privilidges belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof unto the said Jonathan Shaw hee his heires and assignes forever provided that notwithstanding these prsents I Reserve an Interest in my Orchyard During my life and att my Decease to bee my said sonne Jonathans to belong to him and his heires for ever; allowing unto him or his heires (in the mean time) one third pte of the fruit ariseing of the said orchyard; and I alsoe notwithstanding these prsents Reserve unto my selfe libertie to Imploy or Improve som smale spott of upland for the planting of Tobacco or the like as I shall see Reason During my life Morover I the said John Shaw Doe by these prsents give and bequeath unto my said sonne Jonathan all my meadow land fresh or salt in any place belonging to mee; in pticular three acres of marsh meddow bought of Mr John Winslow lying att pyny point in the great marsh; bee it more or lesse; And six acres more or lesse of fresh meadow lying on the south arme of Joanes River; And I the said John Shaw Doe by these prsents give and bequeath unto my said sonne Jonathan one quarter pte of my Purchase land with all and singular the appurtenances belonging therunto unto him and his heires and assignes for ever; the said prmises with all and
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singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof To have and to hold unto the said Jonathan Shaw hee his heires and assignes for ever The said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances privilidges and emunities belonging therunto or to any pte or pcell therof to appertaine unto the onely proper use and behoof of him my said sonne Jonathan Shaw hee his heires and assignes for ever; provided alsoe that Notwithstanding the prmises I ame to have a Comfortable habitation with him During my life

This abovesaid Deed of gift was acknowlidged in the pticulares by the abovesaid John Shaw before Willam Bradford Govr: the 31 of December 1656; and by him ordered to be Recorded as above expressed;

[JOHN SHAW, SR., TO SONS JAMES AND JOHN]

[II : I : 206] 1658     Prence Govr:

The 26th of March 1658

Memorand: That John Shaw senir: of the Towne of Plymouth in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth planter Doth acknowlidge that hee Doth heerby give and make over unto his son Sarjeant James Shaw of Plymouth aforsaid all the one halfe of his land att Coaksett or Cushena or in any place or places adjacent Comonly Called the Purchase land viz: the one halfe of the said John Shaw his said land both upland and meddow in the place or places above expressed or any of them with all and singulare the appurtenances therunto belonging; To have and to hold the said one halfe of all the said John Shaw his propriatie of land att Coaksett acushena or places adjacent with all and singulare the appurtenances privilidges and emunities therunto belonging unto the said James Shaw hee & his heires for ever; provided That incase John Shaw the son of the said John Shaw senir: shall come within the tearme of foure yeares; begineing from the first of march 1657 and from that time fully to bee expired; that then the said John Shaw Juir: shall have the one halfe of that halfe of the land given unto James Shaw aforsaid viz; one quarter pte of all his lands att Coaksett acushena or places adjacent both upland & meddow To have and to hold with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto unto the said John Shaw Junir: to him and his heires for ever provided hee will live theron and make use therof but hee may not sell the same; but incase the said John Shaw Junir: Come not within the tearme of foure yeares above prefixed that then the said one halfe of the said John Shaw senir; his propriatie of land both upland and meddow is to belong and
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appertaine unto the said James Shaw hee and his heires for ever; and in the Intrime the said James Shaw hath libertie to Improve and Imploy the whole or any pte of the said John Shaw senir: his land either upland or meadow or any pte or pcell of either att the places above expressed as hee shall see cause; alwaies provided that hee shall not sell nor allianate the said lands or any pte or pcell therof from his heires but the said prmises to belong unto the onely proper use and behoof of him the said James Shaw and his heires for ever 

Acknowlidged before Leiftenant Southworth Asistant;

[JOHN SHAW, SR., TO HIS SONS AND SON-IN-LAW]

[III: 57] A Deed appointed 20 bee Recorded as followeth

Know all men by these prsents That I John Shaw of Plymouth in New England senir: have and Doe by these prsents give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant of Plymouth aforsaid all that my whole share of land aloted unto mee neare unto Namassakett both uplands and meadows with all and singulare the appurtenances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; Alsoe I Doe give unto my son in law Stephen Bryant another portion of land Called by the name of Rehoboth which land was formerly graunted unto mee; lying upon the south side of the smelt River; according as it is bounded and sett out; bee it forty acrees more or lesse with all the appurtenances therunto belonging; To the said Stephen Bryant his heires and assignes for ever; And I Doe further Declare by these prsents that I have and Doe give unto my son James Shaw the one halfe of my Purchase land att Cushena; and the one fourth prte of my said lott att Cushena I give unto my son Jonathan Shaw; and the other fourth prte of my said Purchase lands to my son in law Stephen Bryant To them and theire his and theire heires and assignes for ever; alsoe my purpose and will is that my Daughter Abigaill Bryant After my Decease shall have my bed and all the furniture therunto belonging; as alsoe my Chist with whatsoever else Doth any wayes appertaine to mee and in witnes of the truth and Reallity of all the abovesaid Premises I have heerunto sett my hand and seale January this 30 1663

Signed and sealed the     The marke of John Shaw

Day and yeare above     And a seale

written in the prsence of us

Thomas Prence

Samuell Dunham

).  Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.

     Children of John10 Shaw (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)" and Hanna (Abigail?) unknown (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)" (see #551) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, pages 259 to 270.) was born in 1622 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 270.).  He died after 9 Jun 1651 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 270.).

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.


 
ii.
James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 273.) was born in 1624 at England.  He married Mary Mitchell (4417)XE "Mitchell:Mary  (4417)" on 24 Dec 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660.).  He died on 1 Jun 1675 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 273.).

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.


 275.
iii.
Abigail (1057).XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)"

 276.
iv.
Jonathan (1062).XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)"
553.  Hanna (Abigail?)10 unknown (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 64.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.) was born at England.  She married John Shaw (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)" circa 1621 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 665.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 151, page 261.).  She died.

     Abigail (1057)XE "Shaw:Abigail  (1057) (1626-24 Oct 1694)", John (1058)XE "Shaw:John  (1058) (1596-1666)", Hanna (1059)XE "unknown:Hanna (Abigail?)  (1059)", John (1060)XE "Shaw:John  (1060) (1622-after 9 Jun 1651)", James (1061)XE "Shaw:James  (1061) (1624-1 Jun 1675)" and Jonathan (1062)XE "Shaw:Jonathan  (1062) (1629-Jul 1701)" immigrated to New England, Plymouth ?? circa 1632 at.

554.  George10 Watson (4486)XE "Watson:George  (4486) (circa 1602-31 Jan 1689)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Page 1944.) was born circa 1602.  He married Phebe Hicks (4487)XE "Hicks:Phebe  (4487) (before 15 Mar 1615-22 May 1663)" circa 1635.  He died on 31 Jan 1689 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. being 87 years of age.

     (an unknown value) (ORIGIN: Unknown 

MIGRATION: 1631 

FIRST RESIDENCE: Penobscot 

REMOVES: Plymouth by 1634 

OCCUPATION: Mariner. Impressed with the barque of which he was master, 3 May 1653 [PCR 3:29]. 

FREEMAN.- In'1633'Plymouth list of freemen between those admitted 1 january 1633/4 and those admitted 1 january 1634/5 [PCR 1.4] He is in the 7 March 1636/7 list of freemen [PCR 1:52], and in the Plymouth section of the 1639, 1658, 29 May 1670 and 1 [blank] 1683/4 Plymouth Colony lists of freemen [PCR 5:274, 8:174, 197, 202]. 

EDUCATION. He signed the coroner's inquest into the death of James Glasse [PCR 3:16] and other documents. His inventory included 'books" valued at 13s. 

OFFICES: Grand jury, 4 june 1639 [PCR 1:126]. Jury on highways, 1 February 1640/1 [PCR 2-7]. Arbiter, 5 March 1643/4, 6 October 1659, 29 October 1667 [PCR 2:69, 3:174, 7:139-40, 142]. Jury, 2 january 1637/8, 1 September 1640, 1 September 1640, 2 March 1646/7, 8 June 1654, 6 March 1654/5, 5 March 1655/6, 7 March 1659/60, 6 March 1661/2, 2 October 1662, 3 March 1662/3, 5 March 1666/7, 1 March 1669/70, 7 june 1670, 29 October 1670, 29 October 1673 [PCR 2:111-2, 3:75, 5:42, 7:7, 17, 18, 70, 77, 95-6, 102, 105, 108, 136, 159, 163, 186]. Coroner's jury on the body of James Glasse, 26 july 1652, 5 june 1678 on the body of Samuell Drew, 8 March 1678/9 on the body of Thomas Lucase of Plymouth and 28 October 1684 on the bodies of Joseph Truwant and Israell Holmes of Marshfield [PCR 3:16, 5:263, 6:8, 148]. 

Plymouth selectman, 5 February 1665[/6], 13 October 1667 [PTR 1:82, 91]. Constable, 6 June 1660, 5 June 1666, 5 June 1672 [PCR 3:187, 4:124, 5:90]. Overseer of surveying, 7 January 1638/9, 10 January 1661[/21 [PCR 1:109, PTR 1:451. Manager of exchange of Plymouth land, 21 February 1663[/4] [PTR 1:60]. 

In Plymouth section of 1643 Plymouth Colony list of men able to bear arms [PCR 8:188]. 

ESTATE: In 1635 he purchased a house and garden in Plymouth from John Jenny [PCR 12:51]. On 14 March 1635/6 he was allowed the rest of the meadow at Island Greck with Mr. Hicks and the next year it was allowed again [PCR 1:40, 56]. On 5 February 1637/8 he was granted four acres [PCR 1:76]. On 7 May 1638 with others he petitioned for land towards the Six Mile Brook [PCR 1:83). He purchased three acres from William Bradford in 1639 [PCR 12:51]. He was granted six acres of marsh meadow in Greens Harbor 20 November 1640 [PCR 1:167]. On March 1651 George Watson was one of those with interest in the town's land at Punckateesett over against Rhode Island [PTR 1:37]. On 17 March 1654 Goodman Watson was granted 'a little slip of meadow above the bridge ... at the South meadows' [PTR 1:208]. On 24 May 1662 George Watson's request for land at Mannomett Ponds caused Plymouth to select men to take charge of disposing of lands [PTR 1:47]. On 27 October 1662 he was on a list of men requesting meadow at the lower south meadow [PTR 1:49]. On the same day he was granted fifty acres of upland at Mannomett Ponds [PTR 1:51]. On 22 March 1663 George Watson shared lot twenty-two at Puncateesett Neck with John Shaw Sr. [PTR 1:67]. On 14 April 1664 the six acres belonging to George Watson, which he bought of George Bonum, was acknowledged to him and an exchange of three acres for two acres was ordered [PTR 1:75]. 

On 14 March 1663 'Gyles Gilbert of Taunton,' yeoman, sold to George Watson of Plymouth, yeoman, the land that had been bequeathed to him by his father Mr. John Gilbert [MD 34:23, citing PCLR 3:1:19]. James Davis, sometimes of Plymouth, seaman, sold to George Watson of Plymouth, seaman, 'five acres of upland ground lying on the south side of the town of Plymouth'; Mr. Nathaniel Souther, yeoman, sometimes of Plymouth, sold to George Watson of Plymouth, seaman, half an acre of marsh meadow in Plymouth; these two instruments were recorded on 18 November 1664 [MD 34:22, citing PCPR 3:1:18]. 

In a deed acknowledged on 29 October 1670 'Nathaniell Masterson living at York in New England' resigned to George Watson of Plymouth 'all my right of a house and garden which was my father's at Plymouth" [PCLR 3:181] 

On 22 August 1681 George Watson of Plymouth, seaman, sold to Joseph Bartlett Sr. of Plymouth, yeoman, a parcel of land at Mannomett Ponds in Plymouth being one-third of a tract granted by the town to George Watson, William Harlow Sr. and Nathaniel Morton Sr. [PCLR 5:158] On 9 December 1681 George Watson of Plymouth, mariner, deeded to "Elkanah Watson my dear and natural son" the seventh lot in the Freeman's Land [PCLR 5:108]. 

On 28 October 1681 George Watson of Plymouth acknowledged that he had exchanged land with Mr. Edward Gray [PCR 6:76]. 

The inventory of George Watson, taken 2 February 1688[/9], was untotalled and included no real estate [PPR 1:37; Gen Adv 1:43]. 

BIRTH: About 1602 based on age at death (but this is probably exaggerated by about five years). 

DEATH.- Plymouth 31 january 1688/9, "being 87 years of age" [PCHR 1:262]. 

MARRIAGE: About 1635 Phoebe Hicks, baptized St. Mary Magdalen, Bermondsey, Surrey, 15 March 1614/5, daughter of ROBERT HICKS of Plymouth; she died at Plymouth on 22 May 1663 [PCR 8:23]. 

ASSOCIATIONS: George Watson was not son of Robert Watson of Plymouth and Windsor, since there was no such person (see ROBERT WATSON in Phantom File). 

COMMENTS: On 19 july 1631 George Watson testified regarding the activities of EDWARD ASHLEY at Penobscot [MHSP 45:495]. 

George Watson appears in the list of freemen immediately preceding the court of 1 January 1632/3, but it is likely that he was actually admitted freeman in early 1634. The names immediately preceding his were admitted at the court of 1 January 1633/4. There then begins a column of names headed by "The rest admitted afterwards," which starts off with five men for whom there is no record of admission, and then seven who were admitted on 1 January 1634/5 (James Cudworth through Henry Rowley). Since in both Plymouth and Massachusetts colonies men were made freemen at or immediately before a meeting of the court, we can assume that George Watson and his four cohorts were admitted at some court between 1 January 1633/4 and 1 January 1634/5. The only courts recorded during this interval were held in late March of 1634, and this is very likely the time when George Watson was admitted. The other four men surrounding him on the list of freemen, and probably admitted at the same time, are all known to have been in Plymouth in 1633 or earlier. Since George Watson was not in either of the tax lists of 1632 or 1633, and married about 1635, it may be that he had just finished a term of servitude in the winter of 1633/4 and did not yet have any property. This would further suggest that he may have come to Plymouth as a servant of one of the families which arrived in 1629. 

On 6 February 1636/7 George Watson and others were fined for trading with the Indians for corn [PCR 1:50]. 

On returning home with a load of wood, George Watson and his servant John Bond went to unload the wood, but Bond bumped the mare and she ran away with him on the cart, and he leapt from the cart in front of the wheel and was crushed, as the coroner's jury ruled 23 july 1661 [PCR 3:223]. 

On 3 May 1664, George Watson and others complained that the whole town of Taunton suffered as a result of James Walker neglecting to leave a sufficient passage for the herrings to go up river [PCR 4:57]. 

On 1 May 1660 George Watson petitioned the court in behalf of 'his son John Watson and his nephew John Banges" that Samuel Hickes was entered in error as the purchaser of their land, when Mr. Robert Hickes should have been entered [PCR 3:186]. 

Phoebe and Mary are included as daughters of George Watson because there was no other Watson family in Plymouth at this time, the chronology is right, and Phoebe would have been named for her mother. 

On 6 March 1665/6 George Watson was granted administration on the estate of Mrs. Margarett Hickes, deceased [PCR 4:117] 

).

     Children of George10 Watson (4486)XE "Watson:George  (4486) (circa 1602-31 Jan 1689)" and Phebe Hicks (4487)XE "Hicks:Phebe  (4487) (before 15 Mar 1615-22 May 1663)" (see #555) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (4516)XE "Watson:John  (4516) (1636-after 1660)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born in 1636.  He/she died after 1660.
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ii.
Phebe (4418).XE "Watson:Phebe  (4418) (1638-        )"

 
iii.
Mary (4517)XE "Watson:Mary  (4517) (1642-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born in 1642.  She married Thomas Leonard (4518)XE "Leonard:Thomas  (4518)" on 21 Aug 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
iv.
Samuel (4519)XE "Watson:Samuel  (4519) (18 Jan 1649-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born on 18 Jan 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  His body was interred on 20 Aug 1649.


 
v.
Elizabeth (4520)XE "Watson:Elizabeth  (4520) (18 Jan 1649-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born on 18 Jan 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Joseph Williams (4521)XE "Williams:Joseph  (4521)" on 28 Nov 1667 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
vi.
Jonathan (4522)XE "Watson:Jonathan  (4522) (9 Mar 1652-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633.) was born on 9 Mar 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
vii.
Elkanah (4523)XE "Watson:Elkanah  (4523) (25 Feb 1656-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born on 25 Feb 1656 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

555.  Phebe10 Hicks (4487)XE "Hicks:Phebe  (4487) (before 15 Mar 1615-22 May 1663)" (Robert, #1110) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1946.) was born before 15 Mar 1615.  She was baptized on 15 Mar 1615 at St. Mary Magdalen.  She married George Watson (4486)XE "Watson:George  (4486) (circa 1602-31 Jan 1689)" circa 1635.  She died on 22 May 1663 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

556.  Robert10 Waterman (1172)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1172) (-before 10 Sep 1652)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 481.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 433.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 94, page 281.) was born at England.  He married Elizabeth Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" on 11 Dec 1638 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:181].).  He died before 10 Sep 1652 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W. ROBERT WATERMAN died at Marshfield, 10 December, 1652; his inventory was taken 13 January, 1652; his widow Elizabeth was appointed administratrix 1 March, 1652.* The records here presented, relating to the settlement of his estate, were transcribed from the original Plymouth Colony records, the proper reference being given in each case.

[Court Orders, III :19, under date of 1 March, 1652.]

Lres of adminnestracon are graunted unto Elizabeth wife of the late Deceased Robert Waterman to adminester upon his estate and to pay the Debts soe fare and by equall proportions as the estate will amount unto

[Plymouth Colony Wills, etc.]

[Vol. 1, fol. 118] A true and Just Inventary of the goods chattle and lands of Robert Waterman Deceased Taken and apprised by Mr Anthony Eames Mr hinksman Marke Eames and Anthony Snow the 13th Day of January 1652, exhibited att the court

* These dates, in new style, would be 20 December, 1652, 23 January, 1653, and 11 March, 1653, respectively.
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holden at Plymouth the sixt of June 1653 on the oath of Elizabeth Waterman

     £   s   d

Imprimis his house and all his Lands that hee bought     30 00 00

It his wearing apparrell     00 10 00

It one black Cow and calfe     05 00 00

It one Rid Cow     05 00 00

It one blacke steere     03 10 00

It one heifer of a yeare old and vantage one calfe     02 00 00

It 12 bookes and som smale pamplits     01 04 00

It 3 brase kettles and a little one     00 08 00

It 3 skellets and 2 brase ladles 2 skimmers 2 brase Candelsticks a brase morter and one Iron pestell      18 00

It 3 plate panns and a cullender and a pott     00 05 00

It 10 pewter Dishes and 3 pewter basons     02 11 06

It one chamberpott 2 Candelstickes 3 cupps 2 pint potts a Sucking bottle 3 porrengers a salt a quart pott 3 sawsers and two little plates     01 04 00

It 2 Iron potts one Iron kettle onn posnett and a frying pan     00 18 00

It 2 pothanggers 2 paire of pothookes and one gridiron     00 08 00

It one fowling peece     01 00 00

It one Codline and 5 ledds and a spliting knife and 6 Codhookes     00 05 00

It a warming pan a smothing Iron and and a paire of tonges     00 06 00

It 3 hammers and 4 waightes     00 03 00

It an old case and 6 bottles and an old compase     00 03 00

It one sword and bandalleers     00 08 00

It 6 napkins 2 tableclothes 4 pillowbeers and 4 old napkins and 3 sheets     01 08 00

It 2 flockbeds 3 boulsters and 3 coverleds     01 05 00

It 4 kemnells 2 payles one churne 2 bowles and 3 piggens     00 12 00

It one beer barrell one Rundlett 3 Cheesfatts and an old tubb     00 05 00

It 3 wooden platters 3 Dishes 2 measures 6 trencher 7 spoones     00 04 00

It a buckingtubb one tray one kneading trough & a butterpott     00 05 00

It 4 hogsheads with covers and 2 seives     00 12 12

It 3 cheaires and 2 Cushens     00 0 00

It one cradle and 2 old pillowes     00 02 00

It one Table 2 Chists 2 boxes and a trundle bedd     00 15 00

It 18 bushels of wheat and 4 bushels and an halfe of Indian corn and one bushell and an halfe of barley     05 02 02
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It one Sack and 2 baggs     00 02 00

It the halfe of the Shallope and half of the Rigging that was found     00 14 00

It 2 fliches of bacon     01 00 00

It a pcell of Coopers beading stuffe     00 0 00

It 5 henns     00 02 00

It 3 smale swine     00 09 00

It one exe 3 wedges a pichforke 2 hoes 2 old hand sawes and other housholdment or lumber     00 05 00

It one looking glasse and other things found afterwards     00 05 00

It Debts Due to Robert Waterman     05 03 06

The summe of all     78 00 00

Anthony Eames    Edmond hincksman    Marke Eames    Anthony Snow

[Court Orders, III: 173, under date of 3 October, 1659.]

Att this Court open proclamation was made that if any shall come in betwixt this Date and the Generall Court to bee holden att Plymouth the first Tusday in March next and Can Claime any Just Debt from the estate of Robert Waterman Satisfaction shalbee made proportionable to the said estate or otherwise a Quietus est will then bee graunted to Elizabeth somtimes the wife of the said Robert Waterman; and since that time untill the seaveth of June 1660: none Came in and then a quietus est was graunted unto Elizabeth somtimes the wife of the abovesaid Robert Waterman ; this was aded June 7th 1660: by order of the Court*

[Court Orders, IV: 115, under date of 6 February, 1665.]

Mr Josias Winslow and Anthony Snow are approved t by the Court to bee gaurdians to two of the sonnes of Robert Waterman Deceased; (viz) Josepth Waterman and Robert Waterman; and supposing that Robert Waterman is under age the Court appoints the said mr Winslow and Anthony Snow to bee gaurdian to him; as abovesaid;

[Plymouth Colony Deeds, III: 169.]

Marshfeild the 4th of July 1670 .... wheras the Court of Plymouth was pleased formerly to graunt a Certaine prsell of land and meadow unto Mr Jonathan Brewster late of Duxburrow, neare adjacent to the late fferrey of and between Marsh feild and Scittuate which said land was allianated .... by the

* The words in italics are in different ink.

"appointed" was crossed out and "approved" written after it.
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said Jonathan to old howell late of Marshfeild aforsaid, and three other prsons; and after the Death of the said howell; the Court thought meet to appoint Edmond Weston of Duxburrow to make sale of the said howells prte whoe sold the same to Robert Waterman of Marshfeild aforsaid Deceased, which said lands; I whose name is underwritten Can Testify That Elizabeth the late wife of Robert Waterman; and exequitrix of the said Robert, did make sale of the said prsell of Land to Thomas Tilden of the Towne aforsaid for thirty pounds for the better Inabling her to; satisfy the Creditors, her husband Waterman was Indebted unto; which said lands was put into the Inventory; and that I Did Receive; all or the Most prte of the prise of the said land, and payed Debts therwith for and in her behalfe; as will or may appeer by severall acquittances from the Creditors and this sale was made by her to the said Tilden, before her Marriage with him; which said Land the said Tilden sold afterwards to Willam Shurtley

þ me Josias Winslow;

As to the truth of what is heer written I Doe further Testify to the account as Knowne by mee John Bourne

The abovewritten was ordered by the Court to bee Recorded July 7th 1670

Wheras Robert Waterman of the Towne of Marshfeild Died without Will and Greatly Indebted the Court graunting Lres: of Adminnestration unto Elizabeth the wife of the said Robert Waterman to adminnester on the said Estate, soe farr as it amounted unto To whom the said Elizabeth Mr Thomas Bourne and John Bourne of the aforsaid Towne, were bound to the Court for Cecuritie The said Elizabeth exhibited to the Court an Inventory, of the Estate of the aforsaid Robert Waterman which amounted to seaventy eight pounds which was short of the Debts owing by the Deceased, which Doe appeer to be the sume of one hundred & 14 pounds by account given to the Court alsoe that about eighty seaven pounds of the aforsaid Debts was payed and satislyed; and that the said house and land which the said Robert Waterman Bought and Parchased of Edmond Weston Adminnestrator to the estate of Thomas howell whoe Purchased the said house and land of Mr Jonathan Brewster the said house and land being Purchased by the said Robert Waterman and by the Law of this Collonie is accoumpted or made Responsible to pay Debts, was therfore Inventoried, and given into the Court, and was made sale of by the said Elizabeth exequitrix unto the estate of the said Robert; by and with the Consent of the aforsaid Mr: Thomas

Bourne and John Bourne; unto Thomas Tilden of the aforsaid Towne of Marshfeild for the sume of thirty pounds, which by evidence Doth appeer to the Court, payed a prte of the aforsaid Debts, all which being Considered of by the Court; they Doe approve and alow of the aforsaid sale of the aforsaid house and Land, made by the said Elizabeth Exequitrix unto the Estate, of the said Robert Waterman, unto the said Thomas Tilden and soe the Court Doth Graunt, and alow the said Thomas Tilden to be the sole and whole proprietor, of the said house and land as Legally Purchased;

This writing was ordered by the Court to be Recorded July the seaventh 1670

 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 191.).  His body was interred on 10 Sep 1652 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 191.).

     (an unknown value) (Robert, yeoman, Plymouth, bought land 7 May, 1639. Removed to Marshfield, freeman (citizen) 7 March, 1642; proprietor 1643; deputy 1646; town officer.

Memorand; the eleventh of January 1652 this sale was made to Robert Waterman anno 1649 but acknowledged the Day and Yeare above mentioned

That Edmond Weston of the towne of Duxburrow in the Jurisdiction of New Plymouth in new England in america planter doth knowlidg that for and in consideracon of the full summe of fourteen pounds and ten shillings to him already paied and three pounds and fiveteen shillings to bee paied unto him hee hath freely and absolutly barganed allianated and sold (as adminestrator of the estate of Thomas howell Deceased) a certaine pcell of upland and meddow which was somtimes the Lands of the said howell unto Robert Waterman of Marshfeild the said Lands lying and being att the North River in the Township of Marshfeild aforsaid videlecet all the one part of foure of the lot of Land there; which was somtimes the Land of Mr Jonathan Brewster being bounded on the one side with the land of Jeremiah Borrowes and on the other side with the Lands of John Barker; To have and to hold the said pcell of Upland and meddow belonging therunto soe bounded as abovesaid with all and singulare the appurtenances belonging therunto or unto any pte or pcell therof unto the onely prper use and behoofe of him the said Robert Waterman his heires and assignes for ever the said prmises with all and singulare the appurtenances privilidges and emunities appertaining therunto to belong unto the onely prper use and behoof of him the said Robert Waterman his heires and assignes for ever;

Before such time as the abovesaid Edmond Weston; Did acknowlidge and avouch the sale of the abovesaid Lands Mr Thomas Bourne of Marshfeild did engage before Mr Willam Bradford Governor to pay unto the said Edmond Weston the abovesaid summe of three pounds and fiveteen shillin(worn) Remayning due to him from Robert Waterman for the said Lands

A Receipt and aquittance appointed to bee Recorded

Received the 3d of ffebruary 1652 of Thomas Bourne of Marshfeild the full summe of three pounds and fifteen shillings in full paiment of that house and Land and meadow that Robert Waterman Did buy of mee Edmond Weston being adminnestrator unto Thomas howell Deceased; and furthermore where the abovenamed Thomas Bourne hath engaged himselfe upon Record in New Plymouth booke for the above named summe of three pound and fifteene shillings to mee Edmond Weston I doe heerby before these Witnesses Discharge and acquitte the said Thomas Bourne of all such engagements and promises which hee hath made unto mee for the paiment heerof In Witnesse wherof I have sett to my hand

Wittnesse     Edmond Weston;

John Bradford

the marke of

Willam ford

).

     Children of Robert10 Waterman (1172)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1172) (-before 10 Sep 1652)" and Elizabeth Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" (see #301) were as follows:


 
i.
Joseph9 (1174)XE "Waterman:Joseph  (1174) (1639-3 Jan 1711)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 204.) was born in 1639 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 204.).  He married Sarah Snow (2354)XE "Snow:Sarah  (2354) (Jun 1651-11 Sep 1741)" circa 1673 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 283.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 432.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  He died on 3 Jan 1711 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).
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ii.
John (1170).XE "Waterman:John Deacon (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

XE "Waterman:John Deacon  (1170) (19 Apr 1642-14 Sep 1718)"

 
iii.
Thomas (1175)XE "Waterman:Thomas  (1175) (1644-1708)" was born in 1644.  He married Miriam Tracy (4525)XE "Tracy:Miriam  (4525) (1648-        )" in Nov 1668 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.).  He died in 1708.


 
iv.
Robert (1176)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1176) (1652-18 May 1741)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 23, page 204.) was born in 1652.  He married Susanna Lincoln (4526)XE "Lincoln:Susanna  (4526)" on 30 Sep 1675 at Hingham, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 2, page 254.).  He married Sarah Lincoln (4527)XE "Lincoln:Sarah  (4527)" on 20 Feb 1699 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.).  He died on 18 May 1741.


 
v.
Joseph (1177)XE "Waterman:Joseph  (1177) (1652-)" was born in 1652.  He died.

557.  Elizabeth10 Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" (Thomas, #602) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) married Robert Waterman (1172)XE "Waterman:Robert  (1172) (-before 10 Sep 1652)" on 11 Dec 1638 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 784.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:181].).  She married Thomas Tilden (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" in 1671 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  She died.

558.  Samuel10 Sturtevant (1191)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1191) (circa 1625-Oct 1669)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 229.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 440.) was born circa 1625.  He married Anne unknown (1192)XE "unknown:Anne  (1192)" before 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He died in Oct 1669. [SAMUEL STURTIVANT'S WILL]

[p. 10] Samuel Sturtivant of Plymouth made his will 1 August, 1669, and it was probated at Plymouth, 29 October, 1669, on the oaths of the two witnesses. Bequests were as follows:

To "my soninlaw John Waterman the one halfe of that my share of Land that I bought of Edward Gray which lyeth neare Namassakeesett ponds Called the Majors purchase"

To "my sonnes Namly Samuell James John and Joseph and to the Child my wife now goeth with (if a boy) after my wifes Decease; all my house and Land that I now Dwell upon: and all other Lands and meddowes; with all Rightes belonging therunto; That I have in any place whatsoever; To be equally Devided to all or soe many of my aforsaid sonnes as shalbe alive att my wifes Decease; and incase my wife thinketh it meet; to settle and give my son Samuell a Doubble share of the said housing and lands; then it is my will that hee shall have it; that is two shares and the Rest Liveing one share apeece; and incase any of my sonnes are minded to sell their prtes after theire Devison; my will is that hee sell it to one of his brothers incase any of them will give as may bee thought meet by two Indifferent men"

To "my .... wife all my Cattle goods and estate whatsoever" and she is "to be the sole exequitrix"

The witnesses were William Crow and John Smith, the latter signing by a mark.

The inventory was taken 22 October, 1669, by "serjeant Ephraim Tinkham Joseph Howland and Willam Crow; and exhibited to the Court held att Plymouth" 29 October, 1669. The only mention . of real estate is: "As for his housing and lands wee leave the valluation therof ;"

The estate was indebted to "John Rogers of Duxburrow"; John Dunham; Jabez Howland; John Moses; James Cole, Sr.; James Barnabey; Edward Gray; William Nelson; "the widdow Dunham"; "John Shaw of Boston"; "Elizabeth Combes of Boston"; "mistris Sarah Paine"; "mr Thomas Clarke of Boston"; John Wood; "serjeant Willam Harlow"; Andrew Ring; "John Hubbard"; Thomas Lucas; John Smith.

     (an unknown value) (Samuel, Plymouth, planted land on shares in 1641; able to bear arms 1643; bought land 1647; town officer

).

     Children of Samuel10 Sturtevant (1191)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1191) (circa 1625-Oct 1669)" and Anne unknown (1192)XE "unknown:Anne  (1192)" (see #303) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:
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i.
Ann9 (1171).XE "Sturtevant:Ann  (1171) (4 Jun 1648-9 Feb 1720)"

 
ii.
John (1193)XE "Sturtevant:John  (1193) (17 Oct 1650-30 Oct 1650)" was born on 17 Oct 1650 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658, [p. 10].).  He died on 30 Oct 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 658, [p. 11].).


 
iii.
Mary (1199)XE "Sturtevant:Mary  (1199) (7 Dec 1651-)" was born on 7 Dec 1651 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659 [p. 13].).  She died.


 
iv.
Samuel (1194)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1194) (19 Apr 1654-21 Apr 1736)" was born on 19 Apr 1654 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661, [p. 17].).  He married Mercy Bennett (4529)XE "Bennett:Mercy  (4529) (circa 1655-1714)" before 1676 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He married Elizabeth Horril (4530)XE "Horril:Elizabeth  (4530)" on 12 Aug 1715 at Beverly, Essex Co, MA (Entry ID: 231, 01.).  He died on 21 Apr 1736 at Halifax, Mass., USA, at age 82. in his 83rd year (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 111, page 240.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 3, No. 1, page 15.).


 
v.
Hannah (1195)XE "Sturtevant:Hannah  (1195) (4 Sep 1656-)" was born on 4 Sep 1656 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 661, [p. 19].).  She died.


 
vi.
John (1196)XE "Sturtevant:John  (1196) (6 Sep 1658-4 Feb 1752)" was born on 6 Sep 1658 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 25].).  He married Hannah Winslow (4531)XE "Winslow:Hannah  (4531) (-1 Mar 1709)" before 1687 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He died on 4 Feb 1752 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, at age 93. aged 93 years 5 months (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 115, page 241.).  His body was interred after 4 Feb 1752 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. was buried beside Hannah on the hill top immediately east of where the watch house once stood. Presumably John outlived his second wife, by whom he had no children (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 115, page 241.).


 
vii.
Lydia (1200)XE "Sturtevant:Lydia  (1200) (13 Dec 1660-)" was born on 13 Dec 1660 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 26].).  She died.


 
viii.
James (1197)XE "Sturtevant:James  (1197) (11 Feb 1663-)" was born on 11 Feb 1663 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665, [p. 29].).  He died.


 
ix.
Joseph (1198)XE "Sturtevant:Joseph  (1198) (16 Jul 1666-)" was born on 16 Jul 1666 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 35].).  He married Anna Jones (4532)XE "Jones:Anna  (4532)" on 5 Dec 1693 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  He died.

559.  Anne10 unknown (1192)XE "unknown:Anne  (1192)" married Samuel Sturtevant (1191)XE "Sturtevant:Samuel  (1191) (circa 1625-Oct 1669)" before 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.).  She married John Bass (4528)XE "Bass:John  (4528) (before 18 Sep 1630-12 Sep 1716)" on 21 Sep 1675 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 720.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 107, page 219.).  She died.

583.  Jennie le10 Mahieu (1119)XE "Mahieu:Jennie le  (1119)" died.

     Children of Jennie le10 Mahieu (1119)XE "Mahieu:Jennie le  (1119)" include:
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i.
Hester9 (1114).XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)"

 
ii.
Jenne le (4454)XE "Mahieu:Jenne le  (4454)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 143, page 195.).

584.  Thomas10 Wadsworth (4371)XE "Wadsworth:Thomas  (4371) (1550-        )" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Karen DeHond, Database: DEHQ7CD.) was born in 1550 at England (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Karen DeHond, USA, Database: DEHQ7CD.).

     Children of Thomas10 Wadsworth (4371)XE "Wadsworth:Thomas  (4371) (1550-        )" include:
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i.
Christopher9 (2563).XE "Wadsworth:Christopher  (2563) (circa 1 Dec 1609-after 31 Jul 1677)"
602.  Thomas10 Bourne (1178)XE "Bourne:Thomas  (1178) (circa 1581-11 May 1664)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 60.) was born circa 1581.  He married Elizabeth unknown (1179)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1179) (1590-18 Jul 1660)" before 1614 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 86.).  He married Martha unknown (1180)XE "unknown:Martha  (1180)" before 18 Jul 1660 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 86.).  He died on 11 May 1664 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W. dyed & was Buried ye 11 of may 1664 being then aged . 83.

[THOMAS BOURNE'S WILL]

"The last Will .... of Mr Thomas Bourne of the Towne of Marshfeild .... late Deceased exhibited to the generall Court held att Plymouth the 2th of June 1664 on the oathes of Mr Samuell Arnold and Anthony Snow;"

"Thomas Bourne .... Draper" made his will on 2 May, 1664. Bequests were as follows.

"I give unto my Daughter Bradford according to my promise twenty pounds to bee payed her in Corne or Cattle or goods; and also I give her my wifes gould Ringer"

"I Doe give unto my Daughter Smith nine pound to bee payed her for a legacy in come Cattle or goods ;"

"I Doe give unto my Daughter Winslow two Cowes"

"I give unto my sonne Tildin five shillings in Corne for a legacye ;"

"And I give unto my Daughter Tildin: Daughter Lydia Tildin forty shillings; I say two pounds in Cattle; for the better understanding of the forty shillings; before mentioned and I give unto John Waterman two pounds in Cattle or goods or come; And I give unto Thomas Waterman two pounds in Cattle goods or come; And I Doe give unto Josepth Waterman two pounds in Cattle goods or Corne And I Doe give unto Robert Waterman two pounds in Cattle goods or Corne"

"I Doe give unto Mr Arnold twenty shillings in goods or Corne

"I Doe heerby Declare my son John Bourne to bee my heire
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and I Doe give unto him all my lands and housing that are upon my lands that is neare hand or further Remote layed out or to bee layed out to mee"

"my son John Bourne" was appointed executor.

The witnesses were Samuel Arnold and Anthony Snow.

The inventory was taken by Sergeant Joseph Beedle, Anthony Snow and Thomas Doged, the last named signing by a mark, and was exhibited at court at Plymouth on 9 June, 1664, on the oath of John Bourne. The real estate was "his house and land and orchyard and meddowes" and "a lott of land lying neare Taunton" but the value was not stated. Debts were due from "serjeant Cotten", John Branch, "mr Josias Winslow senir", Captain Thomas, John Thomas, "Mr John Bradford"; and the estate owed: "for sugar and wine and fruit for the buriall" £1, 1s; to Humphrey Johnson, 4s

 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 192.).

     (an unknown value) (Mr. Thomas, Plymouth, land granted to his son Richard for him Jan. 2, 1636; freeman (citizen) 7 Feb.  1636-7. He removed to Marshfield. Proprietor 1643. Early at Marshfield, may prob. have come from Co. Kent, bringing family, having being at Plymouth 1636. Was a man of substance and repute.

[HOWLAND, BOURNE AND DINGLEY, AGREEMENT]

1656 A writing apointed to bee Recorded

Wheras there was a Diference fell out betwixt John howland senir Thomas Bourne and John Dingley about the Range of a pcell of marsh meddow lying in Marshfeild and not eazye to bee knowne;

These are therefore to put an end to the aforsaid Diference; It is agreed by and between the said John howland senir Thomas Bourne and John Dingley senir: that the line or Range shall begin att the beach next the sea upon a west line sett by a compas to a homacke in the marsh where there lyes an old
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Ceader hee there being noe other nor no more trees neare next to the great Iland but that onely And from the aforsaid homacke and hee to Run upon the aforsaid west line to the Basse creeke To which agreement all the aforsaid pties have freely assented unto as abovesaid; alsoe that this agreement bee put upon Record both att Marshfeild and the court booke att Plymouth to avoid all further Diference for time to Come about the prmises; in witnesse wherof wee the said John howland senir: Thomas Bourne and John Dingley have put to our hands this fourth of May 1655

in the prsence John howland

of Myles Standish Thomas Bourne John Dingley

).

     Children of Thomas10 Bourne (1178)XE "Bourne:Thomas  (1178) (circa 1581-11 May 1664)" and Elizabeth unknown (1179)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1179) (1590-18 Jul 1660)" (see #603) were as follows:
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i.
Elizabeth9 (1173).XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)"

 
ii.
John (1181)XE "Bourne:John  (1181) (-8 Dec 1684)" married Alice Besbeech (4537)XE "Besbeech:Alice  (4537) (-7 May 1686)" on 18 Jul 1645 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 85.).  He died on 8 Dec 1684.


 
iii.
Martha (1182)XE "Bourne:Martha  (1182) (-1689)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Vol. 14, page 82.) married Thomas Tracy (4534)XE "Tracy:Thomas  (4534)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 90.).  She married John Bradford (4533)XE "Bradford:John  (4533)" circa 1620 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 90.).  She died in 1689.


 
iv.
Margaret (1184)XE "Bourne:Margaret  (1184) (-1683)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 82.) married Josiah Winslow (4535)XE "Winslow:Josiah  (4535) (1606-1674)" before 1637 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 829.).  She died in 1683.


 
v.
Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 82.) married Nathaniel Tilden (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)" before 1608 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  She married Timothy Hatherly (3907)XE "Hatherly:Timothy  (3907) (-1666)" in 1642 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 353.).  She died.

     Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
vi.
Ann (1183)XE "Bourne:Ann  (1183) (circa 1620-circa 1684)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 82.) was born circa 1620.  She married Nehemiah Smith (4536)XE "Smith:Nehemiah  (4536) (circa 1605-1686)" on 21 Jan 1640 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 687.).  She died circa 1684.

603.  Elizabeth10 unknown (1179)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1179) (1590-18 Jul 1660)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) was born in 1590 at England.  She married Thomas Bourne (1178)XE "Bourne:Thomas  (1178) (circa 1581-11 May 1664)" before 1614 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 86.).  She died on 18 Jul 1660 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 192.).

608.  Robert10 Finney (2186)XE "Finney:Robert  (2186) (circa 1568-circa 1638)" (Jeffrey, #1216) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) was born circa 1568.  He married mother Finney (1209)XE "Finney:mother  (1209) (before 1570-22 Apr 1650)" circa 1595 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 140, page 321.).  He died circa 1638.

     (an unknown value) (The Finney family - two brothers, John and Robert, two sisters, Katherine and Anne, and their aged mother, whose name has not been discovered appeared in Plymouth Colony late in the 1630s.  The earliest mention of the family in New England sources is the birth of John3, son of John2 Finney, at Plymouth on 24 December 1638. John2 lived in Plymouth and Barnstable, but he died probably in Bristol, where he had removed late in life with three of his sons.  Married three times, he produced an extensive posterity.  His brother Robert2 Finney, who was married but had no children, remained in Plymouth until his death on 7 January 1687/8.  Both brothers held many positions of trust in the colony.  Their sisters Katherine and Anne also remained in Plymouth and left descendants.

It is not known whether the four Finney siblings and their mother arrived on the same date or came to the colony individually, but the evidence suggests they came at or near the same time.  John2 Finney, Robert2 Finney, and William2 Fallowell, the son of their sister Katherine, were together on 2 December 1639, when they were assigned land in Webb's Field at Plymouth.

There is a tradition among descendants that the father of the Finney immigrants died crossing the sea enroute to America. As will be shown below, this tradition may be correct.  The mother of the four siblings is almost certainly the unidentified 'Mother Feney' whose death at Plymouth on 22 April 1650, 'aged fourscore and upwards,' is the only mention of her in Plymouth records.

New England sources reveal important details of family structure necessary to the identification of these Finneys in English records.  From Plymouth Colony records, it was learned that John2 Finney had a wife Christian who died at Plymouth on 9 September 1649. It seemed possible, even likely, that John2 was married prior to his arrival in the colony, as the first mention of him in Plymouth sources is the birth of his son John3 on 24 December 1638.

The next document of imtportance is the will of Robert2 Finney of Plymouth, written on 20 May 1686 and proved at Boston 6 April 1688. Robert had no children of his own, and he made bequests to the children of his 'brother' John Finney, thus proving the relationship between these two.  Deacon [Robert2] Finney died at Plymouth on 7 January 1687[/8], 'aged near fourscore years,' and thus born about 1607/8.  He may have been younger than his brother John, as he married several years later, in 1641.

Evidence that Katherine and Anne are sisters of John2 and Robert2 is found in the will of the widow Katherine Fallowell of Plymouth, dated 29 March 1673, and exhibited at Plymouth on 5 June 1676. Among the heirs mentioned in the will are 'my brother' Robert Finney, 'My sister' Anne Kinge, Anne's children, Samuel Kinge, Joseph Kinge, Isaac Kinge, and Hannah May, the children of her son John Fallowell, and grandchildren Jonathan Fallowell, and Hannah, wife of Joseph Bartlett.  Katherine's will is brimming with valuable evidence.  Not only did she identify a brother, sister, and son, but clues in the will help to establish the identity of her husband, her sister Anne's husband, and two of her children, who are left unnamed in the will.  Furthermore, all of this information is useful to estimate Katherine's age.

Katherine was clearly the wife of Gabriell Fallowell of Plymouth, whose will, dated 14 October 1667, mentions a wife Katheren, grandchild Jonathan Fallowell, and 'brother' Robert Finney.  The document was exhibited at Plymouth on 5 March 1667. Jonathan Fallowell, mentioned in the wills of both paternal grandparents, was orphaned before 26 August 1652, when he was bound out to his uncle Robert2 Finney.  The document shows that Jonathan was eight years old and a son of William2 Fallowell, deceased. As mentioned above, William2 Fallowell was assigned land in 1639 with his uncles, John and Robert Finney, suggesting that William was born no later than 1618.  To further extrapolate the chronology, one may expect that his mother, Katherine (Finney) Fallowell was born no later than about 1600 and probably several years before that date.

Additional evidence of Katherine's age is suggested by the marriage date of her daughter Anne to Thomas Pope on 28 July 1637. Although Anne is not mentioned in the will of Katherine or Gabriell Fallowell, Katherine's will identified Hannah, wife of Joseph Bartlett, as one of her granddaughters.  Proof that Hannah is a daughter of Thomas and Anne (Fallowell) Pope is found in a deed from Thonias Pope to 'my Son in law Joseph Bartlett'. Again, a review of the probable chronology suggests that Katherine was born no later than 1600 and probably earlier.  There can be little doubt that Katherine2 Finney and Gabriell Fallowell were married well before their arrival in Plymouth.

Anne Kinge was identified as a sister in the will of Katherine Fallowell.  Through the identification of Anne's children in the same document, it is possible to conclude that Anne's husband was Samuel1 King of Plymouth.  Their oldest known child Joseph2 King was born about 1647/8, and thus Anne was probably the youngest of the four Finney siblings.

Summarizing the evidence found in New England sources, the immigrant family consisted of at least four siblings: John, Robert, Katherine, and Anne, and their mother, who was born about 1570.  The father may have died while crossing the sea.  Katherine was probably the eldest child, born about 1596.  She was married to Gabriel Fallowell and had at least two children, William and Anne, before emigrating.  They also had a son John whose age is unknown.  John2  Finney was probably the next oldest child.  He had a wife Christian whom he may have married prior to emigration.  He arrived at Plymouth no later that 24 December 1638.  Robert2 was born about 1607/8 and was probably not married when he came to Plymouth, which was before 2 December 1639.  Anne was probably the youngest, most likely unmarried upon arrival in the colony.  A family matching this description on nearly all points was identified in the parish of Lenton, Nottinghamshire

).

     Children of Robert10 Finney (2186)XE "Finney:Robert  (2186) (circa 1568-circa 1638)" and mother Finney (1209)XE "Finney:mother  (1209) (before 1570-22 Apr 1650)" (see #609) were as follows:


 
i.
Katherine9 (1211)XE "Finney:Katherine  (1211) (circa 1596-1673)" (Howard Finney, Finney-Phinney Families in America, Page 1.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 322.) was born circa 1596.  She married Gabriel Fallowell (1931)XE "Fallowell:Gabriel  (1931) (1584-28 Dec 1667)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 257.).  She died in 1673.


 
ii.
Joyce (2197)XE "Finney:Joyce  (2197) (before 9 Apr 1599-before 5 Aug 1603)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 322.) was born before 9 Apr 1599.  She was baptized on 9 Apr 1599 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 322.).  She died before 5 Aug 1603.  Her body was interred on 5 Aug 1603.


 
iii.
Anne (2198)XE "Finney:Anne  (2198) (before 14 Mar 1602-before 17 Feb 1603)" was born before 14 Mar 1602.  She was baptized on 14 Mar 1602 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 322.).  She died before 17 Feb 1603.  Her body was interred on 17 Feb 1603 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 322.).


 304.
iv.
John (1207).XE "Finney:John  (1207) (before 15 Mar 1604-after 7 Feb 1683)"

 
v.
Robert (1210)XE "Finney:Robert  (1210) (before 16 Feb 1608-7 Jan 1688)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 322.) was born before 16 Feb 1608 at England.  He was baptized on 16 Feb 1608 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 322.).  He married Phebe Ripley (1930)XE "Ripley:Phebe  (1930) (circa 1619-9 Oct 1710)" on 1 Sep 1641 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. No issue (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 579.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 654.).  He died on 7 Jan 1688 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. aged near four score years (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 322.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 134, [p. 200].).

     (an unknown value) (They had no children. Robert first appears in the Plymouth records on 2 Dec. 1639, when he was assigned a "garden place" in Webb's Field with his brother John Finney and nephew William Fallowell. Robert and his brother each received grants of six acres on the brook coming from "Fresh Lake" on 16 Sept. 1641. Robert was on the list of those able to bear arms for the town of Plymouth in August 1643. He was constable in 1645 and was made a freeman of the colony on 7 June 1647. He was deputy to the General Court from Plymouth, 1657-60, 1661-64, 1669, and 1670-72. Although Robert was frequently a juryman, he was fined on 4 Oct. 1653 for failing to serve on a jury. He was granted lands at Taunton in 1662. On 1 June 1663 he was appointed with others to view the lands on the north side of Seconk and make a report to the court. Robert was granted 100 acres at Namassakett River, "if it may be had there," otherwise at Acushenett, on 2 July 1667. In 1666 he was both selectman and surveyor of highways for the town of Plymouth. He was a deacon of the church there from 1669 until his death).


 
vi.
Anne (2199)XE "Finney:Anne  (2199) (before 4 Aug 1611-4 May 1688)" was born before 4 Aug 1611 at England.  She was baptized on 4 Aug 1611 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 322.).  She married Samuel King (2200)XE "King:Samuel  (2200) (1619-1705)" at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 439.).  She died on 4 May 1688 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 134, [p. 200].).

609.  mother10 Finney (1209)XE "Finney:mother  (1209) (before 1570-22 Apr 1650)" was born before 1570.  She married Robert Finney (2186)XE "Finney:Robert  (2186) (circa 1568-circa 1638)" circa 1595 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 140, page 321.).  She died on 22 Apr 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

610.  Edward10 Patten (2201)XE "Patten:Edward  (2201)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.) married Elizabeth Trinder (2202)XE "Trinder:Elizabeth  (2202)" on 29 Oct 1606 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.).  He died.

     Children of Edward10 Patten (2201)XE "Patten:Edward  (2201)" and Elizabeth Trinder (2202)XE "Trinder:Elizabeth  (2202)" (see #611) were as follows:
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i.
Christian9 (1208).XE "Patten:Christian  (1208) (before 23 Nov 1608-9 Sep 1649)"

 
ii.
Elizabeth (2203)XE "Patten:Elizabeth  (2203) (before 19 Apr 1612-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.) was born before 19 Apr 1612.  She died.

611.  Elizabeth10 Trinder (2202)XE "Trinder:Elizabeth  (2202)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.) married Edward Patten (2201)XE "Patten:Edward  (2201)" on 29 Oct 1606 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 323.).  She died.

612.  Thomas10 Rogers (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)" (William, #1224) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 390.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 569.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 206.) (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 78.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1597.) was born circa 1572 at England (Copied from unidentified book, 1995 by Ricardo Ernesto Rain, at NEGHS.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  He married Alice Cosford (1235)XE "Cosford:Alice  (1235)" on 24 Oct 1597 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 635.) (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 78.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  He died circa 1621 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     (an unknown value) (Thomas, came in the Mayflower to Plymouth, bringing his son Joseph; his other children came afterwards. He died in the first sickness, but his son Joseph was married and had 6 children; and the rest of his children were married and had many children. Probably Joseph and John of Duxbury were his children, but proof is incomplete. See Genealogy by Drummond. Thomas Rogers and Joseph, his son, are credited to the Leyden contingent but it

is suggestive that the names of Christopher Martin, Thomas Rogers and John Hooke are found early in 1620 as taxpayers of the parish of St. Barholomew the Great, London. Thomas, the father, died the first winter in the "general sickness," but his son survived and descendants now bear the name. (Bradford.) He was called a "camlet merchant" in the Leyden records and appears to have come to Leyden a few years before the migration as it was not until 1618 that he acquired citizenship. He was guaranteed by William Jepson who was from Worksop, Notts, and Roger Wilson of Sandwich, Kent. If either was a neighbor or relative, clue to his origin may be found here. Bradford says (page 453) that Thomas Rogers had other children beside Joseph who came in the Mayflower. He states that they came over later but their names are not on the Leyden records. He sold his house there in April, 1620, preparatory to removal to America. Little is known about Pilgrim Thomas Rogers, and nothing at all is known about his ancestry. His alleged descent from John Rogers the Martyr was disproved in the 19th century by Joseph Chester and Henry F. Waters.  Banks notes that taxpayers named Thomas Rogers, Christopher Martin and John Hooke appear in the London parish of St. Bartholomew the Great early in 1620, but there is no proof that these were the Mayflower passengers.

Our earliest known encounter with Pilgrim Thomas Rogers was on 25 June 1618 when he became a citizen of Leiden, Holland, vouched for by William Jepson, formerly of Worksop, Notts., and by Roger Wilson, formerly of Sandwich, Kent Co., England. Banks therefore speculates that Rogers might have been from one of those towns. On 1 April 1620 Thomas sold his Leiden house on the Barbarasteeg for 300 guilders, in preparation for the journey to New England. Governor Bradford says in his history of the Plymouth settlement that on board the Mayflower were "Thomas Rogers and Joseph his son; his other children came afterwards...Thomas Rogers died in the first sickness but his son Joseph is still living [1650] and is married and hath six children. The rest of Thomas Rogers' [children] came over and are married and have many children." Therefore we know that Thomas and his son Joseph arrived at Cape Cod aboard the ship Mayflower, and on 11 November 1620 according to their calendar, or 21 November on ours, Thomas was one of fortyone signers of the Mayflower Compact. Thomas did not live through the rigorous winter which carried off half the group, but young Joseph, like so many of the children, did survive. Recent discoveries show that Thomas had a family living in Leiden, Holland, when the 1622 Poll Tax was taken. In the Over't Hoff Quarter, in a house with other Pilgrim families in St. Peter's Churchyard west-side, were Jan Thomasz, orphan from England without means; Elsgen Rogiers, widow of Thonis Rogiers, an Englishwoman; and Lysbeth and Grietgen her children, poor people. Translated this could read John, son of Thomas; Elizabeth Rogers, widow of Thomas; and Elizabeth and Margaret, her children. At that period the word orphan meant that either or both parentes were dead. In the 1623 Plymouth Colony land division, Joseph Rogers was allotted two acres--one for himself and one on behalf of his late father. He may have been living in the household of Governor Bradford with whom he was grouped on 22 May 1627, in the division of cattle. Joseph and twelve other inhabitants of Plymouth received "an heyfer of the last year which was of the Great white-black cow that was brought over in the Ann, and two shee goats."  Governor Bradford's statement that the rest of Thomas Roger's children came over and married and had children, seems clearly to indicate that more than one of his children came to New England after 1620. We know that his son John came to Plymouth about 1630. Although many other male Rogers immigrants have been claimed as sons of Thomas the Pilgrim, none of the claims has been proved, and some have been disproved. Therefore it seems likely that at least one of the Rogers daughters who were living in Holland in 1622 came over. John and Joseph Rogers each named a daughter Elizabeth, perhaps thereby indicating that their sister Elizabeth lived in New England. Unfortunately extensive research has failed to uncover any further evidence. John Rogers came to Plymouth about 1630, when the last of the Leiden contingent arrived, and was in Plymouth Colony on 25 March 1633 when he was taxed 9 shillings. The proof of ins identity lies in a grant made 6 April 1640 to "Joseph Rogers and John Rogers his brother ... fifty acres apeece of upland ...at the North River." Both then had growing families to carry forward the Rogers heritage, although only Joseph's descendants would carry forward the Rogers name beyond the fourth generation.

Estate: In the 1623 Plymouth land division Joseph Rogers was granted two acres as a passenger on the Mayflower, for himself and his deceased father [PCR 12:4]. In the 1627 Plymouth cattle division Joseph Rogers was the fifth person en the eleventh company [PCR 12:12]

).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of Thomas10 Rogers (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)" and Alice Cosford (1235)XE "Cosford:Alice  (1235)" (see #613) all born at Watford, Northamptnshire, England, were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas9 (4378)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (4378) (24 Mar 1599-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) was born on 24 Mar 1599 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  His/her body was interred on 27 May 1599 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).
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ii.
Joseph (1232).XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)"

 
iii.
John (1236)XE "Rogers:John  (1236) (before 6 Apr 1606-26 Aug 1691)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) was born before 6 Apr 1606 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  He was baptized on 6 Apr 1606 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  He married Ann Churchman (2110)XE "Churchman:Ann  (2110)" on 16 Apr 1639 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 653, [1:198].).  He died on 26 Aug 1691 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.).


 
iv.
Elizabeth (1238)XE "Rogers:Elizabeth  (1238) (before 26 Dec 1609-)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 155.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) was born before 26 Dec 1609 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  She was baptized on 26 Dec 1609 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Living 1622 in Leyden, Holland; n.f.r., but may have come to New England and married).


 
v.
Margaret (1237)XE "Rogers:Margaret  (1237) (before 30 May 1613-)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 2, page 155.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) was born before 30 May 1613 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  She was baptized on 30 May 1613 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Living 1622 in Leyden, Holland; n.f.r., but may have come to New England and married).

613.  Alice10 Cosford (1235)XE "Cosford:Alice  (1235)" (George, #1226) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 107.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) was born at England.  She married Thomas Rogers (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)" on 24 Oct 1597 at Watford, Northamptnshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 635.) (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 78.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).  She died at Leyden, Holland.

     (an unknown value) (Elsgen was apparently living in Leyden, Holland in 1622 in a house with other Pilgrim families and her children John, Elizabeth and Margaret. No further record of any of these,except John, has yet been found, except Governor Bradford's statement that the rest of Thomas' children came over and married and had children. There are no probate records for Thomas or Elsgen).

624.  John10 Washburn (2780)XE "Washburn:John  (2780) (2 Jul 1597-1670)" (John, #1248) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 429.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 41.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 1992, 1993 Seventh Edition: Baltimore. (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc.).) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1937.) was born on 2 Jul 1597 at Evesham, Worcester, England.  He was baptized on 2 Jul 1597 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.).  He married Margaret Moore (2781)XE "Moore:Margaret  (2781) (1586-)" on 23 Nov 1618 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died in 1670 at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.).

     (an unknown value) (He was in Plymouth Colony at least as early as early as 2 January 1632/33, when he sued Edward Doty (PCR 1:6). He came from Gengeworth, near Evesham, County Worcester. His family joined him later in Plymouth, and they are shown by Hotten, p. 57, to have sailed on the Elizabeth, which left England for New England on 13 April 1635 with certificates from the mayor of Evesham: Margerie Washborn, age forty-nine, and her two sons John Washborne, age fourteen, and Philip Washborne, age eleven.

Davenport supports the claim of some American Washburn descendants that John Washburn is a descendant of the Washburns of Wichenford, who have a proven royal line; however, he offers no valid evidence, and the claim must be considered unproven and probably false. E.A.B. Barnard, Some Notes on the Evesham Branch of the Washbourne Family (Evesham, 1914), points out that there were Washburns in the neighborhood of Evesham centuries before a descendant of the Wichenford family is claimed to have moved there. Numerous errors have appeared on the Washburn family, such as the claim that the immigrant John Washburn was identical with the John Washburn who was the secretary in England of the Plymouth (England) Company until 1628, which Davenport denies, pointing to handwriting specimens of each, and noting that the Plymouth immigrant was a churchwarden in Bengeworth as recently as 1625. It is, however, possible that William Washburn, who died on Long Island in 1659, might have been either a brother or cousin to the immigrant John Washburn; see Davenport, p. 54, and John G. Hunt, "Clues to Origin of Washburne...of Hempstead, L.I., etc.," TAG 36:62-64.

In Plymouth Colony John Washburn moved from Plymouth to Duxbury and became a freeman on 2 June 1646. He and his two sons were in the 1643 ATBA (Able to Bear Arms) list from Duxbury. He served in various minor capacities, as shown in PCR volumes. On 3 June 1662 he was granted what appears to be a double portion of land at Saconnet (Little Compton) by virtue of his being both an ancient freeman and a former servant, though the records do not indicate to whom he was a servant (PCR 4:18; this would certainly seem to refute any claim that he had been secretary of the Plymouth Company). There is no record that he lived in Saconnet, but he moved from Duxbury to Bridgewater sometime after 26 May 1666. 

John Washburn aged 14 came to NE in 1635 with his mother Marjorie and brother Philip. On 7 June 1659 John Washburn Jr. was elected Constable for Duxbury. On the 6th of the 9th (Nov.) 1664 John Wahsbourne Junr acknowledged sale of land given him by his father Experience Mitchell. On 1 Nov. 1681 John Washbourne senr of Bridgewater sold land at Saconit to Will Wilbore senr of Portsmouth; wife Elizabeth acknowledge same date. The will of John Washbourne senr of Bridgewater dated 30 Oct. 1686, exhibited 8 June 1687, names wife Elizabeth Washbourne; brother Philip Washbourne; sons John, Thomas, Joseph, Samuel, Jonathan, Benjamin; jounger son James; daus. Mary, Elizabeth, Jane and Sarah. It calls James and Sarah "my two yonger (sic) children." His inventory says he died 12 Nov. 1686. On 10 Sept. 1694 John Washburne, Thomas Washburne, Joseph Washburne, Jonathan Washburne, James Washburne, Edward Seely, Samuel Kingsley, William Orcutt, Sarah Washburne all of Bridgewater sold to Samuel Washburne of Bridgewater land left unwilled "by our Father & ffather in law John Washburne Deceased."

ORIGIN: Bengeworth, Worcestershire 

MIGRATION: 1632 

FIRST RESIDENCE: Plymouth 

REMOVES: Duxbury 

RETURN TRIPS: Possibly to England and back in 1634 

OCCUPATION: Tailor [ PCR 1:85]. 

FREEMAN: "John Washburne, Senior," was in the 1639 list of those who had taken the oath of fidelity at Duxbury [ PCR 8:182]. Admitted to freemanship on 2 June 1646 [ PCR 2:101] (and as a result added to the Duxbury section of the 1639 list of freemen [ PCR 8:175]). In the Duxbury sections of the 1658 and 29 May 1670 (as "John Washburne, Seni[o]r") lists of freemen [ PCR 5:275, 8:198]. 

EDUCATION: He signed his name to a coroner's inquest. 

OFFICES: Grand jury, 4 June 1645 [ PCR 2:84]. Jury, 7 September 1642, 5 November 1644, 7 June 1648, 5 June 1666, 25 October 1668 [ PCR 2:126, 4:125, 7:32, 38, 150]. Appointed to view bounds, 1 June 1647, 10 June 1650 [ PCR 2:117, 122, 160]. Coroner's jury on the body of John Paybody [ PCR 5:29]. 

Duxbury surveyor of highways, 5 March 1638/9, 6 June 1649 [ PCR 1:117, 2:139]. Fined 4 March 1650/1 for failing to mend the highways [ PCR 2:165]. 

In the Duxbury section of the 1643 Plymouth Colony list of men able to bear arms [ PCR 8:190]. (The son of the immigrant was probably the John Washburn who was one of six men from Duxbury sent forth as soldiers in the "late expedition against the Narrohiggansets and their confederates," 28 October 1645 [ PCR 2:90].) 

ESTATE: Assessed 9s. in Plymouth tax list of 25 March 1633 [ PCR 1:10]. 

On 5 January 1635/6 John Washborne purchased from Edward Bompass a house and palisado, and the court confirmed the purchase [ PCR 1:33]. 

On 14 March 1635/6 John Washburne had rights for one cow on Mr. Capt. Standish's hay ground [ PCR 1:40]. Standish and Washburne had the same arrangement on 20 March 1636/7 [ PCR 1:56]. 

On 6 April 1640 William Sherman and "John Washborne" were "to have such accommodations of land as may be spared in the place where they desire" [ PCR 1:145]. On 5 April 1641 it was ordered that John Washbourne might have forty acres in Duxborrow "if it be there to be had" [ PCR 2:12]. 

On 4 March 1647[/8] Morris Truant of Duxbury and his wife Jane sold to "John Washburne" of Duxbury twenty acres of planting land, eight acres of planting land and two parcels of meadow [ PCR 12:153-54]. 

On 3 June 1662 "John W[ashburn] Senior as an ancient freeman and as a servant" was granted land [ PCR 4:18]. 

On 26 May 1666 "John Washburne Senior of Duxburrow," planter, deeded to "Phillip Washborne his true and natural son all that his dwelling house, outhouses and buildings situate in Duxburrow aforesaid, and all and singular the upland and meadow now thereunto belonging" [ MD 16:249-50, citing PCLR 3:61]. 

BIRTH: Baptized at Bengeworth, Worcestershire, 2 July 1597, son of John and Martha (Timbrell) (Stephens) Washburn [Washbourne Gen 47]. 

DEATH: Early in 1671 (apparently living on 17 March 1670/1 and 22 May 1671 when his son was called Jr., but died soon after, as the document was altered to call the son Sr. [ MD 16:248, 250, citing PCLR 3:209]. 

MARRIAGE: Bengeworth, Worcestershire, [23 November?] 1618 Margery Moore [Washbourne Gen 48]; sailed for New England in 1635 with her two sons [ Hotten 57]; no further record

COMMENTS: "Margerie Washborn," aged 49, and her two sons, "Jo[hn] Washborne," aged 14, and "Phillipp Washborne," aged 11, were passengers on the Elizabeth & Ann to New England in 1635 [ Hotten 57]. 

Washburn was taxed in 1633 but not in 1634, and then in March of 1635 he purchased some land, and soon after his wife and children arrived in New England. This sequence of events suggests that John Washburn returned to England late in 1633 to arrange for the passage of his family, and that he returned late in 1634, some months before the rest of his family sailed in the spring of 1635. 

On 2 January 1632/3 John Washburne failed to win his suit against Edward Dowty over a stolen pig [ PCR 1:6]. On 4 June 1638 John Washburne acknowledged that he owed the King £40 [ PCR 1:85]. On 3 May 1642 three indifferent men were selected to set the ancient bounds right between Mr. Thomas Beesbeach and John Washbourne [ PCR 2:39, 52]. 

BIBLIOGRAPHIC NOTE: In 1907 James Davenport published a study of a Washbourne family in England, and included a section on the immigrant to New England [The Washbourne Family of Little Washbourne and Wichenford in the County of Worcester (London 1907), cited above as Washbourne Gen, pp. 35-58]. In 1913 and 1914 George E. Bowman published a series of "Washburn Notes," the third installment having direct relevance to the immigrant [ MD 15:247-53, 16:47-53, 248-53]. Stratton's treatment of John Washburn and his two sons is especially useful [ Stratton 368-70] 

).

     Children of John10 Washburn (2780)XE "Washburn:John  (2780) (2 Jul 1597-1670)" and Margaret Moore (2781)XE "Moore:Margaret  (2781) (1586-)" (see #625) were as follows:
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i.
John9 (2777).XE "Washburn:John  (2777) (before 26 Nov 1620-12 Nov 1686)"

 
ii.
Philip (2782)XE "Washburn:Philip  (2782) (before 2 Jun 1622-before 7 Jun 1622)" was born before 2 Jun 1622 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol III, page 1939.).  He was baptized on 2 Jun 1622 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1939.).  He died before 7 Jun 1622 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1939.).  His body was interred on 7 Jun 1622 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1939.).


 
iii.
Philip (2783)XE "Washburn:Philip  (2783) (1624-after 1700)" was born in 1624 at Evesham, Worcester, England.  He married Elizabeth Irish (4781)XE "Irish:Elizabeth  (4781)" circa 1664 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol III, page 1939.).  He died after 1700.

625.  Margaret10 Moore (2781)XE "Moore:Margaret  (2781) (1586-)" (Robert, #1250) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 42.) was born in 1586 at England.  She was baptized on 3 Nov 1588 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 368.).  She married John Washburn (2780)XE "Washburn:John  (2780) (2 Jul 1597-1670)" on 23 Nov 1618 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 783.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died at Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA.

626.  Experience10 Mitchell (2553)XE "Mitchell:Experience  (2553) (circa 1609-before 11 May 1689)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 43.) was born circa 1609.  He married Jane Cooke (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)" after 22 May 1627 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 4.).  He died before 11 May 1689.

     Children of Experience10 Mitchell (2553)XE "Mitchell:Experience  (2553) (circa 1609-before 11 May 1689)" and Jane Cooke (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)" (see #627) were as follows:
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i.
Elizabeth9 (2778).XE "Mitchell:Elizabeth  (2778) (1629-)"

 
ii.
Thomas (2779)XE "Mitchell:Thomas  (2779) (circa 1631-before 6 May 1687)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 15.) was born circa 1631.  He died before 6 May 1687.

627.  Jane10 Cooke (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)" (Francis, #290) (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 4.) was born circa 1612 at Holland (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 43.).  She married Experience Mitchell (2553)XE "Mitchell:Experience  (2553) (circa 1609-before 11 May 1689)" after 22 May 1627 (Robert S. Wakefield, Francis Cooke of the Mayflower and His descendants for Four Generations, Page 4.).  She died before 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

630.  Nathaniel10 Tilden (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)" (Thomas, #1260) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 301.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 361.) was born in 1583.  He was baptized on 28 Jul 1583 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. Nathaniell Tylden sonne of Thomas Tylden bapt ye 28th of July. (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 361.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Lydia Bourne (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)" before 1608 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  He married Lydia Huckstep (4277)XE "Huckstep:Lydia  (4277) (before 11 Feb 1588-)" before 1608 at England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  He died in 1641.

     (an unknown value) (Nathaniel, Scituate, came in the Hercules 1635 from Sandwich, in Co. Kent, being one of an old fam. at Tenterden, near Cranbrook, in that shire, bring. w. Lydia, seven ch. and seven serv. He may have visit. our country bef. and went home to bring his houshold; but it does not appear by any facts. In May 1637, with his friend Hatherly, he was appoint. by Plymouth Col. to sett. the bounds betw. it and Mass. He was rul. elder in the ch. and d. 1641, the inv. being of 31 July, and his will of 25 May preced. in that yr).  Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of Nathaniel10 Tilden (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)" and Lydia Huckstep (4277)XE "Huckstep:Lydia  (4277) (before 11 Feb 1588-)" (see #631) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas9 (4268)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (4268) (before 23 Oct 1608-19 Jan 1619)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 23 Oct 1608.  He was baptized on 23 Oct 1608 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 19 Jan 1619.


 315.
ii.
Mary (3889).XE "Tilden:Mary  (3889) (before 20 May 1610-)"

 
iii.
Joseph (4269)XE "Tilden:Joseph  (4269) (before 12 Jan 1612-15 Mar 1612)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 12 Jan 1612.  He was baptized on 12 Jan 1612 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 15 Mar 1612 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
iv.
Sarah (3900)XE "Tilden:Sarah  (3900) (before 13 Jun 1613-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 26.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 13 Jun 1613.  She was baptized on 13 Jun 1613 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She married George Sutton (3901)XE "Sutton:George  (3901)" on 13 Mar 1637 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 721.).  She died.


 
v.
Joseph (3899)XE "Tilden:Joseph  (3899) (before 29 Apr 1615-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 26.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 29 Apr 1615.  He was baptized on 29 Apr 1615 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He married Alice or Elizabeth Twisden (4270)XE "Twisden:Alice or Elizabeth  (4270)" on 20 Nov 1649 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.).  He died.


 
vi.
Stephen (3904)XE "Tilden:Stephen  (3904) (before 31 Mar 1617-21 Oct 1619)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 301.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 31 Mar 1617.  He was baptized on 31 Mar 1617 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 21 Oct 1619 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
vii.
Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 26.) was born before 19 Jan 1619.  He was baptized on 19 Jan 1619 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He married Elizabeth Bourne (1173)XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)" in 1671 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  He died in 1705.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
viii.
Judith (3902)XE "Tilden:Judith  (3902) (before 22 Oct 1620-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 301.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 22 Oct 1620.  She was baptized on 22 Oct 1620 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She married Abraham Preble (4271)XE "Preble:Abraham  (4271)" circa 3 Jan 1641 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 601.).  She died.


 
ix.
Winifred (4272)XE "Tilden:Winifred  (4272) (before 20 Oct 1622-14 Sep 1627)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 20 Oct 1622.  She was baptized on 20 Oct 1622 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 14 Sep 1627 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
x.
Lydia (4273)XE "Tilden:Lydia  (4273) (before 30 May 1624-15 Sep 1624)" was born before 30 May 1624.  She was baptized on 30 May 1624 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 15 Sep 1624 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
xi.
Lydia (3903)XE "Tilden:Lydia  (3903) (before 28 Sep 1625-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 26.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 28 Sep 1625.  She was baptized on 28 Sep 1625 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She married Richard Garrett (4274)XE "Garrett:Richard  (4274) (-1662)" circa 1647 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 295.).  She died.


 
xii.
Stephen (4275)XE "Tilden:Stephen  (4275) (before 11 Oct 1629-1711)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 331.) was born before 11 Oct 1629.  He was baptized on 11 Oct 1629 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He married Hannah Little (4276)XE "Little:Hannah  (4276) (-1710)" on 25 Jan 1661 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  He died in 1711 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).

631.  Lydia10 Huckstep (4277)XE "Huckstep:Lydia  (4277) (before 11 Feb 1588-)" (Steven, #1262) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 48.) was born before 11 Feb 1588.  She was baptized on 11 Feb 1588 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 47.).  She married Nathaniel Tilden (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)" before 1608 at England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  She died.

640.  William10 Morse (5329)XE "Morse:William  (5329) (1614-29 Nov 1683)" (Unknown, #1280) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol III.) was born in 1614 at Marlborough, Wiltshire, England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol III.).  He married Elizabeth (--?--) (5330)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5330) (circa 1614-circa 1690)" (see #641) before 1635 at Newbury (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).  He died on 29 Nov 1683 at Newbuy, Essex, MA (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol III.).

     (an unknown value) (having been a shoemaker at Marlborough in England) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.).

     Children of William10 Morse (5329)XE "Morse:William  (5329) (1614-29 Nov 1683)" and Elizabeth (--?--) (5330)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5330) (circa 1614-circa 1690)" (see #641) were as follows:


 
i.
Joseph9 (5337)XE "Morse:Joseph  (5337)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.).


 
ii.
Ann (5332)XE "Morse:Ann  (5332)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (5331)XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (5331) (-18 Mar 1655)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) died on 18 Mar 1655 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.).
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iv.
Jonathan (5333).XE "Morse:Jonathan  (5333) (1640-9 Jul 1709)"

 
v.
Timothy (5338)XE "Morse:Timothy  (5338) (10 Jun 1647-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) was born on 10 Jun 1647 (or 8) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.).

     (an unknown value) (died young).


 
vi.
Abigail (5339)XE "Morse:Abigail  (5339) (14 Feb 1652-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.) was born on 14 Feb 1652 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 242, Vol. III.).

641.  Elizabeth10 (--?--) (5330)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5330) (circa 1614-circa 1690)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.) (The Morse Society.)XE "Morse:Elizabeth  (5330) (circa 1614-circa 1690)" was born circa 1614 at Gerrards Cross, Buckinghamshire, England (The Morse Society.).  She married William Morse (5329)XE "Morse:William  (5329) (1614-29 Nov 1683)" (see #640), son of Unknown Morse (5328),XE "Morse:Unknown  (5328)" before 1635 at Newbury (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).  She died circa 1690 at Newbury, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.) (The Morse Society.).

642.  James10 Clark (5335)XE "Clark:James  (5335) (circa 1615-19 Dec 1674)" (The Morse Society.) was born circa 1615 at Wells, Norfolk, England (The Morse Society.).  He married Elinor Wright (5336)XE "Wright:Elinor  (5336) (circa 1621-)" (see #643) before 1646 (The Morse Society.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 155.).  He died on 19 Dec 1674 at Muddy River, Massachusetts, USA (The Morse Society.).

     Children of James10 Clark (5335)XE "Clark:James  (5335) (circa 1615-19 Dec 1674)" and Elinor Wright (5336)XE "Wright:Elinor  (5336) (circa 1621-)" (see #643) were as follows:
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i.
Mary9 (5334).XE "Clark:Mary  (5334) (1643-before 1720)"

 
ii.
Martha (5340)XE "Clark:Martha  (5340) (25 Apr 1648-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.) was born on 25 Apr 1648 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.).


 
iii.
Hannah (5341)XE "Clark:Hannah  (5341) (23 Dec 1649-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) was born on 23 Dec 1649 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.).


 
iv.
James (5342)XE "Clark:James  (5342) (before 11 Apr 1652-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.) was born before 11 Apr 1652 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol I.).  He was baptized on 11 Apr 1652 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 395, Vol. I.).


 
v.
Samuel (5343)XE "Clark:Samuel  (5343) (9 Apr 1654-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) was born on 9 Apr 1654 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.).


 
vi.
John (5344)XE "Clark:John  (5344) (23 Mar 1656-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) was born on 23 Mar 1656 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.).


 
vii.
Abigail (5345)XE "Clark:Abigail  (5345) (21 Mar 1658-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) was born on 21 Mar 1658 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.).


 
viii.
Mercy (5346)XE "Clark:Mercy  (5346) (2 Sep 1660-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) was born on 2 Sep 1660 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.).


 
ix.
Aaron (5347)XE "Clark:Aaron  (5347) (1 Mar 1663-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.) was born on 1 Mar 1663 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 394, Vol. I.).

643.  Elinor10 Wright (5336)XE "Wright:Elinor  (5336) (circa 1621-)" (The Morse Society.)XE "Clark:Elinor  (5336) (circa 1621-)" was born circa 1621 at Quebec, Canada (The Morse Society.).  She married James Clark (5335)XE "Clark:James  (5335) (circa 1615-19 Dec 1674)" (see #642) before 1646 (The Morse Society.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 155.).  She died (The Morse Society.).

644.  Edward10 Doten (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 142.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 61.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol I, page 413.) married an unknown person after 1627 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 52.).  He married Faith Clarke (1326)XE "Clarke:Faith  (1326) (1619-before 21 Dec 1675)" on 6 Jan 1635 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 652, 1:75.).  He died on 23 Aug 1655 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).

     (an unknown value) (Edward, planter, of London, servant to Stephen Hopkins, came in the Mayflower; signed the Compact; resided at Plymouth. Freeman (citizen) 1633. There is no actual proof that he is the father of John Doten, our ancestor, but there are many coincidences that make it highly probable. Came in the Mayflower, a London youth in the service of Stephen Hopkins, was one of the signers of the solemn compact in Cape Cod harbour 11 Nov. and was tih his master in the shallop that in December following discovered Plymouth harbour; yet 18 June following was party in the first duel fought in New England. He retriev. his charact. by change from youthf. folly, married probably as second wife (if the date were, as one of my correspond. gives it, a. 1643, tho. less prob. is giv. by ano.), 6 Jan. 1635, Faith. He was in 1652 one of the purchasers of Dartmouth, but removed to Yarmouth. The register of St. Mary-le-Strand, London, gives the marriage of an Edward Dowty and Wynifryd Waryner, 12 December, 1613, and the marriage of a Thomas Dowghty four years later. As Bradford refers only to Doty's second marriage this London record may possible be his first wife though the interval is rather lengthy. Thomas is a name found in the Plymouth line. An Edward Dowtie was a juror of Southwark in 1629 (Ancient Indictments, Kings Bench). Thomas Doughty, born in 1575, was a draper in the parish of St. Martin's, Orgar (Exchequer Depositions, Mich. 17, 44/5 Eliz.). A Richard Dowty, clerk of St. Saviours, Southwark, made his will in 1555 (Arch. Surrey). These suggestive clues should furnish groundwork for successful investigation

).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of Edward10 Doten (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)" and Faith Clarke (1326)XE "Clarke:Faith  (1326) (1619-before 21 Dec 1675)" (see #645) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:


 
i.
Edward9 (1327)XE "Doten:Edward  (1327) (1637-8 Feb 1690)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol I, page 413.) was born in 1637 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 52.).  He married Sarah Faunce (2097)XE "Faunce:Sarah  (2097) (-27 Jun 1695)" on 26 Feb 1662 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.).  He died on 8 Feb 1690 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. Elkanath Watson, Edward Doty Sr., and his son John Doty were all drowned 8th. Feb. 1689/90 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. I, page 413 (<MD 5:210>).) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 134.

).
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ii.
John (1323).XE "Doten:John  (1323) (circa 1640-8 May 1701)"

 
iii.
Thomas (1333)XE "Doten:Thomas  (1333) (circa 1640-4 Dec 1678)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413 & 433.) was born circa 1640 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).  He married Mary Churchill (1043)XE "Churchill:Mary  (1043) (1 Aug 1654-1676)" circa 1673 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.) (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.).  He married Mary unknown (2613)XE "unknown:Mary  (2613) (-after 18 Oct 1725)" circa 1678 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 53.).  He died on 4 Dec 1678 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Gardner Asaph Churchill & Nathaniel Wiley Churchill, The Churchill Family in America, Page 5.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413.).


 
iv.
Samuel (1334)XE "Doten:Samuel  (1334) (circa 1643-Sep 1715)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413.) was born circa 1643 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).  He married Jane Harmon (2614)XE "Harmon:Jane  (2614)" on 15 Nov 1678 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).  He died in Sep 1715 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 54.).


 
v.
Desire (1330)XE "Doten:Desire  (1330) (1646-22 Jan 1731)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413.) was born in 1646 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 55.).  She married William Sherman (2104)XE "Sherman:William  (2104) (circa 1646-before 17 Nov 1680)" on 25 Dec 1667 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 670.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 55.).  She married Israel Holmes (2615)XE "Holmes:Israel  (2615) (-24 Feb 1685)" on 24 Nov 1681 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 55.).  She married Alexander Standish (2616)XE "Standish:Alexander  (2616) (circa 1626-6 Jul 1702)" in 1686 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 55.).  She died on 22 Jan 1731 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 55.).


 
vi.
Isaac (1331)XE "Doten:Isaac  (1331) (8 Feb 1649-1729)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413 & 422.) was born on 8 Feb 1649 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 656.).  He married Elizabeth England (2105)XE "England:Elizabeth  (2105)" circa 1673 at Oyster Bay, NY., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.).  He died in 1729 at Oyster Bay, NY., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413.).


 
vii.
Elizabeth (1329)XE "Doten:Elizabeth  (1329) (circa 1649-after 16 Apr 1694)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 57.) was born circa 1649 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 57.).  She married John Rouse (2107)XE "Rouse:John  (2107) (28 Sep 1643-3 Oct 1717)" on 13 Jan 1675 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 639.).  She died after 16 Apr 1694.


 
viii.
Joseph (1332)XE "Doten:Joseph  (1332) (30 Apr 1651-before 18 Sep 1734)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 413 & 427.) was born on 30 Apr 1651 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659.).  He married Deborah Ellis (2106)XE "Ellis:Deborah  (2106) (1662-21 Jun 1711)" circa 1674 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 57.).  He married Sarah Edwards (2617)XE "Edwards:Sarah  (2617)" on 5 Mar 1712 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 57.).  He died before 18 Sep 1734.


 
ix.
Mary (1328)XE "Doten:Mary  (1328) (circa 1653-before 13 Jun 1728)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol I, page 413 & 428.) was born circa 1653 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 58.).  She married Samuel Hatch (2098)XE "Hatch:Samuel  (2098) (22 Dec 1653-after 13 Jun 1728)" on 10 Jul 1677 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 352.).  She died before 13 Jun 1728.

645.  Faith10 Clarke (1326)XE "Clarke:Faith  (1326) (1619-before 21 Dec 1675)" (Thurston, #1290) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 403.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol I, page 413.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 264.) was born in 1619 at England.  She married Edward Doten (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)" on 6 Jan 1635 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 227.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 652, 1:75.).  She married John Phillips (1339)XE "Phillips:John  (1339) (1602-1692)" on 14 Mar 1666 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 578.).  She died before 21 Dec 1675 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.  Her body was interred on 21 Dec 1675 at Marshfield, Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol I, page 413 (<MD 17:72>).) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 52.).

     (an unknown value) (She dated her will 12 December 1675, sworn 8 June (probably 1676), and, calling herself the wife of John Philips of Marshfield, she named her daughters Mary, Elizabeth, and Desire, and her son John. On 4 November 1676 letters of administration were granted to John Rouse, Jr. of Marshfield on behalf of himself, his wife (Elizabeth Doty), and sisters Desire Sherman and Mary Doten).  Faith (1326)XE "Clarke:Faith  (1326) (1619-before 21 Dec 1675)" and Thurston (1335)XE "Clarke:Thurston  (1335) (1590-circa 10 Dec 1661)" immigrated to New England on 30 Apr 1634 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.).

646.  Jacob10 Cooke (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)" (Francis, #290) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 114.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 446.) was born circa 1618 at Holland.  He married Damaris Hopkins (1349)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1349) (after 1627-circa 1668)" on 20 Jun 1646 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 178.).  He married Elizabeth Lettice (1352)XE "Lettice:Elizabeth  (1352) (circa 1637-31 Oct 1693)" on 8 Nov 1669 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 178.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666, [p. 36].).  He died on 11 Dec 1675 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 316.).

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

     Children of Jacob10 Cooke (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)" and Damaris Hopkins (1349)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1349) (after 1627-circa 1668)" (see #647) all born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W, were as follows:


 323.
i.
Elizabeth9 (1324).XE "Cooke:Elizabeth  (1324) (18 Jan 1649-21 Nov 1692)"

 
ii.
Caaleb (1350)XE "Cooke:Caaleb  (1350) (29 Mar 1651-13 Feb 1722)" was born on 29 Mar 1651 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 659.).  He died on 13 Feb 1722 at age 70.


 
iii.
Jacob (1351)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1351) (26 Mar 1653-24 Apr 1747)" was born on 26 Mar 1653 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 660.).  He died on 24 Apr 1747 at age 94.


 
iv.
Mary (1353)XE "Cooke:Mary  (1353) (12 Jan 1657-28 Aug 1712)" was born on 12 Jan 1657 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662.).  She married John Rickard (2158)XE "Rickard:John  (2158) (24 Nov 1657-25 Apr 1712)" circa 1677 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 1, page 333.).  She died on 28 Aug 1712 at age 55.


 
v.
Martha (1354)XE "Cooke:Martha  (1354) (16 Mar 1659-)" was born on 16 Mar 1659 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 662, [p. 26].).  She died.


 
vi.
Francis (1355)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1355) (5 Jan 1662-circa 1741)" was born on 5 Jan 1662 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 663, [p. 27].).  He died circa 1741.


 
vii.
Ruth (1356)XE "Cooke:Ruth  (1356) (17 Jan 1665-)" was born on 17 Jan 1665 (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 666.).  She died.

647.  Damaris10 Hopkins (1349)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1349) (after 1627-circa 1668)" (Stephen, #1294) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 6, page 13.) was born after 1627 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Jacob Cooke (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)" on 20 Jun 1646 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 178.).  She died circa 1668 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 6, page 13.).

672.  Thomas10 Fysh (4805)XE "Fysh:Thomas  (4805) (before 8 May 1584-12 Jan 1674)" (John Fyshe, #1344) (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 10.) was born before 8 May 1584.  He was baptized on 8 May 1584.  He married an unknown person in 1609 at Leicester, England.  He married Mary Sprigge (4806)XE "Sprigge:Mary  (4806) (24 Jan 1585-        )" in 1609 at Leicester, England.  He died on 12 Jan 1674 at Warwick, England.

     (an unknown value) (Thomas seems to have lived for a time at Lubenham, then in East Farndon, and finally in Great Bowden, the three town all lying within a small circle. Just when he moved to Wedgenock Park in Warwickshire, where he was a tenant of the Earl of Warwick, is not known, but apparently had a business enterprise in the city of Warwick, and in 1643 he was living in Good Rest House, a historic home within the limits of the Park. (When Richard Whitehead, of "Windsor upon the Connecticut River in New England," returned to his native land for a visit, he became a guest of T. Fysh of Good Rest House, was taken ill and died there, and his will, dated Apr. 26, 1645, was witnessed by two of Thomas's children, Cradock and Hester Fishe)).

     Children of Thomas10 Fysh (4805)XE "Fysh:Thomas  (4805) (before 8 May 1584-12 Jan 1674)" and Mary Sprigge (4806)XE "Sprigge:Mary  (4806) (24 Jan 1585-        )" (see #673) were as follows:


 
i.
Cradock9 (4810)XE "Fysh:Cradock  (4810) (before 9 Aug 1612-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 10.) was born before 9 Aug 1612 at Lubenham, Leicestershire, England.  He married Elizabeth (--?--) (4811).XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (4811)"

 
ii.
Ambrose (4812)XE "Fysh:Ambrose  (4812) (before 1610-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 10.) was born before 1610.  He was baptized on 18 Oct 1613 at East Farndon.


 
iii.
Jonathan (4813)XE "Fysh:Jonathan  (4813) (1610-1663)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 10.) was born in 1610.  He was baptized on 16 Feb 1616 at East Farndon.  He married Mary (--?--) (4814).XE "(--?--):Mary  (4814)"  He died in 1663.


 
iv.
John (4815)XE "Fysh:John  (4815) (1616-1663)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 11.) was born in 1616.  He was baptized on 20 Jun 1619 at East Farndon.  He married an unknown person at Cecelia.  He died in 1663.


 336.
v.
Nathaniel (4796).XE "Fish:Nathaniel  (4796) (circa 1618-1693)"

 
vi.
Esther (4816)XE "Fysh:Esther  (4816) (before 21 Dec 1622-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 11.) was born before 21 Dec 1622.  She was baptized on 21 Dec 1622 at Great Bowden.


 
vii.
Hannah (4817)XE "Fysh:Hannah  (4817) (before 5 Oct 1625-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 11.) was born before 5 Oct 1625.  She was baptized on 5 Oct 1625 at Great Bowden.

673.  Mary10 Sprigge (4806)XE "Sprigge:Mary  (4806) (24 Jan 1585-        )" (William, #1346) (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 10.) was born on 24 Jan 1585 at Lubenham, Leicestershire, England.  She married Thomas Fysh (4805)XE "Fysh:Thomas  (4805) (before 8 May 1584-12 Jan 1674)" in 1609 at Leicester, England.

680.  John10 Butler (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)" (Nicholas, #1360) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born before 2 Jan 1625 at England.  He was baptized on 2 Jan 1625 at England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).  He was baptized on 2 Jan 1625 at England.  He married Mary Lynde (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" circa 1648 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died in 1658 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (His widow was app. admx.; inventory dated 21 July 1658, amounted to Pounds 219-9-11 which was divided among his heirs when the children reached their majority. He is the ancestor of all the Vineyard Butlers, as his only brother Henry returned to England and descendants of him now reside there

).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of John10 Butler (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)" and Mary Lynde (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" (see #681) were as follows:


 340.
i.
John9 (1404).XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)"

 
ii.
Mary (1420)XE "Butler:Mary  (1420) (1652-8 Apr 1741)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 21 & 48.) was born in 1652.  She married Simon Athearn (2262)XE "Athearn:Simon  (2262) (circa 1643-20 Feb 1715)" on 4 Oct 1665 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 23.).  She died on 8 Apr 1741.


 
iii.
Thomas (1421)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1421) (circa 1654-20 Oct 1732)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 63.) was born circa 1654.  He married Jemima Daggett (1516)XE "Daggett:Jemima  (1516) (circa 1666-before 1727)" on 27 Nov 1682 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died on 20 Oct 1732.


 
iv.
Joseph (1422)XE "Butler:Joseph  (1422) (1656-after 1680)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born in 1656.  He died after 1680.


 
v.
Hannah (1423)XE "Butler:Hannah  (1423) (circa 1658-)" was born circa 1658.  She married James Chadwick (2263)XE "Chadwick:James  (2263)" in Feb 1677 at Malden, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 141.).  She died.

     She resided, at Malden, Mass., USA, in 1698 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).

681.  Mary10 Lynde (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" (Thomas, #1362) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136.

) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 296.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born circa 1629 at England.  She married John Butler (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)" circa 1648 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She married William Weeks (1419)XE "Weeks:William  (1419) (-1689)" after 1658 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 792.).  She died after 1693.

     Mary (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" immigrated to in Jul 1635 at. Was brot. over in 1635, by John Winth. jr. in the Abigail, then aged 6 years.
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682.  Nicholas10 Norton (1448)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)" (Nicholas, #1364) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1610.  He married Elizabeth unknown (1449)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1449)" circa 1640 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).  He died circa 1690.

     (an unknown value) (Undoubtedly he found his wife Elizabeth  in Weymouth, or an adjoining town after his arrival in New England, but no record of his marriage has been found and nothing to indicate her family name. They had eleven children, four sons and seven daughters; three of the former -Isaac, Joseph and Benjamin left issue and in the following genealogy their descendants will be divided for convenience sake into three "tribes" named for these three sons respectively according to seniority. The ancestor of the numerous family of this name on the Vineyard was born about 1610, probably in England, although the place of his nativity is not known. It will probably be found upon investigation that he emigrated from Somersetshire, and perhaps came from the vecinity of Batcombe or Broadway in that county, and there is some reason for inferring that he was one of the party of colonists acommpanying the Rev. John Hull in 1635 to New England. He first appears at Weymouth, Mass., in 1637, where he married his wife Elizabeth, and in which place he maintained a residence for twenty years prior to his removal to the Vineyard. That he was of a social station somewhat above the average appears from the fact that he kept a servant, whose "miscariages" brought the subject of this sketch into trouble in 1658 with the magistrates of Massachusetts. Of his life in Weymouth but little is worthy of mention. He shared in the division of lands in 1651, and was constable in 1657, an office of some distinction in those times. Two years later he was still called "of Weymouth," and in the same year his name first appears in the records of Edgartown. This may be taken as the probable date of his removal to the Vineyard. He was chosen a referee to represent the town in its cotroversy with John Daggett respecting his farm at Oak Bluffs. On Aug. 22, 1659, "Goodman" Norton was granted "a Lott of forty acres of Land" and on the same day it was "ordered by the town that Goodman Norton shall have Liberty to make use of any Pond about the Ox Pond for his Trade, except the Great Ponds." It does not appear what trade Nicholas Norton followed, but the use of ponds suggests that he may have been a tanner. Before the end of that year, he was engaged in two lawsuits as a plaintiff and a defendant. He was sued by Henry Goss in that year and mas mulcted in the sum of five shillings "for charges about the cure of Mr. Gousse's child: to pay one half in Wampam current and halfe in corne and five shillings to the constable for the Tryall about the abuse of Mr. Gousse's child." The exact nature of this suit at law is not clear from the records. In that same year he sued the Rev. Mr. Cotton, missionary to the Indians. In 1661 he was one of a committee to buy land of the Indians for the use of the town. In 1662-63 and 1669, he again appears in litigation with various townsmen, and if not a pattern in this respect, his fence was deemed the pattern and lawful standard to which others were required to conform in the maintenance of boundary fences in the town. In 1666  he was forbidden by the proprietors of the fish weir from taking any fish at Mattakeesett Creek, the right to which he claimed by purchase from the sachem Tewanticut, "countrary to our patent," upon a penalty of $5 yearly so often as he disobeys the order. In 1673 he joined in the "Dutch Rebellion" with others of his townsmen, and when it had collapsed he was tried and convicted. The following is the record in the case:- Whereas Nicolas Norton upon Commission from the Right honorable Sr. Edmond Andros Knight Governor of New York & hath beene before the Court legally; convicted of oppugning the Government established here under his Majestie wherein he acknowledgeth that he is ashamed and Sorry in his hear that he was Misled therein and hopes he shall be more careful for the future: The Court by virtue of the said Commission do adjudge the said Nicolas Norton to make a publique acknowledgment of the same at this Court and at the next quarterly Court holden at 'Marthas Vineyard: or to pay the summe of fifty one poundas as a fine to the Country. In 1685 he was one of a committe "chosen to make the Govenors Rate" and this is his last appearance on the town records before his death. There is no consolidated record of his real estate holdings such as was entered by others proprietors. He lived on his forty-acre grant situate north of the Great Swamp and south of the present road to West Tisbury. He was an early owner of land at Sanchacantackett in the vicinity of Major's Cove, where his descendants for two centuries resided and improved that beautiful estate. These purchases were made of the Indians Wampamag or "Sam" and Thomas Sisseton, both of which are unrecorded, thouth it is said that the original deed from "Sam" was in existence in recent years in the hands of a descendant. It is not believed that he ever resided on this property. He also held the usual proprietor's shares in the various divisins of town lands, besides a plot of meadow land at Akuampache. At the ripe age of four score years Nicholas Norton died, leaving four sons and six daughters, at least two of whom were born in Weymouth. The maiden name of his wife is not known. He married her probably in Weymouth, and she must be sought for in that locality. Their descendants have constituted one of the largest families on the island from the earliest times

).

     Children of Nicholas10 Norton (1448)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)" and Elizabeth unknown (1449)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1449)" (see #683) were as follows:


 
i.
Isaac9 (1459)XE "Norton:Isaac  (1459) (3 May 1641-circa 1723)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born on 3 May 1641.  He married Ruth Bayes (2236)XE "Bayes:Ruth  (2236) (2 Jul 1643-)" circa 1663 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).  He died circa 1723. His estate was adm. by his sohn Jacob. Inventory showed property to the value of 

£ 73-6-6, which was divided to the heirs 28 Mch. 1723.


 
ii.
Jacob (1460)XE "Norton:Jacob  (1460) (1 Mar 1643-after 1691)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born on 1 Mar 1643.  He died after 1691.

     (an unknown value) (Resided in Edgartown and Barnstable. It is not known that he ever married. He was living as late as 1691 (Deeds I. 252)).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (1461)XE "Norton:Elizabeth  (1461) (1645-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1645.  She married James Pease (2237)XE "Pease:James  (2237) (15 Mar 1627-27 Mar 1719)" before 1664 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 566.).  She died.


 
iv.
Hannah (1462)XE "Norton:Hannah  (1462) (1648-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1648.  She married Augustine Williams (2238)XE "Williams:Augustine  (2238)" circa 1693 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 818.).  She died.


 
v.
Joseph (1463)XE "Norton:Joseph  (1463) (Mar 1651-30 Jan 1742)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 357.) was born in Mar 1651.  He married Mary Bayes (2239)XE "Bayes:Mary  (2239) (-circa 1700)" circa 1673 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).  He married Ann Trapp (2240)XE "Trapp:Ann  (2240) (-before 7 Aug 1753)" circa 1702 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 357.).  He died on 30 Jan 1742 at age 90.

     (an unknown value) (Gentleman. This ancestor of the second branch of the family was one of the leading citizens of the Vineyard and its first representative to the General Court of Mass. in 1692. He was sheriff of the county in 1699 and was commissioned as Justice of the Court of Common Pleas in 1702. He resided at Major's Cove near Miober's Bridge where he lived until his death).


 
vi.
Sarah (1464)XE "Norton:Sarah  (1464) (1653-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1653.  She married John Stanbridge (2241)XE "Stanbridge:John  (2241) (-1725)" before 1673 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 700.).  She died.
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vii.
Priscilla (1405).XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)"

 
viii.
Ruth (1465)XE "Norton:Ruth  (1465) (1657-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1657.  She married Moses Cleveland (2242)XE "Cleveland:Moses  (2242) (1 Sep 1651-before 30 Oct 1717)" on 4 Oct 1676 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 162.).  She died.


 
ix.
Benjamin (1466)XE "Norton:Benjamin  (1466) (1659-Nov 1733)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 374.) was born in 1659.  He married Hannah Bolter (2243)XE "Bolter:Hannah  (2243)" before 1685 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 539.).  He died in Nov 1733.


 
x.
Esther (1467)XE "Norton:Esther  (1467) (1662-before 1724)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1662.  She married Samuel Huxford (2244)XE "Huxford:Samuel  (2244) (circa 1660-)" before 1683 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 408.).  She married Jonathan Dunham (2245)XE "Dunham:Jonathan  (2245) (circa 1661-circa 1745)" circa 1691 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  She died before 1724.


 
xi.
Mary (1468)XE "Norton:Mary  (1468) (1666-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1666.  She married Thomas Wollen (2246)XE "Wollen:Thomas  (2246)" circa 1686 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 840.).  She died.

683.  Elizabeth10 unknown (1449)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1449)" married Nicholas Norton (1448)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)" circa 1640 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).

696.  John10 Butler (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)" (Nicholas, #1360) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born before 2 Jan 1625 at England.  He was baptized on 2 Jan 1625 at England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).  He was baptized on 2 Jan 1625 at England.  He married Mary Lynde (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" circa 1648 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died in 1658 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (His widow was app. admx.; inventory dated 21 July 1658, amounted to Pounds 219-9-11 which was divided among his heirs when the children reached their majority. He is the ancestor of all the Vineyard Butlers, as his only brother Henry returned to England and descendants of him now reside there

).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of John10 Butler (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)" and Mary Lynde (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" (see #681) were as follows:
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i.
John9 (1404).XE "Butler:John  (1404) (1650-before 3 Oct 1738)"

 
ii.
Mary (1420)XE "Butler:Mary  (1420) (1652-8 Apr 1741)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 21 & 48.) was born in 1652.  She married Simon Athearn (2262)XE "Athearn:Simon  (2262) (circa 1643-20 Feb 1715)" on 4 Oct 1665 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 23.).  She died on 8 Apr 1741.


 
iii.
Thomas (1421)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1421) (circa 1654-20 Oct 1732)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 63.) was born circa 1654.  He married Jemima Daggett (1516)XE "Daggett:Jemima  (1516) (circa 1666-before 1727)" on 27 Nov 1682 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died on 20 Oct 1732.


 
iv.
Joseph (1422)XE "Butler:Joseph  (1422) (1656-after 1680)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born in 1656.  He died after 1680.


 
v.
Hannah (1423)XE "Butler:Hannah  (1423) (circa 1658-)" was born circa 1658.  She married James Chadwick (2263)XE "Chadwick:James  (2263)" in Feb 1677 at Malden, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 141.).  She died.

     She resided, at Malden, Mass., USA, in 1698 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).

697.  Mary10 Lynde (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" (Thomas, #1362) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136.

) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 296.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born circa 1629 at England.  She married John Butler (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)" circa 1648 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She married William Weeks (1419)XE "Weeks:William  (1419) (-1689)" after 1658 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 792.).  She died after 1693.

     Mary (1407)XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)" immigrated to in Jul 1635 at. Was brot. over in 1635, by John Winth. jr. in the Abigail, then aged 6 years.

 [image: image12.png]PUFoEad Jidahon





698.  Nicholas10 Norton (1448)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)" (Nicholas, #1364) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1610.  He married Elizabeth unknown (1449)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1449)" circa 1640 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).  He died circa 1690.

     (an unknown value) (Undoubtedly he found his wife Elizabeth  in Weymouth, or an adjoining town after his arrival in New England, but no record of his marriage has been found and nothing to indicate her family name. They had eleven children, four sons and seven daughters; three of the former -Isaac, Joseph and Benjamin left issue and in the following genealogy their descendants will be divided for convenience sake into three "tribes" named for these three sons respectively according to seniority. The ancestor of the numerous family of this name on the Vineyard was born about 1610, probably in England, although the place of his nativity is not known. It will probably be found upon investigation that he emigrated from Somersetshire, and perhaps came from the vecinity of Batcombe or Broadway in that county, and there is some reason for inferring that he was one of the party of colonists acommpanying the Rev. John Hull in 1635 to New England. He first appears at Weymouth, Mass., in 1637, where he married his wife Elizabeth, and in which place he maintained a residence for twenty years prior to his removal to the Vineyard. That he was of a social station somewhat above the average appears from the fact that he kept a servant, whose "miscariages" brought the subject of this sketch into trouble in 1658 with the magistrates of Massachusetts. Of his life in Weymouth but little is worthy of mention. He shared in the division of lands in 1651, and was constable in 1657, an office of some distinction in those times. Two years later he was still called "of Weymouth," and in the same year his name first appears in the records of Edgartown. This may be taken as the probable date of his removal to the Vineyard. He was chosen a referee to represent the town in its cotroversy with John Daggett respecting his farm at Oak Bluffs. On Aug. 22, 1659, "Goodman" Norton was granted "a Lott of forty acres of Land" and on the same day it was "ordered by the town that Goodman Norton shall have Liberty to make use of any Pond about the Ox Pond for his Trade, except the Great Ponds." It does not appear what trade Nicholas Norton followed, but the use of ponds suggests that he may have been a tanner. Before the end of that year, he was engaged in two lawsuits as a plaintiff and a defendant. He was sued by Henry Goss in that year and mas mulcted in the sum of five shillings "for charges about the cure of Mr. Gousse's child: to pay one half in Wampam current and halfe in corne and five shillings to the constable for the Tryall about the abuse of Mr. Gousse's child." The exact nature of this suit at law is not clear from the records. In that same year he sued the Rev. Mr. Cotton, missionary to the Indians. In 1661 he was one of a committee to buy land of the Indians for the use of the town. In 1662-63 and 1669, he again appears in litigation with various townsmen, and if not a pattern in this respect, his fence was deemed the pattern and lawful standard to which others were required to conform in the maintenance of boundary fences in the town. In 1666  he was forbidden by the proprietors of the fish weir from taking any fish at Mattakeesett Creek, the right to which he claimed by purchase from the sachem Tewanticut, "countrary to our patent," upon a penalty of $5 yearly so often as he disobeys the order. In 1673 he joined in the "Dutch Rebellion" with others of his townsmen, and when it had collapsed he was tried and convicted. The following is the record in the case:- Whereas Nicolas Norton upon Commission from the Right honorable Sr. Edmond Andros Knight Governor of New York & hath beene before the Court legally; convicted of oppugning the Government established here under his Majestie wherein he acknowledgeth that he is ashamed and Sorry in his hear that he was Misled therein and hopes he shall be more careful for the future: The Court by virtue of the said Commission do adjudge the said Nicolas Norton to make a publique acknowledgment of the same at this Court and at the next quarterly Court holden at 'Marthas Vineyard: or to pay the summe of fifty one poundas as a fine to the Country. In 1685 he was one of a committe "chosen to make the Govenors Rate" and this is his last appearance on the town records before his death. There is no consolidated record of his real estate holdings such as was entered by others proprietors. He lived on his forty-acre grant situate north of the Great Swamp and south of the present road to West Tisbury. He was an early owner of land at Sanchacantackett in the vicinity of Major's Cove, where his descendants for two centuries resided and improved that beautiful estate. These purchases were made of the Indians Wampamag or "Sam" and Thomas Sisseton, both of which are unrecorded, thouth it is said that the original deed from "Sam" was in existence in recent years in the hands of a descendant. It is not believed that he ever resided on this property. He also held the usual proprietor's shares in the various divisins of town lands, besides a plot of meadow land at Akuampache. At the ripe age of four score years Nicholas Norton died, leaving four sons and six daughters, at least two of whom were born in Weymouth. The maiden name of his wife is not known. He married her probably in Weymouth, and she must be sought for in that locality. Their descendants have constituted one of the largest families on the island from the earliest times

).

     Children of Nicholas10 Norton (1448)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)" and Elizabeth unknown (1449)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1449)" (see #683) were as follows:


 
i.
Isaac9 (1459)XE "Norton:Isaac  (1459) (3 May 1641-circa 1723)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born on 3 May 1641.  He married Ruth Bayes (2236)XE "Bayes:Ruth  (2236) (2 Jul 1643-)" circa 1663 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).  He died circa 1723. His estate was adm. by his sohn Jacob. Inventory showed property to the value of 

£ 73-6-6, which was divided to the heirs 28 Mch. 1723.


 
ii.
Jacob (1460)XE "Norton:Jacob  (1460) (1 Mar 1643-after 1691)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born on 1 Mar 1643.  He died after 1691.

     (an unknown value) (Resided in Edgartown and Barnstable. It is not known that he ever married. He was living as late as 1691 (Deeds I. 252)).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (1461)XE "Norton:Elizabeth  (1461) (1645-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1645.  She married James Pease (2237)XE "Pease:James  (2237) (15 Mar 1627-27 Mar 1719)" before 1664 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 566.).  She died.


 
iv.
Hannah (1462)XE "Norton:Hannah  (1462) (1648-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1648.  She married Augustine Williams (2238)XE "Williams:Augustine  (2238)" circa 1693 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 818.).  She died.


 
v.
Joseph (1463)XE "Norton:Joseph  (1463) (Mar 1651-30 Jan 1742)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 357.) was born in Mar 1651.  He married Mary Bayes (2239)XE "Bayes:Mary  (2239) (-circa 1700)" circa 1673 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).  He married Ann Trapp (2240)XE "Trapp:Ann  (2240) (-before 7 Aug 1753)" circa 1702 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 357.).  He died on 30 Jan 1742 at age 90.

     (an unknown value) (Gentleman. This ancestor of the second branch of the family was one of the leading citizens of the Vineyard and its first representative to the General Court of Mass. in 1692. He was sheriff of the county in 1699 and was commissioned as Justice of the Court of Common Pleas in 1702. He resided at Major's Cove near Miober's Bridge where he lived until his death).


 
vi.
Sarah (1464)XE "Norton:Sarah  (1464) (1653-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1653.  She married John Stanbridge (2241)XE "Stanbridge:John  (2241) (-1725)" before 1673 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 700.).  She died.


 341.
vii.
Priscilla (1405).XE "Norton:Priscilla  (1405) (1655-)"

 
viii.
Ruth (1465)XE "Norton:Ruth  (1465) (1657-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1657.  She married Moses Cleveland (2242)XE "Cleveland:Moses  (2242) (1 Sep 1651-before 30 Oct 1717)" on 4 Oct 1676 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 162.).  She died.


 
ix.
Benjamin (1466)XE "Norton:Benjamin  (1466) (1659-Nov 1733)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 374.) was born in 1659.  He married Hannah Bolter (2243)XE "Bolter:Hannah  (2243)" before 1685 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 539.).  He died in Nov 1733.


 
x.
Esther (1467)XE "Norton:Esther  (1467) (1662-before 1724)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1662.  She married Samuel Huxford (2244)XE "Huxford:Samuel  (2244) (circa 1660-)" before 1683 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 408.).  She married Jonathan Dunham (2245)XE "Dunham:Jonathan  (2245) (circa 1661-circa 1745)" circa 1691 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 234.).  She died before 1724.


 
xi.
Mary (1468)XE "Norton:Mary  (1468) (1666-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 345.) was born in 1666.  She married Thomas Wollen (2246)XE "Wollen:Thomas  (2246)" circa 1686 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 840.).  She died.

699.  Elizabeth10 unknown (1449)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1449)" married Nicholas Norton (1448)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)" circa 1640 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 540.).

700.  Thomas10 Daggett (1502)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1502) (circa 1630-13 Apr 1691)" (John, #1400) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 87.) was born circa 1630 at Watertown, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  He married Hannah Mayhew (1503)XE "Mayhew:Hannah  (1503) (15 Jan 1635-1722)" circa 1657 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 225.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  He died on 13 Apr 1691 at Edgartown, Dukes, USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).

     (an unknown value) (He married the favorite daughter of Governor Mayhew, henceforth his position was assured and throughout his life he was an official of one sort or another in the Mayhew government until his death. He was Clerk of Courts and later Justice of the County Courts besides holding local offices in the shire town

).

     Children of Thomas10 Daggett (1502)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1502) (circa 1630-13 Apr 1691)" and Hannah Mayhew (1503)XE "Mayhew:Hannah  (1503) (15 Jan 1635-1722)" (see #701) were as follows:


 350.
i.
Thomas9 (1501).XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1501) (circa 1658-28 Aug 1726)"

 
ii.
Samuel (1513)XE "Daggett:Samuel  (1513) (circa 1660-26 Feb 1718)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1660 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  He died on 26 Feb 1718 (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).


 
iii.
John (1514)XE "Daggett:John  (1514) (circa 1662-7 Sep 1724)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) was born circa 1662 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  He married Sarah Pease (2219)XE "Pease:Sarah  (2219) (circa 1668-)" circa 1685 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 224.).  He died on 7 Sep 1724.


 
iv.
Joshua (1515)XE "Daggett:Joshua  (1515) (1664-circa 1738)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 128.) was born in 1664 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  He married Hannah Norton (2220)XE "Norton:Hannah  (2220) (circa 1664-)" circa 1685 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 225.).  He died circa 1738.


 
v.
Jemima (1516)XE "Daggett:Jemima  (1516) (circa 1666-before 1727)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1666.  She married Thomas Butler (1421)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1421) (circa 1654-20 Oct 1732)" on 27 Nov 1682 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She died before 1727.


 
vi.
Mary (1517)XE "Daggett:Mary  (1517) (circa 1668-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1668.  She married Jeremiah Howe (2221)XE "Howe:Jeremiah  (2221)" circa 1693 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.).  She died.


 
vii.
Patience (1518)XE "Daggett:Patience  (1518) (1670-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born in 1670.  She married Samuel Annable (2222)XE "Annable:Samuel  (2222) (1669-)" on 11 Apr 1695 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 19.).  She died.


 
viii.
Israel (1520)XE "Daggett:Israel  (1520) (circa 1672-after 1734)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.) was born circa 1672 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  He married Ruth Norton (2224)XE "Norton:Ruth  (2224) (circa 1681-)" on 31 Jan 1701 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 129.).  He died after 1734.


 
ix.
Martha (1519)XE "Daggett:Martha  (1519) (1672-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born in 1672.  She married John Crane (2223)XE "Crane:John  (2223) (circa 1664-)" on 25 May 1695 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 190.).  She died.


 
x.
Ruth (1521)XE "Daggett:Ruth  (1521) (circa 1676-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1676.  She married Nathaniel Bacon (2225)XE "Bacon:Nathaniel  (2225) (circa 1674-)" on 11 Nov 1696 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 30.).  She died.

701.  Hannah10 Mayhew (1503)XE "Mayhew:Hannah  (1503) (15 Jan 1635-1722)" (Thomas, #1402) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 301.)XE "Daggett:Hannah  (1503) (15 Jan 1635-1722)" was born on 15 Jan 1635.  She married Thomas Daggett (1502)XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1502) (circa 1630-13 Apr 1691)" circa 1657 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 225.) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 82.).  She married Samuel Smith (2214)XE "Smith:Samuel  (2214)" in 1695 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 689.).  She died in 1722 at Edgartown, Dukes, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 83.).

702.  John10 Hawes Capt. (1575)XE "Hawes:John Capt. (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)"

XE "Hawes:John Capt.  (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)" (Edmund, #1404) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 379.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 221.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 13.) was born in 1635 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 13.).  He married Desire Gorham (1576)XE "Gorham:Desire  (1576) (2 Apr 1644-30 Jun 1700)" on 7 Oct 1661 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 354.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He died on 11 Nov 1701 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).

     (an unknown value) (He was a cutler. He served as a representative to the General Court for two years, starting in 1696. According to Col. John Gorham's "Wast Book," Capt. John Hawes of Yarmouth, "having his Leg Cut of Dyed with it").

     Children of John10 Hawes Capt. (1575)XE "Hawes:John Capt. (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)"

XE "Hawes:John Capt.  (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)" and Desire Gorham (1576)XE "Gorham:Desire  (1576) (2 Apr 1644-30 Jun 1700)" (see #703) all born at Yarmouth, Mass., USA, were as follows:
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i.
Elizabeth9 (1564).XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (1564) (5 Oct 1662-25 Dec 1732)"

 
ii.
Mary (1584)XE "Hawes:Mary  (1584) (10 Jun 1664-5 Mar 1726)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 10 Jun 1664 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  She married John Bacon (2604)XE "Bacon:John  (2604)" on 17 Jun 1686 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 11.).  She died on 5 Mar 1726 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 61 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).


 
iii.
Edmund (1580)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1580) (2 May 1669-1692)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 2 May 1669 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  He died in 1692 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).


 
iv.
John (1597)XE "Hawes:John  (1597) (14 May 1671-)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 14 May 1671.  He died.


 
v.
Joseph (1577)XE "Hawes:Joseph  (1577) (16 Jul 1673-16 Nov 1752)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 16 Jul 1673 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  He married Mary Howes (2605)XE "Howes:Mary  (2605)" circa 1695 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 207.).  He died on 16 Nov 1752 at age 79.


 
vi.
Jabez (1579)XE "Hawes:Jabez  (1579) (20 May 1675-after 1692)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 20 May 1675 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  He died after 1692.


 
vii.
Ebenezer (1581)XE "Hawes:Ebenezer Capt. (1581) (24 Mar 1679-7 Oct 1727)"

XE "Hawes:Ebenezer Capt.  (1581) (24 Mar 1679-7 Oct 1727)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 24 Mar 1679 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 14.).  He married Sarah Norton (2606)XE "Norton:Sarah  (2606) (1676-        )" on 23 Feb 1700 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 206.).  He died on 7 Oct 1727 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA, at age 48.


 
viii.
Isaac (1582)XE "Hawes:Isaac  (1582) (9 Mar 1680-)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 9 Mar 1680 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  He married Bethiah Howes (2607)XE "Howes:Bethiah  (2607)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 207.).  He died.


 
ix.
Desire (1578)XE "Hawes:Desire  (1578) (28 Feb 1682-8 Feb 1724)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 28 Feb 1682 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 14.).  She married Josiah Hatch (2608)XE "Hatch:Josiah  (2608)" on 24 Feb 1702 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 206.).  She married John Cowing (2609)XE "Cowing:John  (2609)" on 19 Jun 1719 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 206.).  She died on 8 Feb 1724 at age 41 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).


 
x.
Benjamin (1583)XE "Hawes:Benjamin  (1583) (20 Mar 1683-Oct 1722)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 193.) was born on 20 Mar 1683 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 14.).  He married Dorcas Smith (1671)XE "Smith:Dorcas  (1671) (circa 1687-4 Aug 1730)" on 24 Jul 1705 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 193.).  He died in Oct 1722 at Edgartown, Mass., USA, at age 39 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).

     (an unknown value) (Came to Edgartown. His relationship, through marriage of his eldest sister to Thomas Daggett as well as his own marriage, gave him social and personal connections with the ruling family interests, and as a lawyer, he attained distinction on the Vineyard as attorney in many prominent cases).


 
xi.
Experience (1598)XE "Hawes:Experience  (1598) (24 Sep 1686-19 Nov 1758)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 24 Sep 1686 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  She married Ebenezer Sprout (2610)XE "Sprout:Ebenezer  (2610)" on 1 Mar 1704 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 206.).  She married Francis Miller (2611)XE "Miller:Francis  (2611)" on 22 Nov 1731 at Middleborough, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 206.).  She died on 19 Nov 1758 at Middleborough, Mass., USA, at age 72.

703.  Desire10 Gorham (1576)XE "Gorham:Desire  (1576) (2 Apr 1644-30 Jun 1700)" (John, #1406) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 2 Apr 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich.).  She married John Hawes Capt. (1575)XE "Hawes:John Capt. (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)"

XE "Hawes:John Capt.  (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)" on 7 Oct 1661 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 354.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  She died on 30 Jun 1700 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA, at age 56 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).

704.  Thomas10 Smith (1637)XE "Smith:Thomas  (1637) (circa 1590-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1590 at Brinspittae, England.  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8VZF-VB.

     Children of Thomas10 Smith (1637)XE "Smith:Thomas  (1637) (circa 1590-)" include:


 352.
i.
John9 (1635).XE "Smith:John Rev. (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)"

XE "Smith:John Rev.  (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)"
706.  Samuel10 Hinckley (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)" (Robert, #1412) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 162, Page 101.) was born on 25 May 1589 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He was baptized on 25 May 1589 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E ("vicesimo Quinto Maij. Sammvell filius Roberti hinckley baptizatus fuit") (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 315.).  He married Sarah Soole (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)" on 6 May 1617 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England, 510200N0003000E (1617 "May Marryed the vijth day Samuell Hinckley and Sarah Soole") (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374 (date appears in the LDS File as 17 and not 7).) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  He married Bridget Bodfish (2528)XE "Bodfish:Bridget  (2528)" on 15 Dec 1657 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374.).  He died on 31 Oct 1662 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 73 (Abstract of his Will. To wife Bridget, sons Samuel, John and Thomas, daughters Susannah, Sarah, Mary, Elizabeth and Bathshoa, (da. of Thomas,). To his son [in law] Henry Cobb's sons Samuel and Jonathan. Inventory (Pounds 162. 16") by Henry Cobb and Wm. Crocker) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 29.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 6, page 95.).

     (an unknown value) (Settled at Scituate. Frm. 7 Feb. 1636-7. Rem. to Barnstable in 1638-9. Juror, town officer.

Came to Plymouth Colony with his wife and four children in 1635 and settled in Scituate, Mass. In July, 1640, he sold his house there, having moved to Barnstable, Mass., in 1639 or early 1640. He became a free man of the Colony in 1637 and was frequently named a juror and surveyor of highways. His farm was one of the best in Barnstable and he left a considerable estate.

Samuel Hinckley, Esq. a resident of Tenderden, Kent, England, in March of 1635 set sail on the ship Hercules with his wife and four children and others to make a company of 102 bound for America. Samuel Hinckley settled first in Sciutate, Mass. with his family and built a home with Rev. Lothrop called No. 19. About half of the 102 persons who came to America with the Hinckleys first settled there at Scituate and were followers of Rev. John Lothrop. In 1638 the Hinckleys moved to Barnstable, Plymouth Colony, where the family name is prominate to this day.

Samuel Hinckley had three sons from whom the Hinkley families of America are descendants).  His Ancestral File Number is 1TGV-G6.  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of Samuel10 Hinckley (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)" and Sarah Soole (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)" (see #707) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas9 (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine.) was born before 19 Mar 1619 at England.  He was baptized on 19 Mar 1620 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England ("March 19 Bapt Thomas sonne of Samuell Hincle" [1619/20]) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  He married Mary Richards (2521)XE "Richards:Mary  (2521) (-24 Jun 1659)" on 7 Dec 1641 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 29.).  He married Mary Smith (2522)XE "Smith:Mary  (2522) (circa 1650-1703)" on 16 Mar 1660 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He died in 1705.

     (an unknown value) (Thomas had a distinguished career in America, and became  Governor of Plymouth Colony. Towards the end of the reign of James II New England was constituted a Vice-Royalty, with a Governor and Council. Thomas was nominated to the latter by the King. After the fall of James, Vice-Royalty was abolished, and Thomas Hinckley resumed the Governorship).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
ii.
John (4176)XE "Hinckley:John  (4176) (before 28 Apr 1622-25 Feb 1628)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.) was born before 28 Apr 1622 at England.  He was baptized on 28 Apr 1622 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.).  He died on 25 Feb 1628 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.).


 353.
iii.
Susanna (1636).XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)"

 
iv.
Marie (4178)XE "Hinckley:Marie  (4178) (before 23 Mar 1628-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.) was born before 23 Mar 1628 at England.  She was baptized on 23 Mar 1628 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 315.).  She died.


 
v.
Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.) was born before 22 Nov 1629 at England.  She was baptized on 22 Nov 1629 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 315.).  She married Henry Cobb (749)XE "Cobb:Henry  (749)" on 12 Dec 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 164.).  She died after 1679.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
vi.
Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.) was born before 18 Sep 1631 at England.  She was baptized on 18 Sep 1631 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 315.).  She died.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
vii.
Elizabeth (1649)XE "Hinckley:Elizabeth  (1649) (before 10 Mar 1633-18 Jun 1633)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born before 10 Mar 1633 at England.  She was baptized on 10 Mar 1633 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.).  She died on 18 Jun 1633 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 318.).

     (an unknown value) (died young in Engl).


 
viii.
John (2523)XE "Hinckley:John  (2523) (before 1 Jun 1634-)" was born before 1 Jun 1634 at England.  He was baptized on 1 Jun 1634 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.).  He died at England.

     (an unknown value) (died young).


 
ix.
Elizabeth (2524)XE "Hinckley:Elizabeth  (2524) (before 6 Sep 1635-)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born before 6 Sep 1635 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.).  She was baptized on 6 Sep 1635 at Scituate (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.).  She married Elisha Parker (4457)XE "Parker:Elisha  (4457)" on 15 Jul 1657 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 41.).  She died.


 
x.
Samuel (2526)XE "Hinkley:Samuel  (2526) (4 Feb 1638-1640)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born on 4 Feb 1638 at Scituate, Mass., USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.).  He died in 1640 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value).


 
xi.
Samuel (4937)XE "Hinkley:Samuel  (4937) (before 10 Feb 1639-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.) was born before 10 Feb 1639 at Scituate (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 319.).  He died (d. young).


 
xii.
Daughter (2527)XE "Hinkley:Daughter  (2527) (circa 1639-1640)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born circa 1639 at Scituate, Mass., USA.  She died in 1640 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.


 
xiii.
Twin Son (2520)XE "Hinkley:Twin Son  (2520) (circa 1640-19 May 1641)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born circa 1640 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He died on 19 May 1641 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.


 
xiv.
Twin Son (2519)XE "Hinkley:Twin Son  (2519) (circa 1640-6 Feb 1641)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born circa 1640 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He died on 6 Feb 1641 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.


 
xv.
Samuel (1650)XE "Hinkley:Samuel  (1650) (24 Jul 1642-2 Jan 1727)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born on 24 Jul 1642 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Samuel was the second oldest son of Samuel Hinckley, who lived to maturity. He was a farmer on his father's estate at Barnstable, Mass) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 28.).  He married Mary Goodspeed (2517)XE "Goodspeed:Mary  (2517) (-20 Dec 1666)" on 14 Dec 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 29.).  He married Mary Fitzrandolph (2518)XE "Fitzrandolph:Mary  (2518) (1650-1738)" on 15 Jan 1668 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374.).  He died on 2 Jan 1727 at age 84.


 
xvi.
John (1651)XE "Hinkley:John  (1651) (24 May 1644-7 Dec 1709)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 24.) was born on 24 May 1644 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 28.).  He married Bethia Lathrop (2515)XE "Lathrop:Bethia  (2515) (Jun 1649-10 Jul 1697)" in Jul 1668 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 30.).  He married Mary Goodspeed (2516)XE "Goodspeed:Mary  (2516)" on 24 Nov 1697 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374.).  He died on 7 Dec 1709 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 65 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 30.).

     (an unknown value) (Ensign John Hinckley was a man of some note, often engaged in town affairs. He was ensign in the Militia Company and officer of Honor in his day).

707.  Sarah10 Soole (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)" (Thomas, #1414) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) was born before 8 Jun 1600.  She was baptized on 8 Jun 1600 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England ("June Baptized the viijth day Sarah the daughter of Thomas Soole") (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  She married Samuel Hinckley (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)" on 6 May 1617 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England, 510200N0003000E (1617 "May Marryed the vijth day Samuell Hinckley and Sarah Soole") (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374 (date appears in the LDS File as 17 and not 7).) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  She died on 18 Aug 1656 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich.).

     As of 17 May 1617, her married name was Hinkley (1639)XE "Hinkley:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 374 (date appears in the LDS File as 17 and not 7).) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 23.).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).
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708.  Thomas10 Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" (Matthew, #1416) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 114 - Vol. III, pages 299 to 301.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 298.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 185.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born on 31 Mar 1593 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He was baptized on 1 Apr 1593 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He married Ann Parkhurst (1558)XE "Parkhurst:Ann  (1558) (circa 1600-)" before 1617 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  He married Jane Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" before 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  He died on 25 Mar 1682 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA, at age 88.

     (an unknown value) (He was the Governor, first of the name in Edgartown, whose personal history has been sufficiently detailed in the two preceding volumes. The name of his first wife is not known (Parkhurst ?) nor has any clue to the date and place of the marriage been found. Neither is it known when or where she died. He m. (2) Mrs. Jane (Gallion?) Paine, wid. of Mr. Thomas Paine, a London merchant, abt 1634 (Vol. II, p. 90, Annals of Edgartown). She was living 15 May 1666, but died before her husband. In London the compiler found references to a Gallion family, to which she may have belonged, and he has many other English notes relative to the Mayhews which he hopes to follow up in the future. The name Gallion, it it be correctly given, is very rare in England. Galland is found at Green's Norton where the Paines owned prperty, and Gallyon in Ramsey, Huntingdonshire. During a recent visit of the compiler to England confirmation of this was obtained which shows that this statement is correct. The following is verbatim copy of a record in the "Book of Free commoners" belonging to the corporation of Southampton: "Nono die ffebr' 1620 (i.e. 1621) Thomas Mayhew late servant and apprntice unto Richard Masey of the Towne and countie of Southampton mrcer havinge well and truely served his spprntiship with his said mr whoe beinge prrsent testified to the same And he the said Thomas Mayhewe (desieringe to be admitted a free commoner of the said Towne to use his trade of a mrcer in this said Towne and his said mr likewise desieringe the same) was therefore this prsent daie admitted and sworren a free commoner accordingly."

An interesting and important statement is therein found which recalls the statement of Thomas Macey of Nantucket (who is said to have emigrated from Chilmark, co. Wilts), that Governor Thomas Mayhew was his "honored cousin" (N. Y. Col. Mss., Vol. 25) and here is found documentary evidence that Thomas Mayhew was an apprentice of Richard Macey, a Southampton merchant. Richard Macey, his master, was a native of Chilmark and in his will of 20 Nov. 1633 he provided for his burial in that parish (Arch. Sarum X. 30). Undouabtedly further search would reveal the exact relationship of this Richard to Thomas Macey, the emigrant, and thus show the kinship between the families Mayhew and Macey. Thomas, gentleman, merchant, Watertown, chairman of com. of Gen. Court on boundary in 1631. Deputy; freeman (citizen) May 14, 1634. Of Medford in 1635. [Plym. Col. Rec. XII.] Received a grant of land at Nantucket and Marthas Vineyard in 1641, and remained thither later. He m. Jane, widow of Thomas Paine, of London, whose son Thomas, ae. 15, chose Mr. and Mrs. M. his guardians Oct. 14, 1647. He was to receive the reversion of lands at Whittlebury, Northamptonshire, 23 (8) 1646. Of the childhood, education, and early business training of Thomas Mayhew of Tisbury, nothing definite has come to the knowledge of the author. It is presumed that he lived in Tisbury during his youth, and was educated in the parish school under the care of his parents. When his father died, he was twenty-one years of age, and it is certain that this event placed upon him the necessity of individual responsibility for the future. We know that he became a merchant, but where he served his apprenticeship is unknown. Daniel Gookin, who knew him personally, says he was "a merchant bre in England, as I take it at Southampton." This seaport town was, in that period, one of the most important commercial centers in England, ranking with Bristol as secondary to the great port of London. Like all merchants of the maritime ports, he naturally became cognizant of and interested in foreign trade, and as the colonization ventures of the established mercantile companies began to develop, he must have learned of the possibilities of profitable traffic beyond seas. Among the great merchants of London, Mr. Matthew Cradock was an early adventurer in this line of business, and was among the first to support the companies engaged in the colonization of New England. In the course of business it is to be supposed that every suburban merchant in England went to London often to have dealings with the large wholesale houses in the capital, and in that way we may suppose Mayhew became known to Cradock and thus laid the foundation of their business relations in later years. In 1625, at the accesion of Charles the First, Thomas Mayhew was thirty-two years of age and had been engaged in business for himself in all probability for about a dozen years, since the death of his father. During that period he had married, about 1619, and family traditions and a record of some antiquity brings down to us the name of the bride of his youth as Abigail Parkus. (This is from a memorandum, genealogical in its character, prepared by Deacon William Mayhew, of Edgartown, who was born in 1748, and was thus within the sphere of close personal knowledge of his immediate ancestors. He was ten years old when Experience Mayhew, the great family exponent, died (1758), and Experience was about the same age when the old governor died, thus but one life spanned the gap between Thomas Senior and Deacon William. The memorandum was preserved by the Deacon's son, Thomas, and was in existence in 1854.) Further particularization has been given to this tradition by making her a daughter of that Parkhurst family, of which George Parkhurst of Watertown, Mass., 1643, was the first New England representative. George was the son of John Parkhurst of Ipswich, England, a clothier, and his sisters, Deborah and Elizabeth, came to this country with him, and were later residents of the Vineyard, the former as wife of John Smith and the latter of Joseph Merry

).  His Ancestral File Number is 52L4-98.

     Children of Thomas10 Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" and Ann Parkhurst (1558)XE "Parkhurst:Ann  (1558) (circa 1600-)" (see #709) were:


 354.
i.
Thomas9 (1559).XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1559) (1620-1657)"
709.  Ann10 Parkhurst (1558)XE "Parkhurst:Ann  (1558) (circa 1600-)" (Mathew, #1418) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1600 at Hampshire, England.  She married Thomas Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" before 1617 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GG8C-39.

710.  Thomas10 Paine (1563)XE "Paine:Thomas  (1563) (1608-1635)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 300.) was born in 1608 at London, England.  He married Jane Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" on 15 Oct 1620 at Wantage, Berkshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 552.).  He died in 1635 at London, England.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8MM8-XG.

     Children of Thomas10 Paine (1563)XE "Paine:Thomas  (1563) (1608-1635)" and Jane Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" (see #711) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas9 (2251)XE "Paine:Thomas  (2251)" died.

     (an unknown value) (Thomas, son of Thomas Paine, of London, merchant, came to New England with his mother Jane, who had married 2, Mr. Thomas Mayhew; he chose them his guardians Oct. 14, 1647, being 15 years old and upwards. [Suff. De. I, 86.]

).
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ii.
Jane (1661).XE "Paine:Jane  (1661) (1625-)"
711.  Jane10 Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 300.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1602.  She married Thomas Paine (1563)XE "Paine:Thomas  (1563) (1608-1635)" on 15 Oct 1620 at Wantage, Berkshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 552.).  She married Thomas Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" before 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  She died on 15 May 1666 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8M5H-XO.

712.  Henry C.10 Claghorn (1699)XE "Claghorn:Henry C.  (1699) (circa 1580-)" (James, #1424) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) was born circa 1580 at Saughton, M, Scotland.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Harry or Henry was apprenticed to a merchant in Edinburgh in 1611. We have no record of his death, but we know that he had three sons and one daughter, namely, Thomas, David, James and Isobel.

Thomas must have died early or in some way removed from the family, as upon the death of David Cleghorn in 1647, we find that he willed his estate to the younger children, James and Isobel.

As near as we can determine this young James Cleghorn is the ancestor of the Cleghorns and Claghorns of America).  His Ancestral File Number is QT1X-MP.

     Children of Henry C.10 Claghorn (1699)XE "Claghorn:Henry C.  (1699) (circa 1580-)" include:


 
i.
Isobel9 (1946)XE "Claghorn:Isobel  (1946)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) died.


 
ii.
Thomas (1944)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1944)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) died.


 
iii.
David (1945)XE "Claghorn:David  (1945) (-1647)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 14.) died in 1647.
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iv.
James (1697).XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)"
714.  Bernard10 Lumbard (1706)XE "Lumbard:Bernard  (1706) (circa 1608-after 1664)" (Thomas Lambert, #1428) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 105.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II; page 1197.) was born circa 1608 at Dorchester, England.  He married an unknown person circa 1633.  He died after 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.

     Children of Bernard10 Lumbard (1706)XE "Lumbard:Bernard  (1706) (circa 1608-after 1664)" include:
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i.
Abigail9 (1698).XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)"

 
ii.
Joshua (1711)XE "Lumbard:Joshua  (1711) (before 8 Oct 1637-)" was born before 8 Oct 1637.  He died.


 
iii.
Mary (1712)XE "Lumbard:Mary  (1712) (before 8 Oct 1637-)" was born before 8 Oct 1637.  She died.


 
iv.
Martha (1713)XE "Lumbard:Martha  (1713) (before 3 Nov 1639-)" was born before 3 Nov 1639.  She died.


 
v.
Jabez (1714)XE "Lumbard:Jabez  (1714) (4 Jul 1641-)" was born on 4 Jul 1641.  He died.

716.  Robert10 Lovell (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)" (John, #1432) was born in 1595 at England.  He married Mrs. Elizabeth Lovell (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )" circa 1618 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 476.).  He died on 25 Jul 1672 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Husbandman, settled at Weymouth; recd. arms from Pynchon in 1636; propr. 1643).  His Ancestral File Number is 52L7-JV.  John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

     Children of Robert10 Lovell (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)" and Mrs. Elizabeth Lovell (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )" (see #717) all born at England were as follows:


 
i.
Anne9 (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)" was born in 1619.  She died.

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).


 
ii.
Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)" was born in 1620.  He died.

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).


 358.
iii.
John (1716).XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)"

 
iv.
Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" was born in 1634.  She died.

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).


 
v.
James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" was born in 1634.  He died.

     James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

717.  Mrs. Elizabeth10 Lovell (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.) was born circa 1601.  She married Robert Lovell (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)" circa 1618 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 476.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 52L7-K2.  John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

718.  William10 Hatche (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)" (William, #1436) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 375.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1598 at England.  He married Jane Young (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)" on 9 Jul 1624 at Canterbury, Kent, England. Canterbury Marriage Licenses:

1624 William Hatch of Ashford, woolen draper, bachelor, about 25, and Jane Young of Thannington, maiden, about 27, whose friendas are dead, at Thannington, 9 July.

Bondsmen: Edward Young of Thannington, husbandman, and William Page of Canteerbury, blacksmith. (From original license in Diocesan Registry, Canterbury, partially printed in Cowper's Canterbury Marriage Licenses, Series 2 Column 471 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 353.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 6 Nov 1651 at Scituate, Mass., USA. "November the fift 1651. I, William hatch the elder of Scittuate in the collony of New Plymouth in america, Planter being weake in body but of p'fect memory do make this my last will and testament in manner and forme following.

Imprimis -- I give and bequeath vnto Jane my wife two milch cowes and my executors to keep them Summer and Winter upon my meddow grounds, them and theire increase till they exceed the number of six.

Item -- I giue vnto her halfe my dwelling house during her time as alsoe halfe the fruites of the trees in my orchards.

Item -- I will that my executors allow her yearly fifteen bushels of corne viz: foure of wheate foure of Rye forue of barley and foure of Indian corne, as also sixteene Rods of broken vp pround and to be well dunged yearly for to sow hemp seed on.

Item -- I viue her the bed whereon I lye with two paire of sheets, two pillows, two paire of pillow coats one bolster, one rugg, one blankett thereunto belonging.

Item -- I giue her one chamber pott, two household platters, two pewter dishes, one pewter drinking pott; alsoe a little brase pott and a brase skillett, two spinning Wheels a paire of wool cardes, a Trunke, halfe a dozen of milk trayes a couple of wooden dishes two wooden platters a milke pan two chayers foure spoones one of them being of siluer.

Item -- a warming pan, one brandiron one paire of tonges one paire of pot hangers a fier slice.

Item -- I giue jer a hogg and my great brase kettle.

Item -- I giue my daughter Jane Lovell one milch cow to bee delivered by ma execitors at two yearse and after my decease; and if the lord give my daughter Jane and mor children then my will is that her next child shall have the first calfe of that calfe tha I have given to her son John Lovell and the next child the next calfe and soe on successively.

Item -- I give my daughter Jane one paire of sheets.

Item -- a chest alsoe a pewter candlesticke one sawser and two alchymy spoones.

Item -- I give to my daughter Ann Torry one milch cowe to her and to her heires to be deliuered at two yeares and after my decease by my executors.

Item -- I giue to my grandchild James Torry a cow calfe and the first calfe of her breed to my grandchild William Torry, and the next calfe of her to my grandchild Joseph (Torrey)  and the next to my grandchild  damaris (Torrey) and also I giue my daughter Torrey the stripp pott: all the rest ofl my movable goods, lands and tenements I give and bequeath to my two sons Walter hatch and William hatch to them and theire heires for ever, to bee equally divided between them whom I appoint to bee the executors fo this my last will and Testament, and to pay all my debts and legacies. In witnes shereof I have heir vnto sett my hand and seale the day and yeare above written."

Inventory of estate taken by Walter hatch and William Hatch Jr Pounds 95.3.4 presented to court June 3, 1652 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Merchant, ret. to Eng. and came again. a joint undertaker in the Castle in 1638. Planter; frm. Jan. 5, 1635-6, Lieut., 1643; elder.

Of Ashford, Wye and Sandwich, co. Kent, and of Sciutate in the Plymouth Colony, woolen draper and merchant.

In 1634 William embarked from Sandwich England for New Plymouth America with wife Jane, five children and six servants in the merchant bark "Hercules" (Custom House Records).

He settled at Scituate where he built a house on Kent Street, and was admitted freeeman on 5 Jan. 1635/6. He returned to England, but came back to New England in April 1638 in the ship "Castle".

5 Mar 1638/9 he was appointed Surveyor of Highways.

24 Sept 1642 he was one of a committee for Scituate to provide forces for the war against the Indians.

16 Oct 1643 he was elected by his townsmen to be their lieutenant for "trayning their men" in the art of war.

In 1643 he was chosen the first ruling elder of the Second Church of Scituate).  His Ancestral File Number is 1THV-73.  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of William10 Hatche (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)" and Jane Young (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)" (see #719) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (4225)XE "Hatche:John  (4225) (before 7 Aug 1625-before 5 Nov 1651)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 259.) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 7 Aug 1625.  He was baptized on 7 Aug 1625 at Wye, Kent, England.  He died before 5 Nov 1651.


 
ii.
Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)" (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 3 Dec 1626 at England.  She was baptized on 3 Dec 1626 at Wye, Kent, England.  She married James Torrey (4838)XE "Torrey:James  (4838) (1617-1665)" on 2 Nov 1643 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 747.).  She married John Phillips (1339)XE "Phillips:John  (1339) (1602-1692)" on 3 Apr 1677 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 578.).  She died.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
iii.
William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)" (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 9 Aug 1629.  He was baptized on 9 Aug 1629 at Wye, Kent, England.  He married Abigail Hewes (4839)XE "Hewes:Abigail  (4839)" circa 1651 at Scituate, Mass., USA.  He died circa 1657.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 359.
iv.
Jane (1717).XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)"

 
v.
Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)" (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 3 Nov 1633.  He was baptized on 3 Nov 1633 at Wye, Kent, England.  He died on 6 Nov 1633 at Wye, Kent, England.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

719.  Jane10 Young (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1596 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married William Hatche (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)" on 9 Jul 1624 at Canterbury, Kent, England. Canterbury Marriage Licenses:

1624 William Hatch of Ashford, woolen draper, bachelor, about 25, and Jane Young of Thannington, maiden, about 27, whose friendas are dead, at Thannington, 9 July.

Bondsmen: Edward Young of Thannington, husbandman, and William Page of Canteerbury, blacksmith. (From original license in Diocesan Registry, Canterbury, partially printed in Cowper's Canterbury Marriage Licenses, Series 2 Column 471 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 353.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Thomas King Elder (1754)XE "King:Thomas Elder (1754) (1604-1691)"

XE "King:Thomas Elder  (1754) (1604-1691)" on 31 Mar 1653 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 440.).  She died on 8 Oct 1653 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 1THW-2C.  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

720.  Henry C.10 Claghorn (1699)XE "Claghorn:Henry C.  (1699) (circa 1580-)" (James, #1424) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) was born circa 1580 at Saughton, M, Scotland.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Harry or Henry was apprenticed to a merchant in Edinburgh in 1611. We have no record of his death, but we know that he had three sons and one daughter, namely, Thomas, David, James and Isobel.

Thomas must have died early or in some way removed from the family, as upon the death of David Cleghorn in 1647, we find that he willed his estate to the younger children, James and Isobel.

As near as we can determine this young James Cleghorn is the ancestor of the Cleghorns and Claghorns of America).  His Ancestral File Number is QT1X-MP.

     Children of Henry C.10 Claghorn (1699)XE "Claghorn:Henry C.  (1699) (circa 1580-)" include:


 
i.
Isobel9 (1946)XE "Claghorn:Isobel  (1946)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) died.


 
ii.
Thomas (1944)XE "Claghorn:Thomas  (1944)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) died.


 
iii.
David (1945)XE "Claghorn:David  (1945) (-1647)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 14.) died in 1647.


 356.
iv.
James (1697).XE "Claghorn:James  (1697) (1630-11 Oct 1683)"
722.  Bernard10 Lumbard (1706)XE "Lumbard:Bernard  (1706) (circa 1608-after 1664)" (Thomas Lambert, #1428) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 105.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II; page 1197.) was born circa 1608 at Dorchester, England.  He married an unknown person circa 1633.  He died after 1664 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.

     Children of Bernard10 Lumbard (1706)XE "Lumbard:Bernard  (1706) (circa 1608-after 1664)" include:


 357.
i.
Abigail9 (1698).XE "Lombard:Abigail  (1698) (1634-21 Aug 1677)"

 
ii.
Joshua (1711)XE "Lumbard:Joshua  (1711) (before 8 Oct 1637-)" was born before 8 Oct 1637.  He died.


 
iii.
Mary (1712)XE "Lumbard:Mary  (1712) (before 8 Oct 1637-)" was born before 8 Oct 1637.  She died.


 
iv.
Martha (1713)XE "Lumbard:Martha  (1713) (before 3 Nov 1639-)" was born before 3 Nov 1639.  She died.


 
v.
Jabez (1714)XE "Lumbard:Jabez  (1714) (4 Jul 1641-)" was born on 4 Jul 1641.  He died.

724.  Robert10 Lovell (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)" (John, #1432) was born in 1595 at England.  He married Mrs. Elizabeth Lovell (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )" circa 1618 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 476.).  He died on 25 Jul 1672 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Husbandman, settled at Weymouth; recd. arms from Pynchon in 1636; propr. 1643).  His Ancestral File Number is 52L7-JV.  John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

     Children of Robert10 Lovell (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)" and Mrs. Elizabeth Lovell (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )" (see #717) all born at England were as follows:


 
i.
Anne9 (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)" was born in 1619.  She died.

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).


 
ii.
Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)" was born in 1620.  He died.

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).


 358.
iii.
John (1716).XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)"

 
iv.
Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" was born in 1634.  She died.

     John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).


 
v.
James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" was born in 1634.  He died.

     James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

725.  Mrs. Elizabeth10 Lovell (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.) was born circa 1601.  She married Robert Lovell (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)" circa 1618 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 476.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 52L7-K2.  John (1716)XE "Lovell:John  (1716) (1627-1709)", Robert (1726)XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)", Mrs. (1727)XE "Lovell:Mrs. Elizabeth  (1727) (circa 1601-        )", Zaccheus (1734)XE "Lovell:Zaccheus  (1734) (1620-)", Anne (1735)XE "Lovell:Anne  (1735) (1619-)", Ellen (1736)XE "Lovell:Ellen  (1736) (1634-)" and James (1737)XE "Lovell:James  (1737) (1634-)" immigrated to New England before 20 Mar 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 292.).

726.  William10 Hatche (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)" (William, #1436) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 375.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1598 at England.  He married Jane Young (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)" on 9 Jul 1624 at Canterbury, Kent, England. Canterbury Marriage Licenses:

1624 William Hatch of Ashford, woolen draper, bachelor, about 25, and Jane Young of Thannington, maiden, about 27, whose friendas are dead, at Thannington, 9 July.

Bondsmen: Edward Young of Thannington, husbandman, and William Page of Canteerbury, blacksmith. (From original license in Diocesan Registry, Canterbury, partially printed in Cowper's Canterbury Marriage Licenses, Series 2 Column 471 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 353.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 6 Nov 1651 at Scituate, Mass., USA. "November the fift 1651. I, William hatch the elder of Scittuate in the collony of New Plymouth in america, Planter being weake in body but of p'fect memory do make this my last will and testament in manner and forme following.

Imprimis -- I give and bequeath vnto Jane my wife two milch cowes and my executors to keep them Summer and Winter upon my meddow grounds, them and theire increase till they exceed the number of six.

Item -- I giue vnto her halfe my dwelling house during her time as alsoe halfe the fruites of the trees in my orchards.

Item -- I will that my executors allow her yearly fifteen bushels of corne viz: foure of wheate foure of Rye forue of barley and foure of Indian corne, as also sixteene Rods of broken vp pround and to be well dunged yearly for to sow hemp seed on.

Item -- I viue her the bed whereon I lye with two paire of sheets, two pillows, two paire of pillow coats one bolster, one rugg, one blankett thereunto belonging.

Item -- I giue her one chamber pott, two household platters, two pewter dishes, one pewter drinking pott; alsoe a little brase pott and a brase skillett, two spinning Wheels a paire of wool cardes, a Trunke, halfe a dozen of milk trayes a couple of wooden dishes two wooden platters a milke pan two chayers foure spoones one of them being of siluer.

Item -- a warming pan, one brandiron one paire of tonges one paire of pot hangers a fier slice.

Item -- I giue jer a hogg and my great brase kettle.

Item -- I giue my daughter Jane Lovell one milch cow to bee delivered by ma execitors at two yearse and after my decease; and if the lord give my daughter Jane and mor children then my will is that her next child shall have the first calfe of that calfe tha I have given to her son John Lovell and the next child the next calfe and soe on successively.

Item -- I give my daughter Jane one paire of sheets.

Item -- a chest alsoe a pewter candlesticke one sawser and two alchymy spoones.

Item -- I give to my daughter Ann Torry one milch cowe to her and to her heires to be deliuered at two yeares and after my decease by my executors.

Item -- I giue to my grandchild James Torry a cow calfe and the first calfe of her breed to my grandchild William Torry, and the next calfe of her to my grandchild Joseph (Torrey)  and the next to my grandchild  damaris (Torrey) and also I giue my daughter Torrey the stripp pott: all the rest ofl my movable goods, lands and tenements I give and bequeath to my two sons Walter hatch and William hatch to them and theire heires for ever, to bee equally divided between them whom I appoint to bee the executors fo this my last will and Testament, and to pay all my debts and legacies. In witnes shereof I have heir vnto sett my hand and seale the day and yeare above written."

Inventory of estate taken by Walter hatch and William Hatch Jr Pounds 95.3.4 presented to court June 3, 1652 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Merchant, ret. to Eng. and came again. a joint undertaker in the Castle in 1638. Planter; frm. Jan. 5, 1635-6, Lieut., 1643; elder.

Of Ashford, Wye and Sandwich, co. Kent, and of Sciutate in the Plymouth Colony, woolen draper and merchant.

In 1634 William embarked from Sandwich England for New Plymouth America with wife Jane, five children and six servants in the merchant bark "Hercules" (Custom House Records).

He settled at Scituate where he built a house on Kent Street, and was admitted freeeman on 5 Jan. 1635/6. He returned to England, but came back to New England in April 1638 in the ship "Castle".

5 Mar 1638/9 he was appointed Surveyor of Highways.

24 Sept 1642 he was one of a committee for Scituate to provide forces for the war against the Indians.

16 Oct 1643 he was elected by his townsmen to be their lieutenant for "trayning their men" in the art of war.

In 1643 he was chosen the first ruling elder of the Second Church of Scituate).  His Ancestral File Number is 1THV-73.  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of William10 Hatche (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)" and Jane Young (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)" (see #719) were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (4225)XE "Hatche:John  (4225) (before 7 Aug 1625-before 5 Nov 1651)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 259.) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 7 Aug 1625.  He was baptized on 7 Aug 1625 at Wye, Kent, England.  He died before 5 Nov 1651.


 
ii.
Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)" (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 3 Dec 1626 at England.  She was baptized on 3 Dec 1626 at Wye, Kent, England.  She married James Torrey (4838)XE "Torrey:James  (4838) (1617-1665)" on 2 Nov 1643 at Weymouth, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 747.).  She married John Phillips (1339)XE "Phillips:John  (1339) (1602-1692)" on 3 Apr 1677 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 578.).  She died.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
iii.
William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)" (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 9 Aug 1629.  He was baptized on 9 Aug 1629 at Wye, Kent, England.  He married Abigail Hewes (4839)XE "Hewes:Abigail  (4839)" circa 1651 at Scituate, Mass., USA.  He died circa 1657.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 359.
iv.
Jane (1717).XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)"

 
v.
Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)" (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 3 Nov 1633.  He was baptized on 3 Nov 1633 at Wye, Kent, England.  He died on 6 Nov 1633 at Wye, Kent, England.

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

727.  Jane10 Young (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1596 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married William Hatche (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)" on 9 Jul 1624 at Canterbury, Kent, England. Canterbury Marriage Licenses:

1624 William Hatch of Ashford, woolen draper, bachelor, about 25, and Jane Young of Thannington, maiden, about 27, whose friendas are dead, at Thannington, 9 July.

Bondsmen: Edward Young of Thannington, husbandman, and William Page of Canteerbury, blacksmith. (From original license in Diocesan Registry, Canterbury, partially printed in Cowper's Canterbury Marriage Licenses, Series 2 Column 471 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 353.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Thomas King Elder (1754)XE "King:Thomas Elder (1754) (1604-1691)"

XE "King:Thomas Elder  (1754) (1604-1691)" on 31 Mar 1653 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 440.).  She died on 8 Oct 1653 at Scituate, Mass., USA (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 1THW-2C.  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

728.  Thomas10 Gibbs (2400)XE "Gibbs:Thomas  (2400) (-before 27 Mar 1693)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) died before 27 Mar 1693.

     (an unknown value) (His name first appears upon the "List of those able to Beare Arms in the Colony of New Plymouth in 1643," among men of Sandwich between the ages of 16 and 60. In the same year he took the Oath of Fidelity. We can find no record, even of the given name, of his wife but we are inclined to believe that she was the mother of all his children and that their marriage took place about 1642. It is possible, however, that his oldest sons were by a previous marriage.

Thomas Gibbs srved on the grand jury 18 May 1659, and he was one of the "musqueteres" to whom shot was supplied as a member of the military company 25 June 1660. He again was on the grand jury 5 June 1667, and he was surveyor of highways for Sandwich 1 June 1669. He was chosen town constable 21 March 1673/4, and 1 June 1675 was again surveyor of highways. His name appears on a list of freemen entitled to the priviledges of the town 23 April 1675.

Estate
"An Invintory of ye Estate of Thomas Gibbs Late of Sandwich deceased" was taken 27 March, 1692/3, by Thomas Tupper and Jacob Burge, the latter signing by a mark. The only real estate mentioned was "Land both upland and meddow" £30. "John Gibbs made oath" to the inventory, at Barnstable, 14 April, 1693, before Barnabas Lothrop, Esq., Judge of the Prerogative Court, and it was recorded 15 April, 1693, by Joseph Lothrop, Register.

[p. 76] On 14 April, 1693, Barnabas Lothrop, Esq., of Barnstable, Judge of Probate, appointed as administrator "John Gibbs of Sandwich .... Eldest Son of Thomas Gibbs Late of Sandwich aforesd deceased .... And at ye same time by vertue of an agreement under the hands of John Gibbs Thomas Gibbs and Samuel Gibbs all Sons of sd deceased ye estate of sd deceased was settled and the Agreement is as followeth"

"wee John Gibbs and Thomas Gibbs and Samuel Gibbs All of Sandwich .... yeomen have made a divission of ye Estate Left by our Deare ffather Thomas Gibbs deceased: and to ye end that our mother may be Comfortably maintained ye time of her Life wee have to that end ordered all ye moveables to be Improved for her Comfort and if God Lengthen her dayes so Long as to spend the same wee Joyntly Agree to mainetaine her out of our owne estates and also that percel of Land that was given In up on ye Invintory Lately exhibeted to ye Court wee joyntly Agree that said Land Shall according to our ffathers desire be and Remaine to be to ye only proper use and behoof of ye said John Gibbs .... And that Thomas Gibbs and Samuel Gibbs above Named do by these presents quitt Claime to any part or parcel of ye before mentioned Land And desire that sd Land may be setled up on him ye said John Gibbs for his owne proper Inheritance And because wee All desire peace and union amongst us wee have so don And do all Intreate that what we have don may be accepted"

The agreement was dated 11 April, 1693, and signed by John Gibbs, Thomas Gibbs and Samuel Gibbs. The witnesses were Mathias Ellis and Thomas Tupper. It was approved by the court, and was recorded 15 April, 1693, by Joseph Lothrop, Register).

     Children of Thomas10 Gibbs (2400)XE "Gibbs:Thomas  (2400) (-before 27 Mar 1693)" all born Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W include:


 364.
i.
John9 (2385).XE "Gibbs:John  (2385) (12 Sep 1644-30 Apr 1725)"

 
ii.
Thomas (2401)XE "Gibbs:Thomas  (2401) (23 Mar 1646-7 Jan 1732)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) was born on 23 Mar 1646. the sonn of Thomas Gibbs was borne the 23th of march 1636 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 133.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 132.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, pages 55 & 56.).  He married Alice Warren (2409)XE "Warren:Alice  (2409) (2 Aug 1656-after 4 Mar 1692)" on 23 Dec 1674 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 58.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 128.).  He died on 7 Jan 1732 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 85 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 136.).


 
iii.
Samuel (2402)XE "Gibbs:Samuel  (2402) (23 Jun 1649-19 Nov 1732)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56 & 60.) was born on 23 Jun 1649. sonn of Thomas Gibbs... 23th of June 1639 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 133.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, pages 55 & 56.).  He married Patience Butler (2408)XE "Butler:Patience  (2408) (28 Sep 1648-)" on 5 Mar 1676 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 60.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 128.).  He died on 19 Nov 1732 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 83.


 
iv.
Sarah (2403)XE "Gibbs:Sarah  (2403) (11 Apr 1652-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) was born on 11 Apr 1652 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 133.).  She married Ebenezer Nye (2407)XE "Nye:Ebenezer  (2407)" on 17 Dec 1675 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 128.).  She died.


 
v.
Job (2404)XE "Gibbs:Job  (2404) (15 Apr 1655-26 Mar 1676)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) was born on 15 Apr 1655 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 130.).  He died on 26 Mar 1676 at age 20 (killed in battle) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.).


 
vi.
Bethia (2405)XE "Gibbs:Bethia  (2405) (15 Apr 1655-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) was born on 15 Apr 1655 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 130.).  She died.


 
vii.
Mary (2406)XE "Gibbs:Mary  (2406) (12 Aug 1657-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 123, page 56.) was born on 12 Aug 1657 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 131.).  She died.

730.  Michael10 Blackwell (2395)XE "Blackwell:Michael  (2395) (circa 1620-6 Jan 1710)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 191.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 183.) was born circa 1620 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 180.).  He died on 6 Jan 1710 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 136.).

     Children of Michael10 Blackwell (2395)XE "Blackwell:Michael  (2395) (circa 1620-6 Jan 1710)" include:


 
i.
John9 (2398)XE "Blackwell:John  (2398) (circa 1646-28 May 1673)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 191.) was born circa 1646 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 183.).  He died on 28 May 1673 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 183.).


 
ii.
Michael (2396)XE "Blackwell:Michael  (2396) (1 Jun 1648-28 May 1673)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 191.) was born on 1 Jun 1648 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol.  117, page 183.) (George Ernest Bowman, The Mayflower Descendant, Vol. 15, page 28.).  He died on 28 May 1673 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 24. Died the twenti Eight Dam of may . In . 1673 . And . was Buried the Last Day of the Same mounth (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 183.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 128.).


 365.
iii.
Jane (2386).XE "Blackwell:Jane  (2386) (circa 1650-after 2 Apr 1711)"

 
iv.
Joshua (2397)XE "Blackwell:Joshua  (2397) (circa 1653-6 Dec 1737)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 191.) was born circa 1653 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 186.).  He married Mercy (--?--) (4386)XE "(--?--):Mercy  (4386)" circa 1681 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 186.).  He died on 6 Dec 1737 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 117, page 186.).

732.  John10 Smith Rev. (1635)XE "Smith:John Rev. (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)"

XE "Smith:John Rev.  (1635) (11 Mar 1614-22 Oct)" (Thomas, #704) (see #352).

733.  Susanna10 Hinckley (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)" (Samuel, #706) (see #353).

734.  Stephen10 Skiffe (2363)XE "Skiffe:Stephen  (2363) (14 Apr 1641-8 Jun 1710)" (James, #1468) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol III, page 433.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.) was born on 14 Apr 1641 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W.  He married Lydia Snow (2364)XE "Snow:Lydia  (2364) (circa 1640-17 Mar 1711)" circa 1665 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 677.).  He died on 8 Jun 1710 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W, at age 69 (The will of Stephen Skeffe of Sanwich dated 7 May 1701, codicil dated 20 Aug. 1708, proved 28 June 1710, names wife Lydia; granddau. Keziah; son Stephen; daughters Abigail Smith, Deborah Presbury, Mary Chipman and Lydia Blackwell. The codicil says granddau. Keziah was giver her things upon marriage. His inventory says he d. 8 June 1710) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 136.).

     (an unknown value) (Res. Sandwich, Mass., gentleman. He was Justice of Peace and Rep. to General Court 1676 and after).

     Children of Stephen10 Skiffe (2363)XE "Skiffe:Stephen  (2363) (14 Apr 1641-8 Jun 1710)" and Lydia Snow (2364)XE "Snow:Lydia  (2364) (circa 1640-17 Mar 1711)" (see #735) were as follows:
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i.
Abigail9 (2316).XE "Skiff:Abigail  (2316) (2 May 1666-7 Jun 1718)"

 
ii.
Deborah (2360)XE "Skiffe:Deborah  (2360) (14 Jul 1668-11 Mar 1743)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 332.) was born on 14 Jul 1668 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 135.).  She married Stephen Presbury (2361)XE "Presbury:Stephen  (2361) (-1730)" circa 1693 at Edgartown, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 602.).  She died on 11 Mar 1743 at age 74.


 
iii.
Mary (Mercy) (2362)XE "Skiffe:Mary (Mercy)  (2362) (13 Nov 1671-)" was born on 13 Nov 1671 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 135.).  She married John Chipman (948)XE "Chipman:John  (948) (3 Mar 1670-4 Jan 1756)" circa 1690 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 151.).  She died.


 
iv.
Lydia (2365)XE "Skiffe:Lydia  (2365) (circa 1675-)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 332.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 433.) was born circa 1675 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.).  She married John Blackwell (2367)XE "Blackwell:John  (2367) (1675-)" circa 1700 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 75.).  She died.


 
v.
Stephen (2366)XE "Skiffe:Stephen  (2366) (4 Feb 1685-)" was born on 4 Feb 1685 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 136.).  He married Sarah Lothrop (2368)XE "Lothrop:Sarah  (2368)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 433.).  He married Thankful Gorham (2369)XE "Gorham:Thankful  (2369)" on 27 Jul 1749.  He died.

735.  Lydia10 Snow (2364)XE "Snow:Lydia  (2364) (circa 1640-17 Mar 1711)" (Anthony, #1470) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.) was born circa 1640 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  She married Stephen Skiffe (2363)XE "Skiffe:Stephen  (2363) (14 Apr 1641-8 Jun 1710)" circa 1665 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 677.).  She died on 17 Mar 1711 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. Grave stone gives year of death 1713 ae 74 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).

736.  Tomes10 Holsaert (3881)XE "Holsaert:Tomes  (3881) (circa 1620-Dec 1691)" was born circa 1620 at Flanders, Holland.  He died in Dec 1691 at Flatlands, Kings Co., New York, USA.

     (an unknown value) (The presumed father of Johannes and Gerrit. The presumption is based on Johanna Haven Holsart's second husband, Dirick Stoffelson's support of him in his later years. There is also the assumption that he arrived in New York City earlier, with his grandson Johannes. We should stree that all of this is speculation, and not proven, based on two items - one, that a Johannes Holsaert (his possible grandson) witnessed a deed in New York in 1679, six years before his father came over; and, two, that Tomes was listed as an "old member" of the church.

17 Apr 1691 paid to Jan Brownwers for expenses of Tomas Holshert an old member - 2 guilders.

25 Dec 1691 paid for rum and beer at the funeral of Tomas Holsert - 24 guilders.

Received money from poor fund as an 'ancient' member of Flatlands Church. Died "on church". 5 Oct 1691 Dirick Stoffelson paid 60 guilders as alms for Tomas).

     Children of Tomes10 Holsaert (3881)XE "Holsaert:Tomes  (3881) (circa 1620-Dec 1691)" both born Flanders, Holland include:


 
i.
Gerrit9 (3882)XE "Holsaert:Gerrit  (3882)" (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.) married Susanna Thomas (3883)XE "Thomas:Susanna  (3883) (-circa 1708)" on 10 Dec 1681 at New York, New York, USA (Cornelius HOLSAERT - Sarah MASH, family group sheet.).  He died.
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ii.
Johannes (3872).XE "Holsaert:Johannes  (3872) (circa 1640-10 Aug 1687)"
740.  Pieter Cornelisz10 Luyster (3869)XE "Luyster:Pieter Cornelisz  (3869) (-1695)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 83.) married Jannetie Snediker (3887)XE "Snediker:Jannetie  (3887) (-circa 1713)" before 1656 (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 83.).  He died in 1695 at Newtown, New York, USA (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Part 1, page 83.).

     (an unknown value) (According to Riker (Annals of Newtown 358 (1852, 1982 reprint), Pieter, the first of the family in America, was descended from a very reputable Dutch family, long resident in Holland and Rhineland; some had been distinguished citizens of Cologne. Riker shows the coat of arms they bore.

Pieter and his wife came to America in 1656. He was a carpenter. Soon after arrival he acquired property in Newtown and erected a grist mill at Fisher's Point. (Newtown included several islands in Long Island Sound --Rikers, Luyster, Berniers, Yonkers, and the two Brothers, plus a portion of the northwest section of Long Island.) However, for some time Pieter lived in Kings County and was connected with the Flatlands church. Later he bought from the Dutch church the property called the Poor's Farm (or Poor Bowery) in Newton, which embraced all the farms from Fish's Point to A. R. Luysters. See the map taken from Riker's book. A portion of La Guardia Airport is on part of this land. This purchase was confirmed 15 July 1668. The property was sold "by publique outcrye" in New York City to Capt. Thomas Delavall, 11 June 1670. Pieter moved to Newtown, and died there in 1695. His widow survived until about 1713. Riker says they had several daughters and three sons, but gives information only about the sons).

     Children of Pieter Cornelisz10 Luyster (3869)XE "Luyster:Pieter Cornelisz  (3869) (-1695)" include:
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i.
Matthias (Tys) Pietersen9 (3867).XE "Luyster:Matthias (Tys) Pietersen  (3867) (before 1656-)"
742.  Hendrick10 Kip (3870)XE "Kip:Hendrick  (3870) (before 14 Aug 1633-before 15 Mar 1671)" (Hendrick, #1484) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 92.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 19.) was born before 14 Aug 1633 at Holland.  He was baptized on 14 Aug 1633 at Old Church, Amsterdam, Holland. Sunday August 14th. (1633) have received the Holy token of covenant these children:

-     -     -     -     -     -     Heindrick Hendrixsz - tailor - Tryn Lubbers - Giertjen Jans and Aeltgen Vogels brought Heindrik. (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  He married Anne de Sille (3871)XE "de Sille:Anne  (3871) (6 Nov 1640-)" on 29 Feb 1660 at New Netherland, USA (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 93.).  He died before 15 Mar 1671 at Flatbush, Flatbush Kings, New York, New York, USA (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 36.).

     (an unknown value) (Hendrick also became a great burgher 17 April 1657. When the Dutch took over the Swedish settlement at New Amstel (now New Castle, Delaware), Hendrick moved there and became one of the council. A letter from Amsterdam 22 April 1659 refers to getting a brewer's kettle for him. He was Schapen at New Amstel in 1659. Records refer to him as one of the witnesses to the "traitorous conduct" toward Stuyvesant by D'Hinoyossa who was Director there. An island in the Delaware near Newcastle formerly was called Kipps Island.

According to Kip, Hendrick purchased a house in New Amsterdam, east of Broadway and north of Exchange Place, on 25 October 1656. Purple says a deed conveying a house and lot in New Amsterdam fromAugustine Heerman, 17 September 1662, described him as "Mr. Hendrick Hendricksen Kip, the youngest, residing on the South (Delaware) River in New Netherland." Hendrick settled in Midwort (Flatbush) before 3 April 1665, when he became Overseer of the Town. He was Overseer, 1666-1667, Churchmaster 1667 - 1670, Inspector 2 February 1670. As Churchmaster he was plaintiff in a suit filed 2 December 1670. Some records refer to him as "Captain". Flatbush records (Lib. A fol. 17) under date of 15 March 1770/71, refer to "transports" of lots on behalf of Captain Hendrick Kip's widow and heirs. The last record of his wife is a deed dated 20 May 1711).

     Children of Hendrick10 Kip (3870)XE "Kip:Hendrick  (3870) (before 14 Aug 1633-before 15 Mar 1671)" and Anne de Sille (3871)XE "de Sille:Anne  (3871) (6 Nov 1640-)" (see #743) were as follows:


 
i.
Petrus9 (3910)XE "Kip:Petrus  (3910)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 93.) married Immetie Van Dyck (3911)XE "Van Dyck:Immetie  (3911) (before 11 Jan 1675-)" on 24 Apr 1702 at New York, New York, USA (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 93.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (They had ten children baptized in the Dutch Church in New York).


 
ii.
Hendrik (3908)XE "Kip:Hendrik  (3908) (-before 16 Apr 1734)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 92.) died before 16 Apr 1734.

     (an unknown value) (His birthday is unknown. He was described in a deed dated 20 October 1672 as Hendrick Hendricksen Kip of Long Island. An indenture in May, 1699, describes his purchase of sixty acres in "Bedford's New Lotts", and refers to him as "of Flatbush". On 20 May 1711 he bought a house and garden spot in Flatbush from Anna de Browne and Nicasius Kip (probably his mother and brother). He was Collector in Flatbush, 1711, 1712, 1714, 1716 - 1720; and Constable in 1713 and 1714. He sold the Flatbush property, and probably moved to Monmouth County, New Jersey. His will was probated there 16 April 1734. It states that he lived in Middleton Township, owned a plantation in Freehold, and had a wife Williamsee. No children are mentioned. Purple confused this son with his father, and refers to his sponsorship with Anna, at the baptism of a son of Petrus Kip in New York, 21 March 1703).
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iii.
Cornelia (3868).XE "Kip:Cornelia  (3868) (before 12 Jun 1661-)"

 
iv.
Catharina (3912)XE "Kip:Catharina  (3912) (before 9 Nov 1664-)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors.) was born before 9 Nov 1664.  She was baptized on 9 Nov 1664 at Dutch Church, New York, New York, USA (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 93.).  She married Hendrick Stryker (3913)XE "Stryker:Hendrick  (3913)" on 16 Feb 1687 (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (She was received into the Flatbush Church on 30 March 1682).


 
v.
Nicasius (3909)XE "Kip:Nicasius  (3909) (circa 1666-circa 1712)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 93.) was born circa 1666.  He died circa 1712.

     (an unknown value) (He was aprrenticed to Jan La Montangie, master cooper, in articles dated 29 January 1678).

743.  Anne10 de Sille (3871)XE "de Sille:Anne  (3871) (6 Nov 1640-)" (Nicasius, #1486) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.)XE "Kip:Anne  (3871) (6 Nov 1640-)" was born on 6 Nov 1640 at Maestricht, Holland (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 97.).  She married Francois de Bruynne (4089)XE "Bruynne:Francois de  (4089)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She married Hendrick Kip (3870)XE "Kip:Hendrick  (3870) (before 14 Aug 1633-before 15 Mar 1671)" on 29 Feb 1660 at New Netherland, USA (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 93.).  She died.

800.  John10 Lowell (838)XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)" (Percival, #1600) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Pag. 293.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 7.) was born on 11 Oct 1604 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 7.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.).  He married Mary unknown (844)XE "unknown:Mary  (844) (-after 28 Nov 1639)" circa 1625 at England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.).  He married Elizabeth Goodale (849)XE "Goodale:Elizabeth  (849) (-23 Apr 1651)" circa 1641 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.).  He died on 10 Jul 1647 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 42. Will of John Lowle

Recorded in Essex Co., Mass., Probate Records, Office of the Clerk of the Court, 25 - 117. 

-1647-

The last will & testament of John Lowele late of Newbury made this nine & twentieth of the forth month 1647.

That I John Lowle of Newbury being in pfect understanding Knowing my

frailety doe declare this to be my last will & testament Stedfastly believing that when I goe hence I shall rest in Glory through my Saviour the Lord Jesus Christ.

As for the estate the Lord hath given me heare I thus dispose of it.

I give vnto my Wife Elizabeth Lowle one halfe of my Estate, whether it consists in goods within or without, land, houses, Cattell, household stuffe, meddows land broken or unbroken or what else, also my said wife to choose Twenty pounds out of the residewe of that Estate wch came by her mothers formerly or latter.

The rest of my Estate to be divided Equally betweene my Sonn John Lowle & Mary Lowle, Peter Lowle James Lowle Joseph Lowle Beniamine Lowle & Elizabeth Lowle. Also I doe humbly Intreate these five my christian deare loving frineds & brethren, my brother William Geerish Richard Lowele John Sanders Richard Knights & Nicholas Noice to be my Executors & Administrators of this my last will & testament as also to be the overseers of my wife and children in a friendly, Christian way towards them & that you five should take advice of our Elders in case any one of my first Wifes children dye before they have their portion in their hands that it be equally devided among the rest that are living the same I say concern'g my second wife's children Beniamine & Elizabeth.

These portions for my children to be paid them when the Court Judge them wise and able to manage an Estate as they shall receive information from Sixe of the Wise, Godly men of the Towne with the Elders. Also I will that before the goods be divided that my daughter Elizabeth shall take tenn pounds worth of her owne Mother's Clothes for her use, also yt my daughter Mary take twenty pounds worth of her own mother's clothes. Also if my Wife Marry I will that my daughter Mary then shall Live with my Sister Johan Geerish if my Sister please if my daughter Mary Chuse to Live with my Sister before my Wife and that my two daughters shall have their thirty pounds worth of cloathes taken out before the estate be divided. Dated as above written In witness wheare unto I have put my hand the day and yeare above written.

By mee John Lowle.

Witness

Edmund Grenleife, William Geerish, Robert Long

Testified the 27th of the 8th mo. 1647 by Edmund Greenleife and William Geerish before the Court. Increase Noyes, Sec.

John Lowle's inv. June 30, 1647 amt £ 345, 0, 0

Real Estate consisted of dwelling house & 4 acres of land. Another house & 2 acres of land. A Barne with half an acre. Six acres of ground, 9 acres land, eighteen acres of land, 6 acres of Meadow, thirteen acres of marsh & 4 acres of Meadow.

 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 7.).  John (838)XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)" had his will probated on 27 Aug 1647 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA. Will dated 9 (4), prob. 27 (8) 1647, inv. taken 30 (4) 1647. Beq. to wife Elizabeth one half of his est. and 20 li. out of what came from her mother; to his first wife's children, John, Mary, Peter, James and Joseph; to his second wife's children, Benjamin and Elizabeth; daus. Elizabeth and Mary to have of their own mother's clothes. Sister Johan Gerrish and bro. William G.; other persons. 

The Court decided that Elizabeth should have clothes which had belonged to her gr. mo. Elizabeth Goodale, in possession of her mother now living; Mary, ae. about 17 years, was permitted 15 Oct. 1650, to receive her portion and go to her friends in Eng. Account rendered in Es. prob. (9) 1684. Elizabeth m. 1 Jan. 1667, Philip Nelson. (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Pag. 294.).

     (an unknown value) (Came to New England 1639, with his father, bringing wife and four children. He was a man of good education for those early days; was a man of prominence and influence in the community.

Feb. 2, 1640, he was made freeman; was constable Dec. 10, 1641; Deputy in the General Court March 7, 1644; was appointed May 14, 1645, as one of three Commissioners of this town to settle small disputes, involving less than 20 shillings, and reappointed, holding the positin until his d.; he held the office of town clerk at his d.

While yet in England he apprenticed himself in 1619, when 24 years of age, to Richard Baugh of Bristol, England, who was a "Glover." 

He was admitted as a citizen of Bristol, England in 1629.

Sept. 7, 1637, he had Richard Dole apprenticed to him for seven years.

Dole came with the Lowells to America and became a merchant of walth and prominence in Newbury, where he settled.

March 17, 1742, he with his father, was a freeholder).  John (838)XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)", Percival (839)XE "Lowell:Percival  (839) (1571-8 Jan 1664)" and Richard (843)XE "Lowell:Richard  (843) (3 Jan 1601/2-5 Aug 1682)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA in 1639 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlix.).

     Children of John10 Lowell (838)XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)" and Elizabeth Goodale (849)XE "Goodale:Elizabeth  (849) (-23 Apr 1651)" (see #801) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:
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i.
Benjamin9 (837).XE "Lowell:Benjamin  (837) (12 Sep 1642-22 Oct 1714)"

 
ii.
Thomas (851)XE "Lowell:Thomas  (851) (4 Jun 1644-before 29 Jun 1647)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 293.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 14.) was born on 4 Jun 1644.  He died before 29 Jun 1647.

     (an unknown value) (Savage says he "probably d.y." He certainly was not mentioned with the other children in his father's will, dated June 29, 1647, nor in that of his mother dated Jan. 10, 1650).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (852)XE "Lowell:Elizabeth  (852) (16 Feb 1646-14 Dec 1731)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, page 126.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 293.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 14.) was born on 16 Feb 1646 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 291.).  She married Phillip Nelson Capt. (2017)XE "Nelson:Phillip Capt. (2017) (1636-19 Aug 1691)"

XE "Nelson:Phillip Capt.  (2017) (1636-19 Aug 1691)" on 1 Jan 1667 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 14.).  She died on 14 Dec 1731 at age 85.

801.  Elizabeth10 Goodale (849)XE "Goodale:Elizabeth  (849) (-23 Apr 1651)" (John, #1602) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 7.) was born at Yarmouth, England.  She married John Lowell (838)XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)" circa 1641 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 477.).  She died on 23 Apr 1651 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA. Will of Elizabeth Lowle

-1650-

Recorded in Office of Clerk, Probate Recds. of Essex Co., Mass., with other matter in a long lawsuit brought by Benjamin Lowell, when he became of age, concerning the terms of his parent's will in which papers various relationships are mentioned, 4-344 in 1681.

"The will of Elizabeth Lowell late wife to John Lowell deceased made the 17th first mo. 1650.

that I Elizabeth Lowle considering my fraile condition doe commit my soule unto the Lord Jesus my Redeemer who hath bought me with his blood not doubting my resurrection together with all saints.

I do therefore while I enjoy my senses dispose of that estate God hath lent me as followeth:

I give to my Sister Tappan one Sute of my Waring linning as one forward cloth one-one hadkerchiefe. I give to my three sons in law John Lowle James & Joseph ten shillings apiece.

I give to my son Benjamin one silver cup and three silver spoons with one-third part of the household stuffe. I give to my daughter Elizabeth all the remainder of my household stuffe childbed linning & else waring apparell 1 silver cann 1 silver tipped Jugg 3 silver spoons 1 gold ring 1 silver bodkin 2 desk and the rest of my estate equally divided between my sonn Benjamin and my daughter Elizabeth after my debts be satisfied with all funerall charges & else.

I will that my brother Thomas Millerd Keep my sonn Benjamin & his estate until he goe forth to be an Apprentice and then be placed forth as my overseers thing fitt.

I desire my four brethren to be my overseers namely Thomas Millerd Richard Lowle Peter Tappan & William Gerrish desiring them to see my daughter Elizabeth be brought up to her needle and what else they Judge meete & dispose of her as I desire to Such as are Godly & meete to instruct my child in the feare of God.

In witness hereof I have put to my hand tenth first month 1650.

I will that if my Sonn and daughter dye ere they come to age that then their portions be divided between my husband's children John Lowle & James & Ben Mary & Peter Lowell

ELIZABETH LOWLE"

"Witness

George Emery

Peeter Tappan

William Gerrish

This will as attested upon oath by William Gerrish in Court held at Ipswich the 30 (7) 1651 per me

Robert Lord, Cleric."

Inventory taken 6 mo. 1651

Amt £ 143-7-11.  All personal estate.

  Elizabeth (849)XE "Goodale:Elizabeth  (849) (-23 Apr 1651)" had her will probated on 28 Aug 1651. Elizabeth's will, made 17 (1) 1650, was proved 28 (8) 1651. She beq. to her sister Tappine; to her sons-in-law John, James and Joseph Lowle; to son Benjamin and dau. Elizabeth. Bro. Thomas Millard to keep Benjamin till he go forth to be an apprentice. Bros. T. M., Richard L., Abraham T. and Wm. Gerrish overseers to see Elizabeth brought up to her needle and suitably instructed. (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 294.).

802.  Edward10 Woodman (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 838.) was born before 1606 at Malford, England.  He married Joanna unknown (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)" before 1628 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 838.).  He died after 1688.

     (an unknown value) (Mercer, merchant, of Malford, Eng., came in the James April 5, 1635; settled at Newbury; frm. May 25, 1636. Licensed to sell wine and strong water 12 March, 1637. App. to aid the magistrates in execution of court decrees 6 (7) 1638. Deputy, town officer; active in church agitation. Either he or son Edward arranged with John Hull of Newbury for payment of an annuity. [Es. Files.] He was a walthy and prominent man; was Lieutenant in a company sent against the Pequods in April, 1637. He and his brother Archelaus came over together and settled at Newbury, Mass. Archelaus d. without issue. Edward, was living 1687, but date of d. not known).  Edward (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)", Joanna (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)", Archelaus (865)XE "Woodman:Archelaus  (865) (1618-7 Oct 1702)", Edward (866)XE "Woodman:Edward  (866) (1628-)", John (867)XE "Woodman:John  (867) (before 5 Apr 1635-)", Anthony (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" and Edmund (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA on 5 Apr 1635 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.).

     Children of Edward10 Woodman (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)" and Joanna unknown (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)" (see #803) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary9 (2018)XE "Woodman:Mary  (2018)" died.


 
ii.
Edward (866)XE "Woodman:Edward  (866) (1628-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) was born in 1628 at England.  He died.

     Edward (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)", Joanna (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)", Archelaus (865)XE "Woodman:Archelaus  (865) (1618-7 Oct 1702)", Edward (866)XE "Woodman:Edward  (866) (1628-)", John (867)XE "Woodman:John  (867) (before 5 Apr 1635-)", Anthony (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" and Edmund (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA on 5 Apr 1635 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.).


 
iii.
John (867)XE "Woodman:John  (867) (before 5 Apr 1635-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) was born before 5 Apr 1635 at England.  He died.

     Edward (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)", Joanna (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)", Archelaus (865)XE "Woodman:Archelaus  (865) (1618-7 Oct 1702)", Edward (866)XE "Woodman:Edward  (866) (1628-)", John (867)XE "Woodman:John  (867) (before 5 Apr 1635-)", Anthony (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" and Edmund (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA on 5 Apr 1635 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.).


 
iv.
Joshua (868)XE "Woodman:Joshua  (868) (1636-)" was born in 1636 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA. The first Eng. male ch. of the town.  He died.


 
v.
Sarah (869)XE "Woodman:Sarah  (869) (12 Jan 1642-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) was born on 12 Jan 1642 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  She died.


 
vi.
Jonathan (870)XE "Woodman:Jonathan  (870) (5 Nov 1643-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) was born on 5 Nov 1643 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  He died.
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vii.
Ruth (853).XE "Woodman:Ruth  (853) (28 Mar 1646-)"
803.  Joanna10 unknown (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)" married Edward Woodman (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)" before 1628 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 838.).

     Edward (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)", Joanna (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)", Archelaus (865)XE "Woodman:Archelaus  (865) (1618-7 Oct 1702)", Edward (866)XE "Woodman:Edward  (866) (1628-)", John (867)XE "Woodman:John  (867) (before 5 Apr 1635-)", Anthony (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" and Edmund (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA on 5 Apr 1635 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.).

808.  Anthony10 Morse (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" (Unknown, #1280) (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 1 to 3.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 320.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 237.) (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses.) was born on 9 May 1606 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 520.).  He married Mary unknown (1288)XE "unknown:Mary  (1288)" before 1629 (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.).  He married Ann Cox (1287)XE "Cox:Ann  (1287) (-9 Mar 1680)" on 2 May 1629 at St. Mary's, Marlborough, Wiltshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 520.).  He died on 12 Oct 1686 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 80. His will is on file at Salem, Essex County, Mass., and is as follows:

"The last Will and Testament of Anthony Morse of Newbury, Mass. I Anthony Morse of Newbury in the name of god amen i being sensible of my own frality and mortality being of parfit memory due make this as my last Will and testament cominding my sole to god that gaue it and my body to the dust in hope of joyful rasurixtion and as for my wourly goods I dispose of as foloieth, 

"I gue and bequeth to my son Joshua Morse making him my lawful eaire all my housing and lands both upland and meddow alweais provided that if the toen of Newbury dou divide any part of the comon lands that then the on half part of that land which belongeth to me which cometh by uartu of my freehould shall be the lawful inheritance of my son benieman morse all so I geue to my son Joshua morse all my cattell an horsis and sheep swuine and all my toules for the shumaking trade as allso my carte wheles dung pot plow harrow youkes chains houes forkes shovel spad grin stone yt as allso on father bed which he lieth on with a boulster and pillo and a pair of blinkets and courlitt and tou pair of shetes a bed sted and mat a pot and a brass cetell the best of tou cettles and a belmetell scillet and tou platars and a paringer and a drinking pot and tou spoons and the water pails and barils and tobes all these about named I geue to my son Joshua and his eaires of his own body begoten lawfully than then all aboue geuen to my son Joshua shall Return to the Rest of my children upon the peaymento on good peay to my sons widow besides what estates she att any time brought to her husband she the said widdo shall injoy the houl estate on half year before she shall surrender ----- also I geue to my son Robard Morse Eighteen pounds or his children to muy son Peter Morse or children 3 pounds, to my son Anthony Morse children I geue 3 pounds to my son Joseph Morses children I geue 12 pounds to my son Benieman Morse or children I geue 12 pounds to my dafter Thorlo or children 12 pounds to my dafter Stickney or children I geue 12 pounds to my dafter Newman children I geue 12 pounds, to my dafter Smith or children I gieu 12 pounds to my grand son Richard Thorlo I geue an sheep to my grandson Robard Homes I gieu fieu poundas allso I geue the Remainder of my housall which is not in partikelar geuen to my son Joshua in the former part of this my will to all my children equally to be devided between them and my grand children hous parents are dead, namely ;anthonys children, Josephs children hanahs children, allso I dou by this my last will allow and geue loberty to my son Joshua morse hou is my Eaire to make sail and dispose of that land by the pine swamp which I had of Benieman lacon of that pece of land by John Akisons hous if he see Resan so to do, allso I du by this will apoynt my son Joshua morse to be my sole executor to peay all debtes and legacies by this will geuen and to Receue all debtes allso I dou apoynt my louing and crisian frinds Cap danil Pears and Tristram Coffin and thomas noyes to be oversers of this my last Will Allso I dou apoynt my Exicutor to peay my son Robard and son peter within on yeare after my death on the other to be peaid within three years the plas of peayment to be newbury my will is that my son benieman shal baue the on half of all comon lands when devided as abojue said in witnes thereof I anthony morse have hearunto set my hand and seall this 28 Aprell, 1680.

                                        "ANTHONY MORSE" (seal)

        "Sinid selid and onid in the presense of us

James Coffin

Mary Brown

that whereas I anthony morse in this my will abou said have geuen on half of all comon lands if devided to my sonn benieman mors; my meaning iss that my sonn benieman shall haeu the on half of my proportion of lands when devided, but my sonn Joshua to haeu all my Rights in the lower comon this is my mind ;and will as witnes my seall  this 20 of aprell 1680

                        "ANTHONY MORSE" (seal)

"Witness to this part of my Will

James Coffin

Mary Brown

"Joshua Morse is allowed Exer to this will."

The inventory of his Estate, returned by his son Joshua, the sole executor on the 23rd of November, A.D., 1686, amounted to £348:6s:7d, and this must have been deemed a "goodly estate" for the times in which he lived.

This Will of Anthony Morse of Newbury, Mass., was written in a quaint and somewhat crabbed hand, and in all probability by the testator. The paper on which it was written was of inferior quality, and the Will is much worn, and in some portions, hardly legible.

In contradistinction from the usual custom the English usage of "primogeniture," wherein the eldest son was the "heir," and which custom in this country was followed to a considerable extent by giving the eldest son a "double portion," it appears that "Joshua Morse" (the youngest son) was the "sole executor," and that he was principal legatee.

Perhaps Robert Morse, who was, in all probability, the eldest son, had received something from his father previously, and also his brother Peter, both of whom were married, and had moved from New Entland before 1680, the date of the father's will (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 666.).

     (an unknown value) (He came from Marlborough, Wiltshire, England, and settled in Newbury in 1635. With his brother William, both registering as shoemakers, he sailed in the ship James from London, April 5, 1635. He built a house about half a mile south of the old cemetery, in what is called Newbury Old Town, on a slight eminence in a field which was later owned by Michael Little, and which is still called Morse's field; traces of his house are still visible a few rods from the road. 

He came in the James of London, William Cooper, Master, three hundred tons. She sailed from Southampton April 5 and arrived June 3 with passengers and cattle. Winthrop calls her master 'Mr. Graves' and says that he 'had come every year for these seven years'. (Journal, I, 152)

He was made freeman of the Colony of Massachusetts on the 25 May, 1636, and located at Newbury, Mass., and died there. He shipped from Southampton, and called of Marlborough, and probably lived there: but there is no evidence that he was born there).  Edward (863)XE "Woodman:Edward  (863) (before 1606-after 1688)", Joanna (864)XE "unknown:Joanna  (864)", Archelaus (865)XE "Woodman:Archelaus  (865) (1618-7 Oct 1702)", Edward (866)XE "Woodman:Edward  (866) (1628-)", John (867)XE "Woodman:John  (867) (before 5 Apr 1635-)", Anthony (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" and Edmund (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA on 5 Apr 1635 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.).

     Children of Anthony10 Morse (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" and Ann Cox (1287)XE "Cox:Ann  (1287) (-9 Mar 1680)" (see #809) were as follows:


 
i.
Anthony9 (1291)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1291) (-29 Jan 1722)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.) married Elizabeth Knight (2411)XE "Knight:Elizabeth  (2411) (-29 Jul 1667)" on 8 May 1660 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 342.).  He married Mary Barnard (2412)XE "Barnard:Mary  (2412) (1645-)" on 10 Nov 1669 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 342.).  He died on 29 Jan 1722 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 666.).


 
ii.
Peter (1290)XE "Morse:Peter  (1290)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.) died.

     (an unknown value) (He settled in New Jersey).


 
iii.
Robert (1289)XE "Morse:Robert  (1289) (1629-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.) (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, Page 41.) was born in 1629 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 521.).  He married Ann Lewis (2410)XE "Lewis:Ann  (2410) (-8 Mar 1680)" on 30 Oct 1654 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 343.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Resided at Boston, and was by occupation a "Taylor." Removed to Newbury, Mass., about 1655, and had land in Newbury in 1658, and perhaps earlier.

On the 19th of Jan., 1658, he, with wife Ann, sold to Amos Stickney of Newbury, "weaver," land in Newbury, Mass., as follows: Consideration, "£34 -all that house and three acres of land situate and lying and being in Newbury above sayd on the south of the trayneing greene, one acre whereon the house, garden and orchard is situate upon, is bounded with the land of Richard Brown on the South, the trayneing greene on the North, the land of Anthony Morse senr on the East, and the mill way on the West, the other two acres bounded with the yard of Capt. Gerrish on the South, Richard Browne's land on the East, the Common on the North and West."

Wit. Wm THOMAS, PEETER MORSE

          Ack. Mch. 25, 1662

).


 
iv.
Joseph (1284)XE "Morse:Joseph  (1284) (circa 1635-15 Jan 1678)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 11.) was born circa 1635.  He married Mary Woodhouse (1285)XE "Woodhouse:Mary  (1285) (14 Jan 1639-)" circa 1665 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 521.).  He died on 15 Jan 1678 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (small pox) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 667.).

     (an unknown value) (He was a blacksmith and a land owner in Newbury and Piscataqua. When his inventory at Piscataqua was taken by Richard Abbott and Thomas Barker, both of Piscataqua, at his decease, it showed that he owned a house there with the adjacent land and two blacksmith's shops; while a second inventory was given at Essex County, Mass., Court by his widow, Mrs. Mary Morse, September 30, 1679, which included a smith's shop and tools at Newbury

).


 404.
v.
Benjamin (1292).XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)"

XE "Morse:Benjamin Deacon  (1292) (28 Mar 1640-after 22 Nov 1707)"

 
vi.
Sarah (1293)XE "Morse:Sarah  (1293) (1 May 1641-11 Dec 1711)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.) was born on 1 May 1641 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 341.).  She married Amos Stickney (2413)XE "Stickney:Amos  (2413) (1635-29 Aug 1678)" on 24 Jun 1663 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 3.).  She married Stephen Acreman (2414)XE "Acreman:Stephen  (2414)" on 17 Dec 1684 (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.).  She died on 11 Dec 1711 at age 70.


 
vii.
Hannah (1294)XE "Morse:Hannah  (1294) (1642-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.) was born in 1642 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol.I, page 339.).  She married Francis Thorlo (2415)XE "Thorlo:Francis  (2415) (Nov 1630-26 Nov 1703)" on 5 Feb 1655 (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.).  She died.


 
viii.
Lydia (1295)XE "Morse:Lydia  (1295) (May 1643-19 May 1645)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 4.) was born in May 1643.  She died on 19 May 1645 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. 2, page 667.).


 
ix.
Lydia (1296)XE "Morse:Lydia  (1296) (7 Oct 1647-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 4.) was born on 7 Oct 1647 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 340.).  She died.


 
x.
Mary (1297)XE "Morse:Mary  (1297) (9 Apr 1649-14 Jun 1662)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 4.) was born on 9 Apr 1649 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 340.).  She died on 14 Jun 1662 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 13 (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 667.).


 
xi.
Esther (1298)XE "Morse:Esther  (1298) (3 May 1651-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 4.) was born on 3 May 1651 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 340.).  She married Robert Holmes (2416)XE "Holmes:Robert  (2416) (-18 Sep 1673)" on 26 Feb 1668 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 4.) (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 342.).  She died.


 
xii.
Joshua (1299)XE "Morse:Joshua  (1299) (24 Jul 1653-)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 4.) was born on 24 Jul 1653 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 340.).  He married Joanna Kimball (2709)XE "Kimball:Joanna  (2709)" (Reverend Abner Morse, Memorial of the Morses, Page 4.).  He died.

809.  Ann10 Cox (1287)XE "Cox:Ann  (1287) (-9 Mar 1680)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 3.) married Anthony Morse (1286)XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)" on 2 May 1629 at St. Mary's, Marlborough, Wiltshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 520.).  She died on 9 Mar 1680 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 667.).

810.  William10 Sawyer (2691)XE "Sawyer:William  (2691) (circa 1613-circa 1703)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 31.) (W. S. Appleton, Some descendants of William Sawyer of Newbury, Mass., (Boston: Press of David Clapp & Sons, 115 High Street. 1891), Page 4.) was born circa 1613.  He married Ruth Binford (2692)XE "Binford:Ruth  (2692)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  He died circa 1703.

     (an unknown value) (William Sawyer was born about 1613, as he called himself 65 when he took the oath of allegiance in 1678. There has been found no evidence to connect him with other settlers in New England of the name of Sawyer. He does not appear in any position of prominence or importance, except as one of the founders of the Baptist Church at Newbury in 1682. He had a wife Ruth, and died in 1702 or 1703, administration on his estate being granted 1 March, 1703; no settlement was made, and he seems to have left no property. He probably lived in or near what is now West Newbury, where some of his descendants may still be found.

Salem, MA, 1643, Wenham, MA, 1645, removed to Newbury. Ten are among graduates at Harvard, ten at Dart. and one at Yale.

Our English ancestors took their surnames from some distinguishing feature of the plece where they lived, or from their occupation; it was John Aplake (John by the Lake) or Will the Sawyer or James the Smith. Thus our surname originated because of the occupation of the "sawyer". There is some evidence to show that William Sawyer who came to America was of the same family as Wil Sawyer the popular peasent leader who in England joined with the radicals of Cromwell's day and demanded popular government.

William Sawyer was one of the 71 original settlers of old Newbury who, as the monument says, "between 1635 and 1650, founded its municipal, social and religious life." He came first to Salem where he received a grant of land in 1642, which tract is spoken of in the Salem records of 1659 as "Sawyer Playne". The only record I find furhter of William Sawyer at Salem, is that on October 5, 1642 he witnessed the will of Samuel Smith, who lived in that part now Wenham. There is a tradition that William was one of three brothers who came on the ship of Captain Parker which sailed from Lincolnshire in 1636. The tradition cannot be relied upon. Thomas Sawyer and Edward Sawyer received a house-lot each in the second division at Rowley. Thomas removed to Lancaster in 1647, and Edward removed to Maine in 1661. Each becoming the ancestor of a numerous family, but there is no evidence that they were brothers of William.

In 1644 we find William Sawyer coming to the Parker River (Newbury) settlement. Land alongside the river was taken and his tract was at "Newbury Upper Woods". (West Parish). The tract was later called Sawyer's Hill, and was on the road that went from the Plains to Curzon's hill, and is now a part of the Moses' estate. It took in that land which is on the hill before one descends to Curzon's Hill. In 1652 William Sawyer is mentioned as a "town-man entitled to buy privilege of commonage." He was elected fence-viewer April 2, 1666, and April 3, 1671; surveyor in 1676 and 77; titching man 1679, 80 and 1685 and 86. May 14, 1654 he signed the petition to the General Court on behalf of "our loving friend" -Lier Robert Pike of Salisbury, and joined in the petition to the General Court of May 21, 1663, against the fine imposed upon Dr. Greenland of Newbury who practiced without license.

He took the oath of allegiance in 1678, giving his age as 63, hence he was born 1613. His wife's name was Ruth, and he and his wife and son John joined the Baptist Church at Boston 1681, and in 1682 he and his son organized a church of that faith in West Newbury, but it soon died.

His land by grant was added to by purchase, and in 1688 is credited with 2 houses, 12 acres of plow-land, 12 acres of meadow, 1 horse, 4 oxen, 4 cows, 2 two-year olds, 9 sheep, 3 hogs. He was living in 1697 but died before 1703, at which time his son-in-law John Emery was appointed to settle his estate. His son Samuel, other children and the Emerys are buried in the Sawyer's Hill burying ground on the Moses estate, but as the oldest gravestone in that yard dates 1705, he was evidently buried elsewhere. The return of John Emery shows that William Sawyer had deeded his property away before his death. The homestead lot was deeded to his son Steven in 1693. The best account of the life of William Sawyer is found in Vol. 1, page 327 of "Descendants of Edw. Small" by A. W. Underhill. 

The tragedy of contagious disease which in 1659 took away his children Mary, Hannah and Francis, caused three others to be given the same name).

     Children of William10 Sawyer (2691)XE "Sawyer:William  (2691) (circa 1613-circa 1703)" and Ruth Binford (2692)XE "Binford:Ruth  (2692)" (see #811) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
John9 (2693)XE "Sawyer:John  (2693) (24 Aug 1645-18 Mar 1689)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 24 Aug 1645.  He married Sarah Poor (2694)XE "Poor:Sarah  (2694)" on 18 Feb 1676 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  He died on 18 Mar 1689 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 43.


 
ii.
Samuel (2695)XE "Sawyer:Samuel  (2695) (22 Nov 1646-11 Feb 1718)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 22 Nov 1646.  He married Mary Emery (2696)XE "Emery:Mary  (2696)" on 13 Mar 1671 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  He died on 11 Feb 1718 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 71.
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iii.
Ruth (2417).XE "Sawyer:Ruth  (2417) (16 Sep 1648-)"

 
iv.
Mary (2697)XE "Sawyer:Mary  (2697) (7 Feb 1650-24 Jun 1659)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 7 Feb 1650.  She died on 24 Jun 1659 at age 9.


 
v.
Sarah (2698)XE "Sawyer:Sarah  (2698) (20 Nov 1651-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 20 Nov 1651.  She married Joshua Browne (2699)XE "Browne:Joshua  (2699)" on 15 Jan 1669 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  She died.


 
vi.
Hannah (2700)XE "Sawyer:Hannah  (2700) (23 Feb 1654-25 Jan 1660)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 23 Feb 1654.  She died on 25 Jan 1660 at age 5.


 
vii.
William (2701)XE "Sawyer:William  (2701) (1 Feb 1656-7 Jun 1718)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 1 Feb 1656.  He married Sarah Littlefield (2702)XE "Littlefield:Sarah  (2702)" in 1677 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  He died on 7 Jun 1718 at age 62.


 
viii.
Frances (2703)XE "Sawyer:Frances  (2703) (24 Mar 1658-7 Feb 1660)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 24 Mar 1658.  He died on 7 Feb 1660 at age 1.


 
ix.
Mary (2704)XE "Sawyer:Mary  (2704) (29 Jul 1660-3 Nov 1699)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 29 Jul 1660.  She married John Emery (2705)XE "Emery:John  (2705) (-14 Jul 1730)" on 13 Jun 1683 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  She died on 3 Nov 1699 at age 39.


 
x.
Stephen (2706)XE "Sawyer:Stephen  (2706) (25 Apr 1663-8 Jun 1753)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 25 Apr 1663.  He married Ann Titcomb (2707)XE "Titcomb:Ann  (2707) (-1 Oct 1750)" on 10 Mar 1687 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  He died on 8 Jun 1753 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 90.


 
xi.
Hannah (2708)XE "Sawyer:Hannah  (2708) (11 Jan 1665-28 Aug 1683)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 11 Jan 1665.  She died on 28 Aug 1683 at age 18.


 
xii.
Frances (2724)XE "Sawyer:Frances  (2724) (3 Nov 1670-)" (W. S. Appleton, Some descendants of William Sawyer of Newbury, Mass., Page 5.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) was born on 3 Nov 1670.  He died.

811.  Ruth10 Binford (2692)XE "Binford:Ruth  (2692)" (J. Howard Morse and Miss Emily W. Leavitt, Morse Genealogy, comprising the descendants of Samuel, Anthony, William, and Joseph Morse and John Moss, Page 12.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.) married William Sawyer (2691)XE "Sawyer:William  (2691) (circa 1613-circa 1703)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, April, 1874.).  She died.

812.  Hugh10 March (2442)XE "March:Hugh  (2442) (circa 1618-12 Dec 1693)" (George, #1624) (Genealogy of March Family, Pages 34 to 69.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) was born circa 1618.  He married Judith Knight (2446)XE "Knight:Judith  (2446) (-14 Dec 1675)" before 1651 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Genealogy of March Family, Page 34.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 487.).  He married Dorcas Bowman (2447)XE "Bowman:Dorcas  (2447) (-22 Nov 1683)" on 29 May 1676 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  He married Sarah Cutting (2448)XE "Cutting:Sarah  (2448) (-25 Oct 1699)" on 3 Dec 1685 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  He died on 12 Dec 1693 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 655.).

     (an unknown value) (Came with Stephen Kent in the Confidence April 24, 1638. Settled at Newbury; propr., town officer, carpenter. Sold land with wife Judith 14 (1) 1651).  Hugh (2442)XE "March:Hugh  (2442) (circa 1618-12 Dec 1693)" immigrated to in 1638 at (Confidence) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.).

     Children of Hugh10 March (2442)XE "March:Hugh  (2442) (circa 1618-12 Dec 1693)" and Judith Knight (2446)XE "Knight:Judith  (2446) (-14 Dec 1675)" (see #813) were as follows:


 
i.
George9 (2449)XE "March:George  (2449) (14 Jan 1651-)" was born on 14 Jan 1651.  He married Mary Foulsom (2450)XE "Foulsom:Mary  (2450)" on 12 Jun 1672 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  He died.


 
ii.
Judith (2451)XE "March:Judith  (2451) (3 Jan 1653-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) (Genealogy of March Family, Page 35.) was born on 3 Jan 1653.  She married Thomas Tharley (2452)XE "Tharley:Thomas  (2452)" on 13 Apr 1670 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  She died.


 406.
iii.
Hugh (2441).XE "March:Hugh Capt. (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)"

XE "March:Hugh Capt.  (2441) (3 Nov 1656-27 Feb 1726)"

 
iv.
John (2453)XE "March:John  (2453) (10 Jun 1658-1712)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol II, page 151.) (Genealogy of March Family, Page 37.) was born on 10 Jun 1658 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  He married Jemima True (2454)XE "True:Jemima  (2454) (-24 May 1737)" on 1 Oct 1679 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 315.).  He died in 1712.


 
v.
James (2455)XE "March:James  (2455) (11 Jan 1663-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 151.) (Genealogy of March Family, Page 151.) was born on 11 Jan 1663 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. I, page 306.).  He married Mary Walker (2456)XE "Walker:Mary  (2456) (1669-        )" in 1689 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 487.).  He died.

813.  Judith10 Knight (2446)XE "Knight:Judith  (2446) (-14 Dec 1675)" (Genealogy of March Family, Page 34 & 35.) married Hugh March (2442)XE "March:Hugh  (2442) (circa 1618-12 Dec 1693)" before 1651 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Genealogy of March Family, Page 34.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 487.).  She died on 14 Dec 1675 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Vital Records of Newbury, Massachusetts, to the year 1849, Vol. II, page 655.).

814.  Caleb10 Moody (2458)XE "Moody:Caleb  (2458) (1637-25 Aug 1698)" (William, #1628) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 225.) was born in 1637 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  He married Sarah Pierce (2459)XE "Pierce:Sarah  (2459) (circa 1645-25 Aug 1665)" on 24 Aug 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 514.).  He married Judith Bradbury (2478)XE "Bradbury:Judith  (2478) (1638-circa 1700)" on 9 Nov 1665 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 514.).  He died on 25 Aug 1698.

     (an unknown value) (Freem. 1666, rep. 1667 and 8, and was a confessor in prison, under the tyranny of Andros, 1689).

     Children of Caleb10 Moody (2458)XE "Moody:Caleb  (2458) (1637-25 Aug 1698)" and Sarah Pierce (2459)XE "Pierce:Sarah  (2459) (circa 1645-25 Aug 1665)" (see #815) both born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Daniel9 (2475)XE "Moody:Daniel  (2475) (4 Apr 1662-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 225.) was born on 4 Apr 1662.  He married Elizabeth Somerby (2476)XE "Somerby:Elizabeth  (2476)" on 29 Mar 1683 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 514.).  He died.
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ii.
Sarah (2457).XE "Moody:Sarah  (2457) (23 Jul 1664-10 Sep 1741)"
815.  Sarah10 Pierce (2459)XE "Pierce:Sarah  (2459) (circa 1645-25 Aug 1665)" (Daniel, #1630) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 360.) was born circa 1645 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  She married Caleb Moody (2458)XE "Moody:Caleb  (2458) (1637-25 Aug 1698)" on 24 Aug 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 514.).  She died on 25 Aug 1665.

816.  William10 Berry (2732)XE "Berry:William  (2732) (-circa 1654)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, page 21.) married Jane unknown (2733)XE "unknown:Jane  (2733) (1619-)" circa 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 66.).  He died circa 1654.

     (an unknown value) (Portsmouth 1631, one of the peop. sent by Mason, for his planta. but in 1635 had rem. to Newbury (NH), there was adm. freem. 18 May 1642 and d. 1654. Probably came from County Devon, England).

     Children of William10 Berry (2732)XE "Berry:William  (2732) (-circa 1654)" and Jane unknown (2733)XE "unknown:Jane  (2733) (1619-)" (see #817) were as follows:
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i.
James9 (2730).XE "Berry:James  (2730)"

 
ii.
Elizabeth (2735)XE "Berry:Elizabeth  (2735) (-after May 1708)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 171.) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 21 & 22.) married John Locke (2736)XE "Locke:John  (2736) (circa 1626-26 Aug 1696)" circa 1652 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 469.).  She died after May 1708.


 
iii.
Rachel (2845)XE "Berry:Rachel  (2845)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 24.) married John Marden (2846)XE "Marden:John  (2846) (-1707)" circa 1666 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 488.).  She died.


 
iv.
William (2847)XE "Berry:William  (2847) (-after 1704)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) married Judith Locke (2848)XE "Locke:Judith  (2848)" on 8 Jul 1678 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 66.).  He died after 1704.


 
v.
Mary (2843)XE "Berry:Mary  (2843)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 23.) married John Foss (2844)XE "Foss:John  (2844) (circa 1636-)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 276.).  She died.


 
vi.
John (2839)XE "Berry:John  (2839) (circa 1637-before 1717)" was born circa 1637.  He married Susanna (--?--) (2840)XE "(--?--):Susanna  (2840)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 65.).  He died before 1717.


 
vii.
Joseph (2841)XE "Berry:Joseph  (2841) (circa 1639-before 1717)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 22.) was born circa 1639.  He married Rachel (--?--) (2842)XE "(--?--):Rachel  (2842)" (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 22.).  He died before 1717.

817.  Jane10 unknown (2733)XE "unknown:Jane  (2733) (1619-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 171.) was born in 1619.  She married William Berry (2732)XE "Berry:William  (2732) (-circa 1654)" circa 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 66.).  She married Nathaniel Drake (2734)XE "Drake:Nathaniel  (2734) (1612-        )" in 1654 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 230.).  She died.

818.  George10 Wallis (2749)XE "Wallis:George  (2749)" (Nothing more found about him until 14.09.04) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, to Ricardo Ernesto Rain.) (Sylvia Fitts Getchell, The Berrys by the Beach, Page 25.) died.

     Children of George10 Wallis (2749)XE "Wallis:George  (2749)" include:
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i.
Eleanor9 (2731).XE "Wallis:Eleanor  (2731)"
822.  William10 Swain (4288)XE "Swain:William  (4288) (1619-20 Nov 1657)" (Richard, #1644) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 9.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) was born in 1619 at England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 236.).  He married Prudence Marston (4289)XE "Marston:Prudence  (4289)" circa 1642 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.).  He died on 20 Nov 1657 (drowned going by ship from Hampton to Boston) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 43, page 367.).

     He immigrated on 9 Apr 1635 (Came with the Rebecca from England aged 16) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 307.).

     Children of William10 Swain (4288)XE "Swain:William  (4288) (1619-20 Nov 1657)" and Prudence Marston (4289)XE "Marston:Prudence  (4289)" (see #823) were as follows:
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i.
Hannah9 (2738).XE "Swain:Hannah  (2738) (-1700)"

 
ii.
Hezekiah (4291)XE "Swain:Hezekiah  (4291)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.) died.


 
iii.
William (4292)XE "Swain:William  (4292)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.) died.


 
iv.
Bethia (4293)XE "Swain:Bethia  (4293)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.) died.


 
v.
Prudence (4294)XE "Swain:Prudence  (4294) (29 Dec 1654-circa 1717)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.) was born on 29 Dec 1654 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 38, page 281.).  She married John Philbrook (--?--) (5286)XE "(--?--):Philbrook (John)  (5286) (circa 1648-1737)"

XE "(--?--):Philbrook John (5286) (circa 1648-1737)" on 26 Dec 1667 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 38, page 281.).  She died circa 1717 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 38, page 281.).

823.  Prudence10 Marston (4289)XE "Marston:Prudence  (4289)" (William, #1646) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93 & vol. 43, page 367.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 6, page 249.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 7, page 84.)XE "Swain:Prudence  (4289)"

XE "Cox:Prudence  (4289)" married William Swain (4288)XE "Swain:William  (4288) (1619-20 Nov 1657)" circa 1642 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.).  She married Moses Cox (4290)XE "Cox:Moses  (4290)" in 1658 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 34, page 93.).  She died.

Generation ElevenTC "Generation Eleven" \l 2
1024.  Hugh11 Crocker (4560)XE "Crocker:Hugh  (4560)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page A-5.).

     Children of Hugh11 Crocker (4560)XE "Crocker:Hugh  (4560)" include:
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i.
Hugh10 (4441).XE "Crocker:Hugh  (4441)"

 
ii.
John (4561)XE "Crocker:John  (4561)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol 2, page A-5.).


 
iii.
Francis (4562)XE "Crocker:Francis  (4562)" (Andrea Leonard, A Crocker Genealogy, Vol. 2, page A-5.).

1036.  Henry11 Howland (923)XE "Howland:Henry  (923) (-17 May 1625)" married Margaret unknown (924)XE "unknown:Margaret  (924) (-31 Jul 1629)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, "Cover Page," Nexus, The Bimonthly Newsletter of the New England Historic Genealogical Society Vol. XI, No. 2 (April-May, 1994): Cover Page 44.).  He died on 17 May 1625 at Fenstanton, Cambridgeshire, England (Gary Boyd Roberts, Cover Page.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 1.).

     (an unknown value) (yeoman).

     Children of Henry11 Howland (923)XE "Howland:Henry  (923) (-17 May 1625)" and Margaret unknown (924)XE "unknown:Margaret  (924) (-31 Jul 1629)" (see #1037) were as follows:


 
i.
Arthur10 (925)XE "Howland:Arthur  (925) (-1675)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, Cover Page.) died in 1675.


 
ii.
Henry (926)XE "Howland:Henry  (926) (-1670)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, Cover Page.) died in 1670.
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iii.
John (761).XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)"
1037.  Margaret11 unknown (924)XE "unknown:Margaret  (924) (-31 Jul 1629)" married Henry Howland (923)XE "Howland:Henry  (923) (-17 May 1625)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, Cover Page.).  She died on 31 Jul 1629 at Fenstanton, Cambridgeshire, England (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 1.).

1038.  John11 Tilley (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)" (Robert Tilley (Tille), #2076) (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 87.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 455.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 302.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.) was born before 19 Dec 1571 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 87.).  He was christened on 19 Dec 1571 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants (1008 Stout Court, Oviedo, FL 32765, USA).).  He married Joan Hurst (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)" on 20 Sep 1596 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 87.) (Audrey Drummond and Nancy J. Springer., Mayflower Passengers 1620 (Massachusetts Society of Mayflower Descendants. 1992), Page 17.).  He died in 1621 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     (an unknown value) (John, came in the Mayflower; signed the Compact; res. at Plymouth. Took part in the explorations, and died from the exposure and hardships in the spring of 1621. He brought his wife and daughter Elizabeth. The wife died about the same time as he; the daughter married John Howland. Note. Among the marriages at Leyden, Holland, we find that of "Jan Telly, and Prijntgen van der Velde," 3 March, 1615, at Pieterskirk, (opposite the house of Mr. John Robinson). His trade was that of "saeijwercker," or say-weaver; he was accompanied by his father, Paulus Tellij, and the bride by her mother Maeijcken Tay, whose marriage is on record to Abraham van der Velde, 27 June, 1591. Many circumstances point to this as the John Tillie of the Mayflower; yet the date is late for the time of the birth of the eldest child of Elizabeth Howland; nor does it correspond to the age asserted for her at her death. It may be that this is a second marriage of J. T., and Elizabeth his child by a former wife; or that this Dutch wife died, and that Tillie married a second wife, whose child by her former husband was the bride of John Howland. John Tilley has been identified as an older brother of the preceding Edward as baptized, 24 February, 1571, and perhaps the son of Lawrence and Bridget Tilley of Shipton, co. Salop, and the same remarks apply to him as to the correctness of this conclusion. Both John and his wife died in the first winter in the "general sickness" leaving but one known child, Elizabeth, who married John Howland. The compiler (Charles E. Banks) found a marriage of a John Tilley to Elizabeth Comyngs, 2 February, 1605, in the parish of St. Andrew Undershaft, where an Allerton family resided, and close to the Pilgrim center there. As Elizabeth, daughter of the Pilgrim, was born in 1607 this record may be the marriage of the Mayflower passengers. The compiler is obliged to reject the identification of these two brothers announced a quarter of a century ago (N. Y. Gen. & Biog. Rec. XXXV, 213 291) by a writer who adopted the Shipton record as evidence satisfactory to himself. A Chancery deposition, found by the compiler, in the Public Record Office, N. 7/14, was made by John Tylly of Shipton, Salop, yeoman, in 1631, aged 60 years, hence born in 1571 and therefore identical with the John baptized as above stated. It shows that the Shipton John supposed to have emigrated on the Mayflower and dead in 1621, was still alive ten years later living in his native parish. This automatically eliminates his brother Edward. A John Tilley, yeoman, was living in Wootton, Bedfordshire, in 1613, aged 40 years, hence born 1573, and this may be the emigrant. (Chanc. Deps. T. 5/16.) (See Allerton, Britteridge, More.)).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of John11 Tilley (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)" and Joan Hurst (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)" (see #1039) were as follows:


 
i.
Rose10 (4379)XE "Tilley:Rose  (4379) (before 23 Oct 1597-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.) was born before 23 Oct 1597 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).  She was baptized on 23 Oct 1597 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).


 
ii.
John (3034)XE "Tilley:John  (3034) (before 26 Aug 1599-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born before 26 Aug 1599 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).  He was baptized on 26 Aug 1599 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).  He died.


 
iii.
Rose (4380)XE "Tilley:Rose  (4380) (before 28 Feb 1602-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.) was born before 28 Feb 1602 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).  She was baptized on 28 Feb 1602 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).


 
iv.
Robert (3035)XE "Tilley:Robert  (3035) (before 25 Nov 1604-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born before 25 Nov 1604 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).  He was baptized on 25 Nov 1604 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1822.).  He died.
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v.
Elizabeth (927).XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)"
1039.  Joan11 Hurst (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)" (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 87.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 743.) was born before 13 Mar 1568 at England.  She was christened on 13 Mar 1568 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Audrey Drummond and Nancy J. Springer, Mayflower Passengers 1620, Page 17.).  She married Thomas Rogers (3033)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (3033)" before 20 Sep 1596 at England (Audrey Drummond and Nancy J. Springer, Mayflower Passengers 1620, Page 17.).  She married John Tilley (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)" on 20 Sep 1596 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Charles E. Banks, The English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrim Fathers who came to Plymouth on the "Mayflower" in 1620, the "Fortune" in 1621, and the "Anne" and the "Little James" in 1623, Page 87.) (Audrey Drummond and Nancy J. Springer, Mayflower Passengers 1620, Page 17.).  She died after 11 Jan 1621 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Audrey Drummond and Nancy J. Springer, Mayflower Passengers 1620, Page 17.).

     John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

1058.  Thomas11 Barlow (986)XE "Barlow:Thomas  (986)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) died.

     He married Mrs. Barlow (987)XE "Barlow:Mrs.  (987) (-1622)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).

     Children of Thomas11 Barlow (986)XE "Barlow:Thomas  (986)" and Mrs. Barlow (987)XE "Barlow:Mrs.  (987) (-1622)" (see #1059) were as follows:
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i.
Abigail10 (974).XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)"

 
ii.
Ann (988)XE "Barlow:Ann  (988)" died.

1059.  Mrs.11 Barlow (987)XE "Barlow:Mrs.  (987) (-1622)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy.) married Thomas Barlow (986)XE "Barlow:Thomas  (986)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  She died in 1622 at Zevenhuysen, Holland.

1060.  George11 Morton (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 320.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 329.) was born circa 1590 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Page 243/4.).  He was baptized on 12 Feb 1599.  He married Julia Anna Carpenter (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)" on 23 Jul 1612 at Leyden, Holland (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).  He died in Jun 1624 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.).

     (an unknown value) (George, of York, Eng., came to Plymouth in the Anne in 1623; 8 lots were assigned to him and Experience Mitchell. No further record of him found. Ephraim and John are believed to be his sons.

George has been called the Mourt of Mourt's Relation (it having been common to cut off the end syllable of some names, the name G. Mourt appearing at the end of the preface, and this is likely, but not proven. However, Edward Winslow was the author of most of this work, with probably some part done by Bradford, and Mourt would have been the one who arranged publication in England. George Morton arrived in Plymouth in 1623, probably on the Anne, though Banks says on the Little James. He had been one of the most important of the Separatist leaders in Leiden, and he would have played a leading role in the development of Plymouth Colony, but he died in June 1624).  Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

     Children of George11 Morton (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)" and Julia Anna Carpenter (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)" (see #1061) were as follows:
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i.
Nathaniel10 (996).XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)"

 
ii.
Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) was born after 1614.  She married John Faunce (2111)XE "Faunce:John  (2111) (-1653)" circa 1633 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 260.).  She died in 1691 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 260.).

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 
iii.
John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) was born in 1616.  He married Lettice unknown (2112)XE "unknown:Lettice  (2112) (-1691)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).  He died in 1673 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 
iv.
Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) was born in 1618.  She married George Bonham (2113)XE "Bonham:George  (2113) (-1704)" on 20 Dec 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 82.).  She died in 1691 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 82.).

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 
v.
Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 243.) was born in 1623.  He married Ann Cooper (1934)XE "Cooper:Ann  (1934) (-6 Sep 1691)" on 18 Nov 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655.).  He died in 1693.

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

1061.  Julia Anna11 Carpenter (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)" (Alexander, #2122) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) was born circa 1583 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).  She married George Morton (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)" on 23 Jul 1612 at Leyden, Holland (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 244.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 522.).  She married Manasseh Kempton (2233)XE "Kempton:Manasseh  (2233) (-14 Jan 1662)" in 1624 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 432.).  She died on 19 Feb 1665 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. Julian Kempton widow aged fourscore and one year died the 19th day of Feb. Anno: Dom: 1664 and was buried the 20th of the same; she was a faithful servant of God (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 665 [p. 30].).

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

1078.  Thomas11 Barlow (986)XE "Barlow:Thomas  (986)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.) died.

     He married Mrs. Barlow (987)XE "Barlow:Mrs.  (987) (-1622)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).

     Children of Thomas11 Barlow (986)XE "Barlow:Thomas  (986)" and Mrs. Barlow (987)XE "Barlow:Mrs.  (987) (-1622)" (see #1059) were as follows:


 529.
i.
Abigail10 (974).XE "Barlow:Abigail  (974)"

 
ii.
Ann (988)XE "Barlow:Ann  (988)" died.

1079.  Mrs.11 Barlow (987)XE "Barlow:Mrs.  (987) (-1622)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy.) married Thomas Barlow (986)XE "Barlow:Thomas  (986)" (Chester Forrester Dunham, The Dunham Genealogy, Page 24.).  She died in 1622 at Zevenhuysen, Holland.

1110.  Robert11 Hicks (4515)XE "Hicks:Robert  (4515) (circa 1578-24 May 1647)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Page 924-928 & 1946.) was born circa 1578.  He married Margaret Unknown (4538)XE "Unknown:Margaret  (4538)" in 1603.  He died on 24 May 1647 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     (an unknown value) (OCCUPATION.- Fellmonger (in England). FREEMAN.- In the '1633' list of Plymouth freemen, among those admitted before 1 january 1632/3 [PCR 1:3]. In list of 7 March 1636/7 [PCR 1-52]. In the Plymouth section of the 1639 Plymouth Colony list of freemen, with the annotation 'dead' [PCR 8:173]. 

EDUCATION.- His inventory included '3 books' valued at 8s. His widow, Margaret, signed her will. 

ESTATE.- In the 1623 Plymouth division of land, 'Robart Hickes' was granted one acre as a passenger on the Fortune, and his wife and children were granted four acres as passengers on the Anne [PCR 12:5,6]. In the 1627 Plymouth division of cattle Robert Hicks, Margaret Hicks, Samuel Hicks, Ephraim Hicks, Lydia Hicks and Phebe Hicks were the sixth through eleventh persons in the twelfth company [PCR 12-13]. 

Assessed  18s. in the Plymouth tax list of 25 March 1633 and 12s. in the list of 27 March 1634 [PCR 1:9,27]. 'Robert Hickes' was thirty-seventh on the list of Purchasers [PCR 2.177].

On 10 February 1629 Robert Hicks purchased two acres on the north side of town from Steven Dean [PCR 12:7]. On 29 August 1638 Clement Briggs acknowledged his sale of 'one acre of land in the upper fall near the second brook" to "Mr. Rob[er]te Heeks" [PCR 12:34]. On 9 December 1639 "Mr. Rob[er]te Hicks' rented five acres at Reed Pond to John Smyth for three years, Smyth to fence the east side of the land [PCR 12:51]. On 13 july 1639 George Sowle acknowledged his sale of two acres of land to Robert Hicks of Plymonth [PCR 12:45]. On 20 july 1639 John Barnes of Plymouth, yeoman, acknowledged his sale of four acres of meadow at High Pynes to Mr. Robert Hicks [PCR 12;45]. On 11 February 1639[/40] Mr. Robert Hicks of Plymouth, planter, sold to Samuell Hicks his eldest son all his house, outhouses and garden in Plymouth, together with four acres of land and eight acres of land and all the meadow at the Heigh Pynes and Iland Creek, and all his right title and interest in the land, and three cows [PCR 12:54]. On 7 April 1642 Mr. Robert Hicks sold two acres of marsh at Heigh Pines to Mr. William Bradford [PCR 12:79]. On 7 May 1642 Mr. Robert Hicks sold seven acres of upland at Iland Creek to William Brett of Duxbury [PCR 12:80]. On the same day he acknowledged his deed to John Reynor of three acres of marsh meadow at Heigh Pynes [PCR 12:80]. On 9 October 1645 Mr. Robert Hicks sold to Georg Partrich a parcel of marsh meadow consisting of two acres [PCR 12:115]. In his will, dated 28 May 1645 and proved 15 May 1648, 'Robert Hicks of Plymouth ... being full of infirmities of body" bequeathed to 'my son Ephraim all that my dwelling house barn and buildings with the gardens ... in Plymouth," also "all those three fields one lying on the north side of the said town of Plymouth ..., the second which I lately purchased of Mr. John Aldin and the third called the south field"; "but my mind and will is that my executrix hereafter named shall have and enjoy three rooms in the said house during her life she keeping herself unmarried, viz. the hall and chamber over and cellar underneath, and also that my said son Ephraim shall pay her the thirds of the said lands during her life and widowhood"; to "my said son Ephraim all my lands lying at Iland Creek on Duxbery side except two lots of upland of twenty acres apiece lying next unto Mr. Kemp's lands, which I hereby give and bequeath unto John Banges my grandchild"; to "my executrix ... the rents of the said land not set and let forth for six years yet to come if she shall so long live, but all the rest of my lands ... I give unto my said son Ephraim"; "I give unto John Reyner the son of Mr. John Reyner our teacher fifty acres of the purchased lands accruing ... to me as a purchaser of my share of lands lying at Seawams or Secunck if the said Mr. John Reyner his father do remain at Plymouth'; to 'Samuell my eldest son" fifty acres; to 'my said son Ephraim" fifty acres; to "John Watson' fifty acres; to 'John Bangs' fifty acres; to "the younger of Mr. Charls Chancy's sons which his wife had at one birth when he dwelt at Plymouth' fifty acres; to "my said son Ephraim" household goods; to the Town of Plymouth one cow calf; to 'William Pontus' 20s.; to 'John Faunce' 20s.; to 'Nathaneell Morton' 20s.; to 'Thomas Cushman' 20s.; 'Margaret my loving wife' sole executrix and residue; Mr. John Howland, Mannasses Kempton and Thomas Cushman overseers; to John Howland and Mannasses Kemton lOs. each for a remembrance; to Joshua Prat 'a suit of my wearing clothes with a pair of shoes and stockings'; to Samuell Eddy a pair of wearing stockings; to 'my said son Ephraim ... my four oxen, paying my loving wife ... the thirds of the profits of the lands as is before mentioned ... and to draw her twenty loads of wood yearly to her house in Plymouth during her life' [MD 8:144-46, citing PCPR 1:1:703]. The inventory of the estate of 'Mr. Robert Hicks deceased the 24th of May 1647 taken the fifth of july in the year aforesaid also exhibited upon oath the 4th of May 1648' totalled £39 13s., with no real estate included [MD 8:143-44, citing PCPR 1:1:69]. On 23 january 1648 John Rogers of Duxbury bought the rent of lands improved by Mr. Robert Hicks now deceased from Ephraim Hicks of Plymouth [PCR 12:155-56]. On 1 May 1660 'Gorge Watson,' on behalf of his son John Watson and nephew John Banges, requested that, because 'Samuel Hickes' was mistakenly entered in the court records as purchaser of lands at Cushenah and Accoaksett, etc., and it should have been 'Mr. Robert' Hickes, it be corrected; the matter was referred to a later court [PCR 3:186]. On 3 October 1662 'Samuell Hickes" was offered an equal division with others in the lands of Mr. Robert Hickes at Accushena, Coaksett, etc., but he declined [PCR 4:27]. Margaret and Samuel could not agree on the division of goods in Robert's estate and the matter was taken to court 7 june 1661 [PCR 3:217]. On 7 October 1662 'Margarett Hickes of Plymouth, widow, as sole executrix to my husband Mr. Robert Hickes," confirmed his bequest of fifty acres to 'Elnathan Chauncye the younger of the twins of Mr. Charles Chauncye' [MD 17:240-41, citing PCLR 2:2:107]. On 22 March 1663[/4] 'Mistris Hickes' and 'Sam[uel] Hickes' were granted Lot 7 in the Plymouth lands at 'Puncateesett Necke' [PTR 1:64]. In her will, dated 8 july 1665 and proved 6 March 1665/6, 'Margarett Hickes widow of the town of Plymouth' bequeathed to 'my son Samuell Hickes' £5; to 'my daughter-in-law Lydia Hickes' 30s.; to 'my son Samuell's children' lOs. each 'there being seven of them'; said legacies to be paid by "son Samuell Hickes' from his debt 'he having already received a large portion of that which God hath given me not only in lands but also in goods and chattels which was not only my husband's and son Ephraim's estate formerly but also given to me by will at my son Ephraim's death'; to 'my grandchild John Banges' 40s.; residue to 'the children of my son-in-law Gorg Watson and my loving daughter that is deceased Phebe Watson,' also said estate to be 'at the dispose of my son-in-law Gorg Watson"; 'my son-in-law Gorg Watson and my friend Captain Southworth'overseers [PCPR 2:2:32, abstracted in MD 16:157-58]. 

The inventory of Margaret Hickes, taken 5 March 1665[/6], totalled £53 12s. 6d. and included no real estate [PCPR 2:2:33, abstracted in MD 16:158]. On 6 March 1665/6 "Gorge Watson" was granted administration on the estate of "Mistris Margarett Hickes, deceased" [PCR 4:117]. 

COMMENTS: The major breakthrough on this family was made when Robert S. Wakefield discovered additional baptismal entries in the St. Mary Magdalen, Bermondsey, register [TAG 51:57-58]. 

Several sources give Robert Hicks two wives: Elizabeth Morgan and Margaret Winslow. No record has been found of any marriage for Robert Hicks, and his only known wife was Margaret; the argument that Margaret was a Winslow has little basis [TAG 54:31-34]. 

Clement Briggs of Weymouth, fellmonger, deposed 29 August 1638 that about two and twenty years since this deponent then dwelling with 

one Mr. Samuell Lathame in Barmundsey Streete in Southwarke a fellmonger and one Thomas Harlow then also dwelling with Mr. Rob[er]te Heeks in the same street a fellmonger the said Harlow and this deponent had often conference together how many pelts each of their master pulled a week. And this deponent deposeth and saith that the said Rob[er]te Heeks did pull three hundred pelts a week and diverse times six or seven hundred & more a week in the killing seasons, which was the most part of the year (except the time of Lent) for the space of three or four years. And that the said Rob[er]te Heeks sold his sheep's pelts at that time for 40s. a hundred to Mr. Arnold Allard, whereas this deponent's Mr. Samuell Lathame sold his pelts for 50s. per hundred to the same man at the Same time and Mr. Heeks pelts were much better ware [PCR 12:35]. 

On 13 july 1639 Robert Hicks of Plymouth, "citizen & leatherseller of London,' by a bill dated 6 july 1618 was indebted to Thomas Heath, citizen & cooper of London for £180, which amount was demanded by letter of attorney made by Hannah Cugley but Hicks showed an acquittance of all debts to Heath, having paid it long ago [PCR 12:43]. 

On 6 March 1649[/50] administration of the estate of Ephraim Hickes was granted to Margaret Hicks and Thomas Willet [PCR 2:148]. The nuncupative will made by Ephraim to Mr. Thomas Southworth was set aside, Ephraim being 'not in a capacity in regard of his said manner of death to make a legal will' [PCR 3:202]. The court ordered that Ephraim's estate be set aside for the benefit of his mother, 'Mistris Margaret Hickes," but the order was not recorded and Margaret had to go back to court many years later to insist it be recorded, 3 December 1660 [PCR 3:203]. 

BIBLIOGRAPHIC NOTE: In 1938 Louis Effingham deforest compiled a comprehensive summary of all that was known about Robert Hicks at that date [Moore Anc 295-308]. (This summary includes children Elizabeth and Daniel, for whom there is no evidence.) 

).

     Children of Robert11 Hicks (4515)XE "Hicks:Robert  (4515) (circa 1578-24 May 1647)" and Margaret Unknown (4538)XE "Unknown:Margaret  (4538)" (see #1111) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (4539)XE "Hicks:Thomas  (4539) (before 19 Feb 1604-23 Apr 1604)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. 2, page 927.) was born before 19 Feb 1604.  He was baptized on 19 Feb 1604 at St. Mary Magdalen.  He died on 23 Apr 1604.


 
ii.
John (4540)XE "Hicks:John  (4540) (before 12 Oct 1605-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born before 12 Oct 1605.  He was baptized on 12 Oct 1605 at St. Mary Magdalen.

     (an unknown value) (no further record).


 
iii.
Sara (4541)XE "Hicks:Sara  (4541) (before 25 Oct 1607-24 Feb 1618)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born before 25 Oct 1607.  She was baptized on 25 Oct 1607 at St. Mary Magdalen.  She died on 24 Feb 1618.


 
iv.
Richard (4542)XE "Hicks:Richard  (4542) (before 17 Sep 1609-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born before 17 Sep 1609.  He was baptized on 17 Sep 1609 at St. Mary Magdalen.

     (an unknown value) (no further record).


 
v.
Samuel (4543)XE "Hicks:Samuel  (4543) (before 18 Aug 1611-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born before 18 Aug 1611.  He was baptized on 18 Aug 1611 at St. Mary Magdalen.  He married Lydia Doane (4544)XE "Doane:Lydia  (4544)" on 11 Sep 1645 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.


 
vi.
Lydia (4545)XE "Hicks:Lydia  (4545) (before 6 Sep 1612-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born before 6 Sep 1612.  She was baptized on 6 Sep 1612 at St. Mary Magdalen.  She married Edward Bangs (4546)XE "Bangs:Edward  (4546)" circa 1633.


 555.
vii.
Phebe (4487).XE "Hicks:Phebe  (4487) (before 15 Mar 1615-22 May 1663)"

 
viii.
Mary (4547)XE "Hicks:Mary  (4547) (before 11 May 1617-14 Sep 1619)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born before 11 May 1617.  She was baptized on 11 May 1617 at St. Mary Magdalen.  She died on 14 Sep 1619.


 
ix.
Ephraim (2589)XE "Hicks:Ephraim  (2589) (circa 1625-12 Dec 1649)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 87.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 927.) was born circa 1625 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Elizabeth Howland (933)XE "Howland:Elizabeth  (933) (circa 1631-1691)" on 13 Sep 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 657, [p. 8].).  He died on 12 Dec 1649 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. a violent death.

1111.  Margaret11 Unknown (4538)XE "Unknown:Margaret  (4538)" married Robert Hicks (4515)XE "Hicks:Robert  (4515) (circa 1578-24 May 1647)" in 1603.

1114.  Thomas11 Bourne (1178)XE "Bourne:Thomas  (1178) (circa 1581-11 May 1664)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 60.) was born circa 1581.  He married Elizabeth unknown (1179)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1179) (1590-18 Jul 1660)" before 1614 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 86.).  He married Martha unknown (1180)XE "unknown:Martha  (1180)" before 18 Jul 1660 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 86.).  He died on 11 May 1664 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W. dyed & was Buried ye 11 of may 1664 being then aged . 83.

[THOMAS BOURNE'S WILL]

"The last Will .... of Mr Thomas Bourne of the Towne of Marshfeild .... late Deceased exhibited to the generall Court held att Plymouth the 2th of June 1664 on the oathes of Mr Samuell Arnold and Anthony Snow;"

"Thomas Bourne .... Draper" made his will on 2 May, 1664. Bequests were as follows.

"I give unto my Daughter Bradford according to my promise twenty pounds to bee payed her in Corne or Cattle or goods; and also I give her my wifes gould Ringer"

"I Doe give unto my Daughter Smith nine pound to bee payed her for a legacy in come Cattle or goods ;"

"I Doe give unto my Daughter Winslow two Cowes"

"I give unto my sonne Tildin five shillings in Corne for a legacye ;"

"And I give unto my Daughter Tildin: Daughter Lydia Tildin forty shillings; I say two pounds in Cattle; for the better understanding of the forty shillings; before mentioned and I give unto John Waterman two pounds in Cattle or goods or come; And I give unto Thomas Waterman two pounds in Cattle goods or come; And I Doe give unto Josepth Waterman two pounds in Cattle goods or Corne And I Doe give unto Robert Waterman two pounds in Cattle goods or Corne"

"I Doe give unto Mr Arnold twenty shillings in goods or Corne

"I Doe heerby Declare my son John Bourne to bee my heire
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and I Doe give unto him all my lands and housing that are upon my lands that is neare hand or further Remote layed out or to bee layed out to mee"

"my son John Bourne" was appointed executor.

The witnesses were Samuel Arnold and Anthony Snow.

The inventory was taken by Sergeant Joseph Beedle, Anthony Snow and Thomas Doged, the last named signing by a mark, and was exhibited at court at Plymouth on 9 June, 1664, on the oath of John Bourne. The real estate was "his house and land and orchyard and meddowes" and "a lott of land lying neare Taunton" but the value was not stated. Debts were due from "serjeant Cotten", John Branch, "mr Josias Winslow senir", Captain Thomas, John Thomas, "Mr John Bradford"; and the estate owed: "for sugar and wine and fruit for the buriall" £1, 1s; to Humphrey Johnson, 4s

 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 192.).

     (an unknown value) (Mr. Thomas, Plymouth, land granted to his son Richard for him Jan. 2, 1636; freeman (citizen) 7 Feb.  1636-7. He removed to Marshfield. Proprietor 1643. Early at Marshfield, may prob. have come from Co. Kent, bringing family, having being at Plymouth 1636. Was a man of substance and repute.

[HOWLAND, BOURNE AND DINGLEY, AGREEMENT]

1656 A writing apointed to bee Recorded

Wheras there was a Diference fell out betwixt John howland senir Thomas Bourne and John Dingley about the Range of a pcell of marsh meddow lying in Marshfeild and not eazye to bee knowne;

These are therefore to put an end to the aforsaid Diference; It is agreed by and between the said John howland senir Thomas Bourne and John Dingley senir: that the line or Range shall begin att the beach next the sea upon a west line sett by a compas to a homacke in the marsh where there lyes an old
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Ceader hee there being noe other nor no more trees neare next to the great Iland but that onely And from the aforsaid homacke and hee to Run upon the aforsaid west line to the Basse creeke To which agreement all the aforsaid pties have freely assented unto as abovesaid; alsoe that this agreement bee put upon Record both att Marshfeild and the court booke att Plymouth to avoid all further Diference for time to Come about the prmises; in witnesse wherof wee the said John howland senir: Thomas Bourne and John Dingley have put to our hands this fourth of May 1655

in the prsence John howland

of Myles Standish Thomas Bourne John Dingley

).

     Children of Thomas11 Bourne (1178)XE "Bourne:Thomas  (1178) (circa 1581-11 May 1664)" and Elizabeth unknown (1179)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1179) (1590-18 Jul 1660)" (see #603) were as follows:


 301.
i.
Elizabeth10 (1173).XE "Bourne:Elizabeth  (1173)"

 
ii.
John (1181)XE "Bourne:John  (1181) (-8 Dec 1684)" married Alice Besbeech (4537)XE "Besbeech:Alice  (4537) (-7 May 1686)" on 18 Jul 1645 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 85.).  He died on 8 Dec 1684.


 
iii.
Martha (1182)XE "Bourne:Martha  (1182) (-1689)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Vol. 14, page 82.) married Thomas Tracy (4534)XE "Tracy:Thomas  (4534)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 90.).  She married John Bradford (4533)XE "Bradford:John  (4533)" circa 1620 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 90.).  She died in 1689.


 
iv.
Margaret (1184)XE "Bourne:Margaret  (1184) (-1683)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 82.) married Josiah Winslow (4535)XE "Winslow:Josiah  (4535) (1606-1674)" before 1637 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 829.).  She died in 1683.


 
v.
Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 82.) married Nathaniel Tilden (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)" before 1608 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 742.).  She married Timothy Hatherly (3907)XE "Hatherly:Timothy  (3907) (-1666)" in 1642 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 353.).  She died.

     Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
vi.
Ann (1183)XE "Bourne:Ann  (1183) (circa 1620-circa 1684)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 82.) was born circa 1620.  She married Nehemiah Smith (4536)XE "Smith:Nehemiah  (4536) (circa 1605-1686)" on 21 Jan 1640 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 687.).  She died circa 1684.

1115.  Elizabeth11 unknown (1179)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (1179) (1590-18 Jul 1660)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 219.) was born in 1590 at England.  She married Thomas Bourne (1178)XE "Bourne:Thomas  (1178) (circa 1581-11 May 1664)" before 1614 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 86.).  She died on 18 Jul 1660 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 8, page 192.).

1216.  Jeffrey11 Finney (2187)XE "Finney:Jeffrey  (2187) (circa 1532-before 21 Jul 1586)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) was born circa 1532.  He married Katherine Jackson (2188)XE "Jackson:Katherine  (2188) (-circa 1559)" on 19 Sep 1558 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 321.).  He married Ellen Smedley (2189)XE "Smedley:Ellen  (2189) (-before 17 Aug 1606)" circa 1560 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.).  He died before 21 Jul 1586.  His body was interred on 21 Jul 1586 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148 pages 318 & 321.).

     Children of Jeffrey11 Finney (2187)XE "Finney:Jeffrey  (2187) (circa 1532-before 21 Jul 1586)" and Ellen Smedley (2189)XE "Smedley:Ellen  (2189) (-before 17 Aug 1606)" (see #1217) were as follows:


 
i.
Sicilie10 (2192)XE "Finney:Sicilie  (2192) (-before 25 Jan 1644)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) died before 25 Jan 1644.


 
ii.
Isabel (2193)XE "Finney:Isabel  (2193)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) married William Burrowes (2195)XE "Burrowes:William  (2195)" on 18 Jun 1611 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 321.).  She died.


 
iii.
Edward (2190)XE "Finney:Edward  (2190) (circa 1561-before 11 May 1598)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) was born circa 1561.  He married Anne Warde (2194)XE "Warde:Anne  (2194)" on 29 Oct 1587 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 321.).  He died before 11 May 1598.


 
iv.
Anne (2191)XE "Finney:Anne  (2191) (circa 1566-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) was born circa 1566.  She married William Fletcher (2196)XE "Fletcher:William  (2196)" on 22 Oct 1587 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 321.).  She died.


 608.
v.
Robert (2186).XE "Finney:Robert  (2186) (circa 1568-circa 1638)"
1217.  Ellen11 Smedley (2189)XE "Smedley:Ellen  (2189) (-before 17 Aug 1606)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.) married Jeffrey Finney (2187)XE "Finney:Jeffrey  (2187) (circa 1532-before 21 Jul 1586)" circa 1560 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, page 321.).  She died before 17 Aug 1606. Her will was written on 8 August 1606 and proved 16 January 1606/7:

In the name of god Amen the Eighte daie of Auguste in the yeare of cr lord god /1606/ I Eline Finnye of Lenton in the County and Archdeaconrye of Nott' widdowe sicke in body but of good and p[er]fecte remembrance laude and praise be given to god therefore doe ordaine & make this my laste will and testarmt in manner and forme followinge that is to witt Firste and principallie I comende my soule into the hand[e]s of Jesus Christe my onelie Savior & redemer and my body to the Farthe from whence it came to be buried in the p[ar]ishe Churcheyeard of Lenton aforesaid as neare to my husband Jeffray Finnye as may be . And for the dysposic[i]on of my worldly good[e]s my will is that they shalbe bestowed as followeth Viz.  Firste I give and bequeath to my sonne Robart Finnye my ride Cowe It[e]m to my daughter Anne the wief of Will[i]am Fletcher my blacke Cowe lt[e]m to my daughtr Sicilye Finnye my browne heffer It[e]m to my daughtr Issabell Finnye my black heffer my Cupbord and the greatest brasse panne over and above the child[e]s parte of good[e]s due to her by the laste will of Jeffray Finnye her Father deceased lt[e]m I give to my said daughtr Siscilia Finnye the good will Of my house And I humblye beseche the honorable the Lo: Wharton that it may please him to admitt her servant thereunto, and that she may quietlye enjoye the same after my death./ It[e]m my Will is that my sonne in Lawe Will[i]am Fletcher shall have the kitchine and the nether parlor to dwell in untill he can p[ro]vide himselfe elswhere/ It[e]m I give to everie one of my said sonne in lawe Will[i]am Fletcher his children/ to witt/ henry Fletcher Alice Fletcher Margerye Fletcher and Anne Fletcher ijs in monye and to everie one a henne It[e]m to John Fynnye And to Katherine Fynnye sonne and daughtr of my sonne Robart Fynnye to eyther of them ijs in money and to eyther of them a henne lt[e]m to Marye and to Elizabeth Finnye daughtrs of my sonne Edward Finnye to eyther of them ijs in money and to eyther of them a henne It[e]m to my daughtr in lawe Anne Fynnye wief of my said sonne Edward Fynnye xijd in full satisfaction of any porc[i]on wch shee can challenge under coulor of her said husbandes righte All the rest of my good[e]s unbequeathed (my Funerall expenc[e]s discharged and my debt[e]s paid) I will shalbe equalle divided amonge my Children Robart Fynnye Anne the wief of Will[i]am Fletcher afforesaid and Issabell Fynnye/ if that my said daughtr Siscelie Finnye have the house but yf she have it not then my Will is that my said good[e]s unbequeathed shalbe equallie divided amonge them all to witt Robart Finnye Anne Fletcher Siscelie Finnye and Issabell Finnye joynte executors of this my laste Will and testamt And I requeste my lovinge Neighbrs and freind[e]s John Wood Cler' my brother Thomas Smedlay and James Pares to be Sup[er]visors of this my said laste Will to see it performed Wittnesses John Wood Cler' and James Pares wth others Et Eisdem die et anno [decimo sexto die mensis januar' anno dni Mill[es]imo sexcennio sexto] ... Roberto Cicilliae et Isabellac Finnie execut' . .  Her body was interred on 17 Aug 1606 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 148, pages 318 & 321.).

1224.  William11 Rogers (4376)XE "Rogers:William  (4376)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) married Eleanor (--?--) (4377).XE "(--?--):Eleanor  (4377)"
     Children of William11 Rogers (4376)XE "Rogers:William  (4376)" and Eleanor (--?--) (4377)XE "(--?--):Eleanor  (4377)" (see #1225) were:


 612.
i.
Thomas10 (1234).XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)"
1225.  Eleanor11 (--?--) (4377)XE "(--?--):Eleanor  (4377)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.) married William Rogers (4376).XE "Rogers:William  (4376)"
1226.  George11 Cosford (4375)XE "Cosford:George  (4375)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1598.).

     Children of George11 Cosford (4375)XE "Cosford:George  (4375)" include:


 613.
i.
Alice10 (1235).XE "Cosford:Alice  (1235)"
1248.  John11 Washburn (2809)XE "Washburn:John  (2809) (1 Aug 1556-before 11 Dec 1624)" (John Washbourne, #2496) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 43.) (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years (American Mission Lenox Pres, Pasumalai, South India 1913), Page 31.) was born on 1 Aug 1556 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 31.).  He was baptized on 1 Aug 1566 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He married Martha Stevens (2810)XE "Stevens:Martha  (2810) (-before 9 May 1626)" on 6 Jul 1596 at England ( -Genser05, page 8-.).  He died before 11 Dec 1624.

     (an unknown value) (One of the twelve principal Burgesses, 1605; will made 4 Aug. 1624, inv. 11 Dec. 1624, pro. 29 Feb. 1624/5

John Washbourne was esteemed a man of weight and worth in Bengeworth. He was one in the first board of Burgesses appointed by King James when he first granted a charter to Evesham, including Bengeworth in it as a suburb in 1605, and granted the town two representatives in Parliament. Towards the close of life he was blind, as we learn from the following passage in his will: "In witness of all which, John Washburn being blind, and not able to set to his hand hath authorised his brother John Tymbrell for him and in his stead to subscribe to these presents with his name and mark." August 3, 1624).

     Children of John11 Washburn (2809)XE "Washburn:John  (2809) (1 Aug 1556-before 11 Dec 1624)" and Martha Stevens (2810)XE "Stevens:Martha  (2810) (-before 9 May 1626)" (see #1249) were:


 624.
i.
John10 (2780).XE "Washburn:John  (2780) (2 Jul 1597-1670)"
1249.  Martha11 Stevens (2810)XE "Stevens:Martha  (2810) (-before 9 May 1626)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 43.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) married John Washburn (2809)XE "Washburn:John  (2809) (1 Aug 1556-before 11 Dec 1624)" on 6 Jul 1596 at England (, Genser05, page 8.).  She died before 9 May 1626.

     (an unknown value) (Will 29 Sep. 1625, pro 9 May 1626).

1250.  Robert11 Moore (2785)XE "Moore:Robert  (2785)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 42.) was born at England.  He married Ellen Taylor (2786)XE "Taylor:Ellen  (2786)" (, Genser05, page 7.).  He died.

     Children of Robert11 Moore (2785)XE "Moore:Robert  (2785)" and Ellen Taylor (2786)XE "Taylor:Ellen  (2786)" (see #1251) were:


 625.
i.
Margaret10 (2781).XE "Moore:Margaret  (2781) (1586-)"
1251.  Ellen11 Taylor (2786)XE "Taylor:Ellen  (2786)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 43.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) married Robert Moore (2785)XE "Moore:Robert  (2785)" (, Genser05, page 7.).  She died.

1254.  Francis11 Cooke (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)" (see #290).

1255.  Hester11 Mahieu (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)" (Jennie, #583) (see #291).

1260.  Thomas11 Tilden (4233)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (4233) (circa 1541-6 Jun 1617)" (Richard, #2520) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1541 at Benenden, Kent, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, pages 330.).  He married Alice Biggs (4234)XE "Biggs:Alice  (4234) (-13 May 1593)" on 10 Mar 1577 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He married Ellen Evernden (4235)XE "Evernden:Ellen  (4235)" on 13 Nov 1593 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. [Ellen Evernden, widow, of Rolvinden in marriage license] (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 6 Jun 1617 at Wye, Kent, England. The Will of Thomas Tylden of the parish of Wye in the County of Kent, 14 March 1616-17. To the poor of Wye 20s. £5 to be disbributed among poor ministers. I make my son Joseph Tilden my executor and give him all that debt due me from James Thetcher of Willingdon in the County of Sussex. My wife Alyce shall have the use of all my household stuff and moveable goods during her life, with liberty to dispose of them to all or any of my children during her life, with liberty to dispose of them to all or any of my children during her life and at her death to dispose of them that remain to such of my children as shall be living and not elsewhere. To son Thomas Tylden £5.

My will concerning the disposition of all my lands, tenements and hereditaments in the Counties of Sussex and Kent or elsewhere within the Realm of England is as follows: "First my will & meaninge is that Nathaniell my sonne his heyres & Assignes shall for ever holde and enioye on peece of fresh mershe land lyinge in the parish of East Guyldeford in the Countye of Sussex called by the name of Cowelees contayneinge by estymation xxx acres accordinge to one deede of feafment thereof by me made to the vse of the said Nathaniell. Itm I doe will giue and bequeath to the said Nathaniell my sonne &  to his heyres forever one peice of fresh mersh land with the appurtenances called or knowne by the name of the Fyve acres lyinge & beinge in the aforesaid Parish of East Guyldeford together with sufficient carrying way to carrye driue goe to & for him his heyres & Assignes through one peece of land called the vpper peece of the lesser Spanyards lyinge in Guyldfford aforesaid." To my two sons Joseph and Hopestill Tilden their heirs and assigns forever the aforesaid piece of land called the upper piece of the lesser Spanyards containing twenty acres. To son Freegift Tylden and his heirs forever, if he live to the age of one and twenty tears, a piece of fresh mersh land in East Guyldford containing fifteen acres known by the name of the nether piece of the lesser Spanyards and abutting upon Cowe lees aforesaid toward the south, with right of way to said land through the land called the upper piece of the lesser Spanyards bequeathed to son Nathaniel. If Freegift die before the age on one and twenty years, reversion to sons Nathaniel and Hopestill and their heirs forever. During the minority of Freegift £10 a year to be paid to wife Alice toward her jointure of £20 made by me to her during her life, the other £10 of the said £20 to be paid out of the lands bequeathed to sons Joseph and Hopestill. To son Freegift at the age of one and twenty years my messuage with the barn and other buildings, orchard, garden and seven pieces of land containing seventeen acres now in the occupatio of the widow Gylbert, lying in the parish of Cranbrook upon the den of Omenden. If he die before said age, reversion to my son Joseph and his heirs. Wife Alyce to receive theprofits of all Freegift's land during his minority and use them to see him brought up to learning, and if she die, son Joseph to receive them for that purpose, allowing to Freegift sufficient maintenance and yielding an account to him when he accomplishes his age of one and twenty tears. [Signed] Thomas Tilden. Witnesses: Suretonhie Nicholes, Robart Hall, and Willyam Avsten. Proved 20 June 1617 by Joseph Tilden, son and executor named in the will. [The will was contested 23 September 1617, the widow Alice Tilden and sons Nathaniel Tilden of Tenterden, Hopestill Tilden ofthe town of Sandwich, and Thomas Tilden and Freegift Tilden of Wye bringin suit against the executor Joesph Tilden (doubtless because the testator left to son Thomas but £5, while the other sons received generous portions of land). 27 March 1618 sentence was given for the confirmation of the will, the judgment being that the testator was sane at the time the will was made.] (Consistory Court of Canterbury, original will, bundle for 1617.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 324, 325 & 330.).

     (an unknown value) (Between 1604 and 1614 Thomas Tilden left Tenterden, and moved perhaps to East Guilford in Sussex, not far across the border from Tenterden, as he owned lands there.

His last son Freegift, could have been by second or third wife).

     Children of Thomas11 Tilden (4233)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (4233) (circa 1541-6 Jun 1617)" and Alice Biggs (4234)XE "Biggs:Alice  (4234) (-13 May 1593)" (see #1261) were as follows:


 
i.
Sara10 (4260)XE "Tilden:Sara  (4260) (before 30 Aug 1579-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 30 Aug 1579.  She was baptized on 30 Aug 1579 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She married John Stanshame (4261)XE "Stanshame:John  (4261)" on 20 Nov 1600 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died.


 
ii.
Abigail (4262)XE "Tilden:Abigail  (4262) (before 26 Feb 1582-5 Aug 1582)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 26 Feb 1582.  She was baptized on 26 Feb 1582 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died on 5 Aug 1582 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 630.
iii.
Nathaniel (3897).XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)"

 
iv.
Joseph (4263)XE "Tilden:Joseph  (4263) (before 28 Nov 1585-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 28 Nov 1585.  He was baptized on 28 Nov 1585 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.


 
v.
Hopestill (4264)XE "Tilden:Hopestill  (4264) (before 1 May 1588-before 9 Feb 1662)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 1 May 1588.  He was baptized on 1 May 1588 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died before 9 Feb 1662.


 
vi.
Teophilus (4265)XE "Tilden:Teophilus  (4265) (before 11 Oct 1590-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 11 Oct 1590.  He was baptized on 11 Oct 1590 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.


 
vii.
Thomas (4266)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (4266) (before 1 May 1593-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 1 May 1593.  He was baptized on 1 May 1593 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.

1261.  Alice11 Biggs (4234)XE "Biggs:Alice  (4234) (-13 May 1593)" married Thomas Tilden (4233)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (4233) (circa 1541-6 Jun 1617)" on 10 Mar 1577 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 13 May 1593.

1262.  Steven11 Huckstep (4278)XE "Huckstep:Steven  (4278) (-20 Jun 1633)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 48.) married Winifred Hatche (4201)XE "Hatche:Winifred  (4201) (circa 1553-6 Oct 1592)" on 14 Feb 1584 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254 & Vol. 67, page 47.).  He died on 20 Jun 1633 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. "a verie Auncient man was buried" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 48.).

     Children of Steven11 Huckstep (4278)XE "Huckstep:Steven  (4278) (-20 Jun 1633)" and Winifred Hatche (4201)XE "Hatche:Winifred  (4201) (circa 1553-6 Oct 1592)" (see #1263) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (4279)XE "Huckstep:Thomas  (4279) (before 22 Nov 1584-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 47.) was born before 22 Nov 1584.  He was baptized on 22 Nov 1584 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 47.).  He died.


 
ii.
John (4280)XE "Huckstep:John  (4280) (before 22 May 1586-15 Oct 1630)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 48.) was born before 22 May 1586.  He was baptized on 22 May 1586 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 47.).  He died on 15 Oct 1630 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 67, page 48.).


 631.
iii.
Lydia (4277).XE "Huckstep:Lydia  (4277) (before 11 Feb 1588-)"
1263.  Winifred11 Hatche (4201)XE "Hatche:Winifred  (4201) (circa 1553-6 Oct 1592)" (Thomas, #2526) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1553.  She married Richard Wills (4202)XE "Wills:Richard  (4202)" on 18 Jun 1576 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 250.).  She married Steven Huckstep (4278)XE "Huckstep:Steven  (4278) (-20 Jun 1633)" on 14 Feb 1584 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254 & Vol. 67, page 47.).  She died on 6 Oct 1592 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.

).

1280.  Unknown11 Morse (5328).XE "Morse:Unknown  (5328)"
     Children of Unknown11 Morse (5328)XE "Morse:Unknown  (5328)" include:


 808.
i.
Anthony10 (1286).XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)"

 640.
ii.
William (5329).XE "Morse:William  (5329) (1614-29 Nov 1683)"
1290.  Thurston11 Clarke (1335)XE "Clarke:Thurston  (1335) (1590-circa 10 Dec 1661)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 403.) was born in 1590 at England.  He married Faith unknown (1336)XE "unknown:Faith  (1336) (-1663)" before 1618 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 159.).  He died circa 10 Dec 1661. Of cold and exposure. Inquest. Admin. gr. to widow Faith 4 March, 1661 (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.).

     (an unknown value) (Thurston, ae. 44, with Faith, ae. 15, came in the Francis of Ipswich, Co. Suff'k, April 30, 1630. Settled at Plymouth. Called also Tristram, Trustrum. Proprietor 1636. Daughter Faith m. Edward Doten. Son Thurston able to bear arms in 1643. He died about Dec. 10, 1661, of cold and exposure. Inquest.  Administration granted to widow Faith 4 March, 1661. Her estate was divided June 1. 1663, between her dau. Faith Doten and her sons Henry and Thurston Clarke. Came with  the Francis of Ipswich, John Cutting, Master, 'bound for New England the last of Aprill, 1634.' She sailed from Ipswich

).  Thurston (1335)XE "Clarke:Thurston  (1335) (1590-circa 10 Dec 1661)" immigrated to New England on 30 Apr 1634 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.).

     Children of Thurston11 Clarke (1335)XE "Clarke:Thurston  (1335) (1590-circa 10 Dec 1661)" and Faith unknown (1336)XE "unknown:Faith  (1336) (-1663)" (see #1291) were as follows:


 
i.
Thurston10 (1337)XE "Clarke:Thurston  (1337)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 403.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Able to bear arms 1643).


 
ii.
Henry (1338)XE "Clarke:Henry  (1338)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 103.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 403.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Imbecile, put under guardians).


 645.
iii.
Faith (1326).XE "Clarke:Faith  (1326) (1619-before 21 Dec 1675)"
1291.  Faith11 unknown (1336)XE "unknown:Faith  (1336) (-1663)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 159.) married Thurston Clarke (1335)XE "Clarke:Thurston  (1335) (1590-circa 10 Dec 1661)" before 1618 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 159.).  She died in 1663.

1292.  Francis11 Cooke (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)" (see #290).

1293.  Hester11 Mahieu (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)" (Jennie, #583) (see #291).

1294.  Stephen11 Hopkins (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)" (Stephen, #2588) (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 6, page 7.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 239.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 462.) was born circa 1581 at England. estimated by the date of first marriage (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 987.).  He was baptized on 29 Oct 1581 at Wotton, Gloucester, England.  He married an unknown person circa 1607 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 387.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.).  He married Elizabeth Fisher (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)" on 19 Feb 1618 at St. Mary Matfellon (Whitechapel), London, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 387.).  He died on 6 Jun 1644 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 1.).

     (an unknown value) (Mr. Stephen, gentleman, of London, came in the Mayflower; signed the Compact; settled at Plymouth. Freeman and assistant (magistrate) 1632-3. Volunteer for the Pequot War, 1637. He brought with him his wife Elizabeth, son Giles, and daughter Constanta, (children of a former wife,) and Damaris and Oceanus (born at sea,) by this wife. He also brought servants Edward Dotey, and Edward Leister, the duellists. The known and already published facts concerning this Pilgrim that are factors in his identification are his previous residence in London (Mourt's Relation) and the name of his wife, Elizabeth, stated to have been his second marriage (Bradford). The church register of St. Mary Matfellon (Whitechapel) records the marriage of Stephen Hopkins and Elizabeth Fisher, 19 February, 1617/18, which complies with the necessary factors just quoted. This places Hopkins in the parish on the highroad entering London at Aldgate near which Bradford, Carver, Cushman and Southworth lived in or near Heneage House, Aldgate Ward, as already shown, and thus provides the atmosphere and propinquity required to establish this probability. The name of his first wife is not known but he may be the same Stephen Hopkins, a resident in the parish of St. Stephens, Coleman St., who had a son Stephen, baptized 22 December, 1609, possibly by this first marriage. All other Stephen Hopkinses found in London have been followed to a point where they could be eliminated from considerations as the Pilgrim. It seems possible to identify the Pilgrim, Stephen Hopkins, with one of his name who sailed for Virginia in the Sea Adventure which set sail 15 May, 1609, via Bermuda and was recked on the shore of that island. This earlier Hopkins, in an account of this voyage, is described as one "who had much knowledge in the Scriptures and could reason well therein." The chaplain of the party chose him to be his assistant "to read the Psalmes and Chapters upon Sondayes" after they had become settled on the island. The narrator continues the story of this stranded company (which was originally bound for Virginia) and relates a mutiny among the passengers who were desirous to continue the voyage. This Stephen Hopkins was one of the ringleaders. Sir George Summers caused these mutineers to be arrested and tried. Hopkins with his associates was found guilty of rebellion, "but so penitent hee was and made soe much moane alledging the ruine of his Wife and Children," that upon the plea of the rest of the company the Governor pardoned him. After this a small bark was built and the company proceeded to Virginia. (Purchas. His Pilgrimes, Book ix, pt. 2; comp. Gen. Reg. xxxiii, 305). The significance of this and its connection with Stephen Hopkins, the Pilgrim, will be apparent from what is recorded of him after arrival of the Mayflower at Plymouth. He was of the first exploring party sent out to seek a suitable place for habitation and while on this errand they came across a sight which was curious to them -a small tree bent over and attached to boughs and grasses woven together covering a deep pit. Hopkins at once informed them that it was a trap used by the Indians to catch deer. Knowledge of this sort was not the common property of residents of London but must have been acquired by previous residence among the Indians such as we know was the case with Stephen Hopkins on the 1609 voyage. Doubtless he had seen the same device in Virginia. When Samoset came to Plymouth and welcomed the Pilgrims he was lodged overnight in Stephen Hopkins' house, doubtless because Hopkins could understand his language and converse with him. When the messenger of Canonicus brought the snake-skin full of arrows to Plymouth, Standish and Hopkins had charge of him (Standish in his capacity as military commander), and tried to get at the meaning of the message this snake symbolized. As Standish did not know the Indian language, Hopkins was chosen to learn from the Indian what it meant. In 1623 Hopkins accompanied Winslow on the mission to Massasoit just as he did in 1621, doubtless for the same purpose -his knowledge of the Indian tongue. These instances definitely confirm the view that Hopkins had been on this coast prior to his voyage on the Mayflower. It was always Hopkins  when negotiations with the Indians were necessary and he could not have learned these things in London. It seems highly probable that Weston selected Hopkins to accompany the Pilgrims because of his previous knowledge of this coast. One clue remains to be considered -the rare name of Giles, his son. The compiler has only found one instance of it -that of a Giles Hopkins, a tiler of Bristol, living there in 1639, aged 44 years. It is to be remembered that Francis Eaton also came from Bristol. The Militia list for Gloucestershire, 1608, shows a family of weavers and clothiers in the hamlet of Wortley in the parish of Wotton under Edge (16 miles from Bristol) bearing the names of Stephen Hopkins and his sons. Unfortunately, the parish records of Wotton are imperfect for the years necessary for identifying our Stephen as of this family, but sufficient exists to how the baptism of a son William to Stephen Hopkins, 19 July, 1607, after which the name disappears from the register. Theoretically, this gives opportunity for the removal of this Stephen to London in time to join the Sea Adventure on her voyage to Bermuda as above related.  An imperfect entry in the Wotton register records the baptism of -----Hopkins of Stephen Hopkins, 29 October, 1581, who was the fourth child and whose age would fit that of the Pilgrim. The record does not state whether a son or daughter, but as no child had been named Stephen for himself possibly this was the name of the child. Stephen Hopkins sailed in the Mayflower in 1620, one of the "Londoners" or "strangers" recruited for the voyage. He was called "Master," and only two others of the 17 free men on the voyage were so styled. He seems to have originated from the family of Hopkins, alias Seborne, located for several generations at Wortley, Wotton Underedge, co. Gloucester. The Wortley historian has conjectured, after a thorough study of the family, that Stephen of the Mayflower may well have been son of Stephen Hopkins, a clothier of Wortley who also had son Robert Hopkins of London. Stephen Hopkins was probably the young man of that name who served as minister's clerk on the vessel Sea Venture which sailed from London 2 June 1609, bound for Virginia. The ship was severely damaged in a hurricane, and the company was washed ashore on the Bermudan "Ile of Divels" on 28 July. The 150 survivors were marooned on the island for nine months, building two vessels which ultimately took them to Virginia. During the sojourn Stephen Hopkins encouraged an uprising by his fellows upon grounds that the Governor's authority pertained only to the voyage and the regime in Virginia, not to the forced existence in Bermuda. For his remarks he was placed under guard, brought before the company in manacles and sentenced to death by court-martial. "But so penitent hee was and made so much moane, alleadging the ruine of his Wife and Children in this his trespasse," according to William Strachey's record of the voyage, that friends among his cohorts procured a pardon from the Governor. The two newly built vessels, the Patience and the Deliverance, arrived at Jamestown on 24 May 1610, but no evidence has been found of Hopkins' residence there, and it is presumed he soon returned to his family in England. Strachey noted that while Hopkins was very religious, he was contentious and defiant of authority and possessed enough learning to undertake to wrest leadership from others. The home in England of Stephen Hopkins was just outside of London Wall on the high road entering the city at Aldgate in the vicinity of Heneage House. In this neighborhood lived John Carver and William Bradford of the Mayflower company; Robert Cushman, the London agent for the Pilgrims; and Edward Southworth, who later came to New England. Stephen was called a tanner or leathermaker at the time of the Mayflower voyage. The name of Stephen's first wife remains unknown. No authority has been found for the oft published identification of her as Constance Dudley. His second wife was named Elizabeth, and it seems certain that the marriage of Stephen Hopkins and Elizabeth Fisher on 19 Feb. 1617/18 at St. Mary Matfellon, Whitechapel, London, pertains to them. Stephen, wife Elizabeth and children Giles and Constance by first wife and daughter Damaris by second wife, and two men servants, Edward Doty and Edward Lister, came on the Mayflower. Son Oceanus was born during the voyage. Upon the ship's arrival at Cape Cod 11 Nov. 1620, Stephen was among the men signing the Mayflower Compact in the cabin. He was one of three men designated to provide counsel and advice to Captain Myles Standish on the first land expedition of the Pilgrims in the New World. During the third day out, the company chanced upon an Indian deer trap, and Stephen was able to explain its function and danger to his fellows. In February of 1620/21, when Indians appeared on a neighboring hilltop, Captain Standish took Stephen Hopkins with him to negotiate with the savages. Thereafter, Stephen was invariably deputized to meet the Indians and act as an interpreter. In July of 1621 he served as envoy to friendly Chief Massasoit, and he made a friend for the colonists of Samoset, another Indian whom Stephen entertained in his home. Despite the mortality caused by tribulations of the first Pilgrim winter in New England, Stephen Hopkins' houshold of eight persons was one of only four households that escaped loss. Stephen Hopkins was referred to as a merchant and a planter in Plymouth records, aso as "Gentleman" and "Master." He received a six-acre lot in the division of land in 1623 and later had other plots by grant or purchase. It is stated that he kept for his home throughout his life at Plymouth the lot on the easterly corner of Main and Leyden Streets that had been assigned to him on arrival. He built and owned the first wharf in Plymouth Colony of which there is record, selling it for sixty pounds in July of 1637. He built a house at Yarmouth on Cape Cod but returned to Plymouth and gave the Yarmouth dwelling to son Giles, who remained there. Stephen Hopkins was made freeman by 1633 and served with sons Giles and Caleb and son-in-law Jacobe Cooke as "Voluntary" in the Pequot War of 1637. He held the position of Assistant in the Colony from at least 1633 to 1636. Probably because of his status in the Colony as a "stranger", Stephen Hopkins found himself on occasion in official difficulty. In June of 1636, while serving as Assistant, he was fined for battery of John Tisdale. In 1637 and 1638 he was charged with various indiscretions involving the sale of intoxicants and other items at his dwelling. In 1638/9 he was found in contempt of court for refusing to deal fairly with Dorothy Temple, an apprentice girl, and in December of 1639 he was charged with selling a looking glass at an excessive price. The will of Stephen Hopkins, dated 6 June 1644, was proved upon testimony of William Bradford and Captain Myles Standish at a General Court at Plymouth on 20 Aug. 1644. Calling himself of Plymouth in New England and "weake yet in good and prfect memory," he directed that his body be "buryed as neare as convenyently may be to my wyfe, Deceased." He made these bequests: To son Giles Hopkins the great bull now in the hands of Mris. Warren. To Steven Hopkins "my sonn Giles his sonne," 20 shillings in Mris. Warren's hands for the hire of said bull. To dau. Constanc Snow, wife of Nicholas, "my mare." To dau. Deborah Hopkins "the brodhorned black cowe and her calf and half the Cowe called Motley." To dau. Damaris Hopkins "the Cowe called Damaris heiffer and the white faced calf and half the cowe called Mottley." To dau. Ruth "the Cowe called Red Cole and her calfe and a Bull at Yarmouth wch is in the keepeing of Giles Hopkins wch is an yeare and advantage old and half the curld Cowe." To dau. Elizabeth "the Cowe called Smykins and her calf and thother half of the Curld Cowe wth Ruth and an yearelinge heiffer wthout a tayle in the keepeing of Gyles Hopkins at Yarmouth." To four daus. Deborah, Damaris, Ruth and Elizabeth Hopkins, all the moveable goods that belonged to his house, "and in case any of my said daughters should be taken away by death before they be marryed the...their division to be equally devided amongst the Survivors." To son Caleb, "heire apparent," house and lands at Plymouth, one pair of oxen and the hire of them, then in the hands of Richard Church, and "all my debts which are now oweing unto me." The testator reserved to his daus. "free recourse to my house in Plymouth upon any occation there to abide and remayne for such tyme as any of them shall thinke meete and convenyent & they single persons." He named son Caleb as executor, and Caleb and Captain Standish as joint supervisors of the will. The inventory of his goods, taken by Captain Standis, Thomas Willet and John Doane on 17 July 1644, listed livestock (fifteen neat cattle, a horse and other stock), household goods, clothing, tools and more than seventeen pounds owed to Hopkins by debtors. The estate was given a total value of about 130 pounds. The division of his moveable estate to daus. Deborah, Damaris, Ruth and Elizabeth was made by son Caleb and Captain Standish on 30 Nov. 1644. In his list of the Mayflower passengers, Governor Bradford included: "Mr. Steven Hopkins, and Elizabeth, his wife, and 2 children, caled Giles, and Constanta, a doughter, both by a former wife; and 2 more by his wife caled Damaris and Oceanus; the last was borne at sea; and two servants, called Edward Doty and Edward Lister." Taking note of changes after 30 years, Bradford wrote of the Hopkins family in the spring of 1651: "Mr. Hopkins and his wife are now both dead, but they lived above 20 years in this place, and had one sone and 4 doughters borne here. Ther sone became a seaman, and dyed at Barbadoes; one daughter dyed here, and 2 are maried, one of them hath 2 children; and one is yet to mary. So their increase which still survive are 5. But his sone Giles is maried and hath 4 children. His doughter Constanta is also maried, and hath 12 children, all of them living, and one of them maried"

).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of Stephen11 Hopkins (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)" and Elizabeth Fisher (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)" (see #1295) were as follows:


 
i.
Damaris10 (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. III, page 7.) was born in 1619 at England.  She died circa 1627 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     (an unknown value) (Was alive in 1627 but prob. the dau. reported by Bradford to have "dyed here").  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).


 
ii.
Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 7.) was born in 1620.  He died before 25 May 1627.

     (an unknown value) (Born aboard the Mayflower).  John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).


 
iii.
Caleb (1366)XE "Hopkins:Caleb  (1366) (circa 1622-before 3 Apr 1651)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 7.) was born circa 1622 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He died before 3 Apr 1651.

     (an unknown value) (Son perhaps youngest, of Stephen the first, but old enough to bear arms 1643, died at Barbados, probably unmarried yet called "heir apparent," and made excor.

in the will of his father of 6 June 1644; which makes more remarkable the fact of Giles being elder son as related by Gov. Bradford, and raises a doubt, whether the father had not been overruled to injusty by his second wife. He was a "voluntary" with his father and older brother when about fifteen; called "heire apparent" in father's will, while brother Giles was living; Caleb and Myles Standish were executors of Stephen Hopkin's will of 1644; Caleb "became a seaman, & dyed at Barbadoes," according to Governor Bradford

).


 
iv.
Deborah (1367)XE "Hopkins:Deborah  (1367) (circa 1625-before 1674)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 7 & 12.) was born circa 1625 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She married Andrew Ringe (2250)XE "Ringe:Andrew  (2250) (1615-1693)" on 23 Apr 1646 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 626.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:130].).  She died before 1674.


 647.
v.
Damaris (1349).XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1349) (after 1627-circa 1668)"

 
vi.
Ruth (1369)XE "Hopkins:Ruth  (1369) (circa 1630-after 30 Nov 1644)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 7.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.) was born circa 1630 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.).  She died after 30 Nov 1644 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.).

     (an unknown value) (died unmarried).


 
vii.
Elizabeth (1370)XE "Hopkins:Elizabeth  (1370) (circa 1632-after Oct 1657)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 7.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.) was born circa 1632 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.).  She died after Oct 1657. Believed to have died by 6 October 1659 when her property was appraised "in case Elizabeth Hopkins do come no more" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 988.).

     (an unknown value) (died unmarried).

1295.  Elizabeth11 Fisher (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 7.) married Stephen Hopkins (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)" on 19 Feb 1618 at St. Mary Matfellon (Whitechapel), London, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 387.).  She died after 4 Feb 1639 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     John (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)", Elizabeth (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)", John (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)", Joan (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)", Francis (1113)XE "Cooke:Francis  (1113) (after Aug 1583-7 Apr 1663)", John (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)", Joseph (1232)XE "Rogers:Joseph  (1232) (before 23 Jan 1603-15 Aug 1677)", Thomas (1234)XE "Rogers:Thomas  (1234) (circa 1572-circa 1621)", Edward (1325)XE "Doten:Edward  (1325) (-23 Aug 1655)", Stephen (1359)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)", Elizabeth (1360)XE "Fisher:Elizabeth  (1360) (-after 4 Feb 1639)", Constance (1363)XE "Hopkins:Constance  (1363) (circa 1607-Oct 1677)", Giles (1364)XE "Hopkins:Giles  (1364) (circa 1609-5 Mar 1689)", Oceanus (1365)XE "Hopkins:Oceanus  (1365) (1620-before 25 May 1627)", Damaris (1368)XE "Hopkins:Damaris  (1368) (1619-circa 1627)" and Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

1344.  John11 Fyshe (4808)XE "Fyshe:John  (4808) (1555-19 Feb 1622)" (Augustine, #2688) (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 5.) was born in 1555.  He married Margaret Cradock? (4809).XE "Cradock?:Margaret  (4809) (-1631)"  He died on 19 Feb 1622 at Great Bowden. Will of John Fyshe , filed 1622

Leicester wills - No. 102

Will of John Fysh of Bowden, Magna, proved 1623/24 2 jan. (sic): I John Fysh of Bowden, Magna, county of Leicester, yeoman, being sick of body do ordain and make, etc. To William Fish my second son and his heirs, one old cottage with two cow pastures and ten sheep, commons adjoining unto his dwelling house, which I purchased of Sir Thomas Gryfin. To Francis Fish my fifth son, one cottage with a close and orchard now in the occupation of Richard Winant, laborer. To Robert Fish of Market Harborough, my son-in-law [who married Alice Fish], one piece of meadow in little Bowden field, called Stony Holme. To Thomas, eldest son of Robert and Alice, Five arable lands in Lubnam brook, now in his occupation. To Elizabeth Ashton, my niece, one cottage with two cow pastures and ten sheep common, she paying yearly for the same unto John Fish my youngest son 6s.8d during her natural life providing that John shall have power to cut, lop and carry away wood. To John Fish my youngest son and his heirs, three closes which I purchased of my kinsman William Cradock of Farndon, one lying west of town betwixt the land of John Fish and Richard  Kirbie, another in the middle of the town, next to the land of Jeffrey Parsons and John Mason, and one in yeast and next to the lands of Francis Fish and Thomas Wells the younger, also the old cottage after the death of Elizabeth Ashton, my niece, and all my timber except one tazletre and a squared piece of my myle, which I give unto my eldes son Austin (Augustine) Fish further except the mylln post, and give it unto Austin Fish my eldes son, he paying his mother 40s, residue to Margaret my wife, whom executrix.

Signed: John Fysh  I.F.  (seal)

                                    (divided by a Spray of roses)

Witnesses: Augustine Fish - William Hallick

Proved 9 mar. (sic.) by relict and executrix.

     (an unknown value) (The Ancestral Line of the early immigrants to New England, as now certainly known, begins with John Fyshe of Market Harborow, Great Bowden Parish. John was of the yeoman class. The record of his marriage is not found in the parish but all his children were baptized there. Most of them reached maturity and married, and their families are well accounted for in the wills of John and Margaret).

     Children of John11 Fyshe (4808)XE "Fyshe:John  (4808) (1555-19 Feb 1622)" and Margaret Cradock? (4809)XE "Cradock?:Margaret  (4809) (-1631)" (see #1345) were as follows:


 
i.
Augustine10 (4819)XE "Fyshe:Augustine  (4819) (before 11 Jun 1578-29 Apr 1646)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 11 Jun 1578 at Great Bowden.  He was baptized on 11 Jun 1578 at Great Bowden.  He married Christian (--?--) (4820).XE "(--?--):Christian  (4820)"  He died on 29 Apr 1646.


 
ii.
William (4821)XE "Fyshe:William  (4821) (before 9 Mar 1581-13 Sep 1658)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 9 Mar 1581.  He was baptized on 9 Mar 1581 at Great Bowden.  He married Anne Parsons (4822)XE "Parsons:Anne  (4822)" in 1620.  He died on 13 Sep 1658.


 
iii.
Kathryn (4823)XE "Fyshe:Kathryn  (4823) (before 15 Apr 1582-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 15 Apr 1582.  She was baptized on 15 Apr 1582 at Great Bowden.


 672.
iv.
Thomas (4805).XE "Fysh:Thomas  (4805) (before 8 May 1584-12 Jan 1674)"

 
v.
Sara (4824)XE "Fyshe:Sara  (4824) (before 11 Apr 1586-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 11 Apr 1586.  She was baptized on 11 Apr 1586 at Great Bowden.  She married John Johnson (4825)XE "Johnson:John  (4825)" in 1604.


 
vi.
Ambrose (4826)XE "Fyshe:Ambrose  (4826) (before 6 Jul 1588-1628)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 6 Jul 1588.  He was baptized on 6 Jul 1588 at Market Harborough.  He died in 1628.


 
vii.
May (4827)XE "Fyshe:May  (4827) (before 20 Dec 1589-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 20 Dec 1589.


 
viii.
Elizabeth (4828)XE "Fyshe:Elizabeth  (4828) (before 15 Nov 1591-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America.) was born before 15 Nov 1591.  She was baptized on 15 Nov 1591.  She married Edward Marston (4829)XE "Marston:Edward  (4829)" in 1616.


 
ix.
Francis (4830)XE "Fyshe:Francis  (4830) (before 29 Oct 1593-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 29 Oct 1593.  He was baptized on 29 Oct 1593.


 
x.
Anne (4831)XE "Fyshe:Anne  (4831) (before 2 Jun 1596-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 2 Jun 1596.  She was baptized on 2 Jun 1596.


 
xi.
Alice (4832)XE "Fyshe:Alice  (4832) (before 6 Nov 1597-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 6 Nov 1597.  She was baptized on 6 Nov 1597.  She married Robert Fyshe (4833)XE "Fyshe:Robert  (4833)" in 1618.


 
xii.
Mary (4834)XE "Fyshe:Mary  (4834) (before 8 Dec 1599-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 8 Dec 1599.


 
xiii.
John (4835)XE "Fyshe:John  (4835) (before 26 Jan 1602-        )" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 6.) was born before 26 Jan 1602.  He was baptized on 26 Jan 1602.

1345.  Margaret11 Cradock? (4809)XE "Cradock?:Margaret  (4809) (-1631)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 5.) married John Fyshe (4808).XE "Fyshe:John  (4808) (1555-19 Feb 1622)"  She died in 1631.

1346.  William11 Sprigge (4807)XE "Sprigge:William  (4807)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 10.).

     Children of William11 Sprigge (4807)XE "Sprigge:William  (4807)" include:


 673.
i.
Mary10 (4806).XE "Sprigge:Mary  (4806) (24 Jan 1585-        )"
 [image: image14.png]Wicoes Gondbois





1360.  Nicholas11 Butler (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47 to 49 and Vol. II, page 54 to 58.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 321.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 84.) was born circa 1595 at Ashford, Kent, England.  He married Mary Cotterell (1410)XE "Cotterell:Mary  (1410) (-Aug 1623)" on 18 Jul 1613 at St. George's, Canterbury, Kent, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He married Joyce Baker (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)" on 22 Jan 1624 at Ashford, Kent, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died on 13 Aug 1671 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA. [Dukes Deeds, I, 313]

Mr. Nicholas Butler Deceased the 13th of August in the year of our Lord one thousand Six hundred Seventy one

The Record of his will:

This doth testify that I Nicholas Butler Being at present Sound in memory doe Now by this my last will give my Estate Whatsoever that I left after I Shall be buried like a Christian wholly unto my wife Joyce Butler, uppon serious consideration for her to dispose of to hir children and my children as shee shall see good, and hereunto I praise [god] being of memorie as aforesaid Sound. I doe witness with my hand this 12th of August 1671. 

This will is witnessed 

by us

Thomas Mayhew         His sight as it

Tho' Birchard         were gon

                             the mar X of

The marke of          NICHOLAS BUTLER

Nicholas Norton

Mrs. Joyce Butler is By the worshipfull Govornour and Assistants Sitting in Court this 26th day of June 1672, admitted Administratrix & Executrix uppon the Estate of Mr. Nicholas Butler deceased.

The Inventory of the Estate.

Imprimis

To one common & half with house, fence & all priveledges £80-00-00

to fiveteen pound of pewter at 1s8d £01-02-06

to twelve pound of pewter at 1s 2d £00-14-00

to 8 pound of pewter at 1s 6d £00-12-00

to one Silver Boule £03-07-00

to a Brass Candlestick £00-02-00

to 3 brass kettles at 1s pr pound £03-00-00

to two Iron potts, one frying pan and dripping panne £02-10-00

to one trammell, 2 payer of tonges, one payer of Andirons & Spitt £00-15-00                

The inventory of the estate, amouting to £92-0-6, is remarkable for the paucity of articles which should belong to a gentleman of his standing in life. It may be that he had given his household furniture, etc., to his children during his life.

Whether his wife Joyce was the mother of all his children is placed in the doubtful category by the apparently careful way in which he refers to "her children and my children," as though she had been a widow with children or that he had children by a former wife. No allusion is made in her will to children by a former husband. She survived as Nicholas Butler's widow for eight years, and died between March 13 and Oct. 28, 1680, leaving an estate valued at £165-2-0 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 56.).

     (an unknown value) (Came from England with the Hercules of Sandwich, being John Witherley, Master. When this ship sailed from Sandwich is not known, but the following list of passengers 'for the American Plantations,' in the corporation records of Sandwich, is 'certified under the seal of the office of Mayoralty, 9 June, 1637.' All these passengers settled in New England. Winthrop states, under date of June 3, that 'Two ships arrived here out of England (Mr. Peirce was one),' and the Hercules may be the other. For sixteen years prior to his settlement on the Vineyard, Butler had resided at Dorchester, Mass., whither he emigrated in 1636 from England. The ship's list names Nicholas Butler with three children and five servants as coming from Eastwell, Co. Kent, in that year, of whom John, who came here, probably with his father, and Lydia who married John Minot of Dorchester, May 19, 1647, are two. When he came to the Vineyard he was well into middle life. Though the date of his birth is not known, yet the knowledge existing of his children's ages enables us to proximately fix his birth about the years 1595-1600, and his age at fifty-five when he took up his residence at Edgartown. That he was a man considerably above the social average is shown by the number of his servants, the fact that his son Henry was a graduate of Harvard College (class of 1651), and this standing was at once recognized in his new home, for he became in 1653 one of the "five men to end controversies," that is magistrate.  The next year he was again chosen and in 1655 he was re-elected and called "Assistant" to the chief magistrate. In all the records he is called Mr. Butler or Mr. Nicholas Butler, a use of which prefix is distinctive. 

In December, 1661, he was fined for absence from town meeting and "for Going away Disorderly." Beyond the usual duty on juries and an occasinal trivial litigation his name does not further appear upon the town records. The following is the account of his landed possessions:-

This is a True Record of the petickeler parcells of Land of Mr. Nicolas Butler, which Lands are upon Marhtas Vineyard Partickraly as followeth: first my house Lott with that Lott which I Bought of Mr. John Bland: adjoining to it is Twenty acres More or Less with one acre of Meadow I Bought of Mr. Browning, Bounded by the Sea on the East, Mr. Blands Lott on the South, the Plaine on the West, John Butler on the North: with my Divedent att Catemy forty acres, More or Less, Bounded By the Sea on the East, the Sea on the South, Mr. Blands lands on the West, the Plaine the Sea on the North: More two thach Lotts, one Lying (at) Meshackett Bounded by John Foulger on the West, John Doggett on the East: the other Lying att Monaqua Bounded By Thos Doggett on the West, John Pease on the East: this hath four acres of upland Joyning to itt More or Less: More one Ten acre Lott upon the Line Bounded by Thomas Burchard on the East, the Common on the South, Thomas Doggett on the West, The Common the North: More Two acres of Meadow Lying att Chapequideck Bounded By the Pond on the North Lying over against my house, Mr. Mayhew the youngers Meadow on the South: this Meadow is two acres More or Less: More four Acres of Meadow to two Given to my house Lott and two I Bought of Thomas Joanse Lying on the North end of Chapequideck John Wakefield Now in Possession By his heirs Joyning to Mine is More or Less: More three acres of Meadow one Bought of Peter Foulger and Two of John Pease: this Meadow is More or Less Lying att the East End of Chapequideck Joyning and Bounded By Richard Smith on the North, By John Foulger on the South: with a full Commonage  and a Six and Twntyth part of fish and whale: More three acres att Crackatuxett Bounded By Mr Mayhew the Elder and Thomas Birchard. (Edgartown Records, I, 159)
His homestead lot was near Swimming Place Point, and consisted of twenty acres. Here he lived having as a next northerly neighbor his son John, from whom descends all of the name on the Vineyard.

Nicholas Butler died Aug. 13, 1671, the day after his will was made. That he was an old and feeble man seems to be clearly evidenced by the curious reference to the "mark" which he used to indicate his signature, "his sight as it were Gon").  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of Nicholas11 Butler (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)" and Joyce Baker (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)" (see #1361) were as follows:


 680.
i.
John10 (1406).XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)"

 
ii.
Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.) was born before 7 Sep 1626.  He was baptized on 7 Sep 1626 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).  He married Anne Bishop (2260)XE "Bishop:Anne  (2260) (before 22 Oct 1616-before Aug 1673)" on 9 Mar 1655 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 126.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).  He died before 28 Apr 1696.  His body was interred on 28 Apr 1696 at Witham Friary (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).

     (an unknown value) (Grad. H. C. 1651; taught school Dorchester until 1656 when he returned to England and became dissenting preacher at Dorchester, Co. Dorset and Yeovil, Co. Somerset. His last service, after many persecutions and imprisonments, was at Witham Friary, Somerset, where he d. and was bur. 28 Apr. 1696. He m. Anne, dau. of Thomas and Avis (Abbott) Bishop of Bridgeport, Dorset 9 Mch. 1655 at Dorchester, Mass. She was bapt. 22 Oct. 1616 and had m. (1) John Holman of Dorchester. She was a widow with five children when she m. Henry Butler and eight years his senior. She d. prior to Aug. 1673 and h m. (2) Mary -----. His last words were these: "A broken and a contrite heart, O God, Thou wilt not despise." (Calamy, Ejected Ministers, 11, 611; Comp. Mass. Arch. XV.78; Suffolk Deeds, IX. 46; Dorchester Records, 309, 313, 316)

).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).  Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)" graduated from Harvard College in 1651 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).


 
iii.
Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born before 23 Feb 1629.  She was baptized on 23 Feb 1629 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  She married John Minot (2261)XE "Minot:John  (2261) (1626-1669)" on 19 May 1647 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 512.).  She died on 25 Jan 1667. An elegy on her death was printed (see Minot Genealogy p. 12) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.

).

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
iv.
Thomas (1416)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1416) (before 28 Aug 1631-before 24 Sep 1631)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born before 28 Aug 1631.  He was baptized on 28 Aug 1631 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  He died before 24 Sep 1631.  His body was interred on 24 Sep 1631 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).

1361.  Joyce11 Baker (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)" (Richard, #2722) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47 and Vol. II, page 57 & 58.) was born before 30 May 1602 at Ashford, Kent, England.  She was baptized on 30 May 1602.  She married Nicholas Butler (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)" on 22 Jan 1624 at Ashford, Kent, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She died after 13 Mar 1680 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA. [Dukes Deeds, I, 314]

I, Joice Butler being through Gods blessing at present, of sound memory and understanding, doe make this my last will, and testament: Revoking all former whatsoever; and first my will is and I will and bequeath to my son Hennerie Butler, my Silver Boule and a carpet, & to each of his three sonnes, one Silver Spoone:

Nextly, I will and bequeath, to my Grandson John Butler, all the brass of the kitchen; and to my Grandson Thomas Butler one iron pottaage pott, an Iron Kettle, and my bead, Beadstead, and all the furniture belonging to it, as it is in present use, as two pair of blanketts, two pillows &c- . And I Give mor to my Grandson John Butler, all the Bead and Beading above stairs:

Nextly, I will and bequeath, all my linnen, to be Equally devided Between my Grandchildren, John and Thomas Butler, and Mary Athearn.

And Nextly, I will and Bequeath, to my three Grandchildren aforesaid, all my Great Cattle, to be Equally devided among them, that is to say, John Butler, Thomas Butler and Mary Athearn: Except only that my Grandson Thomas Butler, shall have two more to his part; and one heifer, before the devision set apart, which heifer I doe will and bequeath to my Grandson Samuell Minott:

And my will is, and I bequeath all my Sheep to my two Grandsons John Butler, and Thomas Butler, to be Equally devided between them:

Nextly, I will and bequeath to my Grandson Thomas Butler, my Dwelling house, with the long Table and hanging Cupboard, and to my Grandson John Butler, my cupboard, and Chest which was Joseph Butlers: and to my Granddaughter Mary Athearn, my Chest and two joint Stools: and as to my Chaires, I give the table Chaires to my Grandson Thomas Butler: the remainder of the Chaires, I leave to be Equally devided between my Grandchildren, John, and Thomas Butler and Mary Athearn.

Nextly my will is, and I doe oblige my two Grandsons John and Thomas Butler that they shall pay to my Grand Daughter Hannah Chadduck, two hundred wight of fleece wool, yearly fivety pounds, untill it is payed which is within four years:

And as to Lands, I will Bequeath, all my lands with the privelledges and appurtenances, to my Grandson Thomas Butler and my pewter, I will to be Divided, as my linnen as abovesaid, viz: between my Grandchildren John and Thomas Butler and Mary Athearn.

And lastly I Appoint my Grandson John Butler to be Sole Execcutor and Administrator, to this my last will, and my will is, and I doe Request my friendes Mr. Richard Sarson, and Matthew Mayhew, to be overseers that it may be performed:

And in witness of this my last will and Testament I the said Joice Butler have put hereto my hand and Seall, this thirteenth day of March, in the year of our Lord, one Thousand, Six hundred Seventy & nine, Alias Eighty

Witness                 JOICE BUTLER

Matt: Mayhew             her I B marke

Richard Sarson.

The inventory of the Estate of Mrs. Joice Butler deceased taken by Joseph Norton and Thomas Trapp Octobr : 28th : 1680.

the lands and accommodations

a five and twentieth lot Valued at £40-00-00

half a commonage £08-00-00

land at the Short Neck £02-00-00

two shares & half of Meadow not of said accommodations £12-00-00

The moveable Estate valued at 102 pd 12s £102-12-00 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 56.).

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

1362.  Thomas11 Lynde (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 296.) was born circa 1594 at Dunstable, Charlestown, Bedford, England.  He married Mary unknown (1425)XE "unknown:Mary  (1425)" circa 1615 at Charlestown, Bedford, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He married Margaret Martin (1426)XE "Martin:Margaret  (1426) (-3 Aug 1662)" circa 1633 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He married Rebecca Trerice (1436)XE "Trerice:Rebecca  (1436) (-8 Dec 1688)" on 6 Dec 1665 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He died on 30 Dec 1671.

     (an unknown value) (Thomas, malster, Charlestown, admitted to the Church with wife Margerite 4 (12) 1634. Freeman (citizen) March 4, 1634-5. Proprietor; deputy. He gave letter of attorney 30 (10) 1647, to John Allen of Char. to ask of the Chamberlain of the city of London, Eng. the spending money due Henry Jordan, whose guardian he was, on account of Pounds XL paid into the Chamber 8 Oct. 1633, by Margaret Jordan (now his wife) for the use of Henry, son and orphan of Henry Jordan, late citizen and cutler of London. A receipt to her, as widow of H. J., dated 15 May, 1632, and one to Thomas Lynde of Dunstable, co. Bedford, yeoman, her husband, 8 Oct., 1633, are anexed. He and his wife Rebecca made deed of gift to her dau. Rebecca, wife of Thomas Jenner in 1670. His wife d. Aug. 23, 1662; he m. Dec. 6, 1665, Rebecca Trerice; she d. an aged woman, Dec. 8, 1688. Probably came on the Griffin. This ship arrived at Boston September 18, 1634, with about one hundred passengers and cattle  for the plantations. (Winthrop: Journal, I, 134). Freeman 4 Mar. 1635, rep. 1636, 7, 45, and sev. yrs. more, selectman 14 yrs. and a deac. He d. dec. 30, 1671. Will dated 21 Dec, prob. 2 (12) 1671, beq. to wife Rebecca, sons Joseph, Samuel and Thomas, son-in-law Robert Pierpoint in right of his wife, dau. Hannah Trerise, dau. Mary Wicks (first wife of John Butler) of Sucenessett; to teaching elder of the church; to widow Syms

).  Thomas (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" immigrated to Boston, Mass., USA on 18 Sep 1634 at.

     Children of Thomas11 Lynde (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" and Mary unknown (1425)XE "unknown:Mary  (1425)" (see #1363) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (1427)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1427) (circa 1616-15 Oct 1693)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136 & 137.) was born circa 1616 at England.  He married Elizabeth Tufts (2252)XE "Tufts:Elizabeth  (2252) (1612-1693)" before 1647 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He died on 15 Oct 1693.

     (an unknown value) (Freeman 1645).
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ii.
Mary (1407).XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)"

 
iii.
Henry (1428)XE "Lynde:Henry  (1428) (after 1630-9 Apr 1646)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136.) was born after 1630.  He died on 9 Apr 1646.

1363.  Mary11 unknown (1425)XE "unknown:Mary  (1425)" married Thomas Lynde (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" circa 1615 at Charlestown, Bedford, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).

1364.  Nicholas11 Norton (1450)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1450) (1562-1616)" (William, #2728) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 343 & 344.) was born in 1562 at England.  He died in 1616 at England.

     (an unknown value) (Nicholas Norton, the father of the emigrant, removed from White Lackington with his father when a child, and died there at the age of 54 years (1616) as described in the chancery suit. That he was a man above the average is shown by the fact of his occupying the position of church warde of the parish (1599) but as the parish register does not exist prior to 1678 it is not possible at present to determine the names of but half of his eigh children. The attested copies of parish registers then required by church law preserved the names of three of them and the chancery suit furnishes the name of his eldest son. Unfortunately, the Bishops Transcripts of Broadway Parish in the Disceasan Registry at Wells for the years  1609-11 inclusive, the particular years in which we should undoubtedly find the bapttism of our Nicholas whose birth fell, as we know, within thoes years are missing from the files. The occurrence of the names Joseph and Nicholas in the Broadway family which were also distinctive in the Vineyard family together with other collateral circumstances makes it practically certain that we have here the parentage and home of the first of this family to settle on Martha's Vineyard. All other clues habe been carefully followed out and give no such marked combination of the probabilities as does this, and the author is satisfied that it is the right solution. Broadway, situated in the Hundred of Bulstones, is so called, because it consists of one wide street leading from Ilminster two miles distant to the Forest of Roche on the West. It has about fifty houses with about 300 population and two religious edifices, one belonging to the Church of England, dedicated to S. Aldhelm, where the parents of Nicholas Norton worshipped, and a dissenting chaple of which latter named the present minister is the Rev. John W. Standerwick, a direct descendant of the Ricahrd Standerwick, who had the business dealings with Nicholas Norton

).

     Children of Nicholas11 Norton (1450)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1450) (1562-1616)" include:


 
i.
James10 (1455)XE "Norton:James  (1455) (-before 1678)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.

) died before 1678.


 
ii.
Joan (1454)XE "Norton:Joan  (1454) (-before 1598)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) died before 1598.


 
iii.
John (1453)XE "Norton:John  (1453) (circa 1590-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) was born circa 1590.  He died.


 
iv.
Joseph (1456)XE "Norton:Joseph  (1456) (before 3 Feb 1607-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) was born before 3 Feb 1607.  He died.
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v.
Nicholas (1448).XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)"

 
vi.
Elizabeth (1457)XE "Norton:Elizabeth  (1457) (before 1612-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) was born before 1612.  She died.

 [image: image15.png]Wicoes Gondbois





1392.  Nicholas11 Butler (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47 to 49 and Vol. II, page 54 to 58.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. I, page 321.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 84.) was born circa 1595 at Ashford, Kent, England.  He married Mary Cotterell (1410)XE "Cotterell:Mary  (1410) (-Aug 1623)" on 18 Jul 1613 at St. George's, Canterbury, Kent, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He married Joyce Baker (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)" on 22 Jan 1624 at Ashford, Kent, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  He died on 13 Aug 1671 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA. [Dukes Deeds, I, 313]

Mr. Nicholas Butler Deceased the 13th of August in the year of our Lord one thousand Six hundred Seventy one

The Record of his will:

This doth testify that I Nicholas Butler Being at present Sound in memory doe Now by this my last will give my Estate Whatsoever that I left after I Shall be buried like a Christian wholly unto my wife Joyce Butler, uppon serious consideration for her to dispose of to hir children and my children as shee shall see good, and hereunto I praise [god] being of memorie as aforesaid Sound. I doe witness with my hand this 12th of August 1671. 

This will is witnessed 

by us

Thomas Mayhew         His sight as it

Tho' Birchard         were gon

                             the mar X of

The marke of          NICHOLAS BUTLER

Nicholas Norton

Mrs. Joyce Butler is By the worshipfull Govornour and Assistants Sitting in Court this 26th day of June 1672, admitted Administratrix & Executrix uppon the Estate of Mr. Nicholas Butler deceased.

The Inventory of the Estate.

Imprimis

To one common & half with house, fence & all priveledges £80-00-00

to fiveteen pound of pewter at 1s8d £01-02-06

to twelve pound of pewter at 1s 2d £00-14-00

to 8 pound of pewter at 1s 6d £00-12-00

to one Silver Boule £03-07-00

to a Brass Candlestick £00-02-00

to 3 brass kettles at 1s pr pound £03-00-00

to two Iron potts, one frying pan and dripping panne £02-10-00

to one trammell, 2 payer of tonges, one payer of Andirons & Spitt £00-15-00                

The inventory of the estate, amouting to £92-0-6, is remarkable for the paucity of articles which should belong to a gentleman of his standing in life. It may be that he had given his household furniture, etc., to his children during his life.

Whether his wife Joyce was the mother of all his children is placed in the doubtful category by the apparently careful way in which he refers to "her children and my children," as though she had been a widow with children or that he had children by a former wife. No allusion is made in her will to children by a former husband. She survived as Nicholas Butler's widow for eight years, and died between March 13 and Oct. 28, 1680, leaving an estate valued at £165-2-0 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 56.).

     (an unknown value) (Came from England with the Hercules of Sandwich, being John Witherley, Master. When this ship sailed from Sandwich is not known, but the following list of passengers 'for the American Plantations,' in the corporation records of Sandwich, is 'certified under the seal of the office of Mayoralty, 9 June, 1637.' All these passengers settled in New England. Winthrop states, under date of June 3, that 'Two ships arrived here out of England (Mr. Peirce was one),' and the Hercules may be the other. For sixteen years prior to his settlement on the Vineyard, Butler had resided at Dorchester, Mass., whither he emigrated in 1636 from England. The ship's list names Nicholas Butler with three children and five servants as coming from Eastwell, Co. Kent, in that year, of whom John, who came here, probably with his father, and Lydia who married John Minot of Dorchester, May 19, 1647, are two. When he came to the Vineyard he was well into middle life. Though the date of his birth is not known, yet the knowledge existing of his children's ages enables us to proximately fix his birth about the years 1595-1600, and his age at fifty-five when he took up his residence at Edgartown. That he was a man considerably above the social average is shown by the number of his servants, the fact that his son Henry was a graduate of Harvard College (class of 1651), and this standing was at once recognized in his new home, for he became in 1653 one of the "five men to end controversies," that is magistrate.  The next year he was again chosen and in 1655 he was re-elected and called "Assistant" to the chief magistrate. In all the records he is called Mr. Butler or Mr. Nicholas Butler, a use of which prefix is distinctive. 

In December, 1661, he was fined for absence from town meeting and "for Going away Disorderly." Beyond the usual duty on juries and an occasinal trivial litigation his name does not further appear upon the town records. The following is the account of his landed possessions:-

This is a True Record of the petickeler parcells of Land of Mr. Nicolas Butler, which Lands are upon Marhtas Vineyard Partickraly as followeth: first my house Lott with that Lott which I Bought of Mr. John Bland: adjoining to it is Twenty acres More or Less with one acre of Meadow I Bought of Mr. Browning, Bounded by the Sea on the East, Mr. Blands Lott on the South, the Plaine on the West, John Butler on the North: with my Divedent att Catemy forty acres, More or Less, Bounded By the Sea on the East, the Sea on the South, Mr. Blands lands on the West, the Plaine the Sea on the North: More two thach Lotts, one Lying (at) Meshackett Bounded by John Foulger on the West, John Doggett on the East: the other Lying att Monaqua Bounded By Thos Doggett on the West, John Pease on the East: this hath four acres of upland Joyning to itt More or Less: More one Ten acre Lott upon the Line Bounded by Thomas Burchard on the East, the Common on the South, Thomas Doggett on the West, The Common the North: More Two acres of Meadow Lying att Chapequideck Bounded By the Pond on the North Lying over against my house, Mr. Mayhew the youngers Meadow on the South: this Meadow is two acres More or Less: More four Acres of Meadow to two Given to my house Lott and two I Bought of Thomas Joanse Lying on the North end of Chapequideck John Wakefield Now in Possession By his heirs Joyning to Mine is More or Less: More three acres of Meadow one Bought of Peter Foulger and Two of John Pease: this Meadow is More or Less Lying att the East End of Chapequideck Joyning and Bounded By Richard Smith on the North, By John Foulger on the South: with a full Commonage  and a Six and Twntyth part of fish and whale: More three acres att Crackatuxett Bounded By Mr Mayhew the Elder and Thomas Birchard. (Edgartown Records, I, 159)
His homestead lot was near Swimming Place Point, and consisted of twenty acres. Here he lived having as a next northerly neighbor his son John, from whom descends all of the name on the Vineyard.

Nicholas Butler died Aug. 13, 1671, the day after his will was made. That he was an old and feeble man seems to be clearly evidenced by the curious reference to the "mark" which he used to indicate his signature, "his sight as it were Gon").  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

     Children of Nicholas11 Butler (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)" and Joyce Baker (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)" (see #1361) were as follows:


 680.
i.
John10 (1406).XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)"

 
ii.
Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.) was born before 7 Sep 1626.  He was baptized on 7 Sep 1626 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).  He married Anne Bishop (2260)XE "Bishop:Anne  (2260) (before 22 Oct 1616-before Aug 1673)" on 9 Mar 1655 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 126.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).  He died before 28 Apr 1696.  His body was interred on 28 Apr 1696 at Witham Friary (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).

     (an unknown value) (Grad. H. C. 1651; taught school Dorchester until 1656 when he returned to England and became dissenting preacher at Dorchester, Co. Dorset and Yeovil, Co. Somerset. His last service, after many persecutions and imprisonments, was at Witham Friary, Somerset, where he d. and was bur. 28 Apr. 1696. He m. Anne, dau. of Thomas and Avis (Abbott) Bishop of Bridgeport, Dorset 9 Mch. 1655 at Dorchester, Mass. She was bapt. 22 Oct. 1616 and had m. (1) John Holman of Dorchester. She was a widow with five children when she m. Henry Butler and eight years his senior. She d. prior to Aug. 1673 and h m. (2) Mary -----. His last words were these: "A broken and a contrite heart, O God, Thou wilt not despise." (Calamy, Ejected Ministers, 11, 611; Comp. Mass. Arch. XV.78; Suffolk Deeds, IX. 46; Dorchester Records, 309, 313, 316)

).  John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).  Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)" graduated from Harvard College in 1651 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.).


 
iii.
Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born before 23 Feb 1629.  She was baptized on 23 Feb 1629 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  She married John Minot (2261)XE "Minot:John  (2261) (1626-1669)" on 19 May 1647 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 512.).  She died on 25 Jan 1667. An elegy on her death was printed (see Minot Genealogy p. 12) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.

).

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).


 
iv.
Thomas (1416)XE "Butler:Thomas  (1416) (before 28 Aug 1631-before 24 Sep 1631)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.) was born before 28 Aug 1631.  He was baptized on 28 Aug 1631 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).  He died before 24 Sep 1631.  His body was interred on 24 Sep 1631 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 48.).

1393.  Joyce11 Baker (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)" (Richard, #2722) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47 and Vol. II, page 57 & 58.) was born before 30 May 1602 at Ashford, Kent, England.  She was baptized on 30 May 1602.  She married Nicholas Butler (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)" on 22 Jan 1624 at Ashford, Kent, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 127.).  She died after 13 Mar 1680 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA. [Dukes Deeds, I, 314]

I, Joice Butler being through Gods blessing at present, of sound memory and understanding, doe make this my last will, and testament: Revoking all former whatsoever; and first my will is and I will and bequeath to my son Hennerie Butler, my Silver Boule and a carpet, & to each of his three sonnes, one Silver Spoone:

Nextly, I will and bequeath, to my Grandson John Butler, all the brass of the kitchen; and to my Grandson Thomas Butler one iron pottaage pott, an Iron Kettle, and my bead, Beadstead, and all the furniture belonging to it, as it is in present use, as two pair of blanketts, two pillows &c- . And I Give mor to my Grandson John Butler, all the Bead and Beading above stairs:

Nextly, I will and bequeath, all my linnen, to be Equally devided Between my Grandchildren, John and Thomas Butler, and Mary Athearn.

And Nextly, I will and Bequeath, to my three Grandchildren aforesaid, all my Great Cattle, to be Equally devided among them, that is to say, John Butler, Thomas Butler and Mary Athearn: Except only that my Grandson Thomas Butler, shall have two more to his part; and one heifer, before the devision set apart, which heifer I doe will and bequeath to my Grandson Samuell Minott:

And my will is, and I bequeath all my Sheep to my two Grandsons John Butler, and Thomas Butler, to be Equally devided between them:

Nextly, I will and bequeath to my Grandson Thomas Butler, my Dwelling house, with the long Table and hanging Cupboard, and to my Grandson John Butler, my cupboard, and Chest which was Joseph Butlers: and to my Granddaughter Mary Athearn, my Chest and two joint Stools: and as to my Chaires, I give the table Chaires to my Grandson Thomas Butler: the remainder of the Chaires, I leave to be Equally devided between my Grandchildren, John, and Thomas Butler and Mary Athearn.

Nextly my will is, and I doe oblige my two Grandsons John and Thomas Butler that they shall pay to my Grand Daughter Hannah Chadduck, two hundred wight of fleece wool, yearly fivety pounds, untill it is payed which is within four years:

And as to Lands, I will Bequeath, all my lands with the privelledges and appurtenances, to my Grandson Thomas Butler and my pewter, I will to be Divided, as my linnen as abovesaid, viz: between my Grandchildren John and Thomas Butler and Mary Athearn.

And lastly I Appoint my Grandson John Butler to be Sole Execcutor and Administrator, to this my last will, and my will is, and I doe Request my friendes Mr. Richard Sarson, and Matthew Mayhew, to be overseers that it may be performed:

And in witness of this my last will and Testament I the said Joice Butler have put hereto my hand and Seall, this thirteenth day of March, in the year of our Lord, one Thousand, Six hundred Seventy & nine, Alias Eighty

Witness                 JOICE BUTLER

Matt: Mayhew             her I B marke

Richard Sarson.

The inventory of the Estate of Mrs. Joice Butler deceased taken by Joseph Norton and Thomas Trapp Octobr : 28th : 1680.

the lands and accommodations

a five and twentieth lot Valued at £40-00-00

half a commonage £08-00-00

land at the Short Neck £02-00-00

two shares & half of Meadow not of said accommodations £12-00-00

The moveable Estate valued at 102 pd 12s £102-12-00 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 56.).

     John (1406)XE "Butler:John  (1406) (before 2 Jan 1625-1658)", Joyce (1408)XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)", Nicholas (1409)XE "Butler:Nicholas  (1409) (circa 1595-13 Aug 1671)", Henry (1414)XE "Butler:Henry  (1414) (before 7 Sep 1626-before 28 Apr 1696)", Lydia (1415)XE "Butler:Lydia  (1415) (before 23 Feb 1629-25 Jan 1667)", Susanna (1636)XE "Hinckley:Susanna  (1636) (before 6 Nov 1625-)", Samuel (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)", Sarah (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)", Thomas (1647)XE "Hinckley:Thomas  (1647) (before 19 Mar 1619-1705)", Sarah (1648)XE "Hinckley:Sarah  (1648) (before 22 Nov 1629-after 1679)", Mary (1652)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (1652) (before 18 Sep 1631-)", Jane (1717)XE "Hatch:Jane  (1717) (before 19 Jun 1631-1709)", William (1738)XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)", Jane (1739)XE "Young:Jane  (1739) (circa 1596-8 Oct 1653)", William (1750)XE "Hatch:William  (1750) (before 9 Aug 1629-circa 1657)", Walter (1751)XE "Hatch:Walter  (1751) (circa 1623-24 May 1699)", Ann (1752)XE "Hatch:Ann  (1752) (before 3 Dec 1626-)", Andrew (1753)XE "Hatch:Andrew  (1753) (before 3 Nov 1633-6 Nov 1633)", Nathaniel (3897)XE "Tilden:Nathaniel  (3897) (1583-1641)", Lydia (1185)XE "Bourne:Lydia  (1185)", Thomas (3898)XE "Tilden:Thomas  (3898) (before 19 Jan 1619-1705)" and Thomas (3888)XE "Lapham:Thomas  (3888) (-1648)" immigrated to New England in 1635 at (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 219 & 231.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 424.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, pages 217 to 226.).

1394.  Thomas11 Lynde (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 296.) was born circa 1594 at Dunstable, Charlestown, Bedford, England.  He married Mary unknown (1425)XE "unknown:Mary  (1425)" circa 1615 at Charlestown, Bedford, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He married Margaret Martin (1426)XE "Martin:Margaret  (1426) (-3 Aug 1662)" circa 1633 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He married Rebecca Trerice (1436)XE "Trerice:Rebecca  (1436) (-8 Dec 1688)" on 6 Dec 1665 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He died on 30 Dec 1671.

     (an unknown value) (Thomas, malster, Charlestown, admitted to the Church with wife Margerite 4 (12) 1634. Freeman (citizen) March 4, 1634-5. Proprietor; deputy. He gave letter of attorney 30 (10) 1647, to John Allen of Char. to ask of the Chamberlain of the city of London, Eng. the spending money due Henry Jordan, whose guardian he was, on account of Pounds XL paid into the Chamber 8 Oct. 1633, by Margaret Jordan (now his wife) for the use of Henry, son and orphan of Henry Jordan, late citizen and cutler of London. A receipt to her, as widow of H. J., dated 15 May, 1632, and one to Thomas Lynde of Dunstable, co. Bedford, yeoman, her husband, 8 Oct., 1633, are anexed. He and his wife Rebecca made deed of gift to her dau. Rebecca, wife of Thomas Jenner in 1670. His wife d. Aug. 23, 1662; he m. Dec. 6, 1665, Rebecca Trerice; she d. an aged woman, Dec. 8, 1688. Probably came on the Griffin. This ship arrived at Boston September 18, 1634, with about one hundred passengers and cattle  for the plantations. (Winthrop: Journal, I, 134). Freeman 4 Mar. 1635, rep. 1636, 7, 45, and sev. yrs. more, selectman 14 yrs. and a deac. He d. dec. 30, 1671. Will dated 21 Dec, prob. 2 (12) 1671, beq. to wife Rebecca, sons Joseph, Samuel and Thomas, son-in-law Robert Pierpoint in right of his wife, dau. Hannah Trerise, dau. Mary Wicks (first wife of John Butler) of Sucenessett; to teaching elder of the church; to widow Syms

).  Thomas (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" immigrated to Boston, Mass., USA on 18 Sep 1634 at.

     Children of Thomas11 Lynde (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" and Mary unknown (1425)XE "unknown:Mary  (1425)" (see #1363) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (1427)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1427) (circa 1616-15 Oct 1693)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136 & 137.) was born circa 1616 at England.  He married Elizabeth Tufts (2252)XE "Tufts:Elizabeth  (2252) (1612-1693)" before 1647 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).  He died on 15 Oct 1693.

     (an unknown value) (Freeman 1645).
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ii.
Mary (1407).XE "Lynde:Mary  (1407) (circa 1629-after 1693)"

 
iii.
Henry (1428)XE "Lynde:Henry  (1428) (after 1630-9 Apr 1646)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 136.) was born after 1630.  He died on 9 Apr 1646.

1395.  Mary11 unknown (1425)XE "unknown:Mary  (1425)" married Thomas Lynde (1424)XE "Lynde:Thomas  (1424) (circa 1594-30 Dec 1671)" circa 1615 at Charlestown, Bedford, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 481.).

1396.  Nicholas11 Norton (1450)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1450) (1562-1616)" (William, #2728) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 343 & 344.) was born in 1562 at England.  He died in 1616 at England.

     (an unknown value) (Nicholas Norton, the father of the emigrant, removed from White Lackington with his father when a child, and died there at the age of 54 years (1616) as described in the chancery suit. That he was a man above the average is shown by the fact of his occupying the position of church warde of the parish (1599) but as the parish register does not exist prior to 1678 it is not possible at present to determine the names of but half of his eigh children. The attested copies of parish registers then required by church law preserved the names of three of them and the chancery suit furnishes the name of his eldest son. Unfortunately, the Bishops Transcripts of Broadway Parish in the Disceasan Registry at Wells for the years  1609-11 inclusive, the particular years in which we should undoubtedly find the bapttism of our Nicholas whose birth fell, as we know, within thoes years are missing from the files. The occurrence of the names Joseph and Nicholas in the Broadway family which were also distinctive in the Vineyard family together with other collateral circumstances makes it practically certain that we have here the parentage and home of the first of this family to settle on Martha's Vineyard. All other clues habe been carefully followed out and give no such marked combination of the probabilities as does this, and the author is satisfied that it is the right solution. Broadway, situated in the Hundred of Bulstones, is so called, because it consists of one wide street leading from Ilminster two miles distant to the Forest of Roche on the West. It has about fifty houses with about 300 population and two religious edifices, one belonging to the Church of England, dedicated to S. Aldhelm, where the parents of Nicholas Norton worshipped, and a dissenting chaple of which latter named the present minister is the Rev. John W. Standerwick, a direct descendant of the Ricahrd Standerwick, who had the business dealings with Nicholas Norton

).

     Children of Nicholas11 Norton (1450)XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1450) (1562-1616)" include:


 
i.
James10 (1455)XE "Norton:James  (1455) (-before 1678)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.

) died before 1678.


 
ii.
Joan (1454)XE "Norton:Joan  (1454) (-before 1598)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) died before 1598.


 
iii.
John (1453)XE "Norton:John  (1453) (circa 1590-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) was born circa 1590.  He died.


 
iv.
Joseph (1456)XE "Norton:Joseph  (1456) (before 3 Feb 1607-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) was born before 3 Feb 1607.  He died.
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v.
Nicholas (1448).XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1448) (1610-circa 1690)"

 
vi.
Elizabeth (1457)XE "Norton:Elizabeth  (1457) (before 1612-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 344.) was born before 1612.  She died.
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1400.  John11 Daggett (1504)XE "Daggett:John  (1504) (1602-1673)" (William, #2800) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 11 - Vol. III, page 126.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 2.) was born in 1602 at England (Birth about 1600 based on estimated date of first marriage) (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. I - Page 569.).  He was baptized on 4 Nov 1602 at Bosford, Suffolk, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 11.).  He married Hepzibah Brotherton (1506)XE "Brotherton:Hepzibah  (1506) (-circa 1667)" before 1626 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 224.).  He married Bathsheba unknown (1508)XE "unknown:Bathsheba  (1508)" on 29 Aug 1667 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (John Doged, of Martin's Vineyard, married to Bathshebath Prat, widow [PCR 8:31], widow of Joshua Pratt, she was alive on 4 June 1673 [PCPR 3:1:112]) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 224.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. I - Page 569.).  He died in 1673.

     (an unknown value) (The name was, undoubtedly, Doggett, and some branches still retain that form of spelling, and our early New England records bear out this view. The family historian, in his review of the English origin of our John Daggett, thinks he may have been the third son of William and Avis (Lappage) Doggett of Bosford, Suffolk, baptized Nov. 4, 1602, but it may be said in criticism of this guess that the names of William and Avis do not appear in any of the immediate descendants of John for three generations, and that is an unusual omission, according to all custom and experience. The first definite knowledge we have of John Daggett is his appearance in Massachusetts as one of the large body of immigrants who came to New England with Governor Winthrop in 1630, settling first at Salem, later at Charlestown and Watertown. He was made a freeman of the colony May 18, 1631, having taken up his residence in Watertown. There he continued to live, receiving his shares in the several proprietors' divisions, until some time about 1646, when he removed to Rehoboth. Prior to that, however, Thomas Mayhew had become a townsman of his in Watertown, and when the purchase of Martha's Vineyard was made in 1641, Daggett became an interested party, as a grantee, with others of a township on this island in March, 1642. There is no evidence that he came here with the first contingent from Watertown, as his next recorded appearance is in Rehoboth, as stated, about 1646, when he was granted land in that new settlement. He remained in that town as late as the summer of 1648, but how much longer is unknown, as the next record of him is on March 29, 1651-2, when he was chosen corporal of the military company on the Vineyard. Between those dates he removed here, probably to avail himself of the rights he held in the new settlement by grant from Mayhew. He soon attained to prominence in local affairs, and on June 8, 1653, was chosen assistant to the chief magistrate to manage the business of the island, a position to which he was annually elected for the three following years. It then becomes apparent that he did not get along smoothly with Mayhew, and by 1660 he was entirely at "outs" with him. This probably arose, as elsewhere explained, from his purchase of the Indians at Ogkeshkuppe of a farm of five hundred acres without Mayhew's consent, though Doggett had been granted the choice of a farm of that size by Mayhew, in 1642, to be located not less than three miles from the governor's lot. How Daggett was fined $5000 and had to sue for his rights, will be related, and his success in retaining the "farm" was one of great humiliation to Mayhew, though the latter was clearly in the wrong. Daggett was one of the townsmen who "submitted" to the Mayhew government in 1661, and in the next two years he is recorded as plaintiff in several civil suits against his neighbors for debts or damages. The last notes of him are in the fall of 1663, as one of the subscribers to the "general fence," and early in 1665 acting as agent for the town in purchasing some fishing rights of the Sachem Tewanticut. Sometime after this he removed to Plymouth, Mass., and it is inferred that the wife of his youth and mother of his children had died here prior to that change. He married, in his old age in Plymouth, Mrs. Bathsheba Pratt, Aug. 29, 1667, probably the widow of Joshua Pratt of that town, and the record of the marriage calls him "of Martins Vineyard." It is probable however, that he had by that time removed to that Pilgrim town which ever after became his home. Of his first wife we know nothing definite, but the author is of the opinion that the Hepzibah Daggett who signed as witness March 3, 1660, to the sale of the "Farm" from Wampamag to John Daggett was then his wife. That it could not, in all probability, be the daughter Hepzibah, is based on her age at that date, seventeen years, and on the further reason that Hepzibah Daggett was then the wife of John Eddy, and would not sign as Hepzibah Daggett. The daughter was undoubtedly named for her mother, and grandchildren bore this name for John's first wife rather than in honor of the aunt. His home lot at Great Harbor was the first one south of Governor Mayhew's, and was situated on the west side of the road to the plains as it passes Tower Hill. It was apparently the west half of a lot owned by him and Malachi Browning. It is probable that this was the site of his residence.

His ancestry is still not quite proven, but what is registered is the most accepted) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. I - Page 568.).

     Children of John11 Daggett (1504)XE "Daggett:John  (1504) (1602-1673)" and Hepzibah Brotherton (1506)XE "Brotherton:Hepzibah  (1506) (-circa 1667)" (see #1401) were as follows:


 
i.
John10 (1509)XE "Daggett:John  (1509) (circa 1626-9 Sep 1707)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1626 at England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 79.).  He married Anne Sutton (2215)XE "Sutton:Anne  (2215) (circa 1629-after 1673)" on 23 Nov 1651 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 224.).  He died on 9 Sep 1707 at Rehoboth, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 79.).
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ii.
Thomas (1502).XE "Daggett:Thomas  (1502) (circa 1630-13 Apr 1691)"

 
iii.
Joseph (1512)XE "Daggett:Joseph  (1512) (circa 1634-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 140 & 141.) was born circa 1634 at Watertown, Mass., England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 84.).  He married Alice Sisseton (2218)XE "Sisseton:Alice  (2218)" circa 1667 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 224.).  He died.


 
iv.
Elizabeth (1510)XE "Daggett:Elizabeth  (1510) (circa 1638-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1638.  She married Jeremiah Whitton (2216)XE "Whitton:Jeremiah  (2216) (1627-)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 812.).  She died.


 
v.
Hepzibah (1511)XE "Daggett:Hepzibah  (1511) (circa 1643-3 May 1726)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 127.) was born circa 1643 at Watertown, Mass., USA (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 85.).  She married John Eddy (2217)XE "Eddy:John  (2217) (1637-)" circa 1658 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 242.).  She died on 3 May 1726 (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 85.).

1401.  Hepzibah11 Brotherton (1506)XE "Brotherton:Hepzibah  (1506) (-circa 1667)"

XE "Daggett:Hepzibah  (1506) (-circa 1667)" married John Daggett (1504)XE "Daggett:John  (1504) (1602-1673)" before 1626 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 224.).  She died circa 1667 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. I - Page 569.).
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1402.  Thomas11 Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" (Matthew, #1416) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 114 - Vol. III, pages 299 to 301.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 298.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 185.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born on 31 Mar 1593 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He was baptized on 1 Apr 1593 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He married Ann Parkhurst (1558)XE "Parkhurst:Ann  (1558) (circa 1600-)" before 1617 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  He married Jane Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" before 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  He died on 25 Mar 1682 at Martha's Vineyard, Mass., USA, at age 88.

     (an unknown value) (He was the Governor, first of the name in Edgartown, whose personal history has been sufficiently detailed in the two preceding volumes. The name of his first wife is not known (Parkhurst ?) nor has any clue to the date and place of the marriage been found. Neither is it known when or where she died. He m. (2) Mrs. Jane (Gallion?) Paine, wid. of Mr. Thomas Paine, a London merchant, abt 1634 (Vol. II, p. 90, Annals of Edgartown). She was living 15 May 1666, but died before her husband. In London the compiler found references to a Gallion family, to which she may have belonged, and he has many other English notes relative to the Mayhews which he hopes to follow up in the future. The name Gallion, it it be correctly given, is very rare in England. Galland is found at Green's Norton where the Paines owned prperty, and Gallyon in Ramsey, Huntingdonshire. During a recent visit of the compiler to England confirmation of this was obtained which shows that this statement is correct. The following is verbatim copy of a record in the "Book of Free commoners" belonging to the corporation of Southampton: "Nono die ffebr' 1620 (i.e. 1621) Thomas Mayhew late servant and apprntice unto Richard Masey of the Towne and countie of Southampton mrcer havinge well and truely served his spprntiship with his said mr whoe beinge prrsent testified to the same And he the said Thomas Mayhewe (desieringe to be admitted a free commoner of the said Towne to use his trade of a mrcer in this said Towne and his said mr likewise desieringe the same) was therefore this prsent daie admitted and sworren a free commoner accordingly."

An interesting and important statement is therein found which recalls the statement of Thomas Macey of Nantucket (who is said to have emigrated from Chilmark, co. Wilts), that Governor Thomas Mayhew was his "honored cousin" (N. Y. Col. Mss., Vol. 25) and here is found documentary evidence that Thomas Mayhew was an apprentice of Richard Macey, a Southampton merchant. Richard Macey, his master, was a native of Chilmark and in his will of 20 Nov. 1633 he provided for his burial in that parish (Arch. Sarum X. 30). Undouabtedly further search would reveal the exact relationship of this Richard to Thomas Macey, the emigrant, and thus show the kinship between the families Mayhew and Macey. Thomas, gentleman, merchant, Watertown, chairman of com. of Gen. Court on boundary in 1631. Deputy; freeman (citizen) May 14, 1634. Of Medford in 1635. [Plym. Col. Rec. XII.] Received a grant of land at Nantucket and Marthas Vineyard in 1641, and remained thither later. He m. Jane, widow of Thomas Paine, of London, whose son Thomas, ae. 15, chose Mr. and Mrs. M. his guardians Oct. 14, 1647. He was to receive the reversion of lands at Whittlebury, Northamptonshire, 23 (8) 1646. Of the childhood, education, and early business training of Thomas Mayhew of Tisbury, nothing definite has come to the knowledge of the author. It is presumed that he lived in Tisbury during his youth, and was educated in the parish school under the care of his parents. When his father died, he was twenty-one years of age, and it is certain that this event placed upon him the necessity of individual responsibility for the future. We know that he became a merchant, but where he served his apprenticeship is unknown. Daniel Gookin, who knew him personally, says he was "a merchant bre in England, as I take it at Southampton." This seaport town was, in that period, one of the most important commercial centers in England, ranking with Bristol as secondary to the great port of London. Like all merchants of the maritime ports, he naturally became cognizant of and interested in foreign trade, and as the colonization ventures of the established mercantile companies began to develop, he must have learned of the possibilities of profitable traffic beyond seas. Among the great merchants of London, Mr. Matthew Cradock was an early adventurer in this line of business, and was among the first to support the companies engaged in the colonization of New England. In the course of business it is to be supposed that every suburban merchant in England went to London often to have dealings with the large wholesale houses in the capital, and in that way we may suppose Mayhew became known to Cradock and thus laid the foundation of their business relations in later years. In 1625, at the accesion of Charles the First, Thomas Mayhew was thirty-two years of age and had been engaged in business for himself in all probability for about a dozen years, since the death of his father. During that period he had married, about 1619, and family traditions and a record of some antiquity brings down to us the name of the bride of his youth as Abigail Parkus. (This is from a memorandum, genealogical in its character, prepared by Deacon William Mayhew, of Edgartown, who was born in 1748, and was thus within the sphere of close personal knowledge of his immediate ancestors. He was ten years old when Experience Mayhew, the great family exponent, died (1758), and Experience was about the same age when the old governor died, thus but one life spanned the gap between Thomas Senior and Deacon William. The memorandum was preserved by the Deacon's son, Thomas, and was in existence in 1854.) Further particularization has been given to this tradition by making her a daughter of that Parkhurst family, of which George Parkhurst of Watertown, Mass., 1643, was the first New England representative. George was the son of John Parkhurst of Ipswich, England, a clothier, and his sisters, Deborah and Elizabeth, came to this country with him, and were later residents of the Vineyard, the former as wife of John Smith and the latter of Joseph Merry

).  His Ancestral File Number is 52L4-98.

     Children of Thomas11 Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" and Jane Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" (see #711) were as follows:


 701.
i.
Hannah10 (1503).XE "Mayhew:Hannah  (1503) (15 Jan 1635-1722)"

 
ii.
Bethiah (1560)XE "Mayhew:Bethiah  (1560) (6 Dec 1636-Aug 1678)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 301.) was born on 6 Dec 1636.  She married Thomas Harlock (2206)XE "Harlock:Thomas  (2206)" circa 1658 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 344.).  She married Richard Way (2207)XE "Way:Richard  (2207) (-1697)" before 2 Jun 1675 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 786.).  She died in Aug 1678 at age 41.


 
iii.
Mary (1562)XE "Mayhew:Mary  (1562) (14 Jan 1640-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 301.) was born on 14 Jan 1640.  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Probably died young).


 
iv.
Martha (1561)XE "Mayhew:Martha  (1561) (circa 1642-1717)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 301.) was born circa 1642.  She married Thomas Tupper (2208)XE "Tupper:Thomas  (2208) (1639-1706)" on 27 Dec 1661 at Sandwich, Barnstable, Massachusetts, USA, 414500N0702900W. From this marriage was descendant the late Sir Charles Tupper, prime minister of Canada (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 758.).  She died in 1717 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 758.).

1403.  Jane11 Gallion (1523)XE "Gallion:Jane  (1523) (1602-15 May 1666)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 300.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1602.  She married Thomas Paine (1563)XE "Paine:Thomas  (1563) (1608-1635)" on 15 Oct 1620 at Wantage, Berkshire, England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 552.).  She married Thomas Mayhew (1522)XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)" before 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 499.).  She died on 15 May 1666 at Edgartown, Mass., USA.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8M5H-XO.

1404.  Edmund11 Hawes (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" (Edmond, #2808) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 221.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 379.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, (Genealogical Publishing Co., Inc. 1993), Page 335.) was born in 1608 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  He was baptized on 15 Oct 1612 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  He married an unknown person before 1635 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 354.).  He died in 1693.

     (an unknown value) (Cutler of London, Eng., came in the James April 5, 1635. Plymouth, propr. 2 Oct. 1637. Rem. to Duxbury; frm. 5 June, 1644. Town officer. Sold lands at Marshfield in 1649 and rem. to Yarmouth. Will signed 5 May, 1692, being aged; prob. July 20, 1693; beq. to son John and his wife Desire; to gr. ch. Joseph, Desire, Jabez, Edmund, Ebenezer, Isaac and Benjamin Hawes, Elizabeth Doged and Mary Baron; gr. ch. Experience; to gr. gr. children; to John Hathaway).  Edmund (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA on 5 Apr 1635 at. Sailed from London, April 5, 1635. Arrived 3 June 1635 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 4, page 640.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 513.).

     Children of Edmund11 Hawes (1574)XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)" include:
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i.
John10 (1575).XE "Hawes:John Capt. (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)"

XE "Hawes:John Capt.  (1575) (1635-11 Nov 1701)"
1406.  John11 Gorham (1585)XE "Gorham:John  (1585) (before 28 Jan 1621-before 5 Feb 1676)" (Ralph, #2812) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 281.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 193.) was born before 28 Jan 1621 at England.  He was baptized on 28 Jan 1621 at Benefield, Northamptonsh., England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 281.).  He married Desire Howland (928)XE "Howland:Desire  (928) (circa 1625-13 Oct 1683)" in 1643 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 313.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655.).  He died before 5 Feb 1676 at Swansea, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).  His body was interred on 5 Feb 1675 at Swansea, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.).

     Children of John11 Gorham (1585)XE "Gorham:John  (1585) (before 28 Jan 1621-before 5 Feb 1676)" and Desire Howland (928)XE "Howland:Desire  (928) (circa 1625-13 Oct 1683)" (see #1407) were as follows:
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i.
Desire10 (1576).XE "Gorham:Desire  (1576) (2 Apr 1644-30 Jun 1700)"

 
ii.
Temperance (1587)XE "Gorham:Temperance  (1587) (5 May 1646-12 Mar 1715)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 5 May 1646 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  She married Edward Sturgis (2595)XE "Sturgis:Edward  (2595) (10 Apr 1642-8 Nov 1678)" in 1663 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 211.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).  She married Thomas Baxter (2596)XE "Baxter:Thomas  (2596) (circa 1653-22 Jun 1713)" on 27 Jan 1680 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 211.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).  She died on 12 Mar 1715 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA, at age 68. 67th year (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (1588)XE "Gorham:Elizabeth  (1588) (2 Apr 1648-before 5 Mar 1684)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 2 Apr 1648 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  She married Joseph Hallett (2600)XE "Hallett:Joseph  (2600)" before 5 Mar 1667 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 208.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 17.).  She died before 5 Mar 1684 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 17.).


 
iv.
James (1589)XE "Gorham:James  (1589) (28 Apr 1650-14 Nov 1707)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 28 Apr 1650 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He married Hannah Huckins (2594)XE "Huckins:Hannah  (2594) (14 Oct 1653-13 Feb 1727)" on 24 Feb 1673 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He died on 14 Nov 1707 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 57 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).


 
v.
John (1590)XE "Gorham:John  (1590) (20 Feb 1652-11 Nov 1716)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 20 Feb 1652 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He married Mary Otis (2597)XE "Otis:Mary  (2597) (14 Mar 1654-1 Apr 1733)" on 24 Feb 1674 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He died on 11 Nov 1716 at Barnstable, Mass., USA, at age 64 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).


 
vi.
Joseph (1591)XE "Gorham:Joseph  (1591) (16 Feb 1654-9 Jul 1726)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 16 Feb 1654 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He married Sarah Sturgis (2598)XE "Sturgis:Sarah  (2598)" circa 1678 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 211.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).  He died on 9 Jul 1726 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA, at age 72.


 
vii.
Jabez (1592)XE "Gorham:Jabez  (1592) (3 Aug 1656-1725)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 3 Aug 1656 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  He married Hannah Sturgis (2599)XE "Sturgis:Hannah  (2599) (-17 Oct 1736)" circa 1676 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 208.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 25.).  He died in 1725 at Bristol, R.I., USA.


 
viii.
Mercy (1593)XE "Gorham:Mercy  (1593) (20 Jan 1658-24 Sep 1725)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.) was born on 20 Jan 1658 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  She married George Denison (2612)XE "Denison:George  (2612) (circa 1653-1711)" circa 1677 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 26.).  She died on 24 Sep 1725 at age 67 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 26.).


 
ix.
Lydia (1594)XE "Gorham:Lydia  (1594) (11 Nov 1661-2 Aug 1744)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) was born on 11 Nov 1661 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).  She married John Thacher (2601)XE "Thacher:John  (2601) (1638-8 May 1713)" on 1 Jan 1684 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 211.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 28.).  She died on 2 Aug 1744 at Yarmouth, Mass., USA, at age 82.


 
x.
Hannah (1595)XE "Gorham:Hannah  (1595) (28 Nov 1663-circa 1728)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.) was born on 28 Nov 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  She married Joseph Wheelding (2602)XE "Wheelding:Joseph  (2602)" circa 1682 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 208.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 29.).  She died circa 1728 (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 29.).


 
xi.
Shubael (1596)XE "Gorham:Shubael  (1596) (21 Oct 1667-1750)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 105.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.) was born on 21 Oct 1667 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.  He married Puella Hussey (2603)XE "Hussey:Puella  (2603) (10 Oct 1677-before 23 Sep 1748)" in May 1695 (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 31.).  He died in 1750 at Barnstable, Mass., USA. in his 83rd year (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 85.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 30.).

1407.  Desire11 Howland (928)XE "Howland:Desire  (928) (circa 1625-13 Oct 1683)" (John, #518) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 103.) was born circa 1625 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 84.).  She married John Gorham (1585)XE "Gorham:John  (1585) (before 28 Jan 1621-before 5 Feb 1676)" in 1643 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 313.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655.).  She died on 13 Oct 1683 at Barnstable, Mass., USA (Col. Leonard H. Smirth Jr. & Norma H. Smith, Vital Records of the Towns of Barnstable and Sandwich, Page 25.).

1412.  Robert11 Hinckley (1640)XE "Hinckley:Robert  (1640) (1537-before 27 Mar 1606)" (John Hynckleye, #2824) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 20.) was born in 1537 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  He married Elizabeth unknown (2529)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2529) (-before 2 Nov 1574)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 20.).  He married Katherine Unknown (1641)XE "Unknown:Katherine  (1641) (circa 1551-circa 1606)" on 10 Feb 1575 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, July 1976 Second Edition. Page 7.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 20.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  He died before 27 Mar 1606 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The Will of Robert Hynckley of Harrietsham in the County of Kent, 6 April 1605. My body to be buried in the churchyard of Harriteshame. To the poor of the parish. To daughter Catherine. To daughter Elizabeth and her daughter Cicelye. To daughter Mary. To son Stephen Hinckley and his heirs for ever a messuage with the appurtenances thereto belonging, a barn and thirty three acres of woodland lying together, in the parish of Harritesham, the messuage and part of the land now in the occupation of Christopher Murfeild, and the residue in the occupation of me the said Robert Hynckley. To son Samuell Hynkley Pounds 30 "to be payd vnto my sayd sonne Samuell within one yeare next after my decease by my sonne Stephen aforenamed in consideration that I have given vnto him the land aforemencioned." In case of non-payment of this legacy Samuell to enter into the said lands and hold them until the legacy is paid. To son John Hinckley Pounds 20 to be paid by son Stephan when he come to the age of twenty-two years (with similar penalty for non-payment). To son Stephen all my goods, chattels, and moveables, and I make him executor. [signed] The m'ke of the said Robert Hinckley. Witnesses: Thomas Phillips, writer hereof, and Robert Redgway. Codicil, dated 2 October 1605. Thomas Hinckley and Isaacke Hinckley two other of my sons shall have all the residue of my lands and tenements not before bequeathed. [same witnesses.] Proved 8 May 1607 by Stephen Hinckley, the executor named in the will. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 53, fo. 358.)) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 288.).  His body was interred on 27 Mar 1607 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 20.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 84T3-CF.

     Children of Robert11 Hinckley (1640)XE "Hinckley:Robert  (1640) (1537-before 27 Mar 1606)" and Katherine Unknown (1641)XE "Unknown:Katherine  (1641) (circa 1551-circa 1606)" (see #1413) were as follows:


 
i.
Stephen10 (2533)XE "Hinckley:Stephen  (2533) (before 2 Feb 1576-before 10 Apr 1577)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born before 2 Feb 1576 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  He was baptized on 2 Feb 1576 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  He died before 10 Apr 1577.  He was buried on 10 Apr 1577 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).


 
ii.
Stephen (2534)XE "Hinckley:Stephen  (2534) (before 15 Feb 1579-before 27 Jan 1630)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born before 15 Feb 1579 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  He was baptized on 15 Feb 1579 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  He married Jane Becke (4935)XE "Becke:Jane  (4935)" on 24 Nov 1608 at Milton, Sittingbourne (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 315.).  He married Elizabeth Tolpott (4936)XE "Tolpott:Elizabeth  (4936)" on 7 Feb 1628 at Milton, Sittingbourne (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.).  He died before 27 Jan 1630 (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 8 & 9.).


 
iii.
Margaret (2535)XE "Hinckley:Margaret  (2535) (before 30 Oct 1580-before 30 Apr 1598)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born before 30 Oct 1580 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  She was baptized on 30 Oct 1580 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  She died before 30 Apr 1598 (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  She was buried on 30 Apr 1598 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 315.).


 
iv.
Elizabeth (2536)XE "Hinckley:Elizabeth  (2536) (before 30 Sep 1582-)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born before 30 Sep 1582 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  She was baptized on 30 Sep 1582 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  She died.


 
v.
Catherine (2537)XE "Hinckley:Catherine  (2537) (circa 1585-)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 8.) was born circa 1585 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 8.).  She died.


 
vi.
Mary (2538)XE "Hinckley:Mary  (2538) (before 5 Feb 1588-)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 8.) was born before 5 Feb 1588 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  She was baptized on 5 Feb 1588 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  She died.
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vii.
Samuel (1638).XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)"

 
viii.
John (2539)XE "Hinckley:John  (2539) (circa 1591-)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 8.) was born circa 1591 (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 8 & 9.).  He died.

1413.  Katherine11 Unknown (1641)XE "Unknown:Katherine  (1641) (circa 1551-circa 1606)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 17.)XE "Hinckley:Katherine  (1641) (circa 1551-circa 1606)" was born circa 1551.  She married unknown Leese (3826)XE "Leese:unknown  (3826) (-before 10 Feb 1574)" before 10 Feb 1574.  She married Robert Hinckley (1640)XE "Hinckley:Robert  (1640) (1537-before 27 Mar 1606)" on 10 Feb 1575 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 20.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 314.).  She died circa 1606 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 84T3-DL.

1414.  Thomas11 Soole (1653)XE "Soole:Thomas  (1653) (1567-)" (John, #2828) was born in 1567 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England.  He married Mary Iddenden (1654)XE "Iddenden:Mary  (1654) (1573-)" on 16 Oct 1598 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England ("October Marryed the xvjth day Thomas Soole and Marye Iddenden") (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186 & 187.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 84T3-SN.

     Children of Thomas11 Soole (1653)XE "Soole:Thomas  (1653) (1567-)" and Mary Iddenden (1654)XE "Iddenden:Mary  (1654) (1573-)" (see #1415) were as follows:
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i.
Sarah10 (1639).XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)"

 
ii.
Marye (4180)XE "Soole:Marye  (4180) (before 29 Jan 1604-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.) was born before 29 Jan 1604.  She was baptized on 29 Jan 1604 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  She died.


 
iii.
Thomas (4181)XE "Soole:Thomas  (4181) (before 12 May 1605-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.) was born before 12 May 1605.  He was baptized on 12 May 1605 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (Probably son of Thomas Soole, although the father's name is not given) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  He died.


 
iv.
Anne (4182)XE "Soole:Anne  (4182) (before 30 Apr 1615-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.) was born before 30 Apr 1615.  She was baptized on 30 Apr 1615 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  She died.

1415.  Mary11 Iddenden (1654)XE "Iddenden:Mary  (1654) (1573-)" (John, #2830) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.)XE "Soole:Mary  (1654) (1573-)" was born in 1573 at Cranbrook, Kent, England.  She married Thomas Soole (1653)XE "Soole:Thomas  (1653) (1567-)" on 16 Oct 1598 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England ("October Marryed the xvjth day Thomas Soole and Marye Iddenden") (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186 & 187.).  She died at Hawkhurst, Kent, England.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 84T3-TT.

1416.  Matthew11 Mayhew (1524)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)" (Thomas Mayow, #2832) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1550 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He married Alice Barter (1525)XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)" on 2 Oct 1587 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He died on 24 Jun 1614 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  His body was interred on 26 Feb 1614 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).

     (an unknown value) (He resided in the parish of Tisbury, and is described in his will as a "yeoman" by which term is meant to be conveyed, legally speaking, a freeholder next under the rank of "gentleman"; for being descended from the line of a third son of an established family he had not the quality that then attached to the eldest branch. Nevertheless he was a man of substance, and left to his heirs an estate valued at about seven thousand dollars in cash, besides his real property, as estimated by our present standards

).  His Ancestral File Number is 52L4-DR.

     Children of Matthew11 Mayhew (1524)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)" and Alice Barter (1525)XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)" (see #1417) all born at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England, were as follows:


 
i.
Elizabeth10 (1538)XE "Mayhew:Elizabeth  (1538) (before 1 May 1589-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 1 May 1589.  She was baptized on 1 May 1589 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She married John Gilbert (2204)XE "Gilbert:John  (2204)" on 18 Mar 1612 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
ii.
John (1539)XE "Mayhew:John  (1539) (before 17 Jan 1591-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 17 Jan 1591.  He was baptized on 17 Jan 1591 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He died.
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iii.
Thomas (1522).XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)"

 
iv.
Joan (1540)XE "Mayhew:Joan  (1540) (before 8 Feb 1596-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 8 Feb 1596.  She was baptized on 8 Feb 1596 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
v.
Alice (1541)XE "Mayhew:Alice  (1541) (before 16 Dec 1598-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 16 Dec 1598.  She was baptized on 16 Dec 1598 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She married Thomas Palmer (2205)XE "Palmer:Thomas  (2205)" on 17 Jun 1622 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
vi.
Katherine (1542)XE "Mayhew:Katherine  (1542) (before 15 Mar 1600-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 15 Mar 1600.  She was baptized on 15 Mar 1600 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
vii.
Edward (1543)XE "Mayhew:Edward  (1543) (before 24 Apr 1602-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 24 Apr 1602.  He was baptized on 24 Apr 1602 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He died.

1417.  Alice11 Barter (1525)XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)" (Edward, #2834) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113 - Vol. III, page 299.) was born on 2 Oct 1540 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Matthew Mayhew (1524)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)" on 2 Oct 1587 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died before 1614 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (As this Alice was the only one found by the author (Banks) in his searches among Wiltshire wills, and as the name of Edward was bestowed on the third son of Matthew and Alice, presumably in honor of her father, as Thomas had been given in memory of his father, this origin of Alice Barter, the mother of Thomas Mayhew, is offered as the probable solution of the question of her ancestry).  Her Ancestral File Number is 52L4-FX.

1418.  Mathew11 Parkhurst (1667)XE "Parkhurst:Mathew  (1667) (circa 1575-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1575.  He married Mrs. Parkhurst (1668)XE "Parkhurst:Mrs.  (1668)" circa 1600.  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is GG8C-85.

     Children of Mathew11 Parkhurst (1667)XE "Parkhurst:Mathew  (1667) (circa 1575-)" and Mrs. Parkhurst (1668)XE "Parkhurst:Mrs.  (1668)" (see #1419) were:
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i.
Ann10 (1558).XE "Parkhurst:Ann  (1558) (circa 1600-)"
1419.  Mrs.11 Parkhurst (1668)XE "Parkhurst:Mrs.  (1668)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) married Mathew Parkhurst (1667)XE "Parkhurst:Mathew  (1667) (circa 1575-)" circa 1600.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GG8C-85.

 [image: image18.png]



1424.  James11 Claghorn (1700)XE "Claghorn:James  (1700) (circa 1550-5 Jun 1588)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 14.) was born circa 1550.  He died on 5 Jun 1588.

     (an unknown value) (The derivation of this family name is traced to Glegerne, a Celtic name given to a camp on the border line of Scotland by the Romans A.D. 80 during the invasion of England. From this the name became Cleggerne, Clegherne, Cleghorn and lastly, Claghorn. The barony of Cleghorne existed in Scotland in the 12th century and a chapel of Clegerne was connected with Dryburgh Abbey. The lands connected with the barony were granted 1441 to Sir Alan Lockhart of Lanarkshire in whose family the title remains to the present day.

Claghorn, as a family name, appears en Scottish records as early as 1350 in Edingurgh, Cramond, Lothian and Corstorphine. In the latter named parish there lived a James Cleghorn who d. 5 June 1588, leaving among others two sons James and Henry, and the latter was father of three sons and one daughter, viz: Thomas, David, James and Isobel. James, the youngest son, with his sister Isobel, was the heir of his older brother, David, in 1647, and is believed to be the James Claghorn who was brought to New England in 1650 as a prisoner of war during the Scottish Rebellion, following the Battle of Dunbar. Corstorphine, the home of the Cleghorns, was occupied for a year by the troops of Cromwell and many of its families driven into exile. In the fall of 1651 about 150 of the Scotch prisoners were sent to New England for indenture as "slaves or servants" in the ship "Unity". They were treated as human chattels and classed with Indians and negroes in the social estimate of the Puritans. They were bound out to the wealthy classes as household or agricultural helpers).  His Ancestral File Number is QT1X-J6.

     Children of James11 Claghorn (1700)XE "Claghorn:James  (1700) (circa 1550-5 Jun 1588)" include:


 
i.
James10 (1943)XE "Claghorn:James  (1943)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) died.
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ii.
Henry C. (1699).XE "Claghorn:Henry C.  (1699) (circa 1580-)"
1428.  Thomas11 Lambert (1707)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)" (Richard Lombard, #2856) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 106.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 1194-1198.) was born before 2 Feb 1581 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He was baptized on 2 Feb 1581 at Thorncombe, Dorsetshire, England.  He married UNKNOWN 1 (--?--) (4572)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 1  (4572) (-circa 1608)" in 1602.  He married UNKNOWN 2 (--?--) (4574)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 2  (4574) (-after 1623)" in 1617.  He died before 10 Jun 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (Came prob. bringing Bernard, and two other ch. in the Mary and John 1630, req. to be made freem. 19 Oct. of that yr. and was adm. 18 May foll. rem. in few yrs. perhaps to Scituate first, but to Barnstable by 1640).  His Ancestral File Number is CVRP-3X.

     Children of Thomas11 Lambert (1707)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)" and UNKNOWN 1 (--?--) (4572)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 1  (4572) (-circa 1608)" (see #1429) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (4573)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (4573) (before 7 Sep 1602-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 1196.) was born before 7 Sep 1602 at Thorncombe, Dorsetshire, England.
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ii.
Bernard (1706).XE "Lumbard:Bernard  (1706) (circa 1608-after 1664)"
1429.  UNKNOWN 111 (--?--) (4572)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 1  (4572) (-circa 1608)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 1196.) married Thomas Lambert (1707)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)" in 1602.  She died circa 1608.

1432.  John11 Lovell (1728)XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)" (John, #2864) was born in 1564 at England.  He married Elinor unknown (1733)XE "unknown:Elinor  (1733) (1566-)" in 1591 at Wexford or Wesfield, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 59XR-JL.

     Children of John11 Lovell (1728)XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)" and Elinor unknown (1733)XE "unknown:Elinor  (1733) (1566-)" (see #1433) were:
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i.
Robert10 (1726).XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)"
1433.  Elinor11 unknown (1733)XE "unknown:Elinor  (1733) (1566-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1566.  She married John Lovell (1728)XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)" in 1591 at Wexford or Wesfield, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 59XR-KR.

1436.  William11 Hatche (1740)XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)" (Thomas, #2526) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 9 Dec 1563 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He was baptized on 9 Dec 1563 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  He married Ann Tilden (1741)XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)" on 26 Jul 1587 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died before 27 Dec 1611 at Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 8NRJ-53.

     Children of William11 Hatche (1740)XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)" and Ann Tilden (1741)XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)" (see #1437) were as follows:


 
i.
John10 (4213)XE "Hatche:John  (4213) (circa 1594-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1594.  He died.


 
ii.
Thomas (4214)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (4214) (circa 1596-before 14 Jun 1646)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born circa 1596.  He married Lyida (--?--) (4836)XE "(--?--):Lyida  (4836)" circa 1622 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 352.).  He died before 14 Jun 1646 at New England.
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iii.
William (1738).XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)"

 
iv.
Elizabeth (4215)XE "Hatche:Elizabeth  (4215) (circa 1600-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1600.  She married Robert Soan (4840)XE "Soan:Robert  (4840)" (Hatch Family 1952.).  She died.


 
v.
Judith (4216)XE "Hatche:Judith  (4216) (circa 1602-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1602.  She married Joseph Osborne (4217)XE "Osborne:Joseph  (4217)" circa 1625 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died.


 
vi.
Margaret (4218)XE "Hatche:Margaret  (4218) (circa 1604-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.) was born circa 1604.  She married William Wood (4219)XE "Wood:William  (4219)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.).  She died.


 
vii.
Mary (4220)XE "Hatche:Mary  (4220) (circa 1606-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.) was born circa 1606.  She married William Suddel (4221)XE "Suddel:William  (4221) (circa 1607-)" on 13 Feb 1628 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 251.).  She died.


 
viii.
Son (4222)XE "Hatche:son  (4222) (circa 1609-before 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.) was born circa 1609.  He died before 1629.


 
ix.
Anne (4223)XE "Hatche:Anne  (4223) (circa 1612-)" was born circa 1612.  She married Thomas Beadle (4224)XE "Beadle:Thomas  (4224)" on 22 Jan 1630 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 251.).  She died.

1437.  Ann11 Tilden (1741)XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)" (John, #2874) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 5 Nov 1570 at Mayfield, S, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She was baptized on 5 Nov 1570 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She married William Hatche (1740)XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)" on 26 Jul 1587 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 22 Jan 1630 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 1THT-DS.
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1440.  James11 Claghorn (1700)XE "Claghorn:James  (1700) (circa 1550-5 Jun 1588)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) (William Crumby Claghorn, The Barony of Cleghorne, A.D. 1203, Lanarkshire, Scotland, to the Family of Claghorn, A.D. 1912, Page 14.) was born circa 1550.  He died on 5 Jun 1588.

     (an unknown value) (The derivation of this family name is traced to Glegerne, a Celtic name given to a camp on the border line of Scotland by the Romans A.D. 80 during the invasion of England. From this the name became Cleggerne, Clegherne, Cleghorn and lastly, Claghorn. The barony of Cleghorne existed in Scotland in the 12th century and a chapel of Clegerne was connected with Dryburgh Abbey. The lands connected with the barony were granted 1441 to Sir Alan Lockhart of Lanarkshire in whose family the title remains to the present day.

Claghorn, as a family name, appears en Scottish records as early as 1350 in Edingurgh, Cramond, Lothian and Corstorphine. In the latter named parish there lived a James Cleghorn who d. 5 June 1588, leaving among others two sons James and Henry, and the latter was father of three sons and one daughter, viz: Thomas, David, James and Isobel. James, the youngest son, with his sister Isobel, was the heir of his older brother, David, in 1647, and is believed to be the James Claghorn who was brought to New England in 1650 as a prisoner of war during the Scottish Rebellion, following the Battle of Dunbar. Corstorphine, the home of the Cleghorns, was occupied for a year by the troops of Cromwell and many of its families driven into exile. In the fall of 1651 about 150 of the Scotch prisoners were sent to New England for indenture as "slaves or servants" in the ship "Unity". They were treated as human chattels and classed with Indians and negroes in the social estimate of the Puritans. They were bound out to the wealthy classes as household or agricultural helpers).  His Ancestral File Number is QT1X-J6.

     Children of James11 Claghorn (1700)XE "Claghorn:James  (1700) (circa 1550-5 Jun 1588)" include:


 
i.
James10 (1943)XE "Claghorn:James  (1943)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 81.) died.
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ii.
Henry C. (1699).XE "Claghorn:Henry C.  (1699) (circa 1580-)"
1444.  Thomas11 Lambert (1707)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)" (Richard Lombard, #2856) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 106.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 1194-1198.) was born before 2 Feb 1581 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He was baptized on 2 Feb 1581 at Thorncombe, Dorsetshire, England.  He married UNKNOWN 1 (--?--) (4572)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 1  (4572) (-circa 1608)" in 1602.  He married UNKNOWN 2 (--?--) (4574)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 2  (4574) (-after 1623)" in 1617.  He died before 10 Jun 1663 at Barnstable, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (Came prob. bringing Bernard, and two other ch. in the Mary and John 1630, req. to be made freem. 19 Oct. of that yr. and was adm. 18 May foll. rem. in few yrs. perhaps to Scituate first, but to Barnstable by 1640).  His Ancestral File Number is CVRP-3X.

     Children of Thomas11 Lambert (1707)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)" and UNKNOWN 1 (--?--) (4572)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 1  (4572) (-circa 1608)" (see #1429) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (4573)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (4573) (before 7 Sep 1602-        )" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 1196.) was born before 7 Sep 1602 at Thorncombe, Dorsetshire, England.
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ii.
Bernard (1706).XE "Lumbard:Bernard  (1706) (circa 1608-after 1664)"
1445.  UNKNOWN 111 (--?--) (4572)XE "(--?--):UNKNOWN 1  (4572) (-circa 1608)" (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. II, page 1196.) married Thomas Lambert (1707)XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)" in 1602.  She died circa 1608.

1448.  John11 Lovell (1728)XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)" (John, #2864) was born in 1564 at England.  He married Elinor unknown (1733)XE "unknown:Elinor  (1733) (1566-)" in 1591 at Wexford or Wesfield, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 59XR-JL.

     Children of John11 Lovell (1728)XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)" and Elinor unknown (1733)XE "unknown:Elinor  (1733) (1566-)" (see #1433) were:
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i.
Robert10 (1726).XE "Lovell:Robert  (1726) (1595-25 Jul 1672)"
1449.  Elinor11 unknown (1733)XE "unknown:Elinor  (1733) (1566-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1566.  She married John Lovell (1728)XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)" in 1591 at Wexford or Wesfield, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 59XR-KR.

1452.  William11 Hatche (1740)XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)" (Thomas, #2526) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born before 9 Dec 1563 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He was baptized on 9 Dec 1563 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  He married Ann Tilden (1741)XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)" on 26 Jul 1587 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died before 27 Dec 1611 at Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 8NRJ-53.

     Children of William11 Hatche (1740)XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)" and Ann Tilden (1741)XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)" (see #1437) were as follows:


 
i.
John10 (4213)XE "Hatche:John  (4213) (circa 1594-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1594.  He died.


 
ii.
Thomas (4214)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (4214) (circa 1596-before 14 Jun 1646)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) (Hatch Family 1952.) was born circa 1596.  He married Lyida (--?--) (4836)XE "(--?--):Lyida  (4836)" circa 1622 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, page 352.).  He died before 14 Jun 1646 at New England.
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iii.
William (1738).XE "Hatche:William  (1738) (circa 1598-6 Nov 1651)"

 
iv.
Elizabeth (4215)XE "Hatche:Elizabeth  (4215) (circa 1600-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1600.  She married Robert Soan (4840)XE "Soan:Robert  (4840)" (Hatch Family 1952.).  She died.


 
v.
Judith (4216)XE "Hatche:Judith  (4216) (circa 1602-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1602.  She married Joseph Osborne (4217)XE "Osborne:Joseph  (4217)" circa 1625 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died.


 
vi.
Margaret (4218)XE "Hatche:Margaret  (4218) (circa 1604-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.) was born circa 1604.  She married William Wood (4219)XE "Wood:William  (4219)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.).  She died.


 
vii.
Mary (4220)XE "Hatche:Mary  (4220) (circa 1606-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.) was born circa 1606.  She married William Suddel (4221)XE "Suddel:William  (4221) (circa 1607-)" on 13 Feb 1628 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 251.).  She died.


 
viii.
Son (4222)XE "Hatche:son  (4222) (circa 1609-before 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 256.) was born circa 1609.  He died before 1629.


 
ix.
Anne (4223)XE "Hatche:Anne  (4223) (circa 1612-)" was born circa 1612.  She married Thomas Beadle (4224)XE "Beadle:Thomas  (4224)" on 22 Jan 1630 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 251.).  She died.

1453.  Ann11 Tilden (1741)XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)" (John, #2874) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 5 Nov 1570 at Mayfield, S, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She was baptized on 5 Nov 1570 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She married William Hatche (1740)XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)" on 26 Jul 1587 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 22 Jan 1630 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 1THT-DS.

1464.  Thomas11 Smith (1637)XE "Smith:Thomas  (1637) (circa 1590-)" (see #704).

1466.  Samuel11 Hinckley (1638)XE "Hinckley:Samuel  (1638) (25 May 1589-31 Oct 1662)" (Robert, #1412) (see #706).

1467.  Sarah11 Soole (1639)XE "Soole:Sarah  (1639) (before 8 Jun 1600-18 Aug 1656)" (Thomas, #1414) (see #707).

1468.  James11 Skiffe (2324)XE "Skiffe:James  (2324) (circa 1610-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 433.) was born circa 1610.  He married an unknown person.  He married Mary Unknown (4390).XE "Unknown:Mary  (4390)"  He died.

     (an unknown value) (The ancestor of this family in America, of whom a biographical sketch may be read in Vol. II, Annals of W.T., pp. 71-2, has thus far escaped identification in his English home despite continued efforts in tracing every available clue. While the name is very rare in England, it is found quite numerous in a group of parishes near London, as Eltham 1559, Newenden 1578, Lewisham 1589, Mottingham 1603, Greenwich 1620, Charlton 1645, besides scattering occurences of the name in various London parishes of that period. The name is found in variations of Skeffe, Skyffe, Skaffe and other intermediate spelings but the name of James is absent in all these quoted instances).

     Children of James11 Skiffe (2324)XE "Skiffe:James  (2324) (circa 1610-)" and Mary Unknown (4390)XE "Unknown:Mary  (4390)" (see #1469) were:
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i.
Stephen10 (2363).XE "Skiffe:Stephen  (2363) (14 Apr 1641-8 Jun 1710)"
1469.  Mary11 Unknown (4390)XE "Unknown:Mary  (4390)" (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 28.) married James Skiffe (2324).XE "Skiffe:James  (2324) (circa 1610-)"
1470.  Anthony11 Snow (2337)XE "Snow:Anthony  (2337) (-Aug 1692)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 138.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 425.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born at England.  He married Abigail Warren (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)" on 8 Nov 1639 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 654, [1:216].).  He died in Aug 1692 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W. ANTHONY SNOW died at Marshfield in August, 1692, according to the town records.* Since the codicil to his will was dated 8 August, 1692, his death must have occurred between the eighth and the thirty-first days of that month. His wife was Abigail2 Warren (Richard1), who survived him. His will is now in possession of the Connecticut Historical Society at Hartford, Conn. They have had it for many years and do not know from whom they received it. Permission to photograph it was secured through the courtesy of their Librarian, Mr. Albert Carlos Bates. It is written on the first two pages of a four-page folio seven and five-eighths by twelve and one-fourth inches in size, and is in very good condition.

The will and inventory are recorded in the Plymouth County Probate Records, Volume 1, pages 156 - 158. The copy of the will here given was made from the original document; the copy of the inventory was made from the probate records as the original has disappeared from the files. The illustration shows the first page of the will.

I Anthony Snow of Marshfeild being weake of body, but of Sound mind & memory Prased be God Doe make this my last Will & Testament in maner & form following that is to say. I Committ my Soule into the hands of God my Savior & my body to Desent buriall when god shall please to Call me home & for the disposall of my outward Estate which God hath graciously given me my mind & will is it shall be Disposed as followeth

Imprimis I give & bequeath unto my welbeloved wife Abigall the house wherin I now live with my Barn outhouseing & orchyard & all the land lying next to the sd housing soe far as the Cart way leading from the Causaw to Bourns fence & one third. of all my meadow lying at the South River. to be enjoyed by her dureing the Term of her naturall Life. Item I give to my sd wife two oxen & 4 Cows which she shall Chuse out of my Cattle & also I Give her my Indian maid sevant: Item I give to my sd wife all my land at Namasket to her her heirs & assigns for ever; Item I give & bequeath unto my sd wife my best bed best Rug best Coverlid one pair of blankets a boulster & Pillows & Pillowberes & two pair of sheets at her owne dispose.

Item I Give & bequeath unto my Granson Jams ford all my land at Mattakeset. threescore acres more or less To him & his heirs for ever

Item I Give & bequeath unto my son Josias Snow all my other lands whatsoever & the Remainder of the lands hereby given to his mother for her life To have & to hold to him & his heires for Ever

Item I give & bequeath unto my Daughters Lidia Sarah & alis & to my Dater Abigalls Children all the Rest of my neat Cattle To be Equally devided into four parts & each sister to have one part & Abigalls Children to have one part only Jams ford to have noe part with ye Rest of Abigalls Children. Item I give to my wife twenty pounds in money & to my son Josias ten pounds in money & to my Daughter Lidia ten pounds in money & to my Daughter Sarah ten pounds in mony & to my Daughter Alce ten pounds in money & to my Daughter Abigalls Children nine pounds in money to be Equally devided amongst them exsept Jams ford who shall have noe part thereof. Item I give to my Daughter in law my son Josiass wife twenty shillings, & to my grandchildren Hanah & Abigall ford twenty shillings a peice in money. Item I give & bequeath to my loveing wife my mare & sheep & swine & all my houshold goods & othere estate not hereby disposed of whom I appoint to be sole Executrix of this my last Will & testament & my will is that what of the sd houshold goods shall be remaining at my wivs discease shall be equally devided amongt all my Children & I desire my brother Joseph Warren & my Loveing frend Capt Nathaniel Thomas to be Overseers of this my last Will & Testament

hereby makeing null & void all other & former Wills by me made In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand & seal the Eaight & twentieth day of Desember Anno. Dom. 1685

This Instrumt was Signed &     Anthony Snow (seal)

sealed by the abovesd Anthony

Snow & Declared by him to be

his last Will & Testament

In the prsence of us

Nathaniell winslow

faith winslow

Nathaniel Thomas

Capt Nathll Thomas & mrs ffaith Winslow two of the witnesses herein named appeared January 3d: 1692/3 before William Bradford Esqr judge &c & made oath that they were present & Saw & heard Anthony Snow above named Signe Seal & declare ye above written Instrument to be his last will & Testament and that to ye best of their judgment he was of Sound mind and memory when he did ye same

Attest Saml Sprague Registr

[On the second page.]

Memomorandum that I the within Named Anthony Snow on the 8th day of August 1692 being of sound mind & Memory Praised be God Doe Rattifie & Confirm the within written Will by me formerly made & Declare the same to be my last Will & Testamt And doe further add thereunto at this time as follows That is to say that what money I shall leave more then is disposed by the within Will shall be disposed & I doe hereby dispose one forth part thereof to my Dear & loveing wife, & the other three parts therof to be devided amongst my Children & grandchildren in such maner as is by the will within written ordered for the deviding my money therein given

And I doe further declare my mind & Will That what my wife hath already given to three of my Daujhtr Abigalls Children shall be Recond as part of their Portion which I have given them by the within written Will And further my will is that what money or goods my wife has as her own I doe hereby give her to her dispose as she sees meet In Witness wherof I have hereunto set my hand & seale the day abovesd only first I add that my Daughter Sarah Portion wt what shee hath already had shall be made Equall wt my other daughters with what they have already had

Signed scald & Declared by     Anthony Snow (seal)

the abovsd Anthony Snow

to be his last Will & Testamt

In presence of Us

Nathaniel Thomas

Deborah Thomas

January ye 3d 1692 appeared Capt Nathll Thomas one of ye witnesses here named & made oath before William Bradford Esqr judge yt he was present & Saw & heard Anthony Snow above named Sign Seal & declare the above written Codicil to be his last will & Testament and that he saw Deborah his wife Subscribe with him as a witness to ye Same and that to ye best of his judgment ye Sd Testator was of disposing mind & memory when he did ye same

Attest Saml Sprague Registr

[On a sheet pasted on below the codicil.]

William Bradford Esqr Commissionated by his Excellency Sr W Phips Knt Captain Generall and Governr in Chief in and over their Maties Province of the Massachusets Bay in New England with the advice and Consent of the Councill, for the Granting Probate of Wills and Letters of Administration within the County of Plimouth &c. To all to whome these presents Shall Come or may Concern Greeting. Know yee that on the third day of January 1692/3. Before me at marshfield the will of Anthony Snow Late of Marshfield aforesaid to these Presents anexed was Proved approved and allowed. who having while he lived and at the time of his Death Goods Chattels Rights and Credits The Said deceased and his will in any maner Concerning was Comitted unto Abigail his Wife Executrix in the same will named Well and truly to Administer the same and to make a true and Perfect Inventory of all and Singular the Goods Chattels Rights and Credits of the said Decasd and the Same to Exhibit into the Registers Office of the said County according † Law Also to Render a true and Plain account of her said Administration upon Oath.

In Testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and the Seal of the said Office.

William Bradford 

Dated at Marshfield the third day of January 1692/3

Saml Sprague Registr

     Governor Bradford's Letter Book.     5

Recorded in ye 156 and 157th pages of Plimouth Counties Book of Records for wills. &c

[Plym. Co. Prob. Rcds., 1: 158]

An Inventory of ye Goods and Chattels of Anthony Snow Late of Marshfield Deceased Apprized by us under written ye

12th day of Novr 1692

Imprs his Purse Books and Apparrell     114 17 0

Item 4 Beds & furniture belonging to them     232 00 0

Item by Pewter tinn Brass & Iron & Copper     01 1 24 0

Item by tables fourms Settle Stooles Cubberd Chairs &

Chests     028 24 0

It By armes horse furniture & divers sorts of Lumber     028 00 0

It. By neat Cattel Sheep & swine & mare     041 10 0

It By houshold Linnen and homespun Cloth     024 00 0

Item By wooll & flax about 70 pound and corn and flax unbraked

Stephen Skeff 

Michael ffoord 

Joseph Waterman 

Robert Barker

Abigail Snow Relict and Widdow of Anthony Snow Late of Marshfield deceased appeared on ye 3d day of january 1692/3 Before William Bradford Esqr judge & Solemnly affirmed that ye above written is a true Inventory of ye Goods & Chattels of ye Said deceased (Except ye money Given her in ye Will of sd deceased Called her own money) So far as She yet knoweth

Attest Saml Sprague Registr.

     (an unknown value) (The first record of Anthony Snow in New England is his 7 May 1638 request for three acres of land. He is in the 1643 list of Plymouth men able to bear arms.

The will of Anthony Snow of Marshfield dated 28 Dec. 1685, codicil dated 8 Aug. 1692, sworn 3 Jan. 1692/3, names wife Abigail; grandson James Ford; son Josias Snow; daughters Lidia, Sarah and Alis (no surnames) ; dau. Abigall's children; "daughter in law my son Josias wife"; grandchildren Jams, Hanah and Abigail Ford; brother Joseph Warren and friend Capt. Nathaniel Thomas to be overseers. On 3 Jan. 1692/3 Abigal Snow widow of Anthony Snow swore to the inventory 3 Jan. 1692/3 dated 12 Nov. 1692.

9/19 January, 1639/40, Mrs. Warren conveyed her house and eight acres of land near Wellingsly or Hobs Hole to Anthony Snow, husband of her daughter Abigail.[Plym. Col. Deeds, I : 86.]

).

     Children of Anthony11 Snow (2337)XE "Snow:Anthony  (2337) (-Aug 1692)" and Abigail Warren (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)" (see #1471) were as follows:
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i.
Lydia10 (2364).XE "Snow:Lydia  (2364) (circa 1640-17 Mar 1711)"

 
ii.
Josiah (2352)XE "Snow:Josiah  (2352) (-Aug 1692)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) was born at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Rebecca Barker (2358)XE "Barker:Rebecca  (2358) (-28 Apr 1711)" circa 1669 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 282.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  He died in Aug 1692 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.


 
iii.
Abigail (2353)XE "Snow:Abigail  (2353) (circa 1650-before 26 Jun 1682)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) was born circa 1650 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  She married Michael Ford (2357)XE "Ford:Michael  (2357) (-27 Mar 1729)" on 12 Dec 1667 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 282.).  She died before 26 Jun 1682 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.  Her body was interred on 26 Jun 1682 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).


 
iv.
Sarah (2354)XE "Snow:Sarah  (2354) (Jun 1651-11 Sep 1741)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.) was born in Jun 1651 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.).  She married Joseph Waterman (1174)XE "Waterman:Joseph  (1174) (1639-3 Jan 1711)" circa 1673 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 283.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 432.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  She died on 11 Sep 1741 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W, at age 90.


 
v.
Son (2355)XE "Snow:Son  (2355) (25 Mar 1655-)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) was born on 25 Mar 1655 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (d. y).


 
vi.
Alice (2356)XE "Snow:Alice  (2356) (18 Jan 1657-after 5 Sep 1697)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born on 18 Jan 1657 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.  She married Robert Barker (2359)XE "Barker:Robert  (2359) (circa 1651-25 Sep 1729)" before Dec 1681 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 282.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  She died after 5 Sep 1697 at Duxbury, Mass., USA (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).

1471.  Abigail11 Warren (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)" (Richard, #2942) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 138.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 329.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 8.) was born circa 1618 at England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).  She married Anthony Snow (2337)XE "Snow:Anthony  (2337) (-Aug 1692)" on 8 Nov 1639 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 654, [1:216].).  She died after 3 Jan 1693 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).

     Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

1484.  Hendrick Hendrickszen11 Kip (3914)XE "Kip:Hendrick Hendrickszen  (3914) (circa 1600-circa 1665)" (Hendrick Kype, #2968) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 87.) was born circa 1600.  He married Tryntje Lubberts (3915)XE "Lubberts:Tryntje  (3915) (circa 1599-)" on 20 Apr 1624 at Amsterdam, Holland. Heyndrik Heyndrixsz, April 20th, 1624

Appeared as before (before the commissaries of marriage matters) Heyndrik Heyndrixsz of Niewenhuys (born there), tailor, 24 years of age, assisted with his brother-in-law, Bloemert Sandert, living 9 years in Servetsteech (alley) and Tryntie Lubberts of Swoll, 25 years of age, orphan, livimg from her youth in Angelierstraat (street), assisted with her cousin Annetie Heyndrix.

Requesting their three Sunday proclamations (3 banns) to let them solemnize their marriage if there are no obstacles. And after having declared according to the truth that they were free persons (bachelor and spinster) and not related by blood, which would prevent a Christian marriage, their proclamations are allowed.

              (signed) Heyndrick Hendricksen

              (signed) Trincke Lueber (s)

The Amsterdam Book of Betrothals, 20 April 1624, states: Hendrick Hendrixsz of Niewenhuys "24 years of age, was betrothed to Tryntje Lubberts from Swoll, 25 years of age, orphan" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors.).  He died circa 1665.

     (an unknown value) (Amsterdam records, including baptismal records of his children, show he lived there before 1636. He came to New Amsterdam with his family about 1637, and a 1639 map records Hendrik "van Snyder" (the tailor) as owner of one of the plantations on the east side of Manhattan and south of "Helle Gaet" (#45 on the map reprinted here from the Kip Family in America). Hendrick was a tailor by trade. Kip comments that the first settlers, irrespective of rank, were tailors, coopers, carpenters, innkeepers. Hendrick's name appears in records sometimes as Hendrick the tailor, or Hendrick Snyder Kip. He signed "a resolution adopted by the Commonalty of the Manhattans" in 1643, as Hendrick Hendrickson Kype.

On 28 April 1643 Hendrick got a patent for a lot east of the fort, on Bridge Street, where he erected his dwelling and shop. The patent, in Liber GG:51 (Albany), was confirmed by Governor Nicholls on 17 September 1667. The site of this lot in recent years was 27 Bridge Street. Later Hendrick bought property further up town, and records show he owned considerable property in New Amsterdam. Kip's book has a map which identifies more than a half dozen tracts he owned.

Purple comments that Hendrick "appears to have been a man of marked individuality and to those he loved not, bitter and unrelenting, a quality of character his wife seems to have shared with him." One person for whom he had no respect was the Director General Kieft. Kieft had instigated an indiscriminate massacre of defenseless Indian men, women and children on 25 February 1643. The inhabitantes were concerned that this would affect relations with the Indians adversely. In May of that year Samuel Chandelaer made an affadavit that he had heard Hendrick the tailor say: "The Kivit [meaning "pee-wit" or "lapwing", and a play on Kieft's name] ought to be packed off to Holland in the Peacock with a letter of recommendation to Master Gerrit [the public executioner], and a pound flemish, so that he may give him a nobleman's death." Purple, page 7, citing Col. N. Y. Hist. MSS, Dutch 22, and O'Callaghan's Hist. New Netherlands 272. Two years later the Court Messenger was ordered to notify all inhabitants to assemple at the fort on a signal, to hear proposals for peace with the Indians. He reported that all had answered kindly except one Hednrick Kip the tailor. Only Hendrick refused to due Kieft honor at that occasion.

Kieft was replaced by Stuyvesant, as governor, in 1647 (and died in a shipwreck on the voyage to Holland). Within two months Hendrick had been appointed by the Governor's Council to the board of Nine Men, selected "from the most notable, reasonable, honest and respectable": of the inhabitants to assist the Director and the Council. He also held this office in 1649 and 1650. New Amsterdam was incorporated as a city in 1653. Hendrick's son Jacob was the first provincial secretary. Hendrick was made a Schapen in 1656. On 11 April 1657 he was admitted to the rights of a great burgher. At that time his was one of twenty families that formed the Great Citizenship, whose members alone were eligible to hold public office. Stone, in History of New York City, says the twenty "composed the aristocracy of New York 209 years ago." (At that time the city had about 800 inhabitants.)

When New Amsterdam was surrendered to the English, Hendrick took an oath of allegiance to them in October, 1664. The list of citizens assessed on 19 April 1665 to pay board and lodging of soldiers includes Hendrick Kip, senior.

A register of old members of the Dutch Church of New Amsterdam, which was started in 1649, includes Hendrick and Tryntie Kip "obyt op Kippenburg", but no date for his recordation is given. Purple suggests that Fire Beacon Hill, near 38th Street and Fourth Avenue, in the vicinity of the Kip farm, may have been called "Kippenburg" then.

Court records 29 September 1644, in the case of William de Key v. Hendrick Kip, indicate that Hendrick's wife was charged with slander, but do not indicate the result of that action. On 17 December 1646 she was charged with calling the Director (Kieft) and the Council false judges and the Fiscal a foresworn Fiscal. Hendrick responded that his wife had been so upset, and so out of health, since an attempt (by an Adriaenson) on Kieft's life that when disturbed in the least she knows not what she does. She denied the charges. Borth parties were ordered to produce evidence. The records do not show any further proceedings.

Tryntje and Hendrick were sponsors at the baptism of a grandchild, 4 July 1657. There is no further record of her, where her identity can be established clearly.

Kip, at 29, quoting in part from Innes, New Amsterdam and Its People, says: "Hendrik Kip's house, in its garden of about sixty-five feet front upon Bridge Street, was occupied by him for many years and upon adjoining land in Stone Street his two sons, Isaac and Jacob Kip, and his son-in-law, Jan Jansen van St. Obin, built houses for themselves... All these houses had an unobstructed view nad looked out upon the East River and upon the vessels in port (which usually anchored directly in front of them) and upon the wooded Long Island shore beyond").

     Children of Hendrick Hendrickszen11 Kip (3914)XE "Kip:Hendrick Hendrickszen  (3914) (circa 1600-circa 1665)" and Tryntje Lubberts (3915)XE "Lubberts:Tryntje  (3915) (circa 1599-)" (see #1485) were as follows:


 
i.
Abraham10 (3916)XE "Kip:Abraham  (3916) (before 6 May 1625-)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.) was born before 6 May 1625 at Holland.  He was baptized on 6 May 1625 at New Church, Amsterdam, Holland. Henrick Henrixsz - Tryntje Lubberts - Aeltje Henrix - brought Abraham (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Either he died young, or he remained in Holland, as there is no record of him in New Amsterdam).


 
ii.
Isaac (3917)XE "Kip:Isaac  (3917) (before 10 Jan 1627-1678)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.) was baptized at New Church, Amsterdam, Holland. Henrick Henrixsz - Tryntje Lubberts - Jan Henrixsz - brought Ysaack (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  He was born before 10 Jan 1627 at Holland.  He married Catalyntje Snyers (3918)XE "Snyers:Catalyntje  (3918)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.).  He married Maria Vervelje (3919)XE "Vervelje:Maria  (3919)" on 26 Sep 1675 at New Harlem (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.).  He died in 1678.

     (an unknown value) (He was a yacht captain, involved in Hudson River shipping. He also was admitted as a great burgher, 11 Apri 1657. With his first wife, Catalyntje Snyers (or Snyder) he had nine children. An inventory was made of his estate on 25 July 1678).


 
iii.
Beertjen (3920)XE "Kip:Beertjen  (3920) (before 8 Mar 1629-)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.) was born before 8 Mar 1629 at Holland.  She was baptized on 8 Mar 1629 at Old Church, Amsterdam, Holland. Heindrick Heindricksz - Tryn Lubbers - Blommert Landersz - Susanna van Brokel - brought Beertjen (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  She married Jan Janszen van St. Obyn (3921)XE "Janszen van St. Obyn:Jan  (3921)" on 17 Jan 1649 at New Amsterdam, New York, New York, USA (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (C. Beertje (or Baertje), had eleven children. See 7 N.Y. Gen. & Biog. Record 122 for more of this family).


 
iv.
Jacob (3922)XE "Kip:Jacob  (3922) (16 May 1631-24 Dec 1690)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 90.) was born on 16 May 1631 at Holland.  He was baptized on 25 May 1631 at Old Church, Amsterdam, Holland. On Sunday 25 dito (May) (1631) have received the Holy baptism as follows:

Heindrick Heindrix - Tryntjen Lubbers - Herman Heindrix - Sara Willems - brought Jacob. (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  He married Maria de la Montagne (3923)XE "de la Montagne:Maria  (3923) (25 Jan 1637-25 Aug 1711)" on 8 Mar 1654 (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 91.).  He died on 24 Dec 1690 at New Amsterdam, New York, New York, USA, at age 59.

     (an unknown value) (Jacob became the first provincial secretary, when he was 16. He resigned that post in 1651, became a brewer, and also a general tradesman or storekeeper. He was a member of the Board of Schapens, 1659, 1662, 1665 and 1673, and president of the board in 1674. He was "a young man of spirit and intelligence, tall, handsome and extremely popular." 

Jacob owned "Kips Bay Farm" on the East River just east and south of Murray Hill. The house stood where Second Avenue now crosses 35th Street. Howe's Army landed on this farm after the Battle of Long Island. Howe used the house, owned by Jacob's descendants, as headquarters; and Major Andre's las dinner with fellow officers before he left for West Point was in this house. After the British left Washington was a guest in the house several times.

He had eleven children).


 742.
v.
Hendrick (3870).XE "Kip:Hendrick  (3870) (before 14 Aug 1633-before 15 Mar 1671)"

 
vi.
Tryntje (3924)XE "Kip:Tryntje  (3924) (before 8 Jun 1636-)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 91.) was born before 8 Jun 1636 at Holland.  She was baptized on 8 Jun 1636 at Old Church, Amsterdam, Holland. Also June 8th (1636) baptized as follows:

Heindrick Hendrixsz - Tryn Lubbers - Femmetjen Lubbers and Sara Wiltens brought for the Holy baptism the child Tryntjen. (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  She married Abraham Janszen (3925)XE "Janszen:Abraham  (3925)" on 10 Aug 1659 at Holland (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 91.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (She married Abraham Janszen, Van't Zudtlandt in't landt Van den Briel. They were the ancestors of the Van der Heul family of New York. Seven children are known).


 
vii.
Femmetje (3926)XE "Kip:Femmetje  (3926) (before 19 Apr 1643-)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 91.) was born before 19 Apr 1643 at New York, New York, USA.  She was baptized on 19 Apr 1643 at New Amsterdam, New York, New York, USA (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 91.).  She died.

1485.  Tryntje11 Lubberts (3915)XE "Lubberts:Tryntje  (3915) (circa 1599-)" was born circa 1599 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 15.).  She married Hendrick Hendrickszen Kip (3914)XE "Kip:Hendrick Hendrickszen  (3914) (circa 1600-circa 1665)" on 20 Apr 1624 at Amsterdam, Holland. Heyndrik Heyndrixsz, April 20th, 1624

Appeared as before (before the commissaries of marriage matters) Heyndrik Heyndrixsz of Niewenhuys (born there), tailor, 24 years of age, assisted with his brother-in-law, Bloemert Sandert, living 9 years in Servetsteech (alley) and Tryntie Lubberts of Swoll, 25 years of age, orphan, livimg from her youth in Angelierstraat (street), assisted with her cousin Annetie Heyndrix.

Requesting their three Sunday proclamations (3 banns) to let them solemnize their marriage if there are no obstacles. And after having declared according to the truth that they were free persons (bachelor and spinster) and not related by blood, which would prevent a Christian marriage, their proclamations are allowed.

              (signed) Heyndrick Hendricksen

              (signed) Trincke Lueber (s)

The Amsterdam Book of Betrothals, 20 April 1624, states: Hendrick Hendrixsz of Niewenhuys "24 years of age, was betrothed to Tryntje Lubberts from Swoll, 25 years of age, orphan" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors.).  She died.

From 'The Kip Family in America', page 135, source Nr. 124

1486.  Nicasius11 de Sille (4087)XE "de Sille:Nicasius  (4087) (23 Sep 1610-before Mar 1674)" (Laurens, #2972) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.) was born on 23 Sep 1610 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 131.).  He married Cornelia Meulmans (4088)XE "Meulmans:Cornelia  (4088) (-before 26 May 1655)" circa 1638 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He married Tryntie Cregier (4100)XE "Cregier:Tryntie  (4100)" on 26 May 1655. They had no children and the marriage was an unhapy one, ending in a separation in 1668. Gov. Nicolls appointed a committee to try to bring about a reconciliation but they reported that there was no hope of a reunion, altho De Sille was more willing to be reconciled than his wife (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He died before Mar 1674.

     (an unknown value) (He played an important part in the government both in the old world and the new, and was a man of unusual talents; being a lawyer, a statesman, a military expert and a poet. He was Advocate to the Court of Holland, and Captain in the service of the States General; and came to New Netherland in the summer of 1653, bringing with him the following commission from the West India Company, appointing him First Counselor to Director General Stuyvesant. (Albany Records, IV, pp. 100, 107, 111; VII, p. 328).

We have deemed it advisable for the better administration of the government in New Netherland, to strengthen your Council with another expert and able statesman; and whereas Nicasius de Sille, the bearer of these open letter, did apply to us for this appointment, so we have, trusting in the good reports of his character, and confiding in his talents, appointed him First Counsellor to the Director, to reside as such, at Fort Amsterdam, and deliberate with you on all affairs relative to war, police and national force; to keep inviolate all alliances of friendship and commerce, and if feasible, to increase these; to assist in the administration of justice, criminal as well as civil, and further, to advise you in all events and occurrences which may be brought forward. We address this to Your Honors that you might be informed of this our intention, and to have this Nicasius de Sille acknowledged and respected by all the inhabitants, as in our opinion the service of the Company shall hereby be promoted.

Amsterdam, 24th July, 1653
His salary was one hundred florins ($40) per month, including board.

The Director General, Peter Stuyvesant, was imperious and impatient of contradiction and a man who would not tolerate any interference in his government or advice as to his policies, but Nicasius de Sille appears to have enjoyed his confidence and continued to hold his important position in the Colony during the Dutch rule in New Netherland.

In 1655, Nicasius De Sille superintended the preparation of the fleet and accompanied it with Governor Stuyvesant in the successful expedition to the Delaware River against the Swedes. The squadron sonsisted of seven armed ships and transports, containing between 600 to 700 men and was the most powerful fleet and army that had ever been engaged in war in New Amsterdam.

Fort Casimer surrendered on Aug. 31, 1655, and the victory was won without loss of a single man on either side.

After this victory the Dutch undertook a settlement on the Delaware River (near the present town of New Castle, Delaware). This settlement was not very successful and was afterward abondoned by the Dutch in 1664 when the English conquered New Netherland.

From 1654-1656, Nicasius de Sille was Commissioner of Boundaries, and 1656, was made Captain Lieutenant. May, 1656, he was appointed Schout-fiscal, and the 26th of the following June he was commissioned City Schout of New Amsterdam, which office he held until 1660.The duties of this official were really a combination of those pertaining now to the Mayor, Sheriff and District Attorney, but in those early times the town was so small that one man could easily perform them all. He also presided in the court although the burgomasters objected to this. Thus an offender could be arrested, prosecuted and judged by the same person, which sas not wise nor just.

In 1657 Nicasius de Sille became one of the proprietors of New Utrecht, (between present City Hall Brooklyn and Bay Ridge, Long Island) to whom Jan. 16th twenty lots of twenty-five acre each were laid out. He built the first house erected in that town,illustrated herein, which was about 39 feet in length and covered with red tiles. It was the old stone building south-east of the old church edifice and burying ground, tor down 1850 and last occupied by Barent Wyckoff who inherited it from Rutgaert W. Van Brunt) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Pages 131 to 136.).

     Children of Nicasius11 de Sille (4087)XE "de Sille:Nicasius  (4087) (23 Sep 1610-before Mar 1674)" and Cornelia Meulmans (4088)XE "Meulmans:Cornelia  (4088) (-before 26 May 1655)" (see #1487) were as follows:


 
i.
Walburga10 (4092)XE "de Sille:Walburga  (4092) (30 Nov 1639-)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.)XE "Cregier:Walburga  (4092) (30 Nov 1639-)" was born on 30 Nov 1639 at Maestricht, Holland (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She married Francis Cregier (4093)XE "Cregier:Francis  (4093) (29 Feb 1660-)" on 29 Feb 1660 at New Netherland (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She married William Bogardus (4094)XE "Bogardus:William  (4094)" circa 1668 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She died.
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ii.
Anne (3871).XE "de Sille:Anne  (3871) (6 Nov 1640-)"

 
iii.
Gerardina (4095)XE "de Sille:Gerardina  (4095) (10 Feb 1642-)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.) was born on 10 Feb 1642 at Amsterdam, Holland (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She married Johannes van Couvenhoven (4096)XE "Couvenhoven:Johannes van  (4096)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She died.


 
iv.
Laurens (4097)XE "de Sille:Laurens  (4097) (2 Oct 1643-)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America.) was born on 2 Oct 1643 at Wyt, near Maestricht, Holland (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He married daughter Cregier (4098)XE "Cregier:daughter  (4098)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He died.


 
v.
Petrus (4099)XE "de Sille:Petrus  (4099) (6 Jan 1645-8 Dec 1663)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.) was born on 6 Jan 1645 at Maestricht, Holland (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He died on 8 Dec 1663 at New Amstel, Delaware, USA, at age 18 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).

1487.  Cornelia11 Meulmans (4088)XE "Meulmans:Cornelia  (4088) (-before 26 May 1655)" (Peter, #2974) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.)XE "de Sille:Cornelia  (4088) (-before 26 May 1655)" married Nicasius de Sille (4087)XE "de Sille:Nicasius  (4087) (23 Sep 1610-before Mar 1674)" circa 1638 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She died before 26 May 1655.

1600.  Percival11 Lowell (839)XE "Lowell:Percival  (839) (1571-8 Jan 1664)" (Richard, #3200) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) was born in 1571 at England.  He married Rebecca unknown (842)XE "unknown:Rebecca  (842) (-28 Dec 1645)" circa 1593 at England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.).  He died on 8 Jan 1664 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.

     (an unknown value) (Merch. came from Bristol, 1639, bring. s. John and Richard. Fam. tradit. says he was eldest s. of Richard, wh. m. a Percival, and drew his descent thro. eight generat. by the eldest s. of ea. from Walter of Yardley, in Co. Worcester. 

The particular locality of Percival's birth is not certainly known, but undoubtedly somewhere in County Somerset, England, where his ancestors for more than four centuries are recorded to have lived. He was born in the year 1571, and his young manhood finds him at or near Kingston-Seymour, in County Somerset, where his father, Richard Lowle, resided. At the age of 26 he held the office of Assessor of Kingston-Seymour. We next know of him at Bristol, a seaport city in the west of England, engaged in merchandising, at wholesale, chiefly of imported wares, carrying the firm name of Percival Lowle & Co. In the year 1639 he cut asunder from all connections with England, and with his family, consisting of his wife, Rebecca, his two sons, John and Richard, his daughter Joane, and their respective families, and came to the Massachusetts colony and in June of 1639 settled at Newbury. The history of that colony has this item: "June 1639, the town (Newbury) also received a valuable addition to its population in the person of Mr. Percival, Mr. John and Mr. Richard Lowle, who had been merchants of Bristol." Percival died January 8, 1665, in his ninety-fourth year, and was buried at Newbury. The causes that led to the abandonment of his nativity, and to exile himself from the associatiions of a lifetime -the island home of a long line of distinguished ancestry- is a study of interest. He was then sixty-eight years of age. He had been successful even to opulence, and his age and circumstances would seem to have invited him to ease and retirement befitting his surroundings at Bristol. Surely the change had no mercenary incentive. The rude conditions of the new world would clothe him in new habits, new modes and methods in an arena alive with vicissitudes and dangers. The cause is not hard of solution that impelled him to thus forego the seductions of a closing career in quietude, and to seek an asylum in old age amid the infant settlements in America).  John (838)XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)", Percival (839)XE "Lowell:Percival  (839) (1571-8 Jan 1664)" and Richard (843)XE "Lowell:Richard  (843) (3 Jan 1601/2-5 Aug 1682)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA in 1639 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlix.).

     Children of Percival11 Lowell (839)XE "Lowell:Percival  (839) (1571-8 Jan 1664)" and Rebecca unknown (842)XE "unknown:Rebecca  (842) (-28 Dec 1645)" (see #1601) were as follows:


 
i.
Christian10 (5028)XE "Lowell:Christian  (5028) (21 Apr 1600-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) was born on 21 Apr 1600 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.).


 
ii.
Richard (843)XE "Lowell:Richard  (843) (3 Jan 1601/2-5 Aug 1682)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 127.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 7.) was born on 3 Jan 1601/2 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.).  He died on 5 Aug 1682 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, at age 80.

     Richard (843)XE "Lowell:Richard  (843) (3 Jan 1601/2-5 Aug 1682)" immigrated to Newbury, Mass., USA in 1639 at (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlix.).


 
iii.
Agnes (5029)XE "Lowell:Agnes  (5029) (31 Jul 1603-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) was born on 31 Jul 1603 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.).
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iv.
John (838).XE "Lowell:John  (838) (11 Oct 1604-10 Jul 1647)"

 
v.
Thomas (5030)XE "Lowell:Thomas  (5030) (24 Feb 1607/8-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.) was born on 24 Feb 1607/8 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, Page 310.).


 
vi.
Gerardus (5031)XE "Lowell:Gerardus  (5031) (6 Jan 1609/10-11 Sep 1610)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born on 6 Jan 1609/10 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  He died on 11 Sep 1610 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).


 
vii.
Edward (5032)XE "Lowell:Edward  (5032) (17 Mar 1610/11-22 Oct 1614)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born on 17 Mar 1610/11 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  He died on 22 Oct 1614 at England at age 3 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).


 
viii.
Joan (2068)XE "Lowell:Joan  (2068) (after 1614-14 Jun 1677)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 8.) was born after 1614 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  She married John Oliver (4130)XE "Oliver:John  (4130) (1613-1642)" in 1639 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 376.).  She married William Gerrish Capt. (4131)XE "Gerrish:William Capt. (4131) (1617-1687)"

XE "Gerrish:William Capt.  (4131) (1617-1687)" in 1644 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 376.).  She died on 14 Jun 1677 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.


 
ix.
Anne (5034)XE "Lowell:Anne  (5034) (after 1614-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born after 1614 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).


 
x.
Peter (5033)XE "Lowell:Peter  (5033) (19 Aug 1614-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born on 19 Aug 1614 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).

1601.  Rebecca11 unknown (842)XE "unknown:Rebecca  (842) (-28 Dec 1645)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) married Percival Lowell (839)XE "Lowell:Percival  (839) (1571-8 Jan 1664)" circa 1593 at England (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.).  She died on 28 Dec 1645 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 1.).

1602.  John11 Goodale (2016)XE "Goodale:John  (2016) (-1625)" married Elizabeth Taylor (860)XE "Taylor:Elizabeth  (860) (-8 Apr 1647)" circa 1600 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 309.).  He died in 1625 at England. His will is dated at Yarmouth, England, June 1625, in which is mentioned Elizabeth and others.

     Children of John11 Goodale (2016)XE "Goodale:John  (2016) (-1625)" and Elizabeth Taylor (860)XE "Taylor:Elizabeth  (860) (-8 Apr 1647)" (see #1603) were as follows:
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i.
Elizabeth10 (849).XE "Goodale:Elizabeth  (849) (-23 Apr 1651)"

 
ii.
Susanna (861).XE "Goodale:Susanna  (861)"

 
iii.
Joanna (862)XE "Goodale:Joanna  (862)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 191.) died.

1603.  Elizabeth11 Taylor (860)XE "Taylor:Elizabeth  (860) (-8 Apr 1647)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 191.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 2, page 271.) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page 7.) married John Goodale (2016)XE "Goodale:John  (2016) (-1625)" circa 1600 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 309.).  She died on 8 Apr 1647 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.

     (an unknown value) (Late from Yarmouth, Eng.; admin. of her est. gr. March 27, 1648, and reaffirmed by Gen. Court 31 May, 1652, to her sons-in-law Abraham Toppan and John Lowle. Her dau. Susanna m. Abraham Toppan, Elizabeth m. John Lowle, and Joanna m. 1, John Oliver, and 2, Wm. Gerrish.).

1616.  Unknown11 Morse (5328).XE "Morse:Unknown  (5328)"
     Children of Unknown11 Morse (5328)XE "Morse:Unknown  (5328)" include:
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i.
Anthony10 (1286).XE "Morse:Anthony  (1286) (9 May 1606-12 Oct 1686)"

 640.
ii.
William (5329).XE "Morse:William  (5329) (1614-29 Nov 1683)"
1624.  George11 March (2443)XE "March:George  (2443)" (Hugh, #3248) (Genealogy of March Family, Page 86.) died.

     Children of George11 March (2443)XE "March:George  (2443)" include:
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i.
Hugh10 (2442).XE "March:Hugh  (2442) (circa 1618-12 Dec 1693)"
1628.  William11 Moody (2460)XE "Moody:William  (2460) (-25 Oct 1673)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 226 & 227.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 316.) married Sarah unknown (2461)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2461) (-1673)" circa 1629 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 515.).  He died on 25 Oct 1673.

     (an unknown value) (Came in the Mary and John May 22, 1633-4; settled at Ipswich; land grant 1634. Rem. to Newbury; frm. May 6, 1635. Town officer at N. Saddler. Twenty-eight of this name had, in 1834, been gr. t the N. E. coll. one half at Harvard alone).  William (2460)XE "Moody:William  (2460) (-25 Oct 1673)" immigrated to on 22 May 1634 at (Mary and John) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts.).

     Children of William11 Moody (2460)XE "Moody:William  (2460) (-25 Oct 1673)" and Sarah unknown (2461)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2461) (-1673)" (see #1629) were as follows:


 
i.
Samuel10 (2464)XE "Moody:Samuel  (2464) (-4 Apr 1675)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 226.) was born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA.  He married Mary Cutting (2465)XE "Cutting:Mary  (2465)" on 30 Nov 1657 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 515.).  He died on 4 Apr 1675.

     (an unknown value) (Freem. 1666).


 
ii.
Joshua (2462)XE "Moody:Joshua Rev. (2462) (circa 1630-4 Jul 1697)"

XE "Moody:Joshua Rev.  (2462) (circa 1630-4 Jul 1697)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 226.) was born circa 1630 at England.  He married Martha Collins (2463)XE "Collins:Martha  (2463) (1639-before 1674)" circa 1659 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 515.).  He died on 4 Jul 1697 at Boston, Mass., USA.

     (an unknown value) (Grad. Harvard College in 1653, was first min. of the first ch. ord. July 1671, tho. he had preach. there 1658, was call. to preach the Gen Elect. sermon of Mass. 1675; and by strange tyranny of Gov. Cranfield, he was aft. 3 mos. imprison. driv. to Boston, and was sett. in May 2684 af first ch. the same yr. was offer. the station of Presid. of the Coll. wh. he declined. Of his human boldness, in the delusion of 1692, extraor. instance is preserv. in Eliot's Biog. Dict. Back he went to his former service in 1692 at Porsmouth but on a visit to Boston, died. Allen, in Biog. Dict. says that "his zeal againt the witchcraft delus. occasion. his dism. from the ch. where he was a preach." Sorry should we feel to find the proof of this however honora. to him).
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iii.
Caleb (2458).XE "Moody:Caleb  (2458) (1637-25 Aug 1698)"
1629.  Sarah11 unknown (2461)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2461) (-1673)" married William Moody (2460)XE "Moody:William  (2460) (-25 Oct 1673)" circa 1629 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 515.).  She died in 1673.

1630.  Daniel11 Pierce (2466)XE "Pierce:Daniel  (2466) (1611-27 Nov 1677)" was born in 1611 at England.  He married Sarah unknown (2467)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2467) (-17 Jul 1654)" circa 1637 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 582.).  He married Anne Milward (2468)XE "Milward:Anne  (2468) (-27 Nov 1690)" on 26 Dec 1654 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 582.).  He died on 27 Nov 1677.

     (an unknown value) (Blacksmith, freem. 2 May 1638, rem. to Newbury. Propr.; town officer).  Daniel (2466)XE "Pierce:Daniel  (2466) (1611-27 Nov 1677)" immigrated to in 1634 at (Elizabeth) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 427.).

     Children of Daniel11 Pierce (2466)XE "Pierce:Daniel  (2466) (1611-27 Nov 1677)" and Sarah unknown (2467)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2467) (-17 Jul 1654)" (see #1631) all born at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA, were as follows:


 
i.
Daniel10 (2469)XE "Pierce:Daniel  (2469) (15 May 1642-)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 427.) was born on 15 May 1642.  He married Elizabeth Milward (2470)XE "Milward:Elizabeth  (2470) (1644-1709)" on 5 Dec 1660 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 582.).  He died.


 
ii.
Joshua (2471)XE "Pierce:Joshua  (2471) (15 May 1643-1670)" was born on 15 May 1643.  He married Dorothy Pike (2472)XE "Pike:Dorothy  (2472) (1645-)" on 7 May 1668 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 583.).  He died in 1670.
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iii.
Sarah (2459).XE "Pierce:Sarah  (2459) (circa 1645-25 Aug 1665)"

 
iv.
Martha (2473)XE "Pierce:Martha  (2473) (14 Feb 1648-1674)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 427.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 360.) was born on 14 Feb 1648.  She married Thomas Noyes (2474)XE "Noyes:Thomas  (2474) (1648-)" on 28 Dec 1669 at Newbury, Massachusetts, USA (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 541.).  She died in 1674.

1631.  Sarah11 unknown (2467)XE "unknown:Sarah  (2467) (-17 Jul 1654)" married Daniel Pierce (2466)XE "Pierce:Daniel  (2466) (1611-27 Nov 1677)" circa 1637 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 582.).  She died on 17 Jul 1654.

1644.  Richard11 Swain (5287)XE "Swain:Richard  (5287) (1601-14 Apr 1682)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) was born in 1601 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.).  He married Elizabeth (--?--) (5288)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5288) (        -1657)" (see #1645) before 1619 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.).  He married Jane Godfrey (5292)XE "Godfrey:Jane  (5292) (-31 Oct 1662)" on 15 Sep 1658 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.).  He died on 14 Apr 1682 at Nantucket, USA (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 7, page 261.).

     (an unknown value) (Freem. 13 Mar. 1639, had liberty the yr. bef. to plant, with others, at Hampton, where in 1639 he had authty. to sett. small causes, and in 1663 had. sett. at Nantucket) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.).  He immigrated on 17 Sep 1635 (with the Truelove from England aged 34) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 323.).

     Children of Richard11 Swain (5287)XE "Swain:Richard  (5287) (1601-14 Apr 1682)" and Elizabeth (--?--) (5288)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5288) (        -1657)" (see #1645) were as follows:


 822.
i.
William10 (4288).XE "Swain:William  (4288) (1619-20 Nov 1657)"

 
ii.
Francis (5289)XE "Swain:Francis  (5289) (circa 1621-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) was born circa 1621 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 14, page 307.).

     He immigrated on 9 Apr 1635 (with the Rebecca from England, aged 14) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register.).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (5290)XE "Swain:Elizabeth  (5290) (after 1621-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) was born after 1621 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.).


 
iv.
Ellen (5291)XE "Swain:Ellen  (5291) (after 1622-        )" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.) was born after 1622 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 235.).

1645.  Elizabeth11 (--?--) (5288)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (5288) (        -1657)" (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.)XE "Swain:Elizabeth  (5288) (        -1657)" married Richard Swain (5287)XE "Swain:Richard  (5287) (1601-14 Apr 1682)" (see #1644) before 1619 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.).  She died in 1657 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 722.).

1646.  William11 Marston (5293)XE "Marston:William  (5293) (1592-30 Jun 1672)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 6, page 249.) was born in 1592 (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 492.).  He married Sabina (--?--) (5294)XE "(--?--):Sabina  (5294)" (see #1647) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 7, page 84.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 492.).  He died on 30 Jun 1672 at Hampton, USA (ae 80) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.).

     (an unknown value) (Salem 1637, perhaps br. of Thomas, had gr. of ld. that yr. but was of Hampton 1640, and back to S. removed to Newbury, yet prob. for short time, and so to Hampton, again, where he was freem. 1666) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.).

     Children of William11 Marston (5293)XE "Marston:William  (5293) (1592-30 Jun 1672)" and Sabina (--?--) (5294)XE "(--?--):Sabina  (5294)" (see #1647) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas10 (5298)XE "Marston:Thomas  (5298)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 302.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.).


 
ii.
Tryphena (5295)XE "Marston:Tryphena  (5295)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.).


 
iii.
John (5299)XE "Marston:John  (5299)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 302.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.).
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iv.
Prudence (4289).XE "Marston:Prudence  (4289)"

 
v.
William (5296)XE "Marston:William  (5296) (1622-22 Jan 1704)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 161.) was born in 1622 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 26, page 76.).  He married Rebecca Page (5297)XE "Page:Rebecca  (5297) (1636-27 Jun 1673)" on 15 Oct 1652 at Hampton, New Hampshire, USA (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 26, page 76.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 492.).  He died on 22 Jan 1704 (aged 82) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 26, page 76.).

1647.  Sabina11 (--?--) (5294)XE "(--?--):Sabina  (5294)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 7, page 84.)XE "Marston:Sabina  (5294)" married William Marston (5293)XE "Marston:William  (5293) (1592-30 Jun 1672)" (see #1646) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 7, page 84.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 492.).

Generation TwelveTC "Generation Twelve" \l 2
2076.  Robert12 Tilley (Tille) (3036)XE "Tilley (Tille):Robert  (3036) (circa 1540-31 Dec 1612)" (William Tylle, #4152) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, pages 1819 and 1822.) was born circa 1540 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  He married Elizabeth (--?--) (3037)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3037) (1544-27 Mar 1614)" circa 1570 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Genserv, File CRAA6HB.).  He died on 31 Dec 1612 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England. Will of Robert Tilley, Archdeaconry of Bedford 30:70 f.: In the name of god Amen: I Robert Tilley of Henlowe in the countie of Bedd: yeoman sicke in bodie but whole and of good and perfect remembrance, thankes be give to god therefore, doe this 31th daie of december A 1612 renounce and revoake all former willes by me hearebefore made, and doe nowe make and ordaine, this my laste will and testament in manner and forme followinge that is to saie: First I bequeathe my soule to allmightie god my maker, and to Jesus Christie his sonne my reedemer, by whose deathe and passing I hope to be saved and my bodie to be buried att the discretion of my executrix: .  His body was interred on 21 Feb 1613 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     (an unknown value) (Robert Tilley was a yeoman and was executor of the will of William Ellborne of Henlow, shearman, dated 16 Jan 1587/8, proved 1 Oct 1588 (Archdeaconry of Bedford 22:55)).

     Children of Robert12 Tilley (Tille) (3036)XE "Tilley (Tille):Robert  (3036) (circa 1540-31 Dec 1612)" and Elizabeth (--?--) (3037)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3037) (1544-27 Mar 1614)" (see #2077) all born at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England, were as follows:
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i.
John11 (937).XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)"

 
ii.
Rose (3038)XE "Tilley (Tille):Rose  (3038) (before 8 May 1574-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born before 8 May 1574 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.).  She was baptized on 8 May 1574 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She married John Goods (4383)XE "Goods:John  (4383)" on 24 Jun 1599 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She died.


 
iii.
George (4382)XE "Tilley:George  (4382) (before 26 Jan 1576-before 1612)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database; CRAA6HB.) was born before 26 Jan 1576 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, TAG: 52:198-208.).  He was baptized on 26 Jan 1576 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, TAG: 52: 198-208.).  He died before 1612 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, TAG: 52:198-208.).


 
iv.
Agnes (3039)XE "Tilley (Tille):Agnes  (3039) (before 6 Mar 1579-before 1612)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born before 6 Mar 1579.  She was baptized on 6 Mar 1579 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She died before 1612.


 
v.
Elizabeth (3040)XE "Tilley (Tille):Elizabeth  (3040) (before 26 Jan 1582-after 1613)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born before 26 Jan 1582.  She was baptized on 26 Jan 1582 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She married Richard Austin (4384)XE "Austin:Richard  (4384)" on 15 Dec 1608 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She died after 1613.


 
vi.
William (3041)XE "Tilley (Tille):William  (3041) (before 1 Sep 1585-after 1635)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born before 1 Sep 1585.  He was baptized on 1 Sep 1585 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  He married Elizabeth Peppitt (4385)XE "Peppitt:Elizabeth  (4385)" on 11 Nov 1612 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  He died after 1635 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.


 
vii.
Edward (3042)XE "Tilley (Tille):Edward  (3042) (before 27 May 1588-1620)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, pages 1819 to 1820.) was born before 27 May 1588 (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1819.).  He was baptized on 27 May 1588 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1819.).  He married Agnes Cooper (4381)XE "Cooper:Agnes  (4381) (before 26 Jan 1576-        )" on 20 Jun 1614 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1819.).  He died in 1620 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1819.).


 
viii.
Alice (3043)XE "Tilley (Tille):Alice  (3043) (before 28 Feb 1590-before 29 Jul 1597)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born before 28 Feb 1590.  She was baptized on 28 Feb 1590 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She died before 29 Jul 1597 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  Her body was interred on 29 Jul 1597 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.

2077.  Elizabeth12 (--?--) (3037)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3037) (1544-27 Mar 1614)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born in 1544 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Robert Tilley (Tille) (3036)XE "Tilley (Tille):Robert  (3036) (circa 1540-31 Dec 1612)" circa 1570 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Genserv, File CRAA6HB.).  She died on 27 Mar 1614 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  Her body was interred on 27 Mar 1614 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     (an unknown value) (She was evidently a widow shen she married Robert TILLEY. She had a daughter, mentioned in Agnes TYLLE's will in 1582, named Mary FARR. This woman may be the Elizabeth COMYNGS referred to by TORREY, p. 743).

2122.  Alexander12 Carpenter (1004)XE "Carpenter:Alexander  (1004)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 321.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Wrington, Somersetshire, England).

     Children of Alexander12 Carpenter (1004)XE "Carpenter:Alexander  (1004)" include:
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i.
Julia Anna11 (999).XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)"

 
ii.
Alice (1005)XE "Carpenter:Alice  (1005) (1590-26 Mar 1670)" (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 64.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 258.) was born in 1590.  She married Edward Southworth (2234)XE "Southworth:Edward  (2234) (1590-circa 1621)" on 28 May 1613 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 694.).  She married William Bradford (2235)XE "Bradford:William  (2235)" on 14 Aug 1623 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 91.).  She died on 26 Mar 1670 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. on the 26 day of March 1670 Mistress Allice Bradford Sr. changed this life for a better having attained to fourscore years of age or thereabouts. She was a godly matron; and much loved while she lived and lamented though aged when she died and was honorably interred on the 29 day of the month aforesaid at New Plymouth. (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 667, [p. 37].).


 
iii.
Agnes (2633)XE "Carpenter:Agnes  (2633) (before 16 Dec 1593-1615)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 258.) was born before 16 Dec 1593 at England (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 1, page 49.).  She was baptized on 16 Dec 1593 (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 1, page 49.).  She married Samuel Fuller (2634)XE "Fuller:Samuel  (2634) (before 20 Jan 1580-before 26 Sep 1633)" on 16 Mar 1613 at Leyden, Holland (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. 1, page 49.).  She died in 1615 at Leyden, Holland (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 289.).


 
iv.
Priscilla (2629)XE "Carpenter:Priscilla  (2629) (circa 1597-29 Dec 1689)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 258.) was born circa 1597.  She married William Wright (2630)XE "Wright:William  (2630) (-1633)" circa 1620 at England (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 844.).  She married John Cooper (2631)XE "Cooper:John  (2631) (-1683)" on 27 Nov 1634 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 181.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 652, [1:72].).  She died on 29 Dec 1689 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. in 92d year (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 133 [p. 199].).

     Priscilla (2629)XE "Carpenter:Priscilla  (2629) (circa 1597-29 Dec 1689)" immigrated to in 1627 at (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 258.).


 
v.
Mary (2632)XE "Carpenter:Mary  (2632) (circa 1597-20 Mar 1688)" (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691, Page 258.) was born circa 1597.  She died on 20 Mar 1688 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. in 91 year (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 133, [p. 199].).

     (an unknown value) (Mary never married, but came to live in her later years at Plymouth, where she died in her ninety-first year, "a godly old maid, never married" (Ply. Church Recs. 1:260). Frederic Kidder, "Letter of Mary Carpenter" NEHGR 14:195, transcribes a letter addressed to Mary at Wrington, Somerset, from Governor Bradford in which he writes, "Sundrie of our ministers (hearing of the peace and liberty now in England and Ireland) begine to leave us and it is feared many more will follow. We do not write these things to discourage you (for we shall be glad to see you if God so dispose) but if you find not all things here according to your expectation when God shall bring you hither that you may not thinke we delt not plainly with you." A footnote in NEHGR 14:196 suggests that the date of the letter, 19 August 1664, in the oldest extant copy must be wrongly transcribed. Internal evidence would place it ca. 1644 or 1646).

2496.  John12 Washbourne (2811)XE "Washbourne:John  (2811) (1518-13 Oct 1593)" (John, #4992) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) was born in 1518 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England.  He married Joan Bushell (2812)XE "Bushell:Joan  (2812) (-1557)" on 21 Apr 1542 (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.).  He married Jone Whitehead (3935)XE "Whitehead:Jone  (3935) (-1567)" on 8 May 1561 (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.).  He died on 13 Oct 1593 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.).

     Children of John12 Washbourne (2811)XE "Washbourne:John  (2811) (1518-13 Oct 1593)" and Joan Bushell (2812)XE "Bushell:Joan  (2812) (-1557)" (see #2497) were as follows:


 
i.
Margaret11 (2813)XE "Washburn:Margaret  (2813) (1543-)" (, Genser06, page 5.) was born in 1543.  She died.


 
ii.
Johanne (2814)XE "Washburn:Johanne  (2814) (1544-)" (, Genser06, page 5.) was born in 1544.  She died.


 
iii.
William (2816)XE "Washburn:William  (2816) (1544-)" (, Genser06, page 5.) was born in 1544.  He died.


 
iv.
Agnes (2815)XE "Washburn:Agnes  (2815) (1547-)" (, Genser06, page 5.) was born in 1547.  She died.


 1248.
v.
John (2809).XE "Washburn:John  (2809) (1 Aug 1556-before 11 Dec 1624)"
2497.  Joan12 Bushell (2812)XE "Bushell:Joan  (2812) (-1557)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 44.) (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.) married John Washbourne (2811)XE "Washbourne:John  (2811) (1518-13 Oct 1593)" on 21 Apr 1542 (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.).  She died in 1557 (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.).

2511.  Jennie le12 Mahieu (1119)XE "Mahieu:Jennie le  (1119)" (see #583).

2520.  Richard12 Tilden (1757)XE "Tilden:Richard  (1757) (1510-before 15 May 1566)" (John Tylden, #5040) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born in 1510 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He married Elizabeth Glover (1758)XE "Glover:Elizabeth  (1758) (1515-30 Dec 1585)" in 1540 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 15 May 1566 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. The Will of Rychard Tylden of Tenterden in the County of Kente, yeoman, 22 January 1565-6. My body to be buried in the parish where I die. To the poor of Tenterden. To my wife Elizabeth half of my household stuff, and various articles, including barley due me from Wyllyam Gerrys, live stock, all woolen cloth not made into garments, and angel noble, a double ducat, and 20s. The residue of my household stuff to my four daughters, Julyan, Agnes, Thomasen, and Mary Tylden, equally divided, and to each £30 at marriage or age of twenty years. To servant John Milles £30 in satisfaction of an account between him and me, and a cloak. To son John Tylden four pairs of hose, two coats, one of marbyll and another of russet, two hats, two new leather jerkins, a dublet of chamblett, and my white dublet. To Thomas Tylden my son a coat to be had of Peter Peyrs, my next best hat and a pair of hose. To Richard Adams of Benynden a coat dublet and a pair of hose of Winchester russet. To Richard Peyris's widow. To Thomas Berry. To George Pellond. To Henry Meryote, Mother Crotholl, and John Ilverd. To my servant Richard Cheseman. To Rychard Peyrs, son of Rychard Peyrs of Tenterden deceased, Myldred Pyers, and Thomas Berry son of Thomas Berry. The residue of my moveable goods to son John Tylden, and I make him and Walter Bygge of Tenterden, tailor, my executors; my son not to meddle in the execution of my testament until he come to the age of four and twenty years, except it fortune Walter Bygge to die. If son John die before that age, son Thomas to have his legacy and take his place as executor. I both sons die before said age, then to my daughters.To Walter Bygge for his pains 20s. Witnesses: Wyllyam Cocks, Clerk and curate of Tenterden, Robert Ashenden, Wyllyam Marden yonger, and Peter Pyerse.

This is my last will concerning all my lands in Tenterden and Benynden. My wife Elizabeth to have during her widowhood the occupation of my parlor and buttery adjoining, two chambers over them, and the garret loft over, the buttery next the hall dorr, with use of bakehouse, brewhouse, malt house, the head of my barn called the tan house, east garden, and water of the pits and ponds. Also I give her eight loads of wood and two hundred faggots. My garden called new garde and five pieces of land and wood containing twenty acres at the back side of my messuage in Tenterden, and three other pieces called pigge holes, containing seventeen acres of land and wood, to my wife until my son John Tilden shall accomplish the age of four and twenty tears, if she remain my widow so long, and not else. Son John to have the said lands at the said age and pay to my wife £6 13s 4d. a year during her life. I give to my wife toward the keeping of my children £6 to be paid out of my lands in Tenterden until my youngest child come to the age of twelve years, and if she die before that time, then Walter Bygg my executor to have the bringing up of my children. To Thomas Tilden my son all my lands and tenements in the parish of Benynden, when he shall accomplish the age of four and twenty years. My executor to take the residue of all profits of my lands and tenements in Tenterden and Benynden until my son John come to his said age toward the performance of my will and paying my debts, and when son John accomplish the said age, then he to receive all the profits of the foresaid lands in Tenterden and Benynden before willed to Thomas Tilden until the said Thomas accomplish his said age, and then John to pay to Thomas £50. My executors shall take down and sell the long houses along the street at my tenement in Benynden, and make a pale and gate for the passage into said tenement, and build a barn there at my house where it stood before thirty-six feet by twenty feet. If either of my two sons die before the age of four and twenty tears without lawful issue, the survivor shall pay to my daugters then living £20 apiece. If all my children die without lawful issue, then the said lands and tenements in Tenterden to John Mills and his heirs, and my lands and tenements in Benynden as follows: to my brother-in-law Thomas Glouer of Benynden two pieces of land called Barnfild and Osenlease lying between a lane there and his house, and the residue of my lands and tenements in Benynden to the relief of the poor of Tenterden and Benynden, to be letten and the profits distributed by the church wardens. Witnesses: Wyllyam Cocks, Clerke, Curate of Tenterden, Robert Asshenden, William Mardin younger, and Peter Pyers. Proved 15 May 1566 by Walter Bygge, one of the executors named in the will, with power reserved to grant a like probate to John Tilden the other executor named, at the age limited in the will. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 39, fo. 169.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 323.).

     (an unknown value) (Yeoman).  His Ancestral File Number is 8NSO-NK.

     Children of Richard12 Tilden (1757)XE "Tilden:Richard  (1757) (1510-before 15 May 1566)" and Elizabeth Glover (1758)XE "Glover:Elizabeth  (1758) (1515-30 Dec 1585)" (see #2521) were as follows:


 1260.
i.
Thomas11 (4233).XE "Tilden:Thomas  (4233) (circa 1541-6 Jun 1617)"

 2874.
ii.
John (1755).XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)"

 
iii.
Julian (4236)XE "Tilden:Julian  (4236) (after 1546-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1546.  She married Thomas Fynche (4237)XE "Fynche:Thomas  (4237)" on 21 Jun 1568 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died.


 
iv.
Agnes (4238)XE "Tilden:Agnes  (4238) (after 1546-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1546.  She married Peter Pierse (4239)XE "Pierse:Peter  (4239)" on 14 Feb 1569 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died.


 
v.
Thomasen (4240)XE "Tilden:Thomasen  (4240) (after 1546-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1546.  He died.


 
vi.
Catherine (4241)XE "Tilden:Catherine  (4241) (before 30 Sep 1554-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born before 30 Sep 1554.  She was baptized on 30 Sep 1554 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (probably d. young).


 
vii.
Mary (4242)XE "Tilden:Mary  (4242) (before 8 Jun 1556-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born before 8 Jun 1556.  She was baptized on 8 Jun 1556 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Probably d. young).


 
viii.
Alice (4243)XE "Tilden:Alice  (4243) (before 6 Apr 1559-30 Sep 1560)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born before 6 Apr 1559.  She was baptized on 6 Apr 1559 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died on 30 Sep 1560 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).


 
ix.
Mary (4244)XE "Tilden:Mary  (4244) (before 15 May 1561-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.) was born before 15 May 1561.  She was baptized on 15 May 1561 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died.

2521.  Elizabeth12 Glover (1758)XE "Glover:Elizabeth  (1758) (1515-30 Dec 1585)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1515 at Benenden, Kent, England.  She married Richard Tilden (1757)XE "Tilden:Richard  (1757) (1510-before 15 May 1566)" in 1540 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died on 30 Dec 1585 at Cranbrook, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8NSO-PQ.

2526.  Thomas12 Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" (John Hache, #5052) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1525 at Selling, Kent, England.  He married Joane unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" in 1552 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 13 Oct 1568 at England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Sellinge and Tenterden, co. Kent. Died intestate, before 13 Oct. 1568, when administration on his estate was granted to his widow. Thomas Hatche was churchwarden at Tenterden in 1565. The account of Joane Hatch alias Brissenden, administratrix, exhibited 25 Oct. 1574, names four daughters of Thomas Hatche, and the names of his three sons appear in the will of his brother, Stephen Hatche of Sellinge, in 1606. The will of his eldest son, John Hatche, of 1628/9, names the children, grandchildren, and eve some great-grandchildren of Thomas Hatche).  His Ancestral File Number is 1THT-FO.

     Children of Thomas12 Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" and Joane unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" (see #2527) were as follows:


 1263.
i.
Winifred11 (4201).XE "Hatche:Winifred  (4201) (circa 1553-6 Oct 1592)"

 
ii.
John (4204)XE "Hatche:John  (4204) (circa 1555-31 Mar 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1555.  He married Dorothy Philpott (4205)XE "Philpott:Dorothy  (4205) (-before 1 Nov 1638)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254 & 255.).  He died on 31 Mar 1629 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.).


 
iii.
Katharine (4206)XE "Hatche:Katharine  (4206) (circa 1557-before 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1557.  She married unknown Dunke (4207)XE "Dunke:unknown  (4207)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died before 1629.


 
iv.
Eleanor (4208)XE "Hatche:Eleanor  (4208) (circa 1559-after 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1559.  She married unknown Chittenden (4209)XE "Chittenden:unknown  (4209)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died after 1629.


 
v.
Elizabeth (4210)XE "Hatche:Elizabeth  (4210) (circa 1561-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1561.  She died.


 1436.
vi.
William (1740).XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)"

 
vii.
Thomas (4211)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (4211) (before 30 Jun 1565-before 27 Dec 1611)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born before 30 Jun 1565.  He was baptized on 30 Jun 1565 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 250.).  He married Margaret King (4212)XE "King:Margaret  (4212)" on 22 Sep 1587 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  He died before 27 Dec 1611 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).

2527.  Joane12 unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born in 1531 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married Thomas Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" in 1552 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Richard Brissenden (4200)XE "Brissenden:Richard  (4200)" before 25 Oct 1574 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GZ8W-9K.

2587.  Jennie le12 Mahieu (1119)XE "Mahieu:Jennie le  (1119)" (see #583).

2588.  Stephen12 Hopkins (1361)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1361)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol 6, page 7.) died.

     (an unknown value) (of Wortley, Parish of Wotton, Underedge, co. Gloucester, England).

     Children of Stephen12 Hopkins (1361)XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1361)" include:


 
i.
Robert11 (1362)XE "Hopkins:Robert  (1362)" (Mayflower Families Through Five Generations - Descendants of the Pilgrims who landed at Plymouth, Mass. December 1620, Vol. Six, page 3.) died.


 1294.
ii.
Stephen (1359).XE "Hopkins:Stephen  (1359) (circa 1581-6 Jun 1644)"
2688.  Augustine12 Fyshe (4818)XE "Fyshe:Augustine  (4818) (-1579)" (Lester Warren Fish, The Fish Family in England and America, page 5.) died in 1579 at Great Bowden.

     Children of Augustine12 Fyshe (4818)XE "Fyshe:Augustine  (4818) (-1579)" include:


 1344.
i.
John11 (4808).XE "Fyshe:John  (4808) (1555-19 Feb 1622)"
2722.  Richard12 Baker (1417)XE "Baker:Richard  (1417)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.) married Margaret unknown (2247).XE "unknown:Margaret  (2247)"  He died.

     (an unknown value) (He was a miller of Ashford and the family had resided in Kent for many generations).

     Children of Richard12 Baker (1417)XE "Baker:Richard  (1417)" and Margaret unknown (2247)XE "unknown:Margaret  (2247)" (see #2723) were:
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i.
Joyce11 (1408).XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)"
2723.  Margaret12 unknown (2247)XE "unknown:Margaret  (2247)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.) married Richard Baker (1417).XE "Baker:Richard  (1417)"  She died.

2728.  William12 Norton (1451)XE "Norton:William  (1451) (circa 1535-after 1604)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 341 to 343.) was born circa 1535 at England.  He died after 1604.

     (an unknown value) (Of the first of the name on the Vineyard, Nicholas Norton, a full biographical sketch has been given in this history (Vol. II, pp. 85-90 Annals of Edgartown), and nothing of material importance about him has been found since that was written except the statements which follow concerning his English ancestry. The opinion hazarded in the sketch of his life above referred to that Nicholas "emigrated from Somersetshire and probably came from the vicinity of Batcombe or Broadway in that county" has been established to the satisfaction of the author after a long search of all the known sources of records which might throw light on the case. His business dealings with Richard Standerwicke, a clothier, of the parish of Broadway, has proved to be the important clue in locating this prominent pioneer as a resident and probable native of the same parish. Standerwicke sold to Norton in 1639 "all the cattle whether cowes, steers or calves, whatsoever I have with Mr. Hull in New England."  (Plymouth Col. Rec.). The Standerwick family have been Lords of the Manor in Broadway for over four hundred years and possessed their manorial records for four centuries. I am indebted to the Rev. Mr. Standerwick for assistance in my search and notes from his family records on the Norton family. The Norton family was long settled in Somersetshire where the name was generally spelled Nourton and Nurton in the earlier records, and there are references to them as early as 1400 in wills and deeds. They are to be found in more than a dozen different parishes in that county before 1600, including the parish of Broadway. Wills, depositions, chancery suits, and other documents of the 16th century show that a Norton family, tanners, lived ath White Lackington, an adjoining hamlet of Broadway, and the fact that Nicholas Norton of Edgartown was a tanner is quite significant. John Norton of White Lackington, a tanner, was a witness to the will of John Standerwick of Broadway in 1568, but the Manor Rolls of 1555 do not contain his name. William Norton was churchwarden of Ilminster in 1543, a still earlier record of the family in that vicinity. In those days occupations were continued in families from generation to generation. The first known ancestor of Nicholas Norton was William Norton, tanner, of White Lackington about 1540 described as the eldest of the family, but his parentage is unknown. He had two younger brothers, John, also a tanner who made his will in 1576, and Robert Norton, who took up his residence in the cathedral city of Wells where he followed the occupation of innholder and was at the date of his death (1590) without issue. He left considerable property to his nephews. Robert Norton of parish of S. Cuthbert, Wells, innholder, at his decease had four water mills, which he disposed of by will dated 1590, viz: two to his wife and two to his brother William. Elizabeth Joan the widow, William and Nicholas began suit against William Norton the executor, and litigation was continued by John, the son of Nicholas. The latter had followed the prosecution of this suit for 22 years, according to the complaint of John, to the ruin of his estate and in the end "sickened & died with great greife & anguishe of minde leavinge behind him a poor widdowe and 8 children (1616) whereof yo subject is the eldest, but not one pennye towards their reliefe & maintenance other than the hopes of the said decree, by means of whose death his wiffe & children have nott only lost a carefull pvider for them but also a possibilitie of an estate wich the said Nicholas had, after the said William the executor, worth at leas 200 marks". Star Chamber Proceedings, (James I) 22110, John Norton of Broadway, Chapman, plaintiff vs. William Norton et als defendants. The compiler has much other material on this family, which is omitted for want of space. Doubtless the complete pedigree of this family could be worked out in England from the authors' notes

).

     Children of William12 Norton (1451)XE "Norton:William  (1451) (circa 1535-after 1604)" include:


 
i.
William11 (1452)XE "Norton:William  (1452)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 343.) died.


 1364.
ii.
Nicholas (1450).XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1450) (1562-1616)"
2786.  Richard12 Baker (1417)XE "Baker:Richard  (1417)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.) married Margaret unknown (2247).XE "unknown:Margaret  (2247)"  He died.

     (an unknown value) (He was a miller of Ashford and the family had resided in Kent for many generations).

     Children of Richard12 Baker (1417)XE "Baker:Richard  (1417)" and Margaret unknown (2247)XE "unknown:Margaret  (2247)" (see #2723) were:


 1361.
i.
Joyce11 (1408).XE "Baker:Joyce  (1408) (before 30 May 1602-after 13 Mar 1680)"
2787.  Margaret12 unknown (2247)XE "unknown:Margaret  (2247)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 47.) married Richard Baker (1417).XE "Baker:Richard  (1417)"  She died.

2792.  William12 Norton (1451)XE "Norton:William  (1451) (circa 1535-after 1604)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 341 to 343.) was born circa 1535 at England.  He died after 1604.

     (an unknown value) (Of the first of the name on the Vineyard, Nicholas Norton, a full biographical sketch has been given in this history (Vol. II, pp. 85-90 Annals of Edgartown), and nothing of material importance about him has been found since that was written except the statements which follow concerning his English ancestry. The opinion hazarded in the sketch of his life above referred to that Nicholas "emigrated from Somersetshire and probably came from the vicinity of Batcombe or Broadway in that county" has been established to the satisfaction of the author after a long search of all the known sources of records which might throw light on the case. His business dealings with Richard Standerwicke, a clothier, of the parish of Broadway, has proved to be the important clue in locating this prominent pioneer as a resident and probable native of the same parish. Standerwicke sold to Norton in 1639 "all the cattle whether cowes, steers or calves, whatsoever I have with Mr. Hull in New England."  (Plymouth Col. Rec.). The Standerwick family have been Lords of the Manor in Broadway for over four hundred years and possessed their manorial records for four centuries. I am indebted to the Rev. Mr. Standerwick for assistance in my search and notes from his family records on the Norton family. The Norton family was long settled in Somersetshire where the name was generally spelled Nourton and Nurton in the earlier records, and there are references to them as early as 1400 in wills and deeds. They are to be found in more than a dozen different parishes in that county before 1600, including the parish of Broadway. Wills, depositions, chancery suits, and other documents of the 16th century show that a Norton family, tanners, lived ath White Lackington, an adjoining hamlet of Broadway, and the fact that Nicholas Norton of Edgartown was a tanner is quite significant. John Norton of White Lackington, a tanner, was a witness to the will of John Standerwick of Broadway in 1568, but the Manor Rolls of 1555 do not contain his name. William Norton was churchwarden of Ilminster in 1543, a still earlier record of the family in that vicinity. In those days occupations were continued in families from generation to generation. The first known ancestor of Nicholas Norton was William Norton, tanner, of White Lackington about 1540 described as the eldest of the family, but his parentage is unknown. He had two younger brothers, John, also a tanner who made his will in 1576, and Robert Norton, who took up his residence in the cathedral city of Wells where he followed the occupation of innholder and was at the date of his death (1590) without issue. He left considerable property to his nephews. Robert Norton of parish of S. Cuthbert, Wells, innholder, at his decease had four water mills, which he disposed of by will dated 1590, viz: two to his wife and two to his brother William. Elizabeth Joan the widow, William and Nicholas began suit against William Norton the executor, and litigation was continued by John, the son of Nicholas. The latter had followed the prosecution of this suit for 22 years, according to the complaint of John, to the ruin of his estate and in the end "sickened & died with great greife & anguishe of minde leavinge behind him a poor widdowe and 8 children (1616) whereof yo subject is the eldest, but not one pennye towards their reliefe & maintenance other than the hopes of the said decree, by means of whose death his wiffe & children have nott only lost a carefull pvider for them but also a possibilitie of an estate wich the said Nicholas had, after the said William the executor, worth at leas 200 marks". Star Chamber Proceedings, (James I) 22110, John Norton of Broadway, Chapman, plaintiff vs. William Norton et als defendants. The compiler has much other material on this family, which is omitted for want of space. Doubtless the complete pedigree of this family could be worked out in England from the authors' notes

).

     Children of William12 Norton (1451)XE "Norton:William  (1451) (circa 1535-after 1604)" include:


 
i.
William11 (1452)XE "Norton:William  (1452)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 343.) died.


 1364.
ii.
Nicholas (1450).XE "Norton:Nicholas  (1450) (1562-1616)"
2800.  William12 Daggett (1507)XE "Daggett:William  (1507) (1557-10 Oct 1610)" (John, #5600) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 11.) (.) was born in 1557 at Bosford, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard Page 344.).  He married Avis Lappage (1505)XE "Lappage:Avis  (1505) (-after 23 Sep 1650)" in 1591 at Boxford, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 11.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  He died on 10 Oct 1610 (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).

     Children of William12 Daggett (1507)XE "Daggett:William  (1507) (1557-10 Oct 1610)" and Avis Lappage (1505)XE "Lappage:Avis  (1505) (-after 23 Sep 1650)" (see #2801) were as follows:


 
i.
Anne11 (5309)XE "Daggett:Anne  (5309) (1592-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born in 1592 at Boxford, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She was baptized on 11 May 1592 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).


 
ii.
Thomas (5305)XE "Daggett:Thomas Gent (5305) (1594-        )"

XE "Daggett:Thomas Gent  (5305) (1594-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born in 1594 at Boxford, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  He was baptized on 30 Dec 1594 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family.).


 
iii.
Susan (5310)XE "Daggett:Susan  (5310) (1595-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.)XE "Norwich:Susan  (5310) (1595-        )" was born in 1595 at Boxford, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She was baptized on 25 Jan 1595 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).  She married Richard Norwich (5311)XE "Norwich:Richard  (5311)" in 1617 at Groton (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).


 
iv.
Avis (5312)XE "Daggett:Avis  (5312) (1598-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.)XE "Bond:Avis  (5312) (1598-        )" was born in 1598 at Boxford, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She was baptized on 27 Feb 1598 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family.).  She married John Bond (5313)XE "Bond:John  (5313)" on 23 Jul 1620 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She was buried in 1625 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).


 
v.
William (5317)XE "Daggett:William  (5317) (1599-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born in 1599 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  He was baptized on 27 Feb 1599 at Boxfodr, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).


 
vi.
Alice (5314)XE "Daggett:Alice  (5314) (1601-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.)XE "Searlett:Alice  (5314) (1601-        )" was born in 1601 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She was baptized on 14 May 1601 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).  She married Christopher Searlett (5315)XE "Searlett:Christopher  (5315)" in 1624 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).
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vii.
John (1504).XE "Daggett:John  (1504) (1602-1673)"

 
viii.
Dorothy (5316)XE "Daggett:Dorothy  (5316) (1605-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born in 1605 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She was baptized on 28 Nov 1605 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).


 
ix.
Lappage (5306)XE "Daggett:Lappage  (5306) (1606-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born in 1606 at Boxford, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  He/she was baptized on 12 Feb 1606 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).


 
x.
Richard (5307)XE "Daggett:Richard  (5307) (1608-        )" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born in 1608 at Boxford, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  He was baptized on 1 Dec 1608 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).  He married Sarah Le Gris (5308)XE "Le Gris:Sarah  (5308)" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).

2801.  Avis12 Lappage (1505)XE "Lappage:Avis  (1505) (-after 23 Sep 1650)" (Thomas, #5602) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 11.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.)XE "Daggett:Avis  (1505) (-after 23 Sep 1650)" married William Daggett (1507)XE "Daggett:William  (1507) (1557-10 Oct 1610)" in 1591 at Boxford, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. II, page 11.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  She died after 23 Sep 1650 (Doggett-Daggett Family, Page 13.).

2804.  Matthew12 Mayhew (1524)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)" (Thomas Mayow, #2832) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1550 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He married Alice Barter (1525)XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)" on 2 Oct 1587 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He died on 24 Jun 1614 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  His body was interred on 26 Feb 1614 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).

     (an unknown value) (He resided in the parish of Tisbury, and is described in his will as a "yeoman" by which term is meant to be conveyed, legally speaking, a freeholder next under the rank of "gentleman"; for being descended from the line of a third son of an established family he had not the quality that then attached to the eldest branch. Nevertheless he was a man of substance, and left to his heirs an estate valued at about seven thousand dollars in cash, besides his real property, as estimated by our present standards

).  His Ancestral File Number is 52L4-DR.

     Children of Matthew12 Mayhew (1524)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)" and Alice Barter (1525)XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)" (see #1417) all born at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England, were as follows:


 
i.
Elizabeth11 (1538)XE "Mayhew:Elizabeth  (1538) (before 1 May 1589-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 1 May 1589.  She was baptized on 1 May 1589 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She married John Gilbert (2204)XE "Gilbert:John  (2204)" on 18 Mar 1612 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
ii.
John (1539)XE "Mayhew:John  (1539) (before 17 Jan 1591-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 17 Jan 1591.  He was baptized on 17 Jan 1591 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He died.


 708.
iii.
Thomas (1522).XE "Mayhew:Thomas  (1522) (31 Mar 1593-25 Mar 1682)"

 
iv.
Joan (1540)XE "Mayhew:Joan  (1540) (before 8 Feb 1596-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 8 Feb 1596.  She was baptized on 8 Feb 1596 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
v.
Alice (1541)XE "Mayhew:Alice  (1541) (before 16 Dec 1598-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 16 Dec 1598.  She was baptized on 16 Dec 1598 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She married Thomas Palmer (2205)XE "Palmer:Thomas  (2205)" on 17 Jun 1622 (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
vi.
Katherine (1542)XE "Mayhew:Katherine  (1542) (before 15 Mar 1600-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 15 Mar 1600.  She was baptized on 15 Mar 1600 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died.


 
vii.
Edward (1543)XE "Mayhew:Edward  (1543) (before 24 Apr 1602-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) was born before 24 Apr 1602.  He was baptized on 24 Apr 1602 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He died.

2805.  Alice12 Barter (1525)XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)" (Edward, #2834) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113 - Vol. III, page 299.) was born on 2 Oct 1540 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Matthew Mayhew (1524)XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)" on 2 Oct 1587 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  She died before 1614 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (As this Alice was the only one found by the author (Banks) in his searches among Wiltshire wills, and as the name of Edward was bestowed on the third son of Matthew and Alice, presumably in honor of her father, as Thomas had been given in memory of his father, this origin of Alice Barter, the mother of Thomas Mayhew, is offered as the probable solution of the question of her ancestry).  Her Ancestral File Number is 52L4-FX.

2808.  Edmond12 Hawes (3964)XE "Hawes:Edmond  (3964) (-after 1653)" (William, #5616) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married Jane Porter (3965)XE "Porter:Jane  (3965)" before 1600 (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  He died after 1653.

     (an unknown value) (By deed dated 16 May 1604, with his cousin Humphrey Colles of the Middle Temple, he bought the lordship of Solihull for £ 1080 from Thomas, grandson of Sir George Throckmorton, Knight, and afterward sold it to Samuel Marrow, Esq. He was living as late as 1653).

     Children of Edmond12 Hawes (3964)XE "Hawes:Edmond  (3964) (-after 1653)" and Jane Porter (3965)XE "Porter:Jane  (3965)" (see #2809) were as follows:


 
i.
Jane11 (4065)XE "Hawes:Jane  (4065) (before 5 Oct 1600-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 5 Oct 1600.  She was baptized on 5 Oct 1600 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  She died.


 
ii.
Ursula (4066)XE "Hawes:Ursula  (4066) (before 19 Jan 1602-Apr 1602)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 19 Jan 1602.  She was baptized on 19 Jan 1602 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  She died in Apr 1602.


 
iii.
Lucy (4067)XE "Hawes:Lucy  (4067) (before 12 Jan 1603-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 12 Jan 1603.  She was baptized on 12 Jan 1603 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  She died.


 
iv.
William (4068)XE "Hawes:William  (4068) (before 30 Dec 1604-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 30 Dec 1604 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  He was baptized on 30 Dec 1604 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).


 
v.
Thomas (4069)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (4069) (circa Feb 1605-21 Apr 1605)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born circa Feb 1605.  He died on 21 Apr 1605 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).


 
vi.
Ursula (4071)XE "Hawes:Ursula  (4071) (before 26 Oct 1606-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 26 Oct 1606.  She died.


 
vii.
Mary (4072)XE "Hawes:Mary  (4072) (before 25 Oct 1607-12 Oct 1616)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 25 Oct 1607.  She was baptized on 25 Oct 1607 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  She died on 12 Oct 1616 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).
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viii.
Edmund (1574).XE "Hawes:Edmund  (1574) (1608-1693)"

 
ix.
Ann (4073)XE "Hawes:Ann  (4073) (before 5 Sep 1609-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 5 Sep 1609.  She was baptized on 5 Sep 1609 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  She died.


 
x.
John (4074)XE "Hawes:John  (4074) (before 13 Apr 1611-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 13 Apr 1611.  He died.


 
xi.
Elizabeth (4075)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (4075) (before 18 Aug 1616-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before 18 Aug 1616.  She was baptized on 18 Aug 1616 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.).  She died.


 
xii.
Ruth (4076)XE "Hawes:Ruth  (4076) (before Jun 1618-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 164.) was born before Jun 1618.  She was baptized in Jun 1618 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 1, page 164.).  She died.

2809.  Jane12 Porter (3965)XE "Porter:Jane  (3965)" (Richard, #5618) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married Edmond Hawes (3964)XE "Hawes:Edmond  (3964) (-after 1653)" before 1600 (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  She died.

2812.  Ralph12 Gorham (1586)XE "Gorham:Ralph  (1586) (1575-1643)" (James, #5624) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. II, page 281.) (Elizabeth Pearson White, John Howland of the Mayflower, Vol. 1, page 9.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 357.) was born in 1575.  He died in 1643.

     (an unknown value) (The Northamptonshire branch of the Gorhams are supposed to have descended from Sir Hugh de Gorham and his wife, Margaret, daughter of Sir William l'Angevin. Sir Hugh de Gorham, in 1281, possessed the manor of Churchfield in the parish of Oundle, and land in Benefield which had belonged to his wife's father. More then three hundred years later, the baptism of John Gorram, son of Ralph Gorram was entered in the Benefield register).

     Children of Ralph12 Gorham (1586)XE "Gorham:Ralph  (1586) (1575-1643)" include:


 
i.
Ralph11 (3963)XE "Gorham:Ralph  (3963)" died.
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ii.
John (1585).XE "Gorham:John  (1585) (before 28 Jan 1621-before 5 Feb 1676)"
2814.  John12 Howland (761)XE "Howland:John  (761) (circa 1593-23 Feb 1673)" (Henry, #1036) (see #518).

2815.  Elizabeth12 Tilley (927)XE "Tilley:Elizabeth  (927) (1607-21 Dec 1687)" (John, #1038) (see #519).

2824.  John12 Hynckleye (1642)XE "Hynckleye:John  (1642) (circa 1512-25 Jun 1577)" (John Henkle, #5648) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 19.) was born circa 1512 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  He married Johane unknown (1643)XE "unknown:Johane  (1643) (1515-before 23 Jan 1563)" before 1535 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  He married Aves Elles (2540)XE "Elles:Aves  (2540)" on 3 Jul 1570 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 19.).  He died on 25 Jun 1577 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E. The Will of John Hynckleye of Haryetishm in the County of Kent and Diocese of Cantorbury, 5 May 1577. My body to be buried in the churchyard of Haryetsham. To the poor. To the reparation of the church of Haryetisham 3s. 4d. To Alyce Fekyns, wife of John Fekyns, 12d. To godson Henrye Hynckleye 12d. To Katheryne Lytlehare, my daughter's daughter. To my wife Avysse two bushels of wheat lying among the wheat of my son Roberte Hyncklye. All my goods and cattle to my wife Avysse and daughter Annys, and to the latter certain pewter and household goods (specified), and at the age of twenty-one £10, to be paid by my son Robert. For default of payment, daughter Annys to enter into my chief messuage at Haryetsham, wherein Robert my son no dwelleth, and lands thereto belonging, until the sum be paid. If Annys die before her said age, my wife to have £5, and Henry Hyncklye and John Hyncklye, sons of my son John Hyncklye, shall have 20s. each. To Thomas Hyncklye, son of Robert Hyncklye my son. The residue of all goods and cattle unbequeathed now in the occupation of Robert Hyncklye, I give to him, and make him executor. Henrye Smoothynge and Robert Wyllmott to be my overseers.

My last will regarding all my lands and tenements in Haryetsham or elswhere in the County of Kent. My tenement at Steden strete, wherein I now dwell, with a barn and certain lands adjoining called Stylles feylds, containig six acres, and two other pieces of land called Newman and chawke lande in Haryetsham, to wife Avysse and her heirs for the term of thirteen years after my decease, if she live so long, paying the lord's rent, and 26s. 8d. a year to John Hyncklye my son, to whom I leave the said property after my wife's decease or at the end of the said thirteen years, at his death to revert to his son Henry Hyncklye and his heirs male, and for want of such to the heirs male of my son John, and for want of such to Robert my son and his heirs male and for want of such to the right heirs of my son John. Son Robert to have use of ponds on said land to draw water. To son John 13s. 4d. out ot my messuage and lands now in the occupation of son Robert for seven years and a half after my decease (with penalty for non-payment). Whereas I have reserved unto myself one loft chamber in the house where my son Robert now dwelleth with free ingress and egress, Avysse my wife shall have the same for one year after my decease. To son Roberte Hyncslye for life my messuage where he now dwelleth with all houses and buildings thereto belonging and all the rest of my lands, tenements, and hereditaments in the parish of Haryetsham or elsewhere in the County of Kent, and after his decease I will them to his sons Isaacke Hyncklye and Thomas Hyncklye and their heirs male, and for want of such to the next heirs male of son Robert, and for want of such to Annys my daughter and her lawful issue, ad for want fo such to the right heirs of son Robert. "Whereas by my suffycyent dede sealed with my seale" I have given to Avysse my wife an annuity of 6s. 8d., it shall be paid out of the lands given to son Robert. If any of my sons seek to break the entail of my property, or if any legatee contes my will, the legacy of such person to be void. Witnesses: Rychard Elmestone, Clerk, Rychard Tassell, Nicholas Wade, and John Baker. Proved [at Lenham] 11 October 1577 by the oaths of Rychard Elmestone, clerk, John Baker, clerk, and Nicholas Wade, witnesses, by the executor named in the will. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 43, fo. 30.)

Inventory £15 9s. 6d. (Act Book, 1575-81, fo. 75.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, pages 287, 288 & 316.).

     (an unknown value) (Will of 1577).  His Ancestral File Number is 84T3-FR.

     Children of John12 Hynckleye (1642)XE "Hynckleye:John  (1642) (circa 1512-25 Jun 1577)" and Johane unknown (1643)XE "unknown:Johane  (1643) (1515-before 23 Jan 1563)" (see #2825) were as follows:


 
i.
John11 (2541)XE "Hinckley:John  (2541) (circa 1535-before 13 Feb 1591)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born circa 1535 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  He married Johanne Bills (2542)XE "Bills:Johanne  (2542) (circa 1539-1574)" on 9 Oct 1553 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  He died before 13 Feb 1591 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  His body was interred on 13 Feb 1591 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).
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ii.
Robert (1640).XE "Hinckley:Robert  (1640) (1537-before 27 Mar 1606)"

 
iii.
Anne (2543)XE "Hinckley:Anne  (2543) (before 8 Oct 1539-)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born before 8 Oct 1539.  She was baptized on 8 Oct 1539 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.).  She married unknown Lytlehare (4179)XE "Lytlehare:unknown  (4179)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.).  She died.

2825.  Johane12 unknown (1643)XE "unknown:Johane  (1643) (1515-before 23 Jan 1563)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born in 1515 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  She married John Hynckleye (1642)XE "Hynckleye:John  (1642) (circa 1512-25 Jun 1577)" before 1535 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  She died before 23 Jan 1563 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.  Her body was interred on 23 Jan 1564 at Harrietsham, Kent, England, 511500N0004100E.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 84T3-GX.

2828.  John12 Soole (1655)XE "Soole:John  (1655) (1540-)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.) was born in 1540.  He married Maria Whitfield (1656)XE "Whitfield:Maria  (1656) (1544-)" on 21 Jan 1566 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 84T3-V1.

     Children of John12 Soole (1655)XE "Soole:John  (1655) (1540-)" and Maria Whitfield (1656)XE "Whitfield:Maria  (1656) (1544-)" (see #2829) were:
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i.
Thomas11 (1653).XE "Soole:Thomas  (1653) (1567-)"
2829.  Maria12 Whitfield (1656)XE "Whitfield:Maria  (1656) (1544-)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.)XE "Soole:Maria  (1656) (1544-)" was born in 1544.  She married John Soole (1655)XE "Soole:John  (1655) (1540-)" on 21 Jan 1566 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 186.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 84T3-W6.

2830.  John12 Iddenden (1657)XE "Iddenden:John  (1657) (circa 1544-15 Mar 1588)" (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.) was born circa 1544 at Cranbrook, Kent, England.  He married Christian Mercer (1658)XE "Mercer:Christian  (1658) (circa 1548-13 Aug 1597)" on 26 Sep 1569 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 187.).  He died on 15 Mar 1588 at Cranbrook, Kent, England (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 84T3-XC.

     Children of John12 Iddenden (1657)XE "Iddenden:John  (1657) (circa 1544-15 Mar 1588)" and Christian Mercer (1658)XE "Mercer:Christian  (1658) (circa 1548-13 Aug 1597)" (see #2831) were:
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i.
Mary11 (1654).XE "Iddenden:Mary  (1654) (1573-)"
2831.  Christian12 Mercer (1658)XE "Mercer:Christian  (1658) (circa 1548-13 Aug 1597)" (unknown, #5662) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, Page 4.)XE "Iddenden:Christian  (1658) (circa 1548-13 Aug 1597)" was born circa 1548 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England.  She married John Iddenden (1657)XE "Iddenden:John  (1657) (circa 1544-15 Mar 1588)" on 26 Sep 1569 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 68, page 187.).  She died on 13 Aug 1597 at Cranbrook, Kent, England, 510600N0003300E (plague) (Hugh A. Johnson, The Ancestry of Mercy Hinkley (1734-1814) Wife of Benjamin Whitney in Maine, page 4.).

2832.  Thomas12 Mayow (1526)XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)" (Robert, #5664) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1509 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He married Alice Waterman (1527)XE "Waterman:Alice  (1527) (1522-14 Jul 1586)" in 1549 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 1 Jun 1590 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Called " yeoman". The chapter devoted to "The English Family of Mayhew" (Vol. I, pp. 104-116) comprises all that was known by the author at the time of its compilation but several things of material importance have since been discovered to be added to its conclusions. During two recent visits to England the compiler found evidence of the residence of the Governor's ancestors in Tisbury as early as 1520 indicating settlement there at a probable earlier date. Thomas Mayhew, who is considered the grandfather of Gov. Thomas, was taxed for "goods", as of the Tithing of Tisbury, in 1540. (Sub. Roll 197/184.) In a deposition dated 30-31 Elizabeth (1589) this Thomas Mayhew deposed at the age of 80 years to events and persons known to him in that parish for the past 63 years and more.  This places his birth in 1509, his knowledge of events back to 1517 and it is probable that he was born in Tisbury. He was the third son of a Robert Mayhew of Dinton, is the putative father of Matthew of Tisbury and doubtless came to be a resident of the latter named parish through the marriage of his father Robert with Joan Bridmore of Tisbury. It is probable that he inherited her estate there while the eldest son and heir retained possession of the Mayhew property in Dinton. He was buried in 1590 at Tisbury. His wife Alice predeceased him in 1586

).  His Ancestral File Number is 8P83-BN.

     Children of Thomas12 Mayow (1526)XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)" and Alice Waterman (1527)XE "Waterman:Alice  (1527) (1522-14 Jul 1586)" (see #2833) were:


 1416.
i.
Matthew11 (1524).XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)"
2833.  Alice12 Waterman (1527)XE "Waterman:Alice  (1527) (1522-14 Jul 1586)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1522 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  She married Thomas Mayow (1526)XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)" in 1549 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died on 14 Jul 1586 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-KQ.

2834.  Edward12 Barter (1544)XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)" (James, #5668) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) was born in 1526 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died after 6 Oct 1574 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England. The will of Edward Barter, of Haxton, Wilts, of the parish of Fydleton, is dated Oct 6, 1574 and mentions among others, his wife Edith and his daughter Alice. (Arch. Sarum, P.C.C., V, 231.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     He married Edith unknown (1545)XE "unknown:Edith  (1545) (1530-9 Aug 1576)" at Fydleton, Haxton, Wilts, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  His Ancestral File Number is 8P83-KV.

     Children of Edward12 Barter (1544)XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)" and Edith unknown (1545)XE "unknown:Edith  (1545) (1530-9 Aug 1576)" (see #2835) were as follows:


 
i.
Ellyn11 (1555)XE "Barter:Ellyn  (1555)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
ii.
William (1551)XE "Barter:William  (1551)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
iii.
Joan (1552)XE "Barter:Joan  (1552)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
iv.
Christian (1553)XE "Barter:Christian  (1553)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
v.
Edward (1554)XE "Barter:Edward  (1554)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
vi.
Harry (1556)XE "Barter:Harry  (1556)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
vii.
John (1557)XE "Barter:John  (1557)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 1417.
viii.
Alice (1525).XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)"
2835.  Edith12 unknown (1545)XE "unknown:Edith  (1545) (1530-9 Aug 1576)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1530.  She married Edward Barter (1544)XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)" at Fydleton, Haxton, Wilts, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  She died on 9 Aug 1576 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England. The will of Edith Barter, widow, of the same parish, is dated Aug. 9, 1576, and mentions among others her daughter Alice to whom she gave "halfe an aker of wheat and half an aker of barley my best cowlett, my white pety coat, my kercher, my canvas apron a platter and porringer" (Arch. Sarum, P.C.C., V, 273.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8P83-L2.

2856.  Richard12 Lombard (1708)XE "Lombard:Richard  (1708) (circa 1560-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1560 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is LSHK-L8.

     Children of Richard12 Lombard (1708)XE "Lombard:Richard  (1708) (circa 1560-)" include:


 1428.
i.
Thomas11 (1707).XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)"
2864.  John12 Lovell (1729)XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)" (William, #5728) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1538.  He married unknown Thorne (1730)XE "Thorne:unknown  (1730) (1540-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 59XR-N9.

     Children of John12 Lovell (1729)XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)" and unknown Thorne (1730)XE "Thorne:unknown  (1730) (1540-)" (see #2865) were:


 1432.
i.
John11 (1728).XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)"
2865.  unknown12 Thorne (1730)XE "Thorne:unknown  (1730) (1540-)" was born in 1540 at London, England.  She married John Lovell (1729)XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 59XR-PG.

2872.  Thomas12 Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" (John Hache, #5052) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1525 at Selling, Kent, England.  He married Joane unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" in 1552 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 13 Oct 1568 at England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Sellinge and Tenterden, co. Kent. Died intestate, before 13 Oct. 1568, when administration on his estate was granted to his widow. Thomas Hatche was churchwarden at Tenterden in 1565. The account of Joane Hatch alias Brissenden, administratrix, exhibited 25 Oct. 1574, names four daughters of Thomas Hatche, and the names of his three sons appear in the will of his brother, Stephen Hatche of Sellinge, in 1606. The will of his eldest son, John Hatche, of 1628/9, names the children, grandchildren, and eve some great-grandchildren of Thomas Hatche).  His Ancestral File Number is 1THT-FO.

     Children of Thomas12 Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" and Joane unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" (see #2527) were as follows:


 1263.
i.
Winifred11 (4201).XE "Hatche:Winifred  (4201) (circa 1553-6 Oct 1592)"

 
ii.
John (4204)XE "Hatche:John  (4204) (circa 1555-31 Mar 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1555.  He married Dorothy Philpott (4205)XE "Philpott:Dorothy  (4205) (-before 1 Nov 1638)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254 & 255.).  He died on 31 Mar 1629 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.).


 
iii.
Katharine (4206)XE "Hatche:Katharine  (4206) (circa 1557-before 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1557.  She married unknown Dunke (4207)XE "Dunke:unknown  (4207)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died before 1629.


 
iv.
Eleanor (4208)XE "Hatche:Eleanor  (4208) (circa 1559-after 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1559.  She married unknown Chittenden (4209)XE "Chittenden:unknown  (4209)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died after 1629.


 
v.
Elizabeth (4210)XE "Hatche:Elizabeth  (4210) (circa 1561-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1561.  She died.


 1436.
vi.
William (1740).XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)"

 
vii.
Thomas (4211)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (4211) (before 30 Jun 1565-before 27 Dec 1611)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born before 30 Jun 1565.  He was baptized on 30 Jun 1565 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 250.).  He married Margaret King (4212)XE "King:Margaret  (4212)" on 22 Sep 1587 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  He died before 27 Dec 1611 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).

2873.  Joane12 unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born in 1531 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married Thomas Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" in 1552 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Richard Brissenden (4200)XE "Brissenden:Richard  (4200)" before 25 Oct 1574 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GZ8W-9K.

2874.  John12 Tilden (1755)XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)" (Richard, #2520) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born after 1541 at Benenden, Kent, England.  He married Patience Casslen (1756)XE "Casslen:Patience  (1756) (1545-23 Nov 1615)" on 23 Jan 1569 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 29 Jan 1626 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. Old Mr John Tilden ye auncient Jurate (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).

     (an unknown value) (We learn from the church records that he was jurat in 1587, 1588, 1615, and 1625. He is called "Mr." Tilden, his wife "Mistress" Tilden, and in their marriage licenses several of his children are described as gentlemen).  His Ancestral File Number is 8NSO-QW.

     Children of John12 Tilden (1755)XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)" and Patience Casslen (1756)XE "Casslen:Patience  (1756) (1545-23 Nov 1615)" (see #2875) were as follows:
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i.
Ann11 (1741).XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)"

 
ii.
Rachel (4245)XE "Tilden:Rachel  (4245) (circa 1572-17 Mar 1573)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1572.  She died on 17 Mar 1573.


 
iii.
George (4246)XE "Tilden:George  (4246) (before 28 Feb 1574-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 28 Feb 1574.  He was baptized on 28 Feb 1574 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.


 
iv.
Elizabeth (4247)XE "Tilden:Elizabeth  (4247) (before 23 Apr 1576-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born before 23 Apr 1576.  She was baptized on 23 Apr 1576 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She married Peter Finche (4248)XE "Finche:Peter  (4248)" on 24 Jul 1594 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died.


 
v.
Judith (4249)XE "Tilden:Judith  (4249) (before 17 Aug 1578-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 17 Aug 1578.  She was baptized on 17 Aug 1578 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died.


 
vi.
Samuel (4250)XE "Tilden:Samuel  (4250) (before 25 Sep 1580-3 Mar 1624)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 25 Sep 1580.  He was baptized on 25 Sep 1580 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Rebecca Gyles (4251)XE "Gyles:Rebecca  (4251)" on 28 May 1612 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 3 Mar 1624 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
vii.
John (4252)XE "Tilden:John  (4252) (before 4 Nov 1582-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 4 Nov 1582.  He was baptized on 4 Nov 1582 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.


 
viii.
Daniel (4253)XE "Tilden:Daniel  (4253) (before 16 Dec 1584-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 16 Dec 1584.  He was baptized on 16 Dec 1584 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Judith Short (4254)XE "Short:Judith  (4254) (23 Jun 1612-)" on 23 Jun 1612 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.).  He died.


 
ix.
Son (4258)XE "Tilden:son  (4258) (circa 1587-1 Dec 1587)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1587.  He died on 1 Dec 1587 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. unbaptized (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
x.
Son (4259)XE "Tilden:son  (4259) (circa 1587-1 Dec 1587)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1587.  He died on 1 Dec 1587 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. unbaptized (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
xi.
Jonathan (4255)XE "Tilden:Jonathan  (4255) (before 28 Oct 1588-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 28 Oct 1588.  He was baptized on 28 Oct 1588 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Alice Hall (4257)XE "Hall:Alice  (4257)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.).  He married Ann Hall (4256)XE "Hall:Ann  (4256)" on 17 Jun 1616 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.).  He died.

2875.  Patience12 Casslen (1756)XE "Casslen:Patience  (1756) (1545-23 Nov 1615)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born in 1545 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married John Tilden (1755)XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)" on 23 Jan 1569 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 23 Nov 1615 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8NS1-1F.

2888.  Richard12 Lombard (1708)XE "Lombard:Richard  (1708) (circa 1560-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1560 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is LSHK-L8.

     Children of Richard12 Lombard (1708)XE "Lombard:Richard  (1708) (circa 1560-)" include:


 1428.
i.
Thomas11 (1707).XE "Lambert:Thomas  (1707) (before 2 Feb 1581-before 10 Jun 1663)"
2896.  John12 Lovell (1729)XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)" (William, #5728) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1538.  He married unknown Thorne (1730)XE "Thorne:unknown  (1730) (1540-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 59XR-N9.

     Children of John12 Lovell (1729)XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)" and unknown Thorne (1730)XE "Thorne:unknown  (1730) (1540-)" (see #2865) were:


 1432.
i.
John11 (1728).XE "Lovell:John  (1728) (1564-)"
2897.  unknown12 Thorne (1730)XE "Thorne:unknown  (1730) (1540-)" was born in 1540 at London, England.  She married John Lovell (1729)XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 59XR-PG.

2904.  Thomas12 Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" (John Hache, #5052) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1525 at Selling, Kent, England.  He married Joane unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" in 1552 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 13 Oct 1568 at England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Sellinge and Tenterden, co. Kent. Died intestate, before 13 Oct. 1568, when administration on his estate was granted to his widow. Thomas Hatche was churchwarden at Tenterden in 1565. The account of Joane Hatch alias Brissenden, administratrix, exhibited 25 Oct. 1574, names four daughters of Thomas Hatche, and the names of his three sons appear in the will of his brother, Stephen Hatche of Sellinge, in 1606. The will of his eldest son, John Hatche, of 1628/9, names the children, grandchildren, and eve some great-grandchildren of Thomas Hatche).  His Ancestral File Number is 1THT-FO.

     Children of Thomas12 Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" and Joane unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" (see #2527) were as follows:
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i.
Winifred11 (4201).XE "Hatche:Winifred  (4201) (circa 1553-6 Oct 1592)"

 
ii.
John (4204)XE "Hatche:John  (4204) (circa 1555-31 Mar 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1555.  He married Dorothy Philpott (4205)XE "Philpott:Dorothy  (4205) (-before 1 Nov 1638)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254 & 255.).  He died on 31 Mar 1629 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.).


 
iii.
Katharine (4206)XE "Hatche:Katharine  (4206) (circa 1557-before 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1557.  She married unknown Dunke (4207)XE "Dunke:unknown  (4207)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died before 1629.


 
iv.
Eleanor (4208)XE "Hatche:Eleanor  (4208) (circa 1559-after 1629)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1559.  She married unknown Chittenden (4209)XE "Chittenden:unknown  (4209)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  She died after 1629.


 
v.
Elizabeth (4210)XE "Hatche:Elizabeth  (4210) (circa 1561-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born circa 1561.  She died.


 1436.
vi.
William (1740).XE "Hatche:William  (1740) (before 9 Dec 1563-before 27 Dec 1611)"

 
vii.
Thomas (4211)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (4211) (before 30 Jun 1565-before 27 Dec 1611)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.) was born before 30 Jun 1565.  He was baptized on 30 Jun 1565 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 250.).  He married Margaret King (4212)XE "King:Margaret  (4212)" on 22 Sep 1587 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).  He died before 27 Dec 1611 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 255.).

2905.  Joane12 unknown (1743)XE "unknown:Joane  (1743) (1531-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born in 1531 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married Thomas Hatche (1742)XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)" in 1552 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She married Richard Brissenden (4200)XE "Brissenden:Richard  (4200)" before 25 Oct 1574 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GZ8W-9K.

2906.  John12 Tilden (1755)XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)" (Richard, #2520) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born after 1541 at Benenden, Kent, England.  He married Patience Casslen (1756)XE "Casslen:Patience  (1756) (1545-23 Nov 1615)" on 23 Jan 1569 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 29 Jan 1626 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. Old Mr John Tilden ye auncient Jurate (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).

     (an unknown value) (We learn from the church records that he was jurat in 1587, 1588, 1615, and 1625. He is called "Mr." Tilden, his wife "Mistress" Tilden, and in their marriage licenses several of his children are described as gentlemen).  His Ancestral File Number is 8NSO-QW.

     Children of John12 Tilden (1755)XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)" and Patience Casslen (1756)XE "Casslen:Patience  (1756) (1545-23 Nov 1615)" (see #2875) were as follows:


 1437.
i.
Ann11 (1741).XE "Tilden:Ann  (1741) (before 5 Nov 1570-22 Jan 1630)"

 
ii.
Rachel (4245)XE "Tilden:Rachel  (4245) (circa 1572-17 Mar 1573)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1572.  She died on 17 Mar 1573.


 
iii.
George (4246)XE "Tilden:George  (4246) (before 28 Feb 1574-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 28 Feb 1574.  He was baptized on 28 Feb 1574 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.


 
iv.
Elizabeth (4247)XE "Tilden:Elizabeth  (4247) (before 23 Apr 1576-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born before 23 Apr 1576.  She was baptized on 23 Apr 1576 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She married Peter Finche (4248)XE "Finche:Peter  (4248)" on 24 Jul 1594 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died.


 
v.
Judith (4249)XE "Tilden:Judith  (4249) (before 17 Aug 1578-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 17 Aug 1578.  She was baptized on 17 Aug 1578 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  She died.


 
vi.
Samuel (4250)XE "Tilden:Samuel  (4250) (before 25 Sep 1580-3 Mar 1624)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 25 Sep 1580.  He was baptized on 25 Sep 1580 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Rebecca Gyles (4251)XE "Gyles:Rebecca  (4251)" on 28 May 1612 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  He died on 3 Mar 1624 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
vii.
John (4252)XE "Tilden:John  (4252) (before 4 Nov 1582-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 4 Nov 1582.  He was baptized on 4 Nov 1582 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He died.


 
viii.
Daniel (4253)XE "Tilden:Daniel  (4253) (before 16 Dec 1584-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 16 Dec 1584.  He was baptized on 16 Dec 1584 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Judith Short (4254)XE "Short:Judith  (4254) (23 Jun 1612-)" on 23 Jun 1612 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.).  He died.


 
ix.
Son (4258)XE "Tilden:son  (4258) (circa 1587-1 Dec 1587)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1587.  He died on 1 Dec 1587 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. unbaptized (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
x.
Son (4259)XE "Tilden:son  (4259) (circa 1587-1 Dec 1587)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born circa 1587.  He died on 1 Dec 1587 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E. unbaptized (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).


 
xi.
Jonathan (4255)XE "Tilden:Jonathan  (4255) (before 28 Oct 1588-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born before 28 Oct 1588.  He was baptized on 28 Oct 1588 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 326.).  He married Alice Hall (4257)XE "Hall:Alice  (4257)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.).  He married Ann Hall (4256)XE "Hall:Ann  (4256)" on 17 Jun 1616 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.).  He died.

2907.  Patience12 Casslen (1756)XE "Casslen:Patience  (1756) (1545-23 Nov 1615)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 330.) was born in 1545 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E.  She married John Tilden (1755)XE "Tilden:John  (1755) (after 1541-29 Jan 1626)" on 23 Jan 1569 at St. Mildred's Church, Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 327.).  She died on 23 Nov 1615 at Tenterden, Kent, England, 510500N0004200E (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 328.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8NS1-1F.

2932.  Robert12 Hinckley (1640)XE "Hinckley:Robert  (1640) (1537-before 27 Mar 1606)" (John Hynckleye, #2824) (see #1412).

2933.  Katherine12 Unknown (1641)XE "Unknown:Katherine  (1641) (circa 1551-circa 1606)" (see #1413).

2934.  Thomas12 Soole (1653)XE "Soole:Thomas  (1653) (1567-)" (John, #2828) (see #1414).

2935.  Mary12 Iddenden (1654)XE "Iddenden:Mary  (1654) (1573-)" (John, #2830) (see #1415).

2942.  Richard12 Warren (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" (Christopher, #5884) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. III, page 427.) (Charles Henry Pope, The Pioneers of Massachusetts, Page 480.) (Eugene Aubrey Stratton, Plymouth Colony - Its History & People - 1620-1691.) (Robert Charles Anderson, The Great Migration Begins - Immigrants to New England 1620-1633, Vol. III, page 1935.) (Robert S. Wakefield, Richard Warren of the Mayflower and His Descendants for Four Generations, Page 4.) was born before 1590 at London, England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 129.).  He married Elizabeth unknown (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)" in 1611 at London, England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 129.).  He died in 1628 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     (an unknown value) (Plymouth 1620, came in the Mayflower, leav. w. Eliz. and five ds. to come in the third sh. 1623, d. 1628, hav. no other ch. but those b. in Eng.

A 1620 Mayflower passenger, Richard Warren is unusual because, although Bradford in his "decreasing and increasings" gives him the honorific title "Mr.," he does not mention him at all in the text of his history, and very little is known about him except for a few brief mentions elswhere. In Mourt's Relation, p. 15, Winslow lists ten men on an early expedition at Cape Cod,three of whom, including Richard Warren, were from London. Judging from land transactions (see, for example, MD 3:45-51 and PCR 12:28) of his widow, Elizabeth, who came over in 1623 on the Anne with daughters Abigail, Anna, Elizabeth, Mary and Sarah, the family appears to have been one of the walthier ones at Plymouth. However, he was not one of the eight select Undertakers in 1627. Nathaniel Morton wrote for the year 1628 "This Year died Mr. Richard Warren, who...was an useful Instrument and during his life bare a deep share in the Difficulties and Troubles of the first Settlement of the Plantation of New-Plimouth" (Memoriall, p. 68). His widow, Elizabeth Warren, was given the unique distinction of having a law passed unanimously by the whole court to give her the Purchase status her deceased husband had had, "hee dying before he had performed the bargain, the said Elizabeth performed the same after his decease, and also for the establishing of the lotts of lands given formerly by her unto her sonnes in law, Richard Church, Robert Bartlett, and Thomas Little" (PCR 1:54). The three sons-in-law had married respectively daughters Elizabeth, Mary and Anna, and the other two daughters were married later, Sarah to Mayflower passenger John Cooke, and Abigail to Anthony Snow. Richard and Elizabeth Warren had two sons born at Plymouth, Nathaniel, who married Sarah Walker, and Joseph, who married Priscilla Faunce - see the second revision (1986) of the Families of The Pilgrims booklet on Warren. Widow Elizabeth Warren's servant, Thomas Williams, was charged with speaking profane and blasphemous speeches to her, baut the court released him with a warning after he made a humble acknowledgment of his offence (PCR 1:35). She died at Plymouth 2 October 1673, aged above ninety years, "having lived a godly life, came to her grave as a shoke of corn fully ripe" (PCR 8:35). The English origin of the Warrens, though much searched for, has not yet been found, baut she was definitely not Elizabeth Jowett, as some have claimed. Although Warren's granddaughter Elizabeth Warren had a child by Joseph Doty, she did not, as has been written, marry him. Some early generations are given by Claude W. Barlow, "Richard and Elizabeth Warren," MQ 42:125, 43:12. See also Mrs. Washington A. Roebling, "Richard Warren of the Mayflower and Some of His Descendants," NEHGR 55:70, which contains some errors. See also Ruth Berg Walsh, "The Search for Pilgrim Richard Warren's Parrentage," MQ 51:109.

His father might be Christopher, though not proven).  Richard (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" immigrated to Plymouth on 5 Aug 1620 at. Mayflower of London, two hundred tons, Christopher Jones, Master. Left Southampton August 5 of 1620, and arrived at Cape Cod December 11, with one hundred and one passengers. The ship was detained at Dartmouth and Plymouth, England, about two weeks for repairs to her consort, the Speedwell. The entire company settled at Plymouth.

John Carver               of Doncaster, Yorkshire

Mrs. Katherine Carver

Desire Minter

John Howland               servant; of London

Roger Wilder               servant

William Latham               servant

Jasper More                    servant

...... ......               maidservant

William Brewster          of Scrooby, Nottinghamshire

     Mrs. Mary Brewster

     Love Brewster

     Wrestling Brewster

     Richard More               servant

     ...... More                    servant

Edward Winslow          of Droitwich, Worcestershire

     Mrs. Elizabeth Winslow

     George Soule               servant; of Eckington, Worcestershire     Elias Story                    servant; of London

     Ellen More                    servant

William Bradford          of Austerfield, Yorkshire

     Mrs. Dorothy Bradford

Isaac Allerton          of London; merchant

     Mrs. Mary Allerton                    

     Bartholomew Allerton

     Remember Allerton

     Mary Allerton

     John Hooke                    servant

Samuel Fuller          of Redenhall, county Norfolk

     William Button               servant

John Crackston

     John Crackston, Jr.

Myles Standish

     Mrs. Rose Standish

Christopher Martin     of Great Burstead, Essex

     Mrs. Mary Martin

     Solomon Prower               stepson

     John Langmore               servant

William Mullins          of Dorking, county Surrey; merchant

     Mrs. Alice Mullins

     Joseph Mullins

     Priscilla Mullins

     Robert Carter               servant

William White

     Mrs. Susanna White

     Resolved White

     Peregrine White

     William Holbeck               servant

     Edward Thompson               servant

Stephen Hopkins          of Wotton-under-Edge, Gloucestershire

     Mrs. Elizabeth Hopkins

     Giles Hopkins

     Constance Hopkins

     Damaris Hopkins

     Oceanus Hopkins

     Edward Dotey               servant; of London

     Edward Lister               servant; of London

Richard Warren          of London; merchant

John Billington          of London

     Mrs. Ellen Billington

     John Billington, Jr.

     Francis Billington

Edward Tilley          of London

     Mrs. Anne Tilley

     Henry Sampson               kinsman

     Humility Cooper               kinswoman

John Tilley               of Saint Andrews Undershaft, London

     Mrs. Elizabeth Tilley

     Elizabeth Tilley

Francis Cooke

     John Cooke

Thomas Rogers

     Joseph Rogers

Thomas Tinker

     Mrs. ...... Tinker

     ...... Tinker

John Rigdale          of London

     Mrs. Alice Rigdale

James Chilton          of Canterbury, Kent; tailor

     Mrs. ...... Chilton

     Mary Chilton

Edward Fuller          of Redenhall, county Norfolk

     Mrs. ...... Fuller

     Samuel Fuller

John Turner

     ...... Turner

     ...... Turner

Francis Eaton          of Bristol; carpenter

     Mrs. Sarah Eaton

     Samuel Eaton

Moses Fletcher          of Sandwich, Kent

John Goodman

Thomas Williams         of Yarmouth, county Norfolk

Digory Priest          of London

Edmund Margesson

Peter Browne          probably of Great Burstead, Essex

Richard Britteridge

Richard Clarke

Richard Gardiner          of Harwich, county Essex

Thomas English

Gilbert Winslow          brother of Edward Winslow

John Alden

John Alderton

Bradford: History of Plimmoth Plantation

Banks: English Ancestry and Homes of the Pilgrims

In italics direct ancestors of Ricardo Ernesto Rain

Story of the Mayflower and her Master

The general facts concerning the voyage of the Mayflower, and like information regarding the ship itself, are matters of historic record; but some important and little known facts are here added to make the story of th Pilgrim ship complete. The certain history of the Mayflower dates from 1609 when she was employed as a wine ship trading at Mediterranean ports, being then owned by Chirstopher Nichols, Robert Child, Thomas Short and Christopher Jones. The last named was also her captain and the one who brought her with the first Pilgrims to New England. She was of about two hundred tons burthen and her home port in 1620 was London. Capt. Jones and Robert Child still owned their quarter shares in her, and it was from them that Thomas Weston chartered her in the summer of 1620 to undertake this epochal voyage.

She embarked about sixty-five of her passengers at London, probably off Blackwall or Wapping, about the middle of July and proceeded down the Thames into the English Channel and then on to Southampton Water, the rendezvous, where for seven days she awaited the coming of the Speedwell, bringing the Leyden church members, who had sailed from Delfts-Haven about the 22nd of that month (Bradford). About August 5th, when all was in readiness, the two ships set sail for their destination. The unseaworth Speedwell sprang a leak shortly after and they put into Dartmouth for repairs to "the leser ship." This having been accomplished, the second start was made. When "above 100 leagues without the Land's End" the captain of the Speedwell reported a continued leakage that threatened the safety of the ship and the two vessels were obliged to return and seek Plymouth harbor for rearrangement of the voyage and distribution of the passengers. The Speedwell was abandoned, a portion of her passengers transferred to the Mayflower, and others desiring to return to London did so. On September 16th, about a month after they first wighed anchor at Southampton, the Mayflower headed out to sea for the third time, and proceeded upon her historic voyage alone. After nearly eight weeks at sea she "arrived at Cap-Cod the 11 of November" (Bradford), with one hundred and two persons on board -the same number who started- one having died and one birth balancing this loss. The officers and crew consisted of a captain, four mates, four quartermasters, surgeon, carpenter, cooper, cooks, boatswains, gunners and about thirty-six men before the mast, making a total of fifty, bringing the number of persons aboard the ship during the voyage to about one hundred and fifty.

The personnel, as far as known, enables us to make the following official roster:

Captain: Christopher Jones

Master's Mates:     John Clarke, Pilot

               Robert Coppin, Pilot

               Andrew Williamson

               John Parker

Governor: Chirstopher Martin

Surgeon: Doctor Giles Heale

Cooper: John Alden

When and where this ship of destiny was built is still an unsolved problem, but it is not improbable that she was launched at Harwich, and although later known as "of London" she was designated as "of Harwich" in 1609-11 in the Port Books. Two years after the death of Capt. Jones an application was made to the Admiralty for an appraisal of the ship by three of her ownders at that time -Robert Child, John Moore and Mrs. Josian Jones. This appraisal was probably made to determine the valuation of the ship for the purpose of settling the estate of its late master, and four mariners and shipwrights of Rotherhithe determined her value as &128-08-04, about $ 5,000 at present relative values (Pub. Rec. Off. H. C. A. 3,81/167). Her subseguent history has been the subject of much speculation and controversy. The author (Charles E. Banks) found in London hitherto unknown material which seems to have a direct bearing on the question. Robert Sheffield, a mariner of Stepney, London, living at Blackwall, by his will dated September 10, 1625, bequeathed to his wife Joan his part of "the good shipp called the "Mayflower" of London being of the burthen of 200 tunnes or thereabouts" (Commissary of London, xxiv, 646). This language with its particularization accurately describes the Pilgrim ship                 

 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, [IT:Vol. 2, page 103:IT].).

     Children of Richard12 Warren (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" and Elizabeth unknown (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)" (see #2943) were as follows:


 
i.
Mary11 (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 427.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 395.) was born circa 1610 at England.  She married Robert Bartlett (2348)XE "Bartlett:Robert  (2348) (circa 1603-19 Sep 1676)" circa 1629 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 48.).  She died on 27 Mar 1683 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 
ii.
Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 427.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 335.) was born circa 1612 at England.  She married Thomas Little (2342)XE "Little:Thomas  (2342) (1610-before 12 Mar 1672)" on 19 Apr 1633 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  She died after 19 Feb 1676 at Marshfield, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 420500N0704200W.

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 
iii.
Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 427.) was born circa 1614 at England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 131.).  She married John Cooke (1115)XE "Cooke:John  (1115) (-23 Nov 1695)" on 28 Mar 1634 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 178.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 136.).  She died after 15 Jul 1696 (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 131.).

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 
iv.
Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 365.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 427.) was born circa 1616 at England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 131.).  She married Richard Church (2344)XE "Church:Richard  (2344) (circa 1608-27 Dec 1668)" before 14 Mar 1635 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 152.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 295.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 131.).  She died on 9 Mar 1670 at Hingham, Mass., USA.

     Nathaniel (996)XE "Morton:Nathaniel  (996) (circa 1613-29 Jun 1685)", George (998)XE "Morton:George  (998) (circa 1590-Jun 1624)", Julia (999)XE "Carpenter:Julia Anna  (999) (circa 1583-19 Feb 1665)", Patience (1000)XE "Morton:Patience  (1000) (after 1614-1691)", John (1001)XE "Morton:John  (1001) (1616-1673)", Sarah (1002)XE "Morton:Sarah  (1002) (1618-1691)", Ephraim (1003)XE "Morton:Ephraim  (1003) (1623-1693)", Hester (1114)XE "Mahieu:Hester  (1114) (-8 Jun 1666)", Jane (1116)XE "Cooke:Jane  (1116) (circa 1612-before 1650)", Jacob (1117)XE "Cooke:Jacob  (1117) (circa 1618-11 Dec 1675)", Hester (1118)XE "Cooke:Hester  (1118) (circa 1620-before 7 Dec 1675)", Abigail (2338)XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)", Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)", Anna (2341)XE "Warren:Anna  (2341) (circa 1612-after 19 Feb 1676)", Elizabeth (2343)XE "Warren:Elizabeth  (2343) (circa 1616-9 Mar 1670)", Mary (2347)XE "Warren:Mary  (2347) (circa 1610-27 Mar 1683)" and Sarah (2351)XE "Warren:Sarah  (2351) (circa 1614-after 15 Jul 1696)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).


 1471.
v.
Abigail (2338).XE "Warren:Abigail  (2338) (circa 1618-after 3 Jan 1693)"

 
vi.
Nathaniel (2349)XE "Warren:Nathaniel  (2349) (circa 1624-16 Jul 1667)" (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 427.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 441.) was born circa 1624 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W.  He married Sarah Walker (2350)XE "Walker:Sarah  (2350) (before 10 Nov 1622-24 Nov 1700)" on 19 Nov 1645 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 782.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 655, [2:125].).  He died on 16 Jul 1667 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 132.).


 
vii.
Joseph (2345)XE "Warren:Joseph  (2345) (1627-4 May 1689)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 433.) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. 2, page 389.) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. IV, page 427.) was born in 1627 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 133.

).  He married Priscilla Faunce (2346)XE "Faunce:Priscilla  (2346) (circa 1633-15 May 1707)" circa 1652 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Marriages, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Page 303.) (Clarence Almon Torrey, New England Marriages, Prior to 1700, Page 782.).  He died on 4 May 1689 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 134, [p. 201].).

2943.  Elizabeth12 unknown (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)" (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. II, page 329 & 455.) was born circa 1580 at England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 129.).  She married Richard Warren (2339)XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)" in 1611 at London, England (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Increasings (for Three Generations), Page 129.).  She died on 2 Oct 1673 at Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts, USA, 415700N0704000W. PCR 8:35 tells of her death: "Mistris Elizabeth Warren, an aged widdow, aged above 90 years, deceased on the second of October, 1673, whoe, having lived a godly life, came to her grave as a shoke of corn fully ripe. She was honorably buried on the 24th of October aforsaid." (Note the date of death and burial - 22 days difference, one is obviously an error) (Susan E. Roser, Mayflower Births & Deaths, from the files of George Ernest Bowman, Vol. II, page 329 & 455.) (Lee D. van Antwerp, Vital Records of Plymouth, Massachusetts to the year 1850, Page 669, [p. 39].).

     Elizabeth (2340)XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2340) (circa 1580-2 Oct 1673)" immigrated to in 1623 at (Anne).

2968.  Hendrick Ruloffson12 Kype (3927)XE "Kype:Hendrick Ruloffson  (3927) (1576-)" (Ruloff, #5936) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 87.) was born in 1576 at Amsterdam, Holland.  He married Margaret de Marneil (3928)XE "de Marneil:Margaret  (3928)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 14.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (According to Purple: "On arriving at manhood he took an active part in the 'Company of Foreign Countries,' an association formed for the purpose of obtaining access to the Indies, by a different route from that pursued by Spain and Portugal. They first attempted to sail round the northern seas of Europe and Asia, but their expedition, despatched in 1604, was obliged to return on account of the ice, in the same year. In 1609 they employed Henry Hudson to sail to the westward, in the little Half Moon, with happier results. He came to New Amsterdam in 1635, with his children..." Purple, page 6. Purple also indicates there was disagreement whether Hendrick returned to Holland and died there, or remained in New Amsterdam and died there. It is possible that there has been confusion between this Hendrick and his son Hendrick).

     Children of Hendrick Ruloffson12 Kype (3927)XE "Kype:Hendrick Ruloffson  (3927) (1576-)" and Margaret de Marneil (3928)XE "de Marneil:Margaret  (3928)" (see #2969) were:


 1484.
i.
Hendrick Hendrickszen11 (3914).XE "Kip:Hendrick Hendrickszen  (3914) (circa 1600-circa 1665)"
2969.  Margaret12 de Marneil (3928)XE "de Marneil:Margaret  (3928)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 87.) married an unknown person (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 87.).  She married Hendrick Ruloffson Kype (3927)XE "Kype:Hendrick Ruloffson  (3927) (1576-)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 14.).  She died.

2972.  Laurens12 de Sille (4101)XE "de Sille:Laurens  (4101)" (Nicasius, #5944) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 131.) married Walburga Merwyns (4102)XE "Merwyns:Walburga  (4102)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 131.).  He died.

     Children of Laurens12 de Sille (4101)XE "de Sille:Laurens  (4101)" and Walburga Merwyns (4102)XE "Merwyns:Walburga  (4102)" (see #2973) were:


 1486.
i.
Nicasius11 (4087).XE "de Sille:Nicasius  (4087) (23 Sep 1610-before Mar 1674)"
2973.  Walburga12 Merwyns (4102)XE "Merwyns:Walburga  (4102)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 131.) married Laurens de Sille (4101)XE "de Sille:Laurens  (4101)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 131.).  She died.

2974.  Peter12 Meulmans (4090)XE "Meulmans:Peter  (4090)" married Anna Marschalk (4091)XE "Marschalk:Anna  (4091)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He died.

     Children of Peter12 Meulmans (4090)XE "Meulmans:Peter  (4090)" and Anna Marschalk (4091)XE "Marschalk:Anna  (4091)" (see #2975) were:


 1487.
i.
Cornelia11 (4088).XE "Meulmans:Cornelia  (4088) (-before 26 May 1655)"
2975.  Anna12 Marschalk (4091)XE "Marschalk:Anna  (4091)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.) married Peter Meulmans (4090)XE "Meulmans:Peter  (4090)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  She died.

3200.  Richard12 Lowell (841)XE "Lowell:Richard  (841)" (John Lowle, #6400) (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) was born at Portbury, Somerset, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 309.).  He married Joan (--?--) (5035)XE "(--?--):Joan  (5035) (        -4 Nov 1568)" circa 1563 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  He married Christian Percival (840)XE "Percival:Christian  (840) (-after 7 Jun 1577)" circa 1570 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  He died.

     Children of Richard12 Lowell (841)XE "Lowell:Richard  (841)" and Christian Percival (840)XE "Percival:Christian  (840) (-after 7 Jun 1577)" (see #3201) were as follows:


 1600.
i.
Percival11 (839).XE "Lowell:Percival  (839) (1571-8 Jan 1664)"

 
ii.
Margaret (5037)XE "Lowell:Margaret  (5037) (19 Dec 1574-1 Sep 1575)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born on 19 Dec 1574 at Portbury, Somerset, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  She died on 1 Sep 1575 at Portbury, Somerset, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).


 
iii.
Thomas (5038)XE "Lowell:Thomas  (5038) (23 Mar 1576-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born on 23 Mar 1576 at Portbury, Somerset, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).


 
iv.
Richard (5039)XE "Lowell:Richard  (5039) (15 Dec 1577-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.) was born on 15 Dec 1577 at Portbury, Somerset, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).

3201.  Christian12 Percival (840)XE "Percival:Christian  (840) (-after 7 Jun 1577)" (Edmond Perceval, #6402) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.)XE "Lowell:Christian  (840) (-after 7 Jun 1577)" married Richard Lowell (841)XE "Lowell:Richard  (841)" circa 1570 (James Savage, Geneaogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England, showing three Generations of those who came before May, 1692, on the basis of Farmer's Register, Vol. 3, pag. 126.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 310.).  She died after 7 Jun 1577 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).

3248.  Hugh12 March (2444)XE "March:Hugh  (2444)" (Genealogy of March Family, Page 86.) married Joyce Ridgely (2445)XE "Ridgely:Joyce  (2445)" in 1572 at Salisbury, Wiltshire, England (Genealogy of March Family, Page 86.).  He died.

     Children of Hugh12 March (2444)XE "March:Hugh  (2444)" include:


 1624.
i.
George11 (2443).XE "March:George  (2443)"
Generation ThirteenTC "Generation Thirteen" \l 2
4152.  William13 Tylle (3044)XE "Tylle:William  (3044) (circa 1515-before 21 Jan 1579)" (Thomas Tilly (Tylle), #8304) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.) was born circa 1515 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Agnes (--?--) (3045)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (3045) (1519-1 Jun 1582)" circa 1534 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.).  He died before 21 Jan 1579. Will of Willyam Tylle, Archdeaconry of Bedford, 19:86 f.: In the name of god Amen: The firste of January Adm 1578: I Willyam Tylle of Henlow in the countie of Beddforde husbandman, sicke of bodie but whole of minde, thanckes be unto god, doe ordaine and make this my laste will and testament, in manner & fourme followinge: Firste I committ my soule to allmightie god, and my bodie to be buried in the church yearde of Henlowe aforesaide: Imprimis I give to Robert Tille my sonne, twoe bullockes, & to John his sonne, one bullocke: Item I give unto Wilyam Warde, my sonne in lawe, twoe bullockes, one yearelinge, & an other twoe yeares oulde: Item I give unto Willyam Sheffeilde my sonne in lawe, a cowe bullocke & bullchime. Item I will that Willyam Sheffeilde shall have his bargaine, in my lande from the time he beganne untill three yeares be expired: Item I give unto every one of Robert Tylles children, twoe sheepe a peese & to him selfe fower sheepe: Item I give unto Agnes Warde two sheepe: Item I give unto Willyam Sheffeildes children, twoe sheepe a peece, that es to saie John Willyam and Agnes: Item I give unto Robert Tille my sonne six quarters of malte, and to his three children a quarter a peece: Item I give unto Agnes Warde a quarter of malte: Item I give unto Willyam Sheffeilde iii 1 vi s. viii d. of money, that he oweth me if god take me out of this worlde att this present time. Item I give unto Willyam Sheffeilde, one quarter of malte: I give unto Mary my daughter, one quarter of malte, allsoe Agnes my wife must have of Willyam Sheffeilde, my sonne in lawe every yeare, as long as he houldes my lande, five acres of barley and five acres of pease, every yeare & my wife to finde seede to sowe it with all: Item I give unto Richard Huckle, a quarter or barley, and to every one of his children, a bushel of pease. Item I give unto John Waller & to Margarete Waller twoe bushells of barley a peece. Item I give to Agnes my wife all my howseholde: Item I give to the repaire of Collington haven ii d. Item I give to Agnes my wife tenn quarters of barley: Item I give to Robert Tille my sonne fower quarters of barley. Item I give unto Willyam Warde a quarter of barley: Item I give unto Willyam Sheffeilde twoe quarters of barley: Item I give unto Robert Tilley my sonne, six bushels of pease, & halfe a quarter of bullymunge. Item I give to Willyam Sheffeilde a quarter of bullimunge: Item I give unto Robert Tille my sonne one hogge: Item I give unto Willyam Sheffeilde one hogge: Item to Willyam Warde one hogge and Agnes my wife to have twoe hogges and a sowe: Item I give unto Mary Farr one sheepe: Item I give unto Willyam Huckle a sheepe and I will that al theise portions shall be answered ymmediatly after my deathe: Item I give unto Agnes my wife fower quarters of malte: the reste of my goodes moveables & unmoveables unbequethed I give unto Agnes my wife, & Robert my sonne, whome I make my sole executors of this my last will & testamente written in the presence of Thomas Underwood, Willyam Elborne, Thomas Younge, Charles Browne. (Proved 28 Jan 1578).  His body was interred on 21 Jan 1579 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     (an unknown value) (He was a husbandman (farmer) and lived in Henlow).

     Children of William13 Tylle (3044)XE "Tylle:William  (3044) (circa 1515-before 21 Jan 1579)" and Agnes (--?--) (3045)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (3045) (1519-1 Jun 1582)" (see #4153) all born at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England, were as follows:


 
i.
Elizabeth12 (3046)XE "Tylle:Elizabeth  (3046) (circa 1535-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1535.  She died.


 2076.
ii.
Robert (3036).XE "Tilley (Tille):Robert  (3036) (circa 1540-31 Dec 1612)"

 
iii.
Mary (3047)XE "Tylle:Mary  (3047) (circa 1545-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1545.  She died.


 
iv.
Alice (3048)XE "Tylle:Alice  (3048) (circa 1550-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1550.  She died.

4153.  Agnes13 (--?--) (3045)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (3045) (1519-1 Jun 1582)" was born in 1519 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married William Tylle (3044)XE "Tylle:William  (3044) (circa 1515-before 21 Jan 1579)" circa 1534 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.).  She died on 1 Jun 1582 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England. Will of agnes Tille, Archdeaconry of Bedford 20:80 f.: In the name of god Amen: The firste daie of June in the yeare of our lorde god 1582: I Agnes Tylle of Henlowe, in the countie of Bedforde widowe being sicke in bodie, butt of good & perfect remembrance, tnacke be given to god, doe ordaine & make this my testament and laste will, in manner followinge: First & principally I bequesthe my soule, into the handes of allmightie god my maker and redeemer, and my bodie, to be buried in the churchyearde of henlowe aforesaide: Item I give to Tho: Younge my sonne in lawe, one cowe, one hogge, the greatest kettle, the newe coverlett, that I laste boughte, one pillowe, with the pillowe beare, one paire of sheetes, & a peticoate, the greatest cheste save one, the greatyest posenett, & one sheepe and a lambe: Item I give to Agnes Warde, the daughter of Willyam Warde, a coffer paineted with redd, a little rownde table apillowe with the pillowe beare, & one quarter of barley: Item I give to Richard Huckle my sonne in lawe and my daughter Elizabeth his wife, one frocke, the youngest cowe, that I laste boughte, one mattrice and the coverlett od Darimpe, wich commonly lyeth on my bedd,, my cupboard clothe, one ewe, one paire of sheetes, and a boultinge tubbe, the bresing kettle and the last bosenett, the benche boarde, one sheete & a platter, twoe bushells of barley and ii s. on currant money of Englande: Item I give to Willyam Sheffeilde my sonne in lawe and Alice his wife the youngest cowe beinge blacke, my featherbedd, and coverlett, of cleane wolle of tapristry worke, one boulster twoe round pannes, one peticoate, one paire of sheete the greatest cheste, the morter and the saltinge troffe. Item I give to John Harwood one sheete one bushell of barley my working daie peticoate, and my fustian waisecoate and one smocke: Item I give to Robert Sam, my late servant, the ould coverlett, that useth to lye on my bedd. Item I give to Willyam Poulter of Hitchme x s, of currant money of Englande: Item Igive to Robert Porye of Henlowe one good sheepe. Item I give to my sonne Robert Tille & John Tille his sonne vi s. viii d. the peece: Item I give to George Tille, Rose Tille and Agnes Tile, Robert Tilley children, the elldest of my black kyne, to be soulde, & to be equally divided betweene them, and the next calfe of the saide cowe when god shall send it. I will it to be given to Mary Farre my sonne Robert Tilles Wifes daughter: Item I give to the church of Henlowe aforesaid xii d. and to Collington haven ii d. Item I give more to Richard Huckle my saide sonne in lawe xx s. of currant money of Englande, and one acre of my pease, & one acre of my barley if the same be sowed in the feildes att the daye of my decease or else to have his parte in so much as shall be sowen accordinge to the rate of one parte, in three partes in all the saide pease & barley, wich to my parte belongethe. Item the rest of my pease & Barley and the deptes to my owing, as all other my goodes & cattells hearein unbequeathed, I give them to Thomas Younge & Willyam Shefeilde my saide sonnes in lawe, equally to be devided betweene them, whome allsoe the same Thomas Younge & Willyam Sheffeilde I make my executors to this my testament & laste will, they to see my debtes paide, theise my legacies fullfilled, & my funerall expence dischardged: Item I ordaine for supervisors hereof John Rushe yejoman, my trustie freinde, for whose paines thearein to be taken, I give vi s. vii d. Item my will is that theise my aorenamed giftes, legacies & bequestes to be paide & perfourmed ymmediatly after my decease except the money wich hearin I have bequesthed, I will it to be given within nine monethes after my decease. Witnesses Antony Coxe, Tho: Farre, Anne Britton, Robt Pory. (Proved 14 Jul 1582) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  Her body was interred on 7 Jun 1582 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

4992.  John13 Washbourne (2817)XE "Washbourne:John  (2817) (1479-8 Jan 1548)" (John, #9984) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 45.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 29.) was born in 1479 at Little Washborne, Worcester, England.  He married Emma (--?--) (2818)XE "(--?--):Emma  (2818) (1479-13 May 1547)" (, Genser06, page 3.).  He died on 8 Jan 1548 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England.

     (an unknown value) (There is no proof that he was the son of John Washburn and Joan Mitton.).

     Children of John13 Washbourne (2817)XE "Washbourne:John  (2817) (1479-8 Jan 1548)" and Emma (--?--) (2818)XE "(--?--):Emma  (2818) (1479-13 May 1547)" (see #4993) were as follows:


 
i.
William12 (2819)XE "Washbourne:William  (2819) (1512-)" (, Genser06, page 3.) was born in 1512.  He died.


 
ii.
Katherine (2820)XE "Washbourne:Katherine  (2820) (1514-)" (, Genser06, page 3.) was born in 1514.  She married Danyell Hide (3936)XE "Hide:Danyell  (3936)" (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.).  She died.


 
iii.
Alice (2821)XE "Washbourne:Alice  (2821) (1516-)" (, Genser06, page 3.) was born in 1516.  She married Robert Martin (3937)XE "Martin:Robert  (3937)" (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 30.).  She died.


 2496.
iv.
John (2811).XE "Washbourne:John  (2811) (1518-13 Oct 1593)"
4993.  Emma13 (--?--) (2818)XE "(--?--):Emma  (2818) (1479-13 May 1547)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 45.) was born in 1479.  She married John Washbourne (2817)XE "Washbourne:John  (2817) (1479-8 Jan 1548)" (, Genser06, page 3.).  She died on 13 May 1547 at near Evesham Bengeworth, Evesham, County Worcester, England.

5040.  John13 Tylden (4231)XE "Tylden:John  (4231) (after 1461-)" (Robert, #10080) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1461.  He died.

     Children of John13 Tylden (4231)XE "Tylden:John  (4231) (after 1461-)" include:


 2520.
i.
Richard12 (1757).XE "Tilden:Richard  (1757) (1510-before 15 May 1566)"
5052.  John the Younger13 Hache (4190)XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)" (Thomas, #10104) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1495.  He died before 13 Apr 1535 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of John Hatche of Sellynge besids Horton Monks, co. Kent, 13 April 1535. To be buried in the churchyard of Sellynge. I give at my forefare [i.e., forthfare] for dirge and in bread and drink for poor people 10s. At my month's mind in like manner 6s. 8d., and at my year's mind in like manner 13s. 4d. For masses and prayers in said church for three years 13s. 4d. To the high altar there 18d. To the Trinity light 6d. To the Trinity light and torch light 12d. apiece. To every godchild 12d. To every of my children two ewes. To my wife two kine, two hogs, six ewes, and half my household stuff. The residue of my goods to be sold to pay my debts and legacies by my executors, my wife and Thomas Marchall, to whom I give 6s. 8d. apiece. To John Marchall 3s. 4d. to help my wife with the writings. Witnesses: Thomas Dylnott the younger, Robert Cavell, and Richard Hempsted.

My last will regarding my lands. A piece of land called Mewlyng and my mill beside Hythe to be sold, and the money, and also £9. 20d. which Thomas Dylnott owes me, to be used to pay my debts and legacies. Hodyforth mill and half the meadow to be put to farm and the money used for the same purpose. My sons Thomas, John, and Stephen to enter into my new house and lands at their ages of twenty years. My wife to have the other half of the meadow by the names of Lytle Somerles, greate Somerles, and Rayfelde until my children be twenty years of age, giving to each his share as he attains that age. To her also for life the house and lands at Somerffeld, with reversion at her death to my children. If all my sons die under age, reversion to my daughters, the lands being equally divided. To each daughter 40s. at marriage. If all my children die the money to be used to have an obit kept for twenty  years, and the lands to be sold and the money to go to my brothers and their heirs. To Thomas Hatche, son of John Hatche the elder, 13s. 4d. Overseer: Maister Hayman, to whom I give 6s. 8d. Proved 26 April 1536. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 21, fo. 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Sellinge, co. Kent. His wife, whose name is unknown, is mentioned in his will. By the will of his father, proved in 1534, he succeeded to lands and tenements in Sellinge, including a "new house," which in the following year he devised to his three sons. His five eldest children are named in the will of his father).

     Children of John the Younger13 Hache (4190)XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)" include:


 
i.
Johane12 (4195)XE "Hache:Johane  (4195) (circa 1521-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1521.  She died.


 
ii.
Agnes (4196)XE "Hache:Agnes  (4196) (circa 1523-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1523.  She died.


 2526.
iii.
Thomas (1742).XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)"

 
iv.
Alice (4197)XE "Hache:Alice  (4197) (circa 1527-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1527.  She died.


 
v.
John (4198)XE "Hache:John  (4198) (circa 1529-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1529.  He died.


 
vi.
Stephen (4199)XE "Hache:Stephen  (4199) (circa 1532-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1532.  He died.

5600.  John13 Daggett Gent. (5321)XE "Daggett:John Gent. (5321) (1510-before 6 May 1565)"

XE "Daggett:John Gent.  (5321) (1510-before 6 May 1565)" (Richard, #11200) (.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, 344.) (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.) was born in 1510 (.).  He died before 6 May 1565 at Groten, Suffolk, England (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).

     Children of John13 Daggett Gent. (5321)XE "Daggett:John Gent. (5321) (1510-before 6 May 1565)"

XE "Daggett:John Gent.  (5321) (1510-before 6 May 1565)" include:


 2800.
i.
William12 (1507).XE "Daggett:William  (1507) (1557-10 Oct 1610)"
5602.  Thomas13 Lappage (5304)XE "Lappage:Thomas  (5304) (circa 1532-        )" ((?), #11204) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born circa 1532 (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).  He married Agnes Gael (5318)XE "Gael:Agnes  (5318) (1547-        )" (see #5603), daughter of Thomas Gael (5319),XE "Gael:Thomas  (5319)" in 1567 at Groton, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter day saints.).

     (an unknown value) (of Boxford, Gent. Will P.C.C. 34 Lawye, 29 Jan 1611, then nearly 80 years old: prob. 4 May 1614) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).

     Children of Thomas13 Lappage (5304)XE "Lappage:Thomas  (5304) (circa 1532-        )" and Agnes Gael (5318)XE "Gael:Agnes  (5318) (1547-        )" (see #5603) were:


 2801.
i.
Avis12 (1505).XE "Lappage:Avis  (1505) (-after 23 Sep 1650)"
5603.  Agnes13 Gael (5318)XE "Gael:Agnes  (5318) (1547-        )" (Thomas, #11206) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.)XE "Lappage:Agnes  (5318) (1547-        )" was born in 1547 at Edwardstone, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter day saints.).  She married Thomas Lappage (5304)XE "Lappage:Thomas  (5304) (circa 1532-        )" (see #5602), son of (--?--) Lappage (5320)XE "Lappage:(--?--)  (5320)" and Alice Daggett (5323),XE "Daggett:Alice  (5323) (1515-after 8 Mar 1566)" in 1567 at Groton, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter day saints.).

5608.  Thomas13 Mayow (1526)XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)" (Robert, #5664) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1509 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.).  He married Alice Waterman (1527)XE "Waterman:Alice  (1527) (1522-14 Jul 1586)" in 1549 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died on 1 Jun 1590 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Called " yeoman". The chapter devoted to "The English Family of Mayhew" (Vol. I, pp. 104-116) comprises all that was known by the author at the time of its compilation but several things of material importance have since been discovered to be added to its conclusions. During two recent visits to England the compiler found evidence of the residence of the Governor's ancestors in Tisbury as early as 1520 indicating settlement there at a probable earlier date. Thomas Mayhew, who is considered the grandfather of Gov. Thomas, was taxed for "goods", as of the Tithing of Tisbury, in 1540. (Sub. Roll 197/184.) In a deposition dated 30-31 Elizabeth (1589) this Thomas Mayhew deposed at the age of 80 years to events and persons known to him in that parish for the past 63 years and more.  This places his birth in 1509, his knowledge of events back to 1517 and it is probable that he was born in Tisbury. He was the third son of a Robert Mayhew of Dinton, is the putative father of Matthew of Tisbury and doubtless came to be a resident of the latter named parish through the marriage of his father Robert with Joan Bridmore of Tisbury. It is probable that he inherited her estate there while the eldest son and heir retained possession of the Mayhew property in Dinton. He was buried in 1590 at Tisbury. His wife Alice predeceased him in 1586

).  His Ancestral File Number is 8P83-BN.

     Children of Thomas13 Mayow (1526)XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)" and Alice Waterman (1527)XE "Waterman:Alice  (1527) (1522-14 Jul 1586)" (see #2833) were:


 1416.
i.
Matthew12 (1524).XE "Mayhew:Matthew  (1524) (1550-24 Jun 1614)"
5609.  Alice13 Waterman (1527)XE "Waterman:Alice  (1527) (1522-14 Jul 1586)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1522 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  She married Thomas Mayow (1526)XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)" in 1549 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died on 14 Jul 1586 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-KQ.

5610.  Edward13 Barter (1544)XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)" (James, #5668) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) was born in 1526 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died after 6 Oct 1574 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England. The will of Edward Barter, of Haxton, Wilts, of the parish of Fydleton, is dated Oct 6, 1574 and mentions among others, his wife Edith and his daughter Alice. (Arch. Sarum, P.C.C., V, 231.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     He married Edith unknown (1545)XE "unknown:Edith  (1545) (1530-9 Aug 1576)" at Fydleton, Haxton, Wilts, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  His Ancestral File Number is 8P83-KV.

     Children of Edward13 Barter (1544)XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)" and Edith unknown (1545)XE "unknown:Edith  (1545) (1530-9 Aug 1576)" (see #2835) were as follows:


 
i.
Ellyn12 (1555)XE "Barter:Ellyn  (1555)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
ii.
William (1551)XE "Barter:William  (1551)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
iii.
Joan (1552)XE "Barter:Joan  (1552)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
iv.
Christian (1553)XE "Barter:Christian  (1553)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
v.
Edward (1554)XE "Barter:Edward  (1554)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
vi.
Harry (1556)XE "Barter:Harry  (1556)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
vii.
John (1557)XE "Barter:John  (1557)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 1417.
viii.
Alice (1525).XE "Barter:Alice  (1525) (2 Oct 1540-before 1614)"
5611.  Edith13 unknown (1545)XE "unknown:Edith  (1545) (1530-9 Aug 1576)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1530.  She married Edward Barter (1544)XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)" at Fydleton, Haxton, Wilts, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  She died on 9 Aug 1576 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England. The will of Edith Barter, widow, of the same parish, is dated Aug. 9, 1576, and mentions among others her daughter Alice to whom she gave "halfe an aker of wheat and half an aker of barley my best cowlett, my white pety coat, my kercher, my canvas apron a platter and porringer" (Arch. Sarum, P.C.C., V, 273.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8P83-L2.

5616.  William13 Hawes (3966)XE "Hawes:William  (3966) (1531-31 Oct 1611)" (Thomas, #11232) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) was born in 1531 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  He married Ursula Colles (3967)XE "Colles:Ursula  (3967)" in 1562 (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  He died on 31 Oct 1611 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).

     (an unknown value) (of Hillfield Hall in Solihull, co. Warwik.

He left a will and codicil proved in the Consistory of Lichfield 14 Jan. 1611-12, in which he mentions his wife Ursula, son Edmond, a deceased son, daughters Elizabeth and Ursula, youngest daughter Constance, son-in-law William Sheldon, grandchildren William Hawes and Jane Hawes, brother-in-law Michael Colles, and the latter's son Humphrey, cousin Reginald Brome, Esq. The inventory of his estate amounte to £378 Os. 10d, and included a virginal, chessboard, clock, map, etc).

     Children of William13 Hawes (3966)XE "Hawes:William  (3966) (1531-31 Oct 1611)" and Ursula Colles (3967)XE "Colles:Ursula  (3967)" (see #5617) were as follows:


 2808.
i.
Edmond12 (3964).XE "Hawes:Edmond  (3964) (-after 1653)"

 
ii.
Ursula (4048)XE "Hawes:Ursula  (4048)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) died.


 
iii.
Elizabeth (4049)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (4049)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married William Sheldon (4050)XE "Sheldon:William  (4050)" on 16 Oct 1588 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  She died.


 
iv.
Thomas (4051)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (4051)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Not mentioned in his father's will or mother's will).


 
v.
William (4052)XE "Hawes:William  (4052)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Not mentioned in his father's will or mother's will; died without issue).


 
vi.
Ursula (4053)XE "Hawes:Ursula  (4053)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married Raphael Hunt (4054)XE "Hunt:Raphael  (4054)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  She died.


 
vii.
Constance (4055)XE "Hawes:Constance  (4055)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) died.


 
viii.
Son (4056)XE "Hawes:son  (4056)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) died.

5617.  Ursula13 Colles (3967)XE "Colles:Ursula  (3967)" (William, #11234) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married William Hawes (3966)XE "Hawes:William  (3966) (1531-31 Oct 1611)" in 1562 (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).

     (an unknown value) (She left a will dated 25 March 1614 and proved in the Consistory of Lichfield 3 Nov. 1615, in which she mentions son Edmond and wife, daughters Sheldon, Hunt, Constance Hawes, grandchildren Jane, William, Ursula, and the rest fo her son Edmond's children (not named), brother Mr. Michael Colles and his wife, nephew Mr. Humphrey Colles. The inventory of her estate amounted to £ 165 2s. 8d).

5618.  Richard13 Porter (4061)XE "Porter:Richard  (4061)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married Jane Whitfield (4062)XE "Whitfield:Jane  (4062) (-before 25 Jun 1621)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Bayham, co. Sussex, was fourth in descent from William Porter, of Markham, Nottinghamshire. The Porter arms were sable, three church bells argent, a canton ermine. Crest, a portcullis argent, chained or).

     Children of Richard13 Porter (4061)XE "Porter:Richard  (4061)" and Jane Whitfield (4062)XE "Whitfield:Jane  (4062) (-before 25 Jun 1621)" (see #5619) were as follows:


 2809.
i.
Jane12 (3965).XE "Porter:Jane  (3965)"

 
ii.
Thomas (4078)XE "Porter:Thomas  (4078)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420 & Vol. 53, page 12.) died.


 
iii.
Richard (4079)XE "Porter:Richard  (4079)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) died.


 
iv.
John (4080)XE "Porter:John  (4080)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420 & Vol. 53, page 13.) died.


 
v.
Mary (4081)XE "Porter:Mary  (4081)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) married Thomas Goodman (4082)XE "Goodman:Thomas  (4082)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.).  She died.


 
vi.
Elizabeth (4083)XE "Porter:Elizabeth  (4083)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) married Robert Baker (4084)XE "Baker:Robert  (4084)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.).  She married Anthony Fowle (4085)XE "Fowle:Anthony  (4085)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.).  She died.


 
vii.
Susan (4086)XE "Porter:Susan  (4086)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) died.

5619.  Jane13 Whitfield (4062)XE "Whitfield:Jane  (4062) (-before 25 Jun 1621)" (Robert, #11238) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) married Richard Porter (4061)XE "Porter:Richard  (4061)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  She married Edward Quinby (4064)XE "Quinby:Edward  (4064) (-before 3 Feb 1612)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  She died before 25 Jun 1621. Jane Quinby of St. Margaret's in the parish of Titchfield, in the county of Southampton, widow of Edward Quinby late of Titchfield deceased Esquire, 6 August 1618, with a codicil added 25 June 1621, proved 17 June 1624:

To my grandson Quinby Bromfild the copyhold tenement I late bought of my son Arthur Bromfild Esq. holden of the Right Hon. the Lord Southampton and lying within Titchfield aforesaid, with remainder to my grand daughter Jane Bromfild. I give the two hundred pounds which my late husband Mr. Edward Quinby gave me (all which si now in my son Bromfild's hands) the one half thereof to Jane Bromfild aforesaid and the other hundred unto Quinby Bromfild, to be severally padi them at their age of twenty one years or day of marriage. I give them all my household stuff. To my son Thomas Porter ten pounds, to my daughter Jeane Hawes twenty pounds, to my grandchildren Henry, Elizabeth, Penelope, Honor, Lucy, Katerine, Arthur and Frances Bromfild to each of them five pounds apiece at their age of eighteen years or day of marriage. To my grandchildren Richard Porter, Mary Godman, Susan Porter and John Porter five pounds apiece. To my daughter Fowell five pounds to buy her a piece of plate. I will that Jeane Bromfild, notwithstanding anything abovesaid, shall have her legacy at the age of eighteen years or day of marriage. Son John Porter to be sole executor. Wit. to will Arth. Bromfeild, Anth. Fowle, Sackuill Porter and Thomas Porter.
In the codicil, having found that her worldly estate was not such as to allow all the legacies bequeathed in the will, she makes certain changes, one of which is as follows:

I also revoke the five pounds apiece given to the eight younger children of my son Bromfild and do give them twenty pounds to be equally divided, desiring he would not take any unkindness of it: but I hope I shall leave my rents to him and his which shall be more benefit to them and I would with all my heart I coluld do much more for them. 

Edward Reyner and Henry Panton witnesses. Byrde,115 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 53, page 412.).

5624.  James13 Gorham (3962)XE "Gorham:James  (3962) (1550-1576)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 52, page 357.) (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I-407.) was born in 1550.  He married Agnes Bernington (4077)XE "Bernington:Agnes  (4077)" in 1572 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I-407.).  He died in 1576.

     Children of James13 Gorham (3962)XE "Gorham:James  (3962) (1550-1576)" and Agnes Bernington (4077)XE "Bernington:Agnes  (4077)" (see #5625) were:


 2812.
i.
Ralph12 (1586).XE "Gorham:Ralph  (1586) (1575-1643)"
5625.  Agnes13 Bernington (4077)XE "Bernington:Agnes  (4077)" (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families.) married James Gorham (3962)XE "Gorham:James  (3962) (1550-1576)" in 1572 (Amos Otis, Genealogical Notes of Barnstable Families, Page I-407.).  She died.

5628.  Henry13 Howland (923)XE "Howland:Henry  (923) (-17 May 1625)" (see #1036).

5629.  Margaret13 unknown (924)XE "unknown:Margaret  (924) (-31 Jul 1629)" (see #1037).

5630.  John13 Tilley (937)XE "Tilley:John  (937) (before 19 Dec 1571-1621)" (Robert Tilley (Tille), #2076) (see #1038).

5631.  Joan13 Hurst (938)XE "Hurst:Joan  (938) (before 13 Mar 1568-after 11 Jan 1621)" (see #1039).

5648.  John13 Henkle (1644)XE "Henkle:John  (1644) (before 1483-after 1522)" (Robert Henkele, #11296) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) was born before 1483 at England (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  He died after 1522.

     (an unknown value) ((or Hynckleye), no will found).  His Ancestral File Number is 8HV5-LR.

     Children of John13 Henkle (1644)XE "Henkle:John  (1644) (before 1483-after 1522)" include:


 
i.
Robert12 (4938)XE "Henkle:Robert  (4938) (        -30 Dec 1522-4 Feb 1523)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.) married Johane Unknown (4939)XE "Unknown:Johane  (4939)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.).  He died between 30 Dec 1522 and 4 Feb 1523 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 316.).


 2824.
ii.
John (1642).XE "Hynckleye:John  (1642) (circa 1512-25 Jun 1577)"
5662.  unknown13 Mercer (1659)XE "Mercer:unknown  (1659) (circa 1524-)" was born circa 1524 at Hawkhurst, Kent, England.  He married Mrs. Mercer (1660).XE "Mercer:Mrs.  (1660) (circa 1526-)"  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8NRR-9Q.

     Children of unknown13 Mercer (1659)XE "Mercer:unknown  (1659) (circa 1524-)" and Mrs. Mercer (1660)XE "Mercer:Mrs.  (1660) (circa 1526-)" (see #5663) were:


 2831.
i.
Christian12 (1658).XE "Mercer:Christian  (1658) (circa 1548-13 Aug 1597)"
5663.  Mrs.13 Mercer (1660)XE "Mercer:Mrs.  (1660) (circa 1526-)" was born circa 1526.  She married unknown Mercer (1659).XE "Mercer:unknown  (1659) (circa 1524-)"  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8XQV-3K.

5664.  Robert13 Mayow (1528)XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)" (Simon, #11328) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106 - Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1480 at Lexington, England.  He married Joan Bridmore (1529)XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)" at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died in 1520 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Eldest sonne and heire of Dynton, com. Wilts).  His Ancestral File Number is G8N2-K9.

     Children of Robert13 Mayow (1528)XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)" and Joan Bridmore (1529)XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)" (see #5665) were as follows:


 
i.
John12 (1531)XE "Mayow:John  (1531) (-before 25 Feb 1563)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Dinton, Wiltshire, England.  He married Joan Hamon (2719).XE "Hamon:Joan  (2719)"  He married Joan Prest (2720).XE "Prest:Joan  (2720)"  He died before 25 Feb 1563.


 
ii.
Edward (1532)XE "Mayow:Edward  (1532)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Fonthill, Wiltshire, England.  He married Agnes King (2721).XE "King:Agnes  (2721)"  He died.


 2832.
iii.
Thomas (1526).XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)"

 
iv.
Henry (1533)XE "Mayow:Henry  (1533)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Dinton, Wiltshire, England.  He married Elizabeth unknown (2722).XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2722) (-6 Apr 1577)"  He died.


 
v.
Walter (1534)XE "Mayow:Walter  (1534)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Chilmark, Wiltshire, England.  He married Alice Code (2723).XE "Code:Alice  (2723)"  He died.


 
vi.
Daughter (1535)XE "Mayhew:daughter  (1535)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) died.


 
vii.
Daughter (1536)XE "Mayhew:daughter  (1536)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) died.

5665.  Joan13 Bridmore (1529)XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)" (John, #11330) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106 - Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1480 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  She married Robert Mayow (1528)XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)" at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is G8N2-LG.

5668.  James13 Barter (1546)XE "Barter:James  (1546) (1500-after 1 Sep 1565)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1500 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England.  He died after 1 Sep 1565 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England. The will of James Barter of Fovent, Wilts, is dated Sept. 1, 1565, and in it he mentions among others his eldest son Edward and his daughter (in law), Edith, wife of Edward. (Arch. Sarum, P.C.C., IV, 210.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     He married Margaret unknown (1547)XE "unknown:Margaret  (1547)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  His Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-CP.

     Children of James13 Barter (1546)XE "Barter:James  (1546) (1500-after 1 Sep 1565)" and Margaret unknown (1547)XE "unknown:Margaret  (1547)" (see #5669) were as follows:


 
i.
Christian12 (1550)XE "Barter:Christian  (1550)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
ii.
Robert (1548)XE "Barter:Robert  (1548)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
iii.
Thomas (1549)XE "Barter:Thomas  (1549)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 2834.
iv.
Edward (1544).XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)"
5669.  Margaret13 unknown (1547)XE "unknown:Margaret  (1547)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) married James Barter (1546)XE "Barter:James  (1546) (1500-after 1 Sep 1565)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GG8F-63.

5728.  William13 Lovell (1731)XE "Lovell:William  (1731) (circa 1512-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1512.  He married Jan Millium (1732).XE "Millium:Jan  (1732) (circa 1516-)"  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is D2QM-KC.

     Children of William13 Lovell (1731)XE "Lovell:William  (1731) (circa 1512-)" and Jan Millium (1732)XE "Millium:Jan  (1732) (circa 1516-)" (see #5729) were:


 2864.
i.
John12 (1729).XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)"
5729.  Jan13 Millium (1732)XE "Millium:Jan  (1732) (circa 1516-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1516.  She married William Lovell (1731).XE "Lovell:William  (1731) (circa 1512-)"  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is D2QM-KC.

5744.  John the Younger13 Hache (4190)XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)" (Thomas, #10104) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1495.  He died before 13 Apr 1535 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of John Hatche of Sellynge besids Horton Monks, co. Kent, 13 April 1535. To be buried in the churchyard of Sellynge. I give at my forefare [i.e., forthfare] for dirge and in bread and drink for poor people 10s. At my month's mind in like manner 6s. 8d., and at my year's mind in like manner 13s. 4d. For masses and prayers in said church for three years 13s. 4d. To the high altar there 18d. To the Trinity light 6d. To the Trinity light and torch light 12d. apiece. To every godchild 12d. To every of my children two ewes. To my wife two kine, two hogs, six ewes, and half my household stuff. The residue of my goods to be sold to pay my debts and legacies by my executors, my wife and Thomas Marchall, to whom I give 6s. 8d. apiece. To John Marchall 3s. 4d. to help my wife with the writings. Witnesses: Thomas Dylnott the younger, Robert Cavell, and Richard Hempsted.

My last will regarding my lands. A piece of land called Mewlyng and my mill beside Hythe to be sold, and the money, and also £9. 20d. which Thomas Dylnott owes me, to be used to pay my debts and legacies. Hodyforth mill and half the meadow to be put to farm and the money used for the same purpose. My sons Thomas, John, and Stephen to enter into my new house and lands at their ages of twenty years. My wife to have the other half of the meadow by the names of Lytle Somerles, greate Somerles, and Rayfelde until my children be twenty years of age, giving to each his share as he attains that age. To her also for life the house and lands at Somerffeld, with reversion at her death to my children. If all my sons die under age, reversion to my daughters, the lands being equally divided. To each daughter 40s. at marriage. If all my children die the money to be used to have an obit kept for twenty  years, and the lands to be sold and the money to go to my brothers and their heirs. To Thomas Hatche, son of John Hatche the elder, 13s. 4d. Overseer: Maister Hayman, to whom I give 6s. 8d. Proved 26 April 1536. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 21, fo. 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Sellinge, co. Kent. His wife, whose name is unknown, is mentioned in his will. By the will of his father, proved in 1534, he succeeded to lands and tenements in Sellinge, including a "new house," which in the following year he devised to his three sons. His five eldest children are named in the will of his father).

     Children of John the Younger13 Hache (4190)XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)" include:


 
i.
Johane12 (4195)XE "Hache:Johane  (4195) (circa 1521-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1521.  She died.


 
ii.
Agnes (4196)XE "Hache:Agnes  (4196) (circa 1523-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1523.  She died.


 2526.
iii.
Thomas (1742).XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)"

 
iv.
Alice (4197)XE "Hache:Alice  (4197) (circa 1527-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1527.  She died.


 
v.
John (4198)XE "Hache:John  (4198) (circa 1529-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1529.  He died.


 
vi.
Stephen (4199)XE "Hache:Stephen  (4199) (circa 1532-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1532.  He died.

5748.  Richard13 Tilden (1757)XE "Tilden:Richard  (1757) (1510-before 15 May 1566)" (John Tylden, #5040) (see #2520).

5749.  Elizabeth13 Glover (1758)XE "Glover:Elizabeth  (1758) (1515-30 Dec 1585)" (see #2521).

5792.  William13 Lovell (1731)XE "Lovell:William  (1731) (circa 1512-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1512.  He married Jan Millium (1732).XE "Millium:Jan  (1732) (circa 1516-)"  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is D2QM-KC.

     Children of William13 Lovell (1731)XE "Lovell:William  (1731) (circa 1512-)" and Jan Millium (1732)XE "Millium:Jan  (1732) (circa 1516-)" (see #5729) were:


 2864.
i.
John12 (1729).XE "Lovell:John  (1729) (1538-)"
5793.  Jan13 Millium (1732)XE "Millium:Jan  (1732) (circa 1516-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1516.  She married William Lovell (1731).XE "Lovell:William  (1731) (circa 1512-)"  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is D2QM-KC.

5808.  John the Younger13 Hache (4190)XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)" (Thomas, #10104) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1495.  He died before 13 Apr 1535 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of John Hatche of Sellynge besids Horton Monks, co. Kent, 13 April 1535. To be buried in the churchyard of Sellynge. I give at my forefare [i.e., forthfare] for dirge and in bread and drink for poor people 10s. At my month's mind in like manner 6s. 8d., and at my year's mind in like manner 13s. 4d. For masses and prayers in said church for three years 13s. 4d. To the high altar there 18d. To the Trinity light 6d. To the Trinity light and torch light 12d. apiece. To every godchild 12d. To every of my children two ewes. To my wife two kine, two hogs, six ewes, and half my household stuff. The residue of my goods to be sold to pay my debts and legacies by my executors, my wife and Thomas Marchall, to whom I give 6s. 8d. apiece. To John Marchall 3s. 4d. to help my wife with the writings. Witnesses: Thomas Dylnott the younger, Robert Cavell, and Richard Hempsted.

My last will regarding my lands. A piece of land called Mewlyng and my mill beside Hythe to be sold, and the money, and also £9. 20d. which Thomas Dylnott owes me, to be used to pay my debts and legacies. Hodyforth mill and half the meadow to be put to farm and the money used for the same purpose. My sons Thomas, John, and Stephen to enter into my new house and lands at their ages of twenty years. My wife to have the other half of the meadow by the names of Lytle Somerles, greate Somerles, and Rayfelde until my children be twenty years of age, giving to each his share as he attains that age. To her also for life the house and lands at Somerffeld, with reversion at her death to my children. If all my sons die under age, reversion to my daughters, the lands being equally divided. To each daughter 40s. at marriage. If all my children die the money to be used to have an obit kept for twenty  years, and the lands to be sold and the money to go to my brothers and their heirs. To Thomas Hatche, son of John Hatche the elder, 13s. 4d. Overseer: Maister Hayman, to whom I give 6s. 8d. Proved 26 April 1536. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 21, fo. 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Sellinge, co. Kent. His wife, whose name is unknown, is mentioned in his will. By the will of his father, proved in 1534, he succeeded to lands and tenements in Sellinge, including a "new house," which in the following year he devised to his three sons. His five eldest children are named in the will of his father).

     Children of John the Younger13 Hache (4190)XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)" include:


 
i.
Johane12 (4195)XE "Hache:Johane  (4195) (circa 1521-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1521.  She died.


 
ii.
Agnes (4196)XE "Hache:Agnes  (4196) (circa 1523-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1523.  She died.


 2526.
iii.
Thomas (1742).XE "Hatche:Thomas  (1742) (circa 1525-13 Oct 1568)"

 
iv.
Alice (4197)XE "Hache:Alice  (4197) (circa 1527-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1527.  She died.


 
v.
John (4198)XE "Hache:John  (4198) (circa 1529-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1529.  He died.


 
vi.
Stephen (4199)XE "Hache:Stephen  (4199) (circa 1532-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 254.) was born circa 1532.  He died.

5812.  Richard13 Tilden (1757)XE "Tilden:Richard  (1757) (1510-before 15 May 1566)" (John Tylden, #5040) (see #2520).

5813.  Elizabeth13 Glover (1758)XE "Glover:Elizabeth  (1758) (1515-30 Dec 1585)" (see #2521).

5864.  John13 Hynckleye (1642)XE "Hynckleye:John  (1642) (circa 1512-25 Jun 1577)" (John Henkle, #5648) (see #2824).

5865.  Johane13 unknown (1643)XE "unknown:Johane  (1643) (1515-before 23 Jan 1563)" (see #2825).

5868.  John13 Soole (1655)XE "Soole:John  (1655) (1540-)" (see #2828).

5869.  Maria13 Whitfield (1656)XE "Whitfield:Maria  (1656) (1544-)" (see #2829).

5870.  John13 Iddenden (1657)XE "Iddenden:John  (1657) (circa 1544-15 Mar 1588)" (see #2830).

5871.  Christian13 Mercer (1658)XE "Mercer:Christian  (1658) (circa 1548-13 Aug 1597)" (unknown, #5662) (see #2831).

5884.  Christopher13 Warren (3055)XE "Warren:Christopher  (3055) (circa 1560-)" (William, #11768) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1560 at Headborough, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Alice Webb (3056)XE "Webb:Alice  (3056) (circa 1560-)" in 1579 at Kent, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Christopher13 Warren (3055)XE "Warren:Christopher  (3055) (circa 1560-)" and Alice Webb (3056)XE "Webb:Alice  (3056) (circa 1560-)" (see #5885) were:


 2942.
i.
Richard12 (2339).XE "Warren:Richard  (2339) (before 1590-1628)"
5885.  Alice13 Webb (3056)XE "Webb:Alice  (3056) (circa 1560-)" (Thomas, #11770) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1560 at Sidnam, Devonshire, England.  She married Christopher Warren (3055)XE "Warren:Christopher  (3055) (circa 1560-)" in 1579 at Kent, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

5936.  Ruloff13 Kype (3929)XE "Kype:Ruloff  (3929) (1544-1596)" (Ruloff de Kype, #11872) (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 86.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 14.) was born in 1544.  He died in 1596.

     (an unknown value) (Ruloff, born in 1544, remained in Holland when his father and brothers returned to France. Ruloff became a Protestant, married, and settled in Amsterdam, where he died in 1596. He seems to have dropped the french prfeix De from his name. Known issue is Hendrick Ruloffson Kype).

     Children of Ruloff13 Kype (3929)XE "Kype:Ruloff  (3929) (1544-1596)" include:


 2968.
i.
Hendrick Ruloffson12 (3927).XE "Kype:Hendrick Ruloffson  (3927) (1576-)"
5944.  Nicasius13 de Sille (4103)XE "de Sille:Nicasius  (4103) (3 Aug 1543-22 Aug 1600)" (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.) was born on 3 Aug 1543 at Malines (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  He died on 22 Aug 1600 at age 57 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).  His body was interred after 22 Aug 1600 at , Amsterdam, Holland (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 136.).

     (an unknown value) (He was Advocate in the Provincial Council at Namur, Secretary to the Privy Council and to the Archduke Matthias, and who became, 1584, Council and Penskionary of Amsterdam and Deputy (delegate) in the States General. He was sent, 1587, with others on an Embassy to Queen Elizabeth of England; was Ambassador to Denmark, and afterwards to Germany).

     Children of Nicasius13 de Sille (4103)XE "de Sille:Nicasius  (4103) (3 Aug 1543-22 Aug 1600)" include:


 2972.
i.
Laurens12 (4101).XE "de Sille:Laurens  (4101)"
6400.  John13 Lowle (1983)XE "Lowle:John  (1983) (-1552)" (John, #12800) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xliv and xxxiv.) married Apolyn Leversedge (1984)XE "Leversedge:Apolyn  (1984)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  He died in 1552.

     Children of John13 Lowle (1983)XE "Lowle:John  (1983) (-1552)" and Apolyn Leversedge (1984)XE "Leversedge:Apolyn  (1984)" (see #6401) were as follows:


 3200.
i.
Richard12 (841).XE "Lowell:Richard  (841)"

 
ii.
Edmond John (2071)XE "Lowle:Edmond John  (2071)" died.

6401.  Apolyn13 Leversedge (1984)XE "Leversedge:Apolyn  (1984)" (Richard, #12802) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) married John Lowle (1983)XE "Lowle:John  (1983) (-1552)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

6402.  Edmond13 Perceval (1955)XE "Perceval:Edmond  (1955) (-21 Sep 1551)" (Sir, #12804) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) married Elizabeth Yorke (1956)XE "Yorke:Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)"

XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.).  He died on 21 Sep 1551.

     (an unknown value) (Succeeded to the estate of his father, but died in 1551. The estate passed to his oldest son (by his first wife) and his descendants).

     Children of Edmond13 Perceval (1955)XE "Perceval:Edmond  (1955) (-21 Sep 1551)" and Elizabeth Yorke (1956)XE "Yorke:Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)"

XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)" (see #6403) were as follows:


 
i.
Edmund12 (5044)XE "Perceval:Edmund  (5044) (        -after 1596)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) died after 1596 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).


 
ii.
Elinor (5040)XE "Perceval:Elinor  (5040)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.).


 
iii.
Margaret (5041)XE "Perceval:Margaret  (5041)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.)XE "Lower:Margaret  (5041)" married Thomas Lower (5048)XE "Lower:Thomas  (5048)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, pae 318.).  She died by 14 Oct. 1608 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).


 
iv.
Elizabeth (5042)XE "Perceval:Elizabeth  (5042)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.).


 
v.
Andrew (5043)XE "Perceval:Andrew  (5043)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.).


 
vi.
Thomas (5045)XE "Perceval:Thomas  (5045) (        -after 1593)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) married Bridget Choke (5047)XE "Choke:Bridget  (5047)" on 8 Jun 1591 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died after 1593 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).


 
vii.
James (5046)XE "Perceval:James  (5046) (        -26 May 1594)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 311.) died on 26 May 1594 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 313.).


 3201.
viii.
Christian (840).XE "Percival:Christian  (840) (-after 7 Jun 1577)"
6403.  Elizabeth13 Yorke (1956)XE "Yorke:Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)"

XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)" (Roger, #12806) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316 & 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) was born say 1515 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She married Edmond Perceval (1955)XE "Perceval:Edmond  (1955) (-21 Sep 1551)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.).  She died on 8 Sep 1601 at Carhampton, Somerset, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

Generation FourteenTC "Generation Fourteen" \l 2
8304.  Thomas14 Tilly (Tylle) (3049)XE "Tilly (Tylle):Thomas  (3049) (1490-1556)" (Henry Tilly, #16608) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1490 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  He married Margaret (--?--) (3050)XE "(--?--):Margaret  (3050) (1490-after 1556)" circa 1509 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database; CRAA6HB.).  He died in 1556 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England. His will is dated 21 Aug 1556 and proved 6 Oct 1556 and is as follows: Will of Thomas Tylle, Archdeaconry of Bedford 13:29 f.: In the name of god amen. the yere of o'lord god 1556 & the xxi day of august. I Thomas Tylle of Henlow in the county of Bedf. being of hole mynd and memory p(ra)se by god mke this my last will and testament in man'and foame followinge. First I bequeth my sowle to almighty god o' Lord & saint marye and all the holly company of heaven and my bodye to be buried in the parish church yeard of henlow beforesaid. It I bequeth ot o'mothers church of Lincoln of Lincoln (sic) iii d. It to the high ault'of henlowe iiii d. for tythes forgotten iiii d. It. I give and bequeth to agnes my daugh'ii bishels of barlye & I give to every child that ye said agnes hath els half a bushell of barlye. It. I gyve and bequeth unto Margaret my wyfe the howse that I dwell in wth all Lands medowes and pastures and pfects thernto in any wyse appertayning and belonging aft'any man'and sort as I had the same t ye making hereofe during her naturall lyfe & aft'her I will the said howse wth thapptnces therto appertaninge remaine unto will for ev. It. I will the said m'geret shall occupie the said land according to certeyn covenants made in writings betwixt me & the said Will as yet unsealed. It. the rest of my goods moveabell my depts paid & the legacies conteyned in this my last will performed I give and bequeth unto Mgeret mt wyfe during her naturall lyfe & aft I will the said goods remain to will my sone the w Mgeret & Will I order and make my faithfull executors for the true performing of this my last will & testament & Jhon Sayres supervisor. thes being wytnes desired by ye testator James torn vicar there, Jhon Deds, wth others. (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     Children of Thomas14 Tilly (Tylle) (3049)XE "Tilly (Tylle):Thomas  (3049) (1490-1556)" and Margaret (--?--) (3050)XE "(--?--):Margaret  (3050) (1490-after 1556)" (see #8305) both born at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England, were as follows:


 
i.
Agnes13 (3051)XE "Tilly (Tylle):Agnes  (3051) (circa 1510-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1510.  She died.


 4152.
ii.
William (3044).XE "Tylle:William  (3044) (circa 1515-before 21 Jan 1579)"
8305.  Margaret14 (--?--) (3050)XE "(--?--):Margaret  (3050) (1490-after 1556)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1490 at England.  She married Thomas Tilly (Tylle) (3049)XE "Tilly (Tylle):Thomas  (3049) (1490-1556)" circa 1509 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database; CRAA6HB.).  She died after 1556 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database: CRAA6HB.).

9984.  John14 Washbourne (2822)XE "Washbourne:John  (2822) (circa 1451-6 May 1517)" (Norman Washburn, #19968) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 26.) was born circa 1451.  He married Joan Mitton (2823)XE "Mitton:Joan  (2823)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 48.).  He died on 6 May 1517. His tomb was erected on the South side of St. Michael's Church, Wichenford, opposite his grandfather's (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 26.).  His body was interred on 6 May 1517 at Wickenford Church (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 48.).

     (an unknown value) (There is no certainty as to the date of John's birth; probably before 1454. He made his will May 3rd 1517 and died on the 6th following.

Soon after entering on his estate John saw the end of the Washbourn-Stanford imbroglio which left him free to promote the interests of his estate and to attend to public duties. He was appointed Commissioner to raise Subsidies in 1496-7, 1513-14 and most probably 1514-15. His will shows that he still held property of his early ancestors, Knights Washbourn, Smyte and Westmancote, and Norton in Bredon, the Eastham property which came, probably, with Isolde Hanley wife of Peter, and the Witchenford estat the dower of Margaret Poher).

     Children of John14 Washbourne (2822)XE "Washbourne:John  (2822) (circa 1451-6 May 1517)" and Joan Mitton (2823)XE "Mitton:Joan  (2823)" (see #9985) were as follows:


 
i.
Francis13 (3939)XE "Washbourne:Francis  (3939)" (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 26.) died.


 
ii.
Walter (3938)XE "Washbourne:Walter  (3938)" (Ebenezer Washburn, A Family Story of 700 Years, Page 26.) died.


 
iii.
Robert (2824)XE "Washbourne:Robert  (2824) (1476-before 1517)" (, Genser07, page 1.) was born in 1476.  He died before 1517.


 4992.
iv.
John (2817).XE "Washbourne:John  (2817) (1479-8 Jan 1548)"
9985.  Joan14 Mitton (2823)XE "Mitton:Joan  (2823)" (William Mytton, #19970) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 48.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) married John Washbourne (2822)XE "Washbourne:John  (2822) (circa 1451-6 May 1517)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 48.).  She died.

10080.  Robert14 Tylden (1761)XE "Tylden:Robert  (1761) (circa 1440-before 11 Jul 1480)" (John, #20160) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born circa 1440 at Benenden, Kent, England.  He married Alice unknown (1762)XE "unknown:Alice  (1762) (circa 1445-1479)" circa 1470 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 11 Jul 1480 at Benenden, Kent, England. The Will of Robert Telden of Benynden, 25 July 1479. To be buried in the churchyard of Benynden. To the high altar there 20d. To every godson 4d. To the mending of the bad way between wodesend and peperbondesgate 3s. 4d. The residue of all my goods and legacies to Alice my wife and John Telden my brother, whom I make executors.

My last will concerning my lands. My feofees of all my lands in Benynden and Cranbrok in the County of Kent are Thoe' Wat'man, Richard Evynden, Water Denman, John Stace son of Thomas Stace, and John Nenne son of Robert Nenne. To wife Alice during her widowhood my lands on the den of Crotchole, wit reversion after her death or marriage to son John at the age of eighteen years. To son John, after my wife's decease or marriage, seven pieces of land called hersetgrove, Gretefeld, longfeld, Fyveacres, Griggismede, and the two pypesland. Provision made for any further child born. To brother John Telden two pieces of land called yaldfeld and yaldfeldwode, he to pay to my daughter Johane 12 marks at her marriage, and if she die before legal age and unmarried, reversion to any other daughter I may have, to whom I give 12 marks at marriage. If son John or any other son I may have die before eighteen years without heirs of their bodies lawfully begotten, my garden and lands on the den of Crotehole, after the death of wife Alice, to my brothers John and Thomas, they paying to my daughters at marriage or the age of twenty-eight years £20 each. To brother John arrable land and wood called le knoll, knol wode, withm, withm wode, cul'towne, and culv'towne wode, containig twenty acres, in payment of £22 13s. 4d. which I owe to him; 16 marks which Thomas Hendle of Crnebrok owes me for land there he bought of me, in payment of 50 marks which I owe my said brother; and two pieces of land called Jociscrofte and Slystowne on the den of Telden, in payment of 6 marks which I owe him. Proved 11 July 1480 by the executors named in the will. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 3, fo. 18.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 323.).

     (an unknown value) (It seems probable that either from John, son of John of Crotehole, or from John, son of Robert and Alice, was descended Richard Telden of Benynden and Tenterden, the testator of 1565-6, alghough no evidence has yet been found to prove the connection).  His Ancestral File Number is 8J4K-8H.

     Children of Robert14 Tylden (1761)XE "Tylden:Robert  (1761) (circa 1440-before 11 Jul 1480)" and Alice unknown (1762)XE "unknown:Alice  (1762) (circa 1445-1479)" (see #10081) were as follows:


 
i.
Johane13 (4232)XE "Tylden:Johane  (4232)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) died.


 5040.
ii.
John (4231).XE "Tylden:John  (4231) (after 1461-)"
10081.  Alice14 unknown (1762)XE "unknown:Alice  (1762) (circa 1445-1479)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1445.  She married Robert Tylden (1761)XE "Tylden:Robert  (1761) (circa 1440-before 11 Jul 1480)" circa 1470 (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died in 1479 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8J4K-9N.

10104.  Thomas14 Hache (1746)XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)" (Thomas Hecche, #20208) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1465.  He married an unknown person (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 31 Dec 1534 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of Thomas Hache the elder of Sellyng besids Horton Monkyn, co. Kent, 12 December 1530. To be buried in the churchyard of Sellynge. At my forthfare in masses and dirges and in bread and drink to refresh the poor 10s. At my month's day in like manner 16s. 8d. At my year's mind in like manner 13s. 4d. My executors to have masses and prayers sung for my soul and all Christian souls in said church for eight years. To the high altar 12d. To the Trinity light, Cross light, and Lady light 6d. apiece. To every godchild 6d. To Thomas Hache, son of John and Elioner Hache, 40s., 20s. at the age of twenty-four and 20s. at the age of twenty-five to be paid by my son John. If the said Thomas die within age without heirs, then it is to be paid to his sister Agnes, and if she die within age without heirs, reversion to my son John. To my son John my best brass pot. To my daughters Agnes, Margarete, and Alice 6s. 8d. apiece. To my son William all debts he owes me and two silver spoons, and to his daugher Agnes Haches 6s. 8d. To Agnes, daughter of John Hache the elder my son, now dead, 6s. 8d. To Thomas Hache, John Hache the younger, Johane Hache, Agnes Hache, and Alice Hache, sons and daughters of John Hache, 6s. 8d. Residuary legatee and executor: son John Hache. Witnesses: Sir Robert Yong, vicar of Sellyng, William Harte, John Knyght, William Hache, and John Smythe.

My last will regarding my lands. To William Hache, my son my manor of Hodyford and all those parcels of land, viz., Hodyford Broke lying in three parces, a parcel called Horselife, one called Hodyford grove with hemphaw and gardens, a parcel called perce gardyn, one called Stone regg, one called Sandpytts, and other parcel which he there now occupyeth of me, he paying for the same 20 marks, at the rate of 26s. 8d. a year until paid. To my son John Hache my new house with the lands thereto belonging and all my other lands and tenements in Sellyng, he paying therefor to Thomas Hache, son of John Hache late of Sellyng, deceased, 40 marks, as before specified. [Witnesses as above.] Proved 31 December 1534 by the executor, John Hache. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 20, fo. 4.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (He held the manor of Hodyford, was assessed as "Thomas Hatche the elder" in the hundred of Street, in the subsidy of 1524. The name of his wife has not been found).  His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-F1.

     Children of Thomas14 Hache (1746)XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)" include:


 
i.
Thomas13 (4189)XE "Hache:Thomas  (4189) (-before 12 Dec 1530)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died before 12 Dec 1530.

     (an unknown value) (Not mentioned in his father's will in 1530, and therefore probably deceased before that date. His existence is inferred from the fact that his supposed father, Thomas Hache, is called "Thomas Hatche the elder" in the subsidy of 1524).


 
ii.
Agnes (4188)XE "Hache:Agnes  (4188)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
iii.
Alice (4192)XE "Hache:Alice  (4192)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
iv.
Margaret (4191)XE "Hache:Margaret  (4191)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
v.
William (4187)XE "Hache:William  (4187) (circa 1488-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1488.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Succeeded to the manor of Hodyford and other lands under the will of his father. Child: 1. Agnes, mentioned in her grandfather's will in 1530).


 
vi.
John the Elder (1744)XE "Hatch:John the Elder  (1744) (circa 1490-before 1 Nov 1519)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1490 at Selling, Kent, England.  He married Eleanor unknown (1745)XE "unknown:Eleanor  (1745) (circa 1500-Nov 1519)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 1 Nov 1519 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-5M.


 5052.
vii.
John the Younger (4190).XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)"
11200.  Richard14 Daggett (5322)XE "Daggett:Richard  (5322) (circa 1481-        )" (A wealthy inhabitant of Groton, co. Suffolk) (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.) (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) was born circa 1481 at Groton, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.).

     Children of Richard14 Daggett (5322)XE "Daggett:Richard  (5322) (circa 1481-        )" include:


 5600.
i.
John13 (5321).XE "Daggett:John Gent. (5321) (1510-before 6 May 1565)"

XE "Daggett:John Gent.  (5321) (1510-before 6 May 1565)"

 11205.
ii.
Alice (5323).XE "Daggett:Alice  (5323) (1515-after 8 Mar 1566)"
11204.  (--?--)14 Lappage (5320)XE "Lappage:(--?--)  (5320)" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.) married Alice Daggett (5323)XE "Daggett:Alice  (5323) (1515-after 8 Mar 1566)" (see #11205), daughter of Richard Daggett (5322),XE "Daggett:Richard  (5322) (circa 1481-        )" in 1541 at Groton, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.).

     Children of (--?--)14 Lappage (5320)XE "Lappage:(--?--)  (5320)" and Alice Daggett (5323)XE "Daggett:Alice  (5323) (1515-after 8 Mar 1566)" (see #11205) were:


 5602.
i.
Thomas13 (5304).XE "Lappage:Thomas  (5304) (circa 1532-        )"
11205.  Alice14 Daggett (5323)XE "Daggett:Alice  (5323) (1515-after 8 Mar 1566)" (Richard, #11200) (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.) (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.)XE "Lappage:Alice  (5323) (1515-after 8 Mar 1566)" was born in 1515 at Boxford, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.).  She married (--?--) Lappage (5320)XE "Lappage:(--?--)  (5320)" (see #11204) in 1541 at Groton, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.).  She died after 8 Mar 1566 at Groton, Suffolk, England (, The Church of Jesus Christ of latter-day saints.).

11206.  Thomas14 Gael (5319)XE "Gael:Thomas  (5319)" (A Supplement to the section entitled John Doggett-Daggett of Marthas Vineyard, Page 344.).

     Children of Thomas14 Gael (5319)XE "Gael:Thomas  (5319)" include:


 5603.
i.
Agnes13 (5318).XE "Gael:Agnes  (5318) (1547-        )"
11216.  Robert14 Mayow (1528)XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)" (Simon, #11328) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106 - Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1480 at Lexington, England.  He married Joan Bridmore (1529)XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)" at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died in 1520 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (Eldest sonne and heire of Dynton, com. Wilts).  His Ancestral File Number is G8N2-K9.

     Children of Robert14 Mayow (1528)XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)" and Joan Bridmore (1529)XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)" (see #5665) were as follows:


 
i.
John13 (1531)XE "Mayow:John  (1531) (-before 25 Feb 1563)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Dinton, Wiltshire, England.  He married Joan Hamon (2719).XE "Hamon:Joan  (2719)"  He married Joan Prest (2720).XE "Prest:Joan  (2720)"  He died before 25 Feb 1563.


 
ii.
Edward (1532)XE "Mayow:Edward  (1532)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Fonthill, Wiltshire, England.  He married Agnes King (2721).XE "King:Agnes  (2721)"  He died.


 2832.
iii.
Thomas (1526).XE "Mayow:Thomas  (1526) (1509-1 Jun 1590)"

 
iv.
Henry (1533)XE "Mayow:Henry  (1533)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Dinton, Wiltshire, England.  He married Elizabeth unknown (2722).XE "unknown:Elizabeth  (2722) (-6 Apr 1577)"  He died.


 
v.
Walter (1534)XE "Mayow:Walter  (1534)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born at Chilmark, Wiltshire, England.  He married Alice Code (2723).XE "Code:Alice  (2723)"  He died.


 
vi.
Daughter (1535)XE "Mayhew:daughter  (1535)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) died.


 
vii.
Daughter (1536)XE "Mayhew:daughter  (1536)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) died.

11217.  Joan14 Bridmore (1529)XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)" (John, #11330) (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106 - Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1480 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  She married Robert Mayow (1528)XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)" at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. III, page 299.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is G8N2-LG.

11220.  James14 Barter (1546)XE "Barter:James  (1546) (1500-after 1 Sep 1565)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born in 1500 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England.  He died after 1 Sep 1565 at Fovant, Wiltshire, England. The will of James Barter of Fovent, Wilts, is dated Sept. 1, 1565, and in it he mentions among others his eldest son Edward and his daughter (in law), Edith, wife of Edward. (Arch. Sarum, P.C.C., IV, 210.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     He married Margaret unknown (1547)XE "unknown:Margaret  (1547)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  His Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-CP.

     Children of James14 Barter (1546)XE "Barter:James  (1546) (1500-after 1 Sep 1565)" and Margaret unknown (1547)XE "unknown:Margaret  (1547)" (see #5669) were as follows:


 
i.
Christian13 (1550)XE "Barter:Christian  (1550)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
ii.
Robert (1548)XE "Barter:Robert  (1548)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 
iii.
Thomas (1549)XE "Barter:Thomas  (1549)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.) died.


 2834.
iv.
Edward (1544).XE "Barter:Edward  (1544) (1526-after 6 Oct 1574)"
11221.  Margaret14 unknown (1547)XE "unknown:Margaret  (1547)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) married James Barter (1546)XE "Barter:James  (1546) (1500-after 1 Sep 1565)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 113.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is GG8F-63.

11232.  Thomas14 Hawes (3968)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3968)" (Thomas, #22464) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Elinor Unknown (4040)XE "Unknown:Elinor  (4040)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  He married Elizabeth Brome (3969)XE "Brome:Elizabeth  (3969)" in 1527 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).

     (an unknown value) (He left a will filed in the Consistory of Lichfield, 27 October 1574, in which he mentions his wife Elinor, his son and heir William and the latter's son Thomas, daughter Elizabeth (wife of Thomas Jackson) and her son Thomas, daughter Hatley and her children, daughter Margaret, son-in-law Walter Chamber, sister Elizabeth ------- and her daughter Ann, sister Catherine Wood, sister Ann Gibbons, and cousin Thomas Greswolde. His first wife was buried in the Baddesley Clinton Church, near her father ,where she had an epitaph).

     Children of Thomas14 Hawes (3968)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3968)" and Elizabeth Brome (3969)XE "Brome:Elizabeth  (3969)" (see #11233) were as follows:


 
i.
Margaret13 (4043)XE "Hawes:Margaret  (4043)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) died.


 
ii.
Constance (3970)XE "Hawes:Constance  (3970)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) married Robert Hatley (4453)XE "Hatley:Robert  (4453)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 118, page 254.).  She married Thomas Shepherd (3971)XE "Shepherd:Thomas  (3971) (circa 1515-        )" before 1545 (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.).  She died.


 
iii.
Elizabeth (4041)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (4041)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Thomas Jackson (4042)XE "Jackson:Thomas  (4042)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  She died.


 
iv.
Daughter (4044)XE "Hawes:daughter  (4044)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married unknown Hatley (4045)XE "Hatley:unknown  (4045)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).


 
v.
Daughter (4046)XE "Hawes:daughter  (4046)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Walter Chamber (4047)XE "Chamber:Walter  (4047)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 66, page 185.).  She died.


 5616.
vi.
William (3966).XE "Hawes:William  (3966) (1531-31 Oct 1611)"
11233.  Elizabeth14 Brome (3969)XE "Brome:Elizabeth  (3969)" (Nicholas, #22466) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 335.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Thomas Hawes (3968)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3968)" in 1527 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).

11234.  William14 Colles (4057)XE "Colles:William  (4057) (circa 1495-1558)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) was born circa 1495.  He married Margaret Hitch (4058)XE "Hitch:Margaret  (4058)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  He died in 1558.

     (an unknown value) (He was burried in the Church at Leigh, where there was an inscription to his memory. His eldest son Edmond, who died in 1606, aged 76 years, had been justice of the peace, deputy lieutenant of Worcestershire, and sheriff of that county. William Colles also had a son Michael, of Hampden in Arden, Warwickshire, and Bradwell, Buckinghamshire, besides other children. The family had been seated in Worcestershire since the 14th century, and owned estates in many parts of that and other counties).

     Children of William14 Colles (4057)XE "Colles:William  (4057) (circa 1495-1558)" and Margaret Hitch (4058)XE "Hitch:Margaret  (4058)" (see #11235) were as follows:


 5617.
i.
Ursula13 (3967).XE "Colles:Ursula  (3967)"

 
ii.
Michael (4060)XE "Colles:Michael  (4060)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) died.


 
iii.
Edmond (4059)XE "Colles:Edmond  (4059) (circa 1530-1606)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.) was born circa 1530.  He died in 1606.

11235.  Margaret14 Hitch (4058)XE "Hitch:Margaret  (4058)" married William Colles (4057)XE "Colles:William  (4057) (circa 1495-1558)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 163.).  She died.

11238.  Robert14 Whitfield (4063)XE "Whitfield:Robert  (4063) (-after 6 Dec 1591)" (Robert Whitfelde, #22476) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, pages 411, 419 & 420.) died after 6 Dec 1591. Will of Robert Whytfeld of Worth in Sussex, 6 December 1591, proved 16 February 1597. 

My executor or his assigns to pay unto such one of the sons of Richard Wakelyn als. Harris late of Beedinge in Sussex deceased ten pounds, to such son when he shall accomplish the age of four and twenty tears. I give unto Myldred and Mary, my son's wives, unto my daughter Johan Baker and unto my four other daughters, vizt., Margaret, Sara, Jane and Francis, and unto every of them ten shillings. To Nicholas Holmes my old servant twenty shillings and his dwelling free, in the little house in Wadhurst where he now dwelleth, during his life. Towards the reparations of the church of Wadhurst twenty six shillings eight pence. The poor of Wadhurst and of Worth. To John, eldest son of my son Thomas, a salt of silver parcel gilt and to every other child of my said son's, now born, ten shillings. The residue fo my goods &c. I give and bequeath unto Thomas Whytfeld my son whom I make and ordain sole executor. To him all my copyhold lands &c. in Wadhurst.

                        Lewyn, 18. (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 411.).

     Children of Robert14 Whitfield (4063)XE "Whitfield:Robert  (4063) (-after 6 Dec 1591)" include:


 5619.
i.
Jane13 (4062).XE "Whitfield:Jane  (4062) (-before 25 Jun 1621)"

 
ii.
Thomas (4104)XE "Whitfield:Thomas  (4104)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) died.


 
iii.
Jone (4105)XE "Whitfield:Jone  (4105)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) married Robert Baker (4106)XE "Baker:Robert  (4106)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.).  She died.


 
iv.
William (4107)XE "Whitfield:William  (4107)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 420.) died.


 
v.
Margaret (4108)XE "Whitfield:Margaret  (4108)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 411.) died.


 
vi.
Sara (4109)XE "Whitfield:Sara  (4109)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 411.) died.


 
vii.
Frauncis (4110)XE "Whitfield:Frauncis  (4110)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 411.) died.

11260.  Robert14 Tilley (Tille) (3036)XE "Tilley (Tille):Robert  (3036) (circa 1540-31 Dec 1612)" (William Tylle, #4152) (see #2076).

11261.  Elizabeth14 (--?--) (3037)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3037) (1544-27 Mar 1614)" (see #2077).

11296.  Robert14 Henkele (2545)XE "Henkele:Robert  (2545) (-30 Dec 1522)" (John, #22592) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6 & 7.) married Johane unknown (3824)XE "unknown:Johane  (3824)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  He died on 30 Dec 1522. The Will of Robert Henkle of the parish of Lenham in the Diocese of Canterbury, 30 December 1522. My body to be buried in the churchyard of "our blessed ladie assuption" of Lenham. To the high altar there, for lights, etc. The residue of all my goods to Johane my wife, whom I make my executrix. I make William A chambre and John henkle, my brothers, overseers. Johane my wife to take the profits of my messuage that I now dwell in, a garden lying next the tenement of John Hores, and of a barn, for life, and after her decease to my daughter Isabell. Immediately after my death I will the messuage that I bought of mr. John Brent gentleman, to daughter Isabell. Witnesses: Thomas Partriche, Richard Kyple, Mighell Furmayngne, John Furmer, and others. Proved 4 February 1522-3 by the oaths of Thomas Ptriche and John Hynkle, and commision issued to the executrix named in the will. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 15, fo. 9.) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 287.).

     (an unknown value) (of Lenham, Co. Kent, Will dated 1522).

     Children of Robert14 Henkele (2545)XE "Henkele:Robert  (2545) (-30 Dec 1522)" and Johane unknown (3824)XE "unknown:Johane  (3824)" (see #11297) were as follows:


 
i.
Isabell13 (3825)XE "Henkle:Isabell  (3825)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) died.
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ii.
John (1644).XE "Henkle:John  (1644) (before 1483-after 1522)"
11297.  Johane14 unknown (3824)XE "unknown:Johane  (3824)" married Robert Henkele (2545)XE "Henkele:Robert  (2545) (-30 Dec 1522)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.).  She died.

11328.  Simon14 Mayow (1530)XE "Mayow:Simon  (1530) (circa 1450-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born circa 1450 at Dinton, Wiltshire, England.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Simon Mayow, Gent., of Dynton, com. Wilts. The name of Mayhew and the Vineyard are almost synonymous, and it will be interesting as well as instructive to learn something of the family which exercised such a sway over the early destinies of our island. As an English family name it is most frequently met with in the South and West of this island, and few parish registers in the Counties of Hereford, Gloucester, Wilts and Dorset can be opened without presenting us with examples. It is spelt in many ways, varying from the extended form of Mayhowe to that of Mao, and often, as it will frequently appear, clipped down and reduced to May to the loss of its concluding syllable. An early occurrence of the name, and in its extended form, is found in Glover's Roll of Arms, supposed by Sir Harris Nicholas to date from between 1245 and 1250. Herbert le Fitz Mayhewe is there mentioned as bearing "party d'azur & de goulz one trois leonseaux rampant d'or," and Woodward in his History of Wales, page 415, narrates that account to the old copy of S. Davids Annals. The Welsh slew Sir Herbert Fitz-Mahu apparently in 1246, near the castle of Morgan Cam. The same Roll of Armas gives the clue to the origin of the name as a Christian name; in the case of Mahewe de Lovayne, Mayhew de Columbers and Maheu de Redmain. There can be little doubt that it is here a softened form of Matthew. Bardsley in his "English Surnames" mentioned two other instances, Adam fil. Maheu, and Mayhew de Basingbourne, from the Parliamentary Writs. Lower, (Patronymica Brittannica, 219, 221) takes the same view. Shakespeare in King "Lear" Act III, scene 4, says: "The Prince of Darkness is a Gentleman

     Modo he's called and Mahu."

The family has it principal habitats in Cornwall, at Lostwhithiel, Looe, Bray and Morval, to which belonged John Mayow, Fellow of All Souls, Oxford, and that Mayow of Clevyan, in St. Columb Major, who was hanged on a tavern sign-post as a rebel agains the injunctions of Edward VI, concerning religion. Dorsetshire has one family in the Visitation; Gloucestershire, at Kempley, Tetbury, Charfield; Herefordshire, at Tottenham; Northamptonshire, at Holmden, in the Visitation of 1619; Norfolk, at Billockby and Clippesby; Suffolk at Clopton, Helmington and Bedingfield, and in Wiltshire more than one family of the name are found including Mayhew of Dinton in the Visitations of 1565 and 1623, whose pedigree is here inserted

).

     Children of Simon14 Mayow (1530)XE "Mayow:Simon  (1530) (circa 1450-)" include:
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i.
Robert13 (1528).XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)"
11330.  John14 Bridmore (1537)XE "Bridmore:John  (1537) (circa 1451-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1451 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He married Mrs. Bridmore (1669)XE "Bridmore:Mrs.  (1669) (circa 1455-)" circa 1478 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-WG.

     Children of John14 Bridmore (1537)XE "Bridmore:John  (1537) (circa 1451-)" and Mrs. Bridmore (1669)XE "Bridmore:Mrs.  (1669) (circa 1455-)" (see #11331) were:


 5665.
i.
Joan13 (1529).XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)"
11331.  Mrs.14 Bridmore (1669)XE "Bridmore:Mrs.  (1669) (circa 1455-)" was born circa 1455 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  She married John Bridmore (1537)XE "Bridmore:John  (1537) (circa 1451-)" circa 1478 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-XM.

11488.  Thomas14 Hache (1746)XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)" (Thomas Hecche, #20208) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1465.  He married an unknown person (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 31 Dec 1534 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of Thomas Hache the elder of Sellyng besids Horton Monkyn, co. Kent, 12 December 1530. To be buried in the churchyard of Sellynge. At my forthfare in masses and dirges and in bread and drink to refresh the poor 10s. At my month's day in like manner 16s. 8d. At my year's mind in like manner 13s. 4d. My executors to have masses and prayers sung for my soul and all Christian souls in said church for eight years. To the high altar 12d. To the Trinity light, Cross light, and Lady light 6d. apiece. To every godchild 6d. To Thomas Hache, son of John and Elioner Hache, 40s., 20s. at the age of twenty-four and 20s. at the age of twenty-five to be paid by my son John. If the said Thomas die within age without heirs, then it is to be paid to his sister Agnes, and if she die within age without heirs, reversion to my son John. To my son John my best brass pot. To my daughters Agnes, Margarete, and Alice 6s. 8d. apiece. To my son William all debts he owes me and two silver spoons, and to his daugher Agnes Haches 6s. 8d. To Agnes, daughter of John Hache the elder my son, now dead, 6s. 8d. To Thomas Hache, John Hache the younger, Johane Hache, Agnes Hache, and Alice Hache, sons and daughters of John Hache, 6s. 8d. Residuary legatee and executor: son John Hache. Witnesses: Sir Robert Yong, vicar of Sellyng, William Harte, John Knyght, William Hache, and John Smythe.

My last will regarding my lands. To William Hache, my son my manor of Hodyford and all those parcels of land, viz., Hodyford Broke lying in three parces, a parcel called Horselife, one called Hodyford grove with hemphaw and gardens, a parcel called perce gardyn, one called Stone regg, one called Sandpytts, and other parcel which he there now occupyeth of me, he paying for the same 20 marks, at the rate of 26s. 8d. a year until paid. To my son John Hache my new house with the lands thereto belonging and all my other lands and tenements in Sellyng, he paying therefor to Thomas Hache, son of John Hache late of Sellyng, deceased, 40 marks, as before specified. [Witnesses as above.] Proved 31 December 1534 by the executor, John Hache. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 20, fo. 4.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (He held the manor of Hodyford, was assessed as "Thomas Hatche the elder" in the hundred of Street, in the subsidy of 1524. The name of his wife has not been found).  His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-F1.

     Children of Thomas14 Hache (1746)XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)" include:


 
i.
Thomas13 (4189)XE "Hache:Thomas  (4189) (-before 12 Dec 1530)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died before 12 Dec 1530.

     (an unknown value) (Not mentioned in his father's will in 1530, and therefore probably deceased before that date. His existence is inferred from the fact that his supposed father, Thomas Hache, is called "Thomas Hatche the elder" in the subsidy of 1524).


 
ii.
Agnes (4188)XE "Hache:Agnes  (4188)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
iii.
Alice (4192)XE "Hache:Alice  (4192)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
iv.
Margaret (4191)XE "Hache:Margaret  (4191)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
v.
William (4187)XE "Hache:William  (4187) (circa 1488-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1488.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Succeeded to the manor of Hodyford and other lands under the will of his father. Child: 1. Agnes, mentioned in her grandfather's will in 1530).


 
vi.
John the Elder (1744)XE "Hatch:John the Elder  (1744) (circa 1490-before 1 Nov 1519)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1490 at Selling, Kent, England.  He married Eleanor unknown (1745)XE "unknown:Eleanor  (1745) (circa 1500-Nov 1519)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 1 Nov 1519 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-5M.


 5052.
vii.
John the Younger (4190).XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)"
11496.  John14 Tylden (4231)XE "Tylden:John  (4231) (after 1461-)" (Robert, #10080) (see #5040).

11616.  Thomas14 Hache (1746)XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)" (Thomas Hecche, #20208) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1465.  He married an unknown person (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 31 Dec 1534 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of Thomas Hache the elder of Sellyng besids Horton Monkyn, co. Kent, 12 December 1530. To be buried in the churchyard of Sellynge. At my forthfare in masses and dirges and in bread and drink to refresh the poor 10s. At my month's day in like manner 16s. 8d. At my year's mind in like manner 13s. 4d. My executors to have masses and prayers sung for my soul and all Christian souls in said church for eight years. To the high altar 12d. To the Trinity light, Cross light, and Lady light 6d. apiece. To every godchild 6d. To Thomas Hache, son of John and Elioner Hache, 40s., 20s. at the age of twenty-four and 20s. at the age of twenty-five to be paid by my son John. If the said Thomas die within age without heirs, then it is to be paid to his sister Agnes, and if she die within age without heirs, reversion to my son John. To my son John my best brass pot. To my daughters Agnes, Margarete, and Alice 6s. 8d. apiece. To my son William all debts he owes me and two silver spoons, and to his daugher Agnes Haches 6s. 8d. To Agnes, daughter of John Hache the elder my son, now dead, 6s. 8d. To Thomas Hache, John Hache the younger, Johane Hache, Agnes Hache, and Alice Hache, sons and daughters of John Hache, 6s. 8d. Residuary legatee and executor: son John Hache. Witnesses: Sir Robert Yong, vicar of Sellyng, William Harte, John Knyght, William Hache, and John Smythe.

My last will regarding my lands. To William Hache, my son my manor of Hodyford and all those parcels of land, viz., Hodyford Broke lying in three parces, a parcel called Horselife, one called Hodyford grove with hemphaw and gardens, a parcel called perce gardyn, one called Stone regg, one called Sandpytts, and other parcel which he there now occupyeth of me, he paying for the same 20 marks, at the rate of 26s. 8d. a year until paid. To my son John Hache my new house with the lands thereto belonging and all my other lands and tenements in Sellyng, he paying therefor to Thomas Hache, son of John Hache late of Sellyng, deceased, 40 marks, as before specified. [Witnesses as above.] Proved 31 December 1534 by the executor, John Hache. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 20, fo. 4.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).

     (an unknown value) (He held the manor of Hodyford, was assessed as "Thomas Hatche the elder" in the hundred of Street, in the subsidy of 1524. The name of his wife has not been found).  His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-F1.

     Children of Thomas14 Hache (1746)XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)" include:


 
i.
Thomas13 (4189)XE "Hache:Thomas  (4189) (-before 12 Dec 1530)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died before 12 Dec 1530.

     (an unknown value) (Not mentioned in his father's will in 1530, and therefore probably deceased before that date. His existence is inferred from the fact that his supposed father, Thomas Hache, is called "Thomas Hatche the elder" in the subsidy of 1524).


 
ii.
Agnes (4188)XE "Hache:Agnes  (4188)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
iii.
Alice (4192)XE "Hache:Alice  (4192)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
iv.
Margaret (4191)XE "Hache:Margaret  (4191)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) died.


 
v.
William (4187)XE "Hache:William  (4187) (circa 1488-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1488.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Succeeded to the manor of Hodyford and other lands under the will of his father. Child: 1. Agnes, mentioned in her grandfather's will in 1530).


 
vi.
John the Elder (1744)XE "Hatch:John the Elder  (1744) (circa 1490-before 1 Nov 1519)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1490 at Selling, Kent, England.  He married Eleanor unknown (1745)XE "unknown:Eleanor  (1745) (circa 1500-Nov 1519)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died before 1 Nov 1519 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.).

     His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-5M.


 5052.
vii.
John the Younger (4190).XE "Hache:John the Younger  (4190) (circa 1495-before 13 Apr 1535)"
11624.  John14 Tylden (4231)XE "Tylden:John  (4231) (after 1461-)" (Robert, #10080) (see #5040).

11728.  John14 Henkle (1644)XE "Henkle:John  (1644) (before 1483-after 1522)" (Robert Henkele, #11296) (see #5648).

11742.  unknown14 Mercer (1659)XE "Mercer:unknown  (1659) (circa 1524-)" (see #5662).

11743.  Mrs.14 Mercer (1660)XE "Mercer:Mrs.  (1660) (circa 1526-)" (see #5663).

11768.  William14 Warren (3057)XE "Warren:William  (3057) (circa 1537-)" (Christopher, #23536) was born circa 1537 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Anne Mable (3058)XE "Mable:Anne  (3058) (circa 1540-)" in 1559 at Headborough, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of William14 Warren (3057)XE "Warren:William  (3057) (circa 1537-)" and Anne Mable (3058)XE "Mable:Anne  (3058) (circa 1540-)" (see #11769) were:
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i.
Christopher13 (3055).XE "Warren:Christopher  (3055) (circa 1560-)"
11769.  Anne14 Mable (3058)XE "Mable:Anne  (3058) (circa 1540-)" (Thomas, #23538) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1540 at Calstocke, Cornwall, England.  She married William Warren (3057)XE "Warren:William  (3057) (circa 1537-)" in 1559 at Headborough, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

11770.  Thomas14 Webb (3059)XE "Webb:Thomas  (3059) (circa 1535-)" was born circa 1535 at Sidnam, Devonshire, England.  He married Mrs. (--?--) (3060)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3060) (circa 1535-)" circa 1555 at Devonshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Thomas14 Webb (3059)XE "Webb:Thomas  (3059) (circa 1535-)" and Mrs. (--?--) (3060)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3060) (circa 1535-)" (see #11771) were:
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i.
Alice13 (3056).XE "Webb:Alice  (3056) (circa 1560-)"
11771.  Mrs.14 (--?--) (3060)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3060) (circa 1535-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1535 at Devonshire, England.  She married Thomas Webb (3059)XE "Webb:Thomas  (3059) (circa 1535-)" circa 1555 at Devonshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

11872.  Ruloff14 de Kype (3930)XE "de Kype:Ruloff  (3930) (circa 1510-13 Mar 1569)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 86.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 13 to 15.) was born circa 1510 (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 13.).  He died on 13 Mar 1569.

     (an unknown value) (Information on the Kip family is found in several sources, including Purple, Contributions to the History of the Kip Family of New York and New Jersey (1872), and Kip, History of the Kip Family in America (1928). Both suggest that this family may be traced to Ruloff DeKype, of Bretagne, France, who was born about 1510-20. He was a warm partizan of Francis Duke of Guise, the furiousand bigoted leader of the Catholic party against the Huguenots, says Purple. On the triumph of the Protestants, which ocurred soon after the general massacre of the inhabitants of Vassey in Champagne, in 1562, he fled to Holland with his three sons, where they lived for several years under an assumed name. In 1569 he returned to France with his son Henri, joined the army of the Duke of Anzou, and fell in battle near Jarmac. He was buried by his son Jean Baptiste, in a small church near Jarmac, where an altar tomb was erected to his memory. The inscription on the tomb mentioned him as RULOFF DE KYPE, ECUYER (this title designating a gentleman who had a right to coat armor), and was surmounted by his arms, with two crests, one a game-cock, the other a demi griffen holding a cross, both of which crests have been used by different branches of the family in this country. Purple, page 6. Apparently the tomb was destroyed during the French Revolution.

The Kip arms are described as follows: "Azure, a chevron or, between two griffins sejant argent, beaked and legged or, in chief, and in base a sinister gauntlet proper. Crest -A demigriffin argent, beaked and legged or, holding in the claws a cross gules. Motto -Vestigia nulla retrorsum").

     Children of Ruloff14 de Kype (3930)XE "de Kype:Ruloff  (3930) (circa 1510-13 Mar 1569)" include:


 
i.
Henri13 (3931)XE "de Kype:Henri  (3931)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America, Page 14.) died.

     (an unknown value) (After his father's death, Henri entered into the army of one of the Italian princes, and died unmarried).


 
ii.
Jean Baptiste (3932)XE "de Kype:Jean Baptiste  (3932)" (Edward R. Hayes, Mary Agnes Hulse Billingsley and her ancestors, Page 86.) (Frederic Ellsworth Kip assited by Margarita Lansing Hawley, History of the Kip Family in America.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Priest in the church of Rome).
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iii.
Ruloff (3929).XE "Kype:Ruloff  (3929) (1544-1596)"
12800.  John14 Lowle (1985)XE "Lowle:John  (1985)" (Thomas, #25600) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) married unknown Wake (1986)XE "Wake:unknown  (1986)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  He died.

     Children of John14 Lowle (1985)XE "Lowle:John  (1985)" and unknown Wake (1986)XE "Wake:unknown  (1986)" (see #12801) were as follows:
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i.
John13 (1983).XE "Lowle:John  (1983) (-1552)"

 
ii.
Roger (2075)XE "Lowle:Roger  (2075)" died.

12801.  unknown14 Wake (1986)XE "Wake:unknown  (1986)" (unknown, #25602) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) married John Lowle (1985)XE "Lowle:John  (1985)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

12802.  Richard14 Leversedge (2072)XE "Leversedge:Richard  (2072) (-circa 1547)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xliv.) died circa 1547.

     (an unknown value) (John Lowle, of the eighth generation, married Apolyn, who was a daughter of Richard Leversedge, who died probably in the year 1547, as his will, according to record was probated July 28, 1547. The family Leversedge lived at Poniberge, in south west England, where John Lowle had his domicile, and there died in the year 1552).

     Children of Richard14 Leversedge (2072)XE "Leversedge:Richard  (2072) (-circa 1547)" include:
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i.
Apolyn13 (1984).XE "Leversedge:Apolyn  (1984)"
12804.  Sir James14 Perceval (1957)XE "Perceval:Sir James  (1957) (1468-23 Jun 1536)" (Sir, #25608) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) was born in 1468.  He married Joan Ken (1958)XE "Ken:Joan  (1958)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.).  He died on 23 Jun 1536 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 313.).

     (an unknown value) (In 1501 A. D. he was made "Knight of the Bath." He was a man of great magnificence and expense).

     Children of Sir James14 Perceval (1957)XE "Perceval:Sir James  (1957) (1468-23 Jun 1536)" and Joan Ken (1958)XE "Ken:Joan  (1958)" (see #12805) were:
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i.
Edmond13 (1955).XE "Perceval:Edmond  (1955) (-21 Sep 1551)"
12805.  Joan14 Ken (1958)XE "Ken:Joan  (1958)" (John, #25610) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) married Sir James Perceval (1957)XE "Perceval:Sir James  (1957) (1468-23 Jun 1536)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.).  She died.

12806.  Roger14 Yorke (5049)XE "Yorke:Roger  (5049) (        -2 Feb 1635)" (Walter, #25612) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) married Eleanor Luttrell (5050)XE "Luttrell:Eleanor  (5050) (say 1495-        )" (see #12807), daughter of Sir Hugh Luttrell (5075)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)" and Margaret Hill (5076)XE "Hill:Margaret  (5076) (        -circa 1508)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died on 2 Feb 1635 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Roger14 Yorke (5049)XE "Yorke:Roger  (5049) (        -2 Feb 1635)" and Eleanor Luttrell (5050)XE "Luttrell:Eleanor  (5050) (say 1495-        )" (see #12807) were as follows:


 
i.
Andrew13 (5056)XE "Yorke:Andrew  (5056) (        -circa 1547)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) died circa 1547 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).


 
ii.
William (5057)XE "Yorke:William  (5057) (        -circa 1547)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) died circa 1547 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).


 
iii.
Philippa (5053)XE "Yorke:Philippa  (5053)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.)XE "Parker:Philippa  (5053)"

XE "Prideaux:Philippa  (5053)" married Richard Parker (5054)XE "Parker:Richard  (5054)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).  She married Roger Prideaux (5055)XE "Prideaux:Roger  (5055)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).  She died by 25 Jan. 1597/8 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).
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iv.
Elizabeth (1956).XE "Yorke:Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)"

XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (1956) (say 1515-8 Sep 1601)"

 
v.
Thomas (5051)XE "Yorke:Thomas  (5051) (circa 1520-        )" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.) was born circa 1520 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).  He married Eleanor Walrond (5052)XE "Walrond:Eleanor  (5052)" on 25 Nov 1554 at Ulfcombe, Devon, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).

12807.  Eleanor14 Luttrell (5050)XE "Luttrell:Eleanor  (5050) (say 1495-        )" (Hugh, #25614) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.)XE "Yorke:Eleanor  (5050) (say 1495-        )" was born say 1495 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She married Roger Yorke (5049)XE "Yorke:Roger  (5049) (        -2 Feb 1635)" (see #12806), son of Walter Yorke (5079)XE "Yorke:Walter  (5079)" and Welthian Yarde (5077)XE "Yarde:Welthian  (5077)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She died by 1531 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

Generation FifteenTC "Generation Fifteen" \l 2
16608.  Henry15 Tilly (3052)XE "Tilly:Henry  (3052) (circa 1465-1520)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Database; CRAA6HB.) was born circa 1465 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  He married Johan (--?--) (3053)XE "(--?--):Johan  (3053) (circa 1469-after 1520)" circa 1488 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1520 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England. Will dated 1 Sep 1520 and is in the probate records of the Archdeaconry Court of Bedford as follows: Will of Henry Tilly, Archdeaconry of Bedford 2:163: In the name of god amen. The yere of o'lord ye (m) cccccxx the first day of the moneth of Septeber, I Henry Tilly of Henlow in the com. of Bed. in the dioc. of Loncoln hole of mynd and remembrance make my testament in this man'. First I bequeth my sowle to the almyghty god o'lady and all the company of hevyn my bodie to be buryyd in the church yeard of Henlow. Item I bequeth my best good for my mortuary after the custome of the towne. Item I bequeth to the high aulter of Henlow ii busshellys barley. Item I bequeth to the gild prest of o'lady in the said church of Henlow i part f()d to syng specially for me and my frends and generally for all the bretherne and sustunance of the same gild xxviii s.iiii d. if thir be none b(r)rotherhed prest then an other honest prest to have the sayd part f()e. Item I bequeth to the children of Thomas Tilly my Sonne ech of them the out see of a cow of x annas. Item I bequeth my place to Johan my wiff terme of her liff after the decease of her I bequeth it to Will Tilly my sonne if they both consent to selle the sayd place I will that Thomas Tilly my sonne by it byfore any other payying asmoch as a nother man will. If William my sonne decease wthout Issue byfore the sayd place be sold then I will it to be sold and hav a prest to pray for my and my frends whill the money lasteth. The Resedu of my goods my detts payd and all thing done I bequeth them to Johan my wiff and Will my sonne whome I make and order myy executors. Also I ordayn Thomas Tilly my sonne supervisor. provyn at Henlow the day and yere aforesayd. Witnes hereof Jhn underwood, Will March, Ser Albert, Bisshopp Worthen. (Proved 4 dec 1520 by William Tilly, executor.)
The name, Tilley, comes from a town in France by that name (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     Children of Henry15 Tilly (3052)XE "Tilly:Henry  (3052) (circa 1465-1520)" and Johan (--?--) (3053)XE "(--?--):Johan  (3053) (circa 1469-after 1520)" (see #16609) both born at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England, were as follows:
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i.
Thomas14 (3049).XE "Tilly (Tylle):Thomas  (3049) (1490-1556)"

 
ii.
William (3054)XE "Tilly:William  (3054) (circa 1495-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1495.  He died.

16609.  Johan15 (--?--) (3053)XE "(--?--):Johan  (3053) (circa 1469-after 1520)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1469 at Henlow, Bedfordshire, England.  She married Henry Tilly (3052)XE "Tilly:Henry  (3052) (circa 1465-1520)" circa 1488 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died after 1520.

19968.  Norman15 Washburn (2825)XE "Washburn:Norman  (2825)" (John, #39936) (, Genser07, page 2.) married Elizabeth Knivton (2826)XE "Knivton:Elizabeth  (2826)" in 1479 (, Genser07, page 2.).  He died.

     Children of Norman15 Washburn (2825)XE "Washburn:Norman  (2825)" and Elizabeth Knivton (2826)XE "Knivton:Elizabeth  (2826)" (see #19969) were as follows:


 
i.
Elizabeth14 (2829)XE "Washburn:Elizabeth  (2829)" (, Genserv07, Page 2.) died.


 
ii.
Eleanor (2827)XE "Washburn:Eleanor  (2827)" (, Genser07, page 2.) died.


 
iii.
Anne (2828)XE "Washburn:Anne  (2828)" (, Genser07, page 2.) died.


 
iv.
Unknown (2832)XE "Washburn:unknown  (2832)" (, Genser07, page 2.) died.


 
v.
Thomas (2830)XE "Washburn:Thomas  (2830)" (, Genser07, page 2.) died.


 
vi.
Unknown (2831)XE "Washburn:unknown  (2831)" (, Genser07, page 2.) died.


 9984.
vii.
John (2822).XE "Washbourne:John  (2822) (circa 1451-6 May 1517)"
19969.  Elizabeth15 Knivton (2826)XE "Knivton:Elizabeth  (2826)" (, Genser07, page 6.) married Norman Washburn (2825)XE "Washburn:Norman  (2825)" in 1479 (, Genser07, page 2.).  She died.

19970.  William15 Mytton Esq. (2918)XE "Mytton:William Esq. (2918)"

XE "Mytton:William Esq.  (2918)" (Richard Mitton, #39940) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) married Margaret Corbet (2919)XE "Corbet:Margaret  (2919)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Weston in Staffordshire, living 1485).

     Children of William15 Mytton Esq. (2918)XE "Mytton:William Esq. (2918)"

XE "Mytton:William Esq.  (2918)" and Margaret Corbet (2919)XE "Corbet:Margaret  (2919)" (see #19971) were as follows:
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i.
Joan14 (2823).XE "Mitton:Joan  (2823)"

 
ii.
John (2920)XE "Mytton:John Esq. (2920) (-Feb 1500)"

XE "Mytton:John Esq.  (2920) (-Feb 1500)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) died in Feb 1500.

19971.  Margaret15 Corbet (2919)XE "Corbet:Margaret  (2919)" (Thomas, #39942) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.) married William Mytton Esq. (2918)XE "Mytton:William Esq. (2918)"

XE "Mytton:William Esq.  (2918)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 89.).  She died.

20160.  John15 Tylden (1763)XE "Tylden:John  (1763) (circa 1406-after 12 Sep 1463)" (Thomas, #40320) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1406 at Marden, England.  He married Joane (Johane) unknown (1764)XE "unknown:Joane (Johane)  (1764) (circa 1412-before 1 Apr 1476)" circa 1429 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died after 12 Sep 1463 at Crotehole, Benenden, Kent, England. The Will of John Tylden Senior of Crotehole in the parish of Benynden, 12 September 1463. To be buried in the churchyard of St. George of Benyden. To the high altar there 3s. 4d. To every light of the church 20d. To the church two candles or torches of the value of 13s. 4d. The residue of all goods, not bequeathed, to wife Johan and sons John, Robert, and Thomas Tylden, in equal portions. My wife and sons John and Robert, executros. [Translated from the Latin.]

I John Telden of Benynden the "elthyr," 14 September 3 Edward IV. Out of all my lands and tenements being in the hands of John Heytherst, Will Nynne, and Symon Tylden, my feofees, Jone my wife shall have 6 marks a year during her life. My feofees shall divide all my lands and tenements to my three sons evenly. Each of my two daughters shall have 20 marks at her marriage or age of twenty-five years. If son Thomas die before he came to lawful age, etc. [No witnesses or probate.] (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. I, fo. 19.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 322.).

     (an unknown value) (Senior, of Crotehole in the parish of Benynden, the testator of 1463, born probably about 1415, died probably shortly after making his will).  His Ancestral File Number is 9C2N-CW.

     Children of John15 Tylden (1763)XE "Tylden:John  (1763) (circa 1406-after 12 Sep 1463)" and Joane (Johane) unknown (1764)XE "unknown:Joane (Johane)  (1764) (circa 1412-before 1 Apr 1476)" (see #20161) were as follows:


 
i.
Alice14 (4229)XE "Tylden:Alice  (4229) (after 1438-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1438.  She died.


 
ii.
Agnes (4230)XE "Tylden:Agnes  (4230) (after 1438-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1438.  She died.


 10080.
iii.
Robert (1761).XE "Tylden:Robert  (1761) (circa 1440-before 11 Jul 1480)"

 
iv.
John (4226)XE "Tylden:John  (4226) (before 1445-after 1481)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born before 1445.  He died after 1481.


 
v.
Thomas (4227)XE "Tylden:Thomas  (4227) (after 1454-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born after 1454.  He married Margaret unknown (4228)XE "unknown:Margaret  (4228)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Made his will in 1479, leaving to wife Margaret, sister Alice, brother John, and the son of brother Robert at 18 years, and to Robert's daughter at marriage).

20161.  Joane (Johane)15 unknown (1764)XE "unknown:Joane (Johane)  (1764) (circa 1412-before 1 Apr 1476)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 329.) was born circa 1412 at Benenden, Kent, England.  She married John Tylden (1763)XE "Tylden:John  (1763) (circa 1406-after 12 Sep 1463)" circa 1429 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died before 1 Apr 1476 at Benenden, Kent, England. The Will of Joane Telden, relict of John Telden late of Benynden, 15 June 1474. To be buried in the chruchyard of Benynden. To the high altar there 8d. To the church two torches. Eight loads of stone twards the making of a chapel to the blessed Mary. To Elizabeth, daughter of John Telden. To my daughters Alice and Agnes at their marriage. To son Thomas (not yet twenty) at his marriage the inner "gestyn" chamber. To him certain live stock. The residue of all my goods to my sons John, Robert, and Thomas. I make John and Thomas executors, and Robert Supervisor. Proved 1 April 1476 by the executors named in the will. (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 3, fo. 1.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 322.).

     (an unknown value) (She may possibly have been a second wife and mother only of Agnes and Thomas).  Her Ancestral File Number is 9C2N-JR.

20208.  Thomas at15 Hecche (1748)XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)" (John, #40416) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.) was born circa 1442.  He married an unknown person (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Was born about 1442, as he was at least twenty-one in 1464, when his father appointed him one of the executors of his will, but was then under twenty-four. No will or administration of his estate has been found. He succeeded to a portion of his father's lands in Sellinge, and dobutless married soon after his father's death, becoming the father of a family of whom only one child is known).  His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-QK.

     Children of Thomas at15 Hecche (1748)XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)" include:
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i.
Thomas14 (1746).XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)"
22410.  Richard15 Daggett (5322)XE "Daggett:Richard  (5322) (circa 1481-        )" (see #11200).

22432.  Simon15 Mayow (1530)XE "Mayow:Simon  (1530) (circa 1450-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) was born circa 1450 at Dinton, Wiltshire, England.  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Simon Mayow, Gent., of Dynton, com. Wilts. The name of Mayhew and the Vineyard are almost synonymous, and it will be interesting as well as instructive to learn something of the family which exercised such a sway over the early destinies of our island. As an English family name it is most frequently met with in the South and West of this island, and few parish registers in the Counties of Hereford, Gloucester, Wilts and Dorset can be opened without presenting us with examples. It is spelt in many ways, varying from the extended form of Mayhowe to that of Mao, and often, as it will frequently appear, clipped down and reduced to May to the loss of its concluding syllable. An early occurrence of the name, and in its extended form, is found in Glover's Roll of Arms, supposed by Sir Harris Nicholas to date from between 1245 and 1250. Herbert le Fitz Mayhewe is there mentioned as bearing "party d'azur & de goulz one trois leonseaux rampant d'or," and Woodward in his History of Wales, page 415, narrates that account to the old copy of S. Davids Annals. The Welsh slew Sir Herbert Fitz-Mahu apparently in 1246, near the castle of Morgan Cam. The same Roll of Armas gives the clue to the origin of the name as a Christian name; in the case of Mahewe de Lovayne, Mayhew de Columbers and Maheu de Redmain. There can be little doubt that it is here a softened form of Matthew. Bardsley in his "English Surnames" mentioned two other instances, Adam fil. Maheu, and Mayhew de Basingbourne, from the Parliamentary Writs. Lower, (Patronymica Brittannica, 219, 221) takes the same view. Shakespeare in King "Lear" Act III, scene 4, says: "The Prince of Darkness is a Gentleman

     Modo he's called and Mahu."

The family has it principal habitats in Cornwall, at Lostwhithiel, Looe, Bray and Morval, to which belonged John Mayow, Fellow of All Souls, Oxford, and that Mayow of Clevyan, in St. Columb Major, who was hanged on a tavern sign-post as a rebel agains the injunctions of Edward VI, concerning religion. Dorsetshire has one family in the Visitation; Gloucestershire, at Kempley, Tetbury, Charfield; Herefordshire, at Tottenham; Northamptonshire, at Holmden, in the Visitation of 1619; Norfolk, at Billockby and Clippesby; Suffolk at Clopton, Helmington and Bedingfield, and in Wiltshire more than one family of the name are found including Mayhew of Dinton in the Visitations of 1565 and 1623, whose pedigree is here inserted

).

     Children of Simon15 Mayow (1530)XE "Mayow:Simon  (1530) (circa 1450-)" include:
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i.
Robert14 (1528).XE "Mayow:Robert  (1528) (1480-1520)"
22434.  John15 Bridmore (1537)XE "Bridmore:John  (1537) (circa 1451-)" (Charles Edward Banks, The History of Martha's Vineyard, Duke County, Massachusetts, Vol. I, page 106.) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1451 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He married Mrs. Bridmore (1669)XE "Bridmore:Mrs.  (1669) (circa 1455-)" circa 1478 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-WG.

     Children of John15 Bridmore (1537)XE "Bridmore:John  (1537) (circa 1451-)" and Mrs. Bridmore (1669)XE "Bridmore:Mrs.  (1669) (circa 1455-)" (see #11331) were:


 5665.
i.
Joan14 (1529).XE "Bridmore:Joan  (1529) (circa 1480-)"
22435.  Mrs.15 Bridmore (1669)XE "Bridmore:Mrs.  (1669) (circa 1455-)" was born circa 1455 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England.  She married John Bridmore (1537)XE "Bridmore:John  (1537) (circa 1451-)" circa 1478 at Tisbury, Wiltshire, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 8VF3-XM.

22464.  Thomas15 Hawes (3972)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3972)" (Thomas, #44928) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Joan Rainsford (3973)XE "Rainsford:Joan  (3973) (-26 Aug 1558)" circa 1500 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).

     (an unknown value) (Perhaps had more children).

     Children of Thomas15 Hawes (3972)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3972)" and Joan Rainsford (3973)XE "Rainsford:Joan  (3973) (-26 Aug 1558)" (see #22465) were as follows:
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i.
Thomas14 (3968).XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3968)"

 
ii.
Elizabeth (3976)XE "Hawes:Elizabeth  (3976)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) died.


 
iii.
Catherine (3977)XE "Hawes:Catherine  (3977)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married William Smallwood (3978)XE "Smallwood:William  (3978)" on 23 Nov 1539 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  She died.


 
iv.
Ann (3979)XE "Hawes:Ann  (3979)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) died.

22465.  Joan15 Rainsford (3973)XE "Rainsford:Joan  (3973) (-26 Aug 1558)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Thomas Hawes (3972)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3972)" circa 1500 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  She died on 26 Aug 1558 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).

     (an unknown value) (The Rainsford (or Raynesford) family were from Lancashire and Oxfordshire. Their original arms were argent, a cross sable. (Visitation of Oxfordshire, Harleian Society, vol. 5, p. 165; Visitation of Warwickshire, p. 48; 3 Miscellanea Genealogica et Heraldica, vol. 2, p. 158.)).

22466.  Nicholas15 Brome (3980)XE "Brome:Nicholas  (3980) (-1517)" (John, #44932) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Katherine Lampeck (3981)XE "Lampeck:Katherine  (3981)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died in 1517.

     (an unknown value) (He was  lord of the manor of Baddesley Clinton. He died in 1517, and was buried in the church there, where there was an inscription to his memory. He was Justice of Peace for several years, and at one time Sheriff of Warwick and Leicestershire. The family was an ancient one in Warwickshire).

     Children of Nicholas15 Brome (3980)XE "Brome:Nicholas  (3980) (-1517)" and Katherine Lampeck (3981)XE "Lampeck:Katherine  (3981)" (see #22467) were as follows:
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i.
Elizabeth14 (3969).XE "Brome:Elizabeth  (3969)"

 
ii.
Constance (4451)XE "Brome:Constance  (4451)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 118, page 254.) married Edward Ferrers (4452).XE "Ferrers:Edward  (4452)"
22467.  Katherine15 Lampeck (3981)XE "Lampeck:Katherine  (3981)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married Nicholas Brome (3980)XE "Brome:Nicholas  (3980) (-1517)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died.

22476.  Robert15 Whitfelde (4111)XE "Whitfelde:Robert  (4111) (-before 2 Mar 1542)" (Myles Whitfeld, #44952) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 410.) married Agnes Atwood (4112)XE "Atwood:Agnes  (4112)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 410.).  He died before 2 Mar 1542. Will of Robert Whitfelde the elder of Wadherst, Sussex, in the year of our Lord God "a Thousande fyve hundreth ffourtye and oon," proved 2 March 1542.

My body to be buried in the churchyard of Wadherst. To the high altar there, for satisfaction of my forgotten tithes, six pence. To the hearse light four pence. The amendment of foot ways. My godchildren. Twenty poor people of Wadherst. Fifty-three shillings four pence to be bestowed at my "owt bearyng" to priests, clerks and poor people. My household stuff to be divided into three parts. One part to Agnes my wife and my best cow, and she to choose her part first. The other two parts to John and Thomas my sons, equally to be divided, and to every of them a cow.  To Agnes my wife my best bed and all things that belong unot it before the household stuff be divided. Daughter Elizabeth. Son Robert. Son Thomas sole executor. The witnesses were Robert, John and Thomas Whitfelde.

                         Spert, 16 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 410.).

     (an unknown value) (Who came out of the North 80 years since and dwelt at Wadhurst).

     Children of Robert15 Whitfelde (4111)XE "Whitfelde:Robert  (4111) (-before 2 Mar 1542)" and Agnes Atwood (4112)XE "Atwood:Agnes  (4112)" (see #22477) were as follows:
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i.
Robert14 (4063).XE "Whitfield:Robert  (4063) (-after 6 Dec 1591)"

 
ii.
John (4113)XE "Whitfelde:John  (4113) (-after 1571)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, pages 410 & 419.) died after 1571.

     (an unknown value) (Of Alstonmore, eld. son. Had Clement, John, Thomas, Herbert).


 
iii.
Elizabeth (4114)XE "Whitfelde:Elizabeth  (4114)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, pages 410 & 419.) married John Edwards (4129)XE "Edwards:John  (4129)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.).  She died.


 
iv.
Thomas (4115)XE "Whitfelde:Thomas  (4115)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, pages 410 & 419.) died.

     (an unknown value) (3d son. Had Mary, Susan, Martha).

22477.  Agnes15 Atwood (4112)XE "Atwood:Agnes  (4112)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) married Robert Whitfelde (4111)XE "Whitfelde:Robert  (4111) (-before 2 Mar 1542)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 410.).  She died.

22520.  William15 Tylle (3044)XE "Tylle:William  (3044) (circa 1515-before 21 Jan 1579)" (Thomas Tilly (Tylle), #8304) (see #4152).

22521.  Agnes15 (--?--) (3045)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (3045) (1519-1 Jun 1582)" (see #4153).

22592.  John15 Henkele (1645)XE "Henkele:John  (1645) (circa 1435-after 1484)" (John Henclyf, #45184) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) was born circa 1435.  He married Margaret (or Marjorie) unknown (1646).XE "unknown:Margaret (or Marjorie)  (1646) (circa 1455-        )"  He died after 1484. The Will of John Henkele of Leneham [Lenham], co. Kent, dated 5 January 1483/4. To be buried in the churchyard of St. Mary's, Lenham. My daughter Anne. My moveable goods to my wife Margaret and my sons John, Robert, and Thomas, in equal parts. Executors: my sons John and Robert. Overseer: John Howlott.

My will regarding my lands and tenements. My son John to have my messuage and garden in Tenham [Teynham], with a marsh called Cleoemarsh, and three acres of land called Cooneer during the life of my wife, with reversion at her death to my son Thomas. To my son Robert my messuage in Leneham, with two acre of land next Lovegrove. My wife Margaret to remain in occupation of my house at Leneham for eight years after my decease. Witnesses: Mr. John Walker, John Howlott, Hugh Kingsland, and John Moor. Proved by the executors 17 March 1483/4. (Archdeaconsry of Canterbury, vol. 3, fo. 495.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 75, page 238.).

     (an unknown value) ((or Henclyf). Will dated 4 Jan - 17 Mar 1483/4).  His Ancestral File Number is 8HV5-N4.

     Children of John15 Henkele (1645)XE "Henkele:John  (1645) (circa 1435-after 1484)" and Margaret (or Marjorie) unknown (1646)XE "unknown:Margaret (or Marjorie)  (1646) (circa 1455-        )" (see #22593) were as follows:


 11296.
i.
Robert14 (2545).XE "Henkele:Robert  (2545) (-30 Dec 1522)"

 
ii.
John (3821)XE "Henkle:John  (3821)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) died.

     (an unknown value) ((or Henkele)).


 
iii.
Anne (3822)XE "Henkele:Anne  (3822)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) died.


 
iv.
Thomas (3823)XE "Henkele:Thomas  (3823)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 7.) died.

22593.  Margaret (or Marjorie)15 unknown (1646)XE "unknown:Margaret (or Marjorie)  (1646) (circa 1455-        )" was born circa 1455.  She married John Henkele (1645).XE "Henkele:John  (1645) (circa 1435-after 1484)"
22976.  Thomas at15 Hecche (1748)XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)" (John, #40416) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.) was born circa 1442.  He married an unknown person (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Was born about 1442, as he was at least twenty-one in 1464, when his father appointed him one of the executors of his will, but was then under twenty-four. No will or administration of his estate has been found. He succeeded to a portion of his father's lands in Sellinge, and dobutless married soon after his father's death, becoming the father of a family of whom only one child is known).  His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-QK.

     Children of Thomas at15 Hecche (1748)XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)" include:


 10104.
i.
Thomas14 (1746).XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)"
22992.  Robert15 Tylden (1761)XE "Tylden:Robert  (1761) (circa 1440-before 11 Jul 1480)" (John, #20160) (see #10080).

22993.  Alice15 unknown (1762)XE "unknown:Alice  (1762) (circa 1445-1479)" (see #10081).

23232.  Thomas at15 Hecche (1748)XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)" (John, #40416) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register.) was born circa 1442.  He married an unknown person (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Was born about 1442, as he was at least twenty-one in 1464, when his father appointed him one of the executors of his will, but was then under twenty-four. No will or administration of his estate has been found. He succeeded to a portion of his father's lands in Sellinge, and dobutless married soon after his father's death, becoming the father of a family of whom only one child is known).  His Ancestral File Number is 8TBN-QK.

     Children of Thomas at15 Hecche (1748)XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)" include:


 10104.
i.
Thomas14 (1746).XE "Hache:Thomas  (1746) (circa 1465-before 31 Dec 1534)"
23248.  Robert15 Tylden (1761)XE "Tylden:Robert  (1761) (circa 1440-before 11 Jul 1480)" (John, #20160) (see #10080).

23249.  Alice15 unknown (1762)XE "unknown:Alice  (1762) (circa 1445-1479)" (see #10081).

23456.  Robert15 Henkele (2545)XE "Henkele:Robert  (2545) (-30 Dec 1522)" (John, #22592) (see #11296).

23457.  Johane15 unknown (3824)XE "unknown:Johane  (3824)" (see #11297).

23536.  Christopher15 Warren (3061)XE "Warren:Christopher  (3061) (circa 1515-)" (John, #47072) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1515 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Mrs. (--?--) (3062)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3062) (circa 1515-)" circa 1535 at Devonshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Christopher15 Warren (3061)XE "Warren:Christopher  (3061) (circa 1515-)" and Mrs. (--?--) (3062)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3062) (circa 1515-)" (see #23537) were:


 11768.
i.
William14 (3057).XE "Warren:William  (3057) (circa 1537-)"
23537.  Mrs.15 (--?--) (3062)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3062) (circa 1515-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1515 at Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Christopher Warren (3061)XE "Warren:Christopher  (3061) (circa 1515-)" circa 1535 at Devonshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

23538.  Thomas15 Mable (3063)XE "Mable:Thomas  (3063) (circa 1520-)" was born circa 1520.  He married Mrs. (--?--) (3064)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3064) (circa 1520-)" circa 1540 at Cornwall, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Thomas15 Mable (3063)XE "Mable:Thomas  (3063) (circa 1520-)" and Mrs. (--?--) (3064)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3064) (circa 1520-)" (see #23539) were:


 11769.
i.
Anne14 (3058).XE "Mable:Anne  (3058) (circa 1540-)"
23539.  Mrs.15 (--?--) (3064)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3064) (circa 1520-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1520 at Calstocke, Cornwall, England.  She married Thomas Mable (3063)XE "Mable:Thomas  (3063) (circa 1520-)" circa 1540 at Cornwall, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

25600.  Thomas15 Lowle (1987)XE "Lowle:Thomas  (1987)" (Richard, #51200) married unknown Mayhouse (1988)XE "Mayhouse:unknown  (1988)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).

     Children of Thomas15 Lowle (1987)XE "Lowle:Thomas  (1987)" and unknown Mayhouse (1988)XE "Mayhouse:unknown  (1988)" (see #25601) were as follows:


 12800.
i.
John14 (1985).XE "Lowle:John  (1985)"

 
ii.
William (2074)XE "Lowle:William  (2074)" died.


 
iii.
Thomas (2076)XE "Lowle:Thomas  (2076)" died.


 
iv.
Roger (2077)XE "Lowle:Roger  (2077)" died.

25601.  unknown15 Mayhouse (1988)XE "Mayhouse:unknown  (1988)" (nn, #51202) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) married Thomas Lowle (1987)XE "Lowle:Thomas  (1987)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

25602.  unknown15 Wake (2073)XE "Wake:unknown  (2073)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) died.

     (an unknown value) (With this family John Lowle of the seventh generation became connected by marriage. The female strain was of descent from a follower of the Conqueror, as shown in the "Battle Abbey Roll." and of repute at the battle of Hastings. There are two stocks of this family, one of presumed Saxon lineage, found to have been in the north of England, and is said to be descent from Hereward, a noted Saxon. Th other stock is Norman, and ins mentioned in Normandy as of Baronial estate early in the eleventh century. The Battle Abbey Roll has in its roster, a member of this family, who afterwards was transplanted at Clevedon, County Somerset, England. This family has enjoyedn the exceptional distinction of being perpetuated "by an unbroken and unquestionable descent in direct male line from the distant time preceding the conquest." The family seems to have had a prolonged situs and domicile at Clevedon, for as late as the year 1621 one of its members -Baldwin Wake of Clevedon, was created a Baronet by the then reigning Prince, King James, as appears in "Battle Abbey Roll." It is hardly probable that the family alliances of James, of the seventh generation was with the Saxon Wakes in the north of England, but on the contrary the probabilities are that his wife was one fo the Norman stock where at Clevedon the two families resided).

     Children of unknown15 Wake (2073)XE "Wake:unknown  (2073)" include:


 12801.
i.
unknown14 (1986).XE "Wake:unknown  (1986)"
25608.  Sir John15 Perceval Lord of Eastbury (1959)XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)"

XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)" (Ralf, #51216) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) was born in 1447.  He married Joan Cheddar or Newton (1960)XE "Cheddar or Newton:Joan  (1960)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.).  He died on 25 Sep 1493.

     (an unknown value) (Also Lord of Weston-in-Gordano).

     Children of Sir John15 Perceval Lord of Eastbury (1959)XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)"

XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)" and Joan Cheddar or Newton (1960)XE "Cheddar or Newton:Joan  (1960)" (see #25609) were:


 12804.
i.
Sir James14 (1957).XE "Perceval:Sir James  (1957) (1468-23 Jun 1536)"
25609.  Joan15 Cheddar or Newton (1960)XE "Cheddar or Newton:Joan  (1960)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) married Sir John Perceval Lord of Eastbury (1959)XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)"

XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.).  She died.

25610.  John15 Ken (2070)XE "Ken:John  (2070)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) died.

     (an unknown value) (of County Somerset).

     Children of John15 Ken (2070)XE "Ken:John  (2070)" include:


 12805.
i.
Joan14 (1958).XE "Ken:Joan  (1958)"
25612.  Walter15 Yorke (5079)XE "Yorke:Walter  (5079)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) married Welthian Yarde (5077)XE "Yarde:Welthian  (5077)" (see #25613) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Walter15 Yorke (5079)XE "Yorke:Walter  (5079)" and Welthian Yarde (5077)XE "Yarde:Welthian  (5077)" (see #25613) were:


 12806.
i.
Roger14 (5049).XE "Yorke:Roger  (5049) (        -2 Feb 1635)"
25613.  Welthian15 Yarde (5077)XE "Yarde:Welthian  (5077)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.)XE "Luttrell:Welthian  (5077)"

XE "Drewe:Welthian  (5077)"

XE "Yorke:Welthian  (5077)" married Thomas Drewe (5078)XE "Drewe:Thomas  (5078)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She married Walter Yorke (5079)XE "Yorke:Walter  (5079)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She married Sir Hugh Luttrell (5075)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)" (see #25614), son of Sir James Luttrell (5073)XE "Luttrell:James (Sir)  (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"

XE "Luttrell:James Sir (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)" and Elizabeth Courtenay (5074),XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)" in Jan 1508 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

25614.  Sir Hugh15 Luttrell (5075)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)" (James, #51228) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) married Margaret Hill (5076)XE "Hill:Margaret  (5076) (        -circa 1508)" (see #25615) in 1487 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He married Welthian Yarde (5077)XE "Yarde:Welthian  (5077)" in Jan 1508 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died on 1 Feb 1521 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Sir Hugh15 Luttrell (5075)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)" and Margaret Hill (5076)XE "Hill:Margaret  (5076) (        -circa 1508)" (see #25615) were:


 12807.
i.
Eleanor14 (5050).XE "Luttrell:Eleanor  (5050) (say 1495-        )"
25615.  Margaret15 Hill (5076)XE "Hill:Margaret  (5076) (        -circa 1508)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.)XE "Luttrell:Margaret  (5076) (        -circa 1508)" married Sir Hugh Luttrell (5075)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)" (see #25614), son of Sir James Luttrell (5073)XE "Luttrell:James (Sir)  (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"

XE "Luttrell:James Sir (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)" and Elizabeth Courtenay (5074),XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)" in 1487 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She died circa 1508 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

Generation SixteenTC "Generation Sixteen" \l 2
39936.  John Overbury16 Washburn (2833)XE "Washburn:John Overbury  (2833)" (Peter Washborn, #79872) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 53.) married Margery Poher Powre (2834)XE "Powre:Margery Poher  (2834)" (, Genser07, page 3.).  He married Jane Musard (2835)XE "Musard:Jane  (2835)" (, Genser07, page 5.).  He died.

     Children of John Overbury16 Washburn (2833)XE "Washburn:John Overbury  (2833)" and Margery Poher Powre (2834)XE "Powre:Margery Poher  (2834)" (see #39937) were as follows:


 19968.
i.
Norman15 (2825).XE "Washburn:Norman  (2825)"

 
ii.
Isolde (2836)XE "Washburn:Isolde  (2836)" (, Genser07, page 5.) died.


 
iii.
John (2837)XE "Washburn:John  (2837)" (, Genser07, page 5.) died.


 
iv.
Elinor (2838)XE "Washburn:Elinor  (2838)" (, Genser07, page 5.) died.

39937.  Margery Poher16 Powre (2834)XE "Powre:Margery Poher  (2834)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 51.) married John Overbury Washburn (2833)XE "Washburn:John Overbury  (2833)" (, Genser07, page 3.).  She died.

39940.  Richard16 Mitton Sir (2923)XE "Mitton:Richard Sir (2923) (-before 26 Oct 1419)"

XE "Mitton:Richard Sir  (2923) (-before 26 Oct 1419)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married Margaret de Peshall (2922)XE "Peshall:Margaret de  (2922) (-5 Aug 1420)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  He died before 26 Oct 1419.

     Children of Richard16 Mitton Sir (2923)XE "Mitton:Richard Sir (2923) (-before 26 Oct 1419)"

XE "Mitton:Richard Sir  (2923) (-before 26 Oct 1419)" and Margaret de Peshall (2922)XE "Peshall:Margaret de  (2922) (-5 Aug 1420)" (see #39941) were:


 19970.
i.
William15 (2918).XE "Mytton:William Esq. (2918)"

XE "Mytton:William Esq.  (2918)"
39941.  Margaret de16 Peshall (2922)XE "Peshall:Margaret de  (2922) (-5 Aug 1420)" (Adam, #79882) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married Richard Mitton Sir (2923)XE "Mitton:Richard Sir (2923) (-before 26 Oct 1419)"

XE "Mitton:Richard Sir  (2923) (-before 26 Oct 1419)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She died on 5 Aug 1420.

     (an unknown value) (Sources: William Salt Society, Historical Collections of Staffordshire I 367; Visit of Shropshire 360).

39942.  Thomas16 Corbet (2921)XE "Corbet:Thomas  (2921)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).

     Children of Thomas16 Corbet (2921)XE "Corbet:Thomas  (2921)" include:


 19971.
i.
Margaret15 (2919).XE "Corbet:Margaret  (2919)"
40320.  Thomas (or John)16 Tylden (1765)XE "Tylden:Thomas (or John)  (1765) (circa 1378-after 1450)" (Thomas, #80640) (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1378 at Marden, England.  He married Jane Johanna Telden (1766)XE "Telden:Jane Johanna  (1766) (circa 1383-after 1463)" circa 1402 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  He died after 1450.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8J4K-D6.

     Children of Thomas (or John)16 Tylden (1765)XE "Tylden:Thomas (or John)  (1765) (circa 1378-after 1450)" and Jane Johanna Telden (1766)XE "Telden:Jane Johanna  (1766) (circa 1383-after 1463)" (see #40321) were:


 20160.
i.
John15 (1763).XE "Tylden:John  (1763) (circa 1406-after 12 Sep 1463)"
40321.  Jane Johanna16 Telden (1766)XE "Telden:Jane Johanna  (1766) (circa 1383-after 1463)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1383 at Benenden, Kent, England.  She married Thomas (or John) Tylden (1765)XE "Tylden:Thomas (or John)  (1765) (circa 1378-after 1450)" circa 1402 at Benenden, Kent, England (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.).  She died after 1463.

     Her Ancestral File Number is 9C2N-9K.

40416.  John at16 Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.) was born circa 1415.  He married Agnes unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.).  He died after 15 Nov 1464 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of John at Hecche of Sellyng next Monks Horton [co. Kent], 15 November 1464. My body to be buried in the churchyard of Selling. To the high altar there 12d. To the light of the Holy Trinity 6d. To the light of the Cross 6d. To the light of the Blessed Virgin 6d. To the light of the Blessed Mary under the High Cross 6d. The residue of all my goods not otherwise bequeathed I give to Agnes my wife and Thomas my son, to dispose of them for the wealth of my soul, my parent's souls, and the souls of all the faithful departed; and I make them my executors.

My testament regarding all my lands. William Knyght, John Parys, William Smyth, John Webbe, and William at Melle are the feoffees of my lands and tenements at Selling, by indenture dated 10 October, 25 Henry VI [1446]. My woods upon my lands at Westwell and Charing to be sold to pay my debts and legacies. My feoffees to permit Agnes my wife, if she remain my widow, to hold all my other lands and tenements until Thomas at hecche, my son, shall come to the age of twenty-four years, when he shall have one third of the lands. My son John to have a third of the lands when he shall come to the age of twenty-four years; and when my son William shall come to the age of twenty-four years, then my feoffees shal make over the lands to my three sons equally, forever, they paying toAgnes their mother 20s. a year during her life. If all my sons die before the age of twenty-four, then my wife Agnes shall have the lands for her life, and after her death they shall be sold and the money shall be employed to provide a chantry priest to sing and pray in the church of Selling for the space of two years, the residue to be expended in charity for the poor of Selling and for the souls of my father and mother and all the faithful departed. If my wife shall marry before the said Thomas, John, and William reach their full ages [i.e., twenty-four years], my feoffees shall allow her 20s. a year and shall use the remainder of the profits of my lands for my sons and for the repair of my messuages and mills. To each of my feoffees for their pains 6s. 8d. [No witnesses and no record of probate.] (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 1, fo. 5.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 245.).

     (an unknown value) (The Hatch family has lived for at least six centuries in the county of Kent, England. The family name is derived from the Anglo-Saxon noun haec, Middle English hacche, later hatch, meaning a gate or wicket. Compare Shakspere's words: "In at the window, or else o'er the hatch." The surname appears in the hundred of Calehill, co. Kent, as early as 1327-8, the form during the fourteenth and fifteenth centuries being atte Hacche. It is clear that the name was originally assumed by a man who dwelt near or at some gate or wicket, such, for instance, as might have been found at the entrance to the village churchyard or to the grounds of the manor house. Many family names had a similar origin durint the reign of Edward I (1272-1307). For example, John at the hacche or at ye hacche is termed John atte Hacche, William at the well is called William atte Well, and Thomas at the stile is termed Thomas allte Stile, etc. This form of name remained in use for about two centuries, until nearly 1500, and then, as a rule, the atte either was dropped or was combined with the following word in such names as Atwell, Atwood, etc.

John of Sellinge, in the hundred of Street, co. Kent, was probably a miller. He was undoubtedly descended from some of the Atte Hacches found in the hundred of Calehill, in the subsidies of 1327-8 and 1372-3. These subsidies do not name the parishes in which the persons assessed lived; but the hundred of Calehill comprised the parishes of Charing, Westwell, Egerton, Little Chart, and Pluckley, as well as parts of several other parishes. Contemporary with the above John at Hecche of Sellinge were several of the name in Charing, probably his brothers and cousins, who left wills not given in this article. The mention of his lands in Westwell and Charing places his origin in that ancient Atte Hacche family, and he is the first of the name in Sellinge or vicinity of whom record has been found. His will names his wife Agnes and three sons).

     Children of John at16 Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" and Agnes unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" (see #40417) were as follows:


 20208.
i.
Thomas at15 (1748).XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)"

 
ii.
John (4185)XE "Hecche:John  (4185) (circa 1444-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1444.  He died.


 
iii.
William (4186)XE "Hecche:William  (4186) (circa 1446-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1446.  He died.

40417.  Agnes16 unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" married John at Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.).  She died after 1464.

44928.  Thomas16 Hawes (3974)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3974)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Ann Greswolde (3975)XE "Greswolde:Ann  (3975)" in 1465 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Probably had more children).

     Children of Thomas16 Hawes (3974)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3974)" and Ann Greswolde (3975)XE "Greswolde:Ann  (3975)" (see #44929) are:


 22464.
i.
Thomas15 (3972).XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3972)"
44929.  Ann16 Greswolde (3975)XE "Greswolde:Ann  (3975)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) married Thomas Hawes (3974)XE "Hawes:Thomas  (3974)" in 1465 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (The Greswoldes sprang from John Greswolde of Kenilworth, Warwickshire. Richard Greswolde died before 1412. Thomas Greswelde about 1438 had custody of the manor of Solibull under the Crown, and from about 1443 to about 1458 was a justice of peace. (Dugdale, History of Warwickshire, p. 696; Visitation of Warwickshire, 1619, p. 61.)).

44932.  John16 Brome (3982)XE "Brome:John  (3982) (-1468)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 65, page 162.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married Beatrix Shirley (3983)XE "Shirley:Beatrix  (3983)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died in 1468.

     (an unknown value) (Was a lawyer, who bought the manor, was Under-treasurer in the Exchequer in the reign of Henry VI. (between 1422 and 1461), and held other offices. He was slain in 1468 on the proch of the White Friar's Church, London, where he was attending mass, by Joh Herthill, steward to the Earl of Warwick, in a quarrel over a mortgage which Brome held against Herthill. He was buried in the White Friars' Church, and there was a Latin epitaph inscribed on his tombstone. (Dugdale, op. cit. pp. 710-13.)).

     Children of John16 Brome (3982)XE "Brome:John  (3982) (-1468)" and Beatrix Shirley (3983)XE "Shirley:Beatrix  (3983)" (see #44933) were:


 22466.
i.
Nicholas15 (3980).XE "Brome:Nicholas  (3980) (-1517)"
44933.  Beatrix16 Shirley (3983)XE "Shirley:Beatrix  (3983)" (Ralph, #89866) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married John Brome (3982)XE "Brome:John  (3982) (-1468)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died.

44952.  Myles16 Whitfeld (4116)XE "Whitfeld:Myles  (4116)" (Richard Whitfield, #89904) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Newton Berry in Alstenmore in Com. Cumberland).

     Children of Myles16 Whitfeld (4116)XE "Whitfeld:Myles  (4116)" include:


 22476.
i.
Robert15 (4111).XE "Whitfelde:Robert  (4111) (-before 2 Mar 1542)"
45040.  Thomas16 Tilly (Tylle) (3049)XE "Tilly (Tylle):Thomas  (3049) (1490-1556)" (Henry Tilly, #16608) (see #8304).

45041.  Margaret16 (--?--) (3050)XE "(--?--):Margaret  (3050) (1490-after 1556)" (see #8305).

45184.  John16 Henclyf (2546)XE "Henclyf:John  (2546) (-after 1464)" (John Henclive, #90368) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) married Jone unknown (2547)XE "unknown:Jone  (2547)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.).  He died after 1464.

     (an unknown value) ("the elder". Left "The Hinckley Chancel" in Tenham Church of Lenham).

     Children of John16 Henclyf (2546)XE "Henclyf:John  (2546) (-after 1464)" and Jone unknown (2547)XE "unknown:Jone  (2547)" (see #45185) were as follows:


 
i.
William15 (3819)XE "Henkele:William  (3819)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) died.


 
ii.
Jone (3820)XE "Henkele:Jone  (3820)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) died.


 22592.
iii.
John (1645).XE "Henkele:John  (1645) (circa 1435-after 1484)"
45185.  Jone16 unknown (2547)XE "unknown:Jone  (2547)" married John Henclyf (2546)XE "Henclyf:John  (2546) (-after 1464)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.).  She died.

45952.  John at16 Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.) was born circa 1415.  He married Agnes unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.).  He died after 15 Nov 1464 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of John at Hecche of Sellyng next Monks Horton [co. Kent], 15 November 1464. My body to be buried in the churchyard of Selling. To the high altar there 12d. To the light of the Holy Trinity 6d. To the light of the Cross 6d. To the light of the Blessed Virgin 6d. To the light of the Blessed Mary under the High Cross 6d. The residue of all my goods not otherwise bequeathed I give to Agnes my wife and Thomas my son, to dispose of them for the wealth of my soul, my parent's souls, and the souls of all the faithful departed; and I make them my executors.

My testament regarding all my lands. William Knyght, John Parys, William Smyth, John Webbe, and William at Melle are the feoffees of my lands and tenements at Selling, by indenture dated 10 October, 25 Henry VI [1446]. My woods upon my lands at Westwell and Charing to be sold to pay my debts and legacies. My feoffees to permit Agnes my wife, if she remain my widow, to hold all my other lands and tenements until Thomas at hecche, my son, shall come to the age of twenty-four years, when he shall have one third of the lands. My son John to have a third of the lands when he shall come to the age of twenty-four years; and when my son William shall come to the age of twenty-four years, then my feoffees shal make over the lands to my three sons equally, forever, they paying toAgnes their mother 20s. a year during her life. If all my sons die before the age of twenty-four, then my wife Agnes shall have the lands for her life, and after her death they shall be sold and the money shall be employed to provide a chantry priest to sing and pray in the church of Selling for the space of two years, the residue to be expended in charity for the poor of Selling and for the souls of my father and mother and all the faithful departed. If my wife shall marry before the said Thomas, John, and William reach their full ages [i.e., twenty-four years], my feoffees shall allow her 20s. a year and shall use the remainder of the profits of my lands for my sons and for the repair of my messuages and mills. To each of my feoffees for their pains 6s. 8d. [No witnesses and no record of probate.] (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 1, fo. 5.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 245.).

     (an unknown value) (The Hatch family has lived for at least six centuries in the county of Kent, England. The family name is derived from the Anglo-Saxon noun haec, Middle English hacche, later hatch, meaning a gate or wicket. Compare Shakspere's words: "In at the window, or else o'er the hatch." The surname appears in the hundred of Calehill, co. Kent, as early as 1327-8, the form during the fourteenth and fifteenth centuries being atte Hacche. It is clear that the name was originally assumed by a man who dwelt near or at some gate or wicket, such, for instance, as might have been found at the entrance to the village churchyard or to the grounds of the manor house. Many family names had a similar origin durint the reign of Edward I (1272-1307). For example, John at the hacche or at ye hacche is termed John atte Hacche, William at the well is called William atte Well, and Thomas at the stile is termed Thomas allte Stile, etc. This form of name remained in use for about two centuries, until nearly 1500, and then, as a rule, the atte either was dropped or was combined with the following word in such names as Atwell, Atwood, etc.

John of Sellinge, in the hundred of Street, co. Kent, was probably a miller. He was undoubtedly descended from some of the Atte Hacches found in the hundred of Calehill, in the subsidies of 1327-8 and 1372-3. These subsidies do not name the parishes in which the persons assessed lived; but the hundred of Calehill comprised the parishes of Charing, Westwell, Egerton, Little Chart, and Pluckley, as well as parts of several other parishes. Contemporary with the above John at Hecche of Sellinge were several of the name in Charing, probably his brothers and cousins, who left wills not given in this article. The mention of his lands in Westwell and Charing places his origin in that ancient Atte Hacche family, and he is the first of the name in Sellinge or vicinity of whom record has been found. His will names his wife Agnes and three sons).

     Children of John at16 Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" and Agnes unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" (see #40417) were as follows:


 20208.
i.
Thomas at15 (1748).XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)"

 
ii.
John (4185)XE "Hecche:John  (4185) (circa 1444-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1444.  He died.


 
iii.
William (4186)XE "Hecche:William  (4186) (circa 1446-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1446.  He died.

45953.  Agnes16 unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" married John at Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.).  She died after 1464.

45984.  John16 Tylden (1763)XE "Tylden:John  (1763) (circa 1406-after 12 Sep 1463)" (Thomas, #40320) (see #20160).

45985.  Joane (Johane)16 unknown (1764)XE "unknown:Joane (Johane)  (1764) (circa 1412-before 1 Apr 1476)" (see #20161).

46464.  John at16 Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.) was born circa 1415.  He married Agnes unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.).  He died after 15 Nov 1464 at Selling, Kent, England. The Will of John at Hecche of Sellyng next Monks Horton [co. Kent], 15 November 1464. My body to be buried in the churchyard of Selling. To the high altar there 12d. To the light of the Holy Trinity 6d. To the light of the Cross 6d. To the light of the Blessed Virgin 6d. To the light of the Blessed Mary under the High Cross 6d. The residue of all my goods not otherwise bequeathed I give to Agnes my wife and Thomas my son, to dispose of them for the wealth of my soul, my parent's souls, and the souls of all the faithful departed; and I make them my executors.

My testament regarding all my lands. William Knyght, John Parys, William Smyth, John Webbe, and William at Melle are the feoffees of my lands and tenements at Selling, by indenture dated 10 October, 25 Henry VI [1446]. My woods upon my lands at Westwell and Charing to be sold to pay my debts and legacies. My feoffees to permit Agnes my wife, if she remain my widow, to hold all my other lands and tenements until Thomas at hecche, my son, shall come to the age of twenty-four years, when he shall have one third of the lands. My son John to have a third of the lands when he shall come to the age of twenty-four years; and when my son William shall come to the age of twenty-four years, then my feoffees shal make over the lands to my three sons equally, forever, they paying toAgnes their mother 20s. a year during her life. If all my sons die before the age of twenty-four, then my wife Agnes shall have the lands for her life, and after her death they shall be sold and the money shall be employed to provide a chantry priest to sing and pray in the church of Selling for the space of two years, the residue to be expended in charity for the poor of Selling and for the souls of my father and mother and all the faithful departed. If my wife shall marry before the said Thomas, John, and William reach their full ages [i.e., twenty-four years], my feoffees shall allow her 20s. a year and shall use the remainder of the profits of my lands for my sons and for the repair of my messuages and mills. To each of my feoffees for their pains 6s. 8d. [No witnesses and no record of probate.] (Archdeaconry of Canterbury, vol. 1, fo. 5.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 245.).

     (an unknown value) (The Hatch family has lived for at least six centuries in the county of Kent, England. The family name is derived from the Anglo-Saxon noun haec, Middle English hacche, later hatch, meaning a gate or wicket. Compare Shakspere's words: "In at the window, or else o'er the hatch." The surname appears in the hundred of Calehill, co. Kent, as early as 1327-8, the form during the fourteenth and fifteenth centuries being atte Hacche. It is clear that the name was originally assumed by a man who dwelt near or at some gate or wicket, such, for instance, as might have been found at the entrance to the village churchyard or to the grounds of the manor house. Many family names had a similar origin durint the reign of Edward I (1272-1307). For example, John at the hacche or at ye hacche is termed John atte Hacche, William at the well is called William atte Well, and Thomas at the stile is termed Thomas allte Stile, etc. This form of name remained in use for about two centuries, until nearly 1500, and then, as a rule, the atte either was dropped or was combined with the following word in such names as Atwell, Atwood, etc.

John of Sellinge, in the hundred of Street, co. Kent, was probably a miller. He was undoubtedly descended from some of the Atte Hacches found in the hundred of Calehill, in the subsidies of 1327-8 and 1372-3. These subsidies do not name the parishes in which the persons assessed lived; but the hundred of Calehill comprised the parishes of Charing, Westwell, Egerton, Little Chart, and Pluckley, as well as parts of several other parishes. Contemporary with the above John at Hecche of Sellinge were several of the name in Charing, probably his brothers and cousins, who left wills not given in this article. The mention of his lands in Westwell and Charing places his origin in that ancient Atte Hacche family, and he is the first of the name in Sellinge or vicinity of whom record has been found. His will names his wife Agnes and three sons).

     Children of John at16 Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" and Agnes unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" (see #40417) were as follows:


 20208.
i.
Thomas at15 (1748).XE "Hecche:Thomas at  (1748) (circa 1442-)"

 
ii.
John (4185)XE "Hecche:John  (4185) (circa 1444-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1444.  He died.


 
iii.
William (4186)XE "Hecche:William  (4186) (circa 1446-)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 253.) was born circa 1446.  He died.

46465.  Agnes16 unknown (4184)XE "unknown:Agnes  (4184) (-after 1464)" married John at Hecche (4183)XE "Hecche:John at  (4183) (circa 1415-after 15 Nov 1464)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 70, page 252.).  She died after 1464.

46496.  John16 Tylden (1763)XE "Tylden:John  (1763) (circa 1406-after 12 Sep 1463)" (Thomas, #40320) (see #20160).

46497.  Joane (Johane)16 unknown (1764)XE "unknown:Joane (Johane)  (1764) (circa 1412-before 1 Apr 1476)" (see #20161).

46912.  John16 Henkele (1645)XE "Henkele:John  (1645) (circa 1435-after 1484)" (John Henclyf, #45184) (see #22592).

46913.  Margaret (or Marjorie)16 unknown (1646)XE "unknown:Margaret (or Marjorie)  (1646) (circa 1455-        )" (see #22593).

47072.  John16 Warren (3065)XE "Warren:John  (3065)" (John, #94144) was born at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Mrs. (--?--) (3066)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3066) (circa 1490-)" circa 1511 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of John16 Warren (3065)XE "Warren:John  (3065)" and Mrs. (--?--) (3066)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3066) (circa 1490-)" (see #47073) were:


 23536.
i.
Christopher15 (3061).XE "Warren:Christopher  (3061) (circa 1515-)"
47073.  Mrs.16 (--?--) (3066)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3066) (circa 1490-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1490 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married John Warren (3065)XE "Warren:John  (3065)" circa 1511 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

51200.  Richard16 Lowle (1989)XE "Lowle:Richard  (1989)" (Walter, #102400) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) married unknown Turner (1990)XE "Turner:unknown  (1990)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Dyed at Yardley in coun. Worster, and is there buried with his cats, ie. Sable, a dexter band couped at the wrist grasping three pointless darts, one in pale and two in saltire agent).

     Children of Richard16 Lowle (1989)XE "Lowle:Richard  (1989)" and unknown Turner (1990)XE "Turner:unknown  (1990)" (see #51201) were as follows:


 25600.
i.
Thomas15 (1987).XE "Lowle:Thomas  (1987)"

 
ii.
Richard (2079)XE "Lowle:Richard  (2079)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Slain at Bremicham (ie. Birmingham) in coun. Warw).

51201.  unknown16 Turner (1990)XE "Turner:unknown  (1990)" married Richard Lowle (1989)XE "Lowle:Richard  (1989)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.).

51202.  nn16 Mayhouse (2078)XE "Mayhouse:nn  (2078)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) died.

     Children of nn16 Mayhouse (2078)XE "Mayhouse:nn  (2078)" include:


 25601.
i.
unknown15 (1988).XE "Mayhouse:unknown  (1988)"
51216.  Ralf16 Perceval Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961)XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)"

XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c  (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)" (Sir Percival, #102432) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) married Joan de Bosco (1962)XE "de Bosco:Joan  (1962)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.).  He died on 9 Apr 1477.

     (an unknown value) ((the elder) This Ralf Perceval had a younger brother also called Ralf, the ancestor of the Earl of Egmont).

     Children of Ralf16 Perceval Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961)XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)"

XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c  (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)" and Joan de Bosco (1962)XE "de Bosco:Joan  (1962)" (see #51217) were:


 25608.
i.
Sir John15 (1959).XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)"

XE "Perceval:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1959) (1447-25 Sep 1493)"
51217.  Joan16 de Bosco (1962)XE "de Bosco:Joan  (1962)" (William unknown, #102434) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) married Ralf Perceval Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961)XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)"

XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c  (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.).  She died.

51228.  Sir James16 Luttrell (5073)XE "Luttrell:James (Sir)  (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"

XE "Luttrell:James Sir (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)" (John, #102456) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) was born circa 1426 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He married Elizabeth Courtenay (5074)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)" (see #51229), daughter of Sir Philip Courtenay (5082)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir)  (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Sir (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)" and Elizabeth Hungerford (5083),XE "Hungerford:Elizabeth  (5083)" circa 1450 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died in Feb 1461 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Sir James16 Luttrell (5073)XE "Luttrell:James (Sir)  (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"

XE "Luttrell:James Sir (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)" and Elizabeth Courtenay (5074)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)" (see #51229) were:


 25614.
i.
Hugh15 (5075).XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5075) (        -1 Feb 1521)"
51229.  Elizabeth16 Courtenay (5074)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)" (Philip, #102458) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.)XE "Luttrell:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)" married Sir James Luttrell (5073)XE "Luttrell:James (Sir)  (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"

XE "Luttrell:James Sir (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)" (see #51228), son of Sir John Luttrell (5071)XE "Luttrell:John (Sir)  (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)"

XE "Luttrell:John Sir (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)" and Margaret Tuchet (5072),XE "Tuchet:Margaret  (5072) (        -1 Jun 1438)" circa 1450 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She died on 1 Sep 1493 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).

Generation SeventeenTC "Generation Seventeen" \l 2
79872.  Peter17 Washborn (3029)XE "Washborn:Peter  (3029)" (John, #159744) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 55.) was born at Little Washborne, Worcester, England.  He married Isolde Hanley (3030)XE "Hanley:Isolde  (3030)" in 1355 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 55.).  He died.

     Children of Peter17 Washborn (3029)XE "Washborn:Peter  (3029)" and Isolde Hanley (3030)XE "Hanley:Isolde  (3030)" (see #79873) were as follows:


 39936.
i.
John Overbury16 (2833).XE "Washburn:John Overbury  (2833)"

 
ii.
William (3031)XE "Washborn:William  (3031)" died.

79873.  Isolde17 Hanley (3030)XE "Hanley:Isolde  (3030)" married Peter Washborn (3029)XE "Washborn:Peter  (3029)" in 1355 (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 55.).  She died.

79882.  Adam de17 Peshall Sir (2924)XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)"

XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir  (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)" (Adam, #159764) married Joyce de Botetourte (2925)XE "Botetourte:Joyce de  (2925) (before 1368-12 Aug 1420)" in 1388 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  He died before 20 Dec 1419.

     (an unknown value) (Inq.p.m. (Inquisition post mortem) Sir Adam Peshall, 20 Dec. 1419, mentions wife Joyce, and dau. Margaret, wife of Richard Mitton. William Salt Society, Historical Collections of Staffordshire XV 312; Miscellanea Genealogica et Heraldica n.s. III 273; History and Genealogy of the Pearsall Family in England and America II 572; The Genealogists' Mgazine (pub. by Soc. of Genealogists, London, Eng.) 21, no. 6, 373-375).

     Children of Adam de17 Peshall Sir (2924)XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)"

XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir  (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)" and Joyce de Botetourte (2925)XE "Botetourte:Joyce de  (2925) (before 1368-12 Aug 1420)" (see #79883) were:


 39941.
i.
Margaret de16 (2922).XE "Peshall:Margaret de  (2922) (-5 Aug 1420)"
79883.  Joyce de17 Botetourte (2925)XE "Botetourte:Joyce de  (2925) (before 1368-12 Aug 1420)" (John, #159766) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) was born before 1368.  She married Baldwin Freville Sir (2926)XE "Freville:Baldwin Sir (2926) (1351-1388)"

XE "Freville:Baldwin Sir  (2926) (1351-1388)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She married Adam de Peshall Sir (2924)XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)"

XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir  (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)" in 1388 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She died on 12 Aug 1420.

80640.  Thomas17 Tylden (1767)XE "Tylden:Thomas  (1767) (circa 1350-)" (Benjamin Smith - Jediah Mayhew, Pedigree Chart.) was born circa 1350.  He died.

     His Ancestral File Number is 8J5T-2N.

     Children of Thomas17 Tylden (1767)XE "Tylden:Thomas  (1767) (circa 1350-)" include:


 40320.
i.
Thomas (or John)16 (1765).XE "Tylden:Thomas (or John)  (1765) (circa 1378-after 1450)"
89866.  Ralph17 Shirley Sir (3984)XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir (3984) (-circa 1413)"

XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir  (3984) (-circa 1413)" (Hugh, #179732) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married Joan Basset (3985)XE "Basset:Joan  (3985)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died circa 1413 (Alice Freeman and Thomas James, Some ancestral lines of Edmond Hawes (Henry James Young, 1984), Page 6.).

     Children of Ralph17 Shirley Sir (3984)XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir (3984) (-circa 1413)"

XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir  (3984) (-circa 1413)" and Joan Basset (3985)XE "Basset:Joan  (3985)" (see #89867) were as follows:


 44933.
i.
Beatrix16 (3983).XE "Shirley:Beatrix  (3983)"

 
ii.
Ralph (3986)XE "Shirley:Ralph  (3986)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married Margaret Staunton (3987)XE "Staunton:Margaret  (3987)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died.

89867.  Joan17 Basset (3985)XE "Basset:Joan  (3985)" married Ralph Shirley Sir (3984)XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir (3984) (-circa 1413)"

XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir  (3984) (-circa 1413)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died.

89904.  Richard17 Whitfield (4117)XE "Whitfield:Richard  (4117)" (Richard, #179808) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Whitfield Hall).

     Children of Richard17 Whitfield (4117)XE "Whitfield:Richard  (4117)" include:


 44952.
i.
Myles16 (4116).XE "Whitfeld:Myles  (4116)"

 
ii.
Robert (4119)XE "Whitfield:Robert  (4119)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Newborough in Co. Staff., had a daughter mar. to Whittington).


 
iii.
John (4120)XE "Whitfield:John  (4120)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

90080.  Henry17 Tilly (3052)XE "Tilly:Henry  (3052) (circa 1465-1520)" (see #16608).

90081.  Johan17 (--?--) (3053)XE "(--?--):Johan  (3053) (circa 1469-after 1520)" (see #16609).

90368.  John17 Henclive Jr. (2548)XE "Henclive:John Jr. (2548)"

XE "Henclive:John Jr.  (2548)" (John, #180736) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) died.

     (an unknown value) ((or Hinclyne)).

     Children of John17 Henclive Jr. (2548)XE "Henclive:John Jr. (2548)"

XE "Henclive:John Jr.  (2548)" include:


 45184.
i.
John16 (2546).XE "Henclyf:John  (2546) (-after 1464)"
91968.  Thomas (or John)17 Tylden (1765)XE "Tylden:Thomas (or John)  (1765) (circa 1378-after 1450)" (Thomas, #80640) (see #40320).

91969.  Jane Johanna17 Telden (1766)XE "Telden:Jane Johanna  (1766) (circa 1383-after 1463)" (see #40321).

92992.  Thomas (or John)17 Tylden (1765)XE "Tylden:Thomas (or John)  (1765) (circa 1378-after 1450)" (Thomas, #80640) (see #40320).

92993.  Jane Johanna17 Telden (1766)XE "Telden:Jane Johanna  (1766) (circa 1383-after 1463)" (see #40321).

93824.  John17 Henclyf (2546)XE "Henclyf:John  (2546) (-after 1464)" (John Henclive, #90368) (see #45184).

93825.  Jone17 unknown (2547)XE "unknown:Jone  (2547)" (see #45185).

94144.  John17 Warren (3067)XE "Warren:John  (3067) (circa 1470-)" (William, #188288) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1470 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Elizabeth (--?--) (3068)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3068) (circa 1475-)" circa 1495 at Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of John17 Warren (3067)XE "Warren:John  (3067) (circa 1470-)" and Elizabeth (--?--) (3068)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3068) (circa 1475-)" (see #94145) were:


 47072.
i.
John16 (3065).XE "Warren:John  (3065)"
94145.  Elizabeth17 (--?--) (3068)XE "(--?--):Elizabeth  (3068) (circa 1475-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1475 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married John Warren (3067)XE "Warren:John  (3067) (circa 1470-)" circa 1495 at Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

102400.  Walter17 Lowle (1991)XE "Lowle:Walter  (1991)" (Raffe, #204800) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.) married unknown Russell (1992)XE "Russell:unknown  (1992)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  He died.

     Children of Walter17 Lowle (1991)XE "Lowle:Walter  (1991)" and unknown Russell (1992)XE "Russell:unknown  (1992)" (see #102401) were:


 51200.
i.
Richard16 (1989).XE "Lowle:Richard  (1989)"
102401.  unknown17 Russell (1992)XE "Russell:unknown  (1992)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xliii.) married Walter Lowle (1991)XE "Lowle:Walter  (1991)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (A wide range is taken by antiquarians in delineating, not from one source, but many, and exhaustively, a compendium of lineage of this family. There are lines in genealogy, which considered on the point of moral excellence, that is, of the qualities inhering, not in rank, or royal favor, give to i its illustrious name. In this regard the family is pre-eminent.

Antiquarians report that the family of Hugh de Rosel, had castle, variously called Rozel-Rosel, and latterly Russell. The ancestry of Hugh de Rozel reaches back, according to the chronicles, through many generations of historic personages. It is said that Hugh de Rosel, sometimes called Rushell, came to Britain from the Lordship of Rosel in the contention in Normandy, with the Conqueror in 1066, and thence acquired estates in Kingston-in-Dorset, and elsewhere other Fiefs. One of this family afterwards was granted the Advowson of a church in Gloucester, Walter, of the fourth generation, espoused Joane, a scion of the family Russell. This is but a brief epitome of the family, and of its illustrious line. The writer has in his possession the line in detail taken from standard sources reaching back to Charlemagne).

102432.  Sir Richard17 Percival Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963)XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963) (-1433)"

XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano  (1963) (-1433)" (Sir Perceval, #204864) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Agnes Arthur (1964)XE "Arthur:Agnes  (1964)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  He died in 1433 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).

     (an unknown value) (Also Lord of Eastbury).

     Children of Sir Richard17 Percival Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963)XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963) (-1433)"

XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano  (1963) (-1433)" and Agnes Arthur (1964)XE "Arthur:Agnes  (1964)" (see #102433) were:


 51216.
i.
Ralf16 (1961).XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)"

XE "Perceval:Ralf Lord of Eastbury, Weston, &c  (1961) (-9 Apr 1477)"
102433.  Agnes17 Arthur (1964)XE "Arthur:Agnes  (1964)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Sir Richard Percival Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963)XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963) (-1433)"

XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano  (1963) (-1433)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (of Clopton-in-Gordano).

102434.  William17 unknown Lord of Tykenham,Somerset County (2069)XE "unknown:William Lord of Tykenham,Somerset County (2069)"

XE "unknown:William Lord of Tykenham,Somerset County  (2069)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvii.) died.

     Children of William17 unknown Lord of Tykenham,Somerset County (2069)XE "unknown:William Lord of Tykenham,Somerset County (2069)"

XE "unknown:William Lord of Tykenham,Somerset County  (2069)" include:


 51217.
i.
Joan16 (1962).XE "de Bosco:Joan  (1962)"
102456.  Sir John17 Luttrell (5071)XE "Luttrell:John (Sir)  (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)"

XE "Luttrell:John Sir (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)" (Hugh, #204912) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) was born circa 1394 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He married Margaret Tuchet (5072)XE "Tuchet:Margaret  (5072) (        -1 Jun 1438)" (see #102457) circa 1422 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died on 30 Jun 1430 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Sir John17 Luttrell (5071)XE "Luttrell:John (Sir)  (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)"

XE "Luttrell:John Sir (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)" and Margaret Tuchet (5072)XE "Tuchet:Margaret  (5072) (        -1 Jun 1438)" (see #102457) were:


 51228.
i.
James16 (5073).XE "Luttrell:James (Sir)  (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"

XE "Luttrell:James Sir (5073) (circa 1426-Feb 1461)"
102457.  Margaret17 Tuchet (5072)XE "Tuchet:Margaret  (5072) (        -1 Jun 1438)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.)XE "Luttrell:Margaret  (5072) (        -1 Jun 1438)" married Sir John Luttrell (5071)XE "Luttrell:John (Sir)  (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)"

XE "Luttrell:John Sir (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)" (see #102456), son of Sir Hugh Luttrell (5069)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)" and Katherine Beaumont (5070),XE "Beaumont:Katherine  (5070) (        -28 Aug 1435)" circa 1422 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She died on 1 Jun 1438 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

102458.  Sir Philip17 Courtenay (5082)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir)  (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Sir (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)" (John, #204916) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) was born circa 1404 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).  He married Elizabeth Hungerford (5083)XE "Hungerford:Elizabeth  (5083)" (see #102459) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).  He died on 16 Dec 1463 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).

     Children of Sir Philip17 Courtenay (5082)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir)  (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Sir (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)" and Elizabeth Hungerford (5083)XE "Hungerford:Elizabeth  (5083)" (see #102459) were:


 51229.
i.
Elizabeth16 (5074).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5074) (        -1 Sep 1493)"
102459.  Elizabeth17 Hungerford (5083)XE "Hungerford:Elizabeth  (5083)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5083)" married Sir Philip Courtenay (5082)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir)  (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Sir (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)" (see #102458), son of Sir John Courtenay (5080)XE "Courtenay:John (Sir)  (5080) (        -circa 1415)"

XE "Courtenay:John Sir (5080) (        -circa 1415)" and Joan Champernoun (5081)XE "Champernoun:Joan  (5081) (        -1419)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).

Generation EighteenTC "Generation Eighteen" \l 2
159744.  John18 Washborn The Lesser (3085)XE "Washborn:John The Lesser (3085)"

XE "Washborn:John The Lesser  (3085)" (Roger Washbourne, #319488) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 57.) married Isabelle Washborn (3086).XE "Washborn:Isabelle  (3086)"  He died.

     He was also known as The Lesser (3085).XE "Washborn:The Lesser  (3085)"
     Children of John18 Washborn The Lesser (3085)XE "Washborn:John The Lesser (3085)"

XE "Washborn:John The Lesser  (3085)" and Isabelle Washborn (3086)XE "Washborn:Isabelle  (3086)" (see #159745) were:


 79872.
i.
Peter17 (3029).XE "Washborn:Peter  (3029)"
159745.  Isabelle18 Washborn (3086)XE "Washborn:Isabelle  (3086)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 57.) married John Washborn The Lesser (3085).XE "Washborn:John The Lesser (3085)"

XE "Washborn:John The Lesser  (3085)"  She died.

159764.  Adam de18 Peshall (2927)XE "Peshall:Adam de  (2927)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married Joan de Eyton (2928)XE "Eyton:Joan de  (2928)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died.

     Children of Adam de18 Peshall (2927)XE "Peshall:Adam de  (2927)" and Joan de Eyton (2928)XE "Eyton:Joan de  (2928)" (see #159765) were:


 79882.
i.
Adam de17 (2924).XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)"

XE "Peshall:Adam de Sir  (2924) (-before 20 Dec 1419)"
159765.  Joan de18 Eyton (2928)XE "Eyton:Joan de  (2928)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married Adam de Peshall (2927)XE "Peshall:Adam de  (2927)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died.

159766.  John de18 Botetourte Lord of Weobley Castle (2929)XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle (2929) (1318-1385)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle  (2929) (1318-1385)" (Thomas, #319532) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.) was born in 1318.  He married Joyce La Zouche de Mortimer (2930)XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:Joyce  (2930) (-after 4 May 1372)" on 31 May 1347 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  He died in 1385.

     (an unknown value) (Member of Parliamente 1342 - 1385. Sources: G.E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols I-XII pt.2 (1910-1959) II 234-235).

     Children of John de18 Botetourte Lord of Weobley Castle (2929)XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle (2929) (1318-1385)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle  (2929) (1318-1385)" and Joyce La Zouche de Mortimer (2930)XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:Joyce  (2930) (-after 4 May 1372)" (see #159767) were:


 79883.
i.
Joyce de17 (2925).XE "Botetourte:Joyce de  (2925) (before 1368-12 Aug 1420)"
159767.  Joyce18 La Zouche de Mortimer (2930)XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:Joyce  (2930) (-after 4 May 1372)" (William, #319534) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married John de Botetourte Lord of Weobley Castle (2929)XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle (2929) (1318-1385)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle  (2929) (1318-1385)" on 31 May 1347 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She died after 4 May 1372.

179732.  Hugh18 Shirley Sir (3988)XE "Shirley:Hugh Sir (3988) (-1403)"

XE "Shirley:Hugh Sir  (3988) (-1403)" (Alice Freeman and Thomas James, Some ancestral lines of Edmond Hawes, Page 6.) married Beatrix de Braose (3989)XE "Braose:Beatrix de  (3989)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died in 1403.

     Children of Hugh18 Shirley Sir (3988)XE "Shirley:Hugh Sir (3988) (-1403)"

XE "Shirley:Hugh Sir  (3988) (-1403)" and Beatrix de Braose (3989)XE "Braose:Beatrix de  (3989)" (see #179733) were:


 89866.
i.
Ralph17 (3984).XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir (3984) (-circa 1413)"

XE "Shirley:Ralph Sir  (3984) (-circa 1413)"
179733.  Beatrix de18 Braose (3989)XE "Braose:Beatrix de  (3989)" (Peter, #359466) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married Hugh Shirley Sir (3988)XE "Shirley:Hugh Sir (3988) (-1403)"

XE "Shirley:Hugh Sir  (3988) (-1403)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died.

179808.  Richard18 Whitfield (4118)XE "Whitfield:Richard  (4118)" (William, #359616) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     Children of Richard18 Whitfield (4118)XE "Whitfield:Richard  (4118)" include:


 89904.
i.
Richard17 (4117).XE "Whitfield:Richard  (4117)"
180736.  John18 Henclive Sr. (2549)XE "Henclive:John Sr. (2549)"

XE "Henclive:John Sr.  (2549)" (John, #361472) (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) died.

     (an unknown value) (John Henclive, Sr. (or Hinclyne). Living in 1346, wife probably of Steneffadshire).  He resided, in 1346 (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.).

     Children of John18 Henclive Sr. (2549)XE "Henclive:John Sr. (2549)"

XE "Henclive:John Sr.  (2549)" include:


 90368.
i.
John17 (2548).XE "Henclive:John Jr. (2548)"

XE "Henclive:John Jr.  (2548)"
183936.  Thomas18 Tylden (1767)XE "Tylden:Thomas  (1767) (circa 1350-)" (see #80640).

185984.  Thomas18 Tylden (1767)XE "Tylden:Thomas  (1767) (circa 1350-)" (see #80640).

187648.  John18 Henclive Jr. (2548)XE "Henclive:John Jr. (2548)"

XE "Henclive:John Jr.  (2548)" (John, #180736) (see #90368).

188288.  William18 Warren (3069)XE "Warren:William  (3069) (circa 1450-1 May 1496)" (Lawrence, #376576) was born circa 1450 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Anne (--?--) (3070)XE "(--?--):Anne  (3070) (circa 1450-)" circa 1470 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 1 May 1496 at Nottingham, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     Children of William18 Warren (3069)XE "Warren:William  (3069) (circa 1450-1 May 1496)" and Anne (--?--) (3070)XE "(--?--):Anne  (3070) (circa 1450-)" (see #188289) were:


 94144.
i.
John17 (3067).XE "Warren:John  (3067) (circa 1470-)"
188289.  Anne18 (--?--) (3070)XE "(--?--):Anne  (3070) (circa 1450-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1450 at Nottingham, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married William Warren (3069)XE "Warren:William  (3069) (circa 1450-1 May 1496)" circa 1470 at Headbury, Ashburton, Devon, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

204800.  Raffe18 Lowle (1993)XE "Lowle:Raffe  (1993)" (James, #409600) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899.) married unknown Hasselrigg (1994)XE "Hasselrigg:unknown  (1994)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  He died.

     Children of Raffe18 Lowle (1993)XE "Lowle:Raffe  (1993)" and unknown Hasselrigg (1994)XE "Hasselrigg:unknown  (1994)" (see #204801) were as follows:


 102400.
i.
Walter17 (1991).XE "Lowle:Walter  (1991)"

 
ii.
Thomas (2080)XE "Lowle:Thomas  (2080)" died.


 
iii.
Anthony (2081)XE "Lowle:Anthony  (2081)" died.


 
iv.
Sabity (2082)XE "Lowle:Sabity  (2082)" died.

204801.  unknown18 Hasselrigg (1994)XE "Hasselrigg:unknown  (1994)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlii.) married Raffe Lowle (1993)XE "Lowle:Raffe  (1993)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Raffe, of the third Lowle generation, had wife of this family. In Burke's "Peerage, Baronatage and Knightage," 57th edition, it is laid down that Haseelrige traces a descent from Robert de Hesilrage, who was one of the knights that accompanied the Conqueror, descended from Simon de Hasilrige of Wotteslade and West Reuton, County Northumberland, to whom Edward I gave the manor of Gethham-Cobet 1290. Elswhere is found the name of Simon de Haselrige having title as Lord in County Northumberland, in England 1290. The racial record of this family is apparently Norman, considered with reference to name, to proximity to Norman surroundings, and to Norman family alliances. Beyond these evidential features, little else is to be said).

204864.  Sir Ralph18 Perceval (1965)XE "Perceval:Sir Ralph  (1965) (1347-4 Jan 1402)" (Sir Percival, #409728) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) was born in 1347.  He married Elizabeth de Wyke (1966)XE "de Wyke:Elizabeth  (1966)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  He died on 4 Jan 1402.

     (an unknown value) (Had great possessions).

     Children of Sir Ralph18 Perceval (1965)XE "Perceval:Sir Ralph  (1965) (1347-4 Jan 1402)" and Elizabeth de Wyke (1966)XE "de Wyke:Elizabeth  (1966)" (see #204865) were:


 102432.
i.
Sir Richard17 (1963).XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano (1963) (-1433)"

XE "Percival:Sir Richard Lord of Weston-in-Gordano  (1963) (-1433)"
204865.  Elizabeth18 de Wyke (1966)XE "de Wyke:Elizabeth  (1966)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Sir Ralph Perceval (1965)XE "Perceval:Sir Ralph  (1965) (1347-4 Jan 1402)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  She died.

204912.  Sir Hugh18 Luttrell (5069)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)" (Andrew, #409824) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) was born circa 1364 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He married Katherine Beaumont (5070)XE "Beaumont:Katherine  (5070) (        -28 Aug 1435)" (see #204913) circa 1384 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died on 24 Mar 1428 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Sir Hugh18 Luttrell (5069)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)" and Katherine Beaumont (5070)XE "Beaumont:Katherine  (5070) (        -28 Aug 1435)" (see #204913) were:


 102456.
i.
John17 (5071).XE "Luttrell:John (Sir)  (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)"

XE "Luttrell:John Sir (5071) (circa 1394-30 Jun 1430)"
204913.  Katherine18 Beaumont (5070)XE "Beaumont:Katherine  (5070) (        -28 Aug 1435)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.)XE "Luttrell:Katherine  (5070) (        -28 Aug 1435)" married Sir Hugh Luttrell (5069)XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)" (see #204912), son of Sir Andrew Luttrell (5068)XE "Luttrell:Andrew (Sir)  (5068) (        -1378)"

XE "Luttrell:Andrew Sir (5068) (        -1378)" and Elizabeth Courtenay (5066),XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)" circa 1384 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She died on 28 Aug 1435 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

204916.  Sir John18 Courtenay (5080)XE "Courtenay:John (Sir)  (5080) (        -circa 1415)"

XE "Courtenay:John Sir (5080) (        -circa 1415)" (Philip, #409832) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.) married Joan Champernoun (5081)XE "Champernoun:Joan  (5081) (        -1419)" (see #204917) circa 1403 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).  He died circa 1415 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).

     Children of Sir John18 Courtenay (5080)XE "Courtenay:John (Sir)  (5080) (        -circa 1415)"

XE "Courtenay:John Sir (5080) (        -circa 1415)" and Joan Champernoun (5081)XE "Champernoun:Joan  (5081) (        -1419)" (see #204917) were:


 102458.
i.
Philip17 (5082).XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir)  (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Sir (5082) (circa 1404-16 Dec 1463)"
204917.  Joan18 Champernoun (5081)XE "Champernoun:Joan  (5081) (        -1419)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.)XE "Courtenay:Joan  (5081) (        -1419)" married Sir John Courtenay (5080)XE "Courtenay:John (Sir)  (5080) (        -circa 1415)"

XE "Courtenay:John Sir (5080) (        -circa 1415)" (see #204916), son of Sir Philip Courtenay Knight (3136)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir) Knight (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Knight Sir (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)" and Ann Margaret Wake (3137),XE "Wake:Ann Margaret  (3137) (circa 1351-1390)" circa 1403 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).  She died in 1419 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 319.).

Generation NineteenTC "Generation Nineteen" \l 2
319488.  Roger 2 de19 Washbourne Sir (3087)XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir (3087) (-1358)"

XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir  (3087) (-1358)" (John, #638976) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet.) married Margaret Washbourne (3088)XE "Washbourne:Margaret  (3088)" in 1316.  He died in 1358.

     Children of Roger 2 de19 Washbourne Sir (3087)XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir (3087) (-1358)"

XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir  (3087) (-1358)" and Margaret Washbourne (3088)XE "Washbourne:Margaret  (3088)" (see #319489) were as follows:


 159744.
i.
John18 (3085).XE "Washborn:John The Lesser (3085)"

XE "Washborn:John The Lesser  (3085)"

 
ii.
John (3089)XE "Washbourne:John The Elder (3089)"

XE "Washbourne:John The Elder  (3089)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 58.) died.

319489.  Margaret19 Washbourne (3088)XE "Washbourne:Margaret  (3088)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 58.) married Roger 2 de Washbourne Sir (3087)XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir (3087) (-1358)"

XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir  (3087) (-1358)" in 1316.  She died.

319532.  Thomas de19 Botetourte (3094)XE "Botetourte:Thomas de  (3094) (-1322)" (John, #639064) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.) married Joan de Somery (3095)XE "Somery:Joan de  (3095) (-after 18 Jan 1327)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.).  He died in 1322.

     (an unknown value) (Perhaps named after Thomas de Clare, d.v.p. 1322 (died during fahter's lifetime).

     Children of Thomas de19 Botetourte (3094)XE "Botetourte:Thomas de  (3094) (-1322)" and Joan de Somery (3095)XE "Somery:Joan de  (3095) (-after 18 Jan 1327)" (see #319533) were:


 159766.
i.
John de18 (2929).XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle (2929) (1318-1385)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord of Weobley Castle  (2929) (1318-1385)"
319533.  Joan de19 Somery (3095)XE "Somery:Joan de  (3095) (-after 18 Jan 1327)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.) married Thomas de Botetourte (3094)XE "Botetourte:Thomas de  (3094) (-1322)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.).  She died after 18 Jan 1327.

319534.  William19 La Zouche de Mortimer Sir (2931)XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir (2931)"

XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir  (2931)" (Robert Mortimer, #639068) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married Alice de Toeni (2932)XE "Toeni:Alice de  (2932) (before 8 Jan 1283-circa 8 Jan 1325)" before 25 Feb 1317 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  He died.

     Children of William19 La Zouche de Mortimer Sir (2931)XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir (2931)"

XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir  (2931)" and Alice de Toeni (2932)XE "Toeni:Alice de  (2932) (before 8 Jan 1283-circa 8 Jan 1325)" (see #319535) were:


 159767.
i.
Joyce18 (2930).XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:Joyce  (2930) (-after 4 May 1372)"
319535.  Alice de19 Toeni (2932)XE "Toeni:Alice de  (2932) (before 8 Jan 1283-circa 8 Jan 1325)" (Ralph, #639070) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) was born before 8 Jan 1283.  She married Thomas de Leyburn (2936)XE "Leyburn:Thomas de  (2936) (-before 30 May 1307)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She married Guy de Beauchamp Earl of Warwick (2937)XE "Beauchamp:Guy de Earl of Warwick (2937)"

XE "Beauchamp:Guy de Earl of Warwick  (2937)" before 28 Feb 1310 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She married William La Zouche de Mortimer Sir (2931)XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir (2931)"

XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir  (2931)" before 25 Feb 1317 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She died circa 8 Jan 1325.

359466.  Peter II de19 Braose Sir (3991)XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir (3991) (-1378)"

XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir  (3991) (-1378)" (Peter, #718932) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334, conflicting information corrected by other source.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) was born at England.  He married Joan de Percy (3990)XE "Percy:Joan de  (3990) (-1370)" at England (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died in 1378 at England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.).

     Children of Peter II de19 Braose Sir (3991)XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir (3991) (-1378)"

XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir  (3991) (-1378)" and Joan de Percy (3990)XE "Percy:Joan de  (3990) (-1370)" (see #359467) were as follows:


 179733.
i.
Beatrix de18 (3989).XE "Braose:Beatrix de  (3989)"

 
ii.
John de (4576)XE "Braose:John de  (4576) (-1426)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, page 324.) married Margery de Nerford (4577).XE "Nerford:Margery de  (4577)"  He married Margaret de Ponynges (4578).XE "Ponynges:Margaret de  (4578) (-1448)"  He died in 1426.


 
iii.
Richard de (4580)XE "Braose:Richard de  (4580)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, page 324.).


 
iv.
Thomas de (4581)XE "Braose:Thomas de  (4581)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, page 324.).


 
v.
Philippa de (4582)XE "Braose:Philippa de  (4582)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, page 324.).

359467.  Joan de19 Percy (3990)XE "Percy:Joan de  (3990) (-1370)" (Nicholas, #718934) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Peter II de Braose Sir (3991)XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir (3991) (-1378)"

XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir  (3991) (-1378)" at England (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died in 1370.

359616.  William19 Whitfield (4121)XE "Whitfield:William  (4121)" (John, #719232) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.).

     Children of William19 Whitfield (4121)XE "Whitfield:William  (4121)" include:


 179808.
i.
Richard18 (4118).XE "Whitfield:Richard  (4118)"
361472.  John de19 Henclive (2550)XE "Henclive:John de  (2550)" (E. Charles Hinckley, Hinckley, Heritage & History, Page 6.) died.

     (an unknown value) (The family name of Hinckley very probably originated from the town of Hinckley, Leicestershire, England, which is 90 miles NW of London near the geographical center of England. The present population is about 40,000. The name probably originated at the time sire names first came into being, about the tenth century. Thus Roger de Hynkeley was Roger of Hinckley, England (the spelling being as it sounded) and thus his sire name and our family name began. This Roger de Hynkeley, had possession of Westgate manor in Kent, of Juliana de Laybourne for life. He died 1363.5. "A possible explanation of the presence of members of the Hinckley family in Kent, may be found the marriage of Lawrence de Hastings with Juliana de Laybourne. The Hastings family had owned property in Hinckley and in the immediate neighborohood for several generations. We thus have established the following significant facts 1) that Juliana possessed manoral rights in Hinckley parish, 2) that she assessed manoral rights in Westgate, Kent, 3) that a man named Hinckley was resident at Westgate, Kent. Does it not seem likely, therefore, that one of the free tenants in Hinckley had rendered service to Juliana and in reward therefore had been granted life-time manorial rights in Westgate".

Concerning the original formation of the name Hinckley, a letter from Hinckley Urban District Council (Ref. 4) states: "Hinckley takes its name from the Saxon period, "ley" being Anglo-Saxon for "meadow". Two interpretations were suggested for the meaning of the prefix. A local historian suggests that "Hinck" was probably the name of a Saxon landowner; another authority concludes that it originates from the Saxon word "hingst", meaning a horse." Thus Hinckley could mean 'a horse meadow'. An explanation given by Alvey A. Adee, an expert in the deriviation of names (Washington, D.C., 19 Aug 1918) is that "The Hinckleys are said to have gone to England with William the Conqueror. Staffordshire seems to have been the principal seat of the family. The name Hinckley is said to come from a variant of "Hench" which means Haunch, and ley, a meadow or track of land. And the meaning of Hink--ley "The Henchmans Meadow, or Tract." This was descriptive of the Barony given to Grentesmenil by Wm. the Conqueror. A Henchman is a man who stands by the Haunch of the Horse of his overlord or master - - hence the Barony of the Henchmans Tract."

As for the early history of Hinckley, England, Ref. 4 states "The substantial beginnings of Hinckley are no doubt to be found in the Anglo-Saxon period, but a case could be made out for a pre Roman origin as Roman period finds have been made close by. It seems certain that Hinckley was a fortified "Borough" being a survival." Also there is a mound remains of a Hinckley Castle described in Scientific American, March 1958, "Norman Castle" pp 42-48. At least the Hinckley Castle mound indicates it was very probably similar to the castle described as an early castle construction before the more permanent store castles were built. Its location was not such to justify a permanent stone structure. Further study of this idea would be very interesting, it seems. 

The origin of the family name was probably from Roger de Hynceley who had Westgate Manor in Kent, from Juliana de Loybourne for life. He died 1363.5. Possible early members of the family who have been found in English History are: Robert de Henclive of Tenham, assessed for the knighting of the Black Prince, 1346.1, the widow of Thomas de Henclive of Tenham, listed as a member of the Cinque Ports, William de Henclive of Tenham, assessed for Knighting of the Black Prince 1348.3, Michael Henclive, member of the Cinque Ports, and later members Richard Henclyf, of Morston (Murston next Sittingbourne) left by will various properties in Tenham including part of Henclyfeld to benefit Murston and Tenham churches, Lawrence Henclyf and John Henclyf appear in the Tenham Manor Court Rolls of the reign of Henry VIII (1435-1509), John Hinckley, in 1660 (who sold land in Tenham & bought it at Lynsted).

The early family line in Kent Co., England follows. The family line has not been fully established before Robert (his will was dated 1522) hence other data may be needed and corrections made when proof is found. Also note the various early spellings of the family name, Hinckley, England are alike; as a check of the English Map shows).

     Children of John de19 Henclive (2550)XE "Henclive:John de  (2550)" include:


 180736.
i.
John18 (2549).XE "Henclive:John Sr. (2549)"

XE "Henclive:John Sr.  (2549)"
375296.  John19 Henclive Sr. (2549)XE "Henclive:John Sr. (2549)"

XE "Henclive:John Sr.  (2549)" (John, #361472) (see #180736).

376576.  Lawrence19 Warren Sir (3071)XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir (3071) (circa 1425-)"

XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir  (3071) (circa 1425-)" (John, #753152) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1425 at Nottingham, England.  He married Isabel Leigh (3072)XE "Leigh:Isabel  (3072) (circa 1425-)" circa 1450 at Nottingham, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Lawrence19 Warren Sir (3071)XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir (3071) (circa 1425-)"

XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir  (3071) (circa 1425-)" and Isabel Leigh (3072)XE "Leigh:Isabel  (3072) (circa 1425-)" (see #376577) were:


 188288.
i.
William18 (3069).XE "Warren:William  (3069) (circa 1450-1 May 1496)"
376577.  Isabel19 Leigh (3072)XE "Leigh:Isabel  (3072) (circa 1425-)" (Robert, #753154) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1425 at Nottingham, England.  She married Lawrence Warren Sir (3071)XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir (3071) (circa 1425-)"

XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir  (3071) (circa 1425-)" circa 1450 at Nottingham, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

409600.  James19 Lowle (1995)XE "Lowle:James  (1995)" (William, #819200) married unknown Baskerville (1996)XE "Baskerville:unknown  (1996)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).

     Children of James19 Lowle (1995)XE "Lowle:James  (1995)" and unknown Baskerville (1996)XE "Baskerville:unknown  (1996)" (see #409601) were as follows:


 204800.
i.
Raffe18 (1993).XE "Lowle:Raffe  (1993)"

 
ii.
George (2083)XE "Lowle:George  (2083)" died.


 
iii.
Edmond (2084)XE "Lowle:Edmond  (2084)" died.


 
iv.
Andrew (2085)XE "Lowle:Andrew  (2085)" died.

409601.  unknown19 Baskerville (1996)XE "Baskerville:unknown  (1996)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlii.) married James Lowle (1995)XE "Lowle:James  (1995)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (James Lowle of the second generation had to wife a member of this family. It is given in the antiquarian directories, that this family has direct descent from Charlemagne. They lived after the conquest near Yardley, in County Worcester, and are recorded as giving grant of lands of great value to the Abbey of Gloucester, not far from Yardley, and were likewise benefactors of St. Peter's Abbey in Herefordshire. The family held for more that two centuries fhe Fief of Martel, through a connected line of descent of the same stock. It is remarkably well kept lineage, and its details may be seen in the volumes of the "Battle Abbey Roll").

409728.  Sir Walter19 Percival Lord of Eastbury (1967)XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury (1967) (1325-1349)"

XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury  (1967) (1325-1349)" (Sir, #819456) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) was born in 1325.  He married Alice Acton (1968)XE "Acton:Alice  (1968)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  He died in 1349.

     (an unknown value) (Also Lord of Weston-in-Gordano, in County Somerset. In the twenty-first year of his age he was knighted on the battle field of Cressy, by his king. He died in 1349 in the twenty-fourth year of his age).

     Children of Sir Walter19 Percival Lord of Eastbury (1967)XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury (1967) (1325-1349)"

XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury  (1967) (1325-1349)" and Alice Acton (1968)XE "Acton:Alice  (1968)" (see #409729) were:


 204864.
i.
Sir Ralph18 (1965).XE "Perceval:Sir Ralph  (1965) (1347-4 Jan 1402)"
409729.  Alice19 Acton (1968)XE "Acton:Alice  (1968)" married Sir Walter Percival Lord of Eastbury (1967)XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury (1967) (1325-1349)"

XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury  (1967) (1325-1349)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).

409824.  Sir Andrew19 Luttrell (5068)XE "Luttrell:Andrew (Sir)  (5068) (        -1378)"

XE "Luttrell:Andrew Sir (5068) (        -1378)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) married Elizabeth Courtenay (5066)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)" (see #409825), daughter of Hugh de Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" and Margaret de Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  He died in 1378 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

     Children of Sir Andrew19 Luttrell (5068)XE "Luttrell:Andrew (Sir)  (5068) (        -1378)"

XE "Luttrell:Andrew Sir (5068) (        -1378)" and Elizabeth Courtenay (5066)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)" (see #409825) were:


 204912.
i.
Hugh18 (5069).XE "Luttrell:Hugh (Sir)  (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)"

XE "Luttrell:Hugh Sir (5069) (circa 1364-24 Mar 1428)"
409825.  Elizabeth19 Courtenay (5066)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)" (Hugh, #819650) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.)XE "Luttrell:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)" married Sir Andrew Luttrell (5068)XE "Luttrell:Andrew (Sir)  (5068) (        -1378)"

XE "Luttrell:Andrew Sir (5068) (        -1378)" (see #409824) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She married Sir John de Vere (5067)XE "de Vere:John (Sir)  (5067) (        -23 Jun 1350)"

XE "de Vere:John Sir (5067) (        -23 Jun 1350)" circa Jul 1341 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).  She died on 7 Aug 1395 at Bermondsey, Surrey, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 317.).

409832.  Sir Philip19 Courtenay Knight (3136)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir) Knight (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Knight Sir (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)" (Hugh, #819650) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1340 at Exeter, Devonshire, England.  He married Ann Margaret Wake (3137)XE "Wake:Ann Margaret  (3137) (circa 1351-1390)" circa 1378 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).  He died on 29 Jul 1406 at Powderham, Devonshire, England.

     (an unknown value) (Lord Lieutenant of Ireland, 1383).

     Children of Sir Philip19 Courtenay Knight (3136)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir) Knight (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Knight Sir (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)" and Ann Margaret Wake (3137)XE "Wake:Ann Margaret  (3137) (circa 1351-1390)" (see #409833) were:


 204916.
i.
John18 (5080).XE "Courtenay:John (Sir)  (5080) (        -circa 1415)"

XE "Courtenay:John Sir (5080) (        -circa 1415)"
409833.  Ann Margaret19 Wake (3137)XE "Wake:Ann Margaret  (3137) (circa 1351-1390)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.)XE "Courtenay:Ann Margaret  (3137) (circa 1351-1390)" was born circa 1351 at Blisworth, Northamptonshire, Northamptonshire, England.  She married Sir Philip Courtenay Knight (3136)XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir) Knight (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Knight Sir (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)" circa 1378 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 318.).  She died in 1390.

Generation TwentyTC "Generation Twenty" \l 2
638976.  John de Dufford20 Washbourne (3090)XE "Washbourne:John de Dufford  (3090) (1280-1318)" (Roger Washborn, #1277952) (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 28.) was born in 1280.  He married Isabella Casey (3091)XE "Casey:Isabella  (3091)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 28.).  He died in 1318.

     Children of John de Dufford20 Washbourne (3090)XE "Washbourne:John de Dufford  (3090) (1280-1318)" and Isabella Casey (3091)XE "Casey:Isabella  (3091)" (see #638977) were:


 319488.
i.
Roger 2 de19 (3087).XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir (3087) (-1358)"

XE "Washbourne:Roger 2 de Sir  (3087) (-1358)"
638977.  Isabella20 Casey (3091)XE "Casey:Isabella  (3091)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 29.) married John de Dufford Washbourne (3090)XE "Washbourne:John de Dufford  (3090) (1280-1318)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 28.).  She died.

639064.  John de20 Botetourte Lord (3096)XE "Botetourte:John de Lord (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord  (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)" (Edward England, #1278128) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 179.) married Maud Fitz Thomas (3097)XE "Fitz Thomas:Maud  (3097) (-after 28 May 1329)" in 1286 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.).  He died on 25 Nov 1324.

     (an unknown value) (Said to be son of King Edward I. First Lord Botetourte, admiral, governor of Famlingham Castle 1304, Member of Parliament 1305-1324. For evidence that John de Botetourte was an illeg. son of King Edward I, see Hailes Abbey Chronicle. The family tree of Botetourte there given was considered in this case to be completely reliable by Mr. H.C. Richardson, the authority on this line, and agreed to by Sir Anthony Wagner, College of Arms. Though questioned by some, due to an apparent erasure in the parchment, the Librarian, in whose care it resides, stated (and still does) that there are several other erasures and corrections, all apparently contemporary with the preparation of the original document and apparent corrections made at that time by the author which do not affect this identification. For alternative (still not proven) parentage, see TAG 63:145-153. For a possible identification of his mother if he was a child of Edward I, see NEHGR 120:259).

     Children of John de20 Botetourte Lord (3096)XE "Botetourte:John de Lord (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord  (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)" and Maud Fitz Thomas (3097)XE "Fitz Thomas:Maud  (3097) (-after 28 May 1329)" (see #639065) were:


 319532.
i.
Thomas de19 (3094).XE "Botetourte:Thomas de  (3094) (-1322)"
639065.  Maud20 Fitz Thomas (3097)XE "Fitz Thomas:Maud  (3097) (-after 28 May 1329)" (Thomas fitz Otes, #1278130) married John de Botetourte Lord (3096)XE "Botetourte:John de Lord (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord  (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)" in 1286 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 180.).  She died after 28 May 1329.

639068.  Robert de20 Mortimer (2933)XE "Mortimer:Robert de  (2933) (-7 Apr 1287)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) died on 7 Apr 1287.

     (an unknown value) (Of Richard's Castle, co. Hereford).

     Children of Robert de20 Mortimer (2933)XE "Mortimer:Robert de  (2933) (-7 Apr 1287)" and Joyce La Zouche (2934)XE "La Zouche:Joyce  (2934) (-before 13 Mar 1290)" (see #639069) were:


 319534.
i.
William19 (2931).XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir (2931)"

XE "La Zouche de Mortimer:William Sir  (2931)"
639069.  Joyce20 La Zouche (2934)XE "La Zouche:Joyce  (2934) (-before 13 Mar 1290)" (William, #1278138) died before 13 Mar 1290.  Her body was interred on 13 Mar 1290 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).

639070.  Ralph VII de20 Toeni Lord of Flamstead (2938)XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead  (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)" (Roger, #1278140) was born in 1255.  He married Mary (--?--) (2939)XE "(--?--):Mary  (2939) (-after 1283)" in 1276 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  He died before 29 Jul 1295 at Gascony, Lancs, England.

     (an unknown value) (of Flamstead, co. Hertford. Sources: G.E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols. I-XII pt. 2 (1910-1959) XII (1) 773; Sanders, English Baronies, a Study of Their Origin and Descent, 1086-1327, 203 pp. (1960); The Beauchamp Cartulary Charters).

     Children of Ralph VII de20 Toeni Lord of Flamstead (2938)XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead  (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)" and Mary (--?--) (2939)XE "(--?--):Mary  (2939) (-after 1283)" (see #639071) were:


 319535.
i.
Alice de19 (2932).XE "Toeni:Alice de  (2932) (before 8 Jan 1283-circa 8 Jan 1325)"
639071.  Mary20 (--?--) (2939)XE "(--?--):Mary  (2939) (-after 1283)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) married Ralph VII de Toeni Lord of Flamstead (2938)XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead  (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)" in 1276 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  She died after 1283.

     (an unknown value) (prob. a Scotswoman).

718932.  Peter I de20 Braose (4297)XE "Braose:Peter I de  (4297) (-1312)" (William, #1437864) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, page 315 to 324.) married Agnes (--?--) (4298)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (4298) (-circa 1333)" at England.  He died in 1312 at England.

     Children of Peter I de20 Braose (4297)XE "Braose:Peter I de  (4297) (-1312)" and Agnes (--?--) (4298)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (4298) (-circa 1333)" (see #718933) were as follows:


 359466.
i.
Peter II de19 (3991).XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir (3991) (-1378)"

XE "Braose:Peter II de Sir  (3991) (-1378)"

 
ii.
Mary de (4300)XE "Braose:Mary de  (4300) (-1363)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Ralph de Cobham (4302).XE "Cobham:Ralph de  (4302) (-1326)"  She died in 1363.


 
iii.
John de (4303)XE "Braose:John de  (4303) (-1343)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Margaret de Trehampton (4304).XE "Trehampton:Margaret de  (4304) (-1354)"  He died in 1343.


 
iv.
Thomas I de (4299)XE "Braose:Thomas I de  (4299) (circa 1301-1362)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) was born circa 1301.  He married Beatrice de Mortimer (4301).XE "Mortimer:Beatrice de  (4301) (-1383)"  He died in 1362.

718933.  Agnes20 (--?--) (4298)XE "(--?--):Agnes  (4298) (-circa 1333)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) was born at England.  She married Peter I de Braose (4297)XE "Braose:Peter I de  (4297) (-1312)" at England.  She married Henry Huse (4308).XE "Huse:Henry  (4308) (-1289)"  She died circa 1333 at England.

718934.  Nicholas de20 Percy (4359)XE "Percy:Nicholas de  (4359) (-1324)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Joan Foliot (4360).XE "Foliot:Joan  (4360) (-1349)"  He died in 1324.

     Children of Nicholas de20 Percy (4359)XE "Percy:Nicholas de  (4359) (-1324)" and Joan Foliot (4360)XE "Foliot:Joan  (4360) (-1349)" (see #718935) were as follows:


 359467.
i.
Joan de19 (3990).XE "Percy:Joan de  (3990) (-1370)"

 
ii.
Isabel de (4361)XE "Percy:Isabel de  (4361)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.).

718935.  Joan20 Foliot (4360)XE "Foliot:Joan  (4360) (-1349)" (Walter, #1437870) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Nicholas de Percy (4359).XE "Percy:Nicholas de  (4359) (-1324)"  She married John Mautravers (4584).XE "Mautravers:John  (4584) (-1341)"  She married Alexander Venables (4585).XE "Venables:Alexander  (4585)"  She died in 1349.

719232.  John20 Whitfield (4122)XE "Whitfield:John  (4122)" (William, #1438464) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     Children of John20 Whitfield (4122)XE "Whitfield:John  (4122)" include:


 359616.
i.
William19 (4121).XE "Whitfield:William  (4121)"
750592.  John de20 Henclive (2550)XE "Henclive:John de  (2550)" (see #361472).

753152.  John20 Warren (3075)XE "Warren:John  (3075) (circa 1400-)" (Lawrence Warenne, #1506304) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1400 at Nottinghamshire, England.  He married Isabel Stanley (3076)XE "Stanley:Isabel  (3076) (circa 1400-)" circa 1425 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (The only proof found that he is the son of Sir Lawrence was in the Mayflower Gedcom, and no sources were mentioned.).

     Children of John20 Warren (3075)XE "Warren:John  (3075) (circa 1400-)" and Isabel Stanley (3076)XE "Stanley:Isabel  (3076) (circa 1400-)" (see #753153) were:


 376576.
i.
Lawrence19 (3071).XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir (3071) (circa 1425-)"

XE "Warren:Lawrence Sir  (3071) (circa 1425-)"
753153.  Isabel20 Stanley (3076)XE "Stanley:Isabel  (3076) (circa 1400-)" (John, #1506306) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1400 at Nottinghamshire, England.  She married John Warren (3075)XE "Warren:John  (3075) (circa 1400-)" circa 1425 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

753154.  Robert20 Leigh Sir Knight (3073)XE "Leigh:Robert Sir Knight (3073) (circa 1400-)"

XE "Leigh:Robert Sir Knight  (3073) (circa 1400-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1400 at Nottingham, England.  He married Mrs. (--?--) (3074)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3074) (circa 1400-)" in 1420 at Nottingham, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Robert20 Leigh Sir Knight (3073)XE "Leigh:Robert Sir Knight (3073) (circa 1400-)"

XE "Leigh:Robert Sir Knight  (3073) (circa 1400-)" and Mrs. (--?--) (3074)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3074) (circa 1400-)" (see #753155) were:


 376577.
i.
Isabel19 (3072).XE "Leigh:Isabel  (3072) (circa 1425-)"
753155.  Mrs.20 (--?--) (3074)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3074) (circa 1400-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1400 at Nottingham, England.  She married Robert Leigh Sir Knight (3073)XE "Leigh:Robert Sir Knight (3073) (circa 1400-)"

XE "Leigh:Robert Sir Knight  (3073) (circa 1400-)" in 1420 at Nottingham, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

819200.  William20 Lowle (1997)XE "Lowle:William  (1997) (circa 1288-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxvi.) was born circa 1288 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxvi.).  He married unknown Lytleton (1998)XE "Lytleton:unknown  (1998)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (It is desirable to know as nearly as possible the period in which William of the first given English generation lived, as upon that fact considerable light is thrown upon the enquiry concerning his racial extraction. There is no specifi date accessible of his birth, death, either from the foregoing table or from any record or mortuary source. He is the registered root, so fas as English annals disclose, of the Lowle family. By strict rule of longevity, with William as head link, and John of the eighth generation (who died March of the year 1552), as an end link the birth of William would have occurred in the year 1288. There is persuasive evidence of an earlier date. The two generations succeeding John, number 113 years, that is, to the death of Percival in the year 1665. The fecundity of the family as shown on the table and its well-known virility, lead to a conclusion that William was born, more probably, early in the 13th century.

As indicative of race, consideration should be furthermore given to his family connections, and to the political and social conditions existing at this period, as also to the spirit and temper of the times, for, excepting his family connections, little else of direct personal acquaintance with him is procurable. William Lowle, without doubt, was born at Yardley, in County Worcester, England, and there lived, and was there buried. The place of his interment is not known. It was a custom then, and one still followed in many places, of depositing remains in vaults beneath or contiguous to churches. The parish clerk at Yardley writes of date May, 1898: "Forty years ago the slabs covering the vaults inside the church were overlaid with tiles and no record made of them." But it should not be entertained that the social and racial estate of William Lowle has for this reason gone out in entire obscurity. Within a few miles of Yardley lived a noble Norman family, the Lyttletons; with this family William became connected by marriage.

There is little to add to a portrature of William's family connections and local surroundings. The topic of race seems, however, to demand furhtermore a suggestion of the spirit and temper, and political aspect of the times wherein William lived.

Whether William Lowle was descended from savage Saxon progenitors on the banks of the Avon or Severn, or from the Marauders from Normandy, is matter more of curiosity than to enkindle enthusiasm. It is here a question of truth, rather than sentiment. He lived at Yardley at a time when Norman supremacy, and Saxon subserviency had reached its acme. So great was the degradation to which the Saxons had been reduced, it may well be expressed in the language of a writer concerning that period: "Little was left to the Saxon but the air theay breathed." On the other hand, the Normans were a nation or race of knights errant, carrying their fortunes at the point of the lance, having an uncontrollable passion for conquest and power; they were skilled in statecraft; their women were deft in the fine arts, and they brought to England a refinement -a moral seriousness -a shrewd humor -the hatred of a lie. Their invasion found the Saxon had made no perceptible advance of civility and skill from the state of their savage progenitors on the banks of the Elbe. 

From the invasion of England by the Normans in 1066, to William Lowle of 1220, intervenes a hiatus of his family record. One at least, and probably two, of the name were adherents, from Normandy, of the standard of the conqueror, as shown by the "Battle Abbey Roll." Whatever of family changes occurred during this hiatus of some four or five generations is matter of conjecture; we know of no family alliances during that period with the Welsh. It is hardly inferable that because our ancestors lived in southwest England, known then as Wales, and upon which territory, also, so many other Norman families had engrafted themselves and become transplanted as a result of the conquest, that therefore they did not retain the purity of their Norman descent; yet there is a possibility of an intermixture of Welsh blood during these generations; and for reasons hitherto, and here given, there exists at least an equal measure of improbability.  We do know that family alliances occurred between the dominant Normans, who, consequent upon the conquest, had practically usurped the territory then known as Wales.

It will be especially pleasing to the feminine stems of the family Lowell to know how much of historic interest attaches to the maternal branches of our transatlantic ancestry).

     Children of William20 Lowle (1997)XE "Lowle:William  (1997) (circa 1288-)" and unknown Lytleton (1998)XE "Lytleton:unknown  (1998)" (see #819201) were as follows:


 409600.
i.
James19 (1995).XE "Lowle:James  (1995)"

 
ii.
Andrew (2086)XE "Lowle:Andrew  (2086)" died.


 
iii.
Samuell (2087)XE "Lowle:Samuell  (2087)" died.

819201.  unknown20 Lytleton (1998)XE "Lytleton:unknown  (1998)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xli.) married William Lowle (1997)XE "Lowle:William  (1997) (circa 1288-)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xxxiv.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (In a work entitled "The Norman People" of 1874, it is stated in substance that among the cavaliers who came to England 1066 with the Conqueror, were three of the family Westcote, Reginald, Hugh and Godfried. That they were of French descent and ennobled birth. Subsequently, Reginald held a number of Lordships in England, and through this strain was had Thomas Westcote in Marwood, who married the heiress of Lyttleton of County Worcester, England, the name Lyttleton being adopted in comliment to her estate, and of this alliance was born Thomas de Lyttleton, to whom reference has been made early in this chapter. William Lowle, as we have seen, espoused a member of this family Lyttleton).

819456.  Sir John20 Percival Lord of Eastbury (1969)XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1969) (-1339)"

XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1969) (-1339)" (Roger Perceval, #1638912) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Millicent de Sancto Mauro (1970)XE "de Sancto Mauro:Millicent  (1970)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  He died in 1339.

     (an unknown value) (In 1300 A. D. served for the County of Warwick, in the Parliament held at Lincoln: -in 1302. Knight of the Shire in the County of Somerset; in 1324. Knight of the Shire in the County of Warwick. He died 1339).

     Children of Sir John20 Percival Lord of Eastbury (1969)XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1969) (-1339)"

XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1969) (-1339)" and Millicent de Sancto Mauro (1970)XE "de Sancto Mauro:Millicent  (1970)" (see #819457) were:


 409728.
i.
Sir Walter19 (1967).XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury (1967) (1325-1349)"

XE "Percival:Sir Walter Lord of Eastbury  (1967) (1325-1349)"
819457.  Millicent20 de Sancto Mauro (1970)XE "de Sancto Mauro:Millicent  (1970)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Sir John Percival Lord of Eastbury (1969)XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1969) (-1339)"

XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1969) (-1339)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (heir of Kingston-Seymour).

819650.  Hugh de20 Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" (Hugh, #1639300) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) was born on 12 Jul 1303.  He married Margaret de Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" on 11 Aug 1325 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  He died on 2 May 1377 at age 73.

     (an unknown value) (2nd Earl of Devon).

     Children of Hugh de20 Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" and Margaret de Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" (see #819651) were as follows:


 409825.
i.
Elizabeth19 (5066).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)"

 
ii.
Edward (5064)XE "Courtenay:Edward (Sir)  (5064) (circa 1331-circa 1370)"

XE "Courtenay:Edward Sir (5064) (circa 1331-circa 1370)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.) was born circa 1331 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.).  He married Emmeline Dauney (5065)XE "Dauney:Emmeline  (5065) (        -1371)" circa 1346 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.).  He died circa 1370 (d.v.p. betw. 2 Feb 1368 & 1 Apr. 1371) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.).


 409832.
iii.
Philip (3136).XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir) Knight (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Knight Sir (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"
819651.  Margaret de20 Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" (Humphrey de Bohun, #1639302) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54 & 9.) was born on 3 Apr 1311 at Caldecott, Northamptonshire, England.  She married Hugh de Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" on 11 Aug 1325 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  She died on 16 Dec 1391 at Exeter, Devonshire, England, at age 80.

819664.  Hugh de20 Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" (Hugh, #1639300) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) was born on 12 Jul 1303.  He married Margaret de Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" on 11 Aug 1325 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  He died on 2 May 1377 at age 73.

     (an unknown value) (2nd Earl of Devon).

     Children of Hugh de20 Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" and Margaret de Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" (see #819651) were as follows:


 409825.
i.
Elizabeth19 (5066).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth  (5066) (        -7 Aug 1395)"

 
ii.
Edward (5064)XE "Courtenay:Edward (Sir)  (5064) (circa 1331-circa 1370)"

XE "Courtenay:Edward Sir (5064) (circa 1331-circa 1370)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.) was born circa 1331 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.).  He married Emmeline Dauney (5065)XE "Dauney:Emmeline  (5065) (        -1371)" circa 1346 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.).  He died circa 1370 (d.v.p. betw. 2 Feb 1368 & 1 Apr. 1371) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 9.).


 409832.
iii.
Philip (3136).XE "Courtenay:Philip (Sir) Knight (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"

XE "Courtenay:Philip Knight Sir (3136) (circa 1340-29 Jul 1406)"
819665.  Margaret de20 Bohun (3139)XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)" (Humphrey de Bohun, #1639302) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54 & 9.) was born on 3 Apr 1311 at Caldecott, Northamptonshire, England.  She married Hugh de Courtenay Kinght of the Garter (3138)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)" on 11 Aug 1325 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  She died on 16 Dec 1391 at Exeter, Devonshire, England, at age 80.

Generation Twenty-OneTC "Generation Twenty-One" \l 2
1277952.  Roger de21 Washborn Sir (3092)XE "Washborn:Roger de Sir (3092)"

XE "Washborn:Roger de Sir  (3092)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 27.) married Joan Washborn (3093)XE "Washborn:Joan  (3093) (1259-)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 27.).  He died.

     Children of Roger de21 Washborn Sir (3092)XE "Washborn:Roger de Sir (3092)"

XE "Washborn:Roger de Sir  (3092)" and Joan Washborn (3093)XE "Washborn:Joan  (3093) (1259-)" (see #1277953) were:


 638976.
i.
John de Dufford20 (3090).XE "Washbourne:John de Dufford  (3090) (1280-1318)"
1277953.  Joan21 Washborn (3093)XE "Washborn:Joan  (3093) (1259-)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 27.) was born in 1259.  She married Roger de Washborn Sir (3092)XE "Washborn:Roger de Sir (3092)"

XE "Washborn:Roger de Sir  (3092)" (Genserv, Information collected from various sources and published on the Internet, Page 27.).  She died.

1278128.  Edward I of21 England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" (Henry, #2556256) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born on 17 Jun 1239 at Westminster Palace, Middlesex, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants, Page 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  He married Eleanor of Castile (3099)XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)" on 18 Oct 1254 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He married Marguerite of France (3100)XE "France:Marguerite of  (3100)" on 8 Sep 1299 at Canterbury, Kent, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants, Page 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  He died on 7 Jul 1307 at Burgh-on-Sands, near Carlisle, Cumberland, England, at age 68 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).

     (an unknown value) (King of England, 1272-1307. Crowned 19 Aug. 1274).

     Children of Edward I of21 England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" include:


 639064.
i.
John de20 (3096).XE "Botetourte:John de Lord (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)"

XE "Botetourte:John de Lord  (3096) (-25 Nov 1324)"
1278130.  Thomas21 fitz Otes (4465)XE "fitz Otes:Thomas  (4465)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 120, page 259.).  (an unknown value) (of Mendelsham, co. Suffolk. His appearance in the records was his appointment as Governor of St. Briavel's Castle, Gloucester, in 1291. He was Admiral for the North Seas from 1294 to 1297, and again in 1315, having been summoned to Parliament in 1305 as Lord Botetourt. Yet the inquisition post mortem at his death shows that the only property he had was held in the right of his wife, who brought him one-third of the feudal barony of Bedford).

     Children of Thomas21 fitz Otes (4465)XE "fitz Otes:Thomas  (4465)" include:


 639065.
i.
Maud20 (3097).XE "Fitz Thomas:Maud  (3097) (-after 28 May 1329)"
1278138.  William21 La Zouche (2935)XE "La Zouche:William  (2935) (-3 Feb 1272)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) died on 3 Feb 1272.

     (an unknown value) (of King's Nympton, co. Devon).

     Children of William21 La Zouche (2935)XE "La Zouche:William  (2935) (-3 Feb 1272)" include:


 639069.
i.
Joyce20 (2934).XE "La Zouche:Joyce  (2934) (-before 13 Mar 1290)"
1278140.  Roger V de21 Toeni (2940)XE "Toeni:Roger V de  (2940) (1235-before 12 May 1264)" (Ralph, #2556280) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.) was born in 1235.  He married Isabel (--?--) (2942)XE "(--?--):Isabel  (2942) (-after 1265)" after 1255 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 94.).  He died before 12 May 1264.

     (an unknown value) (of Flamstead, co. Hertford).

     Children of Roger V de21 Toeni (2940)XE "Toeni:Roger V de  (2940) (1235-before 12 May 1264)" and Alice de Bohun (2941)XE "Bohun:Alice de  (2941)" (see #1278141) were:


 639070.
i.
Ralph VII de20 (2938).XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VII de Lord of Flamstead  (2938) (1255-before 29 Jul 1295)"
1278141.  Alice de21 Bohun (2941)XE "Bohun:Alice de  (2941)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 98.) died.

1437864.  William I de21 Braose (3994)XE "Braose:William I de  (3994) (-1291)" (John, #2875728) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Alina de Multon (4309).XE "Multon:Alina de  (4309)"  He married Agnes de Moeles (4310).XE "Moeles:Agnes de  (4310)"  He married Mary de Ros (3995)XE "Ros:Mary de  (3995)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died in 1291.

     Children of William I de21 Braose (3994)XE "Braose:William I de  (3994) (-1291)" and Mary de Ros (3995)XE "Ros:Mary de  (3995)" (see #1437865) were as follows:


 
i.
William III de20 (3992)XE "Braose:William III de  (3992)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Eleanor de Bavant (3993)XE "Bavant:Eleanor de  (3993)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died.


 718932.
ii.
Peter I de (4297).XE "Braose:Peter I de  (4297) (-1312)"

 
iii.
Richard de (4305)XE "Braose:Richard de  (4305) (-1296)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) died in 1296.


 
iv.
Margaret de (4306)XE "Braose:Margaret de  (4306)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, 315 to 324.) married Ralph Camoys (4307).XE "Camoys:Ralph  (4307)"
1437865.  Mary de21 Ros (3995)XE "Ros:Mary de  (3995)" (Robert, #2875730) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married William I de Braose (3994)XE "Braose:William I de  (3994) (-1291)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).

1437870.  Walter21 Foliot (4362)XE "Foliot:Walter  (4362)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Ada de Sanford (4363).XE "Sanford:Ada de  (4363) (-1331)"
     Children of Walter21 Foliot (4362)XE "Foliot:Walter  (4362)" and Ada de Sanford (4363)XE "Sanford:Ada de  (4363) (-1331)" (see #1437871) were:


 718935.
i.
Joan20 (4360).XE "Foliot:Joan  (4360) (-1349)"
1437871.  Ada de21 Sanford (4363)XE "Sanford:Ada de  (4363) (-1331)" (Lawrence, #2875742) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Walter Foliot (4362).XE "Foliot:Walter  (4362)"  She died in 1331.

1438464.  William21 Whitfield (4123)XE "Whitfield:William  (4123)" (William, #2876928) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) married Maude Wheateley (4124)XE "Wheateley:Maude  (4124)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.).  He died.

     Children of William21 Whitfield (4123)XE "Whitfield:William  (4123)" and Maude Wheateley (4124)XE "Wheateley:Maude  (4124)" (see #1438465) were:


 719232.
i.
John20 (4122).XE "Whitfield:John  (4122)"
1438465.  Maude21 Wheateley (4124)XE "Wheateley:Maude  (4124)" (John, #2876930) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) married William Whitfield (4123)XE "Whitfield:William  (4123)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.).  She died.

1506304.  Lawrence de21 Warenne Sir (3077)XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir (3077) (circa 1394-1444)"

XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir  (3077) (circa 1394-1444)" (Nicholas, #3012608) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) was born circa 1394 at Nottinghamshire, England.  He married Margaret Bulkeley (3078)XE "Bulkeley:Margaret  (3078) (circa 1375-)" circa 1400 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1444.

     (an unknown value) (of Poynton and Stockport).

     Children of Lawrence de21 Warenne Sir (3077)XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir (3077) (circa 1394-1444)"

XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir  (3077) (circa 1394-1444)" and Margaret Bulkeley (3078)XE "Bulkeley:Margaret  (3078) (circa 1375-)" (see #1506305) were as follows:


 
i.
Cicely de20 (3261)XE "Warenne:Cicely de  (3261)" married John de Davenport Esq. (3262)XE "Davenport:John de Esq. (3262) (before 3 May 1419-1478)"

XE "Davenport:John de Esq.  (3262) (before 3 May 1419-1478)" circa 4 Jan 1435 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.).  She died.


 753152.
ii.
John (3075).XE "Warren:John  (3075) (circa 1400-)"
1506305.  Margaret21 Bulkeley (3078)XE "Bulkeley:Margaret  (3078) (circa 1375-)" (Richard Bulkley, #3012610) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) was born circa 1375 at Wore, Shropshire, England.  She married Lawrence de Warenne Sir (3077)XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir (3077) (circa 1394-1444)"

XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir  (3077) (circa 1394-1444)" circa 1400 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

1506306.  John21 Stanley Knight (3079)XE "Stanley:John Knight (3079) (circa 1375-)"

XE "Stanley:John Knight  (3079) (circa 1375-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1375 at Nottingham, England.  He married Mrs. (--?--) (3080)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3080) (circa 1375-)" in 1395 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of John21 Stanley Knight (3079)XE "Stanley:John Knight (3079) (circa 1375-)"

XE "Stanley:John Knight  (3079) (circa 1375-)" and Mrs. (--?--) (3080)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3080) (circa 1375-)" (see #1506307) were:


 753153.
i.
Isabel20 (3076).XE "Stanley:Isabel  (3076) (circa 1400-)"
1506307.  Mrs.21 (--?--) (3080)XE "(--?--):Mrs.  (3080) (circa 1375-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1375 at Nottingham, England.  She married John Stanley Knight (3079)XE "Stanley:John Knight (3079) (circa 1375-)"

XE "Stanley:John Knight  (3079) (circa 1375-)" in 1395 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

1638912.  Roger de21 Perceval Lord of East Quantock (1971)XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock (1971)"

XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock  (1971)" (John de Perceval, #3277824) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Joan de Bretesche (1972)XE "de Bretesche:Joan  (1972)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (also Lord of Eastbury, &c. In 1295 summoned among the Barons to the great Council in Parliament held at New Castle, previous to the wars of Scotland against John Baliol. In 1296 summoned to attend the king at London, with horse and arms to assist Guy, Earl of Flanders, against Philip of France).

     Children of Roger de21 Perceval Lord of East Quantock (1971)XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock (1971)"

XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock  (1971)" and Joan de Bretesche (1972)XE "de Bretesche:Joan  (1972)" (see #1638913) were:


 819456.
i.
Sir John20 (1969).XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury (1969) (-1339)"

XE "Percival:Sir John Lord of Eastbury  (1969) (-1339)"
1638913.  Joan21 de Bretesche (1972)XE "de Bretesche:Joan  (1972)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Roger de Perceval Lord of East Quantock (1971)XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock (1971)"

XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock  (1971)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  She died.

1639300.  Hugh de21 Courtenay Sir (3142)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)" (Hugh, #3278600) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) was born on 14 Sep 1275 at Okehampton, Devon, England.  He married Agnes de Saint John (3143)XE "Saint John:Agnes de  (3143) (circa 1279-11 Jun 1345)" in 1292 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 23 Dec 1340 at Cowick, Devonshire, England, at age 65.

     (an unknown value) (9th. Earl of Devon).

     Children of Hugh de21 Courtenay Sir (3142)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)" and Agnes de Saint John (3143)XE "Saint John:Agnes de  (3143) (circa 1279-11 Jun 1345)" (see #1639301) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas de20 (3144)XE "Courtenay:Thomas de Sir (3144) (-1356)"

XE "Courtenay:Thomas de Sir  (3144) (-1356)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 55.) married Muriel de Moels (3145)XE "Moels:Muriel de  (3145) (circa 1322-)" in 1337.  He died in 1356.

     (an unknown value) (4th son, of Woodhuish and Dunterton, co. Devon, and Wootton Courtenay and Cricket Malherbe, co. Somerset).


 819650.
ii.
Hugh de (3138).XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"
1639301.  Agnes de21 Saint John (3143)XE "Saint John:Agnes de  (3143) (circa 1279-11 Jun 1345)" was born circa 1279.  She married Hugh de Courtenay Sir (3142)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)" in 1292 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died on 11 Jun 1345.

1639302.  Earl Humphrey VIII21 de Bohun (5063)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)" (Humphrey, #3278604) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1276 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  He married Elizabeth Plantagenet (5058)XE "Plantagenet:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" (see #1639303), daughter of Edward I of England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" and Eleanor of Castile (3099),XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)" on 14 Nov 1302 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 16 Mar 1321 at Boroughbridge, Yorkshire, England (slain) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Hereford and Essex, Lord High Constable of England) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Earl Humphrey VIII21 de Bohun (5063)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)" and Elizabeth Plantagenet (5058)XE "Plantagenet:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" (see #1639303) were as follows:


 
i.
William20 (5176)XE "de Bohun:William (Sir) K.G. (5176)"

XE "de Bohun:William K.G. Sir (5176)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Elizabeth de Badlesmere (5177)XE "Badlesmere:Elizabeth de  (5177) (1313-1356)" in 1338 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 68 & 93.).

     (an unknown value) (created Earl of Northampton) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).


 819651.
ii.
Margaret de (3139).XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)"
1639303.  Elizabeth21 Plantagenet (5058)XE "Plantagenet:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 175, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 175, page 316.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 175, page 316.)XE "de Bohun:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" was born on 7 Aug 1282 at Rhuddlan Castle, Carnarvonshire, Wales, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  She married Count John of Holland (5062)XE "Holland:John of (Count)  (5062) (        -10 Nov 1299)"

XE "Holland:John of Count (5062) (        -10 Nov 1299)" on 7 Jan 1296 at Ipswich, Suffolk, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  She married Earl Humphrey VIII de Bohun (5063)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)" (see #1639302), son of Earl Humphrey VII de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" and Maud de Fiennes (5179),XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" on 14 Nov 1302 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died on 5 May 1316 at Quendon, Essex, England, at age 33 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).

1639328.  Hugh de21 Courtenay Sir (3142)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)" (Hugh, #3278600) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) was born on 14 Sep 1275 at Okehampton, Devon, England.  He married Agnes de Saint John (3143)XE "Saint John:Agnes de  (3143) (circa 1279-11 Jun 1345)" in 1292 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 23 Dec 1340 at Cowick, Devonshire, England, at age 65.

     (an unknown value) (9th. Earl of Devon).

     Children of Hugh de21 Courtenay Sir (3142)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)" and Agnes de Saint John (3143)XE "Saint John:Agnes de  (3143) (circa 1279-11 Jun 1345)" (see #1639301) were as follows:


 
i.
Thomas de20 (3144)XE "Courtenay:Thomas de Sir (3144) (-1356)"

XE "Courtenay:Thomas de Sir  (3144) (-1356)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 55.) married Muriel de Moels (3145)XE "Moels:Muriel de  (3145) (circa 1322-)" in 1337.  He died in 1356.

     (an unknown value) (4th son, of Woodhuish and Dunterton, co. Devon, and Wootton Courtenay and Cricket Malherbe, co. Somerset).


 819650.
ii.
Hugh de (3138).XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Kinght of the Garter  (3138) (12 Jul 1303-2 May 1377)"
1639329.  Agnes de21 Saint John (3143)XE "Saint John:Agnes de  (3143) (circa 1279-11 Jun 1345)" was born circa 1279.  She married Hugh de Courtenay Sir (3142)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)" in 1292 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died on 11 Jun 1345.

1639330.  Earl Humphrey VIII21 de Bohun (5063)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)" (Humphrey, #3278604) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1276 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  He married Elizabeth Plantagenet (5058)XE "Plantagenet:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" (see #1639303), daughter of Edward I of England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" and Eleanor of Castile (3099),XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)" on 14 Nov 1302 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 16 Mar 1321 at Boroughbridge, Yorkshire, England (slain) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Hereford and Essex, Lord High Constable of England) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Earl Humphrey VIII21 de Bohun (5063)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)" and Elizabeth Plantagenet (5058)XE "Plantagenet:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" (see #1639303) were as follows:


 
i.
William20 (5176)XE "de Bohun:William (Sir) K.G. (5176)"

XE "de Bohun:William K.G. Sir (5176)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Elizabeth de Badlesmere (5177)XE "Badlesmere:Elizabeth de  (5177) (1313-1356)" in 1338 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 68 & 93.).

     (an unknown value) (created Earl of Northampton) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).


 819651.
ii.
Margaret de (3139).XE "Bohun:Margaret de  (3139) (3 Apr 1311-16 Dec 1391)"
1639331.  Elizabeth21 Plantagenet (5058)XE "Plantagenet:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 175, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 175, page 316.) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 175, page 316.)XE "de Bohun:Elizabeth  (5058) (7 Aug 1282-5 May 1316)" was born on 7 Aug 1282 at Rhuddlan Castle, Carnarvonshire, Wales, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  She married Count John of Holland (5062)XE "Holland:John of (Count)  (5062) (        -10 Nov 1299)"

XE "Holland:John of Count (5062) (        -10 Nov 1299)" on 7 Jan 1296 at Ipswich, Suffolk, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  She married Earl Humphrey VIII de Bohun (5063)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)" (see #1639302), son of Earl Humphrey VII de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" and Maud de Fiennes (5179),XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" on 14 Nov 1302 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died on 5 May 1316 at Quendon, Essex, England, at age 33 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).

Generation Twenty-TwoTC "Generation Twenty-Two" \l 2
2556256.  Henry III of22 England King (3103)XE "England:Henry III of King (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"

XE "England:Henry III of King  (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)" (John, #5112512) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born on 1 Oct 1207 at Winchester, Hamptonshire, England.  He married Eleanor of Provence (3104)XE "Provence:Eleanor of  (3104) (1217-24 Jun 1291)" on 24 Jan 1237 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He died on 16 Nov 1272 at age 65.

     (an unknown value) (King of England, 1272-1307).

     Children of Henry III of22 England King (3103)XE "England:Henry III of King (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"

XE "England:Henry III of King  (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)" and Eleanor of Provence (3104)XE "Provence:Eleanor of  (3104) (1217-24 Jun 1291)" (see #2556257) were:


 1278128.
i.
Edward I of21 (3098).XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"
2556257.  Eleanor of22 Provence (3104)XE "Provence:Eleanor of  (3104) (1217-24 Jun 1291)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born in 1217.  She married Henry III of England King (3103)XE "England:Henry III of King (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"

XE "England:Henry III of King  (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)" on 24 Jan 1237 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She died on 24 Jun 1291 at Amesbury, Wiltshire, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).

2556280.  Ralph VI de22 Toeni Lord of Flamstead (2943)XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead (2943) (circa 1190-1239)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead  (2943) (circa 1190-1239)" (Roger, #5112560) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) was born circa 1190.  He married Petronilla de Lacy (2944)XE "Lacy:Petronilla de  (2944) (-after 1288)" in 1233 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died in 1239.

     (an unknown value) (of Flamstead, co. Hertford, Crusader 1239, d. at sea about Michaelmas 1239).

     Children of Ralph VI de22 Toeni Lord of Flamstead (2943)XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead (2943) (circa 1190-1239)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead  (2943) (circa 1190-1239)" and Petronilla de Lacy (2944)XE "Lacy:Petronilla de  (2944) (-after 1288)" (see #2556281) were:


 1278140.
i.
Roger V de21 (2940).XE "Toeni:Roger V de  (2940) (1235-before 12 May 1264)"
2556281.  Petronilla de22 Lacy (2944)XE "Lacy:Petronilla de  (2944) (-after 1288)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Ralph VI de Toeni Lord of Flamstead (2943)XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead (2943) (circa 1190-1239)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead  (2943) (circa 1190-1239)" in 1233 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died after 1288.

2875728.  John de22 Braose (4313)XE "Braose:John de  (4313)" (William, #5751456) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Margaret ap Iorwerth (4314)XE "Iorwerth:Margaret ap  (4314)" in 1220 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 209.).

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Gower).

     Children of John de22 Braose (4313)XE "Braose:John de  (4313)" and Margaret ap Iorwerth (4314)XE "Iorwerth:Margaret ap  (4314)" (see #2875729) were as follows:


 
i.
Richard de21 (4316)XE "Braose:Richard de  (4316)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Alice le Rus (4317).XE "Rus:Alice le  (4317)"

 1437864.
ii.
William I de (3994).XE "Braose:William I de  (3994) (-1291)"
2875729.  Margaret ap22 Iorwerth (4314)XE "Iorwerth:Margaret ap  (4314)" (Llewelyn, #5751458) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married John de Braose (4313)XE "Braose:John de  (4313)" in 1220 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 209.).

2875730.  Robert de22 Ros Sir (3996)XE "Ros:Robert de Sir (3996) (-1285)"

XE "Ros:Robert de Sir  (3996) (-1285)" (William, #5751460) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) married Isabel d'Aubigny (3997)XE "d'Aubigny:Isabel  (3997)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died in 1285 (Alice Freeman and Thomas James, Some ancestral lines of Edmond Hawes, Page 5.).

     Children of Robert de22 Ros Sir (3996)XE "Ros:Robert de Sir (3996) (-1285)"

XE "Ros:Robert de Sir  (3996) (-1285)" and Isabel d'Aubigny (3997)XE "d'Aubigny:Isabel  (3997)" (see #2875731) were as follows:


 1437865.
i.
Mary de21 (3995).XE "Ros:Mary de  (3995)"

 
ii.
William de (4002)XE "Ros:William de  (4002)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 336.) married Maud Vaux (4003)XE "Vaux:Maud  (4003)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 336.).

     (an unknown value) (1st. Baron Ros of Helmsley).


 
iii.
Isabel de (4004)XE "Ros:Isabel de  (4004)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 342.) married Walter de Fauconberg (4005)XE "Fauconberg:Walter de  (4005)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 342.).

2875731.  Isabel22 d'Aubigny (3997)XE "d'Aubigny:Isabel  (3997)" married Robert de Ros Sir (3996)XE "Ros:Robert de Sir (3996) (-1285)"

XE "Ros:Robert de Sir  (3996) (-1285)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died.

2875742.  Lawrence de22 Sanford (4364)XE "Sanford:Lawrence de  (4364) (-circa 1271)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Hawise Corbet (4365).XE "Corbet:Hawise  (4365)"  He died circa 1271.

     Children of Lawrence de22 Sanford (4364)XE "Sanford:Lawrence de  (4364) (-circa 1271)" and Hawise Corbet (4365)XE "Corbet:Hawise  (4365)" (see #2875743) were as follows:


 1437871.
i.
Ada de21 (4363).XE "Sanford:Ada de  (4363) (-1331)"

 
ii.
Thomas de (4583)XE "Sanford:Thomas de  (4583) (-1299)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, page 324.) died in 1299.

2875743.  Hawise22 Corbet (4365)XE "Corbet:Hawise  (4365)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) married Lawrence de Sanford (4364).XE "Sanford:Lawrence de  (4364) (-circa 1271)"
2876928.  William22 Whitfield (4126)XE "Whitfield:William  (4126)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) married unknown Holme (4127)XE "Holme:unknown  (4127)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Whitfield Hall, Cumberland).

     Children of William22 Whitfield (4126)XE "Whitfield:William  (4126)" and unknown Holme (4127)XE "Holme:unknown  (4127)" (see #2876929) were:


 1438464.
i.
William21 (4123).XE "Whitfield:William  (4123)"
2876929.  unknown22 Holme (4127)XE "Holme:unknown  (4127)" (Rich., #5753858) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) married William Whitfield (4126)XE "Whitfield:William  (4126)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.).  She died.

2876930.  John22 Wheateley (4125)XE "Wheateley:John  (4125)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     Children of John22 Wheateley (4125)XE "Wheateley:John  (4125)" include:


 1438465.
i.
Maude21 (4124).XE "Wheateley:Maude  (4124)"
3012608.  Nicholas de22 Warenne (3081)XE "Warenne:Nicholas de  (3081) (1378-1413)" (John, #6025216) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) was born in 1378 at England.  He married Agnes Winnington (3082)XE "Winnington:Agnes  (3082)" circa 1375 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1413.

     (an unknown value) (of Poynton and Stockport).

     Children of Nicholas de22 Warenne (3081)XE "Warenne:Nicholas de  (3081) (1378-1413)" and Agnes Winnington (3082)XE "Winnington:Agnes  (3082)" (see #3012609) were:


 1506304.
i.
Lawrence de21 (3077).XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir (3077) (circa 1394-1444)"

XE "Warenne:Lawrence de Sir  (3077) (circa 1394-1444)"
3012609.  Agnes22 Winnington (3082)XE "Winnington:Agnes  (3082)" (Richard Wynnington, #6025218) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at England.  She married Nicholas de Warenne (3081)XE "Warenne:Nicholas de  (3081) (1378-1413)" circa 1375 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

3012610.  Richard22 Bulkley Esq. (3083)XE "Bulkley:Richard Esq. (3083)"

XE "Bulkley:Richard Esq.  (3083)" was born at Wore, Shropshire, England.  He married Margery Venables (3084)XE "Venables:Margery  (3084)" circa 1320 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died.

     Children of Richard22 Bulkley Esq. (3083)XE "Bulkley:Richard Esq. (3083)"

XE "Bulkley:Richard Esq.  (3083)" and Margery Venables (3084)XE "Venables:Margery  (3084)" (see #3012611) were:


 1506305.
i.
Margaret21 (3078).XE "Bulkeley:Margaret  (3078) (circa 1375-)"
3012611.  Margery22 Venables (3084)XE "Venables:Margery  (3084)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 192.) married Richard Bulkley Esq. (3083)XE "Bulkley:Richard Esq. (3083)"

XE "Bulkley:Richard Esq.  (3083)" circa 1320 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

3277824.  John22 de Perceval (1973)XE "de Perceval:John  (1973) (-1281)" (Richard, #6555648) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) married Alice Dampmartin (1974)XE "Dampmartin:Alice  (1974)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).  He died in 1281.

     (an unknown value) (Surname de Watton. In 1260 received summons, among the Barons, to attend upon the king, at Shrewsbury, with horse and arms to war against Lewellyn, Prince of Wales. He died 1281).

     Children of John22 de Perceval (1973)XE "de Perceval:John  (1973) (-1281)" and Alice Dampmartin (1974)XE "Dampmartin:Alice  (1974)" (see #3277825) were:


 1638912.
i.
Roger de21 (1971).XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock (1971)"

XE "Perceval:Roger de Lord of East Quantock  (1971)"
3277825.  Alice22 Dampmartin (1974)XE "Dampmartin:Alice  (1974)" married John de Perceval (1973)XE "de Perceval:John  (1973) (-1281)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.).

3278600.  Hugh de22 Courtenay Sir (3146)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)" (John, #6557200) was born on 25 Mar 1249 at Okehampton, Devon, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Eleanor Despenser (3147)XE "Despenser:Eleanor  (3147) (-1 Oct 1328)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  He died on 20 Feb 1292 at Cullicomb, Devonshire, England, at age 42.

     (an unknown value) (Baron of Oakhampton).

     Children of Hugh de22 Courtenay Sir (3146)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)" and Eleanor Despenser (3147)XE "Despenser:Eleanor  (3147) (-1 Oct 1328)" (see #3278601) were as follows:


 
i.
Eleanor de21 (3148)XE "Courtenay:Eleanor de  (3148)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Henry de Grey (3149)XE "Grey:Henry de  (3149) (-Sep 1308)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.


 1639300.
ii.
Hugh de (3142).XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"
3278601.  Eleanor22 Despenser (3147)XE "Despenser:Eleanor  (3147) (-1 Oct 1328)" married Hugh de Courtenay Sir (3146)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  She died on 1 Oct 1328.

3278604.  Earl Humphrey VII22 de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" (Humphrey, #6557208) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1249 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He married Maud de Fiennes (5179)XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" (see #3278605) in 1275 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 31 Dec 1298 at Pleshey (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Hereford and Essex, Constable of England) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Earl Humphrey VII22 de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" and Maud de Fiennes (5179)XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" (see #3278605) were:


 1639302.
i.
Humphrey VIII21 (5063).XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"
3278605.  Maud de22 Fiennes (5179)XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Earl Humphrey VII de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" (see #3278604), son of Humphrey VI de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" and Eleanor de Braiose (5181),XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" in 1275 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

3278606.  Edward I of22 England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" (Henry, #2556256) (see #1278128).

3278607.  Eleanor of22 Castile (3099)XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)" (Fernando, #6557214) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1241 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  She married Edward I of England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" on 18 Oct 1254 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She died on 28 Nov 1290 at Harby, Nottinghamshire, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).

3278656.  Hugh de22 Courtenay Sir (3146)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)" (John, #6557200) was born on 25 Mar 1249 at Okehampton, Devon, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Eleanor Despenser (3147)XE "Despenser:Eleanor  (3147) (-1 Oct 1328)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  He died on 20 Feb 1292 at Cullicomb, Devonshire, England, at age 42.

     (an unknown value) (Baron of Oakhampton).

     Children of Hugh de22 Courtenay Sir (3146)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)" and Eleanor Despenser (3147)XE "Despenser:Eleanor  (3147) (-1 Oct 1328)" (see #3278601) were as follows:


 
i.
Eleanor de21 (3148)XE "Courtenay:Eleanor de  (3148)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Henry de Grey (3149)XE "Grey:Henry de  (3149) (-Sep 1308)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.


 1639300.
ii.
Hugh de (3142).XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3142) (14 Sep 1275-23 Dec 1340)"
3278657.  Eleanor22 Despenser (3147)XE "Despenser:Eleanor  (3147) (-1 Oct 1328)" married Hugh de Courtenay Sir (3146)XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 54.).  She died on 1 Oct 1328.

3278660.  Earl Humphrey VII22 de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" (Humphrey, #6557208) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1249 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He married Maud de Fiennes (5179)XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" (see #3278605) in 1275 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 31 Dec 1298 at Pleshey (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Hereford and Essex, Constable of England) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Earl Humphrey VII22 de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" and Maud de Fiennes (5179)XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" (see #3278605) were:


 1639302.
i.
Humphrey VIII21 (5063).XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII (Earl)  (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VIII Earl (5063) (circa 1276-16 Mar 1321)"
3278661.  Maud de22 Fiennes (5179)XE "Fiennes:Maud de  (5179)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Earl Humphrey VII de Bohun (5178)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)" (see #3278604), son of Humphrey VI de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" and Eleanor de Braiose (5181),XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" in 1275 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

3278662.  Edward I of22 England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" (Henry, #2556256) (see #1278128).

3278663.  Eleanor of22 Castile (3099)XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)" (Fernando, #6557214) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1241 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).  She married Edward I of England King (3098)XE "England:Edward I of King (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)"

XE "England:Edward I of King  (3098) (17 Jun 1239-7 Jul 1307)" on 18 Oct 1254 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She died on 28 Nov 1290 at Harby, Nottinghamshire, England (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 157, page 316.).

Generation Twenty-ThreeTC "Generation Twenty-Three" \l 2
5112512.  John Lackland of23 England King (3105)XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)" (Henry, #10225024) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born on 24 Dec 1167.  He married Isabella of Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" on 24 Aug 1200 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He died on 19 Oct 1216 at age 48.

     (an unknown value) (King of England, 1199-1216).

     Children of John Lackland of23 England King (3105)XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)" and Isabella of Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" (see #5112513) were:


 2556256.
i.
Henry III of22 (3103).XE "England:Henry III of King (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"

XE "England:Henry III of King  (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"
5112513.  Isabella of23 Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" (Aymer Valence, #10225026) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3 & 106.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1188 at Angouleme, Charente, France.  She married John Lackland of England King (3105)XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)" on 24 Aug 1200 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She married Hugh X of Lusignan Count (3407)XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)"

XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count  (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)" on 10 May 1220 at England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died on 31 May 1246 at Fontevrault, Fontevrault L'Ab, ME, France.

5112560.  Roger IV de23 Toeni Knight Lord of Flamstead (2945)XE "Toeni:Roger IV de Knight Lord of Flamstead (2945) (circa 1160-circa Jan 1209)"

XE "Toeni:Roger IV de Knight Lord of Flamstead  (2945) (circa 1160-circa Jan 1209)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1160.  He married Constance de Beaumont (2946)XE "Beaumont:Constance de  (2946) (-after 1226)" in 1190 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died circa Jan 1209.

     (an unknown value) (also styled de Conches, lord of Flamstead, co. Hertford, founded the nunnery of St. Giles in the Wood, near Flamstead, co. Hertford).

     Children of Roger IV de23 Toeni Knight Lord of Flamstead (2945)XE "Toeni:Roger IV de Knight Lord of Flamstead (2945) (circa 1160-circa Jan 1209)"

XE "Toeni:Roger IV de Knight Lord of Flamstead  (2945) (circa 1160-circa Jan 1209)" and Constance de Beaumont (2946)XE "Beaumont:Constance de  (2946) (-after 1226)" (see #5112561) were:


 2556280.
i.
Ralph VI de22 (2943).XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead (2943) (circa 1190-1239)"

XE "Toeni:Ralph VI de Lord of Flamstead  (2943) (circa 1190-1239)"
5112561.  Constance de23 Beaumont (2946)XE "Beaumont:Constance de  (2946) (-after 1226)" (Richard, #10225122) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Roger IV de Toeni Knight Lord of Flamstead (2945)XE "Toeni:Roger IV de Knight Lord of Flamstead (2945) (circa 1160-circa Jan 1209)"

XE "Toeni:Roger IV de Knight Lord of Flamstead  (2945) (circa 1160-circa Jan 1209)" in 1190 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died after 1226.

     (an unknown value) (She brought her husband in free marriage the manor of South Tawton (otherwise Ailrichescot), co. Devon. Sources: G. E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols. I-XII pt. 2 (1910-1959) XII (1) 765-769; Sanders, 117-118; The Beauchamp Cartulary Charters 1100-1268, pub. as Vol. 81 (n.s. vol. 43), Publications of the Pipe Roll Society, pp. xliii-xlvii).

5751456.  William de23 Braose Lord (4322)XE "Braose:William de Lord (4322)"

XE "Braose:William de Lord  (4322)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 209.) married Maud de Clare (4323).XE "Clare:Maud de  (4323)"
     (an unknown value) (Lord of Gower).

     Children of William de23 Braose Lord (4322)XE "Braose:William de Lord (4322)"

XE "Braose:William de Lord  (4322)" and Maud de Clare (4323)XE "Clare:Maud de  (4323)" (see #5751457) are:


 2875728.
i.
John de22 (4313).XE "Braose:John de  (4313)"
5751457.  Maud de23 Clare (4323)XE "Clare:Maud de  (4323)" (Richard, #11502914) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 209.) married William de Braose Lord (4322).XE "Braose:William de Lord (4322)"

XE "Braose:William de Lord  (4322)"
5751458.  Llewelyn ap The Great23 Iorwerth Prince (4315)XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)"

XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince  (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)" (Iorwerth Drwyndwn, #11502916) (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 150, pages 315 to 324.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 151.) was born in 1173.  He married Joan of England (4319)XE "England:Joan of  (4319)" in 1205.  He died on 11 Apr 1240.

     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales).

     Children of Llewelyn ap The Great23 Iorwerth Prince (4315)XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)"

XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince  (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)" and Joan of England (4319)XE "England:Joan of  (4319)" (see #5751459) are:


 2875729.
i.
Margaret ap22 (4314).XE "Iorwerth:Margaret ap  (4314)"
5751459.  Joan of23 England (4319)XE "England:Joan of  (4319)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 29.) married Llewelyn ap The Great Iorwerth Prince (4315)XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)"

XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince  (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)" in 1205.

5751460.  William de23 Ros Sir (3998)XE "Ros:William de Sir (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)"

XE "Ros:William de Sir  (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)" (Robert, #11502920) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 in Line 148.) was born after 1192.  He married Lucy Fitz Piers (3999)XE "Fitz Piers:Lucy  (3999) (-after 1266)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 in Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  He died circa 1264.

     (an unknown value) (Of Helmsley, Member of Parliament 1235/6. CP (Complete Peerage, XI 93-94)).

     Children of William de23 Ros Sir (3998)XE "Ros:William de Sir (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)"

XE "Ros:William de Sir  (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)" and Lucy Fitz Piers (3999)XE "Fitz Piers:Lucy  (3999) (-after 1266)" (see #5751461) were as follows:


 2875730.
i.
Robert de22 (3996).XE "Ros:Robert de Sir (3996) (-1285)"

XE "Ros:Robert de Sir  (3996) (-1285)"

 
ii.
William de (4000)XE "Ros:William de Sir (4000)"

XE "Ros:William de Sir  (4000)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 330.) married Eustache Fitz Hugh (4001)XE "Fitz Hugh:Eustache  (4001)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 330.).

5751461.  Lucy23 Fitz Piers (3999)XE "Fitz Piers:Lucy  (3999) (-after 1266)" (Piers Fitz Herbert, #11502922) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 in Line 170 & 7 in Line 237.) married William de Ros Sir (3998)XE "Ros:William de Sir (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)"

XE "Ros:William de Sir  (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 in Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 334.).  She died after 1266.

5753858.  Rich.23 Holme (4128)XE "Holme:Rich.  (4128)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 51, page 419.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Of the Manor of Alstonmore in Cumberland).

     Children of Rich.23 Holme (4128)XE "Holme:Rich.  (4128)" include:


 2876929.
i.
unknown22 (4127).XE "Holme:unknown  (4127)"
6025216.  John de23 Warenne Sir Knight (3180)XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight (3180) (circa 1343-1387)"

XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight  (3180) (circa 1343-1387)" (Edward, #12050432) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) was born circa 1343 at England.  He married Margaret Stafford (3181)XE "Stafford:Margaret  (3181) (-6 Apr 1418)" in 1371 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died in 1387.

     (an unknown value) (Of Poynton and Stockport).

     Children of John de23 Warenne Sir Knight (3180)XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight (3180) (circa 1343-1387)"

XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight  (3180) (circa 1343-1387)" and Margaret Stafford (3181)XE "Stafford:Margaret  (3181) (-6 Apr 1418)" (see #6025217) were:


 3012608.
i.
Nicholas de22 (3081).XE "Warenne:Nicholas de  (3081) (1378-1413)"
6025217.  Margaret23 Stafford (3181)XE "Stafford:Margaret  (3181) (-6 Apr 1418)" (John, #12050434) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) was born at England.  She married John de Warenne Sir Knight (3180)XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight (3180) (circa 1343-1387)"

XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight  (3180) (circa 1343-1387)" in 1371 at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died on 6 Apr 1418.

6025218.  Richard23 Wynnington Sir Knight (3629)XE "Wynnington:Richard Sir Knight (3629) (circa 1300-)"

XE "Wynnington:Richard Sir Knight  (3629) (circa 1300-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) was born circa 1300.  He died.

     Children of Richard23 Wynnington Sir Knight (3629)XE "Wynnington:Richard Sir Knight (3629) (circa 1300-)"

XE "Wynnington:Richard Sir Knight  (3629) (circa 1300-)" include:


 3012609.
i.
Agnes22 (3082).XE "Winnington:Agnes  (3082)"
6555648.  Richard23 de Perceval (1975)XE "de Perceval:Richard  (1975)" (Richard de Percival, #13111296) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlvi.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Crusader in 1911 A. D. Buried in Weston. His monument remained there in 1692 A. D).

     Children of Richard23 de Perceval (1975)XE "de Perceval:Richard  (1975)" include:


 3277824.
i.
John22 (1973).XE "de Perceval:John  (1973) (-1281)"
6557200.  John de23 Courtenay Sir (3150)XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)" (Robert, #13114400) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) was born circa 1218 at Okehampton, Devon, England.  He married Isabel de Vere (3151)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3151)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died on 3 May 1274.

     (an unknown value) (Baron of Oakhampton).

     Children of John de23 Courtenay Sir (3150)XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)" and Isabel de Vere (3151)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3151)" (see #6557201) were:


 3278600.
i.
Hugh de22 (3146).XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"
6557201.  Isabel de23 Vere (3151)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3151)" married John de Courtenay Sir (3150)XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

6557208.  Humphrey VI23 de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" (Humphrey, #13114416) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Eleanor de Braiose (5181)XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" (see #6557209), daughter of William de Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" and Eve Marshal (3363),XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" on 15 Feb 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 27 Oct 1265 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Humphrey VI23 de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" and Eleanor de Braiose (5181)XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" (see #6557209) were as follows:


 
i.
Alianore22 (5182)XE "de Bohun:Alianore  (5182) (        -20 Feb 1314)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married Earl Robert de Ferrers (5183)XE "Ferrers:Robert de (Earl)  (5183) (1239-1279)"

XE "Ferrers:Robert de Earl (5183) (1239-1279)" on 26 Jun 1269 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 63.).  She died on 20 Feb 1314 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).


 3278604.
ii.
Humphrey VII (5178).XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"
6557209.  Eleanor de23 Braiose (5181)XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" (William, #13114418) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married Humphrey VI de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" (see #6557208), son of Earl Humphrey V de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" and Maud D'Eu (5200),XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" on 15 Feb 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

6557212.  Henry III of23 England King (3103)XE "England:Henry III of King (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"

XE "England:Henry III of King  (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)" (John, #5112512) (see #2556256).

6557213.  Eleanor of23 Provence (3104)XE "Provence:Eleanor of  (3104) (1217-24 Jun 1291)" (see #2556257).

6557214.  King Fernando III of23 Castile the Saint (5084)XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)" (Alfonso de Leon, #13114428) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1191 (Canonized by Pope Clement X in 1671, King of Castile 1217-1252, and of Leon 1230-1252) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Joan de Dammartin (5085)XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)" (see #6557215), daughter of Count Simon de Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" and Marie of Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1252 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of King Fernando III of23 Castile the Saint (5084)XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)" and Joan de Dammartin (5085)XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)" (see #6557215) were:


 3278607.
i.
Eleanor of22 (3099).XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)"
6557215.  Joan de23 Dammartin (5085)XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)" (Simon, #13114430) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married King Fernando III of Castile the Saint (5084)XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)" (see #6557214), son of King Alfonso IX de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" and Berengaria of Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1279 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

6557312.  John de23 Courtenay Sir (3150)XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)" (Robert, #13114400) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) was born circa 1218 at Okehampton, Devon, England.  He married Isabel de Vere (3151)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3151)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died on 3 May 1274.

     (an unknown value) (Baron of Oakhampton).

     Children of John de23 Courtenay Sir (3150)XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)" and Isabel de Vere (3151)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3151)" (see #6557201) were:


 3278600.
i.
Hugh de22 (3146).XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"

XE "Courtenay:Hugh de Sir  (3146) (25 Mar 1249-20 Feb 1292)"
6557313.  Isabel de23 Vere (3151)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3151)" married John de Courtenay Sir (3150)XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

6557320.  Humphrey VI23 de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" (Humphrey, #13114416) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Eleanor de Braiose (5181)XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" (see #6557209), daughter of William de Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" and Eve Marshal (3363),XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" on 15 Feb 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 27 Oct 1265 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Humphrey VI23 de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" and Eleanor de Braiose (5181)XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" (see #6557209) were as follows:


 
i.
Alianore22 (5182)XE "de Bohun:Alianore  (5182) (        -20 Feb 1314)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married Earl Robert de Ferrers (5183)XE "Ferrers:Robert de (Earl)  (5183) (1239-1279)"

XE "Ferrers:Robert de Earl (5183) (1239-1279)" on 26 Jun 1269 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 63.).  She died on 20 Feb 1314 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).


 3278604.
ii.
Humphrey VII (5178).XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII (Earl)  (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VII Earl (5178) (circa 1249-31 Dec 1298)"
6557321.  Eleanor de23 Braiose (5181)XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)" (William, #13114418) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married Humphrey VI de Bohun (5180)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)" (see #6557208), son of Earl Humphrey V de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" and Maud D'Eu (5200),XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" on 15 Feb 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

6557324.  Henry III of23 England King (3103)XE "England:Henry III of King (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)"

XE "England:Henry III of King  (3103) (1 Oct 1207-16 Nov 1272)" (John, #5112512) (see #2556256).

6557325.  Eleanor of23 Provence (3104)XE "Provence:Eleanor of  (3104) (1217-24 Jun 1291)" (see #2556257).

6557326.  King Fernando III of23 Castile the Saint (5084)XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)" (Alfonso de Leon, #13114428) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1191 (Canonized by Pope Clement X in 1671, King of Castile 1217-1252, and of Leon 1230-1252) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Joan de Dammartin (5085)XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)" (see #6557215), daughter of Count Simon de Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" and Marie of Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1252 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of King Fernando III of23 Castile the Saint (5084)XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)" and Joan de Dammartin (5085)XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)" (see #6557215) were:


 3278607.
i.
Eleanor of22 (3099).XE "Castile:Eleanor of  (3099) (1241-28 Nov 1290)"
6557327.  Joan de23 Dammartin (5085)XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)" (Simon, #13114430) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married King Fernando III of Castile the Saint (5084)XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)" (see #6557214), son of King Alfonso IX de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" and Berengaria of Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1279 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

Generation Twenty-FourTC "Generation Twenty-Four" \l 2
10225024.  Henry II of24 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" (Geoffrey Plantagenet, #20450048) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born on 5 Mar 1133.  He married Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" on 18 May 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He died on 6 Jul 1189 at age 56.

     (an unknown value) (King of England, 25 Oct. 1154-1189, called Curt Mantel).

     Children of Henry II of24 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" and Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (see #10225025) were as follows:


 26228859.
i.
Eleanor of23 (5089).XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)"

 5112512.
ii.
John Lackland of (3105).XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"
10225025.  Eleonor of24 Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (William, #20450050) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3 & 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1123.  She married King Louis VII of France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" on 22 Jul 1137 at Bordeaux, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  Eleonor (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" was divorced from King Louis VII of France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" before 18 May 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She married Henry II of England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" on 18 May 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She died on 3 Mar 1204 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).

10225026.  Aymer "Taillifer" de24 Valence Count (3410)XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)" (William Angouleme, #20450052) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) was born circa 1160.  He married Alice de Courtenay (3411)XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)" in 1180 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106 & 134.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1218.

     Children of Aymer "Taillifer" de24 Valence Count (3410)XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)" and Alice de Courtenay (3411)XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)" (see #10225027) were:


 5112513.
i.
Isabella of23 (3106).XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"
10225027.  Alice de24 Courtenay (3411)XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)" (Pierre France, #20450054) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1160 at Courtenay, Galinois, France.  She married Aymer "Taillifer" de Valence Count (3410)XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)" in 1180 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106 & 134.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died in 1218 at France.

10225122.  Richard I de24 Beaumont Viscount of Maine (2947)XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine (2947) (-after 1194)"

XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine  (2947) (-after 1194)" ((?) Roscelin, #20450244) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married N. de L'Aigle (2948)XE "L'Aigle:N. de  (2948)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died after 1194.

     (an unknown value) (Seigneur of Beaumont-le-Vicomte, Fresnay and Ste.-Suzanne).

     Children of Richard I de24 Beaumont Viscount of Maine (2947)XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine (2947) (-after 1194)"

XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine  (2947) (-after 1194)" and N. de L'Aigle (2948)XE "L'Aigle:N. de  (2948)" (see #10225123) were:


 5112561.
i.
Constance de23 (2946).XE "Beaumont:Constance de  (2946) (-after 1226)"
10225123.  N. de24 L'Aigle (2948)XE "L'Aigle:N. de  (2948)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Richard I de Beaumont Viscount of Maine (2947)XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine (2947) (-after 1194)"

XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine  (2947) (-after 1194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died.

11502914.  Richard de24 Clare Earl (4324)XE "Clare:Richard de Earl (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)"

XE "Clare:Richard de Earl  (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)" (Roger, #23005828) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 67.) married Amice Fitz Robert (4325).XE "Fitz Robert:Amice  (4325)"  He died on 28 Nov 1217.

     (an unknown value) (6th. Earl of Clare, Hertford and Gloucester, Magna Charta Surety, 1215).

     Children of Richard de24 Clare Earl (4324)XE "Clare:Richard de Earl (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)"

XE "Clare:Richard de Earl  (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)" and Amice Fitz Robert (4325)XE "Fitz Robert:Amice  (4325)" (see #11502915) were as follows:


 5751457.
i.
Maud de23 (4323).XE "Clare:Maud de  (4323)"

 
ii.
Gilbert de (4326)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (4326) (1180-25 Oct 1230)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (4326) (1180-25 Oct 1230)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 67.) was born in 1180.  He married Isabel Marshal (3362)XE "Marshal:Isabel  (3362) (circa 1203-17 Jan 1240)" on 9 Oct 1217.  He died on 25 Oct 1230 at Penros.

     (an unknown value) (7th. Earl of of Clare, Earl of Hertford and Gloucester, Magna Charta Surety, 1215).

11502915.  Amice24 Fitz Robert (4325)XE "Fitz Robert:Amice  (4325)" married Richard de Clare Earl (4324).XE "Clare:Richard de Earl (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)"

XE "Clare:Richard de Earl  (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)"
11502916.  Iorwerth24 Drwyndwn (4336)XE "Drwyndwn:Iorwerth  (4336)" (Owain Gwyned, #23005832) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 151.) married Marared ap Maredudd (4337).XE "Maredudd:Marared ap  (4337)"
     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales).

     Children of Iorwerth24 Drwyndwn (4336)XE "Drwyndwn:Iorwerth  (4336)" and Marared ap Maredudd (4337)XE "Maredudd:Marared ap  (4337)" (see #11502917) were:


 5751458.
i.
Llewelyn ap The Great23 (4315).XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)"

XE "Iorwerth:Llewelyn ap The Great Prince  (4315) (1173-11 Apr 1240)"
11502917.  Marared ap24 Maredudd (4337)XE "Maredudd:Marared ap  (4337)" (Madog, #23005834) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 151.) married Iorwerth Drwyndwn (4336).XE "Drwyndwn:Iorwerth  (4336)"
11502918.  John Lackland of24 England King (3105)XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)" (Henry, #10225024) (see #5112512).

11502920.  Robert de24 Ros (4006)XE "Ros:Robert de  (4006) (-before 23 Dec 1226)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 340.) married Isabel of Scotland (4007)XE "Scotland:Isabel of  (4007)" in 1191 at Haddington, East Lothian, Scotland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 in Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 340.).  He died before 23 Dec 1226.

     (an unknown value) (of Helmsley in Holderness, co. York, Magna Charta Surety, 1215, Knight Templar, grandson of Robert de Ros and Sibyl de Valognes).

     Children of Robert de24 Ros (4006)XE "Ros:Robert de  (4006) (-before 23 Dec 1226)" and Isabel of Scotland (4007)XE "Scotland:Isabel of  (4007)" (see #11502921) were:


 5751460.
i.
William de23 (3998).XE "Ros:William de Sir (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)"

XE "Ros:William de Sir  (3998) (after 1192-circa 1264)"
11502921.  Isabel of24 Scotland (4007)XE "Scotland:Isabel of  (4007)" (William, #23005842) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 340.) married Robert de Ros (4006)XE "Ros:Robert de  (4006) (-before 23 Dec 1226)" in 1191 at Haddington, East Lothian, Scotland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 in Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 340.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Illegitimate).

11502922.  Piers24 Fitz Herbert (4136)XE "Fitz Herbert:Piers  (4136) (-before 6 Jun 1235)" (Herbert, #23005844) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 6 of Line 237.) married Alice Fitz Robert (4137)XE "Fitz Robert:Alice  (4137) (-circa 1225)" on 28 Nov 1203 (marriage settlement) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 6 in Line 237.).  He died before 6 Jun 1235.

     (an unknown value) (Son & event. h., adult by 1204, bur. at Reading, heir through his mother to a 1/3 interest to the barony of Miles of Gloucester, Earl of Hereford).

     Children of Piers24 Fitz Herbert (4136)XE "Fitz Herbert:Piers  (4136) (-before 6 Jun 1235)" and Alice Fitz Robert (4137)XE "Fitz Robert:Alice  (4137) (-circa 1225)" (see #11502923) were:


 5751461.
i.
Lucy23 (3999).XE "Fitz Piers:Lucy  (3999) (-after 1266)"
11502923.  Alice24 Fitz Robert (4137)XE "Fitz Robert:Alice  (4137) (-circa 1225)" (Robert Fitz Roger, #23005846) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 28 of Line 246D.) married Piers Fitz Herbert (4136)XE "Fitz Herbert:Piers  (4136) (-before 6 Jun 1235)" on 28 Nov 1203 (marriage settlement) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 6 in Line 237.).  She died circa 1225.

12050432.  Edward de24 Warenne Sir Knight (3265)XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight (3265) (-before 1369)"

XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight  (3265) (-before 1369)" (John, #24100864) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Nottinghamshire, England.  He married Cecily de Eton (3260)XE "Eton:Cecily de  (3260)" at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died before 1369.

     (an unknown value) (Ilegitimate son).

     Children of Edward de24 Warenne Sir Knight (3265)XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight (3265) (-before 1369)"

XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight  (3265) (-before 1369)" and Cecily de Eton (3260)XE "Eton:Cecily de  (3260)" (see #12050433) were:


 6025216.
i.
John de23 (3180).XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight (3180) (circa 1343-1387)"

XE "Warenne:John de Sir Knight  (3180) (circa 1343-1387)"
12050433.  Cecily de24 Eton (3260)XE "Eton:Cecily de  (3260)" (Nicholas, #24100866) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at England.  She married Edward de Warenne Sir Knight (3265)XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight (3265) (-before 1369)"

XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight  (3265) (-before 1369)" at Nottinghamshire, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

12050434.  John de24 Stafford Sir Knight (3406)XE "Stafford:John de Sir Knight (3406) (circa 1300-)"

XE "Stafford:John de Sir Knight  (3406) (circa 1300-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) was born circa 1300 at Nottingham, England.  He died.

     Children of John de24 Stafford Sir Knight (3406)XE "Stafford:John de Sir Knight (3406) (circa 1300-)"

XE "Stafford:John de Sir Knight  (3406) (circa 1300-)" include:


 6025217.
i.
Margaret23 (3181).XE "Stafford:Margaret  (3181) (-6 Apr 1418)"
13111296.  Richard24 de Percival (1976)XE "de Percival:Richard  (1976) (-1202)" (William, #26222592) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) married unknown Mohun (2066)XE "Mohun:unknown  (2066)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.).  He died in 1202.

     (an unknown value) (Was a Crusader in 1190 with King Richard I, in the Holy Land, and was a principal commander in the English army there. In an action against the Saracens he lost a leg and returned, dying in 1201-2. He was buried in the church of Weston-in-Gordano, with this incscription: "Orate pro anima Rycardi Perceval qui Melitavit in Terra Sancta com Rege Rycardo, A C.M.C.X.G." (Pray for the soul of Richard Percival, who served as a soldier in the Holy Lands with King Richard in A. D. 1190)).

     Children of Richard24 de Percival (1976)XE "de Percival:Richard  (1976) (-1202)" and unknown Mohun (2066)XE "Mohun:unknown  (2066)" (see #13111297) were:


 6555648.
i.
Richard23 (1975).XE "de Perceval:Richard  (1975)"
13111297.  unknown24 Mohun (2066)XE "Mohun:unknown  (2066)" (William de Mohun, #26222594) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) married Richard de Percival (1976)XE "de Percival:Richard  (1976) (-1202)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.).  She died.

13114400.  Robert de24 Courtenay Sir (3152)XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)" (Reginald, #26228800) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1183 at Okehampton, Devon, England.  He married Mary de Vernon (3153)XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  He died circa 27 Jul 1242 at Ford Abbey, Devon, England.

     (an unknown value) (Feudal baron of Oakhampton, sheriff of Devon 1216).

     Children of Robert de24 Courtenay Sir (3152)XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)" and Mary de Vernon (3153)XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)" (see #13114401) were:


 6557200.
i.
John de23 (3150).XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"
13114401.  Mary de24 Vernon (3153)XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)" (William, #26228802) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Robert de Courtenay Sir (3152)XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  She married Peter de Prouz Sir (3289)XE "Prouz:Peter de Sir (3289)"

XE "Prouz:Peter de Sir  (3289)" in 1200 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

13114416.  Earl Humphrey V24 de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1208 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He married Maud D'Eu (5200)XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" (see #13114417), daughter of Count Raoul I de Lusignan D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" and Countess Alice D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 24 Sep 1275 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     (an unknown value) (2nd Earl of Hereford and after divorce of his mother 1236, 7th Earl of Essex, Constable of england, sheriff of Kent) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Earl Humphrey V24 de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" and Maud D'Eu (5200)XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" (see #13114417) were:


 6557208.
i.
Humphrey VI23 (5180).XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)"
13114417.  Maud24 D'Eu (5200)XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" (Raoul, #26228834) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.)XE "de Bohun:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" married Earl Humphrey V de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" (see #13114416) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died on 14 Aug 1241 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

13114418.  William de24 Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" (Reginald, #26228836) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Eve Marshal (3363)XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  He died on 2 May 1230.

     Children of William de24 Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" and Eve Marshal (3363)XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" (see #13114419) were as follows:


 6557209.
i.
Eleanor de23 (5181).XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)"

 
ii.
Maud de (5184)XE "Braiose:Maud de  (5184) (        -before 23 Mar 1301)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married 6th Baron Roger de Mortimer (5185)XE "Mortimer:Roger de (6th Baron)  (5185) (1231-before 30 Oct 1282)"

XE "Mortimer:Roger de 6th Baron (5185) (1231-before 30 Oct 1282)" in 1247 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died before 23 Mar 1301 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).


 
iii.
Eva de (5186)XE "Braiose:Eva de  (5186) (        -1255)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married Baron William de Cantelou (5187)XE "Cantelou:William de (Baron)  (5187) (        -25 Sep 1254)"

XE "Cantelou:William de Baron (5187) (        -25 Sep 1254)" before 15 Feb 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died in 1255 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).

13114419.  Eve24 Marshal (3363)XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" (William, #26228838) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1206 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She married William de Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died before 1246.

13114424.  John Lackland of24 England King (3105)XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)" (Henry, #10225024) (see #5112512).

13114425.  Isabella of24 Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" (Aymer Valence, #10225026) (see #5112513).

13114428.  King Alfonso IX24 de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.) was born in 1166 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.).  He married Berengaria of Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (see #13114429), daughter of King Alfonso VIII of Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" and Eleanor of England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1229 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.).

     Children of King Alfonso IX24 de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" and Berengaria of Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (see #13114429) were:


 6557214.
i.
Fernando III of23 (5084).XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)"
13114429.  Berengaria of24 Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (Alfonso, #26228858) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married King Alfonso IX de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" (see #13114428) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1244 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

13114430.  Count Simon de24 Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Marie of Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (see #13114431), daughter of Count William III of Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" and Countess Alice (Alix) of France (5102),XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" circa 1210 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1239 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count Simon de24 Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" and Marie of Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (see #13114431) were:


 6557215.
i.
Joan de23 (5085).XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)"
13114431.  Marie of24 Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (William, #26228862) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Count Simon de Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" (see #13114430) circa 1210 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married Mathieu de Montmorency (5100)XE "Montmorency:Mathieu de  (5100) (        -Feb 1250)" after 1211 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1250 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

13114624.  Robert de24 Courtenay Sir (3152)XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)" (Reginald, #26228800) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1183 at Okehampton, Devon, England.  He married Mary de Vernon (3153)XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  He died circa 27 Jul 1242 at Ford Abbey, Devon, England.

     (an unknown value) (Feudal baron of Oakhampton, sheriff of Devon 1216).

     Children of Robert de24 Courtenay Sir (3152)XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)" and Mary de Vernon (3153)XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)" (see #13114401) were:


 6557200.
i.
John de23 (3150).XE "Courtenay:John de Sir (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"

XE "Courtenay:John de Sir  (3150) (circa 1218-3 May 1274)"
13114625.  Mary de24 Vernon (3153)XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)" (William, #26228802) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Robert de Courtenay Sir (3152)XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  She married Peter de Prouz Sir (3289)XE "Prouz:Peter de Sir (3289)"

XE "Prouz:Peter de Sir  (3289)" in 1200 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

13114640.  Earl Humphrey V24 de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) was born circa 1208 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He married Maud D'Eu (5200)XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" (see #13114417), daughter of Count Raoul I de Lusignan D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" and Countess Alice D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died on 24 Sep 1275 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     (an unknown value) (2nd Earl of Hereford and after divorce of his mother 1236, 7th Earl of Essex, Constable of england, sheriff of Kent) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

     Children of Earl Humphrey V24 de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" and Maud D'Eu (5200)XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" (see #13114417) were:


 6557208.
i.
Humphrey VI23 (5180).XE "de Bohun:Humphrey VI  (5180) (        -27 Oct 1265)"
13114641.  Maud24 D'Eu (5200)XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" (Raoul, #26228834) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.)XE "de Bohun:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)" married Earl Humphrey V de Bohun (5199)XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V (Earl)  (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)"

XE "de Bohun:Humphrey V Earl (5199) (circa 1208-24 Sep 1275)" (see #13114416) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died on 14 Aug 1241 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).

13114642.  William de24 Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" (Reginald, #26228836) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Eve Marshal (3363)XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  He died on 2 May 1230.

     Children of William de24 Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" and Eve Marshal (3363)XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" (see #13114419) were as follows:


 6557209.
i.
Eleanor de23 (5181).XE "Braiose:Eleanor de  (5181)"

 
ii.
Maud de (5184)XE "Braiose:Maud de  (5184) (        -before 23 Mar 1301)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married 6th Baron Roger de Mortimer (5185)XE "Mortimer:Roger de (6th Baron)  (5185) (1231-before 30 Oct 1282)"

XE "Mortimer:Roger de 6th Baron (5185) (1231-before 30 Oct 1282)" in 1247 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died before 23 Mar 1301 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).


 
iii.
Eva de (5186)XE "Braiose:Eva de  (5186) (        -1255)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) married Baron William de Cantelou (5187)XE "Cantelou:William de (Baron)  (5187) (        -25 Sep 1254)"

XE "Cantelou:William de Baron (5187) (        -25 Sep 1254)" before 15 Feb 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died in 1255 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).

13114643.  Eve24 Marshal (3363)XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)" (William, #26228838) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1206 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She married William de Braiose (3379)XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died before 1246.

13114648.  John Lackland of24 England King (3105)XE "England:John Lackland of King (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)"

XE "England:John Lackland of King  (3105) (24 Dec 1167-19 Oct 1216)" (Henry, #10225024) (see #5112512).

13114649.  Isabella of24 Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" (Aymer Valence, #10225026) (see #5112513).

13114652.  King Alfonso IX24 de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.) was born in 1166 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.).  He married Berengaria of Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (see #13114429), daughter of King Alfonso VIII of Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" and Eleanor of England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1229 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 &  104.).

     Children of King Alfonso IX24 de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" and Berengaria of Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (see #13114429) were:


 6557214.
i.
Fernando III of23 (5084).XE "Castile:Fernando III of (King) the Saint (5084) (1191-1252)"

XE "Castile:Fernando III of the Saint King (5084) (1191-1252)"
13114653.  Berengaria of24 Castile (5087)XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)" (Alfonso, #26228858) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married King Alfonso IX de Leon (5086)XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX (King)  (5086) (1166-1229)"

XE "de Leon:Alfonso IX King (5086) (1166-1229)" (see #13114428) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1244 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

13114654.  Count Simon de24 Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Marie of Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (see #13114431), daughter of Count William III of Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" and Countess Alice (Alix) of France (5102),XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" circa 1210 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1239 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count Simon de24 Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" and Marie of Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (see #13114431) were:


 6557215.
i.
Joan de23 (5085).XE "Dammartin:Joan de  (5085) (        -1279)"
13114655.  Marie of24 Ponthieu (5099)XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)" (William, #26228862) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Count Simon de Dammartin (5098)XE "Dammartin:Simon de (Count)  (5098) (        -1239)"

XE "Dammartin:Simon de Count (5098) (        -1239)" (see #13114430) circa 1210 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married Mathieu de Montmorency (5100)XE "Montmorency:Mathieu de  (5100) (        -Feb 1250)" after 1211 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1250 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

Generation Twenty-FiveTC "Generation Twenty-Five" \l 2
20450048.  Geoffrey V25 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born on 24 Aug 1113.  He married Matilda of England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" on 3 Apr 1127 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He died on 7 Sep 1151 at age 38.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Anjou, Duke of Normandy).

     Children of Geoffrey V25 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" and Matilda of England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (see #20450049) were:


 10225024.
i.
Henry II of24 (3107).XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"
20450049.  Matilda of25 England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (Henry, #40900098) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born in Feb 1102 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She married Henry V of Germany Emperor (3472)XE "Germany:Henry V of Emperor (3472) (-22 May 1125)"

XE "Germany:Henry V of Emperor  (3472) (-22 May 1125)" before 22 May 1125 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She married Geoffrey V Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" on 3 Apr 1127 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She died on 10 Sep 1167 at age 65.

     (an unknown value) (The daughter of HENRY I of England and mother of HENRY II, Matilda, was frustrated in her ambition to become queen of England.  She first married (1114) Holy Roman Emperor HENRY V.  After his death (1125) she returned to England, where she was recognized (1127) as her father's heir, her only legitimate brother having died in 1120. Matilda's waspish personality and her unpopular marriage (1128) to Geoffrey Plantagenet, count of Anjou, a bristling warrior, alienated her supporters.  On Henry I's death in 1135, Matilda's cousin STEPHEN was proclaimed king, and she went to war to claim her inheritance.  For a few months in 1141 she held the upper hand in the conflict, but she was never crowned. Matilda gave up her struggle and left England in 1148, spending her remaining years in Normandy.  In 1154, however, her eldest son by Geoffrey, Henry, succeeded to the English throne. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography:  Cronne, H.  A., The Reign of Stephen, 1135-54: Anarchy in England (1970);  Davis, R. H. C., King Stephen, 3d ed.  (1990)).

20450050.  Duke William VIII of25 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (William, #40900100) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1099 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Eleanor (or Aenor) de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051) in 1121 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died on 9 Apr 1137 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Duke William VIII of25 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" and Eleanor (or Aenor) de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051) were:


 10225025.
i.
Eleonor of24 (3108).XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)"
20450051.  Eleanor (or Aenor)25 de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Duke William VIII of Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (see #20450050), son of Duke William VII Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" and Philippa (Mathilda) of Toulouse (5093),XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" in 1121 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died after Mar 1130 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

20450052.  William IV of25 Angouleme Count (3551)XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)" (Wulgrim, #40900104) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) married Marguerite de Turenne (3550)XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  He died in 1178.

     Children of William IV of25 Angouleme Count (3551)XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)" and Marguerite de Turenne (3550)XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)" (see #20450053) were:


 10225026.
i.
Aymer "Taillifer" de24 (3410).XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"
20450053.  Marguerite de25 Turenne (3550)XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)" (Raymond, #40900106) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) married William IV of Angouleme Count (3551)XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  She died.

20450054.  Pierre of25 France (3162)XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)" (Louis, #40900108) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) was born circa 1126 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).  He married Elizabeth de Courtenay (3160).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)"  He died before 1183.

     (an unknown value) (Crusader 1147, was in England in 1178).

     Children of Pierre of25 France (3162)XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)" and Elizabeth de Courtenay (3160)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)" (see #20450055) were:


 10225027.
i.
Alice de24 (3411).XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)"
20450055.  Elizabeth de25 Courtenay (3160)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)" (Renaud, #40900110) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Pierre of France (3162).XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)"  She died.

20450244.  (--?--)25 Roscelin Viscount of Maine (2950)XE "Roscelin:(--?--) Viscount of Maine (2950) (-after 1145)"

XE "Roscelin:(--?--) Viscount of Maine  (2950) (-after 1145)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married Constance (--?--) (2949)XE "(--?--):Constance  (2949)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  He died after 1145.

     Children of (--?--)25 Roscelin Viscount of Maine (2950)XE "Roscelin:(--?--) Viscount of Maine (2950) (-after 1145)"

XE "Roscelin:(--?--) Viscount of Maine  (2950) (-after 1145)" and Constance (--?--) (2949)XE "(--?--):Constance  (2949)" (see #20450245) were:


 10225122.
i.
Richard I de24 (2947).XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine (2947) (-after 1194)"

XE "Beaumont:Richard I de Viscount of Maine  (2947) (-after 1194)"
20450245.  Constance25 (--?--) (2949)XE "(--?--):Constance  (2949)" (Henry England, #40900490) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.) married (--?--) Roscelin Viscount of Maine (2950)XE "Roscelin:(--?--) Viscount of Maine (2950) (-after 1145)"

XE "Roscelin:(--?--) Viscount of Maine  (2950) (-after 1145)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93.).  She died.

23005828.  Roger de25 Clare Earl (4327)XE "Clare:Roger de Earl (4327) (-1173)"

XE "Clare:Roger de Earl  (4327) (-1173)" (Richard, #46011656) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 213.) was born (Adult by 1155/6).  He married Maud de St. Hilary (4328).XE "St. Hilary:Maud de  (4328)"  He died in 1173.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Hertford).

     Children of Roger de25 Clare Earl (4327)XE "Clare:Roger de Earl (4327) (-1173)"

XE "Clare:Roger de Earl  (4327) (-1173)" and Maud de St. Hilary (4328)XE "St. Hilary:Maud de  (4328)" (see #23005829) were as follows:


 11502914.
i.
Richard de24 (4324).XE "Clare:Richard de Earl (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)"

XE "Clare:Richard de Earl  (4324) (-28 Nov 1217)"

 
ii.
Aveline de (4333)XE "Clare:Aveline de  (4333) (-1225)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 213.) married William de Munchanesy (4334).XE "Munchanesy:William de  (4334)"  She married Geoffrey Fitz Peter (4335)XE "Peter:Geoffrey Fitz  (4335)" on 29 May 1205.  She died in 1225.

23005829.  Maud de25 St. Hilary (4328)XE "St. Hilary:Maud de  (4328)" (James St. Hilry, #46011658) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 209.) married Roger de Clare Earl (4327).XE "Clare:Roger de Earl (4327) (-1173)"

XE "Clare:Roger de Earl  (4327) (-1173)"
23005832.  Owain I25 Gwyned (4341)XE "Gwyned:Owain I  (4341) (1100-1170)" (Griffith (?), #46011664) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 151 & 203.) was born in 1100.  He married Gladys ap Trahaern (4342).XE "Trahaern:Gladys ap  (4342)"  He died in 1170.

     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales).

     Children of Owain I25 Gwyned (4341)XE "Gwyned:Owain I  (4341) (1100-1170)" and Gladys ap Trahaern (4342)XE "Trahaern:Gladys ap  (4342)" (see #23005833) are:


 11502916.
i.
Iorwerth24 (4336).XE "Drwyndwn:Iorwerth  (4336)"
23005833.  Gladys ap25 Trahaern (4342)XE "Trahaern:Gladys ap  (4342)" married Owain I Gwyned (4341).XE "Gwyned:Owain I  (4341) (1100-1170)"
23005834.  Madog ap25 Maredudd (4338)XE "Maredudd:Madog ap  (4338) (-1160)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 151.) married Susanna ap Cynan (4339).XE "Cynan:Susanna ap  (4339)"  He died in 1160.

     (an unknown value) (Ruler of Powys).

     Children of Madog ap25 Maredudd (4338)XE "Maredudd:Madog ap  (4338) (-1160)" and Susanna ap Cynan (4339)XE "Cynan:Susanna ap  (4339)" (see #23005835) are:


 11502917.
i.
Marared ap24 (4337).XE "Maredudd:Marared ap  (4337)"
23005835.  Susanna ap25 Cynan (4339)XE "Cynan:Susanna ap  (4339)" (Gryffydd, #46011670) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 151.) married Madog ap Maredudd (4338).XE "Maredudd:Madog ap  (4338) (-1160)"
23005836.  Henry II of25 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" (Geoffrey Plantagenet, #20450048) (see #10225024).

23005837.  Eleonor of25 Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (William, #20450050) (see #10225025).

23005842.  William I the Lion of25 Scotland King (4008)XE "Scotland:William I the Lion of King (4008) (1143-4 Dec 1214)"

XE "Scotland:William I the Lion of King  (4008) (1143-4 Dec 1214)" (Henry, #46011684) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 340.) was born in 1143.  He married Ermengarde de Beaumont (4010)XE "Beaumont:Ermengarde de  (4010)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 340.).  He died on 4 Dec 1214.

     Children of William I the Lion of25 Scotland King (4008)XE "Scotland:William I the Lion of King (4008) (1143-4 Dec 1214)"

XE "Scotland:William I the Lion of King  (4008) (1143-4 Dec 1214)" and Unknown Avenal (4009)XE "Avenal:Unknown  (4009)" (see #23005843) were:


 11502921.
i.
Isabel of24 (4007).XE "Scotland:Isabel of  (4007)"
23005843.  Unknown25 Avenal (4009).XE "Avenal:Unknown  (4009)"
23005844.  Herbert25 Fitz Herbert (4138)XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4138) (before 1165-before Jun 1204)" (Herbert, #46011688) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 237.) was born before 1165.  He married Lucy of Hereford (4139)XE "Hereford:Lucy of  (4139)" in 1196 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, 5 of Line 237.).  He died before Jun 1204.

     (an unknown value) (Adult by 1165).

     Children of Herbert25 Fitz Herbert (4138)XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4138) (before 1165-before Jun 1204)" and Lucy of Hereford (4139)XE "Hereford:Lucy of  (4139)" (see #23005845) were:


 11502922.
i.
Piers24 (4136).XE "Fitz Herbert:Piers  (4136) (-before 6 Jun 1235)"
23005845.  Lucy of25 Hereford (4139)XE "Hereford:Lucy of  (4139)" (Miles Fitz Walter, #46011690) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 237.) married Herbert Fitz Herbert (4138)XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4138) (before 1165-before Jun 1204)" in 1196 (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, 5 of Line 237.).

     (an unknown value) (Dau. & coh., liv. 1219 or 1220, Lady of Blaen Llyfni and Bwlch y Dinas, co. Brecknock, bur. Chapter House of Lanthony, near Gloucester, heir to a 1/3 interest in the barony of Miles of Gloucester, her father).

23005846.  Robert25 Fitz Roger Lord (4165)XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord (4165) (before 1177-1214)"

XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord  (4165) (before 1177-1214)" (Roger Fitz Richard, #46011692) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 27 of Line 246D.) was born before 1177.  He married Margaret de Chesney (4166)XE "Chesney:Margaret de  (4166)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 27 of Line 246D.).  He died in 1214.

     (an unknown value) (2nd Lord of Warkworth, lord of Clavering, Essex, sheriff of Northumberland).

     Children of Robert25 Fitz Roger Lord (4165)XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord (4165) (before 1177-1214)"

XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord  (4165) (before 1177-1214)" and Margaret de Chesney (4166)XE "Chesney:Margaret de  (4166)" (see #23005847) were:


 11502923.
i.
Alice24 (4137).XE "Fitz Robert:Alice  (4137) (-circa 1225)"
23005847.  Margaret de25 Chesney (4166)XE "Chesney:Margaret de  (4166)" (William, #46011694) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.) married Hugh de Cressi (4168)XE "Cressi:Hugh de  (4168)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 27 of Line 246D.).  She married Robert Fitz Roger Lord (4165)XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord (4165) (before 1177-1214)"

XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord  (4165) (before 1177-1214)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 27 of Line 246D.).  She died.

24100864.  John de25 Warenne Earl (3263)XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3263) (30 Jun 1286-29 Jun 1347)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3263) (30 Jun 1286-29 Jun 1347)" (William, #48201728) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) was born on 30 Jun 1286.  He died on 29 Jun 1347 at age 60.

     (an unknown value) (8th and last Earl of Surrey of his family, died without legitimate male issue).

     Children of John de25 Warenne Earl (3263)XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3263) (30 Jun 1286-29 Jun 1347)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3263) (30 Jun 1286-29 Jun 1347)" and Maud of Nerford (3264)XE "Nerford:Maud of  (3264)" (see #24100865) were:


 12050432.
i.
Edward de24 (3265).XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight (3265) (-before 1369)"

XE "Warenne:Edward de Sir Knight  (3265) (-before 1369)"
24100865.  Maud of25 Nerford (3264)XE "Nerford:Maud of  (3264)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

24100866.  Nicholas de25 Eton Sir Knight (3630)XE "Eton:Nicholas de Sir Knight (3630)"

XE "Eton:Nicholas de Sir Knight  (3630)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) died.

     Children of Nicholas de25 Eton Sir Knight (3630)XE "Eton:Nicholas de Sir Knight (3630)"

XE "Eton:Nicholas de Sir Knight  (3630)" include:


 12050433.
i.
Cecily de24 (3260).XE "Eton:Cecily de  (3260)"
26222592.  William Gouel25 de Percival Lord of Yory (1977)XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory (1977) (-1153)"

XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory  (1977) (-1153)" (Asceline unknown, #52445184) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) married Auberie de Bellmont (1978).XE "de Bellmont:Auberie  (1978)"  He died in 1153 (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.).

     (an unknown value) (Surnamed also Lupellus - "the little Wolf." From whom descend the house of Lupel or Luvel or Lovel. He was lord of Yory in Normandy and founder of Castle Kary, Somerset County, England. He conspired against his king, Henry I, of England, in 1123, and against King Stephen in 1153. He died between 1153 and 1159).

     Children of William Gouel25 de Percival Lord of Yory (1977)XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory (1977) (-1153)"

XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory  (1977) (-1153)" and Auberie de Bellmont (1978)XE "de Bellmont:Auberie  (1978)" (see #26222593) were:


 13111296.
i.
Richard24 (1976).XE "de Percival:Richard  (1976) (-1202)"
26222593.  Auberie25 de Bellmont (1978)XE "de Bellmont:Auberie  (1978)" (Robert, #52445186) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) married William Gouel de Percival Lord of Yory (1977).XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory (1977) (-1153)"

XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory  (1977) (-1153)"  She died.

26222594.  William25 de Mohun Lord of Dunster (2067)XE "de Mohun:William Lord of Dunster (2067)"

XE "de Mohun:William Lord of Dunster  (2067)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Name may also have been Moion. Lord of Duster, County Somerset).

     Children of William25 de Mohun Lord of Dunster (2067)XE "de Mohun:William Lord of Dunster (2067)"

XE "de Mohun:William Lord of Dunster  (2067)" include:


 13111297.
i.
unknown24 (2066).XE "Mohun:unknown  (2066)"
26228800.  Reginald de25 Courtenay (3161)XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)" (Renaud, #40900110) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) was born circa 1150.  He married Hawise de Courcy (3155)XE "Courcy:Hawise de  (3155) (-31 Jul 1219)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  He died on 27 Sep 1194.

     (an unknown value) (Held barony of Oakhampton j.u. (right of wife)).

     Children of Reginald de25 Courtenay (3161)XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)" and Hawise de Courcy (3155)XE "Courcy:Hawise de  (3155) (-31 Jul 1219)" (see #26228801) were:


 13114400.
i.
Robert de24 (3152).XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"
26228801.  Hawise de25 Courcy (3155)XE "Courcy:Hawise de  (3155) (-31 Jul 1219)" married Reginald de Courtenay (3161)XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  She died on 31 Jul 1219.

26228802.  an unknown person (Baldwin Reviers, #52457604) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) was born in 1155.  He married Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de Beaumont (3290)XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died in Sep 1217.

     (an unknown value) (Fifth Earl of Devon).

     Children of an unknown person and Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de Beaumont (3290)XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)" (see #26228803) were:


 13114401.
i.
Mary de24 (3153).XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)"
26228803.  Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de25 Beaumont (3290)XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)" (Robert, #52457606) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married an unknown person (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died after 1 May 1204.

26228834.  Count Raoul I de Lusignan25 D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) married Countess Alice D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (see #26228835), daughter of Count Henry D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" and Maud de Warenne (3278),XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" circa 1191 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  He died on 1 May 1219 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).

     (an unknown value) (bro. Hugh IX & son of Hugh d.y.(son of Hugh VIII, Sire de Lusignan & wife Bourgogne)) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).

     Children of Count Raoul I de Lusignan25 D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" and Countess Alice D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (see #26228835) were:


 13114417.
i.
Maud24 (5200).XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)"
26228835.  Countess Alice25 D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (Henry, #52457670) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) married Count Raoul I de Lusignan D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" (see #26228834) circa 1191 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  She died on 15 May 1246 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).

26228836.  Reginald de25 Braiose (5188)XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)" (William, #52457672) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Grace (Gracia) de Briwere (5189)XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)" (see #26228837), daughter of William de Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" and Beatrice de Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  He died in 1228 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of Reginald de25 Braiose (5188)XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)" and Grace (Gracia) de Briwere (5189)XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)" (see #26228837) were:


 13114418.
i.
William de24 (3379).XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)"
26228837.  Grace (Gracia) de25 Briwere (5189)XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)" (William, #52457674) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Reginald de Braiose (5188)XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)" (see #26228836), son of 5th Baron William de Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" and Maud de St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  She died before 1215 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

26228838.  William25 Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" (John, #52457676) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1146 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  He married Isabel de Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" in Aug 1189 at London, Middlesex, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 14 May 1219 at London, Middlesex, England.

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Pembroke, Marshal of England, Protector, Regent of the Kingdom. His Earldom gave him large estates in Wales and Ireland. He remained true to King John through the Baron's War and was one of the King's Executors. He was succeeded in the Earldom by each of his five sons, all of whom died without issue, but each of his five daughters married and left descendants).

     Children of William25 Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" and Isabel de Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" (see #26228839) were as follows:


 192806913.
i.
Maud24 (3275).XE "Marshal:Maud  (3275) (circa 1192-27 Mar 1248)"

 
ii.
Isabel (3362)XE "Marshal:Isabel  (3362) (circa 1203-17 Jan 1240)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants, Page 70.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 67.) was born circa 1203.  She married Gilbert de Clare Earl (4326)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (4326) (1180-25 Oct 1230)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (4326) (1180-25 Oct 1230)" on 9 Oct 1217.  She died on 17 Jan 1240.


 
iii.
Sibyl (3364)XE "Marshal:Sibyl  (3364) (circa 1204-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1204 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She died.


 13114419.
iv.
Eve (3363).XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)"
26228839.  Isabel de25 Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" (Richard, #52457678) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1173 at Pembroke, Wales, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married William Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" in Aug 1189 at London, Middlesex, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died in 1220 at Pembroke, Wales, England.

     (an unknown value) (Heiress of Pembroke, Leinster, Bienfaite and Orbec).

26228848.  Henry II of25 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" (Geoffrey Plantagenet, #20450048) (see #10225024).

26228849.  Eleonor of25 Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (William, #20450050) (see #10225025).

26228850.  Aymer "Taillifer" de25 Valence Count (3410)XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)" (William Angouleme, #20450052) (see #10225026).

26228851.  Alice de25 Courtenay (3411)XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)" (Pierre France, #20450054) (see #10225027).

26228858.  King Alfonso VIII of25 Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1155 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Eleanor of England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (see #26228859), daughter of Henry II of England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" and Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108),XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" in 1169 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1214 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of King Alfonso VIII of25 Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" and Eleanor of England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (see #26228859) were:


 13114429.
i.
Berengaria of24 (5087).XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)"
26228859.  Eleanor of25 England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (Henry, #10225024) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1161 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married King Alfonso VIII of Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" (see #26228858) in 1169 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1214 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

26228862.  Count William III of25 Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" (John, #52457724) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1179 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Countess Alice (Alix) of France (5102)XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" (see #26228863), daughter of King Louis VII of France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" and Alix of Champagne (5103),XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" on 20 Aug 1195 at Meudon (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died on 4 Oct 1221 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count William III of25 Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" and Countess Alice (Alix) of France (5102)XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" (see #26228863) were:


 13114431.
i.
Marie of24 (5099).XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)"
26228863.  Countess Alice (Alix) of25 France (5102)XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" (Louis, #52457726) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1170 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married Count William III of Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" (see #26228862), son of Count John I of Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" and Beatrice Candavaine of St. Pol (5108),XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" on 20 Aug 1195 at Meudon (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

26229248.  Reginald de25 Courtenay (3161)XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)" (Renaud, #40900110) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) was born circa 1150.  He married Hawise de Courcy (3155)XE "Courcy:Hawise de  (3155) (-31 Jul 1219)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  He died on 27 Sep 1194.

     (an unknown value) (Held barony of Oakhampton j.u. (right of wife)).

     Children of Reginald de25 Courtenay (3161)XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)" and Hawise de Courcy (3155)XE "Courcy:Hawise de  (3155) (-31 Jul 1219)" (see #26228801) were:


 13114400.
i.
Robert de24 (3152).XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"

XE "Courtenay:Robert de Sir  (3152) (circa 1183-circa 27 Jul 1242)"
26229249.  Hawise de25 Courcy (3155)XE "Courcy:Hawise de  (3155) (-31 Jul 1219)" married Reginald de Courtenay (3161)XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).  She died on 31 Jul 1219.

26229250.  an unknown person (Baldwin Reviers, #52457604) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) was born in 1155.  He married Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de Beaumont (3290)XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died in Sep 1217.

     (an unknown value) (Fifth Earl of Devon).

     Children of an unknown person and Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de Beaumont (3290)XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)" (see #26228803) were:


 13114401.
i.
Mary de24 (3153).XE "Vernon:Mary de  (3153)"
26229251.  Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de25 Beaumont (3290)XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)" (Robert, #52457606) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married an unknown person (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died after 1 May 1204.

26229282.  Count Raoul I de Lusignan25 D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) married Countess Alice D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (see #26228835), daughter of Count Henry D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" and Maud de Warenne (3278),XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" circa 1191 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  He died on 1 May 1219 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).

     (an unknown value) (bro. Hugh IX & son of Hugh d.y.(son of Hugh VIII, Sire de Lusignan & wife Bourgogne)) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).

     Children of Count Raoul I de Lusignan25 D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" and Countess Alice D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (see #26228835) were:


 13114417.
i.
Maud24 (5200).XE "D'Eu:Maud  (5200) (        -14 Aug 1241)"
26229283.  Countess Alice25 D'Eu (5202)XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)" (Henry, #52457670) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) married Count Raoul I de Lusignan D'Eu (5201)XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan (Count)  (5201) (        -1 May 1219)"

XE "D'Eu:Raoul I de Lusignan Count (5201) (        -1 May 1219)" (see #26228834) circa 1191 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  She died on 15 May 1246 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).

26229284.  Reginald de25 Braiose (5188)XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)" (William, #52457672) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Grace (Gracia) de Briwere (5189)XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)" (see #26228837), daughter of William de Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" and Beatrice de Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  He died in 1228 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of Reginald de25 Braiose (5188)XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)" and Grace (Gracia) de Briwere (5189)XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)" (see #26228837) were:


 13114418.
i.
William de24 (3379).XE "Braiose:William de  (3379) (-2 May 1230)"
26229285.  Grace (Gracia) de25 Briwere (5189)XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)" (William, #52457674) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Reginald de Braiose (5188)XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)" (see #26228836), son of 5th Baron William de Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" and Maud de St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  She died before 1215 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

26229286.  William25 Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" (John, #52457676) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1146 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  He married Isabel de Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" in Aug 1189 at London, Middlesex, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 14 May 1219 at London, Middlesex, England.

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Pembroke, Marshal of England, Protector, Regent of the Kingdom. His Earldom gave him large estates in Wales and Ireland. He remained true to King John through the Baron's War and was one of the King's Executors. He was succeeded in the Earldom by each of his five sons, all of whom died without issue, but each of his five daughters married and left descendants).

     Children of William25 Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" and Isabel de Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" (see #26228839) were as follows:


 192806913.
i.
Maud24 (3275).XE "Marshal:Maud  (3275) (circa 1192-27 Mar 1248)"

 
ii.
Isabel (3362)XE "Marshal:Isabel  (3362) (circa 1203-17 Jan 1240)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants, Page 70.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 67.) was born circa 1203.  She married Gilbert de Clare Earl (4326)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (4326) (1180-25 Oct 1230)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (4326) (1180-25 Oct 1230)" on 9 Oct 1217.  She died on 17 Jan 1240.


 
iii.
Sibyl (3364)XE "Marshal:Sibyl  (3364) (circa 1204-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1204 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She died.


 13114419.
iv.
Eve (3363).XE "Marshal:Eve  (3363) (circa 1206-before 1246)"
26229287.  Isabel de25 Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" (Richard, #52457678) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1173 at Pembroke, Wales, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married William Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" in Aug 1189 at London, Middlesex, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died in 1220 at Pembroke, Wales, England.

     (an unknown value) (Heiress of Pembroke, Leinster, Bienfaite and Orbec).

26229296.  Henry II of25 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" (Geoffrey Plantagenet, #20450048) (see #10225024).

26229297.  Eleonor of25 Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (William, #20450050) (see #10225025).

26229298.  Aymer "Taillifer" de25 Valence Count (3410)XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)" (William Angouleme, #20450052) (see #10225026).

26229299.  Alice de25 Courtenay (3411)XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)" (Pierre France, #20450054) (see #10225027).

26229306.  King Alfonso VIII of25 Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1155 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Eleanor of England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (see #26228859), daughter of Henry II of England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" and Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108),XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" in 1169 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1214 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of King Alfonso VIII of25 Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" and Eleanor of England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (see #26228859) were:


 13114429.
i.
Berengaria of24 (5087).XE "Castile:Berengaria of  (5087) (        -1244)"
26229307.  Eleanor of25 England (5089)XE "England:Eleanor of  (5089) (1161-1214)" (Henry, #10225024) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1161 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married King Alfonso VIII of Castile (5088)XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of (King)  (5088) (1155-1214)"

XE "Castile:Alfonso VIII of King (5088) (1155-1214)" (see #26228858) in 1169 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died in 1214 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

26229310.  Count William III of25 Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" (John, #52457724) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1179 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Countess Alice (Alix) of France (5102)XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" (see #26228863), daughter of King Louis VII of France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" and Alix of Champagne (5103),XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" on 20 Aug 1195 at Meudon (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died on 4 Oct 1221 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count William III of25 Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" and Countess Alice (Alix) of France (5102)XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" (see #26228863) were:


 13114431.
i.
Marie of24 (5099).XE "Ponthieu:Marie of  (5099) (        -1250)"
26229311.  Countess Alice (Alix) of25 France (5102)XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )" (Louis, #52457726) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1170 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married Count William III of Ponthieu (5101)XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)" (see #26228862), son of Count John I of Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" and Beatrice Candavaine of St. Pol (5108),XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" on 20 Aug 1195 at Meudon (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

Generation Twenty-SixTC "Generation Twenty-Six" \l 2
40900096.  Fulk V the Young of26 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) was born in 1092.  He married Erembourg of Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" in 1110 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He married Melisende de Rethel (3541)XE "Rethel:Melisende de  (3541) (-11 Sep 1161)" on 2 Jun 1129 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died on 10 Nov 1143 at Jerusalem, Palestine.

     (an unknown value) (The two Angevin dynasties in medieval Europe originated from the French countship of ANJOU.  In 1131, Fulk V, count of Anjou, became king of the Latin Kingdom of Jerusalem, which his descendants ruled until 1186.  Fulk's eldest son, Geoffrey Plantagenet, married (1128) MATILDA, queen of England, and their son HENRY II became (1154) the first Angevin, or Plantagenet, king of England.  This house ruled England until Richard II was overthrown (1399) by Henry IV of Lancaster).

     Children of Fulk V the Young of26 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" and Erembourg of Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (see #40900097) were:


 20450048.
i.
Geoffrey V25 (3109).XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"
40900097.  Erembourg of26 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Fulk V the Young of Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" in 1110 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died in 1126.

40900098.  Henry I of26 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) was born in 1068.  He married Matilda of Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" on 11 Nov 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93 & 108.).  He married Adeliza of Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" on 29 Jan 1121 (Without issue by this marriage) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He died on 1 Dec 1135.

     (an unknown value) (Beauclerc. Sources: G. E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols I-XII pt. 2 (1910-1959) V 736, VII 737; James Balfour Paul, Scots Peerage, 9 vols. (1904-1914) I 1-2; Century Cyclopedia of Names 494. He had issue by a number of mistresses. 

Henry I, b. 1069, one of the greatest kings of England, ascended the throne on Aug. 5, 1100, and ruled until his death on Dec. 1, 1135. The third son of William I, he succeeded his oldest brother, William II, who died under suspicious circumstances while hunting with Henry. Henry's older brother Robert I (c.1054-1134), duke of Normandy, invaded (1101) England but was forced to recognize Henry as king. Subsequently, Henry seized (1106) Normandy as well. 

In his coronation charter (1100) Henry promised to remedy the alleged misrule of William II; this document was the first English royal charter of liberties, the ancestor of Magna Carta (1215). The king exploited his resources as feudal suzerain; yet in his reign occurred the beginning of the transformation of feudalism by the commutation of personal to financial service. The creation of the office of justiciar and of the royal exchequer also constituted the first appearance of specialization in English government. Royal justice was brought to the local level by itinerant judges, and royal control over the kingdom was strengthened. 

Although many barons objected to the severity of his rule, Henry gave peace, security, and stability to his country. He quarreled with the church over the lay investiture of clergy, forcing the archbishop of Canterbury, Saint ANSELM, into exile for a time. This issue was settled (1107), however, by a compromise that served as the pattern for later resolution of the INVESTITURE CONTROVERSY in Europe. During Henry's reign England participated increasingly in Continental intellectual life. His was also the first post-Conquest reign noted for patronage of learning and of secular officials. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography:  Barlow, Frank, The Feudal Kingdom of England, 1042-1216, 4th ed., (1988);  Poole, A.  L., From Domesday Book to Magna Carta, 1087-1216, 2d ed.  (1955);  Southern, R.  W., Medieval Humanism and Other Studies (1970)).  He was also known as Beauclerc (2951).XE "England:Beauclerc  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"
     Children of Henry I of26 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" and Matilda of Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (see #40900099) were:


 20450049.
i.
Matilda of25 (3110).XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)"
40900099.  Matilda of26 Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.) was born in 1079.  She married Henry I of England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" on 11 Nov 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93 & 108.).  She died on 1 May 1118.

40900100.  Duke William VII26 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (William, #81800200) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born circa 22 Oct 1071 (Count of Poitu 1086-1126, Duke of Aquitaine, crusader 1101, first known singer-poet in vernacular) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Philippa (Mathilda) of Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101) in 1094 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died on 10 Feb 1127 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Duke William VII26 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" and Philippa (Mathilda) of Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101) were:


 20450050.
i.
William VIII of25 (5090).XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"
40900101.  Philippa (Mathilda) of26 Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born circa 1073 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She married Duke William VII Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (see #40900100), son of Count William VI (Geoffrey) of Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" and Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of Burgundy (5095),XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" in 1094 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She and an unknown person were divorced in 1115 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died on 28 Nov 1117 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

40900104.  Wulgrim II of26 Angouleme Count (3552)XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count (3552)"

XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count  (3552)" died.

     Children of Wulgrim II of26 Angouleme Count (3552)XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count (3552)"

XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count  (3552)" include:


 20450052.
i.
William IV of25 (3551).XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)"
40900106.  Raymond I de26 Turenne Vicount (3553)XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)" (Boso, #81800212) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) married Mathilde (Maude) de Perche (3554)XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  He died circa 1122.

     Children of Raymond I de26 Turenne Vicount (3553)XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)" and Mathilde (Maude) de Perche (3554)XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)" (see #40900107) were:


 20450053.
i.
Marguerite de25 (3550).XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)"
40900107.  Mathilde (Maude) de26 Perche (3554)XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)" (Routrou, #81800214) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) was born in 1105.  She married Raymond I de Turenne Vicount (3553)XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  She died in 1143.

40900108.  Louis VI of26 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" (Philip, #81800216) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 105.) was born in 1081.  He married Adelaide de Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" in 1115 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 105.).  He died on 1 Aug 1137 at Chateau Bethizy, Paris, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).

     (an unknown value) (The Fat, King of France 1108-1108; Count of Paris).

     Children of Louis VI of26 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" and Adelaide de Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (see #40900109) were as follows:


 
i.
Philippe of25 (5145)XE "France:Philippe of  (5145) (1116-1131)" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) was born in 1116 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).  He died in 1131 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).


 52457726.
ii.
Louis VII of (3414).XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

 
iii.
Henri of (5146)XE "France:Henri of (Bishop)  (5146) (1121-1175)"

XE "France:Henri of Bishop (5146) (1121-1175)" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) was born in 1121 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).  He died in 1175 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).

     (an unknown value) (Bishop of Beauvais, Archbishop of Reims) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).


 
iv.
Hugh of (5147)XE "France:Hugh of  (5147) (say 1122-        )" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) was born say 1122 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).

     (an unknown value) (died young) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).


 
v.
Robert of (5148)XE "Dreux:Robert of (Count)  (5148) (circa 1123-1188)"

XE "Dreux:Robert of Count (5148) (circa 1123-1188)" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) was born circa 1123 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).  He died in 1188 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).


 
vi.
Constance of (5143)XE "France:Constance of  (5143) (circa 1124-circa 1180)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) was born circa 1124 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).  She married Count Eustace IV of Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)", son of King Stephen of Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" and Maud (Mathilda) of Boulogne (5151),XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" in 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 147.).  She married Count Raymond V. of Toulouse (5144)XE "Toulouse:Raymond V. of (Count)  (5144)"

XE "Toulouse:Raymond V. of Count (5144)" in 1154 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 47.).  She died circa 1180 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     (an unknown value) (died without issue) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).


 20450054.
vii.
Pierre of (3162).XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)"

 
viii.
Philippe of (5149)XE "France:Philippe of (Bishop)  (5149) (circa 1132-1161)"

XE "France:Philippe of Bishop (5149) (circa 1132-1161)" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.) was born circa 1132 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).  He died in 1161 (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).

     (an unknown value) (Bishop of Paris) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 46.).

40900109.  Adelaide de26 Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Louis VI of France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" in 1115 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 105.).  She died on 1 Aug 1154.

40900110.  Renaud de26 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" (Milo, #81800220) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1125 at Sutton, Berkshire, England.  He married Josceline de Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" before 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in Oct 1190 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.).

     (an unknown value) (Witness in 1150 at Rouen in Normandy of charter of Henry, duke of Normandy (later Henry II of England); in 1160 received grant of manor of Sutton, co. Berks, from the king; from that date in constant attendance on the king, perh. a royal secretary; in 1171 accompanied the king in his campaign in Ireland; appears holding land in Devon for first time 1175-1176; in the king's train on his travels in England and France).

     Children of Renaud de26 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" and Josceline de Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" (see #40900111) were as follows:


 20450055.
i.
Elizabeth de25 (3160).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)"

 26228800.
ii.
Reginald de (3161).XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)"
40900111.  Josceline de26 Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" was born circa 1113.  She married Renaud de Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" before 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died after 1158.

40900490.  Henry I of26 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) was born in 1068.  He married Matilda of Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" on 11 Nov 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 93 & 108.).  He married Adeliza of Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" on 29 Jan 1121 (Without issue by this marriage) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  He died on 1 Dec 1135.

     (an unknown value) (Beauclerc. Sources: G. E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols I-XII pt. 2 (1910-1959) V 736, VII 737; James Balfour Paul, Scots Peerage, 9 vols. (1904-1914) I 1-2; Century Cyclopedia of Names 494. He had issue by a number of mistresses. 

Henry I, b. 1069, one of the greatest kings of England, ascended the throne on Aug. 5, 1100, and ruled until his death on Dec. 1, 1135. The third son of William I, he succeeded his oldest brother, William II, who died under suspicious circumstances while hunting with Henry. Henry's older brother Robert I (c.1054-1134), duke of Normandy, invaded (1101) England but was forced to recognize Henry as king. Subsequently, Henry seized (1106) Normandy as well. 

In his coronation charter (1100) Henry promised to remedy the alleged misrule of William II; this document was the first English royal charter of liberties, the ancestor of Magna Carta (1215). The king exploited his resources as feudal suzerain; yet in his reign occurred the beginning of the transformation of feudalism by the commutation of personal to financial service. The creation of the office of justiciar and of the royal exchequer also constituted the first appearance of specialization in English government. Royal justice was brought to the local level by itinerant judges, and royal control over the kingdom was strengthened. 

Although many barons objected to the severity of his rule, Henry gave peace, security, and stability to his country. He quarreled with the church over the lay investiture of clergy, forcing the archbishop of Canterbury, Saint ANSELM, into exile for a time. This issue was settled (1107), however, by a compromise that served as the pattern for later resolution of the INVESTITURE CONTROVERSY in Europe. During Henry's reign England participated increasingly in Continental intellectual life. His was also the first post-Conquest reign noted for patronage of learning and of secular officials. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography:  Barlow, Frank, The Feudal Kingdom of England, 1042-1216, 4th ed., (1988);  Poole, A.  L., From Domesday Book to Magna Carta, 1087-1216, 2d ed.  (1955);  Southern, R.  W., Medieval Humanism and Other Studies (1970)).  He was also known as Beauclerc (2951).XE "England:Beauclerc  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"
     Children of Henry I of26 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" and Mistress (--?--) (2952)XE "(--?--):Mistress  (2952)" (see #40900491) were:


 20450245.
i.
Constance25 (2949).XE "(--?--):Constance  (2949)"
40900491.  Mistress26 (--?--) (2952)XE "(--?--):Mistress  (2952)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 93 & 108.) died.

46011656.  Richard Fitz Gilbert de26 Clare Lord (4331)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)"

XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord  (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)" (Gilbert, #92023312) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 212.) married Adeliz (or Alice) Le Meschin (4332).XE "Le Meschin:Adeliz (or Alice)  (4332)"  He died on 15 Apr 1136 at near Abergavenny (slain by Welsh).

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Clare, Suffolk).

     Children of Richard Fitz Gilbert de26 Clare Lord (4331)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)"

XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord  (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)" and Adeliz (or Alice) Le Meschin (4332)XE "Le Meschin:Adeliz (or Alice)  (4332)" (see #46011657) were:


 23005828.
i.
Roger de25 (4327).XE "Clare:Roger de Earl (4327) (-1173)"

XE "Clare:Roger de Earl  (4327) (-1173)"
46011657.  Adeliz (or Alice)26 Le Meschin (4332)XE "Le Meschin:Adeliz (or Alice)  (4332)" (Ranulph, #92023314) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 212.) married Richard Fitz Gilbert de Clare Lord (4331).XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)"

XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord  (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)"
46011658.  James de26 St. Hilry Lord (4329)XE "St. Hilry:James de Lord (4329)"

XE "St. Hilry:James de Lord  (4329)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 213.) married Aveline (--?--) (4330).XE "(--?--):Aveline  (4330)"
     (an unknown value) (Lord of Field Dalling, Norfolk).

     Children of James de26 St. Hilry Lord (4329)XE "St. Hilry:James de Lord (4329)"

XE "St. Hilry:James de Lord  (4329)" and Aveline (--?--) (4330)XE "(--?--):Aveline  (4330)" (see #46011659) are:


 23005829.
i.
Maud de25 (4328).XE "St. Hilary:Maud de  (4328)"
46011659.  Aveline26 (--?--) (4330)XE "(--?--):Aveline  (4330)" married James de St. Hilry Lord (4329).XE "St. Hilry:James de Lord (4329)"

XE "St. Hilry:James de Lord  (4329)"
46011664.  Griffith26 (--?--) (4343)XE "(--?--):Griffith  (4343) (1055-1137)" (Ragnaillt, #92023328) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) was born in 1055 at Dublin, Ireland.  He married Angharat of Tegaingl (4344)XE "Tegaingl:Angharat of  (4344)" in 1095.  He died in 1137.

     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales).

     Children of Griffith26 (--?--) (4343)XE "(--?--):Griffith  (4343) (1055-1137)" and Angharat of Tegaingl (4344)XE "Tegaingl:Angharat of  (4344)" (see #46011665) were:


 23005832.
i.
Owain I25 (4341).XE "Gwyned:Owain I  (4341) (1100-1170)"
46011665.  Angharat of26 Tegaingl (4344)XE "Tegaingl:Angharat of  (4344)" (Owain Edwin, #92023330) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) married Griffith (--?--) (4343)XE "(--?--):Griffith  (4343) (1055-1137)" in 1095.

46011670.  Gryffydd ap26 Cynan (4340)XE "Cynan:Gryffydd ap  (4340) (-1137)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 151.) died in 1137.

     (an unknown value) (Ruler of Gwynedd (North Wales)).

     Children of Gryffydd ap26 Cynan (4340)XE "Cynan:Gryffydd ap  (4340) (-1137)" include:


 23005835.
i.
Susanna ap25 (4339).XE "Cynan:Susanna ap  (4339)"
46011672.  Geoffrey V26 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

46011673.  Matilda of26 England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (Henry, #40900098) (see #20450049).

46011674.  Duke William VIII of26 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (William, #40900100) (see #20450050).

46011675.  Eleanor (or Aenor)26 de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051).

46011684.  Henry of26 Scotland Earl of Huntingdon (4011)XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)"

XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon  (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)" (David, #92023368) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.) was born in 1114.  He married Ada de Warenne (4012)XE "Warenne:Ada de  (4012) (-1178)" in 1139 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.).  He died on 12 Jun 1152.

     Children of Henry of26 Scotland Earl of Huntingdon (4011)XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)"

XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon  (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)" and Ada de Warenne (4012)XE "Warenne:Ada de  (4012) (-1178)" (see #46011685) were as follows:


 
i.
David of25 (4013)XE "Scotland:David of Earl of Huntigdon (4013)"

XE "Scotland:David of Earl of Huntigdon  (4013)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.) married Maud de Meschines (4014)XE "Meschines:Maud de  (4014)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.).


 
ii.
Malcolm IV of (4015)XE "Scotland:Malcolm IV of King (4015)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm IV of King  (4015)" (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.).


 23005842.
iii.
William I the Lion of (4008).XE "Scotland:William I the Lion of King (4008) (1143-4 Dec 1214)"

XE "Scotland:William I the Lion of King  (4008) (1143-4 Dec 1214)"
46011685.  Ada de26 Warenne (4012)XE "Warenne:Ada de  (4012) (-1178)" (William, #92023370) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.) married Henry of Scotland Earl of Huntingdon (4011)XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)"

XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon  (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)" in 1139 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 170.) (Gary Boyd Roberts, The Royal Descents of 500 Imigrants to the American Colonies or the United States, Page 367.).  She died in 1178.

46011688.  Herbert26 Fitz Herbert (4164)XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4164) (-1155)" (Herbert Winchester, #92023376) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 237.) married Sibyl Corbet (3298)XE "Corbet:Sibyl  (3298)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 237.).  He died in 1155.

     (an unknown value) (son and heir, adult by 1127, succeeded to his father's lands in 1130, dead by 1155, brother of St. William (Fitz herbert), d. 1154, Archbishop of York).

     Children of Herbert26 Fitz Herbert (4164)XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4164) (-1155)" and Sibyl Corbet (3298)XE "Corbet:Sibyl  (3298)" (see #46011689) were:


 23005844.
i.
Herbert25 (4138).XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4138) (before 1165-before Jun 1204)"
46011689.  Sibyl26 Corbet (3298)XE "Corbet:Sibyl  (3298)" married Herbert Fitz Herbert (4164)XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4164) (-1155)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 237.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Sibyl (or Adela or Lucia) Corbet, living 1157, mistress of Henry I, lady of Alcester, co. Warwick and of Pontesbury and Woodcote, co. Salop).

46011690.  Miles26 Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" (Walter Fitz Roger, #92023380) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 177.) married Sibyl de Neufmarché (4141)XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" in 1121 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 177.).  He died on 24 Dec 1143 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 177.).

     (an unknown value) (Of Gloucester, Constable, Earl of Hereford 1141).

     Children of Miles26 Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" and Sibyl de Neufmarché (4141)XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" (see #46011691) were as follows:


 23005845.
i.
Lucy of25 (4139).XE "Hereford:Lucy of  (4139)"

 104915345.
ii.
Bertha of (4144).XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)"
46011691.  Sibyl de26 Neufmarché (4141)XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" (Bernard, #92023382) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 237, 4 of Line 177 & 4 of Line 193.) married Miles Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" in 1121 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 177.).  She died.

46011692.  Roger26 Fitz Richard (4169)XE "Fitz Richard:Roger  (4169) (-1177)" (Richard unknown, #92023384) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.) married Alice de Vere (4170)XE "Vere:Alice de  (4170) (before 1141-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died in 1177.

     (an unknown value) (Adult 1157, 1st Lord of Warkworth, co. Northumberland).

     Children of Roger26 Fitz Richard (4169)XE "Fitz Richard:Roger  (4169) (-1177)" and Alice de Vere (4170)XE "Vere:Alice de  (4170) (before 1141-)" (see #46011693) were:


 23005846.
i.
Robert25 (4165).XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord (4165) (before 1177-1214)"

XE "Fitz Roger:Robert Lord  (4165) (before 1177-1214)"
46011693.  Alice de26 Vere (4170)XE "Vere:Alice de  (4170) (before 1141-)" (Aubrey, #92023386) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.) was born before 1141.  She married Roger Fitz Richard (4169)XE "Fitz Richard:Roger  (4169) (-1177)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died.

46011694.  William de26 Chesney (4167)XE "Chesney:William de  (4167)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 27 of Line 246D.) died.

     (an unknown value) ((styled de Norwich) of Horsford, Norfolk, sheriff of Norfolk & Suffolk).

     Children of William de26 Chesney (4167)XE "Chesney:William de  (4167)" include:


 23005847.
i.
Margaret de25 (4166).XE "Chesney:Margaret de  (4166)"
48201728.  William de26 Warenne Earl (3266)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)" (John, #96403456) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 65, 82 & 192.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born on 7 Feb 1256.  He married Joan de Vere (3267)XE "Vere:Joan de  (3267) (circa 1264-21 Nov 1293)" in Jun 1285 at Surrey, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 15 Dec 1285 at Croydon, Surrey, England, at age 29 (killed in a tournament) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.).

     (an unknown value) (7th. Earl of Surrey).

     Children of William de26 Warenne Earl (3266)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)" and Joan de Vere (3267)XE "Vere:Joan de  (3267) (circa 1264-21 Nov 1293)" (see #48201729) were as follows:


 
i.
Alice de25 (3268)XE "Warenne:Alice de  (3268) (-before 23 May 1338)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) was born at Sussex, England.  She married Edmund Fitz Alan Sir (3269)XE "Fitz Alan:Edmund Sir (3269) (1 May 1285-17 Nov 1326)"

XE "Fitz Alan:Edmund Sir  (3269) (1 May 1285-17 Nov 1326)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants, Page 82.).  She died before 23 May 1338.


 24100864.
ii.
John de (3263).XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3263) (30 Jun 1286-29 Jun 1347)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3263) (30 Jun 1286-29 Jun 1347)"
48201729.  Joan de26 Vere (3267)XE "Vere:Joan de  (3267) (circa 1264-21 Nov 1293)" (Robert, #96403458) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65 & 82.) was born circa 1264 at Oxford, Oxfordshire, England.  She married William de Warenne Earl (3266)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)" in Jun 1285 at Surrey, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 21 Nov 1293.

52445184.  Asceline26 unknown (1979)XE "unknown:Asceline  (1979) (-1119)" (Robert de Yory, #104890368) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) married Isabella unknown (1980)XE "unknown:Isabella  (1980)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.).  He died in 1119.

     (an unknown value) ((Called also Lupus, the Wolf), was given Weston-in-Gordano, and other estates in Somerset County, England. In 1087 he commanded the Norman forces at Mantes, Normandy. It is said that Asceline was dubbed "the Wolf" "because of the fierceness of his temper." - Burke, and other authorities).

     Children of Asceline26 unknown (1979)XE "unknown:Asceline  (1979) (-1119)" and Isabella unknown (1980)XE "unknown:Isabella  (1980)" (see #52445185) were:


 26222592.
i.
William Gouel25 (1977).XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory (1977) (-1153)"

XE "de Percival:William Gouel Lord of Yory  (1977) (-1153)"
52445185.  Isabella26 unknown (1980)XE "unknown:Isabella  (1980)" (William, #104890370) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) married Asceline unknown (1979)XE "unknown:Asceline  (1979) (-1119)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (natural daughter).

52445186.  Robert26 de Bellmont Earl of Mellent (2065)XE "de Bellmont:Robert Earl of Mellent (2065)"

XE "de Bellmont:Robert Earl of Mellent  (2065)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) died.

     (an unknown value) (He was Eearl of Mellent in Normandy and Leicester in England).

     Children of Robert26 de Bellmont Earl of Mellent (2065)XE "de Bellmont:Robert Earl of Mellent (2065)"

XE "de Bellmont:Robert Earl of Mellent  (2065)" include:


 26222593.
i.
Auberie25 (1978).XE "de Bellmont:Auberie  (1978)"
52457600.  Renaud de26 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" (Milo, #81800220) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1125 at Sutton, Berkshire, England.  He married Josceline de Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" before 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in Oct 1190 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.).

     (an unknown value) (Witness in 1150 at Rouen in Normandy of charter of Henry, duke of Normandy (later Henry II of England); in 1160 received grant of manor of Sutton, co. Berks, from the king; from that date in constant attendance on the king, perh. a royal secretary; in 1171 accompanied the king in his campaign in Ireland; appears holding land in Devon for first time 1175-1176; in the king's train on his travels in England and France).

     Children of Renaud de26 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" and Josceline de Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" (see #40900111) were as follows:


 20450055.
i.
Elizabeth de25 (3160).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)"

 26228800.
ii.
Reginald de (3161).XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)"
52457601.  Josceline de26 Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" was born circa 1113.  She married Renaud de Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" before 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died after 1158.

52457604.  Baldwin de26 Reviers (3292)XE "Reviers:Baldwin de  (3292)" died.

     Children of Baldwin de26 Reviers (3292)XE "Reviers:Baldwin de  (3292)" and Adelise (--?--) (3293)XE "(--?--):Adelise  (3293)" (see #52457605) were:


 26228802.
i.
an unknown person.

52457605.  Adelise26 (--?--) (3293).XE "(--?--):Adelise  (3293)"
52457606.  Robert de26 Beaumont Count (3294)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)" (Waleran, #104915212) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Maud Fitz Roy de Mortain (3295)XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)" in 1166 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died in 1207.

     (an unknown value) (Count de Meulan).

     Children of Robert de26 Beaumont Count (3294)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)" and Maud Fitz Roy de Mortain (3295)XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)" (see #52457607) were:


 26228803.
i.
Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de25 (3290).XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)"
52457607.  Maud Fitz Roy de26 Mortain (3295)XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)" (Reginald, #104915214) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Robert de Beaumont Count (3294)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)" in 1166 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

52457670.  Count Henry26 D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" (John, #104915340) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112 &  122.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) married Maud de Warenne (3278)XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  He died on 11 Mar 1183.

     Children of Count Henry26 D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" and Maud de Warenne (3278)XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" (see #52457671) were:


 26228835.
i.
Alice25 (5202).XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"
52457671.  Maud de26 Warenne (3278)XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" (Hamelin Plantagenet, #104915342) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) married Count Henry D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  She married Henry de Stouteville (3280)XE "Stouteville:Henry de  (3280)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  She died circa 1212.

52457672.  5th Baron William de26 Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" (William, #104915344) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Maud de St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (see #52457673) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  He died on 9 Aug 1211 at Corbeil (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of 5th Baron William de26 Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" and Maud de St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (see #52457673) were as follows:


 26228836.
i.
Reginald de25 (5188).XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)"

 
ii.
William (5194)XE "Braiose:William  (5194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

52457673.  Maud de26 St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married 5th Baron William de Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" (see #52457672), son of 1st Baron William de Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" and Bertha of Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  She died in 1210 (murdered by King John who had her walled up alive in her castle walls with her young son William) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

52457674.  William de26 Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Beatrice de Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (see #52457675) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of William de26 Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" and Beatrice de Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (see #52457675) were:


 26228837.
i.
Grace (Gracia) de25 (5189).XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)"
52457675.  Beatrice de26 Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married William de Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" (see #52457674) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

52457676.  John26 Marshal Earl (3365)XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)" (Gilbert, #104915352) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1126 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  He died in 1164.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Salisbury).

     Children of John26 Marshal Earl (3365)XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)" and Sibilla de Everaux (3366)XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)" (see #52457677) were as follows:


 26228838.
i.
William25 (3360).XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

 
ii.
Margaret (3367)XE "Marshal:Margaret  (3367) (circa 1146-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1146 at Warwick, Warwickshire, England.  She died.

52457677.  Sibilla de26 Everaux (3366)XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)" (Walter, #104915354) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She died.

52457678.  Richard Strongbow de26 Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" (Gilbert, #104915356) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) was born circa 1130 at Tonbridge, Kent, England.  He married Aoife (Eve) of Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" circa 26 Aug 1171 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  He died circa 20 Apr 1176.

     (an unknown value) (He was called "Strongbow", he was 2nd Earl of Clare & Pembroke, a statesman fo renoun, Justiciar of Ireland; descended from Sveide The Viking).

     Children of Richard Strongbow de26 Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" and Aoife (Eve) of Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" (see #52457679) were:


 26228839.
i.
Isabel de25 (3361).XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)"
52457679.  Aoife (Eve) of26 Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 150.) was born circa 1136.  She married Richard Strongbow de Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" circa 26 Aug 1171 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died after 1186.

52457696.  Geoffrey V26 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

52457697.  Matilda of26 England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (Henry, #40900098) (see #20450049).

52457698.  Duke William VIII of26 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (William, #40900100) (see #20450050).

52457699.  Eleanor (or Aenor)26 de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051).

52457700.  William IV of26 Angouleme Count (3551)XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)" (Wulgrim, #40900104) (see #20450052).

52457701.  Marguerite de26 Turenne (3550)XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)" (Raymond, #40900106) (see #20450053).

52457702.  Pierre of26 France (3162)XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)" (Louis, #40900108) (see #20450054).

52457703.  Elizabeth de26 Courtenay (3160)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)" (Renaud, #40900110) (see #20450055).

52457718.  Henry II of26 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" (Geoffrey Plantagenet, #20450048) (see #10225024).

52457719.  Eleonor of26 Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (William, #20450050) (see #10225025).

52457724.  Count John I of26 Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" (Guy, #104915448) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Beatrice Candavaine of St. Pol (5108)XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" (see #52457725), daughter of Count Anselme Candavaine of St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" and Eustache de Champagne (5137),XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" circa 1177 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1191 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count John I of26 Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" and Beatrice Candavaine of St. Pol (5108)XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" (see #52457725) were:


 26228862.
i.
William III of25 (5101).XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"
52457725.  Beatrice Candavaine of26 St. Pol (5108)XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" (Anselme, #104915450) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 & 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) married Count John I of Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" (see #52457724), son of Guy II of Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" and Ida (--?--) (5110),XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" circa 1177 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

52457726.  King Louis VII of26 France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" (Louis, #40900108) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born in 1120.  He married Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" on 22 Jul 1137 at Bordeaux, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  Louis (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" was divorced from Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" before 18 May 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Constance of Castile (5104)XE "Castile:Constance of  (5104) (        -4 Oct 1160)" in 1153 at Orleans (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Alix of Champagne (5103)XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" (see #52457727) on 18 Oct 1160 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 18 Sep 1180 at Paris, France.

     (an unknown value) (The Young, King of France 25 Dec. 1137-1180).

     Children of King Louis VII of26 France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" and Alix of Champagne (5103)XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" (see #52457727) were as follows:


 
i.
Philip II Augustus of25 (5105)XE "France:Philip II Augustus of (King)  (5105) (22 Aug 1165-14 Jul 1223)"

XE "France:Philip II Augustus of King (5105) (22 Aug 1165-14 Jul 1223)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born on 22 Aug 1165 at 22 Aug. 1165, Gonesse (King of France 1180-1223, Count of Artoise, Crusader) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Isabella of Hainaut (5106)XE "Hainaut:Isabella of  (5106) (Apr 1170-15 Mar 1190)" on 28 Apr 1180 at Bapaume (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 14 Jul 1223 at Mantes at age 57 (bur. St. Denis) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).


 26228863.
ii.
Alice (Alix) of (5102).XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )"
52457727.  Alix of26 Champagne (5103)XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She married King Louis VII of France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" (see #52457726), son of Louis VI of France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" and Adelaide de Savoy (3413),XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" on 18 Oct 1160 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 24 Jun 1206 at Paris, France (burried Abbaye de Potigny) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).

52458496.  Renaud de26 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" (Milo, #81800220) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1125 at Sutton, Berkshire, England.  He married Josceline de Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" before 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in Oct 1190 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.).

     (an unknown value) (Witness in 1150 at Rouen in Normandy of charter of Henry, duke of Normandy (later Henry II of England); in 1160 received grant of manor of Sutton, co. Berks, from the king; from that date in constant attendance on the king, perh. a royal secretary; in 1171 accompanied the king in his campaign in Ireland; appears holding land in Devon for first time 1175-1176; in the king's train on his travels in England and France).

     Children of Renaud de26 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" and Josceline de Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" (see #40900111) were as follows:


 20450055.
i.
Elizabeth de25 (3160).XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)"

 26228800.
ii.
Reginald de (3161).XE "Courtenay:Reginald de  (3161) (circa 1150-27 Sep 1194)"
52458497.  Josceline de26 Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" was born circa 1113.  She married Renaud de Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" before 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died after 1158.

52458500.  Baldwin de26 Reviers (3292)XE "Reviers:Baldwin de  (3292)" died.

     Children of Baldwin de26 Reviers (3292)XE "Reviers:Baldwin de  (3292)" and Adelise (--?--) (3293)XE "(--?--):Adelise  (3293)" (see #52457605) were:


 26228802.
i.
an unknown person.

52458501.  Adelise26 (--?--) (3293).XE "(--?--):Adelise  (3293)"
52458502.  Robert de26 Beaumont Count (3294)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)" (Waleran, #104915212) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Maud Fitz Roy de Mortain (3295)XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)" in 1166 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died in 1207.

     (an unknown value) (Count de Meulan).

     Children of Robert de26 Beaumont Count (3294)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)" and Maud Fitz Roy de Mortain (3295)XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)" (see #52457607) were:


 26228803.
i.
Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de25 (3290).XE "Beaumont:Maud (Mabel or Mabirie) de  (3290) (-after 1 May 1204)"
52458503.  Maud Fitz Roy de26 Mortain (3295)XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)" (Reginald, #104915214) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Robert de Beaumont Count (3294)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)" in 1166 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

52458566.  Count Henry26 D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" (John, #104915340) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112 &  122.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) married Maud de Warenne (3278)XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  He died on 11 Mar 1183.

     Children of Count Henry26 D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" and Maud de Warenne (3278)XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" (see #52457671) were:


 26228835.
i.
Alice25 (5202).XE "D'Eu:Alice (Countess)  (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"

XE "D'Eu:Alice Countess (5202) (        -15 May 1246)"
52458567.  Maud de26 Warenne (3278)XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)" (Hamelin Plantagenet, #104915342) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.) married Count Henry D'Eu (3279)XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  She married Henry de Stouteville (3280)XE "Stouteville:Henry de  (3280)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 112.).  She died circa 1212.

52458568.  5th Baron William de26 Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" (William, #104915344) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Maud de St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (see #52457673) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  He died on 9 Aug 1211 at Corbeil (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of 5th Baron William de26 Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" and Maud de St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (see #52457673) were as follows:


 26228836.
i.
Reginald de25 (5188).XE "Braiose:Reginald de  (5188) (        -1228)"

 
ii.
William (5194)XE "Braiose:William  (5194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

52458569.  Maud de26 St. Valerie (5193)XE "St. Valerie:Maud de  (5193) (        -1210)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married 5th Baron William de Braiose (5192)XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)" (see #52457672), son of 1st Baron William de Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" and Bertha of Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  She died in 1210 (murdered by King John who had her walled up alive in her castle walls with her young son William) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

52458570.  William de26 Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Beatrice de Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (see #52457675) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of William de26 Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" and Beatrice de Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (see #52457675) were:


 26228837.
i.
Grace (Gracia) de25 (5189).XE "Briwere:Grace (Gracia) de  (5189) (        -before 1215)"
52458571.  Beatrice de26 Vaux (5191)XE "Vaux:Beatrice de  (5191)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married William de Briwere (5190)XE "Briwere:William de  (5190)" (see #52457674) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

52458572.  John26 Marshal Earl (3365)XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)" (Gilbert, #104915352) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1126 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  He died in 1164.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Salisbury).

     Children of John26 Marshal Earl (3365)XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)" and Sibilla de Everaux (3366)XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)" (see #52457677) were as follows:


 26228838.
i.
William25 (3360).XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

 
ii.
Margaret (3367)XE "Marshal:Margaret  (3367) (circa 1146-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1146 at Warwick, Warwickshire, England.  She died.

52458573.  Sibilla de26 Everaux (3366)XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)" (Walter, #104915354) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She died.

52458574.  Richard Strongbow de26 Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" (Gilbert, #104915356) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.) was born circa 1130 at Tonbridge, Kent, England.  He married Aoife (Eve) of Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" circa 26 Aug 1171 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  He died circa 20 Apr 1176.

     (an unknown value) (He was called "Strongbow", he was 2nd Earl of Clare & Pembroke, a statesman fo renoun, Justiciar of Ireland; descended from Sveide The Viking).

     Children of Richard Strongbow de26 Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" and Aoife (Eve) of Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" (see #52457679) were:


 26228839.
i.
Isabel de25 (3361).XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)"
52458575.  Aoife (Eve) of26 Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 150.) was born circa 1136.  She married Richard Strongbow de Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" circa 26 Aug 1171 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69.).  She died after 1186.

52458592.  Geoffrey V26 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

52458593.  Matilda of26 England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (Henry, #40900098) (see #20450049).

52458594.  Duke William VIII of26 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (William, #40900100) (see #20450050).

52458595.  Eleanor (or Aenor)26 de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051).

52458596.  William IV of26 Angouleme Count (3551)XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)" (Wulgrim, #40900104) (see #20450052).

52458597.  Marguerite de26 Turenne (3550)XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)" (Raymond, #40900106) (see #20450053).

52458598.  Pierre of26 France (3162)XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)" (Louis, #40900108) (see #20450054).

52458599.  Elizabeth de26 Courtenay (3160)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)" (Renaud, #40900110) (see #20450055).

52458614.  Henry II of26 England King (3107)XE "England:Henry II of King (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)"

XE "England:Henry II of King  (3107) (5 Mar 1133-6 Jul 1189)" (Geoffrey Plantagenet, #20450048) (see #10225024).

52458615.  Eleonor of26 Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" (William, #20450050) (see #10225025).

52458620.  Count John I of26 Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" (Guy, #104915448) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Beatrice Candavaine of St. Pol (5108)XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" (see #52457725), daughter of Count Anselme Candavaine of St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" and Eustache de Champagne (5137),XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" circa 1177 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died in 1191 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count John I of26 Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" and Beatrice Candavaine of St. Pol (5108)XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" (see #52457725) were:


 26228862.
i.
William III of25 (5101).XE "Ponthieu:William III of (Count)  (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"

XE "Ponthieu:William III of Count (5101) (1179-4 Oct 1221)"
52458621.  Beatrice Candavaine of26 St. Pol (5108)XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)" (Anselme, #104915450) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102 & 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) married Count John I of Ponthieu (5107)XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)" (see #52457724), son of Guy II of Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" and Ida (--?--) (5110),XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" circa 1177 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

52458622.  King Louis VII of26 France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" (Louis, #40900108) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born in 1120.  He married Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" on 22 Jul 1137 at Bordeaux, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  Louis (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" was divorced from Eleonor of Aquitaine and Poitou (3108)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:Eleonor of  (3108) (1123-3 Mar 1204)" before 18 May 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Constance of Castile (5104)XE "Castile:Constance of  (5104) (        -4 Oct 1160)" in 1153 at Orleans (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Alix of Champagne (5103)XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" (see #52457727) on 18 Oct 1160 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 18 Sep 1180 at Paris, France.

     (an unknown value) (The Young, King of France 25 Dec. 1137-1180).

     Children of King Louis VII of26 France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" and Alix of Champagne (5103)XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" (see #52457727) were as follows:


 
i.
Philip II Augustus of25 (5105)XE "France:Philip II Augustus of (King)  (5105) (22 Aug 1165-14 Jul 1223)"

XE "France:Philip II Augustus of King (5105) (22 Aug 1165-14 Jul 1223)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born on 22 Aug 1165 at 22 Aug. 1165, Gonesse (King of France 1180-1223, Count of Artoise, Crusader) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Isabella of Hainaut (5106)XE "Hainaut:Isabella of  (5106) (Apr 1170-15 Mar 1190)" on 28 Apr 1180 at Bapaume (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 14 Jul 1223 at Mantes at age 57 (bur. St. Denis) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).


 26228863.
ii.
Alice (Alix) of (5102).XE "France:Alice (Alix) of (Countess)  (5102) (circa 1170-        )"

XE "France:Alice (Alix) of Countess (5102) (circa 1170-        )"
52458623.  Alix of26 Champagne (5103)XE "Champagne:Alix of  (5103) (circa 1140-24 Jun 1206)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She married King Louis VII of France the Young (3414)XE "France:Louis VII of (King) the Young (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)"

XE "France:Louis VII of the Young King (3414) (1120-18 Sep 1180)" (see #52457726), son of Louis VI of France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" and Adelaide de Savoy (3413),XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" on 18 Oct 1160 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 24 Jun 1206 at Paris, France (burried Abbaye de Potigny) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).

Generation Twenty-SevenTC "Generation Twenty-Seven" \l 2
81800192.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of27 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) was born in 1043.  He married Bertrade (Beatrice) of Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" in 1091 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died on 14 Apr 1109.

     Children of Fulk IV "Rechin" of27 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" and Bertrade (Beatrice) of Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (see #81800193) were:


 40900096.
i.
Fulk V the Young of26 (3537).XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"
81800193.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of27 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Fulk IV "Rechin" of Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" in 1091 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died in 1117.

81800194.  Helias of27 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) died.

     Children of Helias of27 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" include:


 40900097.
i.
Erembourg of26 (3538).XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)"
81800196.  William I the Conqueror of27 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) was born in 1027 at Falaise, Calvados, France.  He married Maud of Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" in 1053 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 9 Sep 1087 at Rouen, Seine, France.

     (an unknown value) (William I, King of England (William the Conqueror)

Duke of Normandy and one of the greatest English kings, William I, b. c.1028, d. Sept. 9, 1087, led the Norman conquest of England and provided stability and firm government in an age of great disorder. The illegitimate son of the Norman duke Robert I, he inherited Normandy in 1035, consolidating his rule in the face of baronial opposition in about 1042. He successfully faced further rebellions and after 1050 began to take an interest in acquiring land in England--perhaps given some encouragement by the English king EDWARD THE CONFESSOR. After Edward's death (Jan. 5, 1066), Vikings under King HAROLD III of Norway moved on England, and William soon followed with an invasion force of his own. The new English king, HAROLD II, defeated the Vikings and confronted the Normans near Hastings in October 1066 (see HASTINGS, BATTLE OF). William's forces achieved a decisive victory, and on Christmas Day 1066, William was crowned king of England, founding the Anglo-Norman monarchy and realm. 

A highly capable, intelligent, and determined man, William I established a strongly personal monarchy. He imposed Norman institutions and personnel both on the state and on the church, and he brought England into the mainstream of continental development. Imposing royal authority directly on courts and other institutions, William ordered the inquests that resulted in the monumental DOMESDAY BOOK. He revolutionized the social, political, and military structures of England, replacing the English nobility with French nobles, thus strengthening his authority, and introducing continental FEUDALISM, a structure in which nobles held land in return for service in the royal army. 

As the Anglo-Saxon state was Normanized, so too was the English church: English bishops and abbots were replaced by noted churchmen from the Continent, including LANFRANC of Bec, who became (1070) archbishop of Canterbury. The Conqueror had been a great reformer of the church in Normandy, and he continued this role in England. He established the archbishop of Canterbury as primate of the English church, held reforming councils (which he attended), and exercised not only his rights but also his responsibilities over the church. The bishops were among his closest advisors and officials. William I kept a close but cool relationship with the papacy, supporting ecclesiastical reform while carefully maintaining his control over the English church. He was succeeded as duke of Normandy by his eldest son, Robert II, and as king of England by his sons, first William II, then Henry I. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography: Barlow, Frank, William I and the Norman Conquest (1965); Douglas, David C., William the Conqueror (1964); Lloyd, A., The Making of the King (1990); Loyn, H. R., Anglo-Saxon England and the Norman Conquest, 2d ed. (1991)).  He was also known as The Conqueror (2954).XE "Normandy:The Conqueror  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"
     Children of William I the Conqueror of27 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" and Maud of Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (see #81800197) were as follows:


 
i.
Robert II of26 (3514)XE "Normandy:Robert II of Duke (3514)"

XE "Normandy:Robert II of Duke  (3514)" died.


 
ii.
William II of (3513)XE "England:William II of King (3513) (circa 1056-2 Aug 1100)"

XE "England:William II of King  (3513) (circa 1056-2 Aug 1100)" was born circa 1056.  He died on 2 Aug 1100.

     (an unknown value) (William II, King of England (William Rufus)

William Rufus, b.  c.1056, king of England, continued, and indeed intensified, the policies of his father, William I (the Conqueror), bringing the English baronage close to the point of open rebellion by the time of his death in an alleged hunting accident--possibly an assassination--on Aug.  2, 1100.  A grasping and disagreeable man, coarse and impulsive, he came to the English throne in 1087, his older brother, Robert, receiving William I's domain in Normandy.  William Rufus was a strong monarch with a lofty regard for kingship and its responsibilities.  He increased the centralization of royal justice and administration and strengthened the Anglo-Norman realm.  Regarded as the oppressor of the English church, William drove Saint ANSELM, archbishop of Canterbury, into exile (1097) over issues of church-state relations and of reform.  He delayed the onset of the English trend that eventually made feudal rights and obligations hereditary among the baronage.  William II was succeeded by his younger brother, Henry I. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography: Freeman, Edward A., The Reign of William Rufus and the Accession of Henry the First, 2 vols. (1882; repr. 1970); Grinnell-Milne, D. W., The Killing of William Rufus (1968); Poole, Austin L., From Domesday Book to Magna Carta, 2d ed. (1955)).


 839323609.
iii.
Adela of (4601).XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)"

 40900098.
iv.
Henry I of (2951).XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"
81800197.  Maud of27 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) was born in 1032 at Flanders, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married William I the Conqueror of Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" in 1053 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died on 3 Nov 1083 at Caen, Caen, Calvados, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     She was also known as Matilda (2955).XE "Flanders:Matilda  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)"
81800198.  Malcolm III Canmore of27 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) was born in 1031.  He married Ingibiorg Arnason (3246)XE "Arnason:Ingibiorg  (3246)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.).  He married Margaret of Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" in Jan 1069 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  He died on 13 Nov 1093.

     (an unknown value) (King of Scots 1058-1093, crowned at Scone, 17 Mar. 1057/8, slain while besieging Alnwick Castle).

     Children of Malcolm III Canmore of27 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" and Margaret of Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (see #81800199) were as follows:


 839323611.
i.
Mary of26 (5153).XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)"

 40900099.
ii.
Matilda of (2953).XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)"

 92023368.
iii.
David I the Saint of (3247).XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)"

XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King  (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)"
81800199.  Margaret of27 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.) was born in 1045.  She married Malcolm III Canmore of Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" in Jan 1069 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  She died on 16 Nov 1093.

     (an unknown value) (Canonized 1250).

81800200.  Count William VI (Geoffrey) of27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born circa 1024 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He married Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (see #81800201), daughter of Robert The Old of Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" and Helie of Semur-en-Auxois (3200),XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" circa 1068 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  He died on 25 Sep 1086 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count William VI (Geoffrey) of27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" and Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (see #81800201) were:


 40900100.
i.
William VII26 (5092).XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"
81800201.  Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of27 Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (Robert, #163600402) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Count William VI (Geoffrey) of Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (see #81800200) circa 1068 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).  She died after 1104 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

81800212.  Boso I of27 Turenne Vicount (3555)XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount (3555)"

XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount  (3555)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) died.

     Children of Boso I of27 Turenne Vicount (3555)XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount (3555)"

XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount  (3555)" include:


 40900106.
i.
Raymond I de26 (3553).XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)"
81800214.  Routrou II de27 Perche Count (3556)XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count  (3556) (-Apr 1144)" (Geoffrey, #163600428) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) married Matilda of England (3557)XE "England:Matilda of  (3557) (1086-25 Nov 1120)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  He died in Apr 1144.

     Children of Routrou II de27 Perche Count (3556)XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count  (3556) (-Apr 1144)" and Matilda of England (3557)XE "England:Matilda of  (3557) (1086-25 Nov 1120)" (see #81800215) were:


 40900107.
i.
Mathilde (Maude) de26 (3554).XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)"
81800215.  Matilda of27 England (3557)XE "England:Matilda of  (3557) (1086-25 Nov 1120)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) was born in 1086.  She married Routrou II de Perche Count (3556)XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count  (3556) (-Apr 1144)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  She died on 25 Nov 1120.

81800216.  Philip I of27 France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" (Henry, #163600432) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born in 1053.  He married Bertha of Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" in 1072 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 29 Jul 1108 at Meulan, Seine-Et-Oise, France.

     (an unknown value) (King of France 1060-1108; Count of Paris) (Federico Rain, Death Certificate Folio 221, bajo el número 221 del libro de defunciones del año 1952, 30 de Octubre de 1952, Registro Civil de la Oficina de Martinez.).

     Children of Philip I of27 France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" and Bertha of Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" (see #81800217) were:


 40900108.
i.
Louis VI of26 (3412).XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"
81800217.  Bertha of27 Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" (Florent, #163600434) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1055 at Vlaardingen, Zuid Holland, Netherlands (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Philip I of France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" in 1072 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died in 1094 at Montreuil-sur-Mer, France.

81800220.  Milo de27 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" (Jocelin, #163600440) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born before 1075 at Courtenay, Loiret, France.  He married Ermengarde de Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" circa 1095 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died in 1127 at France.

     (an unknown value) (The story is told that the great possessions in France of Renaud de Courtenay (a man of hich social rank and described in personal terms as in effect a glorified bandit) were seized about 1150 by King Louis VII who granted them to his own youngest brother, Pierre (ancestor of the French Courtenays), with Renuad's dauhter, Elizabeth, in marriage, and that Renaud then appeared in England as a minor functionary of the English Court with a small manor and another family. Line breaks here. Although Old-CP III 102 states that the alleged connection between the English and French families has not been established, CP IV 317 inexplicably revived the connection. Herbert F. Seversmith, The Ancestry of Roger Ludlow, pp 2419-2424, in addition to demonstrating the lack of contemporary evidence, points out the chronological, personal character, and social status difficulties with this identification).

     Children of Milo de27 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" and Ermengarde de Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (see #81800221) were:


 40900110.
i.
Renaud de26 (3156).XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)"
81800221.  Ermengarde de27 Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (Renaud, #163600442) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100 & 121.) was born circa 1073 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married Milo de Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" circa 1095 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  She died.

81800980.  William I the Conqueror of27 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) was born in 1027 at Falaise, Calvados, France.  He married Maud of Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" in 1053 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 9 Sep 1087 at Rouen, Seine, France.

     (an unknown value) (William I, King of England (William the Conqueror)

Duke of Normandy and one of the greatest English kings, William I, b. c.1028, d. Sept. 9, 1087, led the Norman conquest of England and provided stability and firm government in an age of great disorder. The illegitimate son of the Norman duke Robert I, he inherited Normandy in 1035, consolidating his rule in the face of baronial opposition in about 1042. He successfully faced further rebellions and after 1050 began to take an interest in acquiring land in England--perhaps given some encouragement by the English king EDWARD THE CONFESSOR. After Edward's death (Jan. 5, 1066), Vikings under King HAROLD III of Norway moved on England, and William soon followed with an invasion force of his own. The new English king, HAROLD II, defeated the Vikings and confronted the Normans near Hastings in October 1066 (see HASTINGS, BATTLE OF). William's forces achieved a decisive victory, and on Christmas Day 1066, William was crowned king of England, founding the Anglo-Norman monarchy and realm. 

A highly capable, intelligent, and determined man, William I established a strongly personal monarchy. He imposed Norman institutions and personnel both on the state and on the church, and he brought England into the mainstream of continental development. Imposing royal authority directly on courts and other institutions, William ordered the inquests that resulted in the monumental DOMESDAY BOOK. He revolutionized the social, political, and military structures of England, replacing the English nobility with French nobles, thus strengthening his authority, and introducing continental FEUDALISM, a structure in which nobles held land in return for service in the royal army. 

As the Anglo-Saxon state was Normanized, so too was the English church: English bishops and abbots were replaced by noted churchmen from the Continent, including LANFRANC of Bec, who became (1070) archbishop of Canterbury. The Conqueror had been a great reformer of the church in Normandy, and he continued this role in England. He established the archbishop of Canterbury as primate of the English church, held reforming councils (which he attended), and exercised not only his rights but also his responsibilities over the church. The bishops were among his closest advisors and officials. William I kept a close but cool relationship with the papacy, supporting ecclesiastical reform while carefully maintaining his control over the English church. He was succeeded as duke of Normandy by his eldest son, Robert II, and as king of England by his sons, first William II, then Henry I. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography: Barlow, Frank, William I and the Norman Conquest (1965); Douglas, David C., William the Conqueror (1964); Lloyd, A., The Making of the King (1990); Loyn, H. R., Anglo-Saxon England and the Norman Conquest, 2d ed. (1991)).  He was also known as The Conqueror (2954).XE "Normandy:The Conqueror  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"
     Children of William I the Conqueror of27 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" and Maud of Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (see #81800197) were as follows:


 
i.
Robert II of26 (3514)XE "Normandy:Robert II of Duke (3514)"

XE "Normandy:Robert II of Duke  (3514)" died.


 
ii.
William II of (3513)XE "England:William II of King (3513) (circa 1056-2 Aug 1100)"

XE "England:William II of King  (3513) (circa 1056-2 Aug 1100)" was born circa 1056.  He died on 2 Aug 1100.

     (an unknown value) (William II, King of England (William Rufus)

William Rufus, b.  c.1056, king of England, continued, and indeed intensified, the policies of his father, William I (the Conqueror), bringing the English baronage close to the point of open rebellion by the time of his death in an alleged hunting accident--possibly an assassination--on Aug.  2, 1100.  A grasping and disagreeable man, coarse and impulsive, he came to the English throne in 1087, his older brother, Robert, receiving William I's domain in Normandy.  William Rufus was a strong monarch with a lofty regard for kingship and its responsibilities.  He increased the centralization of royal justice and administration and strengthened the Anglo-Norman realm.  Regarded as the oppressor of the English church, William drove Saint ANSELM, archbishop of Canterbury, into exile (1097) over issues of church-state relations and of reform.  He delayed the onset of the English trend that eventually made feudal rights and obligations hereditary among the baronage.  William II was succeeded by his younger brother, Henry I. 

James W. Alexander 

Bibliography: Freeman, Edward A., The Reign of William Rufus and the Accession of Henry the First, 2 vols. (1882; repr. 1970); Grinnell-Milne, D. W., The Killing of William Rufus (1968); Poole, Austin L., From Domesday Book to Magna Carta, 2d ed. (1955)).


 839323609.
iii.
Adela of (4601).XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)"

 40900098.
iv.
Henry I of (2951).XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"
81800981.  Maud of27 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) was born in 1032 at Flanders, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married William I the Conqueror of Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" in 1053 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died on 3 Nov 1083 at Caen, Caen, Calvados, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     She was also known as Matilda (2955).XE "Flanders:Matilda  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)"
92023312.  Gilbert Fitz Richard of27 Clare Lord (3384)XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)" (Richard, #184046624) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born before 1066 at Clare, ., Suffolk, England.  He married Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de Clermont (3385)XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)" at England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  He died in 1114 at England.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Clare, Suffolk, Tonbridge, Kent, and Cardigan, Wales. Founder of Priory of Clare, 1090, Lord of Cardigan, 1107-1111).

     Children of Gilbert Fitz Richard of27 Clare Lord (3384)XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)" and Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de Clermont (3385)XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)" (see #92023313) were as follows:


 104915356.
i.
Gilbert de26 (3382).XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

 92023387.
ii.
Alice de (3671).XE "Clare:Alice de  (3671) (-circa 1163)"

 
iii.
Adeliza of (3388)XE "Clare:Adeliza of  (3388)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Essex, England.  She died.


 46011656.
iv.
Richard Fitz Gilbert de (4331).XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)"

XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert de Lord  (4331) (-15 Apr 1136)"

 
v.
Baldwin of (3386)XE "Clare:Baldwin of Lord (3386) (circa 1092-1154)"

XE "Clare:Baldwin of Lord  (3386) (circa 1092-1154)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1092.  He married Adeline de Rollos Lord (3387)XE "Rollos:Adeline de Lord (3387)"

XE "Rollos:Adeline de Lord  (3387)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  He died in 1154.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Bourne, Deeping and Skellingthorpe, co. Lincoln, founder of Bourne Abbey).


 
vi.
Rose of (3390)XE "Clare:Rose of  (3390) (circa 1115-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1115 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  She died.

92023313.  Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de27 Clermont (3385)XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)" (Hugh Creil, #184046626) was born in 1074 at Northampton, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Gilbert Fitz Richard of Clare Lord (3384)XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)" at England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  She died.

92023314.  Ranulph III27 Le Meschin (3652)XE "Le Meschin:Ranulph III  (3652) (-circa 1129)" (Ranulph Bayeux, #184046628) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Lucy unknown (3653)XE "unknown:Lucy  (3653) (-after 1130)" circa 1098 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died circa 1129.

     (an unknown value) (de Briquessart, bur. St. Werburg's, Chester, lord of Cumberland, vicomte of Bayeux in Normandy, Earl of Chester in 1120, foll. the death of his first cousin, Hugh d'Avranches, Earl of Chester; in 1124 commander of the Royal Forces in Normandy).

     Children of Ranulph III27 Le Meschin (3652)XE "Le Meschin:Ranulph III  (3652) (-circa 1129)" and Lucy unknown (3653)XE "unknown:Lucy  (3653) (-after 1130)" (see #92023315) are:


 46011657.
i.
Adeliz (or Alice)26 (4332).XE "Le Meschin:Adeliz (or Alice)  (4332)"
92023315.  Lucy27 unknown (3653)XE "unknown:Lucy  (3653) (-after 1130)" married Ranulph III Le Meschin (3652)XE "Le Meschin:Ranulph III  (3652) (-circa 1129)" circa 1098 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died after 1130.

     (an unknown value) (wid., succdessively, of Ives Taillebois and Roger Fitz Gerold).

92023328.  Ragnaillt27 (--?--) (4346)XE "(--?--):Ragnaillt  (4346)" (Olaf Dublin, #184046656) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) married Cynan ap Iago (4347).XE "Iago:Cynan ap  (4347)"
     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales, exiled in Dublin).

     Children of Ragnaillt27 (--?--) (4346)XE "(--?--):Ragnaillt  (4346)" and Cynan ap Iago (4347)XE "Iago:Cynan ap  (4347)" (see #92023329) were:


 46011664.
i.
Griffith26 (4343).XE "(--?--):Griffith  (4343) (1055-1137)"
92023329.  Cynan ap27 Iago (4347)XE "Iago:Cynan ap  (4347)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) married Ragnaillt (--?--) (4346).XE "(--?--):Ragnaillt  (4346)"
92023330.  Owain ap27 Edwin (4345).XE "Edwin:Owain ap  (4345)"
     Children of Owain ap27 Edwin (4345)XE "Edwin:Owain ap  (4345)" include:


 46011665.
i.
Angharat of26 (4344).XE "Tegaingl:Angharat of  (4344)"
92023344.  Fulk V the Young of27 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

92023345.  Erembourg of27 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

92023346.  Henry I of27 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

92023347.  Matilda of27 Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (see #40900099).

92023348.  Duke William VII27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (William, #81800200) (see #40900100).

92023349.  Philippa (Mathilda) of27 Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101).

92023368.  David I the Saint of27 Scotland King (3247)XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)"

XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King  (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) was born circa 1080.  He married Maud of Huntingdon Countess (3248)XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess (3248) (1072-1131)"

XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess  (3248) (1072-1131)" in 1113 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 22 of Line 170 and 24 of Line 148.).  He died on 24 May 1153 at near Carlisle, Cumberland, England.

     (an unknown value) (King of Scots, 23 Apr. 1124-1153).

     Children of David I the Saint of27 Scotland King (3247)XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)"

XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King  (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)" and Maud of Huntingdon Countess (3248)XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess (3248) (1072-1131)"

XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess  (3248) (1072-1131)" (see #92023369) were:


 46011684.
i.
Henry of26 (4011).XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)"

XE "Scotland:Henry of Earl of Huntingdon  (4011) (1114-12 Jun 1152)"
92023369.  Maud of27 Huntingdon Countess (3248)XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess (3248) (1072-1131)"

XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess  (3248) (1072-1131)" (Waltheof, #184046738) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 148.) was born in 1072.  She married Simon de St. Liz Earl of Huntingdon (4016)XE "St. Liz:Simon de Earl of Huntingdon (4016) (-1111)"

XE "St. Liz:Simon de Earl of Huntingdon  (4016) (-1111)" circa 1090 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 148.).  She married David I the Saint of Scotland King (3247)XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)"

XE "Scotland:David I the Saint of King  (3247) (circa 1080-24 May 1153)" in 1113 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 22 of Line 170 and 24 of Line 148.).  She died in 1131.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Huntingdon and Northumberland).

92023370.  William de27 Warenne Earl (3286)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)" (William, #184046740) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 192.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) married Isabel de Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" in 1118 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 52 & 82.).  He died on 11 May 1138.

     (an unknown value) (second Earl of Surrey).

     Children of William de27 Warenne Earl (3286)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)" and Isabel de Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (see #92023371) were as follows:


 46011685.
i.
Ada de26 (4012).XE "Warenne:Ada de  (4012) (-1178)"

 209830686.
ii.
William de (3282).XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)"
92023371.  Isabel de27 Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (Hugh France, #184046742) married Robert de Beaumont Sir (3301)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir  (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)" in 1096 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She married William de Warenne Earl (3286)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)" in 1118 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 52 & 82.).  She died on 13 Feb 1131.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Leicester).

92023376.  Herbert of27 Winchester (4592)XE "Winchester:Herbert of  (4592) (-before 1130)" (Alice Freeman and Thomas James, Some ancestral lines of Edmond Hawes, Page 262.) married Emma of Blois (4590).XE "Blois:Emma of  (4590)"  He died before 1130.

     (an unknown value) ((also styled Herbert the Chamberlain) of unproven ancestry, died in or shurely bef. 1130, Chamberlain and Treasurer under William II and Henry I, held lands in Hampshire in 1086, and afterwards held other lands in Bedfordshire, Hampshire, Gloucester and Yorkshire).

     Children of Herbert of27 Winchester (4592)XE "Winchester:Herbert of  (4592) (-before 1130)" and Emma of Blois (4590)XE "Blois:Emma of  (4590)" (see #92023377) were:


 46011688.
i.
Herbert26 (4164).XE "Fitz Herbert:Herbert  (4164) (-1155)"
92023377.  Emma of27 Blois (4590)XE "Blois:Emma of  (4590)" (Stephen, #184046754) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 238.) married Herbert of Winchester (4592).XE "Winchester:Herbert of  (4592) (-before 1130)"
     (an unknown value) (illegitimate dau).

92023380.  Walter27 Fitz Roger (4163)XE "Fitz Roger:Walter  (4163)" died.

     Children of Walter27 Fitz Roger (4163)XE "Fitz Roger:Walter  (4163)" include:


 46011690.
i.
Miles26 (4140).XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"
92023382.  Bernard de27 Neufmarché Lord (4142)XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord (4142) (-1093)"

XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord  (4142) (-1093)" (Geoffrey unknown, #184046764) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 177.) married Nesta Fitz Richard (4143)XE "Fitz Richard:Nesta  (4143) (-1093)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, 3 of Line 177.).  He died in 1093.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Brecon).

     Children of Bernard de27 Neufmarché Lord (4142)XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord (4142) (-1093)"

XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord  (4142) (-1093)" and Nesta Fitz Richard (4143)XE "Fitz Richard:Nesta  (4143) (-1093)" (see #92023383) were:


 46011691.
i.
Sibyl de26 (4141).XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)"
92023383.  Nesta27 Fitz Richard (4143)XE "Fitz Richard:Nesta  (4143) (-1093)" (Osborn, #184046766) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 177.) married Bernard de Neufmarché Lord (4142)XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord (4142) (-1093)"

XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord  (4142) (-1093)" (The New England Historical and Genealogical Register, 3 of Line 177.).  She died in 1093.

92023384.  Richard27 unknown (4171)XE "unknown:Richard  (4171)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.) married Jane Bigod (4172)XE "Bigod:Jane  (4172)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.).  He died.

     Children of Richard27 unknown (4171)XE "unknown:Richard  (4171)" and Jane Bigod (4172)XE "Bigod:Jane  (4172)" (see #92023385) were:


 46011692.
i.
Roger26 (4169).XE "Fitz Richard:Roger  (4169) (-1177)"
92023385.  Jane27 Bigod (4172)XE "Bigod:Jane  (4172)" (Roger, #184046770) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.) married Richard unknown (4171)XE "unknown:Richard  (4171)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.).  She died.

92023386.  Aubrey II de27 Vere (3670)XE "Vere:Aubrey II de  (3670) (before 1090-15 May 1141)" (Aubrey, #184046772) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 246D.) was born before 1090.  He married Alice de Clare (3671)XE "Clare:Alice de  (3671) (-circa 1163)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  He died on 15 May 1141.

     (an unknown value) (Slain in London, of Great Addington and Drayton, co. Northampton, Sheriff of London and Middlesex 1121, 1125, Justice and Master Chamberlain of England 1133).

     Children of Aubrey II de27 Vere (3670)XE "Vere:Aubrey II de  (3670) (before 1090-15 May 1141)" and Alice de Clare (3671)XE "Clare:Alice de  (3671) (-circa 1163)" (see #92023387) were as follows:


 771227664.
i.
Aubrey de26 (3664).XE "Vere:Aubrey de  (3664) (-26 Dec 1194)"

 
ii.
Rohese de (3672)XE "Vere:Rohese de  (3672) (circa 1109-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1109 at Rycott, Oxford, England.  He/she died.


 
iii.
Juliana de (3673)XE "Vere:Juliana de  (3673) (circa 1116-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1116.  She died.


 46011693.
iv.
Alice de (4170).XE "Vere:Alice de  (4170) (before 1141-)"
92023387.  Alice de27 Clare (3671)XE "Clare:Alice de  (3671) (-circa 1163)" (Gilbert, #92023312) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Aubrey II de Vere (3670)XE "Vere:Aubrey II de  (3670) (before 1090-15 May 1141)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  She died circa 1163.

96403456.  John de27 Warenne Earl (3270)XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)" (William, #192806912) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) was born in 1231.  He married Alice (Alfais) de Lusignan (3271)XE "Lusignan:Alice (Alfais) de  (3271) (circa 1224-9 Feb 1256)" in 1247 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 27 Sep 1304.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Surrey).

     Children of John de27 Warenne Earl (3270)XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)" and Alice (Alfais) de Lusignan (3271)XE "Lusignan:Alice (Alfais) de  (3271) (circa 1224-9 Feb 1256)" (see #96403457) were as follows:


 
i.
Eleanor de26 (3272)XE "Warenne:Eleanor de  (3272) (1251-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.) was born in 1251 at Alnwick, Northumb, England.  She married Henry de Percy Knight (3273)XE "Percy:Henry de Knight (3273) (circa 1235-29 Aug 1272)"

XE "Percy:Henry de Knight  (3273) (circa 1235-29 Aug 1272)" on 8 Sep 1268 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 134.).  She died.


 48201728.
ii.
William de (3266).XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3266) (7 Feb 1256-15 Dec 1285)"
96403457.  Alice (Alfais) de27 Lusignan (3271)XE "Lusignan:Alice (Alfais) de  (3271) (circa 1224-9 Feb 1256)" (Hugh, #192806914) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 134.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1224 at Arundel, Essex, England.  She married John de Warenne Earl (3270)XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)" in 1247 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 9 Feb 1256.

96403458.  Robert de27 Vere Earl (3316)XE "Vere:Robert de Earl (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)"

XE "Vere:Robert de Earl  (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)" (Hugh, #192806916) was born in 1240.  He married Alice de Sanford (3317)XE "Sanford:Alice de  (3317) (1231-before 9 Sep 1312)" on 22 Feb 1252 at Oxford, Oxfordshire, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died before 7 Sep 1296.

     (an unknown value) (5th. Earl of Oxford, Member of Parliament 1283, 1295-1296).

     Children of Robert de27 Vere Earl (3316)XE "Vere:Robert de Earl (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)"

XE "Vere:Robert de Earl  (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)" and Alice de Sanford (3317)XE "Sanford:Alice de  (3317) (1231-before 9 Sep 1312)" (see #96403459) were:


 48201729.
i.
Joan de26 (3267).XE "Vere:Joan de  (3267) (circa 1264-21 Nov 1293)"
96403459.  Alice de27 Sanford (3317)XE "Sanford:Alice de  (3317) (1231-before 9 Sep 1312)" (Gilbert, #192806918) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1231.  She married Robert de Vere Earl (3316)XE "Vere:Robert de Earl (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)"

XE "Vere:Robert de Earl  (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)" on 22 Feb 1252 at Oxford, Oxfordshire, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died before 9 Sep 1312.

104890368.  Robert27 de Yory Lord of Breherval (1981)XE "de Yory:Robert Lord of Breherval (1981) (-1083)"

XE "de Yory:Robert Lord of Breherval  (1981) (-1083)" (Endes unknown, #209780736) (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) died in 1083.

     (an unknown value) (Died a monk in 1083 A.D. and was buried in the Abbey of Bec. Normandy. He was second cousin to the conqueror, and accompanied him in 1066 to England).

     Children of Robert27 de Yory Lord of Breherval (1981)XE "de Yory:Robert Lord of Breherval (1981) (-1083)"

XE "de Yory:Robert Lord of Breherval  (1981) (-1083)" include:


 52445184.
i.
Asceline26 (1979).XE "unknown:Asceline  (1979) (-1119)"
104890370.  William27 unknown Earl of Bretville (2064)XE "unknown:William Earl of Bretville (2064)"

XE "unknown:William Earl of Bretville  (2064)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Normandy).

     Children of William27 unknown Earl of Bretville (2064)XE "unknown:William Earl of Bretville (2064)"

XE "unknown:William Earl of Bretville  (2064)" include:


 52445185.
i.
Isabella26 (1980).XE "unknown:Isabella  (1980)"
104915200.  Milo de27 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" (Jocelin, #163600440) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born before 1075 at Courtenay, Loiret, France.  He married Ermengarde de Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" circa 1095 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died in 1127 at France.

     (an unknown value) (The story is told that the great possessions in France of Renaud de Courtenay (a man of hich social rank and described in personal terms as in effect a glorified bandit) were seized about 1150 by King Louis VII who granted them to his own youngest brother, Pierre (ancestor of the French Courtenays), with Renuad's dauhter, Elizabeth, in marriage, and that Renaud then appeared in England as a minor functionary of the English Court with a small manor and another family. Line breaks here. Although Old-CP III 102 states that the alleged connection between the English and French families has not been established, CP IV 317 inexplicably revived the connection. Herbert F. Seversmith, The Ancestry of Roger Ludlow, pp 2419-2424, in addition to demonstrating the lack of contemporary evidence, points out the chronological, personal character, and social status difficulties with this identification).

     Children of Milo de27 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" and Ermengarde de Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (see #81800221) were:


 40900110.
i.
Renaud de26 (3156).XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)"
104915201.  Ermengarde de27 Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (Renaud, #163600442) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100 & 121.) was born circa 1073 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married Milo de Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" circa 1095 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  She died.

104915212.  Waleran de27 Beaumont Count (3299)XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)" (Robert, #209830424) was born in 1104.  He married Agnes de Montfort (3300)XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)" circa 1141 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died on 10 Apr 1166.

     Children of Waleran de27 Beaumont Count (3299)XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)" and Agnes de Montfort (3300)XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)" (see #104915213) were:


 52457606.
i.
Robert de26 (3294).XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)"
104915213.  Agnes de27 Montfort (3300)XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)" (Amauri, #209830426) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Waleran de Beaumont Count (3299)XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)" circa 1141 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died on 15 Dec 1181.

104915214.  Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de27 Mortain Earl (3296)XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)"

XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl  (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)" married Mabel Fitz Richard of Cardinan (3297)XE "Cardinan:Mabel Fitz Richard of  (3297) (-circa 1162)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 1 Jul 1175.

     (an unknown value) (Illegitimate son. Earl of Cornwall, Apr. 1141; sheriff of Devon, 1173).

     Children of Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de27 Mortain Earl (3296)XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)"

XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl  (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)" and Mabel Fitz Richard of Cardinan (3297)XE "Cardinan:Mabel Fitz Richard of  (3297) (-circa 1162)" (see #104915215) were:


 52457607.
i.
Maud Fitz Roy de26 (3295).XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)"
104915215.  Mabel Fitz Richard of27 Cardinan (3297)XE "Cardinan:Mabel Fitz Richard of  (3297) (-circa 1162)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Mortain Earl (3296)XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)"

XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl  (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died circa 1162.

104915340.  Count John27 D'Eu (5203)XE "D'Eu:John (Count)  (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)"

XE "D'Eu:John Count (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) married Alice (Adelise) d'Aubigny (5204)XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)" (see #104915341), daughter of Earl William d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" and Adeliza of Louvain (3111),XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122 & 131.).  He died on 26 Jun 1170 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Hastings, held 56 knight's fees) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).

     Children of Count John27 D'Eu (5203)XE "D'Eu:John (Count)  (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)"

XE "D'Eu:John Count (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)" and Alice (Adelise) d'Aubigny (5204)XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)" (see #104915341) were:


 52457670.
i.
Henry26 (3279).XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"
104915341.  Alice (Adelise)27 d'Aubigny (5204)XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)" (William, #209830682) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Count John D'Eu (5203)XE "D'Eu:John (Count)  (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)"

XE "D'Eu:John Count (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)" (see #104915340) in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122 & 131.).  She died on 11 Sep 1188 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).

104915342.  Hamelin27 Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 112.) married Isabel de Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" in 1164 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 112.).  He died on 7 May 1202.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Surrey. His mother was an unknown mistress of his father).

     Children of Hamelin27 Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" and Isabel de Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" (see #104915343) were as follows:


 52457671.
i.
Maud de26 (3278).XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)"

 192806912.
ii.
William de (3274).XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3274) (1166-1240)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3274) (1166-1240)"
104915343.  Isabel de27 Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" (William, #209830686) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) married William of Blois (3281)XE "Blois:William of  (3281)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.).  She married Hamelin Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" in 1164 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 112.).  She died on 13 Jul 1199.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Sureey, sole daughter and heiress).

104915344.  1st Baron William de27 Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" (Philip, #209830688) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Bertha of Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (see #104915345), daughter of Miles Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" and Sibyl de Neufmarché (4141),XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" in 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     (an unknown value) (of Brecknock, Abergavenney and Gowr, 1st. Baron of Gwentland) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of 1st Baron William de27 Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" and Bertha of Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (see #104915345) were:


 52457672.
i.
William de26 (5192).XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"
104915345.  Bertha of27 Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (Miles Fitz Walter, #46011690) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 177.) married 1st Baron William de Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" (see #104915344), son of Philip de Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" and Aenor de Toteneis (5197),XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" in 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  She died.

104915352.  Gilbert27 Marshal (3368)XE "Marshal:Gilbert  (3368) (circa 1100-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1100 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  He died.

     Children of Gilbert27 Marshal (3368)XE "Marshal:Gilbert  (3368) (circa 1100-)" and unknown de Venuz (3369)XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)" (see #104915353) were:


 52457676.
i.
John26 (3365).XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"
104915353.  unknown de27 Venuz (3369)XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)" (Geoffrey, #209830706) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1102.  She died.

104915354.  Walter de27 Everaux (3370)XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)" (Edward Devereux, #209830708) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1100 at Salisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He died.

     Children of Walter de27 Everaux (3370)XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)" and Sibill de Chaworth (3371)XE "Chaworth:Sibill de  (3371)" (see #104915355) were:


 52457677.
i.
Sibilla de26 (3366).XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)"
104915355.  Sibill de27 Chaworth (3371)XE "Chaworth:Sibill de  (3371)" died.

104915356.  Gilbert de27 Clare Earl (3382)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)" (Gilbert, #92023312) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69 & 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Tonbridge, Kent, England.  He died on 6 Jan 1148 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Pembroke, 1138).

     Children of Gilbert de27 Clare Earl (3382)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)" and Isabel (Elizabeth) de Beaumont (3383)XE "Beaumont:Isabel (Elizabeth) de  (3383) (circa 1107-)" (see #104915357) were:


 52457678.
i.
Richard Strongbow de26 (3380).XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"
104915357.  Isabel (Elizabeth) de27 Beaumont (3383)XE "Beaumont:Isabel (Elizabeth) de  (3383) (circa 1107-)" was born circa 1107.  She died.

104915392.  Fulk V the Young of27 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

104915393.  Erembourg of27 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

104915394.  Henry I of27 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

104915395.  Matilda of27 Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (see #40900099).

104915396.  Duke William VII27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (William, #81800200) (see #40900100).

104915397.  Philippa (Mathilda) of27 Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101).

104915400.  Wulgrim II of27 Angouleme Count (3552)XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count (3552)"

XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count  (3552)" (see #40900104).

104915402.  Raymond I de27 Turenne Vicount (3553)XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)" (Boso, #81800212) (see #40900106).

104915403.  Mathilde (Maude) de27 Perche (3554)XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)" (Routrou, #81800214) (see #40900107).

104915404.  Louis VI of27 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" (Philip, #81800216) (see #40900108).

104915405.  Adelaide de27 Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (see #40900109).

104915406.  Renaud de27 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" (Milo, #81800220) (see #40900110).

104915407.  Josceline de27 Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" (see #40900111).

104915436.  Geoffrey V27 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

104915437.  Matilda of27 England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (Henry, #40900098) (see #20450049).

104915438.  Duke William VIII of27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (William, #40900100) (see #20450050).

104915439.  Eleanor (or Aenor)27 de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051).

104915448.  Guy II of27 Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" (William Talvas, #209830896) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Ida (--?--) (5110)XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" (see #104915449) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died in 1147 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Guy II of27 Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" and Ida (--?--) (5110)XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" (see #104915449) were:


 52457724.
i.
John I of26 (5107).XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)"
104915449.  Ida27 (--?--) (5110)XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Guy II of Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" (see #104915448), son of Count William III Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" and Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

104915450.  Count Anselme Candavaine of27 St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Eustache de Champagne (5137)XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" (see #104915451), daughter of Count Eustace IV of Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  He died in 1164 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count Anselme Candavaine of27 St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" and Eustache de Champagne (5137)XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" (see #104915451) are as follows:


 52457725.
i.
Beatrice Candavaine of26 (5108).XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)"

 
ii.
Hugh (5139)XE "St. Pol:Hugh (Count)  (5139)"

XE "St. Pol:Hugh Count (5139)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).


 
iii.
Engerrand (5140)XE "St. Pol:Engerrand  (5140)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).


 
iv.
Guy (5141)XE "St. Pol:Guy  (5141)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

104915451.  Eustache de27 Champagne (5137)XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" (Eustace Boulogne, #209830902) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) was born (Her mother was an unknown mistress of her father) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She married Earl of Essex Geoffrey de Mandeville (5138)XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de (Earl of Essex)  (5138)"

XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de Earl of Essex (5138)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She and Earl of Essex Geoffrey de Mandeville (5138)XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de (Earl of Essex)  (5138)"

XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de Earl of Essex (5138)" were divorced (He died without issue) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She married Count Anselme Candavaine of St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" (see #104915450) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

104915452.  Louis VI of27 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" (Philip, #81800216) (see #40900108).

104915453.  Adelaide de27 Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (see #40900109).

104916992.  Milo de27 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" (Jocelin, #163600440) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born before 1075 at Courtenay, Loiret, France.  He married Ermengarde de Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" circa 1095 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died in 1127 at France.

     (an unknown value) (The story is told that the great possessions in France of Renaud de Courtenay (a man of hich social rank and described in personal terms as in effect a glorified bandit) were seized about 1150 by King Louis VII who granted them to his own youngest brother, Pierre (ancestor of the French Courtenays), with Renuad's dauhter, Elizabeth, in marriage, and that Renaud then appeared in England as a minor functionary of the English Court with a small manor and another family. Line breaks here. Although Old-CP III 102 states that the alleged connection between the English and French families has not been established, CP IV 317 inexplicably revived the connection. Herbert F. Seversmith, The Ancestry of Roger Ludlow, pp 2419-2424, in addition to demonstrating the lack of contemporary evidence, points out the chronological, personal character, and social status difficulties with this identification).

     Children of Milo de27 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" and Ermengarde de Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (see #81800221) were:


 40900110.
i.
Renaud de26 (3156).XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)"
104916993.  Ermengarde de27 Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (Renaud, #163600442) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100 & 121.) was born circa 1073 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married Milo de Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" circa 1095 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  She died.

104917004.  Waleran de27 Beaumont Count (3299)XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)" (Robert, #209830424) was born in 1104.  He married Agnes de Montfort (3300)XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)" circa 1141 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died on 10 Apr 1166.

     Children of Waleran de27 Beaumont Count (3299)XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)" and Agnes de Montfort (3300)XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)" (see #104915213) were:


 52457606.
i.
Robert de26 (3294).XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count (3294) (-1207)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Count  (3294) (-1207)"
104917005.  Agnes de27 Montfort (3300)XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)" (Amauri, #209830426) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) married Waleran de Beaumont Count (3299)XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)" circa 1141 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died on 15 Dec 1181.

104917006.  Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de27 Mortain Earl (3296)XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)"

XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl  (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)" married Mabel Fitz Richard of Cardinan (3297)XE "Cardinan:Mabel Fitz Richard of  (3297) (-circa 1162)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 1 Jul 1175.

     (an unknown value) (Illegitimate son. Earl of Cornwall, Apr. 1141; sheriff of Devon, 1173).

     Children of Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de27 Mortain Earl (3296)XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)"

XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl  (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)" and Mabel Fitz Richard of Cardinan (3297)XE "Cardinan:Mabel Fitz Richard of  (3297) (-circa 1162)" (see #104915215) were:


 52457607.
i.
Maud Fitz Roy de26 (3295).XE "Mortain:Maud Fitz Roy de  (3295)"
104917007.  Mabel Fitz Richard of27 Cardinan (3297)XE "Cardinan:Mabel Fitz Richard of  (3297) (-circa 1162)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Mortain Earl (3296)XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)"

XE "Mortain:Reginald Fitz Roy (Fitz Henry) de Earl  (3296) (-1 Jul 1175)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died circa 1162.

104917132.  Count John27 D'Eu (5203)XE "D'Eu:John (Count)  (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)"

XE "D'Eu:John Count (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) married Alice (Adelise) d'Aubigny (5204)XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)" (see #104915341), daughter of Earl William d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" and Adeliza of Louvain (3111),XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122 & 131.).  He died on 26 Jun 1170 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Hastings, held 56 knight's fees) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).

     Children of Count John27 D'Eu (5203)XE "D'Eu:John (Count)  (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)"

XE "D'Eu:John Count (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)" and Alice (Adelise) d'Aubigny (5204)XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)" (see #104915341) were:


 52457670.
i.
Henry26 (3279).XE "D'Eu:Henry (Count)  (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"

XE "D'Eu:Henry Count (3279) (-11 Mar 1183)"
104917133.  Alice (Adelise)27 d'Aubigny (5204)XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)" (William, #209830682) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Count John D'Eu (5203)XE "D'Eu:John (Count)  (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)"

XE "D'Eu:John Count (5203) (        -26 Jun 1170)" (see #104915340) in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122 & 131.).  She died on 11 Sep 1188 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 122.).

104917134.  Hamelin27 Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 112.) married Isabel de Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" in 1164 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 112.).  He died on 7 May 1202.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Surrey. His mother was an unknown mistress of his father).

     Children of Hamelin27 Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" and Isabel de Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" (see #104915343) were as follows:


 52457671.
i.
Maud de26 (3278).XE "Warenne:Maud de  (3278) (-circa 1212)"

 192806912.
ii.
William de (3274).XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3274) (1166-1240)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3274) (1166-1240)"
104917135.  Isabel de27 Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" (William, #209830686) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) married William of Blois (3281)XE "Blois:William of  (3281)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.).  She married Hamelin Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" in 1164 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 112.).  She died on 13 Jul 1199.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Sureey, sole daughter and heiress).

104917136.  1st Baron William de27 Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" (Philip, #209830688) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Bertha of Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (see #104915345), daughter of Miles Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" and Sibyl de Neufmarché (4141),XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" in 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     (an unknown value) (of Brecknock, Abergavenney and Gowr, 1st. Baron of Gwentland) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of 1st Baron William de27 Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" and Bertha of Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (see #104915345) were:


 52457672.
i.
William de26 (5192).XE "Braiose:William de (5th Baron)  (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"

XE "Braiose:William de 5th Baron (5192) (        -9 Aug 1211)"
104917137.  Bertha of27 Hereford (4144)XE "Hereford:Bertha of  (4144)" (Miles Fitz Walter, #46011690) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 5 of Line 177.) married 1st Baron William de Braiose (5195)XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)" (see #104915344), son of Philip de Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" and Aenor de Toteneis (5197),XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" in 1150 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  She died.

104917144.  Gilbert27 Marshal (3368)XE "Marshal:Gilbert  (3368) (circa 1100-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1100 at Pembroke, Wales, England.  He died.

     Children of Gilbert27 Marshal (3368)XE "Marshal:Gilbert  (3368) (circa 1100-)" and unknown de Venuz (3369)XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)" (see #104915353) were:


 52457676.
i.
John26 (3365).XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"
104917145.  unknown de27 Venuz (3369)XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)" (Geoffrey, #209830706) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1102.  She died.

104917146.  Walter de27 Everaux (3370)XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)" (Edward Devereux, #209830708) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1100 at Salisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He died.

     Children of Walter de27 Everaux (3370)XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)" and Sibill de Chaworth (3371)XE "Chaworth:Sibill de  (3371)" (see #104915355) were:


 52457677.
i.
Sibilla de26 (3366).XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)"
104917147.  Sibill de27 Chaworth (3371)XE "Chaworth:Sibill de  (3371)" died.

104917148.  Gilbert de27 Clare Earl (3382)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)" (Gilbert, #92023312) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 69 & 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Tonbridge, Kent, England.  He died on 6 Jan 1148 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Pembroke, 1138).

     Children of Gilbert de27 Clare Earl (3382)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)" and Isabel (Elizabeth) de Beaumont (3383)XE "Beaumont:Isabel (Elizabeth) de  (3383) (circa 1107-)" (see #104915357) were:


 52457678.
i.
Richard Strongbow de26 (3380).XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"
104917149.  Isabel (Elizabeth) de27 Beaumont (3383)XE "Beaumont:Isabel (Elizabeth) de  (3383) (circa 1107-)" was born circa 1107.  She died.

104917184.  Fulk V the Young of27 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

104917185.  Erembourg of27 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

104917186.  Henry I of27 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

104917187.  Matilda of27 Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (see #40900099).

104917188.  Duke William VII27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (William, #81800200) (see #40900100).

104917189.  Philippa (Mathilda) of27 Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101).

104917192.  Wulgrim II of27 Angouleme Count (3552)XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count (3552)"

XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count  (3552)" (see #40900104).

104917194.  Raymond I de27 Turenne Vicount (3553)XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)" (Boso, #81800212) (see #40900106).

104917195.  Mathilde (Maude) de27 Perche (3554)XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)" (Routrou, #81800214) (see #40900107).

104917196.  Louis VI of27 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" (Philip, #81800216) (see #40900108).

104917197.  Adelaide de27 Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (see #40900109).

104917198.  Renaud de27 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" (Milo, #81800220) (see #40900110).

104917199.  Josceline de27 Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" (see #40900111).

104917228.  Geoffrey V27 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

104917229.  Matilda of27 England (3110)XE "England:Matilda of  (3110) (Feb 1102-10 Sep 1167)" (Henry, #40900098) (see #20450049).

104917230.  Duke William VIII of27 Aquitaine and Poitou (5090)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of (Duke)  (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VIII of Duke (5090) (1099-9 Apr 1137)" (William, #40900100) (see #20450050).

104917231.  Eleanor (or Aenor)27 de Chastellerault (5091)XE "de Chastellerault:Eleanor (or Aenor)  (5091) (        -after Mar 1130)" (see #20450051).

104917240.  Guy II of27 Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" (William Talvas, #209830896) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Ida (--?--) (5110)XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" (see #104915449) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died in 1147 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Guy II of27 Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" and Ida (--?--) (5110)XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" (see #104915449) were:


 52457724.
i.
John I of26 (5107).XE "Ponthieu:John I of (Count)  (5107) (        -1191)"

XE "Ponthieu:John I of Count (5107) (        -1191)"
104917241.  Ida27 (--?--) (5110)XE "(--?--):Ida  (5110)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Guy II of Ponthieu (5109)XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)" (see #104915448), son of Count William III Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" and Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

104917242.  Count Anselme Candavaine of27 St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Eustache de Champagne (5137)XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" (see #104915451), daughter of Count Eustace IV of Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  He died in 1164 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Count Anselme Candavaine of27 St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" and Eustache de Champagne (5137)XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" (see #104915451) are as follows:


 52457725.
i.
Beatrice Candavaine of26 (5108).XE "St. Pol:Beatrice Candavaine of  (5108)"

 
ii.
Hugh (5139)XE "St. Pol:Hugh (Count)  (5139)"

XE "St. Pol:Hugh Count (5139)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).


 
iii.
Engerrand (5140)XE "St. Pol:Engerrand  (5140)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).


 
iv.
Guy (5141)XE "St. Pol:Guy  (5141)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

104917243.  Eustache de27 Champagne (5137)XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)" (Eustace Boulogne, #209830902) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) was born (Her mother was an unknown mistress of her father) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She married Earl of Essex Geoffrey de Mandeville (5138)XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de (Earl of Essex)  (5138)"

XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de Earl of Essex (5138)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She and Earl of Essex Geoffrey de Mandeville (5138)XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de (Earl of Essex)  (5138)"

XE "Mandeville:Geoffrey de Earl of Essex (5138)" were divorced (He died without issue) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She married Count Anselme Candavaine of St. Pol (5136)XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of (Count)  (5136) (        -1164)"

XE "St. Pol:Anselme Candavaine of Count (5136) (        -1164)" (see #104915450) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

104917244.  Louis VI of27 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" (Philip, #81800216) (see #40900108).

104917245.  Adelaide de27 Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (see #40900109).

Generation Twenty-EightTC "Generation Twenty-Eight" \l 2
163600384.  Aubri-Geoffrey of28 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Ermengarde of Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" circa 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died on 1 Apr 1046.

     (an unknown value) (Count of the Gatinais, 1034-1043).

     Children of Aubri-Geoffrey of28 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" and Ermengarde of Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (see #163600385) were:


 81800192.
i.
Fulk IV "Rechin" of27 (3539).XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"
163600385.  Ermengarde of28 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) married Aubri-Geoffrey of Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" circa 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died on 21 Mar 1076.

163600386.  Simon I of28 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" married Agnes d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died circa 1087.

     Children of Simon I of28 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" and Agnes d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387) were:


 81800193.
i.
Bertrade (Beatrice) of27 (3542).XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)"
163600387.  Agnes28 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Simon I of Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died.

163600392.  Robert I28 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) married Arlette of Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 22 Jul 1035.

     (an unknown value) (Sources: G. E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols I-XII pt. 2 (1910-1959) I 351-352; English Historical Review 101, pp. 399-404; George andrews Moriarty, The Plantagenet Ancestry (1985); Isenburg - Prinz von Isenburg, Stammtafeln zur Geschichte der Europäischen Staaten (ed. 1976 & later editions)).

     Children of Robert I28 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" and Arlette of Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (see #163600393) were as follows:


 81800196.
i.
William I the Conqueror of27 (2954).XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

 368093479.
ii.
Adelaide (or Adelis) of (4022).XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"

XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess  (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"
163600393.  Arlette of28 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Robert I (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died.

     The nationality of she was danish.  She was also known as Herleve (2957).XE "Falais:Herleve  (2957)"
163600394.  Baldwin V of28 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) was born in 1012 at Flanders, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Adele (Aelis) de France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" in 1028 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 1 Sep 1067 at Lille, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     Children of Baldwin V of28 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" and Adele (Aelis) de France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (see #163600395) were as follows:


 
i.
Baldwin VI of27 (3477)XE "Flanders:Baldwin VI of Count (3477) (-10 Jul 1070)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin VI of Count  (3477) (-10 Jul 1070)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.) married Richilde unknown (3478)XE "unknown:Richilde  (3478) (-15 Mar 1088)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died on 10 Jul 1070.


 81800197.
ii.
Maud of (2955).XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)"
163600395.  Adele (Aelis) de28 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115 & 142.) was born in 1009 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She married Richard III of Normandy Duke (3475)XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke  (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)" in Jan 1027 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Baldwin V of Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" in 1028 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 8 Jan 1079 at Monastere de L'O, Messines, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).

163600396.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of28 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) married daughter of Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.).  He died on 14 Aug 1040.

     (an unknown value) (King of Scots, 1034-1040; murdered by Macbeth near Elgin).

     Children of Duncan I Mac Crinan of28 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" and daughter of Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (see #163600397) were:


 81800198.
i.
Malcolm III Canmore of27 (3112).XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"
163600397.  daughter of28 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) married Duncan I Mac Crinan of Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.).  She died.

163600398.  Edward the Exile28 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 1.) was born in 1016.  He married Agatha (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  He died in 1057.

     (an unknown value) (The Atheling).

     Children of Edward the Exile28 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" and Agatha (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399) were:


 81800199.
i.
Margaret of27 (3113).XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"
163600399.  Agatha28 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.) married Edward the Exile (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Of Hungary or of Friesland. For her ancestry, see TAG 54:231).

163600402.  Robert The Old of28 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) was born circa 1011.  He married Irmegard of Anjou (3199)XE "Anjou:Irmegard of  (3199)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He married Helie of Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" circa 1033 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died in 1076.

     Children of Robert The Old of28 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" and Helie of Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (see #163600403) were as follows:


 81800201.
i.
Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of27 (5095).XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)"

 839323588.
ii.
Henry of (5121).XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)"
163600403.  Helie of28 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) was born in 1028.  She married Robert The Old of Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" circa 1033 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She died in 1109.

163600428.  Geoffrey II of28 Perche Count (3405)XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"

XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count  (3405) (circa 1033-1100)" (Routrou Chateaudun, #327200856) was born circa 1033.  He married Beatrix de Montdidier (3403)XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1100.

     Children of Geoffrey II of28 Perche Count (3405)XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"

XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count  (3405) (circa 1033-1100)" and Beatrix de Montdidier (3403)XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)" (see #163600429) were as follows:


 81800214.
i.
Routrou II de27 (3556).XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count  (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

 
ii.
Margaret de (3558)XE "Perche:Margaret de  (3558) (-after 1156)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) married Henry de Newburgh Earl (3559)XE "Newburgh:Henry de Earl (3559) (circa 1046-20 Jun 1123)"

XE "Newburgh:Henry de Earl  (3559) (circa 1046-20 Jun 1123)" before 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  She died after 1156.

163600429.  Beatrix de28 Montdidier (3403)XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1037 at Perche, Normandy, France.  She married Geoffrey II of Perche Count (3405)XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"

XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count  (3405) (circa 1033-1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

163600430.  Henry I of28 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

163600432.  Henry I of28 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born in 1006.  He married Anne of Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" on 20 Jan 1044 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97, 57 & 205.).  He died on 4 Aug 1060.

     (an unknown value) (King of France 1031-1060).

     Children of Henry I of28 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" and Anne of Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (see #163600433) were as follows:


 184046742.
i.
Hugh Magnus of27 (3306).XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)"

 81800216.
ii.
Philip I of (3415).XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"
163600433.  Anne of28 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Henry I of France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" on 20 Jan 1044 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97, 57 & 205.).  She died after 1075.

163600434.  Florent I of28 Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1017 at Vlaardingen, Zuid Holland, Netherlands (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Gertrude of Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" circa 1050 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 28 Jun 1061 at Gelderland, Netherlands (murdered) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     Children of Florent I of28 Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" and Gertrude of Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" (see #163600435) all born at Vlaardingen, Zuid Holland, Netherlands, were as follows:


 
i.
Albrecht of27 (3421)XE "Holland:Albrecht of  (3421) (circa 1051-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1051.  He died.


 
ii.
Dirk of (3420)XE "Holland:Dirk of  (3420) (circa 1052-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1052.  He died.


 
iii.
Peter of (3422)XE "Holland:Peter of  (3422) (circa 1053-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1053.  He died.


 81800217.
iv.
Bertha of (3416).XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

 
v.
Floris of (3423)XE "Holland:Floris of  (3423) (circa 1055-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1055.  He/she died.


 
vi.
Machtfeld of (3424)XE "Holland:Machtfeld of  (3424) (circa 1057-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1057.  He/she died.


 
vii.
Adela of (3425)XE "Holland:Adela of  (3425) (circa 1061-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1061.  She died.

163600435.  Gertrude of28 Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" (Bernard, #327200870) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1028 at Schweinfurt, Unterfranken, Bayern, Deutschland (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Florent I of Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" circa 1050 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Robert the Friesian of Holland Count (3426)XE "Holland:Robert the Friesian of Count (3426)"

XE "Holland:Robert the Friesian of Count  (3426)" circa 1063 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 4 Aug 1113 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

163600440.  Jocelin de28 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Courtenay, Loiret, France.  He married Isabel de Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" in 1065 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died circa 1075.

     Children of Jocelin de28 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" and Isabel de Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (see #163600441) were:


 81800220.
i.
Milo de27 (3158).XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)"
163600441.  Isabel de28 Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (Guy, #327200882) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1040 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  She married Jocelin de Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" in 1065 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

163600442.  Renaud II de28 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (William, #327200884) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Ida de Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 5 Aug 1089.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Nevers and Auxerre).

     Children of Renaud II de28 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" and Ida de Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (see #163600443) were:


 81800221.
i.
Ermengarde de27 (3159).XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)"
163600443.  Ida de28 Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Artaud, #327200886) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1055 at Laforez, Provence, France.  She married Renaud II de Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died in 1085.

163601960.  Robert I28 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) married Arlette of Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 22 Jul 1035.

     (an unknown value) (Sources: G. E. Cokayne's (new revised) Complete Peerage, vols I-XII pt. 2 (1910-1959) I 351-352; English Historical Review 101, pp. 399-404; George andrews Moriarty, The Plantagenet Ancestry (1985); Isenburg - Prinz von Isenburg, Stammtafeln zur Geschichte der Europäischen Staaten (ed. 1976 & later editions)).

     Children of Robert I28 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" and Arlette of Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (see #163600393) were as follows:


 81800196.
i.
William I the Conqueror of27 (2954).XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

 368093479.
ii.
Adelaide (or Adelis) of (4022).XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"

XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess  (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"
163601961.  Arlette of28 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Robert I (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died.

     The nationality of she was danish.  She was also known as Herleve (2957).XE "Falais:Herleve  (2957)"
163601962.  Baldwin V of28 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) was born in 1012 at Flanders, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Adele (Aelis) de France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" in 1028 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 1 Sep 1067 at Lille, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).

     Children of Baldwin V of28 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" and Adele (Aelis) de France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (see #163600395) were as follows:


 
i.
Baldwin VI of27 (3477)XE "Flanders:Baldwin VI of Count (3477) (-10 Jul 1070)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin VI of Count  (3477) (-10 Jul 1070)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.) married Richilde unknown (3478)XE "unknown:Richilde  (3478) (-15 Mar 1088)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died on 10 Jul 1070.


 81800197.
ii.
Maud of (2955).XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)"
163601963.  Adele (Aelis) de28 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115 & 142.) was born in 1009 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She married Richard III of Normandy Duke (3475)XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke  (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)" in Jan 1027 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Baldwin V of Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" in 1028 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 8 Jan 1079 at Monastere de L'O, Messines, France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).

184046624.  Richard Fitz Gilbert of28 Clare (3391)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert of  (3391) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Brionne, Normandy, France.  He married Rohese Giffard (3392)XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)" at England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  He died before 1090 at England.

     Children of Richard Fitz Gilbert of28 Clare (3391)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert of  (3391) (circa 1030-before 1090)" and Rohese Giffard (3392)XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)" (see #184046625) were as follows:


 
i.
Rohais of27 (3393)XE "Clare:Rohais of  (3393)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Normandy, France.  He/she died.


 92023312.
ii.
Gilbert Fitz Richard of (3384).XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)"
184046625.  Rohese28 Giffard (3392)XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)" (Walter, #368093250) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1034 at Longueville, Normandy, France.  She married Richard Fitz Gilbert of Clare (3391)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert of  (3391) (circa 1030-before 1090)" at England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  She died.

184046626.  Hugh de28 Creil (3398)XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)" (Renaud Clermont, #368093252) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Northampton, England.  He married Margaret (Marguerite) de Roucy (3399)XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)" circa 1080 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  He died in 1101.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Clermont in Beauvaisis).

     Children of Hugh de28 Creil (3398)XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)" and Margaret (Marguerite) de Roucy (3399)XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)" (see #184046627) were:


 92023313.
i.
Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de27 (3385).XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)"
184046627.  Margaret (Marguerite) de28 Roucy (3399)XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) was born circa 1035.  She married Hugh de Creil (3398)XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)" circa 1080 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  She died.

184046628.  Ranulph II of28 Bayeux Vicomte (3648)XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte (3648) (-after 1089)"

XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte  (3648) (-after 1089)" (Ranulph the Bessin, #368093256) married Margaret (Maud) d'Avranches (3649)XE "d'Avranches:Margaret (Maud)  (3649)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  He died after 1089.

     (an unknown value) (vicomte of Beyeux in Normandy).

     Children of Ranulph II of28 Bayeux Vicomte (3648)XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte (3648) (-after 1089)"

XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte  (3648) (-after 1089)" and Margaret (Maud) d'Avranches (3649)XE "d'Avranches:Margaret (Maud)  (3649)" (see #184046629) were as follows:


 
i.
William27 (3645)XE "le Meschine:William Lord (3645)"

XE "le Meschine:William Lord  (3645)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.) married Cecily de Rumilly (3646)XE "Rumilly:Cecily de  (3646)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Skipton-in-Craven, co. York).


 92023314.
ii.
Ranulph III (3652).XE "Le Meschin:Ranulph III  (3652) (-circa 1129)"
184046629.  Margaret (Maud)28 d'Avranches (3649)XE "d'Avranches:Margaret (Maud)  (3649)" (Richard, #368093258) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.) married Ranulph II of Bayeux Vicomte (3648)XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte (3648) (-after 1089)"

XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte  (3648) (-after 1089)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  She died.

184046656.  Olaf of28 Dublin (4348)XE "Dublin:Olaf of  (4348)" (Sihtric, #368093312) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) married Maelcorcre (--?--) (4349).XE "(--?--):Maelcorcre  (4349)"
     (an unknown value) (Of Dublin, prob. the Olaf salin by the "Saxons" while en route to Rome on pilgrimage 1034).

     Children of Olaf of28 Dublin (4348)XE "Dublin:Olaf of  (4348)" and Maelcorcre (--?--) (4349)XE "(--?--):Maelcorcre  (4349)" (see #184046657) are:


 92023328.
i.
Ragnaillt27 (4346).XE "(--?--):Ragnaillt  (4346)"
184046657.  Maelcorcre28 (--?--) (4349)XE "(--?--):Maelcorcre  (4349)" (Dunlang Leinster, #368093314) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) married Olaf of Dublin (4348).XE "Dublin:Olaf of  (4348)"
184046688.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of28 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

184046689.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of28 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

184046690.  Helias of28 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

184046692.  William I the Conqueror of28 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

184046693.  Maud of28 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

184046694.  Malcolm III Canmore of28 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

184046695.  Margaret of28 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

184046696.  Count William VI (Geoffrey) of28 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (see #81800200).

184046697.  Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of28 Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (Robert, #163600402) (see #81800201).

184046736.  Malcolm III Canmore of28 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

184046737.  Margaret of28 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

184046738.  Waltheof II of28 Huntingdon Earl (4018)XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl (4018) (-31 May 1076)"

XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl  (4018) (-31 May 1076)" (Sigurd Northumberland, #368093476) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 148.) married Judith of Lens (4017)XE "Lens:Judith of  (4017) (1054-)" in 1070 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 130.).  He died on 31 May 1076.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Huntingdon, Northampton and Northumberland, beheaded at Winchester).

     Children of Waltheof II of28 Huntingdon Earl (4018)XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl (4018) (-31 May 1076)"

XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl  (4018) (-31 May 1076)" and Judith of Lens (4017)XE "Lens:Judith of  (4017) (1054-)" (see #184046739) were:


 92023369.
i.
Maud of27 (3248).XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess (3248) (1072-1131)"

XE "Huntingdon:Maud of Countess  (3248) (1072-1131)"
184046739.  Judith of28 Lens (4017)XE "Lens:Judith of  (4017) (1054-)" (Lambert Boulogne, #368093478) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 130.) was born in 1054.  She married Waltheof II of Huntingdon Earl (4018)XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl (4018) (-31 May 1076)"

XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl  (4018) (-31 May 1076)" in 1070 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 130.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Though generally shown as child of (2) Lambert of Lens, there is a possibility that she was a child of the 1st mar. to Enguerrand II of Ponthieu).

184046740.  William de28 Warenne (3287)XE "Warenne:William de  (3287) (-1088)" married Gundred (--?--) (3288)XE "(--?--):Gundred  (3288)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.).  He died in 1088.

     Children of William de28 Warenne (3287)XE "Warenne:William de  (3287) (-1088)" and Gundred (--?--) (3288)XE "(--?--):Gundred  (3288)" (see #184046741) were:


 92023370.
i.
William de27 (3286).XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)"
184046741.  Gundred28 (--?--) (3288)XE "(--?--):Gundred  (3288)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) married William de Warenne (3287)XE "Warenne:William de  (3287) (-1088)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.).  She died.

184046742.  Hugh Magnus of28 France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" (Henry, #163600432) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52 & 57.) married Adelaide de Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52 & 57.).  He died in 1101.

     (an unknown value) (Duke of France and Burgundy, Marquis of Orleans, Count of Amiens, Chaumont, Paris, Valois, and Vermandois, a leader of the 1st. Crusade).

     Children of Hugh Magnus of28 France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" and Adelaide de Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (see #184046743) were:


 92023371.
i.
Isabel de27 (3285).XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"
184046743.  Adelaide de28 Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (Herbert, #368093486) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) married Hugh Magnus of France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52 & 57.).  She married Reinald of Clermont (3307)XE "Clermont:Reinald of  (3307) (-1162)" before 1103 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died circa 1120.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Vermandois and Valois).

184046754.  Stephen of28 Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" (Theobald, #368093508) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121 & 238.) married Adela of Normandy (4601)XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)" before 1080.  He died in 1101 at crusade 1101 (slain).

     (an unknown value) (a leader of the First Crusade and Crusade of 1101).

     Children of Stephen of28 Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" include:


 92023377.
i.
Emma of27 (4590).XE "Blois:Emma of  (4590)"
184046764.  Geoffrey28 unknown (4161)XE "unknown:Geoffrey  (4161)" died.

     Children of Geoffrey28 unknown (4161)XE "unknown:Geoffrey  (4161)" and Ada Fitz Gulbert (4162)XE "Fitz Gulbert:Ada  (4162)" (see #184046765) were:


 92023382.
i.
Bernard de27 (4142).XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord (4142) (-1093)"

XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord  (4142) (-1093)"
184046765.  Ada28 Fitz Gulbert (4162)XE "Fitz Gulbert:Ada  (4162)" died.

184046766.  Osborn28 Fitz Richard (4145)XE "Fitz Richard:Osborn  (4145)" (Richard Fitz Scrob, #368093532) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 177.) married Nesta of North Wales (4146)XE "North Wales:Nesta of  (4146) (1055-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 177.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Liv. 1100, of Richard's Castle, co. Hereford, sheriff of Hereford, 1060).

     Children of Osborn28 Fitz Richard (4145)XE "Fitz Richard:Osborn  (4145)" and Nesta of North Wales (4146)XE "North Wales:Nesta of  (4146) (1055-)" (see #184046767) were:


 92023383.
i.
Nesta27 (4143).XE "Fitz Richard:Nesta  (4143) (-1093)"
184046767.  Nesta of28 North Wales (4146)XE "North Wales:Nesta of  (4146) (1055-)" (Gruffydd Llywelyn, #368093534) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 1 of Line 177 & 4 of Line 176A.) was born in 1055.  She married Osborn Fitz Richard (4145)XE "Fitz Richard:Osborn  (4145)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 177.).  She died.

184046770.  Roger28 Bigod (4173)XE "Bigod:Roger  (4173)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246D.) died.

     Children of Roger28 Bigod (4173)XE "Bigod:Roger  (4173)" include:


 92023385.
i.
Jane27 (4172).XE "Bigod:Jane  (4172)"
184046772.  Aubrey I de28 Vere (4174)XE "Vere:Aubrey I de  (4174)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 246D.) married Beatrice unknown (4175)XE "unknown:Beatrice  (4175)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 246D.).  He died.

     Children of Aubrey I de28 Vere (4174)XE "Vere:Aubrey I de  (4174)" and Beatrice unknown (4175)XE "unknown:Beatrice  (4175)" (see #184046773) were:


 92023386.
i.
Aubrey II de27 (3670).XE "Vere:Aubrey II de  (3670) (before 1090-15 May 1141)"
184046773.  Beatrice28 unknown (4175)XE "unknown:Beatrice  (4175)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 246D.) married Aubrey I de Vere (4174)XE "Vere:Aubrey I de  (4174)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 25 of Line 246D.).  She died.

184046774.  Gilbert Fitz Richard of28 Clare Lord (3384)XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)" (Richard, #184046624) (see #92023312).

184046775.  Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de28 Clermont (3385)XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)" (Hugh Creil, #184046626) (see #92023313).

192806912.  William de28 Warenne Earl (3274)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3274) (1166-1240)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3274) (1166-1240)" (Hamelin Plantagenet, #104915342) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) was born in 1166 at Surrey, England.  He married Maud Marshal (3275)XE "Marshal:Maud  (3275) (circa 1192-27 Mar 1248)" in 1225 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70 & 82.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1240.

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Surrey).

     Children of William de28 Warenne Earl (3274)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3274) (1166-1240)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3274) (1166-1240)" and Maud Marshal (3275)XE "Marshal:Maud  (3275) (circa 1192-27 Mar 1248)" (see #192806913) were:


 96403456.
i.
John de27 (3270).XE "Warenne:John de Earl (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)"

XE "Warenne:John de Earl  (3270) (1231-27 Sep 1304)"
192806913.  Maud28 Marshal (3275)XE "Marshal:Maud  (3275) (circa 1192-27 Mar 1248)" (William, #26228838) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1192 at Pembroke, Wales, England (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She married Hugh Bigod Earl (3350)XE "Bigod:Hugh Earl (3350) (-Feb 1225)"

XE "Bigod:Hugh Earl  (3350) (-Feb 1225)" in 1208 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70.).  She married William de Warenne Earl (3274)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3274) (1166-1240)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3274) (1166-1240)" in 1225 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 70 & 82.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 27 Mar 1248 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).

192806914.  Hugh X of28 Lusignan Count (3407)XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)"

XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count  (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)" (Hugh, #385613828) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Isabella of Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" on 10 May 1220 at England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died circa 6 Jun 1246.

     (an unknown value) (Count of la Marche and of Angouleme).

     Children of Hugh X of28 Lusignan Count (3407)XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)"

XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count  (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)" and Isabella of Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" (see #5112513) were as follows:


 
i.
Hugh XI of27 (3408)XE "Lusignan:Hugh XI of  (3408) (1221-1250)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) was born in 1221.  He married Yolande de Dreux (3409)XE "Dreux:Yolande de  (3409) (1218-16 Oct 1272)" in Jan 1236 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106 & 119.).  He died in 1250.


 96403457.
ii.
Alice (Alfais) de (3271).XE "Lusignan:Alice (Alfais) de  (3271) (circa 1224-9 Feb 1256)"
192806915.  Isabella of28 Angouleme Queen (3106)XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)"

XE "Angouleme:Isabella of Queen  (3106) (1188-31 May 1246)" (Aymer Valence, #10225026) (see #5112513).

192806916.  Hugh de28 Vere Earl (3319)XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)"

XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl  (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)" (Robert, #385613832) was born circa 1210.  He married Hawise de Quincy Countess (3320)XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess (3320) (circa 1184-)"

XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess  (3320) (circa 1184-)" after 11 Feb 1223 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died before 23 Dec 1263 at England.

     Children of Hugh de28 Vere Earl (3319)XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)"

XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl  (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)" and Hawise de Quincy Countess (3320)XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess (3320) (circa 1184-)"

XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess  (3320) (circa 1184-)" (see #192806917) were as follows:


 
i.
Isabel de27 (3321)XE "Vere:Isabel de  (3321) (circa 1238-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1238.  She died.


 96403458.
ii.
Robert de (3316).XE "Vere:Robert de Earl (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)"

XE "Vere:Robert de Earl  (3316) (1240-before 7 Sep 1296)"
192806917.  Hawise de28 Quincy Countess (3320)XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess (3320) (circa 1184-)"

XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess  (3320) (circa 1184-)" (Saher, #385613834) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1184 at Winchester, Hampshire, England.  She married Hugh de Vere Earl (3319)XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)"

XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl  (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)" after 11 Feb 1223 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

192806918.  Gilbert de28 Sanford (3631)XE "Sanford:Gilbert de  (3631) (circa 1200-)" (John, #385613836) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) was born circa 1200.  He married Loretta La Zouche (3632)XE "La Zouche:Loretta  (3632)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.).  He died.

     Children of Gilbert de28 Sanford (3631)XE "Sanford:Gilbert de  (3631) (circa 1200-)" and Loretta La Zouche (3632)XE "La Zouche:Loretta  (3632)" (see #192806919) were:


 96403459.
i.
Alice de27 (3317).XE "Sanford:Alice de  (3317) (1231-before 9 Sep 1312)"
192806919.  Loretta28 La Zouche (3632)XE "La Zouche:Loretta  (3632)" (Roger, #385613838) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.) married Gilbert de Sanford (3631)XE "Sanford:Gilbert de  (3631) (circa 1200-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65.).  She died.

209780736.  Endes28 unknown Duke of Brittany (1982)XE "unknown:Endes Duke of Brittany (1982)"

XE "unknown:Endes Duke of Brittany  (1982)" (Delmar R. Lowell, The Historic Genealogy of the Lowells of America, from 1639 to 1899, Page xlv.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Was first cousin to Robert, father of the conqueror. Had eight sons).

     Children of Endes28 unknown Duke of Brittany (1982)XE "unknown:Endes Duke of Brittany (1982)"

XE "unknown:Endes Duke of Brittany  (1982)" include:


 104890368.
i.
Robert27 (1981).XE "de Yory:Robert Lord of Breherval (1981) (-1083)"

XE "de Yory:Robert Lord of Breherval  (1981) (-1083)"
209830400.  Jocelin de28 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Courtenay, Loiret, France.  He married Isabel de Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" in 1065 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died circa 1075.

     Children of Jocelin de28 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" and Isabel de Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (see #163600441) were:


 81800220.
i.
Milo de27 (3158).XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)"
209830401.  Isabel de28 Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (Guy, #327200882) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1040 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  She married Jocelin de Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" in 1065 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

209830402.  Renaud II de28 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (William, #327200884) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Ida de Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 5 Aug 1089.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Nevers and Auxerre).

     Children of Renaud II de28 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" and Ida de Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (see #163600443) were:


 81800221.
i.
Ermengarde de27 (3159).XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)"
209830403.  Ida de28 Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Artaud, #327200886) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1055 at Laforez, Provence, France.  She married Renaud II de Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died in 1085.

209830424.  Robert de28 Beaumont Sir (3301)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir  (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)" was born circa 1049.  He married Isabel de Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" in 1096 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 5 Jun 1118.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Beaumont, Pont-Audemer and Brionne, Count of Meulan, cr. first Earl of Leicester, Companion of William the Conqueror at Hastings 1066).

     Children of Robert de28 Beaumont Sir (3301)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir  (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)" and Isabel de Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (see #92023371) were as follows:


 104915212.
i.
Waleran de27 (3299).XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

 1542455340.
ii.
Robert de (3326).XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"
209830425.  Isabel de28 Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (Hugh France, #184046742) (see #92023371).

209830426.  Amauri de28 Montfort Count (3302)XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count (3302)"

XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count  (3302)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) married Agnes de Garlande (3303)XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Evreux).

     Children of Amauri de28 Montfort Count (3302)XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count (3302)"

XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count  (3302)" and Agnes de Garlande (3303)XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)" (see #209830427) were:


 104915213.
i.
Agnes de27 (3300).XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)"
209830427.  Agnes de28 Garlande (3303)XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)" (Anseau, #419660854) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) married Amauri de Montfort Count (3302)XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count (3302)"

XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count  (3302)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

209830428.  Henry I of28 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

209830429.  Sibyl28 Corbet (3298)XE "Corbet:Sibyl  (3298)" (see #46011689).

209830682.  Earl William28 d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Adeliza of Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" (see #209830683), daughter of Duke Godfrey I of Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" and Ida de Chini and de Namur (5209),XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died on 12 Oct 1176 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Arundel 1141-1176) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Earl William28 d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" and Adeliza of Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" (see #209830683) were as follows:


 104915341.
i.
Alice (Adelise)27 (5204).XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)"

 
ii.
William (5206)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5206) (        -24 Dec 1193)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5206) (        -24 Dec 1193)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Maud de St. Hilary (5207)XE "St. Hilary:Maud de  (5207) (        -1173)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died on 24 Dec 1193 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

209830683.  Adeliza of28 Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" (Godfrey Brabant, #419661366) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) was born circa 1103.  She married Henry I of England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" on 29 Jan 1121 (Without issue by this marriage) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She married Earl William d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" (see #209830682) in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She died on 23 Apr 1151.

209830684.  Geoffrey V28 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

209830686.  William de28 Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" (William, #92023370) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) was born in 1118.  He married Ela Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 82 & 101.).  He died in 1148.

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Surrey).

     Children of William de28 Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" and Ela Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (see #209830687) were:


 104915343.
i.
Isabel de27 (3277).XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"
209830687.  Ela28 Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (William, #209830896) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married William de Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 82 & 101.).  She married Patrick of Salisbury Earl (3284)XE "Salisbury:Patrick of Earl (3284) (-7 Apr 1168)"

XE "Salisbury:Patrick of Earl  (3284) (-7 Apr 1168)" circa 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She died circa 4 Oct 1174.

209830688.  Philip de28 Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Aenor de Toteneis (5197)XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" (see #209830689), daughter of Johel (Judhael) de Toteneis (5198)XE "Toteneis:Johel (Judhael) de  (5198)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     (an unknown value) (of Bramber and Sussex) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of Philip de28 Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" and Aenor de Toteneis (5197)XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" (see #209830689) are:


 104915344.
i.
William de27 (5195).XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)"
209830689.  Aenor de28 Toteneis (5197)XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" (Johel, #419661378) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Philip de Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" (see #209830688) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

209830690.  Miles28 Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" (Walter Fitz Roger, #92023380) (see #46011690).

209830691.  Sibyl de28 Neufmarché (4141)XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" (Bernard, #92023382) (see #46011691).

209830706.  Geoffrey de28 Venuz (3378)XE "Venuz:Geoffrey de  (3378)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of Geoffrey de28 Venuz (3378)XE "Venuz:Geoffrey de  (3378)" include:


 104915353.
i.
unknown de27 (3369).XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)"
209830708.  Edward28 Devereux (3372)XE "Devereux:Edward  (3372) (circa 1074-)" (Walter, #419661416) was born circa 1074 at Salisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He died.

     Children of Edward28 Devereux (3372)XE "Devereux:Edward  (3372) (circa 1074-)" and Matilda (--?--) (3373)XE "(--?--):Matilda  (3373) (circa 1074-)" (see #209830709) were as follows:


 
i.
Maud27 (3374)XE "Devereux:Maud  (3374) (circa 1089-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1089 at France.  She died.


 104915354.
ii.
Walter de (3370).XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)"
209830709.  Matilda28 (--?--) (3373)XE "(--?--):Matilda  (3373) (circa 1074-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1074.  She died.

209830712.  Gilbert Fitz Richard of28 Clare Lord (3384)XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)" (Richard, #184046624) (see #92023312).

209830713.  Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de28 Clermont (3385)XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)" (Hugh Creil, #184046626) (see #92023313).

209830784.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of28 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

209830785.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of28 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

209830786.  Helias of28 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

209830788.  William I the Conqueror of28 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

209830789.  Maud of28 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

209830790.  Malcolm III Canmore of28 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

209830791.  Margaret of28 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

209830792.  Count William VI (Geoffrey) of28 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (see #81800200).

209830793.  Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of28 Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (Robert, #163600402) (see #81800201).

209830804.  Boso I of28 Turenne Vicount (3555)XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount (3555)"

XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount  (3555)" (see #81800212).

209830806.  Routrou II de28 Perche Count (3556)XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count  (3556) (-Apr 1144)" (Geoffrey, #163600428) (see #81800214).

209830807.  Matilda of28 England (3557)XE "England:Matilda of  (3557) (1086-25 Nov 1120)" (see #81800215).

209830808.  Philip I of28 France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #81800216).

209830809.  Bertha of28 Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" (Florent, #163600434) (see #81800217).

209830812.  Milo de28 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" (Jocelin, #163600440) (see #81800220).

209830813.  Ermengarde de28 Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (Renaud, #163600442) (see #81800221).

209830872.  Fulk V the Young of28 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

209830873.  Erembourg of28 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

209830874.  Henry I of28 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

209830875.  Matilda of28 Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (see #40900099).

209830876.  Duke William VII28 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (William, #81800200) (see #40900100).

209830877.  Philippa (Mathilda) of28 Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101).

209830896.  Count William III28 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (Robert Belleme, #419661792) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (see #209830897), daughter of Count Eudes I Borel of Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" and Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Alencon & Ponthieu) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count William III28 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" and Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (see #209830897) were as follows:


 104915448.
i.
Guy II of27 (5109).XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)"

 209830687.
ii.
Ela (3283).XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)"
209830897.  Alice (Ela) of28 Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Eudes, #419661794) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Count William III Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (see #209830896), son of Robert II de Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" and Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She married Count Bertrand of Toulouse (5116)XE "Toulouse:Bertrand of (Count)  (5116)"

XE "Toulouse:Bertrand of Count (5116)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She died in 1194 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

209830902.  Count Eustace IV of28 Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" (Stephen Blois, #419661804) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.) was born circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  He married Constance of France (5143)XE "France:Constance of  (5143) (circa 1124-circa 1180)", daughter of Louis VI of France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" and Adelaide de Savoy (3413),XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" in 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 147.).  He died on 10 Aug 1153 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     (an unknown value) (Son and heir apparent, died during fathers lifetime) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  He was also known as Blois (5142)XE "Blois:Eustace IV of  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 47.).

     Children of Count Eustace IV of28 Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" include:


 104915451.
i.
Eustache de27 (5137).XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)"
209830904.  Philip I of28 France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #81800216).

209830905.  Bertha of28 Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" (Florent, #163600434) (see #81800217).

209833984.  Jocelin de28 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Courtenay, Loiret, France.  He married Isabel de Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" in 1065 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died circa 1075.

     Children of Jocelin de28 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" and Isabel de Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (see #163600441) were:


 81800220.
i.
Milo de27 (3158).XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)"
209833985.  Isabel de28 Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (Guy, #327200882) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1040 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  She married Jocelin de Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" in 1065 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

209833986.  Renaud II de28 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (William, #327200884) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Ida de Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 5 Aug 1089.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Nevers and Auxerre).

     Children of Renaud II de28 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" and Ida de Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (see #163600443) were:


 81800221.
i.
Ermengarde de27 (3159).XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)"
209833987.  Ida de28 Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Artaud, #327200886) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1055 at Laforez, Provence, France.  She married Renaud II de Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died in 1085.

209834008.  Robert de28 Beaumont Sir (3301)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir  (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)" was born circa 1049.  He married Isabel de Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" in 1096 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 5 Jun 1118.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Beaumont, Pont-Audemer and Brionne, Count of Meulan, cr. first Earl of Leicester, Companion of William the Conqueror at Hastings 1066).

     Children of Robert de28 Beaumont Sir (3301)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Sir  (3301) (circa 1049-5 Jun 1118)" and Isabel de Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (see #92023371) were as follows:


 104915212.
i.
Waleran de27 (3299).XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

XE "Beaumont:Waleran de Count  (3299) (1104-10 Apr 1166)"

 1542455340.
ii.
Robert de (3326).XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"
209834009.  Isabel de28 Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (Hugh France, #184046742) (see #92023371).

209834010.  Amauri de28 Montfort Count (3302)XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count (3302)"

XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count  (3302)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) married Agnes de Garlande (3303)XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Evreux).

     Children of Amauri de28 Montfort Count (3302)XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count (3302)"

XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count  (3302)" and Agnes de Garlande (3303)XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)" (see #209830427) were:


 104915213.
i.
Agnes de27 (3300).XE "Montfort:Agnes de  (3300) (-15 Dec 1181)"
209834011.  Agnes de28 Garlande (3303)XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)" (Anseau, #419660854) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.) married Amauri de Montfort Count (3302)XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count (3302)"

XE "Montfort:Amauri de Count  (3302)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.).  She died.

209834012.  Henry I of28 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

209834013.  Sibyl28 Corbet (3298)XE "Corbet:Sibyl  (3298)" (see #46011689).

209834266.  Earl William28 d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Adeliza of Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" (see #209830683), daughter of Duke Godfrey I of Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" and Ida de Chini and de Namur (5209),XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died on 12 Oct 1176 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     (an unknown value) (Earl of Arundel 1141-1176) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Earl William28 d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" and Adeliza of Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" (see #209830683) were as follows:


 104915341.
i.
Alice (Adelise)27 (5204).XE "d'Aubigny:Alice (Adelise)  (5204) (        -11 Sep 1188)"

 
ii.
William (5206)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5206) (        -24 Dec 1193)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5206) (        -24 Dec 1193)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Maud de St. Hilary (5207)XE "St. Hilary:Maud de  (5207) (        -1173)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died on 24 Dec 1193 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

209834267.  Adeliza of28 Louvain (3111)XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)" (Godfrey Brabant, #419661366) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) was born circa 1103.  She married Henry I of England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" on 29 Jan 1121 (Without issue by this marriage) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 3.).  She married Earl William d'Aubigny (5205)XE "d'Aubigny:William (Earl)  (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)"

XE "d'Aubigny:William Earl (5205) (        -12 Oct 1176)" (see #209830682) in 1138 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She died on 23 Apr 1151.

209834268.  Geoffrey V28 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

209834270.  William de28 Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" (William, #92023370) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82.) was born in 1118.  He married Ela Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 82 & 101.).  He died in 1148.

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Surrey).

     Children of William de28 Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" and Ela Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (see #209830687) were:


 104915343.
i.
Isabel de27 (3277).XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"
209834271.  Ela28 Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (William, #209830896) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 82 & 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married William de Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 82 & 101.).  She married Patrick of Salisbury Earl (3284)XE "Salisbury:Patrick of Earl (3284) (-7 Apr 1168)"

XE "Salisbury:Patrick of Earl  (3284) (-7 Apr 1168)" circa 1152 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She died circa 4 Oct 1174.

209834272.  Philip de28 Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Aenor de Toteneis (5197)XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" (see #209830689), daughter of Johel (Judhael) de Toteneis (5198)XE "Toteneis:Johel (Judhael) de  (5198)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     (an unknown value) (of Bramber and Sussex) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of Philip de28 Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" and Aenor de Toteneis (5197)XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" (see #209830689) are:


 104915344.
i.
William de27 (5195).XE "Braiose:William de (1st Baron)  (5195)"

XE "Braiose:William de 1st Baron (5195)"
209834273.  Aenor de28 Toteneis (5197)XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)" (Johel, #419661378) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.) married Philip de Braiose (5196)XE "Braiose:Philip de  (5196)" (see #209830688) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

209834274.  Miles28 Fitz Walter Earl (4140)XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)"

XE "Fitz Walter:Miles Earl  (4140) (-24 Dec 1143)" (Walter Fitz Roger, #92023380) (see #46011690).

209834275.  Sibyl de28 Neufmarché (4141)XE "Neufmarché:Sibyl de  (4141)" (Bernard, #92023382) (see #46011691).

209834290.  Geoffrey de28 Venuz (3378)XE "Venuz:Geoffrey de  (3378)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of Geoffrey de28 Venuz (3378)XE "Venuz:Geoffrey de  (3378)" include:


 104915353.
i.
unknown de27 (3369).XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)"
209834292.  Edward28 Devereux (3372)XE "Devereux:Edward  (3372) (circa 1074-)" (Walter, #419661416) was born circa 1074 at Salisbury, Wiltshire, England.  He died.

     Children of Edward28 Devereux (3372)XE "Devereux:Edward  (3372) (circa 1074-)" and Matilda (--?--) (3373)XE "(--?--):Matilda  (3373) (circa 1074-)" (see #209830709) were as follows:


 
i.
Maud27 (3374)XE "Devereux:Maud  (3374) (circa 1089-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1089 at France.  She died.


 104915354.
ii.
Walter de (3370).XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)"
209834293.  Matilda28 (--?--) (3373)XE "(--?--):Matilda  (3373) (circa 1074-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1074.  She died.

209834296.  Gilbert Fitz Richard of28 Clare Lord (3384)XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord (3384) (before 1066-1114)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert Fitz Richard of Lord  (3384) (before 1066-1114)" (Richard, #184046624) (see #92023312).

209834297.  Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de28 Clermont (3385)XE "Clermont:Adeliza (Adelaide, Alice) de  (3385) (1074-)" (Hugh Creil, #184046626) (see #92023313).

209834368.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of28 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

209834369.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of28 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

209834370.  Helias of28 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

209834372.  William I the Conqueror of28 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

209834373.  Maud of28 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

209834374.  Malcolm III Canmore of28 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

209834375.  Margaret of28 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

209834376.  Count William VI (Geoffrey) of28 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (see #81800200).

209834377.  Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of28 Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (Robert, #163600402) (see #81800201).

209834388.  Boso I of28 Turenne Vicount (3555)XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount (3555)"

XE "Turenne:Boso I of Vicount  (3555)" (see #81800212).

209834390.  Routrou II de28 Perche Count (3556)XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count (3556) (-Apr 1144)"

XE "Perche:Routrou II de Count  (3556) (-Apr 1144)" (Geoffrey, #163600428) (see #81800214).

209834391.  Matilda of28 England (3557)XE "England:Matilda of  (3557) (1086-25 Nov 1120)" (see #81800215).

209834392.  Philip I of28 France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #81800216).

209834393.  Bertha of28 Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" (Florent, #163600434) (see #81800217).

209834396.  Milo de28 Courtenay (3158)XE "Courtenay:Milo de  (3158) (before 1075-1127)" (Jocelin, #163600440) (see #81800220).

209834397.  Ermengarde de28 Nevers (3159)XE "Nevers:Ermengarde de  (3159) (circa 1073-)" (Renaud, #163600442) (see #81800221).

209834456.  Fulk V the Young of28 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

209834457.  Erembourg of28 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

209834458.  Henry I of28 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

209834459.  Matilda of28 Scotland (2953)XE "Scotland:Matilda of  (2953) (1079-1 May 1118)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (see #40900099).

209834460.  Duke William VII28 Aquitaine and Poitou (5092)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII (Duke)  (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VII Duke (5092) (circa 22 Oct 1071-10 Feb 1127)" (William, #81800200) (see #40900100).

209834461.  Philippa (Mathilda) of28 Toulouse (5093)XE "Toulouse:Philippa (Mathilda) of  (5093) (circa 1073-28 Nov 1117)" (see #40900101).

209834480.  Count William III28 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (Robert Belleme, #419661792) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (see #209830897), daughter of Count Eudes I Borel of Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" and Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Alencon & Ponthieu) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count William III28 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" and Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (see #209830897) were as follows:


 104915448.
i.
Guy II of27 (5109).XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)"

 209830687.
ii.
Ela (3283).XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)"
209834481.  Alice (Ela) of28 Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Eudes, #419661794) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Count William III Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (see #209830896), son of Robert II de Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" and Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She married Count Bertrand of Toulouse (5116)XE "Toulouse:Bertrand of (Count)  (5116)"

XE "Toulouse:Bertrand of Count (5116)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She died in 1194 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

209834486.  Count Eustace IV of28 Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" (Stephen Blois, #419661804) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.) was born circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  He married Constance of France (5143)XE "France:Constance of  (5143) (circa 1124-circa 1180)", daughter of Louis VI of France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" and Adelaide de Savoy (3413),XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" in 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 147.).  He died on 10 Aug 1153 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     (an unknown value) (Son and heir apparent, died during fathers lifetime) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  He was also known as Blois (5142)XE "Blois:Eustace IV of  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" (Volkmann, The Familiy Trees of the Kings of France, Page 47.).

     Children of Count Eustace IV of28 Boulogne (5142)XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)" include:


 104915451.
i.
Eustache de27 (5137).XE "Champagne:Eustache de  (5137)"
209834488.  Philip I of28 France King (3415)XE "France:Philip I of King (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)"

XE "France:Philip I of King  (3415) (1053-29 Jul 1108)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #81800216).

209834489.  Bertha of28 Holland Queen (3416)XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen (3416) (circa 1055-1094)"

XE "Holland:Bertha of Queen  (3416) (circa 1055-1094)" (Florent, #163600434) (see #81800217).

Generation Twenty-NineTC "Generation Twenty-Nine" \l 2
327200768.  Geoffrey III of29 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" married Beatrix of Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died.

     Children of Geoffrey III of29 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" and Beatrix of Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (see #327200769) were:


 163600384.
i.
Aubri-Geoffrey of28 (3545).XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"
327200769.  Beatrix of29 Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Geoffrey III of Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died.

327200770.  Fulk III the Black of29 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Hildegarde unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" after 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died on 21 Jun 1040.

     He was also known as The Black (2967).XE "Anjou:The Black  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"
     Children of Fulk III the Black of29 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" and Hildegarde unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (see #327200771) were:


 163600385.
i.
Ermengarde of28 (3546).XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)"
327200771.  Hildegarde29 unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Fulk III the Black of Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" after 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died on 1 Apr 1040 at Jerusalem, Palestine.

327200784.  Richard II the Good of29 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Astrid of Denmark Princess (3515)XE "Denmark:Astrid of Princess (3515)"

XE "Denmark:Astrid of Princess  (3515)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 111.).  He married Judith of Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" in 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He married Poppa unknown (3516)XE "unknown:Poppa  (3516)" circa 1024 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 111.).  He died on 28 Aug 1026.

     (an unknown value) (Sources: George Andrews Moriarty, The Plantagenet Ancestry (1985); Prinz von Isenburg, Stammtafeln zur Geschichte der Europäischen Staaten (ed. 1976 & later editions)).

     Children of Richard II the Good of29 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" and Judith of Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (see #327200785) were as follows:


 163600392.
i.
Robert I28 (2956).XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

 736186514.
ii.
Richard III of (3475).XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke  (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

 1678647181.
iii.
Alice (Adelaide) of (3657).XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)"
327200785.  Judith of29 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) was born in 982.  She married Richard II the Good of Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" in 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died in 1017.

327200786.  Fulbert of29 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) died.

     (an unknown value) (tanner).

     Children of Fulbert of29 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" include:


 163600393.
i.
Arlette of28 (2957).XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)"
327200788.  Baldwin IV of29 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) was born in 980 at Flanders, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Ogive (Otgive) of Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" before 1012 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He married unknown of Normandy (3482)XE "Normandy:unknown of  (3482)" circa 1031 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died on 30 May 1036.

     (an unknown value) (The Bearded, Count of Valenciennes, 1007, and Count of Flanders).

     Children of Baldwin IV of29 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" and Ogive (Otgive) of Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (see #327200789) were:


 163600394.
i.
Baldwin V of28 (3473).XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"
327200789.  Ogive (Otgive) of29 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) was born in 995.  She married Baldwin IV of Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" before 1012 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  She died on 21 Feb 1030.

327200790.  Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) was born on 27 Mar 972 at Orleans, France.  He married Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" before 988 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 142.).  Robert (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" was divorced from Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" in 992 (repudiated) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Berthe of Burgundy (3191)XE "Burgundy:Berthe of  (3191) (-1001)" in 995. Repudiated 998 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  He died on 20 Jul 1031 at age 59.

     (an unknown value) (The pious. King of France, 996-1031).

     Children of Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" and Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (see #327200791) were as follows:


 654401769.
i.
Adele of28 (3187).XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

 163600432.
ii.
Henry I of (3194).XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

 163600395.
iii.
Adele (Aelis) de (3474).XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)"

 163600402.
iv.
Robert The Old of (3198).XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"
327200791.  Constance of29 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) was born circa 986.  She married Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  She died on 25 Jul 1032 at Melun, France.

     (an unknown value) (Constance was an opportunist and a manipulator of men with a wicked reputation. She was the third wife of Robert, who was forced by the Pope to annul his second marriage to his cousin Bertha of Burgundy).

327200792.  Crinan of29 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) was born in 978.  He married Bethoc (Beatrix) of Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" in 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.).  He died in 1045.

     (an unknown value) (the Thane (also called Albanach or Grimus), Lay Abbot of Dunkeld, Governor of the Scots Islands. "1045. A battle between the Scots themselves, where fell Crinan abbott of Duncaillen").

     Children of Crinan of29 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" and Bethoc (Beatrix) of Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (see #327200793) were as follows:


 163600396.
i.
Duncan I Mac Crinan of28 (3249).XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

 
ii.
Maldred (4588)XE "Dunkeld:Maldred  (4588) (-1045)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 149.) married Ealdgyth of England (4589).XE "England:Ealdgyth of  (4589)"  He died in 1045.

     (an unknown value) (Slain in battle 1045, Lord of Carlisle and Allerdale).

327200793.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of29 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) married Crinan of Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" in 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.).  She died.

327200794.  Siward of29 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) died.

     (an unknown value) (Danish).

     Children of Siward of29 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" include:


 163600397.
i.
daughter of28 (3251).XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)"
327200796.  Edmund Ironside of29 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) was born in 989.  He married Ealgyth of Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  He died on 30 Nov 1016.

     (an unknown value) (King of England 1016).

     Children of Edmund Ironside of29 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" and Ealgyth of Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797) were:


 163600398.
i.
Edward the Exile28 (3114).XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)"
327200797.  Ealgyth of29 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.) married Edmund Ironside of England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  She died.

327200804.  Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) was born on 27 Mar 972 at Orleans, France.  He married Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" before 988 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 142.).  Robert (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" was divorced from Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" in 992 (repudiated) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Berthe of Burgundy (3191)XE "Burgundy:Berthe of  (3191) (-1001)" in 995. Repudiated 998 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  He died on 20 Jul 1031 at age 59.

     (an unknown value) (The pious. King of France, 996-1031).

     Children of Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" and Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (see #327200791) were as follows:


 654401769.
i.
Adele of28 (3187).XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

 163600432.
ii.
Henry I of (3194).XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

 163600395.
iii.
Adele (Aelis) de (3474).XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)"

 163600402.
iv.
Robert The Old of (3198).XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"
327200805.  Constance of29 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) was born circa 986.  She married Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  She died on 25 Jul 1032 at Melun, France.

     (an unknown value) (Constance was an opportunist and a manipulator of men with a wicked reputation. She was the third wife of Robert, who was forced by the Pope to annul his second marriage to his cousin Bertha of Burgundy).

327200806.  Dalmas I of29 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Aremburge of Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

     Children of Dalmas I of29 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" and Aremburge of Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807) were:


 163600403.
i.
Helie of28 (3200).XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)"
327200807.  Aremburge of29 Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.) married Dalmas I of Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (see #327200806) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 102.).

327200856.  Routrou I of29 Chateaudun Vicount (3560)XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount (3560)"

XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount  (3560)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) married Adeline de Domfront (3561)XE "Domfront:Adeline de  (3561)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  He died.

     Children of Routrou I of29 Chateaudun Vicount (3560)XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount (3560)"

XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount  (3560)" and Adeline de Domfront (3561)XE "Domfront:Adeline de  (3561)" (see #327200857) were:


 163600428.
i.
Geoffrey II of28 (3405).XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"

XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count  (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"
327200857.  Adeline de29 Domfront (3561)XE "Domfront:Adeline de  (3561)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) married Routrou I of Chateaudun Vicount (3560)XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount (3560)"

XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount  (3560)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  She died.

327200858.  Hildouin III de29 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133 & 208.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1010 at Montdidier, Somme, France.  He married Adele (Alix) de Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133 & 208.).  He died circa 1063 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Montdidier & Roucy, Seigneur of Rameru) (Johann Gottlieb Leonhard Bleydorn, Baptismal Record, 14 M,rz 1781, "Auszug aus dem Taufregister," Jahrgang 1781 Seite 204, Evangelischen Hof- und Garnisonkirche zu St. Jacob.).

     Children of Hildouin III de29 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" and Adele (Alix) de Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (see #327200859) were as follows:


 184046627.
i.
Margaret (Marguerite) de28 (3399).XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)"

 163600429.
ii.
Beatrix de (3403).XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)"

 1678645469.
iii.
Adela de (3404).XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)"
327200859.  Adele (Alix) de29 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208 & 133.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1014 at Roucy, Aisne, France.  She married Hildouin III de Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133 & 208.).  She died in 1063.

327200860.  William I the Conqueror of29 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

327200861.  Maud of29 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

327200864.  Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) was born on 27 Mar 972 at Orleans, France.  He married Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" before 988 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 142.).  Robert (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" was divorced from Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" in 992 (repudiated) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Berthe of Burgundy (3191)XE "Burgundy:Berthe of  (3191) (-1001)" in 995. Repudiated 998 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  He died on 20 Jul 1031 at age 59.

     (an unknown value) (The pious. King of France, 996-1031).

     Children of Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" and Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (see #327200791) were as follows:


 654401769.
i.
Adele of28 (3187).XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

 163600432.
ii.
Henry I of (3194).XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

 163600395.
iii.
Adele (Aelis) de (3474).XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)"

 163600402.
iv.
Robert The Old of (3198).XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"
327200865.  Constance of29 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) was born circa 986.  She married Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  She died on 25 Jul 1032 at Melun, France.

     (an unknown value) (Constance was an opportunist and a manipulator of men with a wicked reputation. She was the third wife of Robert, who was forced by the Pope to annul his second marriage to his cousin Bertha of Burgundy).

327200866.  Jaroslav I of29 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) married Ingeborg of Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" in 1019 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 20 Feb 1054.

     Children of Jaroslav I of29 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" and Ingeborg of Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (see #327200867) were as follows:


 163600433.
i.
Anne of28 (3195).XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)"

 
ii.
Isiaslav I of (3613)XE "Kiev:Isiaslav I of Grand Prince (3613) (1025-3 Oct 1078)"

XE "Kiev:Isiaslav I of Grand Prince  (3613) (1025-3 Oct 1078)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) was born in 1025.  He married Gertrude of Poland (3614)XE "Poland:Gertrude of  (3614) (-4 Jan 1107)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  He died on 3 Oct 1078.


 
iii.
Wsevolod I of (3627)XE "Kiev:Wsevolod I of  (3627) (1030-13 Apr 1093)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) was born in 1030.  He married unknown Monomacha (3628)XE "Monomacha:unknown  (3628) (-1067)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  He died on 13 Apr 1093.

327200867.  Ingeborg of29 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Jaroslav I of Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" in 1019 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died on 10 Feb 1050.

327200870.  Bernard II of29 Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" (Bernard, #654401740) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) was born circa 1002 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Elica von Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" circa 1020 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died in 1059.

     Children of Bernard II of29 Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" and Elica von Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" (see #327200871) were:


 163600435.
i.
Gertrude of28 (3418).XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)"
327200871.  Elica von29 Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" (Henry, #654401742) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1004.  She married Bernard II of Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" circa 1020 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 29 Jun 1059.

327200882.  Guy de29 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Thibault, #654401764) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1009 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  He married Hodierne de Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Seigneur of Montlhery and Bray).

     Children of Guy de29 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" and Hodierne de Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (see #327200883) were:


 163600441.
i.
Isabel de28 (3164).XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)"
327200883.  Hodierne de29 Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.) was born circa 1014 at Normandy, France.  She married Guy de Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.).  She died.

327200884.  William I de29 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" (Renaud, #654401768) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Ermengarde of Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" in 1045 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 20 Jun 1100.

     Children of William I de29 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" and Ermengarde of Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (see #327200885) were:


 163600442.
i.
Renaud II de28 (3182).XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"
327200885.  Ermengarde of29 Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1026 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married William I de Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" in 1045 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

327200886.  Artaud de29 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" (Artaud, #654401772) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1029 at Laforez, Provence, France.  He died in 1085.

     Children of Artaud de29 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" and Ida (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (see #327200887) were:


 163600443.
i.
Ida de28 (3183).XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"
327200887.  Ida29 (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1033.  She died.

327203920.  Richard II the Good of29 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Astrid of Denmark Princess (3515)XE "Denmark:Astrid of Princess (3515)"

XE "Denmark:Astrid of Princess  (3515)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 111.).  He married Judith of Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" in 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He married Poppa unknown (3516)XE "unknown:Poppa  (3516)" circa 1024 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 111.).  He died on 28 Aug 1026.

     (an unknown value) (Sources: George Andrews Moriarty, The Plantagenet Ancestry (1985); Prinz von Isenburg, Stammtafeln zur Geschichte der Europäischen Staaten (ed. 1976 & later editions)).

     Children of Richard II the Good of29 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" and Judith of Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (see #327200785) were as follows:


 163600392.
i.
Robert I28 (2956).XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

 736186514.
ii.
Richard III of (3475).XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke  (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

 1678647181.
iii.
Alice (Adelaide) of (3657).XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)"
327203921.  Judith of29 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) was born in 982.  She married Richard II the Good of Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" in 1000 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died in 1017.

327203922.  Fulbert of29 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) died.

     (an unknown value) (tanner).

     Children of Fulbert of29 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" include:


 163600393.
i.
Arlette of28 (2957).XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)"
327203924.  Baldwin IV of29 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) was born in 980 at Flanders, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Ogive (Otgive) of Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" before 1012 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He married unknown of Normandy (3482)XE "Normandy:unknown of  (3482)" circa 1031 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died on 30 May 1036.

     (an unknown value) (The Bearded, Count of Valenciennes, 1007, and Count of Flanders).

     Children of Baldwin IV of29 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" and Ogive (Otgive) of Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (see #327200789) were:


 163600394.
i.
Baldwin V of28 (3473).XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"
327203925.  Ogive (Otgive) of29 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) was born in 995.  She married Baldwin IV of Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" before 1012 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  She died on 21 Feb 1030.

327203926.  Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) was born on 27 Mar 972 at Orleans, France.  He married Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" before 988 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 142.).  Robert (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" was divorced from Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" in 992 (repudiated) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Berthe of Burgundy (3191)XE "Burgundy:Berthe of  (3191) (-1001)" in 995. Repudiated 998 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He married Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  He died on 20 Jul 1031 at age 59.

     (an unknown value) (The pious. King of France, 996-1031).

     Children of Robert II of29 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" and Constance of Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (see #327200791) were as follows:


 654401769.
i.
Adele of28 (3187).XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

 163600432.
ii.
Henry I of (3194).XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

 163600395.
iii.
Adele (Aelis) de (3474).XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)"

 163600402.
iv.
Robert The Old of (3198).XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"
327203927.  Constance of29 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) was born circa 986.  She married Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" in 1002 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 124.).  She died on 25 Jul 1032 at Melun, France.

     (an unknown value) (Constance was an opportunist and a manipulator of men with a wicked reputation. She was the third wife of Robert, who was forced by the Pope to annul his second marriage to his cousin Bertha of Burgundy).

368093250.  Walter29 Giffard (3394)XE "Giffard:Walter  (3394) (circa 1010-1084)" was born circa 1010 at Longueville, Normandy, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He married Agnes Flatel (3395)XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)" at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  He died in 1084 at France.

     Children of Walter29 Giffard (3394)XE "Giffard:Walter  (3394) (circa 1010-1084)" and Agnes Flatel (3395)XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)" (see #368093251) were as follows:


 184046625.
i.
Rohese28 (3392).XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)"

 
ii.
Catherine (3397)XE "Giffard:Catherine  (3397) (1041-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1041 at Normandy, France (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

368093251.  Agnes29 Flatel (3395)XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)" (Girard, #736186502) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1014 at Longueville, Normandy, France.  She married Walter Giffard (3394)XE "Giffard:Walter  (3394) (circa 1010-1084)" at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.).  She died at France.

368093252.  Renaud de29 Clermont (3400)XE "Clermont:Renaud de  (3400) (circa 1000-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1000 at England.  He died.

     Children of Renaud de29 Clermont (3400)XE "Clermont:Renaud de  (3400) (circa 1000-)" include:


 184046626.
i.
Hugh de28 (3398).XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)"
368093254.  Hildouin III de29 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133 & 208.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1010 at Montdidier, Somme, France.  He married Adele (Alix) de Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133 & 208.).  He died circa 1063 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Montdidier & Roucy, Seigneur of Rameru) (Johann Gottlieb Leonhard Bleydorn, Baptismal Record.).

     Children of Hildouin III de29 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" and Adele (Alix) de Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (see #327200859) were as follows:


 184046627.
i.
Margaret (Marguerite) de28 (3399).XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)"

 163600429.
ii.
Beatrix de (3403).XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)"

 1678645469.
iii.
Adela de (3404).XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)"
368093255.  Adele (Alix) de29 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208 & 133.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1014 at Roucy, Aisne, France.  She married Hildouin III de Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133 & 208.).  She died in 1063.

368093256.  Ranulph I of29 the Bessin Vicomte (3655)XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte (3655)"

XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte  (3655)" (Anschitil, #736186512) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Alice of Normandy (3654)XE "Normandy:Alice of  (3654)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (vicomte of the Bessin, fought at the Battle of Val-es-Dunes, 1047).

     Children of Ranulph I of29 the Bessin Vicomte (3655)XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte (3655)"

XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte  (3655)" and Alice of Normandy (3654)XE "Normandy:Alice of  (3654)" (see #368093257) were:


 184046628.
i.
Ranulph II of28 (3648).XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte (3648) (-after 1089)"

XE "Bayeux:Ranulph II of Vicomte  (3648) (-after 1089)"
368093257.  Alice of29 Normandy (3654)XE "Normandy:Alice of  (3654)" (Richard, #736186514) married Ranulph I of the Bessin Vicomte (3655)XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte (3655)"

XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte  (3655)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (illeg. dau).

368093258.  Richard (le Goz)29 d'Avranches Vicomte (3650)XE "d'Avranches:Richard (le Goz) Vicomte (3650)"

XE "d'Avranches:Richard (le Goz) Vicomte  (3650)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.) married Emma unknown (3651)XE "unknown:Emma  (3651)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died.

     Children of Richard (le Goz)29 d'Avranches Vicomte (3650)XE "d'Avranches:Richard (le Goz) Vicomte (3650)"

XE "d'Avranches:Richard (le Goz) Vicomte  (3650)" and Emma unknown (3651)XE "unknown:Emma  (3651)" (see #368093259) were:


 184046629.
i.
Margaret (Maud)28 (3649).XE "d'Avranches:Margaret (Maud)  (3649)"
368093259.  Emma29 unknown (3651)XE "unknown:Emma  (3651)" married Richard (le Goz) d'Avranches Vicomte (3650)XE "d'Avranches:Richard (le Goz) Vicomte (3650)"

XE "d'Avranches:Richard (le Goz) Vicomte  (3650)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (alleged to be a half-sister of William the Conqueror; Prof. Douglas says "fictitious").

368093312.  Sihtric of the Silken Beard of29 Dublin King (4351)XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King (4351) (-1042)"

XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King  (4351) (-1042)" (Olaf Kvaaran, #736186624) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 202.) married Slani (--?--) (4352).XE "(--?--):Slani  (4352)"  He died in 1042.

     (an unknown value) (He went on pilgrimage to Rome 1028).

     Children of Sihtric of the Silken Beard of29 Dublin King (4351)XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King (4351) (-1042)"

XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King  (4351) (-1042)" and Slani (--?--) (4352)XE "(--?--):Slani  (4352)" (see #368093313) are:


 184046656.
i.
Olaf of28 (4348).XE "Dublin:Olaf of  (4348)"
368093313.  Slani29 (--?--) (4352)XE "(--?--):Slani  (4352)" (Brian Boru, #736186626) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 202.) married Sihtric of the Silken Beard of Dublin King (4351).XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King (4351) (-1042)"

XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King  (4351) (-1042)"
368093314.  Dunlang of29 Leinster King (4350)XE "Leinster:Dunlang of King (4350) (-1014)"

XE "Leinster:Dunlang of King  (4350) (-1014)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 203.) died in 1014.

     Children of Dunlang of29 Leinster King (4350)XE "Leinster:Dunlang of King (4350) (-1014)"

XE "Leinster:Dunlang of King  (4350) (-1014)" include:


 184046657.
i.
Maelcorcre28 (4349).XE "(--?--):Maelcorcre  (4349)"
368093376.  Aubri-Geoffrey of29 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

368093377.  Ermengarde of29 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

368093378.  Simon I of29 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

368093379.  Agnes29 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

368093384.  Robert I29 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

368093385.  Arlette of29 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

368093386.  Baldwin V of29 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

368093387.  Adele (Aelis) de29 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

368093388.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of29 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) (see #163600396).

368093389.  daughter of29 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (see #163600397).

368093390.  Edward the Exile29 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (see #163600398).

368093391.  Agatha29 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399).

368093394.  Robert The Old of29 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

368093395.  Helie of29 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

368093472.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of29 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) (see #163600396).

368093473.  daughter of29 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (see #163600397).

368093474.  Edward the Exile29 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (see #163600398).

368093475.  Agatha29 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399).

368093476.  Sigurd of29 Northumberland Earl (4019)XE "Northumberland:Sigurd of Earl (4019)"

XE "Northumberland:Sigurd of Earl  (4019)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 148.) married Aelflaed of Bernicia (4020)XE "Bernicia:Aelflaed of  (4020)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 148.).  He died.

     Children of Sigurd of29 Northumberland Earl (4019)XE "Northumberland:Sigurd of Earl (4019)"

XE "Northumberland:Sigurd of Earl  (4019)" and Aelflaed of Bernicia (4020)XE "Bernicia:Aelflaed of  (4020)" (see #368093477) were:


 184046738.
i.
Waltheof II of28 (4018).XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl (4018) (-31 May 1076)"

XE "Huntingdon:Waltheof II of Earl  (4018) (-31 May 1076)"
368093477.  Aelflaed of29 Bernicia (4020)XE "Bernicia:Aelflaed of  (4020)" (Aldred, #736186954) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 148.) married Sigurd of Northumberland Earl (4019)XE "Northumberland:Sigurd of Earl (4019)"

XE "Northumberland:Sigurd of Earl  (4019)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 23 of Line 148.).  She died.

368093478.  an unknown person (Eustace, #736186956) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 22 of Line 148.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 130.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 130.) married Adelaide (or Adelis) of Aumale Countess (4022)XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"

XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess  (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 130.).  He died in 1054.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Lens in Artois, slain at the battle of Lille, 1054).

     Children of an unknown person and Adelaide (or Adelis) of Aumale Countess (4022)XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"

XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess  (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (see #368093479) were:


 184046739.
i.
Judith of28 (4017).XE "Lens:Judith of  (4017) (1054-)"
368093479.  Adelaide (or Adelis) of29 Aumale Countess (4022)XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)"

XE "Aumale:Adelaide (or Adelis) of Countess  (4022) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 130.) was born circa 1030.  She married Enguerrand II of Ponthieu Count (4024)XE "Ponthieu:Enguerrand II of Count (4024) (-1053)"

XE "Ponthieu:Enguerrand II of Count  (4024) (-1053)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 130.).  She married an unknown person (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 24 of Line 130.).  She died before 1090.

368093484.  Henry I of29 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

368093485.  Anne of29 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

368093486.  Herbert IV of29 Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" (Otho, #736186972) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) was born circa 1032.  He married Adela de Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.).  He died circa 1080.

     Children of Herbert IV of29 Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" and Adela de Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (see #368093487) were:


 184046743.
i.
Adelaide de28 (3305).XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)"
368093487.  Adela de29 Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (Raoul, #736186974) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) married Herbert IV of Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.).  She died.

368093508.  Theobald III of29 Blois Count (4602)XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count (4602) (-1089)"

XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count  (4602) (-1089)" (Eudes, #736187016) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) married Alix de Crepi (4603).XE "Crepi:Alix de  (4603)"  He died in 1089.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Blois and Champagne).

     Children of Theobald III of29 Blois Count (4602)XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count (4602) (-1089)"

XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count  (4602) (-1089)" and Alix de Crepi (4603)XE "Crepi:Alix de  (4603)" (see #368093509) were:


 184046754.
i.
Stephen of28 (4591).XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)"
368093509.  Alix de29 Crepi (4603)XE "Crepi:Alix de  (4603)" married Theobald III of Blois Count (4602).XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count (4602) (-1089)"

XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count  (4602) (-1089)"
368093532.  Richard29 Fitz Scrob (4160)XE "Fitz Scrob:Richard  (4160) (-1067)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 177.) died in 1067.

     (an unknown value) (Of Richard's Castle).

     Children of Richard29 Fitz Scrob (4160)XE "Fitz Scrob:Richard  (4160) (-1067)" include:


 184046766.
i.
Osborn28 (4145).XE "Fitz Richard:Osborn  (4145)"
368093534.  Gruffydd ap29 Llywelyn Prince (4147)XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"

XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince  (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)" (Llywelyn Seisyll, #736187068) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 176.) married Aldgyth of Mercia (4148)XE "Mercia:Aldgyth of  (4148)" circa 1057 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 176A, 1 of Line 177 & 2 of Line 176.).  He died on 5 Aug 1063.

     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales, king of Gwynedd & Powys, 1039, and of Deheubarth, 1055, slain 5 Aug. 1063).

     Children of Gruffydd ap29 Llywelyn Prince (4147)XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"

XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince  (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)" and Aldgyth of Mercia (4148)XE "Mercia:Aldgyth of  (4148)" (see #368093535) were:


 184046767.
i.
Nesta of28 (4146).XE "North Wales:Nesta of  (4146) (1055-)"
368093535.  Aldgyth of29 Mercia (4148)XE "Mercia:Aldgyth of  (4148)" (Aelfgar, #736187070) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 176A.) married Gruffydd ap Llywelyn Prince (4147)XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"

XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince  (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)" circa 1057 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 176A, 1 of Line 177 & 2 of Line 176.).  She married Harold II Godwinson of England King (4153)XE "England:Harold II Godwinson of King (4153) (circa 1022-14 Oct 1066)"

XE "England:Harold II Godwinson of King  (4153) (circa 1022-14 Oct 1066)" in 1064 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 4 of Line 176A.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Seen at "Doomsday" 1086).

368093548.  Richard Fitz Gilbert of29 Clare (3391)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert of  (3391) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (see #184046624).

368093549.  Rohese29 Giffard (3392)XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)" (Walter, #368093250) (see #184046625).

368093550.  Hugh de29 Creil (3398)XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)" (Renaud Clermont, #368093252) (see #184046626).

368093551.  Margaret (Marguerite) de29 Roucy (3399)XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (see #184046627).

385613824.  Hamelin29 Plantagenet Earl (3276)XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl (3276) (-7 May 1202)"

XE "Plantagenet:Hamelin Earl  (3276) (-7 May 1202)" (see #104915342).

385613825.  Isabel de29 Warenne Countess (3277)XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)"

XE "Warenne:Isabel de Countess  (3277) (-13 Jul 1199)" (William, #209830686) (see #104915343).

385613826.  William29 Marshal Earl (3360)XE "Marshal:William Earl (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)"

XE "Marshal:William Earl  (3360) (circa 1146-14 May 1219)" (John, #52457676) (see #26228838).

385613827.  Isabel de29 Clare (3361)XE "Clare:Isabel de  (3361) (1173-1220)" (Richard, #52457678) (see #26228839).

385613828.  Hugh IX of29 Lusignan (3659)XE "Lusignan:Hugh IX of  (3659)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) died.

     Children of Hugh IX of29 Lusignan (3659)XE "Lusignan:Hugh IX of  (3659)" include:


 192806914.
i.
Hugh X of28 (3407).XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)"

XE "Lusignan:Hugh X of Count  (3407) (-circa 6 Jun 1246)"
385613830.  Aymer "Taillifer" de29 Valence Count (3410)XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count (3410) (circa 1160-1218)"

XE "Valence:Aymer "Taillifer" de Count  (3410) (circa 1160-1218)" (William Angouleme, #20450052) (see #10225026).

385613831.  Alice de29 Courtenay (3411)XE "Courtenay:Alice de  (3411) (circa 1160-1218)" (Pierre France, #20450054) (see #10225027).

385613832.  Robert de29 Vere (3660)XE "Vere:Robert de  (3660) (after 1164-before 25 Oct 1221)" (Aubrey, #771227664) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) was born after 1164 at Hatfield, Essex, England.  He married Isabel de Bolbec (3661)XE "Bolbec:Isabel de  (3661) (circa 1164-3 Feb 1245)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  He died before 25 Oct 1221.

     (an unknown value) (Magna Charta Surety 1215).

     Children of Robert de29 Vere (3660)XE "Vere:Robert de  (3660) (after 1164-before 25 Oct 1221)" and Isabel de Bolbec (3661)XE "Bolbec:Isabel de  (3661) (circa 1164-3 Feb 1245)" (see #385613833) were:


 192806916.
i.
Hugh de28 (3319).XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)"

XE "Vere:Hugh de Earl  (3319) (circa 1210-before 23 Dec 1263)"
385613833.  Isabel de29 Bolbec (3661)XE "Bolbec:Isabel de  (3661) (circa 1164-3 Feb 1245)" (Hugh, #771227666) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 65 & 208.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1164 at Hatfield, Essex, England.  She married Robert de Vere (3660)XE "Vere:Robert de  (3660) (after 1164-before 25 Oct 1221)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  She died on 3 Feb 1245 at England.

385613834.  Saher (Saire) de29 Quincy Earl (3322)XE "Quincy:Saher (Saire) de Earl (3322) (1155-3 Nov 1219)"

XE "Quincy:Saher (Saire) de Earl  (3322) (1155-3 Nov 1219)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58 & 65.) was born in 1155.  He married Margaret de Beaumont (3323)XE "Beaumont:Margaret de  (3323) (-circa 12 Jan 1235)" before 1173 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.).  He died on 3 Nov 1219.

     (an unknown value) (1st Earl of Winchester, Magna Charta Surety, 1215, Crusader 1219).

     Children of Saher (Saire) de29 Quincy Earl (3322)XE "Quincy:Saher (Saire) de Earl (3322) (1155-3 Nov 1219)"

XE "Quincy:Saher (Saire) de Earl  (3322) (1155-3 Nov 1219)" and Margaret de Beaumont (3323)XE "Beaumont:Margaret de  (3323) (-circa 12 Jan 1235)" (see #385613835) were as follows:


 
i.
Roger de28 (3328)XE "Quincy:Roger de  (3328) (-25 Apr 1264)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.) married Helen of Galloway (3329)XE "Galloway:Helen of  (3329)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died on 25 Apr 1264.


 192806917.
ii.
Hawise de (3320).XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess (3320) (circa 1184-)"

XE "Quincy:Hawise de Countess  (3320) (circa 1184-)"
385613835.  Margaret de29 Beaumont (3323)XE "Beaumont:Margaret de  (3323) (-circa 12 Jan 1235)" (Robert, #771227670) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.) married Saher (Saire) de Quincy Earl (3322)XE "Quincy:Saher (Saire) de Earl (3322) (1155-3 Nov 1219)"

XE "Quincy:Saher (Saire) de Earl  (3322) (1155-3 Nov 1219)" before 1173 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.).  She died circa 12 Jan 1235.

385613836.  John de29 Sanford (3674)XE "Sanford:John de  (3674) (circa 1174-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1174.  He died.

     Children of John de29 Sanford (3674)XE "Sanford:John de  (3674) (circa 1174-)" include:


 192806918.
i.
Gilbert de28 (3631).XE "Sanford:Gilbert de  (3631) (circa 1200-)"
385613838.  Roger29 La Zouche (3633)XE "La Zouche:Roger  (3633) (-before 14 May 1238)" (Alan, #771227676) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 43.) married Margaret unknown (3634)XE "unknown:Margaret  (3634) (-after 1220)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 43.).  He died before 14 May 1238.

     (an unknown value) (younger son, h. to bro. William 1199, sheriff of Devonshire 1228-31, a witness to Henry III's confirmation of the Magna Charta).

     Children of Roger29 La Zouche (3633)XE "La Zouche:Roger  (3633) (-before 14 May 1238)" include:


 192806919.
i.
Loretta28 (3632).XE "La Zouche:Loretta  (3632)"

 
ii.
Alan (3637)XE "La Zouche:Alan Sir (3637) (-12 Aug 1270)"

XE "La Zouche:Alan Sir  (3637) (-12 Aug 1270)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 42.) married Elena de Quincy (3638)XE "Quincy:Elena de  (3638) (-circa 20 Aug 1296)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 42.).  He died on 12 Aug 1270.

     (an unknown value) (Baron Zouche of Ashby la Zouche, co. Leicester; Constable of the Tower of London, eldest son and heir).

419660802.  Guy de29 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Thibault, #654401764) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1009 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  He married Hodierne de Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Seigneur of Montlhery and Bray).

     Children of Guy de29 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" and Hodierne de Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (see #327200883) were:


 163600441.
i.
Isabel de28 (3164).XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)"
419660803.  Hodierne de29 Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.) was born circa 1014 at Normandy, France.  She married Guy de Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.).  She died.

419660804.  William I de29 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" (Renaud, #654401768) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Ermengarde of Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" in 1045 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 20 Jun 1100.

     Children of William I de29 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" and Ermengarde of Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (see #327200885) were:


 163600442.
i.
Renaud II de28 (3182).XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"
419660805.  Ermengarde of29 Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1026 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married William I de Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" in 1045 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

419660806.  Artaud de29 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" (Artaud, #654401772) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1029 at Laforez, Provence, France.  He died in 1085.

     Children of Artaud de29 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" and Ida (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (see #327200887) were:


 163600443.
i.
Ida de28 (3183).XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"
419660807.  Ida29 (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1033.  She died.

419660850.  Hugh Magnus of29 France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #184046742).

419660851.  Adelaide de29 Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (Herbert, #368093486) (see #184046743).

419660854.  Anseau (Ansel) de29 Garlande (3304)XE "Garlande:Anseau (Ansel) de  (3304) (-1118)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) died in 1118.

     (an unknown value) (Seigneur de Garlande, seneschal of France).

     Children of Anseau (Ansel) de29 Garlande (3304)XE "Garlande:Anseau (Ansel) de  (3304) (-1118)" include:


 209830427.
i.
Agnes de28 (3303).XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)"
419660856.  William I the Conqueror of29 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

419660857.  Maud of29 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

419661366.  Duke Godfrey I of29 Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" (Henry, #839322732) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 1060 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  He married Ida de Chini and de Namur (5209)XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" (see #419661367), daughter of Count Otto II of Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" and Adelaide of Namur (5218),XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" circa 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  He died on 25 Jan 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Louvain, Duke of Lower Lorraine) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Duke Godfrey I of29 Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" and Ida de Chini and de Namur (5209)XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" (see #419661367) were as follows:


 
i.
Godfrey II of28 (5213)XE "Brabant:Godfrey II of (Count)  (5213) (        -1143)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey II of Count (5213) (        -1143)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) married Luitgarde of Sultzbach (5214)XE "Sultzbach:Luitgarde of  (5214)" in 1139 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He died in 1143 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).


 209830683.
ii.
Adeliza of (3111).XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)"
419661367.  Ida de29 Chini and de Namur (5209)XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" (Otto Chiny, #839322734) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) was born in 1068 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  She married Duke Godfrey I of Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" (see #419661366), son of Count Henry II of Brabant (5210)XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)" and Adelaide (Adela) of Orlamunda (5211),XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)" circa 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  She died circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).

419661368.  Fulk V the Young of29 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

419661369.  Erembourg of29 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

419661372.  William de29 Warenne Earl (3286)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)" (William, #184046740) (see #92023370).

419661373.  Isabel de29 Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (Hugh France, #184046742) (see #92023371).

419661374.  Count William III29 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (Robert Belleme, #419661792) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (see #209830897), daughter of Count Eudes I Borel of Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" and Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Alencon & Ponthieu) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count William III29 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" and Alice (Ela) of Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (see #209830897) were as follows:


 104915448.
i.
Guy II of28 (5109).XE "Ponthieu:Guy II of  (5109) (        -1147)"

 209830687.
ii.
Ela (3283).XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)"
419661375.  Alice (Ela) of29 Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Eudes, #419661794) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Count William III Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (see #209830896), son of Robert II de Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" and Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She married Count Bertrand of Toulouse (5116)XE "Toulouse:Bertrand of (Count)  (5116)"

XE "Toulouse:Bertrand of Count (5116)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  She died in 1194 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

419661378.  Johel (Judhael) de29 Toteneis (5198)XE "Toteneis:Johel (Judhael) de  (5198)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  (an unknown value) (of Totnes  & Barnstable) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of Johel (Judhael) de29 Toteneis (5198)XE "Toteneis:Johel (Judhael) de  (5198)" include:


 209830689.
i.
Aenor de28 (5197).XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)"
419661380.  Walter29 Fitz Roger (4163)XE "Fitz Roger:Walter  (4163)" (see #92023380).

419661382.  Bernard de29 Neufmarché Lord (4142)XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord (4142) (-1093)"

XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord  (4142) (-1093)" (Geoffrey unknown, #184046764) (see #92023382).

419661383.  Nesta29 Fitz Richard (4143)XE "Fitz Richard:Nesta  (4143) (-1093)" (Osborn, #184046766) (see #92023383).

419661416.  Walter29 Devereux (3375)XE "Devereux:Walter  (3375) (circa 1045-)" (William, #839322832) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1045 at Rosmar, Normandy, France.  He died.

     Children of Walter29 Devereux (3375)XE "Devereux:Walter  (3375) (circa 1045-)" and Philippa unknown (3376)XE "unknown:Philippa  (3376)" (see #419661417) were:


 209830708.
i.
Edward28 (3372).XE "Devereux:Edward  (3372) (circa 1074-)"
419661417.  Philippa29 unknown (3376)XE "unknown:Philippa  (3376)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

419661424.  Richard Fitz Gilbert of29 Clare (3391)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert of  (3391) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (see #184046624).

419661425.  Rohese29 Giffard (3392)XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)" (Walter, #368093250) (see #184046625).

419661426.  Hugh de29 Creil (3398)XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)" (Renaud Clermont, #368093252) (see #184046626).

419661427.  Margaret (Marguerite) de29 Roucy (3399)XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (see #184046627).

419661568.  Aubri-Geoffrey of29 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

419661569.  Ermengarde of29 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

419661570.  Simon I of29 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

419661571.  Agnes29 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

419661576.  Robert I29 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

419661577.  Arlette of29 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

419661578.  Baldwin V of29 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

419661579.  Adele (Aelis) de29 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

419661580.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of29 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) (see #163600396).

419661581.  daughter of29 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (see #163600397).

419661582.  Edward the Exile29 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (see #163600398).

419661583.  Agatha29 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399).

419661586.  Robert The Old of29 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

419661587.  Helie of29 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

419661612.  Geoffrey II of29 Perche Count (3405)XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"

XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count  (3405) (circa 1033-1100)" (Routrou Chateaudun, #327200856) (see #163600428).

419661613.  Beatrix de29 Montdidier (3403)XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (see #163600429).

419661614.  Henry I of29 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

419661616.  Henry I of29 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

419661617.  Anne of29 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

419661618.  Florent I of29 Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" (see #163600434).

419661619.  Gertrude of29 Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" (Bernard, #327200870) (see #163600435).

419661624.  Jocelin de29 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" (see #163600440).

419661625.  Isabel de29 Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (Guy, #327200882) (see #163600441).

419661626.  Renaud II de29 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (William, #327200884) (see #163600442).

419661627.  Ida de29 Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Artaud, #327200886) (see #163600443).

419661744.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of29 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

419661745.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of29 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

419661746.  Helias of29 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

419661748.  William I the Conqueror of29 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

419661749.  Maud of29 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

419661750.  Malcolm III Canmore of29 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

419661751.  Margaret of29 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

419661752.  Count William VI (Geoffrey) of29 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (see #81800200).

419661753.  Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of29 Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (Robert, #163600402) (see #81800201).

419661792.  Robert II de29 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) was born circa 1054 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He married Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (see #419661793), daughter of Count Guy I of Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died after 1131 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Shrewsbury, Seigneur of Belleme, Domfront and Alencon) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Robert II de29 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" and Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (see #419661793) are:


 209830896.
i.
William III28 (5111).XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)"
419661793.  Agnes of29 Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Guy, #839323586) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Robert II de Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (see #419661792) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

419661794.  Count Eudes I Borel of29 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (Henry, #839323588) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (see #419661795), daughter of Count William I of Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" and Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died on 23 Mar 1103 at Cilicia (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count Eudes I Borel of29 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" and Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (see #419661795) were:


 209830897.
i.
Alice (Ela) of28 (5112).XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)"
419661795.  Matilda (Maude) of29 Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (William, #839323590) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Count Eudes I Borel of Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (see #419661794), son of Henry of Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" and Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

419661804.  King Stephen of29 Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) married Maud (Mathilda) of Boulogne (5151)XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" (see #419661805), daughter of Count Eustace III of Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" and Mary of Scotland (5153),XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).  He died on 25 Oct 1154 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     (an unknown value) (created King of England) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     Children of King Stephen of29 Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" and Maud (Mathilda) of Boulogne (5151)XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" (see #419661805) were:


 209830902.
i.
Eustace IV of28 (5142).XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"
419661805.  Maud (Mathilda) of29 Boulogne (5151)XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" (Eustace, #839323610) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) was born circa 1105 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).  She married King Stephen of Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" (see #419661804), son of Stephen of Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" and Adela of Normandy (4601),XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)" circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).  She died on 3 May 1152 at Hedingham Castle, Kent, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).

419661808.  Henry I of29 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

419661809.  Anne of29 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

419661810.  Florent I of29 Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" (see #163600434).

419661811.  Gertrude of29 Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" (Bernard, #327200870) (see #163600435).

419667970.  Guy de29 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Thibault, #654401764) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1009 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  He married Hodierne de Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Seigneur of Montlhery and Bray).

     Children of Guy de29 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" and Hodierne de Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (see #327200883) were:


 163600441.
i.
Isabel de28 (3164).XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)"
419667971.  Hodierne de29 Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.) was born circa 1014 at Normandy, France.  She married Guy de Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 99.).  She died.

419667972.  William I de29 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" (Renaud, #654401768) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1030 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Ermengarde of Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" in 1045 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 20 Jun 1100.

     Children of William I de29 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" and Ermengarde of Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (see #327200885) were:


 163600442.
i.
Renaud II de28 (3182).XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"
419667973.  Ermengarde of29 Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1026 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married William I de Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" in 1045 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

419667974.  Artaud de29 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" (Artaud, #654401772) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1029 at Laforez, Provence, France.  He died in 1085.

     Children of Artaud de29 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" and Ida (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (see #327200887) were:


 163600443.
i.
Ida de28 (3183).XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"
419667975.  Ida29 (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1033.  She died.

419668018.  Hugh Magnus of29 France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #184046742).

419668019.  Adelaide de29 Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (Herbert, #368093486) (see #184046743).

419668022.  Anseau (Ansel) de29 Garlande (3304)XE "Garlande:Anseau (Ansel) de  (3304) (-1118)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 52.) died in 1118.

     (an unknown value) (Seigneur de Garlande, seneschal of France).

     Children of Anseau (Ansel) de29 Garlande (3304)XE "Garlande:Anseau (Ansel) de  (3304) (-1118)" include:


 209830427.
i.
Agnes de28 (3303).XE "Garlande:Agnes de  (3303)"
419668024.  William I the Conqueror of29 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

419668025.  Maud of29 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

419668534.  Duke Godfrey I of29 Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" (Henry, #839322732) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 1060 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  He married Ida de Chini and de Namur (5209)XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" (see #419661367), daughter of Count Otto II of Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" and Adelaide of Namur (5218),XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" circa 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  He died on 25 Jan 1140 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Louvain, Duke of Lower Lorraine) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Duke Godfrey I of29 Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" and Ida de Chini and de Namur (5209)XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" (see #419661367) were as follows:


 
i.
Godfrey II of28 (5213)XE "Brabant:Godfrey II of (Count)  (5213) (        -1143)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey II of Count (5213) (        -1143)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) married Luitgarde of Sultzbach (5214)XE "Sultzbach:Luitgarde of  (5214)" in 1139 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He died in 1143 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).


 209830683.
ii.
Adeliza of (3111).XE "Louvain:Adeliza of  (3111) (circa 1103-23 Apr 1151)"
419668535.  Ida de29 Chini and de Namur (5209)XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)" (Otto Chiny, #839322734) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) was born in 1068 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  She married Duke Godfrey I of Brabant the Bearded (5208)XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)" (see #419661366), son of Count Henry II of Brabant (5210)XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)" and Adelaide (Adela) of Orlamunda (5211),XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)" circa 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).  She died circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 131 & 135.).

419668536.  Fulk V the Young of29 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

419668537.  Erembourg of29 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

419668540.  William de29 Warenne Earl (3286)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)" (William, #184046740) (see #92023370).

419668541.  Isabel de29 Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (Hugh France, #184046742) (see #92023371).

419668542.  Count William III29 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (Robert Belleme, #419661792) (see #209830896).

419668543.  Alice (Ela) of29 Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Eudes, #419661794) (see #209830897).

419668546.  Johel (Judhael) de29 Toteneis (5198)XE "Toteneis:Johel (Judhael) de  (5198)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).  (an unknown value) (of Totnes  & Barnstable) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 152.).

     Children of Johel (Judhael) de29 Toteneis (5198)XE "Toteneis:Johel (Judhael) de  (5198)" include:


 209830689.
i.
Aenor de28 (5197).XE "Toteneis:Aenor de  (5197)"
419668548.  Walter29 Fitz Roger (4163)XE "Fitz Roger:Walter  (4163)" (see #92023380).

419668550.  Bernard de29 Neufmarché Lord (4142)XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord (4142) (-1093)"

XE "Neufmarché:Bernard de Lord  (4142) (-1093)" (Geoffrey unknown, #184046764) (see #92023382).

419668551.  Nesta29 Fitz Richard (4143)XE "Fitz Richard:Nesta  (4143) (-1093)" (Osborn, #184046766) (see #92023383).

419668584.  Walter29 Devereux (3375)XE "Devereux:Walter  (3375) (circa 1045-)" (William, #839322832) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1045 at Rosmar, Normandy, France.  He died.

     Children of Walter29 Devereux (3375)XE "Devereux:Walter  (3375) (circa 1045-)" and Philippa unknown (3376)XE "unknown:Philippa  (3376)" (see #419661417) were:


 209830708.
i.
Edward28 (3372).XE "Devereux:Edward  (3372) (circa 1074-)"
419668585.  Philippa29 unknown (3376)XE "unknown:Philippa  (3376)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

419668592.  Richard Fitz Gilbert of29 Clare (3391)XE "Clare:Richard Fitz Gilbert of  (3391) (circa 1030-before 1090)" (see #184046624).

419668593.  Rohese29 Giffard (3392)XE "Giffard:Rohese  (3392) (circa 1034-)" (Walter, #368093250) (see #184046625).

419668594.  Hugh de29 Creil (3398)XE "Creil:Hugh de  (3398) (circa 1030-1101)" (Renaud Clermont, #368093252) (see #184046626).

419668595.  Margaret (Marguerite) de29 Roucy (3399)XE "Roucy:Margaret (Marguerite) de  (3399) (circa 1035-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (see #184046627).

419668736.  Aubri-Geoffrey of29 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

419668737.  Ermengarde of29 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

419668738.  Simon I of29 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

419668739.  Agnes29 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

419668744.  Robert I29 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

419668745.  Arlette of29 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

419668746.  Baldwin V of29 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

419668747.  Adele (Aelis) de29 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

419668748.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of29 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) (see #163600396).

419668749.  daughter of29 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (see #163600397).

419668750.  Edward the Exile29 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (see #163600398).

419668751.  Agatha29 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399).

419668754.  Robert The Old of29 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

419668755.  Helie of29 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

419668780.  Geoffrey II of29 Perche Count (3405)XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count (3405) (circa 1033-1100)"

XE "Perche:Geoffrey II of Count  (3405) (circa 1033-1100)" (Routrou Chateaudun, #327200856) (see #163600428).

419668781.  Beatrix de29 Montdidier (3403)XE "Montdidier:Beatrix de  (3403) (circa 1037-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (see #163600429).

419668782.  Henry I of29 England King (2951)XE "England:Henry I of King (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)"

XE "England:Henry I of King  (2951) (1068-1 Dec 1135)" (William Normandy, #81800196) (see #40900098).

419668784.  Henry I of29 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

419668785.  Anne of29 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

419668786.  Florent I of29 Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" (see #163600434).

419668787.  Gertrude of29 Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" (Bernard, #327200870) (see #163600435).

419668792.  Jocelin de29 Courtenay (3163)XE "Courtenay:Jocelin de  (3163) (circa 1030-circa 1075)" (see #163600440).

419668793.  Isabel de29 Montlhery (3164)XE "Montlhery:Isabel de  (3164) (circa 1040-)" (Guy, #327200882) (see #163600441).

419668794.  Renaud II de29 Nevers Count (3182)XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud II de Count  (3182) (-5 Aug 1089)" (William, #327200884) (see #163600442).

419668795.  Ida de29 Forez Countess (3183)XE "Forez:Ida de Countess (3183) (circa 1055-1085)"

XE "Forez:Ida de Countess  (3183) (circa 1055-1085)" (Artaud, #327200886) (see #163600443).

419668912.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of29 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

419668913.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of29 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

419668914.  Helias of29 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

419668916.  William I the Conqueror of29 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

419668917.  Maud of29 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

419668918.  Malcolm III Canmore of29 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

419668919.  Margaret of29 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

419668920.  Count William VI (Geoffrey) of29 Aquitaine and Poitou (5094)XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of (Count)  (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)"

XE "Aquitaine and Poitou:William VI (Geoffrey) of Count (5094) (circa 1024-25 Sep 1086)" (see #81800200).

419668921.  Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of29 Burgundy (5095)XE "Burgundy:Hildegarde (Aldegarde) of  (5095) (        -after 1104)" (Robert, #163600402) (see #81800201).

419668960.  Robert II de29 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) was born circa 1054 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He married Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (see #419661793), daughter of Count Guy I of Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died after 1131 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Shrewsbury, Seigneur of Belleme, Domfront and Alencon) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Robert II de29 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" and Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (see #419661793) are:


 209830896.
i.
William III28 (5111).XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)"
419668961.  Agnes of29 Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Guy, #839323586) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Robert II de Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (see #419661792) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

419668962.  Count Eudes I Borel of29 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (Henry, #839323588) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (see #419661795), daughter of Count William I of Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" and Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died on 23 Mar 1103 at Cilicia (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count Eudes I Borel of29 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" and Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (see #419661795) were:


 209830897.
i.
Alice (Ela) of28 (5112).XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)"
419668963.  Matilda (Maude) of29 Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (William, #839323590) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Count Eudes I Borel of Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (see #419661794), son of Henry of Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" and Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

419668972.  King Stephen of29 Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.) married Maud (Mathilda) of Boulogne (5151)XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" (see #419661805), daughter of Count Eustace III of Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" and Mary of Scotland (5153),XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).  He died on 25 Oct 1154 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     (an unknown value) (created King of England) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

     Children of King Stephen of29 Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" and Maud (Mathilda) of Boulogne (5151)XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" (see #419661805) were:


 209830902.
i.
Eustace IV of28 (5142).XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of (Count)  (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace IV of Count (5142) (circa 1120-10 Aug 1153)"
419668973.  Maud (Mathilda) of29 Boulogne (5151)XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)" (Eustace, #839323610) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) was born circa 1105 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).  She married King Stephen of Blois (5150)XE "Blois:Stephen of (King)  (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of King (5150) (        -25 Oct 1154)" (see #419661804), son of Stephen of Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" and Adela of Normandy (4601),XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)" circa 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).  She died on 3 May 1152 at Hedingham Castle, Kent, England (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 138 & 145.).

419668976.  Henry I of29 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

419668977.  Anne of29 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

419668978.  Florent I of29 Holland Count (3417)XE "Holland:Florent I of Count (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)"

XE "Holland:Florent I of Count  (3417) (circa 1017-28 Jun 1061)" (see #163600434).

419668979.  Gertrude of29 Saxony (3418)XE "Saxony:Gertrude of  (3418) (circa 1028-4 Aug 1113)" (Bernard, #327200870) (see #163600435).

Generation ThirtyTC "Generation Thirty" \l 2
654401540.  Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of30 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Fulk Anjoy, #1308803080) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Adelaide de Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died on 21 Jul 987.

     He was also known as Grisgonelle (2963).XE "Anjou:Grisgonelle  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"
     Children of Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of30 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" and Adelaide de Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (see #654401541) were as follows:


 654401571.
i.
Ermengarde of29 (2961).XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)"

 327200770.
ii.
Fulk III the Black of (2967).XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"
654401541.  Adelaide de30 Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Robert (?), #1308803082) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106 & 108.) was born in 950.  She married Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died in 978.

654401568.  Richard I the Fearless of30 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" (William, #1308803136) was born circa 933.  He married Emma of Paris (3520)XE "Paris:Emma of  (3520) (-circa 968)" in 960. Betrothed ca. 945 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He married Gunnor of Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" after 968. Married after Emma's death to legitimate their children (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He died on 20 Nov 996.

     Children of Richard I the Fearless of30 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" and Gunnor of Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (see #654401569) were:


 327200784.
i.
Richard II the Good of29 (2960).XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"
654401569.  Gunnor of30 Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (forester, #1308803138) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married Richard I the Fearless of Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" after 968. Married after Emma's death to legitimate their children (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died in 1027.

654401570.  Conan I of30 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Ermengarde of Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" in 980 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died in 992.

     Children of Conan I of30 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" and Ermengarde of Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (see #654401571) were:


 327200785.
i.
Judith of29 (2959).XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)"
654401571.  Ermengarde of30 Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Conan I of Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" in 980 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died.

654401576.  Arnold II the Young of30 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" (Baldwin, #1308803152) was born in Dec 961.  He married Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" in 968 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128 & 142.).  He died on 30 Mar 987 at age 25.

     Children of Arnold II the Young of30 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" and Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (see #654401577) were:


 327200788.
i.
Baldwin IV of29 (3476).XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"
654401577.  Rosela (Susanna) of30 Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (Berengarius, #1308803154) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128 & 142.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 952.  She married Arnold II the Young of Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" in 968 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128 & 142.).  She married Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" before 988 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 142.).  Rosela (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" was divorced from Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" in 992 (repudiated) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 26 Jan 1003.

654401578.  Frederick I of30 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" was born circa 965.  He married Ermentrude von Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" before 995 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 125.).  He died in 1019.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Salm and Luxembourg).

     Children of Frederick I of30 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" and Ermentrude von Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (see #654401579) were as follows:


 
i.
Gisele (Gisla)29 (3480)XE "Luxembourg:Gisele (Gisla)  (3480)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 125.) married Rudolph I of Ghent (3481).XE "Ghent:Rudolph I of  (3481)"

 327200789.
ii.
Ogive (Otgive) of (3479).XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)"
654401579.  Ermentrude von30 Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Frederick I of Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" before 995 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 125.).  She died.

654401580.  Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 939 at Paris, France.  He married Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 24 Oct 996.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris 956-996, King of France 987-996, first of the Capetian kings of France. Founded the CAPETIAN dynasty. The son of Hugh the Great (d. 956), count of Paris, he intrigued against the Carolingian king Lothair (r. 954-86) and on the death (987) of Lothair's son, Louis V, was elected king by the magnates. He then had to contend with Charles, duke of Lower Lorraine, the legitimate Carolingian claimant who had been passed over. Charles was finally imprisoned in 991. To ensure the succession, Hugh made his son Robert II (d. 1031) joint sovereign. 

Bibliography: Fawtier, Robert, Capetian Kings of France, trans. by Lionel Butler and R. J. Adam (1960)).

     Children of Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" and Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (see #654401581) were as follows:


 1308803439.
i.
Hedwig of29 (3196).XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)"

 
ii.
Emma of (3520)XE "Paris:Emma of  (3520) (-circa 968)" married Richard I the Fearless of Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" in 960. Betrothed ca. 945 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died circa 968.


 327200790.
iii.
Robert II of (3188).XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"
654401581.  Adelaide of30 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 128.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 952.  She married Hugh Capet of France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died in 1004.

654401582.  William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) was born in 950.  He married Arsenda de Comminges (4620).XE "Comminges:Arsenda de  (4620)"  He married Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"  He died in 993.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Provence 979-993).

     Children of William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" and Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (see #654401583) were:


 327200791.
i.
Constance of29 (3189).XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"
654401583.  Adelaide (Blanche) of30 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) married William (Guillaume) II of Provence Count (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"  She died in 1026 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.).

654401586.  Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of30 Scotland King (3254)XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)" (Cinaed, #1308803172) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) died on 25 Nov 1034.

     (an unknown value) (King of Scots, 25 Mar. 1005-1034; fought a battle in 1008 at Carham with Uchtred (d. 1016), son of Waltheof, Earl of the Rothumbrians, and overcame the Danes, 1017; published a code of laws; was murdered, 25 Nov. 1034).

     Children of Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of30 Scotland King (3254)XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)" include:


 327200793.
i.
Bethoc (Beatrix) of29 (3250).XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)"
654401592.  Aethelred II of30 England King (3118)XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)" (Edgar, #1308803184) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.) was born in 968.  He married Alfflaed (--?--) (3119)XE "(--?--):Alfflaed  (3119)" in 985 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  He died in 1016.

     (an unknown value) (The Redeless, King of England, 979-1016. Lost his kingdom to Danish conquerors. His nickname, "the Redeless," is derived from the Old English unrede, meaning that he lacked advice. Beginning his reign under suspicion of murdering his half-brother, King Edward the Martyr, Ahelred proved a weak ruler. In 980 the Danes renewed their raids on England after 25-year truce. Unable to mount effective resistance, Aethelred began payment (991) of Danegeld, a form of tribute, to buy off the raiders. In 1013, however, the Danes under SWEYN overran the entire country, and Aethelred feld to Normandy. Although he returned in 1014, the Danish King CANUTE completed the Danish conquest of England in 1016, shortly after Aethelred's death).

     Children of Aethelred II of30 England King (3118)XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)" include:


 327200796.
i.
Edmund Ironside of29 (3116).XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"
654401608.  Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 939 at Paris, France.  He married Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 24 Oct 996.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris 956-996, King of France 987-996, first of the Capetian kings of France. Founded the CAPETIAN dynasty. The son of Hugh the Great (d. 956), count of Paris, he intrigued against the Carolingian king Lothair (r. 954-86) and on the death (987) of Lothair's son, Louis V, was elected king by the magnates. He then had to contend with Charles, duke of Lower Lorraine, the legitimate Carolingian claimant who had been passed over. Charles was finally imprisoned in 991. To ensure the succession, Hugh made his son Robert II (d. 1031) joint sovereign. 

Bibliography: Fawtier, Robert, Capetian Kings of France, trans. by Lionel Butler and R. J. Adam (1960)).

     Children of Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" and Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (see #654401581) were as follows:


 1308803439.
i.
Hedwig of29 (3196).XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)"

 
ii.
Emma of (3520)XE "Paris:Emma of  (3520) (-circa 968)" married Richard I the Fearless of Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" in 960. Betrothed ca. 945 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died circa 968.


 327200790.
iii.
Robert II of (3188).XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"
654401609.  Adelaide of30 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 128.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 952.  She married Hugh Capet of France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died in 1004.

654401610.  William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) was born in 950.  He married Arsenda de Comminges (4620).XE "Comminges:Arsenda de  (4620)"  He married Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"  He died in 993.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Provence 979-993).

     Children of William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" and Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (see #654401583) were:


 327200791.
i.
Constance of29 (3189).XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"
654401611.  Adelaide (Blanche) of30 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) married William (Guillaume) II of Provence Count (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"  She died in 1026 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.).

654401718.  Ebles I of30 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) married Beatrix of Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  He died on 11 May 1033.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Rheims and Roucy, Archbishop of Rheims).

     Children of Ebles I of30 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" and Beatrix of Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (see #654401719) were:


 327200859.
i.
Adele (Alix) de29 (3402).XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)"
654401719.  Beatrix of30 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100 & 133.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Ebles I of Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  She died.

654401720.  Robert I30 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

654401721.  Arlette of30 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

654401722.  Baldwin V of30 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

654401723.  Adele (Aelis) de30 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

654401728.  Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 939 at Paris, France.  He married Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 24 Oct 996.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris 956-996, King of France 987-996, first of the Capetian kings of France. Founded the CAPETIAN dynasty. The son of Hugh the Great (d. 956), count of Paris, he intrigued against the Carolingian king Lothair (r. 954-86) and on the death (987) of Lothair's son, Louis V, was elected king by the magnates. He then had to contend with Charles, duke of Lower Lorraine, the legitimate Carolingian claimant who had been passed over. Charles was finally imprisoned in 991. To ensure the succession, Hugh made his son Robert II (d. 1031) joint sovereign. 

Bibliography: Fawtier, Robert, Capetian Kings of France, trans. by Lionel Butler and R. J. Adam (1960)).

     Children of Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" and Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (see #654401581) were as follows:


 1308803439.
i.
Hedwig of29 (3196).XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)"

 
ii.
Emma of (3520)XE "Paris:Emma of  (3520) (-circa 968)" married Richard I the Fearless of Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" in 960. Betrothed ca. 945 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died circa 968.


 327200790.
iii.
Robert II of (3188).XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"
654401729.  Adelaide of30 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 128.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 952.  She married Hugh Capet of France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died in 1004.

654401730.  William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) was born in 950.  He married Arsenda de Comminges (4620).XE "Comminges:Arsenda de  (4620)"  He married Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"  He died in 993.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Provence 979-993).

     Children of William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" and Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (see #654401583) were:


 327200791.
i.
Constance of29 (3189).XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"
654401731.  Adelaide (Blanche) of30 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) married William (Guillaume) II of Provence Count (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"  She died in 1026 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.).

654401732.  Saint Vladimir of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Svatislav, #1308803464) married Rogneide of Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  He married daughter of Ohningen (3618)XE "Ohningen:daughter of  (3618) (-14 Aug 1014)" after 1011 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  He died on 15 Jul 1015.

     Children of Saint Vladimir of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" and Rogneide of Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (see #654401733) were:


 327200866.
i.
Jaroslav I of29 (3607).XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"
654401733.  Rogneide of30 Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Rognald, #1308803466) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Saint Vladimir of Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  She died.

654401734.  Olaf Skötkonung of30 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" (Erik, #1308803468) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) was born circa 960.  He died circa 1020.

     Children of Olaf Skötkonung of30 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" include:


 327200867.
i.
Ingeborg of29 (3608).XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)"
654401740.  Bernard I of30 Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" (Hermann, #1308803480) was born circa 976.  He married Hildegarde von Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" circa 990 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 9 Feb 1011.

     Children of Bernard I of30 Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" and Hildegarde von Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" (see #654401741) were:


 327200870.
i.
Bernard II of29 (3419).XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"
654401741.  Hildegarde von30 Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" (Henry Staden, #1308803482) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 954.  She married Bernard I of Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" circa 990 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 3 Oct 1011.

654401742.  Henry Murgrave von30 Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" was born circa 975.  He married Gerberga von Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" circa 1003 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 18 Sep 1017.

     Children of Henry Murgrave von30 Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" and Gerberga von Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" (see #654401743) were:


 327200871.
i.
Elica von29 (3427).XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)"
654401743.  Gerberga von30 Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Henry Murgrave von Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" circa 1003 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died.

654401764.  Thibault de30 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" (Bouchard Montmorency, #1308803528) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 983 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  He died.

     Children of Thibault de30 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" include:


 327200882.
i.
Guy de29 (3165).XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)"
654401768.  Renaud I de30 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 993 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Adele of France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" circa 1015 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 29 May 1040 at Near, Seligney, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Nevers 1000-1040).

     Children of Renaud I de30 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" and Adele of France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (see #654401769) were:


 327200884.
i.
William I de29 (3184).XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"
654401769.  Adele of30 France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (Robert, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1003 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married Renaud I de Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" circa 1015 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 5 Jun 1063 at Nevers, Nierre, France.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Auxerre, also called Adelaide Havoise).

654401772.  Artaud de30 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" (Artaud, #1308803544) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1003 at Laforez, Provence, France.  He died.

     Children of Artaud de30 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" and Raymonde (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (see #654401773) were:


 327200886.
i.
Artaud de29 (3211).XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"
654401773.  Raymonde30 (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1007.  She died.

654407840.  Richard I the Fearless of30 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" (William, #1308803136) was born circa 933.  He married Emma of Paris (3520)XE "Paris:Emma of  (3520) (-circa 968)" in 960. Betrothed ca. 945 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He married Gunnor of Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" after 968. Married after Emma's death to legitimate their children (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He died on 20 Nov 996.

     Children of Richard I the Fearless of30 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" and Gunnor of Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (see #654401569) were:


 327200784.
i.
Richard II the Good of29 (2960).XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"
654407841.  Gunnor of30 Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (forester, #1308803138) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married Richard I the Fearless of Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" after 968. Married after Emma's death to legitimate their children (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died in 1027.

654407842.  Conan I of30 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Ermengarde of Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" in 980 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  He died in 992.

     Children of Conan I of30 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" and Ermengarde of Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (see #654401571) were:


 327200785.
i.
Judith of29 (2959).XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)"
654407843.  Ermengarde of30 Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.) married Conan I of Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" in 980 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 108.).  She died.

654407848.  Arnold II the Young of30 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" (Baldwin, #1308803152) was born in Dec 961.  He married Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" in 968 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128 & 142.).  He died on 30 Mar 987 at age 25.

     Children of Arnold II the Young of30 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" and Rosela (Susanna) of Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (see #654401577) were:


 327200788.
i.
Baldwin IV of29 (3476).XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"
654407849.  Rosela (Susanna) of30 Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (Berengarius, #1308803154) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128 & 142.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 952.  She married Arnold II the Young of Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" in 968 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128 & 142.).  She married Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" before 988 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 142.).  Rosela (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" was divorced from Robert II of France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" in 992 (repudiated) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 26 Jan 1003.

654407850.  Frederick I of30 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" was born circa 965.  He married Ermentrude von Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" before 995 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 125.).  He died in 1019.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Salm and Luxembourg).

     Children of Frederick I of30 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" and Ermentrude von Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (see #654401579) were as follows:


 
i.
Gisele (Gisla)29 (3480)XE "Luxembourg:Gisele (Gisla)  (3480)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 125.) married Rudolph I of Ghent (3481).XE "Ghent:Rudolph I of  (3481)"

 327200789.
ii.
Ogive (Otgive) of (3479).XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)"
654407851.  Ermentrude von30 Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Frederick I of Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" before 995 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 125.).  She died.

654407852.  Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 939 at Paris, France.  He married Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 24 Oct 996.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris 956-996, King of France 987-996, first of the Capetian kings of France. Founded the CAPETIAN dynasty. The son of Hugh the Great (d. 956), count of Paris, he intrigued against the Carolingian king Lothair (r. 954-86) and on the death (987) of Lothair's son, Louis V, was elected king by the magnates. He then had to contend with Charles, duke of Lower Lorraine, the legitimate Carolingian claimant who had been passed over. Charles was finally imprisoned in 991. To ensure the succession, Hugh made his son Robert II (d. 1031) joint sovereign. 

Bibliography: Fawtier, Robert, Capetian Kings of France, trans. by Lionel Butler and R. J. Adam (1960)).

     Children of Hugh Capet of30 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" and Adelaide of Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (see #654401581) were as follows:


 1308803439.
i.
Hedwig of29 (3196).XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)"

 
ii.
Emma of (3520)XE "Paris:Emma of  (3520) (-circa 968)" married Richard I the Fearless of Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" in 960. Betrothed ca. 945 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died circa 968.


 327200790.
iii.
Robert II of (3188).XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"
654407853.  Adelaide of30 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 128.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 952.  She married Hugh Capet of France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" in 970 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died in 1004.

654407854.  William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) was born in 950.  He married Arsenda de Comminges (4620).XE "Comminges:Arsenda de  (4620)"  He married Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"  He died in 993.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Provence 979-993).

     Children of William (Guillaume) II of30 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" and Adelaide (Blanche) of Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (see #654401583) were:


 327200791.
i.
Constance of29 (3189).XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"
654407855.  Adelaide (Blanche) of30 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 124.) married William (Guillaume) II of Provence Count (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"  She died in 1026 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.).

736186502.  Girard30 Flatel (3396)XE "Flatel:Girard  (3396) (circa 985-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 157.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 985.  He died.

     Children of Girard30 Flatel (3396)XE "Flatel:Girard  (3396) (circa 985-)" include:


 368093251.
i.
Agnes29 (3395).XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)"
736186510.  Ebles I of30 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) married Beatrix of Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  He died on 11 May 1033.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Rheims and Roucy, Archbishop of Rheims).

     Children of Ebles I of30 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" and Beatrix of Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (see #654401719) were:


 327200859.
i.
Adele (Alix) de29 (3402).XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)"
736186511.  Beatrix of30 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100 & 133.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Ebles I of Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.).  She died.

736186512.  Anschitil of30 the Bessin Vicomte (3656)XE "the Bessin:Anschitil of Vicomte (3656)"

XE "the Bessin:Anschitil of Vicomte  (3656)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) died.

     Children of Anschitil of30 the Bessin Vicomte (3656)XE "the Bessin:Anschitil of Vicomte (3656)"

XE "the Bessin:Anschitil of Vicomte  (3656)" include:


 368093256.
i.
Ranulph I of29 (3655).XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte (3655)"

XE "the Bessin:Ranulph I of Vicomte  (3655)"
736186514.  Richard III of30 Normandy Duke (3475)XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke  (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)" (Richard, #327200784) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Adele (Aelis) de France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" in Jan 1027 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 115.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 6 Aug 1028.

     Children of Richard III of30 Normandy Duke (3475)XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)"

XE "Normandy:Richard III of Duke  (3475) (-6 Aug 1028)" include:


 368093257.
i.
Alice of29 (3654).XE "Normandy:Alice of  (3654)"
736186624.  Olaf30 Kvaaran King (4353)XE "Kvaaran:Olaf King (4353) (-circa 981)"

XE "Kvaaran:Olaf King  (4353) (-circa 981)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 202.) married Gormflaith (--?--) (4354).XE "(--?--):Gormflaith  (4354)"  He died circa 981 at Iona.

     (an unknown value) (King of York and Dublin).

     Children of Olaf30 Kvaaran King (4353)XE "Kvaaran:Olaf King (4353) (-circa 981)"

XE "Kvaaran:Olaf King  (4353) (-circa 981)" and Gormflaith (--?--) (4354)XE "(--?--):Gormflaith  (4354)" (see #736186625) were:


 368093312.
i.
Sihtric of the Silken Beard of29 (4351).XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King (4351) (-1042)"

XE "Dublin:Sihtric of the Silken Beard of King  (4351) (-1042)"
736186625.  Gormflaith30 (--?--) (4354)XE "(--?--):Gormflaith  (4354)" (Murchad Leinster, #1472373250) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 202.) married Olaf Kvaaran King (4353).XE "Kvaaran:Olaf King (4353) (-circa 981)"

XE "Kvaaran:Olaf King  (4353) (-circa 981)"
736186626.  Brian of the Tributes30 Boru King (4356)XE "Boru:Brian of the Tributes King (4356)"

XE "Boru:Brian of the Tributes King  (4356)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 149.) married Gormflaith of Naas (4357).XE "Naas:Gormflaith of  (4357)"
     (an unknown value) (King of the Dalcassians, then King of Munster (976 - 1002), and finally usurped the high kingship of Ireland (1002 - 1014). Killed at the battle of Clontarf, 1014 A.D., fighting a mixed force of Norse and Leinstermen).

     Children of Brian of the Tributes30 Boru King (4356)XE "Boru:Brian of the Tributes King (4356)"

XE "Boru:Brian of the Tributes King  (4356)" include:


 368093313.
i.
Slani29 (4352).XE "(--?--):Slani  (4352)"
736186752.  Geoffrey III of30 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" (see #327200768).

736186753.  Beatrix of30 Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (see #327200769).

736186754.  Fulk III the Black of30 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #327200770).

736186755.  Hildegarde30 unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (see #327200771).

736186768.  Richard II the Good of30 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

736186769.  Judith of30 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

736186770.  Fulbert of30 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

736186772.  Baldwin IV of30 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

736186773.  Ogive (Otgive) of30 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

736186774.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

736186775.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

736186776.  Crinan of30 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (see #327200792).

736186777.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of30 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (see #327200793).

736186778.  Siward of30 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (see #327200794).

736186780.  Edmund Ironside of30 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) (see #327200796).

736186781.  Ealgyth of30 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797).

736186788.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

736186789.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

736186790.  Dalmas I of30 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (see #327200806).

736186791.  Aremburge of30 Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807).

736186944.  Crinan of30 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (see #327200792).

736186945.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of30 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (see #327200793).

736186946.  Siward of30 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (see #327200794).

736186948.  Edmund Ironside of30 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) (see #327200796).

736186949.  Ealgyth of30 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797).

736186954.  Aldred of30 Bernicia (4021)XE "Bernicia:Aldred of  (4021)" died.

     Children of Aldred of30 Bernicia (4021)XE "Bernicia:Aldred of  (4021)" include:


 368093477.
i.
Aelflaed of29 (4020).XE "Bernicia:Aelflaed of  (4020)"
736186956.  Count Eustace I of30 Boulogne (5158)XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of (Count)  (5158) (        -1049)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of Count (5158) (        -1049)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Maud of Louvain (5159)XE "Louvain:Maud of  (5159)" (see #736186957), daughter of Count Lambert I of Louvain the Bearded (5160)XE "Louvain:Lambert I of (Count) the Bearded (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert I of the Bearded Count (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)" and Gerberga of Lorraine (5161)XE "Lorraine:Gerberga of  (5161) (circa 975-27 Jan 1018)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 138.).  He died in 1049 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     Children of Count Eustace I of30 Boulogne (5158)XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of (Count)  (5158) (        -1049)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of Count (5158) (        -1049)" and Maud of Louvain (5159)XE "Louvain:Maud of  (5159)" (see #736186957) were as follows:


 1678647220.
i.
Eustace II of29 (5154).XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

 368093478.
ii.
an unknown person.

736186957.  Maud of30 Louvain (5159)XE "Louvain:Maud of  (5159)" (Lambert, #1472373914) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.) married Count Eustace I of Boulogne (5158)XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of (Count)  (5158) (        -1049)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of Count (5158) (        -1049)" (see #736186956) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 138.).

736186958.  Robert I30 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

736186959.  Arlette of30 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

736186968.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

736186969.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

736186970.  Jaroslav I of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

736186971.  Ingeborg of30 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

736186972.  Otho (Eudes or Otto) of30 Vermandoise Count (3311)XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"

XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count  (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)" (Herbert Vermandois, #1472373944) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) was born circa 1000.  He married Parvie (--?--) (3312)XE "(--?--):Parvie  (3312)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.).  He died on 25 May 1045.

     Children of Otho (Eudes or Otto) of30 Vermandoise Count (3311)XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"

XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count  (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)" and Parvie (--?--) (3312)XE "(--?--):Parvie  (3312)" (see #736186973) were:


 368093486.
i.
Herbert IV of29 (3308).XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"
736186973.  Parvie30 (--?--) (3312)XE "(--?--):Parvie  (3312)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) married Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Vermandoise Count (3311)XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"

XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count  (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.).  She died.

736186974.  Raoul III of30 Vexin Count (3310)XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count (3310)"

XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count  (3310)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) died.

     (an unknown value) (The Great, Count of Valois and Vexin).

     Children of Raoul III of30 Vexin Count (3310)XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count (3310)"

XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count  (3310)" include:


 368093487.
i.
Adela de29 (3309).XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)"
736187016.  Eudes II of30 Blois Count (4604)XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)"

XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count  (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)" (Eudes, #1472374032) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 121.) was born in 990.  He married Ermengarde of Auvergne (4605)XE "Auvergne:Ermengarde of  (4605)" in 1010.  He died on 15 Nov 1037.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Blois, 1004, and of Champagne, 1019).

     Children of Eudes II of30 Blois Count (4604)XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)"

XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count  (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)" and Ermengarde of Auvergne (4605)XE "Auvergne:Ermengarde of  (4605)" (see #736187017) were as follows:


 368093508.
i.
Theobald III of29 (4602).XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count (4602) (-1089)"

XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count  (4602) (-1089)"

 
ii.
Stephen II of (4606)XE "Champagne:Stephen II of  (4606)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119.).

736187017.  Ermengarde of30 Auvergne (4605)XE "Auvergne:Ermengarde of  (4605)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) married Eudes II of Blois Count (4604)XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)"

XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count  (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)" in 1010.

736187068.  Llywelyn ap30 Seisyll Prince (4149)XE "Seisyll:Llywelyn ap Prince (4149)"

XE "Seisyll:Llywelyn ap Prince  (4149)" married Angharad ap Maredudd (4150)XE "Maredudd:Angharad ap  (4150)" in 994 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Prince of North Wales 980-1023, king of Deheubarth & Gwynedd).

     Children of Llywelyn ap30 Seisyll Prince (4149)XE "Seisyll:Llywelyn ap Prince (4149)"

XE "Seisyll:Llywelyn ap Prince  (4149)" and Angharad ap Maredudd (4150)XE "Maredudd:Angharad ap  (4150)" (see #736187069) were:


 368093534.
i.
Gruffydd ap29 (4147).XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"

XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince  (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"
736187069.  Angharad ap30 Maredudd (4150)XE "Maredudd:Angharad ap  (4150)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 1 of Line 176.) married Llywelyn ap Seisyll Prince (4149)XE "Seisyll:Llywelyn ap Prince (4149)"

XE "Seisyll:Llywelyn ap Prince  (4149)" in 994 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (dau. Maredudd ap Owain ap Hywel Dda).

736187070.  Aelfgar of30 Mercia Earl (4151)XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl (4151) (-after 1062)"

XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl  (4151) (-after 1062)" (Leofric, #1472374140) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.) married Aelfgifu Unknown (4152)XE "Unknown:Aelfgifu  (4152)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.).  He died after 1062.

     (an unknown value) (Of age 1051, Earl of East Anglia 1053, Earl of Mercia 1057, banished 1058).

     Children of Aelfgar of30 Mercia Earl (4151)XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl (4151) (-after 1062)"

XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl  (4151) (-after 1062)" and Aelfgifu Unknown (4152)XE "Unknown:Aelfgifu  (4152)" (see #736187071) were as follows:


 368093535.
i.
Aldgyth of29 (4148).XE "Mercia:Aldgyth of  (4148)"

 
ii.
Eadwine of (4154)XE "Mercia:Eadwine of  (4154)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.) died.


 
iii.
Morkere of (4155)XE "Mercia:Morkere of  (4155)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.) died.


 
iv.
Burchard of (4156)XE "Mercia:Burchard of  (4156)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.) died.

736187071.  Aelfgifu30 Unknown (4152)XE "Unknown:Aelfgifu  (4152)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.) married Aelfgar of Mercia Earl (4151)XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl (4151) (-after 1062)"

XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl  (4151) (-after 1062)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 3 of Line 176A.).  She died.

736187098.  Walter30 Giffard (3394)XE "Giffard:Walter  (3394) (circa 1010-1084)" (see #368093250).

736187099.  Agnes30 Flatel (3395)XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)" (Girard, #736186502) (see #368093251).

736187100.  Renaud de30 Clermont (3400)XE "Clermont:Renaud de  (3400) (circa 1000-)" (see #368093252).

736187102.  Hildouin III de30 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (see #327200858).

736187103.  Adele (Alix) de30 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (see #327200859).

771227648.  Geoffrey V30 Plantagenet Count (3109)XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)"

XE "Plantagenet:Geoffrey V Count  (3109) (24 Aug 1113-7 Sep 1151)" (Fulk Anjou, #40900096) (see #20450048).

771227650.  William de30 Warenne Earl (3282)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3282) (1118-1148)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3282) (1118-1148)" (William, #92023370) (see #209830686).

771227651.  Ela30 Talvas (3283)XE "Talvas:Ela  (3283) (-circa 4 Oct 1174)" (William, #209830896) (see #209830687).

771227652.  John30 Marshal Earl (3365)XE "Marshal:John Earl (3365) (circa 1126-1164)"

XE "Marshal:John Earl  (3365) (circa 1126-1164)" (Gilbert, #104915352) (see #52457676).

771227653.  Sibilla de30 Everaux (3366)XE "Everaux:Sibilla de  (3366)" (Walter, #104915354) (see #52457677).

771227654.  Richard Strongbow de30 Clare Earl (3380)XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)"

XE "Clare:Richard Strongbow de Earl  (3380) (circa 1130-circa 20 Apr 1176)" (Gilbert, #104915356) (see #52457678).

771227655.  Aoife (Eve) of30 Leinster Princess (3381)XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)"

XE "Leinster:Aoife (Eve) of Princess  (3381) (circa 1136-after 1186)" (see #52457679).

771227660.  William IV of30 Angouleme Count (3551)XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count (3551) (-1178)"

XE "Angouleme:William IV of Count  (3551) (-1178)" (Wulgrim, #40900104) (see #20450052).

771227661.  Marguerite de30 Turenne (3550)XE "Turenne:Marguerite de  (3550)" (Raymond, #40900106) (see #20450053).

771227662.  Pierre of30 France (3162)XE "France:Pierre of  (3162) (circa 1126-before 1183)" (Louis, #40900108) (see #20450054).

771227663.  Elizabeth de30 Courtenay (3160)XE "Courtenay:Elizabeth de  (3160)" (Renaud, #40900110) (see #20450055).

771227664.  Aubrey de30 Vere (3664)XE "Vere:Aubrey de  (3664) (-26 Dec 1194)" (Aubrey, #92023386) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 26 of Line 246.) married Agnes of Essex (3665)XE "Essex:Agnes of  (3665)" in 1163 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  He died on 26 Dec 1194.

     (an unknown value) (1st Earl of Oxford).

     Children of Aubrey de30 Vere (3664)XE "Vere:Aubrey de  (3664) (-26 Dec 1194)" and Agnes of Essex (3665)XE "Essex:Agnes of  (3665)" (see #771227665) were:


 385613832.
i.
Robert de29 (3660).XE "Vere:Robert de  (3660) (after 1164-before 25 Oct 1221)"
771227665.  Agnes of30 Essex (3665)XE "Essex:Agnes of  (3665)" (Henry, #1542455330) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) married Aubrey de Vere (3664)XE "Vere:Aubrey de  (3664) (-26 Dec 1194)" in 1163 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  She died.

771227666.  Hugh II de30 Bolbec (3662)XE "Bolbec:Hugh II de  (3662)" (Walter, #1542455332) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) died.

     Children of Hugh II de30 Bolbec (3662)XE "Bolbec:Hugh II de  (3662)" include:


 385613833.
i.
Isabel de29 (3661).XE "Bolbec:Isabel de  (3661) (circa 1164-3 Feb 1245)"
771227670.  Robert de30 Beaumont Earl (3324)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3324) (before 1135-1190)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3324) (before 1135-1190)" (Robert, #1542455340) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.) was born before 1135.  He married Petronilla (Pernell) de Grandmesnil (3325)XE "Grandmesnil:Petronilla (Pernell) de  (3325) (-1 Apr 1212)" in 1155 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.).  He died in 1190 at Durazzo, Greece.

     (an unknown value) (3rd. Earl of Leicester, Crusader 1179).

     Children of Robert de30 Beaumont Earl (3324)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3324) (before 1135-1190)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3324) (before 1135-1190)" and Petronilla (Pernell) de Grandmesnil (3325)XE "Grandmesnil:Petronilla (Pernell) de  (3325) (-1 Apr 1212)" (see #771227671) were:


 385613835.
i.
Margaret de29 (3323).XE "Beaumont:Margaret de  (3323) (-circa 12 Jan 1235)"
771227671.  Petronilla (Pernell) de30 Grandmesnil (3325)XE "Grandmesnil:Petronilla (Pernell) de  (3325) (-1 Apr 1212)" married Robert de Beaumont Earl (3324)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3324) (before 1135-1190)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3324) (before 1135-1190)" in 1155 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.).  She died on 1 Apr 1212.

771227676.  Alan30 La Zouche Lord (3639)XE "La Zouche:Alan Lord (3639) (-1190)"

XE "La Zouche:Alan Lord  (3639) (-1190)" married Alice de Belmeis (3640)XE "Belmeis:Alice de  (3640)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  He died in 1190.

     (an unknown value) (adult by 1153, lord of North Molton, Devon).

     Children of Alan30 La Zouche Lord (3639)XE "La Zouche:Alan Lord (3639) (-1190)"

XE "La Zouche:Alan Lord  (3639) (-1190)" and Alice de Belmeis (3640)XE "Belmeis:Alice de  (3640)" (see #771227677) were:


 385613838.
i.
Roger29 (3633).XE "La Zouche:Roger  (3633) (-before 14 May 1238)"
771227677.  Alice de30 Belmeis (3640)XE "Belmeis:Alice de  (3640)" (Philip, #1542455354) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.) married Alan La Zouche Lord (3639)XE "La Zouche:Alan Lord (3639) (-1190)"

XE "La Zouche:Alan Lord  (3639) (-1190)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  She died.

839321604.  Thibault de30 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" (Bouchard Montmorency, #1308803528) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 983 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  He died.

     Children of Thibault de30 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" include:


 327200882.
i.
Guy de29 (3165).XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)"
839321608.  Renaud I de30 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 993 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Adele of France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" circa 1015 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 29 May 1040 at Near, Seligney, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Nevers 1000-1040).

     Children of Renaud I de30 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" and Adele of France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (see #654401769) were:


 327200884.
i.
William I de29 (3184).XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"
839321609.  Adele of30 France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (Robert, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1003 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married Renaud I de Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" circa 1015 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 5 Jun 1063 at Nevers, Nierre, France.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Auxerre, also called Adelaide Havoise).

839321612.  Artaud de30 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" (Artaud, #1308803544) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1003 at Laforez, Provence, France.  He died.

     Children of Artaud de30 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" and Raymonde (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (see #654401773) were:


 327200886.
i.
Artaud de29 (3211).XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"
839321613.  Raymonde30 (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1007.  She died.

839321700.  Henry I of30 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

839321701.  Anne of30 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

839321702.  Herbert IV of30 Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" (Otho, #736186972) (see #368093486).

839321703.  Adela de30 Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (Raoul, #736186974) (see #368093487).

839321712.  Robert I30 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

839321713.  Arlette of30 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

839321714.  Baldwin V of30 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

839321715.  Adele (Aelis) de30 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

839322732.  Count Henry II of30 Brabant (5210)XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)" (Lambert Louvain, #1678645464) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 1021 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He died in 1079 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Lorraine and Louvain) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Count Henry II of30 Brabant (5210)XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)" and Adelaide (Adela) of Orlamunda (5211)XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)" (see #839322733) were:


 419661366.
i.
Godfrey I of29 (5208).XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"
839322733.  Adelaide (Adela) of30 Orlamunda (5211)XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)" (Eberhard Betuwe, #1678645466) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) died in 1086 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

839322734.  Count Otto II of30 Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" (Arnold, #1678645468) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Adelaide of Namur (5218)XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" (see #839322735), daughter of Count Albert III of Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" and Ida of Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died between 1124 and 1131 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Count Otto II of30 Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" and Adelaide of Namur (5218)XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" (see #839322735) were:


 419661367.
i.
Ida de29 (5209).XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)"
839322735.  Adelaide of30 Namur (5218)XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" (Albert, #1678645470) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) was born in 1068 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She married Count Otto II of Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" (see #839322734), son of Count Arnold II Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" and Adela de Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She died in 1124 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

839322736.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of30 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

839322737.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of30 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

839322738.  Helias of30 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

839322744.  William de30 Warenne (3287)XE "Warenne:William de  (3287) (-1088)" (see #184046740).

839322745.  Gundred30 (--?--) (3288)XE "(--?--):Gundred  (3288)" (see #184046741).

839322746.  Hugh Magnus of30 France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #184046742).

839322747.  Adelaide de30 Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (Herbert, #368093486) (see #184046743).

839322748.  Robert II de30 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) was born circa 1054 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He married Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (see #419661793), daughter of Count Guy I of Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died after 1131 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (3rd Earl of Shrewsbury, Seigneur of Belleme, Domfront and Alencon) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Robert II de30 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" and Agnes of Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (see #419661793) are:


 209830896.
i.
William III29 (5111).XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)"
839322749.  Agnes of30 Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Guy, #839323586) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Robert II de Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (see #419661792) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

839322750.  Count Eudes I Borel of30 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (Henry, #839323588) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (see #419661795), daughter of Count William I of Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" and Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died on 23 Mar 1103 at Cilicia (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count Eudes I Borel of30 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" and Matilda (Maude) of Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (see #419661795) were:


 209830897.
i.
Alice (Ela) of29 (5112).XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)"
839322751.  Matilda (Maude) of30 Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (William, #839323590) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Count Eudes I Borel of Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (see #419661794), son of Henry of Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" and Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

839322764.  Geoffrey30 unknown (4161)XE "unknown:Geoffrey  (4161)" (see #184046764).

839322765.  Ada30 Fitz Gulbert (4162)XE "Fitz Gulbert:Ada  (4162)" (see #184046765).

839322766.  Osborn30 Fitz Richard (4145)XE "Fitz Richard:Osborn  (4145)" (Richard Fitz Scrob, #368093532) (see #184046766).

839322767.  Nesta of30 North Wales (4146)XE "North Wales:Nesta of  (4146) (1055-)" (Gruffydd Llywelyn, #368093534) (see #184046767).

839322832.  William30 Devereux (3377)XE "Devereux:William  (3377)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of William30 Devereux (3377)XE "Devereux:William  (3377)" include:


 419661416.
i.
Walter29 (3375).XE "Devereux:Walter  (3375) (circa 1045-)"
839322850.  Walter30 Giffard (3394)XE "Giffard:Walter  (3394) (circa 1010-1084)" (see #368093250).

839322851.  Agnes30 Flatel (3395)XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)" (Girard, #736186502) (see #368093251).

839322852.  Renaud de30 Clermont (3400)XE "Clermont:Renaud de  (3400) (circa 1000-)" (see #368093252).

839322854.  Hildouin III de30 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (see #327200858).

839322855.  Adele (Alix) de30 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (see #327200859).

839323136.  Geoffrey III of30 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" (see #327200768).

839323137.  Beatrix of30 Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (see #327200769).

839323138.  Fulk III the Black of30 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #327200770).

839323139.  Hildegarde30 unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (see #327200771).

839323152.  Richard II the Good of30 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

839323153.  Judith of30 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

839323154.  Fulbert of30 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

839323156.  Baldwin IV of30 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

839323157.  Ogive (Otgive) of30 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

839323158.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839323159.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839323160.  Crinan of30 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (see #327200792).

839323161.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of30 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (see #327200793).

839323162.  Siward of30 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (see #327200794).

839323164.  Edmund Ironside of30 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) (see #327200796).

839323165.  Ealgyth of30 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797).

839323172.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839323173.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839323174.  Dalmas I of30 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (see #327200806).

839323175.  Aremburge of30 Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807).

839323224.  Routrou I of30 Chateaudun Vicount (3560)XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount (3560)"

XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount  (3560)" (see #327200856).

839323225.  Adeline de30 Domfront (3561)XE "Domfront:Adeline de  (3561)" (see #327200857).

839323226.  Hildouin III de30 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (see #327200858).

839323227.  Adele (Alix) de30 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (see #327200859).

839323228.  William I the Conqueror of30 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

839323229.  Maud of30 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

839323232.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839323233.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839323234.  Jaroslav I of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

839323235.  Ingeborg of30 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

839323238.  Bernard II of30 Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" (Bernard, #654401740) (see #327200870).

839323239.  Elica von30 Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" (Henry, #654401742) (see #327200871).

839323250.  Guy de30 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Thibault, #654401764) (see #327200882).

839323251.  Hodierne de30 Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (see #327200883).

839323252.  William I de30 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" (Renaud, #654401768) (see #327200884).

839323253.  Ermengarde of30 Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (see #327200885).

839323254.  Artaud de30 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" (Artaud, #654401772) (see #327200886).

839323255.  Ida30 (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (see #327200887).

839323488.  Aubri-Geoffrey of30 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

839323489.  Ermengarde of30 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

839323490.  Simon I of30 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

839323491.  Agnes30 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

839323496.  Robert I30 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

839323497.  Arlette of30 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

839323498.  Baldwin V of30 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

839323499.  Adele (Aelis) de30 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

839323500.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of30 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) (see #163600396).

839323501.  daughter of30 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (see #163600397).

839323502.  Edward the Exile30 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (see #163600398).

839323503.  Agatha30 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399).

839323506.  Robert The Old of30 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

839323507.  Helie of30 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

839323586.  Count Guy I of30 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) died in 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Ponthieu and Montreuil) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 10!).

     Children of Count Guy I of30 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" include:


 419661793.
i.
Agnes of29 (5114).XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)"
839323588.  Henry of30 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (Robert, #163600402) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (see #839323589), daughter of Count Raymond Berenger I of Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" and Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died circa 1072 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Henry of30 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" and Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (see #839323589) were:


 419661794.
i.
Eudes I Borel of29 (5119).XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"
839323589.  Sibylle de30 Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Raymond, #1678647178) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Henry of Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (see #839323588), son of Robert The Old of Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" and Helie of Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

839323590.  Count William I of30 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (Raynald, #1678647180) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (see #839323591), daughter of Count Adalbert III of Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" and Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1087 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     Children of Count William I of30 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" and Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (see #839323591) were as follows:


 419661795.
i.
Matilda (Maude) of29 (5120).XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)"

 
ii.
Raymond of (5134)XE "Burgundy:Raymond of  (5134) (circa 1060-26 Mar 1107)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) was born circa 1060 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 103.).  He married Queen Urraca of Castile and Leon (5135)XE "Castile and Leon:Urraca of (Queen)  (5135) (1082-8 Mar 1126)"

XE "Castile and Leon:Urraca of Queen (5135) (1082-8 Mar 1126)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 103.).  He died on 26 Mar 1107 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116 & 103.).

839323591.  Stephanie de30 Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Adalbert, #1678647182) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) was born circa 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She married Count William I of Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (see #839323590), son of Raynald (Renaud) of Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" and Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died after 1088 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

839323608.  Stephen of30 Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" (Theobald, #368093508) (see #184046754).

839323609.  Adela of30 Normandy (4601)XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)" (William, #81800196) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) was born in 1062 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She married Stephen of Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" before 1080.  She died in 1137 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

839323610.  Count Eustace III of30 Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" (Eustace, #1678647220) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Mary of Scotland (5153)XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" (see #839323611), daughter of Malcolm III Canmore of Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" and Margaret of Scotland Saint (3113),XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" in 1102 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  He died on 31 May 1116 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     (an unknown value) (Crusader) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     Children of Count Eustace III of30 Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" and Mary of Scotland (5153)XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" (see #839323611) were:


 419661805.
i.
Maud (Mathilda) of29 (5151).XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)"
839323611.  Mary of30 Scotland (5153)XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Count Eustace III of Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" (see #839323610), son of Count Eustace II of Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" and Ida of Lorraine (5155),XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" in 1102 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  She died on 31 May 1116 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

839323616.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839323617.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839323618.  Jaroslav I of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

839323619.  Ingeborg of30 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

839323622.  Bernard II of30 Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" (Bernard, #654401740) (see #327200870).

839323623.  Elica von30 Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" (Henry, #654401742) (see #327200871).

839335940.  Thibault de30 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" (Bouchard Montmorency, #1308803528) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 983 at Montlhery, S-Oise, France.  He died.

     Children of Thibault de30 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" include:


 327200882.
i.
Guy de29 (3165).XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)"
839335944.  Renaud I de30 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 993 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  He married Adele of France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" circa 1015 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 29 May 1040 at Near, Seligney, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Nevers 1000-1040).

     Children of Renaud I de30 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" and Adele of France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (see #654401769) were:


 327200884.
i.
William I de29 (3184).XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"
839335945.  Adele of30 France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (Robert, #327200790) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born in 1003 at Nevers, Nierre, France.  She married Renaud I de Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" circa 1015 at France (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 5 Jun 1063 at Nevers, Nierre, France.

     (an unknown value) (Countess of Auxerre, also called Adelaide Havoise).

839335948.  Artaud de30 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" (Artaud, #1308803544) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1003 at Laforez, Provence, France.  He died.

     Children of Artaud de30 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" and Raymonde (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (see #654401773) were:


 327200886.
i.
Artaud de29 (3211).XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"
839335949.  Raymonde30 (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 1007.  She died.

839336036.  Henry I of30 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

839336037.  Anne of30 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

839336038.  Herbert IV of30 Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" (Otho, #736186972) (see #368093486).

839336039.  Adela de30 Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (Raoul, #736186974) (see #368093487).

839336048.  Robert I30 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

839336049.  Arlette of30 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

839336050.  Baldwin V of30 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

839336051.  Adele (Aelis) de30 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

839337068.  Count Henry II of30 Brabant (5210)XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)" (Lambert Louvain, #1678645464) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 1021 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He died in 1079 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Lorraine and Louvain) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Count Henry II of30 Brabant (5210)XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)" and Adelaide (Adela) of Orlamunda (5211)XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)" (see #839322733) were:


 419661366.
i.
Godfrey I of29 (5208).XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of (Duke) the Bearded (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"

XE "Brabant:Godfrey I of the Bearded Duke (5208) (circa 1060-25 Jan 1140)"
839337069.  Adelaide (Adela) of30 Orlamunda (5211)XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)" (Eberhard Betuwe, #1678645466) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) died in 1086 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

839337070.  Count Otto II of30 Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" (Arnold, #1678645468) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Adelaide of Namur (5218)XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" (see #839322735), daughter of Count Albert III of Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" and Ida of Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died between 1124 and 1131 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Count Otto II of30 Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" and Adelaide of Namur (5218)XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" (see #839322735) were:


 419661367.
i.
Ida de29 (5209).XE "Chini and de Namur:Ida de  (5209) (1068-circa 1120)"
839337071.  Adelaide of30 Namur (5218)XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)" (Albert, #1678645470) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) was born in 1068 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She married Count Otto II of Chiny (5219)XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)" (see #839322734), son of Count Arnold II Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" and Adela de Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She died in 1124 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

839337072.  Fulk IV "Rechin" of30 Anjou Count (3539)XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk IV "Rechin" of Count  (3539) (1043-14 Apr 1109)" (Aubri-Geoffrey Gatinais, #163600384) (see #81800192).

839337073.  Bertrade (Beatrice) of30 Montfort (3542)XE "Montfort:Bertrade (Beatrice) of  (3542) (-1117)" (Simon, #163600386) (see #81800193).

839337074.  Helias of30 Maine Count (3540)XE "Maine:Helias of Count (3540)"

XE "Maine:Helias of Count  (3540)" (see #81800194).

839337080.  William de30 Warenne (3287)XE "Warenne:William de  (3287) (-1088)" (see #184046740).

839337081.  Gundred30 (--?--) (3288)XE "(--?--):Gundred  (3288)" (see #184046741).

839337082.  Hugh Magnus of30 France Duke (3306)XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke (3306) (-1101)"

XE "France:Hugh Magnus of Duke  (3306) (-1101)" (Henry, #163600432) (see #184046742).

839337083.  Adelaide de30 Vermandoise Countess (3305)XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess (3305) (-circa 1120)"

XE "Vermandoise:Adelaide de Countess  (3305) (-circa 1120)" (Herbert, #368093486) (see #184046743).

839337084.  Robert II de30 Belleme (5113)XE "Belleme:Robert II de  (5113) (circa 1054-after 1131)" (see #419661792).

839337085.  Agnes of30 Ponthieu (5114)XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)" (Guy, #839323586) (see #419661793).

839337086.  Count Eudes I Borel of30 Burgundy (5119)XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)" (Henry, #839323588) (see #419661794).

839337087.  Matilda (Maude) of30 Burgundy (5120)XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)" (William, #839323590) (see #419661795).

839337100.  Geoffrey30 unknown (4161)XE "unknown:Geoffrey  (4161)" (see #184046764).

839337101.  Ada30 Fitz Gulbert (4162)XE "Fitz Gulbert:Ada  (4162)" (see #184046765).

839337102.  Osborn30 Fitz Richard (4145)XE "Fitz Richard:Osborn  (4145)" (Richard Fitz Scrob, #368093532) (see #184046766).

839337103.  Nesta of30 North Wales (4146)XE "North Wales:Nesta of  (4146) (1055-)" (Gruffydd Llywelyn, #368093534) (see #184046767).

839337168.  William30 Devereux (3377)XE "Devereux:William  (3377)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of William30 Devereux (3377)XE "Devereux:William  (3377)" include:


 419661416.
i.
Walter29 (3375).XE "Devereux:Walter  (3375) (circa 1045-)"
839337186.  Walter30 Giffard (3394)XE "Giffard:Walter  (3394) (circa 1010-1084)" (see #368093250).

839337187.  Agnes30 Flatel (3395)XE "Flatel:Agnes  (3395) (circa 1014-)" (Girard, #736186502) (see #368093251).

839337188.  Renaud de30 Clermont (3400)XE "Clermont:Renaud de  (3400) (circa 1000-)" (see #368093252).

839337190.  Hildouin III de30 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (see #327200858).

839337191.  Adele (Alix) de30 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (see #327200859).

839337472.  Geoffrey III of30 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" (see #327200768).

839337473.  Beatrix of30 Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (see #327200769).

839337474.  Fulk III the Black of30 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #327200770).

839337475.  Hildegarde30 unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (see #327200771).

839337488.  Richard II the Good of30 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

839337489.  Judith of30 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

839337490.  Fulbert of30 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

839337492.  Baldwin IV of30 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

839337493.  Ogive (Otgive) of30 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

839337494.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839337495.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839337496.  Crinan of30 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (see #327200792).

839337497.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of30 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (see #327200793).

839337498.  Siward of30 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (see #327200794).

839337500.  Edmund Ironside of30 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) (see #327200796).

839337501.  Ealgyth of30 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797).

839337508.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839337509.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839337510.  Dalmas I of30 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (see #327200806).

839337511.  Aremburge of30 Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807).

839337560.  Routrou I of30 Chateaudun Vicount (3560)XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount (3560)"

XE "Chateaudun:Routrou I of Vicount  (3560)" (see #327200856).

839337561.  Adeline de30 Domfront (3561)XE "Domfront:Adeline de  (3561)" (see #327200857).

839337562.  Hildouin III de30 Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" (see #327200858).

839337563.  Adele (Alix) de30 Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Ebles, #654401718) (see #327200859).

839337564.  William I the Conqueror of30 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

839337565.  Maud of30 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

839337568.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839337569.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839337570.  Jaroslav I of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

839337571.  Ingeborg of30 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

839337574.  Bernard II of30 Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" (Bernard, #654401740) (see #327200870).

839337575.  Elica von30 Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" (Henry, #654401742) (see #327200871).

839337586.  Guy de30 Montlhery (3165)XE "Montlhery:Guy de  (3165) (circa 1009-)" (Thibault, #654401764) (see #327200882).

839337587.  Hodierne de30 Gometz (3166)XE "Gometz:Hodierne de  (3166) (circa 1014-)" (see #327200883).

839337588.  William I de30 Nevers Count (3184)XE "Nevers:William I de Count (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)"

XE "Nevers:William I de Count  (3184) (circa 1030-20 Jun 1100)" (Renaud, #654401768) (see #327200884).

839337589.  Ermengarde of30 Tonnerre (3185)XE "Tonnerre:Ermengarde of  (3185) (circa 1026-)" (see #327200885).

839337590.  Artaud de30 Forez Count (3211)XE "Forez:Artaud de Count (3211) (circa 1029-1085)"

XE "Forez:Artaud de Count  (3211) (circa 1029-1085)" (Artaud, #654401772) (see #327200886).

839337591.  Ida30 (--?--) (3212)XE "(--?--):Ida  (3212) (circa 1033-)" (see #327200887).

839337824.  Aubri-Geoffrey of30 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

839337825.  Ermengarde of30 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

839337826.  Simon I of30 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

839337827.  Agnes30 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

839337832.  Robert I30 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

839337833.  Arlette of30 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

839337834.  Baldwin V of30 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

839337835.  Adele (Aelis) de30 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

839337836.  Duncan I Mac Crinan of30 Scotland King (3249)XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)"

XE "Scotland:Duncan I Mac Crinan of King  (3249) (-14 Aug 1040)" (Crinan Dunkeld, #327200792) (see #163600396).

839337837.  daughter of30 Northumbria (3251)XE "Northumbria:daughter of  (3251)" (Siward, #327200794) (see #163600397).

839337838.  Edward the Exile30 (--?--) (3114)XE "(--?--):Edward the Exile  (3114) (1016-1057)" (Edmund England, #327200796) (see #163600398).

839337839.  Agatha30 (--?--) (3115)XE "(--?--):Agatha  (3115)" (see #163600399).

839337842.  Robert The Old of30 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

839337843.  Helie of30 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

839337922.  Count Guy I of30 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) died in 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Ponthieu and Montreuil) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 10!).

     Children of Count Guy I of30 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" include:


 419661793.
i.
Agnes of29 (5114).XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)"
839337924.  Henry of30 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (Robert, #163600402) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (see #839323589), daughter of Count Raymond Berenger I of Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" and Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died circa 1072 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Henry of30 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" and Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (see #839323589) were:


 419661794.
i.
Eudes I Borel of29 (5119).XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"
839337925.  Sibylle de30 Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Raymond, #1678647178) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Henry of Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (see #839323588), son of Robert The Old of Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" and Helie of Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

839337926.  Count William I of30 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (Raynald, #1678647180) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (see #839323591), daughter of Count Adalbert III of Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" and Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1087 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     Children of Count William I of30 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" and Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (see #839323591) were as follows:


 419661795.
i.
Matilda (Maude) of29 (5120).XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)"

 
ii.
Raymond of (5134)XE "Burgundy:Raymond of  (5134) (circa 1060-26 Mar 1107)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) was born circa 1060 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 103.).  He married Queen Urraca of Castile and Leon (5135)XE "Castile and Leon:Urraca of (Queen)  (5135) (1082-8 Mar 1126)"

XE "Castile and Leon:Urraca of Queen (5135) (1082-8 Mar 1126)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 103.).  He died on 26 Mar 1107 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116 & 103.).

839337927.  Stephanie de30 Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Adalbert, #1678647182) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) was born circa 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She married Count William I of Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (see #839323590), son of Raynald (Renaud) of Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" and Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died after 1088 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

839337944.  Stephen of30 Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" (Theobald, #368093508) (see #184046754).

839337945.  Adela of30 Normandy (4601)XE "Normandy:Adela of  (4601) (1062-1137)" (William, #81800196) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 121.) was born in 1062 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).  She married Stephen of Blois Count (4591)XE "Blois:Stephen of Count (4591) (-1101)"

XE "Blois:Stephen of Count  (4591) (-1101)" before 1080.  She died in 1137 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 145.).

839337946.  Count Eustace III of30 Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" (Eustace, #1678647220) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Mary of Scotland (5153)XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" (see #839323611), daughter of Malcolm III Canmore of Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" and Margaret of Scotland Saint (3113),XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" in 1102 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  He died on 31 May 1116 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     (an unknown value) (Crusader) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     Children of Count Eustace III of30 Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" and Mary of Scotland (5153)XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" (see #839323611) were:


 419661805.
i.
Maud (Mathilda) of29 (5151).XE "Boulogne:Maud (Mathilda) of  (5151) (circa 1105-3 May 1152)"
839337947.  Mary of30 Scotland (5153)XE "Scotland:Mary of  (5153) (        -31 May 1116)" (Malcolm, #81800198) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Count Eustace III of Boulogne (5152)XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)" (see #839323610), son of Count Eustace II of Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" and Ida of Lorraine (5155),XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" in 1102 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  She died on 31 May 1116 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

839337952.  Robert II of30 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

839337953.  Constance of30 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

839337954.  Jaroslav I of30 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

839337955.  Ingeborg of30 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

839337958.  Bernard II of30 Saxony Duke (3419)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (3419) (circa 1002-1059)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke  (3419) (circa 1002-1059)" (Bernard, #654401740) (see #327200870).

839337959.  Elica von30 Schweinfurt (3427)XE "Schweinfurt:Elica von  (3427) (circa 1004-29 Jun 1059)" (Henry, #654401742) (see #327200871).

Generation Thirty-OneTC "Generation Thirty-One" \l 2
1308803080.  Fulk II of31 Anjoy Count (2965)XE "Anjoy:Fulk II of Count (2965)"

XE "Anjoy:Fulk II of Count  (2965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Gerberga of Gatinais ? (2966)XE "Gatinais ?:Gerberga of  (2966)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died.

     Children of Fulk II of31 Anjoy Count (2965)XE "Anjoy:Fulk II of Count (2965)"

XE "Anjoy:Fulk II of Count  (2965)" and Gerberga of Gatinais ? (2966)XE "Gatinais ?:Gerberga of  (2966)" (see #1308803081) were:


 654401540.
i.
Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of30 (2963).XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"
1308803081.  Gerberga of31 Gatinais ? (2966)XE "Gatinais ?:Gerberga of  (2966)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Fulk II of Anjoy Count (2965)XE "Anjoy:Fulk II of Count (2965)"

XE "Anjoy:Fulk II of Count  (2965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died.

1308803082.  Robert31 (--?--) Count of Troyes and Meaux (2968)XE "(--?--):Robert Count of Troyes and Meaux (2968) (circa 920-circa 968)"

XE "(--?--):Robert Count of Troyes and Meaux  (2968) (circa 920-circa 968)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) was born circa 920.  He married Adelaide of Burgundy (2969)XE "Burgundy:Adelaide of  (2969)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  He died circa 968.

     Children of Robert31 (--?--) Count of Troyes and Meaux (2968)XE "(--?--):Robert Count of Troyes and Meaux (2968) (circa 920-circa 968)"

XE "(--?--):Robert Count of Troyes and Meaux  (2968) (circa 920-circa 968)" and Adelaide of Burgundy (2969)XE "Burgundy:Adelaide of  (2969)" (see #1308803083) were:


 654401541.
i.
Adelaide de30 (2964).XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)"
1308803083.  Adelaide of31 Burgundy (2969)XE "Burgundy:Adelaide of  (2969)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.) married Robert (--?--) Count of Troyes and Meaux (2968)XE "(--?--):Robert Count of Troyes and Meaux (2968) (circa 920-circa 968)"

XE "(--?--):Robert Count of Troyes and Meaux  (2968) (circa 920-circa 968)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 106.).  She died.

1308803136.  William I Longsword of31 Normandy Duke (3521)XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)"

XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke  (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)" was born circa 891 at Rouen, Seine, France.  He married unknown of Sprota (3522)XE "Sprota:unknown of  (3522)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He married Luitgarde de Vermandois (3523)XE "Vermandois:Luitgarde de  (3523) (-942)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He died on 17 Dec 942.

     (an unknown value) (Rollo's son and successor, William Longsword (d. 942), was the architect of Norman success, consolidating and extending the duchy in the lower Seine region. Succ. to Duchy of Normandy, ca. 930 the Bretons rebelled, he subdued them, taking Brittany, the Channel Islands, the Contentin, and the Averanchin; killed in treacherous ambush by servants of Theobald of Blois and Arnulf of Flanders).

     Children of William I Longsword of31 Normandy Duke (3521)XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)"

XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke  (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)" and unknown of Sprota (3522)XE "Sprota:unknown of  (3522)" (see #1308803137) were:


 654401568.
i.
Richard I the Fearless of30 (3517).XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"
1308803137.  unknown of31 Sprota (3522)XE "Sprota:unknown of  (3522)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married William I Longsword of Normandy Duke (3521)XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)"

XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke  (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Danish wife, a Breton).

1308803138.  forester of31 Arques (3519)XE "Arques:forester of  (3519)" died.

     Children of forester of31 Arques (3519)XE "Arques:forester of  (3519)" include:


 654401569.
i.
Gunnor of30 (3518).XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)"
1308803142.  Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of31 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Fulk Anjoy, #1308803080) (see #654401540).

1308803143.  Adelaide de31 Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Robert (?), #1308803082) (see #654401541).

1308803152.  Baldwin III of31 Flanders Count (3485)XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count (3485) (-1 Jan 962)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count  (3485) (-1 Jan 962)" married Matilda of Saxony (3486)XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died on 1 Jan 962.

     Children of Baldwin III of31 Flanders Count (3485)XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count (3485) (-1 Jan 962)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count  (3485) (-1 Jan 962)" and Matilda of Saxony (3486)XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)" (see #1308803153) were:


 654401576.
i.
Arnold II the Young of30 (3483).XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"
1308803153.  Matilda of31 Saxony (3486)XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)" (Hermann, #1308803480) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.) married Baldwin III of Flanders Count (3485)XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count (3485) (-1 Jan 962)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count  (3485) (-1 Jan 962)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  She died on 25 May 1008.

1308803154.  Berengarius II of31 Italy King (3493)XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King (3493) (-6 Aug 966)"

XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King  (3493) (-6 Aug 966)" married Willa of Tuscany (3494)XE "Tuscany:Willa of  (3494)" in 936 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  He died on 6 Aug 966.

     (an unknown value) (Margrave of Ivrea, King of Italy 950-966).

     Children of Berengarius II of31 Italy King (3493)XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King (3493) (-6 Aug 966)"

XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King  (3493) (-6 Aug 966)" and Willa of Tuscany (3494)XE "Tuscany:Willa of  (3494)" (see #1308803155) were:


 654401577.
i.
Rosela (Susanna) of30 (3484).XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"
1308803155.  Willa of31 Tuscany (3494)XE "Tuscany:Willa of  (3494)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.) married Berengarius II of Italy King (3493)XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King (3493) (-6 Aug 966)"

XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King  (3493) (-6 Aug 966)" in 936 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  She died.

1308803158.  Herbert von31 Gleiberg Count (3430)XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count (3430) (circa 925-992)"

XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count  (3430) (circa 925-992)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 925.  He died in 992.

     Children of Herbert von31 Gleiberg Count (3430)XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count (3430) (circa 925-992)"

XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count  (3430) (circa 925-992)" and Ermentrude of Avalgau (3431)XE "Avalgau:Ermentrude of  (3431)" (see #1308803159) were as follows:


 654401743.
i.
Gerberga von30 (3429).XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)"

 654401579.
ii.
Ermentrude von (3432).XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)"
1308803159.  Ermentrude of31 Avalgau (3431)XE "Avalgau:Ermentrude of  (3431)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1308803160.  Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 900 at Paris, France.  He married Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 16 Jun 956 at Deurdan, Dourdan, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris).

     Children of Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" and Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (see #1308803161) were:


 654401580.
i.
Hugh Capet of30 (3192).XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"
1308803161.  Hedwig of31 Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 123.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 915 at Sachsen, Deutschland.  She married Hugh Magnus of Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 14 Mar 965 at Aix la Chapelle, France.

1308803162.  William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.) was born in 925.  He married Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  He died on 3 Apr 963.

     Children of William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" and Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (see #1308803163) were:


 654401581.
i.
Adelaide of30 (3193).XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)"
1308803163.  Gerloc (Adela) of31 Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married William I of Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  She died.

1308803164.  Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" in 930.  He died in 965.

     Children of Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" and Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (see #1308803165) were:


 654401582.
i.
William (Guillaume) II of30 (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"
1308803165.  Constance of31 Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Boso II of Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" in 930.  She died in 961.

1308803166.  Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619).XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)"
     Children of Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619)XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)" include:


 654401583.
i.
Adelaide (Blanche) of30 (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"
1308803172.  Cinaed (Kenneth) of31 Scotland King (3255)XE "Scotland:Cinaed (Kenneth) of King (3255) (-995)"

XE "Scotland:Cinaed (Kenneth) of King  (3255) (-995)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 147.) died in 995.

     (an unknown value) (King of Scots, 971, killed 995 by his own men. Berchan's Prophecy indicates his wife was a Leinster woman).

     Children of Cinaed (Kenneth) of31 Scotland King (3255)XE "Scotland:Cinaed (Kenneth) of King (3255) (-995)"

XE "Scotland:Cinaed (Kenneth) of King  (3255) (-995)" include:


 654401586.
i.
Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of30 (3254).XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"
1308803184.  Edgar of31 England King (3120)XE "England:Edgar of King (3120) (943-8 Jul 975)"

XE "England:Edgar of King  (3120) (943-8 Jul 975)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.) was born in 943.  He married Elfrida (--?--) (3121)XE "(--?--):Elfrida  (3121) (945-1000)" in 965 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  He died on 8 Jul 975.

     (an unknown value) (The Peaceful, King of England, 979-1016. A younger son of King Edmund of Wessex, he became king of Mercia and Northumbria on the deposition (957) of his brother, Edwy, whom he also succeeded as king of Wessex (959). Edgar appointed St. Dunstan (924-88)  archbishop of Canterbury and supported his monastic reforms. In 973 Dunstan crowned Edgar in a ceremony that emphasized the close ties between king and church. This was followed by another ceremony in which Edgar received homage from seven Welsh andScottish kings. Edgar was succeeded by his son Edward the Martyr).

     Children of Edgar of31 England King (3120)XE "England:Edgar of King (3120) (943-8 Jul 975)"

XE "England:Edgar of King  (3120) (943-8 Jul 975)" and Elfrida (--?--) (3121)XE "(--?--):Elfrida  (3121) (945-1000)" (see #1308803185) were:


 654401592.
i.
Aethelred II of30 (3118).XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)"
1308803185.  Elfrida31 (--?--) (3121)XE "(--?--):Elfrida  (3121) (945-1000)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.) was born in 945.  She married Edgar of England King (3120)XE "England:Edgar of King (3120) (943-8 Jul 975)"

XE "England:Edgar of King  (3120) (943-8 Jul 975)" in 965 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 2.).  She died in 1000.

     (an unknown value) ((or Ealfthryth)).

1308803216.  Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 900 at Paris, France.  He married Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 16 Jun 956 at Deurdan, Dourdan, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris).

     Children of Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" and Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (see #1308803161) were:


 654401580.
i.
Hugh Capet of30 (3192).XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"
1308803217.  Hedwig of31 Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 123.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 915 at Sachsen, Deutschland.  She married Hugh Magnus of Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 14 Mar 965 at Aix la Chapelle, France.

1308803218.  William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.) was born in 925.  He married Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  He died on 3 Apr 963.

     Children of William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" and Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (see #1308803163) were:


 654401581.
i.
Adelaide of30 (3193).XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)"
1308803219.  Gerloc (Adela) of31 Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married William I of Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  She died.

1308803220.  Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" in 930.  He died in 965.

     Children of Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" and Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (see #1308803165) were:


 654401582.
i.
William (Guillaume) II of30 (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"
1308803221.  Constance of31 Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Boso II of Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" in 930.  She died in 961.

1308803222.  Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619).XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)"
     Children of Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619)XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)" include:


 654401583.
i.
Adelaide (Blanche) of30 (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"
1308803436.  Giselbert of31 Roucy Count (3564)XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count (3564) (-before 990)"

XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count  (3564) (-before 990)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) died before 990.

     (an unknown value) (Buried at Rheims).

     Children of Giselbert of31 Roucy Count (3564)XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count (3564) (-before 990)"

XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count  (3564) (-before 990)" include:


 654401718.
i.
Ebles I of30 (3562).XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)"
1308803438.  Regnier IV of31 Hainaut Count (3197)XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count (3197) (-1013)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count  (3197) (-1013)" married Hedwig of France (3196)XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died in 1013.

     Children of Regnier IV of31 Hainaut Count (3197)XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count (3197) (-1013)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count  (3197) (-1013)" and Hedwig of France (3196)XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)" (see #1308803439) were as follows:


 
i.
Regnier V of30 (5221)XE "Hainaut:Regnier V of (Count)  (5221) (        -circa 1039)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier V of Count (5221) (        -circa 1039)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Mathilde of Verdun (5222)XE "Verdun:Mathilde of  (5222)", daughter of Count Herman Verdun (5223),XE "Verdun:Herman (Count)  (5223)"

XE "Verdun:Herman Count (5223)" circa 1015 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died circa 1039 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).


 654401719.
ii.
Beatrix of (3563).XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)"
1308803439.  Hedwig of31 France (3196)XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)" (Hugh, #654401580) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Regnier IV of Hainaut Count (3197)XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count (3197) (-1013)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count  (3197) (-1013)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  She died.

1308803440.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1308803441.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1308803442.  Fulbert of31 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

1308803444.  Baldwin IV of31 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

1308803445.  Ogive (Otgive) of31 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

1308803446.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1308803447.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1308803456.  Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 900 at Paris, France.  He married Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 16 Jun 956 at Deurdan, Dourdan, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris).

     Children of Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" and Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (see #1308803161) were:


 654401580.
i.
Hugh Capet of30 (3192).XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"
1308803457.  Hedwig of31 Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 123.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 915 at Sachsen, Deutschland.  She married Hugh Magnus of Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 14 Mar 965 at Aix la Chapelle, France.

1308803458.  William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.) was born in 925.  He married Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  He died on 3 Apr 963.

     Children of William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" and Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (see #1308803163) were:


 654401581.
i.
Adelaide of30 (3193).XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)"
1308803459.  Gerloc (Adela) of31 Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married William I of Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  She died.

1308803460.  Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" in 930.  He died in 965.

     Children of Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" and Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (see #1308803165) were:


 654401582.
i.
William (Guillaume) II of30 (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"
1308803461.  Constance of31 Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Boso II of Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" in 930.  She died in 961.

1308803462.  Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619).XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)"
     Children of Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619)XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)" include:


 654401583.
i.
Adelaide (Blanche) of30 (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"
1308803464.  Svatislav I of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3622)XE "Kiev:Svatislav I of Grand Prince (3622) (-973)"

XE "Kiev:Svatislav I of Grand Prince  (3622) (-973)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Maloucha unknown (3623)XE "unknown:Maloucha  (3623)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  He died in 973.

     Children of Svatislav I of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3622)XE "Kiev:Svatislav I of Grand Prince (3622) (-973)"

XE "Kiev:Svatislav I of Grand Prince  (3622) (-973)" and Maloucha unknown (3623)XE "unknown:Maloucha  (3623)" (see #1308803465) were:


 654401732.
i.
Saint Vladimir of30 (3615).XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"
1308803465.  Maloucha31 unknown (3623)XE "unknown:Maloucha  (3623)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Svatislav I of Kiev Grand Prince (3622)XE "Kiev:Svatislav I of Grand Prince (3622) (-973)"

XE "Kiev:Svatislav I of Grand Prince  (3622) (-973)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  She died.

1308803466.  Rognald of31 Polotzk (3617)XE "Polotzk:Rognald of  (3617)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) died.

     Children of Rognald of31 Polotzk (3617)XE "Polotzk:Rognald of  (3617)" include:


 654401733.
i.
Rogneide of30 (3616).XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)"
1308803468.  Erik Segersäll of31 Sweden King (3612)XE "Sweden:Erik Segersäll of King (3612) (-circa 994)"

XE "Sweden:Erik Segersäll of King  (3612) (-circa 994)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Sigrid (Sigrith) Storråda (3610)XE "Storråda:Sigrid (Sigrith)  (3610)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  He died circa 994.

     Children of Erik Segersäll of31 Sweden King (3612)XE "Sweden:Erik Segersäll of King (3612) (-circa 994)"

XE "Sweden:Erik Segersäll of King  (3612) (-circa 994)" and Sigrid (Sigrith) Storråda (3610)XE "Storråda:Sigrid (Sigrith)  (3610)" (see #1308803469) were:


 654401734.
i.
Olaf Skötkonung of30 (3609).XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"
1308803469.  Sigrid (Sigrith)31 Storråda (3610)XE "Storråda:Sigrid (Sigrith)  (3610)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.) married Erik Segersäll of Sweden King (3612)XE "Sweden:Erik Segersäll of King (3612) (-circa 994)"

XE "Sweden:Erik Segersäll of King  (3612) (-circa 994)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 205.).  She died.

1308803480.  Hermann Billung of31 Saxony Duke (3449)XE "Saxony:Hermann Billung of Duke (3449)"

XE "Saxony:Hermann Billung of Duke  (3449)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Hildegarde of Westerbourg (3450)XE "Westerbourg:Hildegarde of  (3450)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died.

     Children of Hermann Billung of31 Saxony Duke (3449)XE "Saxony:Hermann Billung of Duke (3449)"

XE "Saxony:Hermann Billung of Duke  (3449)" and Hildegarde of Westerbourg (3450)XE "Westerbourg:Hildegarde of  (3450)" (see #1308803481) were as follows:


 1308803153.
i.
Matilda of30 (3486).XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)"

 654401740.
ii.
Bernard I of (3447).XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"
1308803481.  Hildegarde of31 Westerbourg (3450)XE "Westerbourg:Hildegarde of  (3450)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.) married Hermann Billung of Saxony Duke (3449)XE "Saxony:Hermann Billung of Duke (3449)"

XE "Saxony:Hermann Billung of Duke  (3449)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  She died.

1308803482.  Henry von31 Staden Count (3444)XE "Staden:Henry von Count (3444) (-9 May 976)"

XE "Staden:Henry von Count  (3444) (-9 May 976)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Hildegarde Judith von Gleiberg (3443)XE "Gleiberg:Hildegarde Judith von  (3443) (-6 Oct 973)" before 950 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  He died on 9 May 976.

     Children of Henry von31 Staden Count (3444)XE "Staden:Henry von Count (3444) (-9 May 976)"

XE "Staden:Henry von Count  (3444) (-9 May 976)" and Hildegarde Judith von Gleiberg (3443)XE "Gleiberg:Hildegarde Judith von  (3443) (-6 Oct 973)" (see #1308803483) were:


 654401741.
i.
Hildegarde von30 (3448).XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)"
1308803483.  Hildegarde Judith von31 Gleiberg (3443)XE "Gleiberg:Hildegarde Judith von  (3443) (-6 Oct 973)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) married Henry von Staden Count (3444)XE "Staden:Henry von Count (3444) (-9 May 976)"

XE "Staden:Henry von Count  (3444) (-9 May 976)" before 950 (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.).  She died on 6 Oct 973.

1308803486.  Herbert von31 Gleiberg Count (3430)XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count (3430) (circa 925-992)"

XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count  (3430) (circa 925-992)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 925.  He died in 992.

     Children of Herbert von31 Gleiberg Count (3430)XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count (3430) (circa 925-992)"

XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count  (3430) (circa 925-992)" and Ermentrude of Avalgau (3431)XE "Avalgau:Ermentrude of  (3431)" (see #1308803159) were as follows:


 654401743.
i.
Gerberga von30 (3429).XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)"

 654401579.
ii.
Ermentrude von (3432).XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)"
1308803487.  Ermentrude of31 Avalgau (3431)XE "Avalgau:Ermentrude of  (3431)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1308803528.  Bouchard de31 Montmorency (3168)XE "Montmorency:Bouchard de  (3168) (-1020)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died in 1020.

     Children of Bouchard de31 Montmorency (3168)XE "Montmorency:Bouchard de  (3168) (-1020)" and Elizabeth de Crecy (3169)XE "Crecy:Elizabeth de  (3169)" (see #1308803529) were:


 654401764.
i.
Thibault de30 (3167).XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)"
1308803529.  Elizabeth de31 Crecy (3169)XE "Crecy:Elizabeth de  (3169)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1308803538.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1308803539.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1308803544.  Artaud de31 Forez (3215)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3215)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of Artaud de31 Forez (3215)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3215)" and Theodeberge (--?--) (3216)XE "(--?--):Theodeberge  (3216)" (see #1308803545) were:


 654401772.
i.
Artaud de30 (3213).XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)"
1308803545.  Theodeberge31 (--?--) (3216)XE "(--?--):Theodeberge  (3216)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1308815680.  William I Longsword of31 Normandy Duke (3521)XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)"

XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke  (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)" was born circa 891 at Rouen, Seine, France.  He married unknown of Sprota (3522)XE "Sprota:unknown of  (3522)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He married Luitgarde de Vermandois (3523)XE "Vermandois:Luitgarde de  (3523) (-942)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  He died on 17 Dec 942.

     (an unknown value) (Rollo's son and successor, William Longsword (d. 942), was the architect of Norman success, consolidating and extending the duchy in the lower Seine region. Succ. to Duchy of Normandy, ca. 930 the Bretons rebelled, he subdued them, taking Brittany, the Channel Islands, the Contentin, and the Averanchin; killed in treacherous ambush by servants of Theobald of Blois and Arnulf of Flanders).

     Children of William I Longsword of31 Normandy Duke (3521)XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)"

XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke  (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)" and unknown of Sprota (3522)XE "Sprota:unknown of  (3522)" (see #1308803137) were:


 654401568.
i.
Richard I the Fearless of30 (3517).XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"
1308815681.  unknown of31 Sprota (3522)XE "Sprota:unknown of  (3522)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married William I Longsword of Normandy Duke (3521)XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)"

XE "Normandy:William I Longsword of Duke  (3521) (circa 891-17 Dec 942)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Danish wife, a Breton).

1308815682.  forester of31 Arques (3519)XE "Arques:forester of  (3519)" died.

     Children of forester of31 Arques (3519)XE "Arques:forester of  (3519)" include:


 654401569.
i.
Gunnor of30 (3518).XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)"
1308815686.  Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of31 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Fulk Anjoy, #1308803080) (see #654401540).

1308815687.  Adelaide de31 Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Robert (?), #1308803082) (see #654401541).

1308815696.  Baldwin III of31 Flanders Count (3485)XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count (3485) (-1 Jan 962)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count  (3485) (-1 Jan 962)" married Matilda of Saxony (3486)XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  He died on 1 Jan 962.

     Children of Baldwin III of31 Flanders Count (3485)XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count (3485) (-1 Jan 962)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count  (3485) (-1 Jan 962)" and Matilda of Saxony (3486)XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)" (see #1308803153) were:


 654401576.
i.
Arnold II the Young of30 (3483).XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"
1308815697.  Matilda of31 Saxony (3486)XE "Saxony:Matilda of  (3486) (-25 May 1008)" (Hermann, #1308803480) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.) married Baldwin III of Flanders Count (3485)XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count (3485) (-1 Jan 962)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin III of Count  (3485) (-1 Jan 962)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 142.).  She died on 25 May 1008.

1308815698.  Berengarius II of31 Italy King (3493)XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King (3493) (-6 Aug 966)"

XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King  (3493) (-6 Aug 966)" married Willa of Tuscany (3494)XE "Tuscany:Willa of  (3494)" in 936 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  He died on 6 Aug 966.

     (an unknown value) (Margrave of Ivrea, King of Italy 950-966).

     Children of Berengarius II of31 Italy King (3493)XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King (3493) (-6 Aug 966)"

XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King  (3493) (-6 Aug 966)" and Willa of Tuscany (3494)XE "Tuscany:Willa of  (3494)" (see #1308803155) were:


 654401577.
i.
Rosela (Susanna) of30 (3484).XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"
1308815699.  Willa of31 Tuscany (3494)XE "Tuscany:Willa of  (3494)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.) married Berengarius II of Italy King (3493)XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King (3493) (-6 Aug 966)"

XE "Italy:Berengarius II of King  (3493) (-6 Aug 966)" in 936 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  She died.

1308815702.  Herbert von31 Gleiberg Count (3430)XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count (3430) (circa 925-992)"

XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count  (3430) (circa 925-992)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 925.  He died in 992.

     Children of Herbert von31 Gleiberg Count (3430)XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count (3430) (circa 925-992)"

XE "Gleiberg:Herbert von Count  (3430) (circa 925-992)" and Ermentrude of Avalgau (3431)XE "Avalgau:Ermentrude of  (3431)" (see #1308803159) were as follows:


 654401743.
i.
Gerberga von30 (3429).XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)"

 654401579.
ii.
Ermentrude von (3432).XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)"
1308815703.  Ermentrude of31 Avalgau (3431)XE "Avalgau:Ermentrude of  (3431)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1308815704.  Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 900 at Paris, France.  He married Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  He died on 16 Jun 956 at Deurdan, Dourdan, France.

     (an unknown value) (Count of Paris).

     Children of Hugh Magnus of31 Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" and Hedwig of Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (see #1308803161) were:


 654401580.
i.
Hugh Capet of30 (3192).XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"
1308815705.  Hedwig of31 Saxony (3202)XE "Saxony:Hedwig of  (3202) (circa 915-14 Mar 965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97 & 123.) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) was born circa 915 at Sachsen, Deutschland.  She married Hugh Magnus of Paris Count (3201)XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)"

XE "Paris:Hugh Magnus of Count  (3201) (circa 900-16 Jun 956)" before 14 Sep 938 at Mainz oder Ingelsheim, Pfalz, Deutschland (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 97.).  She died on 14 Mar 965 at Aix la Chapelle, France.

1308815706.  William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.) was born in 925.  He married Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  He died on 3 Apr 963.

     Children of William I of31 Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" and Gerloc (Adela) of Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (see #1308803163) were:


 654401581.
i.
Adelaide of30 (3193).XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)"
1308815707.  Gerloc (Adela) of31 Rouen (3527)XE "Rouen:Gerloc (Adela) of  (3527)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 110.) married William I of Poitou Count (3528)XE "Poitou:William I of Count (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)"

XE "Poitou:William I of Count  (3528) (925-3 Apr 963)" in 935 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 128.).  She died.

1308815708.  Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" in 930.  He died in 965.

     Children of Boso II of31 Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" and Constance of Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (see #1308803165) were:


 654401582.
i.
William (Guillaume) II of30 (4618).XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)"
1308815709.  Constance of31 Provence (4622)XE "Provence:Constance of  (4622) (-961)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 124.) married Boso II of Avignon & Arles Count (4621)XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count (4621) (-965)"

XE "Avignon & Arles:Boso II of Count  (4621) (-965)" in 930.  She died in 961.

1308815710.  Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619).XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)"
     Children of Fulk II of31 Anjou Count (4619)XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count (4619)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk II of Count  (4619)" include:


 654401583.
i.
Adelaide (Blanche) of30 (4617).XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)"
1472373020.  Giselbert of31 Roucy Count (3564)XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count (3564) (-before 990)"

XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count  (3564) (-before 990)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 133.) died before 990.

     (an unknown value) (Buried at Rheims).

     Children of Giselbert of31 Roucy Count (3564)XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count (3564) (-before 990)"

XE "Roucy:Giselbert of Count  (3564) (-before 990)" include:


 654401718.
i.
Ebles I of30 (3562).XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)"
1472373022.  Regnier IV of31 Hainaut Count (3197)XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count (3197) (-1013)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count  (3197) (-1013)" married Hedwig of France (3196)XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died in 1013.

     Children of Regnier IV of31 Hainaut Count (3197)XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count (3197) (-1013)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count  (3197) (-1013)" and Hedwig of France (3196)XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)" (see #1308803439) were as follows:


 
i.
Regnier V of30 (5221)XE "Hainaut:Regnier V of (Count)  (5221) (        -circa 1039)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier V of Count (5221) (        -circa 1039)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Mathilde of Verdun (5222)XE "Verdun:Mathilde of  (5222)", daughter of Count Herman Verdun (5223),XE "Verdun:Herman (Count)  (5223)"

XE "Verdun:Herman Count (5223)" circa 1015 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  He died circa 1039 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).


 654401719.
ii.
Beatrix of (3563).XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)"
1472373023.  Hedwig of31 France (3196)XE "France:Hedwig of  (3196)" (Hugh, #654401580) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.) married Regnier IV of Hainaut Count (3197)XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count (3197) (-1013)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier IV of Count  (3197) (-1013)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 100.).  She died.

1472373028.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1472373029.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1472373250.  Murchad of31 Leinster King (4355).XE "Leinster:Murchad of King (4355)"

XE "Leinster:Murchad of King  (4355)"
     Children of Murchad of31 Leinster King (4355)XE "Leinster:Murchad of King (4355)"

XE "Leinster:Murchad of King  (4355)" include:


 736186625.
i.
Gormflaith30 (4354).XE "(--?--):Gormflaith  (4354)"
1472373508.  Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of31 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Fulk Anjoy, #1308803080) (see #654401540).

1472373509.  Adelaide de31 Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Robert (?), #1308803082) (see #654401541).

1472373536.  Richard I the Fearless of31 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" (William, #1308803136) (see #654401568).

1472373537.  Gunnor of31 Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (forester, #1308803138) (see #654401569).

1472373538.  Conan I of31 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" (see #654401570).

1472373539.  Ermengarde of31 Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #654401571).

1472373544.  Arnold II the Young of31 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" (Baldwin, #1308803152) (see #654401576).

1472373545.  Rosela (Susanna) of31 Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (Berengarius, #1308803154) (see #654401577).

1472373546.  Frederick I of31 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" (see #654401578).

1472373547.  Ermentrude von31 Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401579).

1472373548.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1472373549.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1472373550.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1472373551.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1472373554.  Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of31 Scotland King (3254)XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)" (Cinaed, #1308803172) (see #654401586).

1472373560.  Aethelred II of31 England King (3118)XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)" (Edgar, #1308803184) (see #654401592).

1472373576.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1472373577.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1472373578.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1472373579.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1472373890.  Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of31 Scotland King (3254)XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)" (Cinaed, #1308803172) (see #654401586).

1472373896.  Aethelred II of31 England King (3118)XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)" (Edgar, #1308803184) (see #654401592).

1472373914.  Count Lambert I of31 Louvain the Bearded (5160)XE "Louvain:Lambert I of (Count) the Bearded (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert I of the Bearded Count (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 950 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.).  He married Gerberga of Lorraine (5161)XE "Lorraine:Gerberga of  (5161) (circa 975-27 Jan 1018)" (see #1472373915), daughter of Duke Charles of Lorraine (5162)XE "Lorraine:Charles of (Duke)  (5162) (953-21 May 991)"

XE "Lorraine:Charles of Duke (5162) (953-21 May 991)" and Adelheid (--?--) (5163),XE "(--?--):Adelheid  (5163)" circa 990 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.).  He died on 12 Sep 1015 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.).

     Children of Count Lambert I of31 Louvain the Bearded (5160)XE "Louvain:Lambert I of (Count) the Bearded (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert I of the Bearded Count (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)" and Gerberga of Lorraine (5161)XE "Lorraine:Gerberga of  (5161) (circa 975-27 Jan 1018)" (see #1472373915) were as follows:


 736186957.
i.
Maud of30 (5159).XE "Louvain:Maud of  (5159)"

 1678645464.
ii.
Lambert II of (5215).XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"
1472373915.  Gerberga of31 Lorraine (5161)XE "Lorraine:Gerberga of  (5161) (circa 975-27 Jan 1018)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 130.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 130.) was born circa 975 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.).  She married Count Lambert I of Louvain the Bearded (5160)XE "Louvain:Lambert I of (Count) the Bearded (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert I of the Bearded Count (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)" (see #1472373914), son of Count Regnier III of Hainaut (5168)XE "Hainaut:Regnier III of (Count)  (5168) (circa 920-973)"

XE "Hainaut:Regnier III of Count (5168) (circa 920-973)" and Adele of Louvain (5169),XE "Louvain:Adele of  (5169) (        -961)" circa 990 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.).  She died on 27 Jan 1018 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 135.).

1472373916.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1472373917.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1472373918.  Fulbert of31 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

1472373936.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1472373937.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1472373938.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1472373939.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1472373940.  Saint Vladimir of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Svatislav, #1308803464) (see #654401732).

1472373941.  Rogneide of31 Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Rognald, #1308803466) (see #654401733).

1472373942.  Olaf Skötkonung of31 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" (Erik, #1308803468) (see #654401734).

1472373944.  Herbert III of31 Vermandois Count (3313)XE "Vermandois:Herbert III of Count (3313) (circa 955-circa 1000)"

XE "Vermandois:Herbert III of Count  (3313) (circa 955-circa 1000)" was born circa 955.  He married Ermengarde of Bar (3314)XE "Bar:Ermengarde of  (3314)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.).  He died circa 1000.

     Children of Herbert III of31 Vermandois Count (3313)XE "Vermandois:Herbert III of Count (3313) (circa 955-circa 1000)"

XE "Vermandois:Herbert III of Count  (3313) (circa 955-circa 1000)" and Ermengarde of Bar (3314)XE "Bar:Ermengarde of  (3314)" (see #1472373945) were:


 736186972.
i.
Otho (Eudes or Otto) of30 (3311).XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"

XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count  (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"
1472373945.  Ermengarde of31 Bar (3314)XE "Bar:Ermengarde of  (3314)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.) married Herbert III of Vermandois Count (3313)XE "Vermandois:Herbert III of Count (3313) (circa 955-circa 1000)"

XE "Vermandois:Herbert III of Count  (3313) (circa 955-circa 1000)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 51.).  She died.

1472374032.  Eudes I of31 Blois Count (4607)XE "Blois:Eudes I of Count (4607) (-12 Mar 995)"

XE "Blois:Eudes I of Count  (4607) (-12 Mar 995)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119.) married Bertha of Burgundy (4608)XE "Burgundy:Bertha of  (4608) (964-after 1010)" in 983.  He died on 12 Mar 995.

     (an unknown value) (Count of /Blois).

     Children of Eudes I of31 Blois Count (4607)XE "Blois:Eudes I of Count (4607) (-12 Mar 995)"

XE "Blois:Eudes I of Count  (4607) (-12 Mar 995)" and Bertha of Burgundy (4608)XE "Burgundy:Bertha of  (4608) (964-after 1010)" (see #1472374033) were:


 736187016.
i.
Eudes II of30 (4604).XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)"

XE "Blois:Eudes II of Count  (4604) (990-15 Nov 1037)"
1472374033.  Bertha of31 Burgundy (4608)XE "Burgundy:Bertha of  (4608) (964-after 1010)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 119 & 141.) was born in 964.  She married Eudes I of Blois Count (4607)XE "Blois:Eudes I of Count (4607) (-12 Mar 995)"

XE "Blois:Eudes I of Count  (4607) (-12 Mar 995)" in 983.  She died after 1010.

1472374035.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1472374140.  Leofric of31 Mercia Earl (4157)XE "Mercia:Leofric of Earl (4157) (-31 Aug 1057)"

XE "Mercia:Leofric of Earl  (4157) (-31 Aug 1057)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 1 of Line 176A.) married Godgifu of Buckingham (4158)XE "Buckingham:Godgifu of  (4158) (circa 1010-)" circa 1030 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 176A.).  He died on 31 Aug 1057 at Bromley, Stafford, England.

     (an unknown value) (Founder of the church of Coventry, seen as then from 1005, "dux" from 1026, Earl of Mercia by 1032).

     Children of Leofric of31 Mercia Earl (4157)XE "Mercia:Leofric of Earl (4157) (-31 Aug 1057)"

XE "Mercia:Leofric of Earl  (4157) (-31 Aug 1057)" and Godgifu of Buckingham (4158)XE "Buckingham:Godgifu of  (4158) (circa 1010-)" (see #1472374141) were:


 736187070.
i.
Aelfgar of30 (4151).XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl (4151) (-after 1062)"

XE "Mercia:Aelfgar of Earl  (4151) (-after 1062)"
1472374141.  Godgifu of31 Buckingham (4158)XE "Buckingham:Godgifu of  (4158) (circa 1010-)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 176A.) was born circa 1010.  She married Leofric of Mercia Earl (4157)XE "Mercia:Leofric of Earl (4157) (-31 Aug 1057)"

XE "Mercia:Leofric of Earl  (4157) (-31 Aug 1057)" circa 1030 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 2 of Line 176A.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (Sister of Thorold of Buckingham, sheriff of Lincolnshire. Godgifu's ancestry is uncertain, but she was evidently of an old, noble family. She is the "Lady Godiva" of legend).

1472374198.  Girard31 Flatel (3396)XE "Flatel:Girard  (3396) (circa 985-)" (see #736186502).

1472374206.  Ebles I of31 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (see #654401718).

1472374207.  Beatrix of31 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (see #654401719).

1542455296.  Fulk V the Young of31 Anjou Count (3537)XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk V the Young of Count  (3537) (1092-10 Nov 1143)" (Fulk, #81800192) (see #40900096).

1542455297.  Erembourg of31 Maine (3538)XE "Maine:Erembourg of  (3538) (-1126)" (Helias, #81800194) (see #40900097).

1542455300.  William de31 Warenne Earl (3286)XE "Warenne:William de Earl (3286) (-11 May 1138)"

XE "Warenne:William de Earl  (3286) (-11 May 1138)" (William, #184046740) (see #92023370).

1542455301.  Isabel de31 Vermandois Countess (3285)XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)"

XE "Vermandois:Isabel de Countess  (3285) (-13 Feb 1131)" (Hugh France, #184046742) (see #92023371).

1542455302.  Count William III31 Talvas (5111)XE "Talvas:William III (Count)  (5111)"

XE "Talvas:William III Count (5111)" (Robert Belleme, #419661792) (see #209830896).

1542455303.  Alice (Ela) of31 Burgundy (5112)XE "Burgundy:Alice (Ela) of  (5112) (        -1194)" (Eudes, #419661794) (see #209830897).

1542455304.  Gilbert31 Marshal (3368)XE "Marshal:Gilbert  (3368) (circa 1100-)" (see #104915352).

1542455305.  unknown de31 Venuz (3369)XE "Venuz:unknown de  (3369) (circa 1102-)" (Geoffrey, #209830706) (see #104915353).

1542455306.  Walter de31 Everaux (3370)XE "Everaux:Walter de  (3370) (circa 1100-)" (Edward Devereux, #209830708) (see #104915354).

1542455307.  Sibill de31 Chaworth (3371)XE "Chaworth:Sibill de  (3371)" (see #104915355).

1542455308.  Gilbert de31 Clare Earl (3382)XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)"

XE "Clare:Gilbert de Earl  (3382) (-6 Jan 1148)" (Gilbert, #92023312) (see #104915356).

1542455309.  Isabel (Elizabeth) de31 Beaumont (3383)XE "Beaumont:Isabel (Elizabeth) de  (3383) (circa 1107-)" (see #104915357).

1542455320.  Wulgrim II of31 Angouleme Count (3552)XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count (3552)"

XE "Angouleme:Wulgrim II of Count  (3552)" (see #40900104).

1542455322.  Raymond I de31 Turenne Vicount (3553)XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount (3553) (-circa 1122)"

XE "Turenne:Raymond I de Vicount  (3553) (-circa 1122)" (Boso, #81800212) (see #40900106).

1542455323.  Mathilde (Maude) de31 Perche (3554)XE "Perche:Mathilde (Maude) de  (3554) (1105-1143)" (Routrou, #81800214) (see #40900107).

1542455324.  Louis VI of31 France King (3412)XE "France:Louis VI of King (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)"

XE "France:Louis VI of King  (3412) (1081-1 Aug 1137)" (Philip, #81800216) (see #40900108).

1542455325.  Adelaide de31 Savoy (3413)XE "Savoy:Adelaide de  (3413) (-1 Aug 1154)" (see #40900109).

1542455326.  Renaud de31 Courtenay (3156)XE "Courtenay:Renaud de  (3156) (circa 1125-Oct 1190)" (Milo, #81800220) (see #40900110).

1542455327.  Josceline de31 Donjon (3157)XE "Donjon:Josceline de  (3157) (circa 1113-after 1158)" (see #40900111).

1542455328.  Aubrey II de31 Vere (3670)XE "Vere:Aubrey II de  (3670) (before 1090-15 May 1141)" (Aubrey, #184046772) (see #92023386).

1542455329.  Alice de31 Clare (3671)XE "Clare:Alice de  (3671) (-circa 1163)" (Gilbert, #92023312) (see #92023387).

1542455330.  Henry of31 Essex Lord (3666)XE "Essex:Henry of Lord (3666)"

XE "Essex:Henry of Lord  (3666)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) married Cicely unknown (3667)XE "unknown:Cicely  (3667)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (Lord of Rayleigh and Haughley).

     Children of Henry of31 Essex Lord (3666)XE "Essex:Henry of Lord (3666)"

XE "Essex:Henry of Lord  (3666)" and Cicely unknown (3667)XE "unknown:Cicely  (3667)" (see #1542455331) were:


 771227665.
i.
Agnes of30 (3665).XE "Essex:Agnes of  (3665)"
1542455331.  Cicely31 unknown (3667)XE "unknown:Cicely  (3667)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) married Henry of Essex Lord (3666)XE "Essex:Henry of Lord (3666)"

XE "Essex:Henry of Lord  (3666)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.).  She died.

1542455332.  Walter I de31 Bolbec (3663)XE "Bolbec:Walter I de  (3663)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 208.) died.

     Children of Walter I de31 Bolbec (3663)XE "Bolbec:Walter I de  (3663)" include:


 771227666.
i.
Hugh II de30 (3662).XE "Bolbec:Hugh II de  (3662)"
1542455340.  Robert de31 Beaumont Earl (3326)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)" (Robert, #209830424) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 58.) was born in 1104.  He married Amice de Montfort (3327)XE "Montfort:Amice de  (3327)" after Nov 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, page 58.).  He died on 5 Apr 1168.

     (an unknown value) (2nd Earl of Leicester; knighted 1122; Justiciar of England, 1155-1168).

     Children of Robert de31 Beaumont Earl (3326)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)" and Amice de Montfort (3327)XE "Montfort:Amice de  (3327)" (see #1542455341) were:


 771227670.
i.
Robert de30 (3324).XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3324) (before 1135-1190)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3324) (before 1135-1190)"
1542455341.  Amice de31 Montfort (3327)XE "Montfort:Amice de  (3327)" married Robert de Beaumont Earl (3326)XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)"

XE "Beaumont:Robert de Earl  (3326) (1104-5 Apr 1168)" after Nov 1120 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, page 58.).  She died.

1542455354.  Philip de31 Belmeis (3641)XE "Belmeis:Philip de  (3641)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.) married Maud Le Meschine (3642)XE "Le Meschine:Maud  (3642)" circa 1139 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  He died.

     (an unknown value) (adult by 1127, lord of Tong, Salop and Ashby, co. Leicester).

     Children of Philip de31 Belmeis (3641)XE "Belmeis:Philip de  (3641)" and Maud Le Meschine (3642)XE "Le Meschine:Maud  (3642)" (see #1542455355) were:


 771227677.
i.
Alice de30 (3640).XE "Belmeis:Alice de  (3640)"
1542455355.  Maud31 Le Meschine (3642)XE "Le Meschine:Maud  (3642)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.) married Hugh de Mortimer Lord (3644)XE "Mortimer:Hugh de Lord (3644) (-1181)"

XE "Mortimer:Hugh de Lord  (3644) (-1181)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  She married Philip de Belmeis (3641)XE "Belmeis:Philip de  (3641)" circa 1139 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 117.).  She died.

     (an unknown value) (dau. and coh., inherited manor of Molland, Devon, held by her maternal gr.f).

1678643208.  Bouchard de31 Montmorency (3168)XE "Montmorency:Bouchard de  (3168) (-1020)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died in 1020.

     Children of Bouchard de31 Montmorency (3168)XE "Montmorency:Bouchard de  (3168) (-1020)" and Elizabeth de Crecy (3169)XE "Crecy:Elizabeth de  (3169)" (see #1308803529) were:


 654401764.
i.
Thibault de30 (3167).XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)"
1678643209.  Elizabeth de31 Crecy (3169)XE "Crecy:Elizabeth de  (3169)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1678643218.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678643219.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678643224.  Artaud de31 Forez (3215)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3215)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of Artaud de31 Forez (3215)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3215)" and Theodeberge (--?--) (3216)XE "(--?--):Theodeberge  (3216)" (see #1308803545) were:


 654401772.
i.
Artaud de30 (3213).XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)"
1678643225.  Theodeberge31 (--?--) (3216)XE "(--?--):Theodeberge  (3216)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1678643400.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678643401.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678643402.  Jaroslav I of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

1678643403.  Ingeborg of31 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

1678643404.  Otho (Eudes or Otto) of31 Vermandoise Count (3311)XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"

XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count  (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)" (Herbert Vermandois, #1472373944) (see #736186972).

1678643405.  Parvie31 (--?--) (3312)XE "(--?--):Parvie  (3312)" (see #736186973).

1678643406.  Raoul III of31 Vexin Count (3310)XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count (3310)"

XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count  (3310)" (see #736186974).

1678643424.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1678643425.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1678643426.  Fulbert of31 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

1678643428.  Baldwin IV of31 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

1678643429.  Ogive (Otgive) of31 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

1678643430.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678643431.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678645464.  Count Lambert II of31 Louvain (5215)XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)" (Lambert, #1472373914) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 991 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He married Count Oda of Verdun (5216)XE "Verdun:Oda of (Count)  (5216)"

XE "Verdun:Oda of Count (5216)" (see #1678645465), daughter of Count Gozelon I Verdun (5217)XE "Verdun:Gozelon I (Count)  (5217) (        -19 Apr 1044)"

XE "Verdun:Gozelon I Count (5217) (        -19 Apr 1044)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He died after 21 Sep 1062 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Count Lambert II of31 Louvain (5215)XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)" and Count Oda of Verdun (5216)XE "Verdun:Oda of (Count)  (5216)"

XE "Verdun:Oda of Count (5216)" (see #1678645465) were:


 839322732.
i.
Henry II of30 (5210).XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"
1678645465.  Count Oda of31 Verdun (5216)XE "Verdun:Oda of (Count)  (5216)"

XE "Verdun:Oda of Count (5216)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) married Count Lambert II of Louvain (5215)XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)" (see #1678645464), son of Count Lambert I of Louvain the Bearded (5160)XE "Louvain:Lambert I of (Count) the Bearded (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert I of the Bearded Count (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)" and Gerberga of Lorraine (5161)XE "Lorraine:Gerberga of  (5161) (circa 975-27 Jan 1018)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

1678645466.  Count Eberhard von der31 Betuwe (5212)XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der (Count)  (5212)"

XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der Count (5212)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Count Eberhard von der31 Betuwe (5212)XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der (Count)  (5212)"

XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der Count (5212)" include:


 839322733.
i.
Adelaide (Adela) of30 (5211).XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)"
1678645468.  Count Arnold II31 Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Adela de Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (see #1678645469), daughter of Hildouin III de Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" and Adele (Alix) de Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Count Arnold II31 Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" and Adela de Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (see #1678645469) were:


 839322734.
i.
Otto II of30 (5219).XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"
1678645469.  Adela de31 Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) was born circa 1050 at La Sarraz, Switzerland.  She married Count Arnold II Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" (see #1678645468) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She died.

1678645470.  Count Albert III of31 Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Ida of Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (see #1678645471), daughter of Duke Bernard II of Saxony (5227)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of (Duke)  (5227) (circa 995-1057)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (5227) (circa 995-1057)" and Elicia von Schweinfurt (5228),XE "Schweinfurt:Elicia von  (5228)" circa 1067 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Count Albert III of31 Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" and Ida of Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (see #1678645471) were:


 839322735.
i.
Adelaide of30 (5218).XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)"
1678645471.  Ida of31 Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Count Albert III of Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" (see #1678645470), son of Count Albert II of Namur (5230)XE "Namur:Albert II of (Count)  (5230) (circa 1000-1064)"

XE "Namur:Albert II of Count (5230) (circa 1000-1064)" and Regilinde of Lorraine (5231),XE "Lorraine:Regilinde of  (5231) (        -1064)" circa 1067 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

1678645472.  Aubri-Geoffrey of31 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

1678645473.  Ermengarde of31 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

1678645474.  Simon I of31 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

1678645475.  Agnes31 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

1678645492.  Henry I of31 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

1678645493.  Anne of31 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

1678645494.  Herbert IV of31 Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" (Otho, #736186972) (see #368093486).

1678645495.  Adela de31 Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (Raoul, #736186974) (see #368093487).

1678645498.  Count Guy I of31 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) died in 1100 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     (an unknown value) (Count of Ponthieu and Montreuil) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 10!).

     Children of Count Guy I of31 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" include:


 419661793.
i.
Agnes of30 (5114).XE "Ponthieu:Agnes of  (5114)"
1678645500.  Henry of31 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (Robert, #163600402) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (see #839323589), daughter of Count Raymond Berenger I of Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" and Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).  He died circa 1072 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Henry of31 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" and Sibylle de Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (see #839323589) were:


 419661794.
i.
Eudes I Borel of30 (5119).XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of (Count)  (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"

XE "Burgundy:Eudes I Borel of Count (5119) (        -23 Mar 1103)"
1678645501.  Sibylle de31 Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Raymond, #1678647178) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Henry of Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (see #839323588), son of Robert The Old of Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" and Helie of Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

1678645502.  Count William I of31 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (Raynald, #1678647180) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (see #839323591), daughter of Count Adalbert III of Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" and Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1087 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     Children of Count William I of31 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" and Stephanie de Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (see #839323591) were as follows:


 419661795.
i.
Matilda (Maude) of30 (5120).XE "Burgundy:Matilda (Maude) of  (5120)"

 
ii.
Raymond of (5134)XE "Burgundy:Raymond of  (5134) (circa 1060-26 Mar 1107)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) was born circa 1060 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 103.).  He married Queen Urraca of Castile and Leon (5135)XE "Castile and Leon:Urraca of (Queen)  (5135) (1082-8 Mar 1126)"

XE "Castile and Leon:Urraca of Queen (5135) (1082-8 Mar 1126)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 103.).  He died on 26 Mar 1107 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116 & 103.).

1678645503.  Stephanie de31 Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Adalbert, #1678647182) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) was born circa 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She married Count William I of Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (see #839323590), son of Raynald (Renaud) of Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" and Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died after 1088 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

1678645532.  Richard31 Fitz Scrob (4160)XE "Fitz Scrob:Richard  (4160) (-1067)" (see #368093532).

1678645534.  Gruffydd ap31 Llywelyn Prince (4147)XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"

XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince  (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)" (Llywelyn Seisyll, #736187068) (see #368093534).

1678645535.  Aldgyth of31 Mercia (4148)XE "Mercia:Aldgyth of  (4148)" (Aelfgar, #736187070) (see #368093535).

1678645702.  Girard31 Flatel (3396)XE "Flatel:Girard  (3396) (circa 985-)" (see #736186502).

1678645710.  Ebles I of31 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (see #654401718).

1678645711.  Beatrix of31 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (see #654401719).

1678646276.  Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of31 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Fulk Anjoy, #1308803080) (see #654401540).

1678646277.  Adelaide de31 Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Robert (?), #1308803082) (see #654401541).

1678646304.  Richard I the Fearless of31 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" (William, #1308803136) (see #654401568).

1678646305.  Gunnor of31 Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (forester, #1308803138) (see #654401569).

1678646306.  Conan I of31 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" (see #654401570).

1678646307.  Ermengarde of31 Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #654401571).

1678646312.  Arnold II the Young of31 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" (Baldwin, #1308803152) (see #654401576).

1678646313.  Rosela (Susanna) of31 Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (Berengarius, #1308803154) (see #654401577).

1678646314.  Frederick I of31 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" (see #654401578).

1678646315.  Ermentrude von31 Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401579).

1678646316.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678646317.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678646318.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678646319.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678646322.  Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of31 Scotland King (3254)XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)" (Cinaed, #1308803172) (see #654401586).

1678646328.  Aethelred II of31 England King (3118)XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)" (Edgar, #1308803184) (see #654401592).

1678646344.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678646345.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678646346.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678646347.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678646454.  Ebles I of31 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (see #654401718).

1678646455.  Beatrix of31 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (see #654401719).

1678646456.  Robert I31 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

1678646457.  Arlette of31 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

1678646458.  Baldwin V of31 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

1678646459.  Adele (Aelis) de31 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

1678646464.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678646465.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678646466.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678646467.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678646468.  Saint Vladimir of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Svatislav, #1308803464) (see #654401732).

1678646469.  Rogneide of31 Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Rognald, #1308803466) (see #654401733).

1678646470.  Olaf Skötkonung of31 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" (Erik, #1308803468) (see #654401734).

1678646476.  Bernard I of31 Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" (Hermann, #1308803480) (see #654401740).

1678646477.  Hildegarde von31 Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" (Henry Staden, #1308803482) (see #654401741).

1678646478.  Henry Murgrave von31 Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" (see #654401742).

1678646479.  Gerberga von31 Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401743).

1678646500.  Thibault de31 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" (Bouchard Montmorency, #1308803528) (see #654401764).

1678646504.  Renaud I de31 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" (see #654401768).

1678646505.  Adele of31 France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #654401769).

1678646508.  Artaud de31 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" (Artaud, #1308803544) (see #654401772).

1678646509.  Raymonde31 (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (see #654401773).

1678646976.  Geoffrey III of31 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" (see #327200768).

1678646977.  Beatrix of31 Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (see #327200769).

1678646978.  Fulk III the Black of31 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #327200770).

1678646979.  Hildegarde31 unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (see #327200771).

1678646992.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1678646993.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1678646994.  Fulbert of31 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

1678646996.  Baldwin IV of31 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

1678646997.  Ogive (Otgive) of31 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

1678646998.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678646999.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678647000.  Crinan of31 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (see #327200792).

1678647001.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of31 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (see #327200793).

1678647002.  Siward of31 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (see #327200794).

1678647004.  Edmund Ironside of31 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) (see #327200796).

1678647005.  Ealgyth of31 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797).

1678647012.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678647013.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678647014.  Dalmas I of31 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (see #327200806).

1678647015.  Aremburge of31 Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807).

1678647176.  Robert The Old of31 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

1678647177.  Helie of31 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

1678647178.  Count Raymond Berenger I of31 Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (see #1678647179) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 101.).  He died in 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count Raymond Berenger I of31 Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" and Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (see #1678647179) are:


 839323589.
i.
Sibylle de30 (5122).XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)"
1678647179.  Guisle31 d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Count Raymond Berenger I of Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" (see #1678647178), son of Count Raymond Borel III of Barcelone (5126)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Borel III of (Count)  (5126) (        -1019)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Borel III of Count (5126) (        -1019)" and Ermesende de Carcassonne (5124)XE "Carcassonne:Ermesende de  (5124)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 101.).

1678647180.  Raynald (Renaud) of31 Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" in 1023 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1057.

     Children of Raynald (Renaud) of31 Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" and Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (see #1678647181) were:


 839323590.
i.
William I of30 (5129).XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)"
1678647181.  Alice (Adelaide) of31 Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (Richard, #327200784) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Raynald (Renaud) of Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" in 1023 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died.

1678647182.  Count Adalbert III of31 Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (see #1678647183), daughter of Count Bernard Rodger of Conserans (5133)XE "Conserans:Bernard Rodger of (Count)  (5133)"

XE "Conserans:Bernard Rodger of Count (5133)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1048 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     (an unknown value) (Count de Longway, Duke of Upper Lorraine) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     Children of Count Adalbert III of31 Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" and Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (see #1678647183) were:


 839323591.
i.
Stephanie de30 (5130).XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)"
1678647183.  Clemence de31 Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Count Adalbert III of Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" (see #1678647182) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

1678647216.  Theobald III of31 Blois Count (4602)XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count (4602) (-1089)"

XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count  (4602) (-1089)" (Eudes, #736187016) (see #368093508).

1678647217.  Alix de31 Crepi (4603)XE "Crepi:Alix de  (4603)" (see #368093509).

1678647218.  William I the Conqueror of31 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

1678647219.  Maud of31 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

1678647220.  Count Eustace II of31 Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" (Eustace, #736186956) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 138.) married Ida of Lorraine (5155)XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" (see #1678647221), daughter of Duke Godfrey (Geoffrey) of Lorraine the Bearded (5156)XE "Lorraine:Godfrey (Geoffrey) of (Duke) the Bearded (5156) (before 1061-18 Jul 1100)"

XE "Lorraine:Godfrey (Geoffrey) of the Bearded Duke (5156) (before 1061-18 Jul 1100)" and Dada (Ida) (--?--) (5157),XE "(--?--):Dada (Ida)  (5157)" in 1057 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  He died circa 1080 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     (an unknown value) (Companion of William I, the Conqueror, at the battle of Hastingas) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     Children of Count Eustace II of31 Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" and Ida of Lorraine (5155)XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" (see #1678647221) were:


 839323610.
i.
Eustace III of30 (5152).XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"
1678647221.  Ida of31 Lorraine (5155)XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138 & 139.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Count Eustace II of Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" (see #1678647220), son of Count Eustace I of Boulogne (5158)XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of (Count)  (5158) (        -1049)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of Count (5158) (        -1049)" and Maud of Louvain (5159),XE "Louvain:Maud of  (5159)" in 1057 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  She died on 13 Aug 1113 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

1678647222.  Malcolm III Canmore of31 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

1678647223.  Margaret of31 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

1678647232.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678647233.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678647234.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678647235.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678647236.  Saint Vladimir of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Svatislav, #1308803464) (see #654401732).

1678647237.  Rogneide of31 Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Rognald, #1308803466) (see #654401733).

1678647238.  Olaf Skötkonung of31 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" (Erik, #1308803468) (see #654401734).

1678647244.  Bernard I of31 Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" (Hermann, #1308803480) (see #654401740).

1678647245.  Hildegarde von31 Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" (Henry Staden, #1308803482) (see #654401741).

1678647246.  Henry Murgrave von31 Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" (see #654401742).

1678647247.  Gerberga von31 Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401743).

1678671880.  Bouchard de31 Montmorency (3168)XE "Montmorency:Bouchard de  (3168) (-1020)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died in 1020.

     Children of Bouchard de31 Montmorency (3168)XE "Montmorency:Bouchard de  (3168) (-1020)" and Elizabeth de Crecy (3169)XE "Crecy:Elizabeth de  (3169)" (see #1308803529) were:


 654401764.
i.
Thibault de30 (3167).XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)"
1678671881.  Elizabeth de31 Crecy (3169)XE "Crecy:Elizabeth de  (3169)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1678671890.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678671891.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678671896.  Artaud de31 Forez (3215)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3215)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

     Children of Artaud de31 Forez (3215)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3215)" and Theodeberge (--?--) (3216)XE "(--?--):Theodeberge  (3216)" (see #1308803545) were:


 654401772.
i.
Artaud de30 (3213).XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)"
1678671897.  Theodeberge31 (--?--) (3216)XE "(--?--):Theodeberge  (3216)" (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) died.

1678672072.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678672073.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678672074.  Jaroslav I of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3607)XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)"

XE "Kiev:Jaroslav I of Grand Prince  (3607) (-20 Feb 1054)" (Saint, #654401732) (see #327200866).

1678672075.  Ingeborg of31 Sweden (3608)XE "Sweden:Ingeborg of  (3608) (-10 Feb 1050)" (Olaf, #654401734) (see #327200867).

1678672076.  Otho (Eudes or Otto) of31 Vermandoise Count (3311)XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)"

XE "Vermandoise:Otho (Eudes or Otto) of Count  (3311) (circa 1000-25 May 1045)" (Herbert Vermandois, #1472373944) (see #736186972).

1678672077.  Parvie31 (--?--) (3312)XE "(--?--):Parvie  (3312)" (see #736186973).

1678672078.  Raoul III of31 Vexin Count (3310)XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count (3310)"

XE "Vexin:Raoul III of Count  (3310)" (see #736186974).

1678672096.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1678672097.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1678672098.  Fulbert of31 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

1678672100.  Baldwin IV of31 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

1678672101.  Ogive (Otgive) of31 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

1678672102.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678672103.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678674136.  Count Lambert II of31 Louvain (5215)XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)" (Lambert, #1472373914) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) was born circa 991 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He married Count Oda of Verdun (5216)XE "Verdun:Oda of (Count)  (5216)"

XE "Verdun:Oda of Count (5216)" (see #1678645465), daughter of Count Gozelon I Verdun (5217)XE "Verdun:Gozelon I (Count)  (5217) (        -19 Apr 1044)"

XE "Verdun:Gozelon I Count (5217) (        -19 Apr 1044)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).  He died after 21 Sep 1062 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Count Lambert II of31 Louvain (5215)XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)" and Count Oda of Verdun (5216)XE "Verdun:Oda of (Count)  (5216)"

XE "Verdun:Oda of Count (5216)" (see #1678645465) were:


 839322732.
i.
Henry II of30 (5210).XE "Brabant:Henry II of (Count)  (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"

XE "Brabant:Henry II of Count (5210) (circa 1021-1079)"
1678674137.  Count Oda of31 Verdun (5216)XE "Verdun:Oda of (Count)  (5216)"

XE "Verdun:Oda of Count (5216)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.) married Count Lambert II of Louvain (5215)XE "Louvain:Lambert II of (Count)  (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert II of Count (5215) (circa 991-after 21 Sep 1062)" (see #1678645464), son of Count Lambert I of Louvain the Bearded (5160)XE "Louvain:Lambert I of (Count) the Bearded (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)"

XE "Louvain:Lambert I of the Bearded Count (5160) (circa 950-12 Sep 1015)" and Gerberga of Lorraine (5161)XE "Lorraine:Gerberga of  (5161) (circa 975-27 Jan 1018)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

1678674138.  Count Eberhard von der31 Betuwe (5212)XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der (Count)  (5212)"

XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der Count (5212)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 135.).

     Children of Count Eberhard von der31 Betuwe (5212)XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der (Count)  (5212)"

XE "Betuwe:Eberhard von der Count (5212)" include:


 839322733.
i.
Adelaide (Adela) of30 (5211).XE "Orlamunda:Adelaide (Adela) of  (5211) (        -1086)"
1678674140.  Count Arnold II31 Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Adela de Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (see #1678645469), daughter of Hildouin III de Rameru Count (3401)XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)"

XE "Rameru:Hildouin III de Count  (3401) (circa 1010-circa 1063)" and Adele (Alix) de Roucy (3402)XE "Roucy:Adele (Alix) de  (3402) (circa 1014-1063)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  He died (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Count Arnold II31 Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" and Adela de Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (see #1678645469) were:


 839322734.
i.
Otto II of30 (5219).XE "Chiny:Otto II of (Count)  (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"

XE "Chiny:Otto II of Count (5219) (        -between 1124 and 1131)"
1678674141.  Adela de31 Montdidier (3404)XE "Montdidier:Adela de  (3404) (circa 1050-)" (Hildouin Rameru, #327200858) (Lorinda Stover Steadman "Lori," MAYFLO6A GEDCOM of Mayflower Ancestors and Descendants.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) was born circa 1050 at La Sarraz, Switzerland.  She married Count Arnold II Chiny (5220)XE "Chiny:Arnold II (Count)  (5220)"

XE "Chiny:Arnold II Count (5220)" (see #1678645468) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).  She died.

1678674142.  Count Albert III of31 Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Ida of Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (see #1678645471), daughter of Duke Bernard II of Saxony (5227)XE "Saxony:Bernard II of (Duke)  (5227) (circa 995-1057)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard II of Duke (5227) (circa 995-1057)" and Elicia von Schweinfurt (5228),XE "Schweinfurt:Elicia von  (5228)" circa 1067 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

     Children of Count Albert III of31 Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" and Ida of Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (see #1678645471) were:


 839322735.
i.
Adelaide of30 (5218).XE "Namur:Adelaide of  (5218) (1068-1124)"
1678674143.  Ida of31 Saxony (5226)XE "Saxony:Ida of  (5226)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.) married Count Albert III of Namur (5225)XE "Namur:Albert III of (Count)  (5225)"

XE "Namur:Albert III of Count (5225)" (see #1678645470), son of Count Albert II of Namur (5230)XE "Namur:Albert II of (Count)  (5230) (circa 1000-1064)"

XE "Namur:Albert II of Count (5230) (circa 1000-1064)" and Regilinde of Lorraine (5231),XE "Lorraine:Regilinde of  (5231) (        -1064)" circa 1067 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 131.).

1678674144.  Aubri-Geoffrey of31 Gatinais Count (3545)XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)"

XE "Gatinais:Aubri-Geoffrey of Count  (3545) (-1 Apr 1046)" (Geoffrey, #327200768) (see #163600384).

1678674145.  Ermengarde of31 Anjou (3546)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (3546) (-21 Mar 1076)" (Fulk, #327200770) (see #163600385).

1678674146.  Simon I of31 Montfort Seigneur (3543)XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur (3543) (-circa 1087)"

XE "Montfort:Simon I of Seigneur  (3543) (-circa 1087)" (see #163600386).

1678674147.  Agnes31 d'Evreux (3544)XE "d'Evreux:Agnes  (3544)" (see #163600387).

1678674164.  Henry I of31 France King (3194)XE "France:Henry I of King (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)"

XE "France:Henry I of King  (3194) (1006-4 Aug 1060)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600432).

1678674165.  Anne of31 Kiev (3195)XE "Kiev:Anne of  (3195) (-after 1075)" (Jaroslav, #327200866) (see #163600433).

1678674166.  Herbert IV of31 Vermandoise Count (3308)XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)"

XE "Vermandoise:Herbert IV of Count  (3308) (circa 1032-circa 1080)" (Otho, #736186972) (see #368093486).

1678674167.  Adela de31 Vexin (3309)XE "Vexin:Adela de  (3309)" (Raoul, #736186974) (see #368093487).

1678674170.  Count Guy I of31 Ponthieu (5115)XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of (Count)  (5115) (        -1100)"

XE "Ponthieu:Guy I of Count (5115) (        -1100)" (see #839323586).

1678674172.  Henry of31 Burgundy (5121)XE "Burgundy:Henry of  (5121) (        -circa 1072)" (Robert, #163600402) (see #839323588).

1678674173.  Sibylle de31 Barcelone (5122)XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)" (Raymond, #1678647178) (see #839323589).

1678674174.  Count William I of31 Burgundy the Great (5129)XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)" (Raynald, #1678647180) (see #839323590).

1678674175.  Stephanie de31 Longway (5130)XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)" (Adalbert, #1678647182) (see #839323591).

1678674204.  Richard31 Fitz Scrob (4160)XE "Fitz Scrob:Richard  (4160) (-1067)" (see #368093532).

1678674206.  Gruffydd ap31 Llywelyn Prince (4147)XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)"

XE "Llywelyn:Gruffydd ap Prince  (4147) (-5 Aug 1063)" (Llywelyn Seisyll, #736187068) (see #368093534).

1678674207.  Aldgyth of31 Mercia (4148)XE "Mercia:Aldgyth of  (4148)" (Aelfgar, #736187070) (see #368093535).

1678674374.  Girard31 Flatel (3396)XE "Flatel:Girard  (3396) (circa 985-)" (see #736186502).

1678674382.  Ebles I of31 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (see #654401718).

1678674383.  Beatrix of31 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (see #654401719).

1678674948.  Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of31 Anjou Count (2963)XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count (2963) (-21 Jul 987)"

XE "Anjou:Geoffrey I "Grisgonelle" of Count  (2963) (-21 Jul 987)" (Fulk Anjoy, #1308803080) (see #654401540).

1678674949.  Adelaide de31 Vermandois (2964)XE "Vermandois:Adelaide de  (2964) (950-978)" (Robert (?), #1308803082) (see #654401541).

1678674976.  Richard I the Fearless of31 Normandy Duke (3517)XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)"

XE "Normandy:Richard I the Fearless of Duke  (3517) (circa 933-20 Nov 996)" (William, #1308803136) (see #654401568).

1678674977.  Gunnor of31 Arques (3518)XE "Arques:Gunnor of  (3518) (-1027)" (forester, #1308803138) (see #654401569).

1678674978.  Conan I of31 Rennes Duke of Brittany (2962)XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany (2962) (-992)"

XE "Rennes:Conan I of Duke of Brittany  (2962) (-992)" (see #654401570).

1678674979.  Ermengarde of31 Anjou (2961)XE "Anjou:Ermengarde of  (2961)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #654401571).

1678674984.  Arnold II the Young of31 Flanders Count (3483)XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)"

XE "Flanders:Arnold II the Young of Count  (3483) (Dec 961-30 Mar 987)" (Baldwin, #1308803152) (see #654401576).

1678674985.  Rosela (Susanna) of31 Italy Princess (3484)XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)"

XE "Italy:Rosela (Susanna) of Princess  (3484) (circa 952-26 Jan 1003)" (Berengarius, #1308803154) (see #654401577).

1678674986.  Frederick I of31 Luxembourg Count (3433)XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count (3433) (circa 965-1019)"

XE "Luxembourg:Frederick I of Count  (3433) (circa 965-1019)" (see #654401578).

1678674987.  Ermentrude von31 Gleiberg (3432)XE "Gleiberg:Ermentrude von  (3432)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401579).

1678674988.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678674989.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678674990.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678674991.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678674994.  Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of31 Scotland King (3254)XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)"

XE "Scotland:Mael-Coluim (Malcolm II) of King  (3254) (-25 Nov 1034)" (Cinaed, #1308803172) (see #654401586).

1678675000.  Aethelred II of31 England King (3118)XE "England:Aethelred II of King (3118) (968-1016)"

XE "England:Aethelred II of King  (3118) (968-1016)" (Edgar, #1308803184) (see #654401592).

1678675016.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678675017.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678675018.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678675019.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678675126.  Ebles I of31 Roucy Count (3562)XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count (3562) (-11 May 1033)"

XE "Roucy:Ebles I of Count  (3562) (-11 May 1033)" (Giselbert, #1308803436) (see #654401718).

1678675127.  Beatrix of31 Hainaut (3563)XE "Hainaut:Beatrix of  (3563)" (Regnier, #1308803438) (see #654401719).

1678675128.  Robert I31 (--?--) Duke of Normandy (2956)XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)"

XE "(--?--):Robert I Duke of Normandy  (2956) (-22 Jul 1035)" (Richard Normandy, #327200784) (see #163600392).

1678675129.  Arlette of31 Falais (2957)XE "Falais:Arlette of  (2957)" (Fulbert, #327200786) (see #163600393).

1678675130.  Baldwin V of31 Flanders Count (3473)XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin V of Count  (3473) (1012-1 Sep 1067)" (Baldwin, #327200788) (see #163600394).

1678675131.  Adele (Aelis) de31 France (3474)XE "France:Adele (Aelis) de  (3474) (1009-8 Jan 1079)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #163600395).

1678675136.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678675137.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678675138.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678675139.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678675140.  Saint Vladimir of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Svatislav, #1308803464) (see #654401732).

1678675141.  Rogneide of31 Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Rognald, #1308803466) (see #654401733).

1678675142.  Olaf Skötkonung of31 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" (Erik, #1308803468) (see #654401734).

1678675148.  Bernard I of31 Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" (Hermann, #1308803480) (see #654401740).

1678675149.  Hildegarde von31 Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" (Henry Staden, #1308803482) (see #654401741).

1678675150.  Henry Murgrave von31 Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" (see #654401742).

1678675151.  Gerberga von31 Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401743).

1678675172.  Thibault de31 Montlhery (3167)XE "Montlhery:Thibault de  (3167) (circa 983-)" (Bouchard Montmorency, #1308803528) (see #654401764).

1678675176.  Renaud I de31 Nevers Count (3186)XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)"

XE "Nevers:Renaud I de Count  (3186) (circa 993-29 May 1040)" (see #654401768).

1678675177.  Adele of31 France Countess (3187)XE "France:Adele of Countess (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)"

XE "France:Adele of Countess  (3187) (1003-5 Jun 1063)" (Robert, #327200790) (see #654401769).

1678675180.  Artaud de31 Forez (3213)XE "Forez:Artaud de  (3213) (circa 1003-)" (Artaud, #1308803544) (see #654401772).

1678675181.  Raymonde31 (--?--) (3214)XE "(--?--):Raymonde  (3214) (circa 1007-)" (see #654401773).

1678675648.  Geoffrey III of31 Gatinais Count (3547)XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count (3547)"

XE "Gatinais:Geoffrey III of Count  (3547)" (see #327200768).

1678675649.  Beatrix of31 Macon (3548)XE "Macon:Beatrix of  (3548)" (see #327200769).

1678675650.  Fulk III the Black of31 Anjou Count (2967)XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)"

XE "Anjou:Fulk III the Black of Count  (2967) (-21 Jun 1040)" (Geoffrey, #654401540) (see #327200770).

1678675651.  Hildegarde31 unknown (3549)XE "unknown:Hildegarde  (3549) (-1 Apr 1040)" (see #327200771).

1678675664.  Richard II the Good of31 Normandy Duke (2960)XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)"

XE "Normandy:Richard II the Good of Duke  (2960) (-28 Aug 1026)" (Richard, #654401568) (see #327200784).

1678675665.  Judith of31 Brittany (2959)XE "Brittany:Judith of  (2959) (982-1017)" (Conan Rennes, #654401570) (see #327200785).

1678675666.  Fulbert of31 Falais (2958)XE "Falais:Fulbert of  (2958)" (see #327200786).

1678675668.  Baldwin IV of31 Flanders Count (3476)XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count (3476) (980-30 May 1036)"

XE "Flanders:Baldwin IV of Count  (3476) (980-30 May 1036)" (Arnold, #654401576) (see #327200788).

1678675669.  Ogive (Otgive) of31 Luxembourg (3479)XE "Luxembourg:Ogive (Otgive) of  (3479) (995-21 Feb 1030)" (Frederick, #654401578) (see #327200789).

1678675670.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678675671.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678675672.  Crinan of31 Dunkeld Abbot (3253)XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot (3253) (978-1045)"

XE "Dunkeld:Crinan of Abbot  (3253) (978-1045)" (see #327200792).

1678675673.  Bethoc (Beatrix) of31 Scotland (3250)XE "Scotland:Bethoc (Beatrix) of  (3250)" (Mael-Coluim, #654401586) (see #327200793).

1678675674.  Siward of31 Northumbria Earl (3252)XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl (3252)"

XE "Northumbria:Siward of Earl  (3252)" (see #327200794).

1678675676.  Edmund Ironside of31 England King (3116)XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)"

XE "England:Edmund Ironside of King  (3116) (989-30 Nov 1016)" (Aethelred, #654401592) (see #327200796).

1678675677.  Ealgyth of31 Mercia (3117)XE "Mercia:Ealgyth of  (3117)" (see #327200797).

1678675684.  Robert II of31 France King (3188)XE "France:Robert II of King (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)"

XE "France:Robert II of King  (3188) (27 Mar 972-20 Jul 1031)" (Hugh, #654401580) (see #327200790).

1678675685.  Constance of31 Provence Queen (3189)XE "Provence:Constance of Queen (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)"

XE "Provence:Constance of Queen  (3189) (circa 986-25 Jul 1032)" (William, #654401582) (see #327200791).

1678675686.  Dalmas I of31 Semur-en-Auxois (5096)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Dalmas I of  (5096)" (see #327200806).

1678675687.  Aremburge of31 Burgundy (5097)XE "Burgundy:Aremburge of  (5097)" (see #327200807).

1678675848.  Robert The Old of31 Burgundy Duke (3198)XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke (3198) (circa 1011-1076)"

XE "Burgundy:Robert The Old of Duke  (3198) (circa 1011-1076)" (Robert France, #327200790) (see #163600402).

1678675849.  Helie of31 Semur-en-Auxois (3200)XE "Semur-en-Auxois:Helie of  (3200) (1028-1109)" (Dalmas, #327200806) (see #163600403).

1678675850.  Count Raymond Berenger I of31 Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (see #1678647179) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 101.).  He died in 1035 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.).

     Children of Count Raymond Berenger I of31 Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" and Guisle d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (see #1678647179) are:


 839323589.
i.
Sibylle de30 (5122).XE "Barcelone:Sibylle de  (5122)"
1678675851.  Guisle31 d'Ampurias (5125)XE "d'Ampurias:Guisle  (5125)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 101.) married Count Raymond Berenger I of Barcelone (5123)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of (Count)  (5123) (        -1035)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Berenger I of Count (5123) (        -1035)" (see #1678647178), son of Count Raymond Borel III of Barcelone (5126)XE "Barcelone:Raymond Borel III of (Count)  (5126) (        -1019)"

XE "Barcelone:Raymond Borel III of Count (5126) (        -1019)" and Ermesende de Carcassonne (5124)XE "Carcassonne:Ermesende de  (5124)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, 101.).

1678675852.  Raynald (Renaud) of31 Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" in 1023 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1057.

     Children of Raynald (Renaud) of31 Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" and Alice (Adelaide) of Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (see #1678647181) were:


 839323590.
i.
William I of30 (5129).XE "Burgundy:William I of (Count) the Great (5129) (        -1087)"

XE "Burgundy:William I of the Great Count (5129) (        -1087)"
1678675853.  Alice (Adelaide) of31 Normandy (3657)XE "Normandy:Alice (Adelaide) of  (3657)" (Richard, #327200784) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Raynald (Renaud) of Burgundy Count (3658)XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count (3658) (-1057)"

XE "Burgundy:Raynald (Renaud) of Count  (3658) (-1057)" in 1023 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  She died.

1678675854.  Count Adalbert III of31 Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (see #1678647183), daughter of Count Bernard Rodger of Conserans (5133)XE "Conserans:Bernard Rodger of (Count)  (5133)"

XE "Conserans:Bernard Rodger of Count (5133)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).  He died in 1048 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     (an unknown value) (Count de Longway, Duke of Upper Lorraine) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

     Children of Count Adalbert III of31 Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" and Clemence de Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (see #1678647183) were:


 839323591.
i.
Stephanie de30 (5130).XE "Longway:Stephanie de  (5130) (circa 1035-after 1088)"
1678675855.  Clemence de31 Foix (5132)XE "Foix:Clemence de  (5132)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.) married Count Adalbert III of Longway (5131)XE "Longway:Adalbert III of (Count)  (5131) (        -1048)"

XE "Longway:Adalbert III of Count (5131) (        -1048)" (see #1678647182) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 116.).

1678675888.  Theobald III of31 Blois Count (4602)XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count (4602) (-1089)"

XE "Blois:Theobald III of Count  (4602) (-1089)" (Eudes, #736187016) (see #368093508).

1678675889.  Alix de31 Crepi (4603)XE "Crepi:Alix de  (4603)" (see #368093509).

1678675890.  William I the Conqueror of31 Normandy King (2954)XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)"

XE "Normandy:William I the Conqueror of King  (2954) (1027-9 Sep 1087)" (Robert (?), #163600392) (see #81800196).

1678675891.  Maud of31 Flanders (2955)XE "Flanders:Maud of  (2955) (1032-3 Nov 1083)" (Baldwin, #163600394) (see #81800197).

1678675892.  Count Eustace II of31 Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" (Eustace, #736186956) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Pages 130 & 138.) married Ida of Lorraine (5155)XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" (see #1678647221), daughter of Duke Godfrey (Geoffrey) of Lorraine the Bearded (5156)XE "Lorraine:Godfrey (Geoffrey) of (Duke) the Bearded (5156) (before 1061-18 Jul 1100)"

XE "Lorraine:Godfrey (Geoffrey) of the Bearded Duke (5156) (before 1061-18 Jul 1100)" and Dada (Ida) (--?--) (5157),XE "(--?--):Dada (Ida)  (5157)" in 1057 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  He died circa 1080 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     (an unknown value) (Companion of William I, the Conqueror, at the battle of Hastingas) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

     Children of Count Eustace II of31 Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" and Ida of Lorraine (5155)XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" (see #1678647221) were:


 839323610.
i.
Eustace III of30 (5152).XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of (Count)  (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace III of Count (5152) (        -31 May 1116)"
1678675893.  Ida of31 Lorraine (5155)XE "Lorraine:Ida of  (5155) (        -13 Aug 1113)" (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138 & 139.) (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.) married Count Eustace II of Boulogne (5154)XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of (Count)  (5154) (        -circa 1080)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace II of Count (5154) (        -circa 1080)" (see #1678647220), son of Count Eustace I of Boulogne (5158)XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of (Count)  (5158) (        -1049)"

XE "Boulogne:Eustace I of Count (5158) (        -1049)" and Maud of Louvain (5159),XE "Louvain:Maud of  (5159)" in 1057 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).  She died on 13 Aug 1113 (Frederick Lewis Weis, Ancestral Roots of Certain American Colonists, who Came to America before 1700, Page 138.).

1678675894.  Malcolm III Canmore of31 Scotland King (3112)XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Malcolm III Canmore of King  (3112) (1031-13 Nov 1093)" (Duncan, #163600396) (see #81800198).

1678675895.  Margaret of31 Scotland Saint (3113)XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)"

XE "Scotland:Margaret of Saint  (3113) (1045-16 Nov 1093)" (Edward (?), #163600398) (see #81800199).

1678675904.  Hugh Capet of31 France King (3192)XE "France:Hugh Capet of King (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)"

XE "France:Hugh Capet of King  (3192) (circa 939-24 Oct 996)" (Hugh Paris, #1308803160) (see #654401580).

1678675905.  Adelaide of31 Poitou (3193)XE "Poitou:Adelaide of  (3193) (circa 952-1004)" (William, #1308803162) (see #654401581).

1678675906.  William (Guillaume) II of31 Provence Count (4618)XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count (4618) (950-993)"

XE "Provence:William (Guillaume) II of Count  (4618) (950-993)" (Boso Avignon & Arles, #1308803164) (see #654401582).

1678675907.  Adelaide (Blanche) of31 Anjou (4617)XE "Anjou:Adelaide (Blanche) of  (4617) (-1026)" (Fulk, #1308803166) (see #654401583).

1678675908.  Saint Vladimir of31 Kiev Grand Prince (3615)XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)"

XE "Kiev:Saint Vladimir of Grand Prince  (3615) (-15 Jul 1015)" (Svatislav, #1308803464) (see #654401732).

1678675909.  Rogneide of31 Polotzk (3616)XE "Polotzk:Rogneide of  (3616)" (Rognald, #1308803466) (see #654401733).

1678675910.  Olaf Skötkonung of31 Sweden King (3609)XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)"

XE "Sweden:Olaf Skötkonung of King  (3609) (circa 960-circa 1020)" (Erik, #1308803468) (see #654401734).

1678675916.  Bernard I of31 Saxony Duke (3447)XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)"

XE "Saxony:Bernard I of Duke  (3447) (circa 976-9 Feb 1011)" (Hermann, #1308803480) (see #654401740).

1678675917.  Hildegarde von31 Stade (3448)XE "Stade:Hildegarde von  (3448) (circa 954-3 Oct 1011)" (Henry Staden, #1308803482) (see #654401741).

1678675918.  Henry Murgrave von31 Schweinfurt (3428)XE "Schweinfurt:Henry Murgrave von  (3428) (circa 975-18 Sep 1017)" (see #654401742).

1678675919.  Gerberga von31 Gleiberg (3429)XE "Gleiberg:Gerberga von  (3429)" (Herbert, #1308803158) (see #654401743).
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